
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 

March 28, 2023 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, March 28, 2023 6:30 PM 
 

Rosario Rodriguez, Mayor 

 

YK Chalamcherla, Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, Councilmember 
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember Anna Rohrbough, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Effective July 7, 2022, the City of Folsom returned to all in-person City Council, Commission, and 

Committee meetings.  Remote participation for the public will no longer be offered.   

Everyone is invited and encouraged to attend and participate in City meetings in person. 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Kozlowski, Rohrbough, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Rodriguez 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Folsom Tourism and Economic Development Corporation (TEDCorp) Quarterly Report 

  

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

2. Approval of March 14, 2023 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

3. Ordinance No. 1337 - An Uncodified Ordinance  of the City of Folsom Approving Amendment 
No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement Between the City of 
Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan 
(Second Reading and Adoption) 

4. Resolution No. 11006 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with McGuire and Hester for the Construction of the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No. 3 
Project and Appropriation of Funds 

5. Resolution No. 11008 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle 
Management Employees (CFFDMME) 

6. Resolution No. 11009 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group (FMMG) 

7. Resolution No. 11013 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with NBS Government Financing Group for Assessment Engineering Services 

8. Resolution No. 11014 - A Resolution Directing the Preparation of Engineer’s Report for the 
Following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 American River Canyon 
North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine 
Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit 
No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge II/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, 
Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie 
Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, 
Steeplechase, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American River 
Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates 
South, and Willow Springs 

9. 2022 General Plan (and Housing Element) Annual Progress Report 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

10. Amendment to City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement 
Area No. 2 

i. Resolution No. 11010 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling a Special 
Mailed-Ballot Election Related to Change Proceedings for Improvement Area No. 2 within City of 
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)  

 ii. Resolution No. 11011 – A Resolution of Change of the City Council of the City of Folsom 
Relating to Improvement Area No. 2 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 
(Folsom Ranch) 

 iii. Ordinance No. 1338 – An Uncodified Ordinance Levying a Special Tax for the Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement Area No. 2 
within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Introduction and 
First Reading) 

  

Page 3



4 

NEW BUSINESS: 

11. Proposed Historic Folsom Property & Business Improvement District 

i. Resolution 11007 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign the Petition and Ballot 
on Behalf of the City of Folsom in Support of the Renewal of the Historic Folsom Property and 
Business Improvement District   

12. Housing Element Program H-2 - Additional Housing Capacity Buildout Assumptions Analysis and 
Recommendations 

13. Appeal by Katharine Gray of Decisions by the Planning Commission Adopting a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and Approving a 
Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for Development of 
the 136-unit Vintage Senior Apartments project (PN 21-259) Located at 103 East Natoma Street   

OLD BUSINESS: 

14. Resolution No. 11015 - A Resolution Adopting the City of Folsom Strategic Plan, FY2023-24 
through FY2027-28 

COUNCIL REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

Page 4



5 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 6



ffi
..i1.,d3[r$l **bst

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Representatives from Folsom Tourism and Economic Development Corporation (TEDCorp)
will provide a quarterly report. No action is requested of the City Council.

Respectfu lly submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

MEETING DATE: 312812023

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Folsom Tourism and Economic Development Corporation
(TEDCorp) Quarterly Report

FROM: City Clerk's Department

I
Page 7

03/28/2023 Item No.1.



This pnge intentionally Ieft blCInk

to focilitote double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLSONI
OISTINCTIVE BY NA?URE

Page 8

03/28/2023 Item No.1.



Book77 Page 53
Folsom City Council

March 14,2023

Gity Gouncil Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, March 14,2023 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 6:15 p.m. with Mayor Rosario Rodriguez
presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Anna Rohrbough, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, MaYor

Councilmembers Absent

Participating Staff:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

AD,TOURNMENT TO GLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation - Pursuant to Government Code section

549S6.9(d)(1): Brittany Nikol and Michael Nikol v. City of Folsom, Sacramento County Superior

Court Case No. 34-2023-00335185

Motion by Councilmember Sarah Aquino, second by Vice Mayor YK Ghalamcherla, to adjourn to
closed session for the above referenced item. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

Councilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rohrbough, Aquino, Rodriguez
Gouncilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steven Wang announced that no final action was taken during closed session

DRAFT - not fficial until approved by the City Council. Page 9

03/28/2023 Item No.2.



Book77 Page 54
Folsom Ci$ Council

March 14,2023

ADJOURNMENT

The special meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at 6:30 p.m

SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST

Rosario Rodriguez, Mayor

DMFT - not fficial until approved by the City Council. Page 10

03/28/2023 Item No.2.



Book77 Page 55
Folsom City Council

March 14,2023

Gity Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, March 14,2023 6:30 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm with Mayor Rosario Rodriguez
presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: YK Chalamcherla, Vice Mayor
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Anna Rohrbough, Councilmember
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent:

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni
Senior Trails Planner Brett Bollinger
Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione
Public Works Director Mark Rackovan
Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake
Principal Planner Desmond Parrington

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Attorney Steven Wang announced that there was an additional information for item 12

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

The following speakers addressed the City Council:

L shagun Juthani regarding SB-54
2. Steve Walsh regarding development of the River District

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 11

03/28/2023 Item No.2.



Book77 Page 56
Folsom City Council

March 14,2023

SGHEDULED PRESENTATIONS:

i. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming the Month of March 2023 as

American Red Cross Month in the City of Folsom

Mayor Rosario Rodriguez presented the proclamation to Roxanne Gould, Chair of the Board and Eileen

Reynolds, lmmediate Past Chair of the California Gold Country Region of Red Cross.

2. City Manager's Fiscal Year 2022-23 Second Quarter Financial Report

Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from the City

Council.

3. presentation on the Folsom Boulevard Pedestrian and Bicycle Overcrossing Feasibility Study

Senior Trails Planner Brett Bollinger made a presentation and responded to questions from the City

Council. Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione provided additional clarification.

CONSENT GALENDAR:

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one

motion. City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion.

4. Approval of January 18,2023 Special Meeting Minutes

5. pulled for comment

6. Approval of February 28,2023 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

7 . Resolution No. 10999 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No.

2 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 18-035) with West Yost & Associates, lnc. for Design

Services for the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No' 3 Prolect

B. Resolution No. 11000 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No.

2 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-034) with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Design

Services for the Folsom Boulevard 27-lnch Trunk Sewer Project (SECAP Project)

g. Resolution No. 11001 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No.

1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 21-006) with lnferrera Construction Management

Group, lnc. for Construction Management and lnspection Services for the Oak Avenue Pump

Station Peak Wet Weather Flow Relief Project and Appropriation of Funds

10. Resolution No. 11002 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Olin Corporation, DBA Olin Chlor Alkali Products for the Supply of Sodium Hypochlorite for
the Water Treatment Plant and Appropriation of Funds

11. Resolution No. 11003 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No'

1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 22-029) with HDR Engineering, lnc. for Engineering

DMFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 12

03/28/2023 Item No.2.



Book77 Page 57
Folsom City Council

March 14,2023

Services for the Water Treatment Plant Backwash and Recycled Water Upgrades Project and

Appropriation of Funds

12. pulled for comment

13. pulled for comment

Motion by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino, second by Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, to approve

items 4 and 6-11 of the Consent Galendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AyES: Gouncilmember(s): Chatamcherla, Kozlowski, Rohrbough, Aquino, Rodriguez

NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

CONSENT GALENDAR ITEMS PULLED FOR DISGUSSION:

5. Approval of February 16,2023 Special Meeting Minutes

Councilmember Sarah Aquino pulled this item to suggest correction of a typo and to add the consultant

firm name.

Motion by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino, second by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski, to

approve ihe special meeting minutes of February 16,2023 as amended.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rohrbough, Aquino, Rodriguez
Gouncilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None

12. Resolution No. 11004 - A Resolution Authorizing the city Manager to Execute a construction

Agreement with McGuire and Hester, lnc. for the Folsom Lake Crossing and East Natoma Street

Friction Enhancement Project

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski commented regarding concerns from a resident and asked for

clarification from staff. public Works Director Mirk Rackovan responded, followed by further discussion

and clarification between the City Council and staff regarding the project.

Motion by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, second by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino, to
approve Resolution No. 11004.

Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Aquino, Rodriguez

DRAFT - Not fficiat until approved by the City Council Page 13

03/28/2023 Item No.2.



Book77 Page 58
Folsom City Council

March 14,2023

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s): Rohrbough
Gouncilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): None

13. Resolution No. 1 1005 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with West Yost & Associates, lnc. for Construction Management and lnspection Services for the

Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No. 3 Project

Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla asked for clarification regarding the prequalification list for the project.

Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake responded.

Motion by Vice Mayor YK Ghalamcherla, second by Councilmember Sarah Aquino, to approve
Resolution No. 11005.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AyES: Councilmember(s): Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rohrbough, Aquino, Rodriguez
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

PUBLIG HEARING:

14. Folsom Ranch Apartments Development Agreement Amendment - Northwest Corner of Alder
Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive (MSTR 22-218)

i. Ordinance No. 1337 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving Amendment

No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement Between the City of
Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan

(lntroduction and First Reading)

Principal Planner Desmond Parrington made a presentation and responded to questions from the City

Council. City Attorney Steve Wang noted that the developer, Eagle Commercial Properties, voluntarily

offered affordable housing without requesting a City subsidy. Eagle Commercial Properties

representative Chad Roberts thanked the City Council.

Motion by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, second by Vice Mayor YK Ghalamcherla to
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1337-

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AyES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rohrbough, Aquino, Rodriguez
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 14

03/28/2023 Item No.2.



Book77 Page 59
Folsom City Council

March 14,2023

CONVENE JOINT MEETING

JOINT AGENDA

Joint City Council / Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency / Folsom Public Financing Authority /
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority / South of 50 Parking Authority Meeting

ROLL CALL:

YK Chalamcherla, Vice MaYor
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Anna Rohrbough, Councilmember
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Mayor

Councilmembers/Board
Members Absent:

None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni

CONSENT LENDAR:

15. Approval of the December 13, 2022 Joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency /
Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing

Authority Meeting Minutes

16. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom

Public Financing Author'rty, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking

Authority Monthly lnvestment Reports for the Month of December 2022

Motion by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino, second by Vice Mayor YK Ghalamcherla, to approve
the Gonsent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

Councilmembers/Board
Members Present:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncil/Boardmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rohrbough, Aquino,
Rodriguez

Gouncil/Boardmember(s): None
Gouncil/Boardmember(s): None
Gouncil/Boardmember(s): None

COUNCIL REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski asked for a workshop session regarding the East Natoma corridor,

from Green Valley to Folsom Boulevard. He asked for future discussion with the Traffic Safety

Committee anO iity Council regarding corridor improvement along Folsom Boulevard from Granite Bay

to Highway 50. There was Council consensus to add this as a future agenda item.

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 15

03/28/2023 Item No.2.



Book77 Page 60
Folsom City Council

March 14,2023

Vice Mayor yK Chalamcherla asked for a presentation from Hope Cooperative about their operation.

There was Council consensus to add this as a future agenda item.

Councilmember Sarah Aquino asked for an item regarding the Folsom Plan Area financing plan. There

was Council consensus to add this as a future agenda item'

Councilmember Anna Rohrbough asked for an item regarding CaIPERS unfunded liabilities. There was

Council consensus to add this as a future agenda item.

City Attorney Steve Wang explained the process of adding future agenda items and the necessity of

having City Council consensus.

GITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen announced upcoming events including the Landscape Festival, a

workshop [o consider increases to multi-family housing capacity and spring break camps.

COUNGIL MENTS:

Councilmember Anna Rohrbough spoke of attending the lnternational Council for Shopping Centers

conference and that she just celebrated her 25th wedding anniversary'

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski stated he would be attending the Ad Hoc Regional Transit and SACOG

board meetings and will report back at the next meeting.

Vice Mayor yK Chalamcherla discussed Cable Commission and Regional Water Authority meetings'

He spok-e of the Powerhouse Ministries meeting and the Caps Volunteers event.

Mayor Rosario Rodriguez discussed meetings she attende_d which included the Sacramento

Transportation Authoiity meeting, Sacramento Homeless Council, Citizen's Academy training kickoff,

and Citizen,s Advisory bommittee for Folsom Prison. She spoke of upcoming events at the Folsom

History Museum speiker events, Chamber of Commerce annual award ceremony and the opening day

for Little League.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Rosario Rodriguez

adjourned the meeting at 8:33 Pm.

SUBMITTED BY:

ATTEST:

Rosario Rodriguez, MaYor

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Page 16

03/28/2023 Item No.2.



:., ' -: i :, "!l

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council conduct the second reading and adopt Ordinance No.
1337 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving Amendment No. 2 to the

First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement between the City of Folsom and

Eagle Commercial Properties relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan (Second Reading
and Adoption).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On February 15,2023, the Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider a request

from Lewis Management Corporation for approval of a Conditional Use Permit, Planned

Development Permit, Development Agreement Amendment, and Minor Administrative
Modification for development of a 238-unit market-rate apartment community on a 15.8-acre

site situated at the northwest comer of the intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and

Westwood Drive within the Folsom Plan Area.

1

MEETING DATE: 3t28t2023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Folsom Ranch Apartments Development Agreement
Amendment -Northwest corner of Alder Creek Parkway and
Westwood Drive (MSTR 22-218)

i. Ordinance No. 1337 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City
of Folsom Approving Amendment No. 2 to the First
Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement
Between the City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial
Properties, LLC Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan
(Second Reading and Adoption)

X'ROM: Community Development Department

Page 17

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



The Planning Commission was fully supportive of the proposed apartment project and

adopted a motion (7-0-0-0) to approve a Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development
Permit and Minor Administrative Modification for the Folsom Ranch Apartments project.

The Commission also recommended that the City Council Approve Amendment No. 2 to the
First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement by and between the City of
Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan.

The Planning Commission was fully supportive of the proposed apartment project and

adopted a motion (7-0-0-0) to approve a Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development
Permit and Minor Administrative Modification for the Folsom Ranch Apartments project.

The Commission also moved to recommend that the City Council Approve Amendment No.
2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement by and between the

City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC relative to the Folsom South Specific
Plan.

On March 14,2023, the City Council introduced and conducted the first reading of
Ordinance 1337. No changes have been made to the ordinance since the first reading.

POLICY / RULE

As set forth in the State Planning andZoning Law, approval of, or amendments to, a
Development Agreement is a legislative act which requires approval by the City Council
following review and recommendation by the Planning Commission.

PROJECT ENTITLEMENTS

As noted above, the applicant requested approval of three entitlements to allow for
development of the proposed Folsom Ranch Apartments project.

The first entitlement requested was for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for
development and operation of a paired, townhome-style apartment buildings on the project
site. This entitlement was approved by the Planning Commission on February 15, 2023.

The second entitlement was a request for approval of a Planned Development Permit to
establish project-specific development standards, review the project site design, evaluate the
architectural design of the multi-family apartment buildings and clubhouse, and establish
signage criteria. This entitlement was approved by the Planning Commission on
February 15,2023.

The third entitlement was a request for approval of a Minor Administrative Modification
for the transfer of development rights to move 221}i4.HD units from the project site to Parcel

6l within the Folsom Plan Area, to move 116 MMD units from Parcel 61 to the project site,

and to move 3.3-acres of parkland (PARK) from the project site to Parcel 61. This
entitlement was approved by the Planning Commission on X'ebruary 1,5r 2023.

2 Page 18

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



The fourth entitlement requested was for approval of a Development Agreement Amendment
(Amendment No. 2) to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement

between the City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC relative to the Folsom

South Specific Plan. The purpose of this Amendment is to deed restrict 64 affordable
housing units on a remainder portion of Parcel 6l located within in the Folsom Plan Area

owned by Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC. The purpose of the Amendment is also to

memorialize that the landowner will receive credits for a total of 64 deed-restricted multi-
family housing units and that these Affordable Housing Credits may be transferred to and

used to satisS and/or offset the inclusionary andlor affordable housing obligation for other

residential projects on specific parcels owned by Eagle Commercial Properties in the Folsom

Plan Area. The Planning Commission voted on February 15, 2023 to recommend that
the City Council approve the proposed amendment to the development agreement.

PROJECT OVERVIEW

The Folsom Ranch Apartments project, which includes development of 119 two-story
townhome-style apartment buildings and a one-story clubhouse building, is comprised of 238

market-rate apartments within a gated community. The two-story apartment buildings
include a total of 104 two-bedroom units (1,175 square feet) and 134 three-bedroom units
(1,611 to 1,829 square feet). All apartment units are proposed to be accessible from exterior
doorways and include a full kitchen, living space, washer/dryer, storage closets, bedrooms,

bathrooms, and an outdoor balcony/patio. The one-story clubhouse building features a

fitness studio, an office, a reception lounge, an equipment room, and restroom facilities.
Outdoor amenities associated with the clubhouse building include a pool, a spa, sun deck,

seating areas, barbecue areas, tot lot, andadog park.

In relation to site design, the torrrnhome-style apartment buildings are distributed evenly

throughout the project site, with the clubhouse building, tot lot, and dog park being situated

in the northern portion of the project site. With respect to architectural style, the proposed

project features a contemporary Spanish Colonial design theme featuring stucco exteriors,

tile roofs, wood trim, decorative iron detailing, and an earthtone color scheme.

Primary vehicle access to the project site includes two new driveways, both located on the

west side of Westwood Drive respectively. The two primary access driveways will
accommodate all turning movements into and out of the project site. Emergency vehicle
access is provided by a gated driveway on the east side of McCarthy Way and a gated

driveway on the west side of Placerville Road. Proposed internal vehicle circulation consists

of a series of 27-foot-wide drive aisles that provide access in and around the project site.

Pedestrian circulation is provided by new sidewalks located along the street frontages of
Alder Creek Parkway, Westwood Drive, McCarthy Way, Mercy Drive, and Placerville Road,

with seven pedestrian gates providing access from the project site to the adjacent sidewalks.

Intemal pedestrian circulation is accommodated by a series of new pedestrian pathways that
provide connectivity to the apartment buildings, the clubhouse building, and the perimeter

sidewalks. Additional site improvements include: 597 parking spaces (includes combiflation

J Page 19

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



of garage and uncovered parking spaces), bicycle parking spaces, electric vehicle charging

stations, underground utilities, drainage swales, site lighting, site landscaping, retaining
walls, fencing, and project identification signs.

The project was evaluated by the Planning Commission at their February 15,2023 meeting.

No members of the public spoke regarding the proposed project during the public comment

portion of the meeting. The Planning Commission indicated that they were fully supportive

of a market rate rental community at this specific location in the Folsom Plan Area and

adopted a motion (7-0-0-0) to Approve a Conditional Use Permit, Approve a Planned

Development Permit, and Approve a Minor Administrative Modification for the Folsom

Ranch Apartments project. The Commission also recommended that the City Council
Approve AmendmentNo. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development
Agreement Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan. It is important to note that the

applicant (Lewis Management Corporation) was in agreement to the'ogreen sheet"

modifications proposed at the Planning Commission meeting and has not objected to nor
filed an appeal on any ofthe conditions ofapproval placed on the project.

ANALYSIS

The City and Landowner's predecessor (Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC) previously
entered into the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement By and

Between the City of Folsom and Landowner Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan on

July 15, 2014. Section 1.5 of the Restated Development Agreement allows the Restated

Development Agreement to be amended from time to time by mutual written consent of the

parties. On November 12,2015, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC and the City entered into
Amendment No. I to First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement Relative

to the Folsom South Specific Plan. The applicant is proposing Amendment No. 2 to the First
Amended and Restated Development Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and

Eagle Commercial Properties,LLC relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan for the

pu{pose of deed restricting 64 affordable housing units on a portion of the Remainder within
Parcel 6l located within in the Folsom Plan Area.

As described above, the Landowner is proposing to deed restrict 64 multi-family housing

units on a portion of the Remainder within Parcel 61, located within in the Folsom Plan Area,

for the purpose of assisting the City in meeting its Regional Housing Needs Allocation
(RHNA) assigned by the State Department of Housing and Community Development. The

64 multi-family housing units, which would be made available to low-, very-low, atdlor
extremely-low income households, will be deed restricted for a period of 55 years from the

date of recording. The deed restriction must be recorded prior to issuance of a building
permit for the Folsom Ranch Apartments Project.

In exchange for perfecting the deed restriction, the landowner will receive credits for a total
of 64 deed-restricted multi-family housing units. In the event that Landowner (or a successor

in interest) proposes residential development on Parcel 61 in the future, any applicable

requirement for inclusionary and/or affordable housing will be offset by 64 units.

4 Page 20

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



Alternatively, the Affordable Housing Credits may be transferred to and used to satisfr
and/or offset the inclusionary andlor affordable housing obligation for other residential

projects owned by Eagle Commercial Properties on Parcels 77,85A-3, or 854-4 in the

Folsom Plan Area.

There is no inclusionary or affordable housing requirement applicable to the proposed

Folsom Ranch Apartments project. In the unlikely event that the City passes an inclusionary

housing ordinance applicable to rental units, the proposed project would be subject to it,
unless a complete application for a building permit is submitted before the new ordinance

takes effect.

Staff recommends that the form of deed restriction be submitted with owner/applicant's
application for a building permit and will be subject to the City Attorney's approval, which
shall not be unreasonably withheld. Condition No. 7 is included to reflect this requirement.

City staff has conducted a thorough review of the proposed modifications to the

Development Agreement and is supportive of the Development Agreement amendment as

proposed by the applicant.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

No financial impact is anticipated with approval of the Development Agreement Amendment

associated with the Folsom Ranch Apartments Project as the project will not result in any

change in the total amount of commercial square footage or residential unit count within the

Folsom Plan Area.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

A CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis and Checklist was prepared for the Folsom

Ranch Apartments Project in October 2022 in accordance with the California Environmental

Quality Act. The City reviewed the applicant's analysis and concurred that the project is

exempt from additional environmental review as provided in CEQA Guidelines 15182(c).

On February 15,2023,the Planning Commission found that the project was exempt from

CEQA pursuant to Public Resources Code section65457 and CEQA Guidelines section

151S2(c). The Development Agreement Amendment was considered by staff and the

Planning Commission as a part of the determination that the project is exempt. No additional

environmental review is required.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Ordinance No. 1337 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving
Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement

between the City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties relative to the Folsom

South Specific Plan (Second Reading and Adoption)

5
Page 21

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



2. Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement by
and betweenthe City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties relative to the Folsom

South Specific Plan

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

6 Page 22

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



Attachment 1

Ordinance No. 1337 - AnUncodified Ordinance of the City
of Folsom Approving Amendment No. 2 to the First

Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement
between the City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties

relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan
(Second Reading and Adoption)

Page 23

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



ORDINANCE NO. 1337

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM APPROVING
AMENDMENT NO. 2TO THE F'IRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF F'OLSOM AND EAGLE
COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES, LLC RELATIVE TO THE FOLSOM SOUTH

SPECIF'IC PLAN

WHEREAS, a Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement for
the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan was prepared and certified by the City Council on June 11,

2011, and the Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission approved the City's annexation

of the Folsom Plan Area on January 18,2012; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority in Sections 65864 through 65869.5 of the

Government Code, the City Council, following a duly notified public hearing on June 28,2011,
approved the Tier 1 Development Agreement relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan (Tier I
DA) for the development of the Folsom Plan Area by adopting Ordinance No. 1149 on July 12,

20ll; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, following a duly noticed public hearing on May 27,2014,
approved a request to amend the Tier I DA to the development of the Westland/Eagle Project by
approving a First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement (ARDA) between the

City and the developer of the Westland/Eagle Project, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC,by
adopting Ordinance No. 1204 on June 10,2014; and

WHEREAS' the City Council, following a duly noticed public hearing on September 22,

2015, approved a request to amend the ARDA to the development of the WestlandlEagle Project
by approving Amendment No. I to ARDA between the City and the developer of the

Westland/Eagle Project, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC,by adopting Ordinance No. 1237 on
October 13,2015; and

WHEREAS' the proposed Folsom Ranch Apartments Project consists of the
development of a 238-unit market rate apartment community on a 15.8-acre site situated at the

northwest corner of the intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive within the

Folsom Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the City and the landowner of the Folsom Ranch Apartments project site

(Parcels 854-3 and 854-4) and Folsom Plan Area Parcels 61 and 77 desire to further amend the

ARDA in order to deed restrict 64 multi-family housing units on a remainder portion of Parcel

61 for development of low-, very-low, and/or extremely-low income households; and

WHEREAS' the Planning Commission, at its regular meeting on February 15,2023,
considered Amendment No. 2to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development

Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC relative

Ordinance No. 1337

Page I of3 Page 24

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



to the Folsom South Specific Plan at a duly noticed public hearing as prescribed by law, and

recommended that the City Council approve said Amendment No. 2; and

WHEREAS' all notices have been given at the time and in the manner required by

State Law and the Folsom Municipal Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Folsom hereby does

ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 FINDINGS

A. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by reference.

B. The Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development

Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC is
consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses and programs specified in the

City's General Plan and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan.

C. The Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development

Agreement is in conformity with public convenience, general welfare, and good land use

practices.

D. The Amendment No. 2 will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and general

welfare of persons residing in the immediate area, nor be detrimental or injurious to
property or persons in the general neighborhood or to the general welfare of the residents

of the City as a whole.

E. The AmendmentNo. 2 will not adversely affect the orderly development of
property or the preservation ofproperty values.

F. The Amendment No. 2 has been prepared in accordance with, and is consistent

with, Government Code Sections 65864 through 65869.5, and City Council ResolutionNo.
2370.

G. All notices have been given at the time and in the manner required by State Law
and the Folsom Municipal Code.

H. The Amendment No. 2 is consistent with the Environmental lmpact
Report/Environmental Impact Statement for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan certified by the

City Council on June II,2011, which is incorporated herein by reference. None of the events in
Sections 15162 and 15163 of the CEQA Guidelines exists which warrant the preparation of a

subsequent EIR or supplemental EIR.

Ordinance No. 1337
Page2 of3 Page 25

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



SECTION 2 APPROVAL OF AMEIIDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

The Mayor ishereby authorized and directed to execute the Amendment No. 2 to
the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement by and between the

City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties , LLC on behalf of the City after the effective
date of this Ordinance.

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part

thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the

remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would
have passed each section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection,

sentence, clause, or phrase be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 4 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and

adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption

in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This Ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the

City Council on March 14, 2023 and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the

City Council on March 28,2023.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
and adopted by the City Council ofthe foregoing ordinance was passed

the City of Folsom, State of California, this 28nd day of March 2023, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriquez, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1337

Page 3 of3 Page 26

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



Attachment 2

Amendment No . 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Agreement between the City of Folsom and

Eagle Commercial Properties relative to the
Folsom South Specific Plan

Page 27

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE $6103

RECORDING REQUESTED BY CITY CLERK

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

VED FOR RECORDER'S USE)

AMENDMENT NO. 2TO FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF F'OLSOM AND EAGLE COMMERCIAL PARTNERS, LLC
RELATIVE TO THE FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PLAN

This Amendment No. 2 to First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement ("Amendment

No. 1") is entered into this day of _,2023, by and between the City of Folsom ("City") and

Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company ("Landowner"), pursuant to the authority
of Sections 65864 through 65869.5 of the Government Code of California.

RECITALS

A. ARDA. City and Landowner entered into that certain First Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Agreement Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan recorded on July 15, 2014, in the Official
Records of the County Recorder of Sacramento County in Book 20140715 on Page 0517 (the "ARDA").

B. Amendment No. 1 to ARDA. City and Landowner entered into that certain Amendment No. I to
First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan recorded

on January 29,2016, in the Officia.l Records of the County Recorder of Sacramento County in Book 20160129

on Page 0385 ("Amendment No. 1" and collectively with the ARDA, the "Development Agreement").

C. Propertv. This Amendment No. 2 affects certain of the Property (as defined in the Development

Agreement), which portions of the Property are described in Exhibit "B-1" and shown in Exhibit'oB-2" to this

Amendment No. 2 ("Amendment No. 2 Property").

D. Pumose of No. 2. The purpose of this Amendment No. 2 is to include certain

additional entitlements within the scope and definition of Entitlements (as defined in the Development

Agreement) and define Landowner's affordable housing obligations with respect to the Property as described in
this Amendment No. 2.

E. Hearings. On February 15, 2023, the City Planning Commission, designated as the planning

agency for purposes of development agreement review pursuant to Government Code Section 65867, in a duly
noticed and conducted public hearing, considered this Amendment No. 2 and recommended that the City Council
approve the same.

Page 28

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



F. Consistency with General Plan and Plan. Having duly examined and considered this

Amendment No. 2, the City finds and declares that this Amendment No. 2 is consistent with the General Plan and

the Specific Plan, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and

agreements herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and suffrciency of which

is hereby acknowledged and agreed, the parties hereto do hereby agree to amend the Development Agreement as

follows:

Amendment of Development Agreement.

a. The term Entitlements (as defined in the Development Agreement) is hereby revised to

add the following:

i. This Amendment No. 2 as approvsd by Ordinance No.

b. A new Section 1.7 is hereby added to the Development Agreement as follows:

Anticipated Chanses to the City's Inclusionarv Housins Ordinance. The City
has amended its Inclusionary Housing Ordinance (Folsom Municipal Code Chapter

17.I04) by Ordinance No. 1243 to eliminate Second Dwelling Units (also referred to

as "granny flats") as an alternative means of meeting the City's inclusionary housing

requirements. Landowner acknowledges there is no vested right to use this

alternative means for meeting the City's inclusionary housing requirements and that

this altemative shall not be available to Landowner from and after the effective date

of OrdinanceNo. 1243. Landowner further acknowledges those certain amendments

to Section 65850 of the California Government Code (specifically, subsection

65850(9)), effective January l, 2018, which allow for the implementation of
inclusionary housing requirements in residential rental units, upon adoption of an

ordinance by the City. In the event the City amends its Inclusionary Housing

Ordinance with respect to rental housing pursuant to Section 65850(9) and such

amendments are applicable to the Property and effective prior to Landowner (or a

successor in interest) submitting a complete application for its first building permit

for a residential rental project on Parcel 61, Parcel 77,Parcel854-3 or Parcel 85A-4,

Landowner agrees the Properly shall be subject to such amendments.

1

c A new Section 3.14 is hereby added to the Development Agreement as follows

Satisfaction of Affordable Oblisations: Credits. Landowner shall

create and record a deed restriction against a certain portion of the Property within
Parcel 61 as described in Exhibit (68-1" and depicted on "Exhibit B-2" to this
Amendment No. 2 to restrict use of such property to affordable housing purposes

only ("Affordable Housing Parcel"). Said deed restriction shall require the

Affordable Housing Parcel to include 64 deed-restricted multi-family housing units

available for low-, very-low, and/or extremely-low income households (as those

terms are defined in Sections 50079.5,50093, 50105, and 50106 of the Health and

Safety Code), which shall remain in place for at least 55 years from the date of
recording. The 64 units are anticipated to be located on a site of approximately 2.5

acres but no more than 3 acres with MHD zoning that is expected to accommodate

Page 29

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



25 to 35 units per acre. A large lot parcel map will be processed through the City
to create the ultimate deed restricted Affordable Housing Parcel. A site plan will be

submitted with the Large Lot Parcel Map to veriff that the deed restricted

affordable parcel is sized to accommodate the 64 affordable units. The Affordable
Housing Parcel will be located within a portion of Parcel 61 shown and designated

as the Remainder on Parcel Map PN 2I-043 filed for record on October 12,2021
in Book 245 of Parcel Maps at Page 2 in the official records of Sacramento County.

Said deed restriction shall be in a form reasonably approved by City and shall be

recorded against the Affordable Housing Parcel upon creation of the same and prior
to issuance of a building permit for any portion of Parcel 854-3 or 85A-4 within
the Property. Unless City amends its Inclusionary Housing Ordinance as described

in Section 1.7 prior to Landowner (or a successor in interest) submitting a complete

application for its first building permit for a residential rental project on Parcel 61,

Landowner's compliance with this Section shall fully satisfr Landowner's
obligations with respect to inclusionary and/or affordable housing under the

General Plan Housing Element, Specific Plan, Folsom Municipal Code, and

Entitlements for any residential rental project on Parcel 61. In the event (i) City
amends its Inclusionary Housing Ordinance as described in Section 1.7 prior to
Landowner (or a successor in interest) submitting a complete application for its first
building permit for a residential rental project on Parcel 6l or (ii) Landowner (or a
successor in interest) proposes a for-sale residential project on Parcel 61, then

Landowner's compliance with this Section shall instead offset Landowner's
obligations with respect to inclusionary andlor affordable housing under the

General Plan Housing Element, Specific Plan, Folsom Municipal Code, and

Entitlements on Parcel 6l within the Property and Landowner shall receive credits

for a total of 64 deed-restricted multi-family housing units ("Affordable Housing

Credits"). City agrees that any such Affordable Housing Credits may be transferred

to and used to satisfr andlor offset the inclusionary anilor affordable housing

obligation for any residential project on Parcel 6I,77 or 85A-3 or 854-4.

2. Effect of Amendment. This Amendment No. 2 amends, but does not replace or supersede, the

Development Agreement. Except as modified hereby, all other terms and provisions of the Development

Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. In accordance with the provisions of Section 1.5.3 of the

Development Agreement, Landowner hereby reaffirms its agreement to abide by the provisions of the

Development Agreement, as modified by this Amendment No. 2, and the conditions of approval imposed in
connection with the Entitlements as applicable to the Property.

3. Form of Amendment: Execution in Counterparts. This Amendment No. 2 is executed in

duplicate originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, and may be executed in counterparts.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank; Signatures Follow on Next Page]

Page 30

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Folsom has authorized the execution of this Amendment No. 2 in
duplicate by its Mayor and attested to by the City Clerk under the authority of Ordinance No.
adopted by the City Council on

CITY: LANDOWNER:

CITY OF FOLSOM
a municipal corporation

By

Mayor

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT;

By:
Elaine Anderson
City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM;

By:
Steven Wang
City Attorney

ATTEST:

By:
Christa Freemantle
City Clerk

Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By
James Galovan
Authorized Signer

Page 31

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



EXHIBIT B.1

Legal Description of Affordable Housing Parcel

The land described herein is situated in the State of California, County of Sacramento, City of Folsom,
described as follows:

That portion of the designated Remainder lot, as shown on that certain map entitled "PN 21-043 Parcel Map,
Parcel 61" filed for record in the office of the Recorder of the County of Sacramento, on October 12,2021, in
Book 245 of Parcel Maps, at Page 2, Sacramento County Records.

APN: 072-3190-05b

Page 32

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



EXHIBIT B-2

Depiction of Affordable Housing Parcel

5

t 0l .64*N

4.24*N

ol-D RAT'ICH

s6

2

'3L6E,

43.20t

aJ.rc'

W.

46.65tN

RNAINO€N

@

-------

I

30*N

675.7J' ,

1
l3.2ltAc.F

Page 33

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



This pnge intentionolly Ieft blank
to facilitote double- sided printtng .

ctl Y oF

FOLSONI
OISTINCTIVE EY NATURE

Page 34

03/28/2023 Item No.3.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / COIINCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 11006 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with McGuire and Hester for the Construction of the Greenback Sewer and Lift
Station No. 3 Project and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EWR) Department identifies sewer infrastructure
rehabilitation and replacement projects through sewer master plans and ongoing sewer

condition assessment programs. As a condition of the City's State permit for its wastewater
collection system, the EWR Department is required to perform ongoing condition assessments

on the wastewater system and correct any defects/deficiencies identified through this process.

Through these efforts, City staff identified the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station as needing
rehabilitation or replacement.

This project involves the decommissioning of the existing, active Pump Station 3, installing a

flow diversion structure, and other miscellaneous sewer system modifications. By modifring
the existing sewer infrastructure and installing the flow diversion structure, the small volume
of flow that is sent to Pump Station 3 can be diverted to Pump Station 2 which will allow Pump

Station 2 to run more efficiently. For potential emergency and operational pu4)oses, the City

1

MEETING DATE: 312812023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11006 - A Resolution Authonzing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with McGuire and Hester for
the Construction of the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No. 3

Project and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 35

03/28/2023 Item No.4.



will purchase and install a new trailer mounted portable bypass pump at the Pump Station 3

facility. The portable bypass pump and existing ancillary equipment associated with Pump

Station 3 wilt serve as a backup to Pump Station 2 inthe event that Pump Station 2 needs to

be taken out of service. This will allow the city to save the costs of rehabilitating the existing

Pump Station 3 while increasing effrciency of Pump Station 2 andincreasing the sewer systems

operational fl exibility.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with McGuire and

Hester for the construction of the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No. 3 Project in the amount

of $2,595,790, and the budget for this agreement to include a l0o/o contingency in the amount

of $259,579 and Appropriation of Funds.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of theFolsom Municipal Code" supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $70,952 or greater shall be awarded by Ctty Council.

ANALYSIS

The City completed plans and specifications for the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No. 3

Project and publicly advertised for bids on January 23,2023.In addition, the City provided

these documents to www.ciplist.com which is also picked up by several area builders'

exchanges and the City of Folsom's website. The Environmental and Water Resources

Department received the following bid on March 3, 2023 , for construction of the Greenback

Sewer and Lift Station No. 3 Project:

Contractor Bid Amount

McGuire and Hester $2,595,790

Staff has reviewed the bid submitted and has determined that McGuire and Hester is the lowest

responsible and responsive bidder who meets the requirements and specifications set forth in
the invitation for bids.

FISCAL IMPACT

The EWR Department recommends that the contract be awarded to the lowest responsible,

responsive bidder, McGuire and Hester for $2,595,790 with the project budgeted for this

agreement in the amount of $2,855,369 which will include a 10Yo contingency in the amount

of $259,579.

Approximate project costs to date include design, construction administration services,

construction management and inspection services, legal advertising, and easement valuation

and acquisition, and total approximately $1,I99,452.08 The Greenback Sewer and Lift Station

No. 3 Project was included in the FY 2022-23 Capital Improvement Plan with a total project

budget of $2,724,674. Therefore, an additional appropriation will be needed for construction

2 Page 36

03/28/2023 Item No.4.



costs, and staff is requesting an appropriation of $1,330,1 4Tinthe Sewer Operating Fund (Fund

530) for a total project budget of $4,054,821. Funds are available in Fund 530 for this

additional appropriation.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is replacement and/or improvement of existing infrastructure with negligible or

no expansion of use and therefore is categorically exempt from environmental review under

the California Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of
Regulations, Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental

Quality Act, Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302

(Replacement or Reconstruction), andlot 15304 (Minor Alterations to Land).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. I 1006 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with McGuire and Hester for the Construction of the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No. 3
Project and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

a
J

Page 37

03/28/2023 Item No.4.



RESOLUTION NO. 11006

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH MCGUIRE AND HESTER FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE
GREENBACK SEWER AND LIFT STATION NO. 3 PROJECT AND APPROPRIATION

OF'FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City is currently implementing its Sewer System Management Plan

(SSMP) which consists of condition assessment, as well as operation and system improvements;

and
WHEREAS, the City has identified this project as a priority to maintain integrity and

operation of the sanitary sewer collection system; and

WHEREAS, the project is categorically exempt from environmental review under the

California Environmental Quality Act; and

WHEREAS, plans and specifications were prepared for this work and publicly

advertised for bids on January 23,2023; and

WHEREAS, McGuire and Hester was the lowest responsible and responsive bidder,

with an amount of $2,595,790; and

WHEREAS, this project was included in the FY 2022-23 Capital Improvement Plan

with a project budget of $2,724,674, staff is now projecting the total project costs will be

$4,054,821; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation of funds in the amount of $1,330,147 is needed

for a revised project budget of $4,054,821 and sufftcient funds are available in the Sewer

Operating Fund (Fund 530) for this additional appropriation; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with McGuire and Hester for the

construction of the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No. 3 Project for a not-to-exceed amount

of $2,595,790 with the budgeted amount to include a l\Yo contingency of $259,579 for a total of
$2,855,369; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate

$1,330,147 for this agreement. The appropriation will be from the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund

530) fund balance in the amount of $1,330,147.

Resolution No. 11006
Page I of2 Page 38

03/28/2023 Item No.4.



AYES:
NOES:
.ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28m day of March2023,by the following roll-call vote:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11006
Page2 ofZ Page 39

03/28/2023 Item No.4.



This page intenti.onally Ieft blank
to focilitate double- sided printtng .

CITY OF

FOLS()1r{
DISTINCTIVE EY NATURE

Page 40

03/28/2023 Item No.4.



!r ,lrii air. t1 .-'.li .:

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: 312812023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo. 11008 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding between

the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department
Middle Em

FROM: Human Resources Department

RECO ATION / CITY C ACTION
The Human Resources Director recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution

No. 11008 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of
Understanding between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle
Management Employees (CFFDMME).

BACKGRO / ISSI]E
The existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) betweenthe City of Folsom andthe City
of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees (CFFDMME) expired on

December 3I,2022. The parties began negotiations on a new MOU on September 27,2022,

and reached a tentative agreement on February 7,2023. CFFDMME ratified the tentative

agreement on February 7,2023. The new proposed successor MOU is being presented to the

City Council on March 28,2023, for consideration and approval.

POLICY / RULE
Government Code Title l, Division 4, Chapter l0 commonly known as the Meyers-Milias-

Brown Act requires that representatives of the Governing Body of a public agency shall meet

and confer in good faith regarding wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment

with representatives of recognized employee organizations. Both parties shall endeavor to

reach a tentative agreement within the scope of representation, and, if a tentative agreement is

reached and ratified by the respective parties, they shall prepare a written memorandum of
understanding.

1

Page 41

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



ANALYSIS and ANCIAI,IMPACT
A tentative agreement was reached by the parties and the proposed successor Memorandum of
Understanding, which will be effective January 1,2023, contains the following changes that

have some economic impact, as outlined below. The changed provisions are as follows:

1. The MOU term will be for three (3) years: January 1,2023, through December 31,

2025.

2. The classes of Fire Battalion Chief and Fire Division Chief shall each have one salary

range, consisting of five (5) steps, with five (5) percent between steps.

o Employee step assignment in the new range shall be equal to the salary the

employee is assigned as of December 3 l, 2022. The cost for the adjustment to
the salary ranges will be approximately $8,266 in the first year in salary and

benefit costs.

3. A cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) is provided for each year of the agreement:

o Year 1: Effective January 1,2023
. 3.5yo for Fire Battalion Chief and Fire Division Chief employees
. The cost for the first year of the COLA will increase salary and benefits

approximately $53,8 I 9.

o Year 2: Effective January 1,2024
. 3yo for Fire Battalion Chief and Fire Division Chief employees
r The cost for the second year of the COLA will increase salary and

benefits approximately $50, I 33.

o Year 3: Effective January 1,2025
. 3yo for Fire Battalion Chief and Fire Division Chief employees
. The cost for the third year of the COLA will increase salary and benefits

approximately $5 1,637.

4. Effective January 1,2023, the classes of Fire Battalion Chief and Fire Division Chief
shall receive a special salary increase of 5o/o. The cost ofthe special salary increase will
be approximately $79,576 in the first year in salary and benefits.

5. Paramedic License Pay
o The City will increase paramedic license pay per employee from $425 per

month, to $550 per month.

6. Uniform Allowance
o The City will increase uniform allowance per employee to $2,000 per year

(currently at $1,075 per year) for purchase of approved on-duty uniforms and

attire.

7. Tuition/Books Reimbursement
o The City will increase reimbursable costs per employee for books, tuition, and

lodging up to $1,500 per fiscal year (currently at $900 per fiscal year).

2
Page 42

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



8. A variety of non-economic and clarification language changes were also agreed upon.

ATTACHMENTS
l. Resolution No. 11008 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a

Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and City of Folsom Fire
Department Middle Management Employees.

2. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the City of
Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees for the term of January 1,

2023,through December 31, 2025.

Submitted,

Allison Garcia
Human Resources Director

J
Page 43

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



Attachment 1

RESOLUTION NO. 11008

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF'UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND
THE CITY OF FOLSOM FIRE DEPARTMENT MIDDLE MANAGEMENT
EMPLOYEES

Page 44

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 11008

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND
THE CITY OF FOLSOM FIRE DEPARTMENT MIDDLE MANAGEMENT
EMPLOYEES

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle
Management Employees have met and conferred in good faith since September 27th,2022;
and

WHEREAS, the parties reached a tentative agreement on February 7th,2023; and

WHEREAS, the members ofthe City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management

Employees ratified the tentative agreement on February 7th,2023; and

WHEREAS' the City Manager and the City's negotiation team recommend the City
Council adopt the tentative agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF FOLSOM, that the City Council adopts the tentative agreement between the City
of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees for the

period of January 1,2023,to December 31, 2025; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of
Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 28th day of March 2023,by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Page 45

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



Attachment 2

PROPOSED MEMORANDUM OX' UNDERSTAIIDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF
F'OLSOM AND THE CITY OF FOLSOM F'IRE DEPARTMENT MIDDLE
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES FOR THE TERM OF'JANUARY |,a023,THROUGH
DECEMBER 31, 2025.

Page 46

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



F@T-SONtr
CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

CITY OF FOLSOM FIRE DEPARTMENT

MIDDLE MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

(cFFDMME)

AND

CITY OF FOLSOM

January 1, N2W- December 31, MM

Page 47

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PREAMBLE......... 5

CLE I. RE 6

A1. RECOGN ITION

2, CONTINU ATION OF BEN trlT.q A

3 MEETING AND CONFERING DURING THE TERM OF THE MOU

4. SEVERANCT

ARTICLE II MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

7

7

7

9

9

ARTICLE III. SALARY AND OTHER CO PENSATION

1. SALARY RANGE

2. SALARY

3.S PECIAL SALARY INCREASE

4. MARKET SURVEY

5. LO NGEVITY PAY,....,....

b. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

10

1_0

10

10

1_0

11

1,L

LL

7. VEHICLE ASSI GNMENT

8.C ELLULAR TELEPHONE ASSIGNMENT.........,..

9. RETIREMENT

10, PRE- MENT OPTIONAL SETTLEMENT 2W DEATH BENEFIT
(SURVIVORS) L2

11. EMT 1A CERTIFICATION / PARAMEDIC LICENSE... T2

ARTICLE I -...... L2

1. OVERTIME COMPUTATION L2

ARTICLE V. HOURS OF WORK

1. SHIFTS L2

LE VI.

1. ANNUAL I EAVE 't2

Page 48

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 3

2

3

4. SICK L 1q

5. HO DAY PAY . 1q

6 VACATION trnilt tNG

7. BEREAVEMENTLEAVE

15

16

L6R PERSONAI Itr a\/tr Ttt\rtr

ARTICLE VII.

1. H TH INSI.JRANCE.... 1

DENTAL INS

7

9

9VISION

4 LIFE I

SHORT

LONG TERM 0

7. RETIREF HFALTH INSU ANCtr )0

ARTICLE VIII ALLOWANCES AND FIEI MBURSEMENTS... ,a

1. UNIFORtU ALLOWANCE .
)')

2. TUtTtO N/BOOKS REIMB RStrI\TtrN T 'r)

3. SCBA OPTICS REIMBU trlvltrN )?

ARTICLE IX- MISCELLANEO ,?

1. JOB CLASSIFICATIONS.. ?2

2. SHORT

3.

4. SENI OFF

SALARY

ARTICLE X. SIGNATTJRE SE tq

ATTACH ENT A - SALARY NGES t 6.

Page 49

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 4

ARTIGI E IIL SATA

4; MARKETSURVEYi

6; ;!rr.ili.r,,

11r EMTlACERTIFIG

1; EVERTIME COMPUT

ARTIGTE VI- TEAVE

1; ANNUAt tEAVE,;,

Page 50

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 5

4, SICK tEAVEr,,,,tt,,,r-r,r,,,,,,,,,,,,r,r,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,",,,"rr,,,,,t,,,,,,"--r,,t,,,,,,,,,,t,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,t,,,,t"""" 13

6, VACATION SCHE

7: BEREAVEMENTTEAVE

8, PERSENATTEAVETI

1, HEATTH INSURANCE

3, VlSlON GARE ,,,,

4, TIFE INSURANSE,

6; TONG TERM DISAB

ARTICtE VIII, AttO
1, UNIFORM ATTOWANG

3; SCBA OPTICS REIM

1, JOB CTASSIFICAT

PREAMBLE

Page 51

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



1

CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 6

On the date hereinafter subscribed, authorized representatives of the City of Folsom,
herein called "City", and authorized representatives of the City of Folsom Fire
Department Mid-Management Employees, herein called "CFFDMME", made and
entered into this Memorandum of Understanding, hereinafter referred to as "Agreement"
or "MOU." Pursuant to Section 3500 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of
California, an agreement between the aforementioned parties has as its purpose the
promotion of harmonious labor relations; establishment of an equitable and peaceful
procedure for the resolution of differences; and the establishment of rates of pay, hours
of work, and other terms and conditions of employment.

The term "agreement" as used herein means the written agreement provided under
Section 3505.1 of the Government Code.

It is understood and agreed that this Memorandum of Understanding supersedes and
replaces all previous such actions on these points by and between the City of Folsom
and the CFFDMME.

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE

RECOGNITION
The CFFDMME is recognized as the exclusive representative, as provided in the
City's Employer-Employee Relations Policy, for all employees assigned to the
Fire Mid-Management Bargaining Unit in the following classifications:

Battalion Chief
Fire Division Chief

ln the event new classifications are established which are appropriate for this
unit, the parties agree to meet and confer for the purpose of including such in the
Fire Mid-Management Bargaining Unit.

CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS
A. This Memorandum of Understanding is intended both as the final

expression of the agreement between the parties with respect to the
included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of
this Memorandum of Understanding. No amendment, alteration,
understanding, variation, waiver or modification of any terms or provisions
of this Memorandum of Understanding shall in any manner be binding
upon the parties unless made and executed in writing between the parties
hereto and approved and implemented by the City Council.

B. Terms and conditions of employment as specified in this Memorandum of
Understanding shall remain in full force and effect during the term of this
Memorandum of Understanding unless modified pursuant to the above
paragraph. Where ordinances, rules, and policies conflict with this
Memorandum of Understanding, the Memorandum of Understanding shall

2

Page 52

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



3

CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 7

prevail

MEETING AND CONFERING DURING THE TERM OF THE MOU
This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective January 1, M-424
and shall expire December 31, W2025. Unless specifically agreed othenruise,
this Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the full and entire understanding of
the parties regarding the matters contained in this Memorandum of
Understanding and supersedes and cancels all prior or existing understandings
or agreements between the parties, whether formal or informal.

During the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, representatives of the
City and CFFDMME may meet and confer on matters of mutual concern. Any
agreement reached between the parties shall be memorialized in writing and be
deemed a "Side Letter" to this Memorandum of Understanding.

The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Side Letter on behalf of the City
for purposes of the interpretation or administration of this Memorandum of
Understanding. A Side Letter to this Memorandum of Understanding shall not be
deemed valid until signed by the City Manager or designee, approved as to form
by the City Attorney, and signed by an authorized representative of CFFDMME.
Side Letters agreed to during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding
may be incorporated into any successor Memorandum of Understanding.

The parties agree to begin negotiations on a successor Memorandum of
Understanding not later than 120 calendar days prior to the expiration of this
Memorandum of Understanding.

SEVERANCE
Should any provision of this Agreement be found unlawful or unenforceable by a
court of competent jurisdiction, or invalidated by subsequent enacted legislation,
the remainder of the Agreement shall continue in force. Upon occurrence of such
an event, the parties shall meet and confer as soon as practical to renegotiate
the invalidated provision(s).

Upon a change in the dental, vision, short term, long term, or life insurance plans
provided in this Agreement, the parties agree to meet and confer over the impact
of the change on employees in the Fire Mid-Management Bargaining Unit.

ARTICLE II. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

To ensure that the City is able to carry out its statutory functions and responsibilities,
nothing contained in this article shall be construed to require the City to negotiate on

4

Page 53

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



2

3

4

CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 8

matters which are solely a function of management, or not othenuise assigned as an
employee right, including the following:
1. To manage the City generally and to determine issues of policy.

To determine the existence of facts which are the basis of management
decisions.

To determine the necessity for and organization of any service or activity
conducted by the City, and to expand or diminish services.

To determine the nature, manner, means, technology, and extent of services to
be provided to the public.

To determine methods of financing.

To determine types of equipment or technology to be used.

To determine and/or change the facilities, methods, technology, means,
organizational structure, and size and composition of the work force, and to
allocate and assign the work which the City operations are to be conducted.

To determine and change the number of locations, relocations, and types of
operations, processes, and materials to be used in carrying out all City functions,
including, but not limited to, the right to contract for or sub-contract any work or
operation of the City.

To assign work to and schedule employees in accordance with requirements as
determined by the City, and to establish and change work schedules and
assignments upon reasonable notice and good faith meet and confer.

10. To lay off employees from duties because of lack of work or funds, or under
conditions where continued work would be ineffective or non-productive.

11. To establish and modifu productivity and performance programs and standards.

12. To dismiss, suspend without pay, demote, reprimand, without salary step
increases, or othenryise discipline employees for cause.

13 To determine minimum qualifications, skills, abilities, knowledge, selection
procedures and standards, and job classifications, and to reclassify employees.

14. To hire, transfer, promote and demote employees for non-disciplinary reasons

To determine policies, procedures, and standards for selection, training and
promotion of em ployees.

5

6

7

8.

9.

15

Page 54

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 9

16 To establish reasonable employee performance standards, including, but not
limited to, quality and quantity standards, and to require compliance therewith.

17. To maintain order and efficiency in City facilities and operations.

18 To establish, publish, and/or modify rules and regulations to maintain order and
safety and health in the City. The City agrees to meet and confer on any items
that fall within the scope of Government Code Section 3500 et, seq.

19 To restrict the activity of an employee organization on the municipal property and
on municipal time except as set forth in the City's Personnel Rules and
Regulations.

20. To take all necessary actions to carry out the mission of the City in emergencies.

ARTICLE III. SALARY AND OTHER COMPENSATION

1 IMPTEMENTATION OF NEW SALARY RANGE
A. The salary ranges for the CFFDMME represented classes are attached to this

Memorandum of Understanding (Attachment A). These salary ranges shall be
effective January 1, nnM. These neu*-salary ranges include Education
lncentive Pay that was previously paid as additional compensation, which
was incorporated into base pav under the 2020 - 2022 MOU.

B. Salarv ranqe steps shall be approximatelv 5% between steps

C. Emplovees will be moved to the new salarv ranqe that is closest to their base
salarv (base salarv as of December 31, 2022) without beinq lower.

Procedures for steo advancement. orom demotion transfer and lavoff as set forth
in fhe Citv nf Fnlqnm Pcrcnnnel Rules and Reoulations and fhis IMOI I shall annlv
Anniversary dates shall remain the same.

n hr,^h^ ^^h^in+^..1 {n a\EEl-ll\/llilE alaeo66 Ah ar a#lar lanrtanr 4 2fl2fl ehall

date, All salary step advaneement eriteria eentained in City Persennelfiules shall
een+ins€+e-epply

^rrJvrrv sylJvrrrrvv rv

gPqr f gvvrHr vr q rrrvrrr rrrvrvqsv,
in+ nf a mari{ inara66a rrn{il raanhinn {l.ra lnn nf *ha ranna lnnrrmhan{

Fire Battalien Chief as ef January 1, 2020' will advanee twe (2) steps upen
+eeeipt et a merit inerea

Page 55

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 1 0

stegpe+ inerease,

2 SALARY NDJUSTMENTS
A. Effective es-elJanuary 1 , W@-all employees shall receive a salary

increase ol2Q.5%.
B. Effective January 1, W?+M, all employees shall receive a salary increase

of 2253%.

C. Effective January 1, WZM, all employees shall receive a salary increase
of 253o/o.

3. SPECIAL SALARY INCREASE
Effective Januarv 1, 2023. the classes of Division Chief and Battalion Chief shall

43

receive a special salary increase of 5%.

MARKET SURVEY
Should the City conduct a market survey of the CFDDMME classes, the study
shall determine the relationship of the total compensation for the City of Folsom
job classifications when compared to comparable job classifications in the
following agencies: City of Davis, City of Rocklin, City of West Sacramento, City
of Sacramento, Sacramento Metropolitan Fire Protection District, City of
Roseville, El Dorado Hills Fire District, and Cosumnes Community Services
District.

49. LONGEVITY PAY
A. Subject to subsection B below, employees shall be eligible to receive longevity

pay beginning with ten (10) or more years of City service. fense yJs

satisfaetery er abeve rating in his/her last annsal perflormanee evaluatien, The
longevity pay formula is based on 2.5% increments and is as follows:

251Ao/o after ten (10) continuous years of city serviceo

a

a an additional 2 Tro/o for a total of 7#_%o/o after twenty (20) continuous

an additional 2 for a total of 5o/o after fifteen (15) continuous years of
city service

years of city service

B. Employees hired after July 1,2010, shall not be eligible to receive Longevity Pay

DEFERRED COMPENSATION
For employees participating in the City's deferred compensation program, the
City agrees to make the following matching contributions in accordance with the
following schedule:

56.

Page 56

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding

Lenqth of Service

0 -10 years

10 -15 years

15 -20 years

20+ years

67.

Page 1 1

Maximum Citv Matchinq Contribution

$250.00 per month

$275.00 per month

$300.00 per month

$350.00 per month

79

89

VEHICLE ASSIGNMENT
With the recommendation of the Fire Chief and approval of the City Manager,
employees may be provided a department vehicle for transportation to and from
job-related activities.

CELLULAR TELEPHONE ASSIGNMENT
At the discretion of the Fire Chief, employees may be assigned a cellular
telephone for communications accessibility.

RETIREMENT
A. Public Employees Retirement Svstem (PERS) - Formula

All safety employees hired prior to June 30, 2010, shall receive the
retirement benefit of 3o/o @ 50. All safety employees hired on or after July
1,2010, shall receive the retirement benefilof 2o/o@50. Pursuant to the
California Public Employee's Pension Reform Act of 2013 (AB 340), all
employees hired after January 1,2013, shall receive the retirement benefit
of 2.7@57.

All employees hired prior to June 30, 2010, shall receive the retirement
benefit (subject to PERS limits) based on the single highest twelve (12)
months of compensation. All employees hired on or after July 1,2010,
shall receive the retirement benefit (subject to PERS limits) based on the
employee's highest average monthly compensation during thirty-six (36)
consecutive months of employment as provided in state law pertaining to
PERS.

B. Public Emplovees Retirement Svstem (PERS) - Contributions
The City agrees to pay the full cost of employer contributions to the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS) for all employees in the
CFFDMME bargaining unit, as currently contracted with PERS.
Employees shall pay the employee share of retirement according to the
following schedule:

. Classic safety employees shall pay 9% as the employee share of
retirement.

. PEPRA safety employees pay the employee share of retirement as
specified and adjusted by PERS.

Page 57

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



1

CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 12

9l! PRE-RETIREMENT OPTIONAL SETTLEMENT 2W DEATH
BENEFTT (SURVIVORS)
The City's contract with the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)
includes Government Code Section 21548, Pre-Retirement Optiondl Settlement
2W Death Benefit.

{€11 EMT 1A CERTIFICATION / PARAMEDIC LICENSE
The parties agree that an Emergency Medical Technician 1 (EMT 1A)

certification is required for all CFFDMME positions and that a Paramedic License
is optional but pr.eferred. Employees shall receive $250.00 per month in addition
to in their base salary for a valid EMT 1A Certificate or $4?5*55Q_.0Q_per month
for a Paramedic License.

ARTICLE IV. OVERTIME

OVERTIME COMPUTATION
A. Employees assigned to a 56-hour workweek shall be compensated at the

rate of time and one-half of the total hourly compensation rate for all hours
worked in emergency response that are not part of the employee's
normally assigned work schedule.

Employees assigned to a 40-hour work week and assigned to work
overtime in a 56-hour shift position shall be compensated at one and one-
half times the employee's straight time hourly rate of pay based on a 56-
hour work week (2912 hours worked per year rather than 2080 hours).

Employees assigned to work a special event for which the City is
reimbursed for the cost of City fire personnel shall be compensated at one
and one-half times the employee's straight time hourly rate of pay based
on either a 40 hour or 56-hour work schedule, depending on the
employee's normal assigned work week.

For purposes of this section, total hourly compensation shall include base
salary, longevity pay, paramedic pay, EMT pay and 40-hour work
schedule salary ditferential received by an employee.

ARTICLE V. HOURS OF WORK

SHIFTS
A. Employees shall work either a 56-hour workweek or a 40-hour workweek.

Employees working a 56-hour workweek shall work the following work
shift:

B

c

D

1

Page 58

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 13

(1) Personnel working a 56-hour workweek (2,912 hours per year) will
work a total of four shifts within a twelve (12) day cycle. Each shift
shall be for 24 hours in duration and shall be scheduled backto-
back, contiguously. A shift rotation is defined as two (2) backto-
back, contiguous 24-hour shifts.

(2) The twelve (12) day cycle shall start at 0800 hours

(3) Pursuant to Article ll, Manaqement Riqhts, of this MOU work
schedules shall continue to be at the discretion of the Fire Chief in
consultation with the City Manager, upon reasonable notice and
good faith meet and confer with the CFFDMME. The City also
reserves the right to review this shift schedule on a periodic basis in

order to address any potential inequities or problems.

B. Employees assigned to a 4O-hour wot:kweek may work a flexible schedule
upon approval of the Fire Chief. Telecommuting may be considered as
part of this flexible schedule for assignments that may be applicable.

ARTICLE VI. LEAVES

ANNUAL LEAVE
A. Employees shall receive the following Annual Leave credits.

Non-shift personnel (40-hour work week):

1

Lenqth of Service
0 - 5 years
5 - l0years
10 - 15 years
15+ years

Shift personnel (56-hour work week):

Lenqth of Service
0 - 5 years
5 - 10 years
10 - 15 years
15+ years

Annual Leave Allowance
16 hours per month
19 hours per month
22 hours per month
25 hours per month

Annual Leave Allowance
23 hours per month
28 hours per month
32 hours per month
35 hours per month

B Except as specified in Article Vl, Section C (1) below, employees shall not
accrue sick leave. However, employees who have accumulated sick leave
hours shall retain such hours and may use such leave credits pursuant to
Article Vl, Section 4, Sick Leave, of this MOU.

Page 59

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 14

Employees with annual leave balances that exceed the annual leave caps
of 320 for non-shiftl448-480_for shift employees as of the date of
ratification by City Council of this MOU, may retain such balances until the
annual leave balances are reduced to the new caps.

(1)Toavoidexceedingthemaximumof320lWhoursof
accumulated annual leave, the City may direct an employee to take
time off on annual leave. However, in the event the City does not
approve annual leave for an employee in an amount sufficient to
reduce accumulated annual leave to 3201448#A hours, the number of
hours that exceed 3201448-{9Q-hours shall be rolled over into sick
leave until the annual leave balance is reduced to the cap.

(2) Employees may cash out up to 40 hours of annual leave for non-shift
personnel, and 56 hours of annual leave for shift personnel per fiscal
year. Annual leave shall be cashed out pursuant to procedures
established by the City Human Resources Department.

(3) Accrued annual leave shall be cashed out upon separation of
employment with City on an hour for hour basis.

MANAGEMENT LEAVE
Employees shall receive management leave at a rate of 80 hours annually based
on a fiscal calendar. Such leave shall be posted to affected employees on July
1't each year. Employees promoted with less than 12 months'service in a
CFFDMME shall accrue management leave on a prorated basis.

A member of CFFDMME who works substantially more than 80 hours per pay
period without compensation, may be allocated up to a total of 100 hours per
year of management leave. Annually, the Fire Chief may provide a list to the City
Manager of those employees who they feel are deserving of the additional
management leave. A list of regularly performed duties in excess of
compensated hours shall be included with each employee's name. The list shall
be submitted for the City Manager's review and approval no later than July 1 of
each year. All such requests are subject to final approval by the City Manager.

LEAVE CONVERSIONS
Effective January 1, 2023, Tlhe City and CFFDMME agree to the following terms
related to the conversion of annual leave hours by employees when they are
placed in temporary and permanent assignments within the department.

Conversion from 56 Hour to 40 Hour Work Week Assignments.
Employees temporarily or permanently assigned to staff positions on a 40-
hour work week schedule shall have all---Alnugl-leave usage banks
converted using a division factor of 1.4 for each hour available in the leave

C

2

3

A

Page 60

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 1 5

bank. As an example, a 56-hour employee with 100 hours of annual leave
would see their annual leave bank adjusted to 71.43 hours when the
employee is assigned to a 40-hour work assignment.

Conversion from 40 Hour to 56 Hour Work Week Assignments.
Employees temporarily or permanently assigned to line positions on a 56-
hour work week schedule shall have all--gn1gg[-leave usage banks
converted using a multiplier factor of 1.4 for each hour available in the
annual leave bank. As an example, a 4O-hour employee with 71.43 hours
of annual leave would see their annual leave bank adjusted to 100 hours
when the employee is assigned to a 56-hour work assignment.

Leave usage rates shall be applied at the hourly rate used by the
employee during the temporary or permanent assignment.

D. Leave conversion rates shall be applied to allannual leave accrual banks
provided to the employee by the City.

+E. As of Januarv 1. 2023. the Citv aq rees it will not convert sick leave banks.

SICK LEAVE
A. Sick leave may be used by employees for purposes enumerated in City

Personnel Rules.

B. Consistent with PERS law, sick leave shall be converted to service credit
for purposes of retirement (Government Code section 20965).

C. Accrued sick leave shall not be cashed out.

D. There shall be no maximum on the number of hours of sick leave an
employee may accrue (bank).

HOLIDAY PAY
Employees shall receive a 6% Holiday Pay differential. Holiday Pay shall be
multiplied by the employee's salary step. Employees with accrued Holiday Leave
credits on the books may take such time off in the same manner as Annual
Leave. Holiday Pay shall be compensable for retirement (PERS) purposes.

VACATION SCHEDULING
The City and CFFDMME agree to establish a vacation scheduling procedure as
noted below:
A. No more than one (1) employee shall be granted leave for vacation

purposes at the same time; provided, however, that on holidays the Fire
Chief may authorize more than one employee.

B

c

4

5

6

Page 61

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 16

Employees shall not be granted leave for vacation purposes for more than
forty-five (45) consecutive calendar days. Employees must return to duty
for at least fourteen (14) calendar days before being eligible to take
additional leave for vacation purposes.

c. Employees will not be contacted during vacation periods to work overtime
during their vacation and will not be force hired to maintain normal dayto-
day minimum staffing during their scheduled vacation period. Employees
may be subject to vacation cancellation and recall pursuant to City
Personnel Rules and Regulations.

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE
Classified permanent or promotional probationary employees may be granted a

maximum of ninety-six (96) hours or four (4) shifts from accrued leave time for
each instance to deal with matters related to the funeral, death, or critical illness
(where death appears imminent) of any member of the employee's immediate
family, including aunt, uncle, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law and
son-in-law.

Annual Leave usage for Bereavement Leave shall be taken by the employee in
twelve hour or greater increments.

PERSONAL LEAVE TIME
A. Any Personal Leave Time (PLT) remaining on the books may be used by

employees for time off on an hour for hour basis until the employee has
exhausted the bank. Use of PLT time shall be subject to the following:

(1) Use of PLT shall be subject to the operating needs of the Fire
department.

Use of PLT shall not cause the Fire department to backfill behind
an employee using PLT.

B

7

8

(2)

(3) PLT shall have no cash value and may not be cashed out. lf an
employee terminates employment with the City or retires, any PLT
remaining in the bank shall be surrendered with no value to the
employee.

ARTICLE VII. INSURANCE

The City's obligation for health, dental, vision, life and disability insurance coverage is

limited to plan contribution. Plan content, including eligibility criteria, is determined by

the respective carriers.

Page 62

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



1

CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 17

HEALTH INSURANCE
A. Effective April 1 ,2011, as demonstrated in the example below, employees

shall be included in the same health plan design as the majority of City
employees, including copayments. The City's maximum monthly
contribution for active employee health insurance coverage shall be
adjusted annually to an amount equal to 50% of the increase, if any,
above the prior year's Kaiser monthly premium rate combined with the
City's prior year contribution amount for employee only, employee plus 1,

and employee plus 2 or more (rounded to the next whole number). The
employee is responsible for the difference between the applicable
premium and the City's contribution.

Example:
Employee only category: The 2O1O monthly premium for Kaiser
employee only is $507.89 and the City's maximum monthly contribution is

$486.00. lf this premium increases by 10% for 2011, or to $558.68, the
City's contribution for 2011 for the employee only category would be
computed as follows: $558.68 - $507.89 = $50.79, $50.79 x 50% =

$23.40, $486.00 + $23.40 = $509.40. After rounding to the next whole
number, the City's maximum contribution for health insurance for the
employee only category would be $509 per month. lf the premium
increases by 1oo/o for 2012, or to $614.55, the City's contribution tor 2012
for the employee only category would be computed as follows: $614.55 -
$559.68 = $55.97, $5S.97 x 5Oo/o = $27.93, $509.00 + $27.93 = $536.93.
After rounding to the next whole number, the City's-maximum contribution
for health insurance for the employee only category would be $537 per
month.

Employee plus 1 category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser
employee plus 1 is $1 ,015.78 and the City's maximum monthly
contribution is $972.00. lf this premium increases by 10% for 2011, or to
$1,117.36, the City's contribution for 2011 for the employee plus 1

category would be computed as follows: $1 ,1 17.36 - $1 ,015.78 = $101 .58,

$101.58 x 50% = $50.79, $972.00 + $50.79. = $1,022.79. After rounding
to the next whole number, the City's maximum contribution for health
insurance for the employee plus 1 category would be $1,023 per month. lf
the premium increases by 1Oo/o for 2012, or to $1,229.10, the City's
contribution for 2012 for the employee plus 1 category would be computed
as follows. $1,229.10 - $1 ,117.36 = $111.74, $111.74 x 50% = $55.87,
$1,023.00 + $55.87. = $1,078.87. After rounding to the next whole
number, the Ci$'s maximum contribution for health insurance for the
employee plus 1 category would be $1,079 per month.

Employee plus 2 or more category: The 2010 monthly premium for
Kaiser employee plus 2 or more is $1,320.52 and the City's maximum
monthly contribution is $1,263.00. lf this premium increases by 10% for

Page 63

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 18

2011, or to $1 ,452.57, the City's contribution for 2011 for the employee
plus 2 or more category would be computed as follows: $1,452.57 -

$1,320.00 = $132.57, $132.57 x 50% = $66.29, $1,263 + $66.29 =
$1,329.29. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's maximum
contribution for health insurance for the employee plus 2 or more category
would be $1,329 per month. lf the premium increases by 10% for 2012, or
to $1,597.83, the City's contribution for 2012 for the employee plus 2 or
more category would be computed as follows. $1,597.83 - $1,452.57 =
$145.26, $145.26 x 50% = $72.63, $1,329 + $72.63 = $1,401.63. After
rounding to the next whole number, the City's maximum contribution for
health insurance for the employee plus 2 or more category would be
$1,402 per month.

Employees who select a health plan with higher monthly premiums than
the maximum monthly premium paid by the City (Section A above) shall
pay the difference through payroll deduction. Should employees select a

health plan with lower monthly premiums than the maximum monthly
premium paid the City, the City's contribution shall be limited to the cost of
the monthly premium.

Notwithstanding Section 1, ltem A, the City's maximum monthly
contribution for active employee health insurance coverage shall not be
reduced more than eighty percent (80%) of the Kaiser premium cost for
the employee only category, employee plus 1 category, or employee plus
2 or more category.

D. High Deductible Health Plans

(1) The City agrees to offer High Deductible Health Benefit Plans
offered by the health benefit plan carriers.

The City agrees to make available a Health Savings Account (HSA)
to eligible active employees who select a High Deductible Health
Benefit Plans.

Fifty percent (50%) of the difference between the City's monthly
contribution towards the cost of the Kaiser HMO Health plan
premiums as set forth in Article Vll, Section 1 of the MOU and the
monthly premium for a High Deductible Health Plan shall be
contributed into the employee's HSA. Tax status of contributions,
contribution amounts, and use of HSA funds shall be in accordance
with federal and state law.

B

C

(2)

(3)

E. The City will maintain an IRS 125 Medical Reimbursement Account.
Employees may participate in the account pursuant to administrative
procedures established by the City.

Page 64

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding

gF. Health lnsurance - Cash Back

Page 1 9

1 P n em
Resources rtment that thev have qroup insurance
coverage with comparable benefits to health plans offered bv City,
mav decline to narticioate in Citv health insurance coveraoe

0\ Emolovees who decline to rticioate in Citv health insurance
coverage shall receive a cash back payment from the Citv of

00 m the em
participate in Citv health insurance coveraqe.

(3) Emplovees who have declined to participate in Citv health plan

coveraoe Du nt to this section mav enroll in Citv health olan

coveraoe onlv durinq the annual ooen enrollment period. or other
oualifuinq life nt as determined bv the Californ ia Deoartment of
lnsurance.

4 admin
established bv the Citv Human Resources Department.

2

Em tnsurance
to be eliqible to participate in the City's vision and dental plans.

P.(O) nn emplovee w
health insurance is also eliqib le to receive the cash back pavment.

DENTAL INSURANCE
Dental insurance will be provided by Delta Dental Services, lnc. The City will
contribute 80o/o of the monthly premium for an employee, employee and
dependent or an employee plus family as set forth in the plan document.
Employees will contribute 20% of the monthly premium. The Delta Dental
Preferred Provider Program shall provide coverage maximum of $1,750 per year
for employees/dependents who patronize Preferred Provider Program
participating dentists. Employees/dependents that choose non-participating
dentists shall have a coverage maximum of $1,500 per year.

VISION CARE
Vision insurance will be provided by Vision Services Plan (VSP). The City will
contribute 80% of the monthly premium for an employee, employee and
dependent or an employee plus family as set forth in the plan document.
Employees will contribule 20o/o of the monthly premium.

3

The following elements shall provide the basis of VSP coverage:

Page 65

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 20

One eye exam every 12 months;
One set of lenses every 12 months;
$+0+l50 allowance/wholesale basis for frames; and
A co-pay of $5.00 per visit.

4 LIFE INSURANCE
The City agrees to provide $60,000 life insurance coverage and $60,000
accidental death and dismemberment coverage for employees covered by this
MOU. Eligible dependents shall receive $2,000 life insurance coverage.

SHORT TERM DISABILITY PROGRAM
The City agrees to provide a Short Term Disability lnsurance Program, with the
City paying 100% of the premium rate for the weekly indemnity insurance
program (shortterm disability) of up to 60% of salary, subject to the plan
maximum, for up to sixty (60) calendar days. The waiting period for initiation of
benefits shall be twelve (12) calendar days. Othenrvise, the City's obligation to
provide Short Term Disability insurance coverage is limited to plan contributions.
The Short Term Disability insurance carrier shall determine plan content. Any
change in the Short Term Disability lnsurance plan that results in changes to the
disability benefit is subject to meeting and conferring.

LONG TERM DISABILITY PROGRAM
The City agrees to provide a long-term disability program for employees in the
CFFDMME Bargaining Unit as provided in the plan document. Plan coverage
shall provide a maximum benefit of up to 60% of salary, up to age 65. The
maximum payment on this plan is subject to plan agreement.

7 RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE
A. Effective May 8, 2007, existing employees as of that date who retirel from

City service may participate in the health insurance plans made available
by the City for active employees until age 65 when they move to a
Medicare Advantage Plan per subsection a2,+ii-Fy. of this section. The
amount of the City's monthly contribution shall be determined as set forth
below. Any costs that exceed the maximum paid by the City towards
retiree health insurance costs shall be borne by the retiree.

1 "Existing employees" are exclusively permanent and/or probationary employees of the City of Folsom on the date
the Addendum was approved by the Folsom City Council (May 8, 2007). "Retire" or "retiree" is defined as any

classified City employee who (1) applies for retirement with the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) within
ninety (90) days after terminating employment with the City; and (2) receives a PERS retirement benefit.

A.
B.

c.
D.

5

6

Page 66

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page2l

(1) Employees who retire with less than 5 years of servicez shall not be
eligible to receive any City contribution toward the cost of retiree
health insurance.

(2) Employees who retire with more than 5 years of service shall
qualify for a monthly City retiree health insurance contribution.
i. Subject to the maximum set forth in ltem 3 below, the City

retiree health insurance contribution shall be as follows:

Retiree only - an amount equal to the City's contribution
towards active employee health insurance for the category of
"employee only."
Retiree and one dependent - an amount equal to the City's
contribution towards active employee health insurance for
the category of "employee plus one."

Retiree and two or more dependents - an amount equal to
the City's contribution towards active employee health
insurance for the category of "employee plus two or more"
until the retiree reaches age 55. Thereafter, the City's
contribution towards a retiree with two or more dependents
shall be an amount equal to the City's contribution towards
active employee health insurance for the category of
"employee plus one" plus $100.

Retirees and their covered family members who are
Medicare eligible must move to an offered Medicare
Advantage Plan option when they reach Medicare eligibility.
These plans require that they enroll and pay for Medicare
parts A and B. Retirees are responsible for showing proof of
Medicare enrollment as required by the carrier. Medicare
eligible retirees will be dropped from the City's non-
Medicare plan upon Medicare eligibility and/or charged any
additional costs associated for noncompliance by the plan
carrier.

(3) The City's monthly contribution toward the cost of retiree health
insurance shall not exceed the maximum monthly contribution
paid by the City to active employee health insurance for the
categories of employee only (for retiree only), employee plus one
(for retiree plus one dependent), and employee plus one plus

$100 (for retiree plus two or more dependents), as of January 1,

2012.

2 "Service" is defined as full time (or equivalent) continuous permanent and/or probationary employment status with

the City of Folsom.

IV

V

Page 67

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 22

The January 1, 2012 cap for each category shall be adjusted
each January thereafter by an amount not to exceed 3%,
depending on the percent increase in the Consumer Price
lndex (CPl), U.S. Department of Labor, for November -
November of the previous year, lndex CPI-W, Urban Wage
Earners and Clerical Workers, Series #CWUR0400SA0,
United States. (Example, if the costof living forthe specified
period increases by 2Vo, the cap shall be increased by 2%.
lf the cost of living for the specified period increases by 4o/o,

the cap shall be increased by 3o/o (cost of living increases in
the cap shall be rounded to the nearest tenth.)

(4) The City contributes $25 per pay period into an HRA for each
probationary/permanent employee hired after July 1, 2008.

Employees who retire from City service as of January 1, 2020, must have
at least 120 months of continuous service as a City employee to qualify for
dental and vision insurance benefits provided to active employees. For
those retiring on or after October 1, 2020, the City shall contribute 5% of
the premium per year of City service, up to an 80% City contribution.

ARTICLE VIII. ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENTS

UNIFORM ALLOWANCE
A. The City agrees to pay employees the sum of ene-1ws_thousand dollars

($2.000.00) r fiscal year for the purchase of
approved on duty uniforms and attire. All uniforms purchased shall comply
with the most current regulations and specifications as identified in

Standard Operating Procedures (SOP).

B. The City agrees to continue providing employees covered by this MOU the
current uniform laundering services, with costs being assumed by the City.

2 TU ITION/BOOKS REIM BU RSEM ENT
Employees who attend job related classes/training programs that are approved
by the department shall be entitled to reimbursement of costs for books, tuition,
and lodging (pursuant to the City's lodging reimbursement schedule) up to nine

per
fiscal year. The Fire Chief may authorize additional employee reimbursement
costs above this limit, when requested by the employee, should said request not
exceed the budgeted amount of the department for this program.

c

1

Page 68

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 23

Approval shall be given by the department Training Officer prior to the beginning
of the class/training program. The City shall implement a procedure that allows
for payment of an authorized class up front when requested by the employee.

An employee may repeat a job-related course to maintain or upgrade his/her
knowledge, skills and abilities.

Attendance in job related classes/training programs will be non-mandatory and
will not include overtime payment or reimbursement for costs of transportation,
meals, or other incidental expenditures, unless othenryise specified prior to the
course and approved by the department.

Employees who fail to attend or satisfactorily complete a job-related
class/training program shall reimburse the department for all costs incurred by
the City. The City shall deduct the total amount of monies spent by the
department from the employee's paycheck over the next four (4) pay periods.

SCBA OPTICS REIMBURSEMENT
Optical wear (lenses) suitable for insertion into SCBA mask are reimbursable by
the City. Employees should use the claim reimbursement form and submit it
within thirty (30) days using the chain of command.

ARTICLE IX. MISCELLANEOUS

JOB CLASSIFICATIONS
A. The City recognizes that CFFDMME has a vital interest in the content of

fire job specifications, including minimum qualifications and promotional
patterns, for classifications represented by CFFDMME.

The City agrees to notify CFFDMME anytime the City proposes to recruit
and examine for, or to modify, fire job classifications represented by
CFFDMME. The City agrees to meet and consult with CFFDMME over
such proposed changes if CFFDMME so requests.

C. On its own initiative, CFFDMME may at any time notify the City Human
Resources Director that CFFDMME requests to meet and consult with the
City over CFFDMME proposed modifications to the recruitment and
examination procedure, and/or job specifications for fire classifications
represented by CFFDMME. The City shall schedule a meet and consult
session in response to such request.

Nothing in this provision shall be construed as to require the City to
divulge information or change procedures that in any way would
compromise the integrity of the City's merit system.

3

1

B

D

Page 69

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



2

3

CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page24

SHORT TERM SUSPENSION
The parties agree that the members of this unit are not subject to shortterm
suspension as defined by the Personnel Rules and Regulations of the City of
Folsom.

FITNESS / WELLNESS
A. The City and CFFDMME agree to support a comprehensive, mandatory

annual medical examination for all uniformed employees represented by
CFFDMME, as a component of the fitness/wellness program.

B The City agrees an established a fitness/wellness work out period for all
CFFDMME employees during the normalwork shift.

4 SENIORITY FOR PURPOSES OF LAYOFF
Seniority for purposes of layoff shall be defined by the date of the most recent
appointment to the classification. Time served as a probationary employee in the
class shall be included in determining seniority.

5. SALARY UPON PROMOTION
An emplovee who is promoted to a position in a classification with a hiqher salary
ranqe shall be placed in the step in the new salary ranqe that is at least 5%
above the current base salary. An employee thus promoted is therefore assiqned
a new salarv anniversary date effective of the date of promotion.

Page 70

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page25

ARTICLE X. SIGNATURE CLAUSE

The terms and conditions of this Memorandum of Understanding are executed
this day of 4W, by the Employer-
Employee representatives whose signatures appear below on behalf of their respective
organizations.

Citv of Folsom CFFDMME

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Human Resources Director

Fire Chief

Dennis Batchelder
City Representative

Chad Wilson
CFFDMME Representative

M ark Piacenti n iKen€usane

CFFDMME Representative

Mark Piaeentini

Chris Fletehall

Page 71

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



CFFDMME Memorandum of Understanding Page 26

ATTACHMENT A - SALARY RANGES

+ 2 3 4 5 6 7 I

$1€5€s3 $13W $142,772 $146312 ${€€SOs $153,750 $157;594 $464#4

$€8p5O $142,424 ${45p85 $14.q$4 $153,375 $157*4€ $161;'1,t0 $4€ffi
$141424 $44qs85 ${4qffi4 $153;375 $157210 $161;140 $1€ffi $t€9'298

4{+lM

1t1t2g2g

111t2921

1t1t2022

1t1t2A21

1t1t2422

$157;594 $161;53.1 $165;572 fi€W+4] $173i954 $J+8303 $182;760

$161;149 ${€5#€8 $4€W $173;530 $177;868 $482.315 $+861€73

$1€5J€8 $4€g#g7 $173,530 $177;868 $1€2#15 $186;873 $191;5,1,1

E92
Efr 1t1t23

Fire Battalion Chief Etr111124 $
Efr 1t1t25 $

E93

Fire Division Chief Efr 111124 $
Efr 111125 $

1

58,933

$ 163,700 $

$ 168,611 $

4
66,879 175,223
32

3

171,886 $
177,U2 $

5
183,984

189,504
195,'189

5

214,406
220,838

151,364
155,905
160,582

2

185,212 $ 194,472
190,768 $ 200,306

180,480 $
185,894 $

4

$ 204,196 $

$ 210,322 $

1

176,392 $
181,684 $

Page 72

03/28/2023 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 312812023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11009 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding between

the City of Folsom and Folsom Middle Management Group

FROM: Human Resources Department

ON / CITY ACTION
The Human Resources Director fecommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution

No. 11009 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of
Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group

(FMMG).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
T[e existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Folsom and the

Folsom Middle Management Group (FMMG) expired on December 31, 2022. The parties

began negotiations on a new MOU on October 13,2022, and reached a tentative agreement on

February 27,2023. FMMG ratified the tentative agreement on March 8,2023. The new

proposed successor MOU is being presented to the City Council on March 28, 2023, fot
consideration and approval.

POLICY / RIII,E
Government Code Title 1, Division 4, Chapter 10 commonly known as the Meyers-Milias-
Brown Act requires that representatives of the Governing Body of a public agency shall meet

and confer in good faith regarding wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment

with representatives of recognized employee organizations. Both parties shall endeavor to

reach a tentative agreement within the scope of representation, and, if a tentative agreement is

reached and ratified by the respective parties, they shall prepare a written memorandum of
understanding.

I
Page 73

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



ANALYSIS and ANCIAL IMPACT
A tentative agreement was reached by the parties and the proposed successor Memorandum of
Understanding, which will be effective January 1,2023, (unless otherwise notated) contains

the following changes that have some economic impact, as outlined below. The changed

provisions are as follows:

l. The MOU term will be for three (3) years: January 1,2023, through December 31,

2025.

2. Each job classification shall have one salary range containing between six to nine steps,

with approximately 3o/o betvv een steps.

o Employee step assignment in the new range shall be equal to the salary the

employee is assigned as of December 31,2022. The cost for the adjustment to
the salary ranges will be approximately $55,714 in the first year in salary and

benefit costs.

3. A cost-otliving adjustment (COLA) is provided for each year of the agreement:

o Year 1: Effective January I,2023
' 3oA for all classifications
. The cost for the first year of the COLA will increase salary and benefits

approximately $266,61 8.

o Year2l Effective January I,2024
' 3Yo for all classifications

' The cost for the second year of the COLA will increase salary and

benefits approximat ely $27 8,239 .

o Year 3: Effective January 1,2025

' 3oA for all classifications
. The cost for the third year of the COLA will increase salary and benefits

approximately $286,5 86.

4. Effective January I,2023, the following classifications shall be increased by 5oh:

r Water Treatment Plant Supervisor
o Water Distribution Supervisor
o WastewaterCollectionsSupervisor
. Utility Maintenance Supervisor
o Utility Maintenance Supervisor - Water Meters
o Streets Operation Supervisor
o Solid Waste Operations Supervisor
o Facilities Maintenance Supervisor
o MaintenanceSupervisor

The cost of the special salary increase will be approximately $64,977 in the first year in
salary and benefits.

2
Page 74

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



5. Retention Pay
o Employees with ten (10) or more years of continuous City service shall be

eligible to receive 2 Yr% of base salary. Employees currently receiving

Longevity Pay shall not be eligible to receive this benefit.

o The cost to add Retention Pay is not expected to increase salary and benefit
costs in the first year.

6. Deferred Compensation
o Effective the first fullpay period following Folsom City Council ratification of

this MOU, the City will increase Deferred Compensation City-matching
contributions by an additional $50.00 per month for employees participating in
the City's deferred compensation program.

7. Annual Leave Cash Out
o The City will allow employees to cash out 60 hours of annual leave only after

an employee has used 40 hours of annual leave in the same fiscal year.

8. A variety of non-economic and clarification language changes were also agreed upon.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 11009 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle
Management Group.

2. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom

Middle Management Group for the term of January 1,2023, through December 31,

2025.

Submitted,

Allison Garcia
Human Resources Director

J
Page 75

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



Attachment I

RESOLUTION NO. 11009

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF'UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF F'OLSOM AI\D
THE FOLSOM MIDDLE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Page 76

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 11009

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND
THE FOLSOM MIDDLE MANAGEMENT GROUP

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group have met

and conferred in good faith since October 13th,2022; and

WHEREAS, the parties reached a tentative agreement on February 27th,2023; and

WHEREAS, the members of the Folsom Middle Management Group ratified the

tentative agreement on March 9th,2023; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and the City's negotiation team recommend the City
Council adopt the tentative agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF'THE
CITY OF FOLSOM' that the City Council adopts the tentative agreement between the City
of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group for the period of January I,2023, to

December 31,2025; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED' that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of
Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group.

PASSED AND ADOPTED onthis 2Sthday of March 2023,by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Page 77

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



Attachment 2

PROPOSED MEMORANDUM OF I]NDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF'

F'OLSOM AND THE F'OLSOM MIDDLE MANAGEMENT GROUP FOR THE TERM
oF' JANUARY 1,2023, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2025.

Page 78

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



F"OLSOM
CITY OF

DIgTINCTIVE BY NATURE

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

CITY OF FOLSOM

AND

FOLSOM MIDDLE MANAGEMENT GROUP

January 1, MM- December 31, Wffi

Page 79

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1 , n*M- December 31,2eL2025

Page 2

'fable of Contents
ARTICLE I- RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE

1. RrcocurrroN..............

ARTICLE II - NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT........

No Srnrrr
Locrour.

ARTICLE III - COMPENSATION

1

2

4

4

5

5
5

5

1. SRr-RRv lrucnrRsrs
2. SnmnY RRNcrs
3. Snnnv Rnruor Ao;usrvrruTs............
4. DrrgRneo ColpeusnrtoN.........
5. Bt-Ltruounl Pnv.......
6. Puelrc Evtpt-ovrrs RrrtRetuerur SvsrEv (PERS)
7. Rntneuerur Oprtorunl Srrrlrvrrur 2 DrnrH Berurrtrs (Sunvtvons)......
8. RrrtRre HrnlrH lrusunnruce
L RertRrr DgrurnlnruoVtstott lrusuRnxcr
10. Our or Anen HeRlrH PRrulutrl Pmru ...

11. Usr or Accnueo Lrnve Ttue Prruotruc RrrtnrMENT........
12. EoucRrtoru lrucrrurtvr Pnv .........
13. Crll PHoruE ..............

ARTICLE IV - INSURANCE.........

1. HrRlru lNsuRnrucr
2. Hrnlrn lnsunnruce - CnsH Bncr........
3. HrnlrH Brrurrtrs Lnaon-MnNAGEMENT Covvtrrcr
4. DrrurRl lrusuRnrucr
5. Vtstotrt Pmru.........
6. SuoRr TpRu DtsnstLtrv lrusunnruce
7. Louc Trnv DtsRetLttY lrusunnruce
8. Lrrr lrusunnNcE ....
9. Dolrsrtc PRnrrurR

.5

.5

.o

.7

.7

.7

.8
,8
10
10
11

11

12

13

13
15
15
16
16
16
16
16
17

17
17
18
18
18
19

ARTICLE V - HOURS, HOLIDAYS AND LEAVES ....................17

1. MRruncrruerur Lrnvr
2. LottcEvtrv Pnv..........
3. Rrrrrurtoru Pnv....
4. MnruRcElurrur/SuprnvtsoRY Etr,tpt-ovrr Houns or Wonr
5. Attruunl LeRvr
6. Stcr LEnvE

Page 80

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, M2023 .- December 31,zWM

Page 3

7. ConllprrusnloN UpoN SrRvtcr Sepnnnrtoru
8. FMMG CnrRsrnopHtc LEAVE Bnrur.......
9. Turrtoru RetNltsunsrvrrur Po1tcY...........
10. Holronvs..

ARTICLE VI . POSITION CLASSIFICATION

1. Evrpr-ovrr CmsstrtcnrtoN SrUDY Reoursrs
2. MRRxrrSuRvrv

ARTICLE VII - MISCELLANEOUS

1. SRI-RRY oru Srnrus CHRrucrs
2. Br-Wgexlv Pnv ScHroule/Alrenrunru Wonx Scuroulrs
3. Evtpt-ovee WrllNess

ARTICLE VIII - PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS........

1. PenronvnmceEvnluATtoNS

ARTICLE IX - EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

1. Etvtpr-ovrrDlsctpt-true

ARTIGLE X - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

20
20
21
24

24

24
26

27

27
30
30

30

30

30

30

36

ARTICLE XI - TERM OF AGREEMENT

1. Tenu or MOU
2. TorRl AcnEeveruT...............

APPENDIX A - LIST OF OCCUPIED CLASSES IN BARGAINING UNIT

APPENDIX B - FMMG SALARY RANGES

38

38
38

40

4',|

Page 81

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,W2023 - December 31,2€P32025

Page 4

PREAMBLB

On this date hereinafter subscribed, authorized representatives of the City of Folsom,
herein called "City", and authorized representatives of the Folsom Middle Management
Group, herein called "FMMG ", made and entered into this Memorandum of Understanding
(Mou)

It is understood and agreed that this agreement supersedes and replaces all prior
agreements between the City and FMMG covering the matters contained herein. Where
ordinances and policies conflictwith this Memorandum of Understanding, the Memorandum
of Understanding shall prevail.

The term "Agreement" or "Memorandum of Understanding" as used herein means the
written agreement provided under Section 3505.1 of the Government Code.

This MOU is subjected to allexisting State laws and ordinances, resolutions and personnel

rules of the City, except as expressly provided to the contrary by this MOU.

ARTICLE I - RBCOGNITION AND COVERAGE

r" Recognition

FMMG is recognized as the exclusive representative group, as provided in the City's
Employer-Employee Relations Rules, for all employees assigned to the Middle
Management Bargaining Unit. The City recognizes the Folsom Middle Management Group
as a unique employee group and acknowledges their contributions and dedication to the
achievement of the City's goals. ln recognition, the City agrees to ensure that FMMG's
benefit package differentiates from those of other employee groups. Classifications
included in the Middle Management Bargaining Unit are listed in Appendix A to this MOU.
All classifications listed in "Appendix A - List of Classes in Bargaining Unit", and any
successor classifications, are included in this bargaining unit.

Classes will be added or deleted from the Middle Management Bargaining Unit pursuantto
City Personnel Rules. The City agrees to notify FMMG at such time as the City creates,
deletes, or modifies a job classification. Upon request of FMMG, the City agrees to meet
and confer on assignment of the classification to the Middle Management Bargaining Unit.

On a monthly basis the City shall provide FMMG with a list of City employees within the
Middle Management Bargaining Unit by class, name, hourly wage, step placement,
anniversary date, and employment status (permanent, full-time, or parttime).

The City agrees to establish payroll deductions for normal and regular monthly FMMG

Page 82

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 5
January 1, W+2023 - December 31, M2025

membership dues and assessments, should FMMG choose to implement such
deductions with the signed approval of each FMMG member to be assessed.

ARTICLE II - NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT

r. No Strike

FMMG agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither it nor its officers, employees,
representatives, or members will engage in, encourage, sanction, support or suggest any
strikes, work stoppages, boycotts, slow downs, mass resignations, mass absenteeism,
picketing or any other similar actions which would involve suspension of, or interference
with, the normal work of the City of Folsom. ln the event that FMMG members participate
in such activities in violation of this provision, FMMG shall notify those members so
engaged to cease and desist from such activities and shall instruct the members to return
to their normal duties.

E. Lockout

No lockout of employees shall be instituted by the City during the term of this MOU

ARTICLE III . COMPENSATION

r" Satrary Increases

A. Effective January 1,MM, allemployees represented by FMMG shall receive a
salary increase of 25!o/o.

B. Effective January 1, W+QA, all employees represented by FMMG shall receive a
salary increase of 2-5,!o/o.

C. Effective January 1,MM, allemployees represented by FMMG shall receive a
salary increase of 2#!o/o.

z. Salary Ranges

A. Effective Januarv 1 2023 Aooendix B shows the new sala ranoes for each iob

classification. Salarv ranqe steps shall be approximatelv 3% between steps. The
ranqe and steps include anv salary increase received pursuant to Article lll, Section
1.

B. Emplovees will be m oved to the new salarv ranqe step that i closest to their base

Page 83

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,MM- December 31,WM

calanr /haea calanr ae nf Denamber 31 tit')\ rrrifhnr rf hainrr lrrurar

Procedures for steo ancement oromotion. demotion. transfer. and I AS SEtavoff forth in

Page 6

Citv of Folsom Personnel Rules and Reoul . and this MOU. shall apolv. Anniversarv
dates shall remain the same.

-q. Salary Range Adjustments

A. Effective Januarv 1 2023 the salarv ranoes for the followin ct classifications shall

be increased bv 5%.

1. Water Treatme Plant Suoervisor
2. Water Distribution Supervisor
3. Wastewater Collections Supervisor
4 Utilitv Maintenance Su oervtsor
5. Utility Maintenance Supervisor - Water Meters
6. Streets Operations Supervisor
7. Solid Suoervisor
8. Facilities Maintenance Supervisor
9. Maintena Suoervisor

eala^r EJanaaa 'TQA anA TQA rrtill harra 4C clancI
\qr rvvg I vr ql

3, Salary Ranges T10 I anC T107 will have 8 steps,

range and steps inelude the 2,5% salary inerease as ef January 1; 2020; eentained in

@
The pesitiens represented by FMMG are leeated en the Salary Seales shewn in

*BpenA+x-B"

Empleyees will be meved te the new salary range step that is elesest te their salary
(salary as ef Deeember 31t 2019 with the January 1 ; 2020; 2,5% inerease added)

@

Fer the duratien ef the January 1 
' 
2020 Deeembep 31; 2022 MOU; empleyees whe

were en Salary Seale A prier te January 1; 2020 shall; en their reviewdate; if

Page 84

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, ?4P$2023 - December 31,2A*2J25

Page 7

weuld have been their step inerease en the "4" seare,

3. Deferued Compensation

A. Effective the first full pav period followinq Folsom Citv Council ratification of this
MOU, FIor employees participating in the City's deferred compensation program,
the City agrees to make the following matching contributions in accordance with the
following schedule:

Length of Service Maximum City Matching Contribution

0 -10 years
10 -=15 years
15 -=.2O years
20+ years

$250300.00 per month
$275325.00 per month
ffiee358.00 per month
$35O4q8.00 per month

-tr,ingual Fay

Should the need arise, the parties agree during the term of this Agreement to set up a
process whereby employees may track the use of bilingual skills, and to meet and confer if
the use of bilingual skills become a regular part of the employee's duties and
responsibilities.

f.6. Ptilrlic f*nployees Retirefiterlt
Systern (PERS)

A. Retireme f Formula

(1) All FMMG miscellaneous employees hired prior to June 30, 2010,
shall receive the retirement benefit of 2.7o/o@55. All FMMG
miscellaneous employees hired on or after July 1,2010, and before
January 1,2013, shall receive the retirement benefit of 2o/o@55. All
employees hired on or after January 1,2013, shall receive retirement
benefits pursuantto the California Public Employees' Pension Reform
Act of 2013 (AB 340).

(2) All employees hired prior to June 30, 2010, shall receive the
retirement benefit based on the single highest twelve (12) months of
compensation. All employees hired on or after July 1, 2010, shall
receive the retirement benefit based on the employee's highest
average monthly compensation during thirty-six (36) consecutive
months of employment as provided in state law pertaining to PERS.

Page 85

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,?€F42023- December 31,W2025

Page 8

(3) Should another employee organization representing a City bargaining
unit agree to a retirement benefit formula for miscellaneous
employees that is different than the benefit formula in Article lll,
Section 7A, ltem (1) or (2), FMMG shall be given the option to amend
the appropriate retirement benefit formula contained herein to match
the retirement benefit formula agreed to with the other employee
organization. Any change shall be applied prospectively.

Retirement Contributions

(1) FMMG "classic" employees shall pay 8o/o towards their PERS
retirement plan.

(2) FMMG PEPRAemployees hired underlhe20/o@62 formula shallpay
the employee share of retirement as specified and adjusted by
PEPRA.

C. EPMC

Pursuant to Government Code section 20691, the City agrees to include the
amount of the City's payment of the employee's final year of compensation
for PERS retirement computation purposes.

&2. Retirement Optional Settlement
z Death Benefits (Survivors)

The City agrees to continue to provide the Pre-Retirement Optional Settlement 2 Death

Benefit pursuant to Government Code Section 21548.

e Health Insurance

A. Employees hired on or prior to May 8,2007, who retirel from City service
may participate in the Kaiser or other City insurance plans made available by
the City for active employees. The amount of the City's monthly contribution
shall be determined as set forth below. Any costs that exceed the maximum
paid by the City towards retiree health insurance costs shall be borne by the
retiree.

1 "Employees" are exclusively permanent and/or probationary employees of the City of Folsom hired on or

before May 8, 2007. "Retire" or "retiree" is defined as any classified City employee who (1) applies for

retirement with the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) within ninety (90) days after
terminating employment with the City; and (2) receives a PERS retirement benefit.

B

Page 86

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, MW- December 31,2W2J8

Page 9

(1) Employees who retire with less than 5 years of servicez shall not be
eligible to receive any City contribution toward the cost of retiree
health insurance.

(2) Employees who retire with more than 5 years of service shall qualify
for a monthly City retiree health insurance contribution.

(3) Subject to the maximum set forth in Section 8A(4) below, the City
retiree health insurance contribution shall be as follows:

a Retiree only - an amount equal the City's contribution towards
active employee health insurance for the category of
"employee only."

Retiree and one dependent - an amount equal to the City's
contribution towards active employee health insurance for the
category of "employee plus one."

Retiree and two or more dependents - an amount equalto the
City's contribution towards active employee health insurance
for the category of "employee plus two or more" until the retiree
reaches age 55. Thereafter, the City's contribution towards a
retiree with two or more dependents shall be an amount equal
to the City's contribution towards active employee health
insurance for the category of "employee plus one" plus $100.

(4) Effective January 1, 2012, the City's monthly contribution toward the
cost of retiree health insurance shall not exceed the maximum monthly
contribution paid by the City to active employee health insurance forthe
categories of employee only (for retiree only), employee plus one (for
retiree plus one dependent), and employee plus two or more until age
55 and employee plus one plus $100 after age 55 (for retiree plus two
or more dependents).

(5) The January 1,2012, cap for each category shall be adjusted each
January thereafter by an amount not to exceed 3%, depending on the
percent increase in the Consumer Price lndex (CPl), U.S. Department
of Labor, for November - November of the previous year, lndex CPI-W,
Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers, Series #CWUR0400SA0,
United States. (Example, if the cost of living for the specified period
increases by 2o/o, the cap shall be increased by 2o/o. lf the cost of living

2 "Service" is defined as full time (or equivalent) continuous permanent and/or probationary employment
status with the City of Folsom.

b.

c.

Page 87

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 10

January 1, WM- December 31,20PP-2025

for the specified period increases by 4o/o, the cap shall be increased by

3% (cost of living increases in the cap shall be rounded to the nearest
tenth).

The City shall contribute $25 per pay period into a Health Retirement
Account (HRA) for each permanent employee hired after May 8, 2007. The
principles governing the HRA shall be established by the lnternal Revenue
Service (lRS) and the City Human Resources Department.

Insurance

Effective January 1. 2020, employees who retire from City service must have at least
120 months of contin uous service as a Citv emolovee to qualifu for dental and vision

B

insurance benefits p to active emolovees. The Citv shal contribute 5olo of the
premium per year of Citv service. up to an 80% Citv contribution.

ro.Out of Area Health Premium Plan

rk in con Account
ided Each OAHPP

participant account.

B. Onlv retirees who (a) live outside of the plan area; (b) qualifu for Retiree
health Coveraqe pursuant to Article lll. Section 7; and (c) aqree to disenroll
from the current qroup medical benefit olan for retiree health coveraoe mav
oarticipate in OAHPP

C. Once a retiree oots to oarticioate in OAHPP. the reti shall thereafter be
prohibited from returninq to retiree health coverage.

will nt accou
in an amount eoualto the amount of the Citv's contribution for emplovee onlv
or emplovee plus 1 coveraoe. based on the retiree's ma status at the time
of OAHPP election. Spouses mav not be added later. The City's contribution

be in health
circumstances shall the contrib ution be hioher than the Citv paid premiums

for similarlv s in-area emolovees. The retiree shal I be resoonsible for
qr{rni nicfraf irro actahliehad hrr fha 1--lPA n n admin icf rafnr

E. Up e death of, or martia ldissolution from. the retiree's spo use on record
at the time of election to participate in the OAHPP, the fundinq level will be
adiusted to emplovee only. Subsequent spouseLs) from anv subsequent

Page 88

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 11

January 1, M2023 - December 31, 2W2J25

marriaqe(s) (i.e. post initial OAHPP election) shall not be eliqible to
participate and fundinq will remain at emplovee onlv. I n the event of the
retiree's death, survivinq spousal benefits will conform to Citv practices

aoolicable to emplovees participatinq in Citv olans. Should the retiree obtain
coveraoe from another source (e.o. bv soouse) the fundino will
cease and will not be reinstated.

F. Rules and rocedures oovernino OAHPP shall determined and

administered by the City Human Resources Department. Disputes reqardinq
the OAHPP shall be aooealed to the Citv Manaqer or onee and shall not
be subiect to arbitration.

G. As an option to the OAHPP. retirees who qualifu for retiree health coveraqe
pursuant to Article lll . Section 7. mav'elect the Aetna PPO olan durino annual

rollment a The retiree must
Aetna as their provider until such time as thev move back into the reoions
covered bv whoever are the City health providers at the time. and mav elect
another provider durinq the next open enrollment. lt is understood bv both
parties that this option is available only in accordance with the rules and
procedures of Aetna and onlv as lonq as Aetna chooses to be a provider for
the Citv.

11 LIse of Accrued Leat'e'Time
Pending Retirernent

A. With prior approval of the City Manager or designee and pursuant to
procedures established by the Human Resources Director, employees who
have declared their intention to retire from employment with the City of
Folsom may use accrued Annual Leave or Administrative Leave to extend
their retirement date beyond the last day worked.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this MOU, accrued Annual Leave or
Administrative Leave used to extend a retirement date shall not result in the
accrual of additional Annual Leave, Sick Leave, or Administrative Leave.

Requests to extend a retirement date pursuant to this section shall be
submitted to the City Human Resources Department. This provision shall be
administered pursuant to procedures established by the City Human
Resources Department.

Education Incerltive Pay

B

c.

**42

A. For employees hired on January 1,2020, or later, education incentive pay is

Page 89

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 12

January 1, 2{J:2+W- December 31, 2W2JE

limited to job related degrees not required in their classification description
and approved by the employee's department head and the City's Human

Resources Director. The incentives listed below are non-cumulative and paid

" ": 

fili*li*i: ,,Til:11,., $1 50 .0 per m.n,h

For employees hired before January 1,2020, educational incentive pay is
frozen at the dollar amount paid on December 31 ,2019. No increase in this
dollar amount will occur unless this amount is less than the amount listed in
subparagraph A above, at which point the amount will be adjusted to the
higher level.

Payment of education incentive will begin effective the first pay period after
the employee provides the Human Resources Department with the
appropriate documentation, which includes a copy of transcripts or diploma.
It is the responsibility of each employee to notify the Human Resources
Department of his/her eligibility for education incentive and to provide the
appropriate documentation.

Employees who qualify for the education incentive and who received City
paid tuition reimbursement (Article V, Section 8) will not receive education
incentive pay until they have reimbursed the City for the cost of the tuition
reimbursement. Once payment is made in full for tuition reimbursement, the
education incentive will start and be paid directly to the employee.
Reimbursing the City will consist of delaying the incentive pay until an

amount equivalent to the tuition reimbursement has been withheld. For
example, if an employee qualified for $300 per month in education incentive
payment, but had received $3,000 in tuition reimbursement, the employee's
incentive payment would be delayed 10 months from the education incentive

effective date.

ittu1R. Cell Fhone

A department head, with City Manager approval, may approve the issuance of a city cell
phone or may authorize the use of the employee's personal cell phone forwork purposes.

lf an employee opts to use his/her personal phone for work purposes the City will provide

employee with a maximum monthly cell phone stipend of $50.00. The monthly stipend
shall cover expenses, charges, maintenance and replacement of the employee's phone

including damage, loss, theft or other operational issues affecting the phoneduring private

use or during the course and scope of employment. The City shall have no further liability

c

D

Page 90

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 13

January 1, n*M- December 31, M2J25

for these items beyond the stipend amount. lf an employee opts to use his/her personal
cell phone, employee will provide the cellular phone record of business calls during work
hours upon request of the City.

ARTICLE IV _ INSURANCE

l. Health Insurance

As demonstrated in the example below, the City's maximum monthly
contribution for active employee health insurance coverage shall be adjusted
annually to an amount equal to 50% of the increase, if any, above the prior
year's Kaiser monthly premium rate combined with the City's prior year
contribution amount for employee only, employee plus 1 , and employee plus

2 or more (rounded to the next whole number). The employee is responsible
for the difference between the applicable premium and the City's contribution.

Example:

Employee only category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser employee
only is $507.89 and the City's maximum monthly contribution is $486.00. lf
this premium increases by 10o/o for 2011, or to $558.68, the City's
contributionfor 2011 for the employee only category would be computed as
follows: $553.68 - $507.89 = $50.79, $50.79 x 50o/o = $23.40, $486.00 +

$23.40 = $509.40. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's
maximum contribution for health insurance for the employee only category
would be $509 per month. lf the premium increases by 10o/o for 2012, or to

$614.55, the City's contribution for 2012 for the employee only category
would be computed as follows: $614.55 - $558.68 = $55.87, $55.87 x50o/o =
$27.93, $509.00 + $27.93 = $536.93. After rounding to the next whole
number, the City's maximum contribution for health insurance for the
employee only category would be $537 per month.

Employee plus 1 category: The2010 monthly premium for Kaiser employee
plus 1 is $1 ,015.78 and the City's maximum monthly contribution is $972.00.
lf this premium increases by 10o/o for 2011, or to $1,117.36, the City's

contributionfor 2011 for the employee plus 1 category would be computed as
follows: $1 ,1 1 7 .36 - $1 ,015.78 = $101 .58, $101 .58 x 50% = $50.79, $972.00
+ $50.79. = $1,022.79. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's
maximum contribution for health insurance for the employee plus 1 category
would be $1,023 per month. tf the premium increases by 10o/ofor2O12, orto
$1,229.10, the City's contributiontor 2012 for the employee plus 1 category
would be computed asfollows: $1,229.10 - $1 ,117.36 = $111.74,$111.74x
50o/o = $55.87, $1,023.00 + $55.87. = $1,078.87. After rounding to the next

A

Page 91

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, 24,2+2023 - December 31,2-WM

Page 14

whole number, the City's maximum contribution for health insurance for the
employee plus 1 category would be $1,079 per month.

Employee plus 2 or more category: The 2010 monthly premium for Kaiser
employee plus 2 or more is $1,320.52 and the City's maximum monthly
contribution is $1,263.00. lf this premium increases by 10% for 2011, or to
$1,452.57 , the City's contribution for 201 1 for the employee plus 2 or more
category would be computed as follows: $1,452.57 - $1,320.00 = $132.57,
$132.57 x50o/o = $66.29, $1,263 + $66.29 =$1,329.29. After rounding to the
nextwhole number, the City's maximum contribution for health insurance for
the employee plus 2 or more category would be $1,329 per month. lf the
premium increases by 1Oo/o for 2012, or to $1 ,597.83, the City's contribution
lor 2012 for the employee plus 2 or more category would be computed as
follows: $1,597.83 -$1,452.57 =$145.26, $145.26 x 50% =$72.63, $1,329 +

$72.63 = $1,401.63. After rounding to the next whole number, the City's
maximum contribution for health insurance for the employee plus 2 or more
category would be $1 ,402 per month.

Employees who select a health plan with higher monthly premiums than the
maximum monthly premium paid by the City (Section A above) shall pay the
difference through payroll deduction. Should employees select a health plan
with lower monthly premiums than the maximum monthly premium paid the
City, the City's contribution shall be limited to the cost of the monthly
premium.

The City will continue an IRS 125 Medical Reimbursement Account.
Employees may participate in the account pursuant to administrative
procedures established by the City.

The City's maximum monthly contribution for active employee health
insurance coverage shall not be reduced below eighty percent (80%) of the
health benefit plan that represents the lower overall premium cost to the City
(not including any High Deductible plans).

E. High Deductible Health Plans

B

c

D

The City agrees to offer High Deductible Health Benefit Plans
in addition to the HMO plans offered by the health benefit plan
carriers.

The City agrees to make available a Health Savings Account
(HSA) to employees who select either of the High Deductible
Health Benefit Plans.

Fifty percent (50%) of the difference between the City'silt.

Page 92

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1 , M2,023 .- December 31,2W2025

Page '15

monthly contribution towards the cost of the Kaiser HMO
Health plan premiums as set forth in Article lV, Section 1 of the
MOU and the monthly premium for a High Deductible Health
Plan shall be contributed into the employee's HSA. Tax status
of contributions, contribution amounts, and use of HSA funds
shall be in accordance with federal and state law.

Vear ef eity servio

e. l{ealth Insuraxlce *"Cash Racle

Probationary or permanent employees, who certify to the Human Resources
Department that they have group health insurance coverage with comparable
benefits to health plans offered by City, may decline to participate in City
health insurance coverage.

Employees who decline to participate in City health insurance coverage shall
receive a cash back payment from the City of $250 per month for each month
the employee does not participate in City health insurance coverage.

Employees who have declined to participate in City health plan coverage
pursuant to this section may enroll in City health plan coverage only during
the annual open enrollment period.

This section shall be administered pursuant to procedures established by the
City Human Resources Department.

Employees who decline health insurance coverage shall continue to be

eligible to participate in the City's vision and dental plans.

An employee whose spouse is employed by the City and receives health
insurance is also eligible to receive the cash back payment.

g" HeaXth Benefits I-abor-l\4anagement Comrnittee

The parties agree to participate in a joint Health Benefits Labor-Management Committee to
review existing health benefit programs, including, but not limited to, the cost containment,
direct contracting for health benefit plans, and creation of a health benefits cafeteria plan.

The Health Benefits Labor-Management Committee shall be open to all employee
organizations representing City employees. FMMG may select up to two City employees to
participate in Committee meetings. Employees who participate in Committee meetings shall
do so without loss of compensation.

A.

B

c.

D

E

F

Page 93

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, M2.023 - December 31, M2025

Page 16

4. Derrtal Insurance

Dental insurance will be provided by Delta Dental. The City will contribute 80% of the
monthly premium for an employee, employee and dependent, or employee and family as

set forth in the plan document. Employees will contribule 20o/o of the monthly premium.

The Plan will be the Delta Dental Preferred Provider Program, with a coverage maximum of
91,750 per year for employees/dependents who patronize Preferred Provider Program
participating dentists. Employees/dependents who choose non-participating dentists shall
have a coverage maximum of $1,500 per year.

5. Vision Plan

Vision coverage will be provided by Vision Services Plan (VSP). The City will contribute
80% of the monthly premium foran employee, employee and dependent, oremployee and
family as set forth in the plan document. Employees will contribute 2oo/o of the monthly
premium. The following elements shall provide the basis of VSP coverage.

. One eye exam every 12 months;

. One set of lenses every 12 months;

. $100 allowance/wholesale basis for frames; and
o A co-pay of $5.00 per visit.

6" Short Terrn Disahility Insurance

The City agrees to provide a Short Term Disability lnsurance Program as provided in the
plan document, with the City paying 100% of the premium rate for the weekly indemnity
insurance program (shortterm disability) of 60% of salary for 26 weeks. The maximum
payment is subject to plan agreement. The waiting period for initiation of benefits underthe
plan shall be 12 calendar days.

7. Long T'errn llisability Insurance

The City agrees to provide a long-term disability program for employees in the Middle
Management Bargaining Unit as provided in the plan document. Plan coverage shall
provide a maximum benefit of up to 60% of salary, up to age 65. The maximum payment

on this plan is subject to plan agreement.

8. Life Insurance

The City agrees to provide $60,000 of life insurance coverage to each employee in the
Middle Management Bargaining Unit, and $1,000 for each dependent. Employees may
purchase additional life insurance coverage for themselves and/or their dependents

Page 94

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 17

January 1, 42+2023.- December 31, zWM

through the City's life insurance carrier pursuant to procedures established by the City's
Human Resources Department. The City's obligation to life insurance coverage is limited to

the plan contribution.

g. flomestic Par:tner

For purposes of insurance coverage, "dependent" shall include a domestic partnerwho has

been certified by the Secretary of State's Office pursuant to Family Code Sections 297 et
seq.

ARTICLE V _ HOURS, HOLIDAYS AND LEAVES

t" Management Leave

Employees in the Middle Management Bargaining Unit shall receive 80 hours per year of
management leave. Current rules governing the use of accrued management leave
(formerly known as administrative leave) shall continue to apply.

An employee in the Middle Management Bargaining Unit who is required by his or her
department head to regularly attend meetings during non-work hours may be allocated up

to a total of 100 hours per year of management leave. Annually, department heads shall
provide a list to the City Manager of those employees who they feel are deserving of the
additional management leave. A list of meetings requiring routine attendance by the
employee shall be included with each employee's name. The list shall be submitted forthe
City Manager's review and approval no later than July 1 of each year, and employees on

the list notified by August 15. An employee who has not been included on the list may
request that he/she be permitted to accrue additional management leave time. Such
requests are subject to final approval by the City Manager.

This section shall not be subject to the Grievance/Arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

z" I-eingevity Pay

Subject to subsection B below, employees hired on or before July 1 ,2010, in

the FMMG bargaining unit shall be eligible to receive longevity pay beginning
with ten (10) or more years of City service.
the faet that the eligible ernpleyee has reeeived an everall satisfaetery er
abeve rating in his/her lasl annual perfermanee evaluatien, The Longevity
Pay formula is based on 2112o/o increments and is as follows:

2Tzo/o after ten (10) years of City service;
an addition al 2Tzo/o for a total of 5o/o after fifteen (15) years of City service;
an addition al 2/zo/o for a total of TTzo/o after twenty (20) years of City service

A.

Page 95

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, M2023 - December 31, M2025

Page 18

B. Employees hired afterJuly 1 ,2010, shall not be eligible to receive Longevity
Pay.

3. Retention Pay

A. Subiect to subsection c. below. emp ees in the FMMG baroainino unit sha
be eliqible to receive Retention Pav beginninq with ten (10) or more vears of
continuous Citv service.

B Retention Pav shall be 2 /"o/o of the emo ' base sa larv

c. Emolovees receivino Lonoevitv Pav ( V Section 2) shall not be elioible
to receive Retention Pav.

All soecial oav in this ection shall be deemed lonoevitv pav and orted to CaIPERS as
cnanial r-r.rrhhanetfirrn nt trct ronf to C.C.R. Qanfinn 47'l

3'-.4. Management/SuPervisory-

Consistent with City Policy #204 (Management Leave Policy) or as modified, management
and supervisory employees who are exempt from the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)
shallwork an average workweek of 40 hours. The salary received by those employees shall
be considered full compensation for all time that is required forthe employee to perform the
duties of the position to which he/she is assigned.

Management and supervisory employees may be required to work hours in excess of the
average workweek of 40 hours. The City Manager may approve additional compensation
for management and supervisory employees in recognition of a large number of hours
worked in a workweek due to a longterm, extreme emergency situation. Othenruise, hours
worked in excess of the average workweek are not compensable.

Management and supervisory employees who are not required to work a normalworkday
or part thereof shall receive full compensation without deduction if the absence does not
reduce the employees average work week below 40 hours within the24 pay periods ending
the pay period in which the absence occurred.

+5. Annual Leave

Employees shall receive the following Annual Leave credits:

Length of Service Annual Leave Allowance

A.

Page 96

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1 , MM- December 31 ,2W2J25

0 - 5 years
5 -10 years
10-15 years
15+ years

Page 19

16
18.68
21.34
24

hours per month
hours per month
hours per month
hours per month

c

D

B. Except as specified in Article V, Section 6 below, employees shall not accrue
sick leave. However, employees who have accumulated sick leave hours
shall retain such hours and may use such leave credits pursuant to Article V,
Section 6, Sick Leave, of this MOU. AllVacation Leave shall be converted to
Annual Leave on an hour for hour basis3.

Annual leave credits may be used for any approved absence, including
vacation and illness or injury. When annual leave is used for vacation, it shall
be scheduled pursuant to City Personnel Rules. When annual leave is used
for illness or injury leave (e.9., sick leave) purposes, it shall be taken
pursuant to City Personnel Rules.

There shall be an annual leave cap of 320 hours. Employees with annual
leave balances that exceed the annual leave cap of 320 hours as of the date
of ratification of this MOU may retain such balances until the annual leave
balances are reduced to the 320-hour cap.

1) ln the event the City does not approve annual leave for an employee in

an amount sufficient to reduce accumulated annual leave to 320 hours,
the number of hours that exceed 320 hours shall be rolled over into sick
leave until the annual leave balance is reduced to the 320-hour cap.

Employees may continue to cash-out annual leave per eaienda+![scal-year
on an hour-for-hour basis at the employee's regular straight-time hourly rate
pursuant to procedures established by the Human Resources Department.

G. Employees may reouest one cash out oer fisca I vear (Julv 1 - June 30) of not

E

hours of an has used 4
hours of annual leave i n the same fiscal vear.eash eut net mere than 40

H. Accrued annual leave shall be cashed out upon separation of employment
with the City on an hour for hour basis.

56. $iick Leave

3 The parties agree that "vacation Leave" shall henceforth mean "annual leave"

Page 97

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,MW- December 31,WM

Page 20

Sick leave may be used by employees for purposes enumerated in City
Personnel Rules.

Consistent with PERS law, the City has amended the City's contract with
CaIPERS to permit sick leave to be converted to service credit for purposes
of retirement (Government Code section 20965).

C. Accrued sick leave shall not be cashed out.

D. There shall be no maximum on the number of hours of sick leave an

employee may accrue (bank).

G.yCompensation Upon Sen'ice Separation

Probationary employees in the classified service who separate from city service shall be
entitled to payment for accrued annual leave and holiday hours earned on a pro-rata basis
up to the date of separation.

Regular full-time employees in the classified seryice, regardless of service length, shall be
entitled to payment for annual leave and holiday time up to their date of separation.
Payment shall be made on an hour-for-hour basis at the employee's regular straight-time
hourly rate of pay.

2.8. FMMG CatastroPhic Leave Bank

The purpose of the FMMG catastrophic time bank is to enable employees to receive
and donate accrued annual leave and compensating time off (CTO) credits to assist
employees who have no leave and who will suffer a financial hardship due to a
prolonged illness or injury to themselves or a member of the immediate family as
defined in City Personnel Rules. The following conditions shall apply:

lndividuals who request donated leave must do so in writing and have proper
certification of need on file with Human Resources.

Catastrophic Leave will be available only to employees who are unable to
work due to a prolonged catastrophic non-industrial illness or injury which is

estimated to last for at least thirty (30) calendar days and have exhausted all
of their own paid leave through a bona fide serious illness or injury.

The time bank shall be administered by the City.

An employee may be on disability insurance and use the time bank credits in
the same manner that annual leave is used to supplement disability
insurance benefits.

A.

B.

A

B

c

D

Page 98

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,MM- December 31,MM

Page21

All donations are to be confidential between the donating employee and the
City.

Donations are limited to annual leave and compensatory time. Sick leave
may not be donated under this plan. Employees donating to the time bank
must have eighty (80) hours of annual leave available after making a
donation. Donations are capped at no more than 320 hours total per calendar
year to the individual requesting donations. Distribution will be on a payroll to
payroll basis.

Donations should be a minimum of four (4) hours per each donation form
submitted.

Donating employees must sign an authorization form (prepared by the City)
and specify the number of hours and type of leave donated to the
catastrophic leave bank. These hours are allocated to employees as needed,
subject to the cap. Employees who donate leave cannot designate which co-
worker should receive the donated hours. Employees relinquish all rights and
claims to hours donated.

l. Hours of donated leave shall be valued at the recipient's regular base wage

J Donations shall be subject to applicable tax laws. An employee donating
accrued leave or an employee receiving donated leave shall waive all tax
liability of the City through the establishment of the catastrophic time
donation program.

Availability of catastrophic leave time shall not delay or prevent the City from
taking action to medically separate or disability retire an employee.

The City may require a physician's statement stating that the presence of the
employee who is requesting catastrophic leave time to care for an ill or
injured immediate family member is necessary.

Tuition Reimhursenrent Policy

With the advance written approval of an employee's department director and the Human
Resources Director, and upon satisfactory completion with a grade "B" or better, the City
shall reimburse an eligible, permanent unit memberforthe costof tuition from a recognized
college or university (on a course-by-course basis) for courses having a strong nexus to the
employee's job classification and will benefit the City. All classes will be taken on the
employee's own time.

E

F

G

H

K.

L

Page 99

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1 , M2,023 - December 31, W2025

A. Eligibility:

Page22

ln order to qualify fortuition reimbursement, an employee shall have attained
permanent status (successfully completed entry-level probation). No
reimbursement will be made for classes taken during the eligibility period or
priorto attaining permanent status. Classes successfully challenged will not
be eligible for reimbursement.

Recognized colleges or universities are those accredited by Regional
Accrediting Organizations as recognized by the Councilfor Higher Education
Accreditation (CHEA). Current (2019-2020) regional accrediting
organizations are: Accrediting Commissisn for Community and Junior
Colleges (ACCJC); Western Association of Schools and Colleges; Higher
Learning Commission (HLC); Middle States Commission on Higher
Education (MSCHE); New England Commission of Higher Education
(NECHE); Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU);

Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on Colleges
(SACSCOC); WASC Senior College and University Commission (WSCUC).

B. Tuition shall be reimbursed as follows:

Fifty percent (50%) of the cost of tuition, up to a maximum of $4,000 per
fiscal year for employees working towards a Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of
Science, Masters of Art, or Masters of Science degree at an accredited
college or university.

C. Approval of a claim for tuition reimbursement shall be as follows:

Claims for tuition reimbursement will be denied for any course or class that
has not received priorwritten approval by the employee's department director
and City.

Tuition reimbursement shall be on a course by course basis by the
employee's department head and Human Resources Director and should
have a strong nexus to the employee's job classification, the employee's
career development at the City or is a requirement for a degree program that
has a strong nexus to the employee's job.

All requests for tuition reimbursement are subject to available funds as
determined by the City. Approval for any program does not guarantee
approval or available funds for any subsequent class.

Reimbursement requests and grade reports must be turned in to the
employee's department and the Human Resources Departmentwithin ninety

1

2

1

1

2.

3

4

Page 100

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,?4z+M- December 31,2W2025

Page 23

(90) days of course completion

5 Any employee voluntarily terminating their employment within twenty-four
(24) months of receiving reimbursement underthis section will be responsible
for repaying the City of Folsom the full amount of the reimbursement
received. An employee involuntarily separated (termination, lay-off or
industrial disability retirement)will not be required to reimburse the City.

D. Student Loan Repayment Option

Effective January 1, 2020, tuition reimbursement may be used for the purpose of
repaying student loans incurred prior to or during City employmentwith the following
conditions:

The expense was from a recognized college or university that is accredited
by an accrediting organization approved by the City.

The request shall be toward an unpaid student loan balance at the time of the
request.

The education/degree has a strong nexus to the employee's job classification
or the employee's career development or will be of benefit to the City all of
which shall be determined solely by the City.

The maximum reimbursement shall be up to $3,000 per fiscal year or $9,000
in total over the employee's entire length of service with the City.

Reimbursement by the City shall be on a 50/50 matching basis with the
employee. For example, the employee must pay $6,000 to get $3,000 of
reimbursement from the City.

All requests are subject to available funds as determined by the City

Documentation of the employee payment toward the debt shall be furnished
at the request of the City and no reimbursementwill be approved unless such
documentation is acceptable to the City.

8. Reimbursement will be subject to IRS regulations

I Employee may not receive both student loan debt reduction payment and
tuition reimbursement at the same time, during any fiscal year.

Any employee terminated for cause or voluntarily terminating their
employment (including retirement), within thirty-six (36) months of receiving

1

2

3

4

5.

o.

7.

10.

Page 101

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page24

January 1, ?4F€-2023 - December 31, zWM
reimbursement under this section will be responsible for repaying the City the
full amount of the reimbursement received. Any employee involuntarily
separated by layoff or disability retirement will not be required to reimburse
the City.

11 This Section shall not be subject to Article X, Grievance Procedure, of this
MOU.

flo.-Holidays
A. The City shall observe the following holidays

. New Year's Day (January 1)

. Martin Luther King Day
o President's Day (Washington's Birthday)
. Memorial Day
. lndependence Day
o Labor Day
o Veterans Day
o Thanksgiving Day
r Friday following Thanksgiving Day
. December 24
. Christmas Day
. December 31
. Personal Holiday

Classified employees shall be entitled to one (1) personal holiday (8 hours)
per calendar year. Personal holiday shall be taken in the same manner and

under the same rules as vacation leave. Employees on their initial
probationary period must complete probation before they can take their
personal holiday.

ARTICLE VI _ POSITION CI.ASSIFICATION

r.. Ernployee Classification Study Requests

A. A--During the month of June, an emplovee mav request a classification
studv of his/her position. Such requests shall be submitted in writinq to the
Citv Human Resources Department. After submittal. the Human Resources
Deoartment will co llaborativelv meet and discuss with a desionee(s) from

B

MMG in order
number of cla n reouests down to the nu rs listed below

Page 102

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,?4Ps-!!f;! - December 31,MM

Page 25

a. FMMG mav select uo to six uests in calendar vear 2023=

b. FMMG mav select up to four requests in calendar vear 2024,
c. FMMG mav select up to fou r reouests in calendar vear 2025,

-rne 
ctassiticatio

31 of the same calendar vear. and the Citv will comolete such classification
studies not later than Decembei of the year the request was submitted. lf the
studv recommends a chanqe in classification and an associated salary
increase for the affected emolovee. the effective date of the salarv increase
shall be Jun+Julv 1 of the vear the req uest is-was submitted bv the emolovee
to the City Human Resources Department. The Citv aqrees to notify FMMG of
the classification study results and meet with FMMG upon request to share
and discuss studv findinos.

FMMG,January' an em
pesitien, Sueh requests shall be submitted te the Gity Human Resourees
Department, The City will endeaver te eemplete sueh elassifieatien studies
net later than July ef the year the request is submitted' lf the study

the affeeted ernpleyee' the effeetive date ef the salary inerease shall be

Human Reseurees Department= lf the City Human Reseurees Department

FMMS

results and meet wit uest te share and dl lf
an FMMG employee submits a classification study and their submittal is
acceoted for review. that emolovee av not submit another classification
studv request@forthree vears from initial request.

C. Disputes regarding the findinss of the Human Resources Department on
FMMG position classification studv requests mav be appealed to the Citv
Manaqer or desiqnee. The Citv Man r or desionee's decision shall be final.

B

m€ximum-€+udiesJes- en

Page 103

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page26
January 1, W2023 - December 31, 2€E3-2025

neseurees Bepartmen

elasses te be survevd

respensibititl ien

a_eMarket Survey

A. Within 120 davs afterCitv Councilratification of this MOU, the Citv of Folsom
rlrill nnrnnlafa ama rlzaf cr rnrarr fnr nneifinnc 'l -7 in Art icle lll Section 3

a. Upon completion of the market survey. the City will notify FMMG of the
results and meet with FMMG upon request to share and discuss studv
findinqs.

a-.b. Disputes reqar
Deoartment mav be appealed to the Citv Manaqer or desiqnee. The
Citv Manaqer or desiqnee's decision shall be final.

A-The C of benchma
determined bv FMMG and the Citv of Folsom. in Seetien 2, item A abeve'
The market survev shall be concluded not later than 1 davs orior to the
expiration of this MOU.

gC. g-The purpose of t
of the total comoensation for emplovees in the iob classifications identified in
Article lll. Section 3 -abev+when comoared to comoarab iob classifications
in the followinq aqencies: Citv of Davis, Citv of Fairfield, Citv of Rocklin, Citv
of Roseville. City of Sacramento, City of West Sacramento, County of
Sacramento, El Dorado lrriqation San Juan
Sacramento Su rban Water District and Nevada lrrioation District

D.
C--Comoensation. for ouroose of this survev. shall con itute the followino

elements and criteria
1. Monthlv base salarv (top step in the ranoe)
2. Maximum monthlv contribution to health insurance (medical.

dental and vision).
3. Maximum Education lncentive Pav, broken into monthlv
equivalents.

Page 104

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page27
January 1,MM- December 31,W2025

4. Anv siqnificant special pavs, broken into monthlv equivalents.
5. ltems 3 & 4 are for i nformational purposes onlv, not to be used in the
calculation of total comgensation.

E. The market survev wi ll include base salarv and total compensation. bv
classification, com oarino the Citv of Folsom to those aqencies identified in

le Vl tes a ree to
confer over survev results.

B, Netwithstanding subseetien A abeve; the parties agree t+freeze

ARTICLE VII - MISCELLANEOUS

r. Salary/ CIn Status Changes

A. Promotion: An employee who is promoted to a position in a classification
with a higher salary range shall be placed in the step in the new salary ranqe
that is at least 5% above the current se salarv
range whieh is at least equal te an advaneement ef a full step ever the step
held in the fermer range in the basie salary sehedule, An employee thus
promoted is therefore assigned a new salary anniversary date effective of the
date of promotion.

An employee who is promoted to a higher class effective within thirty (30)

calendar days of a step increase within the lower class range shall be eligible
first to receive the within range increase and then the higher step as provided

in this section, providing that the employee's performance was satisfactory
for salary advancement in the lower class and that the higher class is

reasonably within the career path of the lower class which shall be
determined by the City Manager.

Demotion: Employees may only be demoted for purposes of employee
discipline or layoff. An employee who is demoted to a position in a class with
a lower salary range shall be reduced in salary to the step in the lower class
salary range as follows:

Disciplinary demotions may be assigned to any salary step in the
lower class range which is at least one (1) step less than that received
in the class from which demoted. A new anniversary date shall be
established on the effective date of the demotion.

B

i.

Page 105

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 28
January 1, M2023 - December 31, M-M

C. Transfer: An employee who is transferred from one position to another
position in the same class, or to another position in a class having the same
salary range and substantially similar duties, shall be compensated at the
same step in the salary range as previously received without a change in the
anniversary date.

ReinstatemenVReemployment: An employee who is reinstated or
reemployed in a position previously occupied pursuant to the City's
Personnel Rules and Regulations shall receive not more than the step in the
salary range received prior to separation, and a new anniversary date shall
be assigned based on the reinstatement or reemployment date.

E. Range Assiqnment Chanqe

Whenever a class is reassigned to either a higher or lower salary
range by the City Council, the salary of each incumbent in such class
on the effective date of the reassignment shall be adjusted
accordingly. lf the position is reassigned or reclassified to a higher
range, and the incumbent is appointed to the position, the incumbent's
salary shall be the step in the new range that is elesest te their esffent

lf the
position is reassigned to a class having a lower salary range, the
salary and anniversary date of the employee shall not change, and the
salary of the employee shall be designated as a "Y" rate and shall not
change during continuous regular service until the salary of the new
position exceeds the employee's present salary.

ii When a salary range reassignment becomes effective within thirty
(30) calendar days of an employee's salary anniversary date, the
employee shall first receive the within range step increase and then
receive the corresponding step adjustment, provided that the
employee's performance was satisfactory for salary advancement
upon eligibility for step increases.

Comoensation U Reclassification: The salary of an employee in a
position that is reclassified shall be determined as follows

lf the position is reclassified to a class with the same salary range as
the previous class, and if the incumbent is appointed to the
reclassified position, the salary rate shall apply to a change of class
title.

D

F

ii. lf the position is reclassified to a class with a higher salary range, and

Page 106

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 29

January 1,2€€€_2023- December 31,zWM

the incumbent is appointed to the position, the incumbent's salary
shall be the step in the new range that is elesestte their eurrent salary
witheut behg lewer as ef the date upen whieh the reelassifieatien

The employee shall receive a new anniversary date upon
reclassification in this manner.

ilt lf the position is reclassified to a class with a lower salary range than
the previous class, and if the incumbent is appointed to the
reclassified position, the employee's salary shall not change. lf the
employee's salary is greater than the maximum step of the lower
salary range, the employee's salary shall be "Y" rated until such time
as any general cost-of-living increase, inequity adjustment, or other
salary increase results in a monthly salary appropriate for the class.
The employee's salary anniversary date shall not change and shall not
require a new probationary period.

G. Compensation for Workinq in A Hiqher Classification (Actinq Pav)

On occasion an employee may be required to perform duties of
another classification with a higher salary range because of a

temporary vacancy in that position. The employee's salary will be
adjusted to compensate for the higher level of duties. ln such cases,
the City will adhere to CaIPERS regulations regarding these types of
assignments (i.e., out-of-class assignments, temporary upgrade pay,

or non-pensionable extra duty pay) and assign appropriately perthese
regulations (Government Code section 20480).

ln order to receive adjusted compensation for working in a higher
classification the employee must be assigned in writing by the
department head, assume and perform substantially allthe duties and
responsibilities of the position, and perform them for at least one week
(five consecutive working days).

Compensation for working in a higher classification shall consist of a
flat five percent (5%) increase above the employee's current salary or
the lowest salary within the higher salary range, whichever is greater,
but not to exceed the maximum of the range established forthe higher
classification.

Work periods in higher-class assignments shall not apply toward
seniority or time-in-class consideration for promotional or layoff
purposes as regard the higher class.

Page 107

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, M2023'- December 31, 2W2025

Page 30

iii. lf an employee and his/her department head agree that the employee
be assigned on a temporary basis for training purposes, no
compensation will be due the temporarily assigned employee. ln no
case shall such training be for more than thirty (30) calendar days.
After two (2) weeks a progress report will be given to the employee in

order to evaluate the employee's success in the training program.

2. Bi-Weekly Pay Schedule/Altemate Work Schedules

Should the City decide to implement a bi-week[ pay schedule (26 pay periods per year) in

lieu of the current bi-monthly pay schedule (24 pay periods per year), the City agrees to
notify FMMG and meet and confer with FMMG on the impact on employees in the Middle
Management Bargaining Unit. The parties also agree to meet and confer over alternate
work schedules, including, but not limited to,4110 and 9/80 work schedules.

3" Employee Wellness

The City agrees to work with FMMG towards the goal of implementing an employee
wellness program. The City and FMMG agree to create a Wellness Advisory Committee.
The Committee shall hold regular meetings to explore maximizing current health benefit
programs and incentives to achieve such elements as a tobacco-free lifestyle and other
healthy choices.

ARTICLE VIII - PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

r. Perfrrrmance Evaluations

A. When an employee's scheduled step increase is withheld due to
unsatisfactory performance, the employee shall retain his/her salary
anniversary date.

Denial of a step increase may be appealed to the Human Resources
Director. This section shall not be subject to the Grievance and Arbitration
provisions of this MOU.

ARTICLE IX - EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

r. Employee Discipline

A. Policy: lt is the policy of the City that discipline of City employees be
imposed on an appropriate and consistent basis. When an employee
engages in misconduct or when job performance is unsatisfactory in the

B.

Page 108

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 31

January 1, W2023 - December 31, WM

judgment of the City, disciplinary action may be initiated.

B Definition: As used herein, "disciplinary action" means written reprimand,
suspension without pay, reduction in pay, demotion, or dismissal (see City
Personnel Rules).

C. Application:

(1) Permanent Status: This provision shall only apply to employees with
permanent status with the City.

(2) Probationary Status: An employee in probationary status shall have
no right to grieve or arbitrate release from probationary appointment.

(3) Temporary Employee:An employee in a temporary position shall have
no right to grieve or arbitrate release from temporary appointment.

(4) Temporary Upgrade (Out of Class): An employee in a temporary
upgrade status shall have no right to grieve or arbitrate release from
temporary upgrade status.

(5) A written reprimand shall be appealable only to the City Manager or
his/her designee with the right to present the employee's position and
supporting evidence, but no right to present evidence or confront or
cross examine witnesses. The decision of the City Manager of
designee shall be final.

(6) Upon the request of an employee, a written reprimand shall be
removed from an employee's personnel file after two (2) years from
the original date of issuance; provided, however, that the employee
has not been subject to formal disciplinary action during the two (2)
year period.

(7) A counseling memo or letter of instruction shall not be considered
disciplinary action and shall not be appealable.

D. Cause for Disciplinary Action:

Discipline shall be for cause. (Personnel Rules, Section 1.08.110).
Examples of conduct or performance deficiencies that may warrant discipline
include, but are not limited to:

(1) Misstatement of facts during the hiring process

Page 109

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,MM- December 31,MM

Page 32

(2) Falsification of an entry on a City document (e.9., time card, expense
report)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(e)

(10)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

Being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol or possessing
illegal drugs while on City property or on official business

(1 1) Possession of a firearm, weapon, or hazardous or dangerous device
while on City property or on official business

(12) Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor that involves moral turpitude,
or any other conviction or pleas of nolo contendere or diversion for
such offense, which adversely affects, or brings discredit to, the City

Disclosure of confidential information

lnsubordination or willful disobedience

I n com petence, i nefficiency or u n satisfactory job performa nce

Discriminatory, discourteous, or unbecoming behavior

Theft, misuse or unauthorized use or possession of City property

Dishonesty

Misconduct, i.e., any behavior that brings harm or discredit to the City

Excessive absence or tardiness

Absence without approved leave

Violation of a City rule, policy, or procedure

Soliciting outside work for personal gain during the conduct of City
business; engaging in outside employment for any business under
contract by the City; participating in any outside employment that
adversely affects the employee's City work performance; and
engaging in unauthorized outside employment.

(17) Loss or failure to maintain any license, certification, and/or clearance
which is required as a minimum qualification or condition or
employment for the employee's position.

(1S) Abusive conduct or "bullying" that a reasonable person would find

Page 110

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding Page 33

January 1, ?€P€-2023 '- December 31, M2025

hostile, offensive, and unrelated to an employer's legitimate business
interests. This may include repeated infliction of verbalabuse such as

the use of derogatory remarks, insults, and epithets, verbal or physical

conduct that a reasonable person would find threatening, intimidating
or humiliating, or the gratuitous sabotage or undermining of a person's
work performance.

E. Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action

(1) Prior to taking disciplinary action with a regular employee to suspend
without pay, reduce pay, demote (except for demotion in lieu of layoff),

or dismiss, the Department Head will provide the employee with a
written preliminary notice of disciplinary action which shallcontain the
charges, the specific factual basis for the charges, and the nature of
the proposed disciplinary action. A copy of the notice of disciplinary
action shall be served upon the employee either personally or via e-
mailor U.S. Mail, to the last known address of the employee. The last
known address shall be deemed to be the address that is within the
employee's official personnel file. lf notice is provided by mail, the
employee should be deemed to have received notice ten (10)

calendar days after the date of mailing.

(2) The Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action shall include

a. A statement of the nature of the disciplinary action;

The effective date of the disciplinary action;

A statement of the reasons for the disciplinary action;

Any supporting material or documentation and a statement of
the employee's right to review all relevant documents and
materials;

A statement advising the employee of the right to appeal the
action, the manner and time of which the appeal must be
made, and the required content of the appeal; and

The name and address of the person to whom all written
communication regarding this appeal shall be sent.

b.

c.

d

a

f

F. Appeal of Disciplinary Actions

Page 111

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,29?€_M- December 31,2W2025

(1) Skelly Meeting

c.

An employee who is subject to disciplinary action of
suspension without pay, reduction in pay, demotion, or
dismissal, shall have the right, within five (5) workdays after
receiving a Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action to request
a Skelly Meeting by filing a written requestfora meeting signed
by the employee or the employee's representative with the
employee's consent with the City Human Resources Director.

The right to request a Skelly Meeting does not apply to
a Written Reprimand. An employee who is subject to
disciplinary action of a Written Reprimand and
disagrees with the discipline is encouraged to discuss
with their Department Manager. The employee may
also, within five (5) days after receiving a Written
Reprimand, request a meeting with the City Manager or
designee by filing a written request with the Human
Resources Director.

The City Manager or designee shall have final authority
to sustain, modify, or dismiss the Written Reprimand.
This decision may be communicated orally or in writing.
AWritten Reprimand is not appealable beyond the City
Manager or designee whose decision is final. ln
addition, a Written Reprimand may be removed from the
employee's personnel file after two years if subsequent
disciplinary action has not occurred within that
timeframe.

Failure to respond or inaction within the specified time will
result in the waiver of the right to a Skelly meeting, or, in the
case of a Written Reprimand, a meeting with the City Manager
or designee, and the proposed discipline becoming final.

Upon a written request for a Skelly meeting, the City shall
appoint a "Skelly Officer". The Skelly Officer will meet with the
employee, listen to arguments and receive documents
presented by the employee. Within a reasonable time and in

writing, the Skelly Officer shall respond to the City, with a copy
to the employee and the employee's representative, if
applicable. The Skelly Officer may recommend that the City
dismiss, modify, or sustain the proposed discipline.

Page 34

a

b.

Page 112

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,%2+M- December 31,WM

(1) Arbitration Hearing

c

Page 35

lf the proposed discipline is sustained or modified by the City
after the Skelly Meeting, the disciplinary action shall be
implemented. A Final Notice of Disciplinary Action shall be
served in the same manner as the Preliminary Notice of
Disciplinary Action, except that the Final Notice of Disciplinary
Action shall include a statement advising the employee of the
right to appeal the action, the manner and time in which the
appeal must be made, the required content of the appeal, and
name and addreSs of the person to whom all communication
regarding the appeal shall be sent.

a

b

Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the Skelly
Officer's response, disciplinary actions may be appealed to
arbitration. lf the employee fails to file a notice of appeal to
arbitration within this time period, the disciplinary action shall
become final and there shall be no further appeal.

The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the
parties. No appealor review of the arbitrator's decision byWrit
or other mechanism before any court, administrative tribunal or
any other forum on any legaltheory or basis shall be possible.

Appeals of disciplinary actions to arbitration shall be pursuant
to the Grievance and Arbitration provisions of this MOU, except
that on disciplinary appeals:

An appeal of a disciplinary action is a complaint of a
permanent employee of whether there was cause for
the disciplinary action taken against the employee.

The parties to the hearing and to the selection of the
arbitrator shall be the employee, who may be
represented by FMMG or independent counsel, and the
City.

The employee may be represented by FMMG; or, if the
employee chooses not to be represented by FMMG, the
employee may be self-represented or represented by
independent counsel at the employee's own expense.

The employee shall be entitled to appear personally at
the hearing and produce evidence.

IV

Page 113

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, ?4Es:2023 - December 31, 2€F9-2025

Page 36

The fees and expenses of the arbitrator, a court reporter
and transcript if required by the arbitrator, shall be
shared equally by the parties involved.

ARTICLE X _ GRIEVANCE PROCEDURB

1. Definition: A grievance is a complaint of an affected employee or group of
employees resulting from interpretation or application of this Agreement, or City
rules.

z. Time Limits: Grievances not presented within the time limits established for
each step of this procedure shall not be considered. Should the City fail to answer
within the established time limits, the grievance may be appealed to the next step of
the grievance procedure.

When days are used in this article for the purpose of establishing time limits, those
limits will be presumed to have been met when the appropriate forms are either
personally delivered to the affected party ordeposited in the U.S. mail, as evidenced
by the appropriate postmark.

Time limits may be waived or extended by mutual agreement between the parties.

As referred to in this article, all "days" are "work days."

3. Presentation: An employee and/or FMMG representative may present a
grievance during work time provided such presentations and discussions do not
disrupt City operations and are kept to a reasonable minimum.

4. Procedure: Allgrievances as defined herein shall be processed in accordance
with this procedure. All grievances, beginning at Step 1 shall be filed on a form
provided by the City for that purpose. FMMG may refuse to represent a grievant
and the City may refuse to consider a grievance where the aggrieved party has not
followed this procedure.

INFORMAL STEP. Within fifteen (15) days of the event or circumstance
giving rise to the grievance or within fifteen (15) days of the time the affected
employee or FMMG should reasonably have been aware of the event or
circumstance, the grievance shall be discussed informally with the person or
persons most directly responsible for the event or circumstances which gave
rise to the grievance. lf the grievance is not resolved within five (5) days of
the date on which it is first presented at the lnformal Step, the grievant may
proceed to Step 1 and file a formalgrievance.

V

A

Page 114

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, MW- December 31,2€P:-^2025

Page 37

B. FORMAL. lf there is no agreement at the informal level

STEP 1. A formal grievance shall be presented in writing to the grievant's
department head. The department head shallconduct such investigation as
is deemed appropriate and shall issue a written determination within ten (10)
days of the date on which the grievance was appealed to the department
head.

STEP 2. Within five (5) days of the Step 1 response or, if no Step 1

response is received, within twenty (20) days of the date of the Step 1

appeal, the grievance may be appealed to the City Manager or designee.
The City Manager or designee shall conduct such investigation as is deemed
appropriate and shall issue a written determination within ten (10) days of the
date on which the grievance is first presented at Step 2. lf the City Manager
or designee fails to issue a written determination within the prescribed period

of time or if the determination is not satisfactory to the grievant, only FMMG
may request the matter of contract provision be submitted to binding
arbitration. lndividual employees may submit grievances relating to discipline
to binding arbitration.

STEP 3. A request for binding arbitration shall be made in writing to the City
Manager within fifteen (15) days of the date which the grievant received a

copy of the written determination of Step 2, or in the event that no Step 2

answer is received, within twenty (20) days of the date of the Step 2 appeal.

An arbitrator may be selected by mutual agreement between the parties.
However, should the parties failto voluntarily agree upon an arbitrator, the
parties shall make a joint request to the California State Mediation and
Conciliation Service. The parties shall request a list of five (5) qualified
arbitrators. Each party shallalternately strike one name from the list and the
last remaining name shallserve as arbitrator. The first party to strike a name
shall be determined by the toss of a coin.

The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the City, FMMG, and
the grievant(s). The arbitrator shall have no authority to add to or delete from
the terms of this Agreement, or City Personnel Rules. All fees and costs of
the arbitrator and court reporter, if any, shall be borne equally by the parties.

S. I-etters of Reprirnand

Upon request of an employee, a written reprimand shall be removed from an
employee's personnel file after two (2) years from the original date of issuance;

Page 115

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, ?€'2+2023 - December 31,20P3-2025

Page 38

provided, however, that the employee has not been subject to formal disciplinary
action during the two (2) year period.

A written reprimand shall be appealable only to the Human Resources Director and
then to the City Manager with the right to present the employee's position and
supporting evidence, but no right to confront or cross examine witnesses. The
decision of the City Manager shall be final.

6. Short Term Suspension

The parties agree that the members of this unit are not subject to shortterm
suspension as defined by the Personnel Rules and Regulations of the City of
Folsom.

ARTICLE XI _ TERM OF AGREEMENT

r. Term clf MOU

Unless specified othenrvise herein, this MOU shall be effective January 1, Mffi-.to
December 31, WZM. The parties agree to begin negotiations on a successor
Memorandum of Understanding no later than 1 20 calendar days prior to expiration of this
Memorandum of Understanding.

z. Total Agreement

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) constitutes a full and complete agreement by
the parties and contains all the matters upon which the parties reached agreement.
Therefore, except as provided herein, the City and FMMG, for the duration of this
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and each agrees that the
other should not be obligated to meet and confer with respect to any subject or matter
whether or not referred to or covered in this agreement.

Page 116

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1,?4P42023- December 31,?4P22025

Page 39

The terms and conditions of this MOU are executed this day of
2$1-9.@by the Employer-Employee Representatives whose signatures appear below on
behalf of their respective organizations.

For the Citv: For FMMG:

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Allison Garcia
Human Resources Director

Dennis Batchelder
City Representative

John Spittler
Human Resources Advisor

Ryan Neves
FMMG President

Josh Johnsrud
FMMG Representative

Todd Eising
FMMG Representative

Robert Rediger
Business Representative

Page 117

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



FMMG Memorandum of Understanding
January 1, 24F42023 - December 31,zWM

Page 40

APPENDIX A - List of Occupied Classes in Bargaining Unit

Associate Civil Engineer
Building Official/Bu i ld ing Services Supervisor
Chief Building Official
City Engineer
Code Enforcement Supervisor
Community & Cultural Services Manager
Deputy Fire Marshal
Environmental Specialist Supervisor
Facilities Maintenance Manager
Facilities Maintenance Supervisor
Fire Protection Engineer
lnformation Services Manager
Library Supervisor
Lighting & Landscape District Manager
Maintenance Supervisor
Management Analyst
Park Planning Manager
Plan Check Engineer
Planning Manager
Principal Civil Engineer
Principal Planner
Public Works/Utilities Section Manager
Public Works/Utilities Section Manager - Engineer
Recreation Manager
Recreation Supervisor
Senior Civil Engineer
Senior Management Analyst
Senior Park Planner
Senior Planner
Senior Trails Planner
Solid Waste Supervisor
Solid Waste/Fleet Manager
Streets Operations Manager
Streets Operations Supe rvisor
Traffic/Control/Lighting S u pervisor
Utility Maintenance Supervisor
Utilities Manager
Wastewater Collection S u pervisor
Water Distribution Supervisor
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor
Zoo Supervisor
Zoo Manager

Page 118

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



9876

5r02,3r7
5 10s,386

s 108,s48

5107,496

5tto,72r
5 114,043

5 110,184

s 113,489

s 116,894

51r2,871,

51L6,2s7

s1L9,74s

5124,663

5 128,403

sr32,2ss

5127,779

5 131,613

5 rss,ssr

5137,604

s14t,733
s 14s,98s

s767,926

5 166,783

s171,787

$174,376

5 17e,608

s 184,996

5

5 gg,s:e

5102,317

S 10s,386

s 10436s

5107,496

5710,721

$ roo,gzs

S 110,184

5 113,48e

S 109,s84

5r12,871,

5116,2s7

5L21,o32

5t24,663
S 128,403

$ 1240s8

5127,779

5 131,613

s 133,s97

5137,604

5141,,733

5rs7,209

s 161,926

5 166,783

5t69,297

5174,376

S 179,608

4

s

s

s

96,443

99,336

102,377

5 101,326

S 104,36s

5107,496

s 103,8s9

s 106,97s

S rro,re4

S 106,3s2

5 rog,ssa

5112,871

5117,s07

5121,032

s124,663

St2o,4M
S rz4oss
5127,779

$t29,7os

S 133,s97

5137,604

s 1s2,630

5rs7,2a9

5161,,926

s 164,356

s169,297

5174,376

3

5 gg,ss+

5 96,443

S sg,r:o

5 s8,374

s 101,326

s 10436s

5 100,834

s 103,8s9

s 106,97s

5 103,293

S 106,3e2

5 109,s84

S 114,084

Stu,soT
st2t,o32

5 115,s35

s12O,444

51240s8

5125,928

5129,7Os

s 133,s97

$ 148,18s

$ 1s2,630

51s7,209

s 1s9,s79

5164356
$769,297

2

s

s

5

90,907

93,634

96,443

$ ss,sog

S e&374

s701,326

5 gt,est

s 100,834

s 103,8se

S 1oo,28s

s 103,293

s 106,392

Sno,tat
511,4,0U

511-7,507

s 113,s30

s 116,936

5t2o,4M

5122,260

s 12s,e28

5r29,70s

S 143,869

5 r+a,ras

5 1s2,630

s 1s4,931-

s 1ss,s7e

S 1643G6

LSalarySalarv Range

APPBNDIX B - FMMG Salary Ranges

s

s

s

T84

T86

T89

Eff 1./1./23

Eff t/t/24
Eff t/t/2s

$ sg,zsg

s eo,eo7

S ga,os+

lm ttttzzl s s2,727

lffi luzql $ gs,sos

lw ttrtzsl s ge,yq

lcr tltlztl s es,o4s

lffi ttttzql s s7,Bs7

lwt uuzsl s 100,834

lw ttttzzl s s7,364

lffi uuzql s roo,zss

ler vttzsl g 103,2e3

lm uttzzl s 1o7,s3s

lffr uuzql s 110,761

lw ttuzsl g 114,084

lw ttt/zzl srro,zzl
lffi uttzql s lr,,s3o

ler uttzsl s 116,e36

ler ttttzEl s 118,6se

lrtt ttuzol snz,zao

lm uuzsl stzs,szl

lEx 11t1zzl s 8e,678

lffi uuzql s143,8Ge

lrtr rluzsl s148,18s

Eff tl1./23 $ 1s0,4i.8

Eff t/t/24 s 1s4,931

s 10s,386

5 108,s48

5 111,804

108,548 s 111,804

1r7,804 S 11s,1s8

115,158 s 118,613

5r1o,72! Sflq,oqz 51t7,464

s 114,043 S::t,qaq s 120,988

s117,464 s 120,988 s124,618

5 113,489 s 116,8s4 S 120,401

s 116,894 s 120,401 5124,013

5rzo,4at s!24,013 5r2i,733

TBD range

for Art. lll,
Sect. 3 titles

5176,2s7

SLrg,74s

5t23,337

S 128,403

5r32,2ss
5136,222

s L31,6L3

S 13s,s61

5 L39,628

5r19,74s
S rzs,ssz

5127,O38

s732,2ss

s136,222

$ 140,309

5123,337

sr27,O38

S 130,849

5136,222

5 140,309

S 144,s18

T94

T95

T98

T104

T107

s 13s,s51

5 13e,528

Sr+z,stz

s 139,628

5143,877

$ 148,131

5t41,,733 5 14s,98s s 1s0,364

5 r+s,gss s 1s0,364 5 1s4,87s

5 1s0,364 5 rs4szs S 1s9,s21

Eff t/tlzs s 1s9,s79

Page 119

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



This page intentionollY left blonk
to focilitate double- sided printing .

CIT Y OF

F()LSOl\{
DISTtXCIIVE BY NATURE

Page 120

03/28/2023 Item No.6.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 3t2812023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT Resolution No. 1 1013 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with NBS Govemment
Financing Group for Assessment Engineering Services

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. I I 0 I 3 - A Resolution Authorizing the

City Manager to Execute an Agreement with NBS Government Financing Group (NBS) for
assessment engineering services.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom is responsible for the maintenance and servicing of thirty landscaping and

lighting districts throughout the City. Part of that responsibility is producing an engineer's report

annually to describe the budgets for each district, and to comply with the Streets and Highways

Code. We recently put this scope of work out to receive new proposals as our agreement with our

previous consultant had expired.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36.090 (AXl) and 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code,

professional services are not subject to competitive sealed bidding requirements, and those costing

570,952 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

On March 1,2023,the Parks and Recreation Department advertised a Request for Proposal (RFP)

for assessment engineering services. The RFP was posted on ClPlist.com as well as the City of
Folsom website with responses due back to the City by 4:00 pm March 10,2023. An internal

review team was assembled of Parks and Recreation Staff. The criteria for ranking the proposals

1

Page 121

03/28/2023 Item No.7.



was based on the following areas: relevant experience and staffing, demonstrated ability to
complete work in a timely fashion, and total cost. We only received one response, and after

reviewing the submittal, staff concluded that NBS demonstrated that they are qualified based on

the advertised scoring criteria. In addition, NBS is a known entrty to the City in that they provide

other assessment-related services for the Crty's community facility districts.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

Funds are budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2022-23 within the Landscaping and Lighting District
budget's and will be accounted for in future budget years.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. I 1 01 3 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with
NBS Government Financing Group for Assessment Engineering Services

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks & Recreation Director

2 Page 122

03/28/2023 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 11013

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCING GROUP FOR ASSESSMENT

ENGINEERING SERVICES

WHEREAS' the City of Folsom desires to enter into a professional services agreement for
an initial period beginning April 1, 2023 through March 31,2026, for assessment engineering

services; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom can, at its discretion based on successful completion of
the initial agreement, extend the contract for up to two additional one-year extensions; and

WHEREAS, proposals were solicited in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code Section

2.36.100 and advertised on March 1,2023; and

WHEREAS, NBS Government Finance Group (NBS) was the most qualified consultant;

WHEREAS, the estimate for the initial term of the agreement for three years will be

$94,500; and

WHEREAS' funds are budgeted in the amount of $30,000 in the Fiscal Year 2022-23

budget in the thirty different Landscaping and Lighting Districts that will be covered by said report;

and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute an Agreement with NBS Government Financing Group

for assessment engineering services.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28ft day of March,2023,by the following roll-call vote:

and

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11013

Page I of I Page 123

03/28/2023 Item No.7.



This pnge intentionollY Ieft blonk
to focilitote double- sided printing .

CIT Y OF

FOLSON{
DISTIXCTIVE BY NATURE

Page 124

03/28/2023 Item No.7.



Folsom Clty Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 3t2812023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. I l0l4 - A Resolution Directing the Preparation
of Engineer's Report for the following Landscaping and
Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 American River
Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American
River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine
Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4,

Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge
IllReflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2,

Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma
Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch
No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase,

The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at

American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow
Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and

Willow Springs

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. I 1014 - A Resolution Directing the
Preparation of Engineer's Report for the following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2,

American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs
Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills
Ridge Il/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake

Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, NatomaValley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks

Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at

American River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates

East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs.

1

Page 125

03/28/2023 Item No.8.



BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The City of Folsom has thirty existing Landscaping and Lighting Districts. Each year, as part

of the annual assessment process, an Engineer's Report must be prepared in accordance with
the requirement of Article 4 of Chapter I of Part 2 of Division 15 of the Streets and Highways
Code andthe Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972.

The Engineer's Report for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 will address all thirty districts in one report

and will be submitted for final approval to the City Council.

POLICY / RULE
Section 22622ofthe Streets and Highways Code requires the City Council to adopt a resolution
directing the preparation of the Engineer's Report as part of the annual assessment process for
landscaping and lighting districts.

ANALYSIS
The Engineer's Report for the thirty Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2023-

2024 will be prepared by NBS Government Financing Group (NBS). The Preliminary
Engineer's Report is expected to be submitted for City Council review and approval on May
23, 2023 and the final Engineer's Report and public hearing is scheduled for July ll , 2023 .

Included within the report for each district will be the following

Plans and specifications for the maintenance of the improvements (on file in the

Parks and Recreation Department)

Estimate of the cost of maintaining the improvements

Diagrams of the assessment districts

Assessment of the estimated costs for maintaining the improvements

I,IMPACT
Each Landscaping and Lighting District levies and collects funds to cover operating and

maintenance costs. The Fiscal Year 2023-2024budget for the Landscaping and Lighting
Districts includes funding for the preparation of the Engineer's Report. There is no fiscal
impact to the City of Folsom General Fund.

AL REVIEW
N/A (This does not apply as there is no environmental review aspect to the engineer's

report.)

A.

B.

C.

D.

F'INANCIA

2

ATTACHMENTS

Page 126

03/28/2023 Item No.8.



l. Resolution No. 1 I0l4 - A Resolution Directing the Preparation of Engineer's Report

for the following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2023-2024
American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American
River CanyonNorthNo. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs
Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble

Hills Ridge lllReflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford

Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie

Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook,
Steeplechase, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at

American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East

No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Parks & Recreation Director

3 Page 127

03/28/2023 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 11014

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE PREPARATION OF ENGINEER'S REPORT FOR

THE FOLLOWING LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2023-2024 AMERICAN RIVER CANYON NORTH, AMERICAN RIVER
CANYON NORTH NO.2, AMERICAN RIVER CANYON NORTH NO. 3, BLUE

RAVINE OAKS, BLUE RAVINE OAKS NO. 2, BRIGGS RANCH, BROADSTONE'
BROADSTONE NO. 4, BROADSTONE UNIT NO.3, COBBLE RIDGEO COBBLE HILLS

RIDGE IIIREFLECTIONS II, FOLSOM HEIGHTS, FOLSOM HEIGHTS NO.2'
HANNAFORD CROSS, LAKE NATOMA SHORESO LOS CERROS, NATOMA

STATIONO NATOMA VALLEY, PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH, PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH
NO.2, PROSPECT RIDGE, SIERRA ESTATES, SILVERBROOK, STEEPLECHASE,

THE RESIDENCES AT AMERICAN RIVER CANYON, THE RESIDENCES AT
AMERICAN RIVER CANYON II, WILLOW CREEK ESTATES EAST, WILLOW

CREEK ESTATES EAST NO. 2, WILLOW CREEK ESTATES SOUTH, AND WILLOW
SPRINGS

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom, has established thirty Landscaping

and Lighting Assessment Districts described as follows:

American River Canyon North
American River Canyon North No. 2
American River Canyon NorthNo. 3

Blue Ravine Oaks
Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2
Briggs Ranch
Broadstone
Broadstone No. 4
Broadstone Unit No.3
Cobble Ridge
Cobble Hills Ridge lllReflections II
Folsom Heights
Folsom Heights No. 2
Hannaford Cross
Lake Natoma Shores
Los Cerros

; and

Natoma Station
Natoma Valley
Prairie Oaks Ranch
Prairie Oaks RanchNo. 2

Prospect Ridge
Sierra Estates
Silverbrook
Steeplechase
The Residences at American River
Canyon
The Residences at American River
Canyon II
Willow Creek Estates East
Willow Creek Estates East No. 2
Willow Creek Estates South
Willow Springs

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972 ("Act"), Division 15,

Part2 of the Streets and Highway Code, the assessment is forthe maintenance of public areas

including, but not limited to, landscaped areas, street corridors, project entryways, certain parks,

parkways, medians, statuary, residential village entryways, sound walls, fences, project signage,

itreetscapes, landscape, lighting maintenance and lighting, water and utility bills; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom has determined that said teritories
will be specifically benefited by the maintenance and servicing of said landscape and appurtenant

Resolution No. 11014

Page I of2 Page 128

03/28/2023 Item No.8.



improvements; and

WHEREAS, Sections 22620 through 2263I of the Act provide for annual assessments

after the formation of said districts; and

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to have the City's engineer prepare the Engineer's Report and file the

same with the Clerk for submission to the City Council, and that NBS Government Financing
Group is hereby designated as Engineer of Work for purposes of these proceedings and is hereby
ordered to prepare an Engineer's Report in accordance with Article 4 of Chapter I of the Act and

Article XIIID of the California Constitution. Upon completion, the Engineer shall file the
Engineer's Report with the Clerk of the Council for submission to the Council; and

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28nd day of March2023,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11014
Page2 of2

Page 129

03/28/2023 Item No.8.



This pnge intentionollY Ieft blank
to facilitate double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLSOl\{
DIgTINCTIVE BY XATURE

Page 130

03/28/2023 Item No.8.



Folsom City Council
Staff R rt

MEETING DATE: 3t2812023

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: 2022 General Plan (and Housing Element) Annual Progress

Report

F'ROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff respectfully requests that the City Council receive and accept lhe 2022 General Plan

Annual Progress Report and Housing Element Annual Progress Report. Upon acceptance, staff
will forward copies to the Governor's Office of Planning and Research and Department of
Housing and Community Development accordingly.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The purpose of this General Plan Annual Progress Report (APR) is to update the City Council
onthe status of implementing programs contained withinthe City's 2035 Folsom General Plan,

including the 2021-2029 Housing Element.

State law requires all counties and general law cities to submit an annual report on the status

of the jurisdiction's General Plan as it pertains to all general plan elements to the Governor's
Office of Planning and Research (OPR).

Additionally, State law (California Government Code $65400) requires all cities and all
counties to submit a Housing Element Annual Progress Report (APR) to the Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD) and OPR to report progress that the jurisdiction
has made toward implementing the Housing Element of their General Plan.

Prior to submittal to the State, the annual report must be presented to the City Council for
review and acceptance. The 2022 General Plan APR (Attachment 1) includes a summary of
General Plan Amendments processed and actions or activities relating to implementation of
each of the City's General Plan Elements. The Housing Element portion of the report consists

of several standardized State-produced tables that quantiff the number of dwelling units

1

Page 131

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



entitled and constructed during the reporting period and the status of Housing Element
programs.

POLICY / RULE
Government Code Section 65400 and 65700 mandates that all cities and counties submit an

annual report on the status of the General Plan and progress in its implementation to their
legislative bodies, the Govemor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR), and the Housing
and Community Development (HCD) by April I of each year.

ANALYSIS
The General Plan APR assists OPR in identifuing statewide trends in local land use decision
making. Furthermore, the report assists the City in evaluating how the goals and policies of the
general plan are being implemented through various programs, planning activities and land
development projects (both public and private). While OPR provides general guidance on the
preparation of APRs, local jurisdictions are encouraged to develop their General Plan APR in
a manner that is useful to the specific jurisdiction.

The attached General Plan APR summarizes the City's General Plan implementation progress

for 2022. The report is not an exhaustive inventory of Folsom's general plan implementation
efforts, but rather a focused account of relevant activities of citywide significance, including
land development projects requiring discretionary review, long-rang planning efforts, City
capital improvement projects and other action items that specifically address implementation
of the General Plan.

The Housing Element APR is attached to the General Plan APR and utilizes building permits
issued as the basis for counting progress toward achieving its share of the identified Regional
Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA). In addition, the Housing Element APR describes the
City's accomplishments toward achieving its housing goals and includes a status report on
implementation of the City's housing related policies, ordinances, and programs to facilitate
efforts to remove constraints to the production of affordable housing.

ATTACHMENT

l. 2022 General Plan Annual Progress Report

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

2
Page 132

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



m
F'OLSOM
GENERAL PLAN

2o^35

2022 General Plan Annual Progress Report

City of Folsom

March 2023

I

Page 133

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Table of Conte nts

CHAPTER 1. - INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

A. PURPOSE OF THE ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT (APR)

B. BACKGROUND

C, PURPOSE OF THE GENERAL PLAN

D. STATUS OF THE ADOPTED ELEMENTS

CHAPTER 2 _ IMPLEMENTATION OF THE GENERAL PLAN

A. AMENDMENTS TO THE GENERAL PLAN

B. GENERAL PLAN PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2O].9

CHAPTER 3 _ IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HOUSING ELEMENT

CHAPTER 4_2022 PROJECTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

A. MAJOR DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

B. NOTABLE PROJECTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

APPENDIX A: GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

APPENDIX B: HOUSING ELEMENTANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT

EXHIBIT 1: HOUSING ELEMENT IMPLEMENTATION TABLE

EXHIBIT 2: REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION TABLE

EXHIBIT 3: SUMMARY OF ENTITLED UNITS AND SUBMITTED APPLICATIONS

2

Page 134

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



CHAPTER 1 _ INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

A. Purpose of the Annual Progress Report (APR)

The primary purpose of this Annual Progress Report (APR) is to summarize the activities that took place

between January t,2022 and December 3'J",2022 to implement the City of Folsom's 2035 General Plan.

This report will be provided to the City Council for their review and acceptance. ln addition, the APR will

be submitted to the Governor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and the Department of Housing

and Community Development (HCD).

B. Background

The City of Folsom adopted a comprehensive update to the General Plan on August 28,20L8 and updated

several elements (Housing, Land Use, Safety and Noise and lmplementation) in 2O2t as part of the 2021-

2029 Housing Element Update. The Folsom 2035 General Plan is the result of over 6 years of public input

from stakeholders, the community, City Commissioners, and the City Council. The updated plan replaced

and reformatted the previous General Plan that was adopted in 1988 and includes key planning concepts

such as developing urban centers offering an urban lifestyle in a suburban community, moving toward

mixed use on the East Bidwell corridor, providing opportunities for transit-oriented development, and

following retail trends to provide for new shopping and converting old retail centers to productive use.

Other key planning concepts embraced in the Folsom 2035 General Plan are complete streets including

all modes of transportation and a focus on healthy lifestyles

C. Purpose of the General Plan

The General Plan is the foundational land use document for the City of Folsom and includes goals, policies,

and programs on a wide range of topics. Every city and county in California must have a General Plan,

which is the local government's long-term framework or "constitution" for future development. The

General Plan represents the community's view of Folsom's future and expresses the community's

development goals. The Folsom 2035 General Plan establishes the framework for land use decisions in

the City of Folsom over the next 20 plus years and includes goals, policies, and programs on a wide range

of topics. All new land use and development, as well as modifications to existing use and development

must be consistent with the City's General Plan.

D. Status of Adopted Elements

The General Plan is made up of eight elements, of which seven are mandated by the State. Except for the

Housing Element, all other elements of the City of Folsom General Plan were adopted as a single document

on August 28,2Ot8. State requirements for housing elements are more detailed and specific than for the

other general plan elements, and housing elements are required to be updated on a fixed schedule set by

the State. The most recent City of Folsom Housing Element was adopted by the City Council on August

24, 2O2t and certified by the State Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) on

October 22, 2021. fhe 2O2L Housing Element is a comprehensive update of the 2013 Housing Element

and covers an eight-year period from May 15,2O2l to May L5,2029'

The seven State-mandated elements are: Land Use, Circulation, Housing, Conservation, Open Space,

Noise, and Safety (California Government Code Section 65302). Communities may include other elements

3

Page 135

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



that address issues of particular local concern, such as economic development or urban design.

Communities can also organize their General Plan anyway they choose, as long as the required issue areas

are addressed.

The following table shows how the elements of the Folsom 2035 General Plan are organized to meet the

mandatory requirements of State law:

Source: Folsom Genera n 2035 -Adopted August 28,2018

CHAPTER 2 - IMPLEMENTATION OF THE GENE RAL PLAN

To help ensure that appropriate actions are taken to implement the 2035 General Plan, the Plan includes

a set of implementation programs. The implementation programs identify specific actions to be taken by

the City to implement the General Plan policies.

A. Amendments to the General Plan
General Plan Amendments may be proposed and acted upon at any time during the year and one action

may include multiple amendments, General Plan amendments are subject to environmental review,

public notice and hearing requirements and must not create inconsistencies with other parts of the plan.

Some of the amendments will be policy changes, while others will be changes to the General Plan Land

Use Diagram.

4

General Plan Elements Required by State Law

(l,
t!
!t
Et!

E
o
.E

tJ

(J

br)
E
I
o

Eo
t!Ioo
=o(,

o
.9o
=

olJt!
CL
an
troao

d,
TE
an

Optional
Elements
Allowed
by State

Law

Folsom 2035
General Plan Elements

Land Use

Mobility

Economic Prosperity

Housing

Natural and Cultural
Resources

Public Facilities and
Services

Parks and Recreation

Safety and Noise

ELEMENTS OF THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL PLAN

Page 136

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



2022 Generol Plo n Amendments

Co neral Plan A

Development Permit - On May L0,2022 the City Council approved a General Plan Amendment,

Rezone, and Planned Development Permit Modification for development of a 253-unit market

rate apartment community on two sites (Lot t:7.24-acre parceland Lot 6: 4.68-acre parcel)within

the Folsom Corporate Center, which is located on the south side of lron Point Road, slightly east

of the intersection of lron Point Road and Oak Avenue Parkway. The purpose of the General Plan

Amendment was to change the two project parcels (Lot 1 and Lot 6) from IND (lndustrial/Office

Park)to MHD (Multi-Family High Density).

2021 Ge ne rol P lo n Ame nd me nts

1. Alder Creek Apartments General Plan Amendment. Specific Plan Amendment. Planned

Develooment Permit, and Mi Administrative Modification - On February 2L, 2O2I the City

Council approved a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, Planned Development

Permit, and Minor Administrative Modification for development and operation of a 265-unit

market rate apartment community (Alder Creek Apartments) on a 10.8-acre site located at the

southeast corner of the intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive within the

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 portion of the Folsom Plan Area. The purpose of the General Plan

Amendment was to change the General Plan land use designation for a S.O-acre portion of the

project site from MLD (Multi-Family Low Density)to wHO (Multi-Family High Density).

2. 202L Housins Element Update and Related Actions - The City Council approved a General Plan

Amendment on August 24, 202L to update the following Elements: Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element.

Housing Element - ln accordance with State law the City was required to adopt the sixth cycle Housing

Element, which covers the May 15, 2O2t through May 1-5, 2029 planning period and reassesses the

community's housing-related goals and objectives, while addressing issues and establishing objectives

with respect to a wide range of housing related programs. The sixth cycle also responds to challenges

associated with meeting an increased Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) of 6,363 housing units

and to new state laws pertaining to housing, including, but not limited to the SB 156 (2O17l "no-net-loss"

law that requires land inventory and site identification programs in a Housing Element to always include

sufficient sites to accommodate the unmet RHNA, as well as AB 586 (2018) which requires affirmatively

furthering fair housing as a part of a jurisdiction's Housing Element planning process and guiding

docu ments for commu nity development.

Land Use Element - The City amended two sections of the Land Use Element. The first amendment

corrected the East Bidwell Mixed-use boundary associated with the Land Use Diagram and the second

amendment removed and outdated policy, policy 1U9.1.10 Renewable and Alternative Energy

Generation.

Safetv and Noise Element - ln conjunction with the Housing Element Update, and in compliance with State

law, the City updated the Safety and Noise Element of the General Plan to address climate adaptation and

resilience strategies. The update added new emergency preparedness and evacuation route policies, new

I

5

Page 137

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



climate change policies to address flood hazards, wildfires and wildfire smoke and a new Extreme Heat

section that includes a new goal statement and several new policies. The update also included a Climate

Adaptation and Resilience Report, which serves as a climate change vulnerability assessment and is

included in the General Plan as Appendix D,

lmpleme ion Element -The City updated the lmplementation Element to support the Safety and Noise

Element Update. Revisions to the lmplementation Element included new implementation programs to

address evacuation routes, stormwater and flood management, wildfire and wildfire smoke protection,

and extreme heat.

2020 Generol Plon Amendments

1. Toll Brothers: General Plan Amendment, Soecific Plan Amendment. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative

Map and Design Planned Development Permit - The City Council approved a General Plan

Amendment on March tO,2O2O to modify land use designations in the Folsom Plan Area. The

land use designations associated with the 314-acre site include SFHD, MLD, MMD, OS, and P.

2. 709 Natoma Street: General Plan Amendment - The City Council approved a General Plan

Amendment on June 23,2020 to change the land use designation from SFHD (Single-Family High

Density) to CC (Community Commercial) in order to correct General Plan inconsistencies that

resulted in the single parcel having two incompatible land uses (SFHD/CC).

201"9 Generol Plo n Amendme nts

1. Canvon Terrace Apartments Expansion and Remodel: General Plan Amendment and Design

Review - The City Council approved a General Plan Amendment on July 9, 2019 to change the

land use designation from MLD (Multi-Family Low Density)to IVIHO (Multi-Family High Density) in

order to accommodate the increased residential density associated with the project expansion.

B. General Plan Program lmplementation Highlights for 2022

The following are highlights of the implementation program progress made in calendar year 2022

organized by Element.

Land Use Element:

LU-2 Vacant and Underutilized Sites -|n2022, the Parks and Recreation Department was tasked with

evaluating city-owned vacant and underutilized properties. ln addition, on February 2,22,2022 the City

Council adopted Resolution No. 10809 creating an Ad Hoc City Council Subcommittee to review City

Properties. The Ad-Hoc Subcommittee reviewed and visited 13 vacant city-owned parcels and presented

its various recommendations at the November !L,2022 City Council Meeting'

LU-5 River District Master Plan - On April 12,2022 the City Council approved the use of American Recovery

Plan Act (ARPA) funds in the amount of 5362,500 for project management services and retention of a
planning/environmental consultant to conduct the River District Master Plan Planning and Community

Engagement Process. The primary project goal is to activate the City's expansive waterfront for recreation

and economic development through strategic partnerships and land use opportunities. The planning

effort for the River District Master Plan will kick off in early 2023, with an anticipated two-year completion

timeline.

6

Page 138

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Mobility Element:

M-2. lntellieent Transpo n Svstems (lTS) Master Plan - ln 2O2t, the Public Works Department

Successfully obtained over 53 million in SACOG funding for lmplementation of the ITS Master Plan. This is

a multi-year project andin2022 the design phase forthe ITS was implemented. Upon completion the ITS

Master Plan will provide connectivity to all traffic control devices to the City's Traffic Management

System. Elements of the ITS Master Plan include a fiber optic system with regional connectivity, upgrades

to signal cabinet hardware, replacement of inductive vehicle detection loops with a detection camera

system and PTZ cameras at each signalized intersection.

M-4. Electric Vehicle Charee Stations at Citv Facilities -\n2022, the Municipal Landscape Services Division

Shop and the Facilities Maintenance yard both installed Class ll EV chargers at their respective facilities.

M-5 Pedestrian Master Plan nd M-5 Bikewav Master Plan - The Public Works and Parks and Recreation

successfully obtained grant funding to consolidate the Pedestrian Master Plan and Bike Master Plan into

an Active Transportation Plan (ATP) in 2020. Public outreach for the project began in Spring of 2021. The

ATP was adopted by City Council on June 'J.4,2022 and will serve as a long-range compass for creating the

future of walking, biking, and rollingthrough Folsom.

M-7 Bicvcle Safetv Education - ln 2022, the Folsom Police Department obtained Selective Traffic

Enforcement Program (STEP) grant funding from the Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) to perform multiple

traffic education and enforcement operations targeting pedestrian and bicycle safety. The enforcement

efforts were conducted around schools with the city during the months of May and September, The Police

Department used social media (Facebook) campaigns to promote bicycle safety to children.

M-8 Bicvcle and Pedestrian lmprovements -ln 2022, three miles of bike trail and a bridge were installed

adjacent to the Southeast Connector; buffered bike lanes we installed on lron Point Road; and

approximately 1.5 miles of new Class L trail segments were accepted in the White Rock Springs Ranch

Neighborhood in the Folsom Plan Area.

M-10 Capital heast Connector - The APWA award winning Capital Southeast Connector Segment

D3(A) Project was completed and open for traffic on October 22,2022 including three miles of four-lane

expressway and class I multiuse bike/pedestrian trail with three signalized intersections. An additional

segment connecting Scott Road to the White Rock Road/Prairie City Road signalized intersection was bid

as a separate project and substantially completed in December 2022, opening to traffic in February

2023. Grant applications for Segment D3(B) from East Bidwell Street to El Dorado County will be

submitted early 2023.

Housing Element: See Chopter 3

7

Page 139

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Notural ond Cultural Resources Element:

NCR-3 - Creek Week - ln 2022, Creek Week was cancelled for the second year in a row as a result of the

Covid-19 pandemic. As an alternative to Creek Week, a creek maintenance project was included as part

of the 2022 Community Services Day projects. ln addition, the Public Works Department provided

supplies and support to residents that volunteered to maintain various creeks during the year.

NCR-4 - Cultural Resources lnventorv - On July 20,2022, the Historic District Commission approved the

Folsom State Prison for listing on the City of Folsom Cultural Resource lnventory List,

Public Facilities ond Services Element:

PFS-8 Maintenance Permits - The City has an active City's Routine Maintenance Agreement (1600-2014-

0197-R2) with California Department of Fish and Wildlife for the express purpose of conducting routine

maintenance activities within the City of Folsom and its natural watercourses and tributaries, including

detention basins. ln 2022, seven projects were undertaken by the City utilizing the City's Routine

Maintenance Agreement. The projects included using professional grazing services for invasive plant

control in open spaces including some detention basins and clearing beaver dams and other obstructions

from sections of Humbug Creek, Willow Creek, and their associated tributaries.

PFS-L3. Streetlieht Retrofit - ln 2022, the Public Works Department converted 90 streetlights to LED along

major corridors and city-maintained neighborhoods. ln addition, the Municipal Landscape Services

Division retrofitted approximately 150 streetlights from 100W HPS to 66W LED in various landscape and

lighting districts.

PFS-14. Enerev Efficient Fleet -|n2O21, the Waste and Recycling Division received the City's first all-

electric vehicle, and the water conservation division received a hybrid. The Fleet division is continuing to
transition the light duty fleet to energy efficient alternatives. Four hybrid orders and seven all electric

orders, including 6 patrol vehicles were completed in 2021. Delivery of 7 of these vehicles were expected

in 2O22 but delayed due to supply chain issues. ln addition, the Parks and Recreation Departments placed

an order for 4 EV replacement vehicles in 2022. Again, supply chain issues have delayed receipt of these

EVs.

PFS-15 Reduce VMT in Citv Operations - ln 2022, the Community Development Department launched its

online electronic permitting and plan review system (ComDev). This system enables applicants to submit

applications and plans electronically to the City for review instead of requiring them to print them out and

deliver them to City Hall. These measures not only reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT), but also lessen

the cost and time involved in the development review process.

PFS-1-8. Neieh Cleanuo Prosram - ln 2022, the Solid Waste Division of the Public Works

Department completed over 9,944 bulky waste pickups and collected nearly 1,680 tons of waste.

PFS-19 Recvclins Containers - State Senate Bill 1-383 required that by January 1,2022 the city must provide

a program to collect and recycle food and green waste from all residential and commercial customers. ln

early 2022, the Waste and Recycling Division completed the distribution of organic waste recycling

containers to all City facilities.

8

Page 140

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



PFS-22 Renewable Enersv in Citv-Operated Buildinss -|n2022, the Fire Department completed design

concepts for Fire Station 34 in the Folsom Plan Area. The new 1-3,932-square-foot fire station has been

designed to be solar panel ready for future rooftop solar panel installation.

Safety and Noise Element:

SN-4 Multi-Hazard Mitieation Plan -ln2O2I,the City participated with Sacramento County and other local

jurisdictions to update the Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP). The updated LHMP

was adopted by City Council in February 2022.

SN- 15 Conduct EducationalOutreach on Extreme Heat Events -\n2O22, Folsom Police and Fire personnel,

in conjunction with other city departments worked collaboratively to advertise, staff and open cooling

centers when sustained high temperatures gripped the city. Outreach was accomplished via social media

accounts (including Facebook, Nixle, and lnstagram) and the city opened cooling centers five times during

extreme heat events in2O22.

CHAPTER 3 - I PLEMENTATION OF THE HOU SING ELEMENT

ln accordance with State law (California Government Code 565400), the City is required to report certain

housing information, including the City's progress in meeting its share of regional housing needs, actions

taken towards completion of housing element programs and the city's efforts to remove governmental

constraints to the development of housing.

The State of California Department of Housing and Community Development requires that the Housing

Element Annual Progress Report consists of 6 Excel spreadsheets, which are attached as Appendix B.

Housing Element lmplementation

The 2022 APR provides the number of housing units for which the City issued building permits in 2022

both in the aggregate and by affordability levels, according to state-defined income levels. ln 2022,

building permits were issued for the production of t243 residential dwelling units consisting of 831 above

moderate single-family units, 357 multifamily units, including 110 low and very-low-income senior

apartment units and 45 (moderate, low- and very-low) accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and multi-

generational units.

With regards to development applications, the City received a total of 53 housing development

applications in 2022, which included 34 custom home and 10 ADU design review applications. The total

proposed housing units associated with these housing development applications is l-,464 units.

The2O2t Housing Element builds on the policies and programs of the 2013 Housing Element and the City's

success in implementing these policies and programs. ln addition, the City added a number of new

innovative programs to encourage and support the development of affordable housing and to respond to

new State requirements. ln2O22,the City has demonstrated solid progress in implementing the programs

in its 2O2t-2029 Housing Element. Below is a list of Housing Element implementation highlights.

Prosram H-2 Create Additional Lower-lncome Housing Capacitv - ln order to create additional

opportunities to ensure the City maintains adequate capacity to meet the lower-income RHNA throughout

the planning period, the City proposes to increase maximum allowable densities in the East Bidwell Mixed

Use Overlay, SACOG Transit Priority Areas outside the Historic District, and the Folsom Plan Area Specific

Plan Town Center. To advance this effort, the City applied for and received three Regional Early Action

9

Page 141

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Planning Grant Program (REAP) grants that will fund projects aimed at exploring increased densities and

updating development standards for the City's Transit Priority Areas, the East Bidwell Mixed Use Corridor,

and the Town Center area of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP). ln2022, the first part of this

effort was initiated through a Targeted Multi-family and Mixed-use Study. Key elements of this study were

understanding how design, density, and development standards affect development economics. Future

tasks associated with this effort include: L) Amendments to the General Plan and Zoning Code to increase

the maximum density and floor area ratio (FAR) standards for the East Bidwell Corridor Mixed-Use

Overlay; 2) Establish a new Transit Development (TD) overlay designation that would allow for increased

densities and FAR for parcels around the Glenn and lron Point light rail stations; 3) Amend the General

Plan and FPASP to increase opportunities for multi-family high density development and amend the

existing Town Center District (TCD) overlay designation to allow for increased densities and FAR for parcels

in the TCD overlay area; 4) ldentify Zoning Code Amendments and corresponding General Plan

Amendments necessary to create a TD overlay, necessary zoning map changes, and revisions to design

and development standards; 5) Conduct technical analyses to support the environmental review process;

and 6) Prepare the appropriate environmental document to address the changes to the General Plan,

FPASP, and Zoning Code.

Proeram H-3 andards for Transit Oriented I)evelonment - As part of the Zoning Code update, which is

currently underway, the City will consider zoning code amendments that facilitate mixed-use and high-

density residentialTOD opportunities. ln 2022,Lhe City initiated a Targeted Multi-family and Mixed-use

Housing Study. The study included an analysis of the economic feasibility of multi-family and residential

mixed-use development at different densities and the results of the study will be used to establish

development standards for multi-family, mixed-use, and transit-oriented development, To help fund this

effort, the City applied for a 5243,000 SACOG Green Means Go Planning Grant. Grant awards will be

announced in Spring of 2023.

Program H-11 Local Fundins for Affordable Housins Development - ln 2022, the city provided a loan in

the amount of 5588,265 to off-set unanticipated Quimby fees for the 100% affordable, 75-unit Bidwell

Place Apartment project.

prosram H-15 Affordable Development at the Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station - As part of the 2022

Targeted Multi-family and Mixed-use Housing Study public outreach efforts, the City initiated

conversations with Sacramento Regional Transit regarding the future affordable housing development

opportunities at the Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station parking lot site and the need to maintain park

and ride spaces on site or adjacent to the site.

Prosram H-22 Additional State. federal. and Reeional Fundine - ln November of 2022, the City received a

SACOG Green Means Go Early Activation Grant in the amount of 5374,000 to fund non-transportation site

specific infrastructure associated the Habitat Persifer Street Project. |n2021., the City Council approved

thesaleofthe surpluslandlocatedat300PersiferStreet toHabitatforHumanityof GreaterSacramento,

lnc. for the purpose of developing for-sale affordable housing units, which will include five accessory

dwelling units.

Proeram H-27 Seniors Heloins Se rs Proeram - The Seniors Helping Seniors Program aids with minor

home repairs to extremely low-, very low-, and low-income seniors in Folsom. |n2022, the Seniors Helping

Seniors program provided over 5138,475 in funding to assist 79 eligible senior households with minor

home repairs.

l0

Page 142

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



CHAPTER 4 _ 2OT9 PROJECTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

ln addition to implementation of specific programs, the City of Folsom implemented a number of General

Plan policies and goals through a variety of actions in 2022. The following sections provide an overview of
some of these actions.

A. Major Development Applications

The following development applications were reviewed by the Planning Commission and/or City Council

during2022.

Mongini Ranch Phose 2, Villoges 3-3A Design Review

On May 4,2022, the Planning Commission approved a Residential Design Review to develop 53-single-

family homes for Villages 3 and 34 of Mangini Phase 2 of the Folsom Plan Area.

11"36 Sibley Street Commerciol Design Review

On May 4,2022 the Planning Commission approved a request from Gekkeikan Sake lnc. for Commercial

Design Review for a 9,885 square-foot warehouse building addition located at the existing Gekkeikan Sake

industrial complex at 1136 Sibley Street.

Fo I so m Co r porote Ce nte r Apa rtm e nts

On May L0, 2022 the City Council approved a General Plan Amendment, Rezone, and Planned

Development Permit Modification for development of a 253-unit market rate apartment community on

two sites (Lot 1: 7.Z4-acre parcel and Lot 6: 4.68-acre parcel) within the Folsom Corporate Center, which
is located on the south side of lron Point Road, slightly east of the intersection of lron Point Road and Oak

Avenue Parkway.

6987 Oak Avenue Tentotive Porcel Mop

On May 18,2022 the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide a 1.03-acre

single-family residential property located at 5987 Oak Avenue into two individual parcels.

AC Hotel by Marriott Tentotive Parcel Mop ond Plonned Development Permit Modificotion

On May 18,2022 the Planning Commission approved a request from lnsignia Hospitality Groups, lnc. for
approval of a Tentative Parcel Map and a Planned Development Permit Modification application for
development of a five-story hotel (AC Marriott) on a 1.45-acre portion of an existingL4.22-acreparcel
(APN 072-3080-042) within a parking lot area at the Palladio at Broadstone Shopping Center.

Bidwell Place Tentotive Parcel Mop

On July 20,2022, the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide an existing 3.24-

acre property located at 403 and 425 East Bidwell Street into two individual parcels.

Toll Brothers ot Folsom Ranch Phase 3 Subdivision Planned Development Permit Modificotion and Design

Review

l1

Page 143

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



On July 20,2}22the Planning Commission approved a request from Toll Brothers, lnc. for approvalof a

Planned Development Permit Modification and Design Review for 2tt previously approved residential

lots located within Phase 3 of the Toll Brothers Subdivision located at the southeast corner of Oak Avenue

Parkway and Mangini Parkway within the Folsom Plan Area.

Mongini Ronch Phose 3 Village L-3 Subdivision Residentiol Design Review

On July 20,2022, the Planning Commission approved a Design Review application for 218 traditional

single-family residential units located within Villages 1-3 of the previously approved Mangini Ranch Phase

3 Subdivision.

Mongini Ranch Phase 3 Village 4 Subdivision Residential Design Review

On July 20,2022 the Planning Commission approved a Design Review application for 42 traditional single-

family residential units located within Village 4 of the previously approved Mangini Ranch Phase 3

Subdivision.

281 lron Point Road Tentative Parcel Map

On August 17 ,2022, the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide an existing

single-story, 22,500-square-foot commercial building located within the Natoma Station Shopping Center

at 281 lron Point Road into '11 commercial condominium units for future sale and operation.

71-5 Eost Bidwell Street Design Review

On August L7 ,2022,the Planning Commission approved request from Commonwealth Square Station, LLC

for Design Review approval for remodeling of an existing 95,OO0-square-foot multi-tenant commercial

building situated on a 9.86-acre site within the Commonwealth Square Shopping Center.

905 Eost Bidwell Street Tentotive Porcel Mop

On November !6, 2022 the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide an

existing single-story, 39,404-square-foot commercial building located within the Bidwell Center at 905 East

Bidwell Street into 2 commercial condominium units for future sale and operation.

B. Notable Projects and Accomplishments

During 2022,therewere a number of notable projects and accomplishments related to the City's General

Plan goals and policies which the City expended substantial efforts on. The following provides brief

summaries of some of these accomplishments and is not intended to be exhaustive.

National lncident-Based Reporting System (NIBRS) - ln an effort to improve the overall quality of crime

report data collected by law enforcement the former Universal Crime Reporting (UCR) was discontinued

and replaced with the National Incident Based Reporting (NIBRS). This project was mandated by the US

Department of Justice. NIBRS is more robust and requires officers to document additional data when

writing crime reports. This new system mandated the retraining of both records and field personnel.

Online Crime Reporting- ln 2022,lhe Police Department launched an online crime reporting system. This

system allows citizens to self-report certain crimes without having to wait for an officer to respond to
their home/place of business, Since launching the new system, the Police Department began regularly

receiving reports from citizens who preferred to use the new online system.

12

Page 144

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Significant Arrests - Throughout 2022, the Folsom Police Department continued to serve with purpose

and pursue criminal behavior. The Police Department enforcement efforts of lllegal drug and firearms

offenses resulted in 40 crime guns being taken offthe street and several seizures of more than a pound

of illegal drugs.

Police Department Succession Planning - With numerous retirements occurring in late 2O2L and

throughout 2022,hhe Folsom Police Department implemented a leadership and succession plan, Two

commanders, four lieutenants, seven sergeants, four corporals and other professional staff members

were hired, promoted, and placed in training during 2022. Other supervisor/management personnel

were given new roles within the department as the Police Department moved forward and worked to

optimize operations. These assignment changes and training will help the department move through

2023 and beyond.

Fire Station 34 Design and Civil lmprovements - Strategically located in the Folsom Plan Area, Fire Station

34 architectural design work was completed along with phase 1 construction, site improvements, and

grading. This new station will ensure optimum delivery of emergency fire and medical services to the

community in the future.

Folsom Fire Department Therapy DoB - Therapy dog "Blitz" was added to the Folsom Fire Family in

February 2022 as part of the peer support group to provide comfort to employees. Health research on

Animal Assisted Therapy (https://www.uclahealth.orelpac/animal-assisted-therapy) substantiated that

therapy dogs provide tremendous benefits for both mental health and physical health. During 2022,Blitz

was part of multiple incidents to assist with the emotional support to city firefighters.

Folsom Reservoir Raw Water Delivery Project - The Environmental and Water Resources Department

began the planning of alternative water supply delivery projects from Folsom Reservoir. This planning

effort will identify two project alternatives for the delivery of raw water from Folsom Reservoir to the

Cities of Folsom and Roseville, Folsom State Prison, and San Juan Water District.

Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmprovement Project - ln 2022, the Environmental and

Water Resources Department completed the Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmprovement

Project. This project involved increasing the current Actiflo production capabilities at the Water Treatment

Plant. This project will allow the City to meet capacity during buildout conditions and development in

the Folsom Plan Area, as well as provide redundancy in the event that any one of the three pre-treatment

facilities were offline.

Oak Avenue Pump Station Peak Wet Weather Flow Relief Project - ln 2022, the Environmental and

Water Resources Department constructed approximately 1,5O0 feet of 12-inch sewer force main parallel

to the City's existing force main. The secondary parallel sewer force main provides the City with redundant

pipeline capacity and operational flexibility for diverting sewer flow during dry and wet weather flow

conditions to help minimize the risk of a sanitary sewer overflow.

Highway5O/Empire Ranch Road lnterchange - The Empire Ranch Road lnterchange project is nearing

completion of preliminary design and environmental phase. Funding to implement the final design is

available upon approval of the Project Study Report. Additional grant funding applications have been

submitted for Right-of-Way acquisition and completion of Plans, Specifications, and Estimate. The

t3

Page 145

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



interchange will include a four-lane overpass with roundabouts at the intersections, full ramp connections

to westbound and eastbound Highway 50, and bicycle and pedestrian facilities. This project will connect

with the existing Empire Ranch Road/lron Pont Road intersection to the north, and the future extension

of Empire Ranch Road to the south. This project will reduce congestion, improve connectivity, safety,

reduce travel time and delay for commuter, recreational, and freight traffic.

Federal Emergency Management Agency Grant - ln June of 2022, the Municipal Landscape Services

Division was notified of the approval of a FEMA grant application for Defensible Space and Vegetation

Management in the amount of 5279,000. This grant does have a 25% match obligation with the City's

obligation being $93,000. These funds will be used for the implementation of the City of Folsom's Ladder

Fuel Program and will ultimately create fuel breaks and defensible space in areas deemed by the Fire

Department to have a high hazard rating.

Prospector Park - ln 2022, the construction documents for Prospector Park in Folsom Ranch, were

completed. City staff and the design consulting team held public workshops in summer 2O2Ilo provide

an overview of the potential features and amenities to be considered in the design of the park. Based on

community input received at the meetings, a Preferred Master Plan was developed and final City Council

approval was made in October 2021. The 11.8-acre neighborhood park will include a children's play area;

a field for soccer, rugby, and a Farmer's Market; a lighted ballfield; sports courts; and a dog park. Project

completion is expected in late 2023 or early 2024.

Benevento Family Park - The planning process for Benevento Family Park (adjacent to Vista del Lago High

School) is currently underway, ln December of 2022, the City Council awarded a contract to an

environmental consultant to initiate the CEQA compliance process forthe project. CEQA and construction

documents will be prepared in2O23. This new park in the Empire Ranch neighborhood will feature a

children's play area, sand volleyball courts, and a food truck area. Project completion is expected in2O24.

Lembi Park Renovation - ln 2022, the city completed the conversion of two tennis courts to eight

dedicated pickleball courts at Lembi Community Park. Staff worked with the Folsom Pickleball Club in a

public/private partnership to fund the renovation project.

Urban Land Institute Advisory Services Panel - ln November of 2022, the City participated in a ULI

Advisory Services Panel on Attainable Housing Along Commercial Corridors. The SACOG initiated panel

studied Folsom's Central Business District and Sacramento County's North Watt Avenue corridor, and

offered recommendations that would support development of mixed-income, infill housing along these

corridorswiththegoalofcreatingvibrant,walkable,mixed-usecommunities. Panelistsrecommendations

will assist SACOG in allocation up to S4O million in state planning and infrastructure funding to expedite

housing production in designated green zones.

Targeted Multi-family and Mixed-use Study and lmplementation -ln 2021, the City received a grant to

analyze density increases and to prepare the necessary changes and environmental analysis to implement

Program H-2 of the Housing Element. Phase l was a Targeted Multi-Family and Mixed-Use Housing Study

prepared by Opticos Design, lnc. ln July of 2022,the City Council reviewed the study conclusions and

provided direction to staff to move forward with modest increases to allowed densities within the

following three targeted areas of the City: East Bidwell Street Corridor, areas around Glenn and lron Point

light railstations, and the Folsom Plan Area Town Center. Phase 2 of the project involves General Plan,

l4

Page 146

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Specific Plan, and Zoning Code amendments and associated technical and environmental analyses. Phase

2 is currently underway with an estimated completion of December 2023

River District and Central District Revitalization Plans - On April L2,2022, City Council authorized the use

of American Recovery Plan Act funding for economic development purposes, including the creation of a

River District Master Plan and Central District Revitalization Plan. The General Plan provides guidance and

policies for these two areas of the City. There are also zoning regulations, special studies, and recent

development and redevelopment successes and challenges in these areas. Each district plan is intended

to refine and expand vision and key principles to better guide and inform future actions and priorities for

Folsom. Both planning efforts were kicked off in early 2023, with an anticipated two-year completion

timeline (completion by December 3L,20241

Electronic Permitting Portal - On March L4,2122,the Community Development Department launched its

new electronic development permit and processing system, (ComDev) which allows for the submittal,

payment, and issuance of building permits completely paperless. The convenient new digital ComDev

portal is a one-stop shop for all development-related permits, plans, and activities.

Organics Recycling - ln March of 2022 the City started rolling out a new organics recycling program for

restaurants, businesses, and apartment communities. The city's residential program is right around the

corner and kicks off July 1. This program ensures that the city complies with a California law that requires

all residents and businesses to recycle organic waste, including food waste, food-soiled paper (napkins,

coffee filters), yard waste, and wood scraps.

l5

Page 147

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



APPENDIX A

GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

Page 148

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; Janua ry 1 - December 31 , 2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

tmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

Land Use Element
LU-1 Update the Zoning Ordinance

Develop a priority list for how sections of
the Folsom Zoning Ordinance and

applicable guidelines will be updated
consistent with the General Plan. The City

shall review and update the Folsom Zoning

Ordinance and applicable guidelines,

consistent with the policies and diagrams

of the General Plan. The update shall

include developing appropriate standards

to encourage mixed use within the East

Bidwell Overlay area and transit-oriented
development around light rail stations,
including restrictions on automobile-
oriented uses within one-quarter mile of
light rail stations. The City shall review and

update the Historic District Design and

Development Guidelines.

2018-
2020/

Ongoing

Du ring 2022, the Commu nity Development
Department (CDD) continued public

outreach efforts to encourage public

involvement in the comprehensive Zoning

Code Update, which is scheduled to be

completed in Fall of 2023. As part of this
effort, a Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-
Family Housing Study was conducted to
inform future development standards

within the East Bidwell Street Mixed-use

Corridor, areas around the city's light rail

stations, and the Folsom Plan Area Town

Center.

The primary goals of the zoning ordinance
update include the following: lmplement
2035 General Plan land use policies; ensure
consistency with State and federal law; be

intuitive, graphic, and user-friendly; create

a transparent, predictable, and consistent
process; promote high quality design;

respond to community concerns; promote

infill, mixed-use, and transit-oriented
development in Transit Priority Areas and

mixed-use overlay areas; and standardize
and simplify development review.

CDD

LU-2 Vacant and Underutilized Sites

Develop and maintain a citywide database

of vacant and underutilized sites to
monitor the city's growth and change. The

City shall prepare an annual report to the
Planning Commission and City Council on

the number of vacant sites and

underutilized sites that were developed
during the previous year.

2018-
2O2O/

Annual

The Community Development Depa rtment
has developed a citywide database of
vacant and underutilized sites in the city,

for both commercial and residentially
zoned land.

Bi-annually, the Community Development
Department gives a detailed and

comprehensive presentation to City

Council on development activity in the
Folsom Plan Area.

ln 2022, the Parks and Recreation

Department was tasked with evaluating
city-owned vacant and underutilized

CDD

ts
(Supporting

Dept,)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2}2Z/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 149

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

properties, ln addition, onFebruary 2,22,
2022 the City Council adopted Resolution
No. 10809 creating an Ad Hoc City Council
Subcommittee to review City Properties.
The Ad-Hoc Subcommittee reviewed and
visited L3 vacant city-owned parcels and
presented its various recommendations at
the November 1I, 2022 City Council
Meeting.

LU-3 Corporation Yard Special Study
Develop and adopt a study of the current
City of Folsom corporation yard to
determine appropriate uses and projects
after the City relocates the corporation

vard,

202L-
2025

No action taken in 2022.

CDD

LU-4

LU-4

Cont.

Property Owner Outreach on Overlay
Designations
Reach out to property owners within the
East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay and
Transit-Oriented Development Overlay
areas to explain the options available to
property owners and developers in this
area, and provide technical assistance, as

appropriate, to facilitate development
within these areas.

2018-
2020/

Ongoing

The property owner outreach effort was

started by Community Development
Department staff in March 2019 as part of
the zoning code update process to educate
property owners about the East Bidwell

Street Mixed-use and light railTOD overlay
areas. Additional outreach efforts
occurred in2020 as part ofthe202L-2029
Housing Element update process.

ln 2022, there was additional East Bidwell
Street Mixed-use Overlay property owner
and Sacramento Regional Transit outreach
conducted as part of the Targeted Mixed-
Use and Multi-Family Housing Study.

CDD

LU-5 River District Master Plan

Prepare a River District Master Plan for
Folsom's riverfront area that is based on
widespread community engagement as

well as coordination with the California
Department of Parks and Recreation.

2018-
2020/
202r-
2025

On April L2,2022the City Council approved
the use of American Recovery Plan Act
(ARPA)funds in the amount of 5362,500 for
project management services and

retention of a planning/environmental
consultant to conduct the River District
Master Plan Planning and Community
Engagement Process. The planning effort
for the River District Master Plan will kick
off in early 2023, with an anticipated two-
vear com pletion timeline,

CDD

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2O22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 150

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No,

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

LU-6 Adopt Green Building
Encourage new residential and non-
residential construction projects to adopt
and incorporate green building features
included in the CALGreen Tier L checklist in
project designs; and, encourage projects to
seek LEED rating and certification that
would meet equivalent CALGreen Tier 1

standards or better. Consider future
amendments to City code to adopt
CALGreen Tier 1- requirements consistent
with State building code. For projects

subject to CEQA seeking to streamline GHG

analysis consistent with the General Plan,

CALGreen Tier 1 compliance would be

required.

Ongoing ln January of 2O2O the City of Folsom

adopted the 2019 California Green Code

(CALGreen) at the Mandatory level. The

City of Folsom continues to encourage new

construction projects to adopt and

incorporate green building features. ln

2018, the Community Development
Department prepared a GHG Reduction

Strategy Consistency Checklist. The

Checklist is required only for projects

subject to CEQA review. The Checklist
streamlines GHG analysis and contains
measures that are required to be

implemented on a project-by-project basis

to ensure that the specified emissions

targets identified in the General Plan are

achieved. lmplementation of these

measures would ensure that new

development is consistent with the
General Plan's assumptions for achieving
the identified GHG reduction targets.

CDD

LU-7 Encourage Zero Net Energy

Encourage Zero Net Energy (ZNE) building
design for new residential and non-
residential construction projects. Consider

future amendments to City code to adopt
ZNE requirements consistent with the State

building code. For projects subject to CEQA

seeking to streamline GHG analysis

consistent with the general plan,

achievement of ZNE would be required
consistent with provisions in the State

building code under California Code of
Regulations, Title24, Part 6.

Ongoing ln January of 2020, the City of Folsom

adopted the 2019 California Energy Code

which incorporated the State of California's

energy efficiency goal to have 100% of new
homes in California achieve ZNE. ln

addition, the 2020 cycle of the California
Energy Code stepped up energy efficiency
of commercial buildings and has targeted
ZNE for commercial construction in 2030.

CDD

Mobility Element
M-1 Transportation Demand Management

Adopt a citywide Transportation Demand

Management (TDM) program that
encourages residents to reduce the
number of trips taken with single-

occupancy vehicles. The program shall be

designed to achieve an overall 15 percent

2021-
2025

No action taken in 2022.
CDD

Public Works
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2O22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 151

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of.lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

vehicle mile traveled (VMT) reduction over
201-4 levels and a 20 percent reduction in
City-employee commute VMT. The City

shall coordinate with employers to develop
a menu of incentives and encourage
participation in TDM programs.

M-2 lntelligent Transportation Systems (lTS)

Master Plan
Adopt and periodically update an ITS

Master Plan to prioritize the deployment of
technology designed to maximize the
efficiency of the City's traffic signal

systems. lmplement the ITS Master Plan

that may include the following:

a

a

a

a

lnstalling closed-circuit television
(CCTV) cameras at designated
traffic signals as defined in the ITS

Master Plan.

Collaborating with neighboring
jurisdictions to develop ITS

standards and specifications;
participate in the Highway 50

Fiberoptic lnterconnection Group
(s0-FrG).

Deploying Dynamic Message Signs

(DMS) at major decision points and

key traveler information locations.

Developing and maintain a Traffic
Operations Center to facilitate the
sharing of traffic information
between City staff, the public, and
neighboring agencies.

Creating an ITS Operations and

Maintenance Plan, including steps

for replacing legacy equipment and

systems

2026-
2040

ln 2022, the Public Works Department
implemented the design phase for the ITS

Master Plan, This will be a multi-year
project.

The Public Works Department continues to
work with the Police Department to allow
dispatch live access to the CCW network,
Folsom PD dispatchers utilized the CCTV

network during calls for service. This

enabled patrol officers to modify their
response to calls and aided in the
apprehension of fleeing criminals, ln

addition, the police department actively
partnered with Traffic Engineering
personnel during special events to
coordinate traffic signals thereby reducing

traffic congestion during events.

Public Works

ts
(Supporting

Depart.)

M-3 Electric Vehicle Charge Stations in Public

Places

Develop and implement a citywide strategy

to install electric vehicle charging stations

2021.-

202s
No action taken in 2022. CDD

Public Works
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\Genera I Plan U pdate-An nua I Report 2022 / lmplementation Ch a rt 03 1323

Page 152

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

in public places where people shop, dine,

recreate, and gather.

M-4 Electric Vehicle Charge Stations at City
Facilities
Explore options to install electric vehicle
quick charge stations at City facilities.

2021-
2025

ln 2O2t the City installed an electric vehicle

charging station at the Waste and Recycling

administrative office in the Corporation
Yard. This charger is also used by the Water
Conservation Division.

ln 2022, the Municipal Landscape Services

and Parks and Recreation Department
Maintenance Shops both installed Class ll

EV chargers at their respective facilities.

Public Works

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

M-5 Pedestrian Master Plan

Review and update its pedestrian master
plan every five years to ensure it remains

current and continues to provide sound
guidance in creating links between
Folsom's destinations.

2021.-

2O2s/
2026-
2040

The Public Works and Parks and Recreation
Departments successfully obtained grant

funding to consolidate the Pedestrian

Master Plan and Bike Master Plan into an

Active Transportation Plan (ATP) in 2020.

The ATP was adopted in June of 2022.

P&R

CDD

(Supporting
Depart.)

M-6 Bikeway Master Plan

Review and update its bikeway master plan

every five years to ensure it remains

current and continues to provide sound
guidance in creating links between
Folsom's destinations

2021-
2O2s/
2026-
2040

The Public Works and Parks and Recreation

Departments successfully obtained grant
funding to consolidate the Pedestrian

Master Plan and Bike Master Plan into an

Active Transportation Plan (ATP) in 2020.

The ATP was adopted in June of 2022

P&R

Public Works
CDD

(Supporting
Depart.)

M-7 Bicycle Safety Education
Continue to implement a bicycle-safety
education program for cyclists and

motorists.

Ongoing ln 2020, the Parks and Recreation

Department developed a video series

(hosted on the City's website)that explains

trail etiquette between cyclists and

pedestrians. ln addition, periodic trail
etiquette articles are included in the City's

e-newsletter and bi-monthly printed

newsletter.

ln 2022, the Police Department obtained
Selective Traffic Enforcement Program
(STEP) grant funding from the Office of
Traffic Safety (OTS) to perform multiple
traffic education and enforcement
operations targeting pedestrian and bicycle

safety. Enforcement efforts were

P&R

Public Works
Police

Department
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2O2Z/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 153

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

conducted around schools within the city
during the months of May and September.
The Police Department used social media
(Facebook) campaigns to promote bicycle

safety to children.

M-8

M-8
Cont.

Bicycle and Pedestrian lmprovements
ldentify regional, State, and Federal

funding sources to support bicycle and

pedestrian facilities and programs to
improve roadways and intersections by

2035. Actions include:

Require bicycle and pedestrian

improvements as conditions of
approval for new development on

roadways a nd intersections serving

the project. lmprovements may

include, but are not limited to on-

street bike lanes, traffic calming

improvements such as marked

crosswalks, raised intersections,
median islands, tight corner radii,

roundabouts, on-street parking,

planter strips with street trees,

chicanes, chokers, any other
improvement that focuses on

reducing traffic speeds and

increasing bicycle and pedestrian

safety. For projects subjectto CEQA

seeking to streomline GHG onalysis

consistent with the General Plon,

incorporation of opplicable bicycle

and pedestrion improvements into
project designs or conditions of
opproval would be required.

Based on the most recent citywide
inventory of roadways and
pedestrian/bicycle facilities,
identify areas of greatest need, to
focus improvements on first. Areas

to prioritize include roadways or

Ongoing The City continues to require as conditions
of approval on new development projects,

bicycle and pedestrian improvements on
roadways and at intersections serving the
projects.

ln 2022, the Traffic Bureau of the Folsom

Police Department met monthly with
community stakeholders as part of the
Traffic Safety Committee. During these
meetings pedestrian and bicycle safety

concerns were addressed. These issues

were primarily associated with new

development areas within the City, but also

targeted existing areas of concern.

ln 2022, three miles of bike trail and a

bridge were installed adjacent to the
Southeast Connector; buffered bike lanes

were installed on lron Point Road; and

approximately 1.5 miles of new Class l trail
segments were accepted in the White Rock

Springs Ranch Neighborhood in the Folsom

Plan Area.

P&R
Public Works

CDD

(Supporting
Depart.)

S:\G e nera I Pla n U pdate-An n ua I Report 2022/ lmplem entation Cha rt 03 1323

Page 154

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

intersections with a lack of safety
features, street where disruption
in sidewalks or bicycle lanes

occurs, areas of highest vehicle
traffic near commercial centers
and transit facilities, where
increased use of
pedestrian/bicycle facilities would
be most used,

M-9 Safe Routes to School
Coordinate with the Folsom Cordova

Unified School District to pursue Safe

Routes to School grants to fund programs

and projects that ensure Folsom children
can walk or bike to school safely.

Ongoing ln 2022, the Police Department met with
school officials prior to and during the
school year identifying areas of concern.
Officers assisted with parking issues

surrounding campuses and performed

education and enforcement efforts to
ensure students were able to walk or bike
to school safely. Officers also partnered
with school bus drivers and performed

enforcement and education campaigns
targeting motorists who illegally passed

school buses when they were actively
loading/u nloading children.

ln 2022, Public Works staff submitted a

Highway Safety lmprovement Program
(HSIP) grant including elements that would
be previously submitted to the Safe Routes

to School Program. The HSIP is now the
grant program that addresses safe routes

to school.

Public Works
P&R

CDD

(Supporting
Depart.)

M-10 Capital Southeast Connector
Coordinate with other members of the
Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers

Authority (JPA) to ensure the connector is

constructed. The City shall continue to
assign a Folsom representative to the JPA

board.

Ongoing City staff continues to take the lead in
managing the construction of Folsom's

segment of the Connector.

ln 2022, the Public Works Department
completed construction of Connector
Segment D3a (Prairie City Road to East

BidwellStreet).

Substantial completion of the Scott Road

Extension Project to tie Scott Road to the
Prairie Citv Road/White Rock Road traffic

Public Works

CDD

(Supporting
Depart.)

S:\Genera I Plan U pdate-An n ua I Report 2022/ lmplementation Ch a rt 03 1 323

Page 155

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

signal along the future corporation yard

was attained.

M-11 Parking Standards
Review and update its parking standards as

necessary to reduce the amount of land

devoted to parking and encourage shared
parking arrangements, particularly in

mixed-use and transit-oriented
developments.

2018-
2020

The City will be updating its parking

requirements as part of the Zoning Code

update which is scheduled to be completed
in Fall of 2023. The City is proposing to
reduce parking requirements along the
East Bidwell Street Mixed-use Corridor and

within the TOD overlav areas.

CDD

M-12 Commercial Truck Routes
Review and update its commercial truck
routes map to ensure it meets the
economic needs of the community and

includes STAA routes.

2018-
2020

ln 2021., the Folsom Police Officers worked
to ensure the STAA routes were followed
by commercial trucks. These enforcement
efforts helped to reduce congestion, abate
noise, and protect city roadways from
disrepair caused by the heavy trucks.

No action in2022.

Public Works

CDD

(Supporting
Depart.)

M-L3 Quarry Truck Management Plan

Maintain and implement a Quarry Truck

Management Plan.

Annual ln 2022, the Public Works Department staff
started communications with Sacramento

County to develop the Quarry Truck
Management Plan and Memorandum of
Understanding with the County.

Public Works

CDD

(Supporting
Depart.)

Economic Element
EP-1 lndustry Cluster Analysis

Coordinate with the Folsom Chamber of
Commerce to conduct an analysis of the
industry clusters that exist in Folsom and

the emerging or potential clusters in
Folsom,

20t8-
2020

No action taken in 2022 City
Manager

CDD

(Supporting
Depart.)

EP-2 Customer Service Survey
Develop and implement a customer service

survey to better understand the customer
service relationship between the City and

business community,

2018-
2020

ln 2022, the City conducted the "Folsom

Listens" community survey to determine
priorities for essential city services.

City
Manager

EP-3 Folsom Accelerated Small Tenant
lmprovement Review (FASTIR)

Continue to maintain and implement a

program to help tenants obtain building
permits in a timely manner, with a goal of

2018-
2020

The FASTIR program has been active since

July 2010. ln 2020, the pandemic reduced

the demand for opening new tenant
spaces resulting in a sharp decrease in the
use of the FASTIR program. ln addition,
the process changed with the launch of

CDD

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2122/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 156

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

providing building permits within one to
two days.

ePermit Center and ProjectDox which
limited the face-to-face meetings,

Currently the program is operating
electronically and is experiencing a
moderate level of use.

EP-4 lnventory of Developable Sites
Develop and maintain an inventory of
developable sites to encourage the
development of key new industries.

Ongoing The Community Development Department
has developed a citywide database of
vacant and underutilized land and broken it
into separate categories for commercial
and residential land.

CDD

ts
(Supporting

Depart.)

EP-5 Folsom Tourism Bureau
Coordinate with the Folsom Tourism

Bureau on strategies to attract visitors to
Folsom. The City shall invite
representatives from the Folsom Tourism
Bureau to regularly brief the Folsom City

Council on programs and strategies.

Ongoing The City coordinates regularly with the
Folsom Tourism Bureau, the Folsom

Historic District Association, and the
History District Marketing Coalition on
pa rtnership opportu nities to attract
visitors to Folsom. lnitiatives since
2020/2021. included a shop/support local

campaign, joint social media tourism
ma rketing cam paigns, new "visitors"
section of the City of Folsom website, and

an economic development website.

City
Manager

CDD

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

Natural and Cultural Element

L

NCR- Urban Forest Plan

Develop and maintain an Urban Forest

Plan.

202t-
2025

No action taken in 2022
CDD

NCR-

2

Maintain GHG Emissions lnventory
Review and update the City's GHG

emissions inventory for municipal and

communitywide GHG emissions every five

Vears at a minimum.

2021.-

2O2s/
2026-
2040

No action taken in 2022

CDD

NCR.

3

Creek Week
Sponsor a citywide volunteer creek clean-

up daV during "Creek Week."

Annual Creek Week organized activities and clean-

up events were again cancelled in 2022 as

a result of Covid-19.

As an alternative, a creek maintenance
project was included as part of lhe 2022
Community Service Day projects.
Additionally, in 2022 the Public Works
Department provided supplies and support
to residents that volunteered to maintain
various creeks during the year.

Parks and
Rec

Public Works

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2O22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 157

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of I mplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

NCR-

4
Cultural Resources lnventory
Maintain and implement a cultural
resource inventory to identify, evaluate,
register, and protect Folsom's cultural
resou rces.

Ongoing The City continues to maintain and
implement a cultural resource inventory to
protect Folsom's cultural resources.

ln 2022, the Historic District Commission

approved the Folsom State Prison for
listing on the City of Folsom Cultural
Resource lnventory.

ln addition, the City of Folsom recently
accepted a declaration of covenants and
restrictions in the Folsom Plan Area White
Rock Springs Ranch neighborhood that
encompasses the white rocks of white rock

road as well as interpretive signage around
the homestead that previously occupied
that area,

CDD

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

NCR-

5

Historic Preservation Master Plan

Maintain and implement the Historic
Preservation Master Plan.

Ongoing The City continues to maintain and

implement the Historic Preservation
Master Plan.

Due to existing and future maintenance
needs, a Historic Building assessment was

completed for the city-owned Depot
Buildine in the Historic District.

CDD

NCR-

6

Lighting Design Standards
Establish consistent lighting standards for
outdoor lighting of city development to
reduce high-intensity nighttime lighting

and glare. These standards shall be

consistent with the Folsom Plan Area

Specific Plan Community Design

Guidelines. Additional standards shall be

considered, including the use of automatic
shutoffs or motion sensors for lighting
features to further reduce excess nighttime

light.

To reduce impacts associated with light and

glare, the City will require the following
lighting standards:

2021.-

2025
The Parks and Recreation Department has

developed outdoor sports field lighting
system standards that require high quality
on-field performance, environmental
sensitivity to the surrounding area, energy

efficiency, spill and glare control and field
management solutions including remote
monitoring and management of sports
field lighting. ln addition, the Parks and
Recreation Department has developed
lighting standards for park facilities,
including parking-lot lighting. All lighting
systems are required to be LED, capable of
going into energy conservation mode
(reduced power use) and include spill and
glare control.

CDD

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2l22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 158

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 3"1 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

NCR-

6

Cont,

. Shield or screen lighting fixtures to
direct the light downward and

prevent light spill on adjacent
properties.

o Place and shield or screen flood

and area lighting needed for
construction activities and/or
security so as not to disturb

adjacent residential areas and

passing motorists.

o For public street, building, parking,

and landscape lighting in

residential neighborhoods,
prohibit the use of light fixtures

that are of unusually high intensity

or brightness (e.9., harsh mercury

vapor, low-pressure sodium, or
fluorescent bulbs) or that blink or

flash. For public parks and sports

facilities, the City will use the best

light and glare control technology
feasible, along with sensitive site

design.

Use appropriate building materials (such as

low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or
finish, neutral, earth-toned colored paint,

and roofing materials), shielded or
screened lighting, and appropriate signage

in the office/commercial areas to prevent

light and glare from adversely affecting
motorists on nearby roadways.

NCR-

7

Management of lnadvertently Discovered

Cultural Resources

Develop a program for the management of
inadvertently discovered cultural

resources. The program will consist ol but

will not necessarily be limited to the
following standards:

20L8-
2020

The Community Development Department
requires (as a condition of approval for
tentative maps) that projects conduct
construction worker awareness training,
conduct on-site monitoring if required,
stop work if cultural resources are

discovered, assess the significance of the
find, and perform treatment or avoidance

as required.

CDD

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2}22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 159

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

NCR-

7

Cont.

The City will require, through permit or

tentative map conditions or contractual

obligations, that in the event of any

inadvertent discovery of archaeological

resources, all such finds will be subject to
PRC 21083.2 and CEQA Guidelines L5064.5.

Procedures for inadvertent discovery are

listed below.

ln the event ofthe inadvertent discovery of
previously unknown archaeological sites

during excavation or construction, all

construction affecting the site shall cease

and the contractor shall contact the City.

o All work within 100 feet of the find

will be halted until a professional

archaeologist can evaluate the
significance of the find in

accordance with NRHP and CRHR

crite ria.

lf any find is determined to be significant by

the archaeologist, representatives of the
City will meet with the archaeologist to
determine the appropriate course of
action. lf necessary, a Treat,ment Plan will
be prepared by an archeologist, outlining
recovery of the resource, analysis, and

reporting of the find. The Treatment Plan

will be submitted to the City for review and

approval prior to resuming construction.

No cultural resources were inadvertently
discovered through any City construction
project or maintenance activities in 2022.

NCR-

8
Management of Paleontological
Resources
Develop a program for the management of
paleontological resources. The program

will consist ol but will not necessarily be

limited to, the following standards and

requirements: Prior to approval of a

discretionary project, it shall be

determined through literature review and
records research, the paleontological

sensitivitv of the geologic units affected by

20L8-
2020

The Commu nity Development Department
requires (as a condition of approval for
tentative maps) that projects conduct
construction worker awareness training,
stop work if paleontological resources are

discovered, assess the significance of the
find, and prepare and implement a

recovery plan as required.

CDD

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\G enera I Pla n U pdate-An nua I Report 2022/ lmplementatio n Cha rt 03 1 323

Page 160

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

the project. lf paleontological resources

may be present, conditions will be added to
the project approval to monitor for and

salvage paleontological resources during
grou nd-distu rbing activities.

No paleontological resources were
discovered through any City construction
projects or maintenance activities in 2022.

Public Facilities and Services Element
PFS-1 Capital lmprovement Plan

Update the Capital lmprovement Plan (ClP)

biannually to ensure the implementation
and adequacy of the plan.

20L8-
2020/
2021-
2O2s/
2026-
2040

The City's Capital lmprovement Plan was

updated in conjunction with the annual FY

2022-23 Budgeting process.

ln 2022, the Fire Department completed
design concepts for Fire Station 34 in the
Folsom Plan Area. The new 13,932-square-
foot fire station has been designed to be

consistent with Fire Station 39 in Empire

Ranch. The construction phase will
commence in Spring of 2023 with an

anticipated completion late December of
2023.

ln addition, the Police Department
continued efforts in 2022 for a 12,000-

square-foot addition to the Police

Department facility. When funded, this
addition will house a state-of-the-art
communications center and fulfill future
needs of the department. Additionally, PD

researched other options including utilizing
vacant city buildings to create police

substations allowing for improved
response times and higher visibility for PD

staff.

Public Works
Finance
P&R
EWR

(Arl

Departments
are

supporting)

PFS-2 Arts and Culture Master Plan

Review and update an Arts and Culture
Master Plan every five years. As part of the
Plan, prepare guidelines for plaques, signs,

and other displays in public spaces to
increase awareness of such cultural and

historic sites and events.

20L8-
2020/
202L-

2O2s/
2026-
2040

The Arts and Culture Master Plan was

updated and approved on March 8, 2018.
The master plan determines the vision,

value, and goals in providing art and
cultural services to the city. The master
plan is on a schedule to update every 10

years with the next update to occur priorto
2028.

P&R

CDD
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2l22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 161

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

PFS-3 Public Art Guidelines
Review and update every five years

guidelines regarding permanent artwork in

public spaces.

2018-
2020/
2021.-

2O2s/
2026-
2040

The Parks and Recreation Department
currently has public art guidelines for all
proposed permanent artwork in public

spaces in the city. These guidelines were
reviewed and updated in 2018. The 2018
guidelines were reviewed and approved
with no changes by the Folsom Arts and

Cultural Commission on September 8,

2022.

P&R

CDD
(Supporting

Depart.)

PFS-4 Water Master Plan

Continue to review and update the City's

Water Master Plan at least every five years

consistent with the land use patterns and

densities/intensities provided for in the
General Plan.

2021-
2O2s/
2026-
2040

The Water Master Plan was updated in

2OL7 and approved by City Council on

November 'J.L, 2OI7 by Resolution No.

10028. The next update will occur
sometime in 2023.

EWR

Public Works
(Supporting

Depart.)

PFS-5 Urban Water Management Plan

Review and update the Urban Water
Management Plan at least every five years,

as required by the Urban Water
Management Planning Act.

202L-
2O2s/
2026-
2040

The Urban Water Management Plan

(UWMP) was updated in 2021, and

approved by City Council on June 8,2O2L
by Resolution No. 1-0643. The next update
is currently in process and scheduled to be

completed by July 'J,,2026.

EWR

Public Works
P&R

(Supporting
Depart.)

PFS-6

PFS-5

Cont.

Water Management Programs

Maintain its water management programs,

including its commercialwater audits, large

landscape irrigation audits, rebates, and

education.

Ongoing Audits
ln 2022, the Water Management Division

completed 256 Audits (Water Wise

Housecalls).

Rebates and Education
ln 2022, the Water Management Division

conducted 3435 water waste interventions
with 306 formal water waste citations;
conducted 10 community outreach events,

reaching about 1218 people; and staff
attended 34 educational events. ln

addition, rebates were issued for 190 high

efficiency toilets, 105 turf replacements,

and 49 irrigation efficiency upgrades. Also,

in 2022, direct purchase programs

accounted for 2!0 Rachio Wi-Fi lrrigation
controllers and 403 Flume flow measuring

devices installed.

EWR

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2022/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 162

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

PFS-7 Sanitary Sewer Management Plan

Review and update Sanitary Sewer

Management Plan at least every two years

as required by State Water Resources

Control Board's General Waste Discharge

Requirement Order.

20L8-
2O2O/

2021.-

2O2s/
2026-
2040

The Sanitary Sewer Management Plan was

updated on July 23,2Ot9 by Resolution No.

tO3I2. The next update will occur
sometime in2024.

Public Works

PFS.8 Maintenance Permits
Obtain State and Federal permits for
maintaining all floodways and detention
basins and keep these facilities free of flood
obstructions.

Ongoing The City has an active City's Routine
Maintenance Agreement (1600-2014-

0197-R2) with California Department of
Fish and Wildlife for the express purpose

of conducting routine maintenance
activities within the City of Folsom and its
natural watercourses and tributaries,
including detention basins,

ln 2022, seven projects were undertaken
by the City utilizing the City's Routine
Maintenance Agreement. The projects
included using professiona I grazing

services for invasive plant control in open
spaces including some detention basins

and clearing beaver dams and other
obstructions from sections of Humbug

Creek, Willow Creek, and their associated
tributaries.

Public Works

PFS-9 Fire Service Delivery Plan

Review and update every three years the
Fire Service Delivery Plan to define the
future fire protection service needs of the
city.

Ongoing The Fire Service Delivery Plan (now known
as the "Fire Department Strategic Plan")
was completed in 2O2O and is posted on
the City's website.

Fire

Department

PFS-

10

City Energy Use Procedures

Develop energy use/plug load procedures

for City facilities and engage employees in

the implementation process.

Ongoing ln 2020, the city hired a new Facilities

Supervisor and began to explore an HVAC

Control System for City Hall and

implementing appropriate load standards
to be more efficient.

P&R

PFS-

Ll
Evaluate Automating Energy Use

Systematically evaluate effectiveness of
existing systems to automate energy use

and implement energy conservation
measures such as automatic HVAC system

shutdowns, additional room lighting

Ongoing |n2021-the City received 5550,000 in ARPA

funding to replace and modernize the
HVAC system at City Hall which will allow
for automating the energy use with
improved software control systems.

P&R

S:\G enera I Plan U pdate-An n ua I Repo rt 2022/ lmplementation Chart 03 1 323

Page 163

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

sensors, automatic computer shutdowns,
or any other identified energy reduction
opportunities.

Facilities maintenance staff is currently
working with a consultant on design and

engineering for a replacement HVAC and

boiler system for City Hall.

PFS-

t2
Evaluate Energy Use

Evaluate facilities energy use to identify key

areas where energy upgrades are needed

and consider lighting retrofits, building
weatherization, and mechanical/HVAC

upgrades

Ongoing The City plans to replace and update the
HVAC at City Hall. Once the unit is
replaced and modernized, the energy use

at City Hall will be re-evaluated to show

the improvements that were achieved.

Facilities maintenance staff is currently
working with a consultant on design and

engineering for a replacement HVAC and

boiler system for City Hall,

P&R

PFS-

13

Streetlight Retrofit
Continue to retrofit streetlights with light-
emitting diode (LED) fixtures for energy

efficiency and reduced maintenance

Ongoing ln2022, the Municipal Landscape Services

Division retrofitted approximately 150

streetlights from 100W HPS to 66W LED in

various landscape and lighting districts. ln

addition, the Public Works Department
converted 90 streetlights to LED along
major corridors and city-maintained
neighborhoods.

Public Works
P&R

PFS-

t4
PFS-14. Energy Efficient Fleet

Continue purchasing alternative
fue/technology vehicles when replacing

vehicles in existing fleet. Use high-
performance renewable diesel in 100
percent of existing (201.4) and future diesel

on-road vehicles and convert entire on-
road gasoline vehicles to electric by 2035

Ongoing ln 2021, the Waste and Recycling Division

received the City's first all-electric vehicle,

and the Water Conservation Division

received a hybrid. The Fleet Division is

continuing to transition the light duty fleet
to energy efficient alternatives. Four

additional hybrid orders and seven all

electric orders, including six patrol vehicles,

were completed in 202L. Delivery of all

seven of these were expected within 2022

but delayed due to supply chain issues.

ln addition, the Parks and Recreation
Departments placed an order for four EV

replacement vehicles in 2022. Again,

supply chain issues have delayed receipt
ofthese EVs.

Public Works

P&R
CDD

EWR

(Supporting
Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2}22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 164

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

PFS-

15

Reduce VMT in City Operations
Take actions to reduce vehicle miles

traveled related to city operations.

Potential actions may include:

r lnstall timer locks on all City owned
restroom facilities - reducing the
vehicle travel needed to manually
lock/u n lock these facilities.

r Revise City Design Review process

so employees only need to Post a

notice at the site once.

Allow online credit card payments for
certain CDD Permits - reducing applicant
need to drive to City Hall.

Ongoing The City of Folsom continues to take
actions to reduce VMT related to city
operations.

ln 2022, the Community Development
Department launched its new electronic
permitting and plan review system
(ComDev). This system in conjunction with
ProjectDox (plan review system launched

in 2O2O) enables applicants to submit
applications and plans electronically to the
City for review instead of requiring them to
print them out and deliver them to City
Hall. These measures not only reduce VMT,

but also lessen the cost and time involved

in the development review process.

ln addition, Public Works Traffic Signal

Maintenance continues to expand its
remote monitoring system to allow for
remote access to traffic signals in the event
of calls for service. This allows Traffic Signal

Technicians remote access to traffic signals

from anywhere in the City so they do not
have to drive to the specific location for
certain maintenance calls.

Public Works

CDD
P&R

(Supporting
Depart.)

PFS-

15
PACE Program
Continue to assist in implementing the
Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE)

programs to facilitate energy conservation
financing in Folsom.

2018-
2020

The City of Folsom continues to assist in
implementing Property Assessed Clean

Energy (PACE) programs to facilitate
energy conservation financing in Folsom.

There are currently several PACE programs

available to Folsom homeowners and

businesses.

CDD

PFS-

L7

Partnerships for Energy Conservation
Work with regional partners and local

energy utilities (e.g., Sacramento Municipal
Utility District [SMUD] and Pacific Gas &
Electric Company tPG&El) to promote,

develop, maintain, and implement energy

conservation and efficiency programs.

These could include residential and

commercial programs that provide rebates

Ongoing The City of Folsom continues to work with
regional partners and local energy utilities
to promote, develop, and implement
energy conservation and efficiency
programs.

Public Works
CDD

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\Ge nera I Pla n U pdate-An nua I Report 2022/ lmplementation Ch a rt 03 1323

Page 165

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January'l - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Actlon
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

and financing for energy efficiency
upgrades to existing homes and

commercial buildings, SMUD's Greenergy

and carbon off-set program, photovoltaic

system retrofits, and other applicable
programs.

PFS-

18

Neighborhood Cleanup Program
Collect bulky waste (e.g., lumber, furniture,
tires) from Folsom residents to maintain a

clean, attractive city.

Ongoing The City of Folsom continues to provide
bulky waste collection to Folsom residents.

ln 2022, the Waste and Recycling Division

completed over 9,944 bulky waste pickups

and collected 1,680 tons of waste, The

Division also began separating the organic
waste from this program for recycling.

Public Works

PFS-

19

Recycling Containers
Expand the number of recycling containers
at City facilities and properties to capture
more recyclables that are currently going

to the landfill.

20L8-
2020

ln early 2022 the Waste and Recycling
Division completed the distribution of
organics containers to all City facilities.

Public Works

PFS-

20
Reduce Waste in City Facilities
Reduce waste diverted to the landfill by

expanding the use of automatic hand

dryers in bathrooms, as well as setting
printer defaults to double-sided printing.

2018-
2020

ln 2022, the City continued the waste

reduction practices in accordance with the
procurement policy revised in 2021-. ln

2020, the CDD Department implemented
electronic plan check through the use of
ProjectDox, which reduces the amount
paper printed and diverted to landfills. ln

March of 2022, the City launched the new

ComDev permitting system, which allows
for the submittal, payment, and issuance of
building permits completely paperless.

ln 2022, the Parks and Recreation

Department adopted a new standard that
requires all new park facilities to include

recycling facilities in addition to solid waste

facilities.

Public Works

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

PFS-

27
M.O.W.E.R. Program
Provide education on composting and
grass cycling to the public through the
Minimizing Organic Waste with Education

and Recyclinc (M.O.W.E,R.) program.

Ongoing The Waste and Recycling Division hosted

two public workshops in 2022 to educate
residents about backyard composting and

grass cycling.

Public Works

PFS-

22
Renewable Energy in City-Operated
Buildings

Ongoing ln 2022, the Fire Department completed
design concepts for Fire Station 34 in the

P&R

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2o22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 166

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

Strive to supplement 25 percent of City-

owned building energy demand through
on-site or off-site renewable energy

sources. On-site sources may include solar
panels or other types of renewable energy

systems on rooftops or parking areas, and

on-site energy storage. Off-site sources

could include combinations of equivalent
renewable energy generation systems,
power purchase agreements, or other off-
site programs offered by energy utilities
(e.g., SMUD's Greenergy or SolarShares
programs).

Folsom Plan Area. The new L3,932-square-
foot fire station has been designed to be

solar panel ready for future rooftop solar
panel installation.

Public Works
(Supporting

Depart)

PFS-

23
High-Efficiency or Alternatively-Powered
Water Heater Replacement Program
Provide educational material and

information on the City's website, as well
as through the permit and building
department, on the various high-efficiency
and alternatively-powered water heat

replacement options available to current
homeowners considering water heater
replacement; develop appropriate
financial incentives, working with energy

utilities or other partners; and, streamline
the permitting process. Replacement water
heaters could include high-efficiency
natural gas (i.e., tankless), or other
alternatively-powered water heating
systems that reduce or eliminate natural
gas usage such as solar water heating
systems, tankless or storage electric water
heaters, and electric heat pump systems.

Ongoing The City hosts relevant links on the city
website directing people to the SMUD
program for water heater rebates for
efficient replacement units.

CDD

Public Works
(Supporting

Depart.)

PFS-

24
Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy
Retrofits and Programs

Strive to increase energy efficiency and

renewable energy use in existing buildings

through participation in available

programs. Actions include:

. Establish a dedicated City program

with a clear intent to provide

Ongoing The City continues to limit the Building
Permit fee for PV solar retrofit projects as

determined by State legislation, ln

addition, the City created and
maintains streamlined plan review and
processing service for Residential Electric
Vehicles and Residential Solar Photovoltaic
and ESS systems. The streamlined service
includes step-bv-step guides, checklists

CDD

Public Works
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2l22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 167

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

a

support and promote available

green building and energy retrofit
programs for existing buildings.

lncentivize solar installation on all

existing buildings that undergo

major remodels or renovations and

provide permit streamlining for
solar retrofit projects.

r Provide rebates or incentives to
existing SM UD customers for
enrolling in the existing Greenergy

program.

. Provide education to property

owners on low-interest financing

and/or assist property owners in

purchasing solar photovoltaics

through low-interest loans or
property tax assessments.

Continue to work with SMUD and other
private sector funding sources to increase

solar leases or power purchase agreements
(PPAs).

and key information required to ensure

complete submittals are provided to
expedite the intake, plan review and

processing process. Plan review timelines
for both projects are reduced to up to 4
days and fees are in alignment with State

legislation.

For new residential projects, the City

informs and educates applicants on cost

saving programs such as the SMUD

SolarShares Program.

PFS-

25
Zero Net Energy Development
Adopt an ordinance to require ZNE for all

new residential construction by 2O2O and

commercial construction by 2030, in

coordination with State actions to phase in

ZNE requirements through future triennial
building code updates.

2018-
2O2O/

2026-
2040

ln January of 2020, the City of Folsom

adopted the 2019 California Energy Code

which has incorporated the State of
California's energy efficiency goal to have

LOO% of new homes in California achieve

ZNE. ln addition, this cycle of the California

Energy Code stepped up energy efficiency
of commercial buildings and has targeted
ZNE for commercial construction in 2030.

CDD

PFS-

26
Renewable Diesel

Revise the City of Folsom's Standard

Construction Specifications to require that
all construction contractors use high-

performance renewable diesel for both
private and City construction. Phase in
targets such that high-performance

renewable diesel would comprise 50

2026-
2040

ln 2020, the City revised Folsom's Standard

Construction Specifications to require all

construction contractors to use high-
performance renewable diesel for both
private and City construction. As such,

high-performance renewable diesel must
comprise 50 percent of construction
equipment diesel usage for projects

CDD

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2o22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 168

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

percent of construction equipment diesel

usage for projects covered under the
specifications through 2030, and 100

percent of construction equipment diesel

usage in projects covered under the
specifications by 2035.

For projects subject to CEQA seeking to
streamline GHG onalysis consistent with
the General Plon, the use of high-
performance renewoble diesel would be

required consistent with the obove torgets.

covered under the specifications through
2030.

PFS-

27
Reduce Water Consumption in New
Development
Encourage water efficiency measures for
new residential construction to reduce

indoor and outdoor water use. Actions
include promote the use of higher

efficiency measures, including: use of low-
water irrigation systems, and installation of
water-efficient appliances and plumbing

fixtures. Measures and targets can be

borrowed from the latest version of the
Guide to the California Green Building

Standards Code (lnternational Code

Council)

For projects subject to CEQA seeking to
streomline GHG onalysis consistent with
the generol plon, compliance with
CALGreen Tier 1 Woter Efficiency and
Conservotion meosures would be required.

Ongoing The Com mu nity Development Department
requires (as a condition of approval)that all

new residential developments install
water-efficient fixtures and appliances and
that landscape plans comply and
implement water efficient requirements as

adopted by the State of California
(Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model Water
Efficient Landscape Ordinance).

CDD

Parks and Recreation Element
PR-1 Parks and Rec Master Plan

Review and update every five years the
Parks and Recreation Master Plan to carry
out the goals of the General Plan and

ensure that the parkland resources and

recreation programs are sufficient to
maintain Folsom's high quality of life.

2021.-

2O2s/
2026-
2040

The Parks and Recreation Master Plan is

proposed to be updated in 2023-24. The

updated master plan will reevaluate the
status of park development, the estimated
cost of developing remaining parks, and
recommendations on the prioritization of
undeveloped parks.

P&R

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 212Z/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 169

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

PR-2 Alternative Funding Sources
Examine the feasibility of establishing
alternative sources of funding for the
acquisition, development, and renovation
of parklands and financing for expanded
recreation programs.

202r-
2025

ln 2019, the Parks and Recreation
Department identified a significant funding
gap for future park development and

renovation. The Parks and Rec Master Plan

Update (planned for completion in 2023-

24) will inform future funding priorities for
the completion of unfinished parks and
development of new parks.

P&R

PR-3 Governmental Coordination
Coordinate with County, State, Federal,

and regional agencies to achieve the goals

and policies of the Parks and Recreation
Element, including improved public access

to the riverfront area for recreation.

Ongoing ln 2022, The Community Development
Department acquired a consultant to
steward the river district master plan.

P&R

PR-4 Recreation Activity G uide
Maintain and implement an activity guide

for recreation programs, leagues, and

special events at a minimum of two times
per year.

Ongoing ln2O22, the Parks and Recreation
Department published 4 editions
(summer camps, fall, winter/spring) of the
Recreation Activity Guide.

P&R

Safety and Noise Element
sN-1 Adopt a Noise Reduction Program

Adopt a citywide noise reduction program

to reduce traffic noise levels along

roadways where significant increases in
traffic noise levels are expected to occur.

The program shall include, but shall not be

limited to, the following specific elements
for noise abatement consideration where
reasonable and feasible:

r Noise barrier retrofits;

. Truck usage restrictions;

o Reduction of speed limits;

r Use of quieter paving materials;

r Building fagade sound insulation;

o Traffic calming;

r Additional enforcement of speed

limits and exhaust noise laws; and

Signaltiming.

202r-
2025

ln 2020, the Public Works Department
completed a citywide update of posted

speed limits and continued to adjust signal
timing based on changes in traffic
conditions.

The Folsom Police Department continues
to educate drivers on and enforce traffic
laws within the City. These laws include
driving off posted truck routes, speed
limits, and modified exhaust. The traffic
bu reau performed selected enforcement
of motorcycle safety/motorcycle exhaust
violations during the months of May and
August of 2022. Violators cited for vehicle
codes regarding modified exhaust systems
are sent to the Bureau of Automotive
Repair (BAR) for inspection and
compliance under the vehicle code.

CDD

Public Works
Police

Department
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2}22/lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 170

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

sN-2 Emergency Operations Plan

Review and update every five years the
emergency operations plan, which
addresses medical care, escape routes,

mutual aid agreements, temporary housing

and communications.

2018-
2020/
2021-
2025

The Fire Department completed the
Emergency Operations Plan in 2020 and it
is posted on the City's website.
Both the Police and Fire Departments
referred to portions of this plan during the
COVID-19 pandemic and it was utilized for
obtaining and distributing personal
protective equipment to our residents.

Police Dept
Fire Dept

(Ail

Departments
are

Supporting)

sN-3 Community Emergency Response Team

Support the Community Emergency

Response Team (CERT) program to prepare

residents in the event of a disaster,

Ongoing The Fire Department trains community
members every year as part of the CERT

team. The Folsom CERT team activates

multiple times every year to support the
Fire Department and the City of Folsom on

multiple emergency and non-emergency
events, ln 2022 there were approximately
40 active CERT team members.

Police Dept
Fire Dept

sN-4 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan

Review and update every five years the on-
going hazard assessment as part of the
Sacramento County Multi-Hazard
Mitigation Plan.

Ongoing The City participated with Sacramento

County and other local jurisdictions to
update the Sacramento County Multi-
Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

(LHMP). The updated plan was completed
in September 2O2L and approved pending

adoption by FEMA in December 2021,. The
updated LHMP was adopted by City Council
in February 2022.

Public Works

sN-5 Community Wildfire Preparedness Plan

Review and update every five years the
Community Wildfire Preparedness Plan

(CWPP) to help reduce the risk of
catastrophic wildfires in the community.

Ongoing The Fire Department updated the
Community Wildfire Protection Plan and

incorporated it into the City Emergency

Operations Plan as an Appendix. The

review process is scheduled for2O23.

Members of the Police Department's
Neighborhood Services Bureau were
deployed to educate and enforce city
ordinances prohibiting camping in open

spaces that were deemed as high danger

areas. Due to these campaigns, the
number of wildfires seen within the City

was drastically reduced. From 2021' to
2022, there was about an 85% drop in

vegetation fire responses.

Fire Dept

P&R
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\Ge nera I Pla n U pdate-An n ua I Report 2022/ lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 171

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

ln addition, the Parks and Recreation
Department continues implementation of
the Defensible Space and Vegetation
Management Plan to address ladder fuel
and open space management by focusing
on the use of sustainable sources such as

goats/sheep for weed abatement and

staggered work zones to spread out the
impact of traditional means of ladder fuel
work. The Plan is an on-going collaboration
with City Fire Department and Cal Fire.

On June 23,2022, the received a SZZS,000
grant from FEMA (with the City matching

593,000) for reduction of ladder fuels and
creation of defensible space.

sN-5 Hazardous Materials
Maintain a hazardous materials program

that ensures residents and businesses

dispose of hazardous materials properly.

The program should allow residents and

businesses to schedule pick up of their
hazardous materials by the City and

educate residents on what the City

considers haza rdous waste.

Ongoing The City of Folsom continues to provide

education and collection of household

hazardous materials to Folsom residents

and businesses. The Waste and Recycling

Division completes approximately 4,000
appointments each yea r.

Public Works

sN-7 Reduce Aircraft Noise

Continue to collaborate with Sacramento

County to reduce noise levels from air
traffic in Folsom.

Ongoing The City of Folsom continues to collaborate
with Sacramento County to reduce noise

levels from air traffic in Folsom.

CDD

sN-8 Review Evacuation Plan and Routes

Analyze the capacity, safety, and viability of
the City's evacuation routes under a

range of emergency scenarios annually, as

part of the annual review of the City's

Emergency Operations Plan

Annual The Folsom Police and Fire Departments
continually review and update evacuation
routes within the City in order to mitigate
potential bottlenecks should an emergency
evacuation become necessary.

CDD

Fire Dept
Police Dept

Public Works
(Supporting

Depart)

SN-9 Update Stormwater and Flood Standards
Review and update, as needed, the City's

Design and Procedures Manuals and

lmprovement Standards to address the
increased intensity, duration, and

2021.-

2025
No action taken in 2022. CDD

Public Works
(Supporting

Depart.)

S:\General Plan Update-Annual Report 2O22/ lmplementation Chart 031323

Page 172

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
oepi./support

Dept.

frequency
of future flood events.

sN-
10

Conduct Outreach on Wildfire Smoke

Protection
Conduct outreach to educate all residents
including vulnerable populations (e.9.,

youth and seniors) with strategies to
protect themselves and their homes from
the increased impacts from wildfire smoke.

2026-
2040

The Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District published its Wildfire
Smoke Air Pollution Emergency Plan for
Sacramento in September 2022. Staff
provides information, shelter locations,

and personal protective equipment to
affected community members when
needed.

Fire Dept
Police Dept

sN-
TL

Upgrade Existing Heat Sensitive
lnfrastructure
Upgrade existing heat-sensitive
infrastructure (e.9., roadways, bridges) in

the city to withstand the future intensity
and frequency of extreme heat events

2026-
2040

New Program. No action taken in 2022.

Public Works
EWR

sN-
L2

Update Design Standards
Review and update, as needed, relevant
climate-related design standards (e.9.,

heating and cooling) and building code

requirements to ensure development can

withstand future extreme heat events

202L-
2025

New Program. No action taken in 2022

CDD

Public Works

sN-
13

Coordinate with Regional Agencies

Coordinate with regional service providers

including Sacramento Municipal Utility
District and Sacramento Regional Transit
District to implement infrastructure
updates for systems outside the City's
jurisdiction to prepare for climate change

impacts (e.g., extreme heat, larger storm
events)

2026-
2040

New Program. No action taken in 2022

Public Works

sN-
t4

lmplement a Cool City Strategy
Develop and implement a Cool City

Strategy, in coordination with the
Sacra mento Metropolitan Air Qua lity
Management District, to reduce the
impacts of the Urban Heat lsland effect
The strategy shall include various
measu res including increasing

the urban tree canopy and use of cool
roofs and cool pavements as well as

increasing green space in the city

2021-
2025

New Program. No action taken in 2022.

CDD

Public Works

P&R
(Supporting

Depart)

S:\Genera I Pla n U pdate-An n ua I Report 2022/ lmplementation Ch a rt 03 1323

Page 173

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



General Plan lmplementation; January 1 - December 31 ,2022
Appendix A

Action
No.

lmplementation Action Timeframe Status of lmplementation Responsible
Dept./Support

Dept.

sN-
15

Conduct Educational Outreach on Extreme
Heat Events
lmplement an education and outreach
program to relevant businesses and
institutions such as residential care

facilities and schools to help protect
vulnerable populations from the increasing

intensity of extreme heat events

Ongoing ln 2O22, Folsom Police and Fire personnel
assisted with education and outreach
programs designed to protect community
members during heat related events.

Outreach was accomplished via social

media accounts (including Facebook, Nixle,

and lnstagram) and through word of mouth
primarily through our Community Crime

Suppression Team. Police and Fire

personnel also assisted in staffing
Community Cooling Centers that were set
up in response to high heat wave risk

issued by the National Weather Service.

During 2022, the city opened the Cooling

Center five times with an average of 4-8

residents visiting.

Fire Dept
Police Dept

sN-
15

Promote Cost Benefits of Reducing

Electricity Use

Work with the Sacramento Municipal
Utility District (SMUD)to promote and help
educate residents about SMUD's time-of-
day energy rates and the cost benefits of
reducing electricity use during peak

demand periods

2021-
2025

New Program. No Action taken in 2022.

CDD

S:\G e nera I Pla n U pdate-An nua I Report 2O22 / lmplementatio n Cha rt 031323

Page 174

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



APPENDIX B

HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT

(EXHIBITS)

Page 175

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



EXHIBIT 1

HOUSING ELEMENT IMPLEMENTATION TABLE

Page 176

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element lmplementation

(CCR Title 25 56202)

Jurisdiction Folsom

Reporting Year January l, 2022 through December 31,2022

Table D

Program lmplementation Status pursuant to GC Section 65583

Housing Programs Progres3 Report
Describe progress of all programs including local efforts to remove govemmental constraints to the maintenance, improvement, and development of housing as identified in the

housing element.

H-1 Adequate Sites
Monitoring

The City shall annually update the vacant and underutilized
sites inventory and make the updated inventory available
on the City website. The City shall maintain adequate sites
to accommodate 2,226 very low-income units, 1,341 low-

income units, and 829 moderate-income units within the
planning period. The City shall make findings related to the
potential impact on the City's ability to meet its share of the
regional housing need when approving applications to
rezone residentially designated properties or develop a

residential site with fewer units or at a higher income than
what is assumed for the site in the Housing Element sites
inventory, consistent with "no-net-loss" zoning
requirements in Government Code Section 65863.

Annually

Annually - The City continues to update the residential
vacant land inventory. The Vacant Land lnventory was
updated in 202'l as part of the Housing Element update and
is cunently available on the City's website. For each project
proposal to rezone residentially designated properties or
develop a residential site with fewer units or at a higher
income than what is assumed for the site in the Housing
Element sites inventory, the City includes findings related to
the potential impact on the City's ability to meet its share of
the regional housing need, consistent with "no-net-loss"
zoning requirements.

lncrease
maximum
allowable

densities by
2022: reach

out to
property

owners at
least

annually

UndeMay - |n2021, the City received three separate
Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP)
grants from Sacramento Area Council of Governments
(SACOG). The three REAP grant projects awarded will
advance the City's Housing Element goal of exploring
increased densities and updated development standards for
the City's Transit Priority Areas, the East Bidwell Mixed Use
Conidor, and the Town Center area of the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan (FPASP). Key elements of this effort are
understanding appropriate design for each area, establishing
design standards, and understanding how design, density,
and development standards affect development economics.
ln 2022, Community Development staff presented key
findings from the Targeted Multi-Family and Mixed-Use
Development Study to Planning Commission and City
Council. Based on City Council feedback staff and the
consultant team began the process of identifying the
maximum allowable densities in each targeted area in order
to begin the CEQA analysis. The project is scheduled to be
completed lale2023.

H-2Create
Additional Lower-
lncome Housing

Capacity

The City shall create additional opportunities for high-
density housing to ensure the City maintains adequate
capacity to meet the lower-income RHNA throughout the
planning period. The City shall increase maximum
allowable densities in the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay,
SACOG Transit Priority Areas outside the Historic District,
and Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Town Center. ln
implementing this program, the City shall strive to disperse
affordable housing opportunities and avoid fair housing
issues related to overconcentration" The City shall
coordinate with property owners along the East Bidwell
Street corridor and within the Transit Priority Areas to
identify and pursue residential development opportunities.
The City shall review and revise Policy 4.7 of the Folsom
Plan Area Specific Plan to increase the total number of
dwelling units allowed in the Plan Area in order to satisfy
the RHNA, as long as infrastructure needs are met. ln

addition, the City shall coordinate with property owners in

the Folsom Plan Area to mitigate for the loss of lower-
income housing sites to market rate housing.

l r i l,li l

i i ri.l

,lill
r:iill::lii,1,,'ri'rlr"rrrlr;1i: Ir,,, i li rl t,rrl:t,llrliirlIr'1i,,1:r,jl., it,!i' il'1,{^irt,i:ilq'0, i

,i 'll)ll,1,i jr,./.1

Page 177

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Housing Programa Progress Report

housing element.

2021 and
Ongoing

Underuay - As part of the Zoning Code update, the City will
consider zoning code amendments that facilitate mixed-use
and high-density residential TOD opportunities. ln 2021, the
City received a $90,000 non-competitive Regional Early
Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) from Sacramento
Area Council of Governments (SACOG). This grant was
used to fund a Targeted Multi-family and Mixed-use Housing
Study. The study included an analysis of the economic
feasibility of multi-family and residential mixed-use
development at different densities and the results of the
study will be used to establish development standards for
transitoriented development.

H-3 Standards for
Transit Oriented

Development

The City shall establish development standards for transit-
oriented development located within SACOG Transit
Priority Areas as part of the comprehensive zoning code
update. Development standards should promote
sustainable land use practices that reduce vehicle trips
and should allow for mixed-use developments as well as
stand-alone residential. ln addition, the City shall provide
for CEQA streamlining consistent with the provisions of SB
375.

2022

Completed. The City of Folsom developed a two-part
design workbook as a resource for those interested in

designing and building an Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU). ln

addition to providing information on design ideas, the
workbook explains the City's review and approval process,
illustrates the City's objective design standards set forth in

Chapter 17.105 of the Folsom Municipal Code, and identifies
recommended design styles for the Historic District.

H-4Accessory
Dwelling Unit Tools

and Resources

The City shall develop an ADU Design Workbook that
provides illustrated examples of the design standards and

styles, as well as other design ideas to assist property

owners, developers, and architects and to encourage
thoughtful, contexlsensitive design. The City shall
promote ADU tools and resources to homeowners
throughout the city to promote mixed-income
neighborhoods. The City shall target the production of 194

ADUs by 2029.

2024 No Action in 2022
H-5 Accessory

Dwelling Unit
lncentives

The City shall incentivize and encourage the construction
of accessory dwelling units through development fee
reductions and/or waivers. The City shall pursue the
development of pre-approved plans dependent on
available grant funding or opportunities for regional
coordination through SACOG. ln addition, the City shall
reach out to local lenders to encourage them to provide
funding for accessory dwelling units. The City shall target
the production of 194 ADUs by 2029.

Monitor on
an ongoing
basis and
determine

affordability
by 2025

The City tracks accessory dwelling units and multi-
generational housing units as part of the Housing Element
Annual Report. ln 2022, the City issued building permits for
'17 ADUs and 28 multi-generational housing units.

H-6Track and
Monitor Accessory
Dwelling Units and
Multi-Generational

Units

The City shall track new accessory dwelling units and multi
generational housing units and shall conduct a survey
every two years to collect information on the use and
affordability of these units. Halfway through the projection
period (2025) if determined these units are not meeting a
lower-income housing need, the City shall ensure other
housing sites are available to accommodate the unmet
portion of the lower-income RHNA. The City shall target
the production of 194 ADUs and 387 multi-generational
housing units by 2029.

2022

No Action in 2022. Currently, the City does not charge
impact fees on accessory dwelling units. ln addition, the
City allows a 50% reduction in City impact fees for multi-
family project studio apartment units.

H-TDevelopment
lmpact and Permit

Fees

The City shall undertake a review of its development
impact and permit fees to reconfirm the relationship
between required services and fees paid. As part of this
study, the City shall review the financial needs of
affordable housing projects, determine whether or not City
fees can be reduced to facilitate affordable housing
development, and identify options for the City to offset the
foregone revenues from other sources.

2021

The City plans to adopt objective design standards for
multifamily development, as part of the comprehensive
zoning code update. Upon adoption ofthe zoning code, the
City will rescind the Design Guidelines for Multifamily
Development.

H-SObiective
Design Standards

for Multifamily
Housing

The City shall rescind the Design Guidelines for Multifamily
Development upon adoption of the Housing Element and
shall adopt objective design standards for multifamily
development, as part ofthe comprehensive zoning code
update.

Page 178

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Houslng Programs Progresa Report

housing element.

ln 2021, the City contacted consulting firm, EPS, to conduct
an inclusionary housing in-lieu fee study. To date, the City
has not considered new revisions to the Housing
lnclusionary Ordinance.

The City shall prepare a fee study on the City's
inclusionary housing in-lieu fee to determine the financing
gap or subsidy required to produce affordable units and
the appropriate fee that may be charged to new housing
developments if the developer chooses to satisfy its

inclusionary requirement through in-lieu fees. Depending
on the findings from the study, the City may consider
revising the Ordinance to update the methodology for
calculating the inclusionary housing in-lieu fee.

2022
H-9 Conduct
lnclusionary

Housing Fee Study

Create
educational
materials by
September

2022

Ongoing - The City distributes educational materials,
including information on the City website, social media
posts, and/or brochures, to provide information on the needs

and benefits of affordable housing and available resources
in the city. The City website also includes homeless
resource information and refenal.

H-l0Provide
lnformation on

Affordable Housing

The City shall create and distribute educational materials,
including a page on the City website, social media posts,

and/or brochures, to provide information on the needs and

benefits of affordable housing and available resources in

the city. The City shall collaborate with local homeless
service providers to provide information on homeless
needs in the city.

Establish
priorities by

2024

Ongoing - The City continues to use the Housing Fund

toward the development of affordable housing units for low-,

very-low, and extremely low households. ln2021 , two multi-
family affordable apartment projects (Sage at Folsom and
Mangini Place) received project approval and loan
commitments from the City. The 100% multifamily senior
Sage at Folsom apartment project received a $2,750,000
loan from the City for the construction of 1 10 affordable
units. The 100% affordable multifamily Mangini Place
project received a $6,860,000 loan from the City for the
construction of 150 affordable units. ln2022, the City
provided a secondary affordable housing loan in the amount
of $588,265.55 to the 100% affordable 7S-unit Bidwell Place
Apartment project to offset unanticipated Quimby parkland
dedication in lieu fees.

H-11 Local
Funding for

Affordable Housing
Development

As available, the City shall allocate funds from the City's
Housing Fund toward the development of affordable
housing units for low-, very low-, and extremely low-income
households. The City shall explore the possibility of
establishing priorities for the distribution of funds, which
may include criteria such as income targeting, housing for
special needs including seniors and persons with
disabilities, number of bedrooms, amenities, support
services, and target geographies that serve to affirmatively
further fair housing. The City shall provide funding to
support approximately 580 affordable units by 2029.

Provide
outreach
annually;
ongoing

Ongoing - The City continues to provide incentives for
affordable housing developments. ln 2021 the 1S2-unit,
100% affordable Mangini Place Apartments project received
fee deferral approval and a density bonus. ln addition, the
1 1 1-unit Sage at Folsom 100% senior apartment project
received a few deferral.

H-l2lncentives
for Affordable

Housing
Development

The City shall provide incentives for affordable housing
development, including density bonus, fee defenals or
reductions, and reduced fees for studio units (e.9., two-for-
one studio fee rate program described in Chapter 16.70 of
the Folsom Municipal Code). The City shall also provide
outreach to attract and support affordable housing
developers in the city, including developers of senior
housing, extremely low-income units, and permanent

supportive housing for persons with disabilities and

developmental disabilities. The City shall target production

ol 2,150 affordable units by 2029. This will serve to
affirmatively further fair housing within the region by
providing affordable housing within places of high

opportunity.

2021
Planned for completion as part of the Zoning Code update,
which is currently underway.

H-1 3Update
Density Bonus

Ordinance

The City shall update the City's density bonus ordinance,
as part of the comprehensive zoning code update, to
reflect recent changes in State law.

Page 179

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Housing Programs Progress Report

housing element.

H-l4Facilitate
Affordable Housing

on Large Sites

The City shall encourage property owners and affordable
housing developers to target and market the availability of
sites with the best potential for development by facilitating
meetings between willing property owners of large sites
and willing affordable housing developers, when sufficient
housing subsidy resources are available. To assist the
development of housing for lower income households on
larger sites (e.9., more than 10 acres), the City shall strive
to streamline the approval process for land divisions, lot
line adjustments, and/or specific plans or master plans
resulting in parcel sizes that enable affordable housing
development, and process fee defenals related to the
subdivision for projects affordable to lower income
households. The City shall target production of 635 lower-
income units through this program by 2029.

Ongoing

Ongoing - The City continues to work with affordable
housing developers and property owners in order to assist
the development of housing affordable to lower income
households. ln addition, the City continues to streamline the
approval process for land divisions, lot line adjustments,
and/or specific plans and process fee deferrals related to
the subdivision for projects affordable to lower income
households.

lnitiate
process by

2026

As part of the 2022f argeled Multi-family and Mixed-use
Housing Study public outreach efforts, the City initiated
conversations with Sacramento Regional Transit regarding
the future affordable housing development opportunities at
the Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station parking lot site and
the need to maintain park and ride spaces on site or
adjacent to the site.

H-l5Affordable
Development at the

Glenn/Robert G
Holderness Station

The City shall pursue opportunities to work with an
affordable housing developer to construct affordable
housing at the Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station parking
lot site. The City shall target production of 74 lower-income
units on the site by 2029. the City shall coordinate with
Sacramento Regional Transit to ensure the site continues
to meet the parking demands for the light rail station.

2022

Ongoing - ln December of 2021 , the City Council approved
the sale of surplus land located at 300 Persifer Street to
Habitat for Humanity of Greater Sacramento, lnc. for the
purpose of developing for sale affordable housing units.
The sale of the land is scheduled to occur in early 2023,
following recording of the map to divide the lot into 5 parcels.

The proposed project will result in 10 for-sale affordable
units.

H-l6Facilitate
Affordable Housing

Development on City
Owned Land

The City shall facilitate the construction of affordable
housing, including possible accessory dwelling units, on
the City-owned sites located at 300 Persifer Street (APN
070-0172-048) and on Riley Street near Comstock Drive
(APN 071-0190-076). The City shall collaborate with
interested affordable housing developers to sell or lease
surplus City land for the construction of deed-restricted
affordable housing, consistent with the Surplus Land Act.
The City shall target production of 16 affordable units on

City-owned sites by 2029.

2026 No Action in 2022

H-17Study the
Purchase of Land

for Affordable
Housing

The City shall explore the feasibility and appropriateness to
establish a program to use housing trust fund money or
other sources to purchase land to support the developmenl
of affordable housing dispersed throughout the city. lf the
City finds the purchase of land to be infeasible, the City
shall continue to use funds to provide gap financing for
affordable housing development.

The City shall establish procedures for granting priority
water and sewer service to developments with lower-
income units in compliance with California Government
Code Section 65589.7.

2022 No Action in 2022
H-'lSPrioritize
lnfrastructure for

Affordable Housing

, I ti r l,l,r I i i,..t j t. r,i : :i; :J !i i I :.,i.r'l

Page 180

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Housing Programs Progress Report

housing element.

Ongoing

Ongoing - The City continues to maintain a close working
relationship with SHRA and currently participates in the
CDBG and HOME Programs with SHRA. The CDBG funds
are utilized to subsidize minor and major grants for the City
of Folsom's Senior Helping Senior Program.

H-l9Participate in

Sacramento County
CDBG Program

The City shall continue to coordinate with the Sacramento
Housing and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA) to receive
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) to support
the Renter's Helpline and housing rehabilitation programs,
including the Seniors Helping Seniors Program. The City
shall target 550 units for housing rehabilitation assistance
by 2029.

2022 I
Ongoing

Ongoing - The City continues to participate with SHRA for
administration of Housing Choice Vouchers.ln 2022,
Folsom had 174 households using vouchers.

H-20Housing
Choice Vouchers

The City shall continue to participate in the Housing
Choice Voucher Program, administered by the
Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency
(SHRA), with a goal of providing rental assistance to lower-
income residents. The City shall work with SHRA to
promote the Housing Choice Voucher Landlord lncentive
Program offered by the SHRA to encourage new landlords
to accept housing choice vouchers, with the goal of
distributing affordable housing throughout the city. The City
shall target 120 housing choice voucher recipients per
year. The City shall post information on the City website,
through social media, and in letters to landlords.

H-2l Mortgage
Credit Certificate

Program

The City shall continue to participate in the Mortgage
Credit Certificate Program, administered by the
Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency
(SHRA), to assist low-income first-time homebuyers
purchase a home. The City shall target assistance for
approximately 20 households by 2029, subject to
availability of Program funds. The City shall publicize the
program on the City website and prepare written materials.

Ongoing

Ongoing - The City continues to participate in the Mortgage
Credit Certificate (MCC) Program administered by SHRA.
Since, 1990, 79 Folsom households have been issued a
MCC.

Annually

Ongoing - The City, particularly the Community Development
Department, continues to work to secure additional funding
from state and federal sources that can be used to increase
the supply of affordable housing in the City of Folsom. ln

2021,hhe City received three SACOG Regional Early Action
Planning Grant Awards totaling $765,000 to further housing
element program goals. ln 2022,the City received a SACOG
Green Means Go Early Activation Grant in the amount of
$374,000 to fund non-transportation site specific
infrastructure for ten for-sale affordable housing units
associated the Habitat Persifer Street Project.

H-22Additional
State, Federal, and
Regional Funding

The City shall work to secure additional funding from State,
Federal, and regional sources that can be used to help
increase the supply of affordable housing in Folsom. The
City shall pursue funding from various grant programs with
a goal of obtaining $5 million dollars for affordable housing
through 2029. Such programs may include, but are not
limited to:

-{he HOME program that has local funds distributed by

the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency
(SHRA);

+he state Multifamily Housing Program (MHP),
sponsored by the Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD);

-{he Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA) fund,
sponsored by HCD;

{he Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Housing
Program, sponsored by HCD; and

The Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities
Program (AHSC) which funds transit-oriented
development.

Page 181

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Housing Programs Progress Report

housing element.

The City shall initiate conversations with owners of existing
affordable housing complexes to identiry potential
opportunities and available funding and/or incentives
available to expand existing facilities to increase the
number of affordable units. The City shall target production
of 30 affordable units through the expansion of facilities by
2029.

Initiate
conversation

s in2o23

H-23Expand
Existing Affordable

Housing
Developments

No Action in 2022.

H-24Mobile
Home Repair and

Replacement Loan
Forgiveness

Program

The City shall continue to provide forgiveness on
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) loans for
improvements to manufactured housing units experiencing
economic hardship, as defined by, and subject to, HUD
guidelines.

Ongoing
Ongoing - Since the program's inception in 2011 , the City
has forgiven twelve Mobile Home Repair and Replacement
loans due to financial hardship.

H-25Housing
Conditions Survey

The City shall seek funding through the Community
Development Block Grant, or other funding sources, to
conduct a survey of housing conditions in the city. The
survey shall identify housing units in need of rehabilitation
or replacement and be used to seek funding to support
housing rehabilitation programs.

2025 No Action in 2022

H-26Code
Enforcement

The City shall continue to encourage the rehabilitation of
substandard residential properties by homeowners and
landlords, using the Code Enforcement program, when
necessary, to improve overall housing quality and
conditions in the city.

Ongoing
Ongoing - The City continues to encourage rehabilitation of
substandard residential properties in the City of Folsom.

H-2TSeniors
Helping Seniors

Program

The City shall continue to provide financial assistance for
health, safety, emergency and accessibility home repairs
to low-income seniors and low-income mobile homeowners
through the Seniors Helping Seniors Program, subject to
availability of Program funds. The City shall target financial
assistance for 550 households by 2029.

Ongoing

Ongoing - The City continues to provide financial assistance
for minor home repairs to low-income seniors through the
Seniors Helping Seniors Program. !n2022, $138,475 of
financial assistance was provided through this program and
79 eligible senior households were served.

H-2Slabitat for
Humanity Home
Repair Program

The City shall work with Habitat for Humanity to promote
the Home Repair Program offered by Habitat which
responds to health, accessibility and safety concerns in
homes owned by low-income families, veterans, and
elderly residents on limited incomes. By fixing the long-
deferred maintenance projects, critical repairs and code
violations, this program helps families stay in their already
affordable homes and avoid displacement. The City shall
target home repairs for 3 units per year.

Ongoing

Ongoing - The City has partnered with Habitat for Humanity
of Greater Sacramento to promote the Home Repair
Program offered by Habitat. To date no Folsom households
have participated in the Program.

H-29Emergency
Shelter Facility
Development

The City shall continue to encourage and provide technical
assistance to local organizations and community groups to
help develop emergency shelter facilities in Folsom. The
City shall encourage the removal of any neighborhood
barriers for any applications for an emergency shelter and
shall target development of emergency shelter facilities
sufficient to provide, at minimum, 47 emergency shelter
beds.

Ongoing
Ongoing - The City continues to provide technical assistance
to local organizations and community groups to help develop
emergency shelter facilities in Folsom.

ili,iri.,iri
'j'ii.t I r,.r.

Page 182

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



EXHIBIT 2

REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION TABLE

Page 183

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Jurisdiciion Folsom

Reportlng Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec.31)

Ptannlng Penoo bm uycre o5t15r2021 - u5t1uzozg

ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Housing Element lmplementation

Table B
onal Housin Needs Allocation

Permifted Units

Level

toward low-income as determined to Government Code
7

Date Total Units Remain

*Extremely low-income houisng need determined pursuant to Govermnet Code 65583(a)(1). Value in Section 5 is default value, assumed to be half of the very low-
income RHNA. May be overwritten.
section 7 of Table 42. They must also be reported in the extremely low-income category (section 13) in Table A2 to be counted as progress toward meeting the
extremely low-income housing need determined pursuant to Government Code 65583(a)(1).
Please note; For the last year of the 5th cycle, Table B will only include units that were permitted during the
portion of the year that was in the 5th cycle. For the first year of the 6th cycle, Table B will only include units
Please note: The APR form can only display data for one planning period. To view progress for a different
planning period, you may login to HCD's online APR system, or contact HCD staff at apr@hcd.ca.gov.

4

2,102

1,219

762

360

3

Total units to
Oate (all years)

124

122

67

1 607

1.920

20292022

,t.213

74

11

5b

21

66

1,035

2

2021

23

16

51

14

1

572

677

Projection Period
o6EOnO21-
o5t1u2021

1

RHNA Allocation by lncome Level

2,226

1,Ul

a29

1 967

6,363

Deed Restricted

Non-Deed Restricted

Deed Restricted
Non-Deed Restricled
Deed Restricted

Non-Deed Restricted

lncome Level

Very Low

Low

Moderate
Above Moderate

Total RHNA
Total units

6

15

20292022

11

2021

4

5

Extremelv lowlncome Need

1,1 13Extremely Low-lncome Units*

Page 184

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



EXHIBIT 3

SUMMARY OF ENTITLED UNITS AND SUBMITTED APPLICATIONS

Page 185

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Jurisdictlon Folsom

Reporting Year 2022 (Jan. 1 - Dec.31)
Planning Period 6th Cycle oshst2o2't - osfisi2029

lncome Level

Note: Units serving extremely low-income households are included in the very low-income permitted units totals

Total

Permits lssued
Current Year

Deed Restricted 74
Non-Deed Restricted 11

Very Low

Deed Restricted 36

Non-Deed Restricted 21
Low

Deed Restricted 0
Non-Deed Restricted 66

Moderate

1035Above Moderate

1243Total Units

Permitted
0l 0 0

its by re Type
SFA
SFD 831542l| 855

0l 0 02to 4
5+ 3672531 72

4l 45 58ADU
2MH 00l

Housinq ADplications Summary

Total Housing Applications Submitted: 53

\umber of Proposed Units in All Applications Received: 1,464

Total Housing Units Approved 808
Total Housing Units Disapproved: 0

Use of SB 35 Streamlininq Provisions
Number of Applications for Streamlining 0
Number of Streamlining Applications Approved 0
Total Developments Approved with Streamlining 0
Total Units Constructed with Streamlining 0

Page 186

03/28/2023 Item No.9.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council hold the public hearing, adopt the following
resolutions, and conduct the first reading of the ordinance:

ResolutionNo. 11010-AResolutionof theCityCouncilof theCityof FolsomCallinga
Special Mailed-Ballot Election Related to Change Proceedings for Improvement Area No. 2
within City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

1

MEETING DATE: 312812023

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Amended Improvement AreaNo. 2

Resolution No. 11010 - A Resolution of the City Council of the
City of Folsom Calling a Special Mailed-Ballot Election Related

to Change Proceedings for Improvement Area No. 2 within City
of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Resolution No. 11011 - A Resolution of Change of the City
Council of the City of Folsom Relating to Improvement Area No.
2 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23

(Folsom Ranch)

Ordinance No. 1338 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying a

Special Tax for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 and Following Fiscal
Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement Area No. 2

within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (Introduction and First Reading)

FROM: Finance Department

Page 187

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



Resolution No. 11011 - A Resolution of Change of the City Council of the City of Folsom

Relating to Improvement Area No. 2 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Ordinance No. 1338 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying a Special Tax for the Fiscal Year
2023-2024 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement Area No.
2 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

(Introduction and First Reading)

BACKG / ISSIIFJ,

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP"), approved by

the City Council on January 28, 2014 via Resolution 9298, is an $877 million plan that

describes the backbone infrastructure and facility requirements, presents a comprehensive

financing strategy, and sets forth the estimated time horizon for the development of the Folsom

Plan Area ("FPA").

The City Council previously approved the Resolution of Formation (Resolution No. 10435)

and the Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness (Resolution No.

10437) on May 26,2020 to form Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD
No. 23"), designate Improvement Area No. 2, authorize a special tax to finance the acquisition
and construction of certain public facilities and certain public services, authorize the issuance

of debt to finance the public facilities, and establish the appropriations limit and maximum
bonded indebtedness for Improvement Area No. 2.

The landowners within Improvement Area No .2have requested to amend the Rate and Method

of Apportionment to adjust the maximum special tax rates based on the planned development

of property within Improvement AreaNo. 2. The proposed development plan for Improvement

Area No. 2 includes 291 units zoned as multi-family low density and 5.1 acres of non-

residential use.

On February 14, 2023 this City Council considered to amend the Rate and Method of
Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 2 by passage of Resolution No. 10988.

A Public Hearing is required as part of the amendment process for Improvement Area No. 2.

Notice of the hearing was mailed to the landowners within Improvement Area No. 2 on March
14,2023 and published in the Folsom Telegraph on March 16,2023.

POLICY / RULE

Chapter 5 of the Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan authorizes the formation
of CFDs to finance the construction, acquisition, and servicing of FPA backbone infrastructure

and public facilities

2 Page 188

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



Section 2.5.3 of the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement authorizes
the formation of infrastructure CFDs

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

ANALYSIS

CFD No. 23 is structured as an extended-term CFD and will provide the necessary funding to
help fund all or a portion of the project's share of PFFP backbone infrastructure and facilities,
including related environmental mitigation obligations. The PFFP backbone infrastructure and

facilities will be financed using both bond proceeds and PAYGO special tax revenues. The
extended-term CFD structure is proposed to help to meet the challenge of high-cost
infrastructure and facilities while also aligning the timing of future funding availability with
the need for such funding.

The proposed amendment to the Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area
No. 2 increases the maximum facilities special tax rates for single-family detached property.
The special tax revenue geneiated from taxable parcels within Improvement Area No. 2 will
be comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax to fund services. The amended

2022123 maximum facilities special tax rates and maximum services special tax rates, for each

land use category, are provided in the table below:

Land Use Category

2022123
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate

2022123

Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate Per

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD
Zoning (All Residential Floor Sizes)

$2,559.87 $2r4.s6 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD
Zoning (> 3,600 square feet)

2,559.87 110.49 Unit

Single-Family Detached Properfy - MLD
Zonins G.200-3,599 square feet)

2,559.87 t10.49 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD
Zoning (2,800-3,199 square feet)

2,559.87 t10.49 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD
Zonins. (2,400-2,799 square feet)

2,559.87 110.49 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD
Zonins^ Q,000-2.399 square feet)

2,359.41 t10.49 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD
Zonins, G2,000 square feet)

2,123.92 1t0.49 Unit

a
J Page 189

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



MMD Multi-Family Attached Property 31,212.00 536.40 Acre

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property 12,172.68 1,072.80 Acre

Non-Residential Property 12,t72.68 r,072.80 Acre

The facilities special tax can be levied and collected through Fiscal Year 2079180. Each fiscal
year, commencing with Fiscal Year 2023124, the maximum facilities special tax rate will be

increased by 2% annually. The services special tax can be levied and collected in perpetuity

for Improvement Area No. 2. Each fiscal year, commencing with Fiscal Year 2023124, the
maximum services special tax rate will be increased by the June annualized percentage change

of the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San

Jose area, not to exceed4o/o.

Approving the resolutions will call for a special mailed-ballot election within Improvement
Area No. 2, declare the results of the special mailed-ballot election within Improvement Area
No. 2, and amend Improvement Area No. 2. An ordinance is also being introduced to levy
Special Taxes for Fiscal Year 2023124 and following fiscal years. This is the first reading of
the ordinance.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct General Fund impact on the City of Folsom. The Improvement Area No. 2
amendment and expenses are solely the responsibility of Improvement Area No. 2. The

General Fund is not impacted by the Improvement Area No. 2 Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Folsom Plan Area
Backbone Infrastructure Project were previously prepared for, and adopted by the City Council
on February 24, 2015, in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental

Quality Act. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378(c), the term'oproject" does not mean

each separate govemmental approval for an approved activity which may be subject to several

discretionary approvals by governmental agencies. Additionally, the creation of government

funding mechanisms which do not involve any commitment to any specific project which may

result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment is not defined as a
"project" under CEQA. CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(4) and 15061(bX3).

ATT

1. ResolutionNo. 11010 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling a

Special Mailed-Ballot Election Related to Change Proceedings for Improvement AreaNo.
2 within City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

4 Page 190

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



2. Resolution No. I 1011 - A Resolution of Change of the City Council of the City of Folsom

Relating to Improvement Area No. 2 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

3. OrdinanceNo. 1338 -AnUncodified Ordinance Levying a Special Tax forthe Fiscal Year

2023-2024 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to Improvement Area
No. 2 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

(Introduction and First Reading)

Submitted,

Stacey Tamagni
Finance Director

5 Page 191

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 192

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. 11010

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING A SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION RELATED TO

CHANGE PROCEEDINGS FOR IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2 WITHIN
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS' the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City")
conducted proceedings under and pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Mello-Roos

Community Facilities Act of lgS2,asamended (being Chapter 2.5,Part 1, Division 2,Title 5 of the

Government Code of the State of California), and all laws amendatory thereof or supplemental

thereto (the "Act"), among other things, (i) to form a community facilities district within the City of
Folsom, designated and known as "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch)" (the "Community Facilities District"), (ii) to designate Improvement Area No. 2 therein,

(iii) to authorize a special tax (the "special Tax") to finance the acquisition and construction of
certain public facilities (the "Facilities") and certain public services (the "Services"), (iv) to
authorize the issuance of debt to finance the Facilities, and (v) to establish the appropriations limit
for Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community Facilities District, all as set forth in the City
Council's Resolution No. 10435 (the "Resolution of Formation"), adopted on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, on February 14,2023,the City Council adopted its ResolutionNo. 10988 (the

"Resolution of Consideration") in which it determined to consider amending the rate and method of
apportionment for Improvement Area No .2 (the "Rate and Method") to adjust the maximum special

tax rates based on the planned development within Improvement Area No. 2 (the "Proposed

Amendments"); and

WHEREAS, the Resolution of Consideration set a public hearing to be held on March 28,

2023 (the "Public Hearing"); and

WHEREAS, the Public Hearing has been held as scheduled and all persons interested were

permitted to testi$ and to submit written protests to the Proposed Amendments; and

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that there was no majority protest under Section

53337 of the Government Code of the State of California, and thus the City Council is permitted to

continue with these proceedings; and

WHEREAS, in order for the Proposed Amendments to be effective, they must be submitted

to an election of the qualified electors of Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community Facilities
District; and

WHEREAS, a Certificate Regarding Landowners (the "Certificate re: Landowners") has

been filed with the City Clerk (the "Clerk") and submitted to the City Council, certiffing that during

the 90 days preceding the close of the Public Hearing on March 28,2023, there were no persons

registered to vote within the tenitory of Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community Facilities
District; and

Resolution No. I1010
Page I of8 Page 193

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



WHEREAS, a Certificate of Clerk Regarding Receipt of Property Owner Waiver and

Consent, has been submitted by the Clerk, stating that each landowner, or an authorized
representative of each landowner, within Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community Facilities
District has filed with the Clerk a properly executed Waiver and Consent (as defined below) in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, and by this reference incorporated herein;

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom, as

follows

Section 1.

determines.
The above recitals are true and correct, and the City Council so finds and

Section 2. The City Council accepts the Certificate regarding Landowners filed inthese
proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that during the 90 days just past, there were no
registered voters residing within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community
Facilities District. Accordingly, under Section 53326(b) of the Government Code of the State of
California, the qualified electors of Improvement AreaNo. 2 of the Community Facilities District for
the proposed special election shall be the owners of land within Improvement Area No. 2 of the
Community Facilities District.

Section 3 The City Council further finds and determines that the owners of land within
Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community Facilities District (the "Landowners") are the

landowners set forth in the attachment to the Certificate regarding Landowners and that the

attachment correctly sets forth the amount of property owned by each Landowner and the number of
votes to which each Landowner is entitled pursuant to Section 53326(b), being the number of acres

owned rounded up to the next whole acre.

Section 4. The City Council hereby approves the form of Waiver and Consent
Shortening Time Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Conducting a Mailed-Ballot
Election (the "Waiver and Consent") by which the time limits and related requirements respecting
preparation and distribution of election materials are waived, a form of which is attached hereto as

Exhibit B. The City Council hereby finds that the rights, procedures, and time periods therein
waived are solely for the protection of the qualified electors and may be waived by the qualified
electors under Section 53326(a) and 53327(b) of the Act and under other provisions of law dealing
with waiver generally, and that the Waiver and Consent constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by
any qualified elector who has executed the form, of those rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council further finds and determines, based on a Certificate of Clerk
regarding Receipt of Property Owner Waiver and Consent Forms provided this date by the Clerk that
each Landowner, or an authorized representative of each Landowner, has filed with the Clerk a

properly executed Waiver and Consent in substantially the form of Exhibit B hereto. The City
Council therefore is establishing the procedures and time periods for this special mailed-ballot
election without regard to statutory schedules.

Section 6. Pursuantto Sections 53338(a) and53326 ofthe Govemment Code ofthe State

of California, the City Council hereby calls an election, to be held and conducted upon adoption of
this Resolution, and sets March 28, 2023, as the election date. Pursuant to Section 53326 of the

Resolution No. I1010
Page 2 of 8 Page 194

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



Government Code, the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot; provided that personal service

of the respective ballots to authorized representatives of each Landowner is permitted under the

terms of the Waiver and Consent forms on file withthe Clerk and shall therefore be permitted. The

Clerk is directed to either mail or make personal service of the ballots, in the form of the attached

Exhibit A, to each Landowner or, if one has been appointed pursuant to a Waiver and Consent, to the

Landowner' s authorized representative.

Section 7. The proposition to be submitted to the qualified electors of Improvement Area

No. 2 of the Community Facilities District shall be as set forth in the form of special election ballot
attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 8. The Clerk is hereby designated as the official to conduct the special mailed-

ballot election pursuant to the Act and California Elections Code Sections 307 and 320 and the

following provisions:

(a) The special election shall be held and conducted, and the votes

canvassed and the returns -ud", and the results determined, as provided herein; and in all
particulars not prescribed by this Resolution the special election shall be held and conducted

and the votes received and canvassed in the manner provided by law for the holding of
special elections consistent with the Act.

(b) All Landowners within Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community

Facilities District as of the close of the Public Hearing shall be qualified to vote upon the

proposition to be submitted at the special election.

(c) The special election shall be conducted as a mailed-ballot election, in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and the prior proceedings of the City taken

thereunder, and there shall be no polling places for the special election. All ballots shall be

delivered or mailed by the Clerk to the Landowners, and all voted ballots are required to be

received by the Clerk not later than 6:00 p.m. on the date of the election in order to be

counted. However, if at any time the Clerk determines that all votes have been cast, the

Clerk shall immediately declare the election closed.

(d) The Clerk shall commence the canvass of the returns of the special

election, and report the returns to the City Council no later than the City Council meeting of
March 28,2023.

(e) The City Council may thereupon declare the results of the special

election, and shall cause to be spread upon its minutes a statement of the results of the

special election as ascertained by the canvass.

Resolution No. I l0l0
Page 3 of8

Page 195

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of March,2023, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11010
Page 4 of 8 Page 196

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMI.]NITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2
(FOLSOM RANCH)

SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

This ballot is for the use of 

-, 

a landowner owning land within
ImprovementAreaNo.2 of City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (FolsomRanch).

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the

resolutions of the City Council of the City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to cast

votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by mail or
in person, before 6:00 p.m. on March 28,2023,to:.

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the

City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X" OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT MEASURE
Shall the authority previously conferred upon the City Council (the

"City Council") of the City of Folsom by and through its City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) for
Improvement Area No. 2 be changed in accordance with the City
Council's Resolution of Consideration to Amend the Rate and

Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 2 Within the

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch), and Related Matters, adopted on February 14,2023?

Number of votes
YES

Number of votes
NO

Resolution No. 11010
Page 5 of8 Page 197

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) ofthe above-named landowner and

is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named

landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing

is true and correct and that this declaration is executed as of March28,2023.

By:
Name:
Title:

ResolutionNo. 11010
Page 6 of 8 Page 198

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



EXHIBIT B

WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PEzuODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMI.INITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2

(CHANGE PROCEEDINGS)

Theundersigned-istheownerorauthorizedrepresentativeoftheowner
ofAssessor,sParce1No.-withintheabove-captionedImprovementAreaNo.2(the
"Improvement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

(the "District").

The undersigned understands that a special mailed ballot landowner election will be held to

determine whether the authority conferred upon the City Council by and through the District for the

Improvement Area will be changed, all as set forth in Resolution No. 10988 adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom on February 14,2023 (the "Resolution of Consideration").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorizedto cast the

ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the

Improvement Area.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods and requirements pertaining to the conduct of the election pursuant to

Government Code Section 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation

and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot measure, as well as arguments in favor and

against, under the authority of Govemment Code Section53327@).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirementto

publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352'

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements

regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4101, and

agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, onbehalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements

regarding identification envelopes for the return of mailed ballots contained in Government Code

Section 53327.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any riglrtto notice

and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authorized services, expenses and rate and method

Resolution No. 11010

Page 7 of8 Page 199

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



of apportionment of special tax as described in the related resolutions to be adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom on March 28,2023.

The undersigned, on behalf ofthe above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all defects

in notice or procedure in the time periods to record the boundary map, conduct of the election,

whether known or unknown (other than the right to have ballots accurately counted), and states that

the election is being expedited, pursuant to this waiver and consent, at the particular instance and

request of the above-referenced owner.

The undersigned, on behalfofthe above-referenced owner, hereby consents to the levy and

collection of the special tax in accordance with the amended rate and method of apportionment

approved by the City Council for the Improvement Area and hereby waives any and all rights to
challenge the inclusion of the above referenced parcels in the Improvement Area and any other

proceedings related thereto.

Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any

entitlement to initiate or prosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings, to

challenge any aspect of the proceedings for levy of the special tax and for issuance of bonded

indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of Califomia, that the

foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on March 2023.

By:
Name:
Title:

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an oflicer of the
property owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing party is different from the

name of the property owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
property owner(s) or evidence of name change.

ResolutionNo. 11010
Page 8 of8 Page 200

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 201

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. 11011

A RESOLUTION OF CHANGE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF F'OLSOM RELATING TO IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.2 WITHIN

THE CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City")
conducted proceedings under and pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Mello-Roos

Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (being Chapter 2.5,Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of
the Government Code of the State of California), and all laws amendatory thereof or supplemental

thereto (the "Act"), among other things, (i) to form a community facilities district within the City
of Folsom, designated and known as "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)" (the "Community Facilities District"), (ii) to designate Improvement Area No. 2

therein, (iii) to atrthorize a special tax (the "special Tax") to finance the acquisition and

construction of certain public facilities (the "Facilities") and certain public services (the

"services"), (iv) to authorize the issuance of debt to finance the Facilities, and (v) to establish the

appropriations limit for Improvement Area No. 2 of the Community Facilities District, all as set

forth in the City Council's Resolution No. 10435 (the "Resolution of Formation"), adopted on

May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, on February 14,2023, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. 10988

(the "Resolution of Consideration") in which it determined to consider amending the rate and

method of apportionment for Improvement Area No. 2 (the'oRate and Method") to adjust the

maximum special tax rates based on the planned development within Improvement Area No. 2

(the "Proposed Amendments"); and

WHEREAS, in order for the Proposed Amendments to be effective, a two-thirds

approving vote by the qualified electors within Improvement Area No. 2 within the Community

Facilities District is required; and

WHEREAS, a special mailed-ballot election has been conducted within Improvement

Area No. 2 within the Community Facilities District pursuant to Resolution No. 11010, adopted

by the City Council on March 28,2023, to which reference is made for further particulars; and

WHEREAS, a Certificate of the City Clerk (the "Clerk") Regarding Election Results (the

"Certificate of Election Results") has been filed with the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate

of Election Results;

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,

as follows:

Section 1.

determines.

Resolution No. 11011

Page 1 of2

The above recitals are true and correct, and the City Council so finds and

Page 202

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and determines and declares that the ballot
measure submitted to the qualified electors of Improvement Area No. 2 within the Community
Facilities District has been passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with
Sections 53338 of the Government Code of the State of California.

Section 3. The City Council hereby finds and determines and declares that the

authority conferred upon it by the Community Facilities District for Improvement Area No. 2 has

been changed in accordance with the Proposed Amendments as set forth in the Resolution of
Consideration.

Section 4. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the Clerk to cause an

Amended Notice of Special Tax Lien to be prepared and to be recorded with the County Recorder

of the County of Sacramento (the'oCounty Recorder") in accordance withthe provisions of Section

3ll7 .5 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of Califomia and Section 53338(c) of the

Government Code of the State of California. The Amended Notice of Special Tax Lien shall

include, as an attachment, the amended rate and method of apportionment as provided in Exhibit A
to the Resolution of Consideration and be recorded in the County Recorder's offtce within fifteen
days of the date of adoption of this Resolution.

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of March,2023, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 1101I
Page2 of2 Page 203

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 204

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



ORDINANCE NO. 1338

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE LEVYING A SPECIAL TAX F'OR THE FISCAL
YEAR 2023.2024 AND FOLLOWING FISCAL YEARS SOLELY WITHIN AND

RELATING TO IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.2 WITHIN THE CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNTTY FACILTTIES DTSTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

The City Council of the City of Folsom, State of California ordains as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby finds, determines and declares based on

the record before it that:

1. The City is authorized to establish a community facilities district pursuant to the

terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5 of Division 2 of Title 5
of the California Govemment Code, commencing with Section 53311 (the "Act"); and

2. Pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, the City is authorized to designate

improvement areas within the community facilities district; and

3. Pursuant to Government Code section 53340 and Resolution No. 10435, adopted

by the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City") on May 26,2020
(the "Resolution of Formation"), the City Council formed its Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") and a rate and method of
apportionment of the special tax (as amended, the "Special Tax") for Improvement Area No. 2
("Improvement Area No. 2") established therein was approved by an election of the qualified

electors within Improvement Area No. 2 on such date; and

4. Pursuant to Resolution No. 10988, adopted by the City Council on February 14,
2023 (the "Resolution of Consideration") and Resolution No. 1 101I adopted by the City Council
on March 28, 2023 (the "Resolution of Change" and, collectively with the Resolution of
Formation and the Resolution of Consideration, the o'Resolutions"), the City Council approved

an Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment for City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 (the "Amended Rate and Method"),
which changes were approved by an election of the qualified electors within Improvement Area
No. 2 on such date; and

5. The City Council desires to levy and impose the Special Tax and to take other

related actions.

SECTION 2

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
RESOLVES:

1. The recitals set forth in Section I are true and correct.

Ordinance No. 1338

Page I of3 Page 205

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



2

J

4.

5

6

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in the Amended Rate

and Method) within Improvement Area No.2 for the 2023-24 fiscal year and for all
subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that this
amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

The Finance Director of the City of Folsom or designee thereof (the "CFD
Administrator") is authorized and directed, to determine each year, without further action
of the City Council, the Special Tax, to prepare the annual Special Tax roll in the amount

of the Special Tax in accordance with the related exhibit and, without further action of
the City Council, to provide all necessary and appropriate information to the Sacramento

County Auditor-Controller's Office (the "County") in proper form, and in proper time,
necessary to effect the correct and timely billing and collection of the Special Tax on the

secured property tax roll of the County; provided, that as provided in the Resolutions and

Section 53340 of the California Government Code, the City has reserved the right to
utilize any method of collecting the Special Tax which it shall, from time to time,
determine to be in the best interests of the City of Folsom (the "City"), including but not
limited to, direct billing by the City to the property owners and supplemental billing.

The appropriate officers and agents of the City are authorized to make adjustments to the

Special Tax roll prior to the final posting of the Special Tax to the County tax roll each

fiscal year, as may be necessary to achieve a correct match of the Special Tax levy with
the assessor's parcel numbers finally utilized by the County in sending out property tax
bills.

The City agrees that, in the event the Special Tax for Improvement Area No. 2 is
collected on the secured tax roll of the County, the County may deduct its reasonable and

agreed charges for collecting the Special Tax from the amounts collected, prior to
remitting the Special Tax collections to the City.

Taxpayers who have requested changes or corrections of the Special Tax pursuant to
Section I of the Amended Rate and Method and who are not satisfied with the decision of
the CFD Administrator (whether the CFD Administrator disagrees with the taxpayer or
concludes that the City is not authorizedto consider the change requested), may appeal to
the City Council. The appeal must be in writing, fully explain the grounds of appeal and

must be based solely on the correction of mistakes in the levy based upon the status of the
property, and no other appeals will be allowed. The CFD Administrator shall schedule

the appeal for consideration within a reasonable time at a City Council meeting.

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY

If for any cause any portion of this ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the Special Tax
is found inapplicable to any particular parcel by a court of competent jurisdiction, the balance of
this ordinance, and the application of the Special Tax to the remaining parcels, shall not be

affected.

Ordinance No. 1338

Page 2 of3 Page 206

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



SECTION 4 EF'FECTIVE DATE; EFFECT ON ORDINANCE NO. 1305

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force as a tax measure thirty (30) days

following its second reading and adoption at a meeting of the City Council; and before the

expiration of twenty (20) days after its passage the same shall be published, with the names of
the members voting for and against the same, at least once in a newspaper of general circulation
published and circulated in the Community Facilities District.

Ordinance No. 1305 adopted by the City Council on June 9,2020, shall be superseded,

solely with respect to Improvement Area No. 2, to the extent it is inconsistent with this
ordinance, upon the date that this ordinance takes effect, as described in the immediately
preceding paragraph.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on March 28, 2023, and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on April 11,2023.

t( *( *

On a motion by seconded by the foregoing
ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom, State of California,
this _ day of _,2023 by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmembers(s):

ABSENT: Councilmembers(s)

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers(s)

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1338

Page 3 of3
Page 207

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



This page intentionallY left blCInk

to facilitote double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLSOl\{
DIS'IXCTIVE BY NAYURE

Page 208

03/28/2023 Item No.10.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 3t2812023

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution 11007 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign

the Petition and Ballot on Behalf of the City of Folsom in Support of the

Renewal of the Historic Folsom Properly and Business Improvement
District

FROM: City Manager's Office

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends approving Resolution 11007 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign the

Petition and Ballot on Behalf of the City of Folsom in Support of the Renewal of the Historic Folsom

Property and Business Improvement District.

BACKGROIJND / ISSUE

The Historic Folsom Property and Business Improvement District (ItrPBID) is a benefit assessment district

whose main goal is to provide improvements and activities which constitute and convey a special benefit

to assessed parcels. This approach has been used successfully in Historic Folsom and elsewhere throughout

the country to provide special benefits to property owners, namely increased sales, attraction of new tenants,

increased occupancies, and specifically increased properly values.

The F{FPBID was created in 2008 pursuantto provisions of the Streets and Highway Code and City Council

Resolution No. 83 17. By statute, the initial term was limited to five years, and the City Council renewed

the District for the maximum irllowable term of ten years in 2073 at the request of the Folsom Historic

District Association (FHDA). With the current term ending on December 31, 2023,HFPBID property

owners and FHDA now wish to renew the district for another ten-year term.

HFPBID property owners decided to pursue renewal of the IIFPBID in order to continue a revenue source

devoted to providing special benefits to assessed property owners. If renewed, the HFPBID would generate

approximately $170,757.12. in assessment revenue on an annual basis for advocacy & program

cobrdination,image enhancement, enhanced maintenance, and related management and administration that

are above and beyond those provided by the City and other government agencies.

I
Page 209

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



MANAGEMENT DISTRICT P LAN

The Management District Plan (Attachment 2) includes the proposed boundary of the IIFPBID, a service

plan, assessment methodology, budget, proposed means of governance, and Engineer's Report. The

ffnpgD includes parcels located in the historic commercial area of the City of Folsom. It is bound by the

Folsom Lake State Recreation area on the north and west, the Sutter Street / Figueroa Street Alley on the

south, and Scott Street on the east, as shown in the map in the Management District Plan.

The I{FPBID will have a ten (10)-year-life, beginning January 1,2024 through December 31, 2033. Once

per year beginning on the anniversary of FIFPBID renewal there is a 30-day period in which properly

o*ners paying more than 50Yo of the assessment may protest and begin proceedings to terminate the

HFPBID.

As provided by State Law, the fmPBID assessment will appear as a separate line item on annual propeffy

tax bills prepared by the County of Sacramento. Parcels which do not receive property tax bills will be

invoiced 
-by 

the City. Property tax bills are generally distributed in the fall, and payment is expected by

lump sum or installment. The County of Sacramento shall distribute funds collected to the City of Folsom,

which shall forward them to the FIFPBID. Existing laws for enforcement and appeal of property taxes,

including penalties and interest, apply to the IIFPBID assessments.

HFPBID RENEWAL PROCESS

April 11,2023 RESOLUTION OF INTENTION HEARING
Upon the submission of a written petition, signed by the property owners in the

proposed HFPBID who will pay more than 50 percent (50%) of the assessments

proposed to be levied, the City Council may initiate proceedings to renew a district
by the adoption ofa resolution expressing its intention to renew a district.

April22,2023 NOTICE & PROPOSITION 218 BALLOT
The Proper,ty and Business Improvement District Law of 1994 and Proposition 2 1 8

require the City mail written notice and assessment ballots to the owners of all
property proposed to be assessed within the renewed I{FPBID. Mailing the notice

and assessment ballot begins a mandatory forty-five (a5) day period in which
owners may cast ballots.

June 13,2023 FINAL PUBLIC TIEARING
Council will open a public hearing and receive public testimony. At the end of
testimony, Council will close the public hearing and direct tabulation of
assessment ballots submitted and not withdrawn to determine whether there is a
majority protest against the assessment. A majority protest exists if the ballots in

opposition to the proposed assessment exceed the ballots in support of the

proposed assessment, weighted by the amount each owner will pay. If there is no

majority protest, Council may adopt a resolution declaring the results of the

majority protest proceedings and renewing the I{FPBID.

POLICY / RULE

The Property and Business Improvement Law of 1994, California Streets and Highways Code section

36600 et seq., authorizes cities to renew property and business improvement dishicts for the purposes of
promoting eionomic revitalization and financing activities and services to improve the overall economic

climate in said districts.

2 Page 210

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



ANALYSIS

Adoption of this resolution will authorize the City Manager to sign petitions and assessment ballots on

behalf of properties owned by the City of Folsom in support of the renewal of the FIFPBID. This Resolution

shall be deemed valid only if petitions are received from properly owners representing over fifty percent

(50%) of non-City owned property proposing to be assessed in the I{FPBID'

FINAI\ICIAL IMPACT

If the I{FPBID renewal is successful, then the City's annual contribution is an estimated $82,644.22

beginning in Fiscal Year2024-2025. The City's assessment is a General Fund (Fund 010) expense. Future

assessment rates may be subject to an increase of no more than three percent (3%) annually.

EIWIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act
Guidelines $ 1 506 1(bX3).

ATT

1. Resolution 1 1007 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Sign the Petition and Ballot
on Behalf of the City of Folsom in Support of the Renewal of the Historic Folsom Property and

Business Improvement District
2. Historic Folsom Property and Business Improvement District Management District Plan and

Engineer's Report

Respectfully Submitted,

Elaine Andersen" Citv Manager

J
Page 211

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 212

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 11007

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE PETITION
AND BALLOT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM IN SUPPORT OF THE

RENEWAL OF THE HISOTRIC FOLSOM PROPERTY AND BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WHEREAS' property owners propose renewal of the Historic Folsom Property and

Business Improvement District (HFPBID) pursuant to the Property and Business Improvement

Law of 1994, California Streets and Highways Code section 36600 et seq., which authorizes cities

to renew property and business improvement districts for the purposes of promoting economic

revitalization and financing activities and services to improve the overall economic climate in said

districts; and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Proposition 2I8 in the Califomia Constitution,
government agencies receiving special benefits must pay assessments in Property and Business

Improvement Districts for the special benefit they receive; and

WHEREAS, passage of this Resolution will authorize the City Manager of the City of
Folsom to sign petitions and assessment ballots on behalf of all City-owned properties in the

HFPBID. This signature shall be deemed valid only if petitions are received from property owners

representing over fifty percent (50%) of non-City owned property proposing to be assessed in the

HFPBID; and

WHEREAS, the City owns the following eighteen (18) properties proposed to be

assessed within the renewed HFPBID:

070-0052-023-0000
070-0052-027-0000
070-00 I 0-0 I 7-0000
070-0034-002-0000
070-0032-005-0000
070-0034-00 I -0000

070-0045-027-0000
070-0045-026-0000
070-0033-003-0000
070-004 1 -003 -0000
070-004r-001-0000
070-0042-001-0000

070-0045-01 5-0000
070-0032-002-0000
070-0033-002-0000
070-0041-002-0000
070-0045-028-0000
070-005 I -043-0000

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the public interest will be served by
having these properties participate in the renewed HFPBID.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that the

City Manager is hereby authorized to sign petitions and assessment ballots indicating support for
the proposed renewal of annual assessments levied by the HFPBID, which is estimated at

$82,644.22 for the City properties, on behalf of the City of Folsom. Future assessment rates may

be subject to an increase of no more than three percent (3%) annually.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of March,2023, by the following roll-call vote:

Resolution No. 11007
Page I of2 Page 213

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 11007
Page2 of2 Page 214

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 215

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



2$24-2fi33

;

HISTORIC FOLSOM
PROPERTY AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT PLAN AND ENGINEER'S REPORT

Prepared punaant to the Prope@ and Business Improuement District Iu, of

/ 994, Streets and Highway Code section 36600 et sec1.

Page 216

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Contents

I. Overview.... 3

7IV. History and Accomplishments

V

VI. Service Plan & Budget........ 1,2

IX. Engineer's Report......... ..'...... 18

Appendix 1 - Maximum Annual Assessment Rates............ -------.'..32

Appendix 4 - ParcelAssessment Calculations 45

Appendix 5 - Total Estimated Maximum Cost of Improvements, Maintenance, and Activities ............ 49

Appendix 6 - Baseline Services Ptovided..... .............. 50

Prepared by Civitas
arlta

CIVITAS
PAPTNENSHIPS' PNOGRESS. PNOSPENITY

www.civiasadvisots. com
(800)eee-7781

,1

"'Li.

l
l. I

FOLSOM
HISTORIC
DlslRlc r. A55n(:IATroil

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan
Page 217

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



I. OVERVIEW

Developed by a growing coalition of ptoperty owners, the Historic Folsom Propetty and Business

Improvement District (HFPBID) is a benefit assessment district whose main goai is to provide

improvements, maintenance, and activities which constitute and convey a special benefit to assessed

parcels. This approach has been used successfirlly in other cities throughout the country to provide special

tenefits to property owners, namely increased sales, attracion of new tenants, increased occupancies, and

specifically increased property values. The HPBID was created in 2008 and was subsequently renewed in
201.4 for a ten (10) year tem. The HPBID has reached the end of this term, and ptoperry owners now

wish to renew the HPBID for another ten (10) year tefin. The renewed HFPBID will continue to provide

senices above and beyond those furnished by the City of Folsom, for the direct benefit of assessed

parcels. As required by state law, property owners have cteated this Management District Plan (Plan) to

renew the HtrPBID.

Location: The HFPBID is located in the historic commercial area of theCity of Folsom. It is bound

by the Folsom Lake State Recreation 
^rea 

on the north and west, the Sutter Street /
Figueroa Steet Alley on the south, and Scott Street on the east. A map is provided in
Section V.

Purpose: The purpose of the HFPBID is to provide improvements, maintenance, and activities

which constitute and convey a special benefit to assessed parcels. The HFPBID will
provide Advocacy & Prognm Coordination, Image Enhancement & Matketing,

Enhanced Maintenance serrices, and related administtation direcdy and only to assessed

parcels within its boundaries.

Budget: The HFPBID annual assessment budget for the initial year of its ten (10) year operation

is anticipated to be ff170,757.1,2. The annual budget may be subject to an inctease in
assessment rates of no more than three percent Qn per year. The assessment funds will
be supplemented by non-assessment funds (such as grants and event income), so that the

toral budget for the initial year is estimated at fi179,663.27. The amourit of non-

assessment funds is the minimum amount necessary to pay for the general benefit

provided by District pfograms. Further detail on the sepatation of special and general

benefit is ptovided in Section fX.

Cost: The cost to the parcel owneris based on parcel size, benefit zone, and parcel use as shown

in the table below. Property tax-exempt parcels owned by non-profit entities and religious

institutions will be assessed atfifBI percent (507") of the standard commercial assessment

rate. Parcels with single-family residential uses shall not be assessed. Assessment rates afe

subject to a cost-of-living increase of no more than three petcent (3o/o) per year. The

annual inctease will be based on the Consumet Pdce Index.

Patcel Type
Annual Assessment Rate ($/sq ft)

ZoneTA ZonelB Zone2 Zone3 Zone4

Cornmercial Uses $0.1 5 $0.17 $0.17 $o.o8s $0.075

Non-Profit/Religious $o.07s $0.085 $0.085 $0.0425 $0.037s

-)Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan
Page 218

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Renewah HFPBID renewal requires submittal of petitions from property o\r/ners represenung

more than 50% of the total assessment. The "Right to Vote on Taxes Act" (also known

as Proposition2l.B) requires a ballotvote in which more than 50% of the ballots received,

weighted by assessment, be in support of the HFPRID.

Duration: The HFPBID will haveaten (10)-year-life, beginningJarruary 1.,2024 through December

31.,2033. Near the end of the term, the petition, ballog and City Council hearing process

must be repeated for the HFPBID to be renewed for another term of up to ten (10) years.

Management The Folsom Historic DistrictAssociation (FHDA) will continue to se1ve,zs the Owners'

Associarion for the HF'PBID, with oversight ftom the Folsom City Council.

4Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan
Page 219

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



il. IMPETUS

There are several reasons why now is the time to renew the HFPBID. The most compelling reasons are

as follows.

1. The Need to be Proactive in Determining the Future of Histotic Folsom.
In order to protect their investment, patcel ov/ners must be partners in the process that determines

the level and frequency of services, and how new improvements and development projects ate

implemented. The HFPBID will allo.r these owners to lead and shape future services and

improvements through the HFPBID.

2. The Need to Attract New Business and Investment Throughout Historic Folsom.
If Historic Folsom is to compete as a successfirl commetcial district it must develop its own well-

financed, proactive strategy to retain businesses and tenants as well 
^s 

attract new business and

investrnent. The HFPBID provides the financial resources to develop and implement a focused

strategy that will work to pfevent and fiIl vacancies and aLttact neve tenants to all ateas of Historjc

Folsom.

3. An Opportunity to Cteate a Pivate/Public Patnership with a Unified Voice for
Historic Folsom.

Because parcel owners would be investing financiai resources through the HFPBID, they will be

looked upon as a strong p^finer in negotiations vzith the City. This partnership -ill have the ability

to leverage the patcel owner's investment with additional pubJic investment in Historic Folsom.

4. An Opportunity to Establish.Private Sector Management and Accountability.
A non-profit, private orgatizaion formed for the sole pulpose of improving Historic Folsom will
manage the services provided and the HFPBID. Annual HFPBID work plans and budgets ate

developed by a board composed of stakeholders that own property in the Historic Folsom.

Improvements and activities provided by the HFPBID are subject to private sector performance

standards, controls, and accountability.

5Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan
Page 220

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



III. BACKGROUND

The International Downtown Association estimates that more than 1,500 Property and Business

Improvement Districts (PBID$ currendy operate throughout the United States and Canada. PBIDs ate

a time-tested tool for property ov/ners who wish to come together and obtain collective services which

benefit their properties.

PBIDs provide supplemental services in addition to those provided by local govemment' They may also

finrnce phy.ical and capital improvements. These improvements and activities are concentrated within

a distinct geographic area and are funded by a special patcel assessment. Services and improvements are

only provided to those who pay the assessment.

Although funds are collected by the local govemment, they are then ditected to apivatenonprofit. The

rronprofit implements services and ptovides day-to-day oversight. The nonprofit is managed by a Board-

of Dfuectors r.presenting those who pay the assessment, to help ensufe the services meet the needs of
pfopefty ownefs and arc responsive to changing conditions within the PBID.

PBIDs all over the globe have been proven to work by providing services that improve the overall viability

of commercial districts, resulting in higher propefty values, lease tates, occupaflcy rates, and sales volumes'

The HFPBID will be renewed pursuant to a state law that took effect inJanuary of 7995. The "Property

and Business Improvement District Latxr of L994," which was signed into law by Govemor Pete Wilson,

ushered in a new generation of Property and Business Improvement Districts in California. I(ey

ptovisions of the law include:

ptoperries in each individual PBID;

of proposed assessments;

ptograms, with oversight from property owners and the City;

are willing to pay; and

property owners.

The "Properq andBusiness Improvement Business District Law of 1'994' is provided in Appendix 2 of
this document.

6Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan
Page 221

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



IV. HISTORYANDACCOMPLISHMENTS

A. History

Folsom's Historic District is the City's original centtal business district, with a vast amount of
history and unique chancter that is beloved by the community. Folsom has experienced significant

growth and the Folsom Historic District property owners embraced the need for the district to be

clean, safe, atttacive, and marketable. With the gtowth of new shopping centers, Historic Folsom

pfoperty owners felt it vital to continue to 
^tttactvisitors 

with enhanced beautification and

professional management. The mission of the Folsom Historic District Association is to preserve,

and independently shape the unique qualities that make it atttactive, safet, cleaner, and mote

marketable.

In 1,997 the City of Folsom designated a defined area known as the Suttet Street Histonc

Commercial Subarea in the Historic District Specific Plan, with a goal to maintain, restore, and

reconstruct sites which represent the history of the Folsom area. These are the boundaries which

encompass the PBID.

In2006 the Folsom Historic District Association began the process of establishing a PBID. The

goal was to provide for the maintenance, beautification, marketing, and management of a completed

Streetscape Project funded by the Folsom Redevelopment Agency. The PBID was established for its

initial five (5) year term beginning in 2008 and was subsequendy renewed in 201'4 for a ten (10) year

tefm.

B. Accomplishments

The Historic District of Folsom is a thdving, vibrant place to be proud of. It is without question that

since its inception in 2008,the PBID has been pivotal in making a difference in the development of this

special part of Folsom. Listed below are some key points in which this valuable program is working:

Advocagv and Program Coordination
o Routine programs that are encouraged and promoted:

o Monthly MerchantMeetings/networking
r Fosters a sense of community and good neighbors
I Merchant Meetings have included meetings with Safety Officers, Ftee

CPR Ttaining, Community Leader discussions
r Important reviews of upcoming, tecendy passed, or cuffent events

o Marketing and Insagram classes, etc .

o Monthly marketing meeting with City, Chamber, Museums

o Neighbor and Stakeholder quartedy meetings

o Regular updates between meetings to all businesses within the District

o Regular updates to the community via Constant Contact, e-blasts, Website

updates

o ProfessionalManagement
o 1 full-time execudve director

7Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan
Page 222

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



o 2 seasonal Part time emPloYees

o 60 on-call seasonal event staff

o Sewices also include accoundng, legal, telephone, postage, and insurance costs.

Image Enhancement and Matketing
o PublicPlazaActvalion

o Year-round Saturday Farmets Matket dmwing in 800-1000 visitors weekly

o 65+ days Seasonal Ice rink drawing in 22,000 skaters and additional 45,000

observers

e AmphitheaterActivation
o Yeat-roundactivation

o Concerts

o Dance Performances

o Graduations

o Local High School Spirit Parades

o Fashion Shows

o Award Ceremonies for local sporting events

o Matketing and Promotion of the Historic District

o lncreased 

H':*5:L:,"J"'::tT 
through new events

o Sip and Stroll

o Spirits, Brews, and Bites

o Hometown Parade

o Art Hop
o Folsom Lake Symphony lerformance
o Peter kwis Memorial Blood Drive
o Soap Box D.tby
o Festifall

o Spring and Fall Concert Series

o Twilight Concert Series (August)

o Holiday Light Promenade - 6 week Christmas Ught Stroll in the District,

Santa Visits, Horse and Carriage rides

o Pedestrjan Promenade - Road closures, live music, pop up events

o Partner Events - FHDA Handles the scheduling, permits, communications and assists with

marketing for these annual events:

o Shakespeate (Take Note TrouPe)

o Peach Festival piving Smart)

o Light up the Dark (?owerhouse Ministties)

o Eggcellent Adventure PassPort

o One-Off Events

o Heto Recognition (Folsom Fite Departrnent)

o Rainbow Btidg. 100 Yeat Centennial Event

o VW and Exotic Car shows

8Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan
Page 223

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



a

o and too many more to list

Btanding
o New Logos for FHDA - Regular

o New Logo for FHDA - Holiday Season

o New District banners (Spdng andWinter)

Video Production
o Videos featuring Histotic Disuict merchants during Covid

o Videos featuring dancing merchants for Reopening Celebmtion

o Sponsor thankyouvideos for malor events

o Videos featuring highlights from the C'mas Ttee Lighting, Holiday Ptomenade, and

F{ometown Pande

Enhanced Maintenance
r Maintenance and beautification program that sffives to keep the Historic District neat and tidy,

as well as make aesthetic improvements

o 
""T"#ff:?l'#:#l'""^u'a on 3 brocks

r Shade Structure over amphitheater

' Cametas at Parking Garage,Amphitheatet and Sutter St

: i;#J,##fi:H.1-;.f 
ltT*lln "o'

o 15 ambassadors trained to provide support on weekends and during

events

Lincoln Highway signage in district

r Denotes Folsom's panin the eady 1900 highway system

Continsencv and Renewal
o Paftof the PBID plan is a fiscal reserve to account for changes in anticipated revenue andf ot

expenses. This is a very small part of the overall budget (4'/)bttvery prudent to plan for.

r At the end of the PBID terrn, if there are overages in this portion of the budget, the funds can

be used toward tenewal of the PBID.

9Histotic Folsom PBID Management District Plan
Page 224

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



V. BOUNDARIES

A. HFPBID Boundaries
The HFPBID is located in the historic commercial area of the City of Folsom. It is bound by the Folsom

Lake State Recreation are orr the north and west, the Sutter Street / Figueroa Street Alley on the south,

and Scott Street on the east.

The service area includes approximately 81 properties with 46 propefty owners. The HtrPBID boundary

is illustrated by the map below. A larger map is ava:lable on request by calling Civitas at (91'6) 437 -4300.

Historic Folsom PBID

Ito
Irt
f,Itr.
Io

.lg
et

"$,.o

"(ths

*'d"*
R'u.glc"

:.'
.,.""t"' 

.-is
\ff\".* **

6' ..d
-ss 

"ts'J" 
^r$%*o

oo+ev*o 
to*

%*
,4tn

taesrst Natoma st ,%*

*%-:o
d"- o^

";;\,w,Forso{o

a,

.o*"

oo
Eo

a I

at

o
I

c
a

V
)

TAs

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 10

Page 225

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



B. Benefit Zones
The Historic Folsom PBID will have four Zones of service. Zone 1. includes parcels within the HtrPBID

boundades in the Historic Folsom Station, the Regional Transit Lrght Rail Station, and the Leidesdorff

Plaza next to rhe Light Rail Station. Zone 2 includes all patcels within the HFPBID boundaries along

Sutter Street that are bounded by Folsom Boulevatd to the west, Scott Stteet to the east, the Sutter Stteet

/ Figoeroa Street Alley to the south, and (with the exceptio n of Zone 1 parcels) by Leidesdorff Stteet on

the norrh. Zone3 includes all parcels vdthin the HFPBID boundaries north of Leidesdorff Street that are

bounded by Folsom Boulevard to the west, the Folsom Lake State Recreation Area (FLSRA) to the nofih,

and Riley Street to the east. Zone 4 includes all parcels within the HFPBID boundaries located in the

Coqporation Yard, west of Folsom Boulevatd.

The HFPBID boundary is illustrated by the boundary map included in Appendix 3. Parcels in the map

are identified by Map ID numbers corresponding to the Assessor's Parcel Numbers, included in the

Assessment Calculation Table which can be found in Appendix 4.

It is the intent of the Engineer's Report that each patcel included in the HFPBID can be clearly identified.

Every effort has been made to ensure that ail, parcels included in the HFPBID are consistent in the

boundary description, the boundary map (included as Appendix 3), and the Assessment Calculation Table

(included as Appendix 4). However, if inconsistencies arise, the otder of precedence shall be: 1) the

Assessment Calculation Table, 2) the District Boundary Map, and 3) this boundary description.

If the development, ownership, size, or zotttng of a parcel changes during the term of this Disttict, the

assessment calculation may be modified accordingly.

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 11

Page 226

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



\rI. SERVICE PLAN & BUDGET

A. Renewal
Property and business owners in Historic Folsom had been concemed about the need for cootdinated

supplemental services in the atea for several years. City services and effots in the area have been

welcomed, but limited resources have not allowed for a mote comprehensive apptoach to managing the

commercial area. As a result of the need for sewices the HtrPBID was formed in 2008, and subsequendy

renewed tn201,4,and properry owners now wish to renew the HtrPBID fot another ten (10) year term.

A service plan to provide special benefits to assessed properties was developed using several methods. A
series of propefty owner meetings, a survey of property owners, and an analysis of curent pfoperty

conditions and needs were conducted. The pnmary needs identified were: Advocacy & Ptogram

Coordination, Image Enhancement & Marketing, and Enhanced Maintenance. To meet those needs, the

renewed HF'PBID will continue to generate funds to provrde these services, and related administration

to assessed parcels within its boundaties.

B. Improvementst Maintenance and Activities
The HFPBID will provide supplemental improvements, maintenance and activities that are above and

beyond those provided by the City and othet govemment agencies. None of the services to be provided

by the HFPBID are provided by the City or othet govemment agencies. The improvements and activities

will be provided directly and only to assessed parcels; they wiil not be provided to parcels that ate not

urr....d. Each and every service is unique to the HFPBID, thus the benefits provided arep^tticulat 
^nd

distinct to each assessed parcel.

l. Advocacy and Program Coordination
To provide Historic Folsom property owners with an effective, clear voice in government

decisions, the advocacy will include an administratot to speak fot the ownets within the HFPBID.

The administratorwill ensure the delivery of quality services of the HFPBID and act as the unified

voice to repfesent the interests of assessed parcels within the HFPRID. The HFPBID will focus

on ways to garfler additional funding and services from public entilies specifically for Histotic

Folsom improvements. These programs will work to specially benefit assessed parcels by

increasing corffnerce and making them more desirable for shoppers and potential tenants and

will be a service provided direcdy to assessed parcels that is not provided to the public-at-large or

parcels sutrounding the District. The program coordination budget also includes genetal

administrative costs, such as accoundng, legal, telephofie, postage, and insurance costs.

2. Image Enhancement and Marketing
Image enhancement will include marketing and promotions to promote Historic Folsom as a

destination with a rich set of unique opportunities. In order to draw customers to Historic

Folsom, the District needs to market itself as a single locality for a wide variety of atttactions,

events, and services. The HtrPBID will coordinate exciting and fun events for the histotic area.

Further, the marketing program wi.ll garner positive media coverage of Historic Folsom, and the

good things happening in the arca.Interrrall1 it will be important to facilitate consistent and

fiequent communications with parcel owners and tenants. The Historic Folsom PBID will work

closely with the Folsom Chamber of Commerce, the Folsom Tourism Bureau, and othet

stakeholders in the Historic Disuict, as well as Folsom's City Govetnment, to coordinate

marketing efforts to make this program as efficient and possible. These programs will work to

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan T2

Page 227

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



specially benefit assessed parcels by increasing commerce and making them more desirable for

,hopp.t. and potential tenants, and will be a service provided direcdy to assessed parcels that is

not provided to the public-at-latge or parcels suffounding the District.

3. Enhanced Maintenance
A maintenance and beautification program will keep Historic Folsom clean as well as work to

make aesthetic improvements. A landscaping program will maintin trees and cut back any weeds

along the sidewalks and in public areas. In order to establish and maintain a uniform standatd of
cleanliness throughout the HFPBID, a m^nten^nce pattol will ptovide additional debris and

garbage collection beyond existing City services. The HFPBID will condnue to work with the

City to enforce ordinances which encourage a cleanand aesthetically pleasing envitonment. These

programs will work to specially benefit assessed parcels by incteasing colrrnerce and making them

mote desirable fot shoppers and potential tenants.

4. Contingency and Renewal
The budget includes a prudent fiscal reserye. Changes in data and other issues may change the

anticipated revenue and expenses. In order to buffer the orgarization for unexpected changes in

,.rr.nr., andfot allow the HFPBID to fund other overhead or renewal costs, the reserve is

included as a budget item. At the expitation of the HFPBID, if there are contingency funds

remaining and owners wish to renew, the remaining funds could be used for the costs of renewal'

5. County and City Administration Fee

The City of Folsom shall retain a fee equal to thtee percent (3%") of the amount of the assessment

collected to cover the costs of collection and administration for the City of Folsom and the

County of Sacramento.

C. Annual Assessment Budget
A projected ten (1O)-year budget for the HFPBID is provided below in sub-section F,. The overall

assessment budget shall remain consistent with this Plan. In the event of alegal challenge, assessment

funds may be used to defend the HFPBID. The annual assessment budget is based on the follovdng

assumptions and guidelines:

7. The cost of providing improvements, maintenance and activities m^y vaty depending upon the

market cost for those improvements, maintenance, and activities. Expenditures may require

adjustment up or down to continue the intended level of improvements, maintenarice, and

activities. The FHDA and their boatd shall have the authority to adjust budget allocations

between the categodes by no more than fifteen percent (157o) of the total budget per year' Any

change will be approved by the FHDA and submitted with the Annual Report.

2. Funds not spent in any given yeat may be rolled over to the next yeat'

3. The assessment rate will be subject to annual increases that will not exceed three petcent (3%)

per year. The annual increase will be based on the Consumet Price Index for All Items fot the

San Francisco-Oakland-San Jos6 Area published by the United States Departrnent of Labor

Bureau of Labor Statistics or, if no longet published, the City may select as a reference another

index published by either the State of Califomia or a federal department or agency charged with

the responsibility of measuring the cost of living in the local geographical area.The City Council

may delay or reject the annual increase in its discretion. The projections below in sub-section E
illustrate the maximum annual three percent QO increase for all budget items.

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 13

Page 228

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



D. Service Budget
The total improvement, maintenance, and activity budget for 2024 that is funded by property assessments

is $170,757.72. \n addition to the assessment revenue, the progtams will be supplemented by non-

assessment funds. The total of non-assessment funds, and the determination of special and general

benefit, is included in the Engineer's Repott. The total of assessment and non-assessment funds is

provided in Appendix 5. Below is an illustration of the estimated total assessment budget allocations for

each budget categolry for the initial year of the of the District. Non-assessment funds may be shifted

between budget categories as needed by the Board of the Ownets'Association.

County/City
Administration Fee,

5s,1.23,3%

lnitial Annual Assessment Budget i 5t7O,757.L2

Contlngency/ Renewal,
Advocacy & Program

Coordination,

5s9,76s ,3s%

56,830 ,4%

Enhanced

Maintenance,

s4O,982 ,24%

lmage Enhancement

$58,057,34%

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 1.4

Page 229

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



E. Annual Mo<imum Assessment Budget
The budget below assurnes the maximum annual increase of three percent (3%") is enacted and that there

are no changes to the categodcal budget allocations.

Year
Advocacy &

Program
Coordination

Image
Enhancement

Enhanced
Maintenance

Contingency/
Reserve

County/
City
Fee

Total

2024 fi59,764.99 ff58,057.42 $40,981.71 $6,830.29 fi5,r22.7r fi1,70,757.1.2

2025 $61.,557.94 fi59,799.r4 fi42,21,1,.16 $7,035.20 fi5,276.39 $175,879.83

2026 $63,404.68 fi61.,593.12 fi43,477.49 fi7,246.25 $5,434.68 $r81,,156.22

2027 $65,306.82 fi63,440.91 fi44,781.82 ff7,463.64 ff5,597.72 $186,590.91

2028 $67,266.03 fi65,344.1,4 fi46,1,25.27 $7,687.55 $5,765.66 $192,i88.65

2029 fi69,284.01 fi67,304.46 $47,509.03 $7,918.18 fis,938.62 $197,954.30

2030 $71,,362.53 fi69,323.59 $48,934.30 fi8,155.72 $6,116.78 $203,892.92

2031 $73,503.40 $71,403.30 $50,402.33 $8,400.40 $6,300.29 $210,009.72

2032 $75,708.50 $73,545.40 $51,914.40 fi8,652.41 $6,489.30 fi216,31,0.01

2033 fi77,979.76 fi75,751,.76 $53,471.83 $8,911.98 $6,683.97 fi222,799.30

Total $685,138.66 ff665,563.24 $469,809.34 ff78,301.62 $58,726.12 $1,957,538.98

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan i5
Page 230

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



VII. ASSESSMENT RATE

A. Assessment Formula
Individual assessed parcels shall be assessed an assessment rate according to each assessed parcel's

proportionate special benefit derived ftom the services provided to each assessed parcel, as shown in the

table belovr.

Parcel Type

Annual Assessment Rate ($/sq ft)

ZonelA ZonetB Zone2 Zone3 Zone4

Commercial Uses $0.1s $0.17 $0.1 7 $0.085 $0.075

Non-Profit/Religious $0.07s $0.085 $0.08s $o.o42s $0.0375

B. Changes in Development' Ownership rZoning, or Parcel Size

If the development, ownership, size, or zontngof aparcelwithin the HtrPBID boundary changes during

the term of the HFPBID the assessment amount may be modified according to the assessment

methodology detailed in this Plan that is applicable to the parcel. These changes may be a result of land

adjustments (including but not limited to lot splits, consolidations, dght away setbacks, etc.), new

construction, ne\r/ ownership, or changes in zoning.

C. Assessment Ballot and Public Notice
Dudng the hearing process, an Assessment Notice will be sent to owners of each patcel in the HFPBID.

The Assessment Notice provides an estimated assessment. The final individual assessment for any

particular parcel may change, up or down, if the parcel square footage, patcel type, benefit zofle, ot
d.rrelopm.nt status differ from those used to calculate the amount shown on the Assessment Notice. A
[st of parcels to be included in the HFPBID is provided within Appendix 4.

D. Time and Manner fot Collecting Assessments
As provided by State Law, the HFPBID assessmenturill 

^ppe 
r as a separate line item on annual property

tax bills prepared by the County of Sacramento. Parcels which do not receive properly tax bills will be

invoiced by the City. Property tax bills are genetally distributed in the fall, and payment is expected by

lump sum or installment. The County of Sacramento shall distdbute funds collected to the City of
Folsom, which shall forward them to the HFPBID. Existing laws for enforcement and appeal of property

taxes, including penalties and interest, apply to the HFPBID assessments.

E. Bonds
Bonds shall not be issued.

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 16

Page 231

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



VIII. GOVERNANCE

A. Ownets'Association
The HFPBID shall condnue to be govemed by the Folsom Historic Disrict Assocation (FHDA), vdth
oversight from the Folsom City Council. The FHDA shall serve as the Owners'Association descnbed

in the Streets and Highways Code 536651. The Boatd of Directors of FHDA and its staff arc chatged

with the day-to-day operations of the HFPBID.

A majodty of the Board of Directors of Folsom Historic District Assocation must be parcel owners

p^vrflg the assessment. The Board may also include representation from business owners, the City of
Folsom, and the County of Sacramento. The Board of Directors must represent a variety of interests

within the HFPBID and respond to the needs of property and business owners from various

"commercial neighborhoods" within the HFPBID.

B. BtownAct & Public Records Act Compliance
An Owners'Association is a private entity and may not be considered a public entity for any pu{pose,

flot m^y its board members or staff be considered to be public officials for any pulpose. The Owners'

Association is, however, subject to govemment tegulations relating to transparency, namely the Ralph M.

Brown Act and the Califomia Public Records Act. These regulations are designed to promote public

accountability. The Owners'Association must act as a legislative body under the Ralph M. Rrown Act
(Govemment Code 554950 et seq.). Thus, meetings of the trHDA Board of Directots and cettain

committees must be held in compliance with the public notice and other requirements of the Brown Act.

The Owners' Association is also subject to the tecord keeping and disclosute requirements of the

CaJrforna Public Records Act.

C. Annual Report
The FHDA shall present an annual report at the end of each year of operation to the City Council

pursuant to Streets and Highways Code 536650 (see Appendix 2). The annual report is a prospective

teport for the upcoming year and must include:
7. Any proposed changes in the boundaries of the HFPBID or in any benefit zones or classification

of property within the district;
2. The improvements, maintenance, and activities to be provided fot that fiscal yea4

3. The estimated cost of providing the improvements, maintenance, and activities to be ptovided
for that fiscal year;

4. The method and basis of ler,ying the assessment in sufficient detail to allow each teal property
owner to estimate the amount of the assessmellt to be levied against his or het property for that

fiscal yeaq
5. The estimated amount of any surplus or deficit revenues to be carried over from a previous fiscal

yea4and
6. The estimated amount of any contributions to be made from sources other than assessments

levied pursuant to this Plan.

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 17

Page 232

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



IX. ENGINEER'S REPORT

The HFPBID's parcel assessmeflts will be imposed in accordance with the provisions of Atticle XIIID
of the California Constitution' Atticle XIIID provides that "on11' special benefits ate assessable,"l and

requires the City to "sepatate the general benef,tts from the special benefits conferred on a parcel."2

Special benefits are a "patdcular and distinct benefit over and above general beneltts confetted on real

piop.tty located in the district or to the public-at-large."3 Convetsely, a general benefit is "confetred

on real propefiy located in the district or to the public-at-large."a Assessment law also mandates that

"no assessment shall be imposed on any patcel which exceeds the teasonable cost of the proportional

special benefit conferred on that parcel."s

The Engineer determined the total cost of the improvements and activities, quantified the general

benefit accruing to the public-atJarge and non-assessed parcels adjacent to and within the HFPBID,
and separated that amount from the special benefit accruing to the assessed parcels. Then, the

Engineer determined the proportional special benefit derived by each patcel and allocated the special

benefit value of thb improvements and activities accordingly. The Engineet's detetminations and

detailed calculations are summatized in this report.

A. Separation of Genenl and Special Benefits
Each of the improvements and activities, and the associated costs and assessments within the

HFPBID, were reviewed, identihed, and allocated based on special and general benefits pursuant to
Article XIIID of the Cahfornta Constitution. The assessment has been apportioned based on the

proportional special benefits conferred to the assessed parcels located within the HFPBID boundaries

as determined below.

l. General Benefits
Unlike special benefits, which are conferred direcdy and only upon assessed parcels, a general benefit

is conferred on the general public or non-assessed parcels. Existing City and other public services,

which are provided to every person and parcel, everywhere within the City, ate afl example of a general

benefit. Although the HFPBID's boundaries have been narrowly dtawn and programs have been

carefully designed to provide special benefits, and activities and improvements will only be provided

directly to assessed parcels, it is acknowledged that there will be general benefits as a result of the

District's activities and improvements.

The California Constitution mandates that "onl;' spssid benefits ate assessable, and an agency shall

separate the genetal benefits from the special benefits."6 "Generally, this separation and quantification

of general and special benefits must be accomplished by appotrioning the cost of a service or
improvement between the two and assessing property owners only for the portion of the cost

representing special benefits."7 The first step that must be undertaken to separate genetal and special

benefits provided by the District's activities and improvements is to identify and quanti$' the general

benefits. There are two bodies who can receive general benefits: the public-atJarge within the

HF'PBID, and non-assessed patcels within and surrounding the HFPRID.

t Cal. Const, arL XIII D, S4(a)
z Cal. Const, arl Xlll D, Sa[a)
3 rd, s2[i)
a Cal Corist, artXlll D $2fil
s Cal. Consl, arl XIll D, S4[a]
e Cal. Consl, artXlll D Sa[aJ
z Golden Hiil neighbor-hobd Association v. City of San Diego (2011) 199 CalApp'4n 416

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 18

Page 233

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



^. General Benefit to the Public-at-Large
Although the activities and improvements are narrowly designed and carefully implemented to specially

benefit the assessed parcels, and only provided direcdy to assessed patcels, they will generate a genen),

benefit to the public-at-largewithin the HFPBID. State law indicates that "Activities undertaken for the

pulpose of confering special benefits upon property to be assessed inherently produce incidental or
collateral effects that benefit property or persons not assessed."s However, "the mete factthat special

benefits produce incidenal or collatetal effects that benefit property or Persons not assessed does not
convert any portion of those special benefits or their incidental or collatetal effects into general benefits."e

Further, "the value of arry incidental or collatetal effects that ar{se from the imptovements, maintenance

or activities of a property-based district and that benefit propefty or persons not assessed shall not be

deducted from the entfuety of the cost of any special benefit or affect the ptoportionate special benefit

dedved by each idenufied patcel."1o Thus, although there may be some incidental benefit to persons

engaged in business on the assessed patcels, that incidental benefit is not considered general benefit

because it is inherendy produced by activities and improvements that provide speciai benefits to the

assessed parcels. There is, however, a genetal benefit to persons not engaged in business on the assessed

parcels.

Intercept surveys conducted in similar districts have found that approximately 98.60/o of pedestdan traffic

within the district boundaries is engaged in business on assessed parcels, while the remaining

approximately l,.4ohis simply passing thtough and not engagingin business on the assessed parcelsll. To
ensure that the assessment dollars do not fund general benefits to the public-at-1arge, that portion of the

cost of services will be paid for with funds not obtained through assessments. Out of an abundance of
caudon, the 1.4oh figure was rounded to 2o/o for the pulposes of this Engineets Report. The 2o/o of
taffic passing through does not l:rave any connecdon to the assessed patcels, and therefore does not
represent a special benefit to the assessed parcels. The2o/o will, however, receive a derivative and indirect
general benefit as a result of the activities and improvements being provided in the HFPBiD. Therefote,

it is estimate d that 2oh of the benefit created by the HFPBID's services is general benefit provided to the

public-at-large. To ensure that the assessment dollars do not fund general benefits to the public-at-Iarge,

that portion of the cost of activities and improvements will be paid for with funds not obtained through

assessments. Using the2oh figure, based on the initial year activity and improvement budget, the value of
this general benefi t to the public -at-large is fi3j9327 (fi17 9,662.27 *0.02).

b. General Benefit to Non-Assessed Parcels

Although they are only provided direcdy to the assessed parcels, the HFPBID's activities and

improvements may also confer general beneltts upon non-assessed parcels within and surrounding
the HFPBID. One study examining ptoperty values in PBID areas found "no evidence of spill-over
impacts (either good or bad) on commercial propeties located just outside the BID's boundaties;"12

however, the California Court of Appeals has stated that "services specifically intended for assessed

parcels concomitantly confer collateral general benefits to surrounding properties."t3 It is reasonable

to conclude that activities and improvements within the HFPBID will have an incidental impact on

non-assessed parcels surrounding or within the HFPBID boundaries. Although the legislature has

a Streets and Highways Code seaion 36601(h)[2)
e tbid
ro Streets and Highways Code Section 36622(k)(2)
rr Surveys conducted in: North Park, San Diego (fanuary 2015J; Downtown Burbank (October 2017); Downtown Pomona (April
2018'l: and Sunrise MarketPlace, Citrus Heiehts fDecember 20191
12 Fuiman Center for Real Estate & Urban Poliry; ihe Impact of Bufiness Improvement Districts on Property Values: Evidence from
New York Citv [20071 o.4
ts Beuu v. Ri'iei'siae [2oro) 184 calApp.4t} 1516

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 19

Page 234

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



indicated that "the value of any incidental or collateral effects that arise ftom the imptovements,

maintenance, or activities of a property-based district and that benefit property or persons not assessed

shall not be deducted from the entirety of the cost of any special beneFlt,"1a the California Court of
Appeals has noted that "the chatacteization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel teceives

a direct advantage from the improvement. . .or teceives an indirect, derivative advantage resulting from

the overall public benehts of the improvement."ls Those derivative and indirect impacts are

considered general benefits and will be quantiFred and separated.

In this Engineer's opinion, because activities and improvements are provided only within the HFPBID

and on its perimetet, patcels separated from the HFPBID by either at least one intervening patcel or

an impassable physical barier such as a wall, rzrilroad track, freeway, or ditch will not teceive spill ovet

benefits. Parcels separated from the HFPBID will not benefit because they are physically removed

from the actual location of activities and improvements provided, and do not face serviced parcels.

Therefore, this analysis considers non-assessed parcels within the HFPBID's boundaries and

surrounding parcels that arc immediately adjacent to and accessible from the HFPBID's boundaries.

The total HFPBID activity and improvement budget for the first year is $179,663.27. Aftet reducing

the activity and improvement budget by the general benefit to the public-at-large ($3,593.27), the

remaining benefit to parcels is $176,070.00. This benefit has been distributed to both assessed and

non-assessed parcels using the following methodology. The general benefit to the public-at-latgehas

been proportionally allocated to the HFPBID's activity and improvement categories as shown in the

following table.

Category Benefit to Patcels
Benefit to
Public-at-

Latge
Total

Advocacy & Ptogram Coordination
$61,890.36 fi1,,263.07 fi63,1.s3.43

Image Enhancement
$se.707.94 $1,218.53 fi60.926.47

Enhanced Maintenance
fi42.1.46.79 $860.14 $43.006.93

Contingency/Renewal
fi7,042.81, fi143.73 $7,186.54

County/City Administtation Fee
fis,282.1.0 $107.80 $5,389.90

TOTAL
$176,070.00 $3,593.27 $179.663.27

To determine the general benefit to parcels, the Engineer assigned each parcel group a benefit factor,

determined the appropri ate parcel characteristic to use in the calculation, multiplied the benefit factor

by the benefit characteristic to determine the benefit units attributable to each parcel group, and

apportioned the remaining service cost (service cost minus general benefit to the public) in accotdance

with the benefit units derived by each parcel group'

i. Benefit Factors

All parcels within and adjacent to the HFPBID have been assigned a benefit factor to mathematically

represent the proportional special and general benefit and quantiSt the value of each. The

determination of benefit factors for each type of activity follows.

14

15
Streets and Hishwavs Code secnon36622(k)(2)
Tiburon v. Bon"ande"r [2009J 180 CalApp.4*'1057,1077

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 20

Page 235

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Tangibk Aaiuities

The tangible activities (those that are physically provided via a person or people wotking thtoughout
the district) to be provided by the HFPBID generate three types of special benefits:

Seraice -The primary special benefit provided by the HFPBID's physical act-ivities is the actual

service.
Presence - The HtrPBID's physical activities also provide the special beneht of an individual's
pfesence on the assessed parcel as the activities are provided, which can have a deterrent effect

and creates a positive impression that the area is well-maintained and safe. The "Disneyland
effect" is the benefit the parcels receive fiom the observation that parcels are being

maintained. There are studies which link the petception of cleanliness to a perception of
increased security.
Proximig - The HFPBID's physical activities also provide the special benefit of being in
proximity to a cleaner, safer parcel. Neighboring patcels enjoy the spillover benefits of being

zdlacent to increased safeLy and cleanliness.

The majority of the benefit received by the patcels is the tesults of the district's services; onsite

ptesence and proximity are lesser benefits. It is this Engineer's estimation that seventy-fltve percent

(75ok) of the special benefit from the HFPBID's physical activities is the service, while the presence

and proximity benefits each account for twelve and one-half petcent (12.5% presence, 12.5%

proximiry) of the special benefit. Assessed patcels will receive all three benefits; non-assessed parcels

within and adjacent to the HF'PBID will not be directly serviced and therefore only receive the general

benefit of proximity.

Intangible Actiuitiet

Some of the HFPBID's activities, such as marketing, are distinct in that they are not provided to a
targeted area within the HFPBiD , rather they arc provided via Internet,. radio, and other forms of
media and targeted at an audience outside the HFPBID in an effot to bring the audience into the

HFPBID. These activities provide two types of special benefits:

Direct Exposure -The primary special benefit provided by the HFPBID's intangible activities

is exposure. The intangible activities increase awareness of the HF'PBID as a commercial and

business destination and lead to increased patronage.

Incidental Exposure - The HFPBID's intangible activities will also have a secondary special

benefit of incidental exposure, such as word-of-mouth exposure, that results from the direct

exposure and increases awareness of the HFPBID as a commerital and business destination.

The majority of the benefit fiom these activities is the direct exposure; the incidental exposure is a
lesset beneht. It is this Engineer's estimation that ninety percent (90"/r) of the special benefit from

the intangible activities is direct exposure, while ten percent (10%) is incidental exposure. Assessed

parcels will receive both as special benefits; non-assessed parcels within and adjacent to the HF'PBID

will not be direcdy marketed and therefore only teceive the general benefit of incidental exposure.

Factorr Dennnined

Based on the foregoing analysis, all assessed parcels within the HFPBID specially benefit ftom the

HtrPBID's activities and improvements, and have been assigned a benefit factor of 1.0. Parcels that

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 21

Page 236

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



are not assessed have been assigned benefit factors based on the portion of the benefit they will
receive, as described above. The non-assessed parcels will benefit from 12.5% of the tangible activities

and 1.0o/o of the intangible activities; therefore they have been assigned benefit factors of 0.125 and
0.10, respecti".ly.

ii. Non-Assessed Benefit Characteristics

There are two types of parcels that are not assessed; those rrithin the HFPBID and those immediately
adjacent to and accessible from the HFPBID. Because they generally benefit in a differing manner,

distinct parcel characteristics are used to quantifii the genetal benefit to each type.

Inside -Non-assessed parcels inside of the HFPBID are surrounded by patcels that are assessed

and receiving the full special benefits; they will, therefore, receive the general benefits of
proximity and indirect exposure. These parcels are impacted on more than one side by the

HFPBID's activities, marketing has a direct impact all around them, and activities are provided
all around them. Because these parcels are surrounded by specially benefitted parcels, it is

appropriate that parcel square footage be used to measute the general benefit they receive.

AQacent -Adjacent parcels are those thatare immediately adjacent to or direcdy across the

street from specially benefitted parcels, and accessible fiom specially benefitted parcels. These

parcels generally benefit differently than those inside the district, because these parcels are

adjacent to, rather than surrounded by, specially benefitted parcels. Square footage is not an

appropriate measure of benefit to these parcels. Because the parcels are not surrounded by

serviced parcels, a long, shallow parcel with the same square footage as a deep, narrow patcel

will receive a different level of general benefit. Likewise, two patcels with the same depth but
a different width adjacent to serviced parcels will benefit differently. To account for this

difference, it is appropriate that parcel linear frontage be used to measure the general benefit
the adjacent parcels receive.

iii. Calculations

To quantify and separate the general benefit to non-assessed parcels, the following calculations were

undertaken for each budget category.

1,. The total service budget for each category was determined and the amount of general

benefit to the public-atJarge was subttacted from the category budget.

2. The benefit factor applicable to each activity or improvement was multiplied by the

parcel square footage or linear frontage of assessed and non-assessed parcels, to
determine the number of benefit units received by each parcel group.

3. The benefit units for all parcel groups were summed, and the percentage of benefit
units attributable to each parcel group was calculated.

4. The total remaining activity and improvement budget, less the amount aheady

determined to be general benefit to the public-at-large, was allocated to general and

special benefit categories for each patcel group using the calculated benefit percent
and applicable benefit characteristic methodology.

5. The special and general benefit resulting from the administrative and contingency

portions of the budget wete determined based on the proportional allocation of
benefits derived from acdvities and improvements.

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 22

Page 237

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Aduocary dz Program Coordination

The advocacy & program coordination budget, minus the amount of general benefit to the public-at-

large, is $61,890.36. The calculations below determine the amount of general benefit to non-assessed

parcels within the HFPBID. The advocacy & program coordination budget c tegory contains tangible

activities; the Engineer used the 0.125 benefit factor to quantify the general benefit.

The advocacy & program coordination budget, minus the amount of genetal benefit to the public and

non-assessed parcels within the HFPBID, is $60,009.03. The calculations below determine the

amount of general benefit to parcels adiacent to the HF'PBID.

Therefore, the allocation of the advocacy & program coordination budget is as follows

General Benefit - Public-At-Large fir,263.07

Genetal Benefit - Inside Patcels $1,881.33

General Benefit - Adjacent Patcels fi244.04

Special Benefit fi59,764.99

Total $63,153.43

Image Enhancement

The image enhancement budget, minus the amount of genetal benefit to the public-atJarge, is

$59,707.94. The calculations below determine the amount of general benefit to non-assessed parcels

within the HFPBID. The image enhancement budget category contains intangible activities; the

Engineer used the 0.10 benefit factor to quanti$r the general benefit.

Parcel
Tt'pe

Square

Footaqe
Beneht
Factor

Benefit Units
Benefit
Percent

Remaintng
Budget

Assessed 1,.483.391, x 1.000 = I,483,39I.00 96.9600h x $61.890.36 = 960,009.03

Non-
Assessed 372.044 x0.125 = 46,505.50 3.0400h x $61,890.36 = $1,881.33

Parcel
Twe

Linear
Frontage

Benefit
Factor

Benefit Units
Benefit
Percent

Remaintng
Budset

Inside 20,786 x 1.000 = 20,786.00 99.5930 = 960,009.03 = $59764.99

Adiacent 679 x0j,25 = 84.88 0.40loh = $60.009.03 = $244.04

Parcel
Tvpe

Square

Footage
Benefit
Factor Benefit Units

Benefit
Percent

Remaining
Budset

Assessed L,483,391, x i.000 = i.483,391.00 91.553o/o x $59.707.94 = fi58.247.07

Non-
Assessed 372,044 x 0.100 = 37,204.40 2.4470h x $s9,707.e4 = $1.460.87

Historic Folsom PBiD Management District Plan 23

Page 238

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



The image enhancement budget, minus the amount of general benefit to the public and non-assessed

parcels vdthin the HFPBID , is $58,247 .07. The calculations below determine the amount of general

benefit to parcels adjacent to the HFPBID.

Therefore, the allocation of the image enhancement budget is as follows

General Benefit - Public-At-Latge $1,218.53

General Benefit - Inside Patcels $1,460.87

General Benefit - Adjacent Patcels $189.65

Special Benefit $58,057.42

Total $60,926.47

Enhanced Maintenance

The enhanced maintenance budget, minus the amount of genetal benefit to the public-atJatge, is

fi42,146.79. The calculations below determine the amount of general benefit to rion-assessed parcels

within the HFPBID. The enhanced maintenance budget category contains intangible activities; the

Engineer used the 0.10 benefit factor to quantifii the general benefit'

The enhanced maintenance budget, minus the amount of general benefit to the public and non-
assessed parcels within the HFPBID, is $41,115.58. The calculations below determine the amount of
general benefit to parcels adjacent to the HFPBID.

Parcel
Tvpe

Linear
Frontaqe

Benefit
Factot Bene{it Units

Benefit
Percent

Remaimng
Budqet

Inside 20,786 x 1.000 = 20,786.00 99.674o/o x $58.247.07 = $58.057.42

Adiacent 679 x 0.100 = 67.90 03260k xff58,247.07 = $189.65

Parcel
Twe

Square

Footage
Benefit
Factot Benefit Units

Benefit
Percent

Remaining
Budget

Assessed 1.483,391 x 1.000 = 1.,483,391.00 97.553% xfi42.1.46.79 = $41,115.58

Non-
Assessed 372.044 x 0.100 = 37,204.40 2.447% xfi42.1.46.79 -- ff1,,031,.21

Parcel
Twe

Linear
Frontage

Benefit
Factor Benefit Units

Benefit
Percent

Remaining
Budget

Inside 20,786 x 1.000 = 20.786.00 99.674o/o $41,115.58 = 940,981.71

Adjacent 679 x 0.100 = 67.90 0.3260/o $41,115.58 = $133.87

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 24

Page 239

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Therefore, the allocation of the enhanced maintenance budget is as follows

General Benefit - Public-At-Large $860.14

General Benefit - Inside Patcels $1,031.21

General Benefit - Adjacent Patcels $133.87

Special Benefit $40,981.71

Total $43.006.93

Contingenry/Renewal

The contingency/renewal budget lines items relate to the activities and improvements provided.

These costs have been allocated proportionally based on the special and genetal beneht provided by

each category.

Counry/ Ciry Administration Fee

The County /C[q ^drrrlnrstration 
fee budget lines items relate to the activities and improvements

provided. These costs have been allocated ptoportionally based on the special and general benefit

provided by each category.

iv. Total Benefits

Based on the foregoing calculations, the total beneltts to assessed parcels, non-assessed parcels, and

the general public ate:

Special Benefit to
Parcels

General Benefit
to Patcels

Advocacy & Program Coordination fi59.764.99 fi2.1.25.37

ImaEe Enhancement $58,057.42 $1.650.52

Enhanced Maintenance $40.981.71 $1,16s.08

Activiw Totals $158,804.12 $4.940.97

Percent 96.98250h 3.01,75%

Contingency/Renewal fi6,830.29 $21,2.51

County/ City Administration Fee fi5,1,22.71 $159.3e

Total Parcel Benefits fi170,757.72 fis.31.2.87

Special Parcel General Pubhc Total

Advocacy & Program
Coordination ff59.764.99 $2,125.37 ff1.263.07 $63,153.43

Imaqe Enhancement $58,057.42 $1.650.s2 $1,21.8.53 fi60.926.47

Enhanced Maintenance $40,981.71 $1.165.08 $860.14 $43,006.93

Continqency/Renewal $6.830.29 fi212.52 ff143.73 $7.186.54

County / City Adminis tration
Fee fis.122.71 $159.39 $107.80 $5.389.e0

Total $170,757.12 $5,312.88 $3,593.n $179,663.27

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 25

Page 240

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



c. Non-Assessment Funding
The programs funded by the HFPBID receive additional non-assessment funding in the form of
grants, corporate sponsorships, event income, city general fund contributions, and other

miscellaneous funds. These funding sources arc anticipated to equal or exceed the amount of general

benefit confered annually by the HFPBID's activities and improvements, $8,906.15. These non-

assessmerit funds will be used to p^y for the general benefit provided by the HFPBID's activities and

improvements, ensuring that parcel assessments will only be used to provide special benefits and"any
additional costs of providing general benefits [ate] not included in the amounts assessed."16

2. Special Benefit
The activities and improvements to be provided by the HFPBID constitute and convey special

benefits ditectly to the assessed parcels. Assessment law requites that "the ptoportionate special

benefit derived by each identified parcel shall be .detetmined in telationship to the entirety of the

capital cost of a public improvement, the maintenance and operation expenses of a public

improvement, or the cost of the properry related serwice being provided."17 Futther, "no assessment

shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit

confeffed on that parcel."18 Special benefit "includes incidental or collateral effects that arise from
the improvements, maintenance, or activities of property-based districts even if those incidental or
collaterai effects benefit propetty or persons not assessed."le

To determine the total special benefit value to be conveyed to the assessed patcels, we deduct the

general benefit value ($8,906.15) from the total value of the activities and improvements (fi179,663.27).

The remaining $170,757.72 is considered the special benefit to assessed parcels (the "Total
Assessment"). The Total Assessment fepresents the total value of the special beneht to be provided

by the activities and improvements. The Total Assessment has been proportionally divided among

the assessed parcels so that no assessment exceeds the reasonable cost of the proportional special

benefit conferred on a parcel. The assessmentt^te has been designed to ensure that "ptoperties that

receive the same proportionate special benefit pay the same assessmeflt'"20

Sewice Provided

Total Benefit
Value

Genetal
Benefit

Value to
Public

Benefit Value
to Patcels
(Special &
General)

Special Benefit
to Assessed

Parcels

Advocacy & Program
Coordination fi63.1,53.43 fi1,,263.07 $61,890.36 fi59.764.99

Image Enhancemeflt fi60.926.47 $1,218.53 fi59,707.94 $s8.057.42

Enhanced Maintenance $43.006.93 $860.14 fi42,1.46.78 $40.981.71

Continqencv/Renewal $7,186.54 ffr43.73 fi7.042.81, $6.830.29

County / CiW Admrnisttation Fee $s.389.90 $107.80 $5.282.10 ffs.1,22.71,

TOTAL $179,663.27 $3,593.27 $176.069.99 $170,757.12

16 Streets and Highways Code section 36632(a)
17 Cal. Consl, artXlll LiS4ta)
18 Ibid
rg Streets and Hishwavs Code section 36615.5
20 Tiburonv. Bonhndei 1zoos11B0 CalApp.4tr 1057

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 26

Page 241

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



B. Assessment Methodology

l. Base Formula
Each parcel will be assessed based on ptoportional special benefits received. The variables used for
the annualassessment formula arcparceltype,parcel size,benefrtzone,andlevelofdevelopment. These

variables arc a[. appropriate measures of the proportional special beneltt because the need for services,

level of services, and quantity of services are all relative to these vadables; thus the special benefit

provided to each parcel by the services can be ptoportionally measured using these variables.

Determination of Assessment Rates

"Because not all parcels in the district are identical in size...some will receive mote special benefit

than others."21 Each of the variables used relates direcdy to the service level and special benefit

provided to each parcel. Parcel square footage is the size of the parcel, measured in square feet. Size

is an appropriate measure of proportional special benefit because it relates direcdy to the quantity of
services provided to the parcel, the highest and best use of a parcel, and reflects the long-term value

implications of the HFPBID. The larger a parcel, the more services and benefit the parcel will receive.

Because not all parcels in the HFPBID are identical in use, some will teceive more special benefit than

others. For example, a. non-profit owned patcel will beneht to a lesser degree than a commercial

parcel, because it wilt not enjoy the benefits of increased commerce resulting from the services.

Further detail on the benefit to each parcel type is in the following pages. To determine the assessment

rates, the assessed parcels were classified by the estimated benefit each type of parcel teceives, the

estimated special benefit value of the activities and improvements provided to each t;rpe was

determined based on approximate cost of service provision, and an assessment rate that is

proportional to the estimated proportional benefit received by each patcel type was determined.

To determine the assessment rates, the estimated special benefit value for each parcel type was divided

by the total assessable parcel square footage, parcel type, and benefit zone as shown in the tables

below.

Parcel\pe
Parcel t54)es were categotized based on the typical amount of foot and vehicle ttz'fftc on the various

commercial and apafiment complex parcels. Parcels with heavy traffrc, such as commetcial parcels,

will receive the highest level of services. Parcels with lower ffaffr.c, such as apartment complex parcels

will receive the lowest level of services. The approximate cost of services by parcel type was

determined. Then, the cost of sewices by type was divided by the parcel square footage of those

parcels to determine the assessment rates.

Parcel Siry
The HFPBID's sen ices will benefit each assessed parcel as a whole. The service budget which, in this

Engineer's estimation, represents special benefits to the parcels, has been allocated based on parcel

size.

zt Dahmsv. Downtown Pomona [2009) 174 Cahpp.4s 708

Flistoric Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 27

Page 242

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Patcel Type
Initial

Patcel Size
Budget

Parcel Squate
Footage

Initial Parcel
Assessment

Rate
($/sqft/vt)

Zone 1A Commercial
Zone 1B Commercial
Zone2 Commercial
Zone 3 Commercial
Zone 4 Commercial

fi52,002.45 +

$1,351.84 +

$53,798.80 +

ff24,1.38.81 +

fi39,465.23 +

346,683 =
7,952 =

338,717 =
283,986 =
526,203 =

$0.1 5

$0.1 7

$0.17

$0.085

$0.07s

Property tax-exempt parcels owned by non-profit entities 2ni lsligious institutions will be assessed atfrfty
percent (507.) of the standard commercial assessment rate'

SummarT of Assessment Rates

Therefore, for the initial year, the maximum annual assessment rates to parcels ate as shown below

and in Appendix 1. Maximum annual assessment rates may be subject to an increase of no more than

three (3%) percent petye t as shown in Appendix 1.

Patcel Type
Annual Assessment Rate ($/sq ft)

ZoneTA ZonelB Zone2 Zone3 Zone 4

Commercial Uses $0.1 5 $0.17 $0.17 $0.085 $0.075

Non-Profit/Relig,ious $0.075 $0.085 $0.085 $0.0425 $0.0375

Sample assessment calculations are shown in Appendix 4.

2. Zonel
Patcels inZone 1 receive and benefit from all HFPBID services.

Zone l parcels include the Historic Folsom Station, Lrght Rail Station, Leidesdorff Plaza, amphitheater,

parking gxa4e, and a small number of retail-oriented ot undeveloped parcels. These parcels receive a

significant level of pedestrian traffic mainly due to their funcuon and proximity to Zone2.

i. ZoneTA
Parcels in Zone 1 which are not fully developed and have not been issued a Certifrcate of Occupancy are

designated Zone 1A. Because these parcels are not developed, they have a low ratio of building square

footage to lot square footage and receive approximately 80%o of pedestrian taffic compated to Zone 2.

For these reasons, the assessment rate for Zone 1A parcels is equal to approximately 80oh of the

assessment nteinZone2. When the annual teview of assessments is conducted, if development has been

completed on a parcel in Zone 1A and a Cefiifrcate of Occupancy has been issued for the parcel, then

the Zone 1A parcel will be considered as Zone 18 for all futute assessments'

ii. Zone1.B
Parcels in Zone 1 which are firlly developed and have been issued a Cernftcate of Occupancy 

^re
designated Zone 18. Because these patcels are fully developed and occupied, they have a high ratio of
building squarc footageto lot square footage and receive approximately the samelevel of pedestdantnffrc
compared to Zone2. For these reasons, the assessment rate forZone 18 patcels is equal to the assessment

rate in Zone2.

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 28

Page 243

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



3. Zone2
Parcels inZone 2 rcceive and benefit from all HtrPBID sen'ices.

These parcels are mostly commercial-oriented and sit along the Sutter Stteet corridor which serves as the

main location for events and other activities. Zone 2 parcels are different in chatacter than the patcels in
the other zones; the build out of the zone was based on historic standards and is more intense than other

zones. The ratio of building square footage to parcel size is significandy higher than in othet zones.

As a result of the high ratio of building square footage and economic activity of the zone, Zone2 parcels

have the highest levels of day and night pedestrian trafftc. For these feasons, the assessment rate fotZone
2 is the highest.

4. Zone3
Parcels inZone 3 receive and benefit from all HF'PBID services.

Parcels inZone 3 have approximately half of the ratio of building square footage to lot square footage

compared to Zones 7 and 2 and receive a lowet pedestrian traffic level compared to Zone 2, therefote

the assessment rate for parcels in Zone 3 is equal to half of the rate in Zone 2.

5. Zone 4
Parcels tn Zone 4 receive limited HFPBID benefits compared to Zones 2, 1,, and 3.

These parcels are pimanly non-corrrtnercial, consisting mosdy of office and govemment buildings. The

parcels in Zone 4 receive the lowest level of pedestrian traffic compated to Zones 2, 1,, and 3 parcels

(approximately half of the pedestrian tnfficlevel comparcdtoZone 1), and a low ratio of building square

footage to lot square footage. For these teasons, Zone 4 is assessed at the lowest assessment rate.

6. Commercial Patcels
Commercial parcels will receive and benefit ftom all HFPBID services (Advocacy & Program

Coordination, Image Enhancement, and Enhanced Maintenance), serudces, which are aimed to attr^ct

and increase customers and visitors to assessed patcels. Commetcial patcels include retail-use, office-use,

industrial, school, park, mixed-use, residential hotel, motel, and resort parcels, road parcels, andvacant

parcels & parking lots zoned or used for any the of the afotementioned uses. These parcels have a

commercial component because their owners aim to benefit from tenant fents, now or in the future,

increased customers, or increased use by visitors. The primary pu{pose of the HFPBID is to ptovide

properly ownet services which generate special benefits to parcels with commercial uses, and will
therefore be assessed the fulI rate.

Vacant parcels assessed at the commercial rate include parcels either zoned ot used for the uses specified

in the previous paragraph. Thesevacant parcels will teceive and benefit from all HtrPBID services. These

parcels are prone to experience nuisance issues because they ate open spaces and are not frequendy visited

by property owners. The ease of access and inftequent visitation by properry owners contributes to

nuisance issues and have a high remediation cost fot the owner. HFPBID Image Enhancement, and

Enhanced Maintenance services will reduce nuisance behaviors and the occurrence of detrimental

activities such as graffri,littering, loitering, and criminal activity, which negatively impact the parcels. The

Advocacy & Program Coordination provided by the HFPBID will assist property owners with vacant

parcels when they attempt to develop or sell the parcel by ptomoting the HFPBID as a desirable, clean

and safe areafor doing business.

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 29

Page 244

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



7. Property Tax-Exempt Non-Profit and Religious Patcels
As stated above, the primary pu{pose of the HFPBID is to benefit patcels with commercial uses. Propetty

tax-exempt parcels owned by non-profit entities and religious institutions despite their non-commercial

nature, will nonetheless benefit from the cleanet, safet environment the HFPBID vrill create. Therefore,

property tax-exempt parcels owned by non-profit entities 2nd lsligious institutions within the boundaries

of the HFPBID will pay an assessment tate that is fifty petcent (507') of the standard commercial

assessment rate, which is commensurate to the benefit they teceive. Vacant lots that ate located on the

premises of a properry tax-exempt parcel will be assessed at the non-profit rate.

8. Govetnment- Owned Parcels
Under "The Right to Vote on Taxes Act" (also known as Proposidon2l'8) all public parcels are required

to pay assessments unless they can demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that their parcels do

not receive benefit. Parcels owned by the City of Folsom and other public entities will receive and benefit

from all of the HFPBID's serrices, therefore they will pa)' the commercial rate which is commensurate

with theit "fafr shate" of all assessments.

9. Non-Assessed Parcels
There are thirty-four (34) parcels within the HFPBID that will not be assessed. These parcels are neither

commercial nor non-profit/religious parcels and will not specially benefit from or ditectly receive the

HFPBID's activities and improvements. These parcels are accounted forin the analysis ofgenetal benefit

provided to nofl-assessed parcels within the HFPBID. These parcels have the following uses:

Resid.entialParcek Cahforia Streets and Highways Code Section 36632(c) states, "Properties zoned solely

for residential use, or that are zoned for agricultural use, are conclusively presumed not to benefit fiom
the improvements and services funded through these assessments and shall not be subiect to 

^ny
assessmerit pursuant to this part." The pttnary pu{pose of the HFPBID is to benefit parcels with
commercial and non-profit uses; services have not been designed to benefit and will not be provided to

single family residential parcels. Therefore, parcels within the boundaries of the HFPBID to the extent

that they are zoned for single-family, multi-family, or vacant lots zoned as having residential uses shall not
be assessed.

10. Changes in Data
It is the intent of this Plan and Engineer's Report that each patcel included in the HFPBID can be cleady

identified. Every effort has been made to ensute that all parcels included in the HFPBID are consistent

in the boundary m^p and the assessment calculation table. However, if inconsistencies arise, the order of
precedence shall be: 1) the assessment calculation table and2) the boundary map.

If the parcel size or type of a parcel changes during the tetm of this HtrPBID, the assessment calculation

may be modified accordingly.

Categoirytion Appeak
The category detennined for each parcel is shown in Appendix 4. The use for each parcel is established

at formation and rrray be updated upon each tenewal. If a patcel ownet believes theit parcel has been

mis-classified or has changed, they may appeal in writing to the City of Folsom for re-consideration.

Appeals must be received by the City no later thanJune 1 of each year. Appeals must include the parcel

number, cuffent classification, requested classification, and the evidence upon which the appeal is based.

Appeals will not provide reftoacdve reductions.

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 30

Page 245

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Appeals should be made to:

Finance Director
City of F'olsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
91.6-467-6080

C. Engineeds Cetification
I hereby certifr, to the best of my knowledge and experience, that each of the identified assessed parcels

located within the Historic Folsom Property and Business Imptovement District will receive a special

benefit over and above the general benefits conferred and that the amount of the assessmentis no greater

than the proportional special benefits conferted on each parcel, as desclibed in this Engineer's Report.

Review of this Historic Folsom Property and Business Improvement District Management District Plan

and preparation of the Engineet's Report was completed by:

Ross Peabody
State of Califomia

February 27,2023

Date
This E nginur! Report h intended to be ditibuted as part of tbe Management Di$ict Pkn in its eatire[t, nclading the Aserment

Calmktion Table (Appendix 4) and tbe Boandary Map. Repruduction and disibution of on! Section lX of thu Managenent

DistictPkn uioktes the intent of tlh stanp and signaturc.

t xp 93023
c51

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 31

Page 246

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



APPENDIX 1- MAXIMUM ANNUAL ASSESSMENT RATES

The table below illustrate the maximum annual assessment rates with the assumption that the rates will
be increased annually by three percent (37"). The maximum rates listed are a required disclosure and not

the anticipated coutse of action.

Year Commercial
ZoneIA

Commercial
ZonelB

Commetcial
Zone2

Commetcial
Zone3

Commercial
Zone4

2024 $0.1 500 $0.1700 $0.1700 $0.0850 $0.0750

2025 $0.1 s45 $0.17s1 $0.1751 $0.0876 $0.0773

2026 $0.1s91 $0.1804 $0.1804 $0.0902 $0.0796

2027 $0.1639 $0.1 8s8 $0.1858 $0.0929 $0.0820

2028 $0.1688 $0.1913 $0.1913 $0.0es7 $0.0844

2029 $0.1739 $0.1 971 $0.1e71 $0.0985 $0.0869

2030 $0.1791 $0.2030 $0.2030 $0.1015 $0.08e6

2031 $0.1845 $0.2091 $0.2091 $0.1045 ff}.0922

2032 $0.1900 ff}.2154 $0.2154 $0.1077 $o.095o

2033 $0.1957 fil.221,8 fi}.221,8 $0.1109 $0.0979

Fiscal
Year

Non-Profit/
Religious
ZoneTA

Non-
Profit/Religious

ZonelB

Non-Prcfit/
Religious
Zone2

Non-
Prcfit/

Religious
Zone3

Non-
Ptofrt/

Religious
Zone4

2024 $0.0750 $0.0850 $0.0850 $0.0425 $0.0375

2025 $0.0773 $0.0876 $0.0876 $0.0438 $0.0386

2026 $0.07e6 $0.0e02 $0.0902 $0.0451 $0.0398

2027 $0.0820 $0.0929 $0.0929 $0.0464 $0.0410

2028 $0.0844 $0.0e57 $0.oes7 $0.0478 $0.0422

2029 $0.0869 $0.0985 $0.098s $0.0493 $0.0435

2030 $0.0896 $0.1015 $o.101s $0.0507 $0.0448

2031 $0.0922 $0.1045 $0.1045 $0.0523 $0.0461

2032 $0.0e50 $0.1077 $0.1077 $0.0538 $0.0475

2033 $0.097e $0.1 10e $0.1 10e $0.0555 $0.0489

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 32

Page 247

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



APPENDTX2- PBID LAW
*** THIS DOCUMENT IS CURRENT THROUGH THE2O23 SUPPLEMENT **X

wL2l22LEGISLATION)

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS CODE
DIVISION 18. PARKING

PART 7. PROPERTYAND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT LAW OF 1994

CHAPTER 1. General Provrsrons

ARTICLE 1. Declarations

36600. Citation ofpart

This part shall be known and may be cited as the "Propetty and Business Improvement Disuict Law of 1994."

36601. Legislative findings and declarations; Legislative guidance

The Irgislature finds and declares all of the following:
(a) Businesses located and operathg within business districts in some of this state's communities are economically

disadvantaged, are underutilized, and are unable to attract customers due to inadequate facilities, sewices, and activities

in the business distticts.

@) It is in the public interest to promote the economic rc' lirtalizat\on and physical maintenance of business districts

in ordet to create jobs, attract new businesses, and ptevent the erosion of the business distdcts.

(c) It is of particuiar local benef,t to allow business districts to fund business related improvements, maintenance, and

activities through the ler,ry of assessments upon the businesses ot teal ptoperty that receive benefits ftom those

improvements.
(d) Assessments levied for the purpose of conferdng special benefit upon the real property or a specific benefit upon

the businesses in a business district are not taxes for the general benef,t of a itty, even if propertlr, businesses, or
persons not assessed receive incidental or coliateral effects that benefit them.

(e) Properq' and business improvement districts formed throughout this state have conferred special benefits upon

properties and businesses within their districts and have made those properties and businesses mote usefu1 by

providing the following benefits:
(1) Crime reduction. A study by the Rand Corporation has confumed a t2-percent reduction in the

incidence of robbery and an 8-percent reduction jn the total incidence of violent crimes within the 30

districts studied.
(2) Job crearion.
(3) Business attraction.
(4) Business retendon.
(5) Economic grorr.th.
(6) New investments.

(9 With the dissoiution of redevelopment agencies throughout the state, property and business improvement distlicts

have become even more important tools vrith which communities can combat blight, promote economic

opportunities, and deate a clean and safe environment.
(g) Since the enactment of this act, the people of Cahforna have adopted Proposition 21 B, which added Article XIII
D to the Constitution in order to place certaifl requirements and restrictions on the formation of, and activities,

expenditures, and assessments b1' ptoperty-based districts. Article XIII D of the Constitution provides that property-

based districts may only ler'y assessments for special benefits.

(h) The act amending this section is intended to provide the Legislature's g.ridance with regatd to this act, its

interaction with the provisions of Articie XIII D of the Constitution, and the determination of special benefits in

property-based districts.
(1) The lack of legislative guidance has .resulted in uncertainty and inconsistent application of this act, which

discourages the use of assessments to fund needed imptovements, maintenance, and activities in proper$
based districts, contributing to blight and other underutilization of property.
(2) Activities undertaken for the purpose of conferring special benefits upon property to be assessed

inherently produce incidental or collateral effects that benefit property or persons not assessed. Therefote,

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan -)-)

Page 248

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



for special benefits to exist as a separate and distinct c tegoty ftom general benefits, the incidental or

collateral effects of those special benefits are inherendy pan of those special benefits. The mete fact rhat

special benefits produce incidental or collateral effects that benefit property or persons not assessed does

not convert any portion of those special benefits or their incidental ot collateral effects into general benefits.

(3) It is of the utmost importance that property-based districts cteated under this act have clanq' regarding

restrictions on assessments they may ler,y and the proper determination of speciai benefits. Legislative cladty

with regard to this act will provide districts with clear instn-rctions and coutts with legislative intent tegarding

restrictions on property-based assessments, and the manner in which special benefits should be determined.

36602. Puroose ofDart

The purpose of this part is to suppiement previously enacted provisions of law that authoize cities to levy assessments within

propetq' 2tr4 business improvement distdcts, to ensure that those assessments conform to all constitutional requirements and

are determined and assessed in accordance with the guidance set forth in this act. This part does not affect or limit any other

provisions of law authodzing or providing fot the fi-unishing of improvements or activities or the raising of tevenue for these

puryoses.

36603. Preemption of authority or charter city to adopt ordinances levying assessments

Nothing in this part is intended to preempt the authority of a charter city to adopt ordinances providing fot a different method

of le.q,ing assessments for similar or additional purposes ftom those set foth in this part. A property and business improvement

district created pusuant to this part is expressly exempt ftom the provisions of the Special Assessment Investigation, Limitation

and Majodty Protest Act of 1931 (Division 4 (commencing with Section 2800))'

36603.5. Part prevails over conflicting provisions

Any provision of this part that conflicts with any other provision of law shall prevail ovet the other provision of law, as to

districts created under this part.

36604. Severability

This part is intended to be construed liberally and, if any provision is held invalid, the remaining provisions shall remain in fi-rll

force and effect. Assessments levied undet this part ate not special taxes.

ARTICLE 2. Definitions

36606. "Activities"

"Activities" means, but is flot iimited to, all of the folloving that benefit businesses or real property in the district:

(a) Promotion of public events.

@) Furnishing of music in any public place.

(c) Promotion of tourism within the district.
(d) Marketing and economic development, including retail tetention and recruitment.

(e) Providing security, sanitation, graffiti removal, street and sidewalk cleaning and othet municipal services

supplemental to those notmally provided by the municipality.

(f) Other services provided for the purpose of conferdng special benefit upon assessed teal property or specific

benefits upon assessed businesses located in the district.

36606,5. {ldssessment"

"Assessment" meafls a lelry for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing, or maintamlng improvements and providing

activities that will provide certain benefits to properties ot businesses located within a Property and business improvement

distict.

36604 "Business"

"Business" means alI t1'pes of businesses and includes financial institutions and professions.

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 34

Page 249

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



36608. "Citv"

"City" means a city, county, ciq' and county, ot an agenq or entity created pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with Section

6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Govemment Code, the public member agencies of which includes only cities,

coundes, or a cig' and county, ot the State of Ca]l:fo:i::,ta.

36609. "Citv council"

"City council" means the ciqr council of a city or the board of supewisors of a county, ot the agency, commission, or board

created pursuant to a joint powers agreement and which is a city within the meaning of this part.

36609.4. "CledC'

"Clelk ' means the clerk of the legislative bodv

36609.5. "General benefit"

"General benefit" means, for purposes of a properfi'-based district, any benefit that is not a "special benefit" as defined in

Section 3661.5.5.

36610. "Improvement"

"Improvement" means the acquisition, construction, installation, or maintenance of any tangible P(oPert)'with an estimated

usefi.rl life of five years or more including, but not limited to, the following:

(a) Parking facilities.

@) Benches, booths, kiosks, display cases, pedestdan shelters and signs.

(c) Trash teceptacles and public restrooms.

(d) Lighflng and heating f2silities.

(e) Decorations.
(fl Parks.
(g) Fountains.
(h) Planting areas.

(i) Closing, opening, widening, or narrowing of existing streets.

0 Facilities or equipmeng or both, to enhance secudty of persons and property within the district.

(k) Ramps, sidewalks, plazas, and pedestrian malls.

Q Rehabilitation ot removal of existing structures.

3661L'(Management district plan"; "Plan"

"I\'{anagement district plan" or "plan" means a proposal as defined in Section 36622'

W "Ownerst associationtt

"Owners' association" means a private nonprofit entity that is undet conttact with a city to admiflister or implement

improvements, maintenance, and activities specified in the management district plan. An ownets'association may be an existing

nonprofit entity or a newly formed nonprofit entity. An owners' association is a private entig' and may not be considered a

public entity for any purpose, rror rn y its board members or staff be considered to be public officials for any purpose.

Notwithstanding this section, an owners' association shall comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing with
Section 54950) of Pat 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code), at all times when matters within the subiect matter

of the district are heatd, discussed, or deliberated, and with the California Public Records Act (Division 10 (commencing with
Section 7920.000) of Title L of the Government Code), for all tecords relating to activities of the disttict.

36614. ttProoerwt'

"Property" means real propertl'situated within a district.

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 35

Page 250

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



36674,5. ttProper$t and business improvement district";'(District"

"Property and business improvement drstnct," or "district," mearls a property and business improvement district established

pursuarit to this part.

36614.6. ttProperty-based assessment"

"Ptopefy-based assessment" means any assessment made putsuant to this patt uPon real property

36614.7, "Property-based district"

"Propetq'-based district" meafls any district rn wlrrch a city levies a property-based assessment.

36615, "Property ownerttl "Business ownet''; ttOqmer"

"Property ov'ner" meafls an1r person shown as the owner of land on the last equrlized assessment toll or od-rer-wise known to
be the ownet of land by the ciq' council. "Business olvner" means any person tecognized b1' {16 ciq' as the owner of the

business. "Ownet" means either a business owner or a property owner. The city council has no obligation to obtain other

information as to the ownership of land or businesses, and its determination of ownership shall be final and conclusive for the

purposes of this part. !(/herever this pat requires the signatr:re of the property owner, the signature of the authodzed agent of
the property owner shall be sufficient. \X/herever this part tequires the sigrature of the business owner, the signature of the

authorized agent of the business owner shall be sufficient.

36615.5. "Special benefit"

(a) "special benefit" means, for purposes of a property-based district, a pancriat and distinct benefit ovet and above generai

benefits conferred on real property located in a district or to the public at iarge. Special benefit includes incidental ot collateral

effects that arise from the improvements, maintenance, ot activities of property-based districts even if those incidental ot
collateral effects benefit property or persons not assessed. Special benefit excludes genetal enhancement of properry value.

@) "special benefit" also includes, for purposes of a ptoperty-based districq a particular and distinct benefit provided direcdy

to each assessed parcei within the district. Merely because patcels thtoughout an assessment district share the same special

benefits does not make the benefits general.

36616."Tenant"

"Tenant" meafls afl occupant plusu^nt ta a lease of commercial space ot a dwelling unit, other than an owner.

ARTICLE 3. Prior Law

3661t . Ntetnate method of financing certain improvements and activities; Effect on other provisions

This part provides an alternative method of financing certain improvements and activities. The provisions of this part shall not

zffect ot limit any other provisions of law authorizing or providing fot the fi,unishing of imptovements or activities or the

raising of revenue for these puq)oses. Every improvement area established pursuant to the Parking and Business Improvement
Area Law of 1989 @art 6 (commencing with Section 36500) of this division) is valid and effective and is unaffected by this

paft.

CHAPTER 2. Establishment

36620. Establishment of property and business improvement district

A property and business improvement district may be established as provided in this chapter.

36620.5, Requirement of consent of city council

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 36

Page 251

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



A county rrray not form a district within the tettitorial jurisdiction of a crty without the consent of the crty council of that city.

A city may not form a district within the unincolporated teritory of a county without the coflsent of the boatd of supewisors

of that county. A city may not form a district within the teritorial jurisdiction of another city without the consent of the city

council of the other city.

3662l.Intraion of proceedings; Petition of property or business owners in proposed district

(a) Upon the submission of a written petition, signed by the property or business owners in the proposed district who

will pay more than 50 percent of the assessments proposed to be levied, the city council may initiate proceedings to

form a distdct by the adoption of a resolution expressing its intention to fotm a district. The amount of assessment

attributable to property or a business owned by the same propefiy or business ownet that is in excess of 40 percent

of the amount of all assessments proposed to be levied, shall not be included in determining whether the petition is

srgned by property or business owners who will pay more than 50 percent of the total amount of assessments

proposed to be levied.

(b) The petition of propety or business owflers required under subdivision (a) shall include a summary of the

mariagement district plan. That summary shall include all of the following:

(1) A map showing the boundaries of the disttict.
(2) Infortnation speci8'ing where the complete maflagement district plan can be obtained.

(3) Information speci!'ing that the complete management district plan shall be furnished upon request.

(c) The resolution of intention descdbed in subdivision (a) shall contain all of the following:

(1) A brief descdption of the proposed improvements, maintenance, and activities, the amount of the

proposed assessment, a statement as to whether the assessment will be levied on proPefiy ot businesses

*itfiit th. district, a statement as to u/hether bonds will be issued, and a description of the extedor

boundaries of the proposed district, which may be made b)' refetence to any plan or mzp that is on f,le with
the clerk. The descriptions and statements do not need to be detailed and shail be sufficient if they es61.
an owner to generally identify the nature and extent of the improvements, maintenance, and activities, and

the location and extent of the ptoposed district.
(2) A time and place for a public hearing on the establishment of the property and business improvement

district and the ler.y of assessments, which shall be consistent with the tequirements of Section 36623.

36622, Contents of management district plan

The management distiict plan shall include, but is not limited to, all of the following:

(a) If the assessment wili be levied on property, a map of the district in sufficient detail to locate each patcel of property

and, if businesses are to be assessed, each business within the distdct. If the assessment will be levied on businesses,

^ 
m^p rh^tidentifies the district boundaries in sufficient detail to allow a business owfler to reasonably determine

*h"thet a business is located within the district boundaries. If the assessment will be ievied on Property and

businesses, a map of the district in sufficient detail to locate each parcel of propety and to allow a business owner to

reasonably determine whether a business is located within the district boundaries.

ft) The name of the proposed district.
(c) A descnption of the boundades of the district, including the boundaries of benefit zones, proposed fot
establ-ishment or extension in a manner sufficient to identify the aflected Property and businesses included, which

may be made by reference to any plan or map that is on file with the clerk. The boundaties of a proposed proPerty

assessment distict shall not ovedap with the boundaries of another existing property assessment district created

pursuant to this part. This part does not ptohibit the boundaties ofa district created pursuant to this patt to ovetlap

with other assessment disticts established pursuant to othet provisions of law, including, but not limited to, the

Parking and Business Improvement Area Law of 1989 (Part 6 (commencing with Section 36500)). This part does not

prohibit the boundaries of a business assessment district created pursuant to this part to ovedap with another business

assessment distdct created pursuant to this part. This part does not prohibit the boundaries of a business assessment

disrrict created pursuant to this part to ovetlap with a ptoperty assessment district created Pursuant to this part.

(d) The improvements, maintenance, and activities ptoposed fot each year of operation of the disttict and the

estimated cost thereof. If the improvements, maintenance, and activities ptoposed for each year of operation are the

sam€, a desctiption of the fust year's proposed improvements, maintenance, and activities and a statement that the

same improvements, mairitenance, and activities are proposed for subsequent years shall satisfy the requirements of
this subdivision.
(e) The total annual amount proposed to be expended for improvements, maintenance, or activities, and debt service

in eachyear of operation of the distict. If the assessmentis levied on businesses, this amountmaybe estimated based

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan :tl

Page 252

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



upon the assessment rate. If the total annual amouflt proposed to be expended in each year of operation of the district
is not significandy diffetent, the amount proposed to be expended in the initial year and a statement that a similat

amount applies to subsequent years shall satis$r the requirements of this subdivision.

(f) The proposed source or sources of financing, including the proposed method and basis of levying the assessment

in sufficient detail to allow each property or business owner to calculate the amount of the assessment to be levied

against their property or business. The plan also shall state whether bonds will be issued to f,nance improvements.
(g) The time and mannet of collecting the assessments.

(h) The specific number of years in which assessments will be levied. In a new disttict, the maximum number of years

shail be f,ve. Upon renewal, a district shall have a term not to exceed 10 years. Notwithstanding these limitations, a

district created prrsuant to this part to finance capital improvements with bonds may levy assessments until the

maximum matutity of the bonds. The management district plan may set fotth specif,c increases in assessments for
eachyear of operation of the disttict.
(i) The proposed time for implementation and completion of the management disttict plan.

0 Any proposed rules and regulations to be applicable to the district.
(L)

(1) A list of the properfles or businesses to be assessed, includtng the assessor's parcel numbets for
properties to be assessed, and a statement of the method or methods by which the expenses of a district

will be imposed upon benefited real property or businesses, in proportion to the benefit received by the

property ot business, to deftay the cost thereof.

Q) Ina property-based district, the ptoportionate special benefit derived by each identified parcel shall be

determined exclusively in relationship to the entirety of the capital cost of a public improvement, the

maintenance and operation expenses of a public improvement, ot the cost of the activities. An assessment

shall not be imposed on any parcel that exceeds the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit

confened on th^tp^rcel. Only special benefits are assessable, and a property-based district shall separate the

general benefits, if any, ftom the special benef,ts conferred on a parcel. Patcels within a property-based

district that are owned or used by any city, public agency, the State of Callforrria, or the United States shall

not be exempt from assessment unless the governmental entity can demonstrate by clear and convincing

evidence that those publicly owned parcels in fact receive no special benefit. The value of any incidental,

secondary, ot collateral effects that arise ftom the improvements, maintenance, or activities of a property-

based district and that benefit property or persons not assessed shail not be deducted ftom the entfuety of
the cost ofany special benefit or affect the propordonate special benefit derived by each identified parcel.

(3) In a property-based district, properties throughout the district may share the same special benefits. In a

district with boundaries that define which patcels are to receive improvements, maintenance, or activities

over and above those services provided by the city, the improvements, maintenance,-or activities themselves

may constitute a special benefit. The city may impose assessments that are less than the proportional special

benefit conferred, but shall not impose assessments that exceed the reasonable costs of the proportional

special benefit conferred. Because one or more parcels pay less than the special benefit conferred does not
necessarily mean that other parcels are assessed more than the reasonable cost of their special benefit.

(l) In a property-based districg a detailed eng'ineer's report prepared b1' a 1.t;t,.t.d professional engineet cettified bv

dre State of California supporting all assessments contemplated by the management district plan.

(-) A"y other item or matter requled to be incoqporated therein by the city council.

36673.Prccedure to levy assessment

(a) If a city council proposes to ievy a new or increased property assessment, the notice and ptotest and hearing

procedure shall comply with Section 53753 of the Govemment Code.

(b) If a city council proposes to ler,y a new or incteased business assessment, the notice and protest and headng

procedure shall compll' with Section 54954.6 of the Government Code, except that notice shall be mailed to the

owners of the businesses proposed to be assessed. A protest may be made orally or in writing by an1' jn1e1s51s4

person. Every written protest shall be filed with the clerk at or before the time fixed fot the public hearing. The ctty

council may waive any irregularity in the form or conteflt of any written protest. A writlen protest may be withdrawn
in wdting at any time before the conclusion of the public hearing. Each vrdtten protest shall cofltain a description of
the business in which the person subscribing the protest is interested sufficient to identify the business and, ifa person

subscribing is not shown on the official records of the cig' as tlle owner of the business, the protest shall contain or
be accompanied by wdtten evidence that the person subscdbing is the owner of the business or the authorized
representative. A written protest that does not comply v/ith this section shall not be counted in determining a maiority

protest. Ifwritten protests are teceived ftom the owners or authorized representatives ofbusinesses in the proposed

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 38

Page 253

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



disttict that udll pa)' 50 percent or more of the assessments ptoposed to be levied and protests ate not withdrawn so

as to reduce the protests to less than 50 percent, flo futther proceedings to levy the proposed assessment against such

businesses, as contained in the resolution of intention, shall be taken for a period of one year ftom the date of the

finding of a majoriq' ptotest by the city council.
(c) Ifa city council proposes to conduct a single proceeding to lery both a new or increased property assessment and

a new or increased business assessment, the notice and protest and hearing procedure for the ptoperty assessment

shail comply with subdivision (a), and the notice and protest and hearing procedure for the business assessment shall

compl;' with subdivision (b). If a majodty protest is received from eithet the property or business owners, that

respective portion of the assessment shall not be levied. The remaining portion of the assessment ma)' be levied unless

the improvement or other special benef,t was proposed to be funded by assessing both property and business owflers.

36624. Changes to proposed assessments

At the conclusion of the public hearing to establish the district, the city council may adopt, revise, change, teduce, or modify

the proposed assessment or the type or rypes of improvements, maintenance, and activities to be funded with the tevenues

ftom the assessments. Proposed assessments may onll' !s lsvised by reducing any ot a1). of them. At the public hearing, the city

councjl may only make changes in, to, or ftom the boundades of the proposed property and business imptovement district

that will exclude teritory thatwill not benefit fiom the ptoposed improvements, maintenance, and activities. Any modifications,

revisions, reductions, or changes to the proposed assessment district shall be teflected in the notice and map recorded pursuant

to Section 36627.

36625. Resolution of formation

(a) If the city council, foilowing the public hearing, decides to establish a proposed proPerty and business

improvement district, the city council shall adopt a resolution of fotmation that shall include, but is not limited to, a1l

of the following:
(1) A brief descdption of the proposed improvements, maintenance, and activit-ies, the amount of the

proposed assessment, a statement as to whether the assessment u.ill be levied on ProPerty, businesses, or

both within the district, a statement on whether bonds will be issued, and a description of the exterior

boundaries of the proposed district, which may be made by reference to any plan or map that is on file with
the clerk. The descriptions and statements need not be detailed and shall be sufficient if they enable an

owner to generally identi$r the nature and extent of the improvements, mairiteflance, and activities and the

location and extent of the ptoposed district.
(2) The number, date of adoption, and tide of the resolution of intention.
(3) The time and place where the public headng was held concerning the establishment of the distnct.

(4) A determination regarding any protests received. The city shall not establish the district or levy

assessments if z maiority piotest was received.

(5) A statement that the properties, businesses, or properties and businesses in the district established by

the resolution shall be subiect to an)'amendments to this part.

(6) A statement that the improvements, mairitenance, and activities to be conferred on businesses and

properties in the district will be funded by the lerry of the assessments. The .revenue from the ler,y of
assessments within a district shall not be used to provide improvements, maintenance, or activities outside

the district or for an1' purpose other than the puposes specified in the resolution of intention, as modified

by the city council at the hearing concerning establishment of the district. Notwithstanding the foregoing,

improvements and activities that must be provided outside the district boundades to create a special or

specific benef,t to the assessed parcels or businesses may be ptovided, but shall be limited to marketing or

signage pointing to the distdct.
(7) A finding that the property or businesses urithin the atea of the property and business improvement

district wili be benefited by the improvements, maintenance, and activities funded by the proposed

assessments, and, for a property-based distdct, that property v/ithin the district will receive a special benefit.

(8) In a property-based distric! the total amount of all special benefits to be confened on the propetties

widrin the properqlbased district.
(b) The adoption of the resolution of formation and, if required, recordation of the notice and map Pursuaflt to

Section 36627 shall constitute the ier,y of an assessment in each of the fiscal years referred to in the management

distdct plan.

36627. Notice and assessment diagram

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 39

Page 254

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Following adopt-ion of the resolution establishing distfict assessments on propetties prusuant to Section 36625,the clerk shall

recotd a notice and ari assessment &agampursurnt to Section 3114. No othet provision of Division 4.5 (commencing with
Section 3100) applies to an assessment district created pursuant to this part.

36628. Establishment of separate benefit zones within disttict; Categories of businesses

The city council may establish one or more separate benefit zones widrin the disftict based upon the degree of benefit derived

ftom the improvements or activities to be provided within the benefit zone and may impose a different assessment within each

benefit zone. If the assessment is to be levied on businesses, the crty council may also define categodes of businesses based

upon the degree of benefit that each wiil dedve ftom the improvements or activities to be provided within the district and may

Xff:. 
a different assessment or rate of assessment on each category of business, or on each category of business within each

36628.5. Assessments on businesses or properly osrners

The city council may levy assessments on businesses or on property owners, or a combination of the two, pursuant to this part.

The city council shall structure the assessments in whatever mannet it determines corresponds with the distribution of benefits

fiom the proposed improvements, maintenance, and activities, provided that any property-based assessmerit conforms vzith

the tequirements set forth in paragraph (2) of subdivision ft) of Section36622.

36629. Provisions and procedures applicable to benefit zones and business categories

All provisions of this part applicable to the establishment, modification, or disestablishment of a property and business

improvement district apply to the establishment, modification, or disestablishment of benefit zofles or categories of business.

The ciry council shall, to establish, modiS', or disestablish a benef,t zofle or category of business, follow the procedure to
establ,ish, modifr, or disestablish a property and business improvement distdct.

36630. Expiration ofdistrict; Creation ofnew district

If a property and business improvement district expires due to the time limit set pursuant to subdivision ft) of Section 36622,

a new management district plan may be cteated and the distict may be renewed pursuant to this part.

CHAPTER 3. Assessments

36631, Time arid manner of collection of assessments; Deli{rquent payments

The collection of the assessments levied pursuant to this part shall be made at the t.ime and in the manner set forth by the city

council in the resolution levyrng the assessment. Assessments levied on real property rnay be collected at the same time and in
the same maffier as for the ad valorem property tax, and may provide fot the same lien pdority and penalties for delinquent

payment. All deiinquent paymeflts for assessments levied pursuant to this part may be charged interest and penalties.

36632. Assessments to be based on estimated benefit; Classification of real property and businesses; Exclusion of
residential and agricultural property

(a) The assessments levied on real property pursuaflt to this part shall be levied on the basis of the estimated benefit

to the real propefty v/ithin the property and business improvement district. The city council may classi$' properties

for purposes of determining the benefit to property of the improvements and activities ptovided pursuant to this

p^fi.
(b) Assessments levied on businesses pursuant to this part shall be levied on the basis of the estimated benefit to the

businesses uzithin the property and business improvement district. The city council may classi$, businesses for
pulposes of determining the benefit to the businesses of the improvements and activities provided pursuant to this

Paft.
(c) Properties zoned solely for residential use, or that are zoned for agricultural use, are conclusively presumed not to
benefit ftom the improvements and service funded tfuough these assessments, and shall not be subject to any

assessment putsuarit to this part.

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 40

Page 255

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



36633, Time for contesting validity of assessment

The validity of an assessment levied under this part shall not be contested in an action or proceeding unless the action or

proceeding is commenced within 30 days after the resolution levying the assessment is adopted pursuant to Section 36625. Lt
appeal fuom a finai judgment in an action or proceeding shall be perfected within 30 days after the entry of iudgment.

36634. Service contracts authorized to establish levels ofcity senrices

The city council may execute baseline service contracts that would establish levels of city setvices that would continue after a

property and business improvement district has been formed.

36635. Request to modi$ management district plan

The ownets'association ma1', at any 111s, lequest that the city council modi$'the maflagemeflt drsttict plan. Anv modification

of the management distdct plan shall be made pursuant to this chapter.

36636. Modification of plan by resolution after public hearing; Adoption of resolution of intention

(a) Upon the written request of the ownets' association, the ciq' council may modiS' the nranagement district plan

after conducting one public hearing on the ptoposed modifications. The city council may modify the improvements

and activities to be funded with the revenue derived fiom the ler,y of the assessments by adopting a resolution

determining to make the modifications after holding a public hearing on the proposed modifications. If the

modification includes the ler.y of a new or incteased assessmerit, the crty council shall comply with Section 36623.

Notice of all other public hearings pursuant to this section shall compll' with both of the following:

(1) The resolution of intention shall be published in a newspapet of general circulation in the city once at

least seven days befote the public hearing.

(2) A complete copy of the resolution of intention shall be mailed by fust class mdL,at least 10 days before

the public hearing, to each business owner or property owner affected by the proposed modification.

1b) Th. city council shall adopt a resolution of intention which states the ptoposed modification pdor to the public

hearing required by this section. The public headng shall be held not mote than 90 days after the adoption of the

resolution of intention.

36637, Reflection of modification in notices recorded and maps

Any subsequent modification of the resolution shall be reflected in subsequent notices and maps recotded putsuant to Division

4.5 (commencing with Section 3100), in a manner consistent with the ptovisions olSectton 36627.

CHAPTER3.5. Financing

36640. Bonds authorizedl Procedure; Restriction on reduction or temination of assessments

(a)The city council may, by tesolution, determine and declate that bonds shall be issued to finance the estimated cost

of some or all of the proposed improvements described in the resolution of formation adopted pursuant to Section

36625,if rhe resolution of formation adopted pursuant to that section provides for the issuance of bonds, under the

Improvement Bond Act of 1,915 pivision 10 (commencing with Section 8500)) or in conjunction with Marks-Roos

Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985 (Article 4 (commencing with Section 6584) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Tide 1 of
the Government Code). Either act, as the case may be, shall govem the proceedings relating to the issuance of bonds,

although proceedings under the Bond Act of 1915 may be modified by the city council as necessaty to accommodate

assessments levied upon business pursuant to this part.

@) The resolution adopted pursuant to subdivision (a) shall generally describe the ptoposed improvements specified

in the resolution of formation adopted pursuant to Section 36625, set forth the estimated cost of those.improvements,

specify the number of annual installments and the fiscal yeats during which they are to be collected. The amount of
debt service to retfue the bonds shall not exceed the amount of revenue estimated to be taised ftom assessments over

30 years.

Histotic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 41

Page 256

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this part, assessments levied to pay the pdncipal and interest on an)' bond

issued pursuant to this section shall not be reduced or terminated if doing so would interfere with the timely retirement

of the debt.

CHAPTER4. Governance

36650. Report by owners' associatioq APproval or modification by 
"tty 

council

(a) The owners' association shall cause to be prepared a report for each fiscal ye21, except the first year, fot which

assessments are to be levied and collected to pay the costs of the improvemerits, maintenance, and activities described

in the report. The owners' associauon's fust repott shall be due aftet the fust year of operation of the district. The

report rnay propose changes, including, but not limited to, the boundaries of the property and business improvement

district or any benefit zones within the distict, the basis and method of levying the assessments, and an1' changes in
the classification of property, including any categories of business, if a classification is used.

(b) The teport shall be filed with the clerk and shall refer to the property and business improvement distdct by name,

specify the fiscal year to which the report applies, and, with iespect to that f,scal )'eat, shall contain all of the following

information:
(1) Any ptoposed changes in the boundades of the property and business improvement distdct ot in anl'

benefit zones or classification of property or businesses within the district.
(2) The imptovements, maintenance, and activities to be ptovided fot that fiscal yeat.

(3) An estimate of the cost of providing the improvements, maintenance, and activities for that f,scal 1'sar.

(4) The method and basis of levying the assessment in sufficient detail to allow each real property or business

owner, as appropdate, to estimate the amount of the assessment to be levied against his ot het ptoperry ot
business for that f,scal 1.sar.
(5) The estimated amount of any surplus or deficit revenues to be carried over from a previous f,scal year.

(6) The estimated amourit of any contributions to be made ftom sources other than assessments levied

pursuant to this part.

(c) The city council may approve the report as filed by the ownets' association or may modi$ any particulat contained

in the report and approve it as modified. Any modification shall be made pursuant to Sections 36635 and36636.

The crg' council shall not approve a change in the basis and method of ler.rying assessments that would |rylryalt an

authodzed or executed contract to be paid from the tevenues derived ftom the levy ofassessments, including any

commiffnent to pay principal and interest on any bonds issued on behalf of the district.

36651. Designation of ownerst association to provide improvements, maintenance, and activities

The management dtstrict plan may, but is not tequired to, state fhat an owners' association will provide the improvements,

maintenance, and activities described in dre management district plan. If the management disttlct pian designates an ownets'

associadon, the city shall contact with the designated nonprofit corporation to provide sen'ices.

CHAPTERS. Renewal

36660. Renewal of district; Transfet or refund of remaining revenues; District term limit

(a) Any district previousll' errbLrt.O whose term has expired, or will expire, ma)r be tenewed by foilowing the

procedures for establishment as provided in this chapter.

(b) Upon renewal, any remaining revenues derived ftom the levy of assessments, or any revenues derived ftom the

sale of assets acquired with the revenues, shall be transferred to the renewed district. If the renewed district includes

additional parcels or businesses not included in the prior district, the remaining revenues shall be spent to benefit only

the parcels or businesses in the prior district. If the renewed district does not include parcels or businesses included

in the prior distict, the remaining reverrues attributable to these parcels shall be tefunded to the owners of these

patcels or businesses.

(c) Upon renewal, a disffict shali have a term not to exceed 10 years, or, if the disfr:ict is authorized to issue bonds,

until the maximum matudty of those bonds. There is no requirement that the boundaries, assessments,

improvements, or activities of a renewed disttict be the same as the original or prior disffict.

CHAPTER 6. Disestablishment

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 42

Page 257

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



36670. Circumstances permitting disestablishment of districtl Procedure

(a) Any district established or extended pursuant to the provisions of this patt, where there is no indebtedness,

outstanding andunpaid, incured to accomplish any of the purposes of the district, may be disestablished by resolution

by the city council in either of the following circumstances:
(1) If the cit)' council finds there has been misappropriation of funds, malfeasance, or a violation of law in
connection with the management of the districg it shall notice a headng on disestablshment.
(2) During the operation of the district, there shali be a 30-day period each yeat in which assessees rnay

request disestabl-ishment of the district. The fust such period shall begin one year after the date of
establishment of the district and shall continue for 30 days. The next such 30-day period shall begin two

years after the date of the establishment of the district. Each successiveyear of opetation of the distict shall

have such a 30-day period. Upon the written petition of the ovzners or authorized representatives of real

property or the owners or authorized representatives of businesses in the district who pay 50 percent or
more of the assessments levied, the city council shall pass a resolution ofintention to disestablish the district.
The crty council shall notice a hearing on disestablishment.

(b) The city council shail adopt a resolution of intention to disestablish the district prior to the public headng required

by this section. The resolution shall state the reason for the disestablishment, shall state the time and place of the

public hearing, and shall contain a proposal to dispose of any assets acquired with the ievenues of the assessments

levied vzithin the property and business improvement district. The notice of the hearing on disestablishment required

by this section shall be grven by mail to the property owner of each patcel ot to the owner of each business subject

to assessment in the district, as appropriate. The city shall conduct the public hearing not less than 30 da1's 261.t

-ailirg the notice to the property or business owflers. The public hearing shall be held not more than 60 days after

the adoption of the resolution of intention.

36671. Refund of remaining revenues upon disestablishment or expirationwithout renewal of district; Calculation of
refund; Use of outstanding revenue collected after disestabtshment of district

(a) Upon the disestablishment or explation without renewal of a disttict, any remaining revenues, after all outstanding
debts are paid, derived ftom the levy of assessments, or derived ftom the sale of assets acquired with the tevenues, ot
fiom bond iesetve ot construcdon funds, shall be refunded to the owners of the property or businesses then located

and operating within the district in which assessmeflts were levied by applying the same method and basis that was

used to calculate the assessments levied in the fiscal year in which the district is disestablished ot expires. ,{11

outstanding assessment revenue collected after disestablishment shall be spent on improvements and activities

specified in the management district plan.

(b) If the disestabiishment occurs before an assessment is levied for the fiscai year, the method and basis that was

used to calculate the assessments levied in the immediate prior fiscal year shall be used to calculate the amount of an;'

refund.

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 43

Page 258

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



APPENDIX 3 - MAP

Zone

I
I
InI

1A

1B

2

3

4

Historic Folsom PBID c I
ut'

s'
. o"o

,tt
r$

F
sru.B,*"

.""*
g*

A'%

oo+uo.*o 
to*

o?6!
,4tn

' 
€rresr 

st Natoma

*.%-
ser

tt"- n

:,;%.w,Fe;5e{o
,n
o

LreJ.

+
oq}
t
CL
o)
6',
a

arft t

""-{ CIVITAS

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 44

Page 259

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



APPENDIX 4 - PARCEL ASSESSMENT CALCULATIONS

MapKey APN Lot SqFt Rate Assessment Zone COEF

1 07000100170000 38,180 0.15 ff5,727.00 1A COM

2 07000320020000 12,632 0.075 ff947.40 4 COM

3 07000320050000 62,726 0.075 fi4,704.45 4 COM

4 07000330020000 1.0,454 0.075 $784.0s 4 COM

5 07000330030000 50,094 0.075 $3,757.05 4 COM

6 07000340010000 56,1.92 0.075 $4,21.4.40 4 COM

7 07000340020000 69,260 0.075 $5,194.50 4 COM

8 07000410010000 47,91.6 0.075 $3,593.70 4 COM

9 07000410020000 7,405 0.075 $5ss.3B 4 COM

10 07000410030000 49,223 0.075 $3,691..73 4 COM

1,1 07000420010000 27,001 0.075 fi2,025.53 4 COM

1.2 07000420020000 27,443 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

13 07000420030000 6,534 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

1,4 07000450030000 18,600 0 $o.oo 4 SFR / NA

15 07000450060000 2,800 0 $0.00 4 SF'R / NA

1.6 07000450070000 2,800 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

77 07000450080000 5,600 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

18 07000450090000 2,800 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

19 07000450100000 3,500 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

20 07000450130000 5,250 0 $o.oo 4 SFR / NA

21 07000450140000 8,750 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

22 07000450i50000 1.9,602 0.075 $1,470.15 4 COM

23 07000450170000 5,250 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

24 07000450190000 9,148 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

25 07000450200000 1,5,246 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

26 07000450230000 1.,750 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

27 07000450260000 52,708 0.075 $3,953.10 4 COM

28 07000450270000 54,01.4 0.075 $4,051.05 4 COM

29 07000450280000 6,970 0.075 ff522.75 4 COM

30 07000450290000 2,325 0 $o.oo 4 SFR / NA

37 07000450310000 5,250 0 $o.oo 4 SFR / NA

32 07000450320000 13,950 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

-)-) 07000450370000 7,500 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

34 07000450380000 1 1,100 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

Histotic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 45

Page 260

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



35 07000460140000 7,000 0 $o.oo 4 SFR / NA

36 07000460150000 7,055 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

37 07000460160000 4,565 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

3B 07000460210000 24,500 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

39 07000460220000 15,1.20 0 $o.oo 4 SFR / NA

40 07000460230000 10,500 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

41 07000460240000 28,1.25 0 $o.oo 4 SFR / NA

42 07000460260000 56,1.92 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

43 07000460330000 6,052 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

44 07000460340000 1,0,376 0 $0.00 4 SFR / NA

45 07000510320000 1.6,840 0 $0.00 J sFR / NA

46 07000510420000 96,703 0.085 $8,21.9.76 3 COM

47 07000510430000 3,217 0.085 $273.4s .,) COM

48 07000510500000 1.5,489 0.085 fi1.,31,6.57 -) COM

49 07000510570000 1,68,577 0.085 $14,329.05 -) COM

50 07000510580000 9,91.3 0 $0.00 -) SFR / NA

51 07000520010000 1.,742 0.085 $148.07 2 TE,/NP/R

52 07000520020000 1.,625 0.085 $138.13 2 TE,/NP/R

53 07000520050000 3,500 0.17 $595.00 2 COM

54 07000520090000 4,200 0.17 $714.00 2 COM

55 07000520100000 4,900 0.17 $833.00 2 COM

56 07000520110000 9,921 0.17 $1,686.57 2 COM

57 07000520120000 1.,750 0.17 ff297.50 2 COM

58 07000520130000 1.,875 0.17 $318.75 2 COM

59 07000520140000 1,875 0.77 $318.7s 2 COM

60 07000520150000 7,000 0.17 $1,190.00 2 COM

61 07000520170000 1.,750 0.17 $2e7.50 2 COM

62 07000520180000 7,000 0.17 $1,190.00 2 COM

63 07000520190000 7,000 0.17 $1,190.00 2 COM

64 01000520220000 1.5,61.1 0.15 $2,341.65 1A COM

65 07000520230000 1,92,1.00 0.15 $28,815.00 1A COM

66 07000520240000 21.,092 0.15 $3,163.80 1A COM

67 07000520250000 7,952 0.17 $1,351.84 1B COM

68 07000520260000 23,943 0.15 $3,591.45 1A COM

69 07000520270000 55,757 0.15 $8,363.55 1A COM

70 07000610100000 26,060 0.17 fi4,430.20 2 coM
71 07000610110000 5,394 0.17 $e16.e8 2 COM

72 07000610130000 4,81.2 0.17 $818.04 2 COM

t3 07000610140000 5,527 0.17 $939.59 2 COM

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 46

Page 261

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



74 07000610150000 14,000 0.17 $2,380.00 2 COM

75 07000940120000 5,473 0.17 $930.41 2 COM

76 07001010010000 7,260 0.17 fil,,234.20 2 COM

77 07001010020000 5,600 0.17 $e52.00 2 COM

78 07001010030000 7,000 0.17 $1,190.00 2 COM

79 07001010040000 5,250 0.77 $892.50 2 COM

80 07001010050000 1.,750 0.17 ff297.50 2 COM

81 07001010060000 2,660 0.17 fi4s2.20 2 COM

82 07001010070000 4,060 0.17 $6eo.20 2 COM

83 07001010290000 21.,649 0.17 $3,680.33 2 COM

B4 07001030050000 1,3,51.0 0.77 fi2,296.70 2 COM

85 07001030060000 4,830 0.77 $821.10 2 COM

B6 07001030070000 5,663 0.77 ffe62.71 2 COM

87 07001030080000 3,220 0.17 $s47.40 2 COM

B8 07001030090000 2,800 0.77 $476.00 2 COM

89 07001030100000 3,640 0.17 $618.80 2 COM

90 07001030170000 73,440 0.17 fi2,284.80 2 COM

91 07001030190000 8,960 0.085 $761.60 2 TEINP/R
92 07001050020000 5,600 0.17 $es2.oo 2 COM

93 07001050030000 3,500 0.77 $ses.oo 2 COM

94 07001050040000 3,500 0.17 $595.00 2 COM

95 07001050050000 7,000 0.17 $1,190.00 2 COM

96 07001050060000 7,000 0.17 $1,190.00 2 COM

97 07001050070000 2,800 0.1,7 $476.00 2 COM

9B 07001050080000 2,800 0.17 $476.00 2 COM

99 07001050090000 2,800 0.17 $476.00 2 COM

100 07001050100000 3,906 0.17 ff664.02 2 COM

101 07001050110000 5,628 0.17 $es6.76 2 COM

102 07001050120000 3,066 0.17 $521.22 2 COM

1,03 07001050180000 4,61.0 0.1.7 $783.70 2 COM

1,04 07001050190000 3,808 0.17 fi647.36 2 COM

105 07001 1 10010000 7,549 0.17 fi263.33 2 COM

106 07001110020000 5,451 0.17 fi926.67 2 COM

707 07001110030000 7,000 0.17 $1,190.00 2 COM

108 07001110040000 7,000 0.77 $1,190.00 2 COM

1,09 07001 1 10050000 1,750 0.17 ff2e7.50 2 COM

110 07001110060000 1.,750 0.17 $297.50 2 COM

1,1,1 07001110090000 3,700 0.17 $629.00 2 COM

1,1,2 07001110100000 7,400 0.77 $1,258.00 2 COM

Histotic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 47

Page 262

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



113 07001110110000 9,900 0 $o.oo 2 SFR / NA
774 07001110170000 4,313 0.77 fi733.27 2 COM

115 07001110190000 6,250 0 $o.oo 2 SFR/ NA

Histotic Folsom PBID ManagementDistrict Plan 48

Page 263

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



APPENDIX 5 - TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM COST OF
IMPROVEMENTS, MAINTENANCE, AND ACTIVITIES

The estimated maximum cost of the line items belovr was developed based on the estimated costs of
providing serrices in the proposed HtrPBID. The costs below are esdmated; the actual line item costs

will fluctuate. The table belovz shows expenditutes from assessment and non-assessed funds.

Assessment funds are governed by Section VI. There is no limit on reallocation of non-assessment funds

by the Owners'Association. The total maximum budget may exceed the maximum listed in this table if
parcel ownership changes result in parcels being assessed at a higher rate due to a higher estimated benefit.

Year Advocacy &
Progtam

Coordination

Image
Enhancement

Enhanced
Maintenance

Contingency
/

Reserve

County/C
ity
Fee

Total

2024 $63,153.43 $60,926.47 $43,006.93 $7,186.54 $5,389.90 ff179,663.27

2025 $65,048.03 $62,754.26 fi44,297.1.4 fi7,402.L4 $5,551.60 $185,053.17

2026 $66,999.47 ff64,636.89 ff45,626.05 $7,624.20 $5,718.15 $190,604.76

2027 $69,009.45 $66,576.00 fi46,994.83 fi7,852.93 $5,889.69 $1.96,322.90

2028 ff7"t,079.73 fi68,573.28 fi48,404.67 $8,088.52 $6,066.38 ff202,212.58

2029 fi73,21.2.1.2 $70,630.48 $49,856.81 $8,331.18 $6,248.37 ff208,278.96

2030 $75,408.48 fi72,749.39 $51,352.51 $8,581.12 $6,435.82 fi274,527.32

2031, $77,670.73 $74,93't..87 $52,893.09 $8,838.55 $6,628.89 fi220,963.1.3

2032 $80,000.85 $77,179.83 $54,479.88 $9,103.71 $6,827.76 fi227,592.03

2033 $82,400.88 $79,495.22 fi56,1,1.4.28 fi9,376.82 ff7,032.59 $234,41.9.79

Total $723,983.17 $698,453.69 $493,026.79 $82,385.71 $61,789.15 $2,059,637.91

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 49

Page 264

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



APPENDIX 6 - BASELINE SERVICES PROVIDED

The City of Folsom will condnue to provide a baseline level of services throughout the District, consistent

with services provided to parcels outside the District. The tables below show the baseline level of services

as of August 2022; these sen'ices may only be reduced in the event of a city-wide senrice reduction.

Pattol services will be
provided as directed by
an established patol
staffins plan.

Police: Patrol City of Folsom
Police Depaftment

City of Folsom
Police Department

Special enforcement
units handle issues

involving gangs and the
selling of drugs in the
City of Folsom, as

needed

Police: Special
Problems Units

When observed,

officers advise City
crevrs of abatement
needed.

Private ptoperty clean-
up is the responsibility
of the propetty owner.

Police: Graffiti
Abatement

City of Folsom
Police Department

Historic District has

restrjcted patking (time
limits and residential

perrnits) and receives

regular patols from
parking enforcement.
Provisions exist to
allow employee
parkingin some time-
limited parkinq lots

Police: Parking
Enforcement

City of Folsom
Police Department

Officers patrol the
Historic Disttict as patt
of their standard tour of
duty. This includes
enforcement of parking
tegulations for vehicles

utilizing public parking
lots and on-sfteet
parking.

Police and Fire
D epartrnent s taff review
request for special
events, and provide
personnel as

oudined/required in the

Special Event Permits.

Unless waived by the
City Council, special

events tequite the
promoter/sponsor to
pay Police andf orFtte
Departrnent expenses.

Police/Fire: Special
Events

City of Folsom
Police Department and Fire
Department

Security Guards None Provided
Hiring own secudty for
localized security
services in parking lots,
garages, building
interiors and perimeters

Private Security Individual Propety Owners

SAFETY, POLICING & SECURITY

CommentsLevel ofServiceActivity

Flistoric Folsom PBID Management District Plan 50

Page 265

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Histotic Folsom
Station Plaza

City of Folsom Ongoing clean-up,
lands caping maintenance

Event impacts paid by
sponsor and as also

specified in Special Event
permit conditions

Ciw of Folsom Ongoing maintenanceParking Garage
Public Resttooms
Security Issues

Ciry of Folsom Ongoing maintenance Event impacts paid by
sponsor and as also

specified in Special Event
permit conditions

Signage - sffeet signs

and interpretive
amenities

City of Folsom Ongoing maintenance Changeable content oi
signage managed by
FHDA

City of Folsom Lights changed on an as-

needed basis. The Public
Works Department is

responsible for upkeep
and maintenance of
street liqhtinq.

Sreet Lighting

City of Folsom
Code Enforcement

As identified and
response based.

On public propertyGtaffiti Removal

Make necessary repilrs
when needed for safety
and aesthetics

Sidewalks General City of Folsom
Public Works Depattrnent

City of F'olsom
Parks and Recreation
Depattment

Install, replace &
maintain benches,
receptacles and tecycling
receptacles in the hrrstoric

atea. as needed.

Sidewalk Receptacles
and Benches

Ongoing MaintenanceDrinking Fountains,
Public Art and other
Street fumiture

City of Folsom
Parks and Recreation
Deparffnent

Respond to service
requests on an as-needed
basis.

Alley City of Folsom
Public Works Departrnent

City of Folsom
Code Enforcement

Property owners can

report owners who do
not upkeep their lots.
(e.g. junk and debds,
weeds)

If delinquent, City may
pursue lawful means to
correcdon violation

Maintenance: Vacant
lots

I-evel of Service CommentsActivity

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 51

Page 266

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Parking: Off-street
Public Lots

City of Folsom
Public Works Departrnent

Street crews clean trash
and debris monthly or by
location with Service
Request. Potholes and
bumper repairc are

performed on an as-

needed basis.

Parking: On-street City of trolsom
Public Works Departrnent

Maintain parking spaces

, on as needed basis.

Cleaning scheduled to
avoid disrupting parking
demand.

Respond to Serrrice

Requests as needed for
trash, debds, accidents
and potholes. Skin
patching, base repairs
and as-scheduled or
coordinated with other
ptojects.

Street General
Maintenance

City of Folsom
Public'Works Departrnent

Routine pothole patching
with cold patch during
raining weather. Skin

patch and base repair
when clear and in warrner
weather. City shall

continue to be
responsible for all street
maintenance.

Street Sweeping City of Folsom
Public Works Departrnent

Arterials and Collectors
Downtown:2 times per
yet

Parking lots and alleys: 2-
3 times petyeat

Trash Collection:
Business

Property Owners Each owner shall be
tesponsible for trash
collection to ensure a
clean and tidied uash
afe .

Trash Collection:
Sidewalk receptacles

City of Folsom
Public Works Departrnent

Provide trash collection
for sidewalk containers 3

days per week

Service is provided only
in Sutter Street
commercial cote ate

Trash Collection:
Removal of Signs on
Public Poles

City of Folsom
Code Enfotcement

On an as-needed basis

on City owned Facilities
Code enforcement is the
responsible party as most
signs are foryardand
g rage sales, which is
coveted by otdinance.

Landscaping: Planters City of trolsom
Parks and Recreation
Departrnent

Maintain landscaping in
public ROW

Other landscaping is the
responsibility of the
property ov/ner.

Level of Setvice CommentsResponsible

Historic Folsom PBID Management District Plan 52

Page 267

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



Landscaping: Tree
Trimming

City of Folsom
Parks and Recreation
Departrnent

Ptovide tree trimming
annually fot ttees in the
public RO\f. Respond
tohazard tree calls as

needed. Perform Right-
of -Way clearance, as

needed. Perform tree
temovals as needed.

Ttees on private property
that encroach in ROW,
are owner's responsibility
to maintain as needed or
requested by City Staff.

Street decorations FHDA Banners and othet
seasonal elements (com
stalks, ribbons on poles,
etc)

Covered thru BID and
othet FHDA fund
raising. Decorations and
banners to comply with
City codes, guidelines, ot
Special Event permit
condidons.

Trash collection for
special events (Craft
faits, TNM, Catde
Drive, etc)

City of Folsom
Public Works Departrnent

Event sponsor
responsible for placing
loose trash in receptacles
City responsible for
emptlnng receptacles
within 24 hours of event

Level of Service Comments

Decorations:
Special Events

Event sponsors in
collaboration \n/ith FHDA

Seasonal decorations
provided by trHDA can
be supplemented for
special events

Decorations: Special

Events

Public Works:
Special Events

City of Folsom
Public Works Departrnent

Public Works Departrnent
staff review request for
special events, and
provide traffic control
personnel as

oudined/required in the
Special Event Permits.

Unless waived by the
City Council, special

events tequire the
promotet/sponsor to
pay Public Wotks
Depaftment expenses.

OTHER SERVTCES
Level of Service Comments

Historic Folsom PBID Management Disttict Plan 53

Page 268

03/28/2023 Item No.11.



IIOLSOM

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 3/28/2023

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Housing Element Program H-2 - Additional Housing Capacity
Buildout Assumptions Analysis and Recommendations

FROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff is seeking input on increased residential capacrty and buildout assumptions to implement
Housing Element Program H-2 (Create Additional Lower-Income Housing Capacity). Please

review the analysis and assumptions presented in this staff report and accompanying memorandum

from Ascent (Attachment 1) regarding the proposed residential capacity increase (refer to Table

3) and confirm and/or provide input on the buildout capacity methodology and the proposed

increase to the 2035 General Plan residential buildout.

BACKGROUND/ISSUE

On August 24,2021, the City Council adopted the 2021-2029 Housing Element. This State-

mandated pan of the General Plan serves as the City's plan to accommodate current housing needs

and future growth. One of the key challenges the City faced (and continues to face) with this most
recent Housing Element pertains to Folsom's share of the Regional Housing Needs Allocation
(RHNA) as determined by the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG).

As shown in Table 1 below, the City's RHNA obligation for this eight-year Housing Element cycle

is 6,363 housing units, of which 3,567 units are to be affordable to very low-income and low-
income households (collectively referred to as the "lower-income" RHNA).

Page 269

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



1,967 6,363 7951,34r 829Housing
Units

2,226

3r% r00%2t% t3%Percent of
Total

35%

Note: * Based on 8-year planning period
I 20206Source: SACOG Regional Needs Plan

Folsorrr's 2tl2l-21129 ltcgional IJousirrg Ncctls tlltil '\lloca{iolt llr lncttlltc
i'i';r71r11i1'

r!',rir,ii i, l,',r1,,:

11,,,.,1i.

l5q. ;.r1i

;r':
t,7. ,l

:.i:.:
,11.1: ,1.) i; \

Table 1

While the City was able to identifu sufficient sites for future housing growth and higher density

zoned sites assumed to accommodate more affordable housing, the State also requires the City to

maintain sufficient zoned land throughout the Housing Element eight- year period. Since Housing

Element adoption, developers have built both affordable and market rate housing on higher density

multi-family sites. When sites identified for affordable housing are developed with market-rate

housing, the State "no net loss" law requires the City to find additional capacity or rezone land to

maintain capacrty to meet the City's housing allocation (RHNA). Thus, to create additional

opportunities for high-density housing and ensure the City maintains an adequate capacity to meet

its lower-income RHNA throughout the planning period, the202l-2029 Housing Element includes

a program (Program H-2) to strategically increase maximum allowed densities in targeted areas of
the city and to increase housing capacity in the Folsom Plan Areas Specific Plan (FPASP) as

follows:

o Implementation Program H-2 Create Additional Lower-Income Housing
Capacity: The City shall create additional opportunities forhigh-density housing to ensure

the City maintains adequate capacity to meet the lower-income RHNA throughout the

planning period. The City shall increase maximum allowable densities in the East Bidwell
Mixed Use Overlay, SACOG Transit Priority Areas outside the Historic District, and

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Town Center. In implementing this program, the City shall

strive to disperse affordable housing opportunities and avoid fair housing issues related to

overconcentration. The City shall coordinate with property owners along the East Bidwell
Street corridor and within the Transit Priority Areas to identifr and pursue residential

development opportunities. The City shall review and revise Policy 4.7 of the Folsom Plan

Area Specific Plan to increase the total number of dwelling units allowed in the Plan Area

to satisfu the RHNA, as long as infrastructure needs are met. In addition, the City shall

coordinate with property owners in the Folsom Plan Area to mitigate the loss of lower-

income housing sites to market-rate housing.

To implement the 2021-2029 Housing Element Program H-2, the City is in the process of
increaslng maximum allowed densities and Floor Area Ratios (FARs) in the East Bidwell Mixed

Use Overlay, SACOG Transit Priorities Areas, and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP)

Town Center. Additionally, the project includes increasing the total number of allocated

residential units in the FPASP to address the city's RHNA. As such, a general plan amendment

and associated environmental analysis is required, as well as a FPASP specific plan amendment

with environmental analysis.

Page 270

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



In June of 2021, the City received $765,000 in grant funding from SACOG to advance the

implementation of Program H-2. As part of this grant award, the city hired Opticos to prepare an

evaluation of the existing CrW's multi-family and mixed-use development standards and a market

feasibility analysis to inform future density and development standards associated with increased

development in the targeted areas. In addition, the bulk of this grant funding was used to hire

Ascent Environmental, Inc. (Ascent) to prepare the actual General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan

Amendment, and associated technical and environmental analyses to implement ProgranH-2.

In July 2022,the Planning Commission and City Council held workshops to discuss the results of
the Targeted Mixed-use and Multi-family Housing Study (TMMH Study) conducted by Opticos

(Attachment 2). At these workshops, staff presented the results of the TMMH Study, as well as

proposals for several rezones in the FPASP to create additional affordable housing development

opportunities within the FPASP. Based on Opticos' analysis, as well as staff s evaluation of how

other communities like Roseville and El Dorado Hills have addressed similar challenges to

increase densities, staff developed a number of recommendations that focused on form, size, scale,

height, and design rather than on density alone.

Overall, Planning Commission and City Council members supported the concepts presented by

staff and Council provided staff with direction to proceed with the necessary analysis to increase

densities in the three strategic areas of the city as listed in Table 2:

Table 2

In addition to increasing allowable densities in the three targeted areas of the City, ProgranrH-2
also prescribes that the City coordinate with landowners in the Folsom Plan Area to mitigate for
the loss of lower-income housing sites to market-rate housing.

As such, over the last year staff has been meeting with the FPASP landowners and several

interested developers to better understand future affordable housing development opportunities

within the FPASP and to discuss potential strategies to maintain the City's RHNA for the current

housing element cycle. As a result of these meetings the following measures pertaining to the

FPASP have been identified and agreed upon:

1. Amend the FPASP land use designation for Site 2 (10.52 acres) from industrial to multi-
family high density to allow for development of up to 400 multi-family housing units.

2. Amend the FPASP to rezone Site 15 (13.22 acres) from community commercial to multi-
family high density to allow for up to 320 multi-family housing units.

3. Amend the FPASP to rezone Site 233 (11.54 acres) from commercial to mixed-use to

allow for development of up to 250 multi-family housing units.

1.5
35' upto 50'-60' (60' for

corner elements only)30 du/ac 0.5East Bidwell Conidor

3.0
35' up to 60 - 70' (70' for

corner elements only)30 du/ac 1.0Iron Point and Glenn Station

3.0
35' up to 60 - 70' (70' for

corner elements only)30 du/ac 1.0Folsom Town Center

(litr Council l)ircctctl Targctctl lncrcascs

i ,. '.,. li' l' ,r ":, 1',r.a:l tll)t. lt .,\,,;it 't1:.

:.,1 1;t I t t j: ;,trilt t:t \'i;ri )' i':.,1' t,l;l

lil rr'|, r' : 
":;'

: rl,):ri::

,..,i1

Page 271

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



4. Increase the number of dwelling units allocated to the FPASP Town Center from 490 du

to 1,250 du, resulting in an increase of 760 du.

5. Increase the number of dwelling units allocated to nine additional multi-family
designated sites in the FPASP (outside the Town Center) from 1,258 du to 1,410 du,

resulting in an increase of 152.

6. Deed-restrict several parcels to accommodate a minimum of 890 deed-restricted

affordable housing units to meet the City's lower-income RHNA.

Based on the proposed FPASP RHNA strategy summarized above and build out assumptions for
the East gidwill Ndixed Use Overlay and SACOG Transit Priorities Areas (along the Glenn/Iron

Point light rail stations), staff and Ascent have developed what staff believes to be a realistic

buildouicapacity that will be used as the basis for the technical analysis and environmental studies

necessary for any future amendments to the General Plan, the FPASP, and the Zonrng Code as

shown in Table 3. The location of where the increased capacity would occur are in Figures I and

2 on the following pages. The 2035 General Plan EIR previously assumed approximately 1,000

units of growth primarily along the East Bidwell Conidor. After factoring in that existing

development capacity, the net new capacity would be approximately 6,000 housing units. Before

staff finalizes these numbers for technical and environmental analysis, staff is asking the City

Council to confirm the buildout capacity methodology and the proposed increase to the 2035

General Plan residential buildout.

Table 3

While this is alarge increase, this does not mean that these dwelling units will all be built. It is
anticipated that if this growth happens it will occur over the remaining horizon of the 2035 General

Plan and the FPASP, which envision a buildout over the next 12 to 20 years. Creating this

additional residential development capacity satisfies the goals of the General Plan and Housing

Element by: 1) creating sufficient capacity to address the City's current RHNA obligations as well

as help wiih future ones; 2) focuses growth in targeted areas and away from established residential

neighborhoods; and 3) avoids a situation where the City has to rezone land outside of these targeted

areas to satisff the State's no-net loss requirements.

Transit Priority Areas
7502.0L Iron Point Station

1,0502.02. Glenn Station

East Bidwell Corridor
11.53. Central Commercial District

4501.0 - 1.54. Creekside District

1,0501.55. College/BroadstoneDistrict

5,150Subtotal

FPASP
1,8826. Folsom Plan Area

7,032Overall Capacity
(1"000)Existine Capacity (per General Plan EIR)
6,032Net New Capacity

Suntrtt:rrt. of IrtcI'casctl llcsidcntiaI lluiltlout Capacitr
i

,l rr, t-.,r.1 
,,t 

r,..rt;,r], .r i I I , tt,-,

'i ,, rl I 
,, .,,

;,i,1ir, ;:r li ,1 lfr-i1,:1;t. ;:, irif

Page 272

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Staff is asking the City Council to consider and provide input on the buildout assumptions. See the

sub-area sunmary and corresponding maps below (Figures I and 2), as well as Table 3 for
additional details about increased housing capacity by target area.

Figure I
Location of Targeted Areas and Buildout Assumptions

:.giaiD
filiXg|td*rs*lkt

'th*brd
€8EtrsQr/tf,-rE.
Ih*t*t!
-.:-lL-rbh-lf

*hlhrriFfh
{,:::}b
f"'=lt--rftrr*r
I t*x*

---.llrurr
rl r qFilh

t
*

Page 273

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Figure 2

Location of Increased Residential Capacity
in Folsom Plan Area

4i:t'-',.- t'1
i; , "t-,-:'-<r

.:'. : , i.,.i.'

Legend
a.!rrnt

tfi tdr {t 3dry

r-tdtt06t
{t.ll€t *l

fimlF**ff*'
IF;;33*'
[ElFibs,
I rus*o.r*.t

at

'Q

's

rc crGftc@

ffi| ffi.'ffi,

IiestrcI'*
lFffi@e
n ffidrrrge

@l rxorr*r

Commission Input: This item was presented to the Planning Commission on March 15,2023.

Since this staff report was completed before the Commission meeting occuffed staff will provide

the Commission's comments as part of its presentation to the City Council. Please note that this

report was not presented to the Historic District Commission since none of the target areas are

located within the boundaries of the Historic District.

Page 274

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



POLICY / RULE

The City's 2021-2029 Housing Element was approved by the City Council in August 2021. That

document includes several policies that relate directly to the issues discussed in this staff report.

These include:

a Policy H-1.1 Sufficient Land for Housing: The City shall ensure that sufficient land is

designated and zoned in a range of residential densities to accommodate the City's
regional share of housing.

Policy H-1.2 Location of Higher-Density Housing Sites: The City shall endeavor to

designate future sites for higher-density housing near transit stops, commercial services,

employment centers, and schools, where appropriate and feasible.

Policy H-1.3 Multi-family Housing Densities: The City shall encourage home

builders to develop their projects on multi-famity-designated land at the high end of the

applicable density range.

Policy H-1.4 Lower-Income Housing Replacement Sites: The City shall mitigate the

loss of lower-income housing sites within the Folsom Plan Area by securing voluntary

agreements with the landowners to find replacement sites as market-rate housing is

developed on sites identified in the lower-income sites inventory.

Policy H-2.5 Objective Standards: The City shall endeavor through its development

and design standards and decision making to provide consistent and predictable policy

direction based on objective standards for multi-family residential project applicants.

Policy H-3.2 Inclusionary Housing: The City shall continue to require inclusionary

housing on all new for-sale units. The City may also consider inclusionary housing as a

community benefit for non-City-initiated General Plan and/or Specific Plan amendments

that result in rental housing.

Policy H-3.6 Density Bonus: The City shall continue to make density bonuses

available to affordable and senior housing projects, consistent with State law and Title 17

of the Folsom Municipal Code.

Policy H-6.3 Balance of Housing Types: The City shall encourage residential projects

affordable to a mix of household incomes and disperse affordable housing projects

throughout the city, including the Folsom Plan Area, to achieve a balance of housing in
all neighborhoods and communities.

a

a

a

a

o

a

a

Page 275

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



ANALYSIS

Holding Capacity

The 2035 General Plan includes assumptions about the amount of growth that will occur within
the 2035 timeframe. These projections were then used to establish a holding capacity that

represents an estimate of the total dwelling units, population, and non-residential building square

footage associated with the future buildout of the City based on the adopted 2035 General Plan

Land Use Diagram. A key assumption in understanding this holding capacity analysis is that it
reflects a theoretical buildout of the entire city, rather than what is likely to appear on the ground

within the General Plan horizon year of 2035.

The build out model for the 2035 Folsom General Plan was conducted at the parcel level using an

inventory of vacant land as the basis for analysis. The analysis was further broken down by the

land north of Highway 50 and the land within the FPASP, located south of Highway 50. For the

area north of Highway 50, the General Plan also included the East Bidwell Corridor (EBC)

Overlay, which encourages mixed-use development along East Bidwell Street. The assumptions

applied to parcels within the EBC Overlay largely depended on whether the parcel was vacant or

considered underutilized. Underutilized parcels, characlerized by aging commercial uses that

would be more likely to redevelop within the timeframe of the General Plan, were identified and

mixed-use assumptions were applied to those underutilized parcels. It is important to note that the

EBC Overlay is the only arca that assumed redevelopment of underutilized parcels within the

holding capacity analysis; all other parcels in the build out model were vacant. In addition, the

holding capacity for the land within the Specific Plan Area was conducted as part of the FPASP

preparation and was updated for the General Plan to reflect subsequent land use amendments.

As previously discussed, implementation of Program H-2 will increase allowed densities in three

targeted areas of the City: East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, SACOG Transit Priorities Areas

(primarily along the GlenrVlron Point light rail stations), and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

(FPASP). Thus, a critical component of this project is to identifr and then analyze the increased

residential holding capacity.

Buildout Assumptions and Analysis for sites North of 50

East Bidwell Street Mixed-use Corridor
For the East Bidwell Street Mixed Use Corridor, City staff and the consultants identified
all vacant sites and underutilized sites (housing opportunity sites) within the East Bidwell
Street Mixed Use Conidor Overlay, broken down by sub-area (Central Commercial

District, Creekside District, and the College and Broadstone District). Although many of
these housing opportunity sites were identified as part of the recently adopted Housing

Element, additional capacity was identified based on new information provided by City
staff and also to account for a longer planning horizon (Housing Element planning period

ends in 2029, whereas the General Plan period is until 2035). For the Central Commercial

District where staff and the consultants did not identifr any specific sites for future housing

development, the buildout assumed was a percentage of the total subarea. The sites were

Page 276

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



then compiled in a map and land use holding capacity was calculated through a series of
formulas that fed parcel-level information through development assumptions including

target floor area ratio (FAR) and percentage of site developed or redeveloped.

Iron Point and Glenn Station TOD Areas
For the Iron Point and Glenn Stations, staff and the consultants reviewed arial images for
sites within the city's Iron Point and Glenn Station Green Means Go designations to

identifu vacant and underutilized housing opportunity sites and establish project

boundaries for these areas. Within the project boundary area for the Iron Point Station, no

specific sites were identified. As such, staff assumed buildout of a percentage of the total

area within the boundary. For the Glenn Station boundary area, the only vacant site within
the boundary is the Glenn Station parking lot (which is already in the Housing Element

vacant sites inventory). The remainder of the housing opportunity sites identified are

developed sites charactenzedby aging commercial uses that could likely redevelop within
the timeframe of the General Plan planning period. All of these sites were compiled in a
map and the land use holding capacity was calculated through a series of formulas that fed

parcel-level information through development assumptions including target floor area ratio
(FAR) and percentage of site redeveloped.

Based on the assumptions and analysis for each of the targeted areas North of Highway 50

described above, approximately 4,000 units of additionally holding capacity for housing will be

analyzed as the build out model for the 2035 Folsom General Plan

Buildout Assumptions and Analysis for sites South of 50

The FPASP is a comprehensively planned community that proposes new development based on

"Smart Growth" principles. Approved in2011, the FPASP is a development plan for over 3,500

acres of previously undeveloped land located south of U.S. Highway 50, north of White Rock

Road, east of Prairie City Road, and west of the Sacramento County/El Dorado County line in the

southeastern portion of the City. The FPASP includes a mix of residential, commercial,

employment and public uses, and currently includes a maximum of t1,467 residential units at

various densities on approximately 1,630 acres. As previously indicated inthis staff report, HE

Program H-2 directs the city to increase the maximum number of dwelling units allowed in the

Plan Area to satis$ the RHNA, as long as infrastructure needs are met.

For the FPASP, the increased holding capacity for development was calculated based on the

proposed FPASP RHNA strategy summarized earlier in this report and results in an increased

holding capacrty of 1,882 residential units as summarized in Table 3. Of the 1,882 units of
increased capacity, 970 additional residential units result from rezoning commercial/industrial

sites to allow for multi-family development and the remaining 912 unit capacity resulting from
increasing the allocated number of residential units on individual multi-family zoned sites in the

FPASP. A11 of this is conditioned upon the outcome of technical and environmental studies to

determine whether there is sufficient infrastructure and water resources to support this additional

development.

Since the City will be funding the planning, environmental and technical analyses to increase

housing in the Folsom Plan Area, the City and landowners will enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) that memorializes: 1) the City's intention to take the lead on the General

Page 277

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Plan and FPASP Amendments and associated environmental analysis to increase housing

development capacity, including affordable housing, and to present that to the City Council for
action; and 2) the landowner's commitments to deed restrict certain lots for the development of
890 units affordable to lower income households within 30 days of Council action (note: this is in
addition to the 64 units to be deed restricted by Eagle for lot 61) and to fund an update by Economic

& Planning Systems (EPS) or other consultants to the infrastructure and finance plan related to the

increased housing units. As such, staff is in the process of preparing a draft MOU that the City

Manager plans to execute later this month.

Finally, it should be noted that the Water Supply Agreement (which has been validated by the

courts) provides a total of 5,600-acre feet per year of water to the Folsom Plan Area consistent

with Measure W. Based on initial estimates from the 2011 FPASP total water demand for the plan

area was at 5,168-acre feet per year. Since that time the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

(UWMP), which incorporated recently adopted indoor and outdoor water efhciency requirements,

was completed and determined that water demand for the FPASP is calculated to be 4,821-acre

feet, creating a surplus of approximately 778-acre feet, According to the City's water consultant

Peterson Brustad Inc. (PBI), future multi-family housing units in the FPASP will use

approximat ely 0.22-acre feet per yearldwelling unit. If we assume an addition al I ,882 multi-family
units allocated to the FPASP, an additional4l4-acre feet would be required leaving a surplus of
364-acre feet. The additional housing capacity will be subject to a more detailed and precise water

supply and CEQA analysis.

Regional Housing Needs Allocation Status

Table C-41 from the Housing Element (HE) Background Report summarizes the estimated

residential capacity compared to the RHNA by income level at the time of Housing Element

Adoption on August 24,2021.

Total Units
Very Low-

lncome
Units

Low-
lncome
Units

Moderate-
lncome Units

Above
Moderate-

lncome Units

2,226 r,347
829 !,967 6,363

3,567
RHNA

5,369L29 216 r,209 3,815Planned and Approved Projects

8,4793,216 2,666 2,537Estimated Residential Capacity on

Vacant and Underutilized Land

r,2360 0Eost Bidwell Mixed Use Corridor Sites 1.,236

44 10 1991.4sTronsit Priority Areo Sites

2,615 2,190 6,r491",344Folsom Plon Area Specific Plon Sites

1 337 83549tAdditiondl Housing Sites

83 t 581496
Estimated Residential Capacity of
Accessory Dwelling Units and Multi-
Generational Units

3,958 6,3s4 14369Residential Capacity 4,O57

490 3,129 4,387Surplus

TABLE C-41: ESTIMATED RESIDENTIAL CAPACIry COMPARED TO RHNA BY INCOME, CITY OF FOISOM,

JUNE 30, 7O2ITO AUGUST 31",2029

Page 278

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



As shown in the table, at the time of HE adoption the City was able to identifr sufficient sites for

future housing growth, including sites for affordable development with a surplus (buffer) of zoned

land assumed to accommodate 490 lower income units. However, given current and anticipated

development applications for market rate and non-residential development on multi-family and

mixed-use sites, staff estimates that most of the buffer capacity will be gone by the end of the

current calendar year. Table 4 provides a summary of our projected lower-income RHNA capacity

anticipated over the next 6-months. As shown, staff anticipates that our surplus will shrink from

490 units to 231 by the end of the year. Based on State "no net loss" law, it is the City's
responsibility to maintain adequate zoned sites with corresponding housing capacity to meet the

City's housing needs at all times for the eight-year housing cycle'

Table 4

CONCLUSION

In order to comply with State housing requirements and regional housing allocations for the current

eight-year cycle, the City must increase housing capacity to meet lower income housing needs. As

outlined in Housing Element Program H-2, the City will do this by strategically increasing

maximum density in targeted areas of the City and by increasing the total number of multi-family

and mixed-use housing units in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan south of Highway 50. The

grant funded consultant study analyzed market feasibility and appropriate designs in those tatget

areas (Attachment 2). Community input and Council direction in 2022 informed the increased

development parameters for each target area.

Based on the results of the Targeted Housing Study and discussions with the FPASP landowners,

staff have been able to quantifu the projected increased density of existing housing sites (multi-

family and mixed-use) in targetareas and identifr additional housing sites in the Folsom Plan Area

to establish buildout assumptions and capacity that will be used as the basis for the technical studies

4,051HE Low and Very Low CaPacitY

BP zone not included in RHNA+ 135Vintage Senior Apts Site

Previous Project Withdrawn 1.95 ac+53Harrington Sites

Active Application(150)Creekside Sites

+10 Not Included in Housing ElementHabitat Persifer Site

Active Application Reducing Acreage(37)Kaiser Site

Application Expected Soon(270)Elliott Broadstone Site

3,798New Capacity

3,567HE Lower RHNA Required

23tSurplus

Summary 2023 Projects on Multi-family or Mixed-Use Sites

Lower Income Residential Holding Capacity Compared to RHNA

Page 279

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



and environmental review. Table 3 summarizes the buildout assumptions (proposed housing

buildout capacity) through 2035 for each of the targeted areas identified in Housing Element

Program H-2.

With input from the Planning Commission and direction from City Council on the buildout

assumptions and additional housing capacity outlined herein, staff and the consultant team will
move forward with the technical and environmental studies necessary for any future amendments

to the General Plan and Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. This information will also be incorporated

into the ZoningCode update that is currently underway. It is anticipated that these detailed studies

will take between six to nine months to complete, at which time staff will return to the Commission

and Council for action.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

No financial impact will result from Council action on this item.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The review and input by the City Council is exempt from the California Environmental Quality

Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the California Public Resources Code as there is

no possibility that the meeting to confirm the project description will have a significant effect on

the environment. Once direction is provided by the City Council on the appropriate buildout

capacity, the City will undertake an environmental analysis in compliance with CEQA to

determine whether the changes, including amendments to the General Plan and Folsom Plan Area

Specific Plan, would have a significant effect on the environment.

ATT

1. Ascent Housing Element Implementation: Proposed Residential Capacity Increase Memo

dated March 6,2023
Z. Recommendations Memo: Opticos Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study

dated Jvne28,2022

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

Page 280

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 281

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



sCENTA

Memo
455 Capitol Mall, Suite 300

Sacramento, CA 95814

916.444.7301

Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

March 6,2023

Pam Johns, City of Folsom, Community Development Director

Chelsey Payne, AICP, Director of Urban Planning

Housing Element lmplementation: Proposed Residential Capacity lncrease

For the Sixth Cycle Housing Element, the City was assigned a Regional Housing Needs Allocation

(RHNA) of 6,363 housing units, including 3,567 lower-income housing units (i.e., very low- and low-

income units combined) for the eight-year planning period (Table 1). When the City adopted the

Housing Element in August 2021,lhe City only had a surplus capacity of 490 housing units in the

lower-income category. A State law referred to as "no net loss" law requires the City to track

development on the sites in the Housing Element sites inventory and maintain adequate capacity

to meet the RHNA throughout the entire Housing Element planning period. As market rate

developments are approved on sites included in the lower-income sites inventory, these sites are

essentially lost from the lower-income inventory. The City must make a finding that it has adequate

capacity on the remaining sites in the inventory to accommodate the remaining lower-income

RHNA or must identify a replacement site within 180 days.

Source: Sacramento Area Council of Governments, Regionol Housing Needs Plan 2021-2029 (february ZOZO).

Recognizing that the City would need to take action during the planning period to increase lower-

income housing capacity in order to address no net loss requirements, the City included Housing

Element program H-2 (Create Additional Lower-income Housing Capacity), which committed to

increasing densities in the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, Transit Priority Areas, and the Folsom

Plan Area Specific Plan Town Center.

7

Above
Itloderate

TotalLow ModerateVeryLow

6,363829 1,9672,226 1,341RHNA

TABLE 1: REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION, Clry OF FOLSOM'

,uNE 30, 2021TO AUGUST 31,2029

Page 282

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



City staff has been working with consultants at Opticos and Ascent to develop recommendations

for new development standards that would allow for increased residential capacity in the East

Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay and Transit Priority Areas. City staff has also been in conversations with

properly owners and developers within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan about land use changes

that would add capacity to the lower-income sites inventory. City staff and Ascent have prepared

estimates for the housing unit capacity that would be created in the longer-term with the

proposed changes. The buildout estimates of 5,150 housing units in the areas shown in Table 2 are

theoretical and assume that all vacant land and a certain amount of non-vacant land within each of

the focus areas would redevelop in the longer-term with new housing. For context, the 2035

General Plan assumed about 1,000 housing units in these areas by 2035. The new estimates assume

that several vacant sites will develop with housing or mixed-use ratherthan solely commercial and

that some existing non-residential uses will redevelop with housing. ln the Folsom Plan Area, the

proposed land use changes would allow for an additional 1,882 housing units, including capacity

for almost 1,000 affordable units.

The City cannot credit the full estimated housing unit capacity toward the Housing Element

because State law only allows the City to include sites in the inventory that can be proven feasible

to develop during the 8-year planning period (i.e., by 2029). Many of the sites included in the

housing unit capacity shown in Table 2 are developed with existing uses and do not have

redevelopment potential in the near-term. However, the proposed increase in capacity will help the

City address the current "no net loss" issues during the Sixth Cycle RHNA period and set the City

up for success in the next Housing Element RHNA cycle.

By increasing residential capacities in the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay and Transit Priority Areas,

the City will be able to count a slight increase in capacity on the sites already included in the Sixth

Cycle Housing Element lower-income housing sites inventory. HCD requires that the Housing

Element sites inventory capacity be calculated using either the minimum density or a realistic

density reflective of the typical densities of existing or approved residential developments without

the use of State Density Bonus. Because the allowed density range on R4-zoned sites and sites

within the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay is currently 20 to 30 units per acre, recent developments

2

Estimated Housing
UnitYietd

Target Residential
FARSub-AreaArea
2.0 750lron Point Station District

1,0502.0

Transit
Priority Areas Glenn Station District

1.5 1,850Central Com mercial District

4501.0 - 1.5Creekside District

1.5 1,050Cottege/ Broadstone District

East Bidwett
Mixed Use

Overlay

5,150Subtotol
+1,882Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

7,O32Total

TABLE 2: ESTIMATED HOUSING UNIT CAPACITY IN TOD AREAS AND EBMU OVERLAY

Page 283

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



have been built at densities lowerthan the maximum of 30 units per acre. The realistic densitythat

the City was able to justify on lower-income sites in the Housing Element was 27 units per acre.

City staff is proposing to set the minimum density of the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay zone and

the Transit Oriented Development Overlay zone to 30 units per acre and allow a higher maximum

density regulated through floor area ratio (FAR). The City would then be able to rely on this new

minimum density of 30 units per acre to calculate capacity on lower-income housing sites in these

areas. ln the immediate-term, establishing the minimum density of 30 units per acre will add

capacity for about 75 housing units on existing lower-income sites in the inventory within these

areas. However, by changing the density and establishing development standards that allow for

more housing units, the City is increasing the feasibility of affordable housing on these sites. As the

sites are developed with affordable housing at densities above the minimum density, the City will

be able to credit significantly more units on each of the sites, helping to greatly minimize no net

loss issues during the planning period and reducing the likelihood that the City would need to

rezone additional sites in other areas of the City.

While the proposed changes will help the City address housing needs in the current Housing

Element Cycle, the changes will also put the City in a much better position for Housing Element

compliance into the future. ln the longer term, as developments are approved at densities higher

than 30 units per acre, the City will be able to demonstrate a higher realistic density, which will

allow the City to count additional capacity on these lower-income sites in the next Housing

Element cycle. This could significantly reduce the number of sites the City will need to rezone to

higher density housing in future Housing Element cycles.

Overall, the proposed land use changes will help the City maintain the current Housing Element in

compliance with State law and set the City up for success in achieving compliance during future

Housing Element cycles.

3

Page 284

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 285

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Recor^n r-nendations City of Folsom

oPTt(o5

Menn
Targeted Mixed-Use

and Multi-Family

Housing Study
tune28,2o22

l.0f-so.\f

Page 286

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Prepared For:

City of Folsom
Gommunity Development Department
Planning Services
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
916.461.6202

Prepared By:

Opticos Design, lnc.
2100 Milvia Street, Suite 125

Berkeley. California 54704
510.558.6957

Wth Consu/tants:

Lisa Wise Consulting
58 Maiden Lane, 3rd Floor

San Francisco, CA 94108

805.595.1345

Cityof Folsom

Desmond Parrington,
Principal Planner

Stephanie Henry,
Senior Planner and
Housing Coordinator

2 Recommendations Memo Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022
Page 287

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



th
S

I

S

ln
Recommendations Memo

?
a

Background

Opportunity Site Testing

Recommendations

5

9

23
37Appendix

Folsom Targeted lvlixed-Use and N4ulti-Family Housing Study -.June28'2022 Recommendations Memo 3
Page 288

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



l./u

4 Recommendations lvlemo Folsom Targeted lvlixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28'2022

q

Page 289

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



'N-1)

Background SECTIONt
,

1

"s

Folsom needs to provide more housing
opportunities.

The State of California has identified the number of
housing units that Folsom needs to provide through its

Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA), and Folsom

needs to plan for that growth. As a result, it is imperative

that Folsom change the status quo in order to create

additional opportunities for housing. This challenge raises

a series of questions:

I Where should additional housing opportunities be

located?

I What kind of housing should be built?

I How should these additional housing opportunities be

enabled?

Folsom needs an approach that can target particular

locations that are best suited to accommodate additional

housing and can incorporate community input on the

form and scale of the new development in a way that

makes the development financially feasible.

ln setting the parameters for this study, the City has

identified targeted study areas that are well-suited for

additional houslng. Within these targeted study areas,

this memo addresses the remaining two questions, using

community input and financial feasibility analysis to

identify the preferred form and scale of new development

at those locations (see Section 2, Opportunity Site

Testing), and issuing recommendations for changes to

existing development standards to enable this additional

housing (see Section 3, Recommendations).

l

)

\

z
LJ.lhI5t
i(*.,
\l 1

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022 Recommendatlons lvlemo 5
Page 290

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Key lssues
These issues convey the urgency of providing new housing in
Folsom and barriers to meeting this need.

Section 1 - Background

High housing demand with Iimited housing stock
results in unaffordability for children of longtime

residents, seniors who want to downsize or who don't
drive as often, and people who work ln Folsom.

Folsom's housing supply doesn't provide enough

options for diverse lifestyles, including for residents

who want to llve a compact, walkable and transit'
oriented lifestyle.

One of the barriers to the production of diverse

housing options is regulatory standards that end up

making a site infeasible to develop as housing or
that result in unattractive development.

1
r-rJ

2

3

6 Recommendations Memo Folsom Targeted lvlixed-Use and N4ulti-Family Housing Study - Jone28,2022
Page 291

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Targeted Study Areas
This study provides recommendations for three targeted study
areas within Folsom.

Section 1 - Background

This project provides recommendations
for changes to development standards,

General Plan policies, and zoning
regulations in targeted areas that can help

to support infill housing ln Folsom

Recommendations will be tailored to
three general areas, which have been
identified by the City as best suited to

accommodaLe new housing.

I The East Bidwell Mixed-Use Overlay
Zone along the East Bidwell corridor.

With existing retail and service uses

along this corridor, new infill housing
would create a mixed-use environment
where residents could have easy access

to services, shopping, and jobs within

walking distance of their homes. This

new infill housing would also benefit
from the planned improvements to the

East Bidwell right-of-way.

I The Folsom Boulevard TOD study
area* along Folsom Boulevard. This area

encompasses two light rail stations,

Glenn Station and lron Point, as well

as the Folsom Parkway Rail Trail. As a

result, housing in this location would
have easy access to transit and bicycle
infrastructure and offer built-in mobility

alternatives for people interested in a

less car-dependent lifestyle.

I The New Town Center in the Folsom
Plan Area south of US-50. Planned

through a Specific Plan process that
included community engagement, this

location is slated for new mixed-use and

multi-family development that will create

housing opportunities at a new node of
retail, service, and public space.

*Note that the Historic District light rail

station is excluded from this study.

Key

East Bidwell Mixed-Use
Overlay Zone

Folsom Boulevard TOD
study area

Folsom Plan Area's New
Town Center

Recommendations N,4emo 7Folsom Targeted lVixed-Use and N4ulti Family Housing Study - )une 28,2022
Page 292

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



ffi

.A
fi

,€

n

-l

F
m
$.1

x

ft

I
1l

t

l\

Hii
Rri
.&bij

W

-Fyr$
j

u
v-

lr4'

' , l'-,

^t 
't

h-'

q'":r
,;'.

Folsom Targeted lVlxed Use and \4u tl-Famlly Housing Study )une28,2a22

+mar

8 Recommendations N,4emo
Page 293

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



'l
'oppo rtunity SECTION

2Site Testin

Opportunity site testing analyzes the housing
capacity of actual sites on the ground. This
study tested hypothetical buildout concepts on
a site in each of the three targeted study areas
where the Gity envisions opportunities for
more housing.

The potential buildout scenarios were informed by

community feedback about preferred building form,

building scale, and key design elements received at a
public workshop and through an online survey.

After beginning with the community's desired vision,

these hypothetical buildout concepts were then subject

to multiple iterations of financial feasibility analysis in order

to understand what conditions are necessary to make

these projects feasible at these locations and arrive at a

prototype in the realm of financial viability

Because the sample designs plan for long-term value

and livability, they may not always reach the theoretical

maximum capacity of a site. However, they are

representative of a desirable development approach that

creates a place where people want to live.

Recommendations l\y'emo 9Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and lrilulti-Family Housing Study - )une28,2022
Page 294

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Site 1

Snowline Hospice Thrift Store
Overview

Existing Gonditions

This is a deep lot bounded by East Bidwell

Street in the front and an alley in the

rear. lt is surrounded on both sides by

multi-tenant retail centers. Multi-family

residential bulldings are Iocated directly

behind the site across the rear alley. There

is one single-story retail building onsite

containing the Snowline Hospice Thrift

Store.

What We Heard From The
Community

Community members expressed that a

height of three to four stories felt about

right for this location. There was also some

support for taller development on corner

sites, such as up to five stories.

Given the scale and character of the East

Bidwellcorridor, it was also important to
the community to explore ways to make

the buildings look and feel smaller, with

smallto medium width and bulk.

Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Vision

The design concept for this site includes
two courtyard buildings. One courtyard
building, in the center of the rendering

on the next page, faces East Bidwell. The

second courtyard building is located in the

rear half of the lot. The second courtyard
building is nearly identical to the first, but
is rotated ninety degrees to face a new
pedestrian passage along the side lot line,

visible on the left side of the rendering.

Parking for this project would be located

behind these buildings in both surface
parking lots and tuck-under spaces at the
ground floor of the building.

Common open space in the form of
courtyards would be accessed directly
from the sidewalk. Additional open space

would take the form of the tree-lined
pedestrian passage pictured on the left
of the rendering, which leads from East

Bidwell Street to the rear courtyard and

finally to the alley at the rear of the site.

1() Recommendations lvlemo Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022
Page 295

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Design Concept + Site Testing Outcome

Left: View looking across East Bidwe//Street lowards lhe opportunity site.

Below: Rendering depicting the deslgn vision for thls slte /ooklng across East Bjdweil

Streef towards the opportunity site. Ivote that this rendering is illustrative onlY. lt

represenls hypothetical build-ouls used to calculate potential new housing and does

not represent a n actual development proposa/.

Site Test Assumptions + Yields

Above: Conceptualsite plan. Arrow indicates

vantage point for perspective rendering.

* of Units (du)

# ol Buildings

Bldg type

Height (stories)

Bldg width (ft)

Bldg depth (ft)

Density (du/ac)

FAR

Parking (sp/du)

Parking type

Front setback (ft)

Lotwidth (ft)

Lot depth (ft)

Lot area (ac)

82

2

Courtyard

3-4

140

100

59

1.0

1.0

Surface + tuck-under

15

170

350

1.4

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and lVulti-Family Housing Study - June2a'2022 Recommendatlons Memo 11

Page 296

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Architectural Style
The two renderings below illustrate how
the design vision for this slte could be
expressed in two different architectural
styles.

The top image represents a contemporary
architectural style, while the bottom image

represents a more traditional architectural
style. Both images depict the same
burlding types, building configurations,
building scale, and building program. The

Section 2 - opportunity Site Testing

difference is in the exterior architectural
expression which conveys the building in a

particular style.

lf there are certain locations where
particular architectural styles are important
to the community, the City can consider
opportunities to incorporate architectural
style standards into future design
standards for those areas.

Upper image: Buiidings
on this site expressed in a

contem por a ry a rch itectur al
sty/e

Lower image: Bul/dlngs on this
site expressed in a traditional
architectural style

12 Recommendations lvlemo Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and N/lulti-Family Housing Study - )une28,2022
Page 297

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Key Design Elements
Regardless of architectural style, there
are aspects of the two example designs
that accomplish the same design goals

through key design elements. These

design elements can be considered and
regulated independent of architectural
style and are important for ensuring
that development will make positive

contributions to the public realm.

!S '1

f
*:rs {fllrr'tl", {.*

,..ff 
*a

*f- cr +1O

Design Elements

I Open space creates a buffer between the public realm and individual unit entries

and provides an amenity for residents

I Pedestrian entries to individual units and to shared stairwells open directly onto

the courtyard and onto the pedestrian passage

il Shopfront frontages oriented towards East Bidwell Street could provide amenities

to residents or could provide leasable service or retail space

ffi Upper story is located within the roof form to reduce the perceived height of the

building

E Building height steps down from four stories in the rear down to three stories in

the wings that project towards the street to reduce the perceived scale

Key Regulatory Barriers
Parking standards. Currently, the site requires 1.5 spaces per unit. The design

concept tested for this opportunity site provides 1.0 spaces per unit.

Density. The prototype tested 59 du/acre for feasibility, exceeding the current

maximum of 30 du/acre.

Upper image: Key design
e/ements highltghted
on a building that has a

co nte m po r a r Y a r chi te ctu r a I

sty/e

Lower image: Many of the same

key design e/ements highlighted
on a building that has a

traditio n al a rchitectu r al sty Ie

Folsom Targeted lVixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022 Recommendations lvlemo 13
Page 298

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Site 2
Glenn Station Park-and-Ride Lot
Overview

Existing Gonditions

This site is adjacent to Glenn Station, a

stop on the Gold Line of the Sacramento
Regional Transit (SacRT) light rail

that connects Folsom to downtown
Sacramento. The light rail runs along the

western edge of the site, as does the

Folsom Parkway Rail Trail. The site is used

as a park-and-ride surface parking lot for
people using the light rail.

What We Heard From The
Community

The community expressed support for

more intense development at this location
given its adjacency to a light rail station.
ln general, we heard that five stories felt
about right for this location. Community
members were also open to buildings that

felt and looked large in width and bulk.

The community also expressed
interest in exploring additional design
guidelines for this location in order to

Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

make larger buildings attractlve and also

transition in scale to adjacent lower-

scale development. lt is also important
to the community and to SacRT to

accommodate parking for the light rail

users, whether onsite or on an adjacent
parcel, when this site is redeveloped.

Vision

The design concept for this site includes

one four-story building and two five-story
podium buildings. These are arranged
to create a common open space at the

entrance to the station and a public
pedestrian paseo leading through the
site from the station to a potential parking

lot across Coolidge Drive. These three

buildings accommodate 305 units and
1,5O0 square feet of commercial space.

The commercial space could be used for

an amenity that serves resldents, such as

a day care.

$

ffi

fl

fi

I
i.

I'ir
i tj.,

t,i
l:'

\'i'
tl,,

${d

fr,0

*,*i ,ll

il
6ll

f;?:

ru
p
fi

fr

: (riJi.*tnrln];1,

EUR&im

- 
"6Pl

!''rd9*F1 
"

Address
1O25 Glenn Dr

Targeted study area
Folsom Boulevard TOD

study area

Site dimensions
315 ft wide x 370 ft deep

Current site condition
Park-and-ride parking lot
serving light rail station

14 Recommendations lvlemo Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - )une28,2022
Page 299

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Design Concept + Site Testing Outcome

Left: View looking f rom the slation pavilion easl across the parking lot at the existing

opportunity site.

Below: Rendering depicting rhe design vlsron for this site looking from the station

pavilion east across the parking [ot. The rail line is behlnd the vantage poinl. Ivote that

this rendering ls i//ustratlve only. lt represents hypothetical bulid-oufs used to ca/cuiate

potential new housing and does not represent an actual development proposal

I

r

Above: Conceptualsile p/an. Arrow indicates Lot depth (ft)
vantage point forperspectlve rendering. 

Lotarea (ac)

Folsom Targeted lvlixed-Use and Multi Family Housing Study )une28,2022

# of Units (du)

# of Buildings

Bldg type

Height (stories)

Bldg width (ft)

Bldg depth (ft)

Density (du/ac)

FAR

Parking (sp/du)

Parking type

Front setback (ft)

Lotwidth (ft)

305

3

Podium and corridor

4-5

Range from 90-2OO

Range from 60-280

112

2.O

1.1

Podium and tuck-under

10

315

370

2.7

tt

It

Site Test Assumptions + Yields

RecommendationsMemo 15
Page 300

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Key Design Elements

3r3
rr 4*i

a
4s}f

I

s

;,

I
7

a,L?a*'t' ha^t-\

Design Elements

I Open space in the form of a green or plaza provides a gathering space at the

station entrance, and a public pedestrian paseo leads through the site towards

public parking across the street

f Pedestrian entries to individual units and to shared stairwells open directly onto

public space

Gorner element near the entrance to the station anchors the public open space

ffi Shopfront frontage facing public open space could provide amenities to residents

or could provide leasable service or retail space

r+f+! Upper story is located within the roof form to reduce the perceived height of the

building

EI Massing breaks down perceived bulk by designing recesses in the wall plane and

variatlons on style and material so that one large building actually reads as several

smaller buildings

Ef Upp"r story stepback with the top story set back 10 feet behind the facade plane

to reduce perceived height from the pedestrian paseo

ffi

ffi
:-r J" "al 5

ilr 6

16 Recommendations l\,4emo Folsom Targeted Nlixed-Use and N/ulti-Family Housing Study - June28,2022
Page 301

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Key Regulatory Barriers
ln testing development standards for this site, the following standards were found to

be key barriers to development that both satisfied the community's preferred form

and scale and also demonstrated financial feasibility.

Building height. Currently, this site allows building height up to 4 stories. The design

concept depicted for this opportunity site shows buildings that could range from 4

stories to 5 stories in different areas of the site.

Setbacks. Currently, the site requires a20 fl minimum front setbaek and a 15 ft
minimum side street setback. The design concept depicted for this site shows 10 ft
front and side streel setbacks.

Parking standards. Currently. the site requires 1.5 to 2.5 spaces per unit, depending

on unit size. The design concept depicted for this opportunity site prwides 1.1 spaees

per unit.

Density. Currently this site allows up to 30 du/acre. The design concept depicted for

this site shows 1l2dulacre.

Folsom Targeted lvllxed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study * )une28,2022 Recommendations Memo 17
Page 302

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Site 3
Block in New Town Center
Overview

Existing Conditions

This site is currently undeveloped land

in the Folsom Plan Area. Development
is completed or underway for

neighborhoods in other parts of the

Folsom Plan Area, but the New Town

Center is unbuilt. lt is anticipated that

this site will be made available for

development in the near future.

What We Heard From The
Community

ln the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, this

site was envisioned as a walkable, mixed-

use town core for the Folsom Plan Area.

The community reiterated these desires

in outreach for the present study and also

expressed preference for a mix of scales,

three stories up to six stories in height

and medium in bulk, and making sure to

transition in scale from a higher intensity at

the town center's core to a lower intensity

Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

at the edges where it interfaces wlth

surrounding residential neighborhoods.

Vision

The New Town Center envisioned in the

Specific Plan is composed of a series

of medium to large-scale mixed-use
buildings oriented around a public plaza or

square.

The hypothetical block that was tested as

part of the feasibility analysis for this study

included mixed-use podium buildings up

to six stories ln height, multi-family corridor
apartment buildings, and smaller surface-
parked multi-family buildings.

*
ft--_

Address
One hypothetical block
within the New Town

Center

Study area
Folsom Plan Area New
Town Center

Current site condition
Undeveloped land

Site dimensions
380 ft wide x 620 ft deep

18 Recommendations Memo Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi'Family Housing Study - June28,2022
Page 303

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Design Concept + Site Testing Outcome

# of Units (du)

Retail area (sf)

# of Buildings

Bldg type

Height (stories)

Bldg width (ft)

Bldg depth (ft)

Density (du/ac)

FAR

Parking (sp/du)

Parking type

Front setback (ft)

Lot width (ft)

t

439

78,O00

12

Podium, corridor, multiplex

3to6
Ranges from 4O to 250

Ranges from 60 to 240

90

1.8

1.1 + 1 per 1.OOO sf retail

Podium and surface

5-15

380

Below and left: Renderings from

the foisom Plan Area Speclfic
Plan depicting deslgn concepts

for the New Town Center area.

/Vote that these renderings are

illustrative only. They represent
hy potheti cal build-outs and
do not represent an actual
development proposa/.

{i
I

t

JJ

I

Above: Conceptual site plan developed for site Lot depth (ft) 620

tesling Lot area (ac) 4.9

Folsom Targeted l\,4ixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June2A,2022

{fl : tl6

,ii!

Site Test Assumptions + Yields

RecommendationsMemo 19
Page 304

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Key Design Elements

Design Elements

l_"*- t nrcnitectural projections like balconies, awnings, and eaves create focal points of

visual interest

Corner elements like facade expression that wraps around corners

El Massing breaks down perceived bulk by designing recesses in the wall plane so

that one large building actually reads as several smaller buildings

t3 Pedestrian entries to individual residential units and to shared stairwells open

directly onto the sidewalk or public space with frontages that transition from the

building entries to the pedestrian realm

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and lVulti-Family Housing Study - )une28,202220 RecommendationsMemo Page 305

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 2 - Opportunity Site Testing

Key Regulatory Barriers
ln testing development standards for this site, the following standards were found to

be key barriers to development that both satisfied the community's preferred form and

scale and also demonstrated financial feasibility.

Building height. Some of the images shared here, which were developed as part of the

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, show buildings up to approximately 70 feet in height.

Currently, the maximum building height allowed by the Specific Plan development

standards is 50 feet.

Parking standards. Currently, residential parking requirements are between 1.5 and

2.5 spaces per unit, depending on unit size, and the commercial parking requirement

is 3 spaces per 1,OOO square feet. What this study evaluated for purposes of feasibility

testing was 1.1 spaces per residential unit and 1 space per 1,000 square feet of

commercial space.

Density. Currently, this site has a maximum density of 30 du/acre. The design concept

evaluated for purposes of feasibility had 9O du/acre.

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Nilulti-Family Housing Study - )une28,2022 Recommendations Memo 21
Page 306

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



aaoa S(aut)f - ^pnls 
0ursnoFl IlLU.lel lllnt l pue asl poxlt\ psldoreI Lr-ros o-l oLlrat\ sLro lPpualruocau zz

rnat'. v. 'r'a' 'tr'' -
irlr ir tt/..!.i"'r

d"l .+'rrrii '\'n''_/Ut 't! 
n !' ' ' 

/ 
'b'i ': l'{

'.*i\:* T

x

I
I
'j.;

,i
.i
Ff
,;

j:
,i

ri
.. ,..., .i) \"r... .-'!

IF+*J I
{

I
,-j

l,l

;:
I{

r. rl
{

.L

.;l,-tt:'a ,ct

r ,. l-
,'.1:

'. i
'{.i' ir ,i

'!i
i i !''
i l-:.
t ''''

,\.f

r'

{
a

t
1-

t
t

:
i
I

I

I
i
:

I
.r+-o rrerd

f^-41
r *,i:

)
q

f

{

I

t},

1\

'{
I

I
t"

1

,:

? "....;,.;|uau*r,,
I

i-;1

:i
';

li(

t.
,,

dj
t..'r
:Lr.{,ii
'r'i
if
r't
il
ir '(ii{

I
l: [l:i':t

1. . - .-.-.'r'-
i .a...e.; .. s , t.
I :'r$

rj

.\

'ri".-p'"r'qt*r$

L

I

FIi
r$[{r

f,,'.'"', ',,.,'.
i i''
^,t
' ,i-;-''
'. !,, ,i
. ti

I ri..-,F
{tuy

I'
f-#
frr"*

'j

ta,

.t'i'

h
'i

n it"[ttt i-\

L.
t

$

i,j
t

l- .,--,
,l

$
.i'

{.

I
'l
I
i

I
:

.i 'l

i",t

,l,,

*-'f
.l:

t
x

,l*
f.g
,i,'

" t.''

r.1..

t

t, ,',."....-r ;L:'+

tl !,: ii..
|; i
ft' . i

'' l ij\\.v- d. r,.
..! a,..!.. ,. !!1._r

l- a-.\:i,i
'rl*:!i.' j'

1I

t. '.\i
I

't
j rCf't

:.
': l: .1..

L\

tri\

t

i

'., "+,.ct

-#'.,t
$ _iti

,,h
lir

'b

t
;.'
i

-i't f I
a

f

1
t

I
I

1

a
:

t.r
!

l.

-\'l 
a

l 'i't
!

I

...!:1

't"

"krf;il,

.,. \t,

.ar, 
ji t,'

(, rr1 I
:rii

.ri-+*
to

,i*

Page 307

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Reoor-n r-nendations SECTION

The recommendations in this section can
help promote a predictable built outcome
that is aligned with the community's vision for
housing in these locations.

Folsom needs to provide more housing and more

diverse types of housing to meet the housing needs of

its residents. Development standards for mixed-use and

multi-family housing, if regulated carefully, can promote

more housing that is consistent with the desired character

of the community.

Current regulations are not creating the housing diversity

needed to serve the current and future needs of Folsom.

ln order to meet these needs. it is important to understand

what targeted changes will be most impactful to

unlocking opportunities for infill housing in these priority

locations.

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022 RecommendationsMemo 23
Page 308

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Building Placement

Building placement standards regulate

where buildings are situated on a

lot. These regulations are frequently
expressed as minimum setbacks, although

build-to lines are a preferable regulatory

tool to produce predictable built results.

verview of Key Standards
Regulatory standards help to shape development outcomes.
Some of the key regulatory standards that will factor into
recommendations are introduced here.

Key Standards for Built Form

Section 3 - Recommendations

utilized to help new development relate to

existing context. Strategies include upper
story stepbacks that requlre the facade to

step back from the built-to line at upper
stories, and facade articulation that may

require a break in the wall plane after a

maximum distance of unbroken facade.

Building Types

Buildings can be categorized according
to their physical form. While certain uses

or functions may be typical of certain
building types, uses are not a primary

determinant of building type. Different
building types are appropriate for different
contexts and site conditions, depending
on lot dimensions, resident preferences,

market conditions, and the nature of the

adjacent street.

Regulating by building types creates

more predictability in form and scale, and

context-sensitive development. Each of
the targeted study areas can allow a range

of different building types that respond to

existing contexts.

Rightr lhis diagrarn presents

the concept of a build-to line. A

bui/d-to /ine is a line parallelto

a property line or right-of-way

where a building fagade must be
placed. Build-to /ines he/p ensure

that building fronts are placed

close enough ro the street or
sidewa/k to create a pedeslrian-

oriented environment.

t*
F-

I

I
JL -.- -'-1-1 - -

I r(i' I ,.,rr,.r ltt.

* Build-to line expressed as a min. and
max. range. The building facade must be
placed within this area and cannot be set
back behind this range.

Building Height

Building height can be regulated by

number of stories, overall height, or both

Massing and Articulation

The composition of building volumes and

facades helps enliven the streetscape,
helping people orient themselves and

creating a more comfortable experience

for pedestrians navigating the space.

Standards for massing and articulation
can include regulations for facade

composition, patterns of openings, and

corner elements.

This group of standards also includes

strategies to reduce the perception of
building scale and bulk and is frequently

Parking Location

Although parking location does not

directly impact the production of housing,

regulating the locaiion of parking is critical

to creating the desired built environment.
It is recommended to require the parking

in the rear of the lot or at least behind a

habitable ground floor whenever feasible.

to encourage buildings closer to the
sidewalk, creating a more active, more
pedestrian-friendly, and safer environment.

X

|.
I

24 Recommendationsl\y'emo Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - )une28,2022
Page 309

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 3 - Recommendations

Standards for Large Sites

For lots larger than 3 acres and longer

than approximately 750 linear feet

along a street, standards should require

the creation of new streets and blocks

to fit better into the existing context.
This will avoid so-called "superblock"

developments that are typically inward

facing and do not support walkability,

livability, or safety.

i

I
L

!

i.

l

l,

Frontages

A frontage is the part of a bullding that
connects the public realm (street and
sidewalk) with the private realm (yard or

building), providing an important transition

between the two. Examples of different
frontage types include porches, stoops,

and shopfronts.

Frontage standards can include
regulations on which types of frontages

are allowed in particular areas as well as

dimensional standards for each frontage
type

ln mixed-use environments, frontage

standards should ensure that residential

frontage types are crafted along
with frontage types typical of retail

environments in order to enable ground-

floor residential uses on secondary
facades.

Building Placement

Where the City wants to enable either
ground-floor retail or residential uses on

the front facade, consider flexrble build-to
lines.

Lef t : D i ag ra m s describing
one posslble outcome of
deve/opment standards for
/arge siles

I r.,.
t. -.
I
I

i
:

I

:,

'.1

i
j

I

t;
I
i

:
i_

i!"
.:

ii
ii

il

:: : 1| r::
il

Existing large lot Exlsling large lot Resu/ring development provides

subdivided into four blocks, new with variety of building types in a

streers and open space walkable neighborhood

Key Standards for Mixed-Use Environments

Key Standards lmpacting Economic
Feasibility
Parking Requirements

Minimum requirements for parking

space(s) per dwelling unit can play a large

role in limiting development and feasibility

if the standards are not properly calibrated
for the context. Current standards for

parking in the study areas are high,

requiring larger lots for developments and

limiting the sites' capacity for new infill

housing at these priority locations.

Reductions in parking requirements
should be coordinated with the provision

Folsom Targeted N4ixed-Use and Multi Family Housing Sludy - June28,2022 RecommendationsMemo 25
Page 310

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



of mobility alternatives, which can include

bicycle infrastructure and storage, car-

share programs with dedicated spaces

for car-share vehicles onsite, and transit

service with transit passes for residenls.

One resource as an alternative mobility
option is the new SmaRT Ride service.

Sacramento Regional Transit (RT) now
provides on-demand transit service

through an app that can take users directly

to major offices, shopping centers and

light rail stations in Folsom. The new

service will also be available in the Folsom

Plan Area. The fee to use the service is half

the cost of bus and light rail fares.

Another resource in planning for
alternative mobility options is GreenTRlP,

Section 3 - Recommendations

a program launched in the San Francisco

Bay Area and expanding statewide, which

offers a certification for new development
that provides mobllity alternatives in

exchange for reduced parking.

Density Limits

A common misconception is that lower

densities mean smaller buildings and that

higher densities mean larger buildings.
However, density is a numerical approach
based on the lot size that does not
regulate the size of buildlngs or how they

relate to their surrounding contexts. A

moderate-density building may still dwarf
a house next to it, just as a high-density
building may blend into the surrounding
nelghborhood as a house-scale building.

Why Density Alone Gan Have
Unexpected Built Outcomes

While people commonly assume that
density limits ensure that new projects

will be compatible with their context,
this is not actually the case. See the
images at right of projects which have

nearly the same density but drastically
different built form.

The number of dwelling units may have

no correlation with the size of those
units, their arrangernent on the lot, or

the form of the buildings within which
they appear. There is a misconception
that high density means big buildings,

despite the fact that existing house-

scale buildings often achieve higher

densities.

ln order to achieve the benefits of
increased housing choices-including
attainability, support for neighborhood
walkability, and compatibility with
context-a thoughtful approach to
regulating form, scale, and building

types is most important.

Above: Large corridor apartment building
60 units; 30 du/ac.

Building 175' x165'; 3 Stories

Above: House-scale courtyard building
I units; 31.7 du/ac-
Building back bar 84 x 32, wings coming to street 31 x 25,

courtyard 3Q x 36; 2 Stories

26 RecommendationsMemo Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022
Page 311

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 3 - Recommendations

ln many cases, Objective Design

Standards may be one of the most

A Note on Housing Affordability

Density should not be considered a

standard that produces particular built

form outcomes. lnstead, a combination

Key Regulatory Tools

Objective Design Standards (ODS)

Per state law, cities must have clear,

objective standards for multi-family
development projects, including
affordable housing projects. These types

of projects must be reviewed by city staff
using only objective standards. Planning

Commission and Council can no longer
review design.

of building types and building massing
regulations can create desirable results

regardless of a project's numerical density

important ways for local jurisdictions to
influence the design of multi-family and

mixed-use buildings.

The City of Folsom will undertake to

create Objective Design Standards in

the near future and can incorporate
recommendations from this project into
the new standards.

I lncreases in density, when coupled with

appropriate building form standards, can

help encourage the provision of smaller
units which are generally available at a

more attainable price point than larger

units

I Parking requirement reductions
reduce development costs and enable

developers to provide more units

I Unbundling parking, i.e. offering tenants

the option io lease a dwelling unit

without also Ieasing a parking space,

can help bring down unit costs for
individual tenants and can reduce the

number of parking spaces required ln a

development

While recommendations for policies

or programs that address housing
affordability are outside the parameters of
this project, the goal to provide housing

opportunities for all income levels informs
the thinking behind this study.

The enclosed recommendations can

support housing affordability in myriad
ways, including:

I Objective Design Standards create a

predictable and streamlined approval
process for developers who produce

multi-family and affordable housing

while also providing a predictable built

outcome for the community

Folsom Targeted l\4ixed-Use and lVulti-Family Housing Study - June28,2022 RecommendationsMemo 27
Page 312

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Emerging Best Practices on
Density and FAR

Density, FAR, and Predictability of
Built Form

As described in the previous section,
density alone as a regulatory tool does

not always result in predictable built form.

Factors such as building length, size, and

bulk, and the type and sizes of dwelling

units can result in buildings with similar

densities and different built outcomes.
When the State Density Bonus is applied

to mixed-income projects, the resultant

building form can deviate even further
from expectations. Density cannot yleld

predictable built form results.

FAR (floor area ratio) can result in more
predictable bulldings especially when

used with other, form-based regulations

to guide the outcome of the zoning
envelope. FAR measures the ratio of total

usable built floor area to the area of the

lot. As an example, a single-story building

that covers 1OO percent of its lot has an

FAR of 1.0, as does a two-story building

that covers 50 percent of the lot. ln this

way, FAR directly regulates building square

footage relative to lot size, which yields a

level of predictability in a building's mass,

an important aspect of built form that

can complement other building form
standards in Objective Design Standards.

Regulating with FAR lnstead of
Density

Given density s inability to deliver
predictable built form, an emerging best
practice is to replace density with FAR as a

regulatory tool.

Section 3 - Recommendations

Some opponents of eliminating density
requirements fear that it will result in

buildings with very high numbers of
micro-units or single room occupancy
(SRO) units. While unlikely, additional
standards can be considered to prevent

this situation, such as establishing
minimum requirements for "family units" or
2+ bedroom units in multi-family projects.

Eliminating density does not jeopardize

density bonus projects. FAR can be used

instead of density to determine base

entitlements and also to determine density
bonus allocations, as described in the El

Cerrito example on the facing page.

Establishing FAR Standards

Rather than establishing FAR maximums
up-front, determining FAR standards
after other form standards have been

established can better ensure that FAR

furthers the City's goals for desired built
form.

The process of determining potential built
outcomes in the opportunity site testing
in this project can be helpful to determine
an appropriate resultant FAR for projects

in Folsom. Further site testing can help to

determine appropriate FAR levels for future
housing projects in Folsom.

2A RecommendationsMemo Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022
Page 313

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 3 - Recommendations

Examples From Other Communities

Several other California cities have

begun to eliminate density standards
and rely on FAR instead. The following
are some examples from Northern
California.

Roseville
Roseville has recently adopted standards
that allow projects to meet either

density maximums or FAR maximums,
whichever is more permissive. With its

moderate density maximum (36 du/ac)

and relatively high FAR maximum (4.0),

FAR is likely to effectively replace density
as the applicable regulatory tool for new
projects.

San Rafael
ln its 2O2O General Plan, San Rafael

eliminated density standards for

its downtown and now relies on
FAR instead. The intention behind
this change was to increase the
predlctability of built form as the City
pursues its housing goals. This policy

change was implemented in the
Downtown Precise Plan, which makes no

mention of density.

ElGerrito
ln its 2014 San Pablo Avenue Specific
Plan, El Cerrito eliminated density
standards for the San Pablo Avenue

Speciflc Planning Area. The City has

established the legal precedent for

using FAR in awarding state density
bonuses by awarding additional square
footage rather than additional density to

state density bonus recipients.

Above: Locations of example communities in Northern California

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and N/ulti-Family Housing Study - June28,2022 Recommendstionslvlemo 29
Page 314

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Recorn mendations for the
East Bidwell Study Area

5 stories max. on corner
ssites

Build-to line of 5-1O ft min.
to 15-2O ft max.

Section 3 - Recommendations

Obiective Design

Standards

Objective Design

Standards

Building height 4 stories (50 ft) max.

Front setback None required

Parking for Multi-Unit 1.5 spaces per unit
Dwellings min.

Parking for Retail 1 space per 200 sf

min'

Density 20-30 du/acre

Noter fhe exlsting standards
evaluated in this matrix are from

the C-2 zoning district and the
East Bidwell Mixed-Use Overlay.

O.7-O.9 space per unit min. Objective Design

Standards

Allow small retail spaces Objective Design

in mixed-use buildings to Standards
pool parking space with
adjacent parcels rather
than providing them onsite

60-80 du/acre max., or
eliminate density standard

General Plan + Objective
Design Standards

Frontage types

Building types

Massing and
articulation

Standards for large
sites

Pedestrian entry
standards

Density minimums

Allow frontage types appropriate to both retail uses (e.9. shopf ronts) and

ground-floor residential uses (e.g. porches). Create sufficient depth (1O-15 ft) in
residential frontages to buffer these building entries from the street.

Regulating by building types can help create predictable built form. Building

types can incorporate dimensional standards like building width.

Consider requiring massing strategies such as upper-story stepbacks and

facade articulation to reduce the perceived bulk of new development.

Plan for the possibility of redevelopment of large parcels. lncorporate street

and block standards and open space standards to encourage a walkable

development pattern.

Regulate a minimum distance between pedestrian entries along a building
facade and require that ground-floor units be accessed from the sidewalk or

common open space.

Consider density minimums that capture the City's housing goals for infill sites

and helps the City meet its RHNA allocation goals.

Unbundling parking, i.e. offering tenants the option to lease a dwelling unit

without also leasing a parking space, can help bring down unit costs for
individual tenants and can reduce the number of parking spaces required in a

development.

30 RecommendationsMemo

Unbundling parking

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2O22
Page 315

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 3 - Recommendations

Allowing taller building heights on corner sites enables the creation of nodes of intensity along the corridor

Regulate as a build-to line rather than a setback. Dimensions provided are flexible enough to accommodate either retail or

residential use on the ground floor. Build-to lines will ensure that buildings are placed to engage the street and sidewalk. ln

order to improve comfort and safety for pedestrians, incorporate a small buffer into the dimension that can accommodate an

expanded sidewalk and/or a f rontage that transitions from the sidewalk to the building face.

A reduced parking ratio was required for feasibility on the opportunity site tested. Lowering the parking ratio further will increase

development feasibility. This parking ratio should be paired with alternative mobility strategies like onsite car-share.

Particularly on small infill sites, parking requirements make it difficult to realize development potential due not only to the

cost of providing parking but also because of the physical constraints of the lot. The parking ratio for retail square footage is

more demanding than the parking ratio for residential square footage and can be difficult to physically accomplish on sites

like the opportunity site studied on East Bidwell St. Currently, some of the retail centers along East Bidwell have an excess of
parking spaces that could be used by patrons of small retail or service components in new mixed-use buildings. Eliminating the

parking requirement for small retail spaces, provided there is adequate parking on adiacent parcels, can help enable mixed-use

development on this corridor.

Higher density was required for feasibility in the opportunity site test. This increased density can enable smaller, more attainable

units. Increase in density should be paired with the development of robust design standards to control built form.

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Muhi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022 Recommendationslvlemo. 31
Page 316

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Recommendations for the
Folsom Blvd. TOD Study Area

Section 3 - Recommendations

Objective Design
Standards

i\otei fhe existing standards
evaluated in this matrix are from
the R-4 zoning district.

Building height 4 stories (50 ft) max Up to 5 stories max., and
up to 7 stories max. at TOD
sites

Front setback 20'min Build-to line of 5-1O ft min.
to 15-20 tt max.

Side street setback 15' min Build-to line of 5-1O ft min
to 15 ft max.

Parking for Multi-Unit 1.5-2.5 spaces per unit O.5-O.75 spaces per unit
Dwellings min. (varies by unit min. at TOD sites; l spacel

size) unit min. elsewhere

Density 2O-3O du/acre lOO-12O dulacte max., or
eliminate density standard

Objective Design

Standards

Objective Design
Standards

Objective Design

Standards

General Plan + Obiective
Design Standards

Frontage types

Building types

Massing and
articulation
standards

Standards for large
sites

Unbundling parking

Alternative mobility
provisions

Allow frontage types appropriate to both retail uses (e.9. shopfronts) and
ground-floor residential uses (e.9. porches). Create sufficient depth (10-15 ft)
in residential frontages to buffer these building entries from the street.

Regulating by building types can help create predictable built form. Building

types can incorporate dimensional standards like building width and depth.

Consider massing strategies such as upper-story stepbacks, facade
articulation, and upper stories within roof forms to reduce the perceived bulk

of new development.

Plan for the possibility of redevelopment of large parcels. lncorporate street
and block standards and open space standards to encourage a walkable
development pattern.

Unbundling parking, i.e. offering tenants the option to lease a dwelling unit
without also leasing a parking space, can help bring down unit costs for
individual tenants and can reduce the number of parking spaces required in a

development.

Pair a reduction in parking requirements with a requirement for alternative
mobility options, including transit passes.

32 RecommendationsMemo Folsom Targeted Mixed'Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - June28,2022
Page 317

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 3 - Recommendations

Located along a transit corridor, this targeted area is a rational location for the greatest intensity of new residential development.

Anticipating that podium buildings will be required in order to capture the desired development potential on this site, taller

building heights will likely be necessary in order to offset the costs of this more expensive construction type. At the Glenn

Station opportunity site tested, five stories across the site was in the realm of feasibility. Consider allowing some taller heights at

this location to ensure that this development remains feasible. This will also allow development to be taller than 5 stories at the

station entrance and step down to lower heights at the edges of the parcel to transition to the surrounding context.

Regulate as a build-to line rather than a setback. The proposed dimensions are flexible enough to accommodate either retail

or residential use on the ground floor. Build-to lines will ensure that buildings are placed to engage the street and sidewalk. ln

order to improve comfort and safety for pedestrians, incorporate a small buffer into the dimension that can accommodate an

expanded sidewalk and/or a f rontage that transitions from the sidewalk to the building face.

Regulate as a build-to line rather than a setback. The proposed dimensions are flexible enough to accommodate either retail

or residential use on the ground floor. Build-to lines will ensure that buildings are placed to engage the street and sidewalk. ln

order to improve comfort and safety for pedestrians, incorporate a small buffer into the dimension that can accommodate an

expanded sidewalk and/or a f rontage that transitions from the sidewalk to the building face.

A reduced parking ratio was required for feasibility on the opportunity site tested. Lowering the parking ratio f urther will increase

development feasibility. This parking ratio should be paired with alternative mobility strategies like onsite car-share and transit

passes.

Higher density was required for feasibility in the opportunity site test. This increased density can enable smaller, more attainable

units. lncrease in density should be paired with the development of robust design standards to control built form.

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and Multi-Family Housing Study - )une28,2022 Recommendationsl\4emo 33
Page 318

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Recommendations for the
New Town Center Study Area

Building height 50 ft max.

Parking for Multi-Unit 1.5 spaces per unit
Dwellings min.

Density 9-30 du/acre

7O ft max.

I space per unit min.

80-IOO du/acre max.,
or eliminate density
standard

Section 3 - Recommendations

Objective Design

Standards

Objective Design

Standards

Folsom Plan Area

Specific Plan +

Objective Design
Standards

/Votei fhe exisring standards
evaluated in this matrix are

from the SP-MU zoning district,
which is the most inrense of the
zoning disLricls in rhe New Town

Center.

Frontage types

Building types

Massing and
articulation standards

Standards for large
sites

Unbundling parking

Allow frontage types appropriate to both retail uses (e.9. shopfronts)
and ground-floor residential uses (e.g. porches). Create sufficient depth
(1O-15 ft) in residential frontages to buffer unit entries from the street or

sidewalk.

Regulating by building types can help create predictable built form.
Building types can incorporate dimensional standards like building width

and depth.

Consider requiring massing strategies such as upperstory stepbacks
and facade articulation to reduce the perceived bulk of new

development.

Plan for the possibility of redevelopment of large parcels. lncorporate

street and block standards and open space standards to encourage a

walkable development pattern.

Unbundling parking, i.e. offering tenants the option to lease a dwelling
unit without also leasing a parking space. can help bring down unit costs

for individual tenants and can reduce the number of parking spaces

required in a development.

34 RecommendationsMemo Folsom Targeted lvlixed-Use and N/ultl-Family Housing Study - June28,2022
Page 319

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Section 3 - Recommendations

These increased building heights are aligned with the renderings shown in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. They are also

aligned with the density evaluated for feasibility as part of this project

A reduced parking ratio was required for feasibility on the opportunity site tested. This parking ratio should be paired with

alternative mobility strategies like onsite car-share. Note that this recommended parking ratio is higher than !n the other two

study areas since the New Town Center does not yet have an established transit system and due to its location is more likely to

require a certain level of auto-dependency.

Higher density was required for feasibility in the opportunity site test. This increased density can enable smaller. more attainable

units. lncrease in density should be paired with the development of robust design standards to control built form.

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and lVulti-Family Housing Study - June28,2022 Recommendationsl\ilemo 35
Page 320

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Folsom Targeted N4ixed Useand lVulti-Family Houslng Study )une28,202236 Recommendationsl\,4emo
Page 321

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Appendix

Folsom Targeted Mixed-Use and lvlulti-Family Houslng Study - June28,2022 RecommendatlonsMemo 37
Page 322

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Table 1

City of Folsom

Feasibility Analysis

Building Prototypes

FAR

DU/Acre

Number of Stories

Land Area SF

Gross SF

1.04

s8.9

3

60,632

63,250

1.98

111.7

4and5
118,925

234,900

1.83

90.4

3 and

211,600

387,000

Residential

Gross Residential SF

Net Residential SF

Building Efficiency

63,250

54,100

860/o

233,400

197,900

850/o

309,000

257,040

83o/o

Retail SF '1,500 78,000

Residential Unit

Efficiency

Studio

1-BR

2-BR

Total Units

27

23

24

8

82

103

93

88

21

305

221

170

48

Average Unit Size (SF) 6s9 649 s85

Parking

Type

Number of Spaces

Tuck Under/Surface

83

Tuck Under/Podium

328

Podium/Ga

551

Snowline Hospice

Thrift Store

616 E Bidwell St

Glenn Station Park +

Ride

620 Coolidge Dr

New Town Center

Folsom Plan Area

Page 323

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Table 2

Folsomcordova unifred school District

sewer Fees (Muhifamily lnnll)

General capital lmprovement Fee

File Capital lmprovement Fee

Police Captial lmprovement Fee

Park Equirement Fee

Transportation Management Fee

Lltht Ra[ Fee

solid Waste capltal Fe€

Waste Management PlanAdmin F€e

Folsom Cordova Unified school Distld
HousintTrust Fund Fee

General Captal lmprovement F€e

Fre Capi(al lmprovement Fee

Polic€ Captial lmprovement fee
Park Equir€ment Fee

Transportation Manatement Fee

waste Manatement PlanAdmin Fee

S 7.57 petsf.

$ 5,711.00 perunft
$ 53O.OO perunil

t a39.oo petunit

S 1,037.Oo petunit

$ 1,596.00 petunit

$ 1,050.00 perur,t
$ 6a1-OO perunit

$ 94.00 p..unit
$ 25.00 perunit

S 4,675.00 per unit

$ 49a,oo pet unit

{ 363.00 pet unit
a 5o.oo petln*10,00os1

$ 25.oo pereochodditonols,1oosl

0.78

1.76

12.27

1.326.00

6,302.00

0.498

0.634

1.012

0.018

0.150

0.476

0.230

250.00

50.00

pe. Ji6t 5O0oo sf.

per eoch dddjtional 10,000 st

409,537

386,7ss

35,855

56.758

70,i53
107,969

71,O33

46,O70

6,359

1,691

316,264

33,690

24,557

50

266

1,498,103

1,438,540

133,361

211,113

260,935

401,594

264,206

171,357

23,653

6.291

1,176,347

125,309

91,340

50

1,117

1,170

2,640

1a,405

46

217

951

1,518

27

22s
714

345

250

Folsom cordova Unifred school Disrict
ceneral Park Equipment

Folsom PlanArea Specific Plan Fees(Mixed Use OGract)

Trails

Folsom Plan Area StandAlone Fees(Mixed use Dbtiict)

HW50 lnterchante
Sac CountyTranspo Dev

specifc Plan lnf.astructure Fe€s{Mixed use Disrk0
on and otrste Roadways

Dry Utiliti€s

Habitat Mititation
Adminisratioo (3%)

Parkland Equalization Fee(Mixed Use Oisrict)
Public Facilties Land Equalization Fee(Mixed use Dtsktt)
Spe.ifrcPlanlnfrasructureFeeSefAside{otrslteRoadwayXMixed useDtstic0

speciffcPlan lnfiastuctu.eFeewaterTreatmentPlantselAside

1,Oa1.oD pe.unil
22|.oo petunh

1,088.00 perunit

1,12200 perunil

353.oo pet unk
231,00 petunit
95o.oo pet unit

3,7a4.00 perunit

7.57 petsf.

o.o2 petsf.

2,aoo.oo per unit
1,395.oO perunit

a93.OO perunil

3,a1O.OO petunit

366.00 perunit

1,945,793

34,044

391,511

79,679

145,594

163,341

394,046

2,056,067

406,360

127,a4A

a3,662

344,066

332,439

677,267

1,370,470

3,421,467

903,264

1,014,090

505,234

305,314

1,515.340

923,422

73,522

241,933

1,401,617

216,943

53,602

9,054

132,556

60,840

1,404
Fokom Cordova UniRed school Disrict
General ParkEquipment

Folsom Plan Area specifrc Plan Fees(Mixed Use Distko

Trails

Folsom PlanArea stand Alone Fees(Mixed Use Disricl)

Hw50 lmprovement
HW50 lnterchante
Sac CountyTranspo Dev

specifc Plan lnfrastuctsre Fees(Mixed use Disvict)
on and oFste Roadways

Dry Utiltles

Habitat Mit'gation
Admlnistation {3%)

Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee(Mixed Use Distict)

Specific Plan lnfrastrurture Feeset Aside(Offsit€ Roadway){Mixed Use Dbtrico

Transpoilation ManaSement F€e

Specifrc Plan lnfrastrudur€ Fe€ WaterTreatment Planl 5€lAside

o-a2 pe.sf.

o.az persf.

o.53 petsl.
1.82 petsl.

3.60 petsf.

7.2a petsf.

63.960

$ 18.17

$ 2.31

$ 3.26

$ 1.62

s 0.9a

I 9.53

$ 0.12

$ 0.46

$ 1.09

$ 3,392.00

$ 0-29

$ 0.15

$ o.42

4,580

65,520

63,960

36,660

31,200

41,340

141,960

138,060

280,800

567,840

1,417,260

180,180

254,240

126,360

76,440

743,340

9,360

35,880

85.020

6,074

22,620

11,700

32,760

3 1_567 007

Note: lnpactrees ore rcduced by 50 percent fot elrcenq ond studioopadments upto 35 percent ol thetotol nunbet oJunits'section 16.70 oJke Folson Muni.ipdl code.

Page 324

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Table 3

City of Folsom

Feasibility Analysis
Revenues

Residential Program
Total units
Market-Rate Units

Studios

1-BR

2-BR

3-BR

Unit Size (SF)

Studios

1 -BR

2-BR

3-BR

Commercial Program
Retail sF

Residential Revenues

l\4arket-Rate Rent PSF

Efficiency

Studio

1-BR

2-BR

l\4arket-Rate Rent per-Unit

Efficiency

Studio

1-BR

2-BR

Market-Rate Unit Revenues

Efficiency

Studio

1-BR

2.BR

To,ta I AnruFLMadeLBaLe_Rent

Commercial Revenues

Retail Rent PSF

Retail Revenues

Net Operating lncome
Residential

Total Project Revenues

Less Vacancy (2.5Y0)

Effective Gross lncome

Less Operating Expenses (including reserves)

Residential Net Operating lncome

Retail

Total Project Revenues

Less Vacancy (5.0%)

Effective Gross lncome

Less Operating Expenses (including reserves)1

Retail Net Operating lncome

Total Net operating lncome

$ 41,850 $ 1s9,650

$ 42,608 $ 172,283

5 47,700 $ 114,900

$ 18,240 $ 47 ,880
5 1.804.77A $ O6s6.ss0

82

27

23

24

8

500

6s0

750

950

103

93

88

21

3.10 $

2.85 $

2.65 $

2.40 $

3.10 $

2.85 $

2.65 $

2.40 $

1,550 $

1,853 $

1,988 $

2,280 $

1,s50 $

1,853 $

1,988 $

2,280 $

30s 439

221

170

48

500

650

750

950

1,500

s00

650

750

78,000

3.10

2.85

2.65

1

1

$

$

$

$

,550

,853

,9881

$ 342,550

$ 314,925

$ 95,400

$

$ 9.034.500

$

$

2.00 $ 2.00 $ 2.00

s 36,000 $ 1.872.000

$ 1,804,770

2.50/o $ 45,119

$ 1,759,651

32.5o/o $ 571,886

$ 1 ,187,764

$ 6,6s6,5s0

$ 166,414

$ 6,490,136

5 2]09,294
$ 4,380,842

9,034,s00

225,863

8,808,638

2,862,807

5,945,830

s.0%

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

1,872,OO0

93,600

1,778,400

213,408

1,564,992

$ 1,187,764 $ 4,410,938 $ 7,510,822

36,000 $

1,800 $

34,200 $

4,104 $

30,096 $

2.Oo/o1

Glenn

Snowline Hospice Station Park

Thrift Store + Ride

616 E Bidwell St 520 Coolidge

Dr

New Town

Center

Folsom Plan

Area

1 Commericial operoting costs are ossumed to be triple net.

Page 325

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Table 4

City of Folsom

Feasibility Analysis

Development Costs

Costs

Hard Costs

Residential Construction Costs

Demo/On-Site lmprovements

Retail Construction Costsl

Parking

surface

Garage

Tuck Under

Podium

2.644.6A4 s sJa7344 9,229,699

$195 per GSF

$1o per land sF

$93 per GsF

$2,5oo per spoce

$8,500 per space

$11,5OO per spqce

$45,OOO per space

49o x Hdrd Cost subtotal

$

$

$

$

$

$

12,333,750

606,320

1 05,000

47't,500

45,51 3,000

1,189250
'139,500

60,255,000

2,116,OOO

7,254,OOO

3,400,000

6.795,000

3,1 92,800540,663

'149,500

14,175,OOO

2,446,650

$

$

$

$

$

lond sF$44

305

SF

82

42

41

1,500

Residential Units

Land Costs

Costs

1.O4

58.9

60,632

1.98
't1't.7

118,925

23,4.900

1.83

90.4

211,600

FAR

DU/Acre

Land Area 5F

Residential

Gross Residential 5F

Net Residential SF

Building Efficiency

63,250

54,1 00

85%

309,000

257,O40

78,000

439

400

15'l

9,229,699

233,400

197,900

85%

'13

315

2,644,684 $ 5,187,344 $

surface

Garage

Tuck Under

Podium

City Permits and Fees

A&E/Other Professionals

l\y'arketing/Leasing Commissions

Legal & Accounting

Taxes & lnsurance

Pre-Opening Expenses

Developer Fee

See Fees Tdb

6% x Hqrd Costs

$7.5o x Net Leosoble SF

2cl6 x Hqrd Costs

2cl6 x Hard Costs

$4.o0 x Net Leosoble sF

6% x Hdrd Costs

3ek x soft Costs subtotdl

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

1,567,007 $

843,434 $

454,740 $

281,145 $

281,145 $

242,528 $

843,434 $

135,403 $

5,830,570 $

3,816,774 $

89',i,938 $

1,272,258 5

1,272,25A $

475,700 $

3,816,774 $

521,288 $

23,173,346

4,980,768
'1,587,000

1,660,256

1,660,256

846,400

4,980,768

1,166,664

Costs Su

$ $

Costs

63,612,900

23%

109

83,012,800
'129b

46

4%

176
Pqrking costs os 96 of Hard Costs

Parking Cost per sf.

$

$

75.o% x capitalized volue

1.5V)

$

$ 296,941 $ 1J02,7345 1,877,706

subtotal: Land + Hard costs + Soft costs

2 .O.k x subtotal

4,548,83s $
339d

20%

8,384,383

2,645,959

1,353,104 $

427,015 $

\tqala? 4,

1,733,956 $

17,A97,560 j
28%

19%

$ 21.350.751 3 86.592804 j 1:,2.297.956

40,055,457

48%

28%

Soft Costs Subtotal
% of Hqrd Costs

% of Totdl Costs

Flnanclng costs
Average Loan Balance

Construction Loan lnterest Rate

Loan Term

Construction Loan lnterest

Construction Loan Fees

Permanent Loan Percent

Permanent Loan Fees

65%

6.5%

18 months

Iotal Developm€nt Cost

Total: Land + Hard+ Soft + Financing

Per Unit Cost

Per SF

J 23.427.Af 3 95.028.957 S '145.206.004

$ 285,705 $ 311,570 $ 330,765

$ 370 $ 4os $ 375

$ 2,0T1,060 $ 8,331,164$ 12,908,048Financing costs subtotal

620 coolidge Dr Folsom Plan Area

Glenn Station

Park + Ride

New Town

Center

snowline Hospice

Thrift Store

616 € aidwell St

1 Assumes construction cost for building substructure and shell only

Sour.e: RS Meons, Los Angeles, 2021 Page 326

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Table 5

City of Folsom

Feasibility Analysis
Proforma

Land Area SF

FAR

Number of Stories

Gross Building SF

Residential

DU/Acre

Residential Gross SF

Building Efficiency

Total Units

Average Unit Size (SF)

Retail SF

Parking

Type

Number of Spaces

Development Costs

Land Cost

Hard Costs

Soft Costs (include. Financing)

Total Development. Costs

Sales Revenues

Net Operating lncome

Capitalized Value (Cap Rate 4.570)1

Developer Profit
Total Revenues Less Total Development Costs

Yield on Cost 7o

Feasibility

Feasibility: Cap Rate +10lo

Feasibility: Hurdle Rate

7o Rent lncrease Required for Target Yield-on-Cost

Feasibility with above 7o Rent lncrease

Podium/Gar

551

$ 2,644,684 $ 5,187,344 $ 9,229,699

$ 1 4,0s7,233 $ 63 ,612,900 $ 83,012,800

$ 6,72s,895 $ 26,228,724 $ s2,963,s0s

$ 23,427.8',t1 $ 95,028,967 $ 14s,206,004

60,632

1.04

3

63,250

s8.9

63,2s0

860/o

82

659

Tuck Under/Surface

83

118,925

1.98

4and5
234,900

111.7

233,400

850/o

30s

649

1,500

Tuck Under/Podium

328

211,600

1.83

3and4
387,000

90.4

309,000

83o/o

439

585

$

$

1,187,764 $

26,394,761 $

2,966,9s0 $

5.Q70/o

4,410,938 $

98,020,844 $

2,991,876 $

4.640/o

190/o

Yes

78.000

7,510,822

166,907,163

21,701,159

5.17o/o

4.500/o

5.50%

8.070

$

No

No

8o/o

Yes

No

No

No

No

9o/o

Yes

Snowline Hospice

Thrift Store

616 E Bidwell St

Glenn Station Park +

Ride

620 Coolidge Dr

New Town Center

Folsom Plan Area

Page 327

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



This page intentionolly left blonk
to focilitate double- sided printing .

OITY OF

FOLSOl\{
DTSTI}.ICTIVE BY NATURE

Page 328

03/28/2023 Item No.12.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

For the reasons described in this report, staff recommends that the Council deny the appeal

by Katharine Gray of Decisions by the Planning Commission Adopting a Mitigated Negative

Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and Approving a Conditional

Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for development of the 136-

unit Vintage Senior Apartments project (PN 21-259) located at 103 East Natoma Street.

BACKGROUND

On January 18,2023, the Planning Commission considered a request for approval of a

Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for the

development of a 136-unit senior (55+; affordable apartment community (Vintage Senior

Apartments) on a 4.86-acre site located at 103 East Natoma Street. The project includes 122

units (90%) being made available to Low Income individuals (incomes at or below 60% of
the Sacramento area median income (AMD) and 14 units (10%) made available to Very Low
Income individuals (income at or below 50% of AMI)'

During the initial public hearing, 13 residents addressed the Commission and expressed a

variety of concerns regarding the proposed project. A representative sample of these

comments is as follows:

1

MEETING DATE: 312812023

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Appeal by Katharine Gray of Decisions by the Planning
Commission Adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration and

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and Approving a

Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and

Density Bonus for development of the 136-unit Vintage Senior

Apartments project (PN 21-259) located at 103 East Natoma

Street

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 329

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



o Concern regarding the high density of the project

o Concern regarding the design and architecture of the apartment building
o Concern regarding the size, scale, and visual compatibility of the project

o Concern regarding lighting and noise impacts

o Concern regarding pedestrian, bicycle, and traffic safety

o Concern regarding lack of parking
o Concern regarding emergency service response time and access

o Concern regarding impacts to biological resources and natural habitat

o Concern regarding Oak tree impacts

Following public comment and testimony, the public hearing was closed, and the

Commission engaged in a lengthy discussion regarding the proposed project. In general, the

Commission commented that the project site was not an appropriate location for development

of a senior affordable apartment community. Additional comments and concems raised by

the Commission included:

. Concern regarding design and architecture of the apartment building
o Concern regarding the overall site design of the project

o Concern regarding emergency service response times and fire access

o Concern regarding pedestrian and traffic safety in the project area

r Concem regarding the walkability of the project

o Concern regarding insufficient parking on the site

o Concern regarding distance to services and amenities for residents

. Concern regarding drainage and wetland impacts

At the conclusion of their deliberation, the Commission was unanimous that it was their

desire to recommend denial of the proposed project. However, the Commission had

difficulty in identifuing the appropriate basis to deny the proposed project, given the legal

findings required by the Housing Accountability Act.

City staff indicated to the Commission that in order to deny the proposed project they would

need to make two specific findings to the effect that the proposed project would have a

significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified

written public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date

the application was deemed complete by the City and that the impacts could not be mitigated

without rendering the project unaffordable to low income households.

After further discussion, the Commission voted to continue the proposed project to the

February 15,2023 Planning Commission meeting in order for City staff to further evaluate

potential areas where the project might not be consistent with any established written
objective standards.

2
Page 330

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



On February 15,2023,the Planning Commission resumed and re-opened the public hearing

for the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project. While staff was not able to identi$ any

specific inconsistencies between the proposed project and any established, objective written

standards, staff did work with the applicant to modifu several conditions of approval on the

project to address the concems raised by residents at the January 18,2023 meeting.

Specifically, the applicant agreed to:

1. Restrict the secondary project driveway on East Natoma Street to emergency service

and solid waste vehicle access only;
2. Install a pedestrian-actuated Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon system at the

existing uncontrolled pedestrian crosswalk located on East Natoma Street near the

intersection of Cimarron Circle;
3. Implement a parking permit program for residents of the apartment community; and

4. Enhance the landscaping buffer along the eastern project boundary.

During the re-opened public hearing, 10 residents addressed the Commission and expressed

similar concerns to those raised at the January 18,2023 Planning Commission meeting

including project impacts associated with traffic safety, pedestrian safety, fire access and

circulation, parking, noise, lighting, drainage, and biological resources. Generally, the

residents who spoke did not feel that the new conditions of approval resolved their concerns

about the project.

Following public comment and testimony, the public hearing was closed, and the

Commission engaged in a prolonged debate regarding the proposed project. In particular, the

Commission discussed the State Housing Accountability Act and the more stringent findings

that would be required for the Commission to deny the proposed project. The Commission

also discussed the potential legal implications (lawsuit, penalties, etc.) associated with
denying the proposed project without making the required findings.

The Planning Commission also discussed the applicant's modifications to the proposed

project, as described above. The Commission indicated that they were appreciative and

supportive of the applicant's effort to modiS the proposed project to address concerns raised

by residents of the Cimarron Hills Subdivision. To further address resident concerns, the

Commission added a condition of approval that the applicant be required to install window
glazing on all apartment building units facing the Cimmaron Hills Subdivision to minimize

potential visual impacts. The applicant was in agreement with this new condition of
approval.

At the conclusion of the February 15 , 2023 meeting, the Planning Commission adopted a

motion (4-3-0-0) to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and

Reporting Program and Approve a Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit,

and Density Bonus for the Vintage Senior Apartments project.

a
J

Page 331

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



On February 23,2023, Katharine Gray submitted a timely appeal (Attachment 1) of the

decision of the Planning Commission approving the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments

project.

POLICY / RULE

Appeal
As set forth in Section 1 7.04.110 of the Folsom Municipal Code, actions of the Planning

Commission may be appealed to the City Council. The appeal shall be in writing, shall state

the specific reason for the appeal and grounds asserted for relief, and shall be filed no later

than 10 calendar days after the date of the action being appealed.

Conditional Use Permit
The project site is zoned BP (Business Professional), which allows development of a senior

citizens residential complex upon the issuance of a conditional use permit by the Planning

Commission. (FMC S 17.22.030 (E)QID;FMC 17.22.040(1).) The Folsom Municipal

Code regulates Conditional Use Permits and states that the finding shall be that the

establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use or building applied for will or will not,

under the circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the health, safety, peace,

morals, comfort, and general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of
such proposed use, or be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements in the

neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City. (FMC S 17.60.040.)

While the Folsom Municipal Code continues to govern the findings required to grant a

conditional use permit, state law has severely limited the City's ability to deny a conditional

use permit (and other discretionary approvals) in the context of housing development

projects.

The Housing Accountability Act
In general, the Housing Accountability Act (HAA) restricts the City's ability to deny or

reduce the density of all housing development projects, whether they are affordable or market

rate. (Government Code $ 65539.5.) A housing development project can still be denied, or

the density can be reduced, if the project fails to comply with applicable objective standards.

(Government Code $ 65589.5(0(1).) However, the receipt of a density bonus, or an

associated incentive or concession, cannot constitute a valid basis on which to find that a

proposed housing development project fails to comply with applicable objective standards.

(Government Code $ 65589.5(i)(3).)

Under the HAA, "objective" means 'oinvolving no personal or subjective judgment by a
public official and being uniformly verifiable by reference to an external and uniform
benchmark or criterion available and knowable by both the development applicant or
proponent and the public official". (Government Code $ 65589.5(hX8).) For a standard to

be objective, it must be"uniformly verifiable," which means that there is little to no room for

4
Page 332

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



reasonable persons to differ on whether a project complies with an external and uniform
benchmark. Examples of objective standards include height limits, setbacks, building
coverage, lot area, and similar requirements when they are suitably specific. For example,

requirements that building height not exceed 35 feet, that buildings shall be set back a

minimum of 20 feet from the property line, and that building lot coverage be no more than

60Yo of the lot, are all objective, because it is possible for an applicant, the public, City staff,

and City officials to know whether an application complies by reference to measurable

benchmarks. Likewise, design review criteria can be objective by making reference to
specific features, such as a roof pitch with a slope of 1:5. References to design styles may be

objective so long as the elements are clearly defined and include illustrations.

By contrast, standards that are "so malleable that reasonable minds could differ on whether

they are met" are not objective, and may not be used to deny or reduce the density of housing

development projects unless specific findings are made. If a standard requires any level of
'oafter-the-fact interpretive gloss," it is not objective for purposes of the HAA.

Standards that require a project to obtain entitlements that involve subjective decision-

making are likewise not objective, and therefore the HAA no longer allows the Planning

Commission or the Council the broad discretion previously enjoyed with respect to housing

development projects. For example, the State Department of Housing and Community
Development advises that,"a standard that requires a general plan amendment, the adoption

of a specific plan, planned development permit, conditional use permit or another

discretionary permit or approval does not constitute an objective standard." lJnder HCD's
guidance, the City "shall not require a development proponent to meet any standard for
which the locality typically exercises subjective discretion, on a case-by-case basis," because

such a requirement would expose housing development projects to non-objective standards,

upending the HAA's protections.

With respect to the City of Folsom, our conditional use permit findings are not objective

because they involve personal judgment and are not verifiable by reference to an external

benchmark. Therefore, the City cannot deny those entitlements for a housing development

project unless it can make the statutorily required findings discussed below. Similarly, the

Council cannot lawfully grant an appeal that would result in a denial of the requested

entitlements unless it makes those same findings'

On the other hand, subjective standards or guidelines can be used as the basis for conditions

of approval on a housing development project, as long as they do not result in denial of the

project, a reduction in the project's density, or, for an affordable project, increased costs that

render the project infeasible.

Denial of a Housing Development Proiect
As noted above, the HAA's key function is to limit discretion to deny or reduce the density

of housing development projects. As such, when a housing development project complies

with applicable objective development standards, the City may not deny the project or
impose a condition thatitbe developed at a lower density without making statutorily required

5
Page 333

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



findings that the project would otherwise have a specific, adverse impact on public health

and safety that cannot be mitigated. (Government Code $ 65589.5C).) The law defines a

"specific adverse impact" as a "significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact,

based on objective, identified, written public health or safety standards". (Government Code

$ 65589.5(i)(1XA).) The law also requires the City to find that there is no way to mitigate

the impact without denying the project or reducing the density. (Government Code $
65589.8(lX1)(B).) The receipt of a density bonus or any associated incentive or concession

is not a valid basis for making those findings. (Government Code $ 65589.5(i)(3).)

Denial of an Affordable Housing Development Proiect
The Legislature made it even more difficult to deny an affordable housing development

project, or to impose any condition of approval that renders the project infeasible for the

development of affordable housing. Under the HAA, the City shall not disapprove an

affordable project, or condition approval in a manner that renders the project infeasible for
the development of affordable housing, including through the use of design review standards,

unless it makes one of five written findings based on a preponderance of the evidence in the

record:

l. The City has "met or exceeded" its share of the regional housing needs allocation
(RHNA) for the types of housing that the project would provide. (Government Code $

6558e.s(dX1).)

2. The project would have a "specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety

and there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid" said impact
without making the project unaffordable. (Government Code $ 65589.5(d)(2).)

3. The denial is required to meet state or federal law, and there is "no feasible method"

to comply without rendering the project unaffordable. (Government Code $

6s58e.s(dx3).)

4. The project site is zoned for agricultural or resource preservation and is surrounded

on at least two sides by land used for agriculture or resource preservation or lacks

adequate water or wastewater facilities to serye the project. (Government Code $
6ss8e.5(dx4).)

5. The project is "inconsistent with both the jurisdiction's zoning ordinance and general

plan land use designation as specified in any element of the general plan."
(Government Code $ 65589.5(dX5).

Penalties for Failure to Comply with the HAA
If the City denies a housing development project, reduces the density of the project, or
imposes condition(s) of approval that render an affordable project unaffordable, the project

applicant, a person who would be eligible to apply to live in the proposed project, or a

"housing organization" may file suit to enforce the HAA. (Government Code $

655S9.5(k)(lXAXi).) In addition, the Department of Housing and Community Development

6
Page 334

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



(HCD) has authority to enforce the HAA and refer violators to the Attorney General.

(Government Code $ 655S5C), (k).) The City could find itself facing multiple plaintiffs: the

applicant, a "housing organization" such as YIMBY, and the Attorney General.

The City must then prove that its decision was based on one of the statutorily required

findings, and that those findings are supported by substantial evidence in the record.

(Government Code $ 655S9.5(i); Government Code $ 65589.5(k)(l)(A).) In this context, the

City has the burden of proof even though it is the one being sued. (Government Code $

6ss8e.6.)

If the court determines that the City's decision to deny the project, reduce the density of the

project, or impose condition(s) of approval that render an affordable project unaffordable

violated the HAA, it will order the City to comply with the HAA within 60 days. If the court

finds that the City acted in bad faith (by, for example, denying the project without merit), it
can simply order the City to approve the project. Either way, if the City does not comply
within 60 days, the court'oshall" impose a minimum fine of $10,000 per housing unit in the

project at issue. (Government Code $ 65589.5(k).) If the court finds that the City acted in
bad faith andthe City failed to comply with the HAA within 60 days, the fine "shall"
increase to a minimum of $50,000 per unit. (Government Code $ 65589.5(1).)

Any successful plaintiff is entitled to recover attorney's fees, which typically range from

$100,000 to $500,000 in these kinds of cases. In a situation involving multiple plaintiffs (the

applicant, a housing organization, etc.), each plaintiff is entitled to recover its own attorney's

fees, so the City would be faced with multiple fee demands in the range stated above. In
addition, the City would have to pay for its own attorneys to defend the case, which would
carry a similar cost.

Finally, if the court rules against the City, it may be impractical to appeal, because doing so

would require the City to post a bond, in an amount determined by the trial court.
(Government Code $ 65589.5(m).) The City of Los Angeles decided not to appeal an

unfavorable judgment in an HAA case after the trial court required it to post a bond

exceeding $10 million.

Density Bonus
The State Density Bonus Law (Government Code section 65915) requires the City to grant

one density bonus and, if requested by the applicant and consistent with applicable

requirements, specified numbers of incentives or concessions, waivers or reductions of
development standards, and reduced parking ratios, all based on the percentage of affordable

units in the housing development.

State law defines "density bonus" as "a density increase over the otherwise maximum
allowable gross residential density as of the date of application by the applicant to the city."
(Government Code $ 65915(0.) However, a housing development project can qualifu for a

density bonus, and all associated incentives, concessions, etc. even ifit includes "no increase

in density"." ((Government Code $ 65915(f).)

7 Page 335

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



The City must grant the requested incentives, concessions, waivers or reductions of
development standards, and reduced parking ratio unless one or more of the following
findings are made, based upon substantial evidence:

a. The concession or incentive does not result in identifiable and actual cost

reductions... to provide for affordable housing costs.

b. The concession or incentive would have a specific, adverse impact upon public health

and safety or on any real property that is listed in the California Register or Historical

Resources and for which there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid

the specific, adverse impact without rendering the development unaffordable to low-
income and moderate-income households.

Specific adverse impact is defined as a significant, quantifiable, direct, and

unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified written public health or safety

standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the application was

deemed complete. The following shall not constitute a specific, adverse impact

upon the public health or safety:

(A) inconsistency with the zoning ordinance or general plan land use designation;

(B) the eligibility to claim a welfare exemption under subdivision (g) of Section

214 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. (Gov. Code $ 65589.5(d)(2)')

c. The concession or incentive would be contrary to state or federal law. (Government

Code $ 6se1s(dxl).)

The project applicant may initiate judicial proceedings if the City refuses to grant a requested

density bonus, incentive, or concession. (Government Code $ 65915(dX3).) In such a

proceeding, the City bears the burden ofprooffor the denial ofa requested concession or

incentive. (Government Code $ 65915(d)(a).) If a court finds that the refusal to grant a

requested density bonus, incentive, or concession is in violation of the Density Bonus Law,

the court will award attorney's fees and costs of suit to the plaintiff, in amounts consistent

with those described above.

APPEAL/ANALYSIS

On February 23,2023,Katharine Gray submitted an appeal (Attachment 1) of the decision of
the Planning Commission approving the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project. Listed

below are the reasons that Ms. Gray identified in her appeal letter for contesting the Planning

Commission's decision, and City staff s response to each item.

1.

8
Page 336

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



1. The project would have adverse effects on public health, safety, and welfare and

would be detrimental and injurious to property and improvements in the

neighborhood.

City Staff Response:

As part of the Vintage Senior Apartments project review, City staff and applicable

agencies evaluated project compliance with adopted plans and policies. City

consultants also conducted environmental review in accordance with CEQA. The

Staff Reports to the Planning Commission included detailed analysis of compliance

with applicable plans and environmental requirements. Project conditions of
approval discussed in detail in the Planning Commission Staff Reports address the

project's anticipated impacts on property and improvements in the neighborhood to

minimize or mitigate to a less than significant level the potential adverse effects on

public health, safety and welfare. Based on the aforementioned evaluation and

analysis, staff determined that the proposed project would not be detrimental or

injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood

As described above, the Housing Accountability Act prohibits the City from using

our standard Conditional Use Permit finding - that the use applied for will, under the

circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare

of persons residing or working in the neighborhood or be detrimental or injurious to

property and improvements in the neighborhood - in order to deny a housing

development project. Under the HAA, to deny the Conditional Use Permit in this

case, the Council would need to find that the project would have a significant,
quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified written
public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions and that those impacts cannot

be mitigated without making the project unaffordable. The appeal did not identiff
and staff did not find any objective written public health or safety standards that this

project violates. Even if the appeal had identified one or more such violations, staff is

aware of no evidence that the project's potential impacts on the public health, safety,

and welfare have not been mitigated.

2. The Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration fails to fully evaluate, disclose,

and effectively mitigate environmental impacts. An Environmental Impact Report

(EIR) should be prepared for the project.

City Staff Response:

Helix Environmental prepared an Initial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Contained in Attachment2) for the

project in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and

associated regulations and determined that with the proposed mitigation measures the

project would not have a significant effect on the environment. The Mitigated

9
Page 337

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Negative Declaration was prepared and noticed for public comment on the project,

and mitigation measures were included as Conditions of Approval.

Nine written comments were received during the Mitigated Negative Declaration

public review period Qrlovember 14,2022 to December 14,2022) including six

comments from residents (Contained in Attachment 2) and three comments from

public agencies (Contained in Attachment2). The six comment letters received from

residents express their general opposition to the proposed project and also identiff
some specific areas of concern including but not limited to: project density, increased

traffrc, traffic safety, road noise, lack of sufficient parking, building design, oak tree

impacts, and negative impact to property values. City staff addressed these comments

and concerns within the various sections of the Planning Commission staff reports. In

addition, the Initial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program addressed the environmental concerns raised

including traffic-related impacts, noise-related impacts, and Oak tree impacts and

concluded that, with the mitigation measures the project will not have a significant

effect on the environment.

The City received four letters from public agencies (Contained in Attachment 2) in

response to the publication of the Initial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the proposed project. The

Sacramento Metropolitan Utility Agency (SMUD) provided a response indicating that

they had no comments regarding the proposed project. The Central Valley Regional

Water Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB) provided a response highlighting the

regulatory setting for project-related water impacts and also providing guidance to the

project applicant with respect to the permitting process the project will be required to

go through due to its impacts to a local drainage feature. The Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) provided a response

recommending that the project applicant consider developing the project without

natural gas infrastructure due to greenhouse gas emission impacts. SMAQMD also

asked for clarification regarding the number of electric vehicle charging spaces that

will be provided by the proposed project. Lastly, the Pacific Gas and Electric

Company (PG&E) provided a response regarding specific requirements about the

types of development that is allowed to occur within the PG&E overhead easement

area. None of the aforementioned comments support a finding that the project may

have a significant effect on the environment, requiring preparation of an EIR. A
formal response to all of these comments is included in the Planning Commission

Staff Report (Attachment 2).

As mentioned above, Helix Environmental prepared an Initial Study, Mitigated

Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the

project in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act and determined

10
Page 338

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



that with the proposed mitigation measures the project would not have a significant

effect on the environment. Under the California Environmental Quality Act, an EIR

must be prepared whenever there is substantial evidence (in light of the whole record)

that any aspect of a project, either individually or cumulatively, may cause a

significant effect on the environment. Based on the information contained in the

whole record for the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project, City staff has

determined that there is not substantial evidence that the project may have a

significant impact on the environment.

3. The project is not feasible

City Staff Response:

The appellant makes a claim in the appeal letter that the project is not feasible,

however, the appellant does not provide any additional information regarding why

they believe the project is not feasible and what this means. Absent any additional

information or substantial evidence, the simple claim that the project is not feasible is

not grounds for approval ofthe appeal.

4. The transportation wait times are too long.

Citv Staff Response:

The appellant states in their appeal letter that the transportation wait times are too

long without providing any additional information. City staff assumes that this

comment refers to the wait times for vehicles exiting Cimmaron Circle onto East

Natoma Street. The Transportation Impact Study (Contained in Attachment2)that
was prepared in July 2022by T. Kear Transportation Planning and Management, Inc.

for the proposed project determined that, based on relatively low volume of project-

related trips (39 AM Peak Hour Trips and 4l PM Peak Hour Trips), the project would

not impact the Level of Service at the two study intersections. The Study did not

evaluate any other nearby street intersections because the project did not meet the

threshold (50 PM Peak Hour Trips) for a Full Transportation Impact Study.

The Transportation Study did evaluate potential geometric constraints and safety

issues associated with development of the proposed apartment project including

driveway spacing, sight distance vision triangles, and Statewide Integrated Traffic
Records System (SWITRS) collision data. The Study determined that the project-

related driveway spacing, throat depth, and corner sight-distance are all adequate. In
terms of reported vehicle accidents in close proximity to the project site, the Study

found that there have been three vehicle accidents within the past five years including

a rear-end collision on eastbound East Natoma Street at Prison Road and two driving
under the influence (DUI) incidents (vehicle sideswiped/vehicle overturned). Based

on this data, the Study concluded that these types of vehicle accident varieties would

11
Page 339

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



not be exacerbated with development of the proposed project and that no traffic safety

treatments are warranted.

There is also the possibility that the appellant may be referring to the potential impact

the proposed apartment project will have on existing bus transit service in the area.

Sacramento Regional Transit (SACRT) provides bus service within the City of
Folsom, including service to the immediate project area. Specifically, SACRT Bus

Route 30, which has a bus stop located approximately 0.25 miles to the west of the

project site on the north side of East Natoma Street (in front of Senior Center),

features bus service that operates 10 times per day Monday through Friday. The

proposed project, which includes development of 136 senior apartment units, is not

expected to result in any changes or delays to existing bus service in the project area.

Based on the aforementioned information, staff has determined that there is no

evidence to suggest that the proposed project would result in the exceedance of any

City standard with respect to vehicle or bus wait times nor is there any evidence to

suggest that the project would result any traffic safety related impacts at nearby street

intersections.

Applicant Response:

The applicant submitted a response letter (Attachment 6) to the appeal on the Vintage Senior

Apartments project on March 7,2023. In the response letter, the applicant provides a

detailed description regarding the project location and setting and makes the comment that

the project is well positioned to access a variety of goods and services in the immediate area.

The applicant goes on to address each ofthe appellants' grounds for appeal as described

be1ow.

In the response letter, the applicant states that they disagree with the assertion by the

appellant that the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the project

are inadequate and that an Environmental Impact Report is required as the appellant failed to

provide any facts or testimony from the January 18th or February l5th Planning Commission

hearings to support this position. The applicant also comments that appellant failed to

demonstrate that the proposed project may have a significant effect on the environment.

In the response letter, the applicant disagrees with the appellant's claim that the proposed

project would have "an adverse impact on public health, safety, and welfare and would be

detrimental and injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood" as the appeal

letter contains no presentation of facts or argument demonstrating the Planning Commission

failed to fairly and lawfully apply the Conditional Use Permit standards.

In the response letter, the applicant disputes the appellant's assertion that the proposed

project is not feasible as no substantial information has been provided to justifu this claim.

t2
Page 340

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



With regard to the comment by the appellant that the wait times are too long, the applicant

indicates that no probative evidence was presented at either of the Planning Commission

meetings demonstrating that the wait times at the intersection of East Natoma Street and

Cimarron Circle were exceeding any established City standard. The applicant also states that

no evidence was presented at the Planning Commission meetings demonstrating that the

proposed project would negatively impact the smooth functioning of the intersection of East

Natoma Street and Prison Road.

Housing Accountability Act
The Vintage Senior Apartments project meets the definition of a "housing development

project" as defined in the HAA. (Government Code $ 65589.5(h)(2).) It also meets the

definition of an affordable project, since one hundred percent of the units will be affordable

to seniors. (Government Code $ 65589.5(h)(3).) Therefore, to grant the appeal and deny the

Conditional Use Permit to allow senior housing on the subject parcel, the Council would
need to make one of the five specific Housing Accountability Act findings noted above.

Under the circumstances, the only potentially applicable finding is number 2, based on

Government Code section 65589.5(d)(2), under which the Council would have to find, based

on a preponderance ofthe evidence in the record:

a. The proposed project would have a significant, quantifiable, direct, and

unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified written public health or safety

standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the application was

deemed complete by the City; and

b. There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid" said impact
without making the project unaffordable.

In its review of the project, City staff did not identifu any specific adverse impacts (as

defined in the HAA) associated with development of the apartment community. After review
and analysis, staff determined that the appeal did not identiff any specific adverse impacts
(as defined in the HAA) associated with development of the proposed project. Staff s
assessment is that the record does not contain evidence to support those findings.

Density Bonus
The Vintage Senior Apartments project includes development of a 136-unit senior affordable

apartment community which includes l22units (90%) being made available to Low Income

individuals and 14 units (10%) made available to Very Low Income individuals. Based on

this information, staff determined that the project qualifies for a Density Bonus.

The subject property does not have an assigned density, per se, because it is zoned BP. The

maximum allowable density under the General Plan is 30 dwelling units per acre, and this

project is below that, at28 dwelling units per acre. Accordingly, no density increase is

requested or required as a part of this project. As mentioned above, however, the applicant is

13
Page 341

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



still eligible for incentives/concessions under the Density Bonus Law. (Government Code $
6se1s(f).)

The applicant is eligible for up to four incentives/concessions because 100% of all units in
the development are for lower income households. (Government Code $ 65919(d)(2)(D),
65915(bX1(G).) In this case, the applicant requested the following three incentives and

concessions: (1) establishing a parking ratio of one parking space per apartment unit; (2)

increasing the maximum building height from 35 feet to 42-feet 6-inches; and (3) increasing

the maximum number of building stories from2 stories to 3 stories.

The Density Bonus Law limits the City's ability to require specific parking ratios and the

requested 1:1 parking ratio complies with those limits. (Government Code $ 65915(p).) In
order to require additional parking, the City would have to make one of the specific Density
Bonus Law findings described above.

The Density Bonus Law also prohibits the City from applying any development standard that
will physically preclude the construction of an affordable housing development at specified

densities. (Government Code $ 65915(e).) The definition of "development standard"

specifically includes height limits. In this case, the project complies with the height limit
established in the Folsom Municipal Code, for the reasons described in the January 18,2023
Planning Commission staff report. (See FMC section 17.58.080.) Accordingly, the applicant

did not need an incentive/concession or waiver of a development standard under the Density
Bonus Law to obtain approval of the building height. However, the applicant requested the

incentive/concession/waiver out of an abundance of caution and staff determined that the

project is eligible for it under the Density Bonus Law.

The Density Bonus Law also requires the City to grant a requested change in site

development standards, zoning code requirements, or architectural design requirements as an

incentive or concession. (Govemment Code $ 65915(d), (k).) The request to increase the

maximum number of building stories from2 stories to 3 stories falls into this category. In
order to deny this request, the City would have to make one of the specific Density Bonus

Law findings described above.

Under the circumstances, the only potentially applicable finding is described above as

finding b, based on Government Code section 65915(dXl)(B), under which the Council
would have to find, based on a preponderance of the evidence in the record:

a. The requested concession or incentive would have a significant, quantifiable,
direct, and unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified written public
health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the

application was deemed complete by the City; and

b. There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid said impact without
making the project unaffordable.

l4
Page 342

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



In its review of the project, and later, the appeal, City staffdid not identifi any information
supporting those findings in this case.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, staff respectfully requests that the City Council DENY the appeal by
Katharine Gray of Decisions by the Planning Commission Adopting a Mitigated Negative
Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and Approving a Conditional
Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for development of the 136-

unit Vintage Senior Apartments project (PN 21-259) located at 103 East Natoma Street.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Letter of Appeal from Katherine Gray, dated February 23,2023
2. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated January 18,2023

3. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated February 15,2023

4. Minutes from January 18,2023 Planning Commission Meeting

5. Minutes from February 15,2023 Planrting Commission Meeting

6. Applicant Response Letter, dated March 7,2023
7. Additional Public Comment Letters

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

15Page 343

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Attachment 1

Letter of Appeal from Katharine Gray
Dated February 23,2023

Page 344

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



':" 
- 

:l 
-'- ':-""

CITY OF FOLSOM

laak 6 PEAL FORM
a.n al

AP
. c"Y

NAME OF APPELLANT:

MAILING ADDRESS:

lnterest in Matter:

Daytime Phone:

Action Being Appealed:

\S o l-t q

L

Date pf Decision or
+cl- no'l, €<asibl|

Reason for Appeal:

Date Project was Heard:

x- ( -(\{.v-r L

z\-\5'

-A/, i".to' d..

Witu fJ

&?P1.^''

?"lj L
I 0

i
].tVt r0

e

o

n v

77
f\- 6t t

\aa

*'fo lsr';

of L'J il

env ln 't, nt.-eW4ot I

Signature
K, b\AC Kh'rcu,r o

Date Received: c +
Planning Comm. or Historic District Comm.
Decision Appeal

Type of ProiecUfee:

+ Occupied/Single Family Dwel

Tentative Hearing Date:

Copies to: Community Development Director
City Manager
City Attorney
City Clerk

Received by:

re
i ^'1- pa.t. Sa 2. .*-rW (L tr E'L'A- " (r 0,4

!'J ,\, I

r(l

STAFF U$E ONLY:

Fee Paid:

I , Corr1. 3Uo '

#qqs
Admin. {staff decision} Appeal

Type of ProjecUfee:
$239

Time Limit Waived:

Appealfees set by City Council Resolutio.p No. 10479 apglovpd 71112020.

U pd a'ie d Fe b ru a ry 2oz'3 ; tJii#:; 
i ffi t.:,r 

; 

;ri ;y {n/ : #:r,fnt''r 
t'l Q Y {v c t

Page 345

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Keep Vintage properties out of Folsom!
Dear City Council of Folsomlplanning Commission:

We, the undersigned,
we corectivJry ffiilL"3ff:: 

t[F,f:E:"fji,"Jgffi;:;lfrp3:?i,"?"X'Xnt:1ffi-.1* at 103 E Natoma st, Forsom cA

Name
L E-mail

s 415

1677
:f'4288n210 4eil6

e a

4.

A

8.

7.

8.

9.

10. ffii$${"*' 9t tr,:?o 73*,

11
iblsodLua t"*"

+

,Cto

@ ffit-
!i

vadB FngP 8ot''( tt-l

I

12.

13.

14.

15.

16

17

18.

1S.

i
I
!

B
@ Gf6tnb

$lGfrFi@

-t

o
cf)(o
ro
O)

O

!<E
IJJF

59HaF!-
dd6
tJ. LrJ <
LLrL=9[9.o=,- .,, z.

'Ha
lJ-o

ACCOUNT

PAYfulENT

BAL, DUE

No,

RECEIVED FROM

DOLLARS

FROM

DATE

fl
,!

TO

BY

,'i

ilI

O FoR RENIT
.OFOR

Q cnsu

i ) cr-rrcx

.\ MONEY
UORDER
,.-\ CREDIT
VCARD

owC [\a

U

I el'-..nn^K

,,"1 h.oY

rtI\^arl,Lor -

20.

Page 346

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Attachment 2

Planning Commission Staff Report
Dated January 18,2023

Page 347

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



cttY oF

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2
Type: Public Hearing

Date: January 18,2023

Planning Commission Staff Report
50 Natoma Street, Council Chambers

Folsom, CA 95630

Vintage Senior Apartments

PN 21-159

Conditional Use Permit

Planned Development Permit

Density Bonus

The proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project is located on a
4.86-acre parcel situated on the south side of East Natoma Street
at the intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road (103
East Natoma Street)/APN No. 071-0320-042

Steve Banks, Principal Planner, 916-461-6207
sbanks@folsom.ca.us

]F(}]LSCDN4T

Project:

File #:

Requests

Location/APN:

Staff Contact:

o

Property Owner/Applicant
Name: Vintage at Folsom, LP
Address: 369 San Miguel Drive, Suite 135
Newport Beach, CA 92660

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion recommend approval
of a Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for the
Vintage Senior Apartments project, subject to the findings (Findings A-U) and conditions
of approval (Conditions 1-76) attached to this report.

Project Summary: The proposed project includes development of a 136-unit senior
affordable apartment community on a 4.86-acre site located on the south side of East
Natoma Street at the intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road (103 East

Natoma Street). The following are the specific entitlements requested with the proposed
project.

A Conditional Use Permit for development and operation of a senior apartment
community on the subject 4.86-acre property.

City of Folsom Page 1

Page 348

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 2
Type: Public Hearing

Date: January 18,2023

A Planned Development Permit which contains detailed development and
architectural standards for the proposed 136-unit senior affordable apartment
community

]F(}IS(}N4I

a

A Density Bonus for development of a senior affordable apartment community at
a residential density of 28 units per acre and a request for three
incentives/concessions including establishing a parking ratio of one parking space
per apartment unit, increasing the maximum building height from 35 feet to 42-feet
6-inches (proposed apartment building is 34 feet in height with architectural
features extending to 42-feet 6-inches), and increasing the maximum number of
building stories from 2-stories to 3-stories.

These proposed actions are described in detail and analyzed later in this report.

Table of Gontents:

Attachment 1 - Background and Setting
Attachment 2 - Project Description
Attachment 3 - Analysis
Attachment 4 - Conditions of Approval
Attachment 5 - Vicinity Map
Attachment 6 - Site Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 7 - Preliminary Utility Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 8 - Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 9 - Preliminary Grading Sections, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 10 - Preliminary Landscape and lrrigation Plans, dated October 20,2022
Attachment 11 - Preliminary Tree lmpact Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachment12 - Preliminary Oak Tree Mitigation Plan, dated October 20.2022
Attachment 13 - Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachmenl 14 - Preliminary Fire Access Plan, dated October 17 , 2022
Attachment 15 - Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details, dated November 3,2021
Attachment 16 - Building Elevations and Floor Plans dated June3,2022
AttachmentlT - Color Building Renderings, dated June 3,2O22
Attachment 18 - Building Site Sections, dated June3,2022
Attachment 19 - Color and Materials Board, dated June 3,2022
Attachment20 - Vintage Senior Apartments Booklet (Separate Bound Document)
Attachment2l - Site Photographs
Attachmen t 22 - Transportation I m pact Study, dated July, 2022
Attachmenl23 - Parking Memorandum, dated October 17,2022

a

City of Folsom Page2

Page 349

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 2
Type: Public Hearing

Date: January 18,2023

F @H-SSme
CITY OF

OISTTXCTIVE 6Y NATUhE

Attachment24 - Parking Case Study, dated January 3,2023
Attachment25 - lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring

and Reporting Program, dated November, 2022 (electronic version
avai lable for viewi n g at rruww. folsom. ca. us/q overn menUcomm un itv-
devel omenUolan n inq-servi rrent-oroiect-information

Attachment26 - Comment Letters from Public Agencies
Attachment2T - Comment Letters from Residents
Attachment2S - CEQA Response Memorandum, dated January 3,2023

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

City of Folsom Page 3

Page 350

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

ATTACHMENT 1

BACKGROUND AND SETTING

Background:

On April 20, 2OO5, the Planning Commission considered a request for approval of a
General Plan Amendment, Rezone, Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and Planned

Development Permit for development of a21-unit single-family residential subdivision on

a 4.86-acre site located at 103 East Natoma Street, the same parcel at issue here. The

Planning Commission continued the proposed project off-calendar on multiple occasions

in order to provide the applicant with additional time to address concerns raised by the

Commission and by residents. The applicant ultimately decided not to pursue

development of the proposed subdivision and subsequently withdrew their development

application.

On January 7, 2OO9, the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map and

Planned Development Permit for development of a 32,000-square-foot professional office
park on the same 4.86-acre parcel located at 103 East Natoma Street. As was the case

with the prior residential development application, the applicant decided not to move

forward with development of the professional office park and withdrew their development

application.

Physical Setting

The triangular-shaped 4.86-acre project site is located on the south side of East Natoma

Street at the intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road. The project site, which

slopes moderately from east to west with an approximate 20-foot elevation change,

features a vegetative community that includes blue oak woodland, non-native grasses,

and ephemeral and intermittent drainage features. The project site has been disturbed

by the recreational use of bicycles and includes several pathways, dirt ramps and jumps.

ln addition, there is evidence of use of the site by transients as exhibited by severaldebris
piles and associated trash. The project area includes a mixture of land uses including

single-family residences, multi-family residences, medical and professional offices, a
senior center, a food bank, local government offices, a hospital, a state prison, a church,

and an overhead transmission line corridor. An aerial photograph of the project site and

surrounding land uses is shown in Figure 1 on the following page.

City of Folsom Page 4

Page 351

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 1: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH OF PROJECT SITE

PROJECT SITE

City of Folsom Page 5

Page 352

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

ATTACHMENT 2
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL

The applicant, Vintage at Folsom LP, is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit,
Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for the development of a 136-unit
senior (55+; affordable apartment community (Vintage Senior Apartments). The project
is proposed on a 4.86-acre parcel located on the south side of East Natoma Street at the
intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road.

A Conditional Use Permit is requested to allow for development and operation of the
senior affordable apartment project on the subject property, as required by the Folsom
Municipal Code in this location.

A Planned Development Permit is requested to allow for review of project-specific
development standards, project site design, and the architectural design of the multi-
family residential building.

Lastly, a Density Bonus is requested to allow development of the apartment project at a
residential density of 28 units per acre and to provide for three incentives/concessions,
including establishing a parking ratio of one parking space per apartment unit, increasing
the maximum building height from 35 feet to 42-teel 6-inches, and increasing the
maximum allowed number of building stories irom 2 stories to 3 stories (proposed
apartment building is three-stories tall and 34 feet in height with architectural features
extending to 42-feet 6-inches).

The proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project includes development of a three-story,
34-foot-tall apartment building totaling 111,755 square feet. The proposed apartment
building features a total of 136 units including 98 one-bedroom units (552-559 square
feet) and 38 two-bedroom units (748 square feet). All apartment units are proposed to
be accessible from interior hallways and include a full kitchen, living space, a laundry
room, storage closets, a bedroom(s), and a bathroom. Proposed indoor and outdoor
amenities include a 2,500-square-foot community center (includes community room, craft
room, exercise room, game room, and library) on the first floor of the apartment building,
an outdoor dining patio, an outdoor barbeque area, a bocce ball court, and a native habitat
area.

All of the apartment units will be age-restricted to individuals 60 years and older. ln

addition, all of the apartment units will be designated as affordable for Low lncome (Ll)
and Very Low lncome (VLl) households as defined by State and City requirements, with
122 units being made available to Ll individuals with incomes at or below 60% of the
Sacramento area median income (AMl) and 14 units made available to VLI individuals
with income at or below 50% of the AMl. As an example, a one-person household would

City of Folsom Page 6

Page 353

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

only qualiff to live at Vintage Senior Apartments if their income was below $56,750 (60%
AMI/LI) or $35,500 (50% AMIA/LI), while a two-person household would qualify if their
income was below $64,850 (60% AMI/Ll) or $40,550 (50% AMlruLl).

Development of the proposed project will require State Funding through affordable
housing tax credits, namely, the CTCAC Bond Program, and other state and federal
financing resources offering apartment homes to income-qualified active seniors. Unlike
other prior Affordable Projects developed within the City of Folsom, the applicant is not
requesting financial participation from the City of Folsom.

The proposed project, including placement of the three-story apartment building, has
been designed to preserve key open space areas containing numerous oak trees while
also recognizing the unique topographical and physical features present on the project
site. The proposed three-story apartment building features a contemporary residential
design highlighted by simple rectilinear forms and shapes with vertical and horizontal
components utilized to create visual interest while also breaking up the massing of the
building. Proposed building materials include stucco, vertical board and batten siding,
brick veneer, wood shutters, stucco trim, wrought iron railing, vinyl windows, and
composition shingle roof tiles. The primary building colors are earth tone and include
various shades of brown (Midnight Brown, Wooden Acre, and Wooden Peg) accented
with a number of more vibrant white (Light House) and reddish colors (High Desert).

The proposed project includes a number of sustainability features consistent with the
California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen). The project is expected to
exceed the 2016 California Building Energy Efficiency Standards (Title24; Part6) by 15o/o

or more. The proposed project includes:

lnstallation of a rooftop photovoltaic system (approximately 199 kW) that will serve
the apartment building.

lnstallation of cool paving materials (slag concrete)

o 14 electric vehicle capable parking spaces (spaces wired for future installation of
an electric vehicle charging station).

Primary vehicle access to the project site will be provided by a new full-access driveway
located on the south side of East Natoma Street at the signalized intersection of East
Natoma Street and Prison Road. To accommodate installation of the new primary
driveway, the proposed project is required to modifl7 the existing three-way signalized
intersection at East Natoma Street and Prison Road and convert it into a four-way
signalized intersection. Secondary access to the project site is provided by a new
driveway on the south side of East Natoma Street, approximately 250 feet to the east of
the proposed primary driveway. The secondary driveway, which will feature Stop-sign
control for exiting vehicles, will be limited to right-turns in and right-turns out only.

a

a

City of Folsom Page 7

Page 354

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Proposed internal vehicle circulation consists of a single 27-foot-wide drive aisle that
loops around the prolect site and connects the two project driveways. Pedestrian and

bicycle access and circulation is provided by realignment of an existing Class I bicycle
trail located in the northwestportion of the projectsite, existing Class lll bicycle laneson
East Natoma Street, construction of a new sidewalk along the south side of East Natoma
Street, installation of new internal sidewalks and walkways throughout the project site,

and construction of a pedestrian/bicycle connection from the project site to an existing
Class I bicycle trial (Oak Avenue Parkway Trail) located south of the project site.
Additional site improvements include 136 on-site parking spaces (includes 14 electric
vehicle capable parking spaces), 28 bicycle parking spaces, underground utilities, a

drainage swale, bio-retention planters, retaining walls, fencing and screen walls, a bocce
ball court, an outdoor patio, site lighting, site landscaping, a trash/recycling enclosure,
and a monument sign. The proposed site plan is shown in Figure 2 below.

FIGURE 2: PROPOSED SITE PLAN

@..d6ooogl,@

{

{!l}

?RELMINARY SITEFIAN

NATOiWTmIoR
APARTMENTS

cITt'oF FOIJOM, CA

s-*--

City of Folsom Page 8

Page 355

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

ATTACHMENT 3
ANALYSIS.

The following sections provide an analysis of the applicant's proposal. Staff's analysis
includes:

A. General Plan and Zoning Consistency

B. Conditional Use Permit

. Land Use Compatibility

C. Planned Development Permit

. DevelopmentStandards

. Building Architecture and Design

D. Density Bonus

E. Traffic/Access/Circu lation

F. Parking

G. NoiseA/ibration lmpacts

H. Walls/Fencing

L Site Lighting

J. Signage

K. Trash/Recycling

L. Existing and Proposed Landscaping

M. Tree Preservation

N. Conformance with Relevant Folsom General Plan Objectives and Policies

O. Native American Consultation

A. General Plan and Zoning Consistency

General Plan and Zoninq Consistency
The General Plan land use designation for the project site is PO (Professional Office)
while the zoning designation is BP PD (Business and Professional, Planned Development
District). The proposed project is consistent with both the General Plan land use
designation and the zoning designation for the site, as senior citizen residential
developments are identified as a permitted land use within the zoning designation for this
site with approval of a Conditional Use Permit. ln addition, the proposed project meets
the development requirements established for the BP zoning district with respect to lot
area, lot width, building height, building coverage, and building setbacks. Parking
standards for senior residential projects are established through the Planned

City of Folsom Page 9

Page 356

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Development Permit process and are discussed later within the Parking Section of this

report.

B. Gonditional Use Permit

Land Use Compatibility
The proposed project is located on an undeveloped, 4.86-acre commercially zoned

property situated on the south side of East Natoma Street at the intersection of East

Natoma Street and Prison Road. As described and shown in the Background section of
this staff report, the prolect site is bounded by single-family residential development to
the east with Cimarron Circle beyond, a PG&E transmission corridor to the west with

commercial offices and Fargo Way beyond, East Natoma Street to the north with Folsom

State Prison beyond, and a PG&E transmission corridor to the south with single and multi-

family residential development beyond.

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit to develop and operate

a 136-unit senior affordable apartment community on the subject 4.86-acre project site

located at 103 East Natoma Street. The Conditional Use Permit is required for the
proposed use in this location, which is zoned Business Professional. The Folsom

Municipal Code describes the BP zone as follows: "The intent of the BP zone is to
designate areas suitable for business and professional offices. Uses in the BP zone are

intended to be low-intensity commercial uses and compatible with higher-intensity

residential uses. Retail commercial activities are discouraged. The BP zone may serve

as a buffer between retail commercial and residential areas The BP zone should be

located along major arterials or have direct access to one via a collector street.". The

FMC states that a "senior citizens residential complex" is permitted in the BP zone upon

issuance of a conditional use permit. (FMC S 17.22.030(EX 214); 17.22.O4O(1).)

In order to approve this request for a Conditional Use Permit, the Commission must find

that the "establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use or building applied for will

not, under the circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the health, safety,

peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of persons residing or working in the

neighborhood of such proposed use, or be detrimental or injurious to property and

improvements in the neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City." (FMC S
17.60.040.)

In reviewing the request for a Conditional Use Permit, staff took into consideration the

compatibility of the proposed land use in relation to the existing land uses in the immediate
project vicinity. Potential noise impacts, traffic impacts, parking impacts, oak tree

impacts, and aesthetic impacts were also analyzed and are addressed within separate

sections of this report.

City of Folsom Page 10

Page 357

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

As mentioned earlier within this report, the project site is located in close proximity to a
major arterial roadway (East Natoma Street) and within an area that features a broad
mixture of different types of land uses including single-family residences, multi-family
residences, medical and professional offices, a senior center, a library, a food bank, local
government offices, a hospital, a church, a state prison, and an overhead transmission
line corridor.

ln the immediate project area, the existing land uses are predominantly residential in

nature. The project is bound by single-family residences (Cimarron Hills Subdivision) to
the east with Cimarron Circle and additional single-family residences beyond, an
overhead transmission line corridor to the west with office development and Fargo Way
beyond, an overhead transmission line corridor to the south with single-family and multi-
family residences beyond, and East Natoma Street to the east with Folsom State Prison

beyond.

The proposed Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments prolect is an active-adult (55+;
affordable rental community that will provide housing opportunities for approximately 175

residents. Given the residential nature of the proposed use, staff has determined that the
proposed project will be complimentary to the existing single-family and multi-family
residential land uses located in the immediate project vicinity. In addition, taking into

account the unique needs of senior residential communities, staff has determined that the
proposed project is also complimentary with surrounding non-residential uses in the
vicinity that will provide a variety of daily and weekly services (medical offices, hospital,

senior center, library, church, food bank, etc.) to the senior residents.

Consistent with the description of the BP zone in the Zoning Code, the proposed project,

if approved, would serve as a buffer between existing professional/commercial

development and residential areas. ln addition, the proposed project's location along a

major arterial street is consistent with the Zoning Code. REFER TO IMPACTS ON

VARIOUS ISSUE AREAS DESCRIBED BELOW. Based on all of that, staff supports
development of the proposed project at the subject location and, accordingly, staff
recommends that the Commission grant the Conditional Use Permit.

C. Planned Development Permit

The purpose of the Planned Development Permit process is to allow greater flexibility in
the design of integrated developments than otherwise possible through strict application
of land use regulations. The Planned Development Permit process is also designed to
encourage creative and efficient uses of land. The following are proposed as part of the
applicant's Planned Development Permit:

City of Folsom Page 1 1

Page 358

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

o DevelopmentStandards

o Building Architecture and Design

Development Standards
The applicant's intent with the subject application is to create a set of development
standards that will comply with the development standards established for the BP

(Business and Professional) zoning district, in which the project site is located, as well as

the standards for the R-4 (General Apartment) zoning district, which apply to similar
multifamily projects.

The development standards for the R-4 zoning district are included for reference
purposes only as the proposed project is a multi-family development, however, the
subject property has a BP zoning designation which takes precedence in terms applicable
development standards.

The table below outlines the existing development standards for the BP and R-4 zoning

districts compared to the proposed development standards for the Vintage Senior
Apartments project:

TABLE 1: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS TABLE

As shown on the development standards table, the proposed project meets or exceeds

all development standards established for the BP (Business and Professional) and R-4
(General Apartment) zoning districts including minimum lot area, minimum lot width,

maximum building coverage, front yard setback, rear yard setback, side yard setbacks,
and maximum building height. Regarding building height, the proposed apartment
building is 34 feet in height with architectural features extending to 42-feet 6-inches. The

34-foot height of the building itself meets standards as shown above. The Zoning Code

also allows architecturalfeatures to be built to a height up to 25 feet above the height limit

established for the district in which they are located, which, in this case, would be 60 feet.

Development Standards Table
Vi ntaqe Senior Apartments

Min.
Lot

Area

Min.
Lot

width

Max.
Building

Coveraoe

Front
Yard

Setback

Rear
Yard

Setback

Side
Yard

Setbacks

ing
Height
limlt

BP Zoning
District

6,000
s.f.

60 60% 20 feet 20 feet NA 35 feet (two
stories),(4

stories with
CUP)

R4 Zoning
District

6,000
s.f.

60
feet

6o0/o 20 feet 20 feet 5 feet
and

10 feet

50 feet
(four-

stories)

Proposed
Project

211,701
s.f.

580
feet

18o/o 20 feet 87 feet 68 feet
and

117 feet

34 feet

City of Folsom Page 12

Page 359

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

(FMC S 17.58.0S0.) As such, the building height, including the taller architectural
features, complies with the Zoning Code. However, the proposed building is three stories
tall and only two stories are allowed by right. The applicant has requested a concession
under the density bonus law to allow the additional story. That request is analyzed in the
Density Bonus section of the report. The established of a project-specific parking

standard is addressed separately within the Parking Section of this staff report.

Buildinq Architecture and Desion
As detailed in the Project Description section of this report, the proposed project includes
development of a three-story, 111,755-square-foot apartment building. The design
concept for the apartment building features a contemporary residential architectural style
accentuated by simple rectilinear forms and shapes, with vertical and horizontal
components intended to establish visual interest while also breaking up the massing of
the building. Proposed building materials include stucco, vertical board and batten siding,
brick veneer, wood shutters, stucco trim, wrought iron railing, vinyl windows, and
composition shingle roof tiles. Primary building colors are earth tone and include different
shades of brown (Midnight Brown, Wooden Acre, and Wooden Peg) accented with a
couple of more vibrant white (Light House) and reddish colors (High Desert). Proposed
elevations and renderings of the proposed apartment building are shown below and on

the following pages.

FIGURE 3: BUILDING ELEVATIONS

{kF
,:.t(F'

x, .$F{ir'

City of Folsom Page 13

Page 360

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 4: BUILDING RENDERING (NORTHEAST)

FIGURE 5: BUILDING RENDERING (SOUTHWEST)

,

i
I

City of Folsom Page 14

Page 361

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 6: BUILDING RENDERING (SOUTHEAST)

, -, . rih'i#;i: :l' 319; ; rr
ic ,

"'t' '-i1

The proposed project is not located within a geographic area that has established
residential or commercial design guidelines. However, the project is subject to the City's
Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development (Design Guidelines). The overall
purpose of the Design Guidelines is to promote and protect public health, safety, and
general welfare of the community by:

Supporting the preservation of existing neighborhood character and community
value.

Promoting the vision of suitable housing types for all residents including new
standards for developments with higher densities and usage mix.

Encouraging the formulation or regulations that reflect the direction of the Folsom
General Plan and add a qualitative direction for new developments in support of
General Plan Policies.

Providing guidance for increasing density with greater attention paid to amenities

Creation of interconnected and livable communities.

Minimizing the impact of parking within existing or planned neighborhoods.

a

a

a

a

a

a

City of Folsom Page 15

Page 362

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

ln terms of architecture and design, the Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development
recommend that multi-family projects be designed in a manner that compliments the
surrounding community. The following are some of the specific design recommendations
suggested by the Design Guidelines:

Variety and distinctness in design are desirable

Expanses of uninterrupted wall area, unbroken roof forms, and box-like structures
shall be prohibited. Balconies, porches, bay windows, chimneys, and other design
elements with projections and varied setbacks shall be used to break up the
physical characteristics of structures.

Separations and changes in the height of roof planes shall be used to visually
separate the units. Articulation such as roof dormers, hips, gables, balconies, wall
projections, and porches shall be used to break up the visual massing of building
facades.

a

a

a

a The use of a variety and combination of building materials is encouraged. Building
materials selected for multi-family projects shall be very durable and require low
maintenance including, but not limited to, stucco, stone, and brick. Building
materials shall integrate quality design elements consistent with the design of the
development and the surrounding neighborhood.
Predominant roof materials shall be of high quality, durable material such as, but
not limited to, clay or concrete roof tiles and asphalt shingles.

a

a Exterior building colors shall be compatible with the surrounding neighborhood
setting and shall not be out of character or in visual competition with the existing
surrounding design elements.

All accessory structures, including carports, garages, and solid waste enclosures,
shall be designed with materials and in a manner consistent with the architectural
design characteristics of the development.

As illustrated on the building elevations and color renderings (Attachments 16 and 17),
the proposed apartment building incorporates many of the key design features
recommended by the Design Guidelines including the use of rectilinear building shapes
to create a sense of depth, use of varied forms and projections to create visual relief, use
of staggered rooftop elements to break up the mass of the building, and the inclusion of
unique design details to reinforce the residential design theme of the building.

As shown on the color and materials board (Attachment 19), the proposed project utilizes
a variety of modern residential building materials to enhance the appearance of the
building including the use of stucco on the walls, brick veneer wainscotting, board and
batten siding, wrought-iron railings, and composition shingle roofing material. As

a

City of Folsom Page 16

Page 363

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

recommended by the Design Guidelines, the proposed project features a natural color
scheme with extensive use of earth tone colors including various shades of brown

complimented with more vibrant white and reddish colors.

ln evaluating the architecture and design of the proposed project, staff also took into

consideration the compatibility of the proposed apartment building relative to existing
single-family and multi-family structures in the immediate project area. The individuals
potentially most impacted by the design of the proposed apartment building reside in

single-family residences located in the Cimarron Hills Subdivision directly adjacent to the
project site to the east. The Cimarron Hills Subdivision, which was developed in the early
1980s, features a mixture of 95 one and two-story homes. The single-family residences
within the Cimarron Hills Subdivision have a zoning designation of R-1-ML (Single-Family

Dwelling, Medium Lot District), which allows for development of a residence that is a
maximum of 2.5 stories tall, but not to exceed 35 feet.

The next closest individuals that have the potential to be impacted by the proposed project

are a series of multi-family residences (combination of duplex and fourplex units) located

on the north side of Montrose Drive, approximately 317 feet to the south of the project

site across an overhead transmission line corridor. The multi-family residences located
along the north side of Montrose Drive, which were developed in the 1960s and 1970s

for the most part, include a mixture of one and two-story story structures. These multi-
family residences along Montrose Drive have zoning designations of R-2 (Two-Family

Residence District) and R-4 (General Apartment District), which allow for development of
residential structures that are a maximum of 2.5 stories tall, but not to exceed 35 feet and

four-stories, but not to exceed 50 feet in height respectively.

As mentioned in the Prgect Description section of this staff report, the applicant is

requesting approval of a density bonus concession to allow the proposed apartment
building to exceed two-stories in height (proposed apartment building is three-stories tall
and 34 feet in height with architectural features extending to 42-feet 6-inches). According
to the applicant, the architecture and design of the apartment building was crafted
purposefully to compliment the design, architecture, building materials, and colors of
existing single-family and multi-family residence in the surrounding neighborhoods. ln

addition, placement and orientation of the three-story apartment building was designed
to preserve key open space areas that contain numerous oak trees, while also
recognizing the unique topographical and physical features (drainage channel, etc.)
present on the project site.

The building site sections on the following page demonstrate the site and building
relationship between the proposed apartment building and adjacent single-family
residences to the east on Cimmaron Drive.

City of Folsom Page 17

Page 364

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 7: BUILDING SITE SECTION (CIMMARON HILLS-NORTH)

'&..*.

r 1i..'ili:"'

FIGURE 8: BUILDING SITE SECTION (CIMARRON HILLS-SOUTH)

City of Folsom Page 18

Page 365

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

As shown on the site sections and on the submitted development plans, there are a
number of factors that will minimize the visual impact of the proposed three-story
apartment building relative to the adjacent single-family residences on Cimarron Circle
including grade differential, building separation, existing and proposed landscaping,
proposed walls, and building orientation. ln relation to grade differential, the finished pad

elevation of the apartment building is 346 feet msl (above mean sea level) while the pad

elevation for adjacent single family residences ranges from 355 to 360 feet msl. The
visual impact associated with this grade differential is that the proposed apartment
building will appear to be a two-story tall structure as viewed from the first floor of the
single-family residences to the east. With regard to building separation, the proposed
apartment building has setbacks that range from approximately 68 to 95 feet from the
eastern property boundary and setbacks that range from approximately 128 to 165 feet
from the single-family residences to the east on Cimarron Circle.

As shown on the building site section and submitted landscape plans (Attachment 10),

there are a number of existing trees on the prolect site along the eastern project boundary
that will be preserved. ln addition, the proposed project includes the planting of a
significant number of trees (24-inch box evergreen trees) within a 1S-foot-wide landscape
buffer along the eastern project boundary. The combination of existing trees and new
tree plantings along the eastern project boundary will create a natural vegetative screen
between the project site and the residential properties to the east. With regard to walls,
the proposed project includes construction of a decorative 8-foot-tall masonry wall along
the entire eastern project boundary which will reduce the visual impact of the three-story
apartment building, while also providing for additional privacy for residents of the adjacent
single-family residences to the east. Lastly, the proposed apartment building has been
designed with two wings oriented at an approximately 4S-degree angle, further breaking
up the length and massing of the building and minimizing potential visual impacts to
adjacent sing le-fam ily residences.

As mentioned previously, the proposed prolect is also located in relatively close proximity
to a series of multi-family residences situated along the north side of Montrose Drive
creating potentialvisual impacts. The proposed three-story apartment building, which is
separated from the multi-family residences by a 19O-foot-wide overhead transmission line
corridor, is located approximately 317 feetfrom the nearest multi-family residence along
Montrose Drive resulting a substantial physical buffer between the properties. ln addition,
there is a significant grade differential between the proposed apartment building (346 feet
msl) and the multi-family residences (approximately 360 feet msl) to the south, further
reducing potentialvisual impacts associated with the proposed apartment building.

Based on the aforementioned analysis, staff has determined that the proposed project
represents a high-quality design that is consistent with the design recommendations of
the Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development. ln addition, staff has determined
that the project design is complimentary to the design of existing residential buildings in

the immediate project area. As a result, staff recommends approval of the applicant's
design with the following conditions:

City of Folsom Page 19

Page 366

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

1 . This approval is for a three-story apartment building totaling 111,755 square feet
associated with the Vintage Apartments project. The applicant shall submit
building plans that comply with this approval and the attached building elevations
and color renderings dated June 3, 2022.

2. The design, materials, and colors of the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments
building shall be consistent with the submitted building elevations, color
renderings, materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction of the
Comm un ity Development Department.

3. Brick pavers or another type of colored masonry material (ADA compliant) shall
be used to designate pedestrian crosswalks on the project site, in addition to
where pedestrian paths cross drive aisles, and shall be incorporated as a design
feature at the driveway entrances at East Natoma Street to the satisfaction of the
Community Development Department.

4. Roof-mounted mechanical equipment, including satellite dish antennas, shall not
extend above the height of the parapet walls. Ground-mounted mechanical
equipment shall be shielded by landscaping or trellis type features.

5. Utility equipment such as transformers, electric and gas meters, electrical panels,
and junction boxes shall be screened by walls and or landscaping.

These recommendations are included in the conditions of approval (Condition No. 60)
presented for consideration by the Planning Commission.

D. Density Bonus

As mentioned in the Project Description section of this staff report, the applicant is
requesting approval of a Density Bonus to allow development of the senior affordable
apartment project at a residential density of 28 units per acre. ln addition, the applicant
is seeking to be granted three incentives/concessions including establishing a parking
ratio of one parking space per apartment unit, increasing the maximum building height
from 35 feet to 42-feet 6-inches, and increasing the maximum number of building stories
from 2 stories to 3 stories.

The State Density Bonus Law (Government Code section 65915) requires the City to
grant one density bonus and, if requested by the applicant and consistent with applicable
requirements, specified numbers of incentives or concessions, waivers or reductions of
development standards, and reduced parking ratios, all based on the percentage of
affordable units in the housing development.

Similarly, the Density Bonus chapter of the Folsom Municipal Code (FMC. Chapter 1 7.102
Densitv Bonus and Other Developer lncentives) is intended to provide incentives for the
production of affordable housing opportunities within the City for very low-income, low-

City of Folsom Page 20

Page 367

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

income, and moderate-income households and seniors. Section 7 102030
(lmplementation) of the Folsom Municipal Code states that the City shall grant a density
bonus to an applicant of a housing development consisting of five or more units who
agrees to provide the following:

a) At least ten percent of the total units of a housing development for low-income
households; or

b) At least five percent of the total units of a housing development for very low-
income households; or

c) A senior citizen housing development

The proposed prolect includes development a 136-unit senior affordable apartment
community which includes 122 units (90%) being made available to Low lncome
individuals (incomes at or below 60% of the Sacramento area median income (AMl)) and
14 units (1oo/o) made available to Very Low lncome individuals (income at or below 50%
of AMI). Based on this information, staff has determined that the proposed project meets
all three of the criteria listed above and qualifies for granting of a Density Bonus by the
City. The State Density Bonus Law also requires that the rental units must remain
affordable for 55 years or longer. Condition No. 4 is included to reflect this requirement.

State law defines "density bonus" as "a density increase over the otherwise maximum
allowable gross residential density as of the date of application by the applicant to the
city." (Government Code S 65915(0.) However, a housing development project can
qualify for a density bonus, and all associated incentives, concessions, etc. even if it
includes "no increase in density"." ((Government Code S 65915(f).) The amount of
density increase to which an applicant is entitled varies depending on the percentage of
affordable housing units in the development.

ln this case, the subject property does not have an assigned density, per se, because it
is zoned BP. The maximum allowable density underthe General Plan is 30 dwelling units
per acre, and this project is below that, at 28 dwelling units per acre. Accordingly, no

density increase is requested as a part of this project. As mentioned above, however, the
applicant is still eligible for incentives/concessions under the density bonus law.
(Government Code S 65915(0.)

ln addition to the available density increase, State Density Bonus Law (Government Code
section 65915) and the Density Bonus chapter of the Folsom Munic Code (FMC

Section 17.102.030) provide an applicant with incentives/concessions, waivers or
reductions of development standards, and reduced parking ratios in return for the
development of senior or affordable housing units. The State Density Bonus Law states
that an applicant shall receive four incentives/concessions tf 10Oo/o of all units in the
development, including total units and density bonus units, but excluding a manager's
unit, are for lower income households. (Government Code S 65919(dX2XD),

City of Folsom Page21

Page 368

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

6591s(bx1(G).) In this particular case, all of the 136 apartments units are considered
affordable with 90% of the units being restricted to Low-lncome households and 10o/o of
the units being restricted to Very Low-lncome households. As a result, staff has
determined that the applicant is eligible for four incentives/concessions, but the applicant
has only requested three.

The first incentive/concession that the applicant is requesting is the establishment of a
parking ratio of one parking space per each apartment unit for the Vintage Senior
Apartment Community. As discussed later within the Parking section of this staff report,
there is no established parking standard in the Folsom Municipal Code for senior
affordable apartment community projects. As a result, the parking standard for senior
affordable apartment projects is established through the Planning Development Permit
process. The applicant has provided documentation (Parking Study-Attachment 23 and
Parking Memorandum-Attachment 24) that makes a justiflcation for the requested 1:1

parking ratio for the proposed project. Staff has evaluated the aforementioned
supplemental parking information and conducted its own parking analysis (Parking
section of staff report) and determined that a 1:1 parking ratio is adequate to serve the
proposed project. The requested 1:1 parking ratio also complies with the limits placed on

the City's ability to require specific parking ratios for affordable housing projects by the
State Density Bonus Law. (Government Code S 65915(p) ) As a result, staff is supportive
of the proposed incentive/concession to establish a parking ratio of one parking space
per each apartment unit for the Vintage Senior Apartments project.

The second incentive/concession being requested is to allow for an increase in the
maximum building height of the apartment building from 35 feet to 42-leet 6-inches. As
discussed previously within the Planned Development Permit section of this staff report,
the proposed three-story apartment building is 34 feet in height (primary roof height) with
architectural features that extend up to 42-feet 6-inches in height. The proposed building
height is consistent with the maximum building height standard of 35 feet established for
the BP zoning district in which the subject property is located. ln addition, the proposed
project is consistent with the building height exception established by the Folsom
Municipal Code (FMC, Section 17.58.080 Heiqht Exceptions) for architectural features
extending above the primary roofline with certain project-related architectural features
extending up to 7-feet 6-inches above primary roof line (42-teet 6-inches above grade),

whereas architectural features are permitted to extend up to 25 feet above the height
limited established for particular zoning district. The applicant may not need an
incentive/concession under the Density Bonus Law to obtain approval of the requested
building height, given the requirements in the Folsom Municipal Code described above.
However, the applicant has requested the incentive/concession and staff has determined
that the project is eligible for it under the Density Bonus Law. Based on the fact that the
proposed project is consist with the established standard for maximum building height for
the BP zoning district, staff is supportive of the requested incentive/concession for the
primary building height to be 34 feet, with architectural features extending up to 42-feet
6-inches.

City of Folsom Page22

Page 369

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

The third and last incentive/concession requested includes a request to increase the
maximum number of building stories from 2 stories to 3 stories. According to the
applicant, the increase of the apartment building lrom 2 to 3-stories is necessitated by the
desire to avoid key open space areas on the project site, preserve protected oak trees,
and work within the unique topographical and physical features (elevation changes,
drainage channel, etc.) present on the project site. As mentioned previously within the
Planned Development Permit section of this staff report, the apartment building has a
primary roof height of 34 feet which is consist with the maximum height standard
established for the BP zoning district (adjacent Cimarron Hills Subdivision has same
maximum height requirement of 35 feet). ln addition, the project site is at a substantially
lower elevation that the adjacent residential properties, further minimizing the potential
visual impacts associated with the proposed three-story apartment. Based on this
information, staff is supportive of the third incentive/concession to increase the building
height from 2-stories to 3-stories for the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project.

ln summary, staff has determined that the applicant's Density Bonus request to create a
residential density on the subject property of 28-units per acre is consistent with the
requirements of the State Density Bonus Law and the Folsom Municipal Code. ln
addition, staff has determined that the applicant is eligible for four incentives/concessions
based on the affordable composition (100% affordable to Low and Very Low-lncome
Households) of proposed apartment project. Staff is also supportive of the three
proposed incentives/concessions relative to parking ratios, building height, and building
stories. Lastly, it is important to acknowledge the each of the incentives/concessions
requested by the applicant are somewhat redundant in that City staff is supportive of the
proposed parking.ratio, building height, and number of building stories as discussed in

the Conditional Use Permit and Planned Development Permit sections of this staff report.
However, the applicant felt strongly that the Density Bonus request was integral to their
moving forward with the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project, especially given
the challenges facing development of affordable housing in the region and the State.

Under Government Code section 65915(dX1) of the State Density Bonus Law, the City
must grant the requested incentives, concessions, waivers or reductions of development
standards, and reduced parking ratio unless, one or more of the following findings are
made, based upon substantial evidence:

The concession or incentive does not result in identifiable and actual cost
reductions... to provide for affordable housing costs.

The concession or incentive would have a specific, adverse impact [defined
as a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on
objective, identified written public health or safety standards, policies, or
conditions as they existed on the date the application was deemed
complete. The following shall not constitute a specific, adverse impact upon
the public health or safety: (A) inconsistency with the zoning ordinance or
general plan land use designation; (B) the eligibility to claim a welfare

o

a

City of Folsom Page 23

Page 370

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

a

exemption under subdivision (g) of Section 214 of the Revenue and
Taxation Code (Gov. Code S 65589.5(dX2)1 upon public health and safety
or on any real property that is listed in the California Register or Historical
Resources and for which there is no feasible method to satisfactorily
mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact without rendering the
development unaffordable to low-income and moderate-income
households.

The concession or incentive would be contrary to state or federal law

The project applicant may initiate judicial proceedings if the City refuses to grant a
requested density bonus, incentive, or concession. (Government Code S 65915(dX3).)
In such a proceeding, the City bears the burden of proof for the denial of a requested
concession or incentive. (Government Code S 65915(dX4).)

Staff is not aware of information supporting any of the above-referenced findings in this
case.

Staff has determined that the requested density bonus and the requested
incentives/concessions should be granted.

E. Traffic/Access/G i rcu lation

Existino Network
The project site is located on the south side of East Natoma Street at the intersection of
East Natoma Street and Prison Road. Significant roadways in the project vicinity include
Natoma StreeUEast Natoma Street and Prison Road. Natoma StreeUEast Natoma Street
provides connectivity between Folsom Boulevard to the west and Empire Ranch Road to
the east. ln the vicinity of the project, Natoma StreeUEast Natoma Street is minor two-
lane arterial roadway with a posted speed limit of 35-mph. Prison Road is a two-lane
north-south roadway that provides access between East Natoma Street and Folsom State
Prison.

The traffic, access, and circulation analysis associated with the proposed prgect is based
on the results of a Transportation lmpact Study (Attachment22) that was prepared in July
2022 by T. Kear Transportation Planning and Management, lnc. The Transportation
Study analyzed traffic operations at the following two study intersections in the vicinity of
the project site:

o East Natoma Street/Prison Road
. East Natoma StreeUEastern Project Driveway

Two different scenarios were evaluated in reviewing traffic operations at the two study
intersections including Existing 2O22 wrlhout Project Condition and Existing 2022 with
Project Condition.

City of Folsom Page24

Page 371

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

The proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project is expected to generate a total of 39
vehicle trips during the weekday AM peak hour (17 inbound and 22 outbound) and 41

vehicle trips during the weekday PM peak hour (22 inbound and 19 outbound). Overall,
the proposed project is projected to generate a total of 441daily vehicle trips. Based on
the relatively low volume of project-related vehicle trips, the Transportation Study
concluded that the proposed project would not have a significant impact on vehicle level
of service (LOS) at either of the two study intersections. ln addition, the Transportation
Study determined that the proposed project would not have a significant impact relative
to Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) as the project is projected to be at least 15% less than
the regional per capita VMT. lt is interesting to note that the proposed project is expected
to generate less AM peak hour and PM peak hour vehicle trips that the previously
approved office project (Montara Grove Office Park) on the subject site.

Proiect Access and On-Site Circulation
As shown on the submitted site plan (Attachment 6), primary vehicle access to the project
site is provided by a new full-access driveway located on the south side of East Natoma
Street at the signalized intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road. lnstallation
of the primary driveway will require modification of the existing three-way signalized
intersection at East Natoma Street and Prison Road to convert it into a four-way signalized
intersection. Secondary access to the project site is provided by a new driveway on the
south side of East Natoma Street, approximately 250 feet to the east of the proposed
primary driveway. The secondary driveway, which willfeature Stop-sign controlforexiting
vehicles, will be limited to right-turns in and right-turn out only.

Proposed internal vehicle circulation consists of a single 27-foot-wide drive aisle that
loops around the project site and connects the two project driveways. Pedestrian and
bicycle access and circulation is provided by realignment of an existing Class I bicycle
trail, existing Class lll bicycle lanes on East Natoma Street, construction of a new sidewalk
along the south side of East Natoma Street, installation of new internal sidewalks and
walkways throughout the project site, and construction of a pedestrian/bicycle connection
from the project site to an existing Class I bicycle trial located south of the project site.
The preliminary access and circulation plan is shown in Figure 9 on the following page.

City of Folsom Page 25

Page 372

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

PREUMINANY ACCESS AND CIRCUTATION FIAN

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTMENTS

clTYoFror.soM,cA

G--,--

FIGURE 9: PRELIMINARY ACCESS AND CIRCULATION PLAN

The Transportation Study prepared for the proposed project also evaluated the operation
and configuration of the project access system in terms of driveway geometry, driveway
access, driveway throat depth, vehicle queuing, vehicle accident history ,and bicycle and
pedestrian safety. Shown in the figures on the following pages are the proposed access
driveways and their configuration.

City of Folsom Page 26

Page 373

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 10: PRIMARY PROJECT ACCESS DRIVEWAY

.f-t,lt-i
. . :"".,,i /

"', /

City of Folsom Page27

Page 374

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 11: SECONDARY PROJECT ACCESS DRIVEWAY

b*

il_'

*

t
nQl

,/

.d BEG|N (P)
IE rNTo (t

(E) r.

(i.

,!).

ln relation to driveway geometry, City standards require that a 60-foot right-turn taper be
provided when there are 10 or more vehicles making a right-turn movements into a
driveway during the AM (7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.) or PM (4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.) peak
hours, with a 1SO-foot right-turn pocket plus 60-foot taper being required when there are
50 or more right-turn movements into a driveway. The Transportation Study determined
that neither of the prolect driveways will have more than 10 right{urn vehicle movements,
thus neither of the turn-pocket improvements reference above are required. With that
said, the proposed prolect does include construction of a 1SO-foot right-turn pocket with
60-foot taper on the eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The
proposed project also includes construction of a 10O-foot left-turn pocket with 60-foot
taper on the westbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The
secondary project driveway, which is located approximately 250 feet east of the primary

City of Folsom Page 28

Page 375

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

project driveway, is proposed to be limited to right-turn in and right-turn out movements
only. To ensure that vehicle movements at the secondary project driveway are limited to
right-turn in and right-turn out movements, the Transportation Study recommends that a
raised median be constructed within Natoma Street and a right-turn channelization taper
be constructed at the secondary project driveway to prevent left-turns into the project site
from westbound East Natoma Street and left-turns out of the project site onto westbound
East Natoma Street. Otherwise, the Transportation Study determined that the proposed
geometry and access for the two project driveways was adequate.

The Folsom Design and Procedures Manual indicates that the required minimum
driveway throat depth for an 81-161-unit multi-family residential apartment development
is 50 feet for a single project driveway or the sum of 50 feet when there are multiple project
driveways. As shown on the submitted site plan (Attachment 6), the primary project
driveway has a throat depth of 50 feet, while the secondary project driveway has a throat
depth of 25 feet (sum of 75 feet). Based on this information, the Transportation Study
concluded that the driveway throat depth for the two project driveways was adequate to
serve the apartment project. The Transportation Study also determined that there was
sufficient vehicle storage available in the proposed leftturn pocket into the project site
from westbound East Natoma Street and out of the project site from the primary project
driveway onto westbound East Natoma Street.

The Transportation Study evaluated potential geometric constraints and safety issues
associated with development of the proposed apartment project including driveway
spacing, sight vision triangles, and Statewide lntegrated Traffic Records System
(SWITRS) collision data. The Study determined that the project-related driveway
spacing, throat depth, and corner sight-distance are all adequate. ln terms of reported
vehicle accidents in close proximity to the project site, the Study found that there have
been three vehicle accidents within the past five years including a rear-end collision on
eastbound East Natoma Street at Prison Road and two driving under the influence (DUl)
incidents (vehicle sideswiped/vehicle overturned). Based on this data, the Study
concluded that these types of vehicle accident varieties would not be exacerbated with
development of the proposed prolect and that no traffic safety treatments are warranted.

The Transportation Study evaluated bicycle and pedestrian safety relative to existing and
proposed improvements to bicycle and pedestrian circulation associated with the
proposed project. Pedestrian and bicycle access and circulation improvements tied to
the proposed project include realignment of an existing Class I bicycle trail located in the
northwest portion of the project site, restriping of existing Class lll bicycle lanes on East
Natoma Street, construction of a new sidewalk along the south side of East Natoma
Street, installation of new internal sidewalks and walkways throughout the project site,
and construction of a pedestrian/bicycle connection from the project site to an existing
Class I bicycle trial (Oak Avenue Parkway Trail) located south of the project site. The
Study determined that the proposed project would not result in any bicycle or pedestrian
safe$-related impacts.

City of Folsom Page 29

Page 376

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

To ensure implementation of the traffic control measures identified on the submitted site
plan and recommended by the Transportation lmpact Study, staff recommends the
following recommendations be included as conditions of approval for the project
(Condition No. 53)

East Natoma Street (Eastbound)
o The owner/applicant shall construct a 1SO-foot right-turn pocket with 60-foot taper

on the eastbound appr:oach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The existing
bike trailshall be relocated to accommodate the right-turn lane. The relocated bike
trail shall be placed in a dedicated pedestrian access and trail easement which
shall be recorded prior to plan approval. With this proposed modification, the
eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street shall include one
left-turn lane, one thru lane, and one right-turn lane.

East Natoma Street (Westbound)
o The owner/applicant shall construct a 100-foot left-turn pocket with a raised

median with a 60-foot taper on the westbound approach to Prison Road from East
Natoma Street. The median shall allow emergency vehicle access/egress and the
modiflcations required for emergency vehicle access/egress shall be approved by
the City of Folsom Fire Department. With these proposed modifications, the
westbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street shall include one
shared thru/right-turn lane and one left-turn lane.

Prison Road (Southbound)
o Prior to entering State property, the contractor shall execute a right-of-entry

agreement with the State of California, Department of Corrections.
o The owner/applicant shall restripe the existing right-turn lane at the southbound

approach to East Natoma Street from Prison Road to indicate that this lane is a
shared thru and right-turn lane. The existing dedicated left-turn lane shall remain
as currently striped.

Primarv Proiect D (East Natoma Street)
o The owner/applicant shall construct a shared thru/right-turn lane and a dedicated

left-turn lane at the northbound approach to East Natoma Street at the primary
project driveway. The shared thru/right-turn lane and dedicated left-turn lane shall
include a 70-foot turn pocket and a 60-foot taper.

Secondarv Proiect Drivewav (East Natoma Street)
o The owner/applicant shall construct a raised median within Natoma Street and a

right-turn channelization taper at the secondary project driveway to prevent left-
turns into the project site from westbound East Natoma Street and leftturns out of
the project site onto westbound East Natoma Street to the satisfaction of the
Community Development Department.

City of Folsom Page 30

Page 377

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

o The owner/applicant shall install "Stop" signs, appropriate pavement markings,
and signage at the secondary project exit at East Natoma Street.

East Natoma StreeUPrison Road Traffic Siqnal and Siqnal Timino
o The owner/applicant shall construct a traffic signal at the fourth leg of the

intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road and modify all existing traffic
signal improvements to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

o The owner/applicant shall coordinate retiming the traffic signal at the intersection
of East Natoma Street and Prison Road as follows:

Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and
southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 second northbound
southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and westbound protected
phases, and 62 second eastbound and westbound through phases.
Crosswalks shall be set to 22 seconds to accommodate a 3 feet per seconding
walking speed.

a

East Natoma Street Frontaoe lmprovements
o The owner/applicant shall install curbs, gutter, a bicycle lane, and sidewalks along

the project's frontage with East Natoma Street as shown on the submitted site plan.
ln addition, the owner/applicant shall construct curbs, gutters, a bicycle lane, and
sidewalks from the project's eastern boundary approximately 120-feet to the east
to connect to the existing off-site sidewalk and associated improvements. The
owner/applicant shall enter into a credit reimbursement agreement with the City to
cover the costs of these off-site frontage improvements.

The previous City of Folsom General Plan (1988) contemplated the extension of Oak
Avenue Parkway from Willow Creek Drive to Natoma Street, with a further extension of
Oak Avenue Parkway from East Natoma Street across the American River via bridge to
Grant Lane. To facilitate the potential extension of Oak Avenue Parkway, the City
obtained access easements from a number of properties located along the Oak Avenue
Parkway Trail between Willow Creek Drive and East Natoma Street. The current City of
Folsom General Plan (2035) did not envision the extension of Oak Avenue Parkway from
Willow Creek Drive to East Natoma Street as evidenced by the General Plan Circulation
Exhibit. ln addition, the Circulation Exhibit does not include a new bridge crossing in the
vicinity of East Natoma Street and Prison Road. With the fairly recent construction of the
Folsom Lake Crossing Bridge over the American River just below Folsom Dam, it is also
highly unlikely that the City would entertain the idea of constructing another bridge
crossing in this area. As a result, the City is not requiring the Vintage Senior Apartments
project to provide a lntend of Dedication (lOD) along the southern portion of their property
to accommodate future extension of Oak Avenue Parkway,

City of Folsom Page 31

Page 378

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

F. Parking

As noted earlier within this report, the Vintage Senior Apartments project includes
development of a three-story apartment building that feature 98 one-bedroom units and
38 two-bedroom units. Parking will be provided for 136 cars in off-street parking spaces
located adjacent to the apartment building. The parking supply, which consists of 99
uncovered parking spaces and 37 covered carport parking spaces, features 20 accessible
parking spaces and 14 electric vehicle capable parking spaces.

The Folsom Municipal Code (FMC. Chapter 17.58) does not include specific parking
standards for senior (60+1 residential apartment uses. Standard apartment parking
requirements are not appropriate because a variety of factors cause age-restricted
affordable senior complexes to vary in demand and to require less parking than standard
apartment complexes, including: smaller household size, fewer residents own vehicles,
and average age of residents. ln addition, vehicle use is also expected to be reduced
based on the close proximity of the prolect site to restaurants, retail shops, and public
transportation.

To assist staff with the analysis of the project's parking needs, the applicant was required
to provide a parking analysis/justification. A Parking Memorandum (Attachment 23) and
Parking Case Study (Attachmenl24) for the Vintage Senior Apartments project were
prepared by the Transpogroup and FPI Management respectively on October 17, 2022
and January 3,2023. The purpose of the Parking Memorandum was to determine an
appropriate parking supply for the proposed project based on data from previously
approved senior apartment projects in the City, data from similar senior apartment
projects in the Sacramento region, and data from parking demand rates established by
the ITE Parking Generation Manual.

The Parking Memorandum compared the parking proposed for the Vintage Senior
Apartments with the parking ratios approved for other previously approved senior
apartment projects within the City including the Scholar Way Senior Apartments, Avenida
Senior Apartments, and Revel Senior Apartments. The approved parking ratios for the
three aforementioned projects ranged from 0.81 to 1.09 parking spaces per apartment
unit, with the proposed project falling within that range at 1.00 parking space per unit. lt
is important to acknowledge that the Scholar Way and Avenida senior projects are
currently under construction so no real time parking data is available. The Revel Senior
Apartments project, which is currently constructed and approximalely 25o/o occupied, is
currently parking at a ratio of approximately 0.60 parking spaces per unit based on recent
information provided by the property manager.

The Parking Memorandum also evaluated parking data from six other similar senior
apartment prolects in the Sacramento region. The approved parking ratios for the six
aforementioned apartment projects ranged from 0.50 to 0.92 parking spaces per
apartment unit. An observed parked car to apartment unit ratio was also conducted for
these apartment projects, which entailed counting and actual number of cars parked

City of Folsom Page 32

Page 379

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

within an apartment project as compared to the total number of available parking spaces.
The observed parked car to apartment unit ratio ranged from 0.32 to 0.55.

The Parking Memorandum considered recommended parking ratios provided by the ITE

Parking Generation Rate Manual (Sth edition, 2019), which provides the average and the
85th percentile weekday parking generation rates for "Senior Adult Attached Housing."
Specifically, the ITE Parking Generation publication documents an average peak parking
demand ratio of 0.61 parking spaces per unit and an 8Sth-percentile value of 0.68 parking
spaces per unit. Using these parking generation rates with the 136 proposed apartment
units, the total parking stalls required for the project would range between 83 and 92
spaces, with a peak parking demand of 83 parking spaces.

ln addition, in the Parking Memorandum, the applicant provided a Parking Case Study
which provided a real-time evaluation at seven existing Vintage Housing senior apartment
communities located in suburban locations in California and Nevada. Listed in the table
on the following page are the four apartment communities and their parking
characteristics.

TABLE 2: VINTAGE HOUSING PARKING STANDARDS TABLE

Parking Standards Table
Approved Vi ntaqe Senior Apartment Gomm unities

Project Name Apartment Units Parking Provided Parking Ratio

Proposed Project 136 Units 1 36 Spaces 1.00 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Bouquet Canyon (GA) 264 Units 181 Spaces 0.69 Spaces Per Unit

Vlntage at the Grosslngs (NV) 230 Units 175 Spaces 0.76 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Sanctuary (NV) 208 Units 100 Spaces 0.48 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Seven Hills (NV) 244 Units 244 Spaces 1.00 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Bennett Valley (CA) 189 Units 210 Spaces 1.11 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Napa (GA) 1 15 Units 62 Spaces 0.54 Spaces Per Unit

Season at Laguna (CA) 222 Unils 158 Spaces 0.71 Spaces Per Unit

As shown in the table above, the proposed project is parked at the high end of the parking
ratio established for other senior apartments communities owned by Vintage Housing.
That being said, the Parking Case Study also included a discussion regarding parking
supply adequacy at each of these apartment communities. The Case Study notes that
the apartment communities (Vintage at Bouquet Canyon and Vintage at Sanctuary)with
the lowest parking ratios are experiencing some challenges with available parking supply.
However, the apartments communities with the higher parking ratios (Vintage at the
Crossings and Vintage Hills) are not experiencing any issues with parking supply.

City of Folsom Page 33

Page 380

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

ln addition to the Parking Analysis provided by the project applicant, City staff considered
parking information provided by the National Parking Association (NPA) Shared Parking
Model (2019) to calculate the recommended number of parking spaces for the proposed
project. The NPA model projects parking between approximately the 85th and 95th
percentile and parses out the recommended number of parking spaces for a project. The
NPA model determined that the appropriate parking ratio for the proposed project is 0.85
parking spaces per unit during the weekday and O.72 parking spaces per unit on
weekends. Applying these parking ratios, the proposed project would be required to
provide between 97 and 1 16 on-site parking spaces.

ln reviewing the parking provided for the proposed project, City staff also took into
consideration the availability of public transportation for use by residents of the Vintage
Senior Apartments project. Sacramento Regional Transit (SACRT) provides bus service
within the City of Folsom, including service to the immediate project area. Specifically,
SACRT Bus Route 30, which has a bus stop located approximately 0.25 miles to the west
of the project site on the north side of East Natoma Street (in front of Senior Center),
features bus service that operates 10 times per day Monday through Friday. ln addition
to traditional bus service, SACRT offers SmaRT Ride on-demand microtransit service and
GO Paratransit Service to residents of the City for local and regional trips.

Based on the above-referenced information and analyses, staff has determined that the
136 parking spaces (1.00 parking spaces per unit) proposed for the project will be
sufficient to serve the needs of residents, employees, and visitors of the Vintage Senior
Apartments project. lt is important to note that there will an on-site property manager
residing in one of the apartment units.

The Folsom General Plan (2035) encourages the installation of electric vehicle charging
stations in parking spaces throughout the City, prioritizing installations at multi-family
residential developments. ln addition, the City's Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy
associated with the General Plan states that multi-family residential projects with 17 or
more units are required to providing electric vehicle charging stations in at least 5%
percent of the total number of parking spaces. As noted in the project description, the
applicant is proposing to provide 14 electric vehicle capable parking spaces within the
development, but no electric vehicle charging stations initially. To ensure consistency
with the General Plan, staff recommends that a minimum of 7 (5o/o of 136 total parking
spaces = 7 electric vehicle charging stations) of the 14 proposed electric vehicle charging
spaces be equipped with electric vehicle charging stations with initial development of the
proposed project. Condition No. 50 is included to reflect this requirement.

As shown on the submitted site plan (Attachment 6), the applicant is proposing to provide
28 bicycle parking spaces evenly distributed among bicycle racks located near the
building's primary entrances on the north, south, and east elevations. Staff has
determined that the proposed project meets the bicycle parking requirements established
by the Folsom Municipal Code (FMC. Section 17.57.090) by providing 28 bicycle parking
spaces whereas 27 bicycle parking spaces are required.

City of Folsom Page 34

Page 381

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

G. Noise/Vibration lmpacts

Based on the proximity of the project site to East Natoma Street as well as existing
commercial, residential, and state land uses within the immediate project vicinity,
acoustical measurements and modeling were prepared by Helix Environmental Planning
on March 29, 2022 to analyze potential noise impacts at the proposed Vintage Senior
Apartments project site. The purpose of the noise analysis was to quantify existing noise
levels associated with traffic on East Natoma Street, and to compare those noise levels
against the applicable City of Folsom noise standards for acceptable noise exposure at
the project site. ln addition, noise generated by the proposed project including
construction activities, on-site parking/circulation, and mechanicalequipment noise, were
also evaluated in the noise analysis.

Two aspects of noise impacts were evaluated relative to the proposed apartment project,

noise directed at the proposed project, and noise caused by the proposed project. As
noted previously, the predominant existing noise sources in the project vicinity that may
cause an impact to the project site are associated with vehicles traveling on East Natoma
Street, as well as background noises from nearby commercial, residential, and state land
uses. Potential noise impacts that might result from development of the Vintage Senior
Apartments project community are construction-related activities and operational
activities. Construction-related noise would have a short-term effect, while operational
noise would continue throughout the lifetime of the project.

The Noise Element of the City of Folsom General Plan regulates noise emissions from
public roadway traffic on new residential development or other noise sensitive land uses.
The Noise Element states that noise from traffic on public roadways shall not exceed 65
CNEL for outdoor use areas and 45 CNEL for interior use areas. To evaluate such
potential noise impacts to the proposed project, Helix Environmental conducted ambient
noise measurements to calibrate the predictive noise modeling program that estimates
noise levels based on estimated future traffic noise affecting the project site. The noise
modeling program determined that the outdoor noise levels at the outdoor use areas on
the project site would be less than 65 CNEL, thus no significant impact was identified. ln
addition, the noise modeling program determined that noise levels in the interior use
areas of the apartment building would be less than 45 CNEL with implementation of
standard building design and required construction techniques.

Construction of the Vintage Senior Apartments project would temporarily increase noise
levels in the project vicinity during the construction period, which would take
approximately 16 months. Construction activities, including site clearing, excavation,
grading, building construction, and paving, would be considered an intermittent noise
impact throughout the construction period of the project. The City's Noise Ordinance
excludes construction activities from meeting the General Plan Noise Element standards,
provided that all phases of construction are limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and
6:00 p.m. on weekdays, and between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays. To ensure
compliance with the City's Noise Control Ordinance and General Plan Noise Element,

City of Folsom Page 35

Page 382

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

staff recommends that hours of construction operation be limited from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00
p.m. on weekdays and 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays with no construction permitted
on Sundays or holidays. In addition, staff recommends that construction equipment be
muffled and shrouded to minimize noise levels. Condition No. 56 is included to reflect
these requirements.

Operational noises generated by the proposed project include sounds associated with
new vehicle trips, vehicle parking, and mechanical equipment associated with the senior
apartment community. Persons and activities potentially sensitive to noise in the project
vicinity include residents within the Cimarron Hills Subdivision to the east and residents
off of Montrose Drive to the south. Due to the limited volume of project-generated vehicle
trips (441 daily vehicle trips), vehicle noise exposure would increase only slightly as
compared to existing conditions in the project vicinity. Based on the residential nature of
the proposed project and the limited number of project vehicle trips, staff has determined
that potential noise impacts relative to these operational noise sources will not be
significant.

A possible on-site source of vibration during project construction activities is a vibratory
roller. A vibratory roller would primarily be used to achieve soil compaction as part of the
foundation and paving construction, and for aggregate and asphalt compaction as part of
project driveway and parking lot construction. To minimize potential impacts associated
with ground vibrations caused by a vibratory roller, staff recommends, that the
owner/applicant provide evidence to the City (via testing data or calculations from a
qualified expert), demonstrating that vibratory rollers used on the project site will produce
less than 80 VdB at nearby residences, or that all vibratory rollers shall be used in static
mode only (no vibrations) when operating within 120 feet of a residence. Condition No.

57 is included to reflect this requirement.

H. Walls/Fencing

As shown on the preliminary site plan (Attachment 6), preliminary grading and drainage
plan (Attachment 8), and preliminary grading sections (Attachment 9), the proposed
project includes construction of retaining walls, tubular metal fencing, and masonry
screen walls on the project site. Retaining walls, which will feature decorative masonry
construction and rangefrom 1 to14 feet in height, are proposed along portions of East
Natoma Street, portions of the southern property boundary, and interior sections of the
project site. Decorate metal guardrails (42-inch-tall) are proposed on top of the retaining
walls for safety and aesthetic purposes. Lastly, an eight-foot-tall decorative masonry
screen wall is proposed along the eastern project boundary to provide a buffer between
the proposed project and the single-family residences directly to the east. Staff
recommends that decorative stone pilasters be integrated into the screen wall design at
strategically placed locations to break up the long expanse of the wall and that a
decorative trim cap be placed on top of the screen wall for its entire length. ln addition,
staff recommends that final location, design, height, materials, and colors of the retaining
walls, metal fencing, and masonry screen walls be subject to review and approval by the

City of Folsom Page 36

Page 383

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Community Development Department. Condition No. 59 is included to reflect these
requirements.

l. Site Lighting

As shown on the Preliminary Lighting Plan (Attachment 15), the applicant is proposing to
use a combination of pole-mounted parking lot lighting, carport lighting, building-attached
lighting, and bollard lights along the walkways on the project site. All lighting would be
designed to minimize lighUglare impacts to the adjacent properties by ensuring that all
exterior lighting is shielded and directed downward. Staff recommends that the final
exterior building and site lighting plans be submitted for review and approval by
Community Development Department for location, height, aesthetics, level of illumination,
glare and trespass prior to the issuance of any building permits. ln addition, staff
recommends all lighting is designed to be shielded and directed downward onto the
project site and away from adjacent properties and public rights-of-way. Lastly, staff
recommends that all poll-mounted parking lot lights be limited to a maximum of 12 feet in
height. Condition No. 27 is included to reflect these requirements.

J. Signage

The proposed project includes a six-foot-tall, 32-square-foot monument sign (double-
sided) that will be located in a landscaped area at the southeast corner of East Natoma
Street and the primary project driveway. The design of the monument sign includes
individual black and green letters inset into a beige-colored aluminum panel with steel
support posts. Staff has determined that the proposed monument sign is consistent with
the requirements of the Folsom Municipal Code (FMC, Section 17.59.040 D) with respect
to maximum sign height (6 feet) and maximum sign area (32 square feet). Staff has also
determined that the design and colors of the monument sign are complementary to the
design of the proposed senior apartment building. However, staff has concluded that the
proposed sign materials (aluminum cabinet with steel support posts) are not consistent
with the proposed apartment design/building materials. Staff recommends that the
proposed monument sign be constructed of masonry, stone, orwood materials to be more
consistent with the deSign/materials of the apartment building. ln addition, staff
recommends that the final location, design, materials, and color of the monument sign be
subject to review and approval by the Community Development Department. Lastly, staff
recommends that the owner/applicant obtain a sign permit prior to installation of the
monument sign. Condition No. 62 is included to reflect these requirements.

K. Trash/Recycling

The proposed project includes construction of a single trash, recycling, and organic waste

enclosure in the southeastcorner of the project site. The proposed trash enclosure, which

is 6 feet tall and measures 30 feet in width by 10 feet in depth, is designed with stucco
walls, a decorative trim cap, and steel doors. The City's Solid Waste Division has

City of Folsom Page 37

Page 384

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

reviewed the proposed trash enclosure and determined that it meets the City standard
(Design and Procedures Manual)with respect to location and design. Staff recommends
that the final location, design, color, and materials of the trash/recycling/organic-waste be
subject to review and approval by the Communi$ Development Department. Condition
No. 58 is included to reflect this requirement.

L. Existing and Proposed Landscaping

The triangular-shaped 4.86-acre project site, which slopes moderately from east to west
with an approximate 20-foot grade change, features a vegetative community that includes
blue oak woodland, non-native grasses, and ephemeral and intermittent drainage
features. Vegetation in the blue oak woodland habitat consists primarily of blue oak and
interior live oak trees, with some non-native species including mulberry, Chinese tallow,
Chinese hackberry, and ornamental cherry. The understory of the blue oak woodland is
dominated by non-native grasses and forbs, including cultivated oats, ltalian rye grass,

and yellow starthistle. Disturbed areas, such as bike trails and jumps occur beneath the
canopy of the oak woodland, and there is a significant amount of trash and debris present
in these areas. A small segment of an existing Class I bicycle trail occurs in this habitat
close to East Natoma Street.

As shown on the Preliminary Landscape Plans (Attachment 10), the applicant is
proposing to install landscaping that features California-native and low water-use trees,
shrubs, and groundcover selections intended to comply with the requirements of the
Model Water Efficiency Landscape Ordinance (MWELO). Proposed landscape
improvements include a variety of drought-tolerant trees, shrubs, and groundcover.
Among the proposed trees are; Bay Laurel, Blue Oak, California Buckeye, Chinese
Pistache, Desert Palo Verde, Dwarf Magnolia, Ghost Pine, Elm, Western Redbud, and
Wilson Olive. Proposed shrubs and groundcover include; Breeze Mat Rush, Cleveland
Sage, California Buckthorn, Deer Grass, Dwarf Strawberry, Fortnight Lily, ltalian Cypress,
Purple Hopseed Bush, Red Yucca, Russian Sage, and San Miguel lsland Buckwheat.
The preliminary landscape plan meets the City shade requirement by providing 51

percent shade in the parking lot area within fifteen years. Staff recommends that the final
landscape plans be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department.
Condition No. 38 is included to reflect this requirement.

M. Tree Preservation

Oak Tree Preservation and Removal
Chapter 12.16 of the Folsom MunicipalCode, the Tree Preservation Ordinance, regulates
the cutting or modification of trees, including oaks and specified other trees; requires a
Tree Permit prior to cutting or modification; and establishes mitigation requirements for
cut or damaged trees. The Tree Preservation Ordinance establishes policies, regulations,

City of Folsom Page 38

Page 385

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

and standards necessary to ensure that the City will continue to preserve and maintain
its "urban forests".

An Arborist Report and Arborist lnventory prepared for the proposed project by Helix
Environmental (Attachment 25) identified a total of 111trees are on the site including 94
blue oaks, 7 Fremont's cottonwoods, 4 interior live oaks, 2 Gooding's black willow, 1

mulberry, 1 Chinese hackberry, 1 Chinese tallow, and 1 ornamental cherry. Of the 111

trees on the project site, 78 are considered protected oak trees (oak trees measuring 6-
inches diameter at standard height). Of the 78 protected Oak trees, 9 Oak trees are in
poor health (tree rating of 1) or are dead. As shown on the submitted Oak Tree Mitigation
Plan (Attachment 12), the applicant is proposing to preserve 31 of the protected oak trees,
while removing 47 of the protected oak trees for development of the proposed project.
To mitigate for the loss of lhe 47 protected oak trees, the applicant is proposing to pay an
in-lieu in the City's Tree Mitigation Bank as provided for by the Tree Preservation
Ordinance. While not considered eligible for receiving mitigation credit, the applicant is
proposing to plant 30 additional oak trees on the project site as part of their proposed
landscape plan. The preliminary oak tree preservation plan is shown in Figure 12 on the
following page.

FIGURE 12: PRELIMINARY OAK TREE PRESERVATION PLAN

*t'

l: ,- ,'i

tL-k. :1G..'r., ro.. !'.!'1.t

O:n.i'.6.r, PiFe&r.d -...1

iit r: Fr.?-,.1 :,:i:-c w..',*.clnl

A'A ar .-.. Yj 3

i--.-n.5o.i.r.'--'d

cFt.irTE TpEE! TO p:qnril

p?4po:Ec tpEE5

Eir5TrNG 1*EE5 TO 8E 9a!10VE9

Ei{r:lrNG Tq€g: 1o Q6Miitl

tfl
'a: 1

I

, j.i:,,,

a

l' .-'t

(:)

|.;

f

II

:' ':i ''b
,,)

'i '.,

ltJ-

ffi.1.Iliiili"tj

:F

fe

cti
,

L-EX

City of Folsom Page 39

Page 386

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

To mitigate the impact to the protected native Oak trees, staff recommends that the
following measures be implemented (Condition No. 40) in accordance with requirements
of the Tree Preservation Ordinance:

The owner/applicant shall provide mitigation for directly or indirectly impacted oak
trees based on having a health rating of 5,4,3, or 2. Based on the DSH equivalency
ratio, the project applicant shall mitigate for the removal of approximately 47 oak
trees (571.3 inches at DSH) that will be removed with development of the project.
Final mitigation requirements shall be determined by the City Arborist upon receipt
of final design plans prior to the issuance of a grading permit. Mitigation for trees
shall be done through planting of on-site replacement trees or payment of in-lieu
fees as determined by the City, or a combination thereof. The owner/applicant
may be eligible to receive credit for preservation of on-site Oak trees as determined
by the City Arborist.

a

a

a

a

a

A Tree Permit Application containing an Application Form, Tree Protection and
Mitigation Plan, and Arborist Report shall be submitted to the City of Folsom by the
owner/applicant for issuance of a Tree Work Permit and Tree Removal Permit prior
to commencement of any grading or site improvement activities. The tree
protection and mitigation plan shall be prepared in collaboration with a qualified
arborist and shall be subject to review and approval by the City. The tree protection
and mitigation plan shall contain the contact information of the project arborist and
shall be included in all associated plan sets for the project.

Removal of any protected tree shall be mitigated by planting replacement trees
and/or payment of "ln-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch basis in accordance with
FMC. Section 12.16.150. The proposed method of mitigation shall be subject to
review and approval by the City.

Prior to starting construction, oak trees to be preserved shall be fenced with high
visibility fencing consistent with the city-approved tree protection and mitigation
plan. Parking of vehicles, equipment, or storage of materials is prohibited within
the Tree Protection Zone of Protected Trees at alltimes. Signs shall be posted on
exclusion fencing stating that the enclosed trees are to be preserved. Signs shall
state the penalty for damage to, or removal of, the protected tree.

The owner/applicant shall retain the services of a project arborist for the duration
of the development project to monitor the health of oak trees to be preserved and
carry out the City-approved tree protection plan. All regulated activity conducted
within the Critical Root Zone of protected trees, as that term is defined in Folsom
Municioal Code c\ 12 16 020 shall be performed under the direct supervision
of the project arborist. A copy of the executed contract for these arboricultural
services shall be submitted to the City prior to the issuance of any tree or grading
permits.

City of Folsom Page 40

Page 387

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Certification letters by the project arborist attesting to compliance with the tree
protection and mitigation plan and tree permit conditions shall be submitted to the
City.

N. Conformance with Relevant General Plan Goals and Policies

The Cig of Folsom General Plan (2035) outlines a number of goals, policies, and
implementation programs designed to guide the physical, economic, and environmental
growth of the City. Staff has determined that the proposed project is consistent with the
General Plan goals and policies as outlined and discussed below:

APPLICABLE GENERAL PLAN GOALS AND POLICIES
GP GOAL LU 1.1 (LANd rowth and Ghanoe)
Retain and enhance Folsom's qualitv of life. unioue identitv. and sense of communitv

a

while continuinq to qrow and chanqe.

GP POLICY LU 1 .1 .1 1 (lnfill Develooment)
Respect the local context: New development should imorove the character and
connectivitu of the neiohborhood in which it occurs. Phvsical desion should resoond to
the scale and features of the surrounding community. while improvinq critical elements
such as transnaren and nermeahilifu

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project features significant
site improvements which will enhance the overall character of the area including
construction of the signalized fourth leg of the intersection of East Natoma Street and
Prison Road. The proposed project will also improve bicycle and pedestrian circulation
by adding sidewalks, pedestrian pathways, bicycle/pedestrian connections, and
realigning a Class 1 bicycle trail. ln addition, the proposed project is consistent with this
policy in that it will introduce new senior affordable apartment units with a residential
design intended to complement the architecture and design of existing residential
buildings in the project vicinity.

GP POLICY LU 1.1.12-2 (lnfill Development)
Work with neiohbors: lnfill development requires neiqhborhood consultation to
understand the concerns . ooals. and needs of existinq neiqh oods. Ensure the
planninq and desion process orovides proper avenues for neiqhborhood input while
fr rlfillinn fha nnrnrrrr rnihrtc larnor nnalc fn r walkabil ifrr anr{ nnmnan{ darralanrnanf

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project applicant conducted
public outreach to all property owners located within 500 feet of the subject property. The
public outreach included two information meetings (March 22,2022 and June 29,2022)
which were held at the Folsom Community Center where the project applicant and their
team provided residents with detailed information (project description, site plan,

architectural details) regarding the proposed project and responded to questions and
comments. The two informational meetings were well attended with approximately 12

City of Folsom Page 41

Page 388

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

residents attending the first event and approximately 23 residents attending the second
event.

GP POLICY LU 1.1.15 (SACOG Blueprint Principles)
Strive to adhere to the Sacramento Reqional Blueprint Growth Principles.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project has been designed
to adhere to the primary SACOG Blueprint Principles including Compact Development,
Housing Choice and Diversi$, Use of Existing Assets, and Quali$ Design. Compact
Development involves creating environments that are more compactly built and use
space in an efficient but attractive manner to encourage more walking, biking, and transit
use and shorter auto trips. Housing Choice and Diversity includes providing a variety of
places where people can live (apartments, townhomes, condominiums, and single-family
detached homes) and also creating opportunities for the variety of people who need them
such as families, singles, seniors, and people with special needs. Use of Existing Assets
entails intensification of the existing use or redevelopment in order to make better use of
existing public infrastructure, including roads. Quali$ Design focuses on the design
details of any land development (such as relationship to the street, placement of buildings,
sidewalks, street widths, landscaping, etc.), which are all factors that influence the
attractiveness of living in a compact development and facilitate the ease of walking within
and in and out of a community.

APPLICABLE GENERAL PLAN GOALS AND POLICIES
GP GOAL LU 6.1 (Residential Neiqhborhoods)
Allow for a varietv of housinq tvpes and mix of uses that provide choices for Folsom
residents, create complete and livable neiohborhoods. and encouraoe walkinq and bikinq.

GP POLICY LU 6.1.3 ncv throuoh Densitv)
Support an overall increase in averaqe residential densities in identified urban centers
and mixed-use districts. Encouraoe new housinq tvpes to shift from lower-densitv, larqe-
lot developments to hiqher-density. small-lot and multifamilv developments. as a means
to increase enerov efficiencv. conserve r- reduce waste- as well as increase access
to services and amenities (e.q.. open space) throuqh an emphasis on mixed uses in these
h iq her-densitv developments.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project includes development
of a senior affordable multi-family rental community developed at a residential density of
28 units per acre. ln addition, the proposed project design incorporates sustainable
features (mechanical, electrical, plumbing, HVAC, rooftop solar array system, and cool
paving material) that are consistent with California Green Building Standards Code
(CALGreen). ln addition, the proposed project includes 14 electric vehicle capable
parking spaces and will be required to provide 7 electric vehicle charging stations
consistent with CALGreen.

City of Folsom Page 42

Page 389

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

GP GOAL M 4.1 (Vehic le Traffic and Parkino)
Ensure a safe and efficient network of streets for cars and trucks. as well as provide an
adequate supply of vehicle parkinq.

GP POLICY M 4.1.3 (Level of Service)
Strive to achieve a least traffic Level of Service "D" (or better) for local streets and
roadwavs throuqhout the Citv. ln desioninq transportation improvements, the Citv will
orioritize use of smart technolooies and innovative solutions that maximize efficiencies
and safetv while minimizinq the phvsical footprint. Durino the course of Plan buildout. it
mav occur that temporarily hioher Levels of Service result where roadway improvements
have not been adequatelv phased as development proceeds. However, this situation will
be minimized based on annual traffic stud and monitorino oroorams. Staff will reoort
to the City Council at reqular intervals via the Capital improvement Program process for
fha llnr rnnil frr nrinrifiza nrnianfc nfan ralto anhiarrinn I orral nf Qanrina ['l ar haffar

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project will not result in a
change in the level of service (LOS) at either of the two study intersections. ln addition,
the proposed project will result in a greater than 15% reduction in Vehicle Miles Traveled
(VMT), consistent with new State Law that took effect July 1 ,2O2O (SB 743).

GP GOAL M 4.2 (Vehicle Traffic and Parkinq)
Provide and manaqe a balanced approach to parkinq that meets economic development
and sustainabilitv qoals.

GP POLICY M 4.2.4 (Electric Vehicle Charqinq Stations)
Encouraqe the installation of electric vehicle charginq stations in parkinq spaces
throuqhout the citv. prioritizinq installations at multi-familv residential units.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project includes 14 electric
vehicles capable parking spaces. ln addition, the project will be required to provide 7
electric vehicle charging stations for exclusive use by residents of the senior apartment
community. The number of proposed electric vehicle capable parking spaces and
required electric vehicle charging stations is consistent with the California Green Buildings
Standards Code's provisions for m u lti-fam ily residential deve lopment.

GP GOAL H-l (Adequate Land Supplv for Housinq)
To provide an adequate supplv of suitable sites for the development of a ranoe of housinq
tvpes to meet the housino needs of all seqments of the population.

GP POL]CY H 1.3
The Citv shall encouraoe home builders fo develoo their nroiects on multi-familv-
desiqnated land at the hiqh end of the applicable densitv ranqe.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project is providing a senior
affordable multi-family residential project developed at a residential density of 28 units

City of Folsom Page 43

Page 390

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

per acre. The proposed project would be considered a high-density multi-family
residential development given that it falls within the density range (20-30 dwelling units
per acre) established for the City's MHD (Multi-family High Density) General Plan land
use designation.

GP GOAL H-2 (Removins Barriers to the Production of Housins)
To minimize oovernm ental constraints on the develooment of housi nrI for households of
all income levels.

GP POLICY H 2.7
The Citv shall edu the communitv on the needs. the realities and the benefits of
affordable and hioh-densitv housinq.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project will result in

development of a high-density senior affordable apartment community on propefi zoned
for business and professional office uses.

GP GOAL H-3 (Facilitatinq Affordable Housinq)
To facilitate housino oooortunities to serve the needs oeonle who live and

work in the communitv.

GP POLICY H 3,1
The Cifu shall encouraqe residential affordable to a mix of household incomes
and disperse affordable housinq proiects throuqhout the Citv to achieve a balance of
housino in all neiqhborhoods and communities.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project includes development
of 136 units that will be designated as affordable for Low lncome (Ll) and Very Low
lncome (VLl) households as defined by State and City requirements, with 122 units being
made available to individuals with incomes at or below 60% (Ll) of the Sacramenfo area
median income (AMl) and 14 units made available to individuals with income at or below
50% (VLl) of AMl.

O. Native American Gonsultation (SB 18rAB52)

Assembly Bill (AB 52), which was signed into law in July 2015, requires City or County
Governments to consult with California Native American Tribes in order to identify Tribal
Cultural Resources that may be significantly impacted by development projects and to
avoid or mitigate those impacts. On November 19, 2021, the City sent project notification
letters to the three California Native American tribes named on the City's AB 52 contact
list, with the United Auburn lndian Community (UAIC) being the only tribe to respond in a
timely manner. The City subsequently initiated consultation with UAIC and provided a
copy of the cultural resources and arborist reports prepared forthe proposed project. The
City did not receive any further communication from UAIC with respect to potential tribal
cultural resources on the project site of within the project area. On June 3, 2022, the City

City of Folsom Page 44

Page 391

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

formally concluded consultation with UAIC with the acknowledgement that a standard
mitigation measure (Condition No. 43) would be included with the project to ensure
protection of any tribal cultural resources that are discovered during ground disturbing
construction activities.

PUBLIC OUTREACH AND PUBLIC NOTICING
The project applicant sponsored two public outreach events to provide residents and the
community with an opportunity to learn more about the proposed senior affordable
apartment project. The two outreach events, which were held in the Folsom Community
Center on March 22, 2022 and June 29, 2022 respectively, were well attended with
approximately 12 residents present at the first event and 23 residents present at the
second event. Residents who attended the outreach events expressed concerns and
made comments regarding a number of topics associated with development of the
proposed project including but not limited to:

Negative visual impact to nearby homes.
o Design compatibility of the three-story apartment building.
o Excessive size and scale of the three-story apartment building
o Negative impact to views and viewsheds in the project area.
o Privacy impacts to adjacent homes.

a

o

. Density of the proposed project.

. lncreased traffic and traffic-safety related impacts.

. Adequacy of parking being provided.

. Noise impacts associated with emergency service vehicles responding to calls.

. Noise concerns associated with construction of project.
o Trash/recycling collection and potential noise and odor impacts.
. Lighting and glare impacts.
. Low-income nature of project and potential impact to home values.
. Oak tree impacts.

Each of the aforementioned areas of concern referenced above are discussed within
separate sections (architecture/design, traffic, parking, noise, etc.) of this staff report.

On July 1, 2022, the project applicant posted a large prolect identification sign (4-feet by
6-feet) along the frontage of the project site facing East Natoma Street. The project
identification sign includes basic information regarding the proposed Vintage Senior
Apartments development and also includes contact information for the project applicant
and City staff.

On November 1, 2022, City staff mailed notices of a public hearing to all property owners
located within 500 feet (300 feet required) of the subject property informing them that the
Planning Commission would be reviewing the Vintage Senior Apartments project at their
December 14, 2022 meeting. The aforementioned public notice was also published in

City of Folsom Page 45

Page 392

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

the Folsom Telegraph and on the City's website on November 10, 2022. Subsequently,
it was determined that there would not be a quorum available for the December 14th

Planning Commission meeting and the meeting was cancelled accordingly. On
November 18,2022, Cig staff mailed new notice of a public hearing to all property owners
within 500 feet (300 feet required) of the subject propefi informing them that the
December 14, 2022 Planning Commission had been cancelled and that the Planning
Commission would be reviewing the Vintage Senior Apartments project at their January
18,2023 meeting instead. The aforementioned public notice was also published in the
Folsom Telegraph and on the City's website on December 1, 2022.

ln response to the public notices for the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project that
were mailed to all property owners located within 500 feet of the subject property, the Ci$
received six emails from residents expressing their concerns and opposition to the
proposed project. City staff also previously received five emails from residents
expressing their concerns regarding the proposed project following the public outreach
meetings. These emails are included with this staff report (Attachment 27) for
consideration by the Planning Commission.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Helix Environmental has prepared an lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Attachment 25) for the project in

accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and associated
regulations and determined that with the proposed mitigations, the project will not have a

significant effect on the environment.

The Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and noticed for public comment
on the project, and mitigation measures have been included as Conditions of Approval.

To date, nine written comments have been received during the Mitigated Negative
Declaration public review period (November 14,2022 to December 14,2022) including
six comments from residents (Attachment2T) and three comments from public agencies
(Attachment 26). The six comments letters received from residents express their general

opposition to the proposed project and also identify some specific areas of concern
including but not limited to, project density, increased traffic, traffic safety, road noise, lack

of sufficient parking, building design, oak tree impacts, and negative impact to property

values. City staff has addressed these comments and concerns within the various
sections of this staff report. In addition, the lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration,

and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Attachment 25) addressed the
environmental concerns raised including traffic-related impacts, noise-related impacts,
and Oak tree impacts and concluded that, with the mitigation measures the project will
not have a significant effect on the environment.

City of Folsom Page 46

Page 393

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

The City received four letters from public agencies (Attachment 26) in response to the
publication of the lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring
and Reporting Program for the proposed project. The Sacramento Metropolitan Utili$
Agency (SMUD) provided a response indicating that they had no comments regarding
the proposed project. The Central Valley RegionalWater Quality Control Board
(CVRWQCB) provided a response highlighting the regulatory setting for project-related
water impacts and also providing guidance to the project applicant with respect to the
permitting process the project will be required to go through due to its impacts to a local
drainage feature. The Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
(SMAQMD) provided a response recommending that the project applicant consider
developing the project without natural gas infrastructure due to greenhouse gas
emission impacts. SMAQMD also asked for clarification regarding the number of
electric vehicle charging spaces that will be provided by the proposed project. Lastly,
the Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) provided a response regarding specific
requirements about the types of development that is allowed to occur within the PG&E
overhead easement area. None of the aforementioned comments are relevant to the
project's compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act. A formal response
to all of these comments is included with this staff report (Attachment 28).

RECOMMENDED PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

Move to recommend that the Planning Commission

Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program prepared for the Vintage Senior Apartments project (PN 21-159) per
Attachment 25; and

Approve a Conditional Use Permit for development and operation of a senior
apartment community on the subject 4.86-acre property; and

Approve a Planned Development Permit for development of the 136-unit Vintage
Senior Apartments project on a 4.86-acre site located at 103 East Natoma Street; and

Approve a Density Bonus for development of the Vintage Senior Apartments project
at a residential density of 28 units per acre and to allow for three
incentives/concessions including establishing a parking ratio of one parking space per
unit, increasing the maximum building height from 35 feet to 42-feet 6-inches, and
increasing the maximum number of building stories from 2-stories to 3-stories.

These approvals are based on the findings below (Findings A-U) and subject to the
conditions of approval (Conditions 1-76) attached to this report.

a

a

a

a

City of Folsom Page 47

Page 394

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

A.

B.

c

D

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE
MANNER REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WTH THE GENERAL PLAN AND THE
ZONING CODE OF THE CITY.

CEQA FINDINGS

A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE
PROJECT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CEQA.

THE PLANNING COMMISSION HAS CONSIDERED THE PROPOSED
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND
REPORTING PROGRAM BEFORE MAKING A DECISION REGARDING THE
PROJECT.

ON THE BASIS OF THE WHOLE RECORD BEFORE THE PLANNING
COMMISS]ON, THERE IS NO SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE THAT THE
PROJECT, AS CONDITIONED, WILL HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE
ENVIRONMENT.

THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION REFLECTS THE INDEPENDENT
JUDGMENT AND ANALYSIS OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM.

THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION HAS DETERMINED THAT THE
PROPOSED PROJECT, AS CONDITIONED AND CONSISTENT WITH THE
REQUIRED MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM,
WOULD NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT WITH
THE REQUIRED MITIGATION MEASURES.

THE LOCATION AND CUSTODIAN OF THE DOCUMENTS WHICH
CONSTITUTE THE RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS UPON WHICH THE
DECISION IS BASED ARE. CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT, 50 NATOMA STREET, FOLSOM, CA 95630.

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FINDING

AS CONDITIONED, THE ESTABLISHMENT, MAINTENANCE OR OPERATION
OF THE USE APPLIED FOR WILL NOT, UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF
THIS PARTICULAR CASE, BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH, SAFETY,
PEACE, MORALS, COMFORT, AND GENERAL WELFARE OF PERSONS
RESIDING OR WORKING IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD, OR BE DETR]MENTAL
OR INJURIOUS TO PROPERTY AND IMPROVEMENTS IN THE

E

F

t.f

H

City of Folsom Page 48

Page 395

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

J

K.

L.

M

N

NEIGHBORHOOD OR TO THE GENERAL WELFARE OF THE CIry, AS THE
PROPOSED USE IS COMPLIMENTARY TO EXISTING USES IN THE
PROJECT VICINITY AND, AS CONDITIONED, THE PROPOSED PROJECT
WILL NOT HAVE NEGATIVE IMPACTS TO NEARBY USES THAT HAVE NOT
BEEN MITIGATED.

PLANNED DEVELOPM NT PERMIT FINDINGS

THE PROPOSED PROJECT COMPLIES WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES
oF CHAPTER 17.38 (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT) OF THE
FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE AND OTHER APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE OBJECTIVES,
POLICIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF
THE CITY.

THE PHYSICAL, FUNCTIONAL AND VISUAL COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN THE
PROPOSED PROJECT AND EXISTING AND FUTURE ADJACENT USES AND
AREA CHARACTERISTICS IS ACCEPTABLE.

THERE ARE AVAILABLE PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED
TO, WATER, SEWER AND DRAINAGE TO ALLOW FOR THE DEVELOPMENT
OF THE PROJECT SITE IN A MANNER CONSISTENT WITH THIS
PROPOSAL.
THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE UNACCEPTABLE VEHICULAR
TRAFFIC LEVELS ON SURROUNDING ROADWAYS, AND THE PROPOSED
PROJECT WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE INTERNAL CIRCULATION.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH,
SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE OF THE PERSONS OR PROPERry
WITHIN THE VICINITY OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND THE CITY AS A
WHOLE.

ADEQUATE PROVISION IS MADE FOR THE FURNISHING OF SANITATION
SERVICES AND EMERGENCY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES TO THE
PROJECT.

DENSITY BONUS FINDINGS

THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR A DENSITY BONUS IN THAT
THE PROJECT IS PROVIDING ONE HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE TOTAL
UNITS FOR LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS OR VERY LOW- INCOME
HOUSEHOLDS, AND IS A SENIOR CITIZEN HOUSING DEVELOPMENT.

o.

P

o.

City of Folsom Page 49

Page 396

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

R.

S.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR THE REQUESTED PROJECT
DENSITY OF 28 DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS ELIGIBLE FOR FOUR DENSITY BONUS
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS BASED ON THE FACT THAT THE
PROPOSED PROJECT IS DEDICATING ONE HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL HOUSING UNITS TO LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS.

THE PROJECT APPLICANT HAS REQUESTED THREE DENSITY BONUS
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS, INCLUDING A PARKING RATIO OF ONE
PARKING SPACE PER UNIT, AN INCREASE IN THE MAXIMUM BUILDING
HEIGHT FROM 35 FEET TO 42 FEET SIX INCHES, AND AN INCREASE IN

THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF BUILDING STORIES FROM TWO TO THREE
STORIES.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR EACH OF THE REQUESTED
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS.

T

U

City of Folsom Page 50

Page 397

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-'159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 4

Gonditions of Approval

City of Folsom Page 51

Page 398

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL F'OR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-69)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSTTY BONUS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

I The applicant
Development

shall submit final site development plans to the Community
Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced

below:

1 . Site Plan, dated October 17 ,2022
2. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated October 17,2022
3. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated October 77,2022
4. Preliminary Grading Sections, dated October l7,2022
5. Preliminary Landscape and Irrigation Plans, dabdOctober 20, 2022

6. Preliminary Tree Preservation Pla4 dated October 17,2022
7. Preliminary Oak Tree Mitigation Plan , dated October 20. 2022
8. Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan, dated October 17,2022
9. Preliminary Fire Access Plan, dated October 17,2022
10. Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details, dated November 3,2021
11. Building Elevations and Floor Plans dated June 3, 2022
12. Color Building Renderings, dated hne 3, 2022
13. Building Site Sections, datedhlrre3,2022
14. Color and Materials Board, dated Jwrc 3, 2022
15. Transportation hnpact Study, dated July, 2022
16. Parking Memorandum, dated October 17,2022
17. Parking Case Study, dated October 17,2022
18. Vintage Senior Apartrnents Booklet (Separate Bound Document)

The project is approved for development ofthe 136-unit Vintage Senior Aparhnents
project, which includes a three-story, I I 1,755-square-foot apartment building and

associated site improvernents. Implementation ofthe project shall be consistent with
the above-referenced items as modified by these conditions ofapproval.

B CD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 52

Page 399

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF,APPROVAL F'OR TIIE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T.159)
CONDIIIONAL USE PERMIT, PLAIINED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITV BONUS

IO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/tlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

J Building plans, and all civil engineering and landscape plans, shall be submitted to the
Community Development Departinent for review and approval to ensure conformance
with this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and other requirements
of the Citv of Folsom.

I,B cD (PXEXB)

3. The project approvals (Planned Development Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and
Density Bonus) granted under this staffreport shall remain in effect for two years from
final date ofapproval (January 18,2025). Failwe to obtain the relevant building (or
other) permits within this time period without the subsequent extension ofthis
aooroval. shall result in the termination ofthis approval.

B cD (P)

4. Consistent with the State Density Bonus Law, all rental units within the Vintage Senior
ADartrnents Droiect shall remain affordable for a period of55 years or longer.

OG CD (P)

5 The owner/applicant shall defen4 indemnifr, and hold harmless the City and its agents,

officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its
agents, officen or ernployees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval by the
City or any of its agencies, departments, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or
legislative body conceming the project. The City will promptly notiff the
owner/applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and will coop€rate fully in the
defense. The City may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any
such claim, action or proceeding if both of the following occur:

r The City bears its own attorney's fees and costs; and
r The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement ofsuch
claim. action or oroceedine unless tho settlement is aporoved bv the owner/aoplicant.

OG cD (PXEXB)
PW,PR, FD,

PD

City of Folsom Page 53

Page 400

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CoNDITTONS OX'APPROVAL FORTEE VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECf (pN 21-159)
CONDITIONAL USE PER]VIIT, PIAIINED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS

IO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

6. The owner/applicant shall be required to participate in a mitigation monitoring and
reporting program pwsuant to City Council Resolution No. 2634 and Public Resources

Code 21081.6. The mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the
Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for this project have been incorporated into
these conditions ofapproval in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the
environment. These mitigation monitoring and reporting measures are identified with
a check mark (r') in the mitieation measure column.

G, I CD (PXE)

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND FEE Rf,,OUIREMENTS
7 The owneriapplicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges at the rate and

amount in effect at the time such taxes, fees and charges become due and payable. I,B cD (PXE)

8. Ifapplicable, the owner/applicant shall pay offany existing assessments against the
propertv, or file necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees.

cD (E)

9. The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services ofoutside legal counsel to
assist in the implementation of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting,
reviewing and/or revising agreements and/or other documentation for the project. If
the City utilizes the services ofsuch outside legal counsel, the applicant shall
reimburse the City for all outside legal fees and costs incured by the City for such
services. The applicant may be required" at the sole discretion of the City Attomey, to
submit a deposit to the City for these services prior to initiation ofthe services. The
applicant shall be responsible for reimbursement to the City for the services regardless
ofwhether a deoosit is reouired.

CD (PXE)

10. Ifthe City utilizes the services ofconsultants to prepare special studies or provide
specialized design rsview or inspection services for the project, the applicant shall
reimburse the City for actual costs it incurs in utilizing these services, including
administrative costs for City personnel. A deposit for these services shall be provided
prior to initiating review ofthe improvement plans or beginning inspection, whichever
is aoolicable.

I,B CD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 54

Page 401

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OT' APPROVAL FOR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJOCT (PN 2T-69)
CONDITIONAL USE PER]VIIT, PI,AIINED DEVf,LOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BOI\ruS

lO3EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Deprrtment

l1 This project shall be subject to all City-wide development impact fees, unless exempt
by previous agreement. This project shall be subject to all City-wide development
impact fees in effect at such time that a building permit is issued. These fees may
include, but are not limited to, fees for fire protection, park facilities, park equipment,
Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway, Light Rail, TSM, capital facilities and traffic
impacts. The 90-day protest period for all fees, dedications, reservations or other
exactions imposed on this project has begun. The fees shall be calculated at the fee
rate in effect at the time ofbuildins oermit issuanc€.

B CD (PXE), PW, PK

12. The owner/applicant agrees to pay to the Folsom-Cordova Unified School District the
maximum fee authorized by law for the consfuction and/or reconstruction ofschool
facilities. The applicable fee shall be the fee established by the School District that is
in effect at the time of the issuance of a building permit. Specifically, the
owner/applicant agrees to pay any and all fees and charges and comply with any and
all dedications or other requirements authorized under Section l7 620 of the Education
Code; Chapter 4.7 (commencing with Section 65970) of the Govemment Code; and
Sections 65995, 65995.5 and 65995.7 ofthe Government Code.

B cD (P)

SITE DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS
13. Prior to the issuance ofany grading and/or building permit, the owner/applicant shall

have a geotechnical report prepared by an appropriately licensed engineer that includes
an analysis ofsite suitability, proposed foundation design for all proposed structures,
and roadway and pavement design.

A Geotechnical Engineering Survey was prepared by Youngdahl Consulting Group,
Inc. in December 2021. The proposed projects' design plans and specifications outlined
in the report shall be reviewed and approved by a Califomialicensed geotechnical

engineer or engineering geologist. The project applicant shall implement all
applicable recommendations approved by a Califomia-licensed geotechnical engineer
or ensineerins seolosist into the eradins ofthe oroiect site.

G,B CD (E)

Cig of Folsom Page 55

Page 402

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January1|8,2023

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL S'OR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECI (PN 2T-T59)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLAI{NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS

IO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Deprrtment

14. In the event a paleontological or other geologically sensitive resources (such as fossils
or fossil formations) are identified during any phase ofproject consfuction, all
excavations within 100-ft ofthe find shall be temporarily halted until the find is
examined by a qualified paleontologist, in accordance with Society ofVertebrate
Paleontology standards. The paleontologist shall notiff the appropriate representative
at the City ofFolsom who shall coordinate with the paleontologist as to any necessary
investigation of the find. Ifthe find is determined to be significant under CEQA, the
City shall implement those measures which may include avoidance, preservation in
place, or other appropriate measures, as outlined in Public Resources Code Section
21083.2.

I,G CD (E)

t5 Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks,
bicycle lanes and trails, streetlights, underground infrastructure and all other
improvements shall be provided in accordance with the current edition of the City of
Folsom Standed Construction Specifications andthe Design and Procedwes Manual
and Improvement Standards. All necessary rights-of-way and/or easements shall be
dedicated to the Citv of Folsom for these imorovements.

I,B cD (PXE)

16. The applicant/owner shall submit water, sewer and drainage studies to the satisfaction
of the Community Development Departnent and provide sanitary sewer, water and
storm drainage improvements with conesponding easements, as necessary, in
accordance with these studies and the current edition ofthe City ofFolsom Standard
Construction Specifications andthe Design and Procedures Manual and Improvement
Standmds.

I CD(E)

t7 The improvement plans for the required public and private improvements shall be
reviewed and approved by tle Community Development Deparhnent prior to issuance
ofa building permit for the project.

B CD(E)

18. Required public and private improvements, including but not limit€d to steet sigral
and frontage improvements on East Natoma Sreet, shall be completed to the
satisfaction of the Community Development Deparfrnent prior to the issuance of the
lust Certifi cate of Occupancy.

o cD(E)

City of Folsom Page 56

Page 403

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONI'ITIONSOT'APPROVAL FORTI{E VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN2T.T59)

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PIIII\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS
103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

19. Final lot and building configurations may be modified to allow for overland release of
storm events greater than the capacity ofthe underground system.

B cD(E)

20. The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development, and completion of
this proiect with the various utility agenoies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.).

I cD (PXE)

21. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or
hazardous public sidewalk, curb and gutter along the site frontage and/or boundaries,
including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department.

o cD (E)

22. For any improvements conshucted on private property that are not under ownership or
control ofthe owner/applicant, a right-of-enfy, and ifnecessary, a p€rmanent

easement shall be obtained and provided to the City prior to issuance ofa grading
permit and/or approval of improvement plans.

G, I cD (E)

23. The on-site water and sewer systems shall be privately owned and maintained. The
fue protection system shall be separate from the domestic water system. The fire
system shall be constructed to meet the National Fire Protection Association Standard
24. The domestic water and irrigation system shall be metered per City ofFolsom
S tandsd Cons truct ion Specilicat iorx.

I cD(E)

24 Any reimbursement for public improvements constructed by the applicant shall be in
accordance with a fomral reimbursement agreement entered into between the City and
the ov'rner/applicant prior to approval ofthe improvement plans.

I cD (E)

25 The owner/applicant shall dedicate a 12.5-foot-wide public utility easement for
underground facilities and appurtenances adjacent to all public rights-of-way. The

owner/applicant shall also dedicate any private drive, ingress, and egess easement as a

public utility easement for underground facilities and appurtenances. An easement

shall also be dedicated to SMUD based on the location ofas constructed facilities
olaced bevond the limits ofthe private drives.

I CD (E)

Cig of Folsom Page 57

Page 404

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OFAPPROVAL F1ORTIIE VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-T59)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PII\I\NED DEVf,LOPMENT PERMIT, ANII DENSITY BOI\ruS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

26. Existing overhead utility lines lower than 69KV located on the south side ofEast
Natoma Steet adjacent to the project site shall be placed underground to the
satisfaction of the Community Development Deparhnent.

I CD (E)

27 Final exterior building and site lighting plans shall be submitted for review and

approval by Community Development Departrnent for location, height, aesthetics,

level ofillumination, glare and tespass prior to the issuance ofany building permits.

All lighting, including but not limited to free-standing parking lot lighs, building-
attached lights, and landscape lights shall be designed to be screened, shielde4 and

directed downward onto the project site and away from adjacent properties and public
rights-of-way. The final desigr ofthe building-attached lights shall be subject to
review and approval by the Community Development Department. Lighting shall be

equipped with a timer or photo condenser. In addition, pole-mounted parking lot lights
shall utilize a low-intensity, energy elfioient lighting method and be limited to a
maximum of 12 feet in heisht.

I,B cD(P)

STORM WATER POLLUTION/CLEAN WATER ACT REQUIREMENTS
28. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for litter control and sweeping ofall paved

surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm drains shall be cleaned
immediately before the commencement ofthe rainy season (October 15).

G, I,B CD(E)

29. The storm drain swale or onsite improvement plans shall provide for "Best
Management Practices" that meet the requirements of the water quality standarG of
the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit issued by the State

Regional Water Quality Confiol Board.

G, I,B,O CD(E)

30. Erosion and sedimentation control measwes shall be incorporated into construction
plans. These measures shall conform to the City of Folsom requirements and the
Counw of Sacram ento Erosion and Sedimentation Control Standarfu and
Specllications-ctrrent edition and as directed by the Community Development
DeDartment.

G, I cD(E)

City of Folsom Page 58

Page 405

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-T59)

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI,AI{IYEI' DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS
rffi EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

3l The proposed development will add new impervious area to the site; therefore,

stormwater quality treatment shall be provided. The City requires developers to utilize
the Guidance Manualfor On-Site Stormwater Quality Treatment Control Measwes
(January 2000) ("On-Site Manual") in selecting and designing source control and post-

construction facilities to treat runoff from the proiect.

G, I CD (E)

32. Prior to issuance ofgrading permits, the owner/applicant shall submit detailed drainage
plans for evaluation by the City. Approved plans shall be implemented prior to project

occupancy. The drainage plans shall include measures to minimize the total amount of
additional surface runoffand to limit ttre flows released to off-site receiving waters to
existing pre-development levels in accordance with the requirements ofthe City of
Folsom Public Works Deoartnent.

G, I cD (E), PW

JJ Prior to issuance of grading permits, the owner/applicant shall submit erosion control
plans and other monitoring prograrns for the construction and operational phases ofthe
proposed project for review by the City. The plan shall include Best Management

Practices (BMP) to minimize and control the level of pollutants in stormwater runoff,
and in runoffreleased to off-site receiving waters. Specific techniques may be based on

geotechnical reports or the Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook ofthe Califomia
Deoartrnent of Conservation, and shall comply with current City standards.

G, I cD(E), PW

34. Prior to issuance ofgrading permits, the owner/applicant shall obtain coverage under

the State Water Rssources Confiol Board General Permit for Discharges of Storm

Water Associated with Construction Activity (Order 2009-0009-DWQ), including
preparation and submittal of a projecFspecific Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) at the time the Notice of Intent (NOI) is filed. The project applicant shall

also prepare and submit any other necessary erosion and sediment control and

engineering plans and specifications for pollution prevention and confrol to the City of
Folsom.

G, I cD(E), PW

City of Folsom Page 59

Page 406

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL T'OR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECjT CN 2T-T59)
CONDITIONAL USE PENMIT, PI.AI\TNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BO]YUS

IO3 MSTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/.IVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Deprrtment

f, ITVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS
35. The sanitary sewer system shall be desigted for the project shall incorporate the

following elements and features to the satisfaction of the Environmental and Water
Resources Department:

Prior to the issuance ofa grading permit, the owner/applicant shall record a l5-foot
private sewer easement within PG&E property.

All on-site sanitary sewer shall be privately owned, operated and maintained.
The Sanitary Sewer Lift station shall be privately owned, operated and maintained.
A maintenance agreement for the sewer lift station op€ration, maintenance and
emergency repairs to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department
and executed prior to the issuance ofa building permit.

The offsite sewer force main shall be located within in a l5-foot private sewer
easement located within PG&E property. The City will not own, operato, or
maintain this sewer force main.
Install one new sanitary sewer manhole where the force main will terminate at the
8-inch gravity line. The City's responsibility ofthe sanitary sewer shall begin
when the 8-inch gravity line enters the public sewer easement within PG&E
property.

The prease interceptor shall be privatelv owned, operated and maintained.

a

G, I,B EWR

36. The domestic water and sanitary sewer systems designed for the project shall
incorporate the following elements and features to the satisfaction of the Environmental
and Water Resources Departrnent:

r The water connection for domestic, irrigation and fire shall be a manifold as shown
in City Water Detail WR-23.

o The 6-inch domestic water supply shall include a meter bypass in accordance with
City Water Detail WR-21.

r All on-site water systems shall be privately owned, operated, and maintained.

EWR

City of Folsom Page 60

Page 407

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-'t 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OI'APPROVAL FORTIIE VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-T59)

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI,AI\II\IED DEVELOPMENT PDNMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS
103 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/1Vlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Deprrtment

LANIISCAPE/TREE PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS
37 The owner/applicant shall be responsible for on-site landscape maintenance throughout

the life of the project to the satisfaction of the Community Development Departnent.
Vegetation or planting shall not be less than that depicted on the final landscape plan,

unless ffee removal is approved by the Community Development Departrnent because

the spacing between tress will be too close on center as they mature.

B, OG cD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 6'1

Page 408

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONIIITIONS OFAPPROVAL I'ORTHE VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 21.T59)

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLANNED DEVDLOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS
IO3 EASTNATOMA STR.EET

Mitigation
Measure

ConditionllVlitigation Measure
Required

When Responsible
Department

38. Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape
architect and approved by the City prior to the approval ofthe flrst building permit.

Said plans shall include all on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree
planting exhibit demonshating sufficient diversity and appropriate species selection to
the satisfaction ofthe Community Development Department. The tee exhibit shall

include all street trees, accent trees, parking lot shading trees, and mitigation trees

proposed within the development. Said plans shall comply with all State and local
rules, regulations, Governor's declarations and restrictions pertaining to water
conservation and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping ofthe parking area shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the
Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 17 .57. The landscape plans shall comply and
implement water efficient requirements as adopted by the State of Califomia
(Assembly Bill l88l) (State Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) until such
time the City of Folsom adopts its own Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance at which
time the owner/applicant shall comply with any new ordinance. Shade and omamental

hees shall be maintained according to the most current American National Standards

for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified hee care professionals. Tree

topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance or any other purpose shall
not be allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall be specified within
the approved landscape plans and shall be implemented during a 5-year establishment
and training period. The owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules
or regulations on water usage. The owner/applicant shall comply with any state or
local rules and regulations relating to landscape water usage and landscaping
requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions on all landscaping in the
Vintase Senior Aparfinents proiect.

CD(PXE)

City of Folsom Page 62

Page 409

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

39. To mitigate the impact to the protected native Oak tees, the following measures shall
be implemented in accordance with requirements ofthe Tree Preservation Ordinance:

The owner/applicant shall provide mitigation for directly or indirectly impacted
oak trees based on having a health rating of 5,4,3, or 2. Based on the DSH
equivalency ratio, the project applicant shall mitigate for the removal of
approximately 47 oak tees (571.3 inches at DSH) that will be removed with
development of the project. Final mitigation requirements shall be determined by
the City Arborist upon receipt offinal design plans prior to the issuance ofa
grading permit. Mitigation for hees shall be done through planting of on-site
replacement trees or payment of inJieu fees as determined by the City, or a
combination thereof. The owner/applicant may be eligible to receive credit for
preservation ofon-site Oak trees as determined by the City Arborist.

o

. A Tree Permit Application containing an Application Form, Tree Protection and
Mitigation Plan, and Arborist Report shall be submitted to the City of Folsom by
the owner/applicant for issuance of a Tree Work Permit and Tree Removal Permit
prior to commencement of any grading or site improvement activities. The tree
protection and mitigation plan shall be prepared in collaboration with a qualified
arborist and shall be subject to review and approval by the City. The fiee
protection and mitigation plan shall contain the contact information ofthe project
arborist and shall be included in all associated plan sets for the project.

e Removal of any protected tree shall be mitigated by planting replacement trees

and/or payment of"In-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch basis in accordance with
FMC. Section 12.16.150. The proposed method of mitigation shall be subject to
review and approval by the City.

. Prior to starting consfuction, oak trees to be preserved shall be fenced with high
visibility fencing consistent with the city-approved tree protection and mitigation
plan. Parking ofvehicles, equipment, or storage ofmaterials is prohibited within
the Tree Protection Zone ofProtscted Trees at all times. Signs shall be posted on
exclusion fencing stating that the enclosed frees are to be preserved. Signs shall
state the penalty for damage to, or removal of, the protected tree.

I,G,B,O cD(PXE)

City of Folsom Page 63

Page 410

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDTTIONS OI'APPROVAL T1OR TIIE VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-69)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI,AIINED DTVELOPMENT PERMIT, AI\D DENSITY BONUS

rO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

39.
Cont.

e The owner/applicant shall retain the services of a project arborist proficient in fee
protection for construction projects for the dwation ofthe development project to
monitor the health ofoak trees to be preserved and carry out the City-approved
tree protection plan. All regulated activity conducted within the Critical Root
Zone of protected trees, as that term is defined in Folsom Municioal Code (FMC)

12.16.020. shall be performed under the direct supervision ofthe project arborist.
A copy ofthe executed contract for these arboricultural services shall be
submifted to the City prior to the issuance ofany tree or grading permits.

Certification letters by the project arborist attesting compliance with the tree protection
and mitigation plan and tree permit conditions shall be submitted to the City following
completion ofgrading and again at project completion, prior to the certificate of
occuDancv.

I,G,B,O cD(PXE)

CULTURAL RESOURCE/TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

40. It is always possible that ground-disturbing activities during project development may

uncover previously unknown archaeological resources. In the event that archaeological

resources are discovered during conshuction, conshuction operations shall stop within a

100-foot radius ofthe find and a qualified archaeologist shall be consulted to determine

whether the resource requires further study. The City shall include a standard
inadvertent discovery clause in every construction contact to inform contractors ofthis
requirement. The archaeologist shall make recommendations concerning appropriate

measures that will be implemented to protect the resources, including but not limited to,
excavation and evaluation ofthe finds in accordance with Section 15064.5 ofthe
CEQA
Guidelines. Archaeological resowces could consist of, but are not limited to, stone,

bone, wood, or shell artifacts or features, including hearths. Any previously
undiscovered resources found dwing consfruction within the project area should be

recorded on appropriate Departnent ofParks and Recreation (DPR) 523 forms and
evaluated for sisnificance in terms of CEOA criteria.

G, I,B CD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 64

Page 411

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OFAPPROVAL F1ORTIIE VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2I-159)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI,ANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, ANI} DENSITY BONUS

103 EASTNATOMA STRDET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/1Vlitigation Measure
Required

When Responsible
Department

41. In the event ofthe accidental discovery or recognition ofany human remains, CEQA
Guidelines $ 15064.5; Health and Safety Code $ 7050.5; Public Resources Code $
5097.94 and $ 5097.98 must be followed. Ifduring the course ofproject development
there is accidental discovery or recogr.ition of any human remains, the following steps

shall be taken:

There shall be no further excavation or disturbance within a 100-foot radius of
the potentially human remains until the County Coroner is contacted to determine if
the remains are Native American and if an investigation of the cause of death is
required. If the coroner determines the remains to be Native American, the coroner
shall contact the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) witttin 24 hours, and
the NAHC shall identif the person or persons it believes to be the "most likely
descendant" (MLD) of the deceased Native American. The MLD may make
recommendations to the landowner or the person responsible for the excavation work
within 48 hours, for means of fre ating or disposing o{ with appropriate dignity, the
human remains and any associated grave goods as provided in PRC Section 5097.98.

Where the following conditions occur, the landowner or his authorized
representative shall rebury the Native American human remains and associated grave

goods with appropriate dignity either in accordance with the recommendations ofthe
most likely descendant or on the project site in a location not subject to fi:rther
subsurface disturbancs:

o The NAHC is unable to identifr a most likely descendent or the most likely
descendent failed to make a recommendation within 48 hours after being
notified by the comrnission.

o The descendant identified fails to make a recommendation.
o The landowner or his authorized representative rejects the recommendation of

the descendant, and mediation by the NAHC fails to provide measures

acceptable to the landowner.

G, I,B cD(PXE)

City of Folsom Page 65

Page 412

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

OT'APPROVAL FORTEE snl\noR APARTMENTS PROJEST CN 21-rs9)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PTANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AI{D I'ENSITY BONUS

IO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Mensure

Condition/'lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

42. All construction personnel involved in gound disturbing activities shall be trained in
the recogrition ofpossible cultural resources and protection ofsuch resources. The

training will inform all construction personnel ofthe procedures to be followed upon

the discovery of archaeological materials, including Native American burials.

Construction personnel will be instructed that cultural resources must be avoided and

that all havel and construction activity must be confined to desigrated roads and

areas. The training will include a review ofthe local, state, and federal laws and

regulations related to culfural resources, as well as instructions on the procedwes to

be implsmented should unanticipated resources be encountered during construction,

including stopping work in the vicinity ofthe find and contacting the appropriate '
environmental compliance specialist.

G, I,B cD (PXE)

43 Ifpotentially significant Tribal Cultural Resowces (TCR) are discovered during ground

disturbing construction activities, all work shall cease wilhin 50-ft ofthe find" or an

agreed upon distance based on the nature ofthe find. A Native American
Representative from traditionally and culturally affiliated Native American Tribes that
requested consultation on the project shall be immediately contacted and invited to
assess the sigrificance of the find and make recommendations for further evaluation

and fteatnent, as necessary. Ifdeemed necessary by the City, a qualified cultural
resources specialist rneeting the Secretary oflnterior's Standards and Qualifications for
Archaeology, may also assess the significance ofthe find injoint consultation with
Native American Representatives to ensure that Tribal values are considered. Work at

the discovery location cannot resume until the City, in consultation as appropriate and

in good faith, determines that the discovery is either not a TCR, or has been subjected

to culturally appropriate featnent, ifavoidance and preservation cannot be

accommodated.

G, I,B CD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 66

Page 413

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF'APPROVAL FOR TITE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECI (PN 2T-159)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLAI\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,AND DENSITY BONUS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS
44 White-Tailed Kite and Other Nesting Birds:

Ifproject (consauction) ground-disturbing or vegetation clearing and grubbing
activities commence during the avian breeding season (February I - August 3l), a

qualified biologist shall conduct a pre-construction nesting bird survey no more than
14 days prior to initiation of project activities and again immediately prior to
construction. The survey area shall include suitable raptor nesting habitat within 500-ft
ofthe project boundary (inaccessible areas outside ofthe project site can be surveyed
from the site or from public roads using binoculars or spotting scopes). Preconstruction
surveys are not required in areas where project activities have been continuous since
prior to February 1, as determined by a qualified biologist. Areas that have been
inactive for more than 14 days during the avian breeding season must be resuweyed
prior to resumption ofproject activities. Ifno active nests are identiflted, no further
mitigation is required. Ifactive nests are identified, the following measure is required:

r A suitable buffer (e.g., 500-ft for raptors; 100-ft for passerines) shall be

established by a qualified biologist around active nests and no construction
activities within the buffer shall be allowed until a qualified biologist has

determined that the nest is no longer active (i.e., the nestlings have fledged
and are no longer reliant on the nest, or the nest has failed). Encroachment
into the buffer may occur at the discretion ofa qualified biologist. Any
encroachment into the buffer shall be monitored by a qualified biologist to
determine whether nestine birds are beins imoacted.

G, I cD (EXP)

City of Folsom Page 67

Page 414

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONSOF FOR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T.T59)

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI,AIINED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,AND DENSITY BONUS
IO3 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/'lVitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

45. Jurisdictional Wetlands and Waters
Prior to start ofconstruction, the project proponent shall either prepare a formal
delineation and submit it to the USACE for verification or obtain verification based on
the mapping ofaquatic resources in this report as well as contact the USACE,
CVRWQCB, and CDFW to determine the need for permits and secure any required

aquatic resources permits for funpacts to waters of the U.S./State from the USACE,
CVRWQCB, and CDFW, pursuant to Sections 404 and 401 of the Clean Water Act,
the Califomia Water Code, Section 1600 of the Fish and Game Code, and the State

Water Resource Control Board Dredge and Fill Policy. The project proponent shall

comply with all conditions of such permits including providing compensatory
mitigation at a minimum 1:1 ratio as required to achisve no net loss of wetlands or
other waters.

G, I CD (EXP)

City of Folsom Page 68

Page 415

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

COI\DITIONS OF'APPROVAL FORTHE VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-I59)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI.ANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS

103 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lMitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

AIR QUALITY REQUIREMENTS

46. Control of fugitive dust is required by District Rule 403 and enforced by SMAQMD
staff The owner/applicant shall implement the following measures as identified by the

SMAQMD:
. Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not

limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and

access roads.
. Cover or maintain at least two feet offree board space on haul trucks

transporting soil, sand or other loose material on the site. Any haul hucks that
would be traveling along freeways or major roadways should be covered.

. Use wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove any visible trackout mud or
dirt onto adjacent public roads at least once a day. Use ofdry power sweeping is

prohibited.
r Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph).
. All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be

completed as soon as possible. In addition, building pads should be laid as soon

as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders are used.

r Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment offwhen not in use or
reducing the time of idling to 5 minutes [required by California Code of
Regulations, Title 13, sections 2449(d)(3) and 2485. Provide clear signage that
posts this requirement for workers at the entrances to the site.

. Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according to
manufacturer's specifications. The equipment must be checked by a certified
mechanic and determine to be running in proper condition before it is operated.

G, I,B CD (PXEXB)

City of Folsom Page 69

Page 416

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

COIITDITIONS OT'APPROVAL FOR TIIE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T.159)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMTT, PI"AI\NED DEVELOPMENT PERIIIT, AND DENSITY BOIruS

103 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

47 To mitigate the project's contribution to the wban heat island effect, the Sacramento
Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) recommends the following measures be

implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Deparfinent:

I

a

a

The owner/applicant shall incorporate new shade fiees to provide additional
shade coverage for pavements and structures to the extent feasible. A directory
ofair-quality supportive trees is available in the Sacramento Tree Foundation's
Shady Eighty guide and a more extensive tree list is available on page 153 of
the UHI Technical Analysis Report.

All new pavements, including sidewalks, interior roads, bike lanes, pedestrian
paths, parking lots, and plazas shall strive to achieve an albedo ofat least 0.25-
0.5.
For the parking lot areas, ifcool pavement or additional tree shading is not
feasible, the owner/applicant shall consider installing solar photovoltaic shade

structures to reduce urban heat islands, generate renewable energy, and provide
shading to parked vehicles, further reducing emissions.

All new structures shall utilize certified cool roofs. The Califomia Energy
Commission's Title24,Put 6T,recommends an aged solar reflectance of at least 0.63

for low-sloped roofs and at least 0.20 for steep-sloped roofs, and minimum thermal
emittance of 0.75.

B CD (PXB)

GREENHOUSE GAS REQUIR"EMENTS

48. In accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-3, the project
shall provide a minimun of five percent more bicycle parking than required in the
City's Municipal Code Section 17.57 .090 (for a total of 28 bicycle parking spaces).

B CD (PXB)

49. In accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-6, the project
shall use high-performance diesel (also known as Desel-HPR or Reg-9000/RHD) for
all diesel-oowered eouioment utilized in constuction ofthe oroiect.

B cD (PXB)

City of Folsom Page 70

Page 417

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS TIOR TIIE VINTAGE SEI\IIOR APARTMEI{TS PROJECT (PN 2T.159)
COI{DITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLAI\IITED DEYELOPMENT PERMIT,AND DENSITY BONUS

103 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

50. In accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-8, the project
shall provide 14 elecbic vehicle capable parking spaces based on the 136 total parking

spaces proposed for the project. Ofthe 14 electric vehicle capable parking spaces, 7

parking spaces shall be equipped with electric vehicle charging equipment with initial
development of the proposed project.

B CD (PXB)

51. In accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure SW-I, the project
shall divert to recycle or salvage a minimum 65 percent ofnonhazardous construction

and demolition waste generated at the project site in accordance with Appendix 44
(Rssidential) of the as outlined in the Califomia Green Building Standards Code (2019

CALGreen).

B CD (PXB)

52. In accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure W-1, the project

shall comply with all applicable indoor and outdoor water efficiency and conservation

measures required under 2019 CALGreen Tier 1, as outlined in the California Green

Building Standards Code.

B cD (PXB)

TRAI'FIC, ACCESS, CIRCULATION, AND PARKING

City of Folsom Page 71

Page 418

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

53 Based on the recommendations ofthe Transportation Impact Study dated February
2022 (Attacfunent 2l), and to further ensure further ensure safe Favel within the prqiect
site, the following measures shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department:

East Natoma Steet (Eastbound)
o The owner/applicant shall construcl a I SO-foot right-tum pocket with 60-foot

taper on the eastbound approach to Prison Road iiom East Natoma Street. The
existing bike trail shall be relocated to accommodate the right-turn lane. The
relocated bike trail shall be placed in a dedicated pedestrian accoss and fail
easement which shall be recorded prior to plan approval. With this proposed
modification, the eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street
shall include one left-turn lane, one thru lane, and one right-tum lane.

East Natoma Sheet (Westbound)

o The owner/applicant shall construct a 100-foot left-turn pocket with a raised
median with a 60-foot taper on the westbound approach to Prison Road from
East Natoma Street. The median shall allow emergency vehicle access/egress

and the modifications required for emergency vehicle access/egress shall be
approved by the City ofFolsom Fire Deparftnent. With these proposed

modifications, the westbound approach to hison Road from East Natoma
Sfeet shall include one shared thnr/right-tum lane and one left-turn lane.

Prison Road (Southbound)

o Priorto entering Stateproperty, the contractorshall execute aright-of-entry
agreement with the State of Califomi4 Depaftnent of Conections.

o The owner/applicant shall restripe the existing right-tum lane at the southbound
approach to East Natoma Street from Prison Road to indicate that this lane is a
shared thru and right-tum lane. The existing dedicated left-tum lane shall
remain as currently striped.

Primary Project Driveway (East Natoma Steet)
o The owner/applicant shall constuct a shared thnr/right-tum lane and a

dedicated left-turn lane at the northbound approach to East Natoma Street at the
primary project driveway. The shared thru/right-tum lane and dedicated left-
tum lane shall include a 70-foot turn oocket and a 60-foot taper.

I cD (PXE), PW

City of Folsom Page72

Page 419

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

53.
Cont.

Secondary Project Driveway (East Natoma Street)
o The owner/applicant shall construct a raised median within Natoma Street and a

right-tum channelization taper at the secondary project driveway to prevent

left-tums into the project site from westbound East Natoma Strect and left-tums
out ofthe project site onto westbound East Natoma Street to the satisfaction of
the Community Development Departrnent.

o The owner/applicant shall install "Stop" signs, appropriate pavement markings,

and signage at the secondary project exit at East Natoma Street.

East Natoma Street/Prison Road Traffic Signal and Signal Timing
o The owneriapplicant shall construct a fafhc signal at the fourth leg ofthe

intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road and modiff all existing
traffic signal improvements to the satisfaction of the Community Development

Departnent.
o The owner/applicant shall coordinate retiming the traffic signal at the

intersection of East Natoma Sfieet and Prison Road as follows:
. Eastbound and westboundprotectedleft tum phasing, northbound and

southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 second

northbound southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and

westbound protected phases, and 62 second eastbound and westbound

through phases. Crosswalks shall be set to 22 seconds to accommodate a 3

feet per seconding walking sPeed.

East Natoma Street Frontaao Improvements
o The owner/applicant shall install curbs, gutter, a bicycle lane, and sidewalks

along the project's frontage with East Natoma Sheet as shown on the submitted

site plan. In addition, the owner/applicant shall construct curbs, gutters, a

'bicycle lane, and sidewalks from the project's eastem boundary approximately

120-feet to the east to connect to the existing off-site sidewalk and associated

improvements. The owner/applicant shall enter into a credit reimbursement

agreement with the City to cover the costs ofthese off-site fiontage
imnrovements.

I cD(PXE), Pw

54. A minimum of 136 on-site parking spaces shall be provided for the project. LO cD (PXE)

55. A rninimum of28 on-site bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for the project at

locations that are close Droximity to the primary building enfances.
I,O cD(PXE)

City of Folsom Page 73

Page 420

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF'APPROVAL ['OR TIIE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 21-159)

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI.AIINED I'EVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND I'ENSITY BONUS
IO3 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lViti gation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

NOISE/VIBRATION Dt.r TIIDF

56. Construction activities shall be required to comply with the following and be noted

accordingly on the improvement plans:

l. Construction hours/Scheduling: The following are required to limit conshuction
activities to the portion ofthe day when occupancy ofthe adjacent sensitive
receptors are at the lowest:
a. Consfiuction activities for all phases of construction, including

sewicing of consfuction equipment shall only be permitted during the hours

of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and between 8:00 a.m. to

5:00 p.m. on Saturdays. Construction is prohibited on Sundays and on all
holidays.

b. Delivery of materials or equipment to the site and truck traffic coming to and
from the site is restricted to the same construction hours specified above.

2. Construction Equipment Mufflers and Maintenance: All construction equipment
powered by internal combustion engines shall be properly muffled and maintained.

3. Idling Prohibitions: All equipment and vehicles shall be tumed offwhen not in use.

Urmecessary idling of intemal combustion engines is prohibited.
4. Equipment Location and Shielding: All stationary noise-generating construction

equipment, such as air compresson, shall be located as far as practical from the

adjacent homes. Acoustically shield such equipment when it must be located near

adjacent residences.

5. Quiet Equipment Selection: Select quiet equipment, particularly air
compressors, whenever possible. Motorized equipment shall be outfitted with
proper mufflers in good working order.

6. Staging and Equipment Storage: The equipment storage location shall be sited as

far as possible from nearby sensitive receptors.

G, I,B CD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page74

Page 421

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF'APPROVAL FOR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 21.T59)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMTT, PLAI{NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BOIruS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

57 The owner/applicant or designated conEactor shall provide evidence to the City (via
testing data or calculations from a qualified expert), demonstrating that vibratory rollers
to be used on the project site would produce less than 80 VdB at nearby occupied
residences, or all vibratory rollers shall be used in static mode only (no vibrations)
when ooeratinq within 120-ft ofan occupied residence.

G, I,B CD (PXE)

ARCHITECTURE/SITE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

58. The final location, design, materials, and colors ofthe trash/recycling enclosures be

subject to review and approval by the Community Development Department. I,B CD (PXE)

59. Decorative stone pilasters shall be integrated into the screen wall design at sfiategically
placed locations to break up the long expanse ofthe wall and a decorative trim cap shall
be placed on top ofthe screen wall for its entire length to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department. In addition, the frnal location, height, design,

materials, and colors for the proposed retaining walls, screen walls, and fencing shall be

subiect to review and approval by the Community Development Deparhnent.

I,B CD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 75

Page 422

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

COI{DITIONS OFAPPROVAL FORTIIE VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T.159)
CONDITIONAL USE PERT\IIT, PLAI\iNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS

IO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lMitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Depf,rtment

60. The project strall comply with the following architecture and design requirements:

1. This approval is for a three-story aparhnent building totaling I I 1,755 square feet
associated with the Vintage Apartments project. The applicant shall submit
building plans that comply with this approval and the attached building elevations
and color renderings dated June 3,2022.

2. TIrc design, materials, and colors of the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments
building shall be consistent with the submitted building elevations, color
renderings, materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Departnent.

3. Brick pavers or another type of colored masonry material (ADA compliant) shall be
used to designate pedestrian crosswalks on the project site, in addition to where
pedestrian paths cross drive aisles, and shall be incorporated as a desigrr feature at
the driveway entrances at East Natoma Street to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

4. Roof-mounted mechanical equipment, including satellite dish antennas, shall not
extend above the height ofthe parapet walls. Ground-mounted mechanical
equipment shall be shielded by landscaping or trellis type featwes.

Utility equipment such as tansformers, electric and gas meters, electrical panels, and
iunction boxes shall be screenedbv walls and or landscaping.

I,B cD (P)

GRADING REQUIREMENT
61. Prior to the approval ofthe final facilities design and the initiation ofconstruction

activities, the applicant shall submit an erosion control plan to the City for review and
approval. The plan shall identifr protective measures to be taken during excavation,
temporary stockpiling, any reuse or disposal, and revegetation. Specific techniques
may be based upon geotechnical reports, the Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook
of the State of Califomia Department of Conservatiorl and shall comply with all
uodated Citv standards.

G, I cD(E)

City of Folsom Page 76

Page 423

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OT'APPROVAL ['OR THE VINTAGE sENroR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2r-r59)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLAI\INED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,AND DENSITY BONUS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

SIGN REQUIREMENTS

62. The proposed monument sign shall be constructed of masonry, stone, or wood materials

to be more consistent with the desigr/materials ofthe apartnent building. In addition,

the final location, design, materials, and color ofthe monument sign be subject to

review and approval by the Community Development Department. Lastly, the

owner/aoolicant shall obtain a sisn Dermit prior to installation of the monument sign.

B cD (P)

OTHER AGENCY REQUIREMENTS

63. The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide

evidence that said permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject

to staffreview and approval of any grading or improvement plan.
G, I CD (PXE)

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF'F'ISH AND WILDLIFE (CDFW) REQUIREMENTS

64. The owner/applicant shall submit a Notification of Lake or Streambed Alteration to the

Califomia Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) prior to commencement of any

clearins. srubbine. grading, or site work.
G, I CD (PXE)

65 The owner/applicant shall incorporate bird and wildlife friendly sfrategies including:

a

a

Implementing an education program for residents to keep domestic cats indoors

Installing screens, window patterns, or new types ofglass such as acid-etched,

fritted, froste{ ultraviolet pattemed, or channel.

G, I,B CD (P)

City of Folsom Page77

Page 424

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OT' APPROVAL FOR TIIE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2r-1s9)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI,AI\INED I}EVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/'lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

PACIF'IC GAS & ELECTRIC (PG&E) REQUIREMENTS

66. The owner/applicant shall implement the following measures as recommended by the

Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E):

a

Additional bollards shall be placed within the parking lot to protect an existing
PG&E transmission tower located along the southem property boundary.

Cuts, trenches, or excavations shall not be made within 25 feet of any PG&E

transmission tower.
25-foot clearance shall be maintained from any PG&E tansmission tower
during grading activities.

On overhead electric transmission fee strip(s) and/or easement(s), trees and

shrubs shall be limited to those varieties that do not exceed I 5 feet in height at

maturity.
PG&E shall have access to its facilities at all times, including access by heavy

equipment.
No planting is to occur within the footprint of the tower legs.

a

a

a

a

G, I,OG CD (PXE)

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN UTILITY DISTRICT (SMUD) REQUIREMENTS

City of Folsom Page 78

Page 425

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

67 The owner/applicant shall implement the following
Sacramento Metropolitan Utility District (SMUD):

measures as recommended by the

a Structural setbacks less than l4-feet shall require the owner/applicant to
conduct a pre-engineering meeting with all utilities to ensure property
clearances are maintained.
Any necessary future SMUD facilities located on the owner/applicant's
property shall require a dedicated SMUD easement. This will be determined
prior to SMUD performing work on the owner/applicant's property.

In the event the owner/applicant requires the relocation or removal ofexisting
SMUD facilities on or adjacent to the subject property, the owner/applicant

shall coordinate with SMUD. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for the

cost ofrelocation or removal.

SMUD reserves the right to use any portion ofits easements on or adjacent to

the subject property that it reasonably needs and shall not be responsible for
any damages to the developed property within said easement that unreasonably

interferes with those needs.

The owner/applicant shall not place any building foundations within S-feet of
any SMUD tench to maintain adequate trench integrrty. The owner/applicant
shall verify specific clearance requirements for other utilities (e.g., Gas,

Telephone, etc.).
In the event the City requires an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication (IOD) for
future roadway improvements, the owneriapplicant shall dedicate a 12.5-foot
public utility easement (PUE) for overhead and/or underground facilities and

appurtenances adjacent to the City's IOD.
The owner/applicant shall comply with SMUD siting requirements (e.g., panel

size/location, clearances from SMUD equipment, fansfonn€r location, service

conductors). Information regarding SMUD siting requirements can be found at:

https ://www. smud. org/en/Business-S olutions-and-Rebates/Design-and-
Construction-Services.
The owner/applicant shall dedicate a 12.5-foot public utility easement for
overhead and/or underground facilities and appurtenances adjacent to all public
street rights-of-ways.
The owner/applicant shall dedicate any private drive, ingress and egress

easement, (and l0-feet adiacent thereto) as a public utility easement for

a

a

o

a

a

a

a

a

G, I, OG cD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 79

Page 426

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January'18,2023

CONIMOXS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE VINTAGE SEI\{IOR APARTMENTS PROJECT GN 2r-r59)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PT,ANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS

IO3 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/1!litigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

67
Cont.

(overhead and) underground facilities and appurtenances. All access roads shall

meet minimum SMUD requirements for access roads.

The owner/applicant shall dedicate and provide all-weather vehicular access for
service vehicles that are up to 26,000 pounds. At a minimum: (a) the drivable
surface shall be 20-feet wide; and (b) all SMUD underground equipment and

a

aDDurtenances shall be within l5-feet from the drivable surface.

F'IRE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS

68 fte building shall have illuminated addresses visible from the sreet or drive fronting

the property. Size and location ofaddress identification shall be reviewed and

aooroved bv the Fire Marshal

I FD

69 Prior to the issuance of any improvement plans or building permits, the Community
Development and Fire Deparhnents shall review and approve all detailed design plans

for accessibility ofemergency fire equipment, fire hydrant flow location, and other

construction features.

I,B FD

70. All fire protection devices shall be designed to be located on site: fre hydrants, fue

department connections, post indicator valves, etc. of-site devices cannot be used to

serve the building. A water model analysis that proves the minimum fire flow will be

required before any permits are issued. The fue sprinkler riser location shall be inside a

Fire Conffol Room (5' X 7'minimum) with a full-sized
shared with other buildine utilities. The room shall only

3'-0" door. This room can be a

be accessible from the exterior.

I,B FD

7t. All-weather emergency accoss roads and fue hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be

provided before combustible material or vertical construction is allowed on site. All-
weather access is defined as 6" of compacted AB from May I to September 30 and

2"AC over 6" AB from October I to April 30.

I,B FD

72. All on-site cwbing shall be painted as.a fire zone (red-color) to the satisfaction ofthe
Fire Departnent.

I,B FD

Cig of Folsom Page 80

Page 427

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OFAPPROVAL FORTHE VINTAGI SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-T59)

CONDITIONAL USE PERTVIIT, PI,I\I\NEII DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,AI{D DENSITY BONUS
rO3 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

PARKS AND RECREATION REQUIREMENTS

73 The owner/applicant shall provide and record a dedicate pedestrian access and bike trail
easement for the realigned and existing bicycle/pedeshian trail located within the
project site. Upon recordation ofthe bicycle/pedestrian hail easement, the City shall

assume ownership ofthe bicycle/pedestrian tail and all associated maintenance
responsibilities.

I,B P, CD (E)

74 The on-site pedestrian trail which connects to the Class 1 bike trail (within the

dedicated pedestrian access and bike tail easement) shall be maintained by the
owneriapplicant. In addition, the owner/applicant shall install signage at the south end

ofthe new trail connection that reads "Yield to Cross Traffid'.

OG P, CD (E)

POLICE/SECURITY REQUIREMENT

75 The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Deparfinent in order to incorporate all
reasonable crirne prevention measwes. The following security/safety measures shall be
required:
. A security Buard shall be on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence

shall be consfiucted around the perimeter of construction areas. (This requirement
shall be included on the approved construction drawings).

r Securiry measures for the safety ofall construction equipment and unit appliances
shall be employed.

Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at

intersections or screen overhead lighting.

G, I,B PD

MISCELI,ANEOUS REQUIREMENTS

76. The proposed project shall comply with all State and local rules, regulations,

Governor's Declarations, and restictions including but not limited to: Proclamation of
a State of Emergency due to drought conditions issued by the Govemor of Califomia on
October 19,2021 relative to water usage and conservation, requirements relative to
water usage and conservation established by the State Water Resources Control Board,

and water usage and conservation requirements established within the Folsom
Municipal Code, (Seclion 13.26 Water Conservationl or amended from time to time.

I,B,OG cD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 81

Page 428

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS
See attached tables of conditions for which the following legend applies.

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT WIIENREQUIRED

CD
(P)
(E)
(B)
(F)

Comrnunity Development Departrnent
Planning Division
Engineering Division
Building Division
Fire Division

I Prior to aDproval of Improvement Plans

M Prior to approval of Final Map
B Prior to issuance of first Building Permit
o Prior to aDproval of Occupancy Permit
G Prior to issuance of Grading Permit

PW Public Works Deparhnent DC During construction
PR Park and Recreation Department OG On-soing requirement
PD Police Deparftnent

City of Folsom Page 82

Page 429

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 5

Vicinity Map

City of Folsom

Page 83

Page 430

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 6

Site Plann dated October 17,2022

City of Folsom

Page 84

Page 431

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 7

Preliminary Utility Plan
Dated November 16,2021

City of Folsom

Page 85

Page 432

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Attachment I

Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan
Dated October 17,2022

City of Folsom

Page 86

Page 433

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment I

Preliminary Grading Sections
Dated October 17,2022

City of Folsom

Page 87

Page 434

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 10

Preliminary Landscape and lrrigation Plans
Dated October 20,2022

City of Folsom

Page 88

Page 435

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 11

Preliminary Tree lmpact Plan
Dated October 17,2022

City of Folsom

Page 89

Page 436

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 13

Preliminary Access and Girculation Plan
Dated October 17,2022

City of Folsom

Page 90

Page 437

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



.l

Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 14

Preliminary Fire Access Plan
Dated October 17,2022

City of Folsom

Page 91

Page 438

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 15

Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details
Dated November 3,2021

City of Folsom

Page 92

Page 439

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 16

Building Elevations and Floor Plans
Dated June 3,2022

City of Folsom

Page 93

Page 440

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 17

Color Building Renderings
Dated June 3,2022

City of Folsom

Page 94

Page 441

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 18

Building Site Sections
Dated June 3,2022

City of Folsom

Page 95

Page 442

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 19

Golor and Materials Board

City of Folsom

Page 96

Page 443

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 20

Vintage Senior Apartments Booklet
(Separate Bound Document)

City of Folsom

Page 97

Page 444

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 21

Site Photographs

City of Folsom

Page 98

Page 445

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment22

Transportation lm pact Study
Dated July, 2022

City of Folsom

Page 99

Page 446

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 23

Parking Memorandum, dated October 17,2022

City of Folsom

Page 100

Page 447

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment24

Parking Gase Study, dated January 3,2023

City of Folsom

Page 101

Page 448

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 25

lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaratioh, and
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program,

dated November, 2022 (electronic version
available for viewing at

www.folsom.Ga.us/q overnmenucommunitv-
develpmenuplanninq -se rv i ces/cu rre nt-p ro i ect-

information

City of Folsom

Page 102

Page 449

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 26

Gomment Letters from Public Agencies

City of Folsom

Page 103

Page 450

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment2T

Gomment Letters from Residents

City of Folsom

Page 104

Page 451

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 28

CEQA Response Memorandum
Dated January 3, 2023

City of Folsom

Page 105

Page 452

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 12

Preliminary Oak Tree Mitigation Plan
Dated October 20,2022

City of Folsom

Page 106

Page 453

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159')
January 18,2023

Attachment 5

Vicinity Map

Page 454

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vicinity Map
F(}x,g()lvjl

Project Site

Page 455

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Affachment 6

Site Plan, dated October 17 , 2022

Page 456

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



l4ut&gc-
GsddrEe

lrlil

8-'*.""
ffi'***"

@rtri

!@
Dmol{aT $Ml,sY

ffi(cs

ffiLffi

ffitls@d+ffiJ*t

PRI.]I,IMINARY SI'II.], I'I AN

NATOMA StrNIOR
APARTMtrNTS

CITY OI.'FOISOM, CA

siltEl'
sPt

EE
lf t*r*t*+*-*;

tlt O..n.d onv., suiic?"o

Pnon.' (o,5) 60r'o"o7

Page 457

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 7

Preliminary Utility Plan
Dated November 16,2021

Page 458

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



-{! };t:r

rFR-*-*
Pho.e:(e'6t60. or.,

PRIIIIMINARY I.iI]I,TTY PK\N

NATOMA SE,NIOR
APARTMENTS

CITY OF FOISOM, CA

nlglmb: ?Romb uhlsc
illuu!l!!I-

*;r;,

?/

+!;:+-_4--

,'"***i/

'. I

- -lL l__

/ '-\i j4
EI

*4
,!i
i!

1. l
^Ato!i 

si:Ir9il nliSr$lhl:
Pr!l-i{lNitr L'fli.tlY ft,nil

/th\

''{a)"

B;IlFtr-Ft-

Page 459

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -159)
January 18,2023

Attachment I

Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan
Dated October 17,2022

Page 460

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



sl r)\ttr rllA ltQlf ir\n:\r\
ffi!rJ,'\'i

ffirrr{ns}

st t ilrr

L-E
Iiso:tote.+***

PRIil.lI,llNARY GItr\I)lNG PLIIN

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTME,NTS

cnY oF rotsotl, cA

t4i!J!-
u{!rur sp-(r!]t !l!!I\q

\ rrl'o'

-:!!-!t!:!t!!_-gEq:l.--,,...',''
F8.,."'.".,.
rl"*.r."".-
Iil"*"'^'.'"

$$+iL 
'

'a --:*

-\L -- --

-z---*-'-

a.!

't,

-,t''.- -!- -+- Nitoy^ s!:Nlo& il,lRr\!|N]s
Pklt.tglNASY cRAolNc l,r.AN

octEaul r?. ?o22

i{
€! .,,/ /a \-"w'

s

EtrFTET:C;;=

,"1

.'.d
l.:'

1

Page 461

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Vintage Senior Apartmenis (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment I

Preliminary Grading Sections
Dated October 17, 2022

Page 462

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



LTElf .**t t"+*+*
,ho^er(116)6os qo7

I'ITIi:I,Ii\IINARY GRAI)ING SIiC-'[IONS

NATOMA SE,NIOR
APARTMENTS

cnY ()l'r,orsOM, oA

,ir..u,
ii. *y.t"!'

ffi_-ffid
;ii

?

..','...*-'l
J

I .l
:.gcr,q _34.1

"1

i

e|6:so6rrtd \$_,

l:
1@ /r- Dl()n1.11;\ll()Nl{n\11:Rl}l;lAll,

l-/ffi

n'\ (xr.\Dr\(; s}:cr10N -silu:t:t \v[)[:\Isc- u\sl olj PRlsO\ lt0Al)

Eli
[,.^_.,,",

N tO\ln SiiNlOn 4111fr-!l

I
I

PN!II I\IINARY CRADItrC

$i:l;rEffi;;ird slll:l-1

Page 463

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



a (:nAIns(;5ll:11()tr"

silEgr FMnd:(!r6) 5or'o7o7

FA".-"'.-*

/ii\ (t{ DIN( ; staal():.'(;/ffi-

/6}\ (;lL\DlI(; S!:(:llOS
\:7ffi

|drd*'6't'* W

I

FGFGI+ts-J
SENIOR APARTMENM

Page 464

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vinhge Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 10

Preliminary Landscape and lrrigation Plans
Dated October 20,2022

a

Page 465

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



i,".{r! !r }r,,a-i I -q.n r&,rn ,iir.,l--' , "" :.,

v:) 6()s i;:

ll NVlci ldvfSCNVl AUVNIwll3la S.iNlW i UVdV COIN :S Vr/iC] VN

I*

'J- \---*-

)

:,.,/ \\/'

{'

'a1a-

',., rrqir.r.i\ri-

.rP iY:ri*:.-\
$

"1

i 
'.$ 

\i:j::_JL*
,l,rrcE,ta rtc:1rtsnr jl'1ra

!r:5! ldr.c !&! 5\rrric:
sf!1 scfla a\rcoior3x lrr \r5::dr 9\[srx!

Jn L 1r !xlwn9 i]l!l cl*'rd !rr *og4c{
rr)5!rd rr! Borr $!l5roa cR tr\lnnoa o!
3SN*SIC !l V:!v Sal d CEC" * tJ$ lllx',!:rr:Cs
illmn: ! lYdlA:t9rrcilrlt'lllol rYlstrliaY

:::
i,; :

I
I
I

. t;.

f,

Page 466

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



(.t

I

T

f
i!Af I]MA qFNIOD ADA'TI1I:SIS col oD r at{r)sa aor: Dl lr{ l]C ll!fiFLa

:,":l:1:i'X.'''iJ "'"'""

Page 467

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



t. ,, :,

rl

:i

i '::

1r :

i:

t- i: ''

,l'r,,
:?;,
i1:r

: fi
a ).7

Ii_ Lr;_.!-Ir j,-.--:_j .

rii, i

+!;t

z
o
3

: t;" ',

:'-{,'
-..":

:r'..*{'t.'l,.

II;:ii
li.
ir

j:-..'

i":'

Page 468

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



. ,-.,.,";"";;i:"*j: &c. *d{or* vr '!csrc:

v 
-lxtq 

trvrm tl Nvtd^INlr^rv slNlwruvdvuorNrsvworvN. ffidct*ffi

=la.+ \-----

I

",/

\ .1"

&lt1r11rl01ttl:!9{r:YrtrSsEffirmtorvillsh.r{Htr8rr** bi

roleldFJrllltstorrlr!!svrf)il/osG@rno 5

^r!swooirrlrt*crBitr)eds

^vdrv^ras$sld 
r)ryDid/.mr

stroNAi, rno YrCD

n 5t

"f..'.-

:r'i'
;!

:.1

Page 469

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



q
TI

..
I

t
!I

t' :i1 i;::aj;!_r._.!.:1... :-r,.: .'

.VINTAGE ALTSO; ii, riorj ltri)ir^ja ^-r:
rii r 2C l.lh{rv,Iru

I I
MONilMFNI SIGN 01 ITDOOI S'AI ING * DINING AQIN

..4

DOG Pi\AK BOCCS llAtl Corrllr BtKt aAcK DrcNrc ir\at I wrrir iJM{tnlr 1A

ouiDooa 8Bo/ KIcHaN 6 ir ut\cts

NA PQFI tllIIlANY i.ANDSCA}E IMAG: BOAAD

Page 470

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vcludl AdvNlrr',Jllldd

t

F*Y*ryR*iT**Ks+ --l- .**u*S*t*6u*EF *'S-*'*'$,---
N**-: - f

ffi .sN ffiff;5.,
eq*trws"sil-s*qswuEN
i i .$p

i$i.*t': vi

itr tr N.
N

E

I

@

d w
@

"*n
-J}.

'eos
I. I'...': .:.;.:i
L.L' L r:1!]Ll

i*'i Fnm la-:-*--'ffi

-ffi

ffi

Page 471

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Atrachment 11

Preliminary Tree lmpact Plan
Dated October 17 , 2022

Page 472

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



t[n"-"".-*
r!5 O..h.rd Mv.,svr!! rn.
pbo^.:(or6)60t oro,

'r'lrLl,: IMl,Acl' PIA\

xnr-oNIAStr*Nron
APARTMENTS

cltY oF lolsoM, cA

!

4mn&llqgl.a!

o
{&

xo4,

/t

,fl I

t::' '--1 i''
- . - - -i-,i- , -

jl 
:

\t

-1.:'>'=
(

NAI'O{A SINIOR APAHTMENM
TRE}: II{PACT PLAN
ocTotr:R t?,2022

-'f' (&"
FSF TEFE=I

Page 473

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments
January 18,2023

(PN 21-15e)

Attachment 12

Preliminary Oak Tree Mitigation Plan
Dated October 20,2022

Page 474

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



mLA
ttvt!tox3

s
(8

tzna20n

VINTAGE SENIOR HOUSING

TREE EXHIBIT
t-
I
rn
X

r

v
I

rnx
@{
z
o
-{n
m
rn
V
J
o
D
,n

=Ez

rn
x{
z
o
1p
tn
tn

{
o
@n
:f
m

o
no

aq

D

i9
iid

B€&

:;
e3

2(
!&

:o
:t;

oo,
s:

qg

(
\

//\ o

i-@

q!!
o

olc
PT
:u
5'

T
I
I

1c|
D
ov
o
@
tflg
Jann

oTn
I
-lrn
Jp
m
m

-{o
D
m
3
2

gs
Go

I

t v

'
q

$ru
!

t. 1:

i." # \

I
)

{
,&

It
I
I

rftfrtftFtirq(E:r:!€{!i!i$ri!*{i{Iifrit::{i5t$rtt{8c.8:tit{tiriiu/.f.

4b
f iriilf
?i?t tst

t: ?i 1\'l

::it

r r Iffrr$rf f iri r; i i tIfff ailIrtrftrf rlrif f If irf ilti;I tilIttlll
; : i ;iiti i t i i : rl pl I i iii;r i: 5, t i (tti ati i i i ?fiif i iiiiJ r'i I $i li r! f
lir'rrriliiirilill i iiitt rrli'l rr r i?iliiii?iiiii?ifi ;iii''di f ?ii !
,r'-,r. !rrrrt'!jlill:.:,. r r, .. ',i: :',i;'.i..'..tt.'.::.1:'-
l' aiiiai+if : i;i: :r,i+iir 

: : -i: {ii{.r.:!t;,;.i+ri-.il: .".1r:;j i r
Ll "t',tl'it,-'_.;:,:ir.i...: 

::.i i:i ."i, ::. ii ::

:.::,:,:i:,:,.::r,r,r:-,';-::r:':;:i-.i.1. , ttl ,1,'i ,,, ' ' r:''i ,,1',;;;;;',11". .-1

"i/.
/ ir,ii, r:jnir-'i iiiii i::a:ii;j ri 

^i 
i':-:: i.:-: i-. i..:l ].1i: a :r; i')i::il-:::i.::::-'ail::a t:::l::ii::::,'ir:

.r.:-.;..-ri::tj:iJi;::.:;:..riri.:..;:.:';-'...:.:i.-.::;.a:.a.;a:.a.,.aaia!:t',.at,,r-,,t4.
i : : :;;: :i::..-:i,i.' i ,. i : t!;.i )il , I ilil ii:
; 1, . ,. .::. 11; ..';: j..-il ;:,, r. .'_.:l:j:. :1.. 1

]'
. - -..: ']1;

:

ii;aiii i
rlliitr
r!r' r
!

I

i
t!

!ii
ttit

tl
;f
il
l

t

I
l_

r

L;
!i
,l
li
;i

!
,1 !

t

'! a
{

I
it
Ir:!

i

i

-:{+ ii ?il ::
ll llt

i 1:
I tr

Page 475

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Tree lmpact Summary - Natoma Senlor Apartments

DSH of removed or impocted trees 571.3 (68 totol trees = 47 protected + 2l unprotected)

DSH of preserved protected trees (5O% voule) 182.2 (55 totol trees = 3l protected + 24 unprotected)

Mitigotion plontings on-site oo
DSH Bolonce

ln-Lieu fee

389.2

to be determined

Mitigoted
DSFI

Site Tree Plontings
15 gol trees

24'box trees

3d box trees

quontity
9

20

DSH
I

2

5

o
o
o

No miiigotion is proposed thro

Tuesdoy, Decembe r 2o., 2022

Page 476

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -l 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 13

Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan
Dated October 17 , 2422

Page 477

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



p

PRI':I.lillINARY ACCTSS ANI) CIRCUIzfl'lON PLAN

NATOMA SENIOIT

$r

#

APARTMtrNTS
cnY ot't orsoM, cA

IJIIJD-
I drs@ra:"..*

c

.!-

p

b

\s

ENlf -""******"+ry*

,1

\t
.*.t#h{

"@,
EIJFrc=J

1
I

;-.l. -fl -'--'--
NA',TOVA St:N10R it'iRlVllNl:

Plill l\llNltr iccr:.ss iND
clRcul.llnN PI.AN
o(:1ontl t? 2022

Page 478

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January'18,2023

Atrachment 14

Preliminary Fire Access Plan
Dated October 17 ,2022

Page 479

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FH--,'".---
eh^.:(9r6t6oo.otozll[ifT

PITTiIJMINARY SITI TIRli PI.AN

NATOMA SE,NIOIT
APARTME,NTS

c[fY ol.']'orsoM, cA

!!rg3t!ll$ lwt ];u]ls

n(N.rr!!r 
- 

ii;_-
%

'1r,
, ,,o

a4 
^.,. I

I

I\.')-

---+--:)t:->-
i!

I
I
t

11

,l;
':l
,:E

,@"

, \ rt..u'*, :r
;e *"'

oo*" ArA&lrt:I b-
frnl Pl iI
atll22

wF;l=l;;-l

Page 480

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 15

Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details
Dated November 3,2021

Page 481

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



!
..-..F-

ECIRICAL SI{EET INDEX

E

-

-

E0.1

i

(FACE
of

frxIURE)

LffM fin€ 5CtsEhE Wl!5
Oare w ss * s..He ffs {.e

al@a]wds!*e F,ruffir&
!trN.4tf*b

@ero&M

6f,r..iq6.tadE@

e.s f. & rYsl3'@ ssrd-du@d

O @8fre61ua.€oE.dffi a&

'setg&dr'*.F{sE@ 
ffi

4Ar{*5's{V'd

t*
!tr GGad

o
5aIo
o
F6

-

i-n rn***t:_:::

--i@

EI
z
lrl
t,
a

o
k
22a'

{ilrN.}

r,dj\IED LI6FTI!I3 ELEC'RICAL DEIAII.

dIAt! MTESa€iNEDtgt&
-.mN@eq6e

arr6s*e61

- 
Gdide.aireteB &@.et

-J!!,''aFarcwa**ww@ 
ffi

4rRs^'i6w
&et@:dEr

*ffit*uN

-l'd-MriklJl*k^.trasn'@-fuffi@rd 
@tuE

{!& 16 @ru@t rft r!484 roarst
ffid@ aeG{6*
ffi4's5'l&S

66a EErL !rrua* {6ffiMbasw

ra€ws4s

-Ba 
F ELn-a'k,ru e & @€h'E{g&

- 
taLu.tMr*t 0 4'tA E@'rMW I b'dA

o
PER

JrF

Page 482

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



rittrlt\.! 
rilrl

*l I

SriE pLiN - LG*].NG

;\
rrt

' ,.'." I ,,''
nd

G
9ozts *uz "_-

ouI=
a>9

IFE
k<'z

"..."* 
.- -.r'1" *- "'" *' '*' ""

I

I
in
I
I

I

n

i."' ,\\

;r- ;

-

2nfli

*IlwgT

-

NtrM 3?@I
fftrtrA-ufficrJ.mlJffi

:I:u
b-dr

''@'.'{r E1.1

Page 483

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ta \

-{
a

r i-*.a a ? : ; i !

'.1.

ial:
"r:'-'

!-i

i,i ,

ai

:i:$ .

"'l

a

::

aa':oil:
itr
ni
;-,tz
o
ti

: !f'
lf,

it
j

0

tEii
i i6l
uf;[F

elf

fr;i
BFE

iil[
UFI

!u
t!l
-0
I-o
;l

:1
tn*t
il
c)
(-)

Incr
l"
Qz

ii

I

!

E
o

/
/a

ta

,t

3lE

F

ill

Eln
'tE

l$

^'' ;-t r
)a -

!.

lrriil
!- ' l
::r.;!.f,: 

-,

,!

Ifi*
!
B

t
NATOMAS SENIOR

APARTMENTS
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA

m

iu ,@ll
Page 484

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



t'73> utJ d4- .*ts
ffiMtr qwlql!

Eh*
*ffi flFh

wFl@.Flrd$ancs
'r&tm

srgr

ffiw,
ffi

t gull&ElrE

t@

-

-
--

z
->l
=!od *3
E tn-= z'/tY.lZo6

!

".. .... w;it

dKV
# *\wF"

d€H

^I:i3E!i@r

'_'**'
rerslilrcre

ffil;;3

.4'.n' l@.Ar#9,

ir&d-*d^s4.qr

- -". -^E' r iltqgEg
li !4ttrF ryryi, oln e39(lrlA

.",..-- -..':---':;'.1:.:. - - " SeSffiA

-1..1-'l

rI=dE ,r@I

qq6*
*--.--eag.ffi

*h*sq

r-tL;"'- ': l:-r-jr-. :

=i=:1ir-:i:-i-"-t -;i
lt
6ffirllrrtrcilIn-ra

dd.€E

;::miry GIEI

@

ffrriar
. .,.

{.1
n.a

c

t

wit

q

H T

Page 485

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



i;

l

fi
H

;,:
:i'.'' :

iii .,
!ii
i::is_, I

-;\ 
I

- 

t

i ii
,1|!

:it 
'

;

itl

'i,

_',&
JE
\ i:: 6

H
B

-_!3Ll.il

::
lit;

fifitfriil

i''l
[rilillfl

ti
lffiffi

ftr
t
I

I
c

:[i

4I
I
I
I
t
I
I

:;
!ii!.1;'

:il

ii'
I

['s[
tI
iJ

. ,.;i,ll I

.i,'i:
: r:':i :l!;:1.
r; . r,ii

: ,.:. ,

. ,,.1j

ii:,'i:' :.,
,llr'':,r1.:,.llt
: , 

".:.;:.:rr:',:
" ;:r:

ii
ii

fli
ltl

1- :.; -.

ii

riiiiiiirir fl';lii;iil It:
'

E

!

I

t:
1
T

I
i

':
ji

rii!lillll

O':i

i.

ll1

t!j
rl:
iii
ii
ii
il
l'

t
t
I

Iffi1ilril

t
I

I
I

il
IIrl
t
I
I
I
t
I
I
I

I
I f ,i'r 1

:,1', aa

l::;

i:r'.

',1)

,€
E
€
I

::,ii;;

t7
:x
ir
;s

ilrrlrt :i

i
]:

:j

fi

I
:i

clifllll ! il i;;i: ,;: .: :.liiattl;ij ..;:..:

ia

::::[iiiiq

llr

ui

.l
I

{
'1

:i

:i

I'lF

iiili

m
lu
lu

NATOM/\S SENIOR
APARTMENTS

CITY OF FOLSOM, CA
'*1r 

'@il 
;[ e1

Page 486

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



I rt!r!r!!IIiI!

rr!rrrrrlrrrrr.ro!.il!r.r

I
I

t
a

1ir,Ii
i'li
rii.

ri

li:r!t
irll!i

ii,;i;

i

:

iiiit rl|'tit u

i;i
IItR

tifi

li:.,:)!ri
iitii'iii

' i i ii!iliI;ft

t{r;l!!
rlilll:1
!iliil;
ril',;i'i .rli
,i!

I

I

rI

$

!
!\ltlllllifilililE

Ititil!
lilrli
iiiliiii!r l!
i'rr al

i ;i ir

iritl
i ,l !i

i!ili

r; iiliriit riiii!'

irliiiiriiiiiii

liiiiiiitiiiii
i'iii!iii;:t ii !i :

:lllllliilll:::illiii:::lll!'i::i:ili:;l;iil::i:liil;: i il:!,r:'1
,,,a,.r,rrr,rr,'o,{.,,,11r|.,rrt.,r'rr.t.r"!rrr:1'rrrisr r.rrl

r',:!rrr'.^rar,:'.-.11.'::ir.t .r.ri: .''l

!ttgr illllti,.:rll r)itllfiIr;r..r" irtFlr r,tr.,r;,,,.tt. ', ttll.!ltrr' r,tat. :it!tlrt'ilrlrr. rlrlt.: i:r'rtIi.JtPr'.rtr.!t."'l
rrtlrrt!Itlt! rrlltllrr,.rlail {rStlrr,,rrra{J.r :4ilr: :irrli,ll!a
ri.'i..,rIu,'..'t'.':rtrrr'.r.ll',?,lllr' t'!u,",r,lr''r'r
lt!!rrrtltilrrriltl;rir:ltdrrrrtrar;r'irr4.r:'.alIr'.lrittr ..
ritrr,.:rar,!,,rtrr..,r.rft ,,iatir'.'...u..rrrrrr!r,'rtlr'r''?t

;ii:j;:::lil: i: :i:l:: ::il:!il:::l:::.;::!liii:;:li:ii.;lii:;:i:lr!

lllili:tlllllil:!!!ii::iiilili'il:ll::;llliii;l jlli::::;::l:lrl:i

t /! !;

"0,960
8€t *0.

l!
ti

ir

li
i

i
I
i
I

iiiiliiiirtll ,', ii

i
l!
.!
:..-t

ttttlrrtrrr'!
.E

;lritirir:{i$i

i! !E!t gE

iinr,,,urn tu,'i $

ii,",'."$l i
i' "' ' """'tt i'i:i:i;;;;;;!;;i;[ L

;:l:l;;llll ;l;;$

?i1;l:iiIl:::lill

llll):illll:lli:F

ii.rjr!tt I rj
! ' 'i,rlir li;l!iii:, llili'liilri:li

i'' r i:li
il lr
rl ri

!t! lt iil! iili
ri i ::l :li
ii I ir! iil

lq
!=ir
(9

,t:0 r e

,,;,,,,,i,,,;fi fll i
ititiiiii iiiirr! i

rrr'tlrli { t

iiiiliiiii
l!" ' l[,,,i-: t

I'll't i

l;:i;lr lirl 1:

I; '1!
,irrl'i,i.,r r;

,i , i!.' :

lll! Inrurrlrrrit!, .si
gi
rl!

i t tl:l

ilftii

ir{i'

NATC'MAS SENT('R
APAMMENTS

CITY OF FOL$OM. CA*1 
,'li 

i', il

-l,i
!l'
lii'i

I

t

ltPage 487

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 16

Building Elevations and Floor Plans
Dated June 3,2022 -

Page 488

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FOLSOM
NATOMA SENIOR APARTMENTS

VINTAGE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT. 
REVISED

Naloma Senior

Page 489

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



s-
.nF

,- -Ulj

CHARACTER ELEVATIONS

s€lo: 3,|2' = 1'0'0n24x36
Folsom - Natoma 5K

Page 490

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



=

I,1\.<i
5K

GROUNO LEVEL PLAN

BUITDING PLAN . SOUTHERN HALF

- Natoma Senior
NMber

Page 491

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



a

2nd & 3rd LEVEL PLAN

BUILDING PLAN - SOUTHERN HALF

il"
\.i/_ '

- Natoma Senior

Housing

Page 492

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



t{EtfiET{AE {t*!l tltil*

ROOF PIAN

BUITOING PLAN - SOUTHERN HALF

(r'
\at

- Naloma

Page 493

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



{TIilfi gtl{t it{{r

ROOF PLAN

2nd & 3rd LeVEL PLAN

GROUND LEVEL PLAN

BUILDING PLANS- NORTHERN HALF

t:::l

5ll(

rl

Folsom - ffd.1{d 2a6 h

Page 494

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



rtrB
dtrrlir&r-{-r"t

r tm( tr.r.f.n
r ardtx/|wf.rrri.1
t rK@ cr'Jrtt-i
.a@IlnB

' 
gr*E ?..- t .ai

f A1 I
LlU-r!g
t6ffi
llgMaY-:s---.,-

les-
ffi
riar I d-a:s.--..-

ri*a trt's€
F-.<q

dt.g l/dr{n

I ell*' F-vtt.n

f_rrl'i)

TYPICAL UNIT PLANE

i

Page 495

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 17

Golor Building Renderings
Dated June 3,2022

Page 496

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom - Natoma Senior
VIEW FROM NA'TOMA S TREET NORTH

5KVintage

Page 497

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VIEW FROM NATOMA STREET AT ENTRY
Folsom - Senior

Page 498

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ft
r5t

Ein
ul!!l

- Natoma Senior 5K
VIEW FROM BIKE ]RNIL WEST

Housing Development

Page 499

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom Senior
VIEW FROM BIKE TRAIL EASI

5K

Page 500

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 18

Building Site Sections
Dated {une 3,2A22

Page 501

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



r :,1.. !.il i '

r 1ii1:i,"''

wdrqd'I w

Senior
SITE SECTIONS

5K

Page 502

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



SITE SECTIONS
Folsom - Senior

Page 503

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 19

Color and Materials Board

I

Page 504

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



LEGEND

TI W
CDE

ffil
1.2
+Hitijlril:l
I$3,r/],iliir:t Iitliild,i ii
A, B,

DUNN EOWARDS WOODED ACRE (OE6130)

DUNN EDWARDS WOODEN PEG (DE6215)

DUNN EDWAROS MIONIGHT BROWN (DE621O)

1.

B.
c.

E-

3.

STUCCO
BOARD AND BATTEN
BRICK VENEER
ASPHALT SHINGLE
WROUGHT IRON RAILINGV

MATERIAL & COLOR BOARD- Natoma Senior

Page 505

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Aftachment 20

Vintage Senior Apartments Booklet
(Separate Bound Document)

Page 506

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 21

Site Photographs

Page 507

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FH--.--*
Dhon.i {er6}6o! oroT

ITT.]LIMINARY PHOTO EXHII]IT

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTME,I{TS

CTIY OF

a sl|r:ul(ilrr(jffi /-t'\ SIII:Ill0f0
f;ffi

g4.* '*" i;^
u\ srrt: rtt(tt()
t7ffi

/ii\ sfn:It(rfo
t7ffi

A STI}:III(II0
(;ffi

.{\ srl}:lllOl0(ttffi

/i\ sl'11: l,ll(tlI)
( ,/ffi

A Srrt:tll()l()
t;tffi- -@"

n*Lr.EE5--A
\iTovr si.nxlr 4l^l]ttt:ll!
ftiftt!iIln] !iloio a\rllli

ri\ st[-Hl(rfo
f7ffi-

/A Snl:III0IO f '. Srlli Il I(r'l () r\ir SIII:IlftIIO
f;/--

Page 508

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 22

Transportation lm Pact $tudY
Dated JulY, 2022

Page 509

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



P21130

Natoma Senior Apartments Transportation lmpact Study

Folsom, California

Prepared for:

City of Folsom

Helix Environmental, lnc.

FCC 50, LLC

NTKEAR
Prepared By

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING
& MANAGEMENT, INC.

Contact: Tom Kear PhD, PE,

tkear@tkearinc.com,
(e16) 34A-4811
www.tkearinc.com

February2O22
Revised July 2O22

CfvlF.

Page 510

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



(This page intentionally left blank)

Page 511

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTra lmpact

REVISION HISTORY

Date Tltle Comment
Feb I,2022 Draft TIS

Feb LO,2022 Final Tls Clarified geometry for secondary driveway and added review

of at 139 and L44

JulV 5,2O22 Revision reduced to 136 and revised site n.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This analysis describes the effect of the Natoma Senior Apartments project (the Project) on the

motorized and unmotorized transportation systems in Folsom, California' This study has been

prepared for the C6y of Folsom (City), Helix Environmental lnc., and FCC 50, LLC. A Planned

Development permit and Conditional Use Perrnit are requested by the applicant for the proposed

136 age-restricted affordable apartments'

Proiect Description

Figure ES-l provides a Project vicinity map. The Project consists of 136 one- and two-bedroom

affordable, age restricted, apartrnents located across from the main entrance to Folsom State

prison at 102 Natoma St, Folsom, CA 95530 (parcel 071-0320-042). Two access points to East

Natoma St are planned: a full access driveway aligned with Prison Rd, and a right-in-right-out

driveway near the eastern edge of the Project site. One hundred thirty-six parking stalls are

included along the drive isle along the southern and eastern edges of the Proiect. A preliminary

site plan is provided as Figure ES-2.

Accessible pathways are planned around the building to provide a walking path for residents.

Sidewalks along the Project's East Natoma Sffeet frontage are included from Prison Rd to the

edge of the existing sidewalk at Cimmaron Circle. The existing multi-use trail connection from

the Oak parkway trail will be preserved, and a pedestrian connection will be added southernly

from the Project to the Oak Parkway Trail.

The site is designated Professional-Office (PO) in the General Plan and zoned as Business

professional- Planned Development District (BP-PD). With the Planned Development Permit and

conditional Use Permit being requested the Prolect is consistent with the adopted General Plan

and zoning,

5l f nEan wrrywtkearrnc.com

Page 512

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation I mpa ct Studv

6 Natoma Senior APartments Sl rrran
Vlclnlty MaP

4,^\
o

C,{slrto&araJa

n-td
5{

,l

,!s1

FROJECT

. tt(

-"*

ciry Hallft

t4Eyrr "-..."

\"a
+4
,dral-

a\F

,'.6,€ ,(b

f
Figure ES-l.Scholar Way Senior Housing Vicinity Map

Slrnrnn w'w,tkeerrnc.com

Page 513

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senlor Apartments
Folsom,

Callfornia
lmoact Studv

{#.*,,..---. -'

:itr4n t.

r. ffi -I
tfr::-.--- I
lr.,--... IIf.-.* Ilr:r --. 1lEl,-** |

l,Rl;l.lMh-AllY sl'llt PIAN

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTMENTS

cIt"Y Or lOI.90!1, CA

I dtHl'.1:'*'* .--- -;; itta*tffi - +J{,4 I
t --." I

ts€r::::--=:-jj

v .t

:L.

U#

qb

Flgure ES-z, Prellmlnary Slte Plan

S f nEnn wwwtkea'nc.com
iil

Page 514

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

Analvsi!"5.coPe

The analysis considers the traffic operations at intersections in Folsom that could potentially be

impacted by project traffic. This TIS considers two study scenarios:

o Existing 2022 without Project condition

r Existing 2022 with Project condition

The two driveway intersections (shown in Figure ES-2) were evaluated for conformity to City

policies and policies from the adopted Folsom General Plan. lnternal circutation and sight lines,

parking supply and fire access were all considered'

Table E5-1. StudY lntersections

locatlon Control

1. East Natoma St/Prison Rd Signal

2. East Natoma St/Eastern Proiect DrivewaY (sssc)

Findines

Project impacts are anticipated to be less than significant. Ten project specific findings are made'

Finding 1{Trip Generatlon}: The Project is anticipated to Senerate 441 daily vehicle trips including

39 AM peak-hour vehicle trips, and 41 PM peak-hour vehicle trips. Fewer than 50 peak-hour

project trips are proiected to pass through any intersection'

Finding 2 (Level-of-Service): All study intersections are anticipated to operate at level-of-service

B or better under all study scenarios. The Project is not projected to create new deficiencies or

worsen existing traffic level-of-service, pursuant to General Plan Policy M4.1.3. lmpacts to level-

of-service are considered less than significant'

Finding 3 (Vehicle Miles Traveled): Per capita Project VMT is projected to be at least 15% less

than regional per capita VMT. Project VMT impacts are considered less than significant'

Finding 4 (Parking): The proposed parking supply of 135 spaces (1'00 spaces per unit)' The Project

was found to be adequately Parked'

Finding 5 (Minimum Required Throat Depth!: The standards for driveway throat depths are met.

Finding 6 {Emergency vehicle Access): Emergency vehicle access is adequate'

Finding 7 {Pedesgian and Bicycle}: The Project does not result in impacts to pedestrian and

bicycle facilities. lmpacts to pedestrian and bicycle facilities are considered less than significant.

Finding 8 (Transitf: The Project does not result in impacts to transit facilities. lmpacts to transit

facilities are considered less than significant'

iv

Sl fnEAn wwwtkeartnc.co-,

Page 515

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTranspo rtation lmpact Study

Finding 9 (Driveway Geometry): Proposed geometry for access to East Natoma St is adequate'

Either a raised median or right-turn channelization should be used to limit the secondary (eastern)

driveway to right-in-right-out access' Note that the secondary (eastern) driveway was modeled

assuming a shared eastbound through-right turn lane, without a right turn taper or deceleration

lane. Anticipated eastbound right turning volume is less than 10 vehicles during the AM and PM

peak-hours and neither a right tapper or deceleration lane is required per city of Folsom policy'

However, the c1y reserves the right to require either a taper or pocket at the discretion of the

City Engineer. Finding 10 (Signal timing): With the addition of a fourth leg to the East Natoma

St/Prison Rd intersection, the signal timing and lane geometry was assumed to be configured as

follows, or an equivalent plan to the satisfaction of the city Engineer:

r Eastbound: An eastbound right turn pocket was assumed with 150-feet of storage and a

60-foot taper; for a total of one left, one through, and one right turn lane'

. Westbound:Awestbound leftturn lanewith 100-foot pocket plus5O-foottaperforatotal

of one left and one shared Through-right lane'

. Southbound: The existing exclusive right-turn lane is assumed to be restriped as a

through-right turn lane (for a total of one left and one shared through-right)'

e Northbound: The northbound approach is assumed to provide one left and one shared

through-right lane. The northbound through-right lane is assumed to be in a 70' turn

pocket Plus 60'taPer.
o Timing: Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and

southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 second northbound

southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and

G2 second eastbound and westbound through phases. Crosswalks are assumed across all

legs of the intersection with flashing don't walk phases set to 22 seconds to accommodate

a 3 foot per seconding walking speed'

city staff have noted that the East Natoma st/Prison Rd intersection may be an excellent location

for protected-permissive left-turn phasing (i.e., "a flashing yellow arrow" to allow left turns during

the conflicting through phase). Such phasing would increase the intersection capacity and reduce

queuing for the eastbound through movement. lt is our professional judgement that novel

phasing plans, such as protected-permissive phasing, have the potentialto confuse elderly drivers

and pedestrians, resulting in increased accident rates. Because protected-permissive phasing is

not necessary to maintain the General Plan level-of-service goals we do not recommend it for the

entrance to age-restricted housing. The project adds a fourth leg to the existing T-intersection,

which requires upgrading the traffic signal hardware. At the discretion of the city Engineer, those

upgrades may include video vehicle detection, connecting the signal into the City traffic

management center, and traffic signal controller upgrades to the satisfaction of the City Engineer'

conditions of approval can be limited to the city of Folsom standard conditions plus a

requirement to time the traffic signal at East Natoma St/Prison Rd to be consistent with finding

10 above, or a similar timing plan, to the satisfaction of the city Engineer'

&I:KHAR \l ! :,:a \t i \"t,|:a. a ; { : I, (. t:.'.t t r

Page 516

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

.::../\t'.: lt,?i,.,lt .. . .'',"5l rnEan
VI

Page 517

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportat ion lmoact StudY

Contents
REVTS|ON H|STORY....... """""" i

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY... .,."."... i

1. |NTRODUCT|ON.............. """"""""""""" 1

1,1 Project Description.. """"""'"""""""' 1

1.2 Report Organization """""""""""""' 1

2. SCENARIOS, SETTING AND STUDY AREA 5

2.1 Study Scenarios..... """"""'""""""""' 5

2.2 Project Area Roadways..'...,.......... """""""""""""'" 5

2.3 Study lntersections """"""""""""""' 5

2.4Transit """""""""""""'6
Folsom Stage Lines and Dial-A-Ride'.........'....'. """"' 5

Sacramento RegionalTransit """""""' 6

El Dorado County Transit '""""""""""'7

2.5 Bicycle Facilities """"""7
3. METHODOLOGY.........." """"""""""""" 13

3.1 Process Overview..... """""""""""" l-3

3.2 Level-of-service Methodology'.'......' """""'""""' 13

lntersection Traffic Operations Analysis.......' """"' 13

3.3 General Plan Thresholds.......'.....'.' """""""""""' 16

Level of Service ..".'.,....... ""-""""""" 16

Bicycle/PedestrianfTransit Facilitles '.' """"""""' 17

3.4 Vehicle Miles Traveled Standards of Significance""""""""" """"""""""""' 17

3.5 Analysis Tools......'..... """""""""""' 18

.........,....,.. 19

4.1 Existing Condition """' 19

Data Sources :"""""""'"""" """"""""' 19

Existing Condition lntersection and Segment Level-of-Service """""""" """"2O

4.2 Assessment of Proposed Project """"'""""""""""22

Trip Generation...........,,.- ""'"""""""'22

Trip Distribution........".."' """""""""22

CITKEAR ',(,tYl I keiJf l :r C..-- {.)' li

:1.

VII

Page 518

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

SignalTiming and Geometry '.'."""""22

4.3 Existing 2022 with Project Conditions 23

5. PROJEgI VMT IMPACTS AND GENERAL PLAN LEVEL-OF.SERVICE CONFORMITY..........,,.,,,,,,",27

5,1Vehicle Miles Traveted......'..""..'.. .'.".."'."'.'.1.."' """"""""""""27
5.2 Conformance with General Plan Level-of-Service Policy,.....'.... .'.'.,'..""""""28

6. OTHER CONS|DERAT|ONS....",....,. .'.......'31

S.l lnternalCirculation and Site Plan Review. "'.""""31

Parking Requirements.'...'."'.....".. """"""""""""" 31-

Minimum Required Throat-Depth....."......"".. """"31

Emergency Vehicle Access """"""""' 32

6.2 Bicycle/Pedestrian/Transit Facilities .'..".'........... """"""""""32
6.3 Queueing 32

6.4 Driveway Geometry.... ""..."'.""""',32

6.5 Fire Lane and lnternal Geometry.... ..."....."'.....""33

5.6 Accident History......... ."*"""""""""33

7. FINDINGS, MITIGATION, AND RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS... 3s

List of Appendices
A. Traffic Counts and SignalTiming Sheets """"""""" A-1

B. Level-of-Service a nd Signal Wa rra nt Ca lculat ions B-1

C. Travet Demand ModelTrip Distribution Plots "'."""'C-1

A f KEAR','v\,'.riLke.irrr'(.r-$i''
vill

Page 519

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

List of Tables
Table 1. Studylntercections and Con$ol """"""""""""5
Table 2. Level-of-Service Criteria for Signalized lntercections """""""" """""""' 14

Table 3. Level-of-service criteria for unsignallzed lntersections.............. '...".'.,"' 15

Table 4. Key ttems and Sources for Geometry and Usage Data

Table 5. Existing 2022 lntersection llelay and Level'of-Service

Table 6. Project Trip 6eneration.'

Table 7. Baseline 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-Service, with and without Project'.....

List of Figures

Figure 1. Natoma Senior Apartments \liciniu Map

Figure 2. Preliminary Site Plan".."

Figure 3. Fotsom Stage Lines Routes 10, 20 and 30""""""""'
Figure 4. Bike Paths, Lanes, and Routes,.

19

20
22

25

2

3

7

9

Figure 5. Sharrow

Figure 6. Class lV BikewaY...

Figure 7. Folsom Bike MaP...'.

Figure 8. Existing Condition Turn Movements and Geometry

Figure 9. Project Trip Distribution ......'.....'..'.'

Figure 10. SACOG SB 743 Regional VMT Screening Map """"

10

1o

Ll
2L

24

29

5l f nfnn w\ryw.tkeartnc.com
tx

Page 520

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation I mpact Studv

{This page intentionally left blank)

..)' ltl' \,/t l ' : i." '5l IKEAR x

Page 521

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

1. INTRODUCTION
This Transportation lmpact Study (TlS) identifies impacts of the proposed Natoma Senior

Apartments proiect (the Project) on the motorized and unmotorized transportation systems in

Folsom, California. This study has been prepared forthe City of Folsom (City), Helix Environmental

lnc., and FCC 50, LLC. A Planned Development Permit and Conditional Use Permit are requested

by the applicant.

L.L Project DescriPtion

Figure 1 provides a Project vicinity map. The Project consists of 136 one- and two-bedroom

affordable, age restricted, apartments located across from the main entrance to Folsom State

prison at 103 E. Natoma St, Folsom, CA 95630 (parcel 071-0320-042). Two access points to East

Natoma St are planned: a full access driveway aligned with Prison Rd, and a right-in-right-out

driveway near the eastern edge of the Projeci site. One hundred thirty-six parking stalls are

included along the drive iste along the southern and eastern edges of the Project.

Accessible pathways are planned around the building to provide a walking path for residents.

Sidewalks along the Project's East Natoma Sfeet frontage are included from Prison Rd to the

edge of the existing sldewalk at Cimmaron Circle. The existing multi-use trail connection from

the Oak parkway trailwill be preserved, and a pedestrian connection will be added southernly

from the Project to the Oak Parkway Trail.

The site is designated Professional-Office (PO) in the General Plan and zoned as Business

professional- planned Development Dlstrict (BP-PD). With the Planned Development Permit and

Conditional Use permit being requested the Proiect is consistent with the adopted General Plan

and zoning.

1.2 Report Organization
This report includes the following sections: lntroduction, Setting and Study Area (key roadways

and intersections, regulatory setting, and analysis scenarios); Methodology (detailing the analysis

procedures); analysis sections; discussion of other considerations, and findings and

recommendations,

1S f nEen w\ryw.tkearrnc.com

Page 522

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmoact Studv

6 Natoma Senior Apartments 5l rrrnn
Vlcinlty Map

h,-
9

tr
o$nr+rrr

C{ty Hallft

di91

PROJECT
.}

E\"i-
rf'

.+
-a-*

:@.'Fa$ry@,

Figure 1. Natoma Senior Apartments Vicinity Map

""*..-*t'4rst

2Slfnfnn www.tkearrnc.com

Page 523

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senlor Apartments Folsom,
callfornialmoact Studv

Pllt:l,lMlliARY Sr l l: Plr{N

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTMENTS

cl'tY oh'l.otsc),!l, cA
":,':': 

.:i.

-*

lru;:x-uil*l&-,-* ....".,.-l

I*til$!na:-;iri+.l

v t

I
--:!" *

I,

'qb.
t.|+

Flgure 2. Prdlmlnary Slto Plrn

5 f fffan www.tkeannccom

]ros!$ -

3

Page 524

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

\.. ,i\:la.t' 1": '.. 1.\
4Il rnrnn

Page 525

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportat ion lmpact

2, SCENARIOS, SETT1NG AND STUDY AREA

The project generates fewer than 50 peak-hour trips which is the City's threshold for requiring the

evaluation of project traffic on the level-of-service at potential affected intersections.

Consequently, this TIS evaluates traffic operations at the two Projed driveway intersections.

2.1 Study Scenarios
Four scenarios were identified for inclusion in this TIS through consultation with City staff. These

study scenarios were used to evaluate Project impacts relevant to General Plan Policy M4.1'3

relative to level of service. This study determines the weekday AM peak-hour, PM peak-hour, and

Sunday peak-hour level-of-service at study intersections under the following scenarios:

r Existing 2022 without Project condition

r Existing 2O22with Project condition

Analysis of the existing condition reflects the traffic volumes and roadway geometry at the time

the study began, This scenario quantifies performance measures for the existing condition and

serves as a known reference point for those familiar with the study area' These scenarios, with

and without the project, identify Project related impacts anticipated to occur if the Project opened

in 2020.

2,2 Project Area RoadwaYs

Brief descriptions of the key roadways serving the Project site are provided below'

Natoma StlEast Natoma St is a two-lane minor arterial connecting from Folsom Blvd, past Folsom

City Hall, and connecting through Green Valley Rd and onto Empire Ranch Rd. From Folsom Blvd

to Fargo Way, just east of City Hall, there are sidewalks, curb, and gutter with striped class 2 bike

lanes. From Fargo Way to the east, fronting the Project site and Folsom State Prison, there are

dirt shoulders without sidewalks until Folsom Crossing Rd, where East Natoma Street becomes a

four-lane arterialwith sidewalk, curb, gutter, and striped class 2 bike lanes to Empire Ranch Rd.

At Coloma Street, near City Hall, Natoma St caries about 11,000 vehicles per day. A volume which

drops to about L0,000 vehicles per day near the Project Site'

prison Rd is a two-lane north-south access road from East Natoma 5t to Folsom State Prison. lt

has unpaved shoulders without bike lanes or sidewalks. Prison Road is signed to prohibit stopping

or turning within the prison's property'

5l rnEan 5..,a,,iitw lkq;:lr rrc.Cct .t

Page 526

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTranspo rtation lmpact Study

2.3 Study lntersections
There are two study intersections (Table 1), which are the driveway intersections show in the site

plan {Figure 2) shown previously. No segments were selected for analysis'

Table 1. Study Intersections and Cbntrol

Locatlon Contrcl

1. East Natoma St/Prison Rd Signal

2. East Natoma St/Eastern Project Driveway side-st reet-stop-control (sssc)

2.4 Transit
Folsom,s public transportation includes bus and dial-a-ride service provided by the City through

Folsom Stage Lines and light rail seruice provided by Sacramento RegionalTransit District {SRTD)'

El Dorado County Transit (EDC Transit) also provides limited bus connections to El Dorado County.

Folsom Stage Lines and Dial-A-Ride

The Folsom Stage Line buses, operated by SRTD run Monday through Friday and there is no

weekend service available. There are currentlyten buses running on three routes. They are routes

10, 20 and 30 (Figure 3). Routes 10 and 20 intersect at Folsom Lake college. There is no charge to

transferfrom one Folsom Stage Line route to another,

r Route 10 - Serves Historic Folsom, E. Bidwell St., the Broadstone Market Place,

Broadstone plaza, Folsom Aquatics Center, Folsom Lake College, lntel, Kaiser Permanente,

Folsom premium Outlets, Mercy Hospital, Palladio Mall, and CenturyTheatres. lt connects

to light rail and with the RT bus service Line 24. Service with a one-hour headway starts

at 5:25 AM with the last pickup at 7:25 PM.

r Route 20 - Serves Empire Ranch Road, East Natoma Slreet, Vista del Lago High School,

Folsom Lake College and transfers to Route 10. There are one morning and two afternoon

buses on Route 20.

e Route 30 - Serves Folsom State Prison, City Hall, and Woodmere Drive during peak-hours

(5 a.m. - 8:10 a.m. and 2:35 p.m, - 4:55 p.m.) with four AM peak-period buses and five

PM peak-Period buses.

Dial-A-Ride is a curb-to-curb transportation service that operates within the Folsom city limits' lt

provides transportation to residents who have a physical, developmental, or mental disability.

Senior citizens who are 55 years of age or older also qualify for this program'

Sacramento Regional Transit

SRTD light rail provides light rail service via the Gold Line connecting the Historic Folsom, Glenn,

and lron point light rail stations to downtown Sacramento and points in between. Service is

Slrnr,qn 5
wt!w.lkear tr c.cot';

Page 527

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

provided from 5 AM to 7 pM with 30-minute headways. There is also a connection to SRTD bus

route 24 from Folsom Stage Lines route 10 at the MadisonlMain stop. SRTD route 24 provides

service to Sunrise Mall on an approximately hourly headway from 6 AM to 7 PM'

El Dorado County Transit

The EDC Transit route 50X (the 50 Express) operates every hour from 6 AM until 7 PM Monday

through Friday, with service from the Missouri Flat Transfer Center in El Dorado County to the

Folsom lron Point light rail station, Folsom Lake College, dnd back'

pla(a( Counlv
Sacramcno County

ga.l lldomt sL

io..-l:-

LEGEND
. erlstops

- 
Bouto 10

i sctrmt

+ i.l*,sr
r Sncloral 66 glop

(D IrEn3hrPdG

t PubrE Ls.lsl
E L{H Fai gld@e

Ao{h Wayi
(,rE WDy

5
E
I
E5
Et
E

)

N
a

sf

q

t
EoI

P

t
+

I*
d

,

\

j\
t

b"v

t
I

ti
$d +J^" 6

Bct
$I

C

I

d& \

Figure 3. Folsom Stage Lines Routes 1O 20 and 30

2.5 Bicycle Facilities

Folsom is one of the most bike friendly settings in California, with an existing comprehensive

bikeway system that is extensive and connects to a vast number of historical and recreational

attractions. Existing and planned bicycle facilities within the Project area are described in the 2007

rd\*

q,

lls

li\,

7SrrEnn w\,vw,tkean nc.conl

Page 528

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact

Folsom Bikeway Master Planl which provides a framework for the design of a bikeway system

that meets the California Street and Highway Code Section 890-894.2 - Bicycle Transportation Act

and improves safety and convenience for all users. An updated bike plan is currently being

prepared as part of the Folsom Active Transportation Plan. There are four types of bicycle facilities

(Class 1, 2,3, and 4) in Folsom.

Class 1 Bike path: A bikeway physically separated from motorized vehicular traffic by

an open space or barrier and either within the highway right-of-way

or within an independent rlght-of-way (Figure 4).

Class 2 Bike Laner Any portion of roadway designated for bicycle use and defined by

pavement marking, curbs, signs, or other traffic-control devices

(Figure 4),

Class 3 Bike Route: A designated route through high demand corridors on existing

streets and are usually shared with motor vehicles. Are indicated by

periodic signs and do not require pavement markings (Figure 4)' A

variant on Class lll bikeways, shared lanes, or "sharrow" lanes, are

becoming more common, sharrows are a form of class lll bikeways

where the general-purpose lane is too narrow for a bicycle and a

vehicle to travel safely side-by-side within the same lane. A sharrow

symbol painted (Figure 5) on the roadway is used to indicate the

likely lateral location of bikes in the lane to inform motor vehicles.

class 4 Bikeway (separated Bikeway or "cycle Track") The Protected Bikeways Act

of 2o14 (Assembly Bill 1193 - Ting, Chapter 495) established class

lV bikeways for California' Class lV bikeways provide a right-of-

way designated exclusively for bicycle travel adjacent to a

roadway and which are protected from vehicular traffic. Types of

separation include, but are not limited to, grade separation,

flexible posts, inflexible physical barriers, or on-street parking' An

example is shown in Flgure 6.

Figure 7 provides a Folsom bike map. All road segments in the study area include Class 2 bike

lanes. There are existing Class 1 trails paralleling the northern edge of East Natoma St (The Johnny

Cash Trail, connecting Historic Folsom, Folsom Prison, and Folsom Lake). An existin6 Class ltrail
also follows underneath the high voltage line behind the Project site {the oak Parkway Trail).

Grade separated bike/pedestrian tunnels take these trails under Prison Road and East Natoma

l Folsom {2007) Bikeway Master Plan,

slvslgjslrl|j;t s5/e.irv lalll-&p-l>ba*:l*t:k:'tr-1r3{du4!g!$s$rilv-gl$lel-*.!stilit!'

8A f nEnn wr,vvrit<e.:r:nc.cor-

Page 529

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTranspo rtation lmpact Studv

Street. There is also a bike only left turn from eastbound East Natoma St onto the Johnny Cash

Trail at the East Natoma St/Cimmaron Circle intersection.

EIKE PATH

rcoilfi.nd.{ lc-ta
hrku..

BIKE LANE
6. Jo$O

w}{tt
ltnel

oa{

BIKE ROUTE

Figure 4. Bike Paths, Lanes, and Routes

db
ilKE t l{E

ffi

9
\.,lir/W LkeaatnC Ct)lY

lilOTOf
v€Hrcl.Es

OF
lrctloglzED
ElcvcEs

SlrKEAR

Page 530

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

Figure 5. Sharrow

Figure 6. Class lV BikewaY

(source: Gary Kavanagh image L272t lg11/lflic krlplhxpSrtl)

fl IKEAR www tkeartnc.cor'
10

Page 531

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments
Transportation lmPact Study

Folsom
california

uE

a
a
t

I

a

--E:-
I
I

h.

Flgure 7. Folsom Blke MaP

51 rr<ran w!Yv/rkea'nccofr
11

Page 532

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

Californialmpact StudvTransportation

(This page intentionally left blank)

ff IKEAR . : :,.,i\j j ...:i ,t : ti. :,. 11 1 :

72

Page 533

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

3. M ETHODOLOGY
This section provides a process overview, describes traffic forecasting, and discusses the

methods/criteria used to evaluate level-of-service. Discussion of significance criteria is included.

3.1 Process Overview

The overall analysis process was structured to identifu potential adverse transportation effects

related to the project and evaluate consistency with General Plan Policy M4.1'3 relative to traffic

leveFof-seruice.

r Traffic volumes and turning movements for the Existing 2022 Condition were determined

from observed traffic counts taken Tuesday December 7,2O2t'

. Study intersection traffic operations were analyzed both with and without the proposed

project to identify any anticipated inconsistencies with General Plan Policy M4.1.3 relative

to traffic level of service.

o California Environmental euality Act {CEQA) impacts are based on qualitative vehicle

miles of travel (VMT) analysis and significance criteria from the General Plan (Policy NCR

3.1.3), and CEqA guidance from the Governo/s Office of Planning and Research2 3.

3.2 Level-of-service Methodology
LeveFof-service {LOS) is a qualitative indication of the level of delay and congestion experienced

by motorists using an intersection. Levels-of-service are designated by the letters A through F,

with A being the best conditions and F being the worst (high delay and congestion). Calculation

methodologies, measures of performance, and thresholds for each letter grade differ for road

segments, signalized intersections, and unsignalized intersections.

Based on guidance from City staff, the following procedures described below for intersection

traffic operations analysis were utilized for this TIS'

Intersection Traffic Operations Analysis

Signallzed lntersFctions

The methodology from the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) 6th Editiona, are used to analyze

signalized intersections. Level-of-service can be characterized for the entire intersection, each

approach, or by lane group. Control delay alone (the weighted average delay for all vehicles

entering the intersection) is used to characterize leveFof-service for the entire intersection or an

approach. Control delay and volume to capacity ratio are used to characterize level-of-service for

lane groups. The average delay criteria used to determine the level-of-service at signalized

2 OpR (2018) Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation lmpacts ln CEQA,

httul,l*ro,opr,qi!ssrdss.t-ag.L9gg:Zgl-:e$!id- Atl!.isury..pdt'
3 oPR's webinar on sB 743 implementation,4h6/2020'
4 Transportation Research Board (2016) Highway Capacity Manual, Washington, D.C.

5 rKsAn w\ryw tkeartnc.com

73

Page 534

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
Californialmpact Study

intersections is presented in Table 2. The HCM 2010 methodology is used as the primary method'

HCM 2000 methods are only utilized where the signal phasing is incompatible with HCM 2010

methods.

Table 2. Level-of-Service Criteria for Signalized lntersections

level -of-
Servlce

Average DelaYr

A Low Delay: This level-of-seruice occurs when progression is ! 10.0

favorable, and most vehicles arrive during a green phase. Most vehicles do

not stop at all.

B Minimal DelaYs: This leve

short cycle lengths, or both, More vehicles stop than at Los A, causing higher
l-of-service generally occurs with good progression, 10.1-20.0

levels of average delaY

C Acceptable Delay: Delay increases due to only fair progression, longer cycle 20.1-35.0

lengths, or both. lndividual cycle failures {to service all woiting vehicles) may

begin to appear at this level of service. The number of vehicles stopping is

significant, though manY still Passthrough the intersection without stopping

D Approaching Unstable/Tolerable DelaYs: The influence of congestion 35'1-55'0

becomes more noticeable. Longer delays may result from some combination

of unfavorable progression, long cycle lengths, or high v/c ratios' Many

vehicles stop, and the proportion of vehicles not stopping declines. lndividual

cycle failures are noticeable.

E Unstable

the upper limit of acceptable delays. These high delay values generally

indicate poor progression, long cycle lengths, and high vfc ratios. lndividual

Operation/Signif icant Delays: This is considered by many agencies 55'1-80'0

cycle failures are frequent occurrences.

F Excessive DelaYs: This level, considered to be unacceptable to most drivers, > 80.0

or v/c >1,0often occurs with oversaturation {i.e., when arrival flow rates exceed the

capacity of the intersection). lt may also occur at high v^ ratios below 1.00

with many individual cycle failures. Poor progression and long cycle lengths

may atso contribute to such delay levels'

Note 1l Welghted average of delay on all aPProaches' This is the measure used by the Highway Capacity

Manual to determine level-of-service, Any movement with a volume-to-capacity ratio (v/c)

greater than 1'0 is considered to be level-of-service F'

Source: Transportation Research Eoard (2015) Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition, Washington D'C'

U nsisnalieed lntertections

The methodoloBv from HcM oth Edition is used for the analysis of unsignalized intersections. At

an unsignalized intersection, most of the main street traffic is un-delayed and, by definition, have

acceptable conditions. The main street left-turn movements and the minor street movements are

all susceptible to delay of varying degrees. Generally, the higher the main street traffic volumes,

\:,t \,tt.il i 1 (: ;:\{', \1-..( "{it?,ffi rKEAR
t4

Page 535

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senlor Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTran lmpact Study

the higher the delay for the minor movements. Separate methods are utilized for Two-Way Stop-

Controlled (TWSC) i ntersections a nd Al l-Way Sto p-Co ntrol led (AWSC) inte rsections.

r TWSC: The methodology for analysis of two-way stop-controlled intersections calculates

. an average total delay per vehicle for each minor street movement and for the major

street left-turn movements, based on the availability of adequate gaps in the main street

through traffic. A level-of-service designation is assigned to individual movements or
'combinations of movements {in the case of shared lanes} babed upon delay, it is not

defined for the intersection as a whole. Unsignalized intersection level-of-service is for

each movement {or group of movements) based upon the respective average delay per

vehicle. Table 3 presents the average delay criteria used to determine the level-of-service

at TWSC and AWSC intersections'

o AWSC: At all-way stop-controlled intersections, the level-of-service is determined by the

weighted average delay for all vehicles entering the intersection. The methodologies for

these types of intersections calculate a single weighted average delay and leveFof-service

for the intersection as a whole. The average delay criteria used to determine the levelof-

service at all-way stop intersections is the same as that presented in Table 3. Level-of-

service for specific movements can also be determined based on the TWSC methodology.

It is not unusual for some of the minor street movements at unsignalized intersections to have

level-of-service D, E, or F conditions while the major street movements have level-of-service A, B,

or C conditions. ln such a case, the minor street traffic experiences delays that can be substantial

for individual minor street vehicles, but the majority of vehicles using the intersection have very

little delay. Usually in such cases, the minor street traffic volumes are relatively low. lf the minor

street volume is large enough, improvements to reduce the minor street delay may be justified,

such as channelization, widening, or signalization.

5l rKrAR 'ai V'l \t / i.t'. a:a.{ : | : c.c a, 1, 1'

15

Page 536

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

Table 3. Level-of-Service Criteria for Unsicnalized lntersections

Level of
Service
(Losl

Descrlption rwsgr
Average Delay
by Movement

aw5e2
lntersection Wide

Average Delay

{seconds I lseconds I vehiclel

A Little or no delay <10 <10

B Short traffic delay >10and<15 >10and<15

C Average traffic delays >15and<25 >15and<25

D Lonc traffic delaYs >25and<35 >25and<35

E Very long traffic delavs >35and<50 >35and<50

F Extreme delaYs PotentiallY affecting other > 50 (or, v/c >1.01 >50

traffic movements in the intersection

Note 1: Two-Way stop-control {TWSC) level-of-service is calculated separately for each minor street

movement (or shared movement) as well as major street left turns using these criteria' Any

movement with a volume to capacity ratio (v/c) greater than 1.0 is considered to be level-of-

service F.

Note 2i All-Way Stop-Control (AWSC) assessment of level-of-service at the approach and intersection

levels is based solely on control delay'

Sourcer Transportation Research Board (201.6) Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition, Washington D'C,

3,3 General Plan Thresholds

Level of Service

Consistency wph General Plan level-of-service policies for the proposed Project were determined

based on the methods described above and identified as either "conforming" or "non-

conforming". General Plan Policy M4.1.3 addresses level of seryice:

Strive to ochieve ot teosttrafflc Level of Service "D" (or better) for local streets and

roadwaysthroughoutthe city.ln designing ffansportotion improvements, the City

will prioritize use of smart technologies and innovative solutions thot maximize

efficiencies and safety while minimizing the physical footprint. During the course

of pton buildout, it may occur thot temporclly higher levels-of-service result where

roodway improvements hove not been ddequdtely phased os development

proceeds. However, this situotion will be minimized bosed on annual tolfic

studies and monitaring programs. Clty Stoff will report to the City Council at

regulor intervsls via the Capitol lmprovement Program process for the Cauncilto

prioritize projects integrol to ochieving level-of-service D or better.

The General plan Environmental lmpact Report (ElR) includes a criterion addressing potential

impacts at locations that operate at level-of-service E or F under no-project conditions' Under this

standard, a non-conforming situation would occur if the proposed proiect would:

5| f nfAn ,rwwtker.i:i:.csn;
16

Page 537

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartmentg Folsom,
CaliforniaTransport ation lmpact Study

lncreose the averoge delay by five seconds ot more at on intersection that

currently operates (or is projected to operate) ot on unacceptoble level-of-service

u nde r " no- Proiect" co nd itions.

For the purposes of this analysis, level-of-service is considered potentially non-conforming if

implementation of the Pro.iect would result in any of the following:

r Cause an intersection in Folsom that currently operates (or is projected to operate) at

level-of-service D or better to degrade to level-of-service E, or worse;

r lncrease the average delay by five seconds or more at an intersection in Folsom that

currently operates {or is projected to operate) at an unacceptable level-of-service E or F'

Bicycle/Pedestria n/Transit Faci I ities

An impact is considered significant if implementation of the Project would:

o lnhibit the use of bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities;

r Eliminate existing bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities;

o prevent the implementation of planned bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities.

3.4 Vehicle Miles Traveled Standards of Significance

Under State Law (SB 7431, onJuly 1, 2020, vehicle miles traveled (VMT) will become the only

metric for evaluating significant transportation impacts in environmental impact analyses

required under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Without specific General Plan

guidance for VMT thresholds, this analysis uses a qualitative screening against The Governors'

Office of planning and Research (OPR) guidance of a !5016 per capita VMT reduction and utilizes

OPR's suggested exemption for affordable housing proiects'

Folsom General Plan policy NcR 3.1.3 addresses VMT, as stated below:

policy NCR 3.1.3 "Encourage efforts to reduce the amount of vehicle miles traveled (VMT).

These efforts could include encouraging mixed-use development promoting a

jobslhousing balance, and encouraging alternative transportation such as

walking, cycling, and public transit'"

OpR has published guidance recommending a CEQA threshold for transportation impacts of land

use projects of a IS%VMT reduction per capita, relative to either city or regional averages

fl IKEAR ',1, lrrW I i({}itf i na.CO iYl

17

Page 538

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

based on the California's Climate Scoping Plans. Qualitative assessment of VMT reduction is

acceptable to screen Projects6.

Based on these criteria, a project will be considered to have a potentially significant impact if:

o per capita VMT from residential proiects is anticipated to be greater than 85% of the

regional average Per capita VMT'

r The project is anticipated to inhibit implementation of planned pedestrian, bicycle, or

transit imProvements'

3.5 Analysis Tools

Llvel-of-S-ervice
Control delays and level-of-service for study intersections were calculated using the Synchro 117

analysis software (Version 11.1, build 1, revision 6). synchro implements the rnethodologies of

the 6th Edition of the Highway Capacity Manualto modeltraffic controls and vehicle delay.

The software requires data on road characteristics (geometric), traffic counts, and the signal

timing data for each analysis intersection. ln general, default parameters were used, except in

locations where specific field data are available. Heavy vehicle percentaBes of 2% were assumed

during the peak hour.

VMT
ro support jurisdictions' s8743 implementation, The Sacramento Area Council of GovernmentS

(SACOG) staff developed thresholds and sffeening maps for residential and office projects, using

outputs from the 2016 base year travel demand model run for the 2020 Metropolitan

Transportation plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies (MTP/SCS)' SACOG travel demand

model is activity/tour based and is designed to estimate an individual's daily travel, accounting

for land use, transportation and demographics that influence peoples'travel behaviors.

For residential projects, the threshold is defined as total household VMT per capita achieving

L5% ol reduction comparing to regional {or any appropriate sub-area} average' The SACOG

screening map uses "hex" geography, with each hex being about 1000feet on edge' Residential

VMT per capita per hex is calculated by tallying all household VMTs, including VMT traveling

outside the region, generated by the residents living at the hex and divided by the total

population in the hex. Hexes are then color coded with green and blue hexes depicting

neighborhoods with at least a 15% reduction in residentialvMT relative to the sAcoc region,

yellow, orange, pink and red hexes have less tha n a 15% VMT reduction'

s OpR (2018) Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation lmpacts ln CEQA,

b$pflwv/ts;ru
5 OPR'S webinar on SB 743 implementation,4/t6/2A2Q'
7 h ttr:s://www. traf {'ic wate.qgttrllynrlrc-5ludis.l-'llll

SlrnEnn rr\ryw tkearrnc.com

18

Page 539

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

4. EXISTING 2022 CONDITION
This section presents the Existing condition. For purposes of this Tls, Existing conditions represent

typical midweek, non-holiday, traffic volumes in 20228

4.1 Existing Condition

Data Sources

The analysis tools require a variety of data to generate the evaluation criteria. The following

sections describe data collection procedures for Existing Conditions. There were three primary

data elements (roadway characteristics, intersection turning movement counts, and traffic

control data); and two supplementary elements (other recent studies, and field data) that

comprised the data collection program for this traffic analysis'

Roadruav Geometlv ald Usage Characteristicq

The geometry and usage data for the analysis were collected through aerial photographs, field

visits, and prior studies. Current intersection geometry was field validated. Table 4 shows the key

items included in the geometric data and the source for each item.

Table 4. Kev ltems and Sources for Geometry and Usage Data

SourceKey ltem

Lane configurations and width

Lane utilization
lntersection sPacing

Length ofstorage baYs

Transit stops and routes

Aerial photographs and field visits

Prior studies, aerial photographs, and field visits

Aerial photographs and field visits

Aerial photographs and field visits

Transit schedules, aerial photographs, and field visits

Turn proh ibitions or allowance Aerial photograPh s and field visits

Lane configuratlons and width - These data specify the number of lanes and the width of the

roadway in each direction, and the directional turns that are allowed from each lane'

Lane utilization - These data specify how lanes are used by drivers, such as traffic distribution

between lanes on a multi-lane roadway'

Intersection spacing - These data refer to the distance (in feet) between intersections.

Length of storage bays - These data refer to the length (in feet) of available storage for left-

turning or right-turning vehicles where exclusive turn lanes are available. lt is collected for right-

turn lanes when the parking lane is used as a right-turn lane'

s Traffic Counts were collected on Tuesday December 7 ,2A21

S rKtAR ,r,tw l{ea}.rf 1i.to''1r

L9

Page 540

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTra lmpact Stu dy

Transit stops and routes - A transit stop is an area where passengers await, board, alight, and

transfer between transit vehicles. A transit route is the roadway that transit vehicles operate on.

Turn prohibitions or allowance - These data specify if right turns on red (RTOR) are allowed on

the roadway,

lntersection Tsrnins Movement Counts

Existing morning and evening peak-period vehicle and pedestrian turning movement counts were

collected at study intersections on Tuesday December 7,2027' Traffic count data sheets are

provided in Appendix A of this TlS. Peak-hour traffic counts were used to conduct the intersection

level-of-service analysis. Turning movement counts at consecutive intersections were balanced

and adjusted where appropriate to conservatively reflect existing traffic flows. Observed

intersection peak hour factors (PHF) were applied. Figure 8 provides a summary of the

intersection lane geometry and peak-period turning movements under Existing Conditions As well

as Project traffic and Existing Plus Project conditions).

Existing Condition lntersection and Segment Level-of-Service

Table 5 presents a summary of level-of-service results for the study intersections under Existing

Conditions, along with 957o eueue lengths for left turns. All study intersections operate at level-

of-service A or better during the AM, PM, and Sunday peak hours. Calculation sheets for

intersection delay and level-of-service are provided in Appendix B. Left turn queues are

adequately accommodated by the existing left turn storage pockets'

Table 5 2022 Intersection and Level-of-Service

'SSSC = Side Street StoP control

\.j\ry\^; t, <t'ljl tl\l: C.,-ji1.1

Control
No ProJect {Delay and

level-of-Servke)

AM I prta
lntersectlon

9.1 ASicnal 9.3 AE Natoma St/Prison Rd

nlasssc n/a
Eastern Project

Driveway

ilo Prdect
95% Queues {Feet)

AM I pr,rr

Approachlntersectaon

30'L73'EB Left

nla
^/a

WB Left
49'22'SB Left
nlan/aNB Left

E Natoma St/Prison Rd

n/aNB nla
Eastern Proiect

Driveway

fl rnren
20

Page 541

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTrans lmpact Study

6 Natoma Senior APPartments 5l rnrnn

2022 Volume, Control & GeometrY

2022
No Project

Project Only

2022
Plus Profect

AM(PM} I

Figure 8. Existing Condition Turn Movements and Geometry.

I taSIX,,

'i---i
].:j:

i]l:bi:i{i: ..- 'i: i r-:::::i

- 
601i393t

I .iri: :iai{i,':,.: :;l

4

:li'I

:i;a:
I

I

!

\ 6416!
537{387i

: :,<i ali:ia,i\ri:;i

!.lill:2.r1 -/
.i- /(.1tj'tl

o

N
@-

dg
NO

u;.:;J
:a1:
:iri

- 
8{l1l

(
.;5(5 )

+ts)T

o

t

!,:'l
i: al ::

0t0tL otot

f Btlli

i :1:i :li::'.I:': i;'

. lz

- :-. :i

..,1 9--P
'.* --6.:: 

=>a: >

{

i!

o

L.-r a,) i::'

lL
,i

aot -/
4(5) -_
a(51 \

_ 609{404t

t :\; |t.;inr!1, rl

lj, i r:,tr:il
It r \

o

(1l

:::.:

d

ll

ir

di

i r,:, i.l:::ir,ra.l >:

13g122i )
3g 1 1494) 

-4(5r \

o

64(61

-\- 53713971

/'A\11).t-

l.

5l rnran !v!vwrkea.nccorl
2t

Page 542

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

4.2 Assessment of ProPosed Project

Trip Generation
projected traffic generated by the proposed Project was calculated using trip generation factors

from the lnstitute of Transportation Engineers (lTE) Trip Generation Manual, 1lth Edition (202L1,

and is provided in Table 5 below.

Table 5. Project TriP Generation

Source: ITE (2021) Trip Generation Manual, lnstitute of Transportation Engineers, Washington DC (Higher

value of either the average rate or the fitted eguation-based rate for peak hour of generator).

Trip Distribution
Trip distribution was based on observed traffic counts and select zone analysis within the travel

demand model. New Project trips were distributed as follows:

c 48%tofirom the west on East Natoma Street

o 48% tofrom the east on East Natoma Street

o 4Yotoffrom the north via Prison Road

Project trip assignment is shown in Figure 9.

Signal Timing and Geometry

With the addition of a fourth leg to the East Natoma St/Prison Rd intersection, the signal timing

and lane geometry was assumed to be configured as follows:

o Eastbound: An eastbound right turn pocket was assumed with 150-feet of storage and a

5o-foot taper; for a total of one left, one through, and one right turn lane.

r Westbound: A westbound left turn lane with 100-foot pocket plus 5O-foot taper for a total

of one left and one shared through-right lane.

r Southbound; The existing exclusive right-turn lane is assumed to be restriped as a

through-right turn lane (for a total of one left and one shared through-right)'

r Northbound: The northbound approach is assumed to provide one left and one shared

through-right lane. The northbound through-right lane is assumed to be in a 70' turn

pocket Plus 60'taPer.
o Timingl Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and

southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle lengh, with 34 second northbound

southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and

WWW 'lX€.ni inC.aOlI

Land Usc
I'E

Cate8ory
QuanttY Data Dally

AM Peak hour PM Peakhour

Total lnbound Outbound Total lnbound Outbound

Senior Adult Housing
(MultifamilY)

2s2
136

dwelling

units

Rate 3.24 0,29 45% 35o/o 0,3 54Yo 46%

Trips 447 39 L7 22 4t 22 19

SlrnEan
22

Page 543

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

Californialmpact Study

62 second eastbound and westbound through phases. Crosswalks are assumed across all

legs of the intersection with flashing don't walk phases set to 22 seconds to accommodate

a 3 feet per seconding walking speed.

City staff have noted that the East Natoma St/Prison Rd intersection may be an excellent location

for protected-permissive left-turn phasing {i.e., "a flashing yellow arrow" to allow left turns during

the conflicting through phase). Such phasing would increase the intersection capacity and reduce

queuing for the eastbound through movement. lt is our professional judgement that novel

phasing plans, such as protected-permissive phasing, have the potentialto confuse elderly drivers

and pedestrians, resulting in increased accident rates. Because protected-permissive phasing is

not necessary to maintain the General Plan level-of-service goals we do not recommend it forthe

entrance to age-restricted housing. The project adds a fourth leg to the existing T-intersection,

which requires upgrading the traffic signal hardware. At the discretion of the City Engineer, those

upgrades may include video vehicle detection, connecting the signal into the City traffic

management centet and traffic signal controller upgrades to the satisfaction of the City Engineer'

The eastern proiect driveway was assumed to be configured as right-in-right-out. Because there

are fewer than ten peak,hour vehicle trips anticlpated to enter the Project via the eastern

driveway, no deceleration lane or taper is necessary'

4.3 Existing 2022 with Proiect Conditions
project peak-hour traffic was added to the Existing 2022 turning volumes at each intersection.

Delay and level-of-service were determined at the study intersections. Figure 8 summarized the

turning movements and lane configurations for the Existing with Proiect Condition. Table 7

presents a summary of level-of-service results for the study intersections under Existing

Conditions. Allstudy intersectaons operate at level-of-service B or better during the AM, PM, and

Sunday peak hours. Calcutation sheets for intersection delay and leveFof-service are provided in

Appendix B, Left turn queues are adequately accommodated by the existing left turn storage

pockets.

5l rKEAR wwvtrkear nc.curr
23

Page 544

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportat ion lmpact Study

6 Natoma Senior Apartrnents 5 rnran
Project Trlp Dlstrlbutlon MaP

,n fOgOm

@ 
rirY * ad;

.:4Cn&!Arlo

.6:6 G

J
Figure 9. Project Trlp Dbtribution

Clty Hall

ft A
4ro

11

""""
&bw(atrtfur

fitae ylrt

- |i 4oloSh\
t cFlt

rrnts$tnl1

^4rf8%

PROJECT

s,4
'o"

..-""

5l ff<Eqn wwwtkearnc.corn
24

Page 545

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

Table 7. Baseline 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-Service, with and without Proiect

lntersectlon Control
No Prolect (Delay and

Level-of-Sewlce)

AM I Pur

Wth Prolect (Delayand
level-of-Servlce]

AM I prrr

E Natoma St/Prison Rd Sienal 9.3 A 9.1 A 1s.9 B 76.7 B

Eastern Project
Driveway sssc nla n/a

10.6 B

(NB)
12.3 B

(NB}

lntersectlon Approach

No Project
95% Queues {Feetl

AM I Pr.a

Wlth Prolect
95% Queuei (Feetl

AM I Pr"r

E Natoma St/Prison Rd

EB Left !73' 30' 166' 37'

WB LEft nla nla 22' 23'

SB Left 22 49', 23', 73'

NB LEft nla nla 27' 27'

Eastern Project
Driveway NB n/a n/a 0 0

'SSSC = Side Street Stop Control

n rKrAR \,,j \../,.t,t', t {}; i I rtc i:.1) 1 
1

25

Page 546

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

a

(This page intentionally left blank)

fl IKFAR ,/y\3vl i tcilr; ta- c.ri i-l

26

Page 547

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom Corporate Center Apartments
Transportation lmpact Studv

5, PROJECT VMT IMPACTS AND GENERAL PLAN LEVEL-OF-SERVICE

CONFORMITY

5.1 Vehicle Miles Traveled

Folsom General Plan policy NCR 3.1.3 addressed vehicle miles traveled (VMT) as shown below:

policy NCR 3.1.3 "Encourage efforts to reduce the amount of vehicle miles traveled (VMT).

These efforts could include encouraging mixed-use development promoting a

jobs/housing balance, and, encouraging alternative transportation such as

walking, cycling, and public transit."

The Governors' Office of Planning and Research (OPR) has published guidance recommending a

CEQA threshold for transportation impacts of land use projects of a tSYo VMT reduction per

capita, relative to either city or regional averages, based on the California's Climate Scoping

Plane. Qualitative assessment of VMT reduction is acceptable to screen proiectslo.

Under State Law {SB 743), VMT became the only CEQA threshold of significance for

transportation impacts on July t,2OZA. Without specific General Plan guidance for VMT

thresholds, this analysis uses qualitative screening against OPR's guidance of a 15% per capita

VMT reduction.

To support jurisdictions'SB743 implementation, SACOG developed thresholds and screening

maps (Figure 10) for residential projectsll, using outputs from the 2016 base year travel

demand model run for the 2020 MTP/SCS. SACOG's travel demand model is activity/tour based

and is designed to estimate an individual's daily travel, accounting for land use, transportation

and demographics that influence peoples'travel behaviors. For residential projects, the

threshold is defined as total household VMT per capita achieving 15% of reduction compared to

regional {or any appropriate sub-area) average VMT. The map uses HEX geography. Residential

VMT per capita per HEX is calculated by tallying all household VMTs, including VMT traveling

outside the region, generated by the residents living at the HEX and divided by the total

population in the HEX. Green hexagons denote areas where residentialVMT is 50% to 85o/o of

the regional average and yellow hexagons denote areas where residentialVMT is 85016to tOOYo

of the regional average.

The project is located within one of the green hexagons with average residential VMT of 17

miles per capita {per day). The Project is anticipated to generate less than 82% of the regional

e OpR {2018) Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation lmpacts ln CEQA,

Xllp/larvvr.qslcl"cs-vLdss:l20fgqfa il.+-3*-IetLrr:jsa!-Advisqnrpdt'
10 oPR's webinar on SB 743 implementation, a/16/202A'
11 SACOG ( 2 02 1 ) h t t rrs : /l s b 74 3 - s "1lof"qpgfd4!d44g$' 

c-olrl

Folsom,
California

6rnren wWW lkeannc.com
27

Page 548

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom Cotporate Center Apartments
Transportation lmpact Study

per capita residential daily VMT of 20.82 miles. The Prolect is therefore anticipated to have a

less-than-signifi cant impact on VMT.

5.2 Conformance with General Plan Level-of-Service Policy

All study intersections are anticipated to operate at level-of-service B or better under all study

scenarios, both w1h and without the addition of Project traffic. The Project is not anticipated to

create new level-of-service deficiencies, or to or worsen any existing deficiencies, based on

General Plan PolicY M4.1.3.

Folsom,
California

5l rnEan www tkearrnc.cotn
28

Page 549

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom Corporate Centel Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

iddr*d$tl

o
+ A A tl " s, r,4orP..r"!<o{ ! 'i ': ?:: 

'

F.' :f 5(crrrAL cq..ts. rnrlrnnb ts d.hnd
ar ldllrur.tiE vdr E' (tdlt:.h!!hq
lsc. trdrctsm c4nr..ns tp t.qhol(q rnr
aNren:r. rlb .r..).Yrr.e! th? 

^r, 
ler

tF! ryqr.rhr iradeno.r vnt !fl aF,r F
x€r { .ildr.t.j br r.l!,.r rrr &urrbrd ?fr..
l.aui.q'rxt Lrydl.9 o,tr& ln. tB'on,
g.nebt., oy h. Frl&.ltfirrng.t ft. ts€\.{d
d'vid.d by dr{ iobtFPt.&tr,n lt. Hl!
tlit.li.ltttr!r E. q.tt!.!a.^rrtL :l
lusr cn. otrhr 6rnv 6r.0r FoJ.dr.r. rsbls
lo *hcn rn.rrr;n9 rt.s6tlian !Fts(rr unr.,
.rq!, esi6( ro 5! trr qad;no.rry. e*
j-!--*:-,.r . .i *.ndrtu
r!<Fi.rl9!B&. ir..t[ Oert il@ d'.n
m.pr.re tr.nd.d t.r t.lorn:don ?utts*! q'ry

lnd.r.loble.tlo.ntrgo r!.oc.,rorrP
cn.ng.r.r gil!.tnrr tr€ !@.ld.nd ti

:1.!'.!::'r il .j.e-rr-,e..
'-rrrrJr:reaL\at:
15 -,'. i-!: - !t":;'-a-!r,,;;J f, !:

|wndd v{ ldudnr o!g* lhan4b
vW !r reS EHFBllUdrd 5/8rl)

AYq id6N WIF OFtr

| -ma**-.rmor

n s*atiotkbdksv
<.6*16ol&rdl^sdf

t

$ "ttt*t*ot*t***

I , tqdr4drtudf

Figure 10. SACOG SB ?43 Reglonal VMT Screenlng Map

{

29

Page 550

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTranspo rtation lmpact StudY

(This page intentionally left blank)

SlrKrAR ,,, 1Vl :'\\.|it iFr , I rl

30

Page 551

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
Californialmpact Study

6. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 lnternal Ctrculation and Site Plan Review

This section reviews parking, driveway throat-depth, and emergency vehicle access shown on the

preliminary site plan shown in Figure 2 (page 3).

Parking Requirements

The C1y does not have an adopted parking standard for age-restricted (senior) multi-family

housing or affordable age-restricted multi-family housing. With a Planned Development (PD),

parking supply is established through the PD permit process'

proposed Project Parking: Proposed Parking consists of 135 spaces (1.00 parking spaces per

unit). This exceeds that of many other recently approved age restricted multi-family projects in

and around Folsom. The 135 spaces include 8 accessible spaces (i.e., with the adiacent space

striped out to provide vehicle access for wheelchairs and/or mobility scooters) and 74 spaces

with electric vehicle charging'

parklng Demand: The ITE Parking Generation Manuall2 lists an average peak parking demand of

0.59 vehicles per dwelling unit for Land Use 252 (Senior Adult Housing-Attached), with a standard

deviation of g.!2.The ITE sample size is small (three obseruations), yet the proposed parking ratio

of 1..00 is more than 3.5 standard deviations greater than the mean parking demand.

Consequently, the proposed parking for the Project is sufficient to meet the anticipated parking

demand with a parking ratio of 1.00.

For comparison, Revel Senior Living, a similar project approved by Folsom in 2018 had a parking

ratio of 0.81 spaces per dwelling unit. The Revel project conducted a parking survey of six similar

Sagamento area facilities. All six facilities were found to use less than 0.60 spaces per dwelling

unit during peak parking demand hours (consistent with the ITE parking demand data referenced

above.)

Finding: The proposed parking supply of 136 spaces is adequate for the 136 multi-family units

proposed in the Project.

M inimum Required Throat-DePth

Minimum Required Throat-Depth (MRTDI: For an 81-150 unit apartment complex, the standard

forthe MRTD is 50 feet13. This So-foot length represents vehicle storage equivalents, which means

the total required length may be achieved by summlng the throat depths for several access points

if more than one access point is to serve the site.

Throat-Depth Provided: As shown on the preliminary site plan in Flgure 2 {page 3), the throat

depths for the primary and second driveways exceed 50 feet and 25 feet, respectively.

12 ITE (2010) parking Generation 4th Edition, lnstitute of Transportation Engineers, Washington DC.

13 Folsom (2020) Design and Procedures Manual and lmprovement Standards, site access Table 12-1,

!$CI:Jlttyy$rJs_bsaneJd6l{( Exl f ileb a n h/ blq, lrd! qa!!s-l@'

S f nEnn wwwtkearrnc.com

31

Page 552

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmoact Studv

Finding: The MRTD of the project driveways meet the standard because the primary drlveway

throat depth meets the minimum standard of 50 feet'

Emergency Vehicle Access

The project,s internal drive isles are designed with minimum 25-foot inner and 50-foot turning

radii to accommodate fire department access'

Finding: Emergency vehicle access is designed consistent with standards and is adequate.

6.2 Bicycle/Pedestrian/Transit Facilities

The project does not inhibit the use of bicycle or pedestrian facilities; eliminate existing bicycle,

or pedestrian facilities; or prevent the implementation of planned bicycle, or pedestrian

facilities. The project includes accessible pathways around the building to provide a walking path

for residents. path connections are planned to paths internal to the Project site, south to the

Oak parkway Trail, and west to the East Natoma St underpass to the Johnny Cash Trail.

Finding: The project has a less-than-significant impact on pedestrians and bicycles' With

relocation of the effected bus stop, transit impacts will be less-than-signiflcant'

6.3 Queueing
Anticipated 9sth-percentile left turn queue lengths were reviewed and are anticipated to be less

than the supplied storage lengths in the turn bays'

Finding: Existingturn pockets are adequate'

6,4 Driveway GeometrY

City standards requires a 60-foot right turn taper in conditions with ten or more peak-hour right

turns into a driveway, and a 150-foot pocket plus 50-foot taper, with 50 or more peak-hour right

turns. Neither project driveway is anticipated to have ten or more right turning vehicles into the

project during the AM or PM peak-hours. The main driveway at the signalized East Natoma

Street/prison Rd intersection includes an eastbound right turn pocket and a westbound left turn

pocket accessing the Project, these are adequate to safely accommodate Project traffic without

hindering existing traffic.

The secondary (eastern) driveway is restricted to right-in-right-out movements and is anticipated

to only have fewer than ten eastbound right-turns into the Project during either the AM or PM

peak hours. No turn pockets are necessary, The eastern driveway should be channelized to restrict

left turns from entering or existing the Project via the eastern driveway. such channelization may

be accomplished by either a triangular island located within the driveway, or by extending the

raised median at the East Natoma st/cimmaron cir intersection west-word across the eastern

Project drivewaY'

Finding: Drivewaygeometry has been determined to be adequate,leftturns atthe eastern Proiect

driveway should be restricted through the use of channelization.

5l f fEnn w\ryw,tkearrnc'corn

32

Page 553

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportati on lmpact Studv

6.5 Fire Lane and lnternal Geometry

The project proposes two access points connected by a fire lane which circles the back of the

proposed apartments. All internal radii have at least a 25' inner radius and S0'outer radius per

City requirements.

6.6 Accident History
potential geometric constraints and safety issues were evaluatedn including driveway spacing,

sight triangles, and Statewide lntegrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) collision data'

Driveway spacing, throat depth, and corner sight distance are all adequate. ln the last five years,

there have been three accidents proximate to the Project site including:

r One eastbound rear-end collection at the existing traffic light,

r Two driving underthe influence (DUl) accidents (one a sideswipe, and the other a single

vehicle overturn.)

These are not accident varieties that would be anticipated to be worsened by the Proiect, and the

project does not require any project specific traffic safety treatments.

r,,r\iirl/ lkei.j rr nc clf t5l rKEAR

33

Page 554

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportatio n Impact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

5l IKEAR .,.,_,,'! l /:,,{t :t t, 1'

34

Page 555

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

7. FINDINGS, MITIGATION, AND RFCOMMENDED CONDITIONS

Finding 1 (Trip Generation|: The Project is anticipated to generate 441 daily vehicle trips including

39 AM peak-hour vehicle trips, and 41 PM peak-hour vehicle trips. Fewer than 50 peak-hour

project trips are projected to pass through any intersection.

Finding 2 (Level-of-service): All study intersections are anticipated to operate at level-of-service

B or better under all study scenarios. The Project is not projected to create new deficiencies or

worsen existing traffic level-of-service, pursuant to General Plan Policy M4.1.3. lmpacts to level-

of-service are considered less than significant'

Finding 3 {Vehicle Miles Traveledf : Per capita Project VMT is projected to be at least 15% less

than regional per capita VMT. Project VMT impacts are considered less than significant.

Finding 4 (parkingl: The proposed parkinB supply of 136 spaces (1.00 spaces per unit). The Project

was found to be adequately parked with either parking ratio.

Finding 5 (Minimum Required Throat Depth): The standards for driveway throat depths are met'

Finding 5 (Emergency Vehicle Accessf : Emergency vehicle access is adequate.

Finding 7 (pedestrian and Bicycle): The Project does not result in impacts to pedestrian and

bicycle facilities. lmpacts to pedestrian and bicycle facilities are considered less than significant.

Finding 8 (Transit): The ProJect does not result in impacts to transit facilities. lmpacts to transit

facilities are considered less than significant'

Flnding 9 (Driveway Geometry): Proposed geometry for access to East Natoma St is adequate.

Either a raised median or right-turn channelization should be used to limit the secondary (eastern)

driveway to right-in-right-out access. Note that the secondary {eastern) driveway was modeled

assuming a shared eastbound through-right turn lane, without a right turn taper or deceleration

lane. Anticipated eastbound right turning volume is less than 10 vehicles during the AM and PM

peak-hours and neither a right tapper or deceleration lane is required per City of Folsom policy.

However, the City reserves the right to require either a taper or pocket at the discretion of the

City Engineer,

Finding t0 (signal Timingl: With the addition of a fourth leg to the East Natoma St/Prison Rd

intersection, the signal timing and lane geometry was assumed to be configured as follows:

r Eastbound: An eastbound right turn pocket was assumed with 150-feet of storage and a

60-foot taper; for a total of one left, one through, and one right turn lane.

r Westbound: A westbound left turn lane with 100-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper for a total

of one left and one shared through-right lane.

o Southbound: The existing exclusive right-turn lane is assumed to be restriped as a

through-right turn lane {for a total of one left and one shared through-right).

'.,llww lke.lrtt:c.cli'r5l rr<Ean

35

Page 556

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportati on lmoact Studv

r Northbound: The northbound approach is assumed to provide one left and one shared

through-right lane. The northbound through-right lane is assumed to be in a 70'turn

pocket Plus 50'taPer'
r Timing: Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and

southbound split phasing. 1.50 second cycle length, with 34 second northbound

southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and

62 second eastbound and westbound through phases. Crosswalks are assumed across all

legs of the intersection with flashing don't walk phases set to 22 seconds to accommodate

a 3 feet per seconding walking speed.

City staff have noted that the East Natoma St/Prison Rd intersection may be an excellent location

for protected-permissive left-turn phasing (i.e., "a flashing yellow arrow" to allow left turns during

the conflicting through phase). Such phasing would increase the intersection capacity and reduce

queuing for the eastbound through movement. lt is our professional judgement that novel

phasing plans, such as protected-permissive phasing, have the potentlalto confuse elderly drlvers

and pedestrians, resulting in increased accident rates. Because protected-permissive phasing is

not necessary to maintain the General Plan level-of-service goals we do not recommend it for the

entrance to age-restricted housing. The proiect adds a fourth leg to the existing T-intersection,

which requires upgrading the trafflc signal hardware. At the discretion of the City Engineer, those

upgrades may include video vehicle detection, connecting the signal into the City traffic

management center, and traffic signal controller upgrades to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

\:( \'t Vi l\. {a, ; 1t \.' {:.C O r.SlIKEAR

36

Page 557

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintagebenior Apartments (PN 21 -159')

January 18,2023

Attachment 23

Parking Memorandufil, dated October 17,2A22

Page 558

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



II,,3 Tl^:8, $i:1]:ilJ V r
MEMORANDUM
Date: October 171h,2022 TG: 1.21286.00

To: Steven Banks, CitY of Folsom

From: Mike Swenson - TransPo GrouP

Jessica Lambert - TransPo GrouP

GC Jenifer Vangerpen - Vintage housing

Subject: Vintage Folsom - Parking Study

The following memorandum summarizes the parking demand analysis that was conducted for the
proposed affordable attached senior housing development in the City of Folsom, CA. City staff

iroviOeA the following comment in response to the initial site plan application.

. Parking: The submitted site plan indicates that l*5 on-site parking spaces

are proposed for the 136-unit senior affordable living community (l:l
parking ratio). The Folsom Municipal code does npt include any specific
parking requirements with regard to senior affordable apartment
communities. As a resul7 a iustification for the proposed parking ratio is

requested (similar proiects?). As part of the parking analysi5 please

provide information on the totalnumber of employees on the proiect

site at any one time. Also, will employees have designated parking

spaces? Project-specific parking standards for this development can be
accommodated through the Planned Development Permit

Project Description
The proposed project is located in Folsom, CA and would include development of up to 136

afforiable attaihed senior housing units with up 136 on-sile parking stalls. The prolect is

proposing to provide 98 1-bedroom units and 38 2-bedroom units and would employ 3.5 fulltime
employees.

Parking Requirements
The Folsom Municipal Code does not include any specific parking requirements with regard to

senior affordable apartment communities, As noted in the City comments, parking requirements

are established through the Planned Development Permit process. The purpose of the following

analysis is to establish a parking supply for the proposed project based on similar projects and

demand rates published in the ITE Parking Generation Manual.

previous proposed senior adult aftached housing developments in Folsom have proposed similar
parking ratios to the current proposal. Table 'l provides a summary of parking ratios for similar

attached senior housing developments in the City,

12'131 113th Avenue NE, Suite 203, Kirkland, WA 98034 | 425.821 366s I tfanspQ irl I i .com

Page 559

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Table 1. Historic CltY of Foleom Senlor Attached Housing Parking Ratios

Number of Unlts Total Parklng Spaces
Parklng Ratlo Supply

{sprce.runlt)Prorect Nrmo

Scholar Way Senior Housing

Avenida Folsom Senior Living

Revel Folsom

110

154

166

1'.t5

168

135

1.05 spaces/unit

1.09 spacesrunit

0.81 spaces/unit

As shown in Table 1, while not specifically affordable housing units, the parking ratlos range

between 0.81 and 1.09 spaces per unit. The proposed project is within the range of similar

projects in the area.

Parking Demand Forecasts
Data was collected and submitted as part of previous applications in the City. Figure 1 _
summarizes the dala that was submitted as part of the Parkrng Suruey Evaluation Revel Folsom

Senior Living Community, Ubora Excellence, April 27,20181'

Trblc l.l

Frclllty Nrntc lacdo TyF'
No of
Unitr

Totrl f of
Prrklng
Strllr

Prrtrd
Csr

Obetrrrd

Prling Stdl
to thlt Rrtlo

iStdlrlLtttlt)

Frrkcd Crr: to
thlti Rrtlo
(C.ru/thla)

Alri$m Carmichael IL i5l 76 49 0.J0 : I 0.12 : I

Crrclsidc ()ak$ Folsom IL 100 69 4E 0.63 : I 0,44 : I

Pe* Fohom Folsom IL 90 83 27 0.!2 : I O,l0 : t

Carpus Conrmns SasrasEnlo IL 126 il 49 0.Jl : I 0.39 : I

lVindinc Canrrons Carrrichael IL 102 7E 5t 0.?6: I 0.50 : I

lil Dorsdo Frtatcs Iil Dorsdo Hilk IL rl0 t5 ?l 0.65 : I 0.55 . I

Rr*l Folron Folrom IL t66 !3t 0.81 : I

' tndcpcndant Living (IL)

Figure 1 On-Site Parking Summary

As shown in Figure 1, the six observed facilities had parking demand ratios less than 0.60 vehicles

per dwelling unit.

Additionally, peak parking demand for the proposed proiect was evaluated based on parking rates

proviaeO iri ihe ITE parking Generation UTu"J (5th Edition) for the Senior Adult Housing -
Attached use. The results are shown in Table 2.

Table 2. Parking Demand 'lTE

El€m6nt
Rosid6ntlal

Unlb
Poak Parklng
Demand Rater

Pesk Psd(lng
Demand

Propo36d
Parking Supply

Excers
Parklng Stallg

Mntage Affordable
Senior Housing2

136 0.61 Per dwelling unit 83 136 +53

1.

2.
ITE avaraga raia,

- AtlechedITE

l parkingsurveyEvaluationRevelFolsomseniorLivingCommunily,UboraExcellence'Apnl27,2O18

2
E"tf
fii

Page 560

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



As shown in Table 2, the ITE average parking demand rate of 0.61 stalls per units results in an

"nti"iput"O 
peak parking demand oi83 vehicles and could be accommodated in the proposed

"rppty 
of tie staits with-a surplus of approximately 53 stalls. Ttre ITE demand rate is also

cohiiitent with the rate observed as part of the Revel Folsom Parking Study. Table 2

demonstrates that there is adequate parking for the proposed senior housing project considering

ni parXing demand rates. Additionaily, affordable housing developments typically result.in lower

pa*ing ae'manO rates than market rati developments; therefore, the resulting analysis should be

considered conservative.

Summary/Justification
The proposed projectwould develop 136 affordable attached senior housing units with up 136 on-

site far*tng stdl6. fne resulting paifing demand ratio of 1:'1 stalls per unit is consistent with

previousty-approved developmlnts in the area. Additionally, as identified in this analysis, the
'ptopo*Jptbject is projected to have adequate parking supply to accommodate the peak parking

demand.

3fif

Page 561

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachrnent 24

Parking Case Study, dated January 3,2023

Page 562

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS

PARKING DEMAND CASE STUDY ANALVSIS

January ?,2023

Vintage Housing has requested their property management company, FPI Management, to perform case

study of real time review of parking demand at seven existing Vintage owned Senior Apartment

communities that dre similarly located in suburban settings. The seven senior properties/projects are as

follows:

1. Vintage at Bouquet Canyon; Santa Clarita, CA

264 Units & 181 Parking Spaces (0.69 Spaces per Unit)

l-bedroom = 182 & 2-bedroom = 82; Total Bedroom = 345 (0.52 spaces per Bedroom)

Z. Vintage atThe Crossings; Reno, NV

23O Units & 175 Parking Spaces {0.76 Spaces per Unit}

1-bedroom = 140 & 2-bedroom = 90; Total Bedroom = 320 (0.55 spaces per Bedroom)

3. Vintage at Sanctuary; Reno, NV

208 Units & 100 Parking Spaces {0'48 Spaces per Unit}

Studio = 3 & 1-bedroom = 205i Total Bedroom = 208 (0.48 spaces per Bedroom)

4. Vintage at Seven Hills; Reno NV

244 Units & 244 Parking Spaces {1'0 Spaces per Unit}

1-bedroom = 70 & 2-bedroom = 1.74; Total Bedroom = 418 {0.58 spaces per Bedroom)

5. Vintage at Bennett Valley; Santa Rosa CA

189 Units & 210 Parking Spaces (1'11Spaces per Unit)

1-bedroom = 125 & 2-bedroom = 54; Total Bedroom = 253 (0.83 spaces per Bedroom)

6. Vintage at NaPa; NaPa CA

115 Units & 52 Parking Spaces (0.54 Spaces per Unit)

1-bedroom = 109 & 2-bedroom = 5; Total Bedroom = 121 (0.51 spaces per Bedroom)

7. Seasons at Laguna; Elk Grove CA

222 Units & 158 Parking Spaces (0.71 Spaces per Unit)

1-bedroom = 150 & 2-bedroom =72;Tolal Bedroom = 294 (0.54 spaces per Bedroom)

property Management (Fpl) has been managing all seven properties for many years and is acutely aware

of all management items of the seven properties listed above. Based on historical experience the peak

demand for parking typically takes place after 8 PM. Property Management (FPl) performed a parking

countonthefollowingdatesof September Lg,2122,orNovember L4,zg2z,afterthe8PM hour' Property

Management (Fpl) reviewed parking demand and the projects above and reported back on the following

questions:

go unused?

Attached to this letter is property Management (FPl) summary findings of Parking Demand at each of the

senior Apartment Projects listed above.

Based on review of the Data for each senior Apartment projecl vintage Housing findings are as follows:

Page 563

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



1. Vintage at Bouquet Canyon; Santa Clarita, CA (0.59 stalls per unit/lO'52 spaces per Bedroom)

fropit was noted to have an onsite parking supply issue, not based on parking stalls being

provided, however City code requires that 33 spaces (18%) be reserved by guests' Guest parking

ip..", at peak demand were going underutilized. FPI working with the City to allow for the use of

tire guest parking spaces for overnight parking by residents. FPI ongoinS/continual efforts of

collaborating with the City and assigning and enforcing parking rules and regulations parking is

adequate with no on-street parking'

2. Vintage at The Crossings; Reno, NV (0.76 stalls per unit//0'55 spaces per Bedroom)

project was noted to have no onsite parking supply issues. Based on counts 10-12 spaces go

unused in the peak hours. However, it was noted on street parking is allowed and up to 4

residents choose to park on the street based on the proximity of the unit to on-street parking' FPI

assigns parking and manages accordingly and FPI does not report any parking demand issues.

3. Vintage at sanctuary; Reno, NV (0.48 stalls per unit//0.48 spaces per Bedroom)

f roject was noted to be experiencing a lack of onsite parking supply resulting in resident parking

on the adjacent streets. On-Street parking is encouraged and allowed by the City in the zoning

district. Fpl does report that onsite parking is assigned, and demand is high for these parking

spaces, Through Fpl continual ongoing management and enforcement of parking, residents

parking both onsite and/or on-street meets the demand of the project. FPI did note that all units

in this project are either Studios or l-Bedroom units'

4. Vintage at seven Hills; Reno NV {1.0 stalls per unit//0'58 spaces per Bedroom)
projeit was noted to have no onsite parking supply issues. FPI assigns parking and manages

accordingly and FPI does report during peak hours most if not all the parking stalls are utilized.

Fpl did identify this Senior Apartment Community does have a relatively high 2-bedroom unit mix

(7t%l and based on this FPI experience the 1- to 1 parking to unit ratio works fine based on the

high 2-Bedroom count. 
,

5. Vintage at Bennett valley; santa Rosa CA {1.11stalls per unit//0.83 spaces per Bedroom)

eroject was noted to have no resident onsite parking supply issues and during peak demand there

are several parking stalls not being utilized. FPI experience is that these routinely unused parking

stalls do become a bit of a nuisance as these parking stalls tend to attract non-operable vehicles

that are in violation of property management rules and in rare instances require towing' FPI did

note at the main entry location periodic loading and unloading is an issue that is continually

managed bY PropertY management.

5. Vintage at Napa; Napa, CA {0.54 Spaces per Unit //0.51 spaces per Bedroom}

project was noted to be experiencing a lack of onsite parking supply' This is resulting in

residentslvisitors parking on the adjacent local streets. FPI does report that onsite parking is

assigned, and demand is extremely high for these parking spaces. Through FPI continual ongoing

r",irg"r"nt and enforcement of onsite parking by residents, FPI is able to manage the parking

demand of the project. FPt did note that this project has a relatively high 1-Bedroom count {95%

units) and if there were more 2-Bedroom units parking would need to be restricted.

7. seasons at Laguna; Elk Grove, cA {0,71 Spaces per Unit /10.54 spaces per Bedroom)

project *", not"d to be experiencing a lack of onsite parking supply resulting in resident parking

on the adjacent streets. On-Street parking is currently being allowed by the city' FPI does report

Page 564

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



that onsite parking is assigned, and demand is high for these parking spaces. Through FPI

continual ongoing management and enforcement the parking of residents both onsite and on the

street meets the demand of the project. FPI did note that this property has 2 large loading areas

on both the west and east side of the and ownership/management discussions have taken place

and studies would indicate that an additional 20 onsite parking spaces could be provided.

Vintage Housing review, including assistance from Property Management (FPl), of both historical

experience and real time data provided for the seven Case Studies includes a relatively wide range of

onsite parking allocation range from the lower end of 0.48 stalls/unit (0.48 stalls/bedroom) to t'tt
stall/unit (0.83 stalls/bedroom). ln this review it was noted that any parking analysis should consider both

the total number of units and the actual unit mix of l-Bedroom to 2-Bedrooms. ln this review the high

percentage of 1-Bedrooms could suppon a lower demand for parking ratio and a high percentage of 2-

Bedrooms yielded a higher demand parking ratio. Furthermore, based on zoning districts the City's desire

for allowing on-street parking should be considered.

Based on both experience and data provided to determine adequate onsite parking is provided for

residents/guests/employees, doing any analysis of parking based on total number of units could be

misleading as parking demand for l-bedroom and 2-bedroom can vary widely. lnstead for the purpose of

this analysis we used the number of bedrooms to analyze parking demand. Based on the Data provided

the average parking to bedroom ratio was 0.57 parking spaces per unit. Vintage Housing upon review of

this data inquired with Property Management (FPl) should a parking ratio of 0.60 spaces per bedroom be

provided for each of the six projects listed would this resolve any onsite parking demand issues. Property

Management {FPl) after performing an analysis of the potential increase in number of parking spaces for

six of the seven properties Property Management (FPl) indicated that the additional parking spaces onsite

would meet the demand for residents/8uest /employees'

The proposed Natoma Senior Apartments being a 136-unit Senior Residential Apartment {98 1-Bedroom

(72%l and 38 2-Bedrooom (28%)) and providing 136 parking spaces at ration of 1-space/1-unit or 0'78

space/bedroom provides more than the 0.60 spaces per bedroom as analyzed above. Natoma Senior

Apartment parking ratio provided of 0.78 spaces/bedroom will yield an onsite parking facility that should

exceed the demand of the proposed Senior Apartment complex to included residents/guests/employees'

Page 565

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VII{TAGE SENIOR APARTMEITITS

SUMMARY PARKING OEMANO CASE STUDY ANALYSIS

3-Jan-23

PROPERTY LOCATION

TOTAL

UNITS

TOTAL

PARKING

STALLS

PARKING/UNIT

RATIO S l.BED %1-AED # 2.BED %2.BED

TOTAT

SEDROOMS

PARKINCI

BEDROOM

RATIO

Uintace at Bououet Canvon Santa Clarita, C,A 264 181 0.69 1AZ 69% E2 3L% 345 0.52

/lntare at The Crosslms Rpno, NV 230 175 0.76 1{0 6L% 90 39% 320 0.55

Vintare at Sanctuarv Reno. NV 248 1m 0.48 208 7W% 0 0'6 208 0.48

/intase at Seven Hills Reno NV 244 ZM 1.00 70 29% L74 7t% 418 0.58

ulntale at Bennett Vallev Santa Rosa CA 189 zLO 1,11 L25 56% 64 34% 2s3 0.83

Ulntare at Naoa NaDa CA 115 62 0.54 109 95% 6 5% 7Zr 0.51

teasons at Laruna Elk Grove CA 222 158 0.71 150 58Yo 72 ?2% 294 0.54

Natoma Senior Aoartments Folsom cA 136 136 1.00 98 729{ 38 28% 174 0.78

Page 566

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
cuLTURE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R r.4

Parking Study
Week of: September 19,2022
Vintage at Bouquet CanYon

Santa Clarita, CA

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

t 264 totalapartment homes
r 181total spaces = 0.69 ratio (stall/unit)
. lbedroom=182
r 2bedrooms=82
o 0.52 ratio (stalUbedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
r Yes. Mostly due to city requiring 33 spaces for "guest parking"'

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused.
r During a recent study, management counted, most if not all spaces occupied during this

time period.

Q: Are your residents parking off site {on streets). For senior projects only

. lt doesn't appear that residents are parking on the city streets

800 tron point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916'357-5300' FX: 916-357-5312

Page 567

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
CULTURE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R.T."€

Parking Study
Week of: September 19,2422

Vintage at The Crossings
Reno, NV

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

. 230 total apartment homes
o 175 total spaces = O.76 ratio tstall/unit)
r lbedroom=140
o 2bedrooms=90
. 0.55 ratio (stall/bedroom)

Q: Do you have parking problems
r No issues with parking. Many of our residents do not own a car. We have many services

within walking distance of the property for their convenience.

Q: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that
go unused.

r Yes, we have open spaces. lt varies at different times. During a recent study, management

counted 10-12 available parking spaces.

Q: Are your residents parking off site (on streets)' For senior projects only.

. Approximately 3-4 residents park on the street by choice. This is not required based on

frequent open parking available.

800 lron Point Road.Folsom, Galifornia, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916-357-5300' FX: 916-357'5312

Page 568

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
CULTURE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R Iq

Parking StudY
Week of: SePtember 19,2O22

Vintage at Sanctuary
Reno, NV

e: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

r 208 total apartment homes
o 100 totalspaces = 0.48 ratio (stalUunit)

r Studio = 3
. lbedroom=205
. 0.48 ratio (stall/bedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
r Yes. We have many seniors with cars

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused.
o During a recent study, management counted all parking spaces were occupied'

Q: Are your residents parking off site {on streets). For senior projects only.

r Yes, residents Park on the street.

g00 lron point Road.Folsom, California, 95630'www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916-357'5300' FX: 915-357-5312

Page 569

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
CULTURE GRCUNDED lN H.E.A.R.r.v-

Parking Study
Week of: September 19,2O22

Vintage at Seven Hills
Reno, NV

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

t 244totalapartmenthomes
o 244totalspaces = 1.0 ratio {stalUunit}
. lbedroom=70
. 2 bedroom=774
o 0.58 ratio (stall/bedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
o No issues with parking.

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused.
o During a recent study, management counted most if not all parking spaces were occupied.

Q: Are your residents parking off site (on streets). For senior projects only.

. No, residents do not park on the street.

800 lron point Road,Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916-357-5300' FX: 916-357-5312

Page 570

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



I

FPI MANAGEMENT
CULTURE GROUNDED IN H.E.A.R,T.q

Parking Study
Week of: November 14,2O22

Vintage at Bennett ValleY
Santa Rosa, CA

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

r 189 total apartment homes
. 2L0 total spaces = 1.Il ratio (stall/unit)
o lbedroom=125
r 2bedroom=64
e 0.83 ratio (stall/bedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
r Periodic loading and unloading parking violations by the Leasing office

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused,
r During a recent study, there are a lot of open spaces near the north side of the property.

Q: Are your residents parking off site (on streets). For senior projects only

. No, residents do not park on the street.

800 lron point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916-357'5300' FX: 916-357'5312

Page 571

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
CULTURE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R r.q

Parking Study
Week of: November 14,2022

Vintage at Napa
Napa, CA

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

r 115 total apartment homes
. 62 total spaces = 0.54 ratio (stall/unit)
o lbedroom=109
r 2bedrooms=5
o 0.51ratio(stalfbedroom)

Q: Do you have parking problems
r Yes, not enough parking for the number of resident cars and caregivers.

Q: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that
go unused.

j No, parking is alwaYs full.

Q: Are your residents parking off site (on streets)' For senior projects only.
r Yes. Parking along side street

800 lron Point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com.PH: 916-357-5300' FX: 916-357-5312

Page 572

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEIVENT
CULTURE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R.T.q

Parking Study
Week of: November 14,2O22

Seasons at Laguna
Elk Grove, CA

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

o 222 totalapartment homes
o 158 total spaces = O.7l ratio (stall/unit)
. lBedroom=150
r 2 Bedroom=72
r 0.54 ratio (stalUbedroom)

Q: Do you have parking problems
o Yes, not enough parking for the number of resident cars and caregivers

Q: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that
go unused,

. No, parking is alwaYs full.

Q: Are your residents parking off site (on streets). For senior projects only.

o Yes. Parking along side street

800 lron Point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www,fpimgt.com.PH: 916-357-5300' FX: 916-357-5312

Page 573

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 25

lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program,

dated November, 2922 (electronic version
available for viewing at

www.folsom.ca.us/qovernme NUcommunitv-
evel NU lann -selvi curre ro

info ation
I

Page 574

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintoge of Folsom Senior Apqrtments

lnitiol Study/Mitigoted Negotive Declqrotion

Prepared bY,

Clty of Folgom

Communlty Developmenl DePodmenl
50 Notomo Slreei
Folsom, CA 95530

With technicol svpport from:

HELIX Envkonmenlol Plonnlng. lnc.
I1 Notomo Streei, Suite 155

Folsom, CA 95630

November 2022

Page 575

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



This page intentionally left blank

Page 576

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Page

1.0 |NTRODUC[ION............. """"'1

2.A PROJECT 8ACKGROUND................ "'"""""'.l

3.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION """"""2

3.1 Project Location """"'2

3.2 Project Setting and Surrounding Land Uses 2

Project Characteristics......."........ """"""""""""2

Parking and Circulation...'.,.."".""" """"""""""" 3

Utilities....",.. """""""' 5

Sustainability Features"..... """"""' 5

Trash/Recyc1ing................ """""""' 5

Fencing and Signage """""""""""' 5

Amenities and Landscaping......'..'....' """""""""' 5

Construction and Phasing. """"""" 6

City Regulation of Urban Development...'.."....,.,..., """"""""' 6

General P1an.".,,,........ """'"""""""" 6

Zoning Ordinance.... """""""""""" 5

Other City Regulation of Urban Development.....".'.."".".' """""""""""""' 7

3.6.L. Community Development Department Standard Construction Conditions. 7

3.6.2. City of Folsom Municipal Code......."'.. """""""" 8

PRoJECTOBJECTIVES """""""9
REqUTREDAPPROVATS """""'9
PREVIOUS RELEVANT ENVIRONMENTAT ANAIYSIS............... 10

6.1 City of Folsom General Plan 10

10

3.3

3.3.1.

3.3.2.

3.3.3,

3.3.4.

3.3.5.

3.3.5.

3.4

3.s

3.5.1.

3.5.2.

3.6

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.O

6.2 Tiering

8.0

ENVTRONMENTAT FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED................. "'.""""""""""11
7.1 DETERMINATION ............'. """""" 12

ENVTRONMENTAL lNlTlAL STUDV CHECKIIST... """"""13

r. AESTHET|CS......... "."""""""""""'L4
lr. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES"'..'.'.'..... """"""'r7
ilt. AIR QUALITY """"""' 19

Page 577

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



9.0

10.0

11.0

lv. BloLoGlcAL RESOURCES "..'.".""'27

v. CULTURAL RESOURCES ".'.."""""' 40

vl. ENERGY """"""""""ss
vil. GEOLOGY AND SOILS ...""."""""" 58

VIII. 6REENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS ............63

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS"."."...". ....,.,,""..'",,72

X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY''"." ..,.,,"",",75

xl. LAND USE AND PLANN|NG........"..'... """"""""' 81

xil. MINERAL RESOURCES. """"""""" 83

xill, NolsE ,......... .",""""' 84

xrv. PoPULATION AND HOUS|NG.".,..,.....'.." """""'94
xv. PUBLIC SERV|CES..... ....'.'....'.".""" 96

XVl. RECREATION """"""' 99

xvil. TRANSPORTATION ............ """"" 100

xvl[. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES ' '".'.....,"."."""' 112

xtx. uTlLlTlEs AND SERVICE SYSTEMS """"""""""117
xx. wlLDFlRE..... """""'L27

XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE............", .,'"'''".,.L23

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM... ,...,..,.,.,T27

rNlTlAL STUDY PREPARERS................. ""t27

REFERENCES ""128

li

Page 578

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



1

2
3

4
5

6

7

8

9
10

LIST OF FIGURES

Vicinity Map
AerialMap
Site Plan

Architectural Rendering-View from Natoma Street North

Architectural Rendering-View from Natoma Street at Entry

Arch itectu ra I Ren deri n g-View f rom Bi ke Tra i I West

Architectural Rendering-View from Bike Trail East

Architectural Rendering-Site Sections

Architectural Rendering-Site Sections

Tree lmpact Plan

LIST OF TABLES

No. Title Page

Table 1. Neighboring Land Uses.".

Table 2. Summary of Project Features".'...

Table 3. City of Folsom Municipal Code Regulating Construction and Development

Table 4. Sacramento Valley Air Basin - Attainment Status

Table 5. Construction Criteria Pollutant and Precursor Emissions """""""""'24

".2
..3
..8
20

Table 6. Maximum Daily Operational Emissions.".....'..."....'

Table 7: On-Site Tree Designation -..'...."."..

Table 8. Tree Replacement Equivalency Table

Table22. Operational HVAC Noise

Table 23. Building Exterior Noise Levels

Table 24, Levelof-Service Criteria for Signalized lntersections

Table 25. Level-of-service criteria for Unsignalized lntersections

Table 26. Existing 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-Service

T able 27 . P roiect Trip Generation'..'.'. "..'.'..
Table 28. Baseline 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-Service, with and without Project

24

35
38
48Table g.Previous Studies Conducted within 0.5-Mile of the APE

Table 10. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within O.S-Mile of the APE .............. """ 50

Table 11. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within 0.5-Mile of the APE '....""....' """ 55

Table 12. Construction Energy Summary..... """""' 56

Table 13. Operational energy Summary.".. """""" 57

Table 14. Construction GHG Emissions."'.'........". """""""""""' 67

Table 15. Operational GHG Emissions .."........'.'.. """""""""""'" 67

Table 1G. City of Folsom Municipal Code Sections Regulating the Effects on Hydrology and Water Quality

from Urban Development....".'.........,' """"""""""77
Table 17. Peak Discharge Rates (Downstream from the Project Site) 79

Table 18. Noise Measurement Results """""""""' 86

Table 19. PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes """"""""87
Table 20. HVAC Condenser Noise Data (SWL dBA)

Table 21. Off-Site Traffic Noise Levels """'""""""" 90
.90
.91
101
103
105

106
LO7

llt

Page 579

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



A
B

c
D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

IIST OF APPENDICES

Figures

Rir euality Modeling Results and Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy Consistency Checklist

Arborist Report
Biological Resource and Wetland Evaluation

Cultural Resources Assessment

Geotechnical Engineering StudY

Prelimlnary Dralnage and Storm Water Quality Report

Noise and Vibration Assessment

Transportation lmpact Study and Parking Evaluation

Tribal Cultural Resources Memorandum

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

lv

Page 580

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

AB

APN

AWSC

BMP

CAA

CAAQS

CARB

cBc
CCAA

CDFW

CEQA

CESA

CHa

co
COz

CNDDB

CNEL

CNPS

CRHR

CWA

dB
dBA
DBH

DTSC

EBC

EIR

EO

EPA

EPAP

EVCS

FEMA

FESA

GHG

GWh
GWP
HFC

HVAC

ISMND

ITE

LOS

LSAA

MBTA
MHD
MLD

Assembly Bill

Assessors Parcel Number

All-Way Stop Control
Best Management Practices

Clean Air Act
California Ambient Air Quality Standards

California Air Resources Control Board

California Building Code

California Clean Air Act

California Department of Fish and Wildlife

Ca lifornia Envi ronmental Quality Act

California Endangered Species Act

Methane
Carbon Monoxide
Carbon Dioxide

Catifornia Natural Diversity Database

Community Noise Equivalent Level

California Native Plant SocietY

California Register of Historic Resources

Clean Water Act
Decibels

A-weighted Decibel

Diameter at Breast Height

Department of Toxic Substances Control

East BidwellCorridor
Environmental lmPact RePort

Executive Order
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Existlng plus ApProved Project

Elecffic vehicle charging station

Federal Emergency Managernent Agency

Federal Endangered SPecies Act

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Gigawatt hours
Global Warming Potential

Hydrofluorocarbons
Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning

I n itial Study/M itigated Negatlve Decla ration

lnstitute of Transportation Engineers

Level of Service

Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement

Migratory Bird Treaty Act

Multi-Family High DensitY

Most Likely Descendent

Page 581

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



SB

MMRP
MPH

MTP
NAAQS

NAHC

NCtC

NOX

NPDES

NRCS

NRHP

NzO

OHP

OPR

OSHA

Oa

PACE

PD

PFC

PG&E

PM
PRC

ROG

RWQCB

scs
sf
SFs

slP
SMAQMD
SMUD

ssc
sso
sTc
SWITRS

SWPPP

SWRCB

SVAB

TCR

Tt5

TNM
TWSC

UAIC
USACE

USFWS

USGS

VMT
WL

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Pro6ram

Miles per Hour
Metropolitan Transportation P lan

National Ambient Air Quality Standards

Native American Heritage Commission

North Central lnformation Center

Nitrogen Oxides

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System

Natural Resources Conservation Service

National Register of Historic Places

Nitrous Oxide
Office of Historic Preservation

Governo/s Office of Planning and Research

Occupational Safety and Health Administration

Ozone
Property Assessed Clean EnergY

Planned Development
Perf luorocarbons
Pacific Gas & Electric
Particulate Matter
Public Resources Code

Reactive Organic Gases

Regional Water Quality Control Board

senate Bill
Sustainable Communities Strategy

Square footfeet
Sulfur Hexafluoride
State lmplementation Plan

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District

Sacramento Municipal Utilities District

Species of Special Concern

Sanitary Sewer Overflows
Sound Transmission Class

Statewide lntegrated Traffic Records System

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

State Water Resources Control Board

Sacramento ValleY Air Basin

Tribal Cultural Resources

Transportation lmPact StudY

Traffic Noise Model
Two-Way StoP Control
United Auburn lndian CommunitY

U.S. Army CorPs of Engineers

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

U.S. Geological SurveY

Vehicle Miles Traveled
Watch List

vl

Page 582

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

1.0 INTRODUCIION

Vintage at Folsom, Lp (Applicant) proposes to develop the Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments Project

{proposed project), whictr includes construction and operation of a 135-unit, affordable senior (i.e., age-

restricted) rental housing community on an estimated 4.86-acre site. The site is located at 103 East

Natoma street, approximately 350-feet (ft) northeast of the intersection of Fargo Way and Natoma

Street in the City of Folsom.

This lnitial Study addresses the proposed project and whether it may cause significant effects on the

environment. These potential environmental effects are further evaluated to determine whether they

were examined in the Folsom General Plan 2035 Environmental lmpact Report {ElR; 2018). ln particular,

consistent with public Resources code (pRC) 521083.3, this lnitial study focuses on any effects on the

environment which are specific to the proposed project, or to the parcels on which the project would be

located, which were not analyzed as potentially significant effects in the General Plan ElR, or for which

substantial new information shows that identified effects would be more significant than described in

the previous ElRs. For additional information regarding the relationship between the proposed project

and the previous ElRs, see Section 6 of this lnitial Study'

The lnitial Study is also intended to assess whether any environmental effects of the project are

susceptible to substantial reduction or avoidance by the choice of specific revisions in the project, by the

impoiition of conditions, or by other means IS15152{bx2)l of the California Environmental Quality Act

(C|OA) Guidelines. lf such revisions, conditions, or other means are identified, they will be identified as

mitigation measures.

This tnitialstudy relies on CEQA Guidelines $15064 and 15064.4 in its determination of the significance

of environmental effects. According to 515064, the finding as to whether a project may have one or

more significant effects shall be based on substantial evidence in the record, and that controversy alone,

without substantlal evidence of a significant effect, does not triSger the need for an ElR.

2.0 PROJECT BACKGROUND

The proposed proiect is comprised of Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 071-0320-042 in Sacramento

County, California. The following proJect specific technical reports or surveys were used in preparation

of this lnitial Study and are incorporated by reference:

r Biological Resources and Wetland Evaluation Letter Report by HELIX (October 2020)'

e Cultural Resources Assessment by HELIX {March 2022}'

r Geotechnical Engineering Study by Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc' {December2O2Ll.

o Traffic lmpact Study by T. Kear Transportation Planning & Management, lnc. (February 2022)'

o Arborist lnventory Letter Report by HELIX (March 2022)'

e Air euality Assessment, Greenhouse Gas Emissions Analysis by HEIIX (April 2022).

r Noise lmpact Analysis by HELIX {May 2022)'

e Tribal Consultation Record for Compliance with Assembly Bill 52 and CEQA, prepared by ECORP

Consulting, lnc. (June 2022).

. preliminary Drainage and Storm Water Quality Report by TSD Engineering, lnc. {August 2022)'

1

Page 583

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

3.0 PROJECT DESCRIFTION

3.1 Profecl locqlion

The project site is located at 103 East Natoma Street, approximately 350-ft northeast of the intersection

of Fargo Way and Natoma Street, in the City of Folsom (City) in Sacramento County, California. The

project site is approximately 4.86-acres and is identified as Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 071-0320-

042. The project site frontage is along East Natoma Street. The site is located within Rios de los

Americanos Land Grant (Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, United States Geological Survey 7.5-minute

"Folsom Quadrangle"). Refer to Figure l- for the Vicinity Map, Figure 2 for the Aerial Map, and Figure 3

for the Site Plan (Note: Allfigures are located in Appendix A). The property is owned by Vintage at

Folsom, LP.

3.2 Projecl Settlng qnd Surroundlng lqnd Uses

The triangle shaped project site is currently vacant and undeveloped. The project site is considered to
be blue oak woodland, surrounded by urban development. Historic aerial imagery shows that the
project site has changed little since 1952 and habitat types/vegetation communities in the project site

include blue oak woodland and ephemeral and intermittent drainages. The site is moderately disturbed.

There is evidence of recreational use by bicycles and the site has a constructed dirt track with several

constructed dirt ramps and jumps for bicycles, presumably constructed by children from the adjacent

residential neighborhood. lt also has debris piles and other evidence of use by transients. The terrain in

the project site and vicinity is locally flat. The elevation on the project site ranges from 350- to 370-ft

above mean sea level (amsl) and has low to moderate slope from east to west.

Folsom State Prison is located immediately north of the site, along Prison Road. East of the project site is

single family homes along Cimmaron Circle, and south of the project site is Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E)

powerlines, single-family homes, and duplexes. West of the project, along Fargo Way, is office space and

across from Fargo way is the Folsom City Police Department.

Neighboring land uses are summarized in Table 1.

Table 1. Land Uses

Dlrectlon land Use

North Prison Folsom State Prison

East Cimmaron Ci Si Homes

South PG&E Fam Hom

West Fa Office Folsom Police rtment

3.3 Projecl Chorqcterlslics

The proposed project is a 136-unit, affordable senior (i.e., age-restricted) rental housing community

with a mix of one- and two-bedroom units in a three-story building, All 136-units would be Age

Restricted Senior {+60 age restricted) Affordable Apartment as defined by the State and City

requirements with 14 of the units offered to seniors with incomes at or below 30 percent of area

median income (AMl) and 122-units would be available to seniors with incomes at or below 60 percent

2

Page 584

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

of AMl. The project site would include surfaced driveways and parking spots surrounding the proposed

building to accommodate 136 parking stalls. The site would also include 28 bicycle parking spaces,

landscaping, and indoor and outdoor amenities. Table 2 provides a summary of all pervious and

impervious project features on the 4.86-acre site.

Table 2. Summary of Proiect Features

The proposed three-story apartment building would include 98 one-bedroom units and 38 two-bedroom

units. Residential units would range from approximately 552- to 748-square feet (sf) each. Each unit

would be designed with a full kitchen, living space, kitchen/dining, bathroom, laundry, and a balcony. ln-

unit amenities would include dishwashers, garbage disposals, refrigerators, in-unit laundry, patios,

and/or decks. Furthermore, 15 percent of the units would be set aSide for persons with disabilities.

Apartment units are planned on each of the three levels of the building and would be accessible from

the hallway corridors. Entrances to the building would be located on each side of the irregularly shaped

building. Maximum projected building height would be less than 34-ft with architectural elements

ranging from 40-ft, 5-inches to up to 42-ft, 6-inches from grade'

Community amenities would include an estimated 2,500-sf community center on the ground floor, as

well as a game room, a library room, exercise room and a craft room. A leasing office, electrical room,

maintenance room, and trash room would also be located on the ground floor. Additional amenities on

the project site would include outdoor seating and dining areas, perimeter walkways, a bocce ball court,

bike racks, picnic tables with umbrellas, outdoor barbeques/ kitchens, and 6-ft benches' Landscaped

areas with various trees and shrubs would surround the parking area and the proposed building'

3.3.1. Porking ond Circulolion

primary vehicle access to the site would be from a proposed main access driveway (36-ft) on East

Natoma Street, across from Prison Road. The main entrance would modify the existing three-way

signalization intersection at East Natoma Street and Prison Road, into a four-way signalized intersection"

An additional right only ingress/egress driveway {27-ft} would be located on the northeastern corner of

3

Proiect Feature Acreage/ Percentage ofTotal Slte

Landscape (Pervious Area) 2.378(47.69%t

Bioretention {Pervious Area} 0.045 (0.9270)

Parking Lot (lmpervious Area) L.289 (26.s2%l

Hardscape (l mpervious Area) o.3s717.34%l

Building {lmpervious Area) 0.8s2 (17.s3%)

Total 4.861(100%)

Page 585

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

the project site, with no traffic signal control. The main access driveway (36-ft) would wrap around the

proposed building and connect with the additional egress/ingress point. The circulation driveway would

range from 27- to 36-ft wide with parking spaces on either side. Turnarounds for emergency vehicle

access would have an inner turning radius of 25-ft and an outer turning radius of 50-ft.

Oak parkway Trail, a Class I Bikeway, surrounds the proJect site. This biking trail would enter the

southwestern corner of the site boundary. Within the site boundary, the Oak Parkway Trail would be

realigned and connected to a concrete sidewalk proposed for the project. The conrete sidewalk would

extend around the southern parking area and connect to the existing Oak Parkway Trail section located

south of the site borindary. The realignment would add a pedestrian connection to the existing Oak

parkway Trail. Additional proposed concrete sidewalks would be located at the frontage of the project

site and would provide a sidewalk extension to Cimmaron Circle and would connect to internal

sidewalks proposed around the building. These concrete sidewalks would provide walking paths for

residents.

The proposed project would include 136 parking spaces in asphalt paved areas surrounding the

proposed building. The parking supply includes 92 standard spaces {including 37 carport parking spaces),

10 compact parking stalls, 16 standard accessible stalls, four van accessible stalls, 12 standard electric

vehicle charging station (EVCS) stalls, and two loading EVCS stalls. The electric vehicle charging spaces

would be approximately 10.3 percent of the total parking spaces, which meets the electric vehicle

charging station requirement outlined by CalGreen (Title 24, Part 11). Proposed parking is provided at a

ratio of spaces per unit of 1:1.

The total parking area square feet excluding the carport areas would be 52,525-sf. The Folsom Municipal

Code (FMC, Section t7.57 c (3) Planters, Landscaping) states that tree shall be interspersed through the

parking area so that in 1,5 years,40 precent of the parking lot will be in shade at high noon. ln addition,

the new California Green Code requires a project's parking lot area needs to provide 50 percent shade

coverage within i.5 years. Within the project site. the totalshaded area would be 26,759-sf, which is

approximately 50.9 percent of the total parking lot square footage, exceeding the minimum shade

requirements of the Folsom Municipal code and the california Green code.

The applicant proposes a parking supply of 136 spaces to correspond to the development being age-

restricted to seniors over 60 years of age and occupied with a population that typically has fewer drivers

and a lower rate of vehicle ownership compared to conventional{family) multi-family communities, The

reduced parking demand of age-restricted communities is also the result of reduced household sizes

occupied by residents who no longer drive vehicles or who less frequently drive vehicles. Additionally'

The Folsom Municipal Code does not address specific parking standards for senior residential uses.

Formerly approved senior apartments project (for both Market Rate and Affordable) have varied from

0.81 parking stalls per unit to 1.09 parking stalls per unit.

Additionally, the Folsom Municipal Code requires one bicycle parking space for every five residential

units. With 136 residential units, the project requires 27 bicycle parking spaces. Bike racks would

accommodate 28 bicycle parking spaces on the eastern side of the project site, east of the proposed

building.

4

Page 586

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



!

vintage at Folsom Senior APa rtments ISMND

3.3.2. Utililles

proposed utilities include domestic water, sewer utilities, fire service line and fire water main, primary

anisecondary electricity lines, storm drain line, telephone/cable line, and gas line. Electrical,

telephone/cable, and gas lines would be connected to existing facilities within the same vicinity of the

project site, on East Natoma Street. All on site sewer utilities and water utilities (fire, domestic, and

inigation) are to be privately owned, operated, maintained. All public water within the site boundary

*orlU U" constructed in accordance with the City of Folsom water design standards and water

construction details as a condition of approval. On-site water supply would be connected to the Zone 3

Cimmaron pressure zone located off-site, On-site sewer utilities would connect with a publicly owned

sewer collection system off-site. Proposed fire hydrants are located throughout the project site. Along

the frontage of the site, a 1.2.5-ft public utility easement would be installed for overhead or

u nderground facilities.

3.3.3. SustqinqbilltY Feolures

The project design incorporates sustainable features consistent with General Plan Goal LU 9'1 and the

California Green Building Standards Code (CalGreen). The project would exceed the 2019 California

Building Energy Efficiency Standards {Title 24, Part 5) by 15 percent or more. The project provides 10

percenielectiic vehicle parking spaces (14), which is consistent with CalGreen standards. Cool paving

features would be incorporated in the project site such as shade trees (39'3 percent), sidewalks/patios

(24.9 percent), and parking stall/trash apron (4 percent), for a total reduction of 58'2 percent' This

exceeds the minimum 50 percent reduction of nonroof heat islands on the project site, A cool roof

would be installed per CalGreen/California Building Code (CBC) and a solar array is proposed for the

asym metrical, gabled rooft oPs'

3.3.4. Irosh/RecYcling

A City standard trash enclosure would be enclosed with a trellis cover. The trash enclosure would have

refused bins for recyclables, organics, and general waste. The trash enclosure would be located in the

southeastern corner of ttre project site. Additionally, a trash room would be located on the ground floor

of the proposed apartment building.

3.3.5. Fencing ond Signoge

An g-ft masonry wall is proposed on the eastern side of the project site, behind the single-family

residences. The masonry wall would tie into an existing wood fence that runs along the eastern

boundary line. A 6-ft-tall monument sign would be placed adjacent to the main access driveway, along

East Natoma Street.

3.3.6. Amenllles qnd LondscqPing

Community amenities would include an estimated 2,500-sf community center on the ground floor, as

well as a game room, a library room, exercise room and a craft room' Additional amenities on the

project site would include outdoor seating and dining areas, perimeter walkways, a bocce ball court,

bike racks, picnic tables with umbrellas, outdoor barbeques/ kitchens, and 6-ft benches. The project is

5

Page 587

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

located just over one mile to East Bidwell and the Historic Folsom District which offers a variety of

shopping centers, mercantile services, restaurants, state parks, and Light Rail Transit Access.

Landscaping would be designed to complement the buildings and make a positive contribution to the

overall aesthetic of the site. The project would preserve key open space areas, including existing Oak

Groves and portions of perennial creeks, through an interactive landscape design process. Within the

property site,30-to 35-ft diameter shade trees, 25-ft diameter shade trees, accent trees, screen shrubs,

foundation shrubs, accent shrubs, groundcovers, and bio infiltration species would be planted. Under

existing conditions, the runoff from residential properties located east of the property flows onto the

property site. This offsite runoff would be intercepted by proposed landscaped swales within 15-ft

landscape planters along the eastern boundary of the property. This runoff would then be redirected

towards East Natoma Street and would enter the public storm drain system. Additionally, eight bio-

retention planters are proposed throughout the project site to manage stormwater runoff'

3.4 Conslrucllon ond Phoslng

The project would be graded and constructed in a single phase. Construction would likely begin in spring

2023 and would take approximately 18 months to complete'

3.5 City Regulolion of Urbqn Developmenl

3.5.1. General Plqn

The site is designated as professionalOffice (Po) in the Folsom 2035 General Plan' The Po designation

provides for low-intensity business and professional offices that are compatible with higher-intenslty

residential uses.

3.5.2. Zoning Ordinqnce

The zoning designation of the site is in the Business and Professional (BP) District. According to Section

L7.Z1.3eof the Folsom MunicipalCode, the BP zoning district generally permits office building and

related uses such as banks, doctor's offices, general business office, and general uses, The purpose ofa

Bp zoning district is to provide an area for business and professional office and compatible related uses.

This zoning district is intended to promote a harmonious development of business and professional

office areas with adjacent commercial or residential development. However, Senior citizens (Age 55+)

residential complexes are considered a permitted land use within the BP zoning district upon approvalof

a Conditional Use permit by the Planning Commission according to FMC Section 77.22'O3OE\'

Entitlement requests for this project include a Planned Development Permit (PD) Permit and a

Conditional Use permit. The purpose of the PD Permit is to allow for greater flexibility in the design of

integrated developments than otherwise possible through strict application of land use regulations.

Wittr the pD permit, the project's site plan, elevations, and overall project desiSn would be evaluated,

and specific development standards would be defined. A Conditional Use Permit is required to allow for

development of senior apartments on the project site based on the BP PD zoning designation.

6

Page 588

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

3.6 Olher Clty Regulqllon of Urbon Developmenl

3.6.1. Communily Developmenl Deporlment Stondqrd Construction Condltions

The City's standard construction requirements are set forth in the City of Folsom, Community

Development Standard Construction Specifications updated in July 2020. A summary of these

requirements is set forth below and incorporated by reference into the project description. Copies of
these documents may be reviewed at the City of Folsom, Community Development Depattment, 50 East

Natoma Street, Folsom, California 95630.

The Department's standard construction specifications are required to be adhered to by any contractor
constructing a public or private project within the City.

lJse of Pesticides - Requires contractors to store, use, and apply a wide range of chemicals consistent

with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations.

Air Pollution Control - Requires compliance with all Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management

District (SMAQMD) and City air pollution regulations.

Woter Pottution - Requires compliance with City water pollution regulations, including National

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) provisions.

Noise Control - Requires that all construction work comply with the Folsom Noise Ordinance (discussed

further below), and that all construction vehicles be equipped with a muffler to control sound levels.

Noturotty Occurring Asbestos - Reguires compliance with aIISMAQMD and City air pollution regulations.

including preparation and implementation of an Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan consistent with the
requirements of Section 93105 of the State Government Code.

Weekend, Holiday, ond Night Work - Prohibits construction work during evening hours, or on Sunday or

holidays, to reduce noise and other construction nuisance effects.

Public Convenience - Regulates traffic through the work area, operations of existing traffic signals,

roadway cuts for pipelines and cable installation, effects to adjacent property owners, and notification

of adjacent property owners and businesses.

Pubtic Sofety and Troffic Control- Regulates signage and other traffic safety devices through work zones.

Existing utllities - Regulates the relocation and protection of utilities.

Preservotion oJ Property - Requires preservation of trees and shrubbery and prohibits adverse effects to
adjacent properry and fixtures.

Culturol Resources - Reguires that contractors stop work upon the discovery of unknown cultural or

historic resources, and that an archaeologist be retained to evaluate the significance ofthe resource and

to establish mitigation requirements, if necessary'

Protection of Existing lrees - Specifies measures necessary to protect both ornamental and native oak

trees.

7

Page 589

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Cleoring and Grubbing - Specifies protection standards for signs, mailboxes, underground structures,

drainage facilities, sprinklers and lights, trees and shrubbery, and fencing. Also requires the preparation

of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP)to control erosion and siltation of receiving waters'

Reseeding - Specifies seed mixes and methods for reseeding of graded areas.

3.6.2. Clty of Folsom MuniclpolCode

The City regulates many aspects of construction and development through requirements and ordinances

established in the Folsom Municipal Code. These requirements are summarized in Table 3, and hereby

incorporated by reference iirto the Project Description as though fully set forth herein. Copies of these

documents may be reviewed at the City of Folsom, Office of the City Clerk, 50 Natoma Street; Folsom,

California 95630.

Table 3. City of Folsom MunicipalCode Regulating Construction and Development

Code
Seclon

Effuctof Cde

Establishes interior and exterior noise standards that may not be

exceeded within structures, including residences; establishes

time periods for construction operations.

8.70

Establishes conditions and requirements for the discharge of
urban pollutants and sediments to the storm-drainage system;

requires preparation and implementation of Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plans.

8.42

9.34

9.35

T2.L6

L3.26

'J,4.L9

Defines hazardous materials; requires filing of a Hazardous

Material Disclosure Form by businesses that manufacture, use,

or store such materials,

Establishes standards for the construction and monitoring of
facilities used for the underground storage of hazardous

substances, and establishes a procedure for issuance of permits
for the use of these facilities.

Regulates the cutting or modification of trees, including oaks

and specified other trees; requires a Tree Permit prior to cutting
or modification; establishes mitigation requirements for cut or

damaged trees.

Prohibits the wasteful use of water; establishes sustainable

landscape requirements; defines water use restrictions.

Adopts the California Energy Code, 2019 Edition, published as

Part 5, Title 24, C.C,R. to require energy efficiency standards for
structures.

Code Name

Noise Control

Stormwater
Management and

Discharge Control

Hazardous
Materials
Disclosure

Underground
Storage of
Hazardous
Substances

Tree Preservation

Water
Conservation

Energy Code

8

Page 590

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apa rtmeots IsMND

L4.20

L4.29

L4.32

a

Green Building
Standards Code

Adopts the California Green Building Standards Code (CalGreen

Code), 2019 Edition, excluding Appendix Chapters A4, A5, and

A6.1 published as Part 11, Title 24, C'C.R' to promote and

require the use of building concepts having a reduced negative

impact or positive environmental impact and encouraging

sustainable construction praclices'

Requires a grading permit prior to the initiation of any grading,

excavation, fill or dredging; establishes standards, conditions,

and requirements for grading, erosion control, stormwater
drainage, and revegetation'

Restricts or prohibits uses that cause water or erosion hazards,

orthat result in damaging increases in erosion or in flood

heights; requires that uses vulnerable to floods be protected

against flood damage; controls the modification of floodways;

regulates activities that may increase flood damage or that
could divert floodwaters.

4.0 PROJECT OBJECTIVES

The project objective is to provide affordable senior rental housing consistent with the 2035 General

plan, including the Housing Element, which identifies guiding principles, goals, and policies for housing

choices for all generations.

5.0 REQUIRED APPROVALS

A listing and brief description of the regulatory permits and approvals required to implement the

proposed project are provided below. This lnitial Study is intended to address the environmental

impacts associated with all of the following decision action and approval:

. Planned Development Permit (PD Permit);

r Conditional Use Permit {CUP}; and,

r Density Bonus.

The City of Folsom has the following discretionary powers related to the proposed project:

Adoption of the lnitialstudy, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring and

Reporting program: The City of Folsom Planning Commission will act as the lead agency as

defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEAA) and will have authority to determine

if the lnitial Study is adequate under GEQA.

Approval of project: The City of Folsom Planning Commission will consider approval of the

project and the entitlements described above,

9

Grading Code

Flood Damage

Prevention

a

Page 591

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

6.0 PREVIOUS RETEVANT ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

6.t Clty of Folsom Generol Plqn

The program EIR for the City of Folsom General Plan (2018) provides relevant policy guidance for this

environmental analysis, The EIR evaluated the environmental impacts that could result from

implementation of the city of Folsom 2035 General Plan (2035 General Plan) (city of Folsom 2018a)' The

program EIR is intended to provide information to the public and to decision makers regarding the

potential effects of adoption and implementation of the 2035 General Plan, which consists of a

comprehensive update of Folsom's current General Plan. The 2035 General Plan consists of a policy

document, including Land Use and Circulation Diagrams'

6.2 Tlering

,,Tiering,, refers to the relationship between a program-level EIR (where long-range programmatic

cumulative impacts are the focus of the environmental analysis) and subsequent environmental

analyses such as the subject document, which focus primarily on issues unique to a smaller project

within the larger program or plan. Through tiering a subsequent environmental analysis can incorporate,

by reference, discussion that summarizes general environmental data found in the program EIR that

establishes cumulative impacts and mitigation measures, the planning context, and/or the regulatory

background, These broad-based issues need not be reevaluated subsequently, having been previously

identified and evaluated at the program stage'

Tiering focuses the environmental review on the project-specific significant effects that were not

examined in the prior environmental review, or that are susceptible to substantial reduction or

avoidance by specific revisions in the project, by the imposition of conditions or by other means. Section

21093tb) of the public Resources code requires the tiering of environmental review whenever feasible,

as determined bY the Lead AgencY.

ln the case of the proposed project, this lnitial Study tiers from the EIR for the Broadstone Unit No' 3

specific plan, and the EIR for the city of Folsom General Plan. The Folsom General Plan, as amended, is a

project that is related to the proposed project and, pursuant to $15152{a) of the CEQA Guidelines,

tiering of environmental documents is appropriate. CEQA Guidelines 515152{e} specifically provides

that:

The above mentioned ElRs can be reviewed at the following location:

City of Folsom

Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street (2nd Floor)

Folsom, CA 95630

Contact: Mr. Steve Banks, Principal Planner

{915) 461-6207

10

Page 592

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

7.0 ENVIRONMENTAT FACTORS POTENTIALLY

AFFECTED

The environmentalfactors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at

least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant lmpact" or "Less than Significint with Mitigation

lncorporated" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

tl Aesthetics [J Agriculture and Forestry
Resources

I Rir Quality

I siologicalResources I cultural Resources I tnergy

I eeougy and Soils I Greenhouse Gas Emissions n Hazards and Hazardous

Materials

fl uydrology and water
QualitY

n Land Use and Planning f] Minerat Resources

I ruoir" I Population and Housing n Public Services

fl Recreation Transportation I rriu.t cultural Resources

D Utilities and Service

Systems

n wildfire f Mandatory Findings of
Significance

11

Page 593

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

7.1 DETERITAINATION ,

Or{ ttre basis of this initialevaluation

I find that the proposed project coulD NoT have a slgnificant effect on the environmenL and a

NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be

EGATIVE DECIARATIOMITIGATED

oeffect then ehcould aave nvironment,eth significantfind that projectproposedIthough
madelnslons beenhavethecesethis usebeca revrtn projecteffectnotwill abethere significant

willN beNAtheor proponent.to by projectby agreed

t

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT iS TC

lfind that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially

significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect llhas been

adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has

been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached

sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects

that remain to be addressed'

n

to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECI.ARATION, including revisions or
NEGATIVE

oneffect ethehave nvironmentcould significantthatnd thetr proposed projectIthough
ln earliern orEIRnbeeeffects have adequatelyanalyzedallcause (abe significantpotentially

avobeen oridedsta and haveb)to ndards,rsuantDECLARATION applicablepu

further ls uired
m

themeasures that are lmm

re

P Name

Durv

t2

Page 594

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

8.0 ENVIRONMENTAT INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST

The lead agency has defined the cotumn headings in the environmental checklist as follows:

A. ,,potentially Significant lmpact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may

be significant even with the incorporation of mitiSation. lf there are one or more "Potentially

Significant lmpact" entries when the determination is made, dn EIR is required,

B. ,,Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated" applies where the inclusion of mitigation

measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant lmpact" to a "Less Than Significant

lmpact." All mitigation measures are described, including a brief explanation of how the

measures reduce the effect to a less than significant level. Mitigation measures from earlier

analyses may be cross-referenced.

C. ,,Less Than Significant lmpact" applies where the project does not create an impact that exceeds

a stated significance threshold.

D. ,,No lmpact" applies where a project does not create an impact in that cate8ory. "No lmpact"

answers do not require an explanation if they are adequately supported by the information

sources cited by the lead agency which show that the impact simply does not apply to projects

like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No lmpact" answer

should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards

(e.g., the project would not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project specific

screening analYsis).

The explanation of each issue identifies the significance criteria or threshold used to evaluate each

question; and the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program ElR, or other CEQA process, an

effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration ICEQA Guidelines Section

15063(cx3xD)1. where appropriate, the discussion identifies the following:

a) Earlier Analyses Used. ldentifies where earlier analyses are available for review.

b) tmpacts Adequately Addressed. ldentifies which effects from the checklist were within the scope

of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and

states whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier

analysis.

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated,"

describes the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier

document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project'

l-5

Page 595

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaSe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

I. AESTHETICS

PdGntlNiy
Sltdicant

ltnptct

kre fbn
$lnlficrnt

wldr
MltlllUon

lncorpotrt d

tosslhrn
Sl8nlfrc.nt ttlo

lmptct lmPact

Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099,

would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? L} r_l tr t
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not

limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings

within a state scenic highwaY?

n u

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or

quality of public views of the site and its surroundings?

{Public views are those that are experienced from publicly

accessible vantage point), lf the project is in an urbanized

area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning

and other regulations governing scenic quality?

LI n I

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which

would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the

area?

[J t1t-t I

Environmenlol Setting

The 4.g6-acre parcel proposed for development is currently vacant and undeveloped. Folsom State

prison is located immediately north of the site, along Prison Road. East of the project site is single family

homes along Cimmaron Circle, and south of the project site is Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) utility

powerlines, single-family homes, and duplexes' West of the project, along Fargo Way, is office space and

across from Fargo Way is the folsom City Police Department. Oak Parkway Trail is located west and

south of the site, and Johnny Cash Recreation Trail is located north of the project site. The local setting is

characterized by commercial development to the south and west, residential to the east and south, and

institutionalto the north. Existing utility lines are located along East Natoma Street and south of the

project site.

Evqluolion of Aeslhetics

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

No impact. Neither the project site nor the surrounding areas are scenic vistas due to the existing

nearby commercial, residential developments. Further, neither the project site, nor views to or from the

project site, have been designated as important scenic resources by the City or any other public agency'

Therefore, the proposed development would not interfere with or degrade a scenic vista, and no impact

would occur.

14

Page 596

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



c)

Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and

historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

No impact. The project site is currently vacant and undeveloped. The nearest officially designated state

scenic highway is the segment of US Highway 50 from Placerville to Echo Summit, approximately 20

miles east (CalTrans ZOtg). Therefore, the project would not impact scenic resources, such as trees, rock

outcroppings or historic buildings within a state scenic highway, and no impact would occur.

ln non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views

of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly

accessible vantage point). lf the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with

applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?

Less than significant impact. The proposed project is located within an urbanized area of Folsom,

surrounded by commercialand residential development and institutional land. The site is vacant and

undeveloped, and the existing character of the site would be modified by the proposed development'

The proposed project would construct a 136-unit affordable senior housing development, as well as

proposed parting (bicycle and vehicle), landscape, and outdoor and indoor amenities' The apartment

building roof height is 34-ft, with architectural elements ranging from 42-ft,5-inches to up to 42-ft' 6'

inches above grade, and would be designed with stucco, board and batten, brick veneer, asphalt

shingles, and wrought iron railing. The building would be visually compatible with the proposed

landicaping throughout the project site. Please refer to Figure 4, Figure 5, Figure 5, and Figure 7 for

architectu ral renderings of the proposed project site viewed from Natoma Street and the bike trail'

ln order to accommodate for the change in existing character, the proposed project would implement

landscape screening, site amenities, and building designs to blend the proposed project with

surrounding development and screen the project from residential neighbors' Along the proposed 8-ft

masonry *tll on the eaStern boundary, shade, and accent trees, as well aS several evergreen SpecieS

would be planted as landscape screening. The landscape screening would be planted in order to block

the sightline of homes along Cimmaron Circle and surrounding streets from the third story of the

proposed building. tree heilht would range from 15- to 35-ft based on tree type and would supplement

ihe existing trees in the neighboring yards. Please refer to Figure 8 and Figure 9 for architectural

renderings of the proposed sightline screening. Additionally, landscaped areas with various trees and

shrubs would surround the proposed building and parking area, and a bocce ball court, and outdoor

seating areas would be included to add to the overall visual aesthetic. The proposed br;ilding would have

asymmetricalgabled roofs to add visual interest'

The proposed proJect is consistent with types of uses envisioned and permitted in the Folsom General

plan. The project is consistent with the BP zoning distric{ development standards and would be designed

consistent with the City's Design Guidelines for Senior Housing Development' Entitlement requests for

this project include a pianned Development permit (PD Permit) and a conditional use Permit (CUP). The

Conditional Use permit is required to allow for development of a senior residential apartment

community on the project site. The proposed land use is consistent with the overall suburban character

and ongoing development in the vicinity and is expected to integrate into the existing and planned

development of the area. The proposed project would have a less than significant impact on visual

character and no mitigation is necessary.

1>

Page 597

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

d) create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect day or nighttime views

in the area?

Less than significant impact. The project includes a combination of free-standing, pole-mounted parking

lot and walkway lights, recessed carport and elevator lights, and building-mounted lights. To minimize

potential lighting-related impacts, free-standing parking lot lights and recessed carport lights would be

screened, shielded, and directed downward to minimize glare towards the surrounding properties. New

lighting installed with the development of the proposed project would be subject to City standard

practices regarding night lighting that would be made a condition of approval of the PD Permit. The

proposed units and other project features would comply with design standards outlined in the Folsom

irlunicipal Code. The exterior of the proposed apartment buildings would be designed with architectural

detailing that would not produce glare and would not affect day or nighttime views, and existing City

standards would limit light spillover and intensity. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant, and

no mltigation is necessary.

16

Page 598

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APa rtments ISMND

II. AGRICULIURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES

Potendally
Sltnlfi€rnt

lnptct

lrsllnn
Sltdfrc.nt

Bllh
MHpnon

lncorporrted

LrsrThrn
$srnctnt tlo
lmpact lnP.ct

Would the Project:

a) convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland

of Statewide lmportance (Farmland), as shown on the

maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and

Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency'

n n nl

to non-agricultural use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a

Williamson Act contract?
n

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of,

forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code

Section LZZzllAll,timberland tas defined by Public

Resources Code Section 4526), or timberland zoned

Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code

li I

Section 51104(e))?

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest n
land to non-forest use?

e) lnvolve other changes in the existing environment which,

due to their location or nature, could result in conversion

of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of

forest land to non- forest use?

Environmentol Setling

No agricultural activities or timber management occur on the project site or in adjacent areas and the

project site is not designated for agricultural or timberland uses. The california lmportant Farmlands

Map prepared for sacram"nto co*ty by the california Resources Agency classifies the project site and

surrounding area as Other Land (California Department of Conservation (CDC) 2015)' Other Land is land

not included in any other mapping category. common examples include low density rural developments;

brush timber, wetland, and riparian areas not suitable for livestock grazing; confined livestock, poultry

or aquaculture facilities; strip mines, borrow pits; and water bodies smaller than forty acres' Vacant and

non-agricultural land surrounded on all sides by urban development and greater than 40 acres is

mapped as Other Land (CDC 2015)'

The Natural Resources Conservation Service {NRcS} soil survey report generated for the project site

(NRCS 2020) indicates that the soil units at the site, Argonaut-Auburn complex, 3 to 8 percent slopes,

and Argonaut-Auburn-Urban complex, 3 to 8 percent slopes, are not Prime Farmland' Farmland of

Statewidelmportance,FarmlandofLocallmportance,orUniqueFarmland.

n n n

t7

Page 599

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom seniorApartments ISMND

Evoluqllon of Agrlcullure qnd Foreslry Services

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide lmportance (Farmland), as

shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the

California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

No impact. The project site is not designated as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of
Statewide importance (Farmland). as indicated in the Sacramento County lmportant Farmland 2016

Map (CDC 2016). Therefore, the project would have no impact on these farmland resources.

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williainson Act contrdct?

No impact. The project site is not zoned for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract.

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources

Code Section 7222}(ell,timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), or
timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section 51104(9))?

No impact. The project site is not zoned or designated as farmland, and the surrounding land uses are

primarily residential developments, office space, and institutional land. Therefore, the nature and

location of the project would not directly or indirectly result in the conversion of Farmland to non-

agricultural uses. No impact would occur.

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest la nd to non-forest use?

OR

e) lnvolve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could

result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest

use?

No impad. Because no portion of the City or the project site are zoned for forest land or timberland, no

impact would occur for questions d) and e).

18

Page 600

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

III. AIR QUATITY

Poierthlty
Sltnlicrnt

lmptCt

lerslhrn
Stnlfrcrrt

wllh
ilhEptol

lncorporrtcd

lcsrhan
Sltnlficrnt llo
lmpact lmp.ct

Where available, the significance criteria established by the
applicable air quality management district or air pollution

control district may be relied upon to make the following
determinations. Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable

air quality plan?
n r t]

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any

criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-

attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air
quality standard?

u fl ln

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant

concentrations?
LI

d) Result in other emissions {such as those leading to odors)

adversely affecting a substantial number of people?
n u I

HELTX Environmental Planning conducted air quality modeling {CalEEMod}for the proposed project

based primarily on the preliminary site plan and the Transportation lmpact Study conducted by T. Kear

Transportation Planning and Managem ent (2O22|. Air quality modeling output files and quantitative

results are presented in Appendix B.

Environmenlol Setting

Climate in the Folsom area is characterized by hot, dry summers and cool, rainy winters, During

summe/s longer daylight hours, plentifulsunshine provides the energy needed to fuel photochemical

reactions between oxides of nitrogen (NOx) and reactive organic gases (ROG), which result in ozone (Or)

formation. High concentrations of Os are reached in the Folsom area due to intense heat, strong and low

morning inversions, greatly restricted vertical mixing during the day, and daytime subsidence that
strengthens the inversion layer. The greatest pollution problem in the Folsom area is from NOx.

The City of Folsom lies within the eastern edge of the Sacramento Valley Air Basin (SVAB). The

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) is responsible for implementing

emissions standards and other requirements of federal and state laws in the project area. As required by

the California Clean Air Act (CCAA), SMAQMD has published various air quality planning documents as

discussed below to address requirements to bring the District into compliance with the federal and state

ambient air quality standards. The Air Quality Attainment Plans are incorporated into the State

lmplementation Plan (SlP), which is subsequently submitted to the U.5. Environmental Protection

Agency {USEPA}, the federal agency that administrates the Federal Clean Air Act of 1970, as amended

in 1990.

19

Page 601

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaSe at Folsom Sentor Apartments ISMND

Ambient air quality is described in terms of compliance with state and national standards, and the levels

of air pollutant concentrations considered safe, to protect the public health and welfare. These

standards are designed to protect people most sensitive to respiratory distress, such as people with
asthma, the elderly, very young children, people already weakened by other disease or illness, and
persons engaged in strenuous work or exercise. The USEPA has established national ambient air quality

standards (NAAAS) for seven air pollution constituents. As permitted by the Clean Air Act, California has

adopted more stringent air emissions standards {California Ambient Air Quality Standards [CMQS]) and

expanded the number of regulated air constituents.

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) is required to designate areas of the state as attainment,
nonattainment, or unclassified for any state standard. An "attainment" designation for an area signifies

that pollutant concentrations do not violate the standard for that pollutant in that area. A

"nonattainment" designation indicates that a pollutant concentration violated the standard at least

once. The air qualiry attainment status of the SVAB, including the City of Folsom, is shown in Table 4.

Table 4. Sacramento Valley Air Basin - Attainment Status

Pollutent Feder.l Attslnment Status

Ozone No Federal Standard

0zone Nonattainment
Coarse Particulate Matter Attainment
Fine Particulate Matter Nonattainment

Carbon Monoxide

Nit Dioxide Attainme

Lead

Sulfur Dioxide Unclassified

Sulfates No Federal Standard

Sulfide No Federal Standard

Particles No Federal Standard

Sources: SMAQMD 2020

Sacramento County is designated as nonattainment for the state and federal ozone standards, the state
PMro standards, and the federal PMz.s standards. Concentrations of all other pollutants meet state and

federal standards.

Ozone is not emitted directly into the environment, but is generated from complex chemical reactions

between ROG, or non-methane hydrocarbons, and NOx that occur in the presence of sunlight. ROG and

NOx f,enerators in Sacramento County include motor vehicles, recreational boats, other transportation
sources, and industrial processes. PMro and PMz.s arise from a variety of sources, including road dust,

diesel exhaust, fuel combustion, tire and brake wear, construction operations, and windblown dust.

Toxic Air Gonlqmlnontg

Toxic air contaminants (TAC) are a diverse group of air pollutants that may cause or contribute to an

increase in deaths or in serious illness or that may pose a present or potential hazard to human health.
TACs can cause long-term chronic health effects such as cancer, binh defects, neurological damage,

asthma, bronchitis, or genetic damage, or short-term acute effects such as eye watering, respiratory

irritation (a cough), runny nose, throat pain, and headaches, TACs are considered either carcinogenic or

State of Cellfornla
Attalnmcnt Status

Nonattainment
Nonattainment
Nonattainment

Attainment
Attainment
Attainment
Attainment
Attainment
Attainment
Unclassified
Unclassified

20

Page 602

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

noncarcinogenic based on the nature of the health effects associated with exposure to the pollutant, For

carcinogenic TACs, there is no level of exposure that is considered safe and impacts are evaluated in

terms of overall relative risk expressed as excess cancer cases per one million exposed individuals.

Noncarcinogenic TACs differ in that there is generally assumed to be a safe level of exposure below

which no negative health impact is believed to occur, These levels are determined on a pollutant-by-

pollutant basis.

The Health and Safety Code (939655[a]) defines TAC as "an air pollutant which may cause or contribute
to an increase in mortality or in serious illness, or which may pose a present or potential hazard to
human health." All substances that are listed as hazardous air pollutants pursuant to subsection (b) of
Section 112 ofthe CAA (42 United States Code Sec. 7a12[b]) are designated as TACs. Under State law,

the California Environmental Protection Agency {CalEPA}, acting through CARB, is authorized to identify

a substance as a TAC if it determines the substance is an air pollutant that may cause or contribute to an

increase in mortality or an increase in serious illness, or that may pose a present or potential hazard to
human health.

Diesel engines emit a complex mixture of air pollutants, including both gaseous and solid material, The

solid material in diesel exhaust is referred to as diesel particulate matter {DPM}. Almost all DPM is

L0 microns or less in diameter, and 90 percent of DPM is less than 2.5 microns in diameter (CARB 2022).

Because of their extremely smallsize, these particles can be inhaled and eventually trapped in the
bronchiai and alveolar regions of the lung. ln 1998, CARB identified DPM as a TAC based on published

evidence of a relationship between diesel exhaust exposure and lung cancer and other adverse health

effects. DPM has a notable effect on California's population-it is estimated that about 70 percent of
total known cancer risk related to air toxics in California is attributable to DPM {CARB 2022).

Sensillve Receptors

Some land uses are considered more sensitive to air pollution than others due to the types of population

groups or activities involved and are referred to as sensitive receptors. Examples of these sensitive

receptors are residences, schools, hospitals, and daycare centers. CARB and the Office of Environmental

Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) have identified the following groups of individuals as the most likely

to be affected by air pollution:the elderly over 65, children under 14, infants (including in utero in the

thlrd trimester of pregnancy), and persons with cardiovascular and chronic respiratory diseases such as

asthma, emphysema, and bronchitis (CARB 2005; OEHHA 2015).

Residential areas are considered sensitive receptors to air pollution because residents {including
children and the elderly) tend to be at home for extended periods of time, resulting in sustained

exposure to any pollutants present. Children and infants are considered more susceptible to health

effects of air pollution due to their immature immune systems, developing organs, and higher breathing

rates. As such, schools are also considered sensitive receptors, as children are present for extended

durations and engage in regular outdoor activities'

The closest existing sensitive receptors to the project site are the single-family residences that border

the project site to the east and the single-family residences located approximately 100-ft south of the
project site. Additionally, Vibra Hospital of Sacramento is located approximately 350-ft south of the
project site. The closest schools to the project site are Theodore Judah Elementary School and Blanche

Sprentz Elementary School, located approximately 1,400-ft to the southwest and 2,000-ft to the
southeast, respectively.

21

Page 603

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Melhodology snd AstumPlions

Criteria pollutant, precursor, and GHG emissions for project construction and operation were estimated

using the California Emissions Estimator Model {CalEEMod}, Version 2O2A.4.O. CalEEMod is a statewide

land use emissions computer model designed to provide a uniform platform for government agencies,

land use planners, and environmental professionals to quantify potential criteria pollutant and GHG

emissions associated with both construction and operations from a variety of land use projects. The

model was developed for the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA) in

collaboration with the California air districts. CalEEMod allows for the use of default data (e'g., emission

factors, trip lengths, meteorology, source inventory) provided by the various California air districts to

account for local requirements and conditions, and/or user-defined inputs. The calculation methodology

and default data used in the model are available in the CalEEMod User's Guide, Appendices A, D, and E

(CAPCOA 2021). The CalEEMod output files are included in Attachment A to this letter.

Construction of the project is anticipated to begin as early as January 2A23 and be completed in April

2024. Construction modeling assumes the fotlowing anticipated schedule: site preparation 10 working

days; grading 87 working days; building construction 207 working days; paving 2l working days; and

architectural coating 22 working days. Construction equipment assumptions were based on estimates

from calEEMod defaults. The project would not require an import or export of soil during construction

activities. Construction emissions modeling assumes implementation of basic dust control practices

(watering exposed areas twice per day)to comply with the requirements of: SMAQMD Rule 403,

Fugitive Dust.

Operational mobile emissions were modeled using the project trip generation of 441 average daily trips

from the project Transportation lmpact Study (T. Kear Transportation Planning and Management, lnc.

2O2Zl. Operational emissions resulting from energy use, water use, and solid waste generation were

modeled using calEEMod defaults with an added 20 percent reduction in water use to account forthe

requirementr of tt 
" 

2019 CALGreen, and an additional 25 percent solid waste diversion to account for

AB 341 requirements.

Stqndqrds ol Slgniflconce

While the final determination of whether or not a project has a signifiiant effect is within the purview of

the lead agency pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064(b), SMAQMD recommends that its air

pollution thresholds be used to determine the significance of project emissions. The criteria pollutant

thresholds and various assessment recommendations are contained in SMAQMD's Guide to Air QuoliV

Assessrnenf in Sacrsmento County (CEQA Guide; 2020, revised), and are discussed under the checklist

questions below.

Evoluollon of Ah QuolltY

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Less than Significant lmpact. ln accordance with SMAQMD's Guide, construction-generated NOX, PM10,

and pM2.5, and operational-generated ROG and NOX (all ozone precursors) are used to determine

consistency with the Ozone Attainment Plan. The Guide states:

22

Page 604

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaSe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

8y exceeding the District's mass emission thresholds for operotional emissions of ROG, NOX,

PM70, or PM2.5, the Woject woutd be considered to conflictwith or obstruct implementotion of
the District's air quolity planning efforts.

As shown in the discussion for question 2) below, the project's construction-generated emissions of
NOx, PMro, and PMz.sand operation-generated emissions ROG and NOx would not exceed SMAQMD

thresholds. The project would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air

quality plan and the impact would be less than significant.

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pqllutant for which the projed
region is non- attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?

Less than Significant lmpact. The Sacramento region is in non-attainment for ozone {ozone precursors

NOx and ROG) and particulate matter (PMz.s and PMro). The project's emissions of these criteria
pollutants and precursors during construction and operation are evaluated below.

Construction Em issions

Ca|EEMod version 2O2O.4.0 was used to quantifo project-generated construction emissions. The model

output sheets are included in Attachment A. Construction activities were assumed to commence as early

as January 2A23 and be completed in April 2O24.The quantity, duration, and intensity of construction

activity inftuence the amount of construction emissions and related pollutant concentrations that occur

at any one time. As such, the emission forecasts provided herein reflect a specific set of conservative

assumptions based on the expected construction scenario wherein a relatively large amount of
construction activity is occurring in a relatively intensive manner. Because of this conservative

assumption, actual emissions could be less than those forecasted. lf construction is delayed or occurs

over a longer time period, emissions could be reduced because of {L) a more modern and cleaner-

burning construction equipment fleet mix than assumed in CalEEMo d; andlor (2) a less intensive

buildout schedule (i.e., fewer daily emissions occurring over a longer time interva[).

The project's construction period emissions of ROG, NOx, PMro, and PMz.s are compared to the

SMAQMD construction thresholds in Table 5. The SMAQMD does not have a recommended threshold

for construction-generated ROG. However, quantification and disclosure of ROG emissions is

recommended. The SMAQMD considers any emissions of PMro and PMz.r to be significant unless the

Basic Construction Emissions Control Practices are implemented, also known as Best Management

Practices (BMPs). The project would implement the SMAQMD BMPs to control fugitive dust in

accordance with SMAQMD Rule 403. The modeling accounts for emissions reductions resulting from

watering exposed surfaces twice daily. As shown in Table 5, the proposed project's construction period

emissions of the ozone precursor NOx, PM1s, and PMz.swould not exceed the SMAQMD thresholds.

lmpacts related to construction-generated emissions of ROG, NOx, PM19, and PMz.swould be less than

significant.

23

Page 605

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Tabte 5. Construction Criteria Pollutant and Precursor Emissions

PMas
Comtructlon ActhrltY

Site 3.7

Grad 2.3

Build Construction 0.9

0.4

Architectural 0.1

Maximum Emisslons

SMAQMO Thresholds

Exceed Thresholds?

Source: CalEEMod {output data is provided in Attachment A)

ROG = reactive organic gases; NOx = nitrogen oxides; PMro = particulate matter 10 microns or less in diameter;

pM2.5 = particulate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter; SMAQMD= Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality

Management District

Operational Emissions

Emissions generated from operational activities would include:

o Areas sources - combustion emissions from the use of landscape maintenance equipment, the

reapplication of architectural coatings for maintenance, and the use of consumer products.

. Energy sources - combustion emissions from the use of natural gas appliances, water heaters,

and heating systems.

r Mobile emissions - combustion, fuel evaporation, brake and tire wear, and road dust emission

resulting from worker, customer, and vendor vehicle traveling to and from the proiecl site.

The results of the modeling for project operational activities are shown in Table 5. The data is presented

as the maximum anticipated daily emissions for comparison with the SMAQMD thresholds, the model

output and calculation sheets are included as Attachment A to this letter. As shown in Table 6, the

proposed project operation period emissions of the ozone precursor NOx, ROG, PMro, and PMz.s would

not exceed the SMAQMD thresholds. lmpacts related to operation-generated emissions of ROG, NOx,

PMro, aod PMz.s would be less than significant.

Table 6. Maximum Daily Operational Emissions

PMzr
Source

Area <0.01

<0.01

Mobile o.7

Maxlmum Emissions o.7

Thresholds 82

Exceed Thresholds? Jtlo

Source: CalEEMod ioutput data is provided in Attachment A)

ROG : reactive organic gases; NOx = ni1leg"n oxides; PMro = particulate matter 10 microns or less in diameter;

p14r 5 = particulate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter; SMAQMD= Sacramento Metropolitan ,{ir Quality

Management District

s.7

82

No

PMo
looundgldaYl

ROG

{oounds/deyl
r{ft

lpounds/davl
10.227.62.7

18.0 4.t1.8
1s,3 1.51.9
8.3 0.60.9
1.3 4.262.6

27.6 to.262.6
8s 80None

{VoNo No

NOr
looundsldavl

PMo
lpounds/darl

ROG
(oounds/dayl

<0.13.1 0.1
<0.1<0.1 0.3

2.41.51.1
2.0 2,54.2

65 8A65
No NoNo

24

Page 606

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

As shown in Table 5 and Table 5, the project's maximum daily construction or operational emissions

would not exceed the SMAQMD's thresholds. Therefore, the project would not result in a cumulatively
considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment, and

the impact would be less than significant.

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Less than Significant lmpact. CARB and OEHHA have identified the following groups of individuals as the
most likely to be affected by air pollution: the eldedy over 65, children under 14, infants (including in

utero in the third trimester of pregnanry), and persons with cardiovascular and chronic respiratory
diseases such as asthma, emphysema, and bronchitis (CARB 2005, OEHHA 2015). Some land uses are

considered more sensitive to air pollution than others due to the types of population groups or activities
involved and are referred to as sensitive receptor locations. Examples of these sensitive receptor
locations are residences, schools, hospitals, and daycare centers.

The closest existing sensitive receptors to the project site are the single-family residences that border
the project site to the east and the single-family residences located approximately 100-ft south of the
project site. Additionally, Vibra Hospital of Sacramento is located approximately 350-ft south of the
project site. The closest schools to the project site are Theodore Judah Elementary School and Elanche

Sprentz Elementary School, located approximately 1,400-ft to the southwest and 2,000-ft to the
southeast, respectively.

The dose {of TAC) to which receptors are exposed is the primary factor used to determine health risk.

Dose is a function of the concentration of a substance in the environment and the extent of exposure a

person has with the substance; a longer exposure period to a fixed quantity of emissions would result in

higher health risks. Current models and methodologies for conducting cancer health risk assessments

are associated with longer-term exposure periods (typically 30 years for individual residents based on
guidance from OEHHAland are best suited for evaluation of long duration TAC emissions with
predictable schedules and locations. These assessment models and methodologies do not correlate well

with the temporary and highly variable nature of construction activities. Cancer potency factors are

based on animal lifetime studies or worker studies where there is long-term exposure to the
carcinogenic agent. There is considerable uncertainty in trying to evaluate the cancer risk from projects

that will only last a smallfraction of a lifetime {OEHHA 2015). ln addition, concentrations of mobile

source DPM emissions disperse rapidly and are typically reduced by 70 percent at approximately 500-ft
(CARB 2005). Considering this information, the highly dispersive nature of DPM, and the fact that
construction activities would occur at various locations throughout the project site, it is not anticipated

that construction of the project would expose sensitive receptors to substantial DPM concentrations.

According to the SMAQMD, land use development projects do not typically have the potentialto result
in localized concentrations of criteria air pollutants that expose sensitive receptors to substantial
pollutant concentrations. This is because criteria air pollutants are predominantly generated in the form

of mobile-source exhaust from vehicle trips associated with the land use development project. These

vehicle trips occur throughout a paved network of roads, and, therefore, associated exhaust emissions

of criteria air pollutants are not generated in a single location where high concentrations could be

formed (SMAQMD 2020). Therefore, localized concentration of CO from exhaust emissions, or "CA

hotspots," would only be a concern on high-volume roadways where vertical and/or horizontal mixing is

substantially limited, such as tunnels or below grade highways. There are no high-volume roadways in

the region with limited mixing that would be affected by project generated traffic. Once operational, the

25

Page 607

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

project would not be a significant source of TACs. Therefore, the project would not expose sensitive

receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations, and the impact would be less than significant.

d) Result in other emissions {such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number

of people?

Less than Significant lmpact. The project could produce odors during construction activities resulting

from heavy diesel equipment exhaust and VOC released during application of asphalt. The odor of these

emissions is objectionable to some; however, emissions would disperse rapidly from the project site and

therefore should not be at a levelthat would affect a substantial number of people. Any odors emitted

during construction activities would be temporary, short-term, and intermittent in nature, and would

cease upon the facility maintenance. As a result, impacts associated with temporary odors during

construction are not considered significant.

As an affordable senior rental housing development, operation of the project would not result in odors

affecting a substantial number of people. Solid waste generated by the proJect would be collected by a

contracted waste hauler, ensuring that any odors resulting from on-site waste would be managed and

collected in a manner to prevent the proliferation of odors. The project would not result in other

emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people, and the

impact would be less than significant.

26

Page 608

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaSe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

IV. BIOTOGICAT RESOURCES

Potcntlrl[
Sl3nlfrcant

lmpsa

hssfhen
S[nl0cent

wldt
MhljrIon

lncorpor.ted

lessThen
Slgnnc.nt l{o
lmp.c lmprct

Would the projecti

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or
through habitat modifications, on any species identified
as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local

or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the
California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U,S. Fish and

Wildlife Service?

l-:l

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat

or other sensitive natural community identified in local or
regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California

Department of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife
Service?

il n n I

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally
protected wetlands {including, but not limited to, marsh,

vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling,
hydrological interruption, or other means?

n I nLt

d) lnterfere substantially with the movement of any native
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with
established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors,
or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

i-1 nl

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting

biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or
ordinance?

fl I t_l tr

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat

Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation
Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat
conseruation plan?

An Arborist lnventory Letter Report was prepared by HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc. on March22,
2022 (HELIX 2A22al and is included as Appendix C. A Biological Resources Evaluation (BRE) was also

prepared by HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc, on October 2l,2O2A (HELIX 2020) and is included as

Appendix D.

Environmenlol Setling

The project site is a vacant, wooded parcel within the City of Folsom. The site is generally bordered by

residential parcels and small commercial buildings, as well as the paved Oak Parkway cycling trail.
Folsom State Prison is located north of the project site, on the opposite side of Natoma Street.

27

Page 609

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



at Folsom Senior rtments ISMND

Slle Condlllons

The entire project site is considered to be blue oak woodland, surrounded by urban development.
Historic aerial imagery shows that the project site has changed little since 1952 and has consisted of oak
woodland with a drainage running through the site. The site is moderately disturbed. There is evidence

of recreational use by bicycles and the site has a constructed dirt track with several constructed dirt
ramps and jumps for bicycles, presumably constructed by kids from the adjacent residential
neighborhood, lt also has debris piles and other evidence of use by transients.

Melhods

Studies conducted in support of the BRE included a special-status species evaluation, an aquatic
resources evaluation, and a biological and wetlands reconnaissance survey. An Arborist Report was also

concluded.

Specicl-Stotus Specles Evoluolion

For the purposes of the BRE, special-status species are those that fall into one or more of the following
categories:

Listed as endangered or threatened under the Federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 (FESA),

including candidate species and species proposed for listing;

Listed as endangered orthreatened underthe California Endangered Specles Act (CESA),

including candidate species and species proposed for listing;

Designated as a Species of Special Concern {SSC} or watch-list {WL) species by the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), or "Fully Protected" under the California Fish and

Game Code {FP), or a sensitive natural community; andlor,

Designated by the Catifornia Native Plant Society (CNPS) as California Rare Plant Rank 1A, LB,2A,
28, or 3.

ln order to evaluate special-status species and/or their habitats with the potentialto occur in the project

site and/or be impacted by the proposed project, HELIX obtained lists of special-status species known to
occur andfor having the potential to occur on the proposed project site and vicinity from the U.S. Fish

and Wildlife Seruice (USFWS; USFWS 2020), the California Native Plant Society (CNPS; CNPS 2020), and

the California Natural Diversity Database {CNDDB; CDFW 2020), which are included as Appendix D, The

potentialfor these regionally occurring special-status species to occur in the project site is analyzed

in Appendix D.

Aquollc Regourceg Evoluolion

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service's National Wetlands lnventory (NWl) online databaserwas reviewed

to determine if there are any wetlands or other waters of the U.5. mapped by the USFWS on the project

site. The NWI provides reconnaissance level information on wetlands and deepwater habitats from
analysis of high-altitude aerial imagery. Historic aerial imagery from National EnvironmentalTitle
Research {NETR)zwas reviewed for information on past land uses and presence of aquatic features
visible on aerial imagery. NETR provides aerial imagery covering the study area at irregular intervals

a

t

a

a

28

Page 610

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaSe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

from 1956 to 2016.

Biologlcol ond Wellond Resource Evoluqllon

A biologicaland wetlands reconnaissance survey was conducted on September 30, 2020 by HELIX

principal Biologist Stephen Stringer, M.S. and HELIX Biologist Stephanie Mclaughlin, M.S. between 0830

and 1400 hours. The project site was assessed to identify the habitat type(s) present on-site and the

potential to support special-status plant and wildlife species. The survey consisted of a pedestrian

survey of the proiect site and the surrounding area. Meandering transects of the site were performed to

obtain visual coverage of the site. Plant species were identified to the level necessary to determine

whether or not they were a special-status species'

The three-parameter method was used to determine the presence/absence of wetlands, which involves

identifying indicators of hydrophytic vegetation, hydric soils, and wetland hydrology according to the

Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Monual (USACE 1987l,lhe Regional Supplement to the Corps of

Engineers Wettand Delineation Manual: Arid West Region (Version 2.0; USACE 2008), A Field 6uide to

the tdentification of the Ordinary High Woter Mork (OHWM) in the Arid West Region of the Western

united States (Lichvar and McColley 2008) and the Sfote Wetlond Definition ond Procedures for
Discharges af Dredged or Fil! Materialto Wqters of the State prepared by the State Water Resources

Control Board and which became effective May 28, 2020. The presence/absence of other non-wetland

aquatic resources was determined by searching for the presence of an ordinary high water mark and

bed and bank. The extent of waters on the project site were mapped in the field with sub-meter

accuracy using a Trimble GeoXT Global Positioning System (GPS) hand-held unit. The GPS data were

downloaded from the unit, exported into ArcMap 10.7.10, and used to produce the map of aquatic

features in the delineation area and to calculate the acreage of each aquaticfeature,

Weather during the survey was clear and warm and hazy conditions. A complete list of plant and animal

species observed on the project site during the biological reconnaissance survey is included in Appendix

D.

Arborisl lnvenlory

The arborist inventory was conducted on September 24,2020 by HELIX Biologist and ISA Certified

Arborist Stephanie McLaughlin, M.S. (WE-12922A). Woody plants in the proiect area with a trunk

diameter of at least 4-inches at 4.5-ft above grade {diameter at breast height)were located and

assessed, A diameter tape or calipers were used to verify each trunk diameter. The measurement from

the trunk to the end of the longest lateral limb was estimated and used as the dripline radius' All

accessible trees were numbered with a pre-printed aluminum tag. Approximate trunk locations were

mapped using a sub-meter accurate global positioning system (GPS). Approximate tree locations are

identified in Figure 3 of the arborist report {Appendix C).

The condition of each tree was rated one a scale of 1to 5, with 1 indicating poor condition, 3 indicating

fair condition, and 5 indicating good condition. The rating considers factors health and structural factors

such as the size, color, and density of the foliage; the amount of deadwood within the canopy; bud

viability; evidence of wound closure; and the presence or evidence of stress, disease, nutrient

deficienry, and/or insect infestation; trunk and branch configurationi canopy balance; the presence of

included bark and other structural defects such as decay; and the potential for structural failure.

29

Page 611

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Regulqlory Fromework Reloled lo Biologicql Resources

State and Federal Endanqered Species Acts

Special status species are protected by state and federal laws. The California Endangered Species Act

(CESA; California Fish and Game Code Sections 2050 to 2097) proteEts species listed as threatened and

endangered under CESA from harm or harassment. This law is similar to the Federal Endangered Species

Act of 1973 (FESA; 15 USC 1531 et seq.) which protects federally threatened or endangered species (50

CFR 1.7.11, and L7.L2; listed species) frorn take. For both laws, take of the protected species may be

allowed through consultation with and issuance of a permit by the agency with jurisdiction over the
protected species.

Califurnio Code of Regulations ond Californio Fish and Game Code

The official listing of endangered and threatened animals and plants is contained in the California Code

of Regulations Title 14 5 670,5. A slate candidate species is one that the California Fish and Game Code

has formally noticed as being under review by CDFW for inclusion on the state list pursuant to Sections

2A74.2 and 2075.5 of the California Fish and Game Code. CDFW also designates Species of Special

Concern that are not currently listed or candidate species.

Legal protection is also provided for wildlife species in California that are identified as "fully protected

animals." These species are protected under Sections 3511 (birds), 4700 (mammals), 5050 {reptiles and

amphibians), and 5515 (fishes) of the California Fish and Game Code. These statutes prohibit take or
possession of fully protected species at any time. The CDFW is unable to authorize incidentaltake of
fully protected species when activities are proposed in areas inhabited by these species. The CDFW has

informed non-federal agencies and private parties that they must avoid take of any fully protected

species. However, Senate Bill (SB) 618 {2011} allows the CDFW to issue permits authorizing the

incidental take of fully protected species under the CESA, so long as any such take authorization is issued

in conjunction with the approval of a Natural Community Conservation Plan that covers the fully
protected species (California Fish and Game Code Section 2835)'

Calilornia Native Plant Prctedion Act

The California Native Plant Protection Act of 1977 (Californla Fish and Game Code Sections 1900 to
19L3) requires all state agencies to use their authority to implement programs to conserve endangered

and otherwise rare species of native plants. Provisions of the act prohibit the taking of listed plants from

the wild and require notification of CDFW at least 10 days in advance ofany change in land use other

than changing from one agricultural use to another, which allows CDFW to salvage listed plants that

would otherwise be destroYed.

Nesting and Migrutory Birds

Nesting birds are protected by state and federal laws. California Fish and Game Code (93503, 3503,5,

and 3800| prohibits the possession, incidental take, or needless destruction of any bird nests or eggs;

Fish and Game Code $3511 designates certain bird species "fully protected" (including all raptors),

making it unlawful to take, possess, or destroy these species except under issuance of a specific permit.

The Attorney General of California has released an opinion that the Fish and Game Code prohibits

incidental take. Under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) of 1918 (16 USF $703-711.), rnigratory bird

30

Page 612

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

species and their nests and eggs that are on the federal list (50 CFR $10.13) are protected from injury or

dlath, and project-related disturbance must be reduced or eliminated during the nesting cycle' The U,5.

court of Appeals for the 9th circuit {with jurisdiction over california) has ruled that the MBTA does not

prohibit incidental take (952 F 2d 297 - Court of Appeals, 9th circuit, 1991),

City of Folsom Tree Preservotion Ordinance

Requirements related to biological resources also include protection of existing trees and specifies

measures necessary to protect both ornamental and native oak trees. Chapter 12.16 ofthe Folsom

Municipal Code, the Tree Preservation Ordinance, further regulates the cutting or modification of trees,

including oaks and specified other trees; requires a Tree Permit prior to cutting or modification; and

establishes mitigation requirements for cut or damaged trees (city of Folsom 2020b)' The Tree

preservation ordinance 
"rt"blith"r 

policies, regulations, and standards necessary to ensure that the City

will continue to preserve and maintain its "urban forests". Anyone who wishes to perform "Regulated

Activities,, on "protected Trees" must apply for a permit with the City. Regulated activities include:

r Removal of a Protected Tree;

. Pruning/trimming of a Protected Tree; andf or,

. Grading or trenching within the Protected zone'

Protected trees include i

r Native oak trees with a diameter of 6-inches or larger for single trunk trees 2O-inches or larger

combined diameter of native oak multi-trunk trees;

r Heritage oak trees - native oaks with a trunk diameter of 19-inches or greater and native oaks

with a multi-trunk diameter of 38 inches or Ereater;

r Landmark trees identified individually by the City Councilthrough resolution as being a

significant community benefit; andf or,

r Street trees within the tree maintenance strip'

lurisdictional Woterc

Any person, firm, or agency planning to alter or work in "waters of the U.S.," including the discharge of

dredged or fill material, must first obtain authorization from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (UsAcE)

undei Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (cwA). Section 401 requires an applicant for a federal license

or permit that allows activities resulting in a discharge to waters of the U'S' must obtain a state

certification that the discharge complies with other provisions of the CWA. The Regional Water Quality

Control Board (RWeCB) administers the certification program in California. The RWQCB also regulates

discharges of pollutants or dredged or fill material to waters of the State which is a broader definition

than waters of the U.S.

31

Page 613

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

California Fish and Game Code Sedion 7602 - Lake ond Steambed Alteration Program

Diversions or obstructions of the natural flow of, or substantial changes or use of material from the bed,

channel, or bank of any river, stream, or lake in California that supports wildlife resources are subject to
regulation by CDFW, pursuant to Section L502 of the California Fish and Game Code. The CDFW requires

notification prior to commencement of any such activities, and a Lake and Streambed Alteration
Agreement (LSAA) pursuant to Fish and Game Code Sections 1601-1503, if the activity may substantially

adversely affect an existing fish and wildlife resource.

Hobltqt Types/ Vegetolion Communilles

Habitat types/vegetation communities in the project site include blue,oak woodland and ephemeral and

intermittent drainages.

Blue Ook Woodlond

Blue oak woodland is the predominant habitat type in the project site and occupies approximately 4,82-

acres within the site. Vegetation in the blue oak woodland habitat consists primarily of blue oak
(Quercus douglosii) and interior live oak lQuercus wislizenil, with some non-native species including
mulberry lMorus o/bo), Chinese tallow (Triodico sebiferal, Chinese hackberry {Celtis sinensis}, and

ornamental cherry (Prunus sp.). The understory is dominated by non-native grasses and forbs, including

cultivated oats {Aveno sp.), ltalian rye grass (Festuca perennisl, and yellow star-thistle (Centoureo

solstitiolisl. Disturbed areas, such as bike trails and jumps occur beneath the canopy of the oak
woodland, and there is a significant amount of trash and debris in these areas. A small segment of the
bike trail occurs in this habitat.

Topogrophy

The terrain in the proiect site and vicinity is locally flat. The elevation on the project site ranges from
350- to 370-ft above mean sea level and has low to moderate sloping from east to west.

$olls

The project site includes two soil mapping units (NRCS 2O20): Argonaut-Auburn-Urban land complex, 3

to 8 percent slopes and Argonaut-Auburn complex, 3 to 8 percent slopes. Soils on the Nationat Hydric

Soils List for Sacramento County (NRCS 2015) are not present in the project site.

Both soils occur on hills and are derived from residuum weathered from metamorphic rock. A typical
profile of the Argonaut-Auburn-Urban land complex and Argonaut-Auburn complex, 3 to 8 percent

slopes include loam from 0- to 1.4-inches, clay from 14- to 29-inches and bedrock from 29- to 33-inches;

the depth to water table is more than 8O-inches.

Speciol-Sfolus Plont Species

No special-status plant species were determined to have the potentialto occur on the project site or be

impacted by the proposed project. Of the 17 regionally occurring special-status plant species that were

identified during the database queries and desktop review, the majority occur in wetland habitats such

as vernal pools or seeps, which are absent from the site. Several others are limited to grassland or

32

Page 614

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMNO

cismontane woodland habitats. Although the site contains blue oak woodland, the study area is located

in an urban area dominated by non-native species that does not provide suitable habitat for special

status plant species. Therefore, no impacts to special-status plants are anticipated as a result of the

proposed project,

Specicl-Slotus Wlldlile SPecles

A total of 23 regionally occurring special-status wildlife species were identified during the database

searches and desktop review. The majority of the special-status wildlife species are associated with

aquatic habitats of the adjacent Sacramento Valley such as rivers, sloughs, and freshwater wetlands,

including vernal pools. The remaining species are associated with specific habitats such as bats roosting

in rocky habitats, caves or abandoning buildings, which are not present in or near the study area'

There are no reported occurrences of special-status animal species on or adjacent to the site' However,

the site provides suitable habitat for white-tailed kite {Elanus leucurusl and other nesting migratory

birds. These species are discussed briefly below. Species determined to have no potentialto occur on

the project site or be irnpacted by the proposed project (Appendix D) are not discussed further in this

report.

White-Tailed Kite

White-tailed kite is a year-round resident in coastal and valley lowlands, where it inhabits herbaceous

and open stages of most habitat types. lndividuals forage in grasslands, farmlands, and wetlands,

preying mostiy on small diurnal mammals. Nests are built near the top of dense tree stands, usually near

open foraging areas (Zeiner et al. 1988).

No white-tailed kites were observed during any of the biological surveys conducted for the proposed

project. The nearest reported extant occurrence of white-tailed kite in the CNDDB is located

approximately 3-miles southwest of the project site near Lake Natoma (CDFW 2020). Nesting habitat is

present on the site in large trees and foraging habitat is present in the ruderal vegetation' However,

irabitat for white-tailed kite is marginal due to the urban character of the surrounding area'

No adverse effects to white-tailed kite foraging habitat are anticipated as a result of the loss of oak

woodland habitatthatwould occurdueto developmentof the proposed project. Non-breedingadults

could readily avoid contact with construction equipment or personnel by moving out of the construction

area. Displacement of non-breeding adults would not be a significant impact. The project has potential

for adverse effects to white-tailed kite through nest disturbance leading to destruction of eggs or

nestlings if this species were to nest in or adjacent to the project site' Eggs and young still dependent on

the nest would be susceptible to injury or mortality through physical contact or through nest

abandonment caused by displacement of adults. Destruction of eggs or young would be a violation of

the Fish and Game Code and a significant impact'

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-Ol would reduce impacts to white-tailed kite and other

nesting birds to a less than significant level'

33

Page 615

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Mlgrolory Blrds ond Roplon

The project site provides suitable habitat for nesting migratory birds and raptors. However, migratory

and non-game birds are protected during the nesting season by California Fish and Game Code. The

project site and immediate vicinity provides nesting and foraging habitat for a variety of native birds

common to urbanized areas. Nests were not observed during surveys; however, a variety of migratory

birds have the potential to nest in and adjacent to the site, in trees, shrubs and on the ground in

vegetation.

Project activities such as clearing and grubbing during the avian breeding season {February 1 - August

3L) could result in injury or mortality of eggs and chicks directly through destruction or indirectly

through forced nest abandonment due to noise and other disturbance. Needless destruction of nests,

eggs, and chicks would be a violation of the Fish and Game Code and a significant impact.

Aquolic Resource Evoluolion

The project site is located in the City of Folsom in the Upper American River hydrologic unit (HUCL2:

130201110201). NWI mapping shows no aquatic features on the project site'

HELIX conducted a routine assessment of waters of the U.S. and State on September 30,202O, generally

in accordance with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers' (USACE) Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation

Manual and the Regionalsupplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Arid West

Region (Version 2.0). A formal delineation of wetlands was not completed. HELIX identified two aquatic

resources; an intermittent drainage and an ephemeral drainage totaling 0.04'acre of aquatic resources

that are potentially jurisdictional waters of the U,S. and state. The drainage features are depicted on the

Habitat and Resource Map, which is included in Attachment A of Appendix D. No other aquatic

resources are present on the site.

The intermittent drainage totals 0.03-acre and flows in a southwesterly direction along the northern

boundary of the project site. The intermittent drainage is fed by an unnamed emergent wetland swale

located north of the site on the Folsom State Prison grounds, via a 24-inch metal culvert that runs

beneath Natoma Street to enter the project site. The drainage also receives stormwater runoff from

Natoma Street. The water to the site flows intermittently, with water persisting after rain events. The

banks of the drainage are incised with a stream channel that is approximately 3-ft wide at the

ordinary high-water mark. The intermittent drainage on the project site does not support wetland

vegetation, with most of the vegetation within the feature consistent with vegetation in the blue oak

woodland vegetation community. Upon leaving the site, the intermittent drainage continues in a

southwesterly direction and enters an unnamed tributary to the American Riverllake Natoma west of
the prison.

An ephemeral drainage is characterized as a feature with a bed and a bank that channels water from

uplands and typically only flows during periods of precipitation. Ephemeral drainages typically do not

support wetlands due to their brief hydroperiods, although they typically have an incised bank. ln the

project site, there is one ephemeral drainage totaling 0.01-acre that crosses the eastern portion of the

site and intersects with the intermittent drainage. The ephemeral drainage in the project site supports

vegetation consistent with understory vegetation described in the blue oak woodland and is dominated

by weedy grasses and forbs.

34

Page 616

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Determination of regulatory jurisdiction must be made by the U'S' Army Corps of Engineers (USACE),

central valley Regional water Quality control Board (cvRWQcB), and cDFw. lt is likely that impacts to

the drainages would occur as a result of the proposed proiect, which would be a significant impact if

they are considered waters of the U.S. or state or subject to CDFW iurisdiction'

Protecled Trees

A total of 111 trees are present on the site, including 94 blue oaks, seven Fremont's cottonwoods

lpopulus fremontiil,four interior live oaks, two Gooding's black willow (Solix gooddingiil , one mulberry,

one Chinese hackberry, one Chinese tallow, and one ornamental cherry (Figure 3)' The City of Folsom

regulates trees under Section 12,16 of the Folsom Municipal Code {Tree Preservation Ordinance}' A

peimit is reguired to remove native oaks {defined as valley oak, blue oak, interior live oak, and coast live

oak) rneasuring 6-inches in diameter at standard height (i.e., 54-inches above natural grade, DSH), or a

multi-stemmed native oak measuring a total of 2o-inches at DSH. For a tree with a common root system

that branches at the ground, DSH is defined as the sum ofthe diameter ofthe largest trunk and one-half

the cumulative diameter of the remaining trunks measured at 4.5-ft above natural grade.

A total of 77 trees on the project site are considered protected by Folsom City Code. None of the

Fremont,s cottonwood, Chinese hackberry, Chinese tallow, mulberry, ornamental cherry or Gooding's

black willow are protected. See Attachment B in Appendix C for additional data on the trees found on

the project site.

Table I outlines the number of trees, with their respective DSH, to be impacted or to be retained' The

project includes a total of 111 trees on the project site, of which 77 ttees are protected by the Folsom

Litv coa". of the total 77 protected trees, 55 protected trees require mitigation (the remaining 12 trees

do not warrant mitigation due to poor health). Underthe proposed proiect,30 protected trees, with

473.l-inches at DsH, would be retained. The proposed project would result in direct or indirect impact

of the remaining 47 protected trees, which would require 571.3-inches at DSH of mitigation' However,

the final mitigation for the impact of protected trees is to be determined by the City Arborist prior to

issuance of a City Grading Permit. Please refer to Figure 10 for the Tree lmpact Plan'

Table 7: On-Site Tree Designation

Total Trees
on Proiect
Site

Unprotected
Trees

Protected
Trees

Protected
Trees to be
impacted

Protected
Trees to be
retained

Number r_11 34 77 47 30

DSH
(inchesl

s7L.3 473.L

Based on Figure 10 included in Appendix A.

35

Page 617

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Evqluotion ol Biologlcol Resoulces

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species

identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or

regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Less than significant with mitigation. The trees and understory grassland areas within the project site

provide suitable nesting habitat for white-tailed kite and other raptors as well as other native birds and

large trees adjacent to the site provide nesting habitat for raptors. Removal of vegetation containing

active nests would potentially result in destruction of eggs andlor chicks; noise, dust, and other

anthropogenic stressors in the vicinity of an active nest could lead to forced nest abandonment and

mortality of eggs and/or chicks. Needless destruction of eggs or chicks would be a violation of the Fish

and Game Code and a significant impact. Pre-construction surveys should be conducted prior to project

implementation to determine if nesting birds are present on or adjacent to the site, so that measures

could be implemented if needed to avoid harming nesting birds. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure

BIO-01would reduce impacts to white-tailed kite and other nesting birds to a less than significant level.

Mititation Measure BIO{I1: Avoid and minimize impacts to white-tailed kite and other nesting birds.

o lf project {construction) ground-disturbing or vegetation clearing and grubbing activities

commence during the avian breeding season (February 1- August 31), a qualified biologist shall

conduct a pre-construction nesting bird survey no more than 14 days prior to initiation of
project adivities and again immediately prior to construction. The survey area shall include

suitable raptor nesting habitat within 500-ft of the project boundary (inaccessible areas outside

of the project site can be surveyed from the site or from public roads using binoculars or
spotting scopes). Pre-construction surveys are not required in areas where project activities

have been continuous since priorto February 1, as determined by a qualified biologist. Areas

that have been inactive for more than L4 days during the avian breeding season must be

resurveyed prior to resumption of project activities. lf no active nests are identified, no further
mitigation is required. lf active nests are identified, the following measure is required;

o A suitable buffer (e.g., 500-ft for raptors; 100-ft for passerines) shall be established by a

qualified biologist around active nests and no construction activities within the buffer

shall be allowed until a qualified biologist has determined that the nest is no longer

active (i.e., the nestlings have fledged and are no longer reliant on the nest, or the nest

has failed). Encroachment into the buffer may occur at the discretion of a qualified

biologist. Any encroachment into the buffer shall be monitored by a qualified biologist

to determine whether nesting birds are being impacted.

With implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-01, impacts to the white-tailed kite and nesting birds

would be less than significant.

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitlve natural community

identified in local or regional plans, policies or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish

and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

No impact. No riparlan habitats, sensitive natural communities, or other protected habitats are located

on or adjacent to the project site. Therefore, no impact would occur.

36

Page 618

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited

to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or
other means?

Less than significant with mitigation. The 0.04-acre of aquatic features located on the project site are

potentially regulated by the USACE, CVRWQCB, and CDFW under the Clean Water Act, Porter-Cologne

Act, and Section 1500 of the Fish and Game Code. Therefore, removal or fill of the aquatic features

would likely require a permit from these agencies. ln order to avoid impacts to jurisdictional wetland

and waters, Mitigation Measure BIO-02 would be implemented, mitigating impacts to a less than

significant level.

Mitigation Measure BIO-02: Avoid and minimize impacts to jurisdictional wetland and waters

Prior to start of construction, the project proponent shall either prepare a formal delineation

and submit it to the USACE for verification or obtain verification based on the mapping of
aquatic resources in this report as well as contact the USACE, CVRWQCB, and CDFW to
determine the need for permits and secure any required aquatic resources permits for impacts

to waters of the U.S./State from the USACE, CVRWQCB, and CDFW, pursuant to Sections 404

and 401 of the Clean Water Act, the California Water Code, Section 1600 of the Fish and Game

Code, and the State Water Resource Control Board Dredge and Fill Policy. The project proponent

shall comply with all conditions of such permits including providing compensatory mitigation at

a minimum L:1 ratio as required to achieve no net loss of wetlands or other waters.

d) lnterfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species

or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native

wildlife nursery sites?

No impact. The project site is surrounded by development including Prison Road and Folsom State

Prison to the north, Cimmaron Circle and single-family homes to the east, PG&E powerlines, single

family homes, and duplexes to the south, and Fargo Way, Office Space, and Folsom City Police

Department to the west. The project site does not provide any wildlife movement corridors or wildlife
nursery sites. Therefore, there would be no impacts to wildlife corridors or the use of native wildlife
nursery sites as a result of the proposed project.

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree
preservation policy or ordinance?

[ess than significant impact with mitigation. Of the 111trees on the project site, 77 trees are

considered protected by Folsom City Code. lf protected trees will be removed by the proposed project

mitigation will be required per Section I2.1'6.L50'

Protected trees rated 3,4 or 5 shall be replaced at a ratio of one-inch equivalent for every one-inch of
DSH removed as shown in Table 8. Protected trees rated 2 shall be replaced at a ratio of one-half-inch

equivalent for every one inch removed. Protected trees rated 0 or 1 require no replacement or any

other mitigation. Mitigation for trees can be done through on-site replacement planting payment of in

lieu fees, or a combination thereof.

I

37

Page 619

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Table 8. Tree Replacement EquivalencyTable

BeplacementTree Size DSH Equivalency

A Samplinstree; or 0.5-inch DSH

Tree in container less than 15 gallons 0.5-inch DSH

15-gallon container tree 1-inch DSH

24-inch boxtree 2-inch DSH

35-inch boxtree 3-inch DSH

Of the 77 trees protected by Folsom City Code, only 65 trees require potential mitigation based on

having a health rating of 5,4,3, or 2. Of those 65 trees potentially requiring mitigation, the proposed

project would only result ln direct or indirect impact to 47 protected oak trees, which would require

571,3-inches at DSH of mitigation (Table 7). With implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-03,

impacts to protected trees would be less than significant.

Mitigation Measure BIO{3: Avoid and minimize impacts to protected trees

The applicant shall provide mitigation for directly or indirectly impacted oak trees based on

having a health rating of 5,4,3, or 2. Based on the DSH equivalency ratio, the project applicant

shall mitigate for the removal of approximately 47 oak trees (571.3 inches at DSH) that will be

removed with development of the project. Finalmitigation requirements shallbe determined by

the City Arborist upon receipt of final design plans prior to the issuance of a grading permit.

Mitigation for trees shall be done through on-site replacement planting, payment of in-lieu fees

as determined by the City, or a combination thereof.

a A Tree Permit Application containing an Application Form, Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan,

and Arborist Report shall be submitted to the City of Folsom by the owner/applicant for
issuance of a Tree Work Permit and Tree Removal Permit prior to commencement of any

grading or site improvement activities. The tree protection and mitigation plan shall be prepared

in collaboration with a qualified arborist and shall be subject to review and approval by the City.

The tree protection and mitigation plan shall contain the contact information of the project

arborist and shall be included in all associated plan sets for the project.

Removal of any protected tree shall be mitigated by planting replacement trees andfor payment

of "ln-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch basis in accordance with FMCrSectlon 12.15.15Q. The

proposed method of mitigation shall be subject to review and approval by the City.

Prior to starting construction, oak trees to be preserved shall be fenced with high visibility
fencing consistent with the city-approved tree protection and mitigation plan. Parking of
vehicles, equipment, or storage of materials is prohibited within the Tree Protection Zone of
Protected Trees at all times. Signs shall be posted on exclusion fencing stating that the enclosed

trees are to be preserved. Signs shall state the penalty for damage to, or removal of, the
protected tree.

The owner/applicant shall retain the services of a project arborist for the duration of the
development project to monitor the health of oak trees to be preserved and carry out the City-

approved tree protection plan. All regulated activity conducted within the Critical Root Zone of
protected rees, as that term is defined in Folsom Municipal Code {FMCI 12.L6.020, shall be

a

a

a

a

38

Page 620

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMNO

performed under the direct supervision of the project arborist. A copy of the executed contract
for these arboricultural services shall be submitted to the City prior to the issuance of any tree
or grading permits

a Certification letters by the project arborist attesting compliance with the tree protection and

mitigation plan and tree permit conditions shall be submitted to the City.

tl Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, NaturalCommunity
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

No impact. No Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved
local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan has been approved for the City of Folsom. Therefore,
no impacts to an existing adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conseruation Plan, or
other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan would occur.

39

Page 621

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

V. CUtTURAt RESOURCES

Potcnllrlly
Slgnlflcrnt

lmpsGt

lereTten
s|tnl0clnt

wlth
Mldg.don

lncorporrtcd

LrreThan
Slgnlfinnt llo
lmplct lmF Ct

Would the project;

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a
historical resource pursuant to 515064.5?

il I

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of
an archaeological resource pursuant to 515064.5?

I l:] n
c) Disturb any human remains, including'those interred

outside of dedicated cemeteries?
il I f] il

The discussion below is based on a cultural resources assessment prepared by HELIX Environmental
Planning, lnc. (HEUX 2}22bl, attached to this lnitial Study as Appendix E. This assessment, which
addresses both archaeological and architectural resources, is based on the results of an archival records

search, Native American coordination, and a pedestrian survey of the project site.

Envlronmentol Setllng

State and federal legislation require the protection of historical and cultural resources. ln 797t,
President's Executive Order No. 1L593 required that all federal agencies initiate procedures to preserve

and maintain cultural resources by nomination and inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places.

ln 1980, the Governo/s Executive Order No. 8-64-80 required that state agencies inventory all

"significant historic and cultural sites, structures, and objects under their jurisdiction which are over 50

years of age and which may qualify for listing on the National Register of Historic Places." Section

15064.s{bx1) of the CEQA Guidelines specifies that projects that cause "...physical demolition,
destruction, relocation, or alteration of the resource or its immediate surroundings such that the
significance of an historic resource would be materially impaired" shall be found to have a significant
impact on the environment. For the purposes of CEQA, an historical resource is a resource listed in, or
determined eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources. When a project could

impact a resource, it must be determined whether the resource is an historical resource, which is

defined as a resource that:

(A) is historically or archaeologically significant, or is significant in the architectural, engineering,

scientific, economic, agricultural, educational, social, political or cultural annals of California;

and,

(B) Meets any of the following criteria: 1) ls associated with events that have made a significant

contribution to the broad patterns of California's history and cultural heritage; 2) is associated

with the lives of persons important in our past; 3) embodies the distinctive characteristics of a

type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of an important creative

individual, or possesses high artistic values; or 4) has yielded, or may be likely to yield,

information important in prehistory or history. The City of Folsom Standard Construction

Specifications were developed and approved by the City of Folsom in May 2004 and updated in

40

Page 622

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

April 2015. They include Article L1 - Cultural Resources, which provides direction on actions to
be taken in the event that materials are discovered that may ultimately be identified as a

historical or archaeological resource, or human remains (City of Folsom 2015).

Cultural Background

The following is a brief overview of the prehistory, ethnography, and historic background of the project

area intended to provide a historical context for cultural resources that might be found in the vicinity of
the APE. This section is not intended to be a comprehensive review of the current resources available;

rather, it serves as a general overview of human occupations and uses of the general project vicinity.

Further details can be found in ethnographic studies, mission records, add major published sources,

including Beardsley (1948), Bennyhoff (1950, 1954, 19771, Fredrickson {1973 and I9741, Kroeber (1925),

Chartkoff and Chartkoff (1984), and Moratto (1984),

Prehistoric Background

Early archaeological investigations in central California were conducted at sites located in the
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta region. The first published account documents investigations in the Lodi

and Stockton area (schenck and Dawson 1929). The initial archaeological reports typically contained

descriptive narratives, with more systematic approaches sponsored by Sacramento Junior College in the
1930s. At the same time, University of California at Berkeley excavated severalsites in the lower
Sacramento Valley and Delta region, which resulted in recognizing archaeotogical site patterns based on

variations of inter-site assemblages. Research during the 1930s identified temporal periods in central

California prehistory and provided an initial chronologicalsequence (Lillard and Purves 1936; Lillard et
al. 1939). ln 1939, Lillard noted that each cultural period led directly to the next and that influences

spread from the Delta region to other regions in central California (Lillard et al. 1939), ln the late 1940s

and early 1950s, Beardsley documented similarities in artifacts among sites in the San Francisco Bay

region and the Delta and refined his findings into a cultural modelthat ultimately became known as the
CentralCalifornia Taxonomic System tCCfS). This system proposed a uniform, linear sequence of cultural

succession {Beardsley 1948 and 1954). The CCTS system was challenged by Gerow, whose work looked

at radiocarbon dating to show that Early and Middle Horizon sites were not subsequent developments

but, at least partially, contemporaneous (Gerow L954, L974; Gerow and Force 1958),

To address some of the flaws in the CCTS system, Fredrickson (1973) introduced a revision that
incorporated a system of spatial and cultural integrative units. Fredrickson separated cultural, temporal,

and spatial units from each other and assigned them to six chronological periods: Paleo-lndian (10000 to
6000 B.C.); Lower, Middle and Upper Archaic (6000 B.C. to A.D. 500), and Emergent (Upper and Lower,

A.D. 500 to 1800). The suggested temporal ranges are like earlier horizons, which are broad cultural

units that can be arranged in a temporal sequence {Moratto 1984). ln addition, Fredrickson defined

several patterns-a generalway of life shared within a specific geographical region. These patterns

include:

. Windmiller Pattern or Early Horizon (3000 to 1000 B.C.);

r Berkeley Pattern or Middle Horizon (1000 B.C. to A.D. 500); and,
. Augustine Pattern or Late Horizon {A.D. 500 to historic period}.

Brief descriptions of these temporal ranges and their unique characteristics are presented below.

4t

Page 623

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Windmiller Pattern or Early Horizon FOAO tu nOA B.C.)

The Windmiller Pattern, or, the Early Horizon culture, was centered in the Cosumnes district of the Delta

and emphasized hunting rather than gathering, as evidenced by the abundance of projectile points in

relation to plant processing tools. Additionally, atlatl, dart, and spear technologies used typically

included stemmed projectile points of slate and chert. Obsidian projectile points, however, are sparingly

found on Windmiller sites. The large variety of projectile point types and faunal remains suggests

exploitation of numerous types of terrestrial and aquatic species {Bennyhoff 1950; Ragir 1972}. Burials

occurred in cemeteries and intra-village graves. These burials typically were ventrally extended,

although some dorsal extensions are known with a westerly orientation and a high number of grave

goods. Trade networks focused on acquisition of ornamental and ceremonial objects in finished form

rather than as raw material. The presence of artifacts made of exotic materials such as quartz, obsidian,

and shell indicate an extensive trade network that may represent the arrival of Utian populations into

central California. Also indicative of this period are rectangular Holiotis and Olivella shell beads, and

charmstones that usually were perforated,

Berkeley Pottern or Middle Horizon (1000 B.C' to A.D' 5AO)

The Middle Horizon is characterized by the Berkeley Pattern, which displays considerable changes from

the Early Horizon. This period exhibited a strong milling technology represented by minimally shaped

cobble mortars and pestles, although metates and manos were still used. Dart and atlatl technologies

during this period were characterized by non-stemmed projectile points made primarily of obsidian'

Fredrickon (1973)suggests that the Berkeley Pattern marked the eastward expansion of Mi-Wuk
groups from the San Francisco Bay Area. Compared with the Early Horizon there is a higher proportion

of grinding implements at this time, implying an emphasis on plant resources rather than on hunting.

Typicat burials occurred within the village with flexed positions, variable cardinalorientation, and some

cremations. As noted by Lillard, the practice of spreading ground ochre over the burial was common at

this time (Lillard et al. 1939). Grave goods during this period are generally sparse and typically include

only utilitarian items and a few ornamental objects. However, objects such as charmstones, quartz

crystals, and bone whistles occasionally were present, which suggest the religious or ceremonial

significance of the individual (Hughes 1994). During this period, larger populations are suggested by the

number and depth of sites compared with the Windmiller Pattern. According to Fredrickson (19731,

the Berkeley Pattern reflects gradual expansion or assimilation of different populations rather than

sudden population replacement and a gradual shift in economic emphasis.

Augustine Pottern or Lote Harizon (A.D.500 to Historic Period)

The Late Horizon is characterized by the Augustine Pattern, which represents a shift in the general

subsistence pattern. Changes include the introduction of bow and arrow technology; most importantly,

acorns became the predominant food resource, Trade systems expanded to include raw resources as

well as finished products, There are more baked clay artifacts and extensive use of Haliotis ornaments of
many elaborate shapes and forms. Burial patterns retained the use of flexed burials with variable

orientation, but there was a reduction in the use of ochre and widespread evidence of cremation

(Moratto 1984). Judging from the number and types of grave goods associated with the two types of

burials, cremation seems to have been reserved for individuals of higher status, whereas other

individuals were buried in flexed positions, Johnson {1976) suggests that the Augustine Pattern

represents expansion of the Wintuan population from the north, which resulted in combining new traits

with those established during the Berkeley Pattern.

42

Page 624

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Central California research has expanded from an emphasis on defining chronological and cultural units

to a more comprehensive look at settlement and subsistence systems. This shift is illustrated by the
early use of burials to identify mortuary assemblages and more recent research using osteological data

to determine the health of prehistoric populations (Dickel et al. 1984). Although debate continues over a

single model or sequence for central California, the general framework consisting of three

temporalcultural units is generally accepted. Having said that, the identification of regional and local

variation remains a major goal of current archaeological research.

Ethnographic Background

The cultural groups that occupied the project area at the time of Euro-American contact around 1845

are the Southern Maidu, sometimes called the Nisenan. This group speaks a language related to the
Penutian stock, and it is generally agreed that they entered the region sometime after 1750 AD, and that
their territory included the Bear River, American River, Yuba River, and southern portions of the Feather

River drainages (Wilson and Towne 1978:387). Southern Maidu settlements were often located on

ridges that separated parallel streams, or terraces located part way up slopes (Kroeber 1925).

The Southern Maidu village of Yodok was thought to have been originally located on the south side of
the American River, in the approximate vicinity of the current town of Folsom (Kroeber 1925:394). Later

ethnographers however, depict the village on the north side of the river {Bennyhoff t977:L25, L65;

Wilson and Towne 1978:3881, close to the present-day location of the Cliff House Restaurant (located at

9900 Greenback Lane). lt is suspected that additional large settlements existed in the region prior to
Euromerican contact which went undocumented due to the speed with which the Southern Maidu way

of life was impacted by white settler colonialism.

Ethnographic descriptions ofthe Southern Maidu suggest a varied subsistence strategy based on the

exploitation of available resources. They hunted a variety of large and small mammals, (including deer,

bear, elk, antelope, and rabbit), fish (salmon, trout, and eel), and birds {waterfowl, crows, and pigeons),

and gathered numerous edible seeds, nuts, berries, herbs, and native fruits (Kroeber 1925). The Maidu
were nomadic throughout the year, following game and gathering plants. Population movements were
predicated upon the changes of seasons in an effort to make subsistence gathering easier. Winter
vilfages were formed along drainages at elevations below 2,500-ft (Johnson L982:74-751. Spring,

summer, and early fall were spent at higher elevation camps, where resources were gathered, prepared,

and stored for winter (Wilson and Towne 1978:388).

Maidu dwellings include a conical structure built out of poles thatched with bark, sticks, leaves, and pine

needles. These structures were often built on top of shallowly excavated pits, with dirt built up around

their perimeters. These structures measured between 10- and 15-ft in diameter. Larger Maidu villages

often included dance houses, which measured between 20- and 40-ft in diameter, as well as other
larger structures which functioned as sweat houses and lodges. These larger structures extended down

into the subsurface, with 10- to 20-ft high posts used to support a domed roof which consisted of
poles and thatched sticks, bark, and pine needles. An outer layer of earth, measuring roughly l-foot
thick, was used to sealthe structure against the elements (Kroeber 1925:407-408)'

The epidemic of 1833, which was brought by Euromericans into the Folsom area, had terrible ;mpacts on

local Maidu populations. Thought to be malaria, this epidemic is estimated to have killed up to 75

percent of the Sacramento Valley native population, Maidu included. Another major impact to the
Maidu way of life came with the discovery of gold in Coloma in 1848. This prompted thousands of

43

Page 625

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

miners to move into the region and stake claims for mining operations. This carving up of territory gn

maps was quickly followed by the removal of trees, and the diversion of rivers and creeks from their
natural beds, resulting in the siltation of local streams. Beyond the environmental degradations these

activities caused, mining operations radically reduced the hunting and gathering territories of the Maidu

and other native American groups all but extinguishing their means of maintaining self-sufficient levels

of food collection/production as well as their capacity to collect materials used in the crafting of tools,

structures, trade goods, and medical supplies (Levy 1978, Wilson and Towne 1978). By the 1870s, the

surviving Maidu were largely working in Euro-American owned mines and ranches or working as day

laborers in industrialor agricultural settings (Powers 1975). Still, Maidu people continue to live in the

region to this day, and are striving to maintain, reinvigorate, and safeguard their cultural heritage and

traditional practices.

Historic Background

The first Europeans to visit the interior of California were Spanish expeditions launched to recapture

Native Americans who had escaped from the rule of coastal missions {Heizer and Almquist 1971,

McGruder 1950, Napton 1997:5). Catholic missions were the hallmark of the Spanish Period (L796-L8221

in California, during which time 21 missions were established by the Franciscan Order along the coast

between 5an Diego {among the earliest of missions} and San Francisco. Among the first Europeans to

formally explore the CentralValley was Lieutenant Gabriel Moraga, who led excursions in the area

between 1806 and L808 to examine the area's main water ways including what we today call the

American, Calaveras, Cosumnes, Feather, Merced, Mokelumne, Sacramento, San Joaquin, and Stanislaus

rivers. ln 1813, Moraga again ventured into the Central Valley, this time focusing on the south, and

coined the name of the San Joaquin River (Hoover et al. 2002:369). Luis Arguello led the last of the

Spanish expeditions into the CentralValley in 1817 when he traveled up the Sacramento River, past

current day Sacrarnenlo, and into the mouth of the Feather River before turning back to the coast (Beck

and Haase t974:18,20, Grunsky 1989:3-4)'

The Mexican Revolution, which took place between 1810 and 1821, resulted in the end of Spanish rule

in modern day California and ushered in Mexican governance in the area, which was marked by an

extensive issuance of land grants, mostly of lands in the interior of the state. Californios (or Mexican

Citizens in California who were given land grants) were given locations by the Mexican Republic in the

interior, with the goal of increasing populations in areas further from the coast where Spanish era

settlements had already been established and developed into bustling areas of commerce.

Settlement of the Sacramento area began by late 1830s and early 1840s, when entrepreneurs such as

John Sutter and lared Sheldon obtained land grants from the Mexican government in exchange for an

agreement to protect Mexican interest in these remote regions. ln 1839, John Sutter built the earliest

Euro-American settlement within Sacramento County. Named Sutter's Fort, it was well known outpost

that brought with it an increase in Euro-American trappers, hunters, and settlers to the Sacramento

area. John Sutter also founded New Helvetia, a trading and agricultural outfit, that was based out of
Sutter's Fort, close to the location where the Sacramento and American rivers split, near today's City of
Sacramento (Hoover et al. 2002).

The Mexican period was also characterized by exploration of the western Sierra Nevada mountain range

by American fur trappers and later, miners. Jedediah Smith, an American trapper, is known to have

explored the Sierra Nevadas in 1826 and 1827, entering the Sacramento Valley and traveling along the

American and Cosumnes rivers and through the San Joaquin Valley. Soon after other trappers ventured

44

Page 626

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaBe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

into the area, including those involved with the Hudson's Bay Company in 1832 (Hoover et al. 2002:370).

ColonelJ. Warner is also known to have traveled with the Ewing-Young trapping expedition which
passed through the CentralValley in 1832 and 1833 (Gilbert L879:11).

The American period in California began in 1848 with the end the Mexican American War (1846 - 1848),

and the ensuing Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo which officially made California a territory of the United

States. Soon after, gold was discovered at Sutte/s Mill, located along the American River in Coloma. By

1849 over 80,000 people had emigrated to try and stake their claims and strike it rich in the California

Gold Rush. Due to this population boom, and the industries that popped up as a result, California was

made the 3lststate of the United States in 1850, and by 1854, the bustling town of Sacramento was

made the state capital.

LocalHistory

The City of Folsom was named after Captain Joseph Libbey Folsom, a West Point graduate who arrived

in California in 1847 to serve as Quartermaster in San Francisco. ln 1848 Captain Folsom purchased a

35,000-acre Mexican land grant located just to the east of John Sutter's land grant and hired Theodore

Judah, a raihay engineer, and surveyor, to lay out a town initially named Granite City. After Captain

Folsom's death in July 19, 1885, his executors changed the town name to Folsom (Gudde 1998). The

history of the city is steeped in the development of the mining and transportation industries, and later

was heavily influenced by the development of the Folsom Prison and hydroelectric dams.

Mormon Bar, located just a few miles east of Folsom, was the second major gold find within California

and by the spring of 1848 a group of Mormons had developed mining operations in the area (Hoover et

al. 1990, The Telegraph 1956:8). These efforts were soon followed by the exploration of the other gravel

bars along the American River; by 1849 mining works were established between Mormon lsland and

Mississippi Bar, including Alabama Bar, Slate Bar, Beam or Bean's Bar, and Sailor Bar. Other nearby

mining camps included Texas Hill,.iust south of present-day Folsom and Big Gulch mining camp, north

along the American River (Hoover et al. 1990:289), Negro Bar was also located on the American River,

near present day Decatur and Reading streets, and was first mined by Afro-Americans in 1849. The

community that sprang up around Negro Bar began within the current townsite of Folsom and extended

almost a mile downstream. These works, camps, and residences housed some 700 inhabitants as of
1851, and the settlements included two general stores and two hotels (Gudde 1975:235, Hoover et al.

1990:289). ln 1852, however, a massive flood on the river forced a relocation of the community onto the

bluffs above the bar (Gudde 1975).

ln 1851, check dams were built by the Natomas Water and Mining Company on the South Fork American

River two miles above Salmon Falls to facilitate the supply of water for mining operations in the growing

Folsom Mining District. By 1854 these dams diverted water across 20-miles of ditches and sluice gates

that supplied the Folsom area, and included a main canalthat reached Prairie City to the south (Barrows

1965, Reed 1923:130, Thompson and West 1880). The area saw an infusion of Chinese immigrants

around 1850, with many of them hired to help build the ditches and dams for the Natomas Company.

Some also established themselves in the Folsom area by reworking abandoned claims and tailings piles

(Barrows 1966:70-7l,Thompson and West 1880). By the mid-1850s there were over 1,200 Chinese

living in the area, primarily working as miners,

Mining in the area persisted through the 1960s, though to a far lesser extent than the mining boom in

the 1850s. these efforts included placer and drift mining ventures near Alder Creek and Willow Springs,

45

Page 627

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintase at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

at the Golden Treasure Mine close to Leidersdorff Street, at the White and Donnelly Gravel Mine
between Leidesdorff and Sutter Street, and at Wool and Reading streets (Maniery and Syda 1991:25).

Dredge mining the American River was first attempted by W. P. Bonright and Company when they
obtained title and rights to the Mississippi Bar (Barrows 1966:54-55). By the 1900s and 1910s several

companies seeking to emulate the successes of the Bonright dredging endeavor moved into the region,

with some working the gravels at Sailor Bar and Texas Hill {The Telegraph, May 30, 1903). Mining
remained the primary focus on the Folsom economy until the 1940s, when the federal government

placed a moratorium on the mining of non-essential metals as a result of the outbreak of World War ll.

Though mining/dredging operations resumed after the war in L945, the returns proved to be not nearly

as profitable as they had in earlier years. The last mining enterprise in the region halted operations in

1962 (Barrows 1"966).

ln 1852 the Sacramento Valley Railroad Company (SVRR) was developed to build a rail line between
Sacramento and Negro Bar. The route was surveyed and laid in 1854. Construction began in 1855 and

completed by 1855, making it the first line completed in California (Barrows 1966:16, Reed 1923:130). A

terminus for the SVRR was built in Folsom near already established hotels and stores. The railway

opened on February 22, L856 and quickly made Folsom a transportation center for freight and
passengers who needed to push further into the California interior, or to arrive in Sacramento for
shipment by boat to San Francisco and then elsewhere. Many would arrive in Folsom to stage voyages

to Sonora, Placerville, Auburn, and Marysville (Thompson and West 1.880:223). As a result Folsom grew

along with the railroad traffic, with the years between 1856 and 1855 characterized by the development

of hotels, houses, churches, an academy, and businesses including a flour mill, and the Folsom Telegraph

building (Thompson and West 1880:223). A series of fires (two in 1871, one in 1872, and another in

1885) destroyed a tremendous amount of property in the area, but each time the city's business district
found ways to quickly bounce back with the construction of larger and grander buildings.

ln the 1870s Folsom also saw an increase in agricultural activity as the Natoma Water and Mining
Company began renting out large swaths of their property for use as vineyards, gardens, and orchards

(Reed 1923:130). Chinese, Native Americans, Portuguese, ltalians, and African Americans worked in

these agricultural fields and took on the roles of cooks, laborers, and handymen in the Folsom area.

Growth in the area was also spurred in the 1870s and 1880s by the opening of Folsom State prison in

1878. This prison remains a major employer for the town through the present day.

Originally intended to house the surplus of criminals held at San Quentin prison, construction began on

the Folsom Prison in 1874, with the efforts largely supplied by local Folsom businesses. The prison was

built on land owned by the Natoma Water and Mining company. ln exchange for the state gaining

possession of the land, convict labor was to be used to construct a dam for the company (Barrows

L966:771. A railroad spur intended to supply the new prison facility was built along the south bank of the
American River and extended to the intended dam site. The first cell block was completed in 1880

prompting the first transfer ol 44 convicts from San Quentin. These men were soon put to work building

an additional cellhouse and the dam for the Natoma Company. These buildings were made with granite

quarried from the prison grounds, and as the prison was expanded, so was the prisoner population. The

prison was unique in that it had an electric power plant on the grounds to power interior lighting and

the arc-lights that illuminated the boundaries of the prison grounds (Barrows 1966:78), Convict labor

from the prison was used to build the Folsom dam as intended, which led to the development of the
nearby hydroelectric plant.

The dam and the first half-mile of the associated canal were completed in 1893. Soon after log booms

46

Page 628

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior,qpartments ISMND

were constructed so that logs could be floated through the power canal and to a milling pond and

sawmill near Folsom. These logging businesses were operated by the American River Land and Lumber

Company which were affiliated with the Natoma Company {Barrows 1966). By L895, a hydroelectric

system consisting of a two-story powerhouse, intake gates, penstocks, McCormick turbines, and GE

generators was completed. Once operational, this powerhouse brought electric current through
transmission lines to Sacramento, forming the longest transmission line in the world at the time
(Barrows 1965:23). This hydroelectric system was continuously upgraded and remained in use until 1952

when the Folsom Dam was demolished in anticipation of the construction of a new dam further
upstream.

ln the latter half of the 20th century the City of Folsom continued to expand and grow. The new Folsom

Dam project began in 1952 and was completed by 1955. This new dam was built to controlflooding in

Sacramento and to provide hydroelectric power to nearby cities. ln the 1960s, musician Johnny Cash

brought fame to the city and the Folsom Prison, with his hit single "Folsom Prison Blues" and the
subsequent recording of an album on the prison grounds in 1968. ln 1982 lntel Corporation, the
computer hardware company, made Folsom its home and purchased 234 acres to set up offices,

warehouses and manufacturing center. Today the 1.5 million square foot lntel campus employs over
6,000 employees and is the single largest employer in the city. ln more recent decades, especially the

1990s, Folsom has been the site of rapid expansion, as the suburbs of Sacramento spread out into the
Folsom city limits. As of the 2020 census, Folsom is home to some 80,454 residents. This recent growth

has spurred the development of numerous residential neighborhoods, apartment complexes and

shopping centers.

Culturol Resource Record Seorch

Previous Studies

On January 21,2022, a records search addressing the APE and a 0.50-mile radius beyond the APE

boundaries was conducted by the North Central lnformation Center (NCIC) at California State University,

Sacramento. The purpose of the records search was to: (1) identify prehistoric and historic resources

previously documented in the APE and within 0.5-mile of APE boundaries; {2) determine which portions

of the APE may have been previously studied, when those studies took place, and how the studies were

conducted; and, (3) ascertain the potential for archaeological resources, historical resources, and human

remains to be found in the APE. This search also included a review of the appropriate USGS topographic

maps on which cultural resources are plotted, archaeological site records, building/structure/object
records, and data from previous suneys and research reports. The California Points of Historical
lnterest, the California Historical Landmarks, the NRHP, the CRHR, and the California State Historic

Resources lnventory listings were also reviewed to ascertain the presence of designated, evaluated,

andlor historic-era resources within the APE. Historical maps and historical aerialphotographs of the
area were also examined (NETROnline2022l.

The cultural resources records search identified 1"0 studies that have previously been conducted within a

0.S-mile radius of the APE (Table 9). Of these, two studies overlapped with the current APE for at least

part of their survey area; these include report numbers 004508 (Maniery 1993) and 004509 (Maniery

and Syda 1991). Brief summaries of the reports pertaining to surueys that overlapped with the current

APE are provided below Table 9.

47

Page 629

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Table g.Previous Studies Conducted within 0.5-Mile of the APE

Report

004s08

004509

000155

001837

003761

005933

011.288

011533

011755

Tltle

Determination of Effect, American

River Bridge Crossing Project, City of
Folsom, Sacramento County,

California

Cultural Resources lnvestigation for
the American River Bridge Crossing

Project, City of Folsom, Sacramento

Cou California

An Archaeological Survey of the Oak

Avenue Parkway, Ashland Water

Transmission Main and Storage, Blue

Ravine Water Transmission Main,

and the Lew Howard Memorial Park

for the City of Folsom, Sacramento

Cou California
Archaeological SurveY for the

Proposed Natoma PiPeline

Expansion, Folsom Dam to the CitY

of Folsom Water Treatment Plant

Nextel Commu nications {on-air} CA-

O2O5A I West Folsom Entrance Road

to Folsom State Prison

Cultural Resources lnvestigation for
the Folsom Sanitary Sewer

Rehabilitation Project- Phase 1

CA

Su pplemental Historic ProPertY

Survey Report for the JohnnY Cash

Class 1 Bicycle Trail, City of Folsom,

California Federal Project No. 5288

Cultural Resources Records Search

and Site Visit Results for T-Mobile

West, LLC Candidate SC 14633A (East

Natoma & Randall), 235 Marchant

Drive, Folsom, Sacramento County,

California

Cultural Resources Survey of Folsom

Zoo, Sacramento CountY, California

Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing,

Draft lnitial Study & Environmental
Evaluation

lncludes
APE?

AfillatlonYear
Author(sI

Yes
PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc,

1993
Maniery,
Mary L.

Yes
PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

Maniery,
Mary L. and

Keith A. Syda
1991

No

6reenway,
Gregory

Archaeology
Study Center,

csu
Sacramento

L977

No

Sharon
Waechter

Waechter,
Sharon!997

No

EarthTouch, LLC200r.
Billat, Lorna

Beth

No
PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

Maniery,
Mary L. and

Cindy Baker
1998

No

PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

2013

PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

No

Environmental
Assessment

Specialist, Inc.
20t4

Wills, Carrie

D. and

Kathleen A.

Crawford

NoPAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

Allen, Josh2015

NoHELIX

Environmental
Planning lnc.

2015 Wills, Carrie013383

48

Page 630

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Source: Helix 2022b.

Report oo450g - Determination of Effect, American River Brldge Crossing Proiect, City of Folsom,

Sacromento County, Calilornia was written by Mary,L. Maniery in 1993' The American River Bridge

Crossing project ApE consisted of four linear alignments or alternatives that extended {east to west}

from near the current Folsom Dam, to downstream of the existing Rainbow Bridge. lntersection

improvements and road widening activities were also planned as part of the project. The survey area

covered for this effort encompassed four possible alignments (referred to in the report as "alternatives")

for a bridge that would be built across the American River. The records searches and surveys conducted

for these ilternative alignments encountered 1.0 historic period cultural resources including Folsom's
,'Chinatown" district {CA-SAC-426-H), the Sacramento Valley Railroad {CA-SAC-428-H), the Folsom

Hydroelectric System (cA-SAc-429-H), the Folsom Powerhouses (National Historic Landmark/CHL #633),

Rainbow Bridge {Bridge#245-67),and severalindividualbuilt resources on APNs 070-0113-00L,074-

0105-012,070-0010-019,070-0010-019 and 070-0091-007. However, none ofthe identified resources

fall within the currently proposed APE, nor are any ofthese resources anticipated to be affected by the

currently proPosed undertaking.

Report 004509 - Culturol Resources tnvestigation for the American River Bridge Crossing Proiect, City of

Folsom, Socromento County, Callfornia,was written my Mary L. Maniery and Keith A' Syda in 1991'

Similar to report 004508, this cultural resource investigation examined four linear alignments or

alternatives for a proposed bridge that would cross the American River, as well as associated road

improvements that extended (east to west) from nearthe current Folsom Dam to downstream of the

existing Rainbow Bridge. The investigation identified 13 archaeologicalsites, five isolated artifacts, and

55 historic structures. None of the resources identified during the records searches or pedestrian

surveys covered within this report fall within the currently proposed APE, and none of the resources

mentioned in the report are anticipated to be affected by the current undertaking'

Previously Recorded Searches

The records search revealed that elements of one cultural resource, the Folsom Mining District (P-34-

000335 I CA-SAC-00030gH! may be present within the APE, and that eight previously recorded cultural

resources lie within O.S-mile of the ApE. A brief description of resource P-34-000335 (cA-sAc-000308H)

is provided below Table 10'

p-34{@335 (CA-SAC-000308HI : Most recently updated by coleman, Talcott, and wolpert of Solano

Archaeological Seruices, this resource, known as the Folsom Mining District, is comprised of a variety of

elements from the region's historic mining period {spanning from the 1840s through the mid-twentieth

century) including mines, quarries, tailings, mining equipment, habitation sites, roads, railroad grades,

water conveyances, and structural foundations. The results of HELIX's records search indicated that

elements of this historic district could be present within the currently proposed APE. NCIC records

suggest that the Folsom Mining District taken as a unified entity has been determined to be ineligible for

listing on the NRHp and cRHR, but that individual elements within the district may be eligible for listing

and that they should be evaluated as eligible or ineli6ible on a case-by-case basis'

49

Page 631

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

RecorderTdnomlal Year

cA-sAc-0 00308H 1969 K. G. S.

1990
Syda, K., and C.

Thomas
n/a

1990
Syda, K., and C.

Thomas
n/a

1990
Syda, K., and C.

Thomas
ala

cA-sAc-o00424 1990
Syda, K., and C,

Thomas

Syda, K., and C.

Thomas
cA-sAc-000425 1990

L989
Gerry, R., and M
Peak

cA-sAc-000429H

nla 2014 Crawford, K. A.

2OLL
Appleby, Richard
AllencA-sAc-000426

Table 10. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within 0.S-Mile of the APE

P-34-000335

P-34-0000,15

P-34-000017

P-34-000018

P-34-000451

P-34-000452

P-34-000456

P-34-005017

P-34-005119

Historic period district- Folsom

Mining District, several
incorporating elements including
foundations and structure pads, a

water conveyance system, mines,

and ta

Prehistoric period isolate - Mano

Prehistoric period isolate - Pestle

Historic period site- Concrete
rubble and 3 quarried granite
blocks

Historic period site - Water
conveyance system, associated
with Folsom Min District
Prehistoric period site - Lithic
scatter
Historic period site - Water
conveyance system,
roadsltrails/railroad grades,

and standi structures
Historic period site - 1960s PG&E

Tower constructed with bolted
steel L-shaped profiles and cross

arms

Historlc period site - Folsom State
Prison Railroad, no longer extant,
plotted route appears on 1892

USGS

Source: HELIX 2022b

Historic Maps and Aerial Photographs

Historic maps and aerial photographs examined for this review include plat maps from 1857 and 1855;

Folsom USGS 7,5-minute quadrangle maps from 1914, L944,1954, and 1967; and a series of aerial
photographs dating from 1952 through 2018 (NETROnline 2022!. The plat maps and USGS quadrangle

maps reveal no signs of development of the APE through 1957. The aerial photograph serfes of the AP€

reveals the development of Natoma Street by 1952 and several dirt roads to the southwest of the APE.

By L964,the area adJacent south of the APE has been further developed with paved roads and the
construction of a few residential houses. By 1993 development in the area increared considerably, with

residential construction having taken place to the northeast, east, south, southwest. and northwest of

the APE. Due north of the APE, however, the land remained undeveloped save for the paved road that

leads to the Folsom prison located 2.5-miles north of the APE. Despite these developments in the

50

Page 632

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

vicinity of the APE throughout the 20th century, the aerial photography analysis su8gests that no

developments took place within the currently proposed APE (NETROnline 2022).

Nollve Americon Hedtoge Commirsion Sqcred Lqnds File Seqrch

On January ZI, ZO22, HELIX requested that the NAHC conduct a search of their Sacred Lands File (SLF)

for the presence of Native American sacred sites or human remains in the vicinity of the proposed

project area. On February 9,2022 HELIX received a response from the NAHC that indicated the SLF

search returned negative results but that the absence of specific site information in the SLF does not

necessarily indicate the absence of cultural resources within the project area. As a result, the letter

recommended that HELIX reach out to 10 Native American tribal representatives (Appendix E) who may

also have knowledge of cultural resources in the project area. The recommended points of contact with

Native American Tribes included:

. Dahlton Brown, Director of Administratiorl, Wilton Rancheria

. Grayson Coney, Cultural Director, Tsi Akim Maidu

. Pamela Cubbler, Treasurer, Colfax-Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe

. Regina Cuellar, Chairperson, lone Band of Miwok lndians

. Sara A. Dutschke, Chairperson, lone Band of Miwok lndians
o Steven Hutchason, Tribal Historic Preservation Office, Wilton Rancheria

. Rhonda Morningstar Pope, Chairperson, Buena Vista Rancheria of Me-Wuk lndians

. Clyde Prout, Chairperson, Colfax-Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe

. Jesus Tarango, Chairperson, Wilton Rancheria

. Gene Whitehouse, Chairperson, United Auburn lndian Community of the Auburn

Rancheria

HELIX sent letters to these tribal representatives on February LO,2022. As of the date of this report no

'responses have been received.

Pedesldon Survey

HELIX Staff Archaeologist, Jentin Joe, surveyed the undertaking's APE on February 8,2022. The survey

involved the systematic investigation of the APE's ground surface by walking in parallel 10-meter (m)

transects, During the survey the ground surface was examined for artifacts {e'9., flaked stone tools,

tool-making debris, stone milling tools, fire-affected rock, prehistoric ceramics), soil discoloration that

might indicate the presence of a prehistoric cultural midden, soil depressions, and features indicative of

the former presence of structures or buildings {e.g., standing exterior walls, postholes, foundations,

wells) or historic debris (e.g., metal, glass, ceramics). Ground disturbances such as gopher holes,

burrows, cut banks, and drainage banks were also visually inspected. Representative survey

photographs are found in Appendix E.

The topography of the APE is largely flat, with small rises in elevation in the northeast which dip down to

a small creek which lies along the north boundary of the property and runs east to west. The APE is

bounded by residential neighborhoods to the south, and east, a small business centerto the west, and

by Natoma Street to the north, with the Folsom Prison property just north of Natoma Street. The APE is

mostly covered in oak trees and tall grasses, and the surveyor encountered fairly poor surface visibility

(10 percent or less) with the exception of exposed patches ofthe ground surface that have been

51

Page 633

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom senior ISMND

modified (photograph 1), These patches have clearly been disturbed and reveal light brown, loamy soils

with few inclusions. The patches are signs of significant and recent ground disturbance in the form of

excavations and earthen works that appear to have been designed to create an informal mountain

biking trail/racing course (Photograph 2). The surveyor also found a Sreat deal of modern trash on the

site, including planks of wood, scraps of plastic, and a discarded mattress {Photograph 3}. To the west is

a walking trail that extends just outside the southern boundary of the APE.

No prehistoric or historic-era materials or features were observed during HELIX's intensive pedestrian

survey ofthe APE.

Evqluqtlon of Cullulql Resources

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to $15064'5?

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to

s1s064.s?

Less than significant impact with mitigation.

The results of this cultural Resources Assessment indicate that there are no known or newly discovered

cultural resources within the ApE, prompting HELIX to recommend that the area is not likely to contain

surface based archaeological deposits. Although the NCIC records search indicated that elements of

district p-34-000335 (the Folsom Mining District) may potentially be located within the current APE, no

traces of the district were found during HELIX's pedestrian survey of the proiect area. As a result, the

current projec-t is anticipated to have no impacts on district P-34-000335.

Based on the results of HELIX's cultural resource assessment the APE can be assumed to have a low

sensitivitv for surficial cultural resources and this project is anticipated to have no impacts to historical

1."rour."r'fo, the purposes of compliance with both section 106 of the NHPA and GEQA' The

recommendations provided below are intended to minimize the potentialfor buried and undocumented

cultural resources to be significantly impacted during project implementation'

Consequently, HELIX recommends that there would be no effect on historic properties or historical

resources, including archaeological and built-environment resources as a result of project

implementation. No additional studies, archaeological work, or construction monitoring are

recommended. However, in light of the presence of prehistoric resources within the study area (P-34-

0000016 and p-34-000017) and the potential presence of elements of district P-34-000335 to lie within

the study area, HELIX recommends that the Mitigation Measure CUL-01 and CUL-02 outlined below be

implemented in the unlikely event that cultural resources are encountered during construction. lf

hisiorical or archaeological resources are discovered, implementation of Mitigation Measure cUL-01 and

Mitigation Measure CUL-02 would reduce any potential impact to a less than significant levelfor

questions a) and b).

Mitigatlon Measure CUL{11: lnadvertent Discovery

r ln the event that cultural resources are exposed during ground-disturbing activities,

construction activities should be halted within 100-ft of the discovery. Cultural resources could

consist of but are not limited to stone, bone, wood, or shell artifacts, or features including

52

Page 634

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

hearths, structural remains, or historic dumpsites. lf the resources cannot be avoided during the

remainder of construction, an archaeologist who meets the Secretary of the lnterior's

professional eualifications Standards should then be retained, in coordination with USACE and

the city, to assess the resource and provide appropriate management recommendations. lf the

discovery proves to be NRHP- and/or CRHR-eligible, additional work, such as data recovery

excavation, may be warranted and should be discussed in consultation with USACE and the City'

Mitigation Measure CUL'02: Worker Awareness Training Program

r All construction personnel involved in ground disturbing activities shall be trained in the

recognition of possible cultural resources and protection of such resources. The training will

inform all construction personnel of the procedures to be followed upon the discovery of

archaeological materials, including Native American burials. Construction personnel will be

instructed that cultural resources must be avoided and that all travel and construction activity

must be confined to designated roads and areas. The training will include a review of the local,

state, and federal laws and regulations related to cultural resources, as well as instructions on

the procedures to be implemented should unanticipated resources be encountered during

construction, including stopping work in the vicinity of the find and contacting the appropriate

environmental compliance specialist'

c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. No human remains are known to exist within the project

area nor were there any indication, oihrmrn remains found during the field survey' However, there is

always the possibility that subsurface construction activities associated with the proposed project, such

as trenching and grading, could potentially damage or destroy previously undiscovered human remains'

This is a poientially significant impact. However, if human remalns are discovered, implementation of

Mitigation Measure cul-02 and Mitigation Measure cuL-03 would reduce this potential impact to a less

than significant level.

Mitigation Measure CUL'03: Treatment of Human Remains

r Although considered highly unlikely, there is always the possibility that ground disturbing

activities during construction may uncover previously unknown human remains' In the event of

an accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains, Public Resource Code (PRC)

Section 5097,9g must be followed. Once project-related earthmoving begins and if there is a

discovery or recognition of human remains, the following steps shall be taken:

1. There shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the specific location or any nea rby

area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until the County Coroner is

contacted to determine if the remains are Native American and if an investigation of the

cause of death is required. lf the coroner determines the remains are Native American, the

coroner shall contact the NAHC within 24 hours, and the NAHC shall identify the person or

persons it believes to be the "most likely descendant" of the deceased Native American' The

most likely descendant may make recommendations to the landowner or the person

responsible forthe excavation work, for means of treating or disposing of, with appropriate

dignity, the human remains, and any associated grave goods as provided in PRC Section

5097.98, or

53

Page 635

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

2. Where the following conditions occur, the landowner or his/her authorized representative

shall rebury the Native American human remains and associated grave goods with
appropriate dignity either in accordance with the recommendations of the most likely

descendent or on the project area in a location not subject to further subsurface

disturbance:

a. The NAHC is unable to identifu a most likely descendent or the most likely

descendent failed to make a recommendation within 48 hours after being notified

by the commission;
b. The descendent identlfied fails to make a recommendation; or
c. The landowner or his authorized representative rejects the recommendation of the

descendent,

54

Page 636

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom senior Apartments IsMND

VI. ENERGY

&mhlly
Stntfrc!nt

llnp!ct

lereThrn
gCnncrmurdr

llElpdon
lncorporatrd

lcrsfhcn
Slgnlfrcam llo
lmpact lnp.€t

Would the project:

a) Result in potentially significant environmental
impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary

consumption of energy resources. during proiect

constructlon or operation?

nt*l r I tJ

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for
renewable energy or energy efficiency?

r-1
LJ f"I LI T

Environmentol Setling

California's electricity needs are satisfied by a variety of entities, including investor-owned utilities,

publicly owned utilities, electric service providers and community choice aggregators. ln 2020, the

California power mix totaled 272,576 gigawatt hours {GWh}. ln-state generation accounted for 51

percent of the state's power mix. The remaining electricity came from out-of-state imports (CEC 2021a),

Table 11 provides a summary of California's electricity sources as of 2020.

Table 11. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within O.S-Mile of the
APE

Fuel Type Pertent of Callfornia Power

Coal 2.74

Large Hydro 12.21

Natural Gas 37.06

Nuclear 9.33

oil 0.01

Other (Petroleum CokelWaste Heat) 0.19

Renewables 33.09

Source: CEC 2021a.

Natural gas provides the largest portion of the total in-state capacity and electricity generation in

California, with nearly 45 percent of the natural gas burned in California used for electricity genemtion

in a typical year. Much of the remainder is consumed in the residential, industrial, and commercial

sectors for uses such as cooking, space heating, and as an alternative transportation fuel. ln 2012, total

55

Page 637

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

natural gas demand in California for lndustrial, residential, commercial, and electric power generation

was 2,31"3 billion cubic feet per year (bcf/year), up from 2,L96 bcf lyear in 2010 (CEC 2021b).

Transportation accounts for a major portlon of California's energy budget. Automobiles and trucks

consume gasoline and diesel fuel, which are nonrenewable energy products derived from crude oil.

Gasoline is the most used transportation fuel in California, with 97 pe rcent of all gasoline being

consumed hy light-duty cars, pickup trucks, and spo* utility vehicles (SUVs). ln 2015, 15,1 billion gallons

of gasollne were sold in California {CEC 2021c}. Dieselfuel is the second most consumed fuel in

California, used by heavy-duty trucks, delivery vehicles, buses, trains, ships, boats, and farm and

construction equipment. ln 2015, 4.2 blllion gallons of dieselwere sold in California {CEC 2021d),

Evoluollon of Energy

a) Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or
unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?

Less than significent impact. Energy used for construction would primarily consist of fuels in the form

of diesel and gasoline for the operation of construction equipment and construction worker vehicles.

While construction activities would consume petroleum-based fuels, consumption of such resources

would be temporary and would cease upon the completion sf construction. The Air Quality and

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Technical Report estimated the proposed project's GHG emissions using

CalEEMod (HELIX 2122cl, The construction energy calculations from the prepared for the proposed

project is shown in Table 12.

Table 12. Construction Energy Summary

Sourco
Off-Road Construction Equipment 1,960,515

On-Road Construction Traffi c

Project Construction Total

Source: HELIX 2022c; kBtu = kilo-British thermal unit

The project's construction-related energy usage would not represent a significant demand on energy

resources because it is temporary in nature. Additionally, with implementation of the low impact design

features, project construction would avoid or reduce inefficient, wasteful, and unnecessary

consumption of energy. Therefore, the project's construction-phase energy impacts would be less than

significant. t

Operation of the proposed project would increase the consumption of energy related to electricity,

natural gas, waterr and wastewater. However, implementation of low impact design, energy efficient,

and sustainable features would also reduce the energy usage. The project design incorporates

sustainable features that would exceed the requirement of the California Building Energy

Efficiency Standards (Title 24, Part 6), by 15 percent or more, The projeet would provide 1tt electric

vehicle charging stations, as required under the City's General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-8 and

would provide 28 bicycle parking spaces, as required under the City's General Plan GHG Reduction

Measure T-3 {Appendix 8).

Gallons Dlcsel Gallon: Gas

14,LO4

2.926 8.916

L7,O?7 8,916

56

Page 638

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Hardscapes, such as ped€strian and bicycle pathways, outdoor seating and dining areas, and parking

stalls/ trash apron would be constructed with cool paving rnaterials (e.g., slab concrete). Cool paving

areas, including shaded areas. account for approximately 68,2 percent of the non-roof impervious area.

The operational energy calculations prepared for the proposed project are shown in Table 13.

Table 13. Operational enerty Summary

EnergyType kBtu

Gasoline {Gallons) 5,142,521

Diesel (Gallons) 430,744

Natural Gas (kBtu) 1,280,610

Electricity (kwh) 2,042,292

Source: HELIX 2022c; k8tu = kilo-British thermal unit

During operations, the rnajority of fuel consumption resulting from the proiect would involve the use of

motor vehicles traveling to and from the project site, as well as fuels used for alternative modes of

transportation that may be used by residents. lt should be noted that over the llfetime of the project,

the fuel efficiency of vehieles is expeded to increa$e. A$ such, the amount of gasoline consumed as a

result of vehicular trips to and from the project site during operation is expected to decrease over time.

Based on these considerations, implementation of the proposed project would not result in wasteful,

inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy. lmpacts would be less than significant.

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?

No impact. The proposed project would not conflict with or obslruct a stale or local plan for renewable

energy efficienry. The project would conform to all applicable state, federal, and local laws and codes'

Therefore, the proposed proiect would have no irnpact.

Quantlty
41,472

3,099

1,280.610

s98,s37

Total

57

Page 639

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartm€nts ISMND

VII. GEOTOGY AND SOILS

Potentblly
Sltnlturnt

lmprct

lese Thrn
5lgnlflcrnt

wldr
riHfrdon

lnconor.ted

lffsTh.n
Slplfieltt ltlo
lmpscl lmprct

Would the project:

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse

efferts, including the risk of loss, injury, or death

involving:

Rupture of a knor,vn earthquake fault, as delineated
on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault

Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area

or based on other substantial evidence of a known

fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special

Publication 42.

il n n

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking? ft fJ I
iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including

liquefaction?
n il I n

iv. Landslides? fl rIl
b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? n ln
c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or

that would become unstable as a result of the project,

and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral

spreading subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

n I ilx

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 1"8'1-8 of
the Uniform Building Code {L994), creating substantial

direct or indirect risks to life or property?

n

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of
septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems

where sewers are not available for the disposal of
wastewater?

n I

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological

resource or site or unique geologic feature?
x I tr

The Geology and Soils section of this document is based on the project-specific Geotechnical

Engineering Study prepared by Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc (Youngdahl2A2\. The environmental

setting discussion below is largely from this geotechnicalstudy, which is included as Appendix F.

Environmenlol Setling

Surlqce Condilions

The project site is located on the southeastern side of East Natoma Street in Folsom, California and is

bounded by East Natoma Street to the northwest, existing residential subdivisions to the northeast and

58

Page 640

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom senior Apartments IsMND

south, and Folsom Prison to the north. A paved pedestrian path is present between the site and the

subdivision to the west and south, along with transformer towers and overhead power lines. Seasonal

drainage paths are present, extending from the east to the southwest along the northern property

boundary. Topography at the site generally consists of the highest elevation at the southeast corner,

sloping downward in various directions. The existing slopes within the site are generally 2H:1V

(Horizontal: Vertical) or flatter. Vegetation throughout the project generally consisted of seasonal

grasses and trees.

Geology

The project site is situated on the eastern edge of Sacramento County, located within the western

foothills of the Sierra Nevada geomorphic province of California. According to the Geologic Map of the

Sacramento Quadrangle, California (D.1. Wagner, et al., 1981), this portion of the foothills and the
project site is underlain by Copper Hill Volcanic Rocks. The Copper Hillvolcanic are a seguence of Late

Jurassic-age volcanic rock that overlies the Salt Spring Slate'

Based upon the records currently available from the California Department of Conservation, the project

site is not located within an Alquist-Priolo Regulatory Review Zone and there are no known faults

located at the project site.

Subsurloce Condllions

Subsurface explorations by Voungdahl Consulting Group, lnc., were conducted on November 5,202I,
and included the excavation of eight exploratory test pits. Subsurface soil conditions at the project site

primarily consisted of sands, silts, and clays overlying weathered bedrock. The site was generally

observed to be surfdced with sand and silt layers in a medium dense/ stiff condition, that were present

to depths of 1- to 2.5-ft below existing grade. Test pit 8 consisted of clays in stiff condition, and in Test

pits 1-7, clay layers were in a medium to stiff condition. The clays were primarily present in layer

thicknesses between approximately 0.5- to l-ft; however, 3-ft clay layers were encountered in Test pits

L and 3. No clays were observed in Test pit 5. Bedrock was encountered at 1..5- to 4-ft below the ground

surface and was completely to slightly weathered and soft to very hard condition range. A permanent

groundwater table was not encountered at the project site with no impact to the development of the

site. Due to shallow depth and low permeability of the underlying rock, perched water is common to the

area and could be encountered during grading operations {Youngdahl 2021}.

CW Regulotion of Geology ond Soils

The City of Folsom regulates the effects of soils and geological constraints on urban development
primarily through enforcement of the California Building Code, which requires the implementation of

engineering solutions for constraints to urban development posed by slopes, soils, and geology.

59

Page 641

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Additionally, the City adopted a Grading Code {Fslsom MunicipalCode Section 14.29) that regulates

gradlng citywide to control erosion, storm water drainage, revegetation, and ground movement.

Evqluotlon of GeologY ond Solls

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or

death involving:

i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineeted on the most recent Alguist-Priolo

Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other

substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special

Publication 42?

Less than significant impact. According to the Geotechnical Engineering Survey, there are no known

active faults crossing the property, and the project site is not located within an Earthquake Fault Zone

(youngdahl 2021). Therefore, ground rupture is unlikely at the subject property, and impacts would be

less than significant.

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?

Less than significant impact. The site-specific Geotechnical Engineering Survey identified the project site

as a Site Class C in accordance with the 2015 California Buiiding Code {Class A requires least earthquake

resistant design and Class F the most earthguake resistant design). Seismic design parameters based on

the 2016 California Building Code and site investigations were outlined in the Geotechnical Engineering

Survey for use in structural design. Evaluation of seismicity for the project site included the review of

existing fault maps and the implernentation of seismic design parameters from the United State

Geofu:gical Survey (USGS) onllne calculator and databases (Youngdahl 2021). Conformance to the

current bullding code would minimire potentlal ground shaking impacts to a less than significant level.

iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Less than significant impact. Liquefaction is the sudden loss of soil shear strength and sudden increase

in porewater pressure caused by shear strains, which could result from an earthquake. Research has

shorryn lhat saturated, loose to medium-dense sands with a sih conteni less than about 25 percent

located within the top 40-ft are most susceptible to liquefaction and surface rupture or lateral

spreading. Slope instability can occur as a result of seismic ground motions and/or in combination with

weak soils and saturated conditions.

Due to the absence of a permanently elevated groundwater table, the relatively low seismicity of the

area, and the relatively shallow depth to rock, the potentialfor seismically induced damage due to site

liquefaction, surface rupture, and settlement was considered low {Youngdahl 2021"}. For the above-

menttoned reasons, mitigatisn for these potential hazards is not considered necessary far the

development of this project. Therefore, liquefaction is unlikely at the sublect property and impacts

would be less than significant.

iv. Landslides?

Less than slgnificant impact. The existing slopes on the project site were observed to have adequate

vegetation on the slope face, appropriate drainage away from the slope face, and no apparent tension

60

Page 642

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

cracks or slip block in the slope face ar at the head of the slope. Additionally, due to the absence of

permanently elevated groundwater table, the relatively low seismicity of the area, and the relatively

shallow depth io bedrock, the potential for seismicity inducted slope instability for the existing slopes

was considered low {Youngdahl 2021}. Therefore, landslides are unlikely at the subject property and

impacts would be less than significant'

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Less than significant impact. The 2016 CBC (California Building Code) and the City's Grading Code and

standard conditions for project approval contain requirements to minimize or avoid potential effects

from water erosion hazards. As a condition of approval, prior to the issuance of a grading or building

permit, the City would require the applicant to prepare a soils report, a detailed grading plan, and an

erosion control plan by a qualified and licensed engineer.Ihe soils report would identify soil hazards,

including potential impacts from erosion. The City would be required to review and approve the erosion

control plan based on the California Department of Conservation's "EFosion and Control Handbook." The

erosion control plan would identify protective measures to be implemented during excavation,

temporary stockpiling, disposal, and revegetation activities. With the approval of a soils report, grading

plan, and an erosion control plan, impacts relating to substantial soil erosion or loss of topsoil would be

less than significant,

c) Be tocated on a geologic unit or soilthat is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of

the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,

liquefaction, or collapse?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. The proposed project is relatively long, irregular in shape,

and anticipated to be supported by variable thicknesses of soil and or bedrock. Due to these features,

the primary geotechnicalconcern associated witlr the planned development is the potentialfor

excessive differential settlement, which can stress and damage foundations and other structural and

architectural elements. Generally, foundations constructed within the planned cut areas of the building

pad would bear a relatively thin section of native soils and or bedrock. However, foundations

constructed within the planned fill areas could bear significantly thicker sections to fill, which have a

much higher potential for settlement.

A Geotechnical Engineering Survey by Youngdahl Consuhing Group, lnc. prepared recommendations for

the foundation, construction, and design of the proposed building in the project site (See Appendlx F for

more detail on site reoommendalions). With the implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-01,

outlined below, the impacts relating to unstable soils in the project area would be less than significant

with mitigation.

Mltigation Measure GEO-01: lmplementation of Recommendations an the Geotechnical Engineering

Survey

A Geotechnical Engineering Survey was prepared by Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc. in

December 2021. The proposed projects' design plans and specifications outlined in the survey

shall be reviewed and approved by a California-licensed geotechnical engineer or engineering

geologist prior to contract bidding. A review shall be performed to determine whether the

recommendations contained within the Geotechnical Engineering Survey are still applicable to

the project. Modifications to the recommendations provided in the Geotechnical Engineering

a

6L

Page 643

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Survey prepared by YoungdahlConsulting Group, lnc. or to the design may be necessary at the

time of review based on the proposed plans. The project applicant shall implement all applicable

recommendations approved by a California-licensed geotechnical engineer or engineering

geologist prior to issuance of a grading permit'

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-8 of the Uniform Building Code (1994),

creatlng substantial direct or indirect risk to life or property?

Less than slgnificant impact with mitigation. Plastic materials (clay soils) were encountered in relatively

thin layers at the project site. An expansion index test was performed on a sample of the clay, which

resulted in a value of 40 (low expansion), The majority of the remaining materials encountered in the

exploration were generally non-plastic (rock, sand, and non-plastic silt). The non-plastic materials are

generally considered to be non-expansive. The Geotechnical Engineerlng Study provided

recommendations relating to mitigation of expansive soils in the project site {See Appendix F for more

detail). Due to the configuration of the proposed constructlon, the anticipated grading, and with

implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-03., it is not anticapated that specialdesign considerations

for expansive soils would be required. With these conditions, the impacts would be less than significant

with mitigation.

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater

disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater?

No impact. The proposed sewer system would connect to the public sewer system and would not

require septic systems or an alternative waste disposal system. No impact would occur'

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. No previous surueys conducted in the project area have

identified the project site as sensitive for paleontological resources or other geologically sensitive

resources, nor have testing or ground disturbing activities performed to date uncovered any

paleontological resources or geologically sensitive resources. While the likelihood encountering

paleontologital resources and other geologically sensitive resources is considered low, project-related

graunddisturbing activities could affect the integrity of a previously unknown paleontological or other

geologically sensitive resource, resultlng in a :ubstantial change in the significance of the resource'

Therefore,the proposed project could result in potentially significant impacts to paleontological

resources. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-02 would reduce potentially significant impacts

to a less than significant level.

Mitigation Measure GEO-02: ldentification of Paleontological Resource During Proiect Construction

r ln the event a paleontological or other geologlcally sensitive resources {such as fossils or fossil

formationslare ielentified during any phase of praiectconstruction, all excavations within 100-ft

of the find shall be temporarily halted until the find is examined by a qualified paleontologist, in

accordance with Society of Vertebrate Paleontology standards. The paleontologist shall notify

the appropriate representative at the City of Folsom who shall coordinate with the

paleantologist as to any necessary investigation of the find. lf the find is determined to be

significant under CEQf,, the City shall implement those measures which may include avoidance,

preservation in place, or other appropriate measures, as outlined in Public Resourees Code

Section 2L083.2.

62

Page 644

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Potenfi.$ly
$il0crnt

lmprct

tasslhrn
$gl*nc.nt

xrldr
Mld$don

lncorporatcd

lrlcfhan
$gnlficent t{o
lmprct lmprcl

Would the project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or

indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the

environment?

n

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation

adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of tr I un
greenhouse gases?

HELIX Environmental Planning conducted a greenhouse gas emissions assessment for the proposed

project based primarily on the results of the City's Greenhous Gas Reduction Strategy Consistency

Checklist as presented in Appendix B.

Environmenlol Setling

Global climate change refers to changes in average climatic conditions on Earth including temperature,

wind patterns, precipitation, and storms. Globaltemperatures are moderated by atmospheric gases.

These gases are commonly referred to as greenhouse gasses {GHG} because they function like a

greenhouse by letting sunlight in but preventing heat from escaping, thus warming the Earth's

atmosphere,

GHGs are emitted by natural processes and human (anthropogenic) activities. Anthropogenic GHG

emissions are primarily associated with burning of fossil fuels during motorized transport; electricity

generation; natural gas consumption; industrial activity; manufacturing; and other activities such as

deforestation, agricultural activity, and solid waste decomposition.

The GHGs defined under California's Assembly Bill {AB) 32 include carbon dioxide (COz), methane (CHc),

nitrous oxide (NzO), hydrofluorocarbons {HFC), perfluorocarbons (PFC}, and sulfur hexafluoride {SFe)'

Each GHG differs in its ability to absorb heat in the atmosphere based on the lifetime, or persistence, of

the gas molecule in the atmosphere. Estimates of GHG emissions are commonly presented in carbon

dioxide equivalents (COze), which weigh each gas by its global warming potential (GWP)' Expressing GHG

emissions in COae takes the contribution of all GHG emissions to the greenhouse effect and converts

them to a single unit equivalent to the effect that would occur if only COzwere being emitted. GHG

emissions quantities in this analysis are presented in metric tons (MT) of COze. For consistency with

United Nations Standards, modeling, and reporting of GHGs in California and the U,S. use the GWPs

defined in the lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change's (IPCC) Fourth Assessment Report (IPCC

2007): COr - 1; CHa - 25; NzO - 298.

Page 645

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

GHG Reduction Regulollons ond Plons

The primary GHG reduction regulatory legislation and plans (applicable to the project) at the State,

regional, and local levels are described below. lmplementation of California's GHG reduction mandates

is under the authority of CARB at the state level, SMAQMD and the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments (SACOG) at the regional level, and the city at the local level.

Executive Order S-3{5: On June L,2OO5, Executive Order (E0) 5-3-05 proclaimed that California is

vulnerable to climate change impacts. lt declared that increased temperatures could reduce snowpack

in the Sierra Nevada, further exacerbate California's air quality problems. and potentially cause a rise in

sea levels. To avoid or reduce climate change impacts, EO 5-3-05 calls for a reduction in GHG emissions

to the year 2000 levels by 2010, to year 1990 levels by 2O20, and to 80 percent below 1990 levels by

2050. Executive Orders are not laws and can only provide the governor's direction to state agencies to

act within their authority to reinforce existing laws.

Assembly Bill 32 - Global Warming Solution Act of 2006: The California Global Warming Solutions Act

of 2006, widely known as AB 32, requires that CARB develop and enforce regulations for the reporting

and verification of statewide GHG emissions. CARB is directed by AB 32 to set a GHG emission limit,

based on 1990 levels, to be achieved by 2020. The bill requires CARB to adopt rules and regulations in an

open public process to achieve the maximum technologically feasible and cost-effective GHG emission

reductions.

Executive Order 8-30-15: On April 29,2OL5, EO 8-30-15 established a California GHG emission reduction

target of 40 percent below 1.990 levels by 2030. The EO aligns California's GHG emission reduction

targets with those of leading internationalgovernments, including the 28 nation European Union'

California achieved the target of reducing GHGs emissions to 1990 levels by 2020, as established in

AB 32. California's new emission reduction target of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 will make it

possible to reach the goal established by EO 5-3-05 of reducing emissions 80 percent under 1990 levels

by 2050.

Senate Bill 32: Signed into law by Governor Brown on September 8,20L6, Senate Bill (SB)32

(Amendments to the California GlobalWarming Solutions Action of 2006) extends California's GHG

reduction programs beyond 2020. SB 32 amended the Health and Safety Code to include Section 38565,

which contains language to authorize CARB to achieve a statewide GHG emission reduction of at least

40 percent below 1990 levels by no later than December 31, 2030. SB 32 codified the targets established

by EO 8-30-15 for 2030, which set the next interim step in the State's continuing efforts to pursue the

long-term target expressed in EO 8-30-15 of 80 percent below 1990 emissions levels by 2050'

California Air Resources Board: On December LI,2008, the CARB adopted the Climate Change Scoping

plan (scoping plan) as directed by AB 32. The Scoping Plan proposes a set of actions designed to reduce

overall GHG emissions in California to the levels required by AB 32. Measures applicable to development

projects include those related to energy-efficiency building and appliance standards, the use of
renewable sources for electricity generation, regionaltransportation targets, and green building

strategy. Relative to transportation, the Scoping Plan includes nine measures or recommended actions

related to reducing vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and vehicle GHGs through fuel and efficiency measures'

These measures would be implemented statewide rather than on a project-by'project basis

(cARB 2008).

64

Page 646

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

ln response to EO 8-30-15 and SB 32, all state agencies with jurisdiction over sources of GHG emissions

were directed to implement measures to achieve reductions of GHG emissions to meet the 2030 and

2050 targets. The mid-term target is criticalto help frame the suite of policy measures, regulations,
planning efforts, and investments in clean technologies and infrastructure needed to continue driving

down emissions (CARB 2014). ln December 2017, CARB adopted the 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan

Update, the Strategy for Achieving California's 2030 Greenhouse Gas Target, to reflect the 2030 target

set by EO 8-30-15 and codified by SB 32 (CARB 2017)'

Sacramento Area Council of Governments: As required by the Sustainable Communities and Climate

Protection Act of 2008 (SB 375), SACOG has developed the 2020 Metropolitan Transportation Plan and

Sustainable Communities Strategy. This plan seeks to reduce GHG and other mobile source emissions

through coordinated transportation and land use planning to reduce VMT.

City of Folsom: As part of the 2035 General Plan, the City prepared an integrated Greenhouse Gas

Emissions Reduction Strategy (Appendix A to the 2035 General Plan; adopted August 28, 2018), The

purpose of the Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Strategy (GHG Strategy) is to identify and reduce

current and future community GHG emissions and those associated with the City's municipal operations

The GHG Strategy includes GHG reduction targets to reduce GHG emissions (with a 2005 baseline year)

by 15 percent in 2020, 51 percent in 2035, and 80 percent in 2050. The GHG Strategy identifies policies

within the City of Folsom General Plan that would decrease the City's emissions of greenhouse gases.

The GHG Strategy also satisfies the requirements of CEQA to identifo and mitigate GHG emissions

associated with the General Plan Update as part of the environmental review process and serves as the

City's "plan for the reduction of greenhouse gases", per Section 15183.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, which
provides the opportunity for tiering and streamlining of project-level emissions for certain types of
discretionary projects subject to CEQA review that are consistent with the General Plan (City 2018).

Melhodology ond Assumplions

Criteria pollutant, precursor, and GHG emissions for project construction and operation were estimated

using the California Emissions Estimator Model {CalEEMod), Version 2020.4.0. CalEEMod is a statewide

land use emissions computer model designed to provide a uniform platform for government agencies,

land use planners, and environmental professionals to quantify potential criteria pollutant and GHG

emissions associated with both construction and operations from a variety of land use projects. The

model was developed for the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA) in

collaboration with the California air districts. CalEEMod allows for the use of default data (e.9., emission

factors, trip lengths, meteorology, source inventory) provided by the various California air districts to
account for local requirements and conditions, and/or user-defined inputs. The calculation methodology

and default data used in the model are available in the CalEEMod User's Guide, Appendices A, D, and E

{CAPCOA 2021). The CalEEMod output files are included in Appendix B.

Construction of the projec't is anticipated to begin as early as January 2023 and be completed in April

2024. Construction modeling assumes the following anticipated schedule: site preparation 10 working

days; grading 87 working days; building construction 207 working days; paving 2l working days; and

architectural coating 22 working days. Construction equipment assumptions were based on estimates

from CalEEMod defaults. The project would not require an import or export of soilduring construction

activities. Construction emissions modeling assumes implementation of basic dust control practices

(watering exposed areas twice per day) to comply with the requirements of: SMAQMD Rule 403,

Fugitive Dust.

65

Page 647

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

Operational mobile emissions were modeled using the proiect trip generation of 441 average daily trips

from the project Transportation lmpact study (T. Kear Transportation Planning and Management, lnc'

2022), Operational emissions resulting from energy use, water use, and solid waste generation were

modeled using CalEEMod defaults with an added 20 percent reduction in water use to account for the

requirements of the 2019 CALGreen, and an additional 25 percent solid waste diversion to account for

AB 341 requirements.

Stondords of Slgnificonce

The final determination of whether or not a project has a significant effect is within the purview of the

lead agency pursuant to CEoA Guidelihes Section 15064(b). The City's GHG Strategy, described above, is

a qualiiied pian for the reduction of greenhouse gases pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5'

Consistency with the GHG Strategy may be used to determine the significance of the project's GHG

emissions.

The city,s 2035 General plan policy NcR 3.2.8 and GHG strategy include criteria to determine whether

the potential greenhouse gas emissions of a proposed project are significant (City 2018)'

NCR 3.2,8 Streamlined GHG Analysis for Projects Consistent with the General Plan

projects subject to environmental review under CEQA may be eligible for tiering and streamlining the

anaiysis of GHG emissions, provided they are consistent with the GHG reduction measures included in

the General plan and ElR. The City may review such proiects to determine whether the following criteria

are met:

. proposed project js consistent with the current general plan land use designation for the project

site;

r proposed project incorporates all applicable GHG reduction measures (as documented in the

climate change Technical Appendix to the General Plan EIR) as mitigation measures in the CEQA

document prepared for the project; and

" proposed project clearly demonstrates the method, timing and process for which the project

will comply with applicable GHG reduction measures and/or conditions of approval, (e.g', using

a CAp/GHG reduction measures consistency checklist, mitigation monitoring and reporting plan,

or other mechanism for monitoring and enforcement as appropriate)'

Evoluollon of Greenhouse Gos Emlrsions

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact

on the environment?

Less than significant lmpact with Mitigation. GHG emissions would be generated by the project during

construction (vehicle engine exhaust from construction equipment, vendor trips, and worker commuting

trips) and during long-term operation (electricity and natural gas use, electricity resulting from water

consumption; solid waste disposal, and vehicle engine exhaust). GHG emissions were calculated used

CalEEMod, as described in Methodology and Assumptions'

66

Page 648

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

The calculated GHG emissions anticipated to be generated during construction of the project are shown

below in Table 14. Due to the cumulative nature of GHGs, SMAQMD recommends amortizing a project's

construction emissions over the operational lifetime of the project. Therefore, the construction

emissions are amortized (i.e., averaged) over 30 years and added to operational emissions in this

analysis.

Table 14. Construction GHG Emisslons

Year
Emlsslons

2023 396.1

2024 92.4

Totall 488.5

Amoft ized Co nstruction E m iss io ns 16.s

Source; CalEEMod (output data is provided in Attachment A)
1 Totals may notsum due to rounding'
GHG = Breenhouse gas; MT = metric tons; CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent

The results of the 2025 Operational GHG Emissions are provided below in Table 15.

Table 15. Operational GHG Emissions

2025 Emlsslons
Emlsslon Sources

Area 2.3
118.2

Mobile 370,0

Waste 23.6

Water 9.1
subtotalr 523.3

Am orti ze d Co nstruc t io n E m i ss ions 16,3

Total 539.6

Source: CalEEMod (output data is provided in Attachment A)
1 Totals may notsum dueto rounding.
GHG = greenhouse gas; MT = metric tons; CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent

To determine significance of the project's GHG emissions, the Ci!y's Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy

Consistency Checklist was completed (City of Folsom 2021; included in Appendix B).

Part L: Land Use Consistency

The proposed project is consistent with the City's 2035 General Plan land use and zoning designations?

The project parcel is designated as Professional Office (PO) in the Folsom 2035 General Plan,

which provides for low-intensity business and professional offices that are compatible with

higher-intensity residential uses. The zoning designation of the project site is Business and

Professional {BP) District. ln accordance with the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy

Consistency Checklist, if the project would require a change in land use designation or a rezone,

consistency would be determined by calculating the estimated the GHG emissions resulting

from maximum buildout of the project site allowed using the current zoning and using the

67

Page 649

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

proposed zoning change. If the land use designation/zoning change would not result in an

increase in annual GHG emissions, the project would be coflsistent (City 202tal' However, the

project would not result in a land use designationlzoning change and therefore, there would be

no change in GHG emissions.

A senior housing development would be an allowable use for the BP zoning district. Entitlement

requests for this project include a Planned Development Permit (PD Permit) and a Conditional

Use permit. The purpose of the PD Permit is to allow for greater flexlbility in the design of

integrated developments than otherwise possible through strlct application of land use

' regulations. With the PD Permit, the project's site plan, elevations, and overall project design

would be evaluated, and specific development standards would be defined. Ihe proiect is

consistent with applicable development standards for the BP zoning district, As shown in

Table 15 above, the proposed project is anticipated to result in approximately 539.6 MT COze

per year.

Part 2: GHG Reduction Measures Consistency (only applicable measures shown):

E-l Building energy Sector: The project will exceed the requirements of the California Building Energy

Efficiency Standards tTitle 24, Part 5) by 15 percent or more?

Consistent. The project would exceed the requirement of the California Building Energy

Efficiency Standards (Title 24, Part 6), by L5 percent or more.

T-1 project Locatiorl and Density: The project is a mixed-use building with two or more uses

{i"e., residential, commercial, offlce, etc.f or if the site is 5 acres or larger ther* are two or rnore uses on

the site connected by protected pedestrlan paths (e.g., sidewalks, elevated walkways) excluding

driveways?

Consistent. The project is less than 5 acres and is located within an existing empty lot.

lmplemenlation of the proposed development would include a rnix of uses includlng residential

units, community center, and leasing office. The proiect would include a concrete sidewalk that

would extend around the southern parking area and cotnect to the existing Oak Parkway Trail

section located south of the site boundary. Additional proposed concrete sidewalks would be

located at the frontage of the project site and would connect to internal sidewalks proposed

around the building.

T-3 Bicycle Parking; Project provides 5 percent more bicycle parking spaces than required in the City's

MunicipalCode?

Consistent with mitigation. With 136 residential units, the project requires 27 bicycle parking

spaces. Bike racks would accommodate 28 bicycle parking spaces on ths eastern side of the

project site, exceeding the number of bicycle parking $paces required by flve percent. Mitigation

Mea$ure GHG-01 would require the installatlon of bicycle parking 5 pereent or more hiSher than

the requirements of City Code section 17.57.090'

T-6 High-perforffance Oiesel (Construction only): Use high-performance diesel (also known as Diesel-

HPR or Reg-9000/RHD) for construction equipment?

68

Page 650

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaBe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Consistent with mitigation. Mitigation Measure GHG-02 would require the use of high-

performance diesel for all project construction activities.

T-8 Electric Vehicle Charging {Residential): For multifamily projects with 17 or more dwelling units,

provide electric vehicle charging in 5 percent of total parking spaces?

Consistent with mitigation. Mitigation Measure GHG-03 would require installation of 14

electrical vehicle charging stations based on the 136 total parking spaces proposed for the

project.

SW-L Enhanced Construction Waste Diversion: Project diverts to recycle or salvage at least 65 percent of

nonhazardous construction and demolition waste generated at the project site in accordance with

Appendix A4 (Residential) of CALGreen?

Consistent with mitigation. Mitigation Measure GHG-04 would require a minimum of 65 percent

of nonhazardous construction and demolition waste to be diverted, recycled or salvaged.

W-l Water Efficiency: For new residential and non-residential projects, the project will comply with all

applicable indoor and outdoor water efficiency and conservation measures required under CALGreen

Tier 1.?

Consistent with mitigation. Mitigation Measure GHG-05 would require implementation of all

2019 CALGreen Tier 1. applicable indoor and outdoor water efficiency and conservation

measures.

With implementation of Mitigation Measures GHG-01. through GHG-05, the project would be consistent

with the City's GHG Strategy. Therefore, the project would not generate greenhouse gas emissions,

either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment, and the impact

would be less than significant with mitigation'

Mitigation Measure GHG{II: Bicycle Parking

r ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-3, the project shall provide

a minimum of 5 percent more bicycle parking than required in the City's Municipal Code Section

17,57.090.

Mitigation Measure GHG{2: High'Performance Diesel

r ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-5, the project shall use high-

performance diesel (also known as Diesel-HPR or Reg-9000lRHD) for all diesel-powered

equipment utilized in construction of the project'

Mitigation Measure GHG{13: Electric Vehicle Charging

r ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-8, the project shall provide

14 electric vehicle charging stations based on the 136 total parking spaces proposed for the

project.

Page 651

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Mitigation Measure GHG{4: Enhanced Construction Waste Diversion

e ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure SW-1, the project shall divert

to recycle or salvage a minimum 65 of nonhazardous construction and demolition waste

generated at the project site in accordance with Appendix A4 (Residential) of the as outlined in

the California Green Building Standards Code (2019 CALGreen).

Mitigataon Measure GHG45: Water Efficiency

ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure W-1, the project shall comply

with all applicable indoor and outdoor water efficiency and conservation measures required

under 2019 CALGreen Tier 1, as outlined in the California Green Building Standards Code.

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the

emissions of greenhouse gases?

less than Significant lmpact with Mitigation. There are numerous State plans, policies, and regulations

adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions. The principal overall State plan and policy is AB 32,

the Galifornia Global Warming Solutions Act of 2005. The quantitative goal of AB 32 is to reduce GHG

emissions to 1990 levels by 2020. SB 32 woutd require further reductions of 40 percent below 1990

levels by 2030. The mandates of AB 32 and SB 32 are implanted at the state level by the CARB's Scoping

plan. Because the project's operationalyear is post-2020, the project aims to reach the quantitative

goals set by SB 32. Statewide plans and regulations such as GHG emissions standards for vehicles

(AB 1493), the LCFS, and regulations requiring an increasing fraction of electricity to be generated from

renewable sources are being implemented at the statewide level; as such, compliance at the project

level is not addressed. Therefore, the proposed project would not conflict with those plans and

regulations.

The Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy {MTP/SCS)for Sacramento

county is the 2020 MTP/SCS adopted by the sacramento Area council of Governments (sAcoc) on

November L8,2OLg. The 2020 MTP/SCS lays out a transportation investment and land use strategy to

support a prosperous region, with access to jobs and economic opportunity, transportation options, and

affordable housing that works for all residents. The plan also lays out a path for improving our air

quality, preserving open space and natural resources, and helping California achieve its goal to reduce

greenhouse gas emissions (SACOG 2019). The transportation sector is the largest source of GHG

emissions in the state. A project's GHG emissions from cars and light trucks are directly correlated to the

project's VMT. According to the Transportation lmpact Study prepared for the project, the project is

anticipated to generate at least 15 percent less VMT per capita than the regional average (T. Kear

Transportation Planning and Management, lnc. 2022). This VMT reduction meets the 15 percent

reduction required by 58 743. ln addition to regionalVMT proiections, SACOG utilizes localgrowth

projections to develop the strategies and measures in the 2020 MTPISCS. As discussbd in question a),

above, there would be no change in land use and zoning, and no change in GHG emissions would result,

Therefore, the regional VMT and population growth resulting from implementation of the project would

be consistent with the assumptions used in the 2020 MTP/SCS'

As discussed in question a|, above, with implementation of Mitigation Measures GHG-OI through

GHG-05, the project would be consistent with the city's GHG StrateSy, a qualified plan for the reduction

of greenhouse gases pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5. Therefore, the project would not

a

70

Page 652

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaSe at Folsom Senlor Alartments ISMND

confllct wlth CARB's 2017 Scoping Plan, the SACOG's 2020 MTP/SCS, or the Clty's GHG Strategy, and the

impact would be less than slgnificanl with mltigation.

71

Page 653

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIATS

Potcills[y
Sllntfrcrnt

lnp.c

legsftrn
$$ncam

sldt
Mlthndon

lncorpontrd

tcrsllun
Slgnlf,ornt ilo
lmp.ct lrnptct

Would the project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through the routine transport, use, or
disposal of hazardous materials?

n I n

b) create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and

accident conditions involving the release of hazardous

materials into the environment?

n

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely
hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-
quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

n r
d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of

hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962,5 and, as a result, would
it create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment?

U n I

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or,

where ssch a plan has not been adopted, within two
miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the
project result in a safety harard or excessive noise for
people residing or working in the project area?

tr T

f) lmpair implementation of or physically interfere with an

adopted emergency response plan or emergency

evacuation plan?
tr n I n

gl Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly,
to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving

wildland fires?

LJ

Envlronmenlol Setllng

The project site is currently undeveloped has no past land uses associated with potentially hazardous

sites. The schools nearest to the project site are St. John's Notre Dame School, approximately 0.2-miles

east of the site, Theodore Judah Elementary School, approximately 0.5-miles southwest of the site,

Blanche Sprentz Elementary School, approximately 0.7-miles southeast of the site and Folsom Middle

School, approximately 1.5-miles southeast of the site'

The following databases were reviewed for the project site and surrounding area to identify potential

hazardous contamination sites: the SWRCB Geotracker (SWRCB 2020); California Department of Toxic

Substance Control's EnviroStor online tool {DTSC 2020}; and the US EPA's Superfund National Priorities

72

Page 654

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

List (EpA 2019). Based on the results of the databases reviewed, no hazardous waste sites are located on

the project site.

Federal and state laws include provisions for the safe handling of hazardous substances. The federal

OccupationalSafety and Health Administralion (OSHA) administers requirements to ensure worker

safety. Construction activity must also be in compliance wlth the California OSHA regulations

{Occrpational Safety and Health Aet of *7A}.

Evoluqlion of Hozords ond Hqzordous Molerlqls

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or

disposal of hazardous materials?

Less than significant impact. The site has no known history of past land uses associated with potentially

hazardous sites. Construction of the proposed project would result in an increase in the generation,

storage, and disposal of hazardous wastes. During project construction oil, gasoline, diesel fuel, paints,

solvents, and other hazardous materials may be usetl. lf spilled, these substances could pose a risk to

the environment and to human health.

Following construction, household haeardous materials such as various cleaners, paints, solvents,

pestieides, pool chemicals, and automobile fluids would be expected to be used. The routine transport,

use, and disposal of hazardous materials are subject to local, state, and federal regulations to minimize

risk and exposure.

Further, the City has set forth its hazardous materials goals and policies in the Hazardou.s Materials

Element of the General Plan. The preventative policies protect the health and wElfare of residents of

Folsom through manageme nt and regufation of hazardous materials. Consequectly, use of the listed

materials above for their intended purpose would not pose a significant risk to the public or

environment and would therefore cause a less than significant impact.

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset

and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

Less than significant impact. As discussed above, the proposed project site has no known history of past

land uses associated with potentially hazardous sites and construction of the proposed groject would

follow all local. state, and federal regulations. These regulations protect the health and welfare of

residents of Folsom through management and regulation of hazardous materials in a manner that focus'

on prevenling problems. With the implementation of these regulations, the potential for a foreseeable

upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment would

be low, and therefore would cause a less than significant impact.

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste

within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

less than significant impact. The nearest school is St. John's Notre Dame School, approximately 0.2-

miles east of the site, During project construction, oil, gasoline, diesel fuel, paints, solvents, and other

hazardous materials may be used, but they would be used accordingly to local, state, and federal

regulations. With these regulations in place, the proposed project would have a less than significant

impact.

73

Page 655

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to

Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public

or the environment?

No impact. The site is not included on any list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 55962.5. No hazardous materlals sites are located at the pro,iect slte based

on review of the FnviroStor (DTSC 20201, Geatracker {SWRCB 2020}, and EPA Superfund Priority Lrst (EPA

2019). Therefore, project implementation would have no impact on hazards to the public or

environment.

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted,

within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard

or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

No impact. The nearest public or public use airport is Cameron Airpark, approximately ll-miles east of

the project site. At this distance, the project is not within the airport land use plan area and the project

would have no impact on safety hazards or excessive noise related to airports.

f) lmpair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergensy response plan or

emergency evacuation Plan?

Less than significant impact. The City of Folsom maintains pre-designated emergency evacuation routes

as identified in the Clry of Fakom Evocustion Plon {CitY af Folsom 2010a). The praposed pmject is

located in evacuation plan area #lO-Cimmaron Hill/ Rancho Diablo, which identifies East Natoma Street

as a major evacuation route and Cimmaron Circle as a minor evacuation route. The proposed project

would not modify any pre-designated emergency evacuation route or preclude their continued use as an

emergency evacuation route. Emergency vehicle access would be malntained throughout fhe project

Fite to meet the Fire Department standards for fire truck maneuvering location of fire truck to fight a

fire, rescue access to the units, and fire hose access to all sides ofthe building. Therefore, grolect

impacts to the Citt's adopted evacuation plan and emergency plans would be less than significant.

S) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death

involving wildland fires?

Less than significant impact. The project site is located in an urbanized area in the City of Folsom and is

provided urban levels of fire protection by the City. The site is designed for clear fire laneffire truck

access and fire hose access to all parts of the buildings, The proiect would include fire hydrants, exterior

Fire Department Connection assemblies, and fire riser rooms. Emergency vehicle access would be

maintained on the site to meet the Fire Department standards forfire truck maneuvering, location of

fire truck to fight a fire, rescue access to the units, and fire hose access to all sides of the building. The

fire lane would be 27-ft minimum, with an inner turning radius of 25-ft and an outer turning radius of

50-ft. All curbs adjacent to the fire lane would be painted red for emergency fire services, Therefore, the

proposed proiect would not expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss due to wildland fires,

and impacts would be less than significant.

74

Page 656

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

X. HYDROTOGY AND WATER QUATITY

Potentlrlly
SEnlf,crnt

lmFtCt

tesoftrn
Sltntfio.nt

wllh
Mltlgrdon

Incorporeted

lascrhtn
Sltltlficint No
lmp.ct lmpsct

Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge

requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface

or ground water quality?

t1tt L-J l:}

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere

substantially with groundwater recharge such that the

project may impede sustainable groundwater

management of the basin?

I L]

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site

or area, including through the alteration ofthe course of

a stream or river or through the addition of impervious

surfaces, in a manner which would:

i. Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-

site?
u tf I {_i

ii, Substantially increase the rate or amount of surface

runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on-

or off- site?

l-:l r n

iii. Create or contribute runoff water which would

exceed the capacity of existing or planned

stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial

additional resources of polluted runoff?

n L]

iv. lmpede or redirect flood flows? il I r L]

d) ln flood hazard,tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release oi
pollutants due to project inundation?

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water

quality control plan or sustainable groundwater

management plan?

A preliminary Drainage and Stormwater Quality Report was prepared by TSD Engineering lnc' on August

19,2022, and is included as Appendix G.

Environmenlol Setling

A preliminary Drainage and Storm Water Quality Report was prepared for the proposed project by TSD

Engineering and is included as Appendix G. This memo was used when analyzing potential impads to

hydrology and water quality resources. The project site is vacant and undeveloped with a fairly dense

oak tree canopy and a drainage channel traversing the site adjacent to East Natoma Street. The Oak

parkway Trailseparated the project site from residential properties to the south. The Cimmaron Hill

Sub-division is located east of the project site and the entrance to Folsom State Prison (Prison) and the

Johnny Cash Trail are located on the northwest side of E. Natoma Street. The project is proposing 2.318

I

75

Page 657

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

acres of landscape {pervious area), 0.05-acres of bioretention (pervious area), l.3-acres of parking lots

(impervious surface), 0.4-ares of hardscape (impervious surface), and 0.9-acres of building {impervious
surface).

The existing channel conveys runoff from a portion of the Cimmaron Hill Subdivision as well as

runofffrom a portion ofthe Prison open space. Runofffrom the Prison property is conveyed to the

existing channel through a 24-inch culvert that crosses E. Natoma Street. The channel conveys

runoff to a 48-inch culvert that crosses and discharges on the northwest side of E. Natoma Street,

ultimately discharging into the American River approximately 2,500-ft west of E. Natoma street.

The existing 24-inch culvert that conveys runoff from the Prison site limits the contribution of

runoff to the existing channel from the prison site. The 24-inch culvert has a maximum flow rate

of 23.3-cubic feet per second (c'fs) based on the size, slope and maximum headwater elevation. lt is

assumed that once the ponding area upstream of the 24-inch culvert if full, runoff will release overland,

following the bike trailto trench drains located under the Prison Road bridge, ultimately reaching the

American River through Robbers Ravine'

Precipitation is the source of surface water for the project site. Because the area is currently

undeveloped, implementation of the project would result in an increase of impervious surface area and

channelization of storm water runoff, the rates and volumes of which would increase. As the proposed

project would create more than one acre of impervious area, the project is reguired to implement

source control measures, low impact development measures, storm impact treatment and full trash

captures measures in accordance with the Stormwater Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento

Region, dated July 20L8 (SWq Manual).

Federal Emergency Management Agency TFEMA) flood insurance rate maps were reviewed for the
project's proximity to a 100-year floodplain. The proposed project is on FEMA panel 06057COLL7H,

effective August L6,2072. The project site is not located within a 100-year floodplain {FEMA 2012}.

The site is not located in an area of important groundwater recharge. Domestic water in the City is

provided solely by surface water sources. The City is the purveyor of water for the site.

Regulolory Fromework Relcilng lo Hydrology ond Woter Quollty

The City is a signatory to the Sacramento Countywide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Program

{NPDES) permit for the control of pollutants in urban stormwater. Since 199O the City has been a

partner in the Sacramento Stormwater Quality Partnership, along with the County of Sacramento and

the Cities of Sacramento, Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, Galt, and Rancho Cordova. These agencies are

implementing a comprehensive program involving public outreach, construction and industrial controls

{i.e., BMPs), water quality monitoring, and other activities designed to protect area creeks and rivers,

This program would be unchanged by the proposed project, and the project would be required to

implement all appropriate program requirements

ln addition to these activities, the city maintains the following requirements and programs to reduce the

potential impacts of urban development on stormwater quality and quantity, erosion and sediment

76

Page 658

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments TSMND

control, flood protection, and water use. These regulations and requirements would be unchanged by

the proposed project.

Standard construction conditions required by the City include:

Water Pollution - requires compliance with City water pollution regulations, including NPDES

provisions.

Ctearing and Grubbing - specifies protection standards for signs, mailboxes, underground

structures, drainage facilities, sprinklers and lights, trees and shrubbery, and fencing' Also

requires the preparation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to control erosion

and siltation of receiving waters.

Reseeding - specifies seed mixes and methods for reseeding of graded areas.

Additionally, the City enforces the following requirements of the Folsom Municipal Code as presented in

Table 16.

Table 16. City of Folsom Municipal Code Sections Regulating the Effects on Hydrology and Water

Quality from Urban DeveloPment

a

Code
Section

Code Name Effect ofCode

8.70

Stormwater
Management
and Discharge

Control

Establishes conditions and requirements for the discharge of urban

pollutants and sediments to the storm-drainage system; requires

preparation and implementation of Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans'

t3,26
Water

Conservation
Prohibits the wasteful use of water; establishes sustainable landscape

requi water use restrictions.

L4.20
Green Building

Standards
Code

Adopts the California Green Building Standards Code (CalGreen Code), 2010

Edition, excluding Appendix Chapters A4 and A5, published as Part 11, Title

24, C.C.R. to promote and require the use of building concepts having a

reduced negative impact or positive environmental impact and encouriging
sustainable construction

L4.29 Grading Code

Requires a grading permit prior to the initiation of any grading, excavation,

fill or dredging; establishes standards, conditions, and requirements for
erosion contro stormwater and

t4.32
Flood Damage

Prevention

Restricts or prohibits uses that cause water or erosion hazards, or that result

in damaging increases in erosion or in flood heights; requires that uses

vulnerable to floods be protected against flood damage; controls the

modification of floodways; regulates activities that may increase flood
or that could divert floodwaters.

14.33
Hillside

Development

Regulates urban development on hillsides and ridges to protect property

against losses from erosion, ground movement and flooding; to protect

significant naturalfeatures; and to provide for functional and visually

pteasing development of the city's hillsides by establishing procedures and

standards for the siting and design of physical improvements and site
grading.

Source: City of Folsom 2020b

77

Page 659

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

EvoluEllon of Hydrology ond Wqter Quollty

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially

degrade surface or ground water quality?

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration

of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which

would;

i. Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?

ii. Substantiatly increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in

flooding on- or off- site?

iii. Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned

stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional resources of polluted runoff?

iv. lmpede or redirect flood flows?

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater

management plan?

Less than significant impact. The project site consists of open space with a fairly dense oak tree canopy

and a drainage channel traversing the site adjacent to E. Natoma Street. The Oak Parkway Trail

separates the project site from residential properties to the south. The Cimmaron Hill Sub-division is

located east of the project site and the entrance to Folsom State Prison is located northwest of East

Natoma Street. The existing channel conveys runoff from a portion of the Cimmaron Hill Subdivision as

well as runoff from a portion of the Prison open space. lmplementation of the proposed project would

alter the existing drainage patterns on the proJect site. The site conditions would be replaced with

impervious surfaces from the three-story building, associated parkln6 and drive aisles, and fandscaping.

The existing drainage channel will remain and will be required to maintain the existing drainage

patterns, conveying the runoff generated onsite and offsite, as is tbe case under existing conditions.

Modifications to the existing drainage patterns may result in localized flooding, and an increase in

impervious surfaces may result in an increase in the total volume and peak discharges of the proposed

project has the potentialto degrade water quality associated with urban runoff. Ground disturbing

activities would expose soil to erosion and may result in the transport of sediments which could

adversely affect water quality. A 36-inch culvert is proposed to be installed under the southernmost

driveway to allow runoff to continue to flow through the existing channel. The 36-inch culvert will

restrict the developed flows, causing water to back up in the existing channel. The existing channel will

function as a detention basin in high intensity storm events. The preliminary analysis considered the

worst possible scenario under a lO-year, 24-hour storm event, and under a 100-year, 24-hour storm

event.

Sacramento Method within SacCalc software was used to estimate runoff, employing the same methods

used to determine the runoff under existing conditions, as outlined in the Preliminary Drainage and

Stormwater Quality Report. Comparison of the runoff rates under existing and developed conditions

during the 10-year, 24-hour storm event show equal flow rates under existing and developed conditions

78

Page 660

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

during the L0-year, 24-hour storm event. Therefore, the development of the site would maintain

existing drainage paths and would not have a negative effect on the existing storm system.

preliminary hydrologic and hydraulic analysis estimates a decrease of 5.84 cfs during 100-year, 24-hour

storm event due tc the development of the slte as proposed. Table 17 shows the peak discharge rates

under existing conditions and developed condltions. The hydrologic estimations neglect losses due to

friction, travel time and proposed onsite storage and should be considered conservative.

Tabte 17. Peak Discharge Rates (Downstream from the Proiect sitel

gxisting {cfs) Mitigated Devsloped tcfsl

10-Year 7s.3 75.3

100-Year L72.3 106.46

The preliminary analysis determined the development site would not increase the flow rate through the

existing channel during the 10-year, 24-hour storm event, and flow rates through the existing channel

are estimated to decrease during the 100-year, 24-hrrur storm event. The existing channel has the

capacity, upstream from the proposed 36-inch culvert, to detain flows exceeding the capacity of the

culvert while maintain at least l-foot of freeboard. The offsite areas draining through the existing

channel and associated underground system will not be negatively affected by the development of this

project. lmpacts would be less than significant.

Additionally, the proposed project would be required to comply with varieus State and local water

quality standards which would ensure the proposecl project would not violate water quality standards or

waste discharge permits, or otherwise substantially degrade r^/ater quality. As the pmJect is greater than

one acre, the proposed project would be subject to NPDES permit conditions which include the

prep*ration of a SWPPP for implementation during construction. The proposed project would also be

subject to all of the City's standard Code requirements, includlng conditions for the discharge of urban

pollutants and sediments to the storm drainage system, and restrictions on uses that cause water or

erosion hazards.

As outlined previously, the preliminary analysis concluded flow rates with the development site would

be equal to or decrease under the L0-year and 100-year storm events. Additionally, compliance with

these requirernents would ensure that water guality standards and discharge requirements are not

violated, and water qualitV is protected. Therefore, mpacts would be less than significant, and no

mitigation would be necessary for questions a), c), d), e), and f),

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge

such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?

Less than significant impa*, lmplementation of the proposed proiect would not result in the use of

groundwater supplies beeause domestir urater in the City is provided solely from surface water sources

from the Folsom Reservoir. While development of the proposed project would increase the percentage

of irnpervious surface on the site that could affect groutdwater recharge, the site is not previously

known to be important to groundwater reeharge. turther, because the proposed project would not rely

on groundwater for domestic water and irrigation purpoies, and because the site is not an important

area of groundwater recharge, the proposed project would not deplete groundwater supplies or

interfere substantially with groundwater recharge that would result in a net deficit in aquifer volume or

79

Page 661

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

a lowering of the local groundwater table. Therefore, impacts to groundwater supplies and recharge

would be less than significant.

d) ln flood hazard,tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation?

Less than significant impact. The project site is not located within a 100-year floodplain and is not

subject to flood hazard. The project site is also approximately 7o-miles northeast of the nearest tsunami

inundation area near Benicla, CA (California Emergency Management Agency 2009). The nearest body of

water is the American River, which is approximately 0.5-miles west, and Folsom Lake, which is

approximately 1.-mlle north of the project site. Based on the site's location awry from the 100-year

floodplain, distance from tsunami inundation area, and distance to Folsom Lake, the project site is not

subject to release of pollutants due to inundation'

The City of Folscm is located approximately 95-miles from the Pacific Ocean, at elevations ranging from

approximately 140- to 828-ft amsl. Because of this, there would be no possibility of lnundation by

tsunami. The City is located adjacent to Folsom lake, a reseruoir of the American River impounded by a

main dam on the river channel and wing dikes. Areas of the City adjacent to the wing dikes could be

adversely affected by a seiche as a result of an earthquake, either through sloshing within a full reseloir

or by a massive landslide or earth movement into the lake. Although historic seismic activity has been

minor, the potential for strong ground shaking is present and the possibility exists of a strong

eartfiquake accurringwhen lake leyels are high. This could create a large enough wave to overtop or

breach the wing dikes although this is considered to be a remote possibility.

Mudslides and other forms of mass wasting occur on steep slopes in areas having susceptible soils or

geology, typically as a result of an earthquake or high rainfall event. Slopes associated with the edges of

the building pads are located on the prolect site; however, City grading standards, including

requirements to evaluate slope stability and implement slope stablliaing measures as nQcessary, would

prsv€nt this potential effect. |n summary there would be no potentially slgnificant effect from

inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow and no mitigation would be necessary.

80

Page 662

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XI. IAND USE AND PTANNING

tot mhlh
gtnncrnt

Irnprct

tterrlrrn
Sfinncrni

ulilr
MlillrUon

tncorpor.fed

trssThrn
Sknlicrnt to
lmplct Fn9tct

Would the project:

a! Physically divide an established community? LJ tf I
b) Cause significant environmental impact due to a conflict

with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for
the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental

effect?

n l-r n I

Environmenlol Setllng

Land use in the project area is regulated by the City of Folsom through the various plans and ordinances

adopted by the City. These include the City of Folsom General Plan and the City of Folsom Municipal

Code, including the Zoning Code" The project slte is designated in the General Plan as ProfessionalOffice

(pO) which provldes low-intensity business and professional offices that are compatible with higher-

intensity residential uses.

The zoning designation of the site is in the Business and Professional (BP) District. According to the

Folsom City Municipal Code, the BP zoning district Eenerally permits office building and related uses

such as banks, doctor's offices, general business office, and general uses. The purpose of a BP zoning

district is to provide an area for business and professional office and compatible related uses. This

zoning district is intended to promote a harmonious development of buslnes$ and professional office

areas with adjacent commercialor residential development. A senior citiuens residentialcomplex is

allowed in the BP zoning district with approval of a minor Conditional Use Permit.

Entitlement requests for this project include a Planned Development Permit (PD Permit) and a

Conditional Use Permit (CUP). The purpose of the PD Permit is to allow for greater flexibility in the

design of integrated developments than otherwise possible through strict application of land use

regulations. Wfh the PD Pernri| the projecl's site plan, elevations, and overall proiect design would be

evaluated, and specific development standards would be defined. The Conditional Use Permit is

required to allow development of a senior citizens residential complex within the BP zoning district'

Evqluolion of lond Use ond Plonning

a) Physically divide an established community?

Less than significant impact. The proposed project would develop a vacant, undeveloped lot,

surrounded by residential, commercial, and institutional land uses. The construction would not

barricade or reduce access to East Natoma Street, Fargo Way, Cimmaron Circle, or Prison Road. The

community would not be gated, and the main access driveway would be on East Natoma Street, across

from Prison Road. Oak Parkway Trail surrounds the project site and would enter into the southwestern

corner of the site boundary. Within the site boundary, the Oak Parkway Trail would be realigned and

81

Page 663

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom S€nior Apartments ISMND

connected to a concrete sidewalk proposed for the project site. The concrete sidewalk would extend

around the southern parking area and connect to the existing Oak Parkway Trail section located south of

the site boundary. The realilnment would add a pedestrian connection to oak Parkway Trail. Although

the proposed project would realign the Oak Parkway Trall for a pedestrian connection, the existing trail

surrounding the site would not be physically impacted. The proposed project would not divide an

established community and therefore impacts would be less than significant.

b) Cause significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation

adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

No irhpact. The proposed project is consistent with both the General Plan land use and zoning

designations forthe site, as affordable senior housing is identified as a permiRed land use with a minor

conditional use permit. A CUp is a required approvalfor the implementation of the proposed proje*'

The denslty of the proposed project would be 0.32 FAR which is consistent with the maximum 0.5 FAR

densities permitted under the BP zoning district and Po land use designation' The proposed projea

would not conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation and, therefore, would have no impact'

82

Page 664

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Xll. l,llNERAIRESOURCES

Pot ntl.lly
Slgnlflcant

lmpect

LcrsThrn
Sl3nlficant

$rldr
Mhla.tion

lncorporatcd

lesrThln
Slgnlficar* No
lnp.ct lmF Cl

Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral

resource that would be ofvalue to the region and the
residents of the state?

fr

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important
mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local

general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?
L] L] I

Envlronmenlol Setting

The Folsom area regional geologic structure is defined by the predominantly nofthwest to southeast

trending belt of metamorphic rocks and the strike-slip faults that bound them. The structural trend

influences the orientation of the feeder canyons into the main canyons of the North and South Forks of
the American River. This trend is interrupted where the granodiorite plutons outcrop (north and west of
Folsom [ake) and where the metamorphic rocks are blanketed by younger sedimentary layers (west of

Folsom Dam) (Geotechnical Consultants, lnc. 2013). The four primary rock divisions found in the area

are: ultramafic intrusive, metamorphic, granodiorite intrusive, and volcanic mud flows.

The presence of mineral resources within the City has led to a long history of gold extraction, primarily

placer gold. No areas of the City are currently designated for mineral resource extraction. Based on a

review of the Mineral Land Classification of the Folsom 75' Quadrongle, Socramento, El Dorodo, Plocer,

ond Amador Counties, Colifornio (Department of Conservation 1984), no known mineral resources are

mapped in the project area.

Evoluolion of Mlnerql Resources

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region

and the residents ofthe state?

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a

local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?

No impact, The proposed project is not located in a zone of known mineral or aggregate resources, No

active mining operations are present on or near the site. lmplementation of the project would not

interfere w1h the extraction of any known mineral resources. Thus, no impacts would result, and no

mitigation would be necessary for questions a) and b).

83

Page 665

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

xnt. NolsE

Pottntlslly
Sltnncrm

lmprct

lltcfh.n
Sfi{f,crnt

elth
Mhlg!lbn

lncorroratcd

hssiltrn
sltnlftctnt ilo
lmprct lmprct

Would the project result in

a) Generate a substantial temporary or permanent increase

in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the proiect in

excess of standards established in the Folsom General

Plan or noise ordinance?

T1U I nn
b) Generate excessive ground-borne vibration or ground

borne noise levels?
n I Itl

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private

airstrip or an airport land use plan, or where such a plan

has not been adopted, within two miles of a public use

airport or private airstrip, expose people residing or
ft

working in the proJect area to excessive noise.

A Noise and Vibration Assessment was prepared by HELIX on May 5,2022, and is included as Appendix

H. The components of the report are summarized below.

Nolse Metrics

All noise-level and sound-levelvalues presented herein are expressed in terms of decibels (dB), with A

weighting, abbreviated 'dBA," to approximate the hearing sensitivity of humans. Time averaged noise

levels of one hour are expressed by the symbol "Lre" unless a different time period is specified.

Maximum noise levels are expressed by the symbol "LMAX'" Some of the data also may be presented as

octave-band-filtered and/or A-octave band-flltered data, which are a series of sound spectra centered

on each stated frequency, with half of the bandwidth above and half of the bandwidth below, the stated

frequency. These data are typically used for machinery noise analysis and barrier-effectiveness

calculations. The Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) is a 24-hour average, where noise levels

during the evening hours of 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. have an added 5 dBA weighting, and sound levels

durinl the nighttime hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. have an added 10 dBA weighting' This is similar to

the Diy Night sound level (Lon), which is a 24-hour average with an added 10 dBA weighting on the sarne

nighttime hours but no added weighting on the evening hours'

Because decibels are logarithmic units, Spr conoot be added or subtracted through standard arithmetic.

Underthe decibel scale, a doubling ofsound energy corresponds to a 3 dBA increase' ln otherwords,

when two identical sources are each producing sound of the same loudness, the resulting sound level at

a given distance would be 3 dBA higher than from one source under the same conditions. For example,

if one automobile produces an Spr- of 70 dBA when it passes an observer, two cars passing

simultaneously would not produce 140 dBA-rather, they would combine to produce 73 dBA. Under the

decibel scale, three sources ofequal loudness together produce a sound level 5 dBA louderthan one

source.

I n

84

Page 666

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Under controlled conditions in an acoustical laboratory, the trained, healthy human ear is able to

discern 1 dBA changes in sound levels, when exposed to steady, single-frequenry ("pure-tone") signals

in the mid-frequency (1,000 Hertz [Hzl-8,000 Hz) range. ln typical noisy environments, changes in noise

of 1to 2 dBA are generally not perceptible. lt is widely accepted, however, that people begin to detect

sound level increases of 3 dB in typical noisy environments. Further, a 5 dBA increase is generally

perceived as a distinctty noticeabte increase, and a 10 dBA increase is generally perceived as a doubling

of loudness,

Vibrollon Mettlcs

Groundborne vibration consists of rapidly fluctuating motions or utaves transmitted through the ground

with an average motion of zero. Sources of groundborne vibrations include natural phenomena and

anthropogenic causes {e.g., explosions, machinery, traffic, trains, construction equipment}. Vibration

sources rnay be continuous (e.g., factory machinery) or transient {e.g., explosions}. Peak particle velocity

(PPV) is commonly used to quantify vibration amplitude. The PPV, with units of lnches per second

{inlsec}, is defined as the maximum instantaneous positive or negative peak of the vibration wave'

Decibels are also used cornpress the range of numbers required ts describe vibration. Vlbration velocity

level {LV) with units of VdB are commonly used in evaluating human reactions to vibrations.

Envlronmentql Setllng

Existing Noise Environment

The project site is currently vacant and undeveloped. Surrounding land uses include Folsom State Prison

to the north; single-family residences to the northeas$ Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) powerlines and a

bicycle trailto the south; single- and multi-family residences to the south; and office space and the City

of Folsom Police Department to the west. Noise sources in the project vicinity are dominated by traffic

noise from East Natoma Street. Additional noise sources in the area include typical suburban residential

noise (e.g., landscape maintenance equipment; building heating, ventilation, and air conditioning

(HVAC) systems; dogs) and occasional noise from operation of the Folsom State prison, approximately

2,500-ft (O.S-mile)to the north.

Noise Sensitive land Uses

Noise-sensitive land uses tNSLUs) are land uses that may be subject to stress andlor interference from

excessive noise, including residences, hospitals, schools, hotels, resorts, libraries, sensitive wildlife

habitat, or similar facilities where quiet is an important attribute of the environment, Noise receptors

(receiverslare individual locations that may be affected by noise. The closest existing NSLUs to the

prolect site are five single-farnily resirlences adjacent to the proiect's northeast property line. Addftional

single-family and multi-family residence are located approximately 120'ft south of the project site. The

closest school to the project slte is the Ssini John's Notre Dame Schoolapproximately 320-ft to the

southeast. The closest hospital to the project site is the Vibra Hospital of Sacramento, approximately

350-ft to the south.

Noise Survey

A site visit/noise survey was on conducted on March 29,2022, which included two short-term

(10 minute) ambient noise measurements. Measurement M1 was conducted on the northeast side of

85

Page 667

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

the project site approximately 150-ft from the residences along Cimmaron Drive and approximately 300-

ft from East Natoma Street. Measurement M2 was conducted the northwest side of the project site

approximately 40-ft from East Natoma Street and approximately 300-ft northeast of the Folsom Prison

Road intersection. Traffic counts were conducted during measurement M2. The noise measurement

survey notes are included as Attachrnenf A to this report. The noise rnetsurement locations are shown

on Figure 2 in Appendix H. The measured noise levels are shown on Table 18.

Table 18. Noise Measurement Results

M1
Date March 2022

Time 7:57 m.-2:47 m.

Location Northeast side of the project site, approximately 150 feet from resi dences

on Cimmaron Drive

Noise Level 56.7 dBA Lr:a

Notes Noise primarily from vehicular traffic on East Natoma Street and

residential maintenance

Date March 2022

Time 2:10 .-2t2Q
Location Northwest side of the project site, approximate 40 feet from East Natoma

Street.

Noise Level 65.5 dBA Leq

Notes Noise primarily from traffic on East Natoma Street' Traffic count: l7Acars,

1 medium truck.

Regulotory Fromework

City of Folsom General Plan Noise Element

The Safety and Noise Element of the City of Folsom General Plan regulates noise emissions from public

roadway traffic on new development of residential or other noise sensitive land uses. Policy SN 6.1.2

and Table SN-1 from the General Plan provide noise compatibility standards for land uses. For multi-

family housing, noise due to traffic on pubtic roadways, railroad line operations, and aircraft shall be

reduced to or below 65 CNEL for outdoor activity areas and reduced to or below 45 CNEL for interior use

areas. For other land uses that may be affected by project-generated traffic noise, the exterior noise

compatibility limit is: 50 CNEL for single-fimily residential uses and 70 CNEL for commercial uses (City

zlzrbl.

policy sN 6.1.g requireg construction proiectr and new development anticipated to generate a

significant amount of vibration to ensure acceptable interior vibration levels at nearby vlbtation-

sensitive uses based on FederalTransit Administration criteria. Table $N-3 from the General Plan

provides vibration impact criteria. For construction with infrequent vibration events (deffned as fewer

than 30 vibration events of the same source per day), impacts would be significant if nearby residences

are subject to ground borne vibrations in excess of 80 vdB (city 2021b).

M2

85

Page 668

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

City of Folsom MunicipalCode

For stationary noise sources, the City has adopted a Noise Ordinance as Section 8.42 of the City

Municipal Code (City 1993). The Noise Ordinance establishes hourly noise level performance standards

that are most commonly quantified in terms of the one-hour average noise level {Lsq). Using the limits

specified in Section 8.42.A40 of the Noise Ordinance, noise levels generated on the project site (other

than noise from HVAC systems) for 30 or more minutes in any hour would be significant if they exceed

S0 dBA Leq from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and 45 dBA Lrqfrom 10:00 p.m' to 7:00 a.m., measured at

off-site residential property boundaries. Section 8.42.060 exempts construction noise from these

standards provided that construction does not occur before 7:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m. on weekdays, or

before 8:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m. on Saturday or Sunday. Noise from the project's HVAC would be

significant if exterior noise levels exceed 50 dBA, per Section 8.42.A7O of the City Municipal Code

measured at off-site residential property boundaries'

Methodology ond AssumPilons

Noise Modeling Software

project construction noise was analyzed using the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) Roadway

Construction Noise Model tIRCNMl; USDOT 2008), which utilizes estimates of sound levels from

standard construction equipment'

Modeling of the exterior noise environment for this report was accomplished using the Computer Aided

Noise Abatement (CadnaA) model versio n 2O21. Traffic noise was evaluated within CadnaA using the

U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Traffic Noise Model (TNM)

version 2.5 (USDOT 2004). The noise models used in this analysis were developed from the site plan

provided by the project architect. lnput variables included building mechanicalequipment reference

noise levels, road alignment, lane configuration, projected traffic volumes, estimated truck composition

percentages, and vehicle sPeeds

Off-Site Traffic Noise

The one-hour Lrq traffic noise level is calculated utilizing peak-hour traffic. The model-calculated one-

hour Leo noise output is the equivalent to the CNEL (Caltrans 2009). The off-site traffic noise modeling

includes does not account buildings, structures or terrain. The project Transportation lmpact Study (TlS)

included an intersection analysis with data for calculation of peak hour traffic volumes on streets in the

project vicinity (T. Kear 2022). Existing traffic for East Natoma Street was estimated from intersection

turning counts included in the TlS. The PM peak hour fiaffic volumes used in the analysis is shown in

Table 19. The noise modeling input and output are included in Appendlx H. Traffic was assurned to be

comprised of a typical mix of vehicles for suburban streets in California: 95 percent cars and light trucks;

3 percent medium trucks and buses; and 1" percent heavytrucks.

Table 19. PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

+

East Natoma Street - Street to Folsom Prison Road

East Natoma Street - Folsom Prison Road to Cimmaron Circle

Crlrdnr(20l2l Exlctln8 I

1,060

943

Source: T. Keat 2022

87

969

Page 669

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning

The project would use one residential-sized HVAC units for each apartment, with the air conditioning

condenser located on the rooftop of the building. The condensers would be located behind a parapet

wall of equal or greater height to the HVAC unit, which would provide substantial noise attenuation.

Specific detaits on planned HVAC units were not available at the time of this analysis. A typical system

for apartments in multi-story buildings would be a Carrier model 38BRC-O24-34 2-ton split system for,

which has a sound rating of 76 dBA SwL (Carrier 2005). The manufacturer's noise data for the HVAC units

is provided below in Table 20.

Table 20. HVAC Condenser Noise Data (SWt dBAl

Overall llolse tevel

76.0

Source: Carrier 2005

Swr = sound power level; Hz = Hertz; kHz = kilohertz

Slondords of Signillconce

Based on Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, implementation of the project would result in a significant

adverse impact if it would:

t. Generate a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity

of the project in excess of standards established in the City of Folsom General Plan or noise

ordinance;

Z. Generate excessive ground-borne vibration or ground borne noise levels; or

3, For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan, or where

such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public use airport or private airstrip,

expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise.

per the C1y General Plan, impacts related to the generation of noise on the project site would be

significant if noise levels generated by the project site HVAC systems would be significant if it would

exceed 50 dBA Lrq residential property boundaries. For traffic-related noise, impacts would be

considered significant if the project would cause ambient noise levels at nearby NSLUs to exceed the

noise compatibility limits defined in the City General Plan or would increase noise levels by 1.5 CNEL or

more in areas with exiting ambient noise levels exceeding the noise compatibility limits.

ln accordance with the City Municipal Code, any noise from project construction activity would be

considered significant for construction occurring before 7:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m. on weekdays, or

before 8:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m' on Saturday or Sunday.

ln accordance with the City General Plan, excessive ground-borne vibration would occur if construction-

related ground-borne vibration exceeds 80 VdB at nearby residential properties'

2 kHz 4lHz 8 kHz5{t0Hr 1 kHr125 Hz 250llr
51.5 58.558,0 70.0 67.O55.5 62.5

88

Page 670

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom senior Apartments ISMND

Evoluolion of Nolse

al Generote o substontial temporory or permanent increase in amblent noise levels in the vicinity ol the

project in excess of standards established in the Falsom General Plon or noise ordinonce?

Less than significant with mitigation

Construction Noise

The nearest NSLUs to the project site area are single-family residences approximately adjacent to the

project's northeast property line. HeaW earthmoving equipment would have the potentialto be as close

as 15-ft from the residential property line, including rubber-tired dozers and graders. Over the course of
one hour, it is anticipated that the average distance of heavy earthmoving equipment from residential

property lines would be approximately 50-ft. Modeling shows that the combined one-hour noise from a

dozer and grader would result in 82J dBA Leo at the closest residential property. Because construction

equipment would be mobile as it moves across the project site, the noise level experienced by the

neighboring uses would vary throughout the day. The modeling output for the anticipated construction

equipment is included in Attachment B, within Appendix H.

According to the City Code Section 8.42.060, noise sources associated with construction of the project

which are conducted between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.. on Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,

Thursday, Friday, and Saturday, and between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on Sunday, are exempt from the

City noise standard (City 1993). Nighttime construction noise is not anticipated for the project. However,

nighttime construction is not exempt from the City Noise Ordinance and would exceed the nighttime

standard of 45 dBA if it were to occur, resulting in a potentially significant noise irnpact. Mitigation

measure NOI-01would prohibit construction activities outside the above daytime hours.

Operation Noise

Aff-Site Traffic Noise

As described above, modeling of the exterior noise environment for this report was accomplished using

CadnaA and the TNM. According to the TlS, the project is expected to generate approximately 504 daily

trips and 41 trips during the PM peak hour (T. Kear 20221. Fulure fiaffic noise levels presented in this

analysis are based on traffic volumes (as described above) for the existing (2022) and existing plus

project scenarios. The modeling does not account for intervening terrain or structures (e,9., sound walls,

buildings).

The calculated off-site traffic noise levels are shown in Table 2!, Off-Site Trolfic Noise Levels.ln typical

outdoor environments, a 3 dBA increase in ambient noise level is considered just perceptible and a

5 dBA increase is considered distinctly perceptible. ln areas where existing or'future ambient noise

exceeds the land use compatibility standards, an individual project's contribution to increases in

ambient noise level could be considered significant if it exceeds 1,5 dBA. Because areas along the
analyzed road segments already exceed the residential land use noise compatibility standard listed in

the City General Plan (60 CNEL for low density residential; 65 CNEL for multi-family residential), this

analysis uses a threshold of a 1.5 CNEL increase to determine significance of the impact.

As shown in Table 21, the maximum change in CNEL as a result of project-generated traffic would be

0.1 CNEL, a change in ambient noise level that is lower than the threshold and is not discernable.

89

Page 671

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Therefore, impacts related to the project generating a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise

levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of General Plan standards from project-generated traffic

would be less than significant.

Table 21. Off-Site Traffic Noise Levels

f,oadwayScgment Change ln CNEL

East Natoma Street - Fargo Street to 0.1
Folsom Prison Road

East Natoma Street - Folsom Prison Road 0.1
to Cimmaron Circle

Source: TNM version 2,5

Heating, Ventilatian, ond Air Conditioning Noise

The primary potential noise sources on the project site would be roof-top mounted HVAC systems, as

described in the Methodology and Assumptions section, above. HVAC systems were analyzed using the

CadnaA software, assuming 140 condenser units (one per apartment plus additional for common areas)

as shown on the project roof plan. Modeling assumed one hour of continuous operation of all

equipment. Modeled noise levels were analyzed at receivers placed at the property line of nearby NSLUs

(see Figure 2 for NSLU areas) at a height of S-ft above the ground. The modeled L-hour (L6q) noise level

at the adjacent property lines is compared with the City standard in Table 22, Operational HVAC Noise-

As shown in Table 22, noise from the project's HVAC systems would not exceed the City's noise

ordinance standard of 50 dBA Leq, and impacts from project HVAC noise would be less than significant'

Table 22. Operational HVAC Noise

Rec€ptor
Exceed

Standadr?

Source: CadnaA; City Noise Ordinance Sections 8'42.O5O

Off-site Traffic Noise

Modeling of the exterior noise environment on the project site was accomplished using the CadnaA

model and the road segment traffic volumes, as described above'

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

R1

R2

R3

R4

R5

R6

No

No

R7

s1

H1

Exldng 2021

{cilEu
Exlsrlng + Protsct

(ctrtEtl

63.563.4

67,667.5

inrAc
Standard
{dB lml

Modeled
Irlobe ldBA L:qlDescrlptlon

s028.5residence
5029,7residence

29.7 50residence
28.5 50Sinele-familv residence
26.2 s0Sinele-familv residence
28.8 50Multi-familv residence

5028.6Sinele-familv residence
20.3 50School

5024.5Hosoital

90

Page 672

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Exterior Noise

As discussed above, the City General Plan Safety and Noise Element has established an exterior noise

standard of 65 CNEL for multi-famif residential outdoor activity areas, defined as "[...] the patios or

common areas where people generally congregate for multifamily development" (City 2021b). The

patio/outdoor kitchenlbocce ball and seatlng areas on the west side of the project building would be

the outdoor activity areas for the project. The modellng shows ground level noise for the outdoor

common areas would range from approximately 55.5 CNEI to 58,6 CNEL, This noise levelwould not

exceed the C1y exterior noise standard of 65 CNEL and the impact would be less than significant'

lnterior Noise

Standard building design and construction using current building codes provides approximately 20 dBA

of exterior to interior noise reduction with the windows and doors closed. The noise at the exterior

facades for the project end units facing East Natoma Street was modeled for apartments on the first

through third floors, and is shown in Table 23.

Table 23. Building Exterior Noise Levels

Floor west Arm (CNELI

62.7

Second 62.5

Third 62,0

Source: CadnaA version 2021

Buildings with exterior nolse levels exceeding 65 dBA could result in interior noise levels in excess of the

City General Plan Safety and Noise Element standard of 45 CNEL. Noise levels for the end unit

apartments on the pmject building north arm would exceed 65 CNEt. Therefore, interior noise levels

were calculated based on the architectural plans for the project. The calculation sheets are included in

Attachment B. The calculations show, with construction meeting minimum code requirements, interior

noise levels would not exceed the City standard of 45 CNEI. and the impact would be less than

significant.

lmpact Conclusion

lf project cons$uction activities were to occur outside the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m' Monday

through Friday and 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturday, construction noise generated by the project

would not be exempt for the City's noise ordinance nighttime exterior standard of 45 dBA, and the

impact would be potentially significant. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-01would restrict

construction hours.

The addition of permanent project-generated traffic vicinity on roadways would not result in a

discernable increase in ambient noise levels. The project would not expose future project residents to

noise levels that exceed compatibility guidelines in the General Plan.

First

ilorthArm lcilEtf

66.3
66.0
6s.7

91

Page 673

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Long-term operation of project would not result in noise levels from an-site sources, including HVAC

systems, exceeding the City noise ordinance standards, measured at the property line of the closest

NSLUs to the prorect site.

Therefore, with implementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-01, the proieet would not generate a

substantialtemporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinlty of the proiect in

excess of standards established in the Folsom General Plan or noise ordinance and the impact would be

less than significant.

Mitigation Measure NOI-01: Construction Hours/Scheduling

r The City shall specify on allgrading; and construction permits that construction activities for all

phases of construction, including servlcing of construction equipment shall only be permitted

duringthe hours af 7:A}a.rn. and 6:OAp.m, Mondaythrough Fridayand between 8:00a'm'to

5r00 p.m. on Sa'turdays. Construction shall be prohibited on Sundays and on all holidays.

Delpery of materials or equipment to the site and truck traffic coming to and from the site shall

be restricted to the same construction hours specified above.

b) Generation ol excessive ground-borne vibration or ground borne noise levels?

Less than significant with mitigation.

An on-site source of vibration during project construction would be a vibratory roller. A vibratory roller

would primarily be used to achieve soil compaction as part of the foundation and paving construction,

and for aggregate and asphatt compaction as part of project drirreway and parking lot constructionl.

Vibratory rollers could be used within approximately 55-ft of the single-family residences to the

northwest. A large vibratory roller creates approximately 0.2L in/sec PPV at a distance of 25-ft or

94 VdB {Caltrans 2O2O}, At a distance of 55-ft, a vibratory roller would create a PPV of 0.073 in/sec, or 85

VdB.x This would exceed the City General Plan resldentialstandard of 80 VdB, and the impact would be

potentially significant. Once operational, the project would not be a source of groundborne vibrations. A

large vibratory roller would result in approximately 80 VdB or Sreater at distances less than 120-ft'

Mitigation measure NOl.02 would require the contactor demonstrate that the rollers to be used on the

project site would produce less than 80 VdB at nearby occupied residences, or use vibratory rollers in

static mode only (no vibrations) when operated within 120-ft of occupied residences. Therefore, with

implernentation of Mitigation Measure NOI-02, the project would not generate excessive ground-borne

vibration levels and the impact would be less than significant'

Mitigatlon Measure NOI{2: Vibratory Roller

. The applicant or designated contractor shall provide evidence to the City (via testing data or

calculations from a qualified expert), demons*ating that vibratory rollers to be used on the

proje* site would produce less than S0 VdB at nearby occupied residences, or allvibratory

rollers shall be used in static mode only (no vibrations) when operating within 120'ft of an

occupied residence. The City shallspecify r,ibratory roller model, size, or operating mode

restrictions on all demolition, grading, and construction permits'

1 Equipment ppV = Reference pPV t (25/D)"{in/sec), where Reference PPV is PPV at 25 feet, D is distance from equipment to

the receptor in feet, and n= 1.1 (the value related to the attenuation rate through the ground); formula from Caltrans 2020'

vdB = 20 t Log(PPV / 4 /L0"61.

92

Page 674

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

c) For o project locsted wtthln the vicinity af o prlvate alrctrip or an alrport land use plan, or where such

a plon has not been adopted, within wa miles of a public use si(port or private olrstrlp, a(Nse
peopte residing or working in the proiect orea to sxcessive notse'

The closest airports to the project site are the Cameron Park Airport, approximately 9-miles to the east,

and Mather Airport, approximately 10.7-miles to the southwest. The project site is not located within

the influence area or noise contours for the Cameron Park Airport (El Dorado County 2012). The project

site is located within the influence area and is identified as a review area in the Mather Airport Land Use

Compatibility Plan {ALUCP), The proJect site is beneath the approach paths for runways 22 Left and

22 Right, however, the project site is not with the 60 dBA noise contour for the airport {sacramento
County Association of Governments 2020). Therefore, although the proiect slte is sublect to overflight

by aircraft approaching and departing Mather Airport, residents of the proposed proiect or people

working in the project area would not be exposed to excessive levels of noise due to aircraft or airport

operations, and the impact would be less than significant'

93

Page 675

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XIV. POPUTATION AND HOUSING

Potcnftlly
Slgnl0crnt

lmpt3t

[l$fhrr
58nlic.nt

s'llh
ttlldt tlon

lncorporatcd

lccsThan
Sltdficent tto
lmpa.t |tnp.ct

Would the project:

a) lnduce substantial unplanned population growth in an

area, either directly {for example, by proposing new

homes and businesses) or indirectly {for example, through

extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

u I U

b) Displace substantial numbers of existlng people or
housing, necessitating the construction of replacement

housing elsewhere?

I tl

Environmentol Setting

Folsom's estimated population in 2019 was 81,328 people (U.S. Census Bureau 2019). The population is

projected to increase to 97,485 by 2035 (City of Folsom 2018a). The proposed project would construct

136 affordable one- and two-bedroom senior apartment units within an estimated 109,608-sf building.

Evoluolion of Populolion qnd Houslng

a) lnduce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by

proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or

other infrastructure)?

Less than significant impact. lmplementation of the proposed project would result in the construction

of 13G affordable one- and two-bedroom units for seniors aged 60 and older. Existing backbone

infrastructure and roads in the area would not need to be expanded or extended as a result ofthe
project. A signal would need to be added to the existing stoplight at the intersection of East Natoma

Street and Prison Road for the proposed main access driveway.

The proposed project would accommodate the demand for housing and would not induce substantial

growth in the City of Folsom. Although it is anticipated that the majority of individuals relocating to the

apartment community would be from the area, it is possible that the apartment units could draw in

between 135 to 358 new residents (assuming 2.63 people per unit, based on projected household size in

2035 [City of Folsom 20].Sal). The projected household size is for single family homes, which is larger

than the predicted unit size of a senior housing complex proposed forthe project.The project would be

restricted to residents 60 years and older and units would be one- or two- bedroom. The population

generated by the project is within the projected incfease in population from planned growth as

projected in the City's Housing Element. Therefore, impacts from proiect implernentation would be less

than significant, and no mitigation would be required.

94

Page 676

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senlor Agartments ISMND

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of
replacement houslng elsewhere?

No lmpact. The project site is currently vacant. Therefore, there would be no lmpact on displacement of
existing peoirle or housing.

95

Page 677

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XV. PUBTIC SERVICES

Potcntl.lly
9lgnlflcrnt

lmpact

tcsc Than
Sljnlf,crnt

wldt
Mltl3rllon

lncorgoratcd

lesslhan
$gnlic.nt l[o
lmpact lmp.ct

Would the pro.iect result in substantlal adverse physical

impacts associated with the provision of new or physically

altered governmental facilities, need for new or physicallY

altered governmentaf facilities. the con$tructaon of which

coulcl cause significant environmental impacts, in order to
maintain acceptable service rstios, responie tirnes or ather
performance objectives for any of the public seryices:

a) Fire protection? {:l n I
b) Police protection? n I T
c) Schools? r-1 n n
d) Parks? D tr tr
e) Other public facilities? n I LI

Environmenlol Setling

The proposed project is in an area currently served hy urban levels of all utilities and services, Public

services provided by the City of Folsom in the project area include fire, police, school, library, and park

services. The site is served by all public utilities including domestic water, wastewater treatment, and

storm water utilities.

The City of Folsom Fire Department provides fire protection services. There are five fire stations

providing fire/rescue and emergency medical services within the City of Folsom. Staiion 38 is nearest to
the project site and is located at 1300 Blue Ravine Road, approximately 2.5-miles southeast of the

project site. The Fire Department responds to over 6,000 requests for service annually with an average

of 16.4 per day (City of Folsom 201Sb). The City of Folsom Police Department is located at 46 Natoma

Street, approximately 1-mile southwest of the project site'

The proiect site is located within the Folsom Cordova Unified School District and is within the

attendance area for St. John's Notre Dame School, Blanche Sprentz Ilementary School, Folsom Middle

School, and Folsom Lake High School. There are several park: near the project site, including the Folsom

City Lions Park, Granite Mini Park, Castle Park, Elvie Perazzo Briggs Park, and Econome Family Park.

The Sacramento Municipal Utilities District (SMUD) would supply electricity to the project site. Pacific

Gas & Electric {PG&E} provides naturalgas to the area and would provide naturalgas to the project site.

The City of Folsorn has a program of maintaining and upgrading existing utility and public services within

the City. Sinnilarly, all private utilities maintain and upgrade their systems as necessary for public

convenience and necessitV, and as technology changes.

96

Page 678

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Evoluolion of Publlc Servlces

a) Fire protection?

Less than significant impact. On-site water for fire services would be privately owned and managed but

would connect to the City of Folsom's water supply in Zone 3 Cimmaron Pressure Zone. The project

would include fire hydrants, exterior Fire Department Connection assemblies, and fire riser rooms.

Emergenry vehicle access would be maintained on the site to meet the Fire Department standards for

fire truck maneuvering, location of fire truck to fight a fire, rescue access to the units, and fire hose

access to all sides of the building. The fire lane would be 27-ft minimum, wlth an inner turning radius of

25-ft and an outer turning radius of 50-ft. All curbs adjacent to the fire lane would be painted red for

emergency fire services. The proposed project would not significantly increase fire service demands or

render the current service levelto be inadequate, and impacts would be less than significant'

b) Police Protection? T

Less than significant impact. The project site is within an urbanized area of Folsom and would increase

the residential population requiring police protection services. The project would be required to pay the

City's Capital lmprovement New Construc(ion Fee (Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 3, Title 3.80) to fund

police services and facllities. The project includes features that reduce opportunities for crime such as

adequate lighting on East Natoma Street, the proposed building, and parking areas (refer to 8.0 l.

Aesthetics for more detail on liehting). Additionally, there would be on-site management services,

visibility of common areas from adjacent units, and no dead-end low-visibility areas' Potential impacts

from implementation of the proposed project woutd therefore be less than significant.

c) Schools?

Less than significant impact. The proposed project is age-restricted to residents aged 60 years and older

and would not generate students in grades K-12 or create demand for schoolfacilities, Pursuant to

Government Section 55995.1, the project would be required to pay development impact fees to the

Folsom Cordova Unified School District. No new schoolfacilities would be necessary to serve the

proposed project. Potential impacts from implementation of the proposed project would be less than

significant.

d) Parks?

Less than significant impact. The 136-unit project would accommodate residents who would create

additional demand for park and recreation facilities. The nearest park is Folsom City Lions Park, 403

Stafford Street, approximately O.S-miles from the project site. Since the park is not adjacent to the

progosed aparlment carnmunity. a substantial increase in usage of the park is not anticipated. The

proposed project would lnclude on-site indoor and outdoor recreational amenities to rcrve residents

that would reduce the need for park dennand. The project would be required to pay park fees to

mitigate the project's irnpact on existing park facilities and fund new park and rereation facilities. The

potential impacts from the proposed project would be less than significant.

el Other Facilities?

Less than significant impact. The project site is within the urban area of Folsom served by adequate

police, fire, and emergency services. The senior housing apartment complex would include on-site

97

Page 679

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senlor Apartments ISMND

recreational amenities to serve resldents. Construction and operatlon of the proposed proiect would not

requlre the construction or expansion of parks and other public facilitles or result in the degradation of
those facilities. Potential impacts would be less than slgniflcant, and mitigation would not be necessary.

98

Page 680

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apadments ISMND

XVI. RECREATION

Potcntlrlly
Sllnlfrant

lmprct

tcrelh:n
tlgnlicrnt

utldt
Mlt[tlloa

lncorpotltcd

lcrslhrn
Sllnlfrclnt llo
lnpsct finpect

Would the projectr

a) lncrease the use of existing neighborhood and regional

parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial

physical deterioration of the facitity would occur or be

accelerated?

t_l lf

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or reguire

the construction or expansion of recreational facilities

which might have an adverse physical effect on the

environment?

tr fl r n

Envlronmentol Setllng

The Folsom Parks and Recreation Department provides and maintains a full range of recreational

activities and park facilities for the community. There are several recreational amenities and parks near

the project site, including the Johnny Cash RecreationalTrail and Oak Parkway Trail, Folsom City Lion's

Park, Granite Mini Park, Castle Park, Elvie Perazzo Briggs Park, and Econome Family Park.

Evoluqlion of Recreolion

a) lncrease the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such

that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

Less than significant impact. Some additional use of community parks and trails is anticipated, however,

on-site recreational facilities at the apartment complex would reduce park and trail demand,

lmplementation of the proposed project would enhance existing and planned recreation facilities in the

project area. The project would be requlred to pay park fees to mitigate the project's impact on existing

park facilities and fund new park and recreation facilities. Potential lmpacts to existing parks would be

less than significant.

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of

recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

Less than significant impact. The proposed project would result in a 2,500-sf community center on the

ground floor of the proposed building. Additional amenities on the project site would include outdoot

seating and dining areas, perimeter walkways, a boece ball court, bike racks, picnic tables with

umbrellas, outdoor barbeques/ kitchens, and 6-ft benches. On-site facilities and existing neighborhood

parks are antlcipated to adequately serve the recreation demands of proJect residents' The amenities

associated with the prOposed project are analyzed in this ls/MND. Potential impacts on recreational

facilities would be less than significant'

99

Page 681

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XVII. IRANSPORTAIION

Potendrlly
Sltnlfrclnt

lmptct

hee fftrn
tEnlflcent

wldr
Mltl&don

lncorpo]!ted

lerrThen
$lnmcsil No
ldpact lmpact

Would the project:

a) Conflict with a progtam plan, ordinance or policy

addressing the circulation system, including tlansit,
roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

n n I il

b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA

Guidelines section 15064,3, subdivision {b)?
n n I

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design

feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or

incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

{:l

d) Result in inadequate emergency access? I

The discussion below is based on a Transportation lmpact Study (TlS) prepared by T. Kear Transportation

Planning & Management, lnc. (T. Kear 2O22l.The report is included in Appendix l.

Environmentol Setling

Study Scenarios

Four scenarios were identified for inclusion in this TIS through consultation with City staff' These study

scenarios were used to evaluate Project impacts relevant to General Plan Policy M4'1'3 relative to level

of service. This study determines the weekday AM peak-hour, PM peak-hour, and Sunday peak-hour

level-of-service at study intersections under the following scenarios:

r Existing 2022 without Project condition

r Existing 2022 with Project condition

Analysis of the existing condition reflects the traffic volumes and roadway geometry at the time the

study began. This scenario quantifies performance measures for the existing condition and serves as a

known reference point for those familiar with the study area. These scenarios, with and without the

project, identify Project related impacts anticipated to occur if the Project opened in 2020'

Roodwoy Syslem

Brief descriptions of the key roadways serving the project site are provided below:

r Natoma St/East Natoma St is a two-lane minor arterial connecting frorn Folsom Blvd, past

Folsom City Hall, and connecting through Green Valley Rd and onto Empire Ranch Rd. From

Folsom Blvd to Fargo Way, just east of City Hall, there are sidewalks, curb, and gutter with

striped class 2 bike lanes. From Fargo Way to the east, fronting the Project site and Folsom State

prison, there are dirt shoutders without sidewalks until Folsom Crossing Rd, where East Natoma

100

Page 682

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom senior Apartments IsMND

Street becomes a four-lane arterial with sidewalk, curb, Sutter, and striped class 2 bike lanes to

Empire Ranch Rd. At Coloma Street, near City Hall, Natoma 5t caries about 11.000 vehicles per

day, A volume which drops to about 10,000 vehicles per day near the Project $ite.

prison Rd is a two-lane north-south access road from East Natoma St to Folsom State Prison. lt
has unpaved shoulders without bike lanes or sidewalks. Prison Road is signed to prohibit

stopping or turning within the prison's property.

Sludy lnlerseclions

The traffic impact study analyzed the following three study intersections:

1) East Natoma St/ Prison Road: Signal

2't East Natoma Street/ Eastern Project Driveway: Side-Street-Stop-Control{SSSC)

Level ol Servlcc MethodologY

Level of service (LOS) is a qualitative indication of the level of delay and congestion experienced by

motorists using an intersection. LOS are designated by the letters A through F, with A being the best

conditions and F being the worst (high delay and congestion). Calculation methodologies, measures of
performance, and thresholds for each letter grade differ for road segments, signalized intersections, and

unsignalized intersections.

Based on guidance from City staff, the following procedures described below for intersection traffic

operations analysis were utilized for this TIS'

lntersection Troffic Operations Anolysis

Siqnalized lnterseetiqn{

The methodology from the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) 6th Edition2, are used to analyze signalized

intersections. LOS can be characterized forthe entire intersection, each approach, or by lane 8roup.

Control delay alone (the weighted average delay for all vehicles entering the intersection) is used to

characterize LOS for the entire intersection or an approach. Control delay and volume to capacity ratio

are used to characterize level-of-service for lane groups. The average delay criteria used to determine

the LOS at signatized intersections is presented in Table 24. The HCM 2010 methodology is used as the

primary method. HCM 2000 methods are only utilized where the signal phasing is incompatible with

HCM 2010 methods.

Table 24. Level-of$ervice Criteria for Signalized lntersections

a

level -of-
Servlce Desc?iption

Average Delayl
{Sec.lVehicle.}

A Very Low Delay: This level-of-service occurs when progression is extremely S 10,0

favorable, and most vehicles arrive during a green phase. Most vehicles do

not stoo at all.

2 Transportation Research Board (2015) Highway Capacity Manual, Washington, D.C'

101

Page 683

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintaBe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

B Minimal Delays; This level-of-service generally occurs with goodprogression, 10.1-20.0

short cycle lengths, or both. More vehicles stop than at LOS A, causing higher

levels of delav

c Acceptable Delay; Delay increases due to only fair progression, longer cycle

lengths, or both. lndividual cycle failures {to service oll woiting veil'cles} may

begin to appear at this level of service, The number of vehicles stopping is

20.1-3s.0

significant, thoueh manv still eass through the intersection without stoooins.

D Approaching Unstable/Tolerable Delays: The influence of congestion

becomes more noticeable. Longer delays may result from some combination

of unfavorable progression, long cycle lengths, or high v/c ratios, Many

vehicles stop, and the proportion of vehicles not stopping declines' lndividual

35.1-55.0

cycle failures are not,ceable.

E Unstable Operation/Significant Delays: This is considered by many agencies

the upper limit of acceptable delays. These high delay values generally

indicate poor progression, long cycle lengths, and high v/c ratios' lndividual

55.1-80.0

cycle failures are frequent occurrences.

F Excessive Delays: This level, considered to be unacceptable to most drivers,

often occurs with oversaturation {i.e., when arrival flow rates exceed the

capacity of the intersection). lt may also occur at high v/c ratios below 1.00

with many individual cycle failures, Poor progression and long cycle lengths

may also contribute to such delay levels.

> 80.0
or v/c >1.0

Note l: Weighted average of delay on all approaches. This is the measure used by the Highway Capacity

Manual to determine level-of-service. Any movement with a volume-to-capacity ratio (v/c)

greaterthan 1.0 is considered to be level-of-service F.

Source: Transportation Research Board (2016) Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition, Washington D.C.

Unsisna lized lnterssgtiQls

The methodology from HCM 6th Edition is used for the analysis of unsignalized intersections. At an

unsignalized intersection, most of the main street traffic is un-delayed and, by definition, have

acceptable conditions. The maln street left-turn movements and the minor street movementi are all

susceptible to delay of varying degrees. Generally, the higher the rnain streel traffic volurnes, the higher

the delay for the minor movements. Separate methods are utilized for Two-Way Stop-Controlted (TWSC)

intersections and All-Way Stop-Controlled (AWSC) intersections.

a TWSC: The methodology for analysis of two-way stop-controlled intersections calculates an

average total delay per vehicle for each minor street movement and for the major street left-

turn movements, based on the availability of adequate gaps in the main street through traffic. A

LOS designation is assigned to individual movements or combinations of movements (in the case

of shared lanes) based upon delay, it is not defined for the intersection as a whole. Unsignalized

intersection LOS is for each movement {or group of movements} based upon the respective

average delay per vehicle presents the average delay criteria used to determine the LOS at

TWSC and AWSC intersections.

AWSC: At all-way stop-controlled intersections, the LOS is determined by the weighted average

delay for allvehicles entering the intersection. The methodologies for these types of

intersections calculate a single wei8hted average delay and LOS for the intersection as a whole.

The average delay criteria used to determine the LOS at all-way stop intersections is the same as

a

LOz

Page 684

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

that presented in Table 25. LOS for specific movements can also be determined based on the

TWSC methodology.

It is not unusual for some of the minor street movements at unsignalized intersections to have LOS D, E,

or F conditions while the major street movements have LOS A, B, or C conditions. ln such a case, the

minor street traffic experiences delays that can be substantial for individual minor street vehicles, but

the majority of vehicles using the intersection have very little delay. Usually in such cases, the minor

street traffic volumes are relatively low, lf the minor street volume is large enough, improvements to

reduce the minor street delay may be justified, such as channelization, widening, or signalization'

Table 25. level-of-Seruice Criteria for Unsignalized lntersections

Level of Descriptlon
Service
(ros)

Tr,5g'
Average Delay
by Movement

(seconds I vehicle)

al rsg'
lnte.section Wide

Average Delay
(seconds / vehlcle)

A Little or no delav <10 <10

B Short traffic delav >10and<15 >10and<15

c Average traffic delays >15and<25 >15and<25

D Long traffic delavs >25and<35 >25and<35

E Very long traffic delavs >35and<50 >35and<50

F Extreme delays potentially affecting other
traffic movements in the intersection

> 50 (or, v/c >1,0) >50

Note 1: Two-Way Stop-Control (TWSC) level-of-service is ca lculated separately for each minor street

movement (or shared movement) as well as major street left turns using these criteria. Any

movement with a volume to capacity ratio (v/c) greater than 1,0 is considered to be level-of-

service F.

Note 2: All-Way Stop-Control (AWSC) assessment of level-of-service at the approach and intersection

levels is based solely on control delay.

Source: Transportation Research Board (2016) Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition, Washington D.C.

Generol Plon Thresholds

Level af Service

Consistency with General Plan LOS policies for the proposed project were determined based on the

methods described above and identified as either "conforming" or "non-conforming". General Plan

Policy M 4.1.3 addresses LOS:

Strive to achleve at teast traJfic Level of Service "D" (ar better) for local streets and

roodwoys thrcughout the city. ln designing tronsportation improvements, the City will
prioritize use of smart technolagies and innovotive solutions thot moximize efficiencies

and sofety while minimizing the physicalfootprint. During the coutse of Plon buildout, it
mdy occut thot temparaily hiqher LOS result where roodwoy improvements have not

been adequotely phosed as development proceeds. However, this situatian will be

minimized based on onnuoltrafltc studies and monitoring programs. City Staff will

repart to the City Council at regulor intervols vio the Copital lmprovement Progrom

process for the Council to prioritize Wojects integrol to ochieving LAS D or better.

103

Page 685

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

The General Plan EIR includes a criterion addressing potential impacts at locations that operate at LOS E

or F under no-project conditions. Under this standard, a non-conforming situation would occur if the

proposed project would:

lncrease the averoge delay by five seconds ar more of an intersection thot currently

operotes (or is projected to operate) ot on unacceptable Los under "no-proiect"

conditions.

For the purposes of this analysis, LOS is considered potentially non-conforming if implementation of the

project would result in any of the following;

o Cause an intersection in Folsom that currently operates {or is projected to operate) at LOS D or

better to degrade to LOS E or worse.

o lncrease the average delay by five seconds or more at an intersection in Folsom that currently

operates (or is projected to operate) at an unacceptable LOS E or F.

B i cycle/Pe destria n/Tra nsit Fo ci I ities

An impact is considered significant if implementation of the project would:

r lnhibit the use of bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities.

r Eliminate existing bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities.

r Prevent the implementation of planned bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities'

Vehlcle Mlles Troveled SlondErds of Slgnlllconce

Under State law (SB 743), on July 1,2020, vehicle miles traveled {VMT)will become the only metric for

evaluating rignificant transportation impacts in environmental impact analyses required under the

Califor.nia Environmental Quality Act {CEQA). Without specific General Plan Suidance for VMT

thresholds, this analysis uses a qualitative screening against The Governors' Office of Planning and

Research (OpR) guidance of a 15 percent per capita VMT reduction and utilizes OPR's suggested

exemption for affordable housing projects.

Folsom General Plan policy NCR 3.1".3 addresses VMT, as stated below:

policy NCR 3.1.3 "Encourage efforts to reduce the amount of VMT. These efforts could include

encouraging mixed-use development promoting a Jobs/housing balance, and

encouraging alternative transportation such as walking, cycling, and public transit."

OpR has published guidance recommending a CEQA threshold for transportation impacts of land use

proJects of a 15 percent VMT reduction per capita, relative to either city or regional averages based on

to4

Page 686

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom seniof Apartments IsMND

the California's Climate Scoping Plan3. Qualitative assessment of VMT reduction is acceptable to screen

projectsa. Based on these criteria, a project will be considered to have a potentially significant impact if:

r Per capita VMT from residential projects is anticipated to be greater than 85 percent of the

regional average Per caPita VMT.

o The project is anticipated to inhibit implementation of planned pedestrian, bicycle, or transit

improvements.

Anolysis Tools

LOS

Control delays and level-of-service for study intersections were calculated using the Synchro 11s analysis

software (Version 11..1, build 1, revision 6). Synchro implements the methodologies of the 5th Edition of

the Highway Capacity Manualto modeltraffic controls and vehicle delay'

The software requires data on road characteristics (geometric), traffic counts, and the signaltiming data

for each analysis intersection. ln general, default parameters were used, except in locations where

specific field data are available. Heavy vehicle percentages of 2 percent were assumed during the peak

hour.

VMT

To support jurisdictions' 58743 implementation, The Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG)

staff developed thresholds and screening maps for residential and office projects, using outputs from

the 2015 base year travel demand model run for the 2020 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable

Communities Strategies (MTP/SCS), SACOG travel demand model is activity/tour based and is designed

to estimate an individual's daily travel, accounting for land use, transportation and demographics that

influence peoples' travel behaviors.

For residential projects, the threshold is defined as total household VMT per capita achieving 15 percent

of reduction comparing to regional (or any appropriate sub-area) average. The SACOG screening map

uses "hex" geography, with each hex being about 1,000-ft on edge. ResidentialVMT per capita per hex is

calculated by tallying all household VMTs, including VMT traveling outside the region, generated by the

residents living at the hex and divided by the total population in the hex. Hexes are then color coded

with green and blue hexes depicting neighborhoods with at least a 15 percent reduction in residential

VMT relative to the SACOG region. Yellow, orange, pink and red hexes have less than a 15 percent VMT

reduction.

Exisling 2022 Condillon

Table 26 presents a summary of level-of-service results for the study intersections under Existing

Conditions, along with 95 percent queue lengths for left turns. All study intersections operate at LOS A

r opB {2018} Technical Advisory on EvaluatingTransportation lmpacts ln GEQA,

httnllwww..9qr.ca.eovlrlgcsl20l90122-IS3 Technical &dvisqrv.pdf.
o oPR's webinar on 58 743 implementation,4ll6/2oza.
s https;/Agyw.trgfficware.com/svnchr.o-studia'htrnl

105

Page 687

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

or better during the AM, PM, and Sunday peak hours. Left turn queues are adequately accommodated

by the existing left turn storage pockets.

Table 25. Existing 2022 lntersection Delay and Level'of-Service

lnt€rsection fantrol
No ProJec (Delay end

Level-of-Serylcel

AMIPM
E Natoma St/Prison Rd Sisnal 9.3 A 9.1 A

Eastern Project
Drivewav sssc nla nla

lntersectlon Approach
ttto Prolect

95% Queues lFeet|
AMIpn

E Natoma St/Prison Rd

EB teft 173' 30'

WB Left nla nla

58 Left 22 49'

NB Left nla n/a

Eastern Project
Driveway NB nla nla

'SSSC = Side Street Stop Control

Projecled Trip Generolion

projected traffic generated by the proposed Project was calculated using trip generation factors from

the ,nsritute of Transportation Engineers {lTE) Trlp Generation Manual, 11th Edition (2021), and is

provided in Table 27.

Table 27. Project Trip Generation

Lsnd U3s
m

Crtarorv
Quan0ty Datt Dally

AM Perkhosr PM Perk hour

Total lnbound Outbound Total lnbotrnd Outbound

Senior Adult Housing

{Multifamily}
252

135

dwelling
units

Rate 3.24 0.29 45% 55% 0.3 s4% 46%

Trips 441 39 I7 22 41 22 19

Source: ITE {2021) Trip Generation Manual, lnstitute of Transportation Engineers, Washington DC, (Higher value of

either the average rate or the fitted equation-based rate for peak hour of generator)

Trip Distribution

Trip distribution was based on observed traffic counts and select zone analysis within the travel demand

model. New Project trips were distributed as follows:

: 48 percent to/from the west on East Natoma Street

r 48 percent tolfrom the east on East Natoma Street

. 4 percent to/from the north via Prison Road

106

Page 688

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

SignalTiming Geometry

With the addition of a fourth leg to the East Natorna St/Prison Rd intersection, the signal timing and lane

geometry was assumed to be configured as follows:

Eastbound: An eastbound right turn pocket was assumed with 150-ft of storage and a 60-foot

taper; for a total of one left, one through, and one right turn lane'

Westbound: A westbound left turn lane with 100-foot pocket plus 50-foot taper for a total of

one left and one shared through-right lane.

Southbound: The existing exclusive right-turn lane is assumed to be restriped as a through-right

turn lane {for a totalof one left and one shared through-right).

Northbound: The northbound approach is assumed to provide one left and one shared through-

right lane. The northbound through-right lane is assumed to be in a 70-foot turn pocket plus 60-

feet taper,

Timing: Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and southbound

split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 second northbound southbound split phases and

20 second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and 62 second eastbound and

westbound through phases. Crosswalks are assumed across all legs of the intersection with

flashing don't walk phases set to 22 seconds to accommodate a 3-feet per seconding walking

speed.

Exlsling 2022 wllh Proiecl Condilions

Project peak,hour traffic was added to the Existing 2022 turning volumes at each intersection. Delay and

LOS were determined at the study intersections. Table 28 presents a summary of LOS results for the

study intersections under Existing Conditions. All study intersections operate at LOS B or better during

the AM, PM, and Sunday peak hours. Left turn queues are adequately accommodated by the existing

left turn storage pockets.

Table 28. Baseline 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-Servicg with and without Project

lnter:ecllon Control
No Prolect (Delay and

[evel-of-Servlce)

AM I pna

Wtth Prolec (Delayand
LeveFof-Servlcel

AM I pnn

E Natoma st/Prison Rd Signal 9,3 A 9.1 A 15.9 B 16.7 B

Eastern Project
Driveway sssc n/a nla

10.6 B

{NB) 12.3 B (NB)

lntersectlon Approach
Ito Prolect

9396 Queues (Feetl

AM I prr,r

wlth ProJoct

9596 Queues {Feet)

AM I Pr,rr

E Natoma St/Prison Rd

EB Left 773' 30' 166' 37'

WB Left nla n/a 22 23'

58 Left 22', 49' 23 73'

NB Left n/a n/a 27' 27

Eastern Project
Driveway NS nla n/a 0 0

a

t

a

a

a

707

Page 689

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

'SSSC = Side Street StoP Control

Projecl VMI lmpocts ond Generol Plon IOS Conlormity

Conforma*ce whh €eEeigl Plan IOS Policv

All study intersections are anticipated to operate at LOS B or better under allstudy scenarios, both with

and without the addition of project traffic. The project is not anticipated to create new LOS deficiencies,

or to or worsen any existing deficiencies, based on General Plan Policy M4.1,3.

Evoluollon of Trqnsporlqlion

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit,

roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

Less than significant impact. The project is anticipated to generate 441 daily vehicle trips including 39

AM peak-hour vehicle trips, and 41 PM peak-hour vehicle trips. Fewer than 50 peak-hour project trips

are projected to pass through any intersection. All study intersections are anticipated to operate dt LOS

B or better under allstudy scenarios, both with and without the addition of project trafflc. The project is

not anticipated to create new LOS deficiencies, or to or worsen any existing deficiencies, based on

General Plan Policy M4.1.3. All intersection LOS impacts are considered less than significant.

The project does not inhibit the use of bicycle or pedestrian facilities; eliminate existing birycle, or

pedestrian facilities; or prevent the implementation of planned bicycle, or pedestrian facilities. The

project includes accessible pathways around the building to provide a walking path for residents. Path

connections are planned to paths internal to the project site, south to the Oak Parkway Trail, and west

to the East Natoma St underpass to the Johnny Cash Trail. The project has a less than significant impact

on pedestrians and bicycles. With relocation of the effected bus stop, transit impacts will be less than

significant.

The City does not have an adopted parking standard for age-restricted (senior) multi-family housing.

With a planned Development Permit (PD), parking supply is established through the PD permit process

The project is proposing 135 spaces (1.(X) parking spaces per unit). This exceeds that of many other

recently approved age restricted multi-family projects in and around Folsom. The 135 spaces include

eight accessible spaces (i.e., with the adjacent space sUiped out to provide vehicle access for
wheelchairs and/or mobility scooters) and 14 spaces with electric vehicle charging.

The ITE Parking 6eneration Manual6 lists an average peak parking demand of 0.59 vehicles per dwelling

unit for Land Use 252 {senior Adult Housing-Attached}, with a standard deviation of 0.12. The ITE

sample size is small (three observations), yet the proposed parking ratio of 1.05 is greater than 3'5

standard deviations greater than the mean parking demand. Consequently, the proposed parking for

the project is sufficient to meet the anticipated parking demand with a parking ratio of 1'00.

For comparison, Revel Senior Living, a similar project approved by Folsom in 2018 had a parking ratio of

0.81 spaces per dwelling unit, The Revel project conducted a parking survey of six similar Sacramento

6 ITE {ZO1O} parking Generation 4th Edition, lnstitute of Transportation Engineers, Washington DC'

108

Page 690

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Aoartments ISMND

area facilities. All six facilities were found to use less than 0.60 spaces per dwelling unit during peak

parking demand hours (consistent with the ITE parking demand data referenced above.)A second

parking review for the Revel Senior Living project surveyed localjurisdictions parking requirements for

senior housing. Only two jurisdictions in the vicinity of Folsom were found to directly address the issue

of the parking needs of senior independent living facilities. Both of those zoning code requirements from

other jurisdictions are lower than the proposed parking supply for the Vintage at Folsom Senior

Apartments Project. Therefore, the proposed parking supply of 135 parking spaces is adequate for the

136 multi-family units proposed in the project.

The project would have a less than significant impact on program plans, ordinances, or policies

addressing the circulation system.

b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision {b)?

Less than significant impact. 5u-743, passed in 2013, required OPR to develop new CEQA Guidelines

that address traffic metrics under CEQA. As stated in the legislation (and Section 21099[bl[2] of CEQA),

upon adoption of the new CEQA guidelines, "automobile delay, as described solely by LOS or similar

measures of vehicular capacity or traffic congestion shall not be considered a significant impact on the

environment pursuant to this division, except in locations specifically identified in the CEQA guidelines, if
any." The Office of Administrative Law approved the updated CEQA Guidelines on December 28,20L8,

and the changes are reflected in new CEQA Guidelines (Section 15064.3). State CEQA Guidelines Section

15054,3 was added December 28,2A78,to address the determination of significance for transportation

impacts. Pursuant to the new CEQA Guidelines VMT replaced congestion as the metric for determining

transportation impacts.

The Governors'Office of Planning and Research (OPR) has published guidance recommending a CEQA

threshold for transportation impacts of land use projects of a 15 percent VMT reduction per capita,

relative to either city or regional averages, based on the California's Climate Scoping Plan7. Qualitative

assessment of VMT reduction is acceptable to screen projects8'

Under State Law (SB 743), VMT became the only CEQA threshold of significance for transportation

impacts on July t,2O2O. Without specific General Plan guidance for VMT thresholds, this analysis uses

qualitative screening against OPR's guidance of a 15 percent per capita VMT reduction.

To support jurisdictions' 58743 implementation, SACOG developed thresholds and screening maps for

residential projectse, using outputs from the 2015 base year travel demand model run for the 2020

MTP/SCS. SACOG's traveldemand model is activity/tour based and is designed to estimate an

individual's daily travel, accounting for land use, transportation and demographics that influence

peoples'travel behaviors. For residential projects, the threshold is defined as total household VMT per

capita achieving 15 percent of reduction compared to regional {or any appropriate sub-area} average

VMT. The map uses HEX geography. Residential VMT per capita per HEX is calculated by tallying all

household VMTs, including VMT traveling outside the region, generated by the residents living at the

HEX and divided by the total population in the HEX. Green hexagons denote areas where residential

? oPR (20181 lechnical Advisory on [valuating Transportatlon lmpacts tn CEQA,

http:ll!v!rrE opr.qa.sov{qlocr/20190122"?43 Telhnisal Adyisqry.pd!.
8 OPR'5 webinar on SB 743 implen'rentation,4[16/7A2a.
e sAco6 {2021} httosillsbT4S:sacos'orendata.a.csis'cqm/

109

Page 691

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

VMT is 50 to 85 percent of the regional average and yellow hexagons denote areas where residential

VMT is 85 to 100 percent of the regional average.

The project is located within one of the green hexagons with average residential VMT of 17 miles per

capita (per day). The Project is anticipated to generate less than 82 percent of the regional per capita

residential daily VMT of 2Q.82 miles. The project is therefore anticipated to have a less than significant

impact on VMT.

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g', sharp curves or dangerous

intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g', farm equipment)?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. Access to the project site would be provided by two

driveways on East Natoma Street. City standards requires a 50-ft right turn taper in conditions with ten

or more peak-hour right turns into a driveway, and a 150-ft pocket plus 60-ft taper, with 50 or more

peak-hour right turns. Neither project driveway is anticipated to have ten or more right turning vehicles

into the project during the AM or PM peak-hours. The main driveway at the signalized East Natoma

Street/prison Rd intersection includes an eastbound right turn pocket and a westbound left turn pocket

accessing the project, these are adequate to safely accommodate project traffic without hinderin6

existing traffic.

The secondary (eastern) driveway is restricted to right-in-right-out movements and is anticipated to only

have fewer than ten eastbound right-turns into the project during either the AM or PM peak hours' No

turn pockets are necessary. ln order to limit the secondary (eastern) driveway to right-in-right-out

access, the applicant would implement Mitigation Measure TRA-01. With Mitigation Measure TRA-01

implemented, impacts relating to process access design would be less than significant'

For an 81-160-unit apartment complex, the standard for the Minimum Required Throat Depth {MRTD)

is 50 feetlo. This 50-ft length represents vehicle stora8e equivalents, which means the total required

length may be achieved by summing the throat depths for several access points if more than one access

point is to serve the $ite. The throat depths forthe primary and second drlveways exceed 50-ft and 25-

ft, respectively. Therefore, MRTD of the project driveways meet the standard because the primary

driveway throat depth meets the minimum standard cf 50-ft'

potential geometric constraints and safety issues were evaluated, including driveway spacing, sight

triangles, and Statewide lntegrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) collision data' Driveway spacing,

throat depth, and corner sight distance are all adequate. ln the last five years, there have been three

accidents proximate to the project site including:

r One eastbound rear-end collection at the existing traffic light,

r Two driving under the influence (DUl) accidents (one a sideswipe, and the other a single vehicle

overturn,)

These are not accident varieties that would be anticipated to be worsened by the project, and the

project does not require any proiect specific traffic safety treatments.

10 Folsom {2020} Design and Procedures Manual and lmprovement Standards, site access Table 12-1,

https:l/www.Lolsgln,ca.trslcfvicax/filebagUblobdtood.asox?t=65!.83.99&BloblD-98340'

110

Page 692

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

lmplementation of Mitigation Measures TRA{I would reduce all potential impacts regarding hazards

due to geometric design to a less than significant level.

Mitigation Measure TRA-01: Limit Access to the Secondary (Eastern) Driveway

During construction of the project, the applicant shall ensure the eastern driveway is

channelized to restrict left turns from entering or exiting the project via the eastern driveway

Such channelization shall be accomplished during construction by either a triangular island

located within the driveway, or by extending the raised median at the East Natoma

St/Cimmaron Cir intersection west-word across the eastern project driveway.

d) Result in inadequate emergency access?

No Impact. The project proposes two access points connected by a fire lane which circles the back of the
proposed apartments. All internal radii have at least a 25-feet inner radius and 50-feet outer radius per

City requirements. Emergency vehicle access is available to the site from East Natoma Street.

Emergency vehicle access is designed consistent with standards and is adequate. There would be no

impact.

a

111

Page 693

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments IsMND

XVIII. TRIBAI. CULTURAI RESOURCES

Pot ilhlly
Slgnncant

lmp.ct

trrc Thrn
Slgnlfcrnt

wldt
MlSgatlon

lncorporated

trssThen
Sltllhcant llo
lmprct lnpact

Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a

tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code

Section 27074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural

landscape that is Seographically defined in terms of the

size and scope ofthe landscape, sacred place, or object

with cultural value to a California Native American tribe,

and that is:

l. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register

of Historical Resources, or in a local register of
historical resources as defined in Public Resources

Code Section 5020.1(k), or

tr

ii, A resource determined by the lead agency, in its

discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to
be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in
subdivision {c) of Public Resources Code Section

5024.1, ln applying the criteria set forth in
subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section

5024.\, the lead agency shall consider the

significance of the resource to a California Native

American tribe.

il I LI LI

The discussion below is based on a tribal cultural resources memorandum prepared by ECORP

Consulting, lnc. (ECORP 2022L atlached to this lnitial Study as Appendix J.

Envlronmentol Setllng

CEqA, as amended in 2014 by Assembly Bill 52 (AB 52), requires that the City of Folsom (City) provide

notice to any California Native American tribes that have requested notice of projects subject to CEQA

review, and consult with tribes that responded to the notice within 30 days of receipt with a request for

consultation. Sestion 21073 of the Public Resources Code (PRC) defines California Native American

tribes as "a Native American tribe located in California that is on the contact list maintained by the

NAHC for the purposes of Chapter 905 of the Statutes of 2OO4." This includes both federally and non-

federally recognized tribes. For the City, these include the following tribes that previously submitted

general request letters, requesting such noticing:

. Wilton Rancheria (letter dated January 13,2O20|;

. lone Band of Miwok lndians (letter dated March 2,2OL6li and,

. United Auburn lndian Community (UAIC) of the Auburn Rancheria (letter dated November 23,

2015 and updated per UAIC via email on September 29,2O21\'

112

Page 694

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

The purpose of consultation is to identifo Tribal Cultural Resources {TCR) that may be significantly

impacted by the proposed project, and to allow the City to avoid or mitigate significant ampacts prior to
project approval and implementation. Section 21074(al of the PRC defines TCRs for the purpose of CEQA

as:

Sites, features, ploces, culturol londscopes (geogrophically defined in terms of the size

and scope), socred places, ond abjects with culturolvolue to a California Native

Americon tribe thot ore either of the following:

a) included or determined to be eligible lor inclusion in the Cdlifornia Register of
H i sto rica I Reso u rces; o nd/or,

b) included in a lacol register of historical resources as defined in subdivision (k)of
Section 5020.1; and/or,

c) o resottrce determined by the lead agency, in its discretion ond supported by

substantiol evidence, to be significont pursuont to criteria set forth in subdivision (c)

of Section 5024.1. ln applying the giteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Section

5O24.7 for the purposes of this paragraph, the leod ogency sholl consider the

signilicance of the resource to a California Native American tibe,

Because the first two criteria also meet the definition of a Historical Resource under CEQA, a TCR may

also require additional consideration as an Historical Resource. TCRs may or may not exhibit

archaeological, cultural, or physical indicators and can only be identified by a culturally affiliated tribe,

which has been determined under State law to be the subject matter expert for TCRs.

CEeA requires that the City initiate consultation with tribes at the commencement of the CEQA process

to identify TCRs. Furthermore, because a significant effect on a TCR is considered a significant impact on

the environment under CEQ.A, consultation is required to develop appropriate avoidance, impact

minimization, and mitigation measures. Therefore, in accordance with the requirements summarized

above, the City carried out, or attempted to carry out, tribal consultation for the project.

Within 14 days of initiating CEQI ygrl.u, for the project, on November 19,202L, the City sent project

notification letters to the three California Native American tribes named above, which had previously

submitted general consultation request letters pursuant to 21080.3.1(d)of the Public Resources Code

(PRC). Each tribe was provided a brief description of the pro|ect and its location, the contact information

for the City's authorized representative, and a notification that the tribe has 30 days to request

consultation.

The lone Band of Miwok lndians did not respond to the City's notification letter, and therefore, the

threshold for carrying out tribal consultation with that tribe under PRC 21080.3.1{e}was not met, and

no further consultation is warranted.

On December LA,2027, and within the 30-day response timeframe, the City received an emailfrom

Anna Starkey that acknowledged receipt of the City's notification letter and accepted consultation under

AB 52 for the project. She indicated that the project area is potentially sensitive for unrecorded cultural

and tribat cultural resources based on the presence of a known and recorded resource in the vicinity.

She inquired whether a cuhural resources survey has been conducted and ifso, requested a copy.

On Decembe r L3,202!, the City formally initiated consultation with United Auburn lndian Community

113

Page 695

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

and acknowledged Ms. Starkey's inquiry of a cultural report. The City confirmed that a survey had been

conducted and that preparation of a cultural resources report was underway and welcomed the

cpportunity to further discuss the proiect. Accordingly, the Ctty pravided a copY of the report to Ms.

Starkey for her review on March 8,2022. Ms. Starkey responded the same day indicating that the report

aligns with their findings and inquired whether an arborirt report had been prepared and if so,

requested to review it. Additionally, Ms. Starkey questioned if any heritage trees had been identified' On

March 23,2022, fhe city transrnitted the arborist report to Ms. Starkey. As of the date of this

memorandum, there has been no further correspondence received from Ms. Starkey or any other

representative from UAIC. The City did not receive any specific information ahout TCRs that meet the

definitions in PRC Sectio n 2LO7 4 within the project area. Therefore, on June 3,2022, the City formally

concluded consuttation with UAIC pursuant to PRC Sections 21080.3.2(b){1) and 21082.3(dX1).

Wilton Rancheria did not respond to the City's notification letter, and therefore, the threshold for

carrying out tribal consultation with that tribe under PRC 21080.3.1(e) was not met. However,

separately, as part of the cultural resources inventory, HELIX contacted the Native American Heritage

Commission {NAHC) on January 2I,2022 to request a search of the Sacred Lands File. On February 9,

2O22, the NAHC contacted HELIX to report that no sacred lands are recorded inside the project area and

provided a list of culturally affiliated tribes and their contact inforrnaticn. On February 70,2022, lrELtX

contacted all of the named tribes, which included Wilton Rancheria, UAIC, Tsi Akim Maidu, the Colfax-

Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe, the lone Band of Miwok lndians, and the Suena Vista Rancheria of Me-

Wuk lndians. While none of the other tribes responded, on March 3L,2022, an unnamed representative

of the Cultural Preservation Department from Wilton Rancheria replied by email and stated that the

tribe had requested consultation on December 2 for this project, and that the tribe was requesting

monitoring because of three sensitive sites in the vicinity. No specific information about TCRs was

provided in the March 31 email.

After an exhaustive search of the consultation record, City staff emails, and physical mail, none of the

City staff or its consultants could locate any correspondence from Wilton on this project. Su$pecting that

the tribal representative might have been mistaklng this as a dlfferent project, on April 8,2A22, HELIX

replied to the tribe to report that the City is not in possession of any correspondence regarding this

project and requested a copy of the Docember 2 correspondence. Wilton Rancheria did not respond to
the request for information, and as of the date of this memorandum, there has been no further

communication received from the tribe. Therefore, because the City: 1.) is not in possession of a written

request for consultation on this project; and 2) did not receive any specific informatlon ahout TCRs that

meet the definitions in PRC Section 21074 within the project arca; and, farther, because Willon

Rancheria failed to engage in consultation pursuant to PRC 21S02.3(dX2), the City closed the matter and

drew from other lines of evidence to make a determination of impacts to TCRs.

Evoluolion of ltlbol Cullurol Resourcel

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public

Resources Code Section 2L074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is

geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with

culturalvalue to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

i. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register

of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1{k)?

114

Page 696

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Less than significant impact with mitigation. As discussed in Section V., Cultural Resources, the results

of this Cultural Resources Assessment indicate that there are no known or newly discovered

cultural resources within the APE, prompting HELIX to recommend that the area is not likely to contain

surface based archaeological deposits. Although the NCIC records search indicated that elements of

district P-34-000335 (the Folsom Mining District) may potentially be located within the current APE, no

traces of the district were found during HELIX's pedestrian survey of the project area, As a result, the

current project is anticipated to have no impacts on district P-34-000335'

Based on the results of HELIX's cultural resource assessment the APE can be assumed to have a low

sensitivity for surficial cultural resources and this project is anticipated to have no impacts to historical

resources for the purposes of compliance with both Section 106 of the NHPA and CEQA. Consequently,

HEgX recommends that there would be no effect on historic properties or historical resources, including

archaeological and built-environment resources as a result of project implementation. No additional

studies, archaeological work, or construction monitoring are recommended. However, in light of the

presence of prehistoric r€sources within the study area {P-34-0000016 and P-J4-000017) and the

potential plesence of elements of district P-34-000335 to lie within the study area, HELIX recomrnends

that the Mltigation Measure CUL-01and CUL-02 outlined below be implemented in the unlikely event

that cultural resources are encountered during construction

lf historical or archaeological resources are discovered, implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL'01

and Mitigation Measure CUL-02 (section V)would reduce any potential impact to a less than significant

level.

ii. A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial

evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set fonh in subdivision {c) of Public Resources

Code Section 5024.1.1n applying the criteria set forth in subdivision {c) of Public Resources Code

Section 5O24.L, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California

Native American tribe?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. lnformation about potential impacts to TCRs was drawn

from information provided by consulting and culturally affiliated tribes, the ethnographic context, the

results of a search of the Sacred Lands File by the NAHC, and the results of a cultural resources inventory

prepared by HELTX {Appendix E}. Based on the information provlded, the pro.iect would not have any

impact on known'l-CRs. lmpacts to unanticipated tribal cultural resourqes, if encountered during

construction, would be potentially significant. Based on the consultation record sumrnarized above and

included in Appendix J, the City concludes that there would be a less than significant impact on TCR's

with the incorporation of Mitigation Measure TCR-01 regarding unanticipated discoveries.

Mitigation Measure TCR-01: Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources.

o lf potentially significant Tribal Cultural Resources (TCR) are discovered during ground disturbing

construction activities, all work shall cease within 50-ft of the find, or an agreed upon distance

based on the nature of the find. A Native American Representative from traditionally and

culturally affiliated Native American Tribes that requested consultation on the project shall be

immediately contacted and invited to assess the significance of the find and make

recommendations for further evaluation and treatment, as necessary. lf deemed necessary by

the City, a qualified cultural resources specialist meeting the Secretary of lnterio/s Standards

and Qualifications for Archaeology, may also assess the significance of the find in joint

11s

Page 697

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senlor Apartments ISMND

consultation with Native American Representatives to ensure that Tribalvalues are considered.

Work at the discovery locatlon cannot resume until the City, in consultation as appropriate and

in good faith, determines thatthe discovery is either not a TcR, or has been subiected to
culturally appropriate treatm€nt, if avoidance and preservatlon cannot be accommodated.

116

Page 698

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XIX. UTITITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Putcndllly
Slgrlfrcent

lmptCt

lrcsThrn
g3nmc.nt

uf,fi
Mltl3atlon

lncorporoted

trce llrrn
fJtnlfisnt No
lmpsct lilPact

Would the project:

a) Require or result in the relocation or conltruction of new

or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm

water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or
telecommunications facilities, the construction or

relocation of which could cause significant environmental
effects?

n n t_t

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the
project and reasonably foreseeable future development
during normal, dry and multiple dry years?

rt T

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment
provider which serves or may serve the proiect that it has

adeguate capacity to serve the proiect's proiected

demand in addition to the provider's existing

commitments?

n tr I

d) Generate solid waste in excess of state or local standards,

or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or

otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction
goals?

ti {f t rl
t_l

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and

reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?
tf I tr

Environmentol Setling

The pro.iect site is currently vacant and does not contain any existing utilities. Existing powerfines are

located on East Naloma Street and south of the project boundary. The City of Folsom employs a design

process that includes coordination with potentially affected utilities as part of proiect development'

ldentifying and accomrnodating existing utilities is part of the design process, and utilities are considered

when finalizing Fublic project plans. The City of Folsom coordinates with the appropriate utility

companies to plan and implement any needed accotnmodation of exilting utilities, including water and

sewer utility lines. Based on the resutts of an initial request for comments from the utility providers, all

utility services are able to accommodate the proposed project.

Evoluolion of Utilllies ond Service Systems

a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment

or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the

construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?

177

Page 699

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future

development during normal, dry and multiple dry years

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's proiected demand in addition to the
provider/s existing commitments?

Less than significant impact. Discussion of the project's impact on watet wastewater treatment o.
storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, and telecommunications facilities follows:

Water Sunolv
The City's public water supply is from the Folsom Reservoir and Folsom South Canal. The City's Urban

Water Management Plan calculated supply and demand at buildout of the 2035 General Plan and

determined that that there was sufficient supply available for normal, single dry, and multi-dry years

scenarios (City of Folsom 2018a). Folsom's Water Treatment Plant has a capacity of 50 million gallons

per day. According to the Urban Water Management Plan and General Plan ElR, water demand is not

anticipated to exceed the City's current water rights to 38,970 acre-feet annually (City of Folsom 2018a).

All on slte water (fire, domestic, and irrigation) are to be privately owned, operated, maintained as a

condition of approval. All public water within the site boundary shall be constructed in accordance with

the City of Folsom water design standards and water construction details as a condition of apprwal. The

on-site water supply would be connected to the Zone 3 Cimmaron pressure Zone located off-site. The

proposed project would provide houslng for less than 400 residents and would not result in a substantial

increase in water demand. Because sufficient supplies are available for build out of land uses in the
General Plan (including development at the proposed project site) no additionalfacilities would need to
be constructed or expanded and impacts would be less than significant.

Water Conseruation Effortg
The City actively implements water conservation actions in response to the drought. Standards and

regulations issued by the State Water Resources Control Board that came into effect June \ 2AL5,

require the City to reduce water consumption by 32 percent. ln response, the City developed a water

reduction plan to reduce water consumption, and conserve water in the City'

City actions include reducing watering in parks by one third, removing turf and retrofitting irrigation in

more than 30 medians citywide, turn off irrigation in ornamental streetscapes that do not have trees,

prohibiting new homes and buildings from irrigating with potable water unless water-efficient drip

systems are used, replacing and upgrading sprinklers and irrigation systems with water-efficient

systems, suspending operation of water features throughout the City. The City also implemented water

restrictions and rebate programs for residents of the City. Folsom residents successfully reduced water

consumption by 21 percent in 2014. The City reduced water consumption in parks by 27 percent, and 31

percent in Landscape and Lighting Districts. This was among the highest conservation rates statewide
(Brainerd 2015).

Wastewater (Sanharv Sewerl
The City of Folsom is responsible for managing and maintaining its wastewater collection system,

including 275-miles of pipeline and nine pump stations. This system ultimately discharges into the
Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District interceptor sewer system. Wastewater is treated at the

Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant, located in Elk Grove.

118

Page 700

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMNO

ln compliance with the 2006 State Water Resources ControlBoard (SWfiCB|General Waste Oischarge

Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systerns. the City of Folsom adopted a Sewer System Management
plan on July 28, 2009 which was updated and adopted on August 26,2074. fhe plan outlines how the

municipalityoperatesandmaintainsthecollectionsystem,andthereportingofallSanitarySewer
Overflows (SSO) to the SWRCB's online 5SO database. All on site sewer utltities are to be privately

owned, operated, maintained as a condition of approval, and would connect with an existing public

sewer collectlon system off.site. Because the City has sufficient capacity to accommodate any additional

demand that could result from implementation of the proposed project, and because the City is in

compliance with statutes and regulations related to wastewater collectlon and treatment, there would

be no impact and mitigation would not be necessary.

Stormu{ltter
Folsom's Public Works Department handles stormwater management for the City, from design and

construction of the storm drain system to operation and maintenance, and urban runoff pollution

prevention.

Under existing conditions, runoff from residential properties located east of the property flows onto the

property site, This offsite runoff would be intercepted by proposed landscaped swales within the 15-

foot landscape planters along the eastern boundary of the property. This runoff would then redirect the

flow towards East Natoma Street and enter the public storm drain system. Additionally, eight {8) bio-

retention planters are proposed throughout the project site to manage stormwater runoff. The curb,

gutter, and sidewalk are proposed to be extended to Cimmaron Circle. which requires storm drain

improvements at the frontage of the project site. Stormwater drains would be installed throughout the

concrete parking lot areas and would be designed to prevent flooding or ponding. The on-site storm

drain would conform to City of Folsom standards. Environmental impacts from these stormwater

features would be less than significant and no mitigation would be necessary'

.Ekrctricitv, 9rs, and felePhqrne
primary and secondary electric lines, gas lines, and telephone/cable lines are proposed within the

project. These proposed utility lines would connect wlth existing utilities in the same vicinity of the

project site, on East Natoma Street. Through the City's coordinatio* with utility providen including

SMUD for electricity, PG&E for underground 6as lines, AT&T for underground telephone lines, utility

providers are able to accommodate the proposed pro,iect'

Based on the details above, the pro.iect would have less than significant impact on water, wastewater

treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities' No

mitigation is needed for questions a), b), and c)'

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local

infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to

solid waste?

Less than significant impact. The City of Folsom provides solid waste, recycling, and hazardous materials

collection services to its residential and business communities. ln order to meet the State mandated 50

percent landfill diversion requirements stipulated under AB 939, the City has instituted several

119

Page 701

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

community-based programs. The City offers a door-to-door collection program for household hazardous

and electronic waste, in addition to six "drop off" rerycling locations within the City.

After processing solid waste is taken to the Kiefer Landfill, the primary municipal solid waste disposal

facility in Sacramento County. The landfillfacility slts on a site of 1,084-acres in the community of

Sloughhouse. Currently 250-acres, the State permitted landfill is 650-acres in size, and is of sufficient

capacity to accommodate the solid waste disposal needs of the City of Folsom, Because the landfill

serving the project area is of sufficient capacity to accommodate solid waste needs, there is less than

significant impact and no mitigation would be necessary for questions d) and e).

\20

Page 702

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XX. WILDFIRE

Potcnthlly
Slldfic.nt

lmpect

l.esslhan
Sltnlfionr

wlth
Mltlt tlon

lnco.po.ltcd

lrrclten
slgntficant lto
lmp.6 lmPtct

lf located in or near state responsibility areas or lands

classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the
project:

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan

or emergency evacuation Plan?
tr tr I

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors,

exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project

occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or
the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

T-1U n I

c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated

infrastructure {such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency

water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may

exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or

ongoing impacts to the environment?

I-J I

d) Expose pesple or structures lo significant risks, including

downslope or downstream floocJing or landslides, as a

result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage
tr fl I

changes?

Environmenlol Setling

The project site is located in a Local Responsibility Area and it is not in a Very High Fire Hazard Severity

Zone (California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 2OO7)'

Evoluolion of Wlldfire

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose

project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a

wildfire?

c) Require the instatlation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks,

emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may

result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the envlrcnment?

d) Expose people or structures to significant rlsks, including downslope or downstream flooding or

landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?

121

Page 703

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior ADartments ISMND

No impact. Questions "a' through "d" are not applicable because the proiect site ls in a Local

Responsibility Area and the site ls not in a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (Callfornia Department of
Forestry and Fire Protection 2OO7l.

122

Page 704

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XXI. NNANDATORY TINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Polendally
Sl3nl0cant

lmFCt

tcasft n
$3nncrnt

$llh
Mhl3adon

lncorp6atGd

LcceThrn
Slgnl0crnt ilo
lmptct lmptct

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially

degrade the quality of the environm€nt, substantially
reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish

or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels,

threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community,
substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a

rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate
important examples of the major periods of California

history or prehistory?

n I

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually
limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively

considerable" means that the increrrenfal elfects ol a
project are signiflcant when vlewed in conneclion with
the effects of past projects, the eff€{ts af other current
projects, and the effects of past, present and probable

future projects)?

LJ tr I IJ

c) Does the project have environmental effects which will
cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either

directly or indirectly?

fl I n

Evoluolion ol Mondotory Findings of Signlficonce

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment,

sub$tantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to
drop betow self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially

reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate

important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

Less than significant impact. The preceding analysis indicates that the proposed project has the
potential to adversely affect biological resources, cultural resources, geology and soils, greenhouse gas

emissions, noise, tran$portation, andtribal cultural resources. See Sections 8.|V, LV, 8.Vll. LVlll, LXlll,
8.XVll, and 8.XVlll of this lnitial Study for discussion of the proposed project's potential impacts on the$e

environmental issue areas. With implementation of the mitigation measures identified in those Sections,

and compliance with City programs and requirements identified in this report, impacts would be

reduced to a less than significant level. No significant or potentially significant impacts would remain.

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?

{"Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a prolect are significant when

123

Page 705

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartfienlj ISMND

viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the

effects of past, present and probable future projects)?

Less Than Significant lmpact. While the project would indirectly contribute to cumulative lmpacts

associated with increased urban develognent in the City and region, these impacts have previously

been evaluated by the City and considered in development of the City's General Plan as set forth in this

lnitiat Study. Key areas of concern are discussed in detail below'

€vgluation af cumulative biolagical resoutces i&wcE: The trees and understory graslland areas wlthin

the project site provide suitable nesting habhat for white-tailed kite and other raptors as well as other

native birds and large trees adjacent to the site provide nesting habitat for raptors. Pre'constructisn

surveys should bs conducted prior to project implernentation to determine if nesting birds are present

on or adiacent to the site. so that measures could be implemented if needed to avoid harming nesting

birds. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-0:" lltrould reduce impacts to white-tailed kite and

other nesting birds to a less than significant level.

The 0.04-acre of aquatic features located on the projeet site ars potentially regulated by the USACE,

CVRWqCB, and CDFW under the Clean Water Act, Porter-Cologne Act. and Section 1600 of the Fish and

Game Code. Therefore, removal or fill of the aquatic fea.tures would likely require a permit from these

age ncies, ln order to avoid impacts to jurisdictional wetland and waters, Mitigation Measure BIO-02

would be implemented, mitigating impacts to a less than significant level.

Of the 111 trees on the project site,77 trees are considered protected by Folsom City Code. lf protected

trees will be removed by the proposed project mitigation will be required per Section 12'16'150. Of the

7l trees protected by Folsom City Code, only 65 trees require mitigation based on having a health rating

of S, 4,3, or 2. Based on the DSH equivalency ratio, mhigation for a total of 935.6-inches is required if all

protecled trees subject to mitigation requirements are impacted. With implementation of Mitigation

Measure 8lO-03, impacts to protected trees would be less than significant.

With implementationof Mitigation Measures BIO{1, BIO-02, and BIO-03 the impacts would be reduced

to a less than significant level and the proiect would not result in a cumulatively considerable

contribution to any significant cumulative impacts'

EvaluotioT of cufiulatiye cultural resources lnnact$: The results of the Cultural Resources Assessment

indicate that there are no known or newly discovered cultulal resources within the APE, prompting

HELIX to recommend that the area is not likely to contain surface based archaeologicaldeposits.

Although the NCIC records search indicated that elements of district P-34-000335 {the Folsom Mining

District) may potentially be located within the current APE. no traces of the district were found during

HELIX's pedestrian survey ofthe project area. As a result, the current proJect is anticipated to have no

impacts on dlstrict P-34-000335. No additional studies, archaeolagicalwork, or construction monitorlng

are reeommended. However, in light of the presence of prehistoric resources within the study area (P-

34-0000016 and P-34-000017) and the potential presence of alernents of district P-34-000335 to lie

within the study area, HELIX recommends that the Mitigation Measure CUL-01 and CUL-02 outlined

below be implemented in the unlikely event that cultural resources are encountered during

construction. lf historical or archaeological resources are discovered, implementation of Mitigation

Measure CUL-01 and Mitigation Measure CUL-02 would reduce any potential impact to a less than

significant level.

124

Page 706

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Aoartments lSMND

No human remains are known to exist within the project area nor were there any indications of human

remains found during the field survey. Hourever, there is always the possibility that subsurface

construction activities associated with the proposed project. However, if human remains are discovered,

implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-02 and Mitigation Measure CUL-03 would reduce impacts to
a less than significant level.

With lmplementation of Mitigation Measures CUL-01 and CUI-02, and CUL-03, the impacts would be

reduced to a le*s than significant level and the project would not result in a cumulatively considerable

contribution to any significant cumulative impacts.

Evaluatian of cumulative qgalogy and soils imnacts: A Geotechnical Engineering Survey was written by

YoungdahlConsulting Group,lnc, on December 3'd,ZO71.ln the survey, Youngdahl prepared

recommendations for the foundation, construction, and desi8n of the proposad buildlng in the project

site (See Appendix F for more detail on site recornmendations). With the implernentation of Mitigation

Measure 6EO-01, outlined below, the impacts relating to unstable soils in the project area would be less

than significant.

No previous surveys conducted in the project area have identified the project site as sensitive for
paleontological resourees or other geologically sensitive resources, nor have testing or ground

disturbing activities performed to date uncovered any paleontological resources or geologically sensitive

resources. While the likelihood encountering paleontological resources and othergeologically sensitive

resources is considered low, project-related ground disturbing activities could affect the integrity of a

previously unknown paleontological or other geologically sensitive resourc€, resulting in a substantial

change in the significance of the resource. Therefore, the proposed project could result in potentially

signlficant impacls to paleontological resources. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure GE0-02 would

redtce potentially significant irnpacls to a less than significant level.

With implementation of Miti6ation Measure GEO-01and GEO-02, the impacts would be reduced to a

less than significant level and the project would not result in a cumulatively considerable contrlbution to
any significant cumulative impacts.

Evalustion af W!fttllttive areenhou{€Jlas emislFlns imptcts: The project must mrnply with the City's

Greenhouse Gas Beduction Strateglr Consistency Checklist. The Checklist ls part of the City's 2035

General Plan GHG Reduction Strategy which outlines the policies and programs that the City will

undertake to achieve its proportional share of State GHG emissions reductions. Per the Checklist, the

GHG reduction measures included in the Checklist that are applicable to a project are to be incorporated

into the project's CEQA documents as mitigataon rfieasures. The GHG reduction measures applicable to
the proposed project are therefora included as Mitigation Measure 6HG-01. through GHG-05. With

implementation of this mitigation measure and compliance with SMAQMO's recommendations, the

2017 kopingPtan, and the MTP/SCS, the project's impacts would be reduced to a less than signlficant

level and the project would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to any significant

cumulative impacts.

Fvabstion.af cumulalive a.oise impacts:-The proiect would be subject to noise from construction and

operation conditions. lf project construction activities were to occur outside the hours of 7:00 a.m. and

7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 9:00 a,m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturday, construction noise generated

by the project would not be exempt for the City's noise ordinance nighttime exterior standard of 45

125

Page 707

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

dBA, and the impact would be potentially significant. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-01

would restrict construction hours and reduce impacts to a less than significant level.

An on-site source of vibration during project construction would be a vibratory roller' A vibratory roller

would primarily be used to achleve soil compaction as part of the foundalion and paving construction,

and for aggregate and asphalt compaction as part of project driveway and parking lot construction).

Vibratory rollers could be used within approximately 65-ft of the single-family residences to the

nofthwest. A large vibratory roller creates approximately O,2L in/sec PPV at a distance of 25-ft, or

94 VdB (Caltrans 2020). At a distance of 55-ft, a vibratory roller would create a PPV of 0.073 in/sec, or 85

VdB.1r This would exceed the City General Plan residential standard of 80 VdB, and the impact would be

potentially significant. Once operational, the proiect would not be a source of groundborrte vibrations' A

large vibratory roller would result in apgroximately 80 VdB or greater at distances less than 120-ft.

Mi{igation measure HOI-02 would require the contactor demonsftate that the rollers to be used on the

project site would produce less than 80 VdB at nearby occupied residences, or use vibratory rollers in

static mode only (no vibrations) when operated within 120-ft of occupied residences.

With the implementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-01and NOI-02, the project would not result in a

cumulatively considerable contribution to any significant cumulative impacts related to noise.

Eusrluotion of cumulatlve tron, gortqtian lmpagls: Access to the proiect site would be provided by two

driveways on East Natoma Street. City standards requires a 60-ft right turn taper in conditions with ten

or more peak-hour right turns into a driveway, and a 750-ft pocket plus 50-ft taper, wilh 50 or rnore

peak-hour right turns. Neither project driveway is anticipated to have ten or more right turning vehicles

into the project during the AM or PM peak-hours. The main driveway at the signalized East Natoma

Street/prison Rd intersection includes an eastbound right turn pocket and a westbound left turn pocket

accessing the project, these are adequate to safely accommodate project traffic without hindering

existing traffic. The secondary {eastern} drlveway is restricted to right-in-right-out movements *nd ,s

anticipated to only have fewer than ten eastbsund right-turns into the Project during either the AM or

pM peak hours. No turn pcckets are necessary. ln order to limit the secondary {eastern) driveway to

right-in-right-out access, the applicant would implement Mitigation Measure TRA-01' Thus, the project

would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to any significant cumulative impacts

related to transportation.

E{oluotien of cumulative tribal cu-ltural lesources impacts: The City of Folsom sent project notification

letters to three California Native American trihes. Although there is no evidence of TCRs occurring or

having the potential to occur on the project site, the City recognizes that sensitive and/or protected

resources could be unintentionally discovered during project demolition and construction. With

implementation of Mitigation Measures TCR-01, the impacts would be reduced to a less than significant

leveland potentially significant cumulative impacts would be avoided. Thus, the project would not

result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to any significant cumulative impacts related to tribal

cultural resources.

11 Equipment ppV = Reference ppV r {25lD}"{inlsec), where Reference PPV is PPv at 25 feet, D i5 distance from equipment to

the receptor in fee! and n= 1.1 (the value related to the attenuation rate throuBh the ground); formula from Caltrans 2020.

VdB = 20 * tog(PPv/4/10'6).

126

Page 708

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human

beings, either directly or indirectly?

Less than significant impact. Because of site conditions, existing City regulations, and regulation of
potential environmental impacts by other agencies, the proposed proiect would not have the potential

to cause substantial adverse effects on human beings as demonstrated in the detailed evaluation

contained in this lnitial Study.

9.0 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING

PROGRAM

A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) has been prepared by the City per Section

15097 of the CEQA Guidelines and is presented in Appendix K.

1O.O INITIAT STUDY PREPARERS

CiUr of Folsom

Steve Banks, PrinciPal Planner

HELIX Envlrsnmental Plann'ine. Uc,
Robert Edgerton, AICP CEP, Project Manager

Julia Pano, Environmental Planner

Jason Runyan, Noise SPecialist

Stephen Stringer, Senior Biologist

Stephanie Mclaughlin, Staff Biologist

Victor Ortiz, Air Quality Specialist

Kristin Garcia, Air Quality Technician

Clarus Backes, Cultural Resource Group Manager

Jentin Joe, Staff Archeologist

127

Page 709

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments |SMND

1 I.O REFERENCES

Barrows, Wray, 1956. A History of Folsom, Colifornia: 1850-1900. Folsom HistoricalSociety Museum,

Folsom, California.

Beck, W. A. and y. D. Hasse, 1974. HistoricalAtlas of California, University of Oklahoma Press, Norman.

Beardsley, R. K. i^g54. Temporal and Areal Relationships in Central California. University of California

Archaeological Survey Reports 24-25. Serkeley Press.

1g4g. culture Sequences in central california Archeology. Americon Antiqurty 14(1):1-28.

Bennyhoff, J. Lg77. The Ethnogeography of the Plains Mlwok. Center for Archaeological Research at

Davis Publications 5. University of California Davis.

1954. Temporal and Areal Relationships in Central California Archaeology' UniversiA ol
Cotifornia Archoeotogical Survey Reports 25. Berkeley.

1950. Californian Fish Spears and Harpoons. University of California Anthropological Records

9{a):29s-338.

Bolster, 8.C., editor. 1998. Terrestrial Mammalspecies of Special Concern in California, Draft Final

Report prepared by P.V. Brylski, P.W. Collins, E.D. Pierson, W.E. Rainey and T'8. Kucera. Report

submltted to California Department of Fish and Game Wildlife Management Division, Nongame

Bird and Mammal Conservation Program for Contract No. FG3146WM'

Brainerd, C.2eL5, May 5. News Release: City of Folsom Releases Water Reduction Plan. Accessed on

December 6,2}21at httpUl/wuu.folsom.ca.us/civica/press/disnlq[.asn?f?vouFl&Entrv:271.

California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA). 2021.' User's 6uide for CalEEMod Version

2a2o'4.o. Available at: http:1/www'cgleernod'cor!,/'

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2022. Overview: Diesel Exhaust and Health. Available at:

https:llww2.arb.ca.Rovlresources/ov€rview-diesel-exhau.st-and-health' Accessed April2022'

2017. The 2017 Climate change scoping Plan Update. January. Available at:

httpg:lvlrw' arb. ca.gov lcclscopinsplgl/2030so pp fl$a l' p{I'

2014. First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Planr Building on the Framework, Available at:

httgrywJvw.arb.ca.eovlcclscogi$eolenl2013 uqdgte{h;t updatL clinlglg chanee scosinq oJq

n.odf.

2008. Climate Change Scoping Plan - A Framework for Change. December. Available at:

httns:/1Ul
olgg-documents.

2005. Air euality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective. Available atr

https:/lwwlty.arb'c.a.sov/ch/haSdbook' odf .

128

Page 710

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

California Emergency Management Agency. 2009. Tsunami lnundation Map for Emergency Planning,

Benicia Quadrangle, July 31, 2009' Accessed on August 18,2022' at:

httos r#www.conservatio&ca.Eov/ceslDocuft entsl8ublications/fsuqemi-

Maps/Tsunami lnundqtiQn Benicia Quad ConfaQggta.pdf

California Energy Commission (CEC), 2021a. 2020 Total System Electric Generation. Accessed June 29,

2O22 at https:/lwww.energy.ca.gov/data-reportslenergy-almanac/california-electricity-
data/2019-tota l-system-electric-gen eration.

ZOZlb. Supply and Demand of NaturalGas in California. Accessed on June 29,2O22from:

https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/californias-natural-gas-
market/supply-a nd-dema nd-natu ral-gas-ca lifornia

2O2Ic. California Gasoline Data, Facts, and Statistics, Accessed on June 29,2O22from

https:/lwww.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac,/transportation-
energy/californ ia-gasoline-data-facts-and-statistics

2O23.d. DieselFuelData, Facts, and statistics. Accessed on June 29,2O22trom

https:/lwww.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/transportation-
energy/diesel-fuel-data-facts-a nd-statistics

California Depaftment of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 1994. Staff report regarding mitigation for impacts to

Swainson's hawk (Buteo swainsoni) in the CentralValley of California. November 1'

2020. RareFind 5.0, california Natural Diversity Database. sacramento, california, Accessed

October 7, 2A20. I nformatio n expires 2128 |IOZL.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. 2007. Fire Hazard Severity Zones in SRA. Accessed

on December L,2OZLat: https:#osfit.fire.ca.gov/lnedia/67561fhszs map34.pdf

California Department of Transportation. 2017. List of Eligible and Officially Designated State Scenic

Highways. Accessed on Decembe r 8,202! at: https:/ldot,ca.sovlprEf(amsldesiEnllao-

landscape-architectu re-AId-comm u nitv-liva bilitvl!ep-liv'.i-scenic-hishwavs

California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 2020. lnventory of Rare and Endangered Plants (online edition,

v8-03 0.39). Website http://www.rareplants.cnps.org [Accessed 1 October 2O2Ol.

CALGreen. 2019 California Green Building Standards Code. California Code of Regulations Title 24,

part 11, Available 61: httrs:llcodes.lFcsafe.orq/content/CAGBC20J.9JUL2lSlcover.

City of Folsom. ZQZLa.€reenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy Consistency Checklist. Updated March 24.

Available at: bttps:/l,www.folsgF.ca'Us/home/
showpu bliqlteddocument/1.581"637 5?267773357Q000.

202Ib.2035 General Plan Safety and Noise Element. Available at:

htlpdlw-uLw.{oj:ofl,ca.rr-llhort}rlsLQwpuhfihed-dqcunrerV-756t/*}!W9245MJ!9\}8'
Amended August 24.

129

Page 711

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

2O2Oa. Evacuation Plan. Accessed December 6,2021and available at:

httos://lUww.folsoF.ca.us/homershowpubllsheddoqument/22?9/537478591337570000

2020b,Folsom Municipal Code. Available at httnl//www.codepublishine,com/CA/Folsornl
Accessed December 2, 2O2L

2018a. Folsom General Plan 2035 Environmental lmpact Report. Amended May 2020.

2018b. City of Folsom Fire Department webpage. Accessed December 2,202t and available at:

htt os ://www.folsgln.ca, us/govern me nt/f ire

California Department of Conservation (CDC), Division of Mines and Geology. 1984. Mineral Land

Classification of the Folsom 15-Minute Quadrangle Sacramento, El Dorado, Placer, and Amador

Counties, California, Open-File Report 84-50SAC' Available at:

httpsl//maos.corlgervation.pa.sov/cgglinforma-tionwaretlouse/index.hlml?map=mlc. Accessed

December L,2O2L,

2015. Farmlands Map for Sacramento County. Available at:

Itttpsl/lmaos.conservation.ca.eov/DLRPIClFF{. Accessed November 30,2A2I

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2020. Transportation and Construction Vibration

, GuidanceManual.April.Availableat:httPs://glot'ca.sov1-lmedia/dot'
nedialprggramslerlvir qtgbnvltSvzun-apr?020-jt11v.gjf.

2009. Technical Noise Supplement (TeNS). November.

Carrier. 2005. Product Data 38BRC (50 Hz) 12 SEER Alr Conditioner. Available at:

httss:l&vww.sho.redclocr.conr/hvacldocs/1009/PubljelOZ138BRQ-,L4PO"pdJ.

ChartkoffJ.L. and K.K. Chartkoff. L984. The Archoeology of Colifornio. Menlo Park. Stanford University

Press,

Department of Toxic Substances congol. 2020. EnviroStor. Available at:

https://www.envlrostgr.dtsc.ca.eov/rublic/ Accessed December 6, 2o2l'

Dickel, D.N., p. D. Schulz, and H.M. McHenry. 1984. "Central California: Prehistoric Subsistence Changes

and Health." ln Paleopathology at the Origins of Agriculture, edited by Mark Nathan Cohen and

George J. Armelagos, pp.439462. Academic Press, lnc', Orlandq FL.

ECORp Consulting, tnc. (ECORP). 2O22.-fribal Consultation Record for Compliance with Assembly Bill52

and CEQA for the Vintage at Folsom Project, City of Folsom,

Eriksen, C. H. and D. Belk. 1999. Fairy shrimps of California's puddles, pools, and playas. Mad River Press,

Eureka, California.

El Dorado, County of .20L2. El Dorado County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan: Cameron Airpark

Airporu Georgetown AirporU Placerville Airport. Available at: httns://www,edgtc"olrrlai-l]:gIL

I a n el * u se-co m pa! g bi I it v- pl3 ns -a nd -Lee :sc lr e d u le,

130

Page 712

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 2012. FEMA Flood Map: Folsom, CA Map

06067C0117H. Available from:
https:l/msc.fema.govlnoilallsearch?AddressQuerv=Scholar%20Wav%20Folsom%20CaSsearchr
esultsanchor

Fredrickson, D.A. 1974. Cultural Diversity in Early Central California: A View from the North Coast

Ranges. Journsl ol Colilornia Anthropology 1{1):41-53.

1973, Early Cultures of the North Coast Ranges, California. Unpublished Ph.D. dissertation,

Department of Anthropology, University of California, Davis.

Geotechnical Consultants, lnc.2003. Environmental Conditions Geology: Folsom Lake State Recreation

Area. Available at httnsllwww.parks.ca4ovlpaqes/500/files/6eolop.odf. Accessed on

December 2,2O2]'

Gerow Lgl4. "Comments on Fredrickson's Cultural Diversity." The Journal of California Anthropology

L(21:239-246.

1954. The Problem of Cultural Sequences in Central California Archaeology. Paper presented at

the Annual Meeting of the American Association for the Advancement of Sciences,

Gerow, 8.A., and R. Force. 1968. An Analysis of the University Village Complex with a

Reappraisal of Cenral California Archaeology. Stanford University Press. Stanford, California.

Gervais, J, A., Rosenberg, D. K., and Anthony, R. G. 2003. Space use and pesticide exposure risk of male

Burrowing Owls in an agricultural landscape' J. Wildl. Mgmt. 57:156-165.

Gitbert, t,f ., t879. History of San Joaquin County, California, Thompson and West, Oakland.

Grunsky, F. R., 1989. Pathfinders of the Sacramento Region, Elk Grove Library, California.

Gudde, Erwin G., 1998. California Place Names: The Origin and Etymology of Current Geographical

Names. University of California Press, Berkeley.

1975. Colifornia 6old Camps. University of California Press, Berkeley.

Heizer, R. F., and A. J. Almquisl, t97L. The Other Californians: Prejudice and Discrimination Under Spain,

Mexico and the United States to 1920. University of California Press, Berkeley.

HELTX Environmental Planning, lnc (HELIX). 2O22a. Arborist lnventory Report for 102 Natoma Street, City

of Folsom, CA.

2A22b.Cultural Resource Assessilent for Vintage at Folsom Project,

2022c. Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Assessment for the Vintage at Folsom Project'

2020. Biological Resources and Wetland Evaluation Letter Report for 102 Natoma Street, City of

Folsom, CA.

131

Page 713

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Hoover, Mildred 8., Hero E, Rensch, and Ethel G. Rensch, 1990. Historic Spots in California. Third Edition

by William N. Abeloe. Stanford University Press, Stanford, California.

Hoover, Mildred 8., Hero E. Rensch, Ethel G. Rensch, and William N. Abeloe, 2002. Historic Spots in

California, 5th edition, revised by Douglas E. Kyle, Stanford University Press, Stanford.

Hughes, R.E. (editor). 1994. Toward a New Taxonomic Framework for Central California Archaeology:

Essays by James A. Bennyhoff and David A. Fredrickson. Assembled and edited by Richard E.

Hughes. Contributions of the University of California No. 52, Archaeological Research Facility,

Berkeley, CA.

lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). 2007. Climate Change 2007: The Physical Science

Basis. Summary for Policymakers. Contribution of Working Group I to the Fourth Assessment

Report of the lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. February. Available at:

httos:/lwww. i pcg.qh/reportla r4lw&!/.

Jennings, M.R. and M.P. Hayes. 1994. Amphibian and Reptile Species of Special Concern in California

Final Report submitted to the California Department of Fish and [Wildlife], lnland Fisheries

Division.

Johnson, J.J.1976. Archaeological lnvestigations at the Blodgett Site {CA-5AC-267}, Sloughhouse Locality,

California. Report to the U.S. National Parks Service, Western Regional Office, Tucson, AZ.

1982. Chapter 2: Summary of the Prehistory of the Lower Sacramento Valley and Adjacent

Mountains. Ms. On file, North Central lnformation Center, California State University,

Sacramento.

Kroeber, A. 1., 1925. Handbook of the lndians of California. Smithsonian lnstitution Bureau of American

Ethnology, Bulletin No. 78,

Levy, Richard ,1978. Eastern Miwok. ln Handbook of North American lndians, California, Volume 8,

edited by Robert F, Heizer, pp. 398-413. William G. Sturtevant, generaleditor. Smithsonian

lnstitute, Washington, D.C.

Lichvar, Robert W, and Shawn McColley. 2008. A Field Guide to the ldentificotion of the Ordinary

High-Water Mark (OHWM) in the Arid West Region of the Western United Stafes. Vicksburg, MS:

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Research and Development Center.

Lillard, J.8., R.F. Heizer, and F. Fenenga. 1939. An lntroduction to the Archaeology of Central California.

Sacramento Junior College, Department of Anthropology, Bulletin 2. Sacramento.

Lillard, J.B, and W.K. Purves. 1936. "The Archaeology of the Deer Creek-Cosumnes Area, Sacramento Co.,

California." Sacramento. Sacramento Junior College, Department of Anthropology Bulletin 1.

Maniery Mary L, and Keith A. Syda, 1991. Cultural Resources lnvestigation for the Americna River Bridge

Crossing Project, City of Folsom, Sacramento County, California. Cultural Resources Report on

file with the North Central lnformation Center at California State University, Sacramento.

132

Page 714

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments IsMND

Moratto, M.J. 1984. California Archaeology. San Diego. Academic Press.

McGruder, G. K. 1950. The Upper San Joaquin Valley, L772-L87A, Bakersfield.

Napton, Kyle 1., 1997. Archaeologicaland HistoricalCulturalResources lnvestigations of the proposed

Alpine Natural Gas Operating Company, Calaveras County Natural Gas Distribution Project A. 96-

08-015 {Phase l: La Contenta/Rancho Calaveras}'

National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS). 2015. California Central Valley Steelhead Distinct Population

Segment: 5-year Review. California CentralValley Area Office.

National Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2020. SoilWeb Survey. Available at:

https:l/webgoilgurvev.sc€gov.Ulida,eov/Aon/HomePage.htm. Accessed on November 30, 2021..

2015. 2016 National Hydric Soils List' December 2015.

Available on-line at: https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wpslportaUnrcs/main/soils/use/hydric/

NETROnline, 2022. Historic aerial photographs and USGS quadrangle maps: 1940-2018. Nationwide

Environmental Title Research, LLC' Available from: NETR0nline'com.

Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment {OEHHA}. 2015. Air Toxics Hot Spots Program

Guidance Manual for Preparation of Health Risk Assessments. Available at:

httCIs/rloehlgjca.Rovl.ailfcrnr/ptlce-adoptig!-air-toxics-hgt-sPg!g-nt98ram-FUidance-manu?li
oreoa ratior!:heallbrisk*Q"

powers, Stephen, 1975. Tribes of California. University of California Press, Berkeley.

Ragir, S.R. 1972. The Early Horizon in CentralCalifornia Prehistory. Contributions of the University of

California Archaeological Research Facility 15. Berkeley, CA.

Reed, G. Walter, 1923. History of Socromento County, Colifornia. Historic Record Company, Los Angeles.

Richmond, O.W., Chen, S.K., Risk, B.8., Tecklin, J., and S. R. Beissinger. 20L0, California Black Rails

Depend on lrrigation-fed Wetlands in the Sierra Nevada Foothills. California Agriculture: Volume

2, Number 2.

Rogers, D.C. 2001. Sevision of the North American Lepidurus (Notostraca: Crustacea) with a description

of a new species previously confused with two other species. Journal of Crustacean Eiology'

Sacramento Area Council of Governments {SACOG). 2OL9.2O2O MTP/SCS. November 18. Available at:

httpglfww.sacggors&02$metrooolltan-tran;@rtqtion-plansustainable-comqglities:
Stratesf.

Sacramento County Association of Governments. 2020. Mather Airport - Airport Land Use Compatibility

PIan. September. Available at: !r!1pf:/lwww,sa(.ogq&5ilgllrncilt{filesl
att,strhmerlts&-u!hr.r. rliif L {klqp,Adll,l 6i}j-05%7l.

133

Page 715

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District {SMAQMD). 2020. Guide to Air Quality

Assessment in Sacramento County. Revised April' Available at:

htto://www.airqualitv.olslResidgC.ts/CEQA-[and-Use-Plannine/CEQA-Guilhncg:Tooll.

Shuford, W.D., and T. Gardali, editors. 2008. California Bird Species of Special Concern: A ranked

assessment of species, subspecies, and dlstinct populations of birds of immediate conservation

concern in California. Studies of Western Birds L. Western Field Ornithologists, Camarillo,

California, and California Department of Fish and Game, Sacramento.

State Water Resources Control Board. 2020. Available at: httos:/leeotracker.waterboards.ca.sov/.
Accessed December 6, 2021.

Schenck, W.E., and E.J. Dawson, 1929. "Archaeology of the Northern San Joaquin Valley." American

Archaeology Ethnology 25.

T. Kear Transportation Planning and Management, lnc. 2A22.Yintage at Folsom Transportation lmpact

Study,

The Telegraph, t966.110 Anniversary Edition: 1856-1966. The Telegraph, Folsom, California.

Thompson and West, !88O. History of Sacramento County, California. Thompson and West Company,

Oakland, California.

Transportation Research Board. 2016. Highway Capacity Manual 5th Edition, Washington D.C.

TSD Engineering.2O22. Preliminary Drainage and Storm Water Quality Report. Vintage at Folsom

August 15.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 1987. Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual,

Technical Report Y-87-1, U.S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, MS.

2008. Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wettand Delineation Manuat: Arid West

Region {Version 2.0). J.S. Wakeley, R.W. Lichvar, and C.V. Noble, eds., Technical Report prepared

for the U.5. Army Engineer Research and Development center, vicksburg MS.

United States Census Bureau. 2018. QuickFacts, Folsom City, California, population estimates, July 1,

2019 (V2019). Available at: httns:/lwww.census.sov/quickfpcts/fqlsomcitvcalifornla. Accessed

December 2,2AZ1-.

United States Department of Transportation TUSDOT). 2019, Superfund National Priority List Accessed

on Decembe r 7,202L at httos://www3.eoa-gov/eqyiro/..

2008. Roadway Construction Noise Modelversion 1.1. Available at:

hgpdsrwru,{hwa, clot,eQv{enUirq irner t/to-FelssltsltrjElsllislie&qut'.

2004. Traffic Noise ModelVersion 2.5. Available at:

htlpg://!/ww.f hwa{lS'}.qov/envilonment/rroisg/traffiq-!loisg moelel/tn*r-v2V.

134

Page 716

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMNO

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Seruice (USFWS). 2020. lnformation for Planning and Consultation (lPaC). List of

threatened and endangered species that may occur in your proposed projed location and/or be

affected by your proposed project.

Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc (Youngdahl). 2021. Geotechnical engineering Study for Vintage at

Folsom.

Wilson, N,, and A. Towne 1978. Nisenan. tn California, edited by R. F. Heizer, pp. 387-397' Handbook of

the North American lndians, vol. 8, W. C. Sturtevant, general editor. Smithsonian lnstitution,

Washington, D.C.

Williams, D.F. 1986, California Mammal Species of Special Concern in California. Department of

Biological Sciences California State University, Stanislaus and California Department of Fish and

Game, Sacramento.

Zeiner, D.C., W.F. Laudenslayer, Jr., K.E. Mayer, and M. White, eds. 1988. California's Wildlife. Vol' l-lll.

California Depart. of Fish and Game, Sacramento, California.

13s

Page 717

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommlssion
Vintage $enior APartmente
January 18,2023

(PN 21-15e)

Athchment 26

Comment Letters from Public Agencies

Page 718

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



SACNAMENTO METROPOTITAN

'Ezb
AIR RUALITY

NT DISTRICTMAN AC E

November 3A,2A22

Steven Banks

City of Folsom Planning Department

50 Natoma Street
Folsom Cordova, CA 95630

Subject: Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments MitlSated Negative Declaration (SAC2021026331

Dear Steven Banks:

Thank you for the opportunity to review the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Vintage at

Folsom Senior Apartments project. The project includes the construction of a 136-unit affordable senior

rental apartments in a three-story building on 4.86 acres at 103 East Natoma Street. Sac Metro Air

District commends the project for providing high density, affordable, senior housing with access to a

trail network and within a half mile of a transit stop. We also commend the projea for including cool

roofing and solar arrays as sustainability features. The following comments are intended to further

improve air quality and health and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

CECIA comments
Although the MND determined the project is consistent with the City's Greenhouse Gas Reduction

Stratejy, and therefore not significant for greenhouse gas emission impacts, Sac Metro Air District

recommends the proponent clnsider building the project wlthout naturalgas infrastructure. Not only

does removing naturalgas reduce the cost of infrastructure, operating buildings without burning natural

gas provides substantial public health benefits. Homes in which gas stoves are used have nitrogen

dioxide concentrations 50 to 400% higher than homes with electric stovesl. using a 8as stove and oven

for just an hour often leads to indoor air pollutant levels that exceed California's ambient air quality

standards. This exposure to nitrogen dioxide can cause respiratory effects.

lf the project is built with natural gas infrastructure, Sac Metro Air District recommends the proiect be

pr"-*ir"d to allow for the future conversion to all-electric (space heating, water heating, cooking) to

support the State's goal of carbon neutrality by 2045'

Since greenhouse gas emissions from equipment during proiect construction do not exceed Sac Metro

Air District,s recommended thresholds of significance, the emissions do not need to be amortized in the

analysis.

The calEEMod report in Appendix A includes pG&E as the utility provider for electricity. The proJect is in

SMUD territory, therefore SMUD electricity intensity factors should be lncluded'

1 Rocky Mountain lnsfltute, Basalt, co. Heatth Effects fmm Gas stove Pottution (2020) tlthrs l/rlxi.oroirn$iqhugas:9lgye5io,olll]lillj:

777 LzIhstreet, Ste' 300 ' Sacramento' CA95814

Tel: 279-2O7 -1122' Toll Free: 800'880-9025

AlrQualitY.org

health/

Page 719

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments MitiSated Negative Declaration

Page2

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy consistency

Mitigation Measure GHG-03 requires the project to comply with Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy

Measure T-g {page 69). Measure T-8 requires multi-famifi residential projects with 17 or more units to

provide EV charging in 5% of total parking spaces. To comply with GHG Reduction Strategy Measure T-8,

ihe project would need at least 7 EV charging stations (5% of the 136 stalls). Sac Metro Air District

recommends installing Level 2 EV charging stations.

Mitigation Measure GHG-03 indicates the project will provide 14 EV charging stations. For clarity and

convenience, \fle recommend updating GHG-03 to specify the actual number of EV charging stations that

the project proponent must installto comply with Measure T-8. We recommend that GHG-03 specifo

that at least 7 EV charging stations are required to comply with Measure T-8.

Finally, please note that the MND appears to reference CalGreen incorrectly' The MND indicates (page

 ) the project will provide "12 standard electric vehicle charging station (EVCS) stalls, and two loadin8

EVCS stalti." And further states that "The electric vehicle charging spaces would be approximately 10'3

percent of the total parking spaces, which meets the electric vehicle charging station requirement

outlined by CalGreen (Title 24, Part 11)." This text appears to reference the 2019 CalGreen Code, which

requires that 10% EV capable spaces be installed, but does not require that actual EV charging stations

be installed.

Design comments
to piomote the use of bicycles by residents, Sac Metro Air District recommends the proponent cover

the bicycle parking areas for weather protection and install outdoor electricaloutlets to allow charging

of E-biies, which are becoming more common. Bicycle parking areas should be sized to accommodate

larger bicycle types that seniors may use, including tricycles, cargo bikes, and reclined bikes, consistent

wii'tr the iity oi iolsom's Active Transportation Plan Design Guide, Chapter Vl, and the APBP Bicycle

Parking Guide2,

There is a statement on page 108 regarding that "relocation of the effected bus stop" would reduce

transit impacts to less than significant. No additional details are included in the MND' lf a bus stop will

be relocated, Sac Metro Air District recommends adding a shelter to provide shade and weather

protection to further encourage transit use'

Construction
The MND notes that Folsom's Community Development Department Standard Construction Conditions

include air pollution control and naturally occurring asbestos provisions. Sac Metro Air District

recommends all projects implement the attached Basic Construction Emission Control Practices3. A

listing of the most common air district rules that apply during constructiona is also attached.

2 Association of pedestrian and Bicycle Professionals, Essentiols of Bike Porking (2A751

lrtlJs://wWw.aobn.ore/a:sets/docs/[slqrliialsqfBiLeParkine Ill\l-A oe.lf

3 Sac Metro Air District Basic Construction Emission Control Practices, CEQA Guide Chapter 3 (2019)

l,!!n,//*ww.airguitlity"orslLandUsel-Fttgrortatiorr/tjocurttglrtr/ChJBasicFnrissiarrControlPrqlctieetBMPSFinalT:
2019.pdf
4 Sac Metro Air District Rules Statement (2020)

5fqp:/yUW1y.aUgjJell-ly.g{S&djfzu1gfr. {rlport".ltior $r.desAttachnrentl.0-20l0Firtsl.rrdf

Page 720

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments Mitigated Negatlve Declaratlon

Page 3

please contact me at 279-207-1131 or khuss@airqpalitv.Ors if you have any questions reSarding these

comments.

Sincerely,

(""-,1'd
Karen Huss

Associate Air Quallty Pla nner/Analyst

cc: PaulPhilley, AICP, Program Supervlsor

Attachments

Page 721

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Basic Construction Emission Control Practices (Best Management Practices)

Bnsrc CoNsrRucnoN EMIssIoN CoNTRoL PRAcTIcES

(Besr MRmRcemENr PRAcncEs)

The following Basic Construction Emissions Control Practices are considered feasible for

controlling fugitive dust from a construction site. The practices also serve as best

managemenfpractices (BMPs), allowing the use of the non-zero particulate matter

signifiiance thresholds. Lead agencies should add these emission control practices as

C6nditions of Approval (COA) or include in a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Prograrn

(MMRP).

. Control of fugitive dust is required by District Rule 403 and enforced by District staff.

, Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not

limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and access

roads.

. Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board space on haul trucks transporting soil,

sand, or other loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that would be traveling along

freeways or major roadways should be covered.

. Use wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove any visible trackout mud or dirt onto

a_djacent public roads at least once a day. Use of dry power sweeping is prohibited.

' Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph).

, All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be completed as

soon as possible. ln addition, building pads should be laid as soon as possible after

grading unless seeding or soil binders are used.

The following practices describe exhaust cmission controlfrom diesel powered fleets.

working at alonstruction site. California regulations_limit idling from both on-road and off-

road diisel-powered equipment. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) enforces idling

limitations and compliance with diesel fleet reg ulations.

. Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the

time of idling to 5 minutes [California Code of Regulations, Title 13, sections 2449(dX3)

and 24831. Provide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the
entrances to the site.

. provide current certificate(s) of compliance for CARB's ln-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled

Fleets Regulation [California Code of Regulations, Title 13, sections 2449 and 2449'11-

For more information contact CARB at 877-593-6677, doors@arb.ca.sov, or

www. a rb. ca.ggvldoorslcomglia nce ced 1 . html'

Although not required by local or state regulation, many construction companies have

equiprient inspection and maintenance programs to ensure work and fuel efficiencies.

. Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according to

manufacturer's specifications. The equipment must be checked by a certified mechanic

and determine to be running in proper condition before it is operated.

Vb
AIR QUALITY

sActArEtTO iltItOPOlllAff

MANAGEilTNI OISTgIC'

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quatity Management District
CEQA Guide December 2009, Revised September 2010, May 2017, July2019

Page I I

Page 722

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN,Ea
AIR
MANACE

UALITY
NT DISTRICT

a
ME

Sac Metro Alr District Rules & Regulations Statement (revised 1012020\

The following statement is rccommended as standad condition of approval or construction

ioiuiint nlnguage for att devetopment prcjects within the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality

Management Distrtct (Sac Metrc Air District):

All projects are subject to Sac Metro Air District rules in effect at the time of construction. A

rorpii,i" listing of 6urrent rules is available at Www..airquality,grq or by calling 916-874-4800.

speiitic rules ilrat may relate to construction activities or building design may include, but are

not limited to:

Rule 201: General Permit Reouirgments" Any project thatincludes the use of equipment
phere may require permit(s) from Sac Metro Air

OiJtn"t piior to equipment operation. The applicant, developer,.or operator of a project that

includes an emergency generator, boiler, oi heater should contact the Sac Metro Air District

l"ify to O"tominiit ab|rmit is required, and to begin the permit application process. Other

g;#r*ltypes of ure" ihrt require a permit include, but are not limited to, dry cleaners' gasoline

Itltions, ibray booths, and operations that generate airborne particulate emissions.
portable construction equipm'ent (e.g. geneiators, compressors, pile drivers, lighting equipment,

etc.iwitn an internal comoustion ingine over 50 horsepower is required to havg a Sac Metro Air

oi"irict petmit or a California Air Resources Board portable equipment registration (PERP) (see

Other Regulations below).

Rule 402: Nuisance. The developer or contractor is required to prevent dust.or any emissions

ffimcausinginjury,nuisance,orannoyancetothepublic'

Rule 403: Fuqitive Dust. The developer.or contractor is required to control dust emissions from

ffirageoranyotherconstructionactivitytopreventairbornedustfrom
leaving the project site'

PER Hour. developer or
water heaters),
rule.

contractor is required to water heaters residence

boilers or process heaters that comply with the emission limits specified in the

Rule 4il: Wood Burnlnq Applianc.es. This rule prohibits the installation of any new,

, uncontrolled fireplaces in new or existing

developments.

Rule 442: Architectural coatinqs. The developer or contractor is required to use coatings that

a pound content limits specifiBd in the rule'

R-ute 453: Gutback and Emuls[i.e-d dsphalt,Bavino.M?teriaJs. This rule prohibits the use of
haft for paving, road construction or road

maintenance activities.

777 L2th Street, Ste.300 ' Sacramento, CA95814

T elt 279-2O7 -tt22' f oll Free: 80G880-9025

AirQuality.org

Page 723

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Rule 460: Adhesives and Sealants, The developer or contractor is required to gsg adhesives

and sealants tnat conffinEvolatile organic compound content limits specified in the rule'

Rule 902: Asbestos. The developer or contractor is required to notiff the Sac Melro Air District

@ationordemolitionactivity.Rule902co.ntainsspecificrequirementsfor
surveying-, notification, removal, and disposal of asbestos containing material'

Other Regulations (Galifornia Code of Regulations (CCR))

Sac Metro Air District Rules & Regulations Statement

Page 2

The

developer or contrac,tor required to the Sac Metro Air of earth moving projects,

greater than 'l acre in size in areas "Moderately Likely to Contain Asbestos" within eastern

Sacramento County. The develoPer or contractor is required to comply with specific

requirements for surveying, notificati on, and handling soil that contains naturally occurring

asbestos.

{3 CCR, Division 3. chapter 9. Article 5. Po44blg Eqqipngnt ReFistratipn qroqrqm: The
p$withallregistrationandoperationalre9uirements

of the portable equipment registration program such as recordkeeping and notification.

13 CCR. D-ivision 3. Chaeter 9. Article LF..Q?{49(d}{2} and ll cqR' PlYision 3.

ie idling time either by shutting equipment off

wnen not in gse or reOucin-g the time oi iOllng to 5 minutes. These apply to diesel powered off-

road equipment and on-road vehicles, respectively.

Page 724

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ffisv
Glvw Newsou

Water Boards €!vlnoRMrNT,\! f ,i()Iarirrltr

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

14 December2022

Steven Banks
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
sbanks@folsom.ca.us

GOMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE

DEC LARATION, VI NTAGE S E NIOR APARTIT,IENTS P ROJ ECT, SC H#2022110187,

SACRAMENTO COUNTY

pursuant to the State Clearinghouse's 10 November 2O22 request, the CentralValley
RegionalWater Quality Control Board (CentralValley Water Board) has reviewed the

Reguesf for Review fo,r the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Vintage Senior

Apartments Project, located in Sacramento County'

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quali$ of surface and

groundwatbrs of the state; therefore, our @mments will address concerns surrounding

those issues.

l. Regulatory Setting

Basin Plan
The CentraiValley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for
all areas within the Central Valley region under Section fi24} of the Porter-Cologne

Water eualig ControlAct. Each Basin Plan must contaln water quali$ objectives to

ensure the reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as well as a program of
implementation for achieving water quality objectives with the Basin Plans. Federal

regulations require each state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public

ne?nn or welfare, enhance the quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean

Water Act. ln California, the beneficial uses, water quality objectives, and the

Antidegradation Policy are the State's water quality standards. Water quality

standaids are also contained in the NationalToxics Rule,40 CFR Section 131.36,

and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131.38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws,

policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin

irlans were adopted in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as

required, using 
'Basin 

Plan amendments. Once the Central Valley Water Board has

adopted a gaJin Plan amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by

the btate Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board), Office of

Mrnx BRloroFD, cHAIR I Pnrnrcr Puluee, EsQ', execultvF oFFlcER

.f1020 Sun Canter Drive d200, Rancho Cordov6, CA 95670 I www.waterboards.ca.gov/canlralvalloy

Page 725

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage Senior Apartments Project - 2' 14 December 2022

Sacramento Coun$

Administrative Law (OAL) and in some cases, the United States Environmental
protection Agency (USEPA). Basin Plan amendments only become effective after

they have beLn approved by the OAL and in some cases, the USEPA. Every three

(3) years, a review'of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the appropriateness

of'existing standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Planning issues. For more

information on the Water Quality Control Plan for the Sacramento and San Joaquin

River Easrns, please visit our website:
http://ranrnrr.waierboa rds. ca. gov/cenlra lva lleylwatet 

" 

issueslbasi-!-plans/

mp[withtheAntidegradationPolicy(StateWater
Board Resolution 6S-16) and the Antidegradation lmplementation Policy contained in

the Basin Plan. The Antidegradation lmplementation Policy is available on page74

at:
httpa:/lwww.waterboards.ca.qovlcentralvallevlwater issues/basin plan$/sacsir 2018

05.pdf

ln part it states:

Any discharge of wasfe to high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment

orbontrot not only to preveni a condition of pollution or nuisance from occuning, but
also to maintain ine nignest water quality possible consisfent with the maximum

benefit to the PeoPle of the Sfafe.

This information must be presented as an analysis of the impacts and potential

impacts of the discharge on water quality, as measured by background
concentrations and applicable water quality obiectives'

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant

Discharge Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements

(WDRsfpermitting processes. The environmental review document should evaluate

potential impacts to both surface and groundwater quality'

ll. Permitting Requirements

Constructlon $torm Water General Permit
@iojectdisturboneormoreacreSofsoilorwhereprojects
disturb less than one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that

in total disturbs one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the

General permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land

Disturbance Activities (Construction General Permit), Construction General Permit

Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ. Construction activity subject to this permit includes

clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as stockpiling, or

excavaiion, but does not include regular maintenance activities performed to restore

the original line, grade, or capacity of the facility. The Construction General Permit

requiris the development and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention
plan (SWppP). For more information on the Construction General Permit, visit the

State Water Resources Control Board website at:

httpll/www.waterboards,ca,oov/water issues/nroorarns/stormwaterlconstpermit$.sht
ml

Page 726

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage Senior Apartments Project
Sacramento CountY

-3- 14 December2022

Glean Water Act Sectlon 404 Permit
@edischargeofdredgedorfillmaterialinnavi9ablewaters
or wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 4Q4 of the Clean Water Act may be

needed from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). lf a Section 404

permit is required by the USACE, the CentralValley Water Board will review the

permit application to ensure that discharge will not violate water quality standards' lf
ine proldit requires surface water drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to

coniaci the Department of Fish and Game for information on Streambed Alteration
permit requirements. lf you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act

Section 404 permits, please contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento

District of USACE at (916) 557-5250.

Clean V\fater Act Sqctlon 401 Pormit - Wator Qgpllbt 9eftification
@.,Non-ReportingNationwidePermit,NationwidePermit,
Letter of Permission, lndividual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic

General Permit), or any other federal permit (e.9., Section 10 of the Rivers and

Harbors Act or Section 9 from the United States Coast Guard), is required for this

project due to the disturbance of waters of the United States (such as streams and

welands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central

Valley Water Board prior to initiation of project activities. There are no waivers for

401 Water euality Certifications. For more information on the Water Quality

Certification, visit the CentralValley Water Board website at:

https:l/www.waterboards.ca.qovlcentralvalleylwater igsueslwater quality certificatio

nl

Waste Discharse Requlrements - Dissharoes to Waters of the $tate
ffiihatonlynon-jurisdictionalwatersoftheState(i'e',.,non-
federal" waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed

project may require a Waste Discharge Requiremert (WDR) permit to be issued by

bentrat Vailey Water Board. Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quali$
Control Act, discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other

waters of the State including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to

State regulation. For more information on the Waste Discharges to Surface Water

NpDES program and WDR processes, visit the CentralValley Water Board website

s1;[ttLs://www.wqlerboards.ca.qov{centralvalley/water issueslwaste to surface wat

erl
projects involving excavation or fill activities impacting less than 0.2 acre or 400

linear feet of nonJurisdictional waters of the state and projects involving dredging

activities impacting less than 50 cubic yards of non-jurisdictional waters of the state

may be eligibte foicoverage under the State Water Resources Control Board Water

Ouitity Order No. 2004-0004-DWQ (GeneralOrder 2004-0004)' For more

information on the General Order 2004-0004, visit the State Water Resources

Control Board website at:

https:/lwww.watetboards,ca.oovlbgard decisionslqdqpted o.rders/water qualitvl20O

4/wqo/wqo2004-0004. nd{

Page 727

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage Senior Apartments Project - 4 - 14 December 2A22

Sacramento CountY

Dewaterlns Permit
@ctincludesconstructionorgroundwaterdewateringtobe
discharged to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under S!1te Water Board

GeneraiWater Quality Order (Low Threat General Order) 2003-0003 orJhe Central

Valley Water Board's-Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge

Requirements (Low Threat Waiver) R5-2018-0085. Small temporary construction

dewatering projects are projects that discharge groundwater to land from excavation

activities or dewatering of underground utility vaults. Dischargers seeking coverage

under the General Order or Waiver must file a Notice of lntent with the Central

Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge'

For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application

process, visit the CentralValley Water Board website at:

irttp:llwww.waterboards.ca.govlboard decisionsladopted orders/water q.ualitU?003/

wqo/wqe20!3-0003,8d1

For more information regarding the Low Threat Waiver and the application process,

visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

https:l/unilw.watgrbolrds.ca.oovlcentralvalleylboard -decisionsladopted ord.ers/waiv

ersl.5-2018-0085.Pdf

Limited Threat General iIPDEL Permit
@desconstructiondewateringanditisnecessaryto
discharge tne giounOwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project,wtll

requireloverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)

peimit. Dewatering discharges are typically considered a low or limited threat to

water qualig and may be covered under the General Order for Limited Threat

Discharges'to Sufiaie Water (Limited Threat GeneralOrder). A complete Notice of

lntent rnust be submitted to the CentralValley Water Board to obtain coverage under

the Limited Threat General Order. For more information regarding the Llmited

Threat General Order and the application process, visit the CentralValley Water

Board website at:
https:/lranilw.waterboards.ca.qov/centralvallev/bogrd decisionsladooted orderslaene

ral orderslrS-201 6-0076-01 .odf

NPIES Permit
if the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of surface

waters oi tne St;te, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project

will require coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

(NpDES) permit. A=complete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the

bentralViltey Water Board to obtain a NPDES Permit. For more information

regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the CentralValley

Wlter Board website s1; httpsl/lwww"waterboards..$"qov/centralvallev/helplpermitl

Page 728

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage Senior Apartments Project
Sacramento CountY

lf you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at (916) 4644684

or Peter. Minkel2@waterboards.ca.gov

Pnn^?/rr/t/
Peter Minkel
Engineering Geologist

cc: State Clearinghouse unit, Governor's Office of Planning and Research,

Sacramento

-5- 1!December2022

Page 729

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Powering forward. Together.

OstvluD
Sent Via E-Mail

December 14,2022

Steven Banks
City of Folsom Planning Department
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
sbanks@folsom.ca.uq

Subject: Vintage Senior Apartments, MND I 2022110187

Dear Mr. Banks:

The Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) appreciates the opportunity to

provide comments on the Mitigated Negative_ Dec_laration (MND) for the Vintage Senior

Ajartments (project, SCH 2022110187). SMUD is the primary energy provider for

Sacramento borinty and a portion of the proposed Project area, SMUD's vision is to

empower our customers with solutions and options that increase energy efficiency,

proiect the environment, reduce globat warming, and lower the cost to serve our

i-egion. As a Responsible Agency, SMUD aims to ensure that the proposed Project

lim-its the potential for significint environmental effects on SMUD facilities, employees,

and customers.

We have no comments to offer at this time but would appreciate if the Ci$ of Folsom

would continue to keep SMUD facilities in mind as environmental review of the Project

moves forward. Please reroute the Project analysis for SMUD's review if there are any

changes to the scope of the Project'

lf you have any questions regarding this tetter, please do not hesitate to contact me at
gia.l zz.z a66, or by email at Am mon. Rice@sm ud. ors.

Sincerely,

Ammon Rice
Environmental Services Supervisor
Sacramento Municipal Utility District
6201 S Street
Sacramento, CA 95817

cc: Entitlements

SMUDHO i6201 SStreet lP.O.Box15830 iSacramento,CA95852-1830 11.88A.742.7683 lsmud'org

Page 730

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:
Suhiect:

Boyd, Alexa <AsG5@Pge.com>

Friday, December 23,202212:15 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage Senior APartments

CAUTTON: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Classification: Pu blic

Hello Steve,

This project is under review by pG&E's transmission engineering group for the associated grading and improvements

(retaining wall) before an approval letter can be issued. ln the meantime, I wanted to provide the followinB comments:

a Retaining Wall: Walls, fences, and other structures must be installed at locations that do not affect the safe

operation of pG&'s facilities. Heavy equipment access to our facilities must be maintained at alltimes. Metal

fences are to be grounded to pG&E specifications. No wall, fence or other like structure is to be installed within

10 feet of tower footings. please provide distances from proposed retaining wall to tower footings.

Landscaping: On overhead electric transmission easements, trees and shrubs are limited to those varieties that

do not exceed 10 feet in height at maturity. PG&E must have access to its facilities at all times, including access

by heavy equipment. No planting is to occur within the footprint of the tower legs. Greenbelts are encouraged.

No buildings or other structures are permitted within transmission easement areas; this included signage.

a

a

Respectfully,

il Alexa Boyd I Land Agent

Pacific Gas and Electric ComPanY

Land Management, Land RiShts Services

2730 Gateway Oaks Drive, Ste 220 | Sacramento, CA 95833

Phone: (916) 760-5738

E mai I : gjeIg,Eald3S@Ptr !g n!

I

Page 731

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2A23

a

Attachment 27

Comment Leffers from Residents

Page 732

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

dreamasplace@aol.com
Thursday, June 30, 2A223:42PM
Steven Banks

Vintage project at 103 E Natoma St

You don't often get email from dreamasplace@aol.com. l-earn whv thif is i&DoltEnt

originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

content is safe.

Dear Steve Banks,

I am a resident of the Gimmaron Hills neighborhood directly next to 103 E Natoma Street. We have aftended two

meetings with the owner/developer that wanis to put a three story 136 unit senior (55 and up) apartment building..on that

prop"r[. This property is zoned Bp and while the proposed use is allowed it needs an issuance of a minor conditional

ierhrit io have i ttrreeitory building. l, as well as my neighbors, are requesting that this conditional use permit be denied.

A three story building at this locatation is unacceptable. There are no three story buildings in this area. This property

borders residential nlighborhoods that have single or two story homes, and one story office buildings. Changing this

small plot of land from-RZ to R4 high density is egregious. Not only will it be an eyesore, but it does not fil in with the

adjoining neighborhoods. Those nlignUors along its border lose the privacy and peaceful enjoyment of their
pr6perty.. lmlgine the occupants of ihe third story looking directly into your backyard and back windows. This is not one

bt thos6 neighb'orhoods that have homes close together and look down into each other's back yards. We hgye larger lot

sizes and thb homes are built so that we have that privacy. That is why people have chosen to live here. Please do not

allow the third story, a one story would be more appropriate for this space.

Another main concern is parking. The developer has indicated to us that there are not parking spaces fol every

unit. yikeslll Their response is that not every occupant will have a vehicle. Maybe so, but the reality is that most units

will have more than one occupant and all occupants in those units will have vehicles. Then if you factor in building staff,

caregivers, and vistitors there is not ample parking spaces. This means that their cars will be lining the streets of the

adjoiiring neighborhoods, once again unacceptable, Please require that all units have parking spaces as well as

additional parking for staff, caregivers, and visitors'

It is also our understanding that there will be two entrance/exits. One is proposed to be a right in, right out pasTge. 
!

would ask that this be maJe accessible to service vehicles only. Police, EMT, Fire Dept. The traffic issue is going to be a

nightmare. Natoma has become a very busy street. The additional entrance/exits will put three entrance/exits within a

vjry short distance from each other. dnce igain that is a traffic_ nightmare. Residents in our neighborhood have a hard

enough time gefting in and out as it is. There are already visibility problems as well as a pedestrian crosswalk. This will

be a very dangerous situation.

\Mrat a shame to lose all the beautiful trees and wildlife on this lot, as well as, the minimal undeveloped green space left

in Folsom. This project does not align with the Distinctive by Nature image in appearance or location.

Please take these issues into consideration and not issue this conditional permit.

Yours respectfully,
Dreama Pacheco
d rea masplac-e@aol. com
916496-6536

1

Page 733

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Elaine Andersen
Friday, July 8,20227:14 AM

Steven Banks

FW:Vintage project at 103 E Natoma StSubject:

From: dreamasplace@aol.com <dreamasplace@aol.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 30,2022 3:40 PM

To: Elaine Andersen <eandersen@folsom'ca.us>

Subiect: Vintage project at 103 E Natoma St

You don't often get email from dreamasplace@aql.cQm. Learn whv ihil.jslrnportant

CAU?ION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Oo not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Elaine Andersen,

I am a resident of the Cimmaron Hills neighborhood directly next to 103 E Natoma Street. We have attended two

meetings with the owner/developer that wants to put a three story. 136 unit senior (55 and up) apartment building..on that

prop"r[. This property ir .on",i Bp and while thi proposed useis allowed it needs an issuance of a minor conditional

permit to have a three story nuiroing. l, as well as my heighbors, are requesting that this conditional use permit be denied'

A three story building at this locatation is unacceptable. There are no three story buiHings in this area' This property

borders residential neighborhoods that have single or two story homes, and one story office buildings. Changing this

smal plot of tand iromhi to il trigh denstty is Jgregious, N,ol onf will it be an eyesore, but it does not fit in with the

adjoining neighborhoods. Those ieighborsalong its OorOer.lose.the privacy and peaceful gnjoymenJ of their . .

pr6pertvl lm?gine the occupants of itre third sto-ry looking o,ipclV into your backyard and back windows. This is not one

bt ti,os6 neighSorhoods that have homes close together ind lookdown into each other's back yards. we haye larger lot

sizes and the homes are built so that we have thal privacy. That is why people have chosen to live here. Please do not

allow the third story, a one story would be more appropriate for this space'

Another main concern is parking. The developer has indicated to us that there are not parking spages. fol eYery 
.

unit. yikesl!l Their r"rpon.e is-that not every occupant will have a vehicle. Maybe so, but the reality is that most units

will have more than ond o""rp"nt and all occupants in those units will have vehicles. Then if you factor in bu.ilding staff,

caregivers, and vistitors tnlt'"'ii not ample pari<ing sp€ces. This means that their cars will be lining the streets of the

"oloiiing 
neighborhoods, once again unacieptabie. Please require that all units have parking spaces as well as

aAAitionat parking for staff, caregivers, and visitors.

It is also our understanding that there will be two entrance/exits. One is propos_ed to be a right in, right out.pasqage' !

would ask that this be made accessible to service vehicles only. Police, EMT, Fire Dept. The traffic issue is going to be a

nilntr"re, Natoma nas ulcome a very busy street. The addiiional entrance/exits will put three entrance/exits within a

,"1v ino,t distance from each other. dnce again that is.a traffic.nightmare. Residents in our neighborhood have a hard

endugn time getting in and out as it is. Theriare already visibility problems as well as a pedestrian crosswalk. This will

be a very dangerous situation.

\Mrat a shame to lose all the beautiful trees and wildlife on this lot, as well as, the minimal undeveloped green space left

in Folsom. This projact does not align with the Distinctive by Nature image in appearance or location.

please take these issues into consideration and not issue this conditional permit.

I

Page 734

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Kandi Jones < kandis5T@yahoo'com>

Thursday, July 7, 2022 7:43 PM

Steven Banks

103 E. Natoma StreetSubiect:

You don't often get emall from kandls5T@yahoo.Cem. Lsa$ whv this i5 imooftant

CAUTTON: This email origlnated from outslde of the organization. Do not -click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

I reside on Cimmaron Circle. I am vehemently opposed to the proposed project at the above referenced address for

reasons too many to list here, but are well known to the builder/developers'

Page 735

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

eprkeeperS <eprkeeperS@gmail.com >

Thursday, July7,2O22 8:00 PM

Steven Bank
103 E. Natoma StreetSubject:

You don,t often get email from eprkeeper5@8mail.com. Learn whv this is importg{t!

GAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe'

I reside on Cimmaron Circle and I am vehemently opposed to the proposed project at the above referenced address for

too many reasons to list here. but which are well known to the owner/developers.

Sent via the 5amsung GaiaxY 522+ 5G, an AT&T 5G smartphone

1

Page 736

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

erin@sargentfam.net
Thursday, july 14, 20222:11PM
Steven Banks

Vintage Housing proposal questionSubject:

CAUT|0N: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon,
My name is Erin Sargent. We met at the first neighborhood meeting regarding the Vintage Housing senior living

proposal. I was also in attendance for the second meeting, but did not see you there. I have also tried reachinB out to

you earlier, but we were not able to connect.

l, along with my neighbors on Cimmaron Circle, have some valid concerns with this development. Obviously, anytime

there is a new development, the loss of beautiful open space is mourned, and concerns about noise, traffic, & parking

are all negatives compared to the open space that currently exists. And neighbors who have lived with that open space

behind them for over 30 years are rightfully dismayed. One of the very reasons we purchased our home here six months

ago was because of the amazing trail access and quiet, open feel. our home abuts the trail access from Cimmaron Circle

and therefore, overflow parking for those seeking access to the apartment complex from the Oak Parkway trail is of

considerable concern to me.

However, I understand that this is developable land per the zoning map, and that all the studaes that need to be done

regarding noise, traffic, tree removal, etc. have all been done or are in process.

I have read the zoning code and also understand that there are significant developer incentives or bonuses involved

when considering low income and senior living facilities.

My question is regarding a specific part of the code, namely section L7.LO2.O3A where density bonuses are concerned,

as pasted below:

A. Density Bonus.

1. The city shall grant a density bonus to an applicant or developer of a housing development,

consisting of five or more dwelling units, who agrees to provide the following:

a. At least ten percent of the total units of a housing development for low income households; or

b. At least five percent of the total units of a housing development for very low income

households; or

c. A senior citizen housing development.

All density calculations resulting in fractional units shall be rounded up to the next whole number'

2. ln determining the number of target units to be provided pursuant to this section, the maximum

residentialdensity shall be multiplied by 0,05 where very low income households are tarSeted, or by 0.10

where low income households are targeted. The density bonus units shall not be included when

determining the total number of target units in the housing development. When calculating the required

number of target units, any fractions of units shall be rounded to the next larger number.

3. Amount of DensitY Bonus,

1

Page 737

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



a. General Density Bonus. The density bonus shall be a density increase of at least twenty percent,

unless a lesser percentage is elected by the applicantldeveloper over the otheruvise maximum

allowable residential density. The amount of density bonus to which the applicant/developer is

entitled shall vary according to the amount by which the percentage of affordable units exceeds the

percentage set forth in subsection (AX1) of this section. For each percent increase above ten

percent in the percentage of units affordable to low income households, the density bonus shall be

increased by one and one-half percent up to a maximum of thirty-five percent. For each one

percent increase above five percent in the percentage of units affordable to very low income

households, the density bonus shall be increased by two and one'half percent up to a maximum of

thirty-five percent, For senlor citizen housing developments, the density bonus shall be a flat twenty

percent.

I am curious as to how these density bonuses are calculated, and if Vintage housing is seeking a larger bonus due to the

low income nature of their units? Which is the overriding percentage? Can Vintage claim larger density bonus based on

the low income household status or is the flat 20 percent for senior citizen housing applicable?

Exactly what numbers are the starting point here? On an intuitive level, it seems like a jump from our neighborhood

with R1-ML zone to an R4 high density zone would be more than 20%. This is why I am seeking clarification on the

matter.
I would be happy to discuss the matter over the phone or in person if that is easier for you. I can be reached at 915-849-

2134 at your convenience, and am available to meet in person any time next week'

Thank you so much,
Erin Sargent

2

Page 738

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
lo:

Randy Bundock <randybundock@yahoo.com >

Monday, November 14,202210:08 AM

Steven Banks

Vintage Senior APartmentsSubject:

IYou don't often get email from randybundock@yahoo.com. Learn why this is important at

https://a ka. msllea rnAbo utSenderldentification l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe'

Dear Steve,
It was inevitable someone would want to develop the land across from the prison entrance. My wife and I always joked

if we won the lottery we would buy it and build another bike and dog park, but that hasn't happened yet. lt seems that

there would be a lot of challenges with extra traffic at a 4 way stop since the shift changes at the prison already make

that intersection busy enough. Also how to preserve all the nice oak trees, the small creek that forms when it rains, and

how close the power lines are. A three story building seems like it would be too tall for that area. The city has invested

so much in the JC Trail with bridges and tunnels it would be a shame to clog up the trail access with more cross $affic'

Thank you for your time,
Randy Bundock
218 Spencer Street

Sent from my iPhone

I

Page 739

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Kandi Jones <kandis57@yahoo'com>

Monday, November 14,20221:27 PM

Steven Banks

103 E NatomaSubiect:

You don't often get email from kandis5T@yahoo.com' Learu[hil:bilili.!0pgrtan!

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

I am contacting you to express my opposition to the proposed project by Vintage Properties at 103 E Natoma. I have

several issues, however, my concern at this time is the 3 story proposal and overall design of the building which does not

blend in with the existing neighboring structures, which includes single family homes, businesses, medicalfacilities, and

other multi family apartments. Thank you ' KandiJones

I

Page 740

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Dreama Pacheco <dreamasplace@aol.com >

Wednesday, November 16, 2022 12:53 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage ProPerties 103 NatomaSubiect:

[you don't often get emailfrom dreamasplace@aol.com. Learn why this is important at

https:/1a ka. ms/Lea rnAbo utSe nd erld e ntification l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Steve Banks,

I am writing in regards to the Vintage properties proposed for 103 Natoma 5t. Although I have many concerns what I

would like to address here is the parking situation for this project'

This 136 unit apartment building does not have plans for enough parking spaces. There is not a parking space for each

unit nor parking designated for staff and visitors. The developers answer to this was that not every one living in the

building will drive. That is a nonsense answer, as many of those units will have more than one driver.

ln my research I found eight other properties owned by this company and of the many complaints the one common

thread for all eight properties is those living there cannot find parking. Some complaining that they have to park in the

supermarket parking lot down the road, and one resident complaining she has to park down the road and walk to the

building in the dark. These are seniors, this is not acceptable.

Also having cars scattered all over the neighborhood from lack of parking is unacceptable'

please require this project to have parking spaces for all units as well as additional parking for staff and visitors.

Thank you,
Dreama Pacheco

Sent from my iPhone

1

Page 741

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Farrah Wood <farrahwood@gmail.com >

Monday, November 28, 2A22 2:26 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage Properties at 103 E Natoma Folsom, CASubiect:

[you don't often get emailfrom farrahwood@gmail.com. Learn why this is important at

https:l/aka.msfLearnAboutSenderldentification l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization, Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Mr Banks-

I am contacting you to express my opposition to the proposed project by vintage Propenies at 103 E. Natoma' I have

several issues, however, my concern at this time is the 3 story proposal and overall design of the building which does not

blend in with the existing structures which includes single family homes, businesses, medicdl facilities, and other multi

family apartments. Also the protected oak trees. Thank you.

Farrah Wood
Sent from iPhone

1

Page 742

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Bill Pacheco <billjpacheco@aol.com>
Tuesday, November 29,2022 5:21 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage Senior ApartmentsSubiect:

[You don't often get email from billjpacheco@aol.com. Learn why this is important at

https://aka.ms/Lea rnAboutSenderldentification l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe'

Steve

Our neighborhood has many concerns about the senior apartments planned to be built next to the homes on Cimmaron

Circle.

Natomas is already extremely impacted by the current traffic conditions from all of the building over the past 15 years'

It,s very dangerous as it is and with adding a three story building will increase the traffic and make more unsafe. There is

a crosswalk for the bike/walking trails that has had the signs hit by oncoming vehicles several times. The most recent

time one of the signs has been hit , the driver through the sign over my fence into my backyard. Most people driving on

that road speed and eventually one of the walking path users are going to get hurt. This is already a major safety

problem.

It's also frustrating when you can't leave your neighborhood in a reasonable amount of time.

The road noise/pollution is very loud only going to get louder with more traffic.

There are few services near this location for seniors. This project would make more sense near shopping and grocery

stores.

What is the City of Folsom planning to do about the safety issues, the road noise issues, timely accessibility and the lack

of services for the seniors?

Please excuse any typos this message was sent from my iPhone

Thanks,

Bill Pacheco

Page 743

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

To:
Cc:

Sent:

Subiect:

From: Josh Guthrie <joshguthrie@hotmail,com>

Thursday, December 15,2022 8:42 AM

Steven Banks

Rosario Rodriguez; Mike Kozlowski; YK Chalamcherla; Sarah Aquino;Anna Rohrbough

Opposition to Vintage Senior Apartments across from Folsom Prison Entrance

cAUTIQNT This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content ls safe.

Hi Steve,

I couldn't attend last nights City Council Meeting, so I wanted to write this email.

l'm adamantly opposed to putting a three story senior living center on APN:071-A32O-042, as it will adversely affect my

quality of life, along with hundreds of other residents.

1) The Traffic is already an issue for the residents of Cimmaron Hills entering Natomas street. This will only add to

it.
2l A three story complex doesn't conform to the 'feel' of the area.

3) This project will erode the property values of the adjacent homes by creating direct viewable access to residents

living rooms. Unacceptable design.

4l l'm very concerned about the density and classification of these residences

a. They can be too easily converted to 'Low-income'genialized dwellings in the future, and our area

already carries its societal burden with the medium density dwellings of Montrose and Talisman, and

the areas behind Circle K. The city will be effectively creating a 'ghetto' in the future and this is simply

irresponsible planning.

5) l,m not allowed to build a stair case within 10 feet of my oak tree, but we're comfortable wiping out an entire

oak grove, all at the justification of high density tax revenues. Ridiculous hypocrisy being exhibited here. Again,

unacceptable design.

I seriously hope this isn't approved

Best regards,

Josh Guthrie
242 Spencer 5t.

1

Page 744

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Kat Gray < k.blackman.gray@gmail.com >

Wednesday, December 21,2A22 9:33 AM

Steven Banks

Mitigation Measures for Vintage Homes ApartmentsSubject:

You don't often get email from k.blackman.gray@gmall'com. Lea{n whv this is irnnortant

cAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not cllck links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Steve,
I am inquiring about the Vintage Homes apartment project at Natoma, l'm a concerned resident and homeowner living

near the proposed Vintage Homes site. I know you are probably really busy but I am wondering if you can tell me where

to find information for all the Mitigation Measures listed in the summary. I counted 15 different mitigation measures for

the many impacts this project will have. Where can I find out more? Hoping you can point me in the right direction.

Kat Gray

1

Page 745

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 28

CEQA Response Memorandum
Dated January 4,2023

Page 746

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Memorondum
HELIX Enyltonmontal Planning' lnc'
1180 lron Point Road, Suite 130

Folsom, CA 95630
916.435.1205 tel
s/ww h lilepl.c,o]Ir

Env i r o nm e ntal P I an ni n g

Date: January l'2021

To: Steve Banks, Principal Planner, City of Folsom

From: Robert Edgerton, AICP CEP

Messa3e: Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments Comment lelters Memorandum

Below is a summary of public agency letters and local resident comments received regarding the Vintage

at Folsom Senior Apartments lnitial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration {ISMND} prepared by HELIX

Environmental planning, lnc. (HELIX). The 30-day public review period for the ISMND began on

November L4,2022 and ended on December t4, 2022.

Public Asencv Letters
r Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB) (December \4,20221

r sacramento Municipal utility District (sMUD) (December 14,20221

r Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) (November 30,2A221

r Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) tNovember L7 '2022,

Allfour letters received from the CVRWQCB, SMUD, SMAqMD, and PG&E were standardized template

letters. No response is required for the public agency letters received to date as no comments relevant

to compliance with the California EnvironmentalQuality Act (CEQA) were noted. The public agency

letters may contain relevant information for the City to consider (primarily for conditions of approval

purposes).

Local Resident Comments.

Several comment letters were received from local residents expressing concern with project impacts

related to aesthetics, biological resources, transportation and parking, safety, and noise' No letter

received from a public agency, or a local resident triSgers additional action required of the City per CEQA

Guidelines. All of the issues raised in the comment letters, regarding CEQA compliance, have been

previously addressed in the ISMND. No formal written response from the City is required'

103 E Natoma Letter (November !4,20221

103 E. Natoma Street Letter (July 7,20221

103 E. Natoma Street Letter (July 7,20221

FW Vintage project at 103 E Natoma Street Letter lJuly 8,2O221

Opposition to Vintage Senior Apartments across from Folsom Prison Entrance (December 15,

20221

Vintage Housing proposal question Letter {July 14,2022,

HEL'X

a

Page 747

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Memorandum to Mr. Steve Banks

January 3,2023

?age2of2

HELIX
Envinnnontal Plannitg

r Vinta8e proJect at 103 E Natoma Street Letter (July 30,20221

e Vlntage Properties 103 Natoma Letter {November L6,2O221

o Vintage Properties at 103 E Natoma Folsom, CA (November28,2O22l

o Vintage Senior Apartments Letter (November 29,2022,
r VintaBe SenlorApartments Letter (November 14'20221

Page 748

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Attachment 3

Planning Commission Staff Report
Dated February 15,2023

Page 749

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 1

Type: Public Hearing
Date: February 15,2023

Planning Commission Staff RePort
50 Natoma Street, Council Chambers

Folsom, CA 95630

Vintage Senior Apartments

PN 21-1s9

Conditional Use Permit 
,

:

Planned Development Permit

Densi$ Bonus

The proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project is located on a
+.86-acie parcel sitriateO on the south side of-East Natoma Street
at the intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road (103

East Natoma Street)/APN No. A7t0320-CI42

Steve Banks, Principal Planner, 916-461 '62A7

sbanks@folsom,ca.us

ili'rL) 1t-,.$ ()"&tt

Project:

File #:

Requests:

Location/APN:

Staff Contact:

Property OwnerlApplicant
Name: Vintage at Folsom, LP
Address: 369 San Miguel Drive, Suite 135

Newport Beach, CA 92660

Recommendation: Resume the continued agenda item and upon conclusion

recommend approval of a Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and

Density Bonus for the Vintage Senior Apartments project, based on the findings (Findings

A-U) and subject to the conditions of approval (Conditions 1-76) attached to this report.

project Summary: The proposed project includes development of a 136-unit senior

affordable apartment community on a 4.86-acre site located on the south side of East

Natoma Street at the intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road (103 East

Natoma Street). The following are the specific entitlements requested with the proposed

project.

r A Conditional Use Permit for development and operation of a senior apartment

community on the subject 4.86-acre property'

City of Folsom Page 1

Page 750

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



.t,!

.-:

j,;

;

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1

Type: Public Hearing
Date: February 15,2023

A Planned Development Permit which contains detailed development and
architectural standards for the proposed 136-unit senior affordable apartment
community.

]}TCIILSCINJT

a

A Density Bonus for development of a senior, one hundred percent affordable

apartment community at a residential density of 28 units per acre and a request for

three incentives/concessions including establishing a parking ratio of one parking

space per apartment unit, increasing the maximum building height from 35 feet to

42-feet6-inches (proposed apartment building is 34 feet in heightwith architectural

features extending to 42-feet 6-inches), and increasing the maximum number of
building stories from 2-stories to 3-stories.

These proposed actions are described in detail and analyzed in Attachment 2, the staff

report from the January 18,2023 Planning Commission meeting'

Table of Contents:

Attachment 1 - Modified Conditions of Approval, dated February 15,2023
Attachment 2 - Planning Commission Staff Report and Attachments from the January 18,

2023 Planning Commission meeting

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

a

City of Folsom Page2

Page 751

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
February',5,2023

BACKGROUND'ISSUE

On January 18,2023, the Planning Commission considered a request for approval of a
Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for the
development of a 136-unit senior (5S+1 affordable apartment community (Vintage Senior
Apartments) on a 4.86-acre site located at 103 East Natoma Street. During the public

hearing, 13 residents addressed the Commission and expressed a variety of concerns

regarding the proposed project. A representative sample of these comments is as

follows:

. Concern regarding the high density of the project
o Concern regarding the design and architecture of the apartment building
o Concern regarding the size, scale, and visualcompatibility of the project

o Concern regarding lighting and noise impacts
. Concern regarding pedestrian, bicycle, and traffic safety
. Concern regarding lack of parking being provided

. Concern regarding emergency service response time and access
o Concern regarding impacts to biological resources and natural habitat
. Concern regarding Oak tree impacts

Fo1owing public comment and testimony, the public hearing was closed and the

Commission engaged in a lengthy discussion regarding the proposed project. ln general,

the Commission commented that the project site at 103 Natoma Street was not an

appropriate location for development of a senior affordable apartment community.

Additional comments and concerns raised by the Commission included:

r Concern regarding design and architecture of the apartment building

. Concern regarding the overallsite design of the project

. Concern regarding emergency service response times and fire access

o Concern regarding pedestrian and traffic safety in the project area

. Concern regarding the walkability of the project

o Goncern regarding insufficient parking on the site
. Concern regarding distance to services and amenities for residents

o Concern regarding drainage and wetland impacts

At the conclusion of their deliberation, the Commission was unanimous that it was their

desire to recommend denial of the proposed project. However, the Gommission had

difficulty in identiffing the appropriate basis to deny the proposed project, given the legal

findings required by the HAA.

City of Folsom

Page 3

Page 752

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

City staff indicated to the Commission that in order to deny the proposed project they
would need to make two specific Conditional Use Permit Findings to the effect that the
proposed project would have a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact,

based on objec,tive, identified written public health or safety standards, policies, or
conditions as they existed on the date the application was deemed complete by the City

and that the impacts could not be mitigated without rendering the project unaffordable to
low income households.

After further discussion, the Commission voted to continue the proposed project to the
February 15,2023 Planning Commission meeting in orderforCity staff tofurtherevaluate
potential areas where the project might not be consistent with any established written

objective standards.

POLICY 
' 

RULE

Folsom MunicipalCode
As setforth in Section 17.60.010 of the Folsom MunicipalCode, the Planning Commission

is the decision-making body responsible for taking action on a Conditional Use Permit.

As setforth in Section 17.38.050 of the Folsom Muniqipal Code, the Planning Commission

is also the decision making body responsible fortaking action on a Planned Development

Permit. Lastly, as set forth in Section 17.102.050 of the Folsom Municipal Code, the

Planning Commission is the decision-making body responsible for taking action on a
Density Bonus Request if no concunent application requires Ci$ Council approval.

The project site is zoned BP (Business Professional), which allows development of a
senior citizens residential complex upon the issuance of a conditional use permit by the

Planning Commission, (FMC S 17.22.030 (EX214); FMC 17.22.o4;0(1r;) The Folsom

Municipal Code regulates Conditional Use Permits and states that the findings of the

Planning Commission shall be that the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the

use or building applied for will or will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,

be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use, or be detrimental

or injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood, or to the general welfare

of the city. (FMC S 17.60.040.)

Wtrile the Folsom Municipal Code continues to govern the findings required to grant a

conditional use permit, state law has severely limited the City's abilityto deny a conditional

use permit (and other discretionary approvals) in the context of housing development
projects.

Gity of Folsom

Page 4

Page 753

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartmentrs (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

State Housinq Accountabilitv Act
Senator Nancy Skinner authored Senate Bill 330 ("SB 330'), the "Housing Crisis Act of
2019," to "suspend certain restrictions on the development of new housing during the
period of the statewide emergency" through January 1, 2025 stemming from the lack of
housing supply throughout the state. On October 9,2019, Govemor Newsom signed SB
330 into law effective as of January 1,2A20. Subsequently, the Legislature enacted and

the Governor signed Senate Bill 8, which extends SB 330 through January 1, 2030.

Objective Standards
ln general, the Housing Accountability Act (HAA) restricts the City's ability to deny or
reduce the density of all housing development projects, whether they are affordable or
market rate. (Government Code S 65589.5.) A housing development project can stillbe
denied, or the densig can be reduced, if the proiect fails to comply with applicable

objective standards. (Govemment Code S 65589.5(0(1).) However, the receipt oJ a

density bonus, incentive, concession, etc. cannot constitute a valid basis on which to find

that a proposed housing development project fails to comply with applicable objective

standards. (Government Code S 65589.50X3).)

Under the HAA, "objective" means "involving no personal or subiective judgment by a
public official and being uniformly verifiable by reference to an external and uniform

benchmark or criterion available and knowable by both the development applicant or
proponent and the public official". (Government Gode S 65589.5(hXB).) For a standard

io be objective, it must be "uniformly verifrable," which means that there is little to no roorn

for reasonable persons to differ on whether a project complies with an extemal and

uniform benchmark. Examples of objective standards include height limits, setbacks,

building coverage, lot area, and similar requirements when they are suitably specific. For

exarnple, requirements that building height not exceed 35 feet, that buildings shall be set
back a minimum of 20 feet from the property line, and that building lot coverage is no

more than 60% of lot, are all objective, because it is possible for an applicant, the public,

City staff, and Gity officials to know whether an application complies by reference to
measurable benchmarks. Likewise, design review criteria can be objective by making

reference to specific features, such as a roof pitch with a slope of 1:5. References to
design styles may be objective so long as the elements are clearly defined and include

illustrations.

By contrast, standards that are "so malleable that reasonable minds could differ on

dhether they are mef' are not objective, and may not be used to deny or reduce the
density of housing development projec{s unless specific findings ary 1ad9. lf a standard

requires any level of "after-the-fact interpretive gloss,o it is not obiective for purposes of
the HAA. For example, the City of San Mateo established guidelines that advised an

applicant to avoid changes in building height greatq than one story from adjacent

siructures. The guidetines further provided that if height varied by more than one story

between buildings, a transition or step in height would be necessary. Such standards are

not objective, beiause it is not knowable in advancewhen changes greaterthan one story

Cig of Folsom

Page 5

Page 754

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

in height would be allowable or how much "transition or step in height" would be sufficient
to bring a project into conformity with the guideline.

Standards that require a project to obtain entitlements that involve subjective decision-
making are likewise not objective, and therefore the HM no longer allows the
Commission the discretion it previously enjoyed with respect to housing development
projects. For example, the State Department of Housing and Community Development
advises that, "a standard that requires a general plan amendment, the adoption of a
specific plan, planned development permit, conditional use permit or another
discretionary permit or approval does not constitute an objective standard.' Under HCD's
guidance, the City "shall not require a development proponent to meet any standard for
which the locality typically exercises subjective discretion, on a case-by-case basis,"
because such a requirement would expose housing development projects to non-
objective standards, upending the HAA's protections.

Wth respect to the City of Folsom, our typical use permit findings and design review
findings are not objective because they involve personaljudgment and are not verifiable
by reference to an extemal benchmark. Therefore, the Gommission cannot deny those
entitlements for a housing development project unless it can make the statutorily required
fi ndings discussed below.

On the other hand, subjective standards or guidelines can be used as the basis for
conditions of approval on a housing development project, as long as they do not result in
denial of the project, a reduction in the project's density, or, for an affordable project,

increased costs that render the project infeasible.

Denial of a Housing Development Proiect
As noted above, the HM's key function is to limit the City's discretion to deny or reduce
the density of housing development projects. As such, when a housing development
proiect complies with applicable objective development standards, the City may not deny
the project or impose a condition that it be developed at a lower density without making
statutorily required findings that the project would otherwise have a specific, adverse
impact on public health and safety that cannot be mitigated. (Government Code $
65589.50).) The law defines a 'specific adverse impact' as a "significant, quantifiable,

direct, and unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified, wriften public health or
safety standards'. (Government Code S 65589.5(i)(1XA).) The law also requires the Ctty
to find that there is no way to mitigate the impact without denying the project or reducing
the density. (Government Code S 65589.8(D(1XB).) The receipt of a density bonus or
any associated incentive or concession is not a valid basis for making those ftndings.
(Government Code S 65589.50(3).)

Denlal of an Affordable Housino Develooment Project
The Legislature made it even more difficult to deny an affordable housing development
project, or to impose any condition of approval that renders the project infeasible for the
development of affordable housing. Under the HAA, the City shall not disapprove an
affordable in a manner that renders the
Gi$ of Folsom

or condition approval

Page 6

infeasible

Page 755

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
February 15,2023

for the development of affordable housing, including through the use of design review
standards, unless it makes one of five written findings based on a preponderance of the
evidence in the record:

1. The City has "met or exceeded' its share of the regional housing needs allocation
(RHNA) for the types of housing that the project would provide. (Government
Code S 65589.5(dxl).)

2. The project would have a "specific, adverse impact upon the public health and
safety and there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid" said
impact without making the project unaffordable. (Government Code $
6558e.5(dX2).)

3. The denial is required to meet state or federal law, and there is "no feasible
method" to comply without rendering the project unaffordable. (Government
code S 65589.5(dX3).)

4. The project site is zoned for agricultural or resource preservation and is
surrounded on at least two sides by land used for agriculture or resource
preservation or lacks adequate water or wastewater facilities to serve the project.
(Government Code S 65589.5(dX4).)

5. The project is "inconsistent with both the jurisdiction's zoning ordinance and
general plan land use designation as specified in any element of the general
plan." (Govemment Code S 65589.5(dX5).

Penalties for Failure to Complv with the HAA
lf the City denies a housing development project, reduces the densi$ of the project, or
imposes condition(s) of approval that render an affordable project unaffordable, the
project applicant, a person who would be eligible to apply to live in the proposed projec!,

or a "housing organization" may file suit to enforce the HAA. (Govemment Code S

65589.5(kXlXAXi).) ln addition, the Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD) has authority to enforce the HAA and refer violators to the Attomey
General. (Government Code S 65585(0, (k).) The City could find itself facing multiple
plaintiffs: the applicant, a "housing organization" such as YIMBY, and the Attomey
General.

The City must then prove that its decision was based on one of the statutorily required
findings, and that those findings are supported by substantial evidence in the record.
(Government Code S 655S9.5(i); Government Code S 65589.5(kX1XA).) ln this context,
the City has the burden of proof even though it is the one being sued. (Government Code

s 6558e.6.)

lf the court determines that the City's decision to deny the project, redu@ the density of
the project, or impose condition(s) of approval that render
unaffordable violated the HAA, it will order the City to comply with

an affordable project
the HAAwithin 60 days.

City of Folsom

Page 7

Page 756

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -159)
February 15,2023

lf the court finds that the City acted in bad faith (by, for example, denying the project
without merit), it can simply order the City to approve the project. Either way, if the City
does not comply within 60 days, the court'shall' impose a minimum fine of $10,000 per
housing unit in the project at issue. (Government Code S 65589.5(k).) lf the court finds
that the City acted in bad faith andthe City failed to comply with the HAA within 60 days,
the fine oshall" increase to a minimum of $50,000 per unit. (Government Code $
6558e.5(r).)

Any successful plaintiff is entitled to recover attorney's fees, which typically range from
$100,000 to $500,000 in these kinds of cases. ln a situation involving multiple plaintiffs
(the applicant, a housing organization, etc.), each plaintiff is entitled to recover its own
attorney's fees, so the City would be faced with multiple fee demands in the range stated
above. ln addition, the City would have to pay for its own attorneys to defend the case,
which would ?atry a similar cost.

Finally, if the court rules against the City, it may be impractical to appeal, because doing
so would require the Gity to post a bond, in an amount determined by the trial court.
(Government Code S 65589.5(m).) The City of Los Angeles decided not to appeal an
unfavorable judgment in an HAA case after the trial court required it to post a bond
exceeding $10 million.

DISCUSSION' ANALYSIS

As it relates to the State Housing Accountability Act, the proposed Vintage Senior
Apartments project meets the definition of a "housing development project." (Government
Code $ 65589.5(hX2).) lt also meets the definition of an affordable project, since one
hundred percent of the units will be affordable to seniors. (Government Code $
65589.5(h)(3).) Therefore, if the Cornmission were to consider denying the Conditional
Use Permit for the proposed project, the Commission would need to make one of the five
specific findings noted above.

Under the circumstances, the only potentially applicable finding is number 2, based on
Govemment Code section 65589.5(d)(2), under which the Commission would have to
find, based on a preponderance of the evidence in the record:

a. The proposed proiect would have a significant, quantifiable, direct, and
unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified wriften public health or
safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the
application was deemed complete by the Cit$ and

b. There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid" said impact
without making the project unaffordable.

ln its original review of the proposed project, the City did not identiff any specific adverse
impacts (as defined in the HAA) associated with development of the apartment
community (see Conditional Use Permit Section of Attachment 2).
Cig of Folsom

Page 8

Page 757

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

With respect to requested Planned Development Permit, the Folsom Municipal Code
(FMC. Section.17.22.050) includes objective standards with respect to development
within the BP zoning district. The objective strandards include minimum lot area, minimum
lot width, maximum building coverage, minimum ftont yard setback, minimum side yard
setbacks, minimum rearyard setback, and maximum building height. As discussed within
the previous Planning Commission Staff Report (Development Standards Section of
Attachment 2), the proposed project complies with all of the established objective
development standards. The R4 (General Apartment) District also contains objective
development standards in the same categories just mentioned. (Folsom Municipal Code
Chapter 17.18.) The proposed project also complies with the objective development
standards applicable to the R4 zone, with the exception of parking. Even so, based on
the density bonus law's applicability to parking, the proposed project's parking ratio of 1:1
must be considered consistent with the applicable parking standard. (Government Code
s 6558e.5(D(4).)

A review of the architecture and design of the proposed apartment building was included
as part of the Planned Development Permit (Building Architecture and Design Section of
Attachment 2). As discussed within the Building Architecture and Design Section of the
previous Planning Commission Staff Report, the proposed project is subject to the City's
Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development (Design Guidelines). \Mile City staff
has determined that the architecture and design of the proposed project meets the intent
of the Design Guidelines, these guidelines do not provide specific objective standards for
the purposes of complying with the Housing Accountability Act. As a result, the
Commission would not be able to deny the Planned Development Permit on the basis of
the project's architecture and design. However, the Planning Commission is able to
reoommend modifications to the design, color, and materials of the building so long as
these changes do not reduce the overall density of the proposed project or render it
infeasible for development of affordable housing.

Following the January 18, 2A2SPlanning Commission meeting, City staff revisited all of
the existing wriften objective strandards (Folsom General Plan 2035, Folsom Municipal
Code, Stormwater Quali$ Program, Design Standards for lmprovements and
Construction, etc.) that would be potentially applicable to the proposed project and
determined that the proposed project is compliance with these written objective
standards.

However, subsequent to the January 18,2023 Planning Commission meeting, City staff
metwith the project applicantto evaluate whetherany modifications could be made to the
project to address concerns raised by residents and the Commission. Through these
discussions, City staff, with agreement by the applicant, was able to identiff four specific
areas where modifications to the project could be made relative to traffic safety,
pedestrian safety, parking, and landscape screening.

City of Folsom

Page 9

Page 758

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

One of the concerns raised by residents at the Commission meeting was the close
proximity of the secondary project driveway on East Natoma Street in relation to an
existing pedestrian crosswalk on East Natoma Street and in relation to the existing
intersection of East Natoma Street and Cimanon Circle (western driveway). The speciftc
concem was that the addition of a new driveway and associated vehicle trips would create
a potential safety issue for pedestrians utilizing the existing crosswalk on East Natoma
Street and also create a potential safety issue for vehicles attempting to exit Gimanon
Circle (western driveway) onto East Natoma Street, especially those making a left turn.
To address these two concerns, the applicant has agreed to restrictthe secondary project
driveway on East Natorna Street to emergency service and solid waste vehicle access
only by installing a sliding electronically activated gate located a minimum of 40 feet back
from the entrance to the secondary project driveway.

ln addition, the applicant has agreed to install a pedestrian-actuated Rectangular Rapid
Flashing Beacon (RFFB) system at the existing uncontrolled pedestrian crosswalk
located on East Natoma Street near the intersection of Cimarron Gircle. The design of
the RFFB will consist of two rectangular-shaped yellow indicators each with a light-
emifting diode array-based source that is activated by a pedestrian pressing a button.
Condition of Approval No. 53 has been updated to reflect these modifications.

Another concern expressed by residents and the Commission at the Commission meeting
in January was the lack of on-site parking being provided for the project and also the lack

of parking provided for employees and guests. \Mth respect to increasing the number of
total parking spaces, the applicant evaluated this option and determined that it is not
feasible due to a number of constraints (Oak trees, site topography, etc.) present on the
project site. ln addition, the City is not able to impose any further parking restrictions on
this project because of the Density Bonus Law. (Government Code $ 65915(pX1) and
(pXO).) However, the applicant has agreed to implement a parking permit program

whereby a maximum of 130 resident parking permits are issued and active at any one

time, with ffre other 6 parking spaces designated for exclusive use by employees and
guests only. Condition of Approval No. 54 has been updated to reflect these
modifications.

Lastly, residents and the Commission expressed concern regarding the visual impact the
proposed three-story apartment buiHhg would have on adjacent single-family homes

directly to the east of the subject propefi within the Cimanon Hills Subdivision. To
address this concem, the applicant has agreed to increase the size of trees planted along

the eastern property boundary within a landscape buffer from 24-inch box trees to 36-

inch box trees, with the trees being required to be a minimum of 16-feet-tall when they
are planted. The applicant has also agreed to implement additional measures (soil

analysis, soilamendment, etc.) to ensurethe long-term success of the tree planting along

the eastem project boundary and throughout the project site. Condition of Approval No.

Ci$ of Folsom

Page 10

Page 759

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

38 has been updated to reflect these modifications. The applicant will be responsible for
maintaining the trees and landscaping throughout the life of the project. Condition of
Approval No. 37 was included in the original staff report and is still included to reflect this
requirement.

With respect to the other concerns and comments raised by residents and the
Gommission at its January 18,2023 meeting, the previous Planning Commission Staff
Report and supporting documentation (Aftachment 2) addresses most of these comments
in detail. However, City staff does have additional information to share with respect to
emergency service response times and fire access. The Folsom Fire Department
Strategic Plan2O2O sets a goalforthe overalltime (dispatch, turnout, traveltime) required
for emergency service responders to reach any location within the City, with the standard
for EMS response being 6 minutes or less and the standard for fire response set at 7
minutes or less. The City of Folsom Fire Chief has reviewed the proposed project and
determined that the emergency service response time from Fire Station 35 (Glenn Drive)
to the project site at 103 Natoma Street is less than 6 minutes, well within the City's
targeted response time. In relation to fire acoess, the project site has been designed to
accommodate access for all emergency vehicles with respect to driveway access and
turning radius as well as drive aisle width. ln relation to fire access to the aparfirent
building, the proposed project includes multiple staircases located on the ends of the
building and two elevators centrally located in each wing of the building. ln addition, the
proposed apartment building is required to be constructed to current Building and Fire
Code stiandards, which include the installation of fire sprinklers and fire alarms.

Residents and the Commission also expressed con@rn with respect how drainage and
stormwater quality would be addressed by the proposed project at the January 18,2023
Cornmission meeting. A Preliminary Drainage and Storm Water Quality Report was
prepared forthe project by TSD Engineering on August 19, 2022. The Report states that
the proposed storm drain system has been designed to comply with all applicable
standards includethe Ci$'s Design and Procedures Manual, the Sacramento City/County
Drainage Manual, and the Sacramento Region Stormwater Quali$ Design Manual. The
Report also details the specific measures that will be implemented to manage drainage
and stormwater including maintaining existing storm drain conveyance, implementing
source control measures, implementing low impact development measures, and
capturing and treating stormwater. City staff has reviewed the Preliminary Drainage and
Storm Water Quality Report and determined that with the proposed project has
adequately addressed drainage and stormwater quali$ for the site. ln addition, staff has
previously included conditions of approval (Condition Nos. 15, 16, 28,31, 32, 33, and 34)
in the original staff report to ensure that stormwater and drainage will be managed in

accordance with all local, state, and federal requirements.

City of Folsom

Page 11

Page 760

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintrage $enior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

ENVIRONIUIENTAL REVIEW

Helix Environmential has prepared an lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Attachment2) forthe project in accordance
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEOA) and associated regulations and
determined that with the proposed mitigations, the project will not have a significant effect
on the environment. The Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and noticed
for public comment on the project, and mitigation measures have been included as
Conditions of Approval.

RECOMMENDED PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

Move to:

o Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program prepared for the Vintage Senior Apartments projec't (PN 21-159) per

Attrachment 25 of the originalstaff report in Attachment 2; and

. Approve a Conditional Use Permit for development and operation of a senior
affordable apartmeht communi$ on the subject 4.86-acre property; and

r Approve a Planned Development Permit for development of the 136-unit Vintage
SeniorApartments project on a 4.86-acre site located at 103 East Natoma Street; and

o Approve a Density Bonus for development of the Vintage Senior Apartments project

at a residential density of 28 units per acre and to allow for three
incentives/concessions including establishing a parking ratio of one parking space per

unit, increasing the maximum building height from 35 feet to 42-fet 6-inches, and
increasing the maximum number of building stories from 2-stories to 3-stories.

These approvals are based on the findings below (Findings A-U) and subject to the
conditions of approval (Conditions 1-76) attached to this report.

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE
MANNER REQUIRED BY STATE LAWAND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WTH THE GENERAL PLAN AND THE
ZONING CODE OF THE CITY.

A.

B.

City of Folsom

Page12

Page 761

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



c

D

Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

CEQA FINDINGS

A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE
PROJECT IN ACCORDANCE WTH CEQA.

THE PIANNING COMMISSION HAS CONSIDERED THE PROPOSED
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND
REPORTING PROGMM BEFORE MAKING A DECISION REGARDING THE
PROJECT.

E. ON THE BASIS OF THE WHOLE RECORD BEFORE THE PLANNING
COMMISSION, THERE IS NO SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE THAT THE
PROJECT, AS CONDITIONED, WILL HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE
ENVIRONMENT.

THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION REFLECTS THE INDEPENDENT
JUDGMENT AND ANALYSIS OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM.

THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION HAS DETERMINED THAT THE
PROPOSED PROJECT, AS CONDITIONED AND CONSISTENT WTH THE
REQUIRED MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM,
wouLD NloT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT WITH
THE REQUIRED MITIGATION MEASURES.

H. THE LOCATION AND CUSTODIAN OF THE DOCUMENTS WHICH
CONSTITUTE THE RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS UPON WHICH THE
DECISION lS BASED ARE: CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT, 50 MTOMA STREET, FOLSOM, CA 95630.

*

F.

G

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FINDING

I. AS CONDITIONED, THE ESTABLISHMENT, MAINTENANCE OR OPERATION
OF THE USE APPLIED FOR WILL NOT, UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF
THIS PARTICULAR CASE, BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH, SAFETY,

PEACE, MOMLS, COMFORT, AND GENERAL WELFARE OF PERSONS
RESIDING OR WORKING IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD, OR BE DETRIMENTAL
OR INJURIOUS TO PROPERTY AND IMPROVEMENTS IN THE
NEIGHBORHOOD OR TO THE GENERAL WELFARE OF THE CITY, AS THE
pROpOSED USE lS COMPLIMENTARY TO EXISTING USES lN THE
PROJECT VICINITY AND, AS CONDITIONED, THE PROPOSED PROJECT
WLL NOT HAVE NEGATIVE IMPACTS TO NEARBY USES THAT HAVE NOT
BEEN MITIGATED.

Cig of Folsom

Page 13

Page 762

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



K.

Planning Commission
Mntrage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
February 15,2023

PrllNNEp DEVELOPMENT PERIUIIT FINDINGS

J. THE PROPOSED'PROJECT COMPLIES WTH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES
oF CHAPTER 17.38 (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT) OF THE
FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE AND OTHER APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE OBJECTIVES,
POLICIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF
THE CITY

THE PHYSICAL, FUNCTIONAL AND VISUAL COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN THE
PROPOSED PROJECT AND EXISTING AND FUTURE ADJACENT USES AND
AREA CHARACTERISTICS IS ACCEPTABLE.

THERE ARE AVAIIABLE PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED
TO, WATER, SEWER, AND DRAINAGE TO ALLOW FOR THE DEVELOPMENT
OF THE PROJECT SITE IN A MANNER CONSISTENT WTH THIS
PROPOSAL.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT WLL NOT CAUSE UNACCEPTABLE VEHICUIAR
TRAFFIC LEVELS ON SURROUNDING ROADWAYS, AND THE PROPOSED
PROJECT WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE INTERNAL CIRCULATION.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH,
SAFEW AND GENERAL WELFARE OF THE PERSONS OR PROPERTY
WTHIN THE VICINITY OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND THE CITY AS A
WHOLE.

ADEQUATE PROVISION IS MADE FOR THE FURNISHING OF SANITATION
SERVICES AND EMERGENCY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES TO THE
PROJECT.

DENSIW BONUS FINDINGS

THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR A DENSITY BONUS IN THAT
THE PROJECT IS PROVIDING ONE HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE TOTAL
UNITS FOR LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS OR VERY LOW. INCOME
HOUSEHOLDS, AND IS A SENIOR CITIZEN HOUSING DEVELOPMENT.

R. THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR THE REQUESTED PROJECT
DENSITY OF 28 D\A/ELLING UNITS PER ACRE.

L.

M

N.

o

P

o

Cig of Folsom

Page 14

Page 763

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning,Gommission
Vintage $enior Apartments (PN 21 -1 591

February 15,2023

S. THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS ELIGIBLE FOR FOUR DENSIW BONUS
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS BASED ON THE FACT THAT THE
PROPOSED PROJECT IS DEDICATING ONE HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL HOUSING UNITS TO LOW.INCOME HOUSEHOLDS.

THE PROJECT APPLICANT HAS REQUESTED THREE DENSIW BONUS
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS, INCLUDING A PARKING RATIO OF ONE
PARKING SPACE PER UNIT, AN INCREASE IN THE MA)(IMUM BUILDING
HEIGHT FROM 35 FEET TO 42 FEET SIX INCHES, AND AN INCREASE IN

THE MA)(IMUM NUMBER OF BUILDING STORIES FROM TWO TO THREE

STORIES.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR EACH OF THE REQUESTED
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS.

T

U

City of Folsom

Page 15

Page 764

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartmenb (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

Attachment 1

Modified Conditions of APProval

Dated February 15,2023

City of Folsom

Page 16

Page 765

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2423

Modified Conditions of Approval
(new text shown in bold/underline format)

ConditionNo.3

The project approvals (Planned Development Permit" Conditional Use Permit, and Density

Bonus) granted under this staffreport shall remain in effect for fire three years from final date

of approval (lanuoqr+b2O23 Februarv 15.2026). Failure to obtain the relevant building (or

other) permits within this time period, without the subsequent extension of this approval, shall

result in the termination of this approval.

Condition No. 38

Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape architect and

approved by the City prior to the approval of the first building permit. Said plans shall include all
on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree planting exhibit demonstating

sufficient diversity and appropriate species selection to the satisfaction of the Community

Development Deparbnent. The tee exhibit shall include all street trees, accent hees, parking lot
shading tees, and mitigation trees proposed within the development. Said plans shall comply

with all State and local rules, regulations, Governor's declarations and restrictions pertaining to

water conservation and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping of the parking area shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom

Municipal Code Chapter 17.57. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water

efficient requirements as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill l88l) (State Model

Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom adopts its own Water

Efficient Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant shall comply with any new

ordinance. Shade and ornamental tees shall be maintained according to the most current

AmericanNational Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified tree care

professionals. Tree topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance or any other
purpose shall not be allowed. Specialty-style pnrning, such as pollarding, shall be specified

witfuin the approved landscape plans and shall be implemented during a S-year establishment

and training period. The owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or
regulations on water usage. The owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and

regulations relating to landscape water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to

mitigate for drought conditions on all landscaping in the Vintage Senior Apartnents project.

All trees installed along the eastern nrooertv boundary. directlv adiacent to residences on

Cimmaron Circle. shall be 36-inch box trees that are a minimum of siFtepn (16) feqt t84.at
the time of olantinq. Tree stock shall complv with the specifications within thgANSI Z6Ql
American Staudard for Nunrerv Stgck F'inal snecies selection and container sizes shall be

included in the linal landscape plans. subiect to review and approval bv the Communitv
Develoonent Densrtment

City of Folsom

Page 17

Page 766

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
February 15,2023

TUe owner/applicant shall retain a consultine oroiect arborist throueFout the duration of
thi final desiqn snd construction ohases of the proiect Prior to aoolvine for anv grading.

civil. or buildine permits. the aoplicant shall submit a scone of sentices prepqfed bv the

nroiect arborist to the Citv Arborist for review and aooroval. Said scooe shall include the
followinc seruices:

. A statement of qualifications bv the nroiect arborist attestine cefiification bv the

international Societv of Arboriculture flSA) for a minimum of 5 vears and

dcnonstratinq multiple vears of exnerience in urban landscape,4anaeement and
land development The oroiect arborist sha! also be-familiar with and subscribe to

anv & all AltlSI standards & ISA Best Msnasement Pnctices (BMPs) relatine to
arboricultural practices ss applicable for the proiect

r Oversiqht of soils analvses to ensure ontimal plant growth and lonq-tem success

rgithin all landscaoe areas of the proiect site.

1 Collaboration in the desiqn. development and renderine of all lqndsclno and civil
co,nst-ruction drawines and details relating and imoactful to soil health. drainaee.

tree niantinq. irrisation. and rclated elements with reqard to lone term success of
trees to be phntcd within the proiect site.

o Implementation of aonrooriate soil amendments based on soil analYses and.proiect

irb,orist tecommendations to promote healthv root growth and lone-term success of
nlant materials.

o Flcilitation of appropriate measures and means to ensure sufrigient soil oorositv.

narcolrtion and drainage oflandscape areas based on soils analvses and nroiect
arborist recommendations.

o Otversiqht of tree species selection for climate aprropriateness. plante,r size.

eco,lo,sical benefits. and species diversitv in accordance with citv standards.

Prescriotions for anv alterrative innovative civil and landscane construction

methodoloei€s to increase the likelihood of lons-tem success of tr€o nlrntinss
within the oroiect site.

Administer imolementation and installation of aopropriate fgllt zone aeration

svstens.

Insnection of tree nursery stock to ensure healthv nla4t material. thwart root stocE

issu€s. and verifv compliance with AIISI 260.1 (American Standard for NurserT

Stock).

o

I

a

City of Folsom

Page 18

Page 767

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

Prescribo and implement methodoloqies for proner root manaqement and treatment
methodoloeies.

Overuieht of tree installation throuehout the oroiect site. verifyins comoliance with
the ISA Best Manasement Practices for trec nlantins.

Prenaration of a S-vear tree manasement olan for all trees planted wlthin the
proiect site. Said manasement nl$.n shall include an inventory of all trees plantcd on
the nroiect site with an insnection and maintenance schedule for tree health
monitorine. structural nrunins bv an ISA certified arborist. stake removal.
mulching. irdgation adiustments. tree replacement and anv other mansgement
practices deemed relevant bv the proiect arborist. The S-vear manasement plan

shall be suoolied to both the nropertv owner an4 the Citv Arborist orior to the
Certificate of Occunancv.

X'ollowine Citv approyal of the oroiect arboristts scooe of services. the apolicant shall
orovide a coov of the executed contract for such services to the Citv orior to annlvins for
anv gradinq. civil. or building permits. Upon proiect completion. a final arborbt renort bv
the nroiect arborigt attestine comoliance with the Citv-aooroved arboricultglpl scone of
sen'ices and a copv of the S-year tree manasement nlan shall be suoolied to the Citv
Arborist

ConditionNo.53
Based on the recommendations of the Transportation Impact Study dated February 2422
(Attachment 2l), and to firther ensure further ensure safe travel within the project site, the

following measunes shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department:

East Natoma SFeet (Eastbound)

o The owner/applicant shall construct a 1S0-foot right-turn pocket with 60-foot taper on the

eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The existing bike bail
shall be relocated to accommodate the right-turn lane. The relocated bike trail shall be

placed in a dedicated pedeshian access and trail easement which shall be recorded prior
to plan approval. With this proposed modification, the eastbound approach to Prison

Road from East Natoma Street shall include one left-tum lane, one thnr lane, and one

right-turn lane.

East Natoma Street (Westbourd)

o The owner/applicant shall construct a 100-foot left-tum pocket with a raised median with
a 60-foot taper on the westbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The

median shall allow emergency vehicle accesVegress and the modifications required for
emergency vehicle access/egress shall be approved by the City of Folsom Fire

Deparfnent. Wittr these proposed modifications, the westbound approach to Prison Road

from East Natoma Steet shall include one shared thru/right-turn lane and one left-turn
lane.

a

a

Ci$ of Folsom

Page 19

Page 768

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
February 15,2023

Prison Road (Southbound)
o Prior to entering State property, the contactor shall execute a right-of-entry agreement

with the State of Californiq Department of Corrections.

o The owner/applicant shall restripe the existing right-turn lane at the southbound approach

to East Natoma Street from Prison Road to indicate that this lane is a shared thru and

right-turn lane. The existing dedicated left-turn lane shall remain as currently striped.

Primary Pfoject Driveway (EastNatoma Sheet)

" tt r 
"*trer/applicant 

shall constnrct a shared thru/righftum lane and a dedicated left-turn

lane at the northbound approach to East Natoma Street at the primary project driveway.

The shared thrdright-turn lane and dedicated left-turn lane shall include a 70-foot tum
pocket and a 60-foot taPer.

Secondarv Proiect Driveway (EAst Natoma Sheet)

glm*honn€tittisa taper at $€ seeondary

weitbetuC EastNaterne S*eet te the sadsfaetien efths CernrnuniF Develepment
g€paffi€nt

o The ewner/sfplieaat shall insCl'3Step" sigtrs apprepd*t€ pavenrrtmarkingsr a$d

$tgnage at flt€ se€€ndarY Prqie€Fe

o The Secondanr Proiect Drivewav on East Natoma Street be restricted.to Emergencv

Vohicle Accress (EVA) and solid waste vehicle access onlv. The owner/applicant

@electronicallv activated qate located a minimFq of 40 feet back

fro,m the entrance to the Secondarv Proiect Drivewav. The final dqsign of the EVA
ffi and anproval bv the Fire Denartqent,an{ the Communitv

@ent. City stafr(Fire Denar,tment. Police Depa{tment. Solid

Waste Dtivision) shall be orovided remote transmitters to active the slidins gate.

East Natoma Steet/?rison Road Traffic Siemal and Signal Timing

" Tt e o*ter/applicant shall construct a taffic signal at the fourth leg of the intersection of
EastNatomaSteet and Prison Road and modiff all existing taffic signal improvements

to the satisfaction of the Community Development Deparfrnent.

o The ownerlapplicant shall coordinate retiming the taffic signal at the intersection ofEast

Natoma Sheet and Prison Road as follows:
o Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and southbound

split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 secbnd northbound southbound split

ptrar.s and 2O second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and62 second

eastbound and westbound through phases. Crosswalks shall be setto22 seconds to

accommodate a 3 feet per seconding walking speed'

East Natoma Steet Frontage Improvements
o The owner/applicant shall install curbs, gutter, a bicycle lane, and sidewalks along the

project's frontage with East Natoma Street as shown on the submitted site plan. In
addition. the shall construct curbs. gutters,

City of Folsom

Page 20

a bicvcle lane. and sidewalks

Page 769

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior APartments
February 15,2023

(PN 21-159)

from the project's eastern boundary approximately 120-feet to the east to connect to the

existing off-site sidewalk and associated improvements. The owner/applicant shall enter

into a credit reimbursement agreement with the City to cover the costs of these off-site

frontage improvements.

East Natoma Pedestria4 Crosswalk
Thcrewner/anmrlicant shail install a nedestrian-actusted Rectaneular Raoid Flashins

Beacon (RFFB) swtem at the existins uncontrolled markd pcdestrisn crosswdk located

on Sast Nato,ma Street aoproximatelv 50 fect west of the intersection of Esst Natoma Street

and Cimarron Circle. The desim of the RFFB shall con$ist of two rectansu!ry-shaped

ffiL a fieht-emittine diode arrav-based source. The final desiqn of
the o,f theRI'tr'B shall be sFbiect to review and aoproval bv the Communitv Dcvelonment

and Public lVorks DePartments.

ConditionNo.54

A minimum of 136 on-site parking spaces shall be provided for the project. !!9
owner/annlicant ghall imolement a resident permit narkinq oroqram wherebv a maximum

of 130 resident oarkins pemits are issued and active at anv one time. 5 narkins sDaces

shall be desimated for exclusive use bv emulovees and quests onlv. The owner/applicant

shall install siqnaee and oavement markines that desisnate which 6 on-site narkine snaces

are restricted for use bv emoloYees and visitort.

City of Folsom

Page 21

Page 770

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
February 15,2023

Attachment 2

Planning Commission Staff Report and

Attachments from the January 18,2023

Planning Gommission meeting

City of Folsom

Page22

Page 771

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



CITY OF

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2
Type: Public Hearing

Date: January 18,2023

Planning Gommission Staff RePort
50 Natoma Street, Council Chambers

Folsom, CA 95630

Vintage Senior Apartments

PN 21-159

Conditional Use Permit

Planned Development Permit

Density Bonus

The proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project is located on a
4.86-acre parcel situated on the south side of East Natoma Street
at the intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road (103
East Natoma Street)/APN No. 071-0320-042

Steve Banks, Principal Planner, 916-461-6207
sbanks@folsom.ca.us

F @r-s$e&

Project:

File #:

Requests:

LocationlAPN:

Staff Contact:

a

Property Owner/Applicant
Name: Vintage at Folsom, LP
Address: 369 San Miguel Drive, Suite 135
Newport Beach, CA 92660

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion recommend approval

of a Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for the

Vintage Senior Apartments project, subject to the findings (Findings A-U) and conditions

of approval (Conditions 1-76) attached to this report.

Project Summary: The proposed project includes development of a 136-unit senior

affordable apartment community on a 4.86-acre site located on the south side of East

Natoma Street at the intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road (103 East

Natoma Street). The following are the specific entitlements requested with the proposed

project.

A Conditional Use Permit for development and operation of a senior apartment

community on the subject 4.86-acre property.

City of Folsom Page 1

Page 772

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



clrY oF

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2
Type: Public Hearing

Date: January 18,2023

A Planned Development Permit which contains detailed development and

architectural standards for the proposed 136-unit senior atfordable apartment
community.

A Density Bonus for development of a senior affordable apartment community at

a residential density of 28 units per acre and a request for three

incentives/concessions including establishing a parking ratio of one parking space

per apartment unit, increasing the maximum building height from 35 feet to 42-feet

6-inches (proposed apartment building is 34 feet in height with architectural

features extending to 42-feet 6-inches), and increasing the maximum number of

building stories from 2-stories to 3-stories.

s"0H-ssee

a

a

These proposed actions are described in detail and analyzed later in this report.

Table of Contents:

Attachment 1 - Background and Setting
Attachment 2 - Project Description
Attachment 3 - Analysis
Attachment 4 - Conditions of Approval
Attachment 5 - Vicinity MaP

Attachment 6 - Site Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 7 - Preliminary Utility Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 8 - Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 9 - Preliminary Grading Sections, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 1O - Preliminary Landscape and lrrigation Plans, dated October 20,2022
Attachment 1 1 - Preliminary Tree lmpact Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachment 12 - Preliminary Oak Tree Mitigation Plan, dated October 20. 2022

Attachment 13 - Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan, dated October 17,2022
Attachmenl l4 - Preliminary Fire Access Plan, dated October 17, 2022

Attachment 15 - Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details, dated November 3,2021
Attachment 16 - Building Elevations and Floor Plans dated June3,2022
AttachmenllT - Color Building Renderings, dated June3,2022
Attachment 18 - Building Site Sections, dated June 3,2O22
Attachment 19 - Color and Materials Board, dated June 3,2022
Attachmenl20 - Vintage Senior Apartments Booklet (Separate Bound Document)

Attachmenl2l - Site PhotograPhs
Attachmen t 22 - Transportation lmpact Study, dated July, 2022
Attachment23 - Parking Memorandum, dated October 17,2022

City of Folsom Page2

Page 773

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



AGENDA ITEM NO.2
Type: Public Hearing

Date: January 18,2023

F @r-sqlnfl

Attachment 24 - Parking Case Study, dated January 3,2023
Aftachment 25 - lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring

and Re porting Prog ram, dated November, 2O22 (electron ic version
available for viewing at www.folsom.ca. us/governmenUcommunitv-
develpmenUplanninq-services/current-oroiect-information

Attachment 26 - Comment Letters from Public Agencies
Attachment 27 - Comment Lefters from Residents
Aftachment 28 - CEQA Response Memorandum, dated January 3,2023

Submitted

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

City of Folsom Page 3
Page 774

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

ATTACHMENT 1

BACKGROUND AND SETTING

Background:

On April 20, 2OO5, the Planning Commission considered a request for approval of a
General Plan Amendment, Rezone, Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and Planned

Development Permit for development of a 21-unit single-family residential subdivision on

a 4.86-acre site located at 103 East Natoma Street, the same parcel at issue here. The

Planning Commission continued the proposed project off-calendar on multiple occasions

in order to provide the applicant with additional time to address concerns raised by the

Commission and by residents. The applicant ultimately decided not to pursue

development of the proposed subdivision and subsequently withdrew their development

application.

On January 7, 2OOg, the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map and

Planned Development Permit for development of a 32,000-square-foot professional office

park on the same 4.86-acre parcel located at 103 East Natoma Street. As was the case

with the prior residential development application, the applicant decided not to move

forward with development of the professional office park and withdrew their development

application.

Physical Setting

The triangular-shaped 4.86-acre project site is located on the south side of East Natoma

Street at the intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road. The project site, which

slopes moderately from east to west with an approximate 2O-foot elevation change,

features a vegetative communi$ that includes blue oak woodland, non-native grasses,

and ephemeral and intermittent drainage features. The project site has been disturbed

by the recreational use of bicycles and includes several pathways, dirt ramps and jumps.

ln addition, there is evidence of use of the site by transients as exhibited by several debris

piles and associated trash. The project area includes a mixture of land uses including

single-family residences, multi-family residences, medical and professional offices, a
senior center, a food bank, local government offices, a hospital, a state prison, a church,

and an overhead transmission line corridor. An aerial photograph of the project site and

surrounding land uses is shown in Figure 1 on the following page.

City of Folsom Page 4

Page 775

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 1: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH OF PROJECT SITE

PROJECT SITE

City of Folsom Page 5

Page 776

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

ATTACHMENT 2
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL

The applicant, Vintage at Folsom LP, is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit,

Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for the development of a 136-unit
senior (55+; affordable apartment community (Vintage Senior Apartments). The project

is proposed on a 4.86-acre parcel located on the south side of East Natoma Street at the
intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road.

A Conditional Use Permit is requested to allow for development and operation of the
senior affordable apartment project on the subject property, as required by the Folsom
Municipal Code in this location.

A Planned Development Permit is requested to allow for review of project-specific

development standards, project site design, and the architectural design of the multi-
family residential building.

Lastly, a Density Bonus is requested to allow development of the apartment project at a
residential density of 28 units per acre and to provide for three incentives/concessions,
including establishing a parking ratio of one parking space per apartment unit, increasing
the maximum building height from 35 feet to 42-leel.6-inches, and increasing the
maximum allowed number of building stories lrom 2 stories to 3 stories (proposed

apartment building is three-stories tall and 34 feet in height with architectural features
extending lo 42-feet 6-inches).

The proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project includes development of a three-story,
34-foot-tall apartment building totaling 111,755 square feet. The proposed apartment
building features a total of 136 units including 98 one-bedroom units (552-559 square
feet) and 38 two-bedroom units (748 square feet). All apartment units are proposed to
be accessible from interior hallways and include a full kitchen, living space, a laundry
room, storage closets, a bedroom(s), and a bathroom. Proposed indoor and outdoor
amenities include a 2,500-square-foot community center (includes community room, craft
room, exercise room, game room, and library) on the first floor of the apartment building,
an outdoor dining patio, an outdoor barbeque area, a bocce ball court, and a native habitat
area.

All of the apartment units will be age-restricted to individuals 60 years and older. ln

addition, all of the apartment units will be designated as affordable for Low lncome (Ll)

and Very Low lncome (VLl) households as defined by State and City requirements, with
122 units being made available to Ll individuals with incomes at or below 600/o of the
Sacramento area median income (AMl) and 14 units made available to VLI individuals
with income at or below 50o/o of the AMl. As an example, a one-person household would

City of Folsom Page 6

Page 777

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

only qualify to live at Vintage Senior Apartments if their income was below $56,750 (60%

AMi/Lt) or $35,500 (50% Anlrulll, while a two-person household would qualify if their

income was below $64,850 (60% AMI/LI) or $40,550 (50% AMlruLl).

Development of the proposed project will require State Funding through affordable

housing tax credits, namely, the CTCAC Bond Program, and other state and federal

financing resources offering apartment homes to income-qualified active seniors. Unlike

other prior Affordable Projects developed within the City of Folsom, the applicant is not

requesting financial participation from the City of Folsom.

The proposed project, including placement of the three-story apartment building, has

been designed'to preserve key open space areas containing numerous oak trees while

also recognizing the unique topographical and physical features present on the project

site. ThJproposed three-story apartment building features a contemporary residential

design nightignteO by simple rectilinear forms and shapes with vertical and horizontal

corlonents utitized io create visual interest while also breaking up the massing of the

building. Proposed building materials include stucco, vertical board and batten siding,

brick vlneer, wood shutters, stucco trim, wrought iron railing, vinyl windows, and

composition shingle roof tiles. The primary building colors are earth tone and include

various shades oi brown (Midnight Brown, Wooden Acre, and Wooden Peg) accented

with a number of more vibrant white (Light House) and reddish colors (High Desert).

The proposed project includes a number of sustainability features consistent with the

Catifornia Green buibing Standards Code (CALGreen). The project is expected to

exceed the 2016 California Building Energy Efficiency Standards (Title24, Part6) by 15o/o

or more. The proposed project includes:

o lnstallation of a rooftop photovoltaic system (approximately 199 kW) that will serve

the apartment building.

o lnstallation of cool paving materials (slag concrete).

o 14 electric vehicle capable parking spaces (spaces wired for future installation of
an electric vehicle charging station).

primary vehicle access to the project site will be provided by a new full-access driveway

tocated on the south side of East Natoma Street at the signalized intersection of East

Natoma Street and Prison Road. To accommodate installation of the new primary

driveway, the proposed project is required to modiff the existing three-way signalized

interseciion at East Natoma Street and Prison Road and convert it into a four-way

signalized intersection. Secondary access to the project site is provided by a new

Oiiveway on the south side of East Natoma Street, approximately 250 feet to the east of
the proposed primary driveway. The secondary driveway, which will feature Stop-sign

conirol for exiting vehicles, will be limited to right-turns in and right-turns out only'

City of Folsom Page 7

Page 778

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Proposed internal vehicle circulation consists of a single 27-foot-wide drive aisle that
loops around the project site and connects the two project driveways. Pedestrian and
bicycle access and circulation is provided by realignment of an existing Class I bicycle
trail located in the northwest portion of the project site, existing Class lll bicycle lanes on
East Natoma Street, construction of a new sidewalk along the south side of East Natoma
Street, installation of new internal sidewalks and walkways throughout the project site,
and construction of a pedestrian/bicycle connection from the project site to an existing
Class I bicycle trial (Oak Avenue Parkway Trail) located south of the project site.
Additional site improvements include 136 on-site parking spaces (includes 14 electric
vehicle capable parking spaces), 28 bicycle parking spaces, underground utilities, a

drainage swale, bio-retention planters, retaining walls, fencing and screen walls, a bocce
ball court, an outdoor patio, site lighting, site landscaping, a trash/recycling enclosure,
and a monument sign. The proposed site plan is shown in Figure 2 below.

FIGURE 2: PROPOSED SITE PLAN

t.,

J
{"-

FRA.IMINANY SITE PIAN

N.{TONTASNIOR
APARTMENTS

CITT'OFFOIJOM, CA
rffi;;;;i;:---------lts* -*tlffil'

.}--t

.,t

.*+ l[^'*--

City of Folsom Page 8

Page 779

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

ATTACHMENT 3
ANALYSIS

The following sections provide an analysis of the applicant's proposal. Staffs analysis

includes:

A. General Plan and Zoning Consistency

B. Conditional Use Permit

o Land Use Compatibility

C. Planned Development Permit

. DevelopmentStandards

. Building Architecture and Design

D. Density Bonus

E. Traffic/Access/Circulation

F. Parking

G. NoiseA/ibration lmpacts

H. Walls/Fencing

l. Site Lighting

J. Signage

K. Trash/Recycling

L. Existing and Proposed Landscaping

M. Tree Preservation

N. Conformance with Relevant Folsom General Plan Objectives and Policies

O. Native American Consultation

A. General Plan and Zoning Consistency

General Plan and Zoninq Consistencv
The General Plan land use designation for the project site is PO (Professional Office)

while the zoning designation is BP PD (Business and Professional, Planned Development

District). The proposed project is consistent with both the General Plan land use

designation and the zoning designation for the site, as senior citizen residential

developments are identified as a permitted land use within the zoning designation for this

site with approval of a Conditional Use Permit. ln addition, the proposed project meets

the development requirements established for the BP zoning district with respect to lot

area, lot width, building height, building coverage, and building setbacks. Parking

standards for senior residential prolects are established through the Planned

City of Folsom Page 9

Page 780

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Development Permit process and are discussed later within the Parking Section of this

report.

B. Conditional Use Permit

Land Use Compatibility
The proposed project is located on an undeveloped, 4.86-acre commercially zoned
property situated on the south side of East Natoma Street at the intersection of East

Natoma Street and Prison Road. As described and shown in the Background section of
this staff report, the project site is bounded by single-family residential development to
the east with Cimarron Circle beyond, a PG&E transmission corridor to the west with

commercial offices and Fargo Way beyond, East Natoma Street to the north with Folsom

State Prison beyond, and a PG&E transmission corridor to the south with single and multi-

family residential development beyond.

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit to develop and operate

a 136-unit senior affordable apartment community on the subject 4.86-acre project site

located at 103 East Natoma Street. The Conditional Use Permit is required for the
proposed use in this location, which is zoned Business Professional. The Folsom

Municipal Code describes the BP zone as follows: "The intent of the BP zone is to
designate areas suitable for business and professional offices. Uses in the BP zone are

intended to be low-intensity commercial uses and compatible with higher-intensity

residential uses. Retail commercial activities are discouraged. The BP zone may serye

as a buffer between retail commercial and residential areas. The BP zone should be

located along major arterials or have direct access to one via a collector street.". The

FMC states that a "senior citizens residential complex" is permitted in the BP zone upon

issuance of a conditional use permit. (FMC S 17.22.030(EX 21a); 17.22.040(1).)

ln order to approve this request for a Conditional Use Permit, the Commission must find

that the "establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use or building applied for will

not, under the circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the health, safety,

peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of persons residing or working in the

neighborhood of such proposed use, or be detrimental or injurious to property and

improvements in the neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City.' (FMC S

17.60.040.)

ln reviewing the request for a Conditional Use Permit, staff took into consideration the

compatibility of the proposed land use in relation to the existing land uses in the immediate
prolect vicinity. Potential noise impacts, traffic impacts, parking impacts, oak tree

impacts, and aesthetic impacts were also analyzed and are addressed within separate

sections of this report.

City of Folsom Page 10

Page 781

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

As mentioned earlier within this report, the project site is located in close proximity to a

major arterial roadway (East Natoma Street) and within an area that features a broad

mixture of different types of land uses including single-family residences, multi-family

residences, medical and professional offices, a senior center, a library, a food bank, local

government offices, a hospital, a church, a state prison, and an overhead transmission

line corridor.

ln the immediate project area, the existing land uses are predominantly residential in

nature. The project is bound by single-family residences (Cimarron Hills Subdivision) to

the east with Cimarron Circle and additional single-family residences beyond, an

overhead transmission line corridor to the west with office development and Fargo Way

beyond, an overhead transmission line corridor to the south with single-family and multi-

family residences beyond, and East Natoma Street to the east with Folsom State Prison

beyond.

The proposed Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments project is an active-adult (55+1

affordable rental communig that will provide housing opportunities for approximately 175

residents. Given the residential nature of the proposed use, staff has determined that the

proposed project will be complimentary to the existing single-family and multi-family

residential land uses located in the immediate project vicinity. ln addition, taking into

account the unique needs of senior residential communities, staff has determined that the

proposed project is also complimentary with surrounding non-residential uses in the

vicinity that will provide a variety of dai[ and weekly services (medical offices, hospital,

senior center, library, church, food bank, etc.) to the senior residents.

Consistent with the description of the BP zone in the Zoning Code, the proposed project,

if approved, would serve as a buffer between existing professional/commercial

development and residential areas. ln addition, the proposed project's location along a

major arterial street is consistent with the Zoning Code. REFER TO IMPACTS ON

VARTOUS TSSUE AREAS DESCRIBED BELOW. Based on all of that, staff supports

development of the proposed pro1ect at the subject location and, accordingly, staff

recommends that the Commission grant the Conditional Use Permit.

C. Planned DeveloPment Permit

The purpose of the Planned Development Permit process is to allow greater flexibility in

the design of integrated developments than othennrise possible through strict application

of land use regulitions. The Planned Development Permit process is also designed to

encourage creative and efficient uses of land. The following are proposed as part of the

applicant's Planned Development Permit:

City of Folsom Page 1 1

Page 782

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

. DevelopmentStandards

o Building Architecture and Design

Development Standards
The applicant's intent with the subject application is to create a set of development
standards that will comply with the development standards established for the BP
(Business and Professional) zoning district, in which the pro.lect site is located, as well as

the standards for the R-4 (General Apartment) zoning district, which apply to similar
multifamily projects.

The development standards for the R-4 zoning district are included for reference
purposes only as the proposed project is a multi-family development, however, the
subject property has a BP zoning designation which takes precedence in terms applicable
development standards.

The table below outlines the existing development standards for the BP and R-4 zoning
districts compared to the proposed development standards for the Vintage Senior
Apartments project:

TABLE 1: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS TABLE

As shown on the development standards table, the proposed project meets or exceeds
all development standards established for the BP (Business and Professional) and R-4
(General Apartment) zoning districts including minimum lot area, minimum lot width,
maximum building coverage, front yard setback, rear yard setback, side yard setbacks,
and maximum building height. Regarding building height, the proposed apartment
building is 34 feet in height with architectural features extending lo 42-teet 6-inches. The
34-foot height of the building itself meets standards as shown above. The Zoning Code
also allows architectural features to be built to a height up to 25 feet above the height limit
established for the district in which they are located, which, in this case, would be 60 feet.

Development Standards Table
Vintage Senior Apartments

Min.
Lot

Area

Min.
Lot

wldth

Max
Bullding

Coveraqe

Front
Yard

Setback

Rear
Yard

Setback

Side
Yard

Setbacks

Bullding
Height
limit

BP Zoning
District

6,000
s.f.

60 600/o 20 feet 20 feet NA 35 feet (two
stories),(4

stories with
cuP)

R-4 Zoning
District

6,000
s.f.

60
feet

60% 20 feet 20 feet 5 feet
and

10 feet

50 feet
(four-

stories)

Proposed
Proiect

211,701
s.f.

580
feet

18o/o 20 feet 87 feet 68 feet
and

117 leet

34 feet

City of Folsom Page 12

Page 783

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

(FMC S 17.58.080.) As such, the building height, including the taller architectural

ieatures, complies with the Zoning Code. However, the proposed building is three stories

tall and only two stories are allowed by right. The applicant has requested a concession

under the d-ensity bonus law to allow the additional story. That request is analyzed in the

Density Bonus section of the report. The established of a project-specific parking

standard is addressed separately within the Parking Section of this staff report.

Buildinq Architecture and Desion
As detailed in the Project Description section of this report, the proposed project includes

development of a three-story, 111,755-square-foot apartment building. The design

concept for the apartment building features a contemporary residential architectural style

acceniuated by simple rectilinear forms and shapes, with vertical and horizontal

components infended to establish visual interest while also breaking up the massing of
the building. Proposed building materials include stucco, vertical board and batten siding,

brick veneer, wood shutters, stucco trim, wrought iron railing, vinyl windows, and

composition shingle roof tiles. Primary building colors are earth tone and include different

shades of brown (Midnight Brown, Wooden Acre, and Wooden Peg) accented with a
couple of more vibrant white (Light House) and reddish colors (High Desert). Proposed

elevations and renderings of the proposed apartment building are shown below and on

the following pages.

FIGURE 3: BUILDING ELEVATIONS

}'*k

L

City of Folsom Page 13

Page 784

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 4: BUILDING RENDERING (NORTHEAST)

FIGURE 5: BUILDING RENDERING (SOUTHWEST)

n
lrlull

ffiffi.*i
*:11--'":-'$'
#JH{r.T
!nXe€e.t,: '
g4if!r; :.

f':;t 
:'

B
lrir
Ell

City of Folsom Page 14

Page 785

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 6: BUILDING RENDERING (SOUTHEAST)

." ffir"t'"tl''

The proposed project is not located within a geographic area that has established

residential or commercial design guidelines. However, the project is subject to the City's

Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development (Design Guidelines). The overall
purpose of the Design Guidelines is to promote and protect public health, safety, and

general welfare of the community by:

. Supporting the preservation of existing neighborhood character and community
value.

promoting the vision of suitable housing types for all residents including new

standards for developments with higher densities and usage mix.

Encouraging the formulation or regulations that reflect the direction of the Folsom

General Plan and add a qualitative direction for new developments in support of
General Plan Policies.

Providing guidance for increasing density with greater attention paid to amenities

Creation of interconnected and livable communities

Minimizing the impact of parking within existing or planned neighborhoods.

a

a

a

a

a

City of Folsom Page 15

Page 786

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

ln terms of architecture and design, the Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development
recommend that multi-family projects be designed in a manner that compliments the
surrounding community. The following are some of the specific design recommendations
suggested by the Design Guidelines:

Variety and distinctness in design are desirable

Expanses of uninterrupted wall area, unbroken roof forms, and box-like structures
shall be prohibited. Balconies, porches, bay windows, chimneys, and other design
elements with projections and varied setbacks shall be used to break up the
physical characteristics of structures.

Separations and changes in the height of roof planes shall be used to visually
separate the units. Articulation such as roof dormers, hips, gables, balconies, wall
projections, and porches shall be used to break up the visual massing of building
facades.

a

a

a

o The use of a variety and combination of building materials is encouraged. Building
materials selected for multi-family projects shall be very durable and require low
maintenance including, but not limited to, stucco, stone, and brick. Building
materials shall integrate quality design elements consistent with the design of the
development and the surrounding neighborhood.
Predominant roof materials shall be of high quality, durable material such as, but
not limited to, clay or concrete roof tiles and asphalt shingles.

a

a Exterior building colors shall be compatible with the surrounding neighborhood
setting and shall not be out of character or in visual competition with the existing
surrounding design elements.

All accessory structures, including carports, garages, and solid waste enclosures,
shall be designed with materials and in a manner consistent with the architectural
design characteristics of the development.

As illustrated on the building elevations and color renderings (Attachments 16 and 17),

the proposed apartment building incorporates many of the key design features
recommended by the Design Guidelines including the use of rectilinear building shapes
to create a sense of depth, use of varied forms and projections to create visual relief, use
of staggered rooftop elements to break up the mass of the building, and the inclusion of
unique design details to reinforce the residential design theme of the building.

As shown on the color and materials board (Attachment 19), the proposed prolect utilizes
a variety of modern residential building materials to enhance the appearance of the
building including the use of stucco on the walls, brick veneer wainscotting, board and
batten siding, wrought-iron railings, and composition shingle roofing material. As

o

City of Folsom Page 16

Page 787

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

recommended by the Design Guidelines, the proposed pro1ect features a natural color
scheme with extensive use of earth tone colors including various shades of brown
complimented with more vibrant white and reddish colors.

ln evaluating the architecture and design of the proposed project, staff also took into

consideration the compatibility of the proposed apartment building relative to existing
single-family and multi-family structures in the immediate project area. The individuals
potentially most impacted by the design of the proposed apartment building reside in

single-family residences located in the Cimarron Hills Subdivision directly adjacent to the
project site to the east. The Cimarron Hills Subdivision, which was developed in the early
1980s, features a mixture of 95 one and two-story homes. The single-family residences
within the Cimarron Hills Subdivision have a zoning designation of R-1-ML (Single-Family

Dwelling, Medium Lot District), which allows for development of a residence that is a
maximum of 2.5 stories tall, but not to exceed 35 feet.

The next closest individuals that have the potentialto be impacted by the proposed project

are a series of multi-family residences (combination of duplex and fourplex units) located
on the north side of Montrose Drive, approximately 317 feet to the south of the project

site across an overhead transmission line corridor. The multi-family residences located

along the north side of Montrose Drive, which were developed in the 1960s and 1970s
for the most part, include a mixture of one and two-story story structures. These multi-
family residences along Montrose Drive have zoning designations of R-2 (Two-Family

Residence District) and R-4 (GeneralApartment District), which allow for development of
residential structures that are a maximum of 2.5 stories tall, but not to exceed 35 feet and

four-stories, but not to exceed 50 feet in height respectively.

As mentioned in the Project Description section of this staff report, the applicant is

requesting approval of a density bonus concession to allow the proposed apartment
building to exceed two-stories in height (proposed apartment building is three-stories tall
and 34 feet in height with architectural features extending to 42-feet 6-inches). According
to the applicant, the architecture and design of the apartment building was crafted
purposefully to compliment the design, architecture, building materials, and colors of
existing single-family and multi-family residence in the surrounding neighborhoods. ln

addition, placement and orientation of the three-story apartment building was designed
to preserve key open space areas that contain numerous oak trees, while also
recognizing the unique topographical and physical features (drainage channel, etc.)
present on the project site.

The building site sections on the following page demonstrate the site and building
relationship between the proposed apartment building and adjacent single-family
residences to the east on Cimmaron Drive.

City of Folsom Page 17

Page 788

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 7: BUILDING SITE SECTION (CIMMARON HILLS-NORTH)

FIGURE 8: BUILDING SITE SECTION (CIMARRON HILLS-SOUTH)

r'1.ii\],"''

I .i.,r;'l'

City of Folsom Page 18

Page 789

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

a

As shown on the site sections and on the submitted development plans, there are a
number of factors that will minimize the visual impact of the proposed three-story
apartment building relative to the adjacent single-family residences on Cimarron Circle

including grade differential, building separation, existing and proposed landscaping,
proposed walls, and building orientation. ln relation to grade differential, the finished pad

elevation of the apartment building is 346 feet msl (above mean sea level) while the pad

elevation for adjacent single family residences ranges from 355 to 360 feet msl. The
visual impact associated with this grade differential is that the proposed apartment
building will appear to be a two-story tall structure as viewed from the first floor of the
single-family residences to the east. With regard to building separation, the proposed

apartment building has setbacks that range from approximately 68 to 95 feet from the
eastern property boundary and setbacks that range from approximately 128 to 165 feet
from the single-family residences to the east on Cimarron Circle.

As shown on the building site section and submitted landscape plans (Attachment 10),

there are a number of existing trees on the project site along the eastern project boundary
that will be preserved. ln addition, the proposed project includes the planting of a
significant number of trees (24-inch box evergreen trees) within a 1S-foot-wide landscape
buffer along the eastern project boundary. The combination of existing trees and new

tree plantings along the eastern project boundary will create a natural vegetative screen

between the project site and the residential properties to the east. With regard to walls,

the proposed project includes construction of a decorative 8-foot-tall masonry wall along

the entire eastern project boundary which will reduce the visual impact of the three-story
apartment building, while also providing for additional privacy for residents of the adjacent
single-family residences to the east. Lastly, the proposed apartment building has been

designed with two wings oriented at an approximately 4S-degree angle, further breaking
up the length and massing of the building and minimizing potential visual impacts to
adjacent single-fam ily residences.

As mentioned previously, the proposed project is also located in relatively close proximity

to a series of multi-family residences situated along the north side of Montrose Drive

creating potential visual impacts. The proposed three-story apartment building, which is
separated from the multi-family residences by a 190-foot-wide overhead transmission line

corridor, is located approximately 317 feet from the nearest multi-family residence along

Montrose Drive resulting a substantial physical buffer between the properties. ln addition,

there is a significant grade differential between the proposed apartment building (346 feet
msl) and the multi-family residences (approximately 360 feet msl) to the south, further
reducing potential visual impacts associated with the proposed apartment building.

Based on the aforementioned analysis, staff has determined that the proposed pro1ect

represents a high-quality design that is consistent with the design recommendations of
the Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development. ln addition, staff has determined
that the project design is complimentary to the design of existing residential buildings in

the immediate project area. As a result, staff recommends approval of the applicant's
design with the following conditions:

City of Folsom Page 19

Page 790

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

1. This approval is for a three-story apartment building totaling 111,755 square feet
associated with the Vintage Apartments project. The applicant shall submit
building plans that comply with this approval and the attached building elevations
and color renderings dated June 3, 2022.

2. The design, materials, and colors of the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments
building shall be consistent with the submitted building elevations, color
renderings, materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction of the

Commun ity Development Department.

3. Brick pavers or another type of colored masonry material (ADA compliant) shall

be used to designate pedestrian crosswalks on the project site, in addition to
where pedestrian paths cross drive aisles, and shall be incorporated as a design
feature at the driveway entrances at East Natoma Street to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Department.

4. Roof-mounted mechanical equipment, including satellite dish antennas, shall not
extend above the height of the parapet walls. Ground-mounted mechanical
equipment shall be shielded by landscaping or trellis type features.

5. Utility equipment such as transformers, electric and gas meters, electrical panels,

and junction boxes shall be screened by walls and or landscaping.

These recommendations are included in the conditions of approval (Condition No. 60)
presented for consideration by the Planning Commission.

D. Density Bonus

As mentioned in the Project Description section of this staff report, the applicant is

requesting approval of a Density Bonus to allow development of the senior affordable
apartment project at a residential density of 28 units per acre. ln addition, the applicant
is seeking to be granted three incentives/concessions including establishing a parking

ratio of one parking space per apartment unit, increasing the maximum building height
from 35 feet to 42-feet6-inches, and increasing the maximum number of building stories
from2 stories to 3 stories.

The State Density Bonus Law (Government Code section 65915) requires the City to
grant one density bonus and, if requested by the applicant and consistent with applicable
iequirements, specified numbers of incentives or concessions, waivers or reductions of
development standards, and reduced parking ratios, all based on the percentage of
affordable units in the housing development.

Similarly, the Density Bonus chapter of the Folsom MunicipalCode (FMC. Chapter 17.102

Densitv Bonus and Other Developer Incentives) is intended to provide incentives for the
production of affordable housing opportunities within the City for very low-income, low-

City of Folsom Page 20

Page 791

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

income, and moderate-income households and seniors Section 171O2.03O
(lmplementation) of the Folsom Municipal Code states that the City shall grant a density
bonus to an applicant of a housing development consisting of five or more units who
agrees to provide the following:

a) At least ten percent of the total units of a housing development for low-income
households; or

b) At least five percent of the total units of a housing development for very low-
income households; or

c) A senior citizen housing development.

The proposed project includes development a 136-unit senior affordable apartment
community which includes 122 units (90%) being made available to Low lncome
individuals (incomes at or below 60% of the Sacramento area median income (AMl)) and

14 units (1OVo) made available to Very Low lncome individuals (income at or below 50%
of AMI). Based on this information, staff has determined that the proposed project meets
all three of the criteria listed above and qualifies for granting of a Density Bonus by the
City. The State Density Bonus Law also requires that the rental units must remain

affordable for 55 years or longer. Condition No. 4 is included to reflect this requirement.

State law defines "density bonus" as "a density increase over the otherwise maximum
allowable gross residential density as of the date of application by the applicant to the
city." (Government Code S 65915(f).) However, a housing development project can
qualify for a density bonus, and all associated incentives, concessions, etc. even if it
includes "no increase in density"." ((Government Code S 65915(0.) The amount of
density increase to which an applicant is entitled varies depending on the percentage of
affordable housing units in the development.

In this case, the subject property does not have an assigned density, per se, because it
is zoned BP. The maximum allowable density underthe General Plan is 30 dwelling units
per acre, and this project is below that, at 28 dwelling units per acre. AccordinglY, no

density increase is requested as a part of this project. As mentioned above, however, the
applicant is still eligible for incentives/concessions under the density bonus law.
(Government Code S 65915(f).)

ln addition to the available density increase, State Density Bonus Law (Government Code
section 65915) and the Density Bonus chapter of the Folsom Munici I Code (FMC.

Section 17.102.030) provide an applicant with incentives/concessions, waivers or
reductions of development standards, and reduced parking ratios in return for the
development of senior or affordable housing units. The State Density Bonus Law states
that an applicant shall receive four incentives/concessions if 100% of all units in the
development, including total units and density bonus units, but excluding a manager's
unit, are for lower income households. (Government Code S 65919(dX2XD),

City of Folsom Page21

Page 792

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

65915(bX1(G).) ln this particular case, all of the 136 apartments units are considered

affordable with 90% of the units being restricted to Low-lncome households and 10o/o of
the units being restricted to Very Low-lncome households. As a result, staff has

determined that the applicant is eligible for four incentives/concessions, but the applicant
has only requested three.

The first incentive/concession that the applicant is requesting is the establishment of a
parking ratio of one parking space per each apartment unit for the Vintage Senior

Apartment Community. As discussed later within the Parking section of this staff report,

there is no established parking standard in the Folsom Municipal Code for senior

affordable apartment community projects. As a result, the parking standard for senior

affordable apartment projects is established through the Planning Development Permit
process. The applicant has provided documentation (Parking Study-Attachment 23 and
parking Memorandum-Attachment 24) that makes a justification for the requested 1:1

parking ratio for the proposed project. Staff has evaluated the aforementioned
supplemental parking information and conducted its own parking analysis (Parking

section of staff report) and determined that a 1:1 parking ratio is adequate to serve the
proposed project. The requested 1:1 parking ratio also complies with the limits placed on

the City's ability to require specific parking ratios for affordable housing projects by the

State Densig Bonus Law. (Government Code S 65915(p) ) As a result, staff is supportive
of the proposed incentive/concession to establish a parking ratio of one parking space
per each apartment unit for the Vintage Senior Apartments project.

The second incentive/concession being requested is to allow for an increase in the

maximum building height of the apartment building from 35 feet to 42-feet 6-inches. As
discussed previously within the Planned Development Permit section of this staff report,

the proposed three-story apartment building is 34 feet in height (primary roof height) with

architectural features that extend upto 42-feet 6-inches in height. The proposed building
height is consistent with the maximum building height standard of 35 feet established for
tne gp zoning district in which the subject property is located. ln addition, the proposed

project is consistent with the building height exception established by the Folsom

Municipal Code (FMC. Section 17.58.080 Heioht Exceptions\ for architectural features

extending above the primary roofline with certain project-related architectural features

extending up to 7-feet 6-inches above primary roof line (42-leet 6-inches above grade),

whereas architectural features are permitted to extend up to 25 feet above the height
limited established for particular zoning district. The applicant may not need an

incentive/concession under the Density Bonus Law to obtain approval of the requested

building height, given the requirements in the Folsom Municipal Code described above.

Howev-er, th-e applicant has requested the incentive/concession and staff has determined
that the prolect is eligible for it under the Density Bonus Law. Based on the fact that the
proposed pioject is consist with the established standard for maximum building height for
the BP zoning district, staff is supportive of the requested incentive/concession for the
primary building height to be 34 feet, with architectural features extending up to 42-feet
6-inches.

City of Folsom Page22

Page 793

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

The third and last incentive/concession requested includes a request to increase the
maximum number of building stories from 2 stories to 3 stories. According to the
applicant, the increase of the apartment building from 2 to 3-stories is necessitated by the
desire to avoid key open space areas on the project site, preserve protected oak trees,

and work within the unique topographical and physical features (elevation changes,
drainage channel, etc.) present on the project site. As mentioned previously within the
Planned Development Permit section of this staff report, the apartment building has a
primary roof height of 34 feet which is consist with the maximum height standard
established for the BP zoning district (adjacent Cimarron Hills Subdivision has same
maximum height requirement of 35 feet). ln addition, the project site is at a substantially
lower elevation that the adjacent residential properties, further minimizing the potential

visual impacts associated with the proposed three-story apartment. Based on this
information, staff is supportive of the third incentive/concession to increase the building
height from 2-stories to 3-stories for the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project.

ln summary, staff has determined that the applicant's Density Bonus request to create a
residential density on the subject property of 28-units per acre is consistent with the
requirements of the State Density Bonus Law and the Folsom Municipal Code. ln

addition, staff has determined that the applicant is eligible for four incentives/concessions
based on the affordable composition (100% affordable to Low and Very Low-lncome
Households) of proposed apartment project. Staff is also supportive of the three
proposed incentives/concessions relative to parking ratios, building height, and building
stories. Lastly, it is important to acknowledge the each of the incentives/concessions
requested by the applicant are somewhat redundant in that City staff is supportive of the
proposed parking ratio, building height, and number of building stories as discussed in

the Conditional Use Permit and Planned Development Permit sections of this staff report.
However, the applicant felt strongly that the Density Bonus request was integral to their
moving forward with the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project, especially given

the challenges facing development of affordable housing in the region and the State.

Under Government Code section 65915(dX1) of the State Density Bonus Law, the City
must grant the requested incentives, concessions, waivers or reductions of development
standards, and reduced parking ratio unless, one or more of the following findings are
made, based upon substantial evidence:

The concession or incentive does not result in identifiable and actual cost
reductions... to provide for affordable housing costs.

The concession or incentive would have a specific, adverse impact [defined
as a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on
objective, identified written public health or safety standards, policies, or
conditions as they existed on the date the application was deemed
complete. The following shall not constitute a specific, adverse impact upon
the public health or safety: (A) inconsistency with the zoning ordinance or
general plan land use designation; (B) the eligibility to claim a welfare

a

a

City of Folsom Page23

Page 794

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

exemption under subdivision (g) of Section 214 of the Revenue and

Taxation Code (Gov. Code S 655S9.5(dX2)l upon public health and safety

or on any real property that is listed in the California Register or Historical
Resources and for which there is no feasible method to satisfactorily
mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact without rendering the

development unaffordable to low-income and moderate-income
households.

. The concession or incentive would be contrary to state or federal law.

The project applicant may initiate judicial proceedings if the City refuses to grant a
requested density bonus, incentive, or concession. (Government Code S 65915(dX3)')
ln such a proceeding, the City bears the burden of proof for the denial of a requested

concession or incentive. (Government Code S 65915(dX4).)

Staff is not aware of information supporting any of the above-referenced findings in this

case.

Staff has determined that the requested density bonus and the requested

incentives/concessions should be granted.

E. Traffic/Access/Gi rculation

Existinq Roadwav Network

@nthesouthsideofEastNatomaStreetattheintersectionof
East'Naioma Street and Prison Road. Significant roadways in the prolect vicinity include

Natoma StreeUEast Natoma Street and Prison Road. Natoma StreeUEast Natoma Street
provides connectivity between Folsom Boulevard to the west and Empire Ranch Road to

ihe east. ln the vicinity of the project, Natoma Street/East Natoma Street is minor two-
lane arterial roadway with a posted speed limit of 35-mph. Prison Road is a two-lane

north-south roadwaythat provides access between East Natoma Street and Folsom State

Prison.

The traffic, access, and circulation analysis associated with the proposed project is based

on the results of a Transportation lmpact Study (Attachment22) that was prepared in July

2022 by T. Kear Transportation Planning and Management, lnc. The Transportation

Study analyzed traffic operations at the following two study intersections in the vicinity of

the project site:

. East Natoma StreeUPrison Road
o East Natoma StreeUEastern Project Driveway

Two different scenarios were evaluated in reviewing traffic operations at the two study

intersections including Existing 2022 without Project Condition and Existing 2022 wlth
Project Condition.

City of Folsom Page24

Page 795

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

The proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project is expected to generate a total of 39

vehicle trips during the weekday AM peak hour (17 inbound and 22 outbound) and 41

vehicle trips during the weekday PM peak hour (22 inbound and 19 outbound). Overall,
the proposed project is projected to generate a total of 441daily vehicle trips. Based on

the relatively low volume of prolect-related vehicle trips, the Transportation Study
concluded that the proposed project would not have a significant impact on vehicle level

of service (LOS) at either of the two study intersections. ln addition, the Transportation
Study determined that the proposed. project would not have a significant impact relative
to Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) as the project is projected to be at least 15% less than
the regional per capita VMT. lt is interesting to note that the proposed project is expected
to generate less AM peak hour and PM peak hour vehicle trips that the previously

approved office project (Montara Grove Office Park) on the subject site.

Proiect Access and On-Site Circulation
As shown on the submitted site plan (Attachment 6), primary vehicle access to the prolect

site is provided by a new full-access driveway located on the south side of East Natoma
Street at the signalized intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road. lnstallation
of the primary driveway will require modification of the existing three-way signalized
intersection at East Natoma Street and Prison Road to convert it into a four-way signalized
intersection. Secondary access to the project site is provided by a new driveway on the
south side of East Natoma Street, approximately 250 feet to the east of the proposed
primary driveway. The secondary driveway, which willfeature Stop-sign controlforexiting
vehicles, will be limited to right-turns in and right-turn out only.

Proposed internal vehicle circulation consists of a single 27-foot-wide drive aisle that
loops around the project site and connects the two project driveways. Pedestrian and

bicycle access and circulation is provided by realignment of an existing Class I bicycle
trail, existing Class lll bicycle lanes on East Natoma Street, construction of a new sidewalk
along the south side of East Natoma Street, installation of new internal sidewalks and

walkways throughout the project site, and construction of a pedestrian/bicycle connection
from the project site to an existing Class I bicycle trial located south of the project site.

The preliminary access and circulation plan is shown in Figure 9 on the following page.

City of Folsom Page25

Page 796

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

APARTMENTS
CITYOFTOUloM,CA

FIGURE 9: PRELIMINARY ACCESS AND CIRCULATION PLAN

The Transportation Study prepared for the proposed project also evaluated the operation

and configuration of the project access system in terms of driveway geometry, driveway

access, diiveway throat depth, vehicle queuing, vehicle accident history ,and bicycle and

pedestrian safety. Shown in the figures on the following pages are the proposed access

driveways and their configuration.

City of Folsom Page 26

Page 797

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

FIGURE 10: PRIMARY PROJECT ACCESS DRIVEWAY

City of Folsom Page27

Page 798

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)

January 18,2023

FIGURE 11: SECONDARY PROJECT ACCESS DRIVEWAY

:
d

1{

'BEGIN

rE |NTO (t

ln relation to driveway geometry, City standards require that a 60-foot right-turn taper be

provided when there are 10 or more vehicles making a righlturn movements into a
driveway during the AM (7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.) or PM (4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p'm.) peak

hours, with a 1SQ-foot right-turn pocket plus 60-foot taper being required when there are

50 or more right-turn movements into a driveway. The Transportation Study determined

that neither oithe project driveways will have more than 10 rightturn vehicle movements,

thus neither of the turn-pocket improvements reference above are required. With that

said, the proposed project does include construction of a 1SO-foot right-turn pocket with

60-foot tapei on the eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The

proposed project also includes construction of a 1O0-foot leftturn pocket with 60-foot

iap"r on the- westbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The

secondary project driveway, which is located approximately 250 feet east of the primary

City of Folsom Page 28

Page 799

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

project driveway, is proposed to be limited to right-turn in and right-turn out movements
only. To ensure that vehicle movements at the secondary project driveway are limited to

right-turn in and right-turn out movements, the Transportation Study recommends that a
raised median be constructed within Natoma Street and a right-turn channelization taper
be constructed at the secondary project driveway to prevent left-turns into the project site
from westbound East Natoma Street and leftturns out of the project site onto westbound
East Natoma Street. Otherwise, the Transportation Study determined that the proposed
geometry and access for the two project driveways was adequate.

The Folsom Design and Procedures Manual indicates that the required minimum
driveway throat depth for an 81-161-unit multi-family residential apartment development
is 50 feet for a single project driveway or the sum of 50 feet when there are multiple project

driveways. As shown on the submitted site plan (Attachment 6), the primary project

driveway has a throat depth of 50 feet, while the secondary project driveway has a throat
depth of 25 feet (sum of 75 feet). Based on this information, the Transportation Study
concluded that the driveway throat depth for the two project driveways was adequate to
serve the apartment project. The Transportation Study also determined that there was
sufficient vehicle storage available in the proposed left-turn pocket into the project site
from westbound East Natoma Street and out of the project site from the primary project

driveway onto westbound East Natoma Street.

The Transportation Study evaluated potential geometric constraints and safety issues
associated with development of the proposed apartment project including driveway
spacing, sight vision triangles, and Statewide lntegrated Traffic Records System
(SWITRS) collision data. The Study determined that the project-related driveway
spacing, throat depth, and corner sight-distance are all adequate. ln terms of reported
vehicle accidents in close proximity to the project site, the Study found that there have
been three vehicle accidents within the past five years including a rear-end collision on

eastbound East Natoma Street at Prison Road and two driving under the influence (DUl)

incidents (vehicle sideswiped/vehicle overturned). Based on this data, the Study
concluded that these types of vehicle accident varieties would not be exacerbated with
development of the proposed project and that no traffic safe$ treatments are warranted.

The Transportation Study evaluated bicycle and pedestrian safety relative to existing and
proposed improvements to bicycle and pedestrian circulation associated with the
proposed project. Pedestrian and bicycle access and circulation improvements tied to
the proposed project include realignment of an existing Class I bicycle trail located in the
northwest portion of the project site, restriping of existing Class lll bicycle lanes on East
Natoma Street, construction of a new sidewalk along the south side of East Natoma
Street, installation of new internal sidewalks and walkways throughout the project site,

and construction of a pedestrian/bicycle connection from the project site to an existing
Class I bicycle trial (Oak Avenue Parkway Trail) located south of the project site. The
Study determined that the proposed project would not result in any bicycle or pedestrian

safe$-related impacts.

City of Folsom Page 29

Page 800

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

To ensure implementation of the traffic control measures identified on the submitted site

plan and recommended by the Transportation lmpact Study, staff recommends the

iollowing recommendations be included as Conditions of approval for the project

(Condition No.53)

East Natoma Street (Eastbound)

" The owner/applicant shall construct a 1SO-foot right-turn pocket with 60-foot taper

on the eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The existing

bike trailshallbe relocated to accommodate the right-turn lane. The relocated bike

trail shall be placed in a dedicated pedestrian access and trail easement which

shall be recorded prior to plan approval. With this proposed modification, the

eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street shall include one

leftturn lane, one thru lane, and one right-turn lane'

East Natoma Street (Westbound)
o The owner/applicant shall construct a 100-foot left-turn pocket with a raised

median with a 60Joot taper on the westbound approach to Prison Road from East

Natoma Street. The median shall allow emergency vehicle access/egress and the

modifications required for emergency vehicle access/egress shall be approved by

the City of Folsom Fire Department. Wth these proposed modifications, the

westbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street shall include one

shared thru/rightturn lane and one left-turn lane.

Prison Road (Southbound)

" 
prior to entering State propefi, the contractor shall execute a right-of-entry

agreement with the State of California, Department of Corrections.

o Tie owner/applicant shall restripe the existing right-turn lane at the southbound

approach to East Natoma Street from Prison Road to indicate that this lane is a
shared thru and right-turn lane. The existing dedicated left-turn lane shall remain

as currently striPed.

Primarv Proiect Drivewav (East Natoma Street)

@cantshallconstructasharedthru/right-turnlaneandadedicated
left-turn lane at the northbound approach to East Natoma Street at the primary

project driveway. The shared thru/right-turn lane and dedicated left-turn lane shall

include a 70-foot turn pocket and a 60-foot taper.

Secondarv Proiect Drivewav (East Natoma Street)

@icantshallconstructaraisedmedianwithinNatomaStreetanda
right-turn channelization taper at the secondary project driveway to prevent left-

tu-rns into the project site from westbound East Natoma Street and left-turns out of

the project site onto westbound East Natoma Street to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Department.

City of Folsom Page 30

Page 801

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

The owner/applicant shall install "Stop" signs, appropriate pavement markings,
and signage at the secondary project exit at East Natoma Street.

East Natoma Road Traffic Sional Sional Timino
o The owner/applicant shall construct a traffic signal at the fourth leg of the

intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road and modify all existing traffic
signal improvements to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

o The owner/applicant shall coordinate retiming the traffic signal at the intersection
of East Natoma Street and Prison Road as follows:

Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and
southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 second northbound
southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and westbound protected
phases, and 62 second eastbound and westbound through phases.

Crosswalks shall be set to 22 seconds to accommodate a 3 feet per seconding
walking speed.

East Natoma Street Frontaoe lmprovements
o The owner/applicant shall install curbs, gutter, a bicycle lane, and sidewalks along

the prolect's frontage with East Natoma Street as shown on the submitted site plan.

ln addition, the owner/applicant shall construct curbs, gutters, a bicycle lane, and
sidewalks from the project's eastern boundary approximately 120-feet to the east
to connect to the existing off-site sidewalk and associated improvements. The
owner/applicant shall enter into a credit reimbursement agreement with the City to
cover the costs of these off-site frontage improvements.

The previous City of Folsom General Plan (1988) contemplated the extension of Oak
Avenue Parkway from Willow Creek Drive to Natoma Street, with a further extension of
Oak Avenue Parkway from East Natoma Street across the American River via bridge to
Grant Lane. To facilitate the potential extension of Oak Avenue Parkway, the City
obtained access easements from a number of properties located along the Oak Avenue
Parkway Trail between Willow Creek Drive and East Natoma Street. The current City of
Folsom General Plan (2035) did not envision the extension of Oak Avenue Parkway from
Willow Creek Drive to East Natoma Street as evidenced by the General Plan Circulation
Exhibit. In addition, the Circulation Exhibit does not include a new bridge crossing in the
vicinig of East Natoma Street and Prison Road. With the fairly recent construction of the
Folsom Lake Crossing Bridge over the American River just below Folsom Dam, it is also
highly unlikely that the City would entertain the idea of constructing another bridge
crossing in this area. As a result, the City is not requiring the Vintage Senior Apartments
project to provide a lntend of Dedication (lOD) along the southern portion of their property
to accommodate future extension of Oak Avenue Parkway,

o

a

City of Folsom Page 31

Page 802

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

F. Parking

As noted earlier within this report, the Vintage Senior Apartments project includes

development of a three-story apartment building that feature 98 one-bedroom units and

38 two-bedroom units. Parking will be provided for 136 cars in off-street parking spaces

located adjacent to the apartment building. The parking supply, which consists of 99

uncovered parking spaces and 37 covered carport parking spaces, features 20 accessible
parking spaces and 14 electric vehicle capable parking spaces.

The Folsom M icioal Code (FMC. Ch oter 17.58) does not include specific parking

standards for senior (60+; residential apartment uses.

requirements are not appropriate because a variety of
affordable senior complexes to vary in demand and to requ

Standard apartment parking
factors cause age-restricted
ire less parking than standard

apartment complexes, including: smaller household size, fewer residents own vehicles,

and average age of residents. ln addition, vehicle use is also expected to be reduced

based on [he close proximity of the project site to restaurants, retail shops, and public

transportation.

To assist staff with the analysis of the project's parking needs, the applicant was required

to provide a parking analysis/justification. A Parking Memorandum (Attachment 23) and

Parking Case Study (Attachment 24) for the Vintage Senior Apartments project were
prepared by the Transpogroup and FPI Management respectively on October 17, 2022
and January 3,2O23. The purpose of the Parking Memorandum was to determine an

appropriate parking supply for the proposed project based on data from previously

approved senior apartment projects in the City, data from similar senior apartment
piojects in the Sacramento region, and data from parking demand rates established by

the ITE Parking Generation Manual.

The Parking Memorandum compared the parking proposed for the Vintage Senior

Apartments with the parking ratios approved for other previously approved senior

apartment projects within the City including the ScholarWay SeniorApartments, Avenida

Senior Apartments, and Revel Senior Apartments. The approved parking ratios for the

three aforementioned projects ranged from 0.81 to 1.09 parking spaces per apartment

unit, with the proposed project falling within that range at 1.00 parking space per unit. lt
is important to acknowledge that the Scholar Way and Avenida senior projects are

currently under construction so no real time parking data is available. The Revel Senior

Apartments project, which is currently constructed and approximately 25o/o occupied, is

currently paking at a ratio of approximately 0.60 parking spaces per unit based on recent

information provided by the property manager.

The parking Memorandum also evaluated parking data from six other similar senior

apartment frolects in the Sacramento region. The approved parking ratios for the six

aforementioned apartment projects ranged from 0.50 to 0.92 parking spaces per

apartment unit. An observed parked car to apartment unit ratio was also conducted for

these apartment projects, which entailed counting and actual number of cars parked

City of Folsom Page 32

Page 803

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

within an apartment project as compared to the total number of available parking spaces'

The observed parked car to apartment unit ratio ranged from 0.32 to 0.55.

The parking Memorandum considered recommended parking ratios provided by the ITE
parking Ge-neration Rate Manual (Sth edition, 2019), which provides the average and the

85th p6rcentile weekday parking generation rates for "senior Adult Attached Housing."

Specifically, the ITE Parking Generation publication documents an average peak parking

demand ratio of 0.61 parking spaces per unit and an 8Sth-percentile value of 0.68 parking

spaces pgr unit. Using these parking generation rates with the 136 proposed apartment

units, the total parking stalls required for the project would range between 83 and 92

spaces, with a peak parking demand of 83 parking spaces.

ln addition, in the Parking Memorandum, the applicant provided a Parking Case Study

which provided a real-time evaluation at seven existing Vintage Housing senior apartment

communities located in suburban locations in California and Nevada. Listed in the table

on the following page are the four apartment communities and their parking

characteristics.

TABLE 2: VINTAGE HOUSING PARKING STANDARDS TABLE

Proiect Name Apartment Units Parking Provlded Parklng Ratio

Proposed Prolect 136 Units 1 36 Spaces 1.00 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Canyon (CA) 264 Units 181 Spaces 0.69 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at the Crossings (NV) 230 Units 175 Spaces 0.76 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Sanctuary (NV) 208 Units 1 00 Spaces 0.48 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Seven Hills (NV) 244 Units 244 Spaces 1.00 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Bennett ValleY (CA) 189 Units 210 Spaces 1.11 Spaces Per Unit

Vintage at Napa (GA) 1 15 Units 62 Spaces 0.54 Spaces Per Unit

Season at Laguna (GA) 222Units 158 Spaces 0.71 Spaces Per Unit

As shown in the table above, the proposed project is parked at the high end of the parking

ratio established for other senior apartments communities owned by Vintage Housing.

That being said, the Parking Case Study also included a discussion regarding parking

supply adequacy at each olthese apartment communities. The Case Study notes that

the'afartment communities (Vintage at Bouquet Canyon and Vintage at Sanctuary) with

the lowest parking ratios are experiencing some challenges with available parking supply'

However, ine apirtments communities with the higher parking ratios (Vintage at the

Crossings and Vintage Hills) are not experiencing any issues with parking supply.

City of Folsom Page 33

Page 804

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

ln addition to the Parking Analysis provided by the project applicant, City staff considered
parking information provided by the National Parking Association (NPA) Shared Parking

MoOel (ZOt9) to calculate the recommended number of parking spaces for the proposed

project. The NPA model projects parking between approximately the 85th and 95th

percentile and parses out the recommended number of parking spaces for a prolect Th9
'lr,lpA 

model determined that the appropriate parking ratio for the proposed project is 0.85

parking spaces per unit during the weekday and 0.72 parking spaces per unit on

weekeirds. Applying these parking ratios, the proposed project would be required to
provide between 97 and 1 16 on-site parking spaces.

ln reviewing the parking provided for the proposed project, City staff also took into

consideration the availability of public transportation for use by residents of the Vintage

Senior Apartments prolect. Sacramento Regional Transit (SACRT) provides bus service

within tne City of Folsom, including service to the immediate project area. Specifically,

SACRT Bus Route 30, which has a bus stop located approximately 0.25 miles to the west

of the project site on the north side of East Natoma Street (in front of Senior Center),

features bus service that operates 10 times per day Monday through Friday. ln addition

to traditional bus seryice, SACRT offers SmaRT Ride on-demand microtransit service and

GO Paratransit Service to residents of the City for local and regional trips.

Based on the above-referenced information and analyses, staff has determined that the

136 parking spaces (1.00 parking spaces per unit) proposed for the project will be

sufficient toserve the needs of residents, employees, and visitors of the Vintage Senior

Apartments project. lt is important to note that there will an on-site property manager

residing in one of the apartment units.

The Folsom General Plan (2035) encourages the installation of electric vehicle charging

stations in parking spaces throughout the City, prioritizing installations at multi-family

residential developments. ln addition, the City's Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy

associated with the General Plan states that multi-family residential projects with 17 or

more units are required to providing electric vehicle charging stations in at least 5%

percent of the total number of parking spaces. As noted in the project description, the

applicant is proposing to provide 14 electric vehicle capable parking spaces within the

development, but no electric vehicle charging stations initially. To ensure consistency

with the General Plan, staff recommends that a minimum ol7 (5o/o of 136 total parking

spaces = 7 electric vehicle charging stations) of the 14 proposed electric vehicle charging

spaces be equipped with electric vehicle charging stations with initial development of the

proposed project. Condition No. 50 is included to reflect this requirement.

As shown on the submitted site plan (Attachment 6), the applicant is proposing to provide

28 bicycle parking spaces evenly distributed among bicycle racks located near the

building's primary entrances on the north, south, and east elevations. Staff has

determined that the proposed project meets the bicycle parking requirements established

by the Folsom Municipal Code (FMC. Section 17.57.090) by providing 28 bicycle parking

spaces whereas 27 bicycle parking spaces are required.

City of Folsom Page 34

Page 805

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

G. Noise/Vibration lmPacts

Based on the proximity of the project site to East Natoma Street as well as existing

commercial, residential, and state land uses within the immediate project vicinity,

acoustical measurements and modeling were prepared by Helix Environmental Planning

on March 29,2022 to analyze potential noise impacts atthe proposed Vintage Senior

Apartments project site. The purpose of the noise analysis was to quantify existing noise

levels associated with traffic on East Natoma Street, and to compare those noise levels

against the applicable City of Folsom noise standards for acceptable noise exposure at

th; project site. ln addition, noise generated by the proposed project including

construction activities, on-site parking/circulation, and mechanicalequipment noise, were

also evaluated in the noise analysis.

Two aspects of noise impacts were evaluated relative to the proposed apartment project,

noise directed at the proposed project, and noise caused by the proposed project. As

noted previously, the predominant existing noise sources in the project vicinity that may

cause an impact to the project site are associated with vehicles traveling on East Natoma

Street, as well as background noises from nearby commercial, residential, and state land

uses. Potential noise impacts that might result from development of the Vintage Senior

Apartments project community are construction-related activities and operational

activities. Constiuction-related noise would have a short-term effect, while operational

noise would continue throughout the lifetime of the project.

The Noise Element of the City of Folsom General Plan regulates noise emissions from
public roadway traffic on new residential development or other noise sensitive land uses.

The Noise Element states that noise from traffic on public roadways shall not exceed 65

CNEL for outdoor use areas and 45 CNEL for interior use areas. To evaluate such
potential noise impacts to the proposed project, Helix Environmental conducted ambient

noise measurements to calibrate the predictive noise modeling program that estimates

noise levels based on estimated future traffic noise affecting the project site. The noise

modeling program determined that the outdoor noise levels at the outdoor use areas on

the project site would be less than 65 CNEL, thus no significant impact was identified. ln
addition, the noise modeling program determined that noise levels in the interior use

areas of the apartment building would be less than 45 CNEL with implementation of

standard building design and required construction techniques.

Construction of the Vintage Senior Apartments project would temporarily increase noise

levels in the project vicinity during the construction period, which would take

approximately 16 months. Construction activities, including site clearing, excavation,
giading, building construction, and paving, would be considered an intermittent noise

impacithroughout the construction period of the project. The City's Noise Ordinance

excludes construction activities from meeting the General Plan Noise Element standards,
provided that all phases of construction are limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and

b:00 p.m. on weekdays, and between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays. To ensure

compliance with the City's Noise Control Ordinance and General Plan Noise Element,

City of Folsom Page 35

Page 806

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

staff recommends that hours of construction operation be limited from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00
p.m. on weekdays and 8:00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on Saturdays with no construction permitted

on Sundays or holidays. ln addition, staff recommends that construction equipment be

muffled and shrouded to minimize noise levels. Condition No. 56 is included to reflect

these requirements.

Operational noises generated by the proposed project include sounds associated with

new vehicle trips, vehicle parking, and mechanical equipment associated with the senior

apartment community. Persons and activities potentially sensitive to noise in the project

vicinity include residents within the Cimarron Hills Subdivision to the east and residents

off of Montrose Drive to the south. Due to the limited volume of project-generated vehicle

trips (441 daily vehicle trips), vehicle noise exposure would increase only slightly as

compared to existing conditions in the project vicinity. Based on the residential nature of
the proposed projeci and the limited number of project vehicle trips, staff has determined

that potential noise impacts relative to these operational noise sources will not be

significant.

A possible on-site source of vibration during project construction activities is a vibratory

roiler. A vibratory roller would primarily be used to achieve soil compaction as part of the

foundation and paving construction, and for aggregate and asphalt compaction as part of
project driveway and parking lot construction. To minimize potential impacts associated

with ground vibrations caused by a vibratory roller, staff recommends, that the

ownerTapplicant provide evidence to the City (via testing data or calculations from a

qualified expert), demonstrating that vibratory rollers used on the project site will produce

less than 80 VdB at nearby residences, or that all vibratory rollers shall be used in static

mode only (no vibrations) when operating within 120 feet of a residence. Condition No.

57 is included to reflect this requirement.

H. Walls/Fencing

As shown on the preliminary site plan (Attachment 6), preliminary grading and drainage
plan (Attachment 8), and preliminary grading sections (Attachment 9), the proposed

project includes construction of retaining walls, tubular metal fencing, and masonry

screen walls on the project site. Retaining walls, which will feature decorative masonry

construction and range from 1 to 14 feet in height, are proposed along portions of East

Natoma Street, portions of the southern property boundary, and interior sections of the
project site. Decorate metal guardrails (42-inchtall) are proposed on top of the retaining

wails for safety and aesthetic purposes. Lastly, an eight-foot-tall decorative, masonry

screen wall is proposed along the eastern project boundary to provide a buffer between

the proposed project and the single-family residences directly to the east. Staff
recommends that decorative stone pilasters be integrated into the screen wall design at
strategically placed locations to break up the long expanse of the wall and that a

decoritive t1m cap be placed on top of the screen wall for its entire length. ln addition,

staff recommends that final location, design, height, materials, and colors of the retaining

walls, metalfencing, and masonry screen walls be subject to review and approval by the

City of Folsom Page 36

Page 807

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Communig Development Department. Condition No. 59 is included to reflect these

requirements.

l. Site Lighting

As shown on the Preliminary Lighting Plan (Attachment 15), the applicant is proposing to

use a combination of pole-mounted parking lot lighting, carport lighting, building-attached
lighting, and bollard lights along the walkways on the project site. All lighting would be

OesigleO to minimize lighUglare impacts to the adjacent properties by ensuring that all

exteiior lighting is shielded and directed downward. Staff recommends that the final

exterior OuitOing and site lighting plans be submitted for review and approval by

Community Development Department for location, height, aesthetics, level of illumination,
glare and-trespass prior to the issuance of any building permits. ln addition, staff
iecommends all lighting is designed to be shielded and directed downward onto the
project site and away from adjacent properties and public rights-of-way. Lastly, staff
recommends that all poll-mounted parking lot lights be limited to a maximum of 12 feet in

height. Condition No. 27 is included to reflect these requirements.

J. Signage

The proposed prolect includes a six-foot-tall, 32-square-foot monument sign (double-

sided) that will be located in a landscaped area at the southeast corner of East Natoma

Street and the primary project driveway. The design of the monument sign includes

individual black and green letters inset into a beige-colored aluminum panel with steel

support posts. Staff has determined that the proposed monument sign is consistent with

the requirements of the Folsom MunicipalCode (FMC, Section 17.59.040 D) with respect

to maximum sign height (6 feet) and maximum sign area (32 square feet). Staff has also

determined that the design and colors of the monument sign are complementary to the

design of the proposed senior apartment building. However, staff has concluded that the
proposed sign materials (aluminum cabinet with steel support posts) are not consistent

with the proposed apartment design/building materials. Staff recommends that the
proposed monument sign be constructed of masonry, stone, or wood materials to be more

consistent with the design/materials of the apartment building. ln addition, staff
recommends that the final location, design, materials, and color of the monument sign be

subject to review and approval by the Community Development Department. Lastly, staff
recommends that the owner/applicant obtain a sign permit prior to installation of the

monument sign. Condition No. 62 is included to reflect these requirements.

K. Trash/Recycling

The proposed project includes construction of a single trash, recycling, and organic waste

enclosure in the southeast corner of the project site. The proposed trash enclosure, which

is 6 feet tall and measures 30 feet in width by 10 feet in depth, is designed with stucco

walls, a decorative trim cap, and steel doors. The City's Solid Waste Division has

City of Folsom Page 37

Page 808

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

reviewed the proposed trash enclosure and determined that it meets the City standard

(Design and Procedures Manual) with respect to location and design. Staff recommends

that the final location, design, color, and materials of the trash/recycling/organic-waste be

subject to review and approval by the Community Development Department. Condition

No. 58 is included to reflect this requirement.

L. Existing and Proposed Landscaping

The triangular-shaped 4.86-acre project site, which slopes moderately from east to west

with an approximate 2O-foot grade change, features a vegetative community that includes

blue oak woodland, non-native grasses, and ephemeral and intermittent drainage

features. Vegetation in the blue oak woodland habitat consists primarily of blue oak and

interior live oak trees, with some non-native species including mulberry, Chinese tallow,

Chinese hackberry, and ornamental cherry. The understory of the blue oak woodland is

dominated by non-native grasses and forbs, including cultivated oats, Italian rye grass,

and ygllow starthistle. Disturbed areas, such as bike trails and jumps occur beneath the

canopy of the oak woodland, and there is a significant amount of trash and debris present

in these areas. A small segment of an existing Class I bicycle trail occurs in this habitat

close to East Natoma Street.

As shown on the Preliminary Landscape Plans (Attachment 10), the applicant is

proposing to install landscaping that features California-native and low water-use trees,

shrubs, and groundcover selections intended to comply with the requirements of the

Model Water Etficiency Landscape Ordinance (MWELO). Proposed landscape

improvements include a variety of drought-tolerant trees, shrubs, and groundcover.

Among the proposed trees are; Bay Laurel, Blue Oak, California Buckeye, Chinese

Pistache, Desert Palo Verde, Dwarf Magnolia, Ghost Pine, Elm, Western Redbud, and

Wilson Olive. Proposed shrubs and groundcover include; Breeze Mat Rush, Cleveland

Sage, California Buckthorn, Deer Grass, Dwarf Strawberry, Fortnight Lily, ltalian Cypress,
purple Hopseed Bush, Red Yucca, Russian Sage, and San Miguel lsland Buckwheat.

The preliminary landscape plan meets the City shade requirement by providing 51

percent shade in the parking lot area within fifteen years. Staff recommends that the final

landscape plans be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department.

Condition No. 38 is included to reflect this requirement'

M. Tree Preservation

Oak Tree Preservation and Removal
Cnapter 12.16 of the Folsom MunicipalCode, the Tree Preservation Ordinance, regulates

tne cutting or modification of trees, including oaks and specified other trees; requires a

Tree Permit prior to cutting or modification; and establishes mitigation requirements for

cut or damaged trees. The Tree Preservation Ordinance establishes policies, regulations,

City of Folsom Page 38

Page 809

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)

January 18,2023

and standards necessary to ensure that the Ci$ will continue to preserve and maintain

its "urban forests".

An Arborist Report and Arborist lnventory prepared for the proposed project by Helix

Environmental (Attachment 25) identified a total of 111trees are on the site including 94

blue oaks, 7 Fiemont's cottonwoods, 4 interior live oaks, 2 Gooding's black willow, 1

mulberry, 1 Chinese hackberry, 1 Chinese tallow, and 1 ornamental cherry. Of the 111

trees on the project site, 78 are considered protected oak trees (oak trees measuring 6-

inches diametei at standard height). Of the 78 protected Oak trees, 9 Oak trees are in
poor health (tree rating of 1) or are dead. As shown on the submitted Oak Tree Mitigation
'plan 

(Attachment 12),1he applicant is proposing to preserve 31 of the protected oak trees,

while removing 47 of the protected oak trees for development of the proposed project'

To mitigate forthe loss of the 47 protected oak trees, the applicant is proposing to pay an

in-lieu ln the City's Tree Mitigation Bank as provided for by the Tree Preservation

Ordinance. While not considered eligible for receiving mitigation credit, the applicant is
proposing to plant 30 additional oak trees on the project site as part of their proposed

ianOscapL plan. The preliminary oak tree preservation plan is shown in Figure 12 on the

following page.

FIGURE 12: PRELIMINARY OAK TREE PRESERVATION PLAN

l
}{--,

rlrt6' d&i fn.. ro b. s.trn#
t r&r d Ar r€.r tc b .rd .d

elFi{rc,.! 6rdF&i.d:.nt
t*.r p...1.3 prdR:li e*r lW iocbl

Otc &drc S.5
:.-_&t:. lob.&b6;.d

EX'SIING TEEES TO 8E PEMOV€O

EXi3IING TIEES TO EEMAIN .

5:r l
.4i 15

OFF.sITE IREES TO EEMAIN

peopo:ED la€€5

I

o

'+

:.'-- -i

.i r.- -.,...-

'";6
)

<i
J:
Hi
E.'

1

ffi
ij#

=ca

L.EX

City of Folsom Page 39

Page 810

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

To mitigate the impact to the protected native Oak trees, staff recommends that the
following measures be implemented (Condition No. 40) in accordance with requirements
of the Tree Preservation Ordinance:

The owner/applicant shall provide mitigation for directly or indirectly impacted oak
trees based on having a health rating of 5,4,3, or 2. Based on the DSH equivalency
ratio, the project applicant shall mitigate for the removal of approximately 47 oak
trees (571.3 inches at DSH) that will be removed with development of the project.

Final mitigation requirements shall be determined by the City Arborist upon receipt
of final design plans prior to the issuance of a grading permit. Mitigation for trees
shall be done through planting of on-site replacement trees or payment of in-lieu
fees as determined by the City, or a combination thereof. The owner/applicant
may be eligible to receive credit for preservation of on-site Oak trees as determined
by the City Arborist.

o

a

a

a

a A Tree Permit Application containing an Application Form, Tree Protection and
Mitigation Plan, and Arborist Report shall be submitted to the City of Folsom by the
owner/applicant for issuance of a Tree Work Permit and Tree Removal Permit prior
to commencement of any grading or site improvement activities. The tree
protection and mitigation plan shall be prepared in collaboration with a qualified
arborist and shall be subject to review and approval by the City. The tree protection
and mitigation plan shall contain the contact information of the project arborist and
shall be included in all associated plan sets for the project.

Removal of any protected tree shall be mitigated by planting replacement trees
and/or payment of "ln-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch basis in accordance with
FMC, Section 12.16.150. The proposed method of mitigation shall be subject to
review and approval by the City.

Prior to starting construction, oak trees to be preserved shall be fenced with high
visibilig fencing consistent with the city-approved tree protection and mitigation
plan. Parking of vehicles, equipment, or storage of materials is prohibited within
the Tree Protection Zone of Protected Trees at all times. Signs shall be posted on
exclusion fencing stating that the enclosed trees are to be preserved. Signs shall
state the penalty for damage to, or removal of, the protected tree.

The owner/applicant shall retain the services of a project arborist for the duration
of the development project to monitor the health of oak trees to be preserved and
carry out the City-approved tree protection plan. All regulated activity conducted
within the Critical Root Zone of protected trees, as that term is defined in Folsom
Municipal Code (FMC) 12.16.020, shall be performed under the direct supervision
of the project arborist. A copy of the executed contract for these arboricultural
services shall be submitted to the Ci$ prior to the issuance of any tree or grading
permits.

City of Folsom Page 40

Page 811

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

. Certification letters by the project arborist attesting to compliance with the tree

protection and mitigation plan and tree permit conditions shall be submitted to the

CitY.

N. Conformance with Relevant General Plan Goals and Policies

The City of Folsom General Plan (2035) outlines a number of goals, policies, and

implementation programs designed to guide the physical, economic, and environmental

growth of the Ciiy. 
-Statt 

has determined that the proposed project is consistent with the

General Plan goals and policies as outlined and discussed below:

APPLTCABLE GENERAL PLAN GOALS AND POLICIES
GP GOAL LU 1.1 (Land Use/Growth and Change)

litv of life. unique identitv. and sense of communitv

while continuinq to grow and chanqe.

GP POLICY LU 1.1.12-1 (lnfill Development)
New development should improve the character and

ffihood in which it occurs. Phvsical desion should respond to

ffiof the surroundino communitv, while improvinq critical elements

such as transparencv and permeabilitv'

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project features significant

site 
'improvement-s 

which will enhance the overall character of the area including

construction of the signalized fourth leg of the intersection of East Natoma Street and
prison Road. The proposed project will also improve bicycle and pedestrian circulation

by adding sidewalks, pedestrian pathways, bicycle/pedestrian connections, and

realigning-a Class 1 bicycle trail. ln addition, the proposed project is consistent with this

polic'y in-tnat it will introduce new senior affordable apartment units with a residential

design intended to complement the architecture and design of existing residential

buildings in the project vicinity.

GP POLICY LU 1.1.12-2 (lnfill Development)
ffi lnfill development requileg neiqhborhood .consultation to

oals. and needs of existinq neiohFgrhoqds. Ensure the

ffiis provides proper avenues for neiqhborhood input while

fulfillino thercormmunitv's laroer qoals for walkabilitv and compact development.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project applicant conducted

public outreach to all property owners located within 500 feet of the subject property. The

public outreach included two information meetings (March 22,2022 and June 29,2022)
which were held at the Folsom Community Center where the project applicant and their

team provided residents with detailed information (project description, site plan,

architectural details) regarding the proposed project and responded to questions and

comments. The two iniormational meetings were well attended with approximately 12

City of Folsom Page 41

Page 812

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

residents attending the first event and approximately 23 residents attending the second

event.

GP POLICY LU 1.1.15 (SACOG Blueprint Principles)
Strive to ere to the Sacramento ional Blueorint G Princioles

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project has been designed

to adhere to the primary SACOG Blueprint Principles including Compact Development,
Housing Choice and Diversity, Use of Existing Assets, and Quality Design. Compact
Development involves creating environments that are more compactly built and use

space in an efficient but attractive manner to encourage more walking, biking, and transit

use and shorter auto trips. Housing Choice and Diversity includes providing a variety of
places where people can live (apartments, townhomes, condominiums, and single-family

detached homes) and also creating opportunities for the variety of people who need them

such as families, singles, seniors, and people with special needs. Use of Existing Assets

entails intensification of the existing use or redevelopment in order to make better use of
existing public infrastructure, including roads. Quality Design focuses on the design

details of any land development (such as relationship to the street, placement of buildings,

sidewalks, street widths, landscaping, etc.), which are all factors that influence the

attractiveness of living in a compact development and facilitate the ease of walking within

and in and out of a communi$.

APPLICABLE GENERAL PLAN GOALS D POLICIES

uses that orovide cho for Folsom
e

GP POLICY LU 6.1.3 (Efficiencv throuqh Density)
n rs

m Encou
lot develoome to hioher-densitv. smal and multifamilv develop as a means

to increase enerqv efficiencv, conserve water. reduce waste. as well as increase access

to, selrrices and amenities (e.o.. open space) throuqh an emphasis on mixed uses in these

hiq ensitv develo

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project includes development

of a senior affordable multi-family rental community developed at a residential density of
28 units per acre. ln addition, the proposed project design incorporates sustainable
features (mechanical, electrical, plumbing, HVAC, rooftop solar array system, and cool

paving material) that are consistent with California Green Building Standards Code
(CnlGreen;. ln addition, the proposed project includes 14 electric vehicle capable
parking spaces and will be required to provide 7 electric vehicle charging stations

consistent with CALGreen.

City of Folsom Page 42

Page 813

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

GP GOAL M 4.1 (Vehicle Traffic and Parkinq)
ffint network of streets for cars and trucks. as well as provide an

adequate supply of vehicle parkinq.

GP POLICY M 4.1.3 (Level of Service)
ffit traffic Level of Service "D" (or better) for local streets and

ffi citv. ln desioninq transportation improvements. the Citv will

@rt technolooies and innovative solutions that maximize efficiencies

ffinimizinq the physical footprint. Durinq the coursq of Plan buildout. it

may o,ccur tkrat temporarily higher Levels of Service result where roadwav improvements

ffilv phised as development proceeds. However, this situation will

m on annual traffic studies and monitorinq proorams. Staff will report

@t reqular intervals via the Capital improvement Prgqral:n process for

tfre Cnruntil to prioritize proiects inteqral to achievinq Level of Service D or better.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project will not result in a

change in the level of service (LOS) at either of the two study intersections. ln addition,

the pioposed project will result in a greater than 15% reduction in Vehicle Miles Traveled
(VIvlT), consistent with new State Law that took effect July 1 ,2020 (SB 743)'

GP GOAL M 4.2 (Vehicle Traffic and Parkinq)
ffialanced approach to oarkino that meets economic development

and susta bilitv ooals.

GP POLICY M 4.2.4 (Electric Vehicle Charoinq Stations)
Encouraoe the installation of electric vehicle charqinq stations. in .parkinq spaces

tfrroruohout the citv. prioritizino installations at multi-familv residential units.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project includes 14 electric

vehicles capable parking spaces. ln addition, the project will be required to provide 7

electric vehicle charging stations for exclusive use by residents of the senior apartment

community. The number of proposed electric vehicle capable parking spaces and

required eiectric vehicle charging stations is consistent with the California Green Buildings

Standards Code's provisions for m ulti-fam ily residentia I development.

GP GOAL H-l (Adequate Land Supplv for Housins)
@pplv of suitable sites for the development of a ranqe of housino

tvpes to meet the housino needs of all seqments of the population.

GP POLICY H 1.3
The Citv hall encouraoe builders to their oroiects on m rulti-familv-

d

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project is providing a senior
affordable multi{amily residential project developed at a residential density of 28 units

City of Folsom Page 43

Page 814

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

per acre. The proposed project would be considered a high-density multi-family
residential development given that it falls within the density range (20-30 dwelling units
per acre) established for the City's MHD (Multi-family High Density) General Plan land

use designation.

GP GOAL H-2 (Removinq Barriers to the Production of Housinq)
To, minimize oovernmental constraints on the development of housinq for households of
all income levels.

GP POLICY H 2.7
Thercitv shall educate the communitv on the needs, the realities and the benefits of
affordable and h -densifu housino

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project will result in

development of a high-density senior affordable apartment community on property zoned
for business and professional office uses.

GP GOAL H-3 (Facilitatins Affordable Housinq)
who I ive andTo facilitate rdable housino oooortun fo serve the needs of oe

work in the communitv.

GP POLICY H 3.1
The City shall encouraoe residential proiects affordable to a mix of household incomes
and disperse affordable housino proiects throuqhout the Citv to achieve a balance of
housinq in all neiqhborhoods and communities.

The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project includes development
of 136 units that will be designated as affordable for Low lncome (Ll) and Very Low
lncome (VLl) households as defined by State and City requirements, with 122 units being

made available to individuals with incomes at or below 60% (Ll) of the Sacramento area
median income (AMl) and 14 units made available to individuals with income at or below
50% (VLl) of AMl.

O. Native American Consultation (SB 18rAB52)

Assembly Bill (AB 52), which was signed into law in July 2015, requires City or County
Governments to consult with California Native American Tribes in order to identify Tribal

Cultural Resources that may be significantly impacted by development projects and to
avoid or mitigate those impacts. On November 19, 2021, the City sent project notification
letters to the three California Native American tribes named on the City's AB 52 contact
list, with the United Auburn lndian Community (UAIC) being the only tribe to respond in a

timely manner. The City subsequently initiated consultation with UAIC and provided a
copy of the culturalresources and arborist reports prepared forthe proposed project. The
CiVdid not receive any further communication from UAIC with respect to potential tribal
culiural resources on the project site of within the project area. On June 3, 2022, the City

City of Folsom Page 44

Page 815

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

formally concluded consultation with UAIC with the acknowledgement that a standard

mitigation measure (Condition No. 43) would be included with the project to ensure
protection of any tribal cultural resources that are discovered during ground disturbing
construction activities.

PUBLIC OUTREACH AND PUBLIC NOTICING
The project applicant sponsored two public outreach events to provide residents and the

community with an opportunity to learn more about the proposed senior affordable

apartmeni project. The two outreach events, which were held in the Folsom Community

Center on March 22, 2022 and June 29, 2022 respectively, were well attended with

approximately 12 residents present at the first event and 23 residents present at the

second event. Residents who attended the outreach events expressed concerns and

made comments regarding a number of topics associated with development of the
proposed project including but not limited to:

Negative visual impact to nearby homes.
o Design compatibility of the three-story apartment building.
o Excessive size and scale of the three-story apartment building
o Negative impact to views and viewsheds in the project area.

o Privacy impacts to adjacent homes.

a

. Density of the proposed project.
o lncreased traffic and traffic-safety related impacts.
o Adequacy of parking being provided.
o Noise impacts associated with emergency service vehicles responding to calls.

. Noise concerns associated with construction of project.

. Trash/recycling collection and potential noise and odor impacts.
o Lighting and glare impacts.
o Low-income nature of project and potential impact to home values.
. Oak tree impacts.

Each of the aforementioned areas of concern referenced above are discussed within

separate sections (architecture/design, traffic, parking, noise, etc.) of this staff report.

On July 1,2022, the project applicant posted a large project identification sign (4-feet by

6-feet) along the frontage of the project site facing East Natoma Street. The project

identification sign includes basic information regarding the proposed Vintage Senior

Apartments development and also includes contact information for the project applicant
and City staff.

On November 1, 2022, City staff mailed notices of a public hearing to all property owners

located within 500 feet (300 feet required) of the subject property informing them that the
planning Commission would be reviewing the Vintage Senior Apartments project at their
December 14,2022 meeting. The aforementioned public notice was also published in

City of Folsom Page 45

Page 816

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

the Folsom Telegraph and on the City's website on November 10, 2022. Subsequently_,

it was determinel tnat tnere would not be a quorum available for the December 14th

Planning Commission meeting and the meeting was cancelled accordingly. On

November 18,2022, Cig staff mailed new notice of a public hearing to all property owners

within 500 feet (300 feet required) of the subject property informing them that the

December 14, 2022 Planning Commission had been cancelled and that the Planning

Commission would be reviewing the Vintage Senior Apartments project at their January
18, 2023 meeting instead. The aforementioned public notice was also published in the

Folsom Telegraph and on the City's website on December 1, 2022'

ln response to the public notices for the proposed Vintage Senior Apartments project that

were mailed to all property owners located within 500 feet of the subject property, the City

received six emails from residents expressing their concerns and opposition to the
proposed project. City staff also previously received five emails from residents

expressing their concerns regarding the proposed project following the public outreach

meetings.- These emails are included with this staff report (Attachmenl 27) for
consideration by the Planning Commission.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Helix Environmental has prepared an lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Attachment 25) for the project in

accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and associated

regulations and determined that with the proposed mitigations, the project will not have a

significant effect on the environment.

The Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and noticed for public comment

on the project, and mitigation measures have been included as Conditions of Approval.

To date, nine written comments have been received during the Mitigated Negative

Declaration public review period (November 14, 2O22 to December 14,2022) including

six comments from residents (Attachment2T) and three comments from public agencies

(Attachment 26). The six comments letters received from residents express their general

opposition to the proposed project and also identify some specific areas of concern

including but not limited to, project density, increased traffic, traffic safety, road noise, lack

of sufficient parking, building design, oak tree impacts, and negative impact to property

values. City staff has addressed these comments and concerns within the various

sections of this staff report. ln addition, the lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration,

and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Attachment 25) addressed the

environmental concerns raised including traffic-related impacts, noise-related impacts,

and Oak tree impacts and concluded that, with the mitigation measures the project will

not have a significant effect on the environment.

City of Folsom Page 46

Page 817

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

The City received four letters from public agencies (Attachment 26) in response to the

publication of the lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring

and Reporting Program for the proposed project. The Sacramento Metropolitan Utility

Agency (SMUD) provided a response indicating that they had no comments regarding

the proposed project. The Central Valley RegionalWater Quality Control Board

(CVRWQCB) provided a response highlighting the regulatory setting for project-related

water impacts and also providing guidance to the project applicant with respect to the

permitting process the project will be required to go through due to its impacts to a local

drainage feature. The Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District

(SMAqMD) provided a response recommending that the project applicant consider

developing the project without natural gas infrastructure due to greenhouse gas

emission impacts. SMAQMD also asked for clarification regarding the number of

electric vehicle charging spaces that will be provided by the proposed project. Lastly,

the Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) provided a response regarding specific

requirements about the types of development that is allowed to occur within the PG&E

overhead easement area. None of the aforementioned comments are relevant to the

project's compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act. A formal response

to all of these comments is included with this staff report (Attachment 28).

RECOMMENDED PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

Move to recommend that the Planning Commission

Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting

Program prepared for the Vintage Senior Apartments project (PN 21-159) per

Attachment 25; and

Approve a Conditional Use Permit for development and operation of a senior

apartment community on the subject 4.86-acre property; and

Approve a Planned Development Permit for development of the 136-unit Vintage

SeniorApartments project on a 4.86-acre site located at 103 East Natoma Street; and

o Approve a Density Bonus for development of the Vintage Senior Apartments project

at a residential density of 28 units per acre and to allow for three

incentives/concessions including establishing a parking ratio of one parking space per

unit, increasing the maximum building height from 35 feet to 42-teet 6-inches, and

increasing the maximum number of building stories from 2-stories to 3-stories.

These approvals are based on the findings below (Findings A-U) and subject to the

conditions of approval (conditions 1-76) attached to this report.

a

o

a

City of Folsom Page 47

Page 818

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

A.

B.

c.

D.

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE
MANNER REQUIRED BY STATE LAWAND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN AND THE
ZONING CODE OF THE CITY.

CEQA FINDINGS

A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CEQA.

THE PLANNING COMMISSION HAS CONSIDERED THE PROPOSED
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND

REPORTING PROGRAM BEFORE MAKING A DECISION REGARDING THE
PROJECT.

E. ON THE BASIS OF THE WHOLE RECORD BEFORE THE PLANNING
COMMISSION, THERE IS NO SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE THAT THE
PROJECT, AS CONDITIONED, WILL HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE
ENVIRONMENT.

THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION REFLECTS THE INDEPENDENT
JUDGMENT AND ANALYSIS OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM.

THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION HAS DETERMINED THAT THE
PROPOSED PROJECT, AS CONDITIONED AND CONSISTENT WITH THE
REQUIRED MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM,
WOULD NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT WITH

THE REQUIRED MITIGATION MEASURES.

THE LOCATION AND CUSTODIAN OF THE DOCUMENTS WHICH
CONSTITUTE THE RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS UPON WHICH THE
DECISION lS BASED ARE: CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT, 50 NATOMA STREET, FOLSOM, CA 95630,

CONDITI USE PERMIT FINDING

AS CONDITIONED, THE ESTABLISHMENT, MAINTENANCE OR OPERATION
OF THE USE APPLIED FOR WILL NOT, UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF

THIS PARTICULAR CASE, BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH, SAFETY,
PEACE, MORALS, COMFORT, AND GENERAL WELFARE OF PERSONS
RESIDING OR WORKING IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD, OR BE DETRIMENTAL
OR INJURIOUS TO PROPERW AND IMPROVEMENTS IN THE

F

G

H

City of Folsom Page 48

Page 819

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

NEIGHBORHOOD OR TO THE GENERAL WELFARE OF THE CITY, AS THE

PROPOSED USE IS COMPLIMENTARY TO EXISTING USES IN THE

PROJECT VICINITY AND, AS CONDITIONED, THE PROPOSED PROJECT

WILL NOT HAVE NEGATIVE IMPACTS TO NEARBY USES THAT HAVE NOT

BEEN MITIGATED.

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FINDINGS

J. THE PROPOSED PROJECT COMPLIES WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES

oF CHAPTER 17.38 (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT) OF THE

FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE AND OTHER APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF

THE CITY.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE OBJECTIVES,
POLICIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF

THE CITY.

THE PHYSICAL, FUNCTIONAL AND VISUAL COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN THE

PROPOSED PROJECT AND EXISTING AND FUTURE ADJACENT USES AND

AREA CHARACTERISTICS IS ACCEPTABLE.

THERE ARE AVAILABLE PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LlMITED

TO, WATER, SEWER AND DRAINAGE TO ALLOW FOR THE DEVELOPMENT

OF THE PROJECT SITE IN A MANNER CONSISTENT WITH THIS
PROPOSAL.
THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE UNACCEPTABLE VEHICULAR

TRAFFIC LEVELS ON SURROUNDING ROADWAYS, AND THE PROPOSED

PROJECT WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE INTERNAL CIRCULATION.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH,

SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE OF THE PERSONS OR PROPERTY
WITHIN THE VICINITY OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND THE CIry AS A
WHOLE.

ADEQUATE PROVISION IS MADE FOR THE FURNISHING OF SANITATION
SERVICES AND EMERGENCY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES TO THE

PROJECT.

DENSITY BONUS FINDINGS

O. THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR A DENSITY BONUS IN THAT

THE PROJECT IS PROVIDING ONE HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE TOTAL

UNITS FOR LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS OR VERY LOW- INCOME
HOUSEHOLDS, AND IS A SENIOR CITIZEN HOUSING DEVELOPMENT.

K.

L

M

N

o.

P

City of Folsom Page 49

Page 820

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

R.

S.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR THE REQUESTED PROJECT
DENSITY OF 28 DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS ELIGIBLE FOR FOUR DENSITY BONUS
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS BASED ON THE FACT THAT THE
PROPOSED PROJECT IS DEDICATING ONE HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL HOUSING UNITS TO LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS.

THE PROJECT APPLICANT HAS REQUESTED THREE DENSITY BONUS
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS, INCLUDING A PARKING RATIO OF ONE
PARKING SPACE PER UNIT, AN INCREASE IN THE MAXIMUM BUILDING
HEIGHT FROM 35 FEET TO 42 FEET SIX INCHES, AND AN INCREASE IN

THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF BUILDING STORIES FROM TWO TO THREE

STORIES.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT QUALIFIES FOR EACH OF THE REQUESTED
INCENTIVES OR CONCESSIONS.

T

U

City of Folsom Page 50

Page 821

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 4

Conditions of Approval

City of Folsom Page 51

Page 822

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMEI{TS PROJECT (PN 2l-159'
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI,AI\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS

103 EASTNATOMA STREtrT

Mitigation
Measure

ConditionlUlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Deprrtment

I The applicant
Development

shall submit final site development plans to the Community
Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced

below:

l. Site Plan, datedOctober 17,2022
2. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated October 17,2022
3. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated October 17,2022
4. Preliminary Grading Sections, dated October 17,2022
5. Preliminary Landscape and Irrigation Plans, dated October 20,2022
6. Preliminary Tree Preservation Plan, dated October l7,2022
7. Preliminary Oak Tree Mitigation Plan, dated October20.2022
8. Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan, dated October 17,2022
9. Preliminary Fire Access Plan, dated October 17,2022
10. Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details, dated Novembet 3,2027
I I . Building Elevations and Floor Plans dated June 3, 2022

12. Color Building Renderings, dated Jwrc 3, 2022

13. Building Site Sections, datedJune3,2022
1 4 . Color and Materials Board, dated Jtne 3 , 2022

15. Transportation Impact Study, dated July, 2022

16. Parking Memorandum, dated October 17,2022
17. Parking Case Study, dated October 17,2022
18. Vintage Senior Apartnents Booklet (Separate Bound Document)

The project is approved for development ofthe 136-unit Vintage Senior Apartments

project, which includes a three-story, I I 1,755-square-foot apartrnent building and

associated site improvements. Implementation of the project shall be consistent with
the above-referenced items as modified by these cnndifinnc of

B CD (PXE)

Ciiy of Folsom Page 52

Page 823

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TI{E SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECI (PN 21.159)
CONDITTONAL USE PERMIT, PLAN{NED IIEVELOPMENT PERMIT,AND DENSTTY BONUS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

J Building plans, and all civil engineering and landscape plans, shall be submitted to the

Community Development Deparhnent for review and approval to ensure conformance

with this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and other requirements

of the City of Folsom.

I,B CD(PXEXB)

J. The projeot approvals (Planned Development Permit Conditional Use Permit, and

Density Bonus) granted under this staffreport shall remain in effect for two years from
final date ofapproval (January 18,2025). Failwe to obtain the relevant building (or

other) permits within this time period, without the subsequent extension ofthis
aooroval. shall result in the termination ofthis approval.

B cD (P)

4. Consistent with the State Density Bonus Law, all rental units within the Vintage Senior

ADartrnents proiect shall remain affordable for a period of 55 years or longer
OG cD(P)

5 The owner/applicant shall defend, indemniff, and hold harmless the City and its agents,

officers and employees from any olaim, action or proceeding against the City or its
agents, officers or employees to aftack, set aside, void or annul any approval by the

City or any ofits agencies, deparbnents, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or
legislative body concerning the project. The City will promptly noti$ the

owner/applicant ofany such claim, action or proceeding, and will coop€rate flrlly in the

defense. The City may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any

such claim, action or proceeding ifboth ofthe following occur:

r The City bears its own attorney's fees and costs; and
. The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement ofsuch
claim. action or oroceedinq unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant.

OG CD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

City of Folsom Page 53

Page 824

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

PI.ANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,
IO3EASTNATOMA STREET

PERMIT,
SENIOR PROJECT (PN 2r-15e)FOR THEoF

AND BONUSDENSITYUSECOI{DITIONAL

!Vhen
Required

Responsible
Deprrtment

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure

CD (PXE)G, I

aln andbe toThe shall monitoringmitigationrequired participateowner/applicant
No.Resolution and2634 ResourcesPublicto Councilprogramreporting pursuant City

themidentifiedmeasuresandThe082l .6. reportingmonitoringCode mitigation
beenhave intothisfor project incorporatedDeclaration preparedNegativeMitigated

avoidor effects theonorderlI1 toconditionsthese mitigate significantof approval
withand identifiedmeasures areThese monitoring reportingenvironment. mitigation

a check mark m measure column.

6.

COSTSAND

cD (PXE)I,BThe owner/applicant shall PaY all taxes, fees and charges at the rate and

amount in effect at the time such taxes, fees and become due and payable.
7

B cD (E)applicable, the owner/applicant assessments against the
fees.

pay offany
andor file

8

CD(PXE)

tocounseltheutilize of outsideservlcesThe at soleits legalmaydiscretion,City
notbut limitedof this to, drafting,lnassist including,the implementation project,

Ifdocumentationother theforand/or and/or project.revlewng revising agreements
shalloutsidesuch thethe theutilizes of applicantcounsel,servrces legalCity

incurred the suchforoutside andfees coststhereimburse for dl by CityCity legal
discretionsole toofthebe the Attomeyat CityTheservlces. may required,applicant

Theservlces initiationto theof servlces.i theto for thesesubmit priordeposit City
servicesthereimbursementfor theto for regardlessCitybeshallapplicant

9.

I,B CD (PXE)

prior to initiating review ofthe improvement plans or beginning inspection, whichever

orstudiesconsultantsof lo prepare special providetheIf utilizes theCity
thefor the shallorrevlew servlc,es project, applicantdesigt inspectionspecialized

inlncurs thesethe actualfor it includingseruces,costsreimburse utilizingCity
beshallA thesefor servlcescostsadministative for providedCity personnel. deposit

ts

10.

Page 54City of Folsom

Page 825

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CoNDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLANNED DEVf,LOPMENT PEnMIT' AftD DENSITY BOI\IUS
IO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

GN2r-rs9)ALT1OR SENIOR

When
Required

Responsible
Ileprrtment

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lMitigation Measure

B cD (PXE), PW, PK

Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway, Light Rail, TSM, capital facilities andtraffic
impacts. The 90-day protest period for all fees, dedications' reseryations or other

exictions imposed on this project has begun. The fees shall be calculated at the fee

unlessdlto fees, exemptThis beshall development impactsubject City-wideproject
be alltoThis shall developmentsubject City-wideagreem€xrt. projectprevrousby

feesa These1S issued.mfees ateffect ffnesuch that maybuilding permitimpact
limited forfees fire facilities,arebut not park equipment,parkinclude, to, protection,

rate in

l1

cD (P)B

SchoolUnified theDistrictto theto Folsom-CordovaThe agr€es payowner/applioant
reconstructionand/or ofsohoolforlaw consfuctionthefeema(lmum authorized by

1Sestablishedfee the thatSchool DistrictThe shallfee thebefacilities. byapplicable
theaofeffect!n theat of thetime tssuance permit.building Specifically

and with andto and feesall and charges comply anyagrees pay anyowner/applicant
Sectionunder 7620 Educationof theother authorizeddedicationsdl or requirements

andofthe GovemmentSectionwith Code;74. 6s970)ChapterCode;
7 oftheSections

12.

DEVELOPMENT

G,B CD(E)

have a geotechnical report prepared by
an analysis ofsite suitability, proposed

and roadway and pavement design.

A Geotechnical Engineering Survey was prepared by Youngdahl Consulting Group,

shalland/or thetheto issuancePrior building permit,ofany gradtng
that includesan licensed engineerappropriately

allfor shuctues,foundation design proposed

l3

Page 55City of Folsom

Page 826

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

PLAI\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIIN
lO3EASTNATOMA STREET

APPROVAL PROJECT (PN 21-1s9)VINTAGETIIE SENIOROF FOR
BONUSDfNSITYANI)USE PERJVllr,CONDITIONAL

Responsible
Departmcnt

When
Required

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/'lMitigation Measure

cD(E)I,G
at the City ofFolsom who shall coordinate with the paleontologist as to any necessary

investigition of the find. If the find is determined to be significant under CEQA, the

City shall implement those measures which may include avoidance, preservation in
place, or other appropriate measures, as outlined in Public Resources Code Section

14.

I,B cD (PXE)

gutters,curbs,and roadways,Public private improvements,
and otherallinfrasffuctureandlanes streetlights,tails, undergroundbicycle

thewith ofthe ofcurrent editionbe accordance Citylnshall providedimprovements
theand Design and Procedwes MamnlFolsom Standfid Constraction Specificatiot s

beshalleasementsand/orAll necessary rights-of-wayand. Imnrovement Slandar^.
for thesededicated to the

15.

CD (E)
storm drainage improvements with corresponding easements, as necessary, in

accordance with these studies and the current edition ofthe city ofFolsom standard

Construction Specifications andlhe Design and Procedures Maruml and Imorovement

tostudies satisfactiontheandsewerwater, drainageshallapplicanVowner
sewer water andandof the provide sanitaryCommunity DepartnentDevelopment

16.

cD(E)B
for the required public and private improvements shall be

by the Community Development Deparfinent prior to issuance

of a building permit for the project.

The improvement
reviewed and approved

t7

o cD(E)and frontage improvements on
satisfaction of the CommunitY
first Certifi cate of OccuPancY.

notbut tolinited sfteetand signalincludingpublic private improvements,Required
thetoNatoma beshallEast Steet, completed

theto of therssuanceDepartrnent priorDevelopment

18.

Page 56City of Folsom

Page 827

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDIIIONSOT' FORTHEVIMAGE PROJECT (PN 2r-r59)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMTT, PLAI\II\TED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT' ANI} DONSITY BONUS

103 IASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

19. Final lot and building mnfigurations may be modified to allow for overland release of
storm events greater than the capaclty of the underground system.

B cD (E)

20 The owner/applicant coordinate the planning, development, and completion of
this proiect with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.).

I CD (PXE)

21 The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or
hazardous public sidewalk, curb and gutter along the site frontage and/or boundaries,

including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Departmont.

o CD(E)

22. For any improvements consfucted on private property that are not under ownership or

contol ofthe owner/applicant, a right-of'entry, and ifnecessary, a permanent

easement shall be obtained and provided to the City prior to issuance ofa grading

permit and/or approval of improvement plans.

G, I cD(E)

23. The on-site water and sewer systems shall be privately owned and maintained. The

fre protection system shall be separate from the domestic water system. The lire
system shall be constructed to meet the National Fire Protection Association Standard

24. The domestic water and irigation system shall be metered per City of Folsom

Standqd Constraction Soecficatiotts.

I cD(E)

24. Any reimbursement for public improvements constructed by the applicant shall be in
accordance with a formal reimbursement agreement entered into between the City and

the owner/applicant prior to approval ofthe plans.
cD (E)

25. The owner/applicant shall dedicate a 12.5-foot-wide public utility easement for
underground facilities and appurtenances adjacsnt to all public rights-of-way. The

owner/applicant shall also dedicate any private drive, ingress, and egess easement as a

public utility easement for underground facilities and appurtenances. An easement

shall also be dedicated to SMUD based on the location ofas constructed facilities
placed bevond the limits ofthe private drives.

I cD (E)

City of Folsom Page 57

Page 828

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

PLAI\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,
103 EAST NATOMA STREET

APPROVAL PROJEC'T 2t-rse)(PNI'OROFcoliDlTloNs
DENSITYANI) BONUSUSECONDITIONAL PERl\dIT,

When
Required

Responsible
Department

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure

CD(E)
Existing overhead utility lines lower than

Natoma Street adjacent to the project site
69KV located on the south side ofEast
shall be placed underground to the

Developmentsatisfaction ofthe

26.

CD (P)I,B

approval by Community Development Departnent for location' height, aesthetics,

level ofillumination, glare and tespass prior to the issuance ofany building permits.

All tighting, including but not limited to free-standing parking lot lights' building-

attact 
"A 

4hs, and landscape lights shall be designed to be screened, shielded and

directed downward onto the project site and away from adjacent properties and public

rights-of-way. The final design ofthe building-attached lights shall be subject to

rwiew and approval by the Community Development Department. Lighting shall be

equipped with a timor or photo condenser. In addition, pole-mounted parking lot lights

*rai utillze a low-intensity, energy efficient lighting method and be limited to a

forreview andFinal exterior building and site plans shall be

of 12 feet in

27

WATER POLLUTION/CLEAN WATER ACT

G, I,B CD(E)
and dlofbe litterfor conbolThe shall sweeping pavedresponsibleou,ner/applicant

All stormon-site shalldrains cleanedb€with standards.lnsurfaces accordance City
seasonofthe (October ls).commencementbefore theimmediately

28.

cD(E)G, I,B,O
29 The storm drain swale or onsite improvement plans

Regional Water Quality Contol Board.

Management Practices" that meet the requirements of the water quality standalds of
the city's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination system Permit issued by the state

provide for "Best

cD (E)G, Iplans. These measures shall conform to the City of Folsom requirements and the

bounty ofSacrametto Erosion and Sedimentation Control Standar^ and

Soeciications-current edition and as directed by the Community Development

control measwes be incorporated intoErosion and30.

Page 58Cig of Folsom

Page 829

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONI'ITIONS OT'APPROVAL TOR THE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2I.159)

CoNDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLAI\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,AND DENSITY BOfruS
rO3 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Depertment

3l The proposed development will add new impervious area

stormwater quality treatrnent shall be provided. The City
to the site; therefore,
requires developers to utilize

the Guidance Manualfor On-Site Stormwater Quality Treatment Control Measures

(January 2000) ("On-Site Manual") in selecting and designing sowce conhol and post-

consff uction facilities to treat runofffrom the proiect.

G, I cD (E)

32. Prior to lssuance of shall detailed drainage

plans for evaluation by the implemented pnor to project

occupancy. The drainage plans shall includs measures to minimize the total amount of
additional surface runoffand to limit the flows released to off-site receiving waters to

existing pre-development levels in accordance with the requirements of the City of
Public Works

G, I cD(E), PW

33. Prior to issuance ofgrading permits, the
plans and other rnonitoring programs for

owner/applicant shall submit erosion confol
the construction and operational phases ofthe

proposed project for review by the City. The plan shall include Best Management

Practices (BMP) to minimize and confiol the level ofpollutants in stormwater runoff,

and in runoffreleased to off-site receiving waters. Specific techniques may be based on
geotechnical reports or the Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook ofthe Califomia
Deoarfinent of Conservation, and shall comply with crrnenf Cifw standards.

G, I cD (E), PW

34. Prior to issuance ofgrading pellnrrs, the owner/applicant shall obtain coverage under

the State Water Resources Confol Board General Permit for Discharges of Storm

Water Associated with Consffuction Activity (Order 2009-0009-DWQ), including
preparation and submittal ofa project-specific Storm Watsr Pollution Prevention Plan

(SWPPP) at the time the Notice of Intent (NOI) is filed The project applicant shall

also prepare and submit any other necessary erosion and sediment control and

engineering plans and specifications for pollution prevention and control to the city of
Folsom.

G, I cD (E), PW

Cig of Folsom Page 59

Page 830

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

PIAI{NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
103 EAST NATOMA STREET

A.PARTMENTS (PN 2r-69)TIIEFOR^A.LOF APPROVCOI\DITIONS
BONUSDENSITYAI\iDPERMITUSECONDITIONAL

When
Required

Responsible
Department

Condition/'lMitigation MeasureMitigation
Measure

EITVIRONMENTAL A.ND WATER RESOURCE

EWRG, I,B
e Priortotheissuanceofagradingpermit,theowner/applicantshallrecordal5-foot

private sewer easement within PG&E property'
. All on-site sanitary sewer shall be privately owned, operated and maintained'

. The Sanitary Sewer Lift station shall be privately owned operated and maintained.

r A maintenance ageement for the sewer lift station operation, maintenance and

emergency repairs to the satisfaction of the community Development Departrnent

and executed prior to the issuance ofa building permit'

r The offsite sewer force main shall be located within in a l5-foot private sewer

easement located within PG&E property. The Ctty will not own, operate, or

maintain this sewer force main.
r Install one new sanitary sewer manhole where the force main will terminate at the

8-inch gravity line. The City's responsibility ofthe sanitary sewer shall begin

when the 8-inch graYity line enters the public sower easement within PG&E

the shallbe incorporatedesigned project
and Waterofthe Environmentalsatisfactionto the

property.
o shall be and

The sanitary sewer system shall
following elements and features
Resources Deparhnent:

35

EWR

The domestic water and sanitary sewer

incorporate the following elements and

and Water Resources Departrnent:

o The water connection for domestic, irrigation and fire shall be a manifold as shown

in City Water Detail WR-23.
r The 6-inoh domestic water supply shall include a meter bypass in accordance with

City Water Detail WR-21.
r All on-site water systems shall be privately owned, operated, and maintained'

systems
feafures to the satisfaction ofthe Environmental

for the project shall36.

City of Folsom Page 60

Page 831

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CoNDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLAIINED DEVELOPMENT PERMTT,AND DENSITY BONUS
TMEASTNATOMA STREET

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE VINTAGE SENTORAPARTMNNTS (PN 21-1s9)

When
Required

Responsible
Department

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure

PRESERVATION

B, OG cD (PXE)
the life of the project to the satisfaction ofthe community Development Departrnent.

Vegetation or planting shall not be less than that depicted on the final landscape plan,

unless tree removal is approved by the community Development Department because

The owner/applicant shall be responsible for on-site landscape maintenance

on center as mafure.between trees will

37

City of Folsom Page 61

Page 832

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OT' APPROVAL FOR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 21-159)

CoNDITIONAL USE PERITIT, PLAI{NED DEVELOPMENT PERLIT, AND DENSITY BONUS
IO3 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

ConditionllVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

38. Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a

architect and approved by the City prior to the approval ofthe
registered landscape

first building permit.

Said plans shall include all on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree

planting exhibit demonstrating suffrcient diversity and appropriate species selection to

the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. The tee exhibit shall

include all street trees, accent trees, parking lot shading tees, and mitigation trees

proposed within the development. Said plans shall comply with all State and local

rules, regulations, Governor's declarations and restrictions pertaining to water

conservation and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping ofthe parking area shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the

Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 17 .57. T\e landscape plans shall comply and

implement water effrcient requirements as adopted by the State of Califomia
(Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) until such

time the city of Folsom adopts its own water Efficient Landscape ordinance at which

time the owner/applicant shall comply with any new ordinance. Shade and ornamental

trees shall be maintained according to the most current American National Standards

for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified tree care professionals. Tree

topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance or any other purpose shall

not be allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall be specified within
the approved landscape plans and shall be implemented during a 5-year establishment

and haining period. The owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules

or regulations on water usage. The owner/applicant shall comply with any state or

local rules and regulations relating to landscape water usage and landscaping

requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions on all landscaping in the

Vintase Senior ADarfrnents proiect.

CD(PXE)

City of Folsom Page 62

Page 833

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January'l8,2023

39 To mitigate the impact to the protected native Oak tees, the following rneasures shall

be implemented in accordance with requirements of the Tree heservation Ordinance:

The owner/applicant shall provide mitigation for directly or indirectly impacted

oak trees based on having a health rating of 5,4,3, or 2. Based on the DSH
equivalenry ratio, the project applicant shall mitigate for the removal of
approximately 47 oak trees (571.3 inches at DSH) that will be removed with
development of the project. Final mitigation requirements shall be determined by
the City Arborist upon receipt offinal design plans prior to the issuance ofa
grading permit. Mitigation for trees shall be done tluough planting of on-site
replacement fiees or payment of inlieu fees as determined by the City, or a

combination thereof. The owner/applicant may be eligible to receive credit for
preservation of on-site Oak trees as determined by the City Arborist.

a

r A Tree Permit Application containing an Application Form, Tree Protection and

Mitigation Plan, and Arborist Report shall be submitted to the City of Folsom by
the owneriapplicant for issuance of a Tree Work Permit and Tree Removal Permit
prior to commencement of any grading or site improvement activities. The tee
protection and mitigation plan shall be prepared in collaboration with a qualified
arborist and shall be subject to review and approval by the City. The ffee
protection and mitigation plan shall contain the contact information ofthe project
arborist and shall be included in all associated plan sets for the project.

r Removal of any protecte d tree shall be mitigated by planting replacement tree s

and/or payment of"In-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch basis in accordance with
FMC. Section 12.16.150. The proposed method ofmitigation shall be subject to
review and approval by the City.

r Prior to starting construction, oak ffees to be preserved shall be fenced with high
visibility fencing consistent with the city-approved tree protection and mitigation
plan. Parking ofvehicles, equipment, or storage ofmaterials is prohibited within
the Tree Protection Zone of hotected Trees at all times. Signs shall be posted on
exclusion fencing stating that the enclosed trees are to be preserved. Signs shall
state the penalty for damage to, or removal of, the protected hee.

I,G,B,O cD(PXE)

Cig of Folsom Page 63

Page 834

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Viniage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDMONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE VINTAGf, SEMOR APARTMENTS PROJEST (PN 21-159)
CONDITIONAL USE PENMIT, PI,AIINED DEVELOPMENT PERMTT, ANII DENSITY BONUS

TO3EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

39
Cont.

. The owner/applicant shall retain the services of a project arborist proficient in tee
protection for constuction projects for the dwation oflhe development project to
monitor the health ofoak trees to be preserved and carry out the City-approved
tree protection plan. All regulated activity conducted within the Critical Root
Zone of protected trees, as that term is defined in Folsom Municioal Code (FMC)

12.16.020, shall be performed under the direct supervision ofthe project arborist.
A copy ofthe executed coufact for these arboricultural services shall be

submitted to the City prior to the issuance of any hee or grading permits.

Certification letters by the project arborist attesting compliance with the tr€e protection
and mitigation plan and tee permit conditions shall be submitted to the City following
completion ofgrading and again at project completion, prior to the certificate of
occuDancv.

I,G,B,O cD(PXE)

CULTURAL RESOURCE/TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS
40. It is always possible that ground-disturbing activities during project development may

uncover previously unknown archaeological rcsources. In the event that archaeological
resources are discovered during construction, conshuction operations shall stop within a

100-foot radius ofthe find and a qualified archaeologist shall be consulted to determine
whether the resowce requires furttrer study. The City shall include a standard
inadvertent discovery clause in every construction contract to inform contactors ofthis
requirement. The archaeologist shall make recommendations conceming appropriate
measures that will be implemented to protect the resources, including but not limitsd to,
excavation and evaluation ofthe finds in accordance with Section 15064.5 ofthe
cEQA
Guidelines. Archaeological resources could consist of, but are not limited to, stone,

bone, wood or shell artifacts or features, including hearths. Any previously
undiscovered resources fowrd during mnshuction within the project area should be
recorded on appropriate Depar&nent ofParks and Recreation (DPR) 523 forms and
evaluated for sienificance in terms of CEOA criteria.

G, I,B CD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 64

Page 835

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONAL USE PER]VIIT, PII\I{NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT' AI\ID DENSITY BONUS
103 EASTNATOMA STREET

PROJECT (PN 21-1s9)OF APPROVAL T'OR THE VINTAGE

Responsible
Depsrtment

When
Required

Condition/lVlitigation MeasureMitigation
Measure

CD(PXE)G, I,B

there is accidental discovery or recogrition of any human remains, the following steps

shall be taken:

There shall be no flirther excavation or disturbance within a 100-foot radius of
the potentially human remains until the county coroner is contacted to determine if
the iemains are Native American and if an investigation of the cause of death is

required. If the coroner determines the remains to be Native American, the coroner

shill contact the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) within 24 hours, and

the NAHC shall identi$ the penion or persons it believes to be the "rnost likely
descendant" (MLD) of the deceased Native American. The MLD may make

recommendations to the landowner or the person responsible for the excavation work
within 48 hours, for means of treating or disposing o{ with appropriate dignity' the

human remains and any associated grave goods as provided in PRC Section 5097.98.

Where the following conditions occur, the landowner or his authorized

representative shall rebury the Native American human remains and associated grave

goods with appropriate digrity either in accordance with the recommendations ofthe
most likely descendant or on the project sits in a location not subject to flrther
subsurface disfurbance:

o The NAHC is unable to identiff a most likely descsndent or the most likely
descendent failed to make a recommendation within 48 hours after being

notified by the commission.
o The descendant identified fails to make a recommendation.

o The landowner or his authorized representative rejects the recommendation of
the descendant, and mediation by the NAHC fails to provide measures

of humanaccidental remallls, CEQAortheIn of the recognition anyevent discovery
CodeCode ResourcesPublio705Guidelines Health $0.5;and15064.5; Safety $$

followed.be If coursothe of.945097 and .985097 must project development$ during

41

City of Folsom Page 65

Page 836

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

OI'APPROVAL VINTAGE SENIOR PROJECT (PN 2r-rs9)
CONDITIONAL USE PNRMIT, PT,AI\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT' AND DENSITY BONUS

r03 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

42. All construction personnel involved in ground disturbing actMties shall be tained in
the recognition of possible culfural resources and protection ofsuch resources. The

training will inform all conshuction personnel ofthe procedures to be followed upon

the discovery of archaeological materials, including Native American burials.

Construction personnel will be instructed that cultural resources must be avoided and

that all fiavel and constuction activity must be confined to designated roads and

areas. The training will include a review ofthe local, state, and federal laws and

regulations related to culfural resourc€s, as well as instructions on the procedures to

bJimplemented should unanticipated resources be encountered during construction,

including stopping work in the vicinity ofthe find and contacting the appropriate

environmental compliance specialist.

G, I,B CD (PXE)

43. Ifpotentially significant Tribal Cultud Resources (rcR) are discovered dwing ground

disturbing construction activities, dl work shall cease within 50-ft of the fin4 or an

agreed upon distance based on the nature ofthe find' A Native American

Representative from fiaditionally and culturally affrliated Native American Tribes that

requested consultation on the project shall be immediately contacted and invited to

assiss the significance of the furd and make recommendations for frrther evaluation

and Eeafinen! as necessary. If deemed necessary by the City, a qualified cultural

resoluc€s specialist meeting the Secretary oflnterior's Standards and Qualifications for
Archaeology, may also assess the significance ofthe find injoint consultation with
Native American Representatives to onsure that Tribal values are considered. work at

the discovery location cannot resume until the city, in consultation as appropriate and

in good faith, determines that the discovery is either not a TCR' or has been subjected

to culturally appropriate featnent, if avoidance and preservation cannot be

accommodated.

G, I,B CD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 66

Page 837

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PII\I\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSTTY BONUS
IO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 21-T59)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ['OR TIIE VINTAGE

When
Required

Responsible
Department

Mitigation
Me*sure

Condition/Mitigation Measure

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

CD (EXP)G, I

If project (construction) ground-disturbing or vegetation clearing

activities cofilmence during the avian breeding season (February

qualified biologist shall conduct a pre-construction nesting bird survey no more than

14 days prior to initiation ofproject activities and again immediately prior to

construciion. The survey area shall include suitable raptor nesting habitat within 500-ft

ofthe project boundary (inaccessible areas outside ofthe project site can be surveyed

from the site or from public roads using binoculars or spotting scopes). Preconstruction

surveys are not required in areas where project activities have been continuous since

prior to February 1, as determined by a qualified biologist. Areas that have been

inactive for more than 14 days during the avian breeding season must be resurveyed

prior to resumption ofproject activities. Ifno active nests are identified, no frtrther

mitigation is required. Ifactive nests are identified, the following measure is required:

r A suitable buffer (e.g., 500-ft for raptors; 100-ft for passerines) shall be

established by a qualified biologist around active nests and no consfuction

activities within the buffer shall be allowed until a qualified biologist has

determined that the nest is no longer active (i.e., the nestlings have fledged

and are no longer reliant on the nest, or the nest has failed). Encroachment

into the buffer may occur at the discretion ofa qualified biologist. Any
encroachment into the buffer shall be monitored by a qualified biologist to

and grubbing
1 - August 3 l), a

birds are

44.

City of Folsom Page 67

Page 838

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OT'APPROVAL T'OR THf, VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 21-159)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PI,I\NNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,AND DENSITY BONUS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/'lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

45. Jurisdictional Weflands and Waters
Prior to start ofconstruction, the project proponent shall either prepare a formal
delineation and submit it to the USACE for verification or obtain verification based on
the mapping of aquatic resources in this report as well as contact the USACE,
CVRWQCB, and CDFW to determine the need for permits and secure any required

aquatic resources permits for impacts to waters of the U.S./State from the USACE,
CVRWQCB, and CDFW, pursuant to Sections 404 and 401 ofthe Clean Water Act,
the California Water Code, Section 1600 of the Fish and Game Code, and the State

Water Resource Conhol Board Dredge and Fill Policy. The project proponent shall

comply with all conditions of such permits including providing compensatory
mitigation at a minimum 1: I ratio as required to achieve no net loss of wetlands or
other waters.

G, I cD (EXP)

Cig of Folsom Page 68

Page 839

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OT'APPROVAL F'IOR TFE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T.159)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLANI\IED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS

103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

AIR QUALITY REQUIREMENTS

46. Control of fugitive dust is required by District Rule 403 and enforced by SMAQMD
staff. The owner/applicant shall implement the following measures as identified by the

SMAQMD:
. water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed swfaces include, but are not

limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and

access roads.
r Cover or maintain at least two feet offree board space on haul trucks

transporting soil, sand or other loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that

would be traveling along freeways or major roadways should be covered.
r Use wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove any visible trackout mud or

dirt onto adjacent public roads at least once a day. Use ofdry power sweeping is
prohibited.

. Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph).
r All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to 6e paved should be

completed as soon as possible. In addition, building pads should be laid as soon

as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders are used.

. Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment offwhen not in use or
reducing the time of idling to 5 minutes [required by Califomia Code of
Regulations, Title 13, sections 2449(d)(3) and 2485. Provide clear signage that
posts this requirement for worken at the entrances to the site.

o Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according to

manufacturer's specifications. The equipment must be checked by a certified
mechanic and determine to be rururing in proper condition before it is operated.

G, I,B CD (PXEXB)

City of Folsom Page 69

Page 840

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONSOF F1OR THD VINTAGE SENIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T.T59}

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PT,ANNED DEVELOPMEI{T PERMIT,AND DENSTTY BONUS
IO3 EASTNATOMA STREIT

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

47 To mitigate the project's contribution to the urban heat island effect, the Sacramento
Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) recommends the following measures be

irnplemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department:

a

a

a

The owner/applicant shall incorporate new shade trees to provide additional
shade coverage for pavements and structures to the extent feasible. A directory
ofair-quality supportive h€es is available in the Sacramento Tree Foundation's
Shady Eighty guide and a more extensive tree list is available on page 153 of
the UHI Technical Analysis Report.
All new pavements, including sidewalks, interior roads, bike lanes, pedesfian
paths, parking lots, and plazas shall strive to achieve an albedo ofat least 0.25-
0.5.
For the parking lot areas, ifcool pavement or additional tee shading is not
feasible, the owner/applicant shall consider installing solar photovoltaic shade

struofures to reduce urban heat islands, generate renewable energy, and provide
shading to parked vehicles, further reducing emissions.

All new stuctures shall utilize certified cool roofs. The California Energy

Commission's Title24,Put67, recommends an aged solar reflectance of at least 0.63

for low-sloped roofs and at least 0.20 for steep-sloped roofs, and minimum thermal
emiftance of 0.75.

B CD (PXB)

GREENHOUSE GAS REQUIREMENTS

48 In accordance with the Crty General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-3, the project
shall provide a minimum of five percent more bicycle parking than required in the

CiW's Municipal Code Section 17 .57 .090 (for a total of 28 bicycle parking spaces).

B CD (PXB)

49 In accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-6, the project

shall use high-performance diesel (also known as Desel-HPR or Reg-9000/RHD) for
all diesel-nowered eouioment utilized in constuction ofthe proiect.

B cD (PXB)

City of Folsom Page 70

Page 841

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONI}ITIONAL USE PERMIT, PLANNf,D DEVELOPMENT PERMIT'AND DENSITY BONUS
IO3 EASTNATOMA STREET

SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T.159)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE VINTAGE

When
Required

Responsible
Department

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/'lVlitigation Measure

B cD (PXB)

50. In accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T
shall provide 14 elect.ic vehicle capable parking spaces based on the 136 total parking

spaces proposed for the project. Ofthe 14 electric vehicle capable parking spaces, 7

parking spaces shall be equipped with electric vehicle charging equipment with initial

-8, the project

development of the proposed project.

B cD (PXB)
shall divert to recycle or salvage a minimum 65 percent ofnonhazardous construction

and demolition waste generated at the project site in accordance with Appendix A'4

(Residential) ofthe as outlined in the califomia Green Building Standards code (2019

CALGreen).

In accordance with the Crty General Plan GHG Reduction Measure SW-I, the project51.

B cD (PXB)
52. In accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure W-

shall comply with all applicable indoor and outdoor water efficiency and conservation

measures required under 2019 CALGreen Tier 1, as outlined in the Califomia Green

Building Standards Code.

l, the project

TRAF'FIC, ACCESS, CIRCULATION,AND PARKING

Page 71City of Folsom

Page 842

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

53 Based on the recommendations of the Transportation Impact Study dated February

2022 (Atlacltment 2l), and to further ensure further ensure safe travel within the project

site, the following measures shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department:

East Natoma Street (Eastbound)
o The owner/applicant shall constuct a 150-foot right-tum pocket with 60-foot

taper on the eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street. The

existing bike trail shall be relocated to accommodate the right-tum lan€. The

relocated bike trail shall be placed in a dedicated pedestrian access and ftail
easement which shall be recorded prior to plan approval. With this proposed

modification, the eastbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma Street

shall include one left-turn lane, one thru lane, and one right-tum lane.

East Natoma Street (Westbound)

o The owner/applicant shall constuct a 100-foot left-turn pocket with a raised

median with a 60-foot taper on the westbound approach to Prison Road from
East Natoma Street. The median shall allow emergency vehicle access/egress

and the modifications required for emergency vehicle access/egress shall be

approved by the City of Folsom Fire Departrnent. With these proposed

modifications, the westbound approach to Prison Road from East Natoma

Steet shall include one shared ftru/right-tum lane and one left-tum lane.

Prison Road (Southbound)

o Prior to entering State property, the contractor shall execute a right-of-entry
agreement with the State of Califomi4 Deparfinent of Corrections.

o The owner/applicant shall restripe the existing right-tum lane atthe southbound

approach to East Natoma Street from Prison Road to indicate that this lane is a

shared thru and right-tum lane. The existing dedicated left'tum lane shall

remain as currently striPed.

Primary Proiect Driveway (East Natoma Street)
o The owner/applicant shall consauct a shared thnr/right-turn lane and a

dedicated left-tum lane at the northbound approach to East Natoma Street at the
primary project driveway. The shared thnr/right-tum lane and dedicated left-
turn lane shall include a 7O-foot tum pocket and a 60-foot taper.

I CD(PXE), PW

City of Folsom Page72

Page 843

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

53

Cont. constuct a raised median within Natoma Steet and ao The owner/applicant shall
right-turn channelization taper at the secondary project driveway to prevent

left-tums into the project site from westbound East Natoma Sreet and left-turns

out ofthe project site onto westbound East Natoma Stfeet to the satisfaction of
the Community Developrnent Deparhnont.

o The owner/applicant shalt install "Stop" signs, appropriate pavement markings,

and signage at the secondary project exit at East Natoma Street'

East Natoma Sfeet/Prison Road Traffic Sienal and Signal Timing

-o 

Th" o*tter/applicant shall constuct afialfic signal at the fourth leg ofthe
intersection oiEast Natoma Street and Prison Road and modifr all existing

traffic signal improvements to the satisfaction of the comrnunity Development

Departrnent.
o The owner/applicant shall coordinate retiming the fraffic sigrral at the

intersection of East Natoma Street and Prison Road as follows:
o Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing' northbound and

southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle lengt\ with 34 second

northbound southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and

westbound protected phases, and 62 second eastbound and westbound

through phases. Crosswalks shall be set to 22 seconds to accommodate a 3

feet per seconding walking sPeed.

East Natoma Sheet Frontage Improvements

-o 

Th" o*tt"r/applicant shall install cwbs, gutter, a bicycle lane, and sidewalks

along the project,s ftontage with East Natoma street as shown on the submitted

site plan. In additioq the owner/applicant shall construct curbs, gutters, a

bicycle lane, and sidewalks from the project's eastem boundary approximately

l2d-feet to the east to conneot to the existing off-site sidewalk and associated

improvements. The owner/applicant shall enter into a credit reimbursement

agreement with the City to cover the costs ofthese off-site frontage

imorovements.

I CD(PXE), PW

54. A minimum of 136 on-site spaces shall be for the I,O cD (PXE)

A minimum of 28 on-site bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for the project at

locations that are close proximity to the nrimarv buildins entrances.
I,O CD (PXE)55

Page 73
City of Folsom

Page 844

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OT'APPROVAL FOR TIIE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 21-159)

CONDITIONAL USE PER]\{IT, PLAI\NED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS
103 EAST NATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

NOISE/VIBRATION REQUIREMENTS

56.

-Construction 

activities shall be required to comply with the following and be noted

accordingly on the improvement plans:

1. Construction hows/Scheduling: The following are required to limit construction

activities to the portion ofthe day when occupancy ofthe adjacent sensitive

receptors are at the lowest:
a. Construction activities for all phases of construction, including

servicing of construction equipment shall only be permitted dwing the hours

of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and between 8:00 a.m. to

5:00 p.m. on Satwdays. Construction is prohibited on Sundays and on all

holidays.
b. Delivery of materials or equipment to the site and fruck traffic coming to and

from the site is restricted to the same construction hours specified above.

2. Construction Equipment Mulflers and Maintenance: All construction equipment

powered by internal combustion engines shall be properly muffled and maintained

3. Idling Prohibitions: All equipment and vehicles shall b€ turned offwhen not in use.

Unnecessary idling of intemal combustion engines is prohibited.

4. Equipment Location and Shielding: All stationary noise-generating construction

equipment, such as air compressors, shall be located as far as practical from the

adjacent homes. Acoustically shield such equipment when it must be located near

adjacent residences.

5. Quiet Equipment Selection: Select quiet equipment, particularly air

compressors, whenever possible. Motorized equipment shall be outfitted with
proper mufflers in good working order.

6. Staging and Equipment Storage: The equipment storage location shall be sited as

far as nossible from nearby sensitive receptors.

G, I,B cD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 74

Page 845

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

VINTAGN Sf,NIORAPARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-ffi9)

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PII\IINED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT,AND DENSITY BONUS
103 EASTNATOMA STRtrET

CONDITIONS OT' APPROVAL T'OR TIIE

When
Required

Responsible
Department

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/Vlitigation Measure

G, I,B CD (PXE)

57 toevidence theor shallconfiactor (viaprovide CityThe owner/applicant designated
rollersthatordata fromcalculations vibratoryqualified demonstratingexpert),testing

thanless VdB80 atbeto onused the wouldsite nearby occupiedproduceproject
modeshallrollers usedbe static vibrations)mdlor only (noresidences, vibratory

residence.within 120-ftof an

ARCHITECTURE/SITE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

I,B CD (PXE)58. and colors ofthe trash/recycling enclosures be

subject to review and approval by the Community Development Departrnent.
The final location, design,

I,B cD (PXE)

materials, and colors for the proposed retaining walls, screen walls, and fencing shall be

wallscreen atbeshall into sfategicallystoneDecorative designpilasters integrated
shallwallofthe aand decorative trimtolocations break the caplong expanseplaced up

oftheforwall entireits satisfactionto thebe on theof screen lengthplaced top
the final location,In design,height,addition,DevelopmentCommunity Departrnent.

to review and

59.

Page 75Cig of Folsom

Page 846

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CoNDITIONAL USE PERJVIT, PLAIINED IIEVf,LOPMENT PDRMIT,AND DENSTTY BOI\ruS
103 EASTNATOMA STREET

APARTMENTSCONDITIONSOT' FORTIIE

Whcn
Required

Responsible
DepartmentMeasure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure

I,B cD (P)

60. The project shall comply with the following architecture and design

l. Thisapprovalisforathree-storyaparfinentbuildingtotalinglll,T55squarefeet
associated with the Vintage Apartments project. The applicant shall submit

building plans that cornply with this approval and the attached building elevations

and color renderings dated June 3,2022.
2. T"he design, materials, and colors of the proposed Vintage Senior Aparftnents

building shall be consistent with the submitted building elevations, color

renderings, materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Deparfinent.

3. Brick pavers or another type of colored masonry material (ADA compliant) shall be

used to designate pedestrian crosswalks on the project site, in addition to where

pedestrian paths cross drive aisles, and shall be incorporated as a desigrr feature at

the driveway entrances at East Natoma Street to the satisfaction ofthe community
Development Department.

4. Roof-mounted mechanical equipment, including satellite dish antennas, shall not

extend above the height of the parapet walls. Ground-mounted mechanical

equipment shall be shielded by landscaping or trellis type features.

such as hansformers, electric and gas meteni, electrical panels, and

requirements:

Utility equipment
orshall be screened

GRADING

G, I cD (E)

61. mnstructiontheand initiationtoPrior the of the designapproval
theto for andrevlewsubmitshall eroslonan confol plan Citytheactivities, applicant

beto takenshall measures excavation,duringThe plan identiS protoctlveapproval.
andofreuse techniquesdisposal, revegetation. Specificstockpiling,temporary any

thebasedbe Erosion and Sediment Conftol Handbookreports,may geotechnicalupon
with allshallandStateof the Califomiaof complyofConservation,Deparunent

standards.

City of Folsom Page 76

Page 847

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ['OR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 2T-T59)

CONDITIONAL USE PER}IIT, PI.ANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS
103 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/lVlitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

SIGN REQUIREMENTS

62. The proposed monument sign shall be constructed ofmasonry, stone, or wood materials

to be more consistent with the design/materials of the apartnent building. In addition,

the frral location, design, materials, and color ofthe monument sign be subject to

review and approval by the Community Development Departmont. Lastly' the

owner/anolicant shall obtain a sisn Dermit Drior to installation of the monument sign.

B cD (P)

OTHERAGENCY D F'ITTIDF]I'Ii'NTq

63 The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits

evidence that said permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not
to staffreview and approval of any grading or improvement plan.

and provide
required, subject G, I CD (PXE)

CALIF'ORNIA DEPARTMENT OF F'ISH AND WILDLII'E (CDF'W) REQUIREMENTS

64. The owneriapplicant shall submit a Notification oflake or
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) prior

Streambed Alteration to the
to commencement of any

clearins- pnubbine. enadins. or site work.
G, I CD (PXE)

65. The shall incorporate bird and wildlife friendly strategies including:

a

a

Implementing an education program for residents to keep domestic cats indoors.

Installing screens, window pattems, or new types ofglass such as acid-etched"

fritted, frosted, ultraviolet patterned, or channel.

G, I,B cD (P)

City of Folsom Page77

Page 848

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)

January 18,2023

PI,AI\NEI} DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
103 EASTNATOMA STREET

APPROVAL APARTMENTSSENIOR PROJECT 21-1s9)T'OR VINTAGE (PNTIIEOFCONDTTIONS
I}ENSITYANI) BONUSUSECONDITIONAL PERJVIIT,

When
Required

Responsible
Department

Condition/Mitigation MeasureMitigation
Measure

PACIT'IC GAS & ELECTRIC (PG&E)

G, I, OG CD (PXE)

Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E):

. Additional bollards shall be placed within the parking lot to protect an existing

PG&E transmission tower located along the southem property boundary'

r Cuts, trenches, or excavations shall not be made within 25 feet of any PG&E

transmission tower.
o 25-foot clearance shall be maintained from any PG&E transmission tower

during grading activities.
. On overhead electric transmission fee strip(s) and/or easement(s), trees and

shrubs shall be limited to those varieties that do not exceed 15 feet in height at

maturitY.
. PG&E shall have access to its facilities at all times, including access by heavy

equipment.
. No planting is to occur within the footprint of the tower legs.

by theThe owner/applicant shall implement the following measures as66.

SACRAMENTO R"EQUIREMENTSUTILITYAN DISTRICTMETROPOLIT

Page 78
City of Folsom

Page 849

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January'18,2023

67 The owner/applicant shall implement the following measures as recommended by the

Sacramento Mebopolitan Utility District (SMUD):

a Stuctural setbacks less than l4-feet shall require the owner/applicant to

conduct a pre-engineering meeting with all utilities to ensure property

clearances are maintained.

Any necessary future SMUD facilities located on the owner/applicant's

property shall require a dedicated SMUD easement. This will be determined

prior to SMUD performing work on the owner/applicant's property.

In the event the owner/applicant requires the relocation or removal ofexisting
SMUD faoilities on or adjacent to the subject property, the owner/applicant

shall coordinate with SMUD. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for the

cost ofrelocation or removal.

SMUD reserves the right to use any portion ofits easements on or adjacent to

the subject property that it reasonably needs and shall not be responsible for
any damages to the developed property within said easement that unreasonably

interferes with those needs.

The owner/applicant shall not place any building foundations within S-feet of
any SMUD trench to maintain adequate trench integrity. The owner/applicant

shall veri$ specific clearance requirements for other utilities (e.g., Gas,

Telephone, etc.).

In the event the City requires an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication (IOD) for
future roadway improvements, the ownerlapplicant shall dedicate a 12.5-foot

public utility easonent (PUE) for overhead and/or underground facilities and

appurtenances adjacent to the City's IOD.

The owner/applicant shall comply with SMUD siting requirements (e.g., panel

size/location, clearances from SMUD equipment, ffansformer location, service

conductors). Information regarding SMUD siting requirements can be found at:

https ://www. smud. org/en/Business-Solutions-and-RebateVDesign-and-
Construction-Services.
The owner/applicant shall dedicate a 12.5-foot public utility easement for
overhead and/or underground facilities and appurtenances adjacent to all public

street rights-of-ways.

I

a

o

a

a

The owner/applicant shall dedicate any private drive, ingress and egress

easement. (and l0-feet adiacent thereto) as a public utility easement for

G, I,OG cD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 79

Page 850

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January'|.8,2023

C0NDITiONAL USE PERldlT, P[AI{I\[ED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND DENSITY BONUS
rM EASTNATOMA STREET

APARTMENTSOF ALTORTHE

Whcn
Required

Responsiblc
Department

Mitigation
Measure

Condition/tlitigation Measure

(overhead and) underground facilities and appurtenances.

meet minimum SMUD requirements for access roads.

The owner/applicant shall dedicate and provide all'weather vehicular access for
service vehicles that are up to 26,000 pounds. At a minimum: (a) the drivable

surface shall be ZO-feet wide; and (b) all SMUD underground equipment and

a

All access roads shall

l5-feet from the

67
Cont.

F'IRE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS

FDthe property. Size and location of address identification shall be reviewed and
The building shall illuminated addresses the street or drive fronting

the Fire

68.

I,B FD
69. or theoflssuance CommunitytoPrior the plans building permits,improvementany

reuewshall and detailedallFireand plansdesigrrDepartrnents approveDevelopment
flow otherandlocation,fuefirefor of hydrantaccessibility emergency equipment,

I,B FD

site:on fire firebeshall to be hydrants,fueAll designedprotection
tooff-siteetc. usedcannot bedevicesindicator valves,connections, postdeparfinent

flowfire bewillmodel that mmrmumthetheserve A water analysis provesbuilding.
locationnser inside ashall beissued.are fueThebefore sprinklerany permitsrequired

3 Thisdoor canroom beRoom 7',X with firll-sizedControl minimum)Fire (5',
exteriorbeThe shallroomotherwith

70.

FDI,Bprovided before combustible material or vertical construction
weather access is defined as 6" of compacted AB from May I
2"AC over 6" AB from October I to April 30.

and besttdlflushed)roadsacc€ss and (testedemergency
site.on All-allowed1S

to 30 andSeptember

71

FDI,BAll on-site curbing shall be painted as a fre zone (red-color) to the satisfaction ofthe
Fire Deparhnent.

72.

City of Folsom Page 80

Page 851

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January'18,2023

COITDITIONS OFAPPROVALT'ORTHE VINTAGE SEI{IORAPARTMENTS PROJECT(PN 2T.69)
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PII\NI\IOD DEVELOPMENT PEnl{IT, AI\D DENSITY BONUS

103 EASTNATOMA STREET

Mitigation
Meesure

Condition/Mitigation Measure When
Required

Responsible
Department

PARKS AND Rf,CREATION REQUIREMENTS
73 The owner/applicant shall provide and record a dedicate pedesfian access and bike trail

easement for the realigred and existing bicycle/pedestian tail located within the
project site. Upon recordation ofthe bicycle/pedestrian trail easement, the City shall
assume ownership ofthe bicycle/pedestian trail and all associated maintenance
resoonsibilities.

I,B P, CD (E)

74. The on-site pedestrian hail which connects to the Class I bike hail (within the
dedicated pedestrian access and bike trail easement) shall be maintained by the
owner/applicant. In addition, the owner/applicant shall install signage at the south end
of the new trail connection that reads "Yield to Cross Traffic".

OG P, CD (E)

POLICE/SECURITY REQUIREMENT
75 The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Deparhnent in order to incorporate all

reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be
required:
r A security guard shall be on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence

shall be constucted around the perimeter of construction areas. (This requirement
shall be included on the approved construction drawings).

e Security measwes for lhe safety ofall conshuction equipment and unit appliances
shall be employed.

Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at
intersections or screen overhead lishtine.

G, I,B PD

MISCELLANEOUS REQUIREMENTS

76. The proposed project shall comply with all State and local rules, regulations,
Govemor's Declarations, and restrictions including but not limited to: Proclamation of
a State of Emergency due to drought conditions issued by the Govemor of Califomia on
October 19,2021 relative to water usage and conservation, requirements relative to
water usage and conservation established by the State Water Resources Contol Board
and water usage and conservation requirements established within the Folsom
Municioal Code. (Section 13.26 Water Conservation). or amended from time to time.

I, B, OG cD (PXE)

City of Folsom Page 81

Page 852

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

CONDITIONS
See attached tables of conditions for which the following legend applies.

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT WIIEN REQUINEI}

CD
(P)
(E)
(B)
(F)

Community Development Departrnent
Planning Division
Engineering Division
Building Division
Fire Division

I Prior to apDroval of Improvement Plans
M Prior to approval of Final Map
B Prior to issuance of first Buildins Permit
o Prior to aDproval of Occupancy Permit
G Prior to issuance of Grading Permit

PW Public Works Departrnent DC During construction
PR Park and Recreation Department OG On-soing requirement
PD Police Departrnent

Cig of Folsom Page 82

Page 853

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 2'l'1 59)
January 18,2A23

Attachment 5

Vicinity Map

Page 854

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vicinity Map W
lF(}lLSCINI

Project Site

Page 855

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Vintrage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 6

Site Plann dated October 17,2A22

v

Page 856

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



#,*.,,"-,

n.F--*-

E*,'.*',
f $am.4

nk,w-o

cP3f,rflrilscs-L$ruR

s?d{r66t

PRIiIIMINARI qlTH, l't.l\N

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTMtrNTS

CIfi OFFOI^SOM, CA
l|ffiOr{m$tw,uy

ffi
ilffi..*
tfr+fi*F6@-s}ffi.]gt

ffi,^asNddlsnft,

HIHSlg,

ji'
:

AE
firlelrt.-"+C+*

,ar orerd o/'!, 3uh. ,r !o

ftdq (e,6)&! oro7

o*6'Rf rt nr

orrf,.d n
or6g@qrtd
dlefr^drrrrs

tio9(e.il@rs
'ffld44draF{r

Lifrxfutffir

,l
;r:

@

Page 857

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 7

Preliminary Utility Plan
Dated November 19,2021

Page 858

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FN
ff rEsectdrs!+gog'

Phoo.:(rr6t6oa o7o7

PRI.:IIMINARY TN II,ITY PTAN

NATOMA SE,NIOR
APARTMENTS

CITYOFFOISOM, CA

Dlgtrtro\ RoMto utfirfc
ilrlIlr-s!!:.-

1!

8:*,

t,

\\\ i

I
I

I

*J

5.

_ .att"tt iA10ci stlNlox Af ltl\ll;N15
Pnt).tvtNi[1 l]Tli.l1Y ll.rN

ocroilIf,a

-#"
WF-EI:

Page 859

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments
January 18,2023

(PN 21-159)

Attachment I

Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan
Dated October 17,2A22

Page 860

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



5I(r\l\trtlt f, t!t !tt:\il Yr\

ffinrn!r$

ffi14ffifr

I

slix}
sl, i

F.A"-""-;
7!96'<h!dodv{t 5!rr.

Pho^.r (116)60. o7o2

PRIiI,IMINARY CRADING PI.4.N

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTME,NTS

cnY o!'l.orsoM, cA

u{!u!a! @ i!t!!lrq

.k\i,,rrr.\,6,-\ / iz.r'

-'

\

,, ,,rt.t..

.\

,1. -lIrllgsp
ffi.-*'-"-"
nl.,,"'.-,,
r 

.l .troq\{(
tr:I N{na*"\

'>

: l.

;tt

1

sENioR ltlm\!t:Ntsg--+--

.ii CRADINC PI,AN

;it
5! .,#"

t1 2022

..'v,-
x.

. r.t'

IEEFEE=EI

Page 861

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Atrachment 9

Preliminary Grading Sections
Dated October 17, 2022

Page 862

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



s[!]x'
stl 5

,o5o.<hr.d odv.,tutorno

Ph.n.r(et6)6r! o7o7

EE
[.*r*u +**

PITNI,I[{INAIiY GRAI)ING SIISTIONS

NATOMA StrNIOR
APAR'|MENTS

CTIY OF !'OISOM, CA

,ll
I --'/ --'

I
I

J
' Jl

tt \.

I

I
/\

el6r{BdK \u:,

/r-;\ ill(!Xt:f L:\llON lliS l}:lt llUl All,
t-/ffi--

,I 
-rr4

I rq-.-'\

4\ (lt^l)lX(l SllCllor"

Itrt0\r\ siiNlo8 AP^lfl \ll;Nl:
lnU-i\ilNittY CRiDINC SSCIIONS

[l,l3'EH-H=E;E

Page 863

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



/fi\ clAl)ls(; st:c'110N
Effi- FR'***

eb..j (9i6) 6oa{7ot

I

m (;Mt)ls_(;stl:t()S

I

I

I

A (Xl-{DI\-(iSlIfl(}N
Urffi-

I

\ /e}\ CMDIIC SECTlol..

I

Fg.sltsF-l
NATOUA SENIOR

PRELII{INARY 6RADINC
OCTOBER 1?, ?O??

Page 864

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2423

Attachment 10

Preliminary Landscape and lrrigation Plans
Dated October 20,2022

Page 865

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



)r: - I

:1"
1{i

:i?,'r,r rnNr I rrrt,

^DDrlror^r 
ratis r(!uar63lvie^r ivtlctfi r

9;Cris tray( arlr roxo rN rnrs &il rt r(5s5t
TOCcBe(Rl5 

^r0qosaodr&s 
rla &rActsl

Nir*aob r'ii |Jw10ltaa!SS!lbirt rBa
ix6nrq!cialN r!( 

^ards6& 
vd6 rti!s

*€^firG a sod ot^@9 5c{ir r elr5 rN I {rl 
^piawi 6a Brr&taort a.'ecrlzi

s
f,

,t '/ 't ) .'

.$

ha\rnrrht|r,,

F4cr rr D;r.,.w.-,)i\"

'. l {\\l-\.-\ rl\'.(
,p

\

,!-) r."-r to(".n,1.4.,

\.) t
-Jt-L-:*-- 

:-;--

i-

NATQMA S:\IOI sQEI IMINARV LANDSCAPE PLAN
;t) ytM a;A

AONDiMENIiq
t)c ti; : ?f,, ?0ti

Page 866

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



-"fi:'"f;i:Tl

vri&4r

J

..;

!

lf
'.'J.*

'F$iRrler 
iJss-F.rF h

Page 867

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



li

[;l(-)i
iiri
i11i

.I
l.
; ;_ :l

- l' rt

l:
j jr'

;al
i;t
!,j

ii
i1

,I

1i;; I : ii: i:rii:l: "t:. i', .' ) .:''']:'::,: :- | :

ii.!tj..,,;J!);:.: j:j1lii!:rjr:i..lr; -lr"r!iii;ji; ji,;i.:;!::i ;l

(

. .11:11"1.2.,;

ii

.'t'l

i.t;1;i1:r1;i;r...;;:;1;,;:Ii;1.41.,l:i:::lili3Iiii::i!iii.;i;.':,,:jit)ilr.r:rra,r.r.ir:

). 4'

,,,

.. :'

/ 1.'\'.

\

1

:?:! i 5. -

,i;fi f'"T !i;jiil i' .li ;irl
: i'i , --h ;{ 1!
,i I ;., ,l i!r::
ri 'l;rtl '-:':'

r'""[

il

a

.f

1i
ffiji,i
ffiii

Page 868

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



.i,

t;t

CrS
t.
11.'I

_1

Fns
It

-. r,t'
t

'l{-T

OlLAYour (EYNol€s

r e4Jranrs^rvff(r(arrlrs.€trollgr!.tork^qrY
rmr/ F {{rll Da{3rd&r^tsAv

EPd( tcraa ro5[tr Litolffi aY
drmr morillc4{aaiaq(rlr to!Rlt r.tdF^*0r
fficr od 1 cerf, ere:r ro sg u f@ turcY

ft!!..oru&rP
*rt{ grac {lac totErt r.adr{eaY

i- ''."\ l \, - .

1".:'-l''-,
10 

'ffi 
r^iltJsfi ilb*fl L4toxfl ti)@s{sa*^niqfi tti lo!*at14ts

1 CSrCrffrOF&tSCtae ston tra€

/,

-t1', , i

,.1,.

s

f
tli-

AMTNITY PLAN ffii-a
iff:i.r*"*""

Page 869

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



*:;:'r{:--::;.:11. .q #E
,;6i:-.FA;t3;;;tA,.j.:.']JF.9.)6;1i:.:,1-r!1:

:VINTAGE ALISO
iirtairE nlr:zJllr \;j

ri. ,2C t.{hilyry
j"'
I

"t.

I I
MONIJA4FNT SIGI! O{ITI'JOOR S[AiING & DINING AQt:

aaa

DOG DAQK BO'CT 1]AI t COURI BIKF NACK PICNIC TARIE WIiF UMTIQ{.t LA

OUiDOOR 8BO/ KiICHFN 6 Fl UTNCH

NA
pnFLteltl.JAnv i AilDScApE IMAG! aoAQD L4

Page 870

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ffi F+d#qF?3-fqil *tg-:t;,'x-.1

-:ffii
t...6i. Ir,:.^ t 4

4a.

'%+

r' 4o

s

N

ffi
N

,N ,.ffi n

d\

@'

I

$

t
rlF

ffilffiL
::'r-,i*,l:::i.,...^

A

Page 871

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 11

Preliminary Tree Impact Plan
Dated October {7,2022

Page 872

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



SIIEET
sP- 6

tFH**-*-
Ph.n.; (er6t 606.07ot

o
&

'l'Rt!E IMI>ACl'l'L li

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTME,NTS

cnY ol. l.'olsoM, cA
,.f

tor.
'! l.

tPqb

"i.

,i: @:,

i"
n.i

*','..,s,

!

r I li ,.l
: -i. , .:..j- - _ -!_'- '_

!;'=!l

.,]
t4

I

APiRrCt:X1S

'' :.1 ,:: ,

1'
-. I j." -, .-.:-=- -

" rF\"
v&'
,*t'.,

F€ry!€F.E-I

Page 873

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Aftachment 12

Preliminary Oak Tree Mitigation Plan
Dated October 20,2022

Page 874

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



) A
VINIAGE SENIOR UOUSING

TNEE EX}.{IBIT

rNkg
T8

I
rrlx

,).
u
I

!

!o

!-dq
;a

|;
re&
!{

g-g

rn
x
Jz
o
--{p
m
m
--{
on
fn
3
z

m
x
bJz
o
1p
trt
,T1

{
o
tt
tn
n

2(

o;
a;
og
9-6

4!

7

( \

t
//\ o

f!0

r
o

FS:u
:

,i.>:
F
o€
oa
'l1(,
JD
m
m

onT
i
m{/)
tn
mt^
I
o
Drl
3
z

itg
6i l, 5e

I

I
ti: \.

I

v

v
0 tt

I

I , .b

l X

{
4,

ti
1i

:l

,l
ii
1i
I
ii
il
.t
I

:l
li
rl
'i
1!
:l

rl
i

l-.,

I

lr
I 6J;t r!rtFtrs, {ti)rtig{!ltittit*{i{fitStE::{Ic}g EttifgrS:€fr tttllisa-Jt i::

t;

* ri tirtr
ii?l?et
ti ?! f?f
:illi.r
}
!:

iIilttlttrftitir.i ??ft?98ffi: f!F
ilrrrrrrriitirit
irlrr.llr:l:lr;l;
, . +ilit*!tt+i irt
t|i j j 

'1,r,,1.!.

'l 
! i

:

i
I

I
g

fll
ti?

f
f

t !1.1'9'lr,r'l
tiiiiiiliiitr
iiirfiftrtr
!:lii::il',:.

+3 ii{i;+i a
:l

I

i r r:,; l:1: ):,i;:,;,r 1,,';.;f:::: l::,: , i.', - n. ; i, i,' r,, " i.,,,, ::. : :',, :i'l i:,, ; i l: I -::t 
r.' :,'. ; :',.. ij i:

.., .,- . "'
I
l r ' r . ir t ^J, 

a5 i >; a,r :.'^ ij . I r ^ r' 
. I :::.1r_. j:.,. ,. i i j: i:.1.::'.:l i j: r:.-: I ii j i j L;:l ': )':ir; .l ) i

,. {:.:_:r,'; r::i.iai:i:.ia:ir..,at iirli i::.r:i.1i:i-:,: :iit:ii:aiai::irj::t.r ( "r'rr J j.;:j : i.; 
I

! . ,i li i; ."i:i:igi: : ii :: .ri :.iii;i i{i f I ill.. lrl
)r
;, : .;::;,ji,'iji;:!j;.;:,. ,,'f,-::',:,..r-:.":::ija::,.11;.:,.r' .. 'i3:';.::{i

i il;til iii "ii ii i i I liii li'ii i" i;iiiii'iiiiiiii 't it ilr ltr i! t r i {i;! r: ! i il }r{r' I

iiii;iil
' l' il';{+

!

Page 875

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Tree lmpact Summary - Natoma Senior Apartments

DSH of removed or impocted trees 571.3 (68 totql trees = 47 protected + 2l unprotected)

DSH of preserved protected trees (5O% voule) -182.2 (55 totol trees = 5l protected + 24 unprotected)

Mitigotion plontings on-site oo
DSH Bolonce

ln-Lieu fee

Tuesdoy. Decembe r 2o., 2022

389.2

to be determined

Mitigoted

Site Tree Plontings DSH quontity DSll

l5 gol trees I 9 O

24'box trees 2 O

Sdboxtrees 5 20 O

No mitigotion is proposed thro

Page 876

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Vintrage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 13

Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan
Dated October 17, 2022

Page 877

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



I!rl@
I**

PRT:,I JIVIINARY ACCTSS ANI) CIRCUIA'IION PI.{N

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTMENTS

crTY or,'r,otsoM, cA

- -r€

FH-**--
,!! fth..d Ddv.,svt. rno

r&onn (r€) 60!{7o7

Page 878

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January'18,2023

Attachment 14

Preliminary Fire Access Plan
Dated October 17 , 2022

Page 879

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



r-lll:tT
sP3

FR."-="".---
Phon6: (rr6)6o!-oro7

PRTiI.IMINARY SITII FIRIi PI"{N

NATOMA SENIOIT
APARTMENTS

cI'lY ol,'tol50M, cA

ll!j!$!-
!t:*!8!!{ s9!!!!! qqt:s

:7.1:5i::::4:l
druil$qN'fr.s* {

,u
?t

,r"
'/t, 

^.

.'

/_
.ra'.

:

.aq

!t
!6!

' .-+to
N,\TOIIA SI]NIOR APAATSI:\]S
PRtX.lVlNAlaY Sr]t: fll*: PL-iN

a

...".

-@"

&6iIF;r:E=

Page 880

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 15

Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details
Dated November 3,2021

Page 881

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



LKilN€ flXN'RE gCTEDULE

(FACE

OF
FIXTURE}

e
L6dM Fm€ 9CIIWE rcl€5

Clderu Mkffi.@
&@aMasffiuMMc&

we&l€F.ffiaa4016a&

Ot@6!ttg'<eEndpffi!

O.@fre@arioe.d@da
e*a*F44

ffiff&d4aallag ffi
@tral#Fl6{'r.@

r
3f

(MU,)

ft ;;;sitdin
qiry.

. ---11!-,-
ry,. i el..;--r-* '

tr
9o2F*wz=-olu*
ra?1

*FF
k<'2

--ffi\w:

:___---gf!9!!3.4!!

ig-
E0.1

ctm

POLE HAA]'ED LI6I.1T|I.{G ELECiFICAL DETAIL

ruEWED !41M Etlcltr& trtA! rcrEs

2a'
(ilrN.)

3'

-
o
o

o

o

@wn4grurd
&rcsrul.x.E&*.!ffi

ffirffiru e*uEl@lla[4ecr

Ed[d*s*redaaeruffi
v#A@@d.4sa45!@e ffi
sErutro6idw6 ruwit

sEa.s.a ffialotr&ffirjr&ffi

@ee@eMa a@uHASBc*
@&*n64lwgE @ru*
i!4@ r{fr g&rcca! ffi uBrEd roqr6
,d.&s dtMd
m&ffi'@.e
l-d Fir& trkA4F!affitus@
EAffi iOB6srfl afr 6*@re on.a
Btw&ds

-M 
rc Fr! ElaErru p& Eeestsff

- 
rda ot t,&r|ft) c A tcr lMrM'ro il a'd4
dEilaulsMFtrr6 totda.a4

{rE

E

:i

'",I

Page 882

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



'-"7

p
z
rii
!

ii

1\
,i'!/

-.1

lr[.-

tifr|l

iiili'

m IiIA"OMAS AENIOn
APAFTMENTS

CfTY OF FOLSOM, CA
ik ,@il Page 883

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



.,:-1"i,

,lt

t i!

rlI
l;
,l

;J

.{

,l
,:l

-l
il-l
rl

I

{@
Eilt3 t

EEh
'ti
l!

'f'

o
b
Io
b

I

cltEll r
iiig 3
I 
EtE,i
cli I
f;;i I
Eri

fit
i$i
iF;

ilfin

m
J

T{ATOMAS SENI€'R
A'AIITMENTS

CITY OF FOLSOM, CAlu Page 884

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



' t'74tvJ

usfr&s
MtlffFl

^@
ff

-

-

r&lw$
!w

- z
-Dl
=!o
etfrnlya6

!

G

t, 'i o@E
. ! q4\sw4

oln zi'dAt

i5;::::: I lEE
-..- --,----^.*---.-e*

r ' r D-i
- -- ,1.:.:::::.!

e-

aEl::-:-- lai . j
rilni 1i:L-Ef : l

l.lal r:i:i-:Li,:l 
- 

It. t..l-t-r4l.rl - | _.: I

3ffi
I - t.: I -,
ffi E

rGE=EA

.'-;:'t;.:-. ., " ". ffiit

f
mffimHit -

/G';rc

.,.-.::.:; -_:_:::-. -. ". r!;t;il

SK

#
V

-q!F,
..;

e!=El

e
EI T

Page 885

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



f
EIE

re

EIE-'
e lt:::,:l-:..

:i I ai:::lz :!:!
i,,
1".: :---fum

ffi
tl
-t-

llt >*

Etutil

ltEtE!
_,...,_.-

, 'a : :::l

E-.::

Ettut
E=-

i: ii

--'"'"*

-.--e

H

%

U*

@

l_l

'-\:-*:-- 
'iery"

$:. = ri'

-

__:-__.-

E,

9o2F*a2 --

?,5n

EFE
k<-z

:;;;-

-

*ts

E2.2
JrE
EFiFffi

it

cEgu

I-l

Page 886

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



t'za-_

;i;;-

rffi'
fl

El@
ffiFl

ffFt

t@

- z
->l
=!o
83f;
=moi3yo6

I

t,r:.i;G]

&F#'ry'qanB

.'... . ];..d :'j]'al

+1889
aoo-o

_-';'t-;.

*--\*"-

0ilUIil :\,

aMuan utuoun i,

€r. F

J.E-1gl::! ts: ::::";i? 2 . -

.-l'-.r-F 1-r,. .g-rlL. + r.r*3d!.ii*lti
uah'dr6ffi

'{dFFrtwr0d

4t.]i-:E3i1FttEr|lllrdil,r#.:fhr r:

wtsF{+Ft@0

Page 887

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -l 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 16

Building Elevations and Floor Plans
Dated June 3,2022

Page 888

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FOLSOM
NATOMA SENIOR APARTMENTS

VINTAGE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT. 
REVISED

- Natoma Senior

Page 889

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ilF

\
irn ,p
t*^

Folsom - Natoma

CHARACTER ELEVATIONS

ffilo: 3n2'= 1:0'on 24x36

Page 890

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



!

1'

GROUNO LEVET PLAN

BUITDING PLAN. SOUTHERN HALF

z}.,(t'
\. ll ./

5K- Natoma Senior

Page 891

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



j

2nd & 3rd LEVEL PLAN

BUILDING PLAN - SOUTHERN HALF
Gr

- Natoma Senior

Page 892

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



E TIC ttrtfgru fxll*

ROOF PTAN

BUILOING PLAN. SOUTHERN HALF
{D

dt tlltr.14

Page 893

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



rllIg *tE{r Itttr

ROOF PLAN

2nd & 3rd LEVEL PLAN

GROUNO LEVEL PLAN

BUILDING PLANS. NORTHERN HALI

6=-'\"/

tlt(

a

gI

r!

Page 894

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



1rll@

1

i

. dr&arl}ff34-rtrfi

i.jra.f)
tr.A- | rr)

tr-r !..r1

o:-rr t'i
afrt$

I es-
@a Eqllurl-s.l':.'.'s---.,*

:

j

,i

Folsom - Natoma Senior
TYPICAL UNIT PLANS

d: lL'.10d246tu1

Page 895

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 17

Color Building Renderings
Dated June 3,2022

Page 896

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom - Natoma
VIEW FROfuI NATOMA STREET NORTH

5K

Page 897

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VIEW FROM NATOMA STREET AT ENTRY
- Natoma Senior 5KDevelopment

Page 898

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ffi

Senior 5K
VIFW FROM BIKE TRAIL WEST

Page 899

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



- Naloma Senior 5K
VIEW FROM BIKE TRAIL EASI

Jum3,
Housing

Page 900

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21'1591
Januaryll8,2023

Attachment 18

Building Site Sections
Dated {une 3,2022

Page 901

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



:\.

,1:iili',"'

wffi,q* ffi
lg6er&.w

- Natoma Senior SITE SECTIONS

Jao 5K

Page 902

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom - Natoma Senior
SITE SECTIONS

tur6 3, 5K

Page 903

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Gommission
Mntage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 19

Color and Materials Board

Page 904

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



LEgENDI
1II M
nnF

II
t. 2.

ffi ii{
A. B.

DUNN EDWARDS WOODED ACRE (DE6t30}
DUNN EDWARDS WOOOEN PEG (DE6215)
DUNN EDWARDS MIONIGHT BROWN (DE621O)

1.

8.
c.
D.
E.

STUCCO
BOARO AND BATTEN
ERiCK VENEER
AgPHALT SHINGLE
WROUGHT IRON RAILINGV

Folsom - Naloma $enior MATERIAL & COLOR BOARD

5K

Page 905

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Plannlng Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-l 59)
January 19,2023

Attachment 20

Vintage Senior Apartments Booklet
(Separate Bound Document)

Page 906

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 21

Site Photographs

Page 907

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



eh..i{q,6)664 orot

LIrt
Iueurcrucr**4**

/i\ sltt:Pt()tI)
Urffi

,,i\ sill: ul(rto
t.t-ffi

A SI[iflk)fr)
\:7ffi

/i\ srniHl(tfo(t/T'ffi

r sfftirltot()
f;rffi

,/A srfuflI(rfo
trt-ffi

A Snt ill(ytI)
t7ffi

/i\ sn l: n t0l0(-t-ffi

"r',i; .

aa\ Stlr:l,ll()11)
f7ffi

f\ snl: u(Illt
rtffi

/'\ Srft:Ul(ul)
\/lffi

n\ sil1iHI(II)
Ulffi

PITILIMINAIIY PHOTO EXHIBI'I'

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTMEI{TS

CI'IYOF
'.f,

.*t
1r'?
:r;fs
l'3
il''- a.

: :,. !. lt-, -

/-{a\ st]l:Ilt(IIo
f;ffi

,,//h) "v61

iFCLtET=i-;i
Ni iOYi Sl:^"{tl,llAtiTni:N l:
ftlI_[INinY I'lo$ i:x|lati

ocioatlt :?. :o??

Page 908

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



P[anning Commission
Vintage Senior APartments
January 18,2CI23

(PN 21-159)

Attachment 22

Transportation lmpact Study
Dated JulY, 2A22

Page 909

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



P21130

Natoma Senior Apartments Transportation lmpact Study

Folsom, California

Prepared for:

City of Folsom

Helix Environmental, lnc.

FCC 50, LLC

Prepared By

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING
& MANAGEMENT, INC,

Contact: Tom Kear PhD, PE,

tkear@tkearinc.com.

{9161 34A-48tL
www,tkearinc.com

NTKEAR

February2O22
Revised July 2O22

cilL

Page 910

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



(This page intentionally left blank)

Page 911

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportatio n lmpact Study

REVISION HISTORY

Date Tltle Comment
Feb t,2O22 Draft TIS

Feb 10,2022 Final Tls Clarified geometry for secondary driveway and added review

of parking supply at 139 spaces and 144 spaces.

Julv 5,2022 Revision Proposed parking reduced to 135 spaces and revised site plan.,

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This analysis describes the effect of the Natoma Senior Apartments project (the Project) on the

motorized and unmotorized transportation systems in Folsom, California' This study has been

prepared for the City of Folsom (City), Helix Environmental lnc., and FCC 50, LLC. A Planned

Development Permit and Conditional Use Permit are requested by the applicant for the proposed

136 age-restricted afforda ble apa rtments.

Proiect Descriotjon

Flgure ES-1 provides a Project vicinity map. The Project consists of 136 one- and two-bedroom

affordable, age restricted, apartments located across from the main entrance to Folsom State

prison at 102 Natoma St, Folsom, CA 95630 (parcel O7bA32O-042). Two access points to East

Natoma St are planned: a full access driveway aligned with Prison Rd, and a right-in-right-out

driveway near the eastern edge of the Project site. One hundred thirty-six parking stalls are

included along the drive isle along the southern and eastern edges of the Project. A preliminary

site plan is provided as Figure ES-2.

Accessible pathways are planned around the building to provide a walking path for residents.

Sidewalks along the Project's East Natoma Street frontage are included from Prison Rd to the

edge of the existing sidewalk at Cimmaron Circle. The existing multi-use trail connection from

the Oak Parkway trail will be preserved, and a pedestrian connection will be added southernly

from the Project to the Oak Parkway Trail'

The site is designated Professional4ffice {PO) in the General Plan and zoned as Business

professional- Planned Development District (BP-PD). With the Planned Development Permit and

Conditional Use Permit being requested the Project is consistent with the adopted General Plan

and zoning.

5l f f<fnn wlvw,tkearrnc.com

Page 912

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportatlon lmpact Study

lrn''*

. ',,:,i

lr i:l

_F$ -

1" -o:''

Flgure ES-l. Scholar Way Senior Houslng lllcinity M.p

S f nfnn www,tkeartnc.com

Page 913

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senlor Apartment3 Folsom,

CallforniaTransportatlon lmpact Studv

PRHI,IMISARY'IIIi PI"{N

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTMENTS

cf rY oF ror.soll, cA

Flgure ES-2. Prellmlnary Slte Plan

S rrgan wwwtkea.nc.com
lil

it*"-.----''- -.

H*'',llhle

Page 914

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmoact Study

Analvsis Scope

The analysis considers the traffic operations at intersections in Folsom that could potentially be

impacted by project traffic. This TIS considers two study scenarios:

r ExistinS 2022 without Project condition

r ExistinB 2022wilh Project condition

The two driveway intersections (shown in Figure ES-2) were evaluated for conformity to City

policies and policies from the adopted Folsom General Plan. lnternal circulation and sight lines,

parklng supply and fire access were all considered'

Table ES-l. Study lntersections

Locatlon Contrd

1. East Natoma St/Prison Rd Sisnal

2. East Natoma St/Eastern Project Driveway Side-Street-Stop-Control (SSSC)

Findines

project impacts are anticipated to be less than significant. Ten project specific findings are made.

Finding 1 {Trip Generatlonl: The Project is anticipated to generate 441 daily vehicle trips including

39 AM peak-hour vehicle trips, and 41 PM peak-hour vehicle trips. Fewer than 50 peak-hour

project trips are projected to pass through any intersection'

Finding 2 (Level-of-servicet: All study intersections are anticipated to operate at level-of-service

B or better under all study scenarios. The Project is not projected to create new deficiencies or

worsen existing traffic level-of-service, pursuant to General Plan Policy M4.1.3. lmpacts to level-

of-service are considered less than significant'

Finding 3 (Vehicle Miles Traveledf : Per capita Project VMT is projected to be at least 15% less

than regional per capita VMT. Project VMT impacts are considered less than significant.

Finding 4 (Parking|: The proposed parking supply of 136 spaces (1.00 spaces per unit). The Project

was found to be adequatelY Parked'

Finding 5 (Minimum Required Throat Depth): The siandards for driveway throat depths are met.

Finding 6 {Emergency Vehicle Access): Emergency vehicle access is adequate'

Flnding 7 (Pedestrian and Bicycle|: The Project does not result in impacts to pedestrian and

bicycle facilities. lmpacts to pedestrian and birycle facilities are considered less than significant.

Finding 8 (Transitf: The Project does not result in impacts to transit facilities. lmpacts to transit

facilities are considered less than significant'

iv

S f nEnn w\rywtkearrnc.corq

Page 915

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmoact Studv

Finding 9 (Driveway Geometry): Proposed geometry for access to East Natoma St is adequate.

Either a raised median or right-turn channelization should be used to limit the secondary (eastern)

driveway to right-in-right-out access. Note that the secondary {eastern) driveway was modeled

assuming a shared eastbound through-right turn lane, without a right turn taper or deceleration

lane. Anticipated eastbound right turning volume is less than 10 vehicles during the AM and PM

peak-hours and neither a right tapper or deceleration lane is required per City of Folsom policy'

However, the City reserves the right to require either a taper or pocket at the discretion of the

City Engineer. Finding 10 (Signal timing): With the addition of a fourth leg to the East Natoma

St/prison Rd intersection, the signal timing and lane geometry was assumed to be configured as

follows, or an equivalent plan to the satisfaction of the City Engineer:

r Eastbound: An eastbound right turn pocket was assumed with 150-feet of storage and a

50-foot taper; for a total of one left, one through, and one right turn lane,

r Westbound: A westbound left turn lane with 100-foot pocket plus 5O-foot taper for a total

of one left and one shared Through-right lane.

. Southbound: The existing exclusive right-turn lane is assumed to be restriped as a

through-right turn lane {for a total of one left and one shared through-right).

r Northbound: The northbound approach is assumed to provide one left and one shared

through-right lane. The northbound through-right lane is assumed to be in a 70' turn

pocket Plus 60'taPer.
r Timing: Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and

southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 second norlhbound

southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and

G2 second eastbound and.westbound through phases. Crosswalks are assumed across all

legs of the intersection with flashing don't walk phases set to 22 seconds to accommodate

a 3 foot per seconding walking speed.

City staff have noted that the East Natoma St/Prison Rd intersection may be an excellent location

for protected-permissive left-turn phasing (l.e.,"aflashing yellow arrow" to allow left turns during

the conflicting through phase). Such phasing would increase the intersection capacity and reduce

queuing for the eastbound through movement. lt is our professional iudgement that novel

phasing plans, such as protected-permissive phasing, have the potentialto confuse elderly drivers

and pedestrians, resulting in increased accident rates. Because protected-permissive phasing is

not necessary to maintain the General Plan level-of-service goals we do not recommend it for the

entrance to age-restric{ed housing. The project adds a fourth leg to the existing T-intersection,

which requires upgrading the traffic signal hardware. At the discretion of the City Engineer, those

upgrades may include video vehicle detection, connecting the signal into the City traffic

management center, and traffic signal controller upgrades to the satisfaction of the City Engineer'

Conditions of approval can be limited to the City of Folsom Standard conditions plus a

requirement to time the traffic signal at East Natoma St/Prison Rd to be consistent with finding

10 above, or a similar timing plan, to the satisfaction of the city Engineer.

'/ J \!v':! l-/.i.' it a 1 i. a {...11''51 rxren
v

Page 916

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

A rxEnn ..: .;.;; l ta...l,, ...:,.'

vt

Page 917

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportat ion lmpact Studv

1.2 Report Organization 1

2.4 Transit 6

Folsom Stage Lines and Dial-A-Ride'......'......." """"' 5

Sacramento RegionalTransit ".""'. .'.'.,'..'.....'..,..,""' 6

El Dorado County Transit...'...'. ....".""' 7

2.5 Bicycle Facilities 7

Bicycle/Pedestrian/Transit Facilities ."....,,. t7

3,4 Vehicle Miles Traveled Standards of Significance.'...'."......... '..'.'..,..,."."."""17

3.5 Analysis Too1s............ """""""""""' 18

4. EXISTING 2022 COND1r1ON............... ...'........'.'.."...'.'.19

4.1 Existing Condition """' 19

Data Sources !....'.ri.,'.rir.......'...'..'.."," 19

Existing Condition lntersection and Segment Level-of-Service '....'.'..'..". '."""2O

4.2 Assessment of Proposed Proiect '...""'...'....."',""22

Trip Generation..........,,.". ..'.".."",."""22

Trip Distribution.............., ,'.""."' """""""""22

llIKEAR t,\1,!V \l ! .l.kc) a f t t t:.( t:r,', vll

Page 918

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransoortation lmpact Studv

SignalTiming and Geometry................,. '....,..'..-.'...22

4.3 Existing 2022 with Project Conditions ....'.,".."..,,"23

5. PROJECT VMT IMPACTS AND GENERAL PLAN LEVEL-OF-SERVICE CONFORMIW.........,, ,,,.,,.,,,,27

5,1 Vehicle Miles Trave1ed.........,........ ,"..'.""....'."...,,.'27

5.2 Conformance with General Plan Level-of-Service Policy 28

6. OTHER CONS|DERAT|ONS,........... ..........31

6.l lnternalCirculation and Site Plan Review. ......'..'..31

Parking Requirements. 31"

Minimum Required Throat-Depth.........,.......' .".,',,31

Emergency Vehicle Access 32

7. FINDINGS, MITIGATION, AND RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS. 35

List of Appendices
A. Traffic Counts and SignalTiming Sheets

B. Level-of-Service and Signal Warrant Calculations .'.'...'..,..'...'.

C, Travel Demand ModelTrip Distribution Plots

A-1

B-1

c,1

A IKFAR ,..,,,,!.r;w 
I keal nc.co'., vilt

Page 919

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

List of Tables
Table 1. Study lntersections and Control ..'.'.....,.............6

Table 2. Level-of-Servise Criteria for Signalized lntercections ..'..'.......... ...,.,,...',."L4

Table 3. Level-of-Seruice Criteria for Unsignallzed lntersectlons.............. '..'.......'.16
Table 4. Key ltems and Sources forGeometry and Usage Data

Table 5. Existing 2022 lntersection Delay and Level'of-Service

Table 6. PrdectTrip Generation

Table 7. Basellne 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-Service, with and without Project......25

List of Figures

Figure 1. Natoma Senior Apartments Vicinity Map

Figure 2. Preliminary 9ite Plan

Figure 3. Folsom Stage Lines Routes 1O 20 and 30....'.'....'.'...

Figure4. Bike Paths, Lanes, and Routes..

Figure 5. Sharrow..
Figure 6. Class lV Bikeway...

Figure 7. Folsom Bike Map.....

Flgure 8. Existing Condition Turn Movements and Geometry

Figure 9. Proiect Trip Distribution

Figure 10. SACOG SB 743 Regional VMT Screening Map

19

20

22

2

3

7

9

10

10

7L

2t
24

29

1X5lfnfnn w\ryw.tkearrnc.com

Page 920

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

.tr1.).:,1:11..,.. t , xllIKEAR

Page 921

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

1. INTRODUCTION
This Transportation lmpact Study (TlS) identifies impacts of the proposed Natoma Senior

Apartments project {the Project) on the motorized and unmotorized transportation systems in

Folsom, California. This study has been prepared forthe City of Folsom (City), Helix Environmental

lnc., and FCC 50, LLC. A Planned Development Permit and Conditional Use Permit are requested

by the applicant.

1.1 Project Description
Figure 1 provides a Project vicinity map. The Project consists of 136 one- and two-bedroom

affordable, age restricted, apartments located across from the main entrance to Folsom State

Prison at 103 E. Natoma St, Folsom, CA 95630 (parcel 071-0320-042). Two access points to East

Natoma St are planned: a ful! access driveway aligned with Prison Rd, and a right-in-right-out

driveway near the eastern edge of the Project site. One hundred thirty-six parking stalls are

included along the drive isle along the southern and eastern edges of the Project.

Accessible pathways are planned around the building to provide a walking path for residents.

Sidewalks along the Project's East Natoma Street frontage are included from Prison Rd to the

edge of the existing sldewalk at Cimmaron Circle. The existing multi-use trail connection from

the Oak Parkway trailwill be preserved, and a pedestrian connection will be added southernly

from the Project to the Oak Parkway Trail.

The site is designated Professional-Office (PO) in the General Plan and zoned as Business

Professional- Planned Development District (BP-PD). With the Planned Development Permit and

Conditional Use Permit being requested the Project is consistent with the adopted General Plan

and zoning.

1.2 Report Organization
This report includes the following sections: lntroduction, Setting and Study Area (key roadways

and intersections, regulatory setting, and analysis scenarios); Methodology (detailing the analysis

procedures); analysis sections; discussion of other considerations, and findings and

recommendations.

L5 rnren w\ryw.tkeartnc,com

Page 922

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

[) Natoma Senior Apartments fl r r'irnn

%
B

Ctty Hallft

i

1

a
fi*
.,{!

dfi

Fe*

ffi
i!5
r.li

#
Figure 1. Natoma SeniorApartments Vicinity Map

25l f ftgAn www.tkearrnc.com

Page 923

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Itlatoma Senlor Apadmcnts
Transportatlon lmpact Study

Folsom,

California

Plt!:l,tMt:{AltY sl l}: Pt]\N

NATOMA SENIOR
APARTMENTS

cl'r"Y ot'ForJoM, cA

fH*,n*...;;;ai5-n-{r+{I{}
g:E6{--*

F.

FlSur€ 2, Prellmlnary Slto Plan

fl rr<Een w\ryw.tkea'nccom

v

!ry&--

t

3

Page 924

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

SlrnEnn ',,';'^i,:/ 't ;.t,, tt 1l i- ' )1 t" 4

Page 925

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments
Transportation lmpact Studv

Folsom,

California

2. SCENARIOS, SETTING AND STUDY AREA
The Project generates fewer than 50 peak-hour trips which is the City's threshold for requiring the

evaluation of Projec't traffic on the level-of-service at potential affected intersections.

Consequently, this Tl5 evaluates traffic operations at the two ProJect driveway intersections.

2.1 Study Scenarios
Four scenarios were identified for inclusion in this TIS through consultation with City staff. These

study scenarios were used to evaluate Project impacts relevant to General Plan Policy M4.1.3

relative to level of service. This study determines the weekday AM peak-hour, PM peak-hour, and

Sunday peak-hour level-of-service at study intersections under the following scenarios;

r Existing 2022without Project condition

r Existing 2O22with Project condition

Analysis of the existing condition reflects the traffic volumes and roadway geometry at the time

the study began. This scenario quantifies performance measures for the existing condition and

serves as a known reference point for those familiar with the study area. These scenarios, with

and without the Project, identify Project related impacts anticipated to occur if the Project opened

in 2020.

2,2 Pro)ect Area Roadways
Brief descriptions of the key roadways serving the Project site are provided below.

Natoma St/East Natoma St is a two-lane minorarterial connecting from Folsom Blvd, past Folsom

City Hall, and connecting through Green Valley Rd and onto Empire Ranch Rd. From Folsom Blvd

to Fargo Way, just east of City Hall, there are sidewalks, curb, and gutter with striped class 2 bike

lanes. From Fargo Way to the east, fronting the Project site and Folsom State Prison, there are

dirt shoulders without sidewalks until Folsom Crossing Rd, where East Natoma Street becomes a

four-lane arterialwith sidewalk, curb, gutter, and striped class 2 bike lanes to Empire Ranch Rd.

At Coloma Street, near City Halt, Natoma St caries about 11,000 vehicles per day. A volume which

drops to about 10,000 vehicles per day near the Proiect Site,

Prison Rd is a two-lane north-south access road from East Natoma St to Folsom State Prison, lt
has unpaved shoulders without bike lanes or sidewalks. Prison Road is signed to prohibit stopping

or turning within the prison's property.

Slrnran w'.ryw lke;r:i:c-cor': 5

Page 926

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

2.3 Study lntersections
There are two study intersections (Table 1), which are the driveway intersections show in the site

plan (Figure 2) shown previously. No segments were selected for analysis.

Table 1. Study Intersections and C6ntrol

2.4 Transit
Folsom's public transportation includes bus and dial-a-ride service provided by the City through

Folsom Stage Lines and light rail service provided by Sacramento RegionalTransit District {SRTD}.

El Dorado County Transit (EDC Transit) also provides limited bus connections to El Dorado County,

Folsom Stage Lines and Dial-A-Ride

The Folsom Stage Line buses, operated by SRTD run Monday through Friday and there is no

weekend service available. There are currently ten buses running on three routes. They are routes

10, 20 and 30 (Figure 3). Routes 10 and 20 intersect at Folsom Lake College. There is no charge to
transferfrom one Folsom Stage Line route to another,

r Route 10 - Serves Historic Folsom, E. Bidwell 5t., the Eroadstone Market Place,

Broadstone Plaza, Folsom Aquatics Center, Folsom Lake College, lntel, Kaiser Permanente,

Folsom Premium Outlets, Mercy Hospital, Palladio Mall, and CenturyTheatres. lt connects

to light rail and with the RT bus service Line 24. Service with a one-hour headway starts

at 5:25 AM wlth the last pickup at 7:25 PM.

r Route 20 - Serves Empire Ranch Road, East Natoma Street, Vista del Lago High School,

Folsom Lake College and transfers to Route 10. There are one morning and two afternoon

buses on Route 20.

o Route 30 - Serves Folsom State Prison, City Hall, and Woodmere Drive during peak-hours

{6 a.m. - 8:10 a.m. and 2:35 p.m. - 4:55 p.m.) with four AM peak-period buses and five

PM peak-period buses.

Dial-A-Ride is a curb-to-curb transportation service that operates within the Folsom city limits. lt
provides transportation to residents who have a physical, developmental, or mental disability.

Senior citizens who are 55 years of age or older also qualify for this program.

Sacramento Regional Transit

SRTD light rail provides light rail service via the Gold Line connecting the Historic Folsom, Glenn,

and lron Point light rail stations to downtown Sacramento and points in between. Service is

wtyW.1,kearrIC COt-r: 6

location Control

1. East Natoma St/Prison Rd Sienal

2. East Natoma St/Eastern Project Driveway Side-Street-Stop-Control {SSSC)

5l IKEAR

Page 927

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments
Transportation lm pact Study

Folsom,

California

provided from 5 AM to 7 PM with 30-minute headways. There is also a connection to SRTD bus

route 24 from Folsom Stage Lines route 10 at the Madison/Main stop. SRTD route 24 provides

service to Sunrise Mall on an approximately hourly headway from 5 AM to 7 PM.

El Dorado County Transit

The EDC Transit route 50X (the 50 Express) operates every hour from 6 AM until 7 PM Monday

through Friday, with service from the Missouri Flat Transfer Center in El Dorado County to the

Folsom lron Point light railstation, Folsom Lake College, dnd back.

,)

$
5
E
.9
E6
E
E

,t

- Plrrtt Counts
vacnmmhCguot;

at

LEGEND
. &tt Stops

- 

Rolb 10

J sctrmt

+ M.dsl
r ghotetqrE69l4
(E treBllrPffi
.l Plbk Lsrmr
E lqH Fa'l SE@F

8!{n Wala

Orp fty

Erl tldomr gL

, ttt - 
t t''t

,.,,
I

ll
,r-rd

t

f
6
Bct

I

d&
IIITEL

Figure 3. Folsom Stage Lines Routes 1O 20 and 30

2.5 Bicycle Facilities

Folsom is one of the most bike friendly settings in California, with an existing comprehensive

bikeway system that is extensive and connects to a vast number of hlstorical and recreatlonal

attractions. Existing and planned bicycle facilities within the Project area are described in the 2007

N

+
d

$
{ls

li\
t

$t'vF

g,

,

7SrnEnn w\,vw,tkearrnc.cor.

Page 928

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

Folsom Bikeway Master Planl which provides a framework for the design of a bikeway system

that meets the California Street and Highway Code Section 890-894.2 - Bicycle Transportation Act

and improves safety and convenience for all users. An updated bike plan is currently being

prepared as part of the Folsom Active Transportation Plan, There are fourtypes of bicycle facilities

{Class 1., 2,3, and 4) in Folsom.

Class 1 Bike Path: A bikeway physically separated from motorized vehicular traffic by

an open space or barrier and either within the highway right-of-way

or within an independent right-of-way (Figure 4).

Class 2 Bike Lane: Any portion of roadway designated for bicycle use and defined by

pavement marking, curbs, signs, or other traffic-control devices

(Figure 4).

Class 3 Bike Route: A designated route through high demand corridors on existing

streets and are usually shared with motor vehicles. Are indicated by

periodic signs and do not require pavement markings (Figure 4)' A

variant on Class lll bikeways, shared lanes, or "sharrow" lanes, are

becoming more common. Sharrows are'a form of Class lll bikeways

where the general-purpose lane is too narrow for a bicycle and a

vehicle to travel safely side-by-side within the same lane. A sharrow

symbol painted {Figure 5) on the roadway is used to indicate the

likely lateral location of bikes in the lane to inform motor vehicles.

Class 4 Bikeway (Separated Bikeway or "Cycle Track") The Protected Bikeways Act

of 2O74 (Assembly Bill 1193 - Ting, Chapter 495) established Class

lV bikeways for California. Class lV bikeways provide a right-of-
way designated exclusively for bicycle travel adjacent to a

roadway and which are protected from vehicular traffic. Types of
separation include, but are not limited to, grade separation,

flexible posts, inflexible physical barriers, or on-street parking. An

example is shown in Figure 6.

Figure 7 provides a Folsom bike map. All road segments in the study area include Class 2 bike

lanes. There are existing Class l trails parallelingthe northern edge of East Natoma St (The Johnny

Cash Trail, connecting Historic Folsom, Folsom Prison, and Folsom Lake). An existing Class l trail

also follows underneath the high voltage line behind the Project site (the Oak Parkway Trail)'

Grade separated bike/pedestrian tunnels take these trails under Prison Road and East Natoma

l Folsom (2007) Bikeway Master Plan,

.www&J:gn,ri!.nt&t!y-lpllt)spt:s/pall$lttndsu$,qr't:ra1!:nniielvail;:g:ler-dlltq$.

Slrnran 8
?rryv/. l ke.t rt nc-c tlt:-

Page 929

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

Street. There is also a bike only left turn from eastbound East Natoma St onto the Johnny Cash

Trail at the East Natoma St/Cimmaron Circle intersection'

BIKE PATH

fr*trnrndrd l0-tl
tsrht r

BIKE LANE

db
IIKE TJTIE

6'Jolrd
w,{E
ttttt{

d 0'ro !r.I'

ora t^tslc

BIKE ROUTE

Figure 4. Bike Paths, Lanes, and Routes

5l rKEAR 9r,';1ry9"; | 4tl.-1;1; r;1;1'

dtu
gu(E PAllt

I'lo
tilOTOfi

vEHtcta3
OR

MOTOA0EO
ElcYcLEg

6b
Bll{l llr}trtl

Page 930

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartm€nts Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportatio n lmpact Study

Figure 5. Sharrow

Figure 5. Class lV BikewaY

(sourcer Gary Kavanagh image L27 2: !:ttg{r3&klpdu!5e!)

5 rnEnn w\ryw tkeartnc.cor' 10

Page 931

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments
Transportation lmPact Study

Folsom
California

a
a

I

a

--'r-
.l
I

:&l
HS

@

AH\*[;,

E u.V

11

Flgure 7. Folsom Elke Map

5l rnEan w!vv/ [keaflnc (]ort

Page 932

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTranspo rtation lmpact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

SlrxEnn 1.:,r/\,:j 
^ 

::, 1f : :i'. i.,:t' :

12

Page 933

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

3. M ETHODOLOGY
This section provides a process overview, descrlbes traffic forecasting, and discusses the

methods/criteria used to evaluate level-of-service. Discussion of significance criteria is included.

3.1 Process Overview
The overall analysis process was structured to identify potential adverse transportation effects

related to the project and evaluate consistency with General Plan Policy M4.1'3 relative to traffic

level-of-service.

r Traffic volumes and turning movements for the Existing2A22 Condition were determined

from observed traffic counts taken Tuesday December 7,zOZt'

. Study intersection traffic operations were analyzed both with and without the proposed

project to identify any anticipated inconsistencies with General Plan Policy M4.1.3 relative

to traffic level of service.

o California Environmental Quality Act (CEaA) impacts are based on qualitative vehicle

miles of travel (VMT) analysis and significance criteria from the General Plan (Policy NCR

3.1.3), and CEeA guidance from the Governor's Office of Planning and Research2 3.

3.2 Leve l-of-service Methodology
Level-of-service {LOS} is a qualitative indication of the level of delay and congestion experienced

by motorists using an intersection. Levels-of-service are designated by the letters A through F,

with A being the best conditions and F being the worst (high delay and congestion). Calculation

methodologies, measures of performance, and thresholds for each letter grade differ for road

segments, signalized i ntersections, and u nsigna lized intersections.

Based on guidance from City staff, the following procedures described below for intersection

traffic operations analysis were utilized for this TlS.

intersection Traffic Operations Analysis

Simallzed lntersectlons

The methodology from the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) 6th Editiona, are used to analyze

signalized intersections. Levelof-service can be characterized for the entire intersection, each

approach, or by lane group. Control delay alone (the weighted average delay for all vehicles

entering the intersection) is used to characterize level-of-service for the entire intersection or an

approach. Control delay and volume to capacity ratio are used to characterize level-of-service for

lane groups. The average delay criteria used to determine the level-of-service at signalized

2 OpR (2018) Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation lmpacts ln CEQA,

httgi?www.opr*ta.Ep.v/doc!120 19q12 2 -7.$l Techrlical Advisqv'pcl f '
3 OPR'S webinar on SB 743 implementation, 4/16/2020'
4 Transportation Research Board (2016) Highway Capacity Manual, Washington, D.C'

A f nfan w\,vwtr(ea.nc.com

13

Page 934

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

Californialmpact

intersections is presented in Tabte 2. The HCM 2010 methodology is used as the primary method'

HCM 2000 methods are only utilized where the signal phasing is incompatible with HCM 2010

methods.

Table 2. Level-of-Service Criteria for SiSnalized lntersections

Level -of-
Servlce

Average Delayl

Descrlption (Sec. /Vehicle.)

A Very Low Delay: This level-of-service occurs when progression is extremely 5 10.0

favorable, and most vehicles arrive during a green phase. Most vehicles do

not stop at all.

B Minimal Delays: This level-of-service generally occurs with good progression, 10.1-20.0

short cycle lengths, or both, More vehicles stop than at LOs A, causing higher

levels of average delaY.

c Acceptable Delay: Delay increases due to only fair progression, longer cycle 20.1-35'0

lengths, or both. lndividual cycle failures lto service all waiting vehiclesl may

begin to appear at this level of service. The number of vehicles stopping is

st ificant, though manY still pass through the intersection without stopping.

D Approaching Unstablefiolerable Delays: The influence of congestion 35,1-55.0

becomes more noticeable. Longer delays may result from some combination

of unfavorable progression, long cycle lengths, or high v/c ratios' Many

vehicles stop, and the proportion of vehicles not stopping declines. lndividual

cycle failures are noticeable.

E Unstable Operation/Significant Delaysl This is considered by many agencies 55.1-80.0

the upper llmit of acceptable delays' These high delay values generally

indicate poor progression, long cycle lengths, and high v/c ratios. lndividual

cycle failures are frequent occurrences'

F Excessive DelaYs: This level, considered to be unacceptable to most drivers, > 80.0

often occurs with oversaturation (i.e., when arrival flow rates exceed the

capacity of the intersection). lt may also occur at high v/c ratios below 1,00

with many individual cycle failures. Poor progression and long cycle lengths

or v/c >1.0

may also contribute to such delay levels

Note 1: Weighted average of
Manual to determin

delay on all approaches. This is the measule used by the Highway Capacity

e level-of-service, Any movement with a volume-to-capacity ratio (v/c)

greaterthan 1.0 is considered to be level-of-service F'

Source: Transportation Research Board (2016) Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition, Washinglon D.C.

UnFir4allzed lntersectlons

The methodology from HCM 6th Edition is used for the analysis of unsignalized intersections' At

an unsignalized intersection, most of the main street traffic is un-delayed and, by definition, have

acceptable conditions. The main street left-turn movements and the minor street movements are

all susceptible to delay of varying degrees, Generally, the higher the main street traffic volumes,

ffi IKHAR ,,1v'.qr',1 | r (-t, 14, i l. .l-rr!*l

L4

Page 935

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
Californian lmpact Study

the higher the delay for the minor movements. Separate methods are utilized for Two-Way Stop-

Controlled (TWSC) intersections and AllWay Stop-Controlled {AWSC) intersections.

. TWSC: The methodology for analysis of two-way stop-controlled intersections calculates

an average total delay per vehicle for each minor street movement and for the rnajor

street left-turn movements, based on the availability of adequate gaps in the main street

through traffic. A level-of-service designation is assigned to individual movements or
'combinations of movements (in the case of shared lanes) baled upon delay, it is not

defined for the intersection as a whole. Unsignalized intersection level-of-service is for

each movement (or group of movements) based upon the respective average delay per

vehicle. Table 3 presents the average delay criteria used to determine the level-of-service

at TWSC and AWSC intersections'

o AWSC: At allway stop-controlled intersections, the level-of-service is determined by the

weighted average delay for all vehicles entering the intersection. The methodologies for

these types of intersections calculate a single weighted average delay and leveFof-service

for the intersection as a whole. The average delay criteria used to determine the level-of-

service at all-way stop intersections is the same as that presented in Table 3. LeveFof-

service for specific movements can also be determined based on the TWSC methodology.

It is not unusual for some of the minor street movements at unsignalized intersections to have

level-of-service D, E, or F conditions while the major street movements have level-of-service A, B,

or C conditions. ln such a case, the minor street traffic experiences delays that can be substantial

for individual minor street vehicles, but the majority of vehicles using the intersection have very

little delay. Usually in such cases, the minor street traffic volumes are relatlvely low. lf the minor

street volume is large enough, improvements to reduce the minor street delay may be iustified,

such as channelization, widening, or signalization'

SlrnrAR \.^.it.r'W ii{1,{.1i: a ia.Ciri : l

15

Page 936

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportatio n lmoact Studv

Table 3. Level-of-Senice Criteria for lized lntersections

Level of DescrlPtion
Service
(Los)

TWSCT

Average Delay

by Movement
lntersection Wide

Average Delay

/ vehiclel(seconds / vehiclel lseconds

A Little or no delaY <10 <10

B Short traffic delav >10and<15 >10and<15

c Average traffic delays >15and<25 >15and<25

D Lons traffic delavs >25and<35 >25and<35

E Very long traffic delays >35and<50 >35and<50

Extreme delays potentially affecting other
traffic movements in the intersection

> 50 (or, v/c >1.0) >50
F

Note 1: Two-Way Stop-Control (TWSC) leve l-of-service is calculated separately for each minor street

movement {or shared movement) as well as major street left turns using these criteria. Any

movement with a volume to capacity ratio (v/c) greater than 1.0 is considered to be level-of-

service F.

Note 2; All-Way Stop-Control (AWSC) assessment of level-of-service at the approach and intersection

levels is based solely on control delay'

Source: Transportation Research Board {2016) Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition, Washington D.C,

3.3 General Plan Thresholds

Level of Service

Consistency with General Plan leveLof-service policies for the proposed Project were determined

based on the methods described above and identified as either "conforming" or "non-

conforming". General Plan Policy M4.1'3 addresses level of service:

Strive to ochieve ot leost traffic Level of Service "D" (or better) for locol streets ond

roadwoys throughaut the city. ln designing trdnspoftation improvements, the City

will prioritize use of smort technologies and innovotive solutions thot maximize

efficiencies and safety while minimizing the physicolfootprint. During the course

of pton buildout, [t may occur thattemporclly higher levels'af'service result where

roadway improvements hove not been adequotely phased as development

proceeds. However, this situation wilt be minimized based on onnual taflic
studies and monitoring programs City Staff will report to the City Council at

regulor intervals vio the Capitol lmprovement Program process for the Cauncil to

prioritize projects integra! to achieving level-of-service D or better.

The General plan Environmental lmpact Report (ElR) includes a criterion addressing potential

impacts at locations that operate at level-of-service E or F under no-project conditions. Under this

standard, a non-conforming situation would occur if the proposed project would:

5l IKEAR ,;v iryt v t l{ei:rr nc.curfi
L6

Page 937

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportat ion lmpact

lncreose the averoge detoy by five seconds or more at an intersection that

currently operotes (or is projected to operate) ot an unacceptoble levet-of-service

unde r " no- Proi ect" co nditions.

For the purposes of this analysis, level-of-service is considered potentially non-conforming if

implementation of the Project would result in any of the following:

e Cause an intersection in Folsom that currently operates (or is projected to operate) at

level-of-service D or better to degrade to level-of-service E, or \ rorse;

r lncrease the average delay by five seconds or more at an intersection in Folsom that

currently operates (or is projected to operate) at an unacceptable level-of-service E or F.

Bicycle/Pedestria n/Tra nsit Faci I ities

An impact is considered significant if implementation of the Project would:

o lnhibit the use of bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities;

r Eliminate existing bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities;

r prevent the implementation of planned bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities,

3.4 Vehicle Miles Traveled Standards of Significance

Under State Law (SB 7431, on tuly L,2A2O, vehicle miles traveled (VMT) will become the only

metric for evaluating significant transportation impacts in environmental impact analyses

required under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Without specific General Plan

guidance for VMT thresholds, this analysis uses a qualitative screening against The Governors'

Office of planning and Research (OPR) guidance of a 15oA per capita VMT reduction and utilizes

OPR's suggested exemption for affordable housing projects'

Folsom General Plan policy NcR 3.1.3 addresses VMT, as stated below:

poliry NCR 3.1.3 ,.Encourage efforts to reduce the amount of vehicle miles traveled (VMT).

These effofts could include encouraging mixed-use development promoting a

jobs/housing balance, and encouraging alternative transportation such as

walking, cycling, and public transit'"

OpR has published guidance recommending a CEQA threshold for transportation impacts of land

use projects of a 15% VMT reduction per capita, relative to either city or regional averages

ffi rxnan \/v:./W I 1<ei:)t-i na.CO !il
t7

Page 938

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTra lmpact Stu dv

based on the California's Climate Scoping Plan5. Qualitative assessment of VMT reduction is

acceptable to screen Proiectss.

Based on these criteria, a project will be considered to have a potentially significant impact if:

o per capita VMT from residential projects is anticipated to be greaterthan 85% of the

regional average Per capita VMT.

o The project is anticipated to inhibit implementation of planned pedestrian, bicycle, or

transit imProvements'

3.5 Analysis Tools

Level-of-Seruice

Co"tr"idelays and level-of-service for study intersections were calculated using the Synchro 117

analysis software (Version 11.1, build l, revision 6). synchro implements the methodologies of

the 6th Edition of the Highway Capacity Manualto modeltraffic controls and vehicle delay'

The software requires data on road characteristics (geometric), traffic counts, and the signal

timing data for each analysis intersection. ln general, default parameters were used, except in

locations where specific field data are available. Heavy vehicle percentages of 2oAwere assumed

during the peak hour.

VMT
to support jurisdictions' 58743 implementation, The Sacramento Area Council of Governments

{SACOG) staff developed thresholds and sffeening maps for residential and office projects, using

outputs from the 2016 base year travel demand model run for the 2020 Metropolitan

Transportation plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies (MTP/SCS). SACOG travel demand

model is activity/tour based and is designed to estimate an individual's daily travel, accounting

for land use, transportation and demographics that influence peoples'travel behaviors'

For residential projects, the threshold is defined as total household VMT per capita achieving

t5% of reduction comparing to regional (or anv appropriate sub-area) average. The SACOG

screening map uses "hex" geography, with each hex being about 1(X)0 feet on edge, Residential

VMT per capita per hex is calculated by tallying all household VMTs, including VMT traveling

outside the region, generated by the residents living at the hex and divided by the total

population in the hex. Hexes are then color coded with green and blue hexes depicting

neighborhoods with at least a 15% reduction in residentialVMT relative to the SACOG region'

yellow, orange, pink and red hexes have less than a 15% vMT reduction'

5 OpR (2018) Technical Advlsory on Evaluating Transportation lmpacts ln CEQA,

htt$://www.opr,ca.s,ov1doc5/20190122'243 Technical Adviiqry'P{lf'
6 oPR's webinar on 58 743 implementation, 41t612020'
T httos;//ww

Il rrEnn www tkearrnc.com

18

Page 939

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

4. EXISTING 2022 CONDITION
This section presents the Existing condition. For purposes of this Tls, Existing conditions represent

typical midweek, non-holiday, traffic volum esin 2O228

4.1 Existing Condition

Data Sources

The analysis tools require a variety of data to generate the evaluation criteria. The following

sections describe data collection procedures for Existing Conditions. There were three primary

data elements {roadway characteristics, intersection turning movement counts, and traffic

control data); and two supplementary elements (other recent studies, and field data) that

comprised the data collection program for this traffic analysis'

Roadwav Geor[9tf"v a.nd Usagelharacteristiqs

The geometry and usage data for the analysis were collected through aerial photographs, field

visits, and prior studies. current intersection geometry was field validated. Table 4 shows the key

items included in the geometric data and the source for each item'

Table 4. Kev ltems and Sources for Geometry and Usa8e Data

SourceKey ltem

Lane configurations and width

Lane utilization
lntersection sPacing

Length ofstorage baYs

Transit stops and routes

Aerial photographs and field visits

Prior studies, aerial photographs, and field visits

Aerial photographs and field visits

Aerial photographs and field visits

Transit schedules, aerial photographs, and field visits

Turn prohibitions or allowance Aerial phs and field visits

Lane configurations and width - These data specify the number of lanes and the width of the

roadway in each direction, and the directional turns that are allowed from each lane'

lane utilization - These data specify how lanes are used by drivers, such as traffic distribution

between lanes on a multi-lane roadway.

lntersection spacing -These data refer to the distance (in feet) between intersections'

Lenglh of storage bays - These data refer to the len$h (in feet) of available storage for left-

turning or right-turning vehicles where exclusive turn lanes are available. lt is collected for right-

turn lanes when the parking lane is used as a right-turn lane'

e Traffic Counts were collected on Tuesday December 7,202L

fl IKEAR !Vr,!\iV li t'ar,na.f OtTr

t9

Page 940

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

Transit stops and routes - A transit stop is an area where passengers await, board, alight, and

transfer between transit vehicles. A transit route is the roadway that transit vehicles operate on'

Turn prohibitions or allowance - These data specify if right turns on red {RTOR) are allowed on

the roadway.

lntersection Turninn Movement Coqnts

Existing morning and evening peak-period vehicle and pedestrian turning movement counts were

collected at study intersections on Tuesday December 7,2021. Traffic count data sheets are

provided in Appendix A of this TlS. Peak-hou r traffic counts were used to conduct the intersection

level-of-service analysis. Turning movement counts at consecutive intersections were balanced

and adjusted where appropriate to conservatively reflect existing traffic flows' Observed

intersection peak hour factors {PHF) were applied. Figure 8 provides a summary of the

intersection lane geometry and peak-period turning movements under Existing Conditions As well

as Project traffic and Existing Plus Project conditions).

Existing Condition lntersection and Segment Level-of-service

Table 5 presents a summary of level-of-service results for the study intersections under Existing

Conditions, along with 95% queue lengths for left turns. All study intersections operate at level-

of-service A or better during the AM, PM, and Sunday peak hours. Calculation sheets for

intersection delay and level-of-service are provided in Appendix B. Left turn queues are

adequately accommodated by the existing left turn storage pockets.

Table 5. 2022 lntersection and Level-of-Service

'5SS€ = Side Street StoP Control

.ijV\i,i i.\{..:t{ |ilt - .(.a-t'11

Control
No Ptoject (Delay and

level-of-servlce)

AM I Pr*r

lnt€Fectlon

9.1 A9.3 ASignalE Natoma St/Prison Rd

nlasssc nla
Eastern Project

Driveway

No ProJect

9596Queues(Feet)

AM I prrr
Approachlntesectlon

30'!73'EB Left

nla
^la

WB Left
49'22'SB Left
nlan/aNB Left

E Natoma St/Prison Rd

n/aNB n/a
Eastern Proiect

Driveway

Slrnrnn
20

Page 941

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

Californialmpa ct StudyTransportation

2022 Volume, Control & CteometrY

2A22
No Project

ProjectOnly

2A22
Plus ProJect

AM{PM)

Figure 8. Existing Condition Turn Movements and Geometry

E tn8fn27

6) Natoma Senior APPartments 5l rxEnn

.a
' ';iit'li|$ir1{)r - "i ii;i
':''):j
i :: i_.

- 
601t393)

i .i:: :ii:1r 'r,.] :!

o

a: !

::i
:: i
a:l

i

!

H

\ 64101

537{38 }i

I :i' rj t:t:iri : :i:

d

N-
@-

d9-
NO
ll

-l':/i.l5r'l - -

: -.
f;t::

:..i *

_- 8i111

i-,itr i.l,rl .r,t I ii

(
,;

d

5(5)
.rrs) T

a

: '-: 
.:

ji,i i

0{01

-\- 6so1

- 
8t1ll

o

otot -/
ais) -\

.lz
O-6

_ 609t4041

,l!:'.i:'i

I

6
,ii

il111:ilii
.lr:t --i

-.t-::!l-

li
I,
d

1t
.;. i

. t,. \r
.;:1. o-o

. __6

E

&

:..,:i' lj:jlr,i".t :ir

i':' ':

).

t39t?21 -/
36 I (a941 

-4i5r -\

64{6)

-\- 53713971

/'8\1'tt

5l rnEan lvwwtr<earrnccorn

2I

Page 942

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Studv

4.2 Assessment of Proposed Project

Trip Generation
projected traffic generated by the proposed Project was calculated using trip generation factors

from the Institute of Transportation Engineers {lTE) Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition l202Ll'

and is provided in Table 6 below.

Table 5. Trip Generation

Source: ITE (20211 Trip Generation Manual, lnstitute of Transportation Engineers, Washington DC' {Higher

value of either the average rate or the fitted equation-based rate for peak hour of generator)'

Trip Distribution
T1p distribution was based on observed traffic counts and select zone analysis within the travel

demand model. New Project trips were distributed as follows:

o 48%toffrom the west on East Natoma Street

c 48ori tofrom the east on East Natoma Street

t 4Yotofirom the north via Prison Road

Project trip assignment is shown in Figure 9'

Signal Timing and GeometrY

With the addition of a fourth leg to the East Natoma St/Prison Rd intersection, the signal timing

and lane geometry was assumed to be configured as follows:

r Eastbound: An eastbound right turn pocket was assumed with 150-feet of storage and a

5o-foot taper; for a total of one left, one through, and one right turn lane.

e Westbound:Awestbound leftturn lanewith 100-foot pocket plus50-foottaperforatotal

of one left and one shared through-right lane'

r Southbound: The existing exclusive right-turn lane is assumed to be restriped as a

through-right turn lane (for a total of one left and one shared through-right)'

r Northbound: The northbound approach is assumed to provide one left and one shared

through-right lane. The northbound through-right lane is assumed to be in a 70' turn

pocket Plus 60'taPer.
r Timing: Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and

southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle lengh, with 34 second northbound

southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and

5l rnrnn www Ited;-inc.cotll

Land Usc
ITE

Caterory
Quantlty Data Dally

AM Perk hour PM Perkhour
Tot l lnbound Outbound Total lnbound Outbound

Senior Adult Housing
(Multifamily)

252

136

dwelling
units

Rate 3.24 0,29 4s% 55o/o 0.3 54% 46%

Trips 447 39 tl 22 47 22 19

22

Page 943

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact

62 second eastbound and westbound through phases. Crosswalks are assumed across all

legs of the intersection with flashing don't walk phases set to 22 seconds to accommodate

a 3 feet per seconding walking speed.

City staff have noted that the East Natoma St/Prison Rd intersection may be an excellent location

for protected-permissive left-turn phasing (i.e., "a flashing yellow arrow" to allow left turns during

the conflicting through phase), Such phasing would increase the intersection capacity and reduce

queuing for the eastbound through movement. lt is our professional judgement that novel

phasing plans, such as protected-permissive phasing, have the potentialto confuse elderly drivers

and pedestrians, resulting in increased accident rates. Because protected-permissive phasing is

not necessary to maintain the General Plan level-of-service goals we do not recommend it for the

entrance to age-restricted housing. The project adds a fourth leg to the existing T-intersection,

which requires upgrading the traffic signal hardware, At the discretion of the City Engineer, those

upgrades may include video vehicle detection, connecting the signal into the City traffic

management center, and traffic signal controller upgrades to the satisfaction of the City Engineer'

The eastern project driveway was assumed to be configured as right-in-right-out. Because there

are fewer than ten peak-hour vehicle trips anticipated to enter the Project via the eastern

driveway, no deceleration lane or taper is necessary'

4.3 Existing 2022 with Proiect Conditions
project peak-hour traffic was added to the Existing 2022 turning volumes at each intersection.

Delay and level-of-service were determined at the study intersections. Figure 8 summarized the

turning movements and lane configurations for the Existing with ProJect Condition. Table 7

presents a summary of level-of-service results for the study intersections under Existing

Conditions. Allstudy intersections operate at level-of-service B or better during the AM, PM, and

Sunday peak hours. Calculation sheets for intersection delay and level-of-service are provided in

Appendix B. Left turn queues are adequately accommodated by the existing left turn storage

pockets.

5l f KFAR 'riwvrrkc.r'rc.curri

23

Page 944

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmoact Studv

($ Natoma Senior Apartments 1l-l'ltrnn

xs"
!
o

Clttf fiallft

Figure 9. Project Trlp Distribution

S f nEnn www.tkearrnc.com
24

Page 945

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

Table 7. Baseline 2022 lntersection Delay and level-of-Service, with and without Proiect

lntersectlon Control
No Ptolect (Delay aod

levelof-Serulce)

AM I Prrr

Wlth Prolect (Delay and

Level-of-Servke)

AM I Prrr

! Natoma St/Prison Rd Sienal 9.3 A 9.1 A 15.9 g T6,7 B

Eastern Project
Driveway sssc nla nla

10.6 B

{NB)

72.3 S

{N8)

lnteItectlon Approach

No Project
95% Queues (Feetl

AM I Prtl

Wlth Proi€ct
95% Queues (Feetf

AM I Pra

E Natoma St/Prison Rd

EB Left 773' 30' 166' 37'

WB LEft n/a n/a 22' 23'

SB Left 22' 49', 23', 73

NB Left nla nla 27' 27

Eastern Project
Driveway NB nla nla 0 0

'SSSC = Side Street StoP Control

fl rKrAR .,..,, I|{ \.^t,,{.t. il t iii. a " --11 
\ i

25

Page 946

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

,Jy\.^rVt I (C;.trr nf tS! 1rSlIKEAR
26

Page 947

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom Corporate Center Apartments
Transportation lmpact Study

5. PROJECT VMT IMPACTS AND GENERAL PLAN LEVEL_OF_SERVICE

CONFORMITY

5,1- Vehicle Miles Traveled

Folsom General Plan policy NCR 3.1.3 addressed vehicle miles traveled (VMT) as shown below:

policy NCR 3.1.3 "Encourage efforts to reduce the amount of vehicle miles traveled (VMT)'

These efforts could include encouraging mixed-use development promoting a

jobs/housing balance, and, encouraging alternative transportation such as

walking, cycling and public transit'"

The Governors'Office of Planning and Research (OPR) has published guidance recommending a

CEOA threshold for transportation impacts of land use projects of a tSYo VMT reduction per

capita, relative to either city or regional averages, based on the California's Climate Scoping

Plane. Qualitative assessment of VMT reduction is acceptable to screen projectslo.

Under State Law (SB 743), VMT became the only CEQA threshold of significance for

transportation impacts on July t,2O2A. Without specific GeneralPlan guidance forVMT

thresholds, this analysis uses qualitative screening against OPR's guidance of a 15% per capita

VMT reduction.

To support jurisdictions'SB743 implementation, SACOG developed thresholds and screening

maps {Figure 10) for residential projectsll, using outputs from the 2016 baseyeartravel

demand model run for the 2020 MTP/SCS. SACOG's travel demand model is activity/tour based

and is designed to estlmate an individual's daily travel, accounting for land use, transportation

and demographics that influence peoples'travel behaviors. For residential projects, the

threshold is defined as total household VMT per capita achieving 15% of reduction compared to

regional (or any appropriate sub-area) average VMT. The map uses HEX geography. Residential

VMT per capita per HEX is calculated by tallying all household VMTs, including VMT traveling

outside the region, generated by the residents living at the HEX and divided by the total

population in the HEX. Green hexagons denote areas where residential VMT is 50% to 85o/o of

the regional average and yellow hexagons denote areas where residentialVMT is 85oAto lOOYo

of the regional average.

The project is located within one of the green hexagons with average residentialVMT of 17

miles per capita (per day). The Project is anticipated to generate less than 82% of the regional

s oPR (2018) Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation lmpacts ln CEQA,

ntts//www.apr.(a"Fov. oc '
10 oPR's webinar on SB 743 implementation,4/t6/2020,
11 sAcoc (2021) http{r/lsb743-saEqg.o,pgldata.il(gi5lqd

Folsom,

California

5l rnran wwwtkea'nc-com
27

Page 948

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom Corporate Center Apartments
lmoact Studv

per capita residential daily VMT of 20.82 miles. The Proiect is thereiore anticipated to have a

less-than-signifi cant impact on VMT.

5.2 Conformance with General Plan Level-of-service Policy

Allstudy intersections are anticipated to operate at level-of-service B or better under all study

scenarios, both with and without the additlon of ProJect traffic. The Project is not anticipated to

create new level-of-service deficiencies, or to or worsen any existing deficiencies, based on

General Plan Policy M4.1.3.

Folsom,
California

Slrn*n www.tkear' nc.co n
28

Page 949

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Folsom Corporate Center Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniastudvTransoortation

6 a qt rk "de'-..-r r J, ?.-:' ^r
t O 6 C, - <' t!@'F..et.d ! f s i.:'.-",bi '

Fo. irsrrFxn{ rr*.e, rn.{rinF a d6^M
!! acql l4ur.h(rdr x'.ry'rt.(ht!bg
1e+ d rdutt6.o,.et^.g l. r!9iol{q I/
fryqd:l! r!f, i.r).v.rr9! rn? hrp lsre

.iide.n.r vrt rr (.Fr.9.1
ts€! .t..ldlrr.l br r.t\h! !tr 6ru5rm'd vsr.
r.rhr t.9 :fr krrJiry o'nte lh. tq,tn.
0.nflrr!{ or me 

'.rl&nrt 
6'ri9 il {'r rrs .rd

nivid.c bv &c l.brFF'r6n in lt.8.i
11. :-.1 ts.rr rr,3

il
Flurr!d!rtrh. F rv d!.ar F4J6t.r..ebld

l4 rn$ dn.Jtring'..Sdlricn ltts.Ir ucd.r
.te...fr.3. to ta, 4r rcd ft narry' tu 4
;-!:-.r. r:: r;. , -::t.ndltr
lrrFt.r 9,6.(..'. trl oefr r}* J,rA
mrF.r. pron4d /ir ina.'frraon purF*e r!!
ind r..snbltrt lo.nrBc
.n..fir rt tu&r$.r !.. dFde r.d rt

^:a:ir;- :l'.'e.t,.-k :...1 I r t. ..tq
' -/r,tr:i*:'\a ?:

ffi nndw trddnr e!B& lt+i.dd
vm h s@c rddBllura{d 5/:qrl}

Ar.+HdffFOtr.

| -nunt-lr..r

$ 
..*$tarr*lm+

<- 6r rm d &@l AF6p

<r l&rE{ot&td&+

i -.: 
{-rl5$tud&rd&ry

C >.sdr{'drftnry

Flgure 10, SACOG Ss 743 Reglonal VMT Scre€nint Map

29

Page 950

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior Apartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportatio n lmpact Stu

(This page intentionally left blank)

SlrKrAR ': ) \ :l V i li.(i:. ai{ t :r-. (- : :t 1'-

30

Page 951

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,
CaliforniaTransportation lmpact StudY

6. OTH ER CONSIDERATIONS

6.L lnternal Circulatron and Site Plan Review

This section reviews parking, driveway throat-depth, and emergency vehicle access shown on the

preliminary site plan shown in Figure 2 (page 3).

Parking Requirements

The City does not have an adopted parking standard for age-restricted (senior) multi-family

housing or affordable age-restricted multi-family housing. With a Planned Development (PD),

parking supply is established through the PD permit process'

proposed proiect parking: Proposed Parking consists of 136 spaces (1'00 parking spaces per

unit). This exceeds that of many other recently approved age restricted multi-famiU projects in

and around Folsom. The 135 spaces include 8 accessible spaces (i.e', with the adjacent space

striped out to provide vehicle access for wheelchairs and/or mobility scooters) and 14 spaces

with electric vehicle charging'

parking Demand: The ITE Parking Generation Manuall2 lists an average peak parking demand of

0.59 vehicles per dwelling unit for land Use 252 (Senior Adult Housing-Attached), with a standard

deviation of 0.12. The ITE sample size is small (three observations), yet the proposed parking ratio

of 1.00 is more than 3.5 standard deviations greater than the mean parking demand.

Consequently, the proposed parking for the Proiect is sufficient to meet the anticipated parking

demand with a parking ratio of 1.00.

For comparison, Revel Senior Living a similar proiect approved by Folsom in 2018 had a parking

ratio of 0.81 spaces per dwelling unit. The Revet project conducted a parking survey of six similar

Sacramento area facilities. All six facilities were found to use less than 0'60 spaces per dwelling

unit during peak parking demand hours (consistent with the ITE parking demand data referenced

above.)

Finding: The proposed parking supply of 135 spaces is adequate for the 136 multi-family units

proposed in the Project'

M inimum Required Throat-DePth

Minimum Required Throat-Depth (MRTDI: For an 81-160 unit apartment complex, the standard

for the MRTD is 50 feetl3. This So-foot length represents vehicle storage equivalents, which means

the total required length may be achieved by summing the throat depths for several access points

if more than one access point is to serve the site'

Throat-Depth provided: As shown on the preliminary site plan in Flgure 2 (page 3), the throat

depths for the primary and second driveways exceed 50 feet and 25 feet, respectively.

1, ITE (2010) parking Generation 4th Edition, lnstitute of Transportation Engineers, Washington DC'

13 Folsom (2020) Design and Procedures Manual and lmprovement Standards, site access Table 12-1,

https://www.folsorn,e aus/civicax#ilebank/trlobdlpad'aspx rt:66183.89&BloblD=3-8340'

S f nEnn rvwwtkearrnc.com

31

Page 952

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

Finding: The MRTD of the Project driveways meet the standard because the primary driveway

throat depth meets the minimum standard of 50 feet'

Emergency Vehicle Access

The project,s internal drive isles are designed with minimum 25-foot inner and 50-foot turning

radii to accommodate fire department access'

Flnding: Emergency ve,tricle access is designed consistent with standards and is adequate'

5.2 Bicycle/PedestrianlTransit Facilities

The project does not inhibit the use of bicycle or pedestrian facilities; elirninate existing bicycle,

or pedestrian facilities; or prevent the implementation of planned bicycle, or pedestrian

facilities. The project includes accessible pathways around the building to provide a walking path

for residents. path connections are planned to paths internal to the Project site, south tothe

Oak parkway Trail, and west to the East Natoma St underpass to the Johnny Cash Trail.

Finding: The project has a less-than-significant impact on pedestrians and bicycles. With

relocation of the effected bus stop, transit impacts will be less-than-significant'

6.3 Queueing
Anticipated 9sth-percentile left turn queue lenglhs were reviewed and are anticipated to be less

than the supplied storage lengths in the turn bays'

Finding: Existing turn pockets are adequate.

6.4 Driveway GeometrY

City standards reguires a 6&foot right turn taper in conditions with ten or more peak-hour right

turns into a driveway, and a 150-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, with 50 or more peak-hour right

turns. Neither project driveway is anticipated to have ten or more right turning vehicles into the

project during the AM or PM peak-hours. The main driveway at the signalized East Natoma

Street/prison Rd intersection includes an eastbound right turn pocket and a westbound left turn

pocket accessing the project, these are adequate to safely accommodate Project traffic without

hindering existing traffic'

The secondary (easternldriveway is restricted to right-in-right-out movements and is anticipated

to only have fewer than ten eastbound right-turns into the Project during either the AM or PM

peak hours. No turn pockets are necessary. The eastern driveway should be channelized to restrict

left turns from entering or existing the Project via the eastern driveway. Such channelization may

be accomplished by either a triangular island located within the driveway, or by extending the

raised median at the East Natoma St/Cimmaron Cir intersection west-word across the eastern

Project drivewaY.

Finding: Driveway geometry has been determined to be adequate, leftturns atthe eastern Project

driveway should be restricted through the use of channelization.

5l f f<Een w\,vwtkeartnc.corn

32

Page 953

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTranspo rtation lmpact StudY

6.5 Fire Lane and lnternal Geometry

The project proposes two access points connected by a fire lane which circles the back of the

proposed apartments. All internal radii have at least a 25' inner radius and 50'outer radius per

City requirements.

6.6 Accident HistorY
potential geometric constraints and safety issues were evaluated, including driveway spacing,

sight triangles, and Statewide lntegrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) collision data.

Driveway spacing, throat depth, and corner sight distance are all adequate. ln the last five years,

there have been three accidents proximate to the Project site including:

r One eastbound rear-end collection at the existing traffic light,

r Two driving under the influence (DUl) accidents {one a sideswipe, and the other a single

vehicle overturn.)

These are not accident varieties that would be anticipated to be worsened by the Project, and the

project does not require any project specific traffic safety treatments'

5| f KEAR w\rywrke.:rtrriccr:'

33

Page 954

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

(This page intentionally left blank)

5l IKEAR

34

Page 955

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

Californiaion lmpact Stu

7. FINDINGS, MITIGATION, AND RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS

Finding 1 (Trip Generation): The Project is anticipated to generate 441 daily vehicle trips including

39 AM peak-hour vehicle trips, and 41 PM peak-hour vehicle trips. Fewer than 50 peak-hour

project trips are projected to pass through any intersection.

Finding 2 (Level-of-service|: All study intersections are anticipated to operate at level-of-service

B or better under all study scenarios. The Project is not projected to create new deficiencies or

worsen existing traffic level-of-service, pursuant to General Plan Policy M4.1.3. lmpacts to level-

of-service are considered less than significant'

Finding 3 (Vehicle Miles Traveledl: Per capita Proiect VMT is projected to be at least 15% less

than regional per capita VMT. Project VMT impacts are considered less than significant.

Finding 4 (parkingf: The proposed parking supply of 136 spaces (1.00 spaces per unit). The Project

was found to be adequately parked with either parking ratio.

Finding 5 (Minimum Required Throat Depth): The standards for drlveway throat depths are met.

Flnding 6 (Emergency Vehicle Accessf : Emergency vehicle access is adequate.

Finding 7 {pedestrian and Bicycle): The Project does not result in impacts to pedestrian and

bicycle facilities. lmpacts to pedestrian and bicycle facilities are considered less than significant.

Finding 8 {Transit): The Project does not result in impacts to transit facilities. lmpacts to transit

facilities are considered less than significant.

Finding 9 (Driveway Geometry): Proposed geometry for access to East Natoma St is adequate.

Either a raised median or right-turn channelization should be used to limit the secondary (eastern)

driveway to right-in-right-out access. Note that the secondary (eastern) driveway was modeled

assuming a shared eastbound through-right turn lane, without a right turn taper or deceleration

lane, Anticipated eastbound right turning volume is less than 10 vehicles during the AM and PM

peak-hours and neither a right tapper or deceleration lane is required per City of Folsom policy'

However, the City reserves the right to require either a taper or pocket at the discretion of the

City Engineer.

Finding 10 {signal Timingt: With the addition of a fourth leg to the East Natoma StlPrison Rd

intersection, the signal timing and lane geometry was assumed to be configured as follows:

e Eastbound: An eastbound right turn pocket was assumed with L50-feet of storage and a

5o-foot taper; for a total of one left, one through, and one right turn lane.

r Westbound:Awestbound leftturn lanewith 100-foot pocket plus60-foottaperforatotal

of one left and one shared through-right lane.

e Southbound: The existing exclusive right-turn lane is assumed to be restriped as a

through-right turn lane (for a total of one left and one shared through-right)'

rtww lk€cr1'-rc.aor"rSlrnran
35

Page 956

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Natoma Senior APartments Folsom,

CaliforniaTransportation lmpact Study

o Northbound: The northbound approach is assumed to provide one left and one shared

through-right lane. The northbound through-right lane is assumed to be in a 70'turn

Pocket Plus 60'taPer'
r Timing: Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and

southbound split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 second northbound

southbound split phases and 20 second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and

62 second eastbound and westbound through phases, Crosswalks are assumed across all

legs of the intersection with flashing don't walk phases set to 22 seconds to accommodate

a 3 feet per seconding walking speed.

City staff have noted that the East Natoma St/Prison Rd intersection may be an excellent location

for protected-permissive left-turn phasing (i.e., "a flashing yellow arrow" to allow left turns during

the conflicting through phase). Such phasing would increase the intersection capacity and reduce

queuing for the eastbound through movement. lt is our professional judgement that novel

phasing plans, such as protected-permissive phasing, have the potentialto confuse elderly drivers

and pedestrians, resulting in increased accident rates. Because protected-permissive phasing is

not necessary to maintain the General Plan level-of-service goals we do not recommend it for the

entrance to age-restricted housing. The proiect adds a fourth leg to the existing T-intersedion,

which requires upgrading the traffic signal hardware. At the discretion of the City Engineer, those

upgrades may include video vehicle detection, connecting the signal into the City traffic

management center, and traffic signal controller upgrades to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

36

Page 957

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage-Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 5g)
January 18,2A23

A$achment 23

Parking Memoranduffl, dated Octoher 17,2A22

Page 958

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



:f,3 ll.:F,,,?,tj..11;j il w r
MEMORANDUM
Date: October 17th,2022 TG: 1.21286.00

To: Steven Banks, CitY of Folsom

From: Mike Swenson - TransPo GrouP

Jessica Lambert - TransPo GrouP

cc: Jenifer Vangerpen - Vintage housing

Subject: Vintage Folsom - Parking Study

The fo1owing memorandum summarizes the parking demand analysis that was conducted for the

propo.jO afflrdable agached senior housing development in the City 9J Folsom, CA- City staff

brolUeA the following comment in response to the initial site plan application.

. Parking: The submitted site plan indicates that I % on-site parking spaces

are proposed for the 136-unit senior affordable living community (l :l
paiking ratio). The Folsom Municipal code does not include any specific

parking requirements with regard to senior affordable apartment

communities. As a result a justification for the proposed parking ratio is

requested (similar projects?). As part of the parking analysis, please

provide information on the totalnumber of employees on the prciect

site at any one time. Also, will employees have designated parking

spaces? Projectspecific parking standards for this development can be

accommodated throug h the Planned Development Permit'

Project DescriPtion
The proposed project is located in Folsom, CA and would include development of up to 136

aforiable attalnea senior housing units with up 136 on-sile parking s'talls. The project is

trofiing to provide 98 1-bedrooir units and 38 2-bedroom units and would employ 3.5 fulltime

employees.

Parking Requirements
The Folsom Municipal Code does not include any specific parking requirements with regard to

senior affordable apartment communities. As noted in the City comments, parking requirements

aie established through the Planned Development Permit process. The purpose of the following

"nllyii" 
ir to establis-h a parking supply for the proposed prorect based on similar projects and

demind rates published in the ITE Parking Generation Manual'

previous proposed senior adult attached housing developments in Folsom have proposed similar

parkint tdtioi to the current proposal. T3bl9 1 p.rovides a summary of parking ratios for similar

attacnid senior housing developments in the City'

12131 113th Avenue NE, Suite 203, Kirkland, wA 98034 | 425,821.3665 I transpot.ltt 'i ;i '.com

Page 959

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Table'l Historic Gity of Folsom Senlor Attached Housing Parklng Ratios

Proroct Namo Number ol Units Total Parklng Spaces
Parklng Ratlo Supply

(spacesrunit)

Scholar Way Senior Housing

Avenida Folsom Senior Living

Revel Folsom

110

154

166

115

168

135

1.05 spaces/unit

1.09 spaces/unit

0.8'l spaces/unit

As shown in Table 1, while not specifically affordable housing units, lhe parking ratios range

between 0.gl and ,1.09 spaces per unit. The proposed project is within the range of similar

projects in the area.

Parking Demand Forecasts
Data was collected and submitted as part of previous applications in the City' Figure 1 - .

summarizes the data that was submitied as part ollhe Parking Suruey Evaluation Revel Folsom

Senior Living Community, Ubora Excellence, April 27 , 20181'

Trblc l.l S unrtury

Feclllg Nrnr lcdo Tygcr
Na of
Uoitr

Totrl # ol
Prrklng
Strllr

Prrkd
Crr

Obrcrrcd

Prrling Strlt
to tirlt Rrrlo

{Strllr/tJnlt)

PrrkcdCrn to

Unllr R.do
(C.r'/thlt)

,4,lrium Carmichael 11. t5l ?6 49 0.50 : I 0.32 : I

Creelsidc 0aks Folsom IL 109 69 4n 0.63 : I 4!4 : I

Pa* Folsom Folsorn L 90 8l z7 0.92 ; I 0.30 : I

0.39 : I
Canpus Conrrpns Sacmtl*nlo IL t26 64 49 0.51 ; I

lVindurg Conrmnu Cgrrrichacl IL 102 ?8 5t 0.?6 : I 0.50 : I

l.ll Domdo Estatcs l:l Dorado Hilk IL ll0 E5 7l 0.65 : t 0.55 . I

Itrrtl Polrom Folrom IL r66 r35 0.* I

' lndepcndant Uving(tL)

Figure 1 On-Slle Parking Summary

As shown in Figure 1, the six observed facilities had parking demand ratios less than 0.60 vehicles

per dwelling unit.

Additionally, peak parking demand for the proposed proiect was evaluated based on parking rates

p;id;til ihe tTE parki-ng Generation Uqlu{ (Sth Edition) for the Senior Adult Housing -
Attached use. The results are shown in Table 2'

Table 2. Parkinq Demand - ITE

Elemoni
Recidentlal

Unlts
Perk Parking
Demand Ratel

Peak Parfting
Demend

Propored
Parklng Supply

Ercers
Parking Stalls

Vintage Affordable 136 0.61 Per dwelling unit 83 136 +53
Senior

1.
2.

ITE
ITE LU#252, SeniorAdull Housing

sth Edirion ev€rage tala.
- Alteched

1 pa*ing Swvey Evaluation Revet Folsom Senior Living Community, Ubora Excellence, Aptil 27' 2018

2r.,;t
Hi

Page 960

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



As shown in Table 2, the ITE average parking demand rate of 0.61 stalls per units results in an

anticipated peak parking demand oi83 vehicles and could be accommodated in the proposed

Juppfy ot tiO staits with-a surplus of approximately 53 stalls. The ITE d_emand rate is also

cohbiitent with the rate observed as part of the Revel Folsom Parking Study. Table 2

demonstrates that there is adequate parking for the proposed senior housing project considering

ne parking demand rates. Additionally, affordable housing developments typically result in lower

pa*ing de-mand rates than market ratl developments; therefore, the resulting analysis should be

considered conservative.

Summary/Justification
The proposed project would develop 138 affordable attached senior housing units with up. 136 on-

rit" iaiiing stdl6. rne resulting pait<ing demand raiio of 1:1 stalls per unit is consistent with

previouslyipproved developm-ents in lhe area. Additionally, as identified in this analysis, the

propo""O p.ject is projected to have adequate parking supply to accommodate the peak parking

demand.

37f-

Page 961

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2423

Attachment 24

Parking Case $tudy, dated January 3,2023

Page 962

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS

PARKING DEMAND CASE STUDY ANALYSIS

January 3,2423

Vintage Housing has requested their property management company, FPI Management, to perform case

study of real time review of parking demand at seven existing Vintage owned Senior Apartment

Communities that are similarly located in suburban settings. The seven Senior properties/projects are as

follows:

1. Vintage at Bouquet Canyon; Santa Clarita, CA

264 Units & 181 Parking Spaces (0.69 Spaces per Unit)

1-bedroom = 182 & 2-bedroom = 82; Total Bedroom = 346 (0.52 spaces per Bedroom)

2. Vintage atThe Crossings; Reno, NV

230 Units & 175 Parking Spaces (0.76 Spaces per Unit)

1-bedroom = 140 & 2-bedroom = 90; Total Bedroom = 320 (0.55 spaces per Bedroom)

3. Vintage at Sanctuary; Reno, NV

208 Units & 100 Parking Spaces (0'48 Spaces per Unit)

Studio = 3 & l-bedroom = 205i Total Bedroom = 208 (0.48 spaces per Bedroom)

4. Vintage at Seven Hills; Reno NV

244 Units & 244 Parking Spaces (1'0 Spaces per Unit)

1-bedroom = 70 & 2-bedroom = 174; Total Bedroom = 418 (0,58 spaces per Bedroom)

5. Vintage at Bennett Valley; Santa Rosa CA

189 Units & 210 Parking Spaces (1"11Spaces per Unit)

1-bedroom = 125 & 2-bedroom = 54; Total Bedroom = 253 {0.83 spaces per Bedroom}

6. Vintage at NaPa; NaPa CA

115 Units & 52 Parking Spaces {0.54 Spaces per Unit)

1-bedroom = 109 & 2-bedroom = 5; Total Bedroom = 121 {0.51 spaces per Bedroom}

7. Seasons at Laguna; Elk Grove CA

222 Units & 158 Parking Spaces (0.71 Spaces per Unit)

l-bedroom = 150 & 2-bedroom = 72;Total Bedroom = 294 (0.54 spaces per Bedroom)

property Management (Fpl) has been managing all seven properties for many years and is acutely aware

of all management items of the seven properties listed above. Based on historical experience the peak

demand for parking typically takes place after 8 PM. Property Management (FPl) performed a parking

count on the following dates of September L9,2O22, or November L4,2022, afterthe 8 PM hour' Property

Management (Fpl) reviewed parking demand and the projects above and reported back on the following

questions:

go unused?

Attached to this letter is property Management (FPl) summary findings of Parking Demand at each of the

Senior Apartment Proiects listed above.

Based on review of the Data for each senior Apartment project vintage Housing findings are as follows:

Page 963

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



1. Vintage at Bouquet Canyon; Santa Clarita, CA (0.59 stalls per unitll}'szspaces per Bedroom)

erojeit was noted to 6ave an onsite parking supply issue, not based on parking stalls being

provided, however City code requires that 33 spaces (18%) be reserved by guests' Guest parking

,p..., at peak demand were going underutilized. FPI working with the City to allow for the use of

tire guest parking spaces forlveinight parking by residents. FPI ongoing/continual efforts of

collatorating with the City and assigning and enforcing parking rules and regulations parking is

adequate with no on-street parking.

2. Vintage at The Crossings; Reno, NV (0.76 stalls per unit//0.55 spaces per Bedroom)

Rroleit was noted to have no onsite parking supply issues. Based on counts 10-12 spaces go

unused in the peak hours. However, it was noted on street parking is allowed and up to 4

residents choose to park on the street based on the proximity of the unit to on-street parking' FPI

assigns parking and manages accordingly and FPI does not report any parking demand issues'

3. Vintage at sanctuary; Reno, NV (0.48 stalls per unit//0.48 spaces per Bedroom)

proje& was noted to be experiencing a lack of onsite parking supply resulting in resident parking

on the adjacent streets, On-Street parking is encouraged and altowed by the City in the zoning

district. Fpl does report that onsite parking is assigned, and demand is high for these parking

spaces. Through Fpl continual ongoing management and enforcement of parking, residents

parking both onsite and/or on-street meets the demand of the project' FPI did note that all units

in this project are either Studios or 1-Bedroom units'

4. Vintage at Seven Hills; Reno NV (1.0 stalls per unit/10.5S spaces per Bedroom)

Rroleit was noted to have no onsite parking supply issues. FPI assigns parking and manages

accordingly and Fpl does report during peak hours most if not all the parking stalls are utilized.

Fpl did identify this Senior Apartment Community does have a relatively high 2-bedroom unit mix

(7I%l and based on this Fpl experience the 1 to 1 parking to unit ratio works fine based on the

high 2-Bedroom count.

5. Vintage at Bennett Valley; santa Rosa CA (1.11 stalls per unit//0.83 spaces per Bedroom)

project was noted to have no resident onsite parking supply issues and during peak demand there

are several parking stalls not being utilized. FPI experience is that these routinely unused parking

stalls do become a bit of a nuisance as these parking stalls tend to attract non-operable vehicles

that are in violation of property management rules and in rare instances require towing. FPI did

note at the main entry location periodic loading and unloading is an issue that is continually

managed bY ProPertY management'

6. Vintage at Napa; Napa, CA {0.54 Spaces per Unit //0.51 spaces per Bedroom)

project was noted to be experiencing a lack of onsite parking supply. This is resulting in

residents/visitors parking on the adjacent local streets. FPI does report that onsite parking is

assigned, and demand is extremely high for these parking spaces. Through FPI continual ongoing

maiagement and enforcement of onsite parking by residents, FPI is able to manage the parking

demand of the project. Fpl did note that this project has a relatively hieh 1-Bedroom count (95%

units) and if there were more 2-Bedroom units parking would need to be restricted'

7 . Seasons at Laguna; Elk Grove, cA (0.71 Spaces per Unit llo.54 spaces per Bedroom)

project r", not"d to be experiencing a lack of onsite parking supply resulting in resident parking

on the adjacent streets. On-Street parking is currently being allowed by the city, FPI does report

Page 964

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



that onsite parking is assigned, and demand is high for these parking spaces. Through FPI

continual ongoing management and enforcement the parking of residents both onsite and on the

street meets the demand of the project. FPI did note that this property has 2 large loading areas

on both the west and east side of the and ownership/management discussions have taken place

and studies would indicate that an additional 20 onsite parking spaces could be provided,

Vintage Housing review, including assistance from Property Management (FPl), of both historical

.rprri"n.. and real time data provided for the seven Case Studies includes a relatively wide range of

oniite parking allocation range from the lower end of 0.48 stalls/unit (0.48 stalls/bedroom) to 1'11

stall/unit (g.gi stals/bedroom). ln this review it was noted that any parking analysis should consider both

the total number of units and the actual unit mix of l-Eedroom to 2-Bedrooms. ln this review the high

percentage of l-Bedrooms could support a lower demand for parking ratio and a high percentage of 2-

Bedrooms yielded a higher demand parking ratio. Furthermore, based on zoning districts the City's desire

for allowing on-street parking should be considered'

Based on both experience and data provided to determine adequate onsite parking is provided for

residents/guests/employees, doing any analysis of parking based on total number of units could be

misleadinjas parking demand for l-bedroom and 2-bedroom can vary widely. lnstead for the purpose of

this analyiis we used the number of bedrooms to analyze parking demand. Based on the Data provided

the average parking to bedroom ratio was 0.57 parkin6 spaces per unit. Vintage Housing upon review of

this data inquired with Rroperty Management (FPl) should a parking ratio of 0,60 spaces per bedroom be

provided for each of the six projects listed would this resolve any onsite parking demand issues. Property

Management {Fpl) after performing an analysis qf the potential increase in number of parking spaces for

six of the seven properties property Management (FPl) indicated that the additional parking spaces onsite

would meet the demand for residents/guest /employees.

The proposed Natoma Senior Apartments being a 135-unit Senior Residential Apartment {98 1-Bedroom

(72%l and 3g 2-Bedrooom (28%)) and providing 136 parking spaces at ration of l-spacell-unit or 0.78

ipacelbedroom provides more than the 0.50 spaces per bedroom as analyzed above. Natoma Senior

Apartment parking ratio provided of 0.78 spaceslbedroom will yield an onsite parking facility that should

exceed the demand of the proposed Senior Apartment complex to included residentslguests/employees.

Page 965

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMEI'ITS

SUMMARY PARKING DEMAND CASE STUDY AI{ALYSIS

3-Jan-23

l,o*,,o*PROPERfi

TOTAL

UNITS

TOTAL

PARKING

STALIS

PARKING/UNIT

RATIO # 1-3ED %I.BED # 2.BED % 2.BED

TOTAT

SEDROOMS

PARKING/

BEDROOM

RATIO

yintase at Bouquet Canvon lSanta Clarita, CA 264 181 0.69 182 69% a2 31% 346 0.52

Itniie!at lhe crossines lReno. NV 230 175 0.75 140 6t% 90 39'l 320 0.55

Ulntale at Sanctuaru lReno, NV 208 1m 0.48 208 100% 0 096 208 0.48

ffiorrrv 244 244 1.00 7A 29% 174 71% 414 0.s8

ylntare at Bennett Vallev lSanta Rosa CA 189 zLO 1,11 LZt 55% ffi 349r 2s3 0.E3

Ylntare at Naoa lNapa CA 115 52 0.54 109 95% 6 5% 7ZL 0.51

Seasons at Laruna lElk Grove CA 222 158 0.71 150 68To 72 32% 294 0.54

lFolsom CA 136 135 1.00 98 729l 38 287o 174 0.78

Page 966

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEM=NT
cuLfuRE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R r.4

Parking Study
Week of: September 19,2A22
Vintage at Bouquet Canyon

Santa Clarita, CA

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

o 264 total apartment homes
r 181total spaces = 0.69 ratio (stalUunit)
. lbedroom=182
r 2bedrooms=82
o 0.52 ratio {stalUbedroom}

Q: Do you have parking Problems
r Yes. Mostly due to city requiring 33 spaces for "guest parking"'

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused.
r During a recent study, management counted, most if not all spaces occupied during this

time period.

Q: Are your residents parking off site (on streets). For senior projects only

. lt doesn't appear that residents are parking on the city streets

800 tron point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH:916-357'5300'FX: 916-357-53'12

Page 967

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
cu LTU RE GROU N DED lN H.E.A.R r.q

Parking StudY
Week of: September 19,2O22

Vintage at The Crossings
Reno, NV

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

. 230 totalapartment homes

. 175 total spaces = O]6 ratio {stalUunit)
o lbedroom=140
. 2bedrooms=90
o 0.55 ratio (stalllbedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
. No issues with parking. Many of our residents do not own a car. We have many services

within walking distance of the property for their convenience'

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused.
r yes, we have open spaces. lt varies at different times, During a recent study, management

counted 10-12 available parking spaces.

Q: Are your residents parking off site (on streets). For senior projects only.

. Approximately 3-4 residents park on the street by choice. This is not required based on

frequent open Parking available.

g00 tron point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916-357-5300' FX: 916-357'5312

Page 968

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI IVANAGEMENT
CULTURE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R.T-q

Parking StudY
Week of: September 19,2022

Vintage at Sanctuary
Reno, NV

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

o 208 total apartment homes
o 100 total spaces = 0.48 ratio (stall/unit)
r Studio = 3
. lbedroom=205
. 0.48 ratio (stall/bedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
r Yes. We have many seniors with cars.

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused.
r During a recent study, management counted all parking spaces were occupied.

Q: Are your residents parking off site {on streets). For senior projects only

r Yes, residents park on the street.

800 lron point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 918-357-5300' FX: 916-357-5312

Page 969

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEN4ENT
CULTURE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R -r.q

Parking Study

Vintage at Seven Hills
Reno, NV

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

t 244 total apartment homes
t 244totalspaces = 1.0 ratio {stalUunit}
e lbedroom=70
. 2 bedroom=I74
. 0.58 ratio (stall/bedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
o No issues with parking.

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused.
o During a recent study, management counted most if not all parking spaces were occupied.

Q: Are your residents parking off site {on streets). For senior projects only

I No, residents do not park on the street.

800 lron point Road,Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916-357-5300' FX: 916-357'5312

Page 970

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
cuLTURE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R r.q

Parking Study
Week of: November 14,2O22

Vintage at Bennett ValleY
Santa Rosa, CA

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

r 189 total apartment homes
. ZLO total spaces = !.L1. ratio (stall/unit)
o tbedroom=125
r 2 bedroom =64
r 0.83 ratio (stall/bedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
r Periodic loading and unloading parking violations by the Leasing office.

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused.
r During a recent study, there are a lot of open spaces near the north side of the property.

Q: Are your residents parking off site (on streetsl. For senior projects only

I No, residents do not park on the street.

800 lron point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916'357-5300' FX: 916-357-5312

Page 971

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
cuLfuRE GROUNDED lN H.E.A.R r.q

Parking Study
Week of: November 14,2O22

Vintage at Napa
Napa, CA

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

o 115 total apartment homes
c 62 total spaces = 0.54 ratio {stalUunit}
r lbedroom=109
. 2bedrooms=5
o 0.51 ratio (stall/bedroom)

Q: Do you have parking problems
o Yes, not enough parking for the number of resident cars and caregivers.

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that
go unused.

o No, parking is alwaYs full.

Q: Are your residents parking off site {on streets)' For senior projects only.
r Yes. Parking along side street

800 lron Point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com.PH: 916-357-5300' FX: 916-357-5312

Page 972

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



FPI MANAGEMENT
CULTURE GRCUNDED lN H.E.A.R.T-q

Parking Study
Week of: November 14,2022

Seasons at Laguna
Elk Grove, CA

Q: How many apartment homes and parking spaces do you have at your property?

o 222 totalapartment homes
. 158 total spaces = O.7! ratio (stall/unit)
. lBedroom=150
r 2 Bedroom=72
r 0.54 ratio (stalUbedroom)

Q: Do you have parking Problems
r yes, not enough parking for the number of resident cars and caregivers.

e: ls your parking lot underutilized? Meaning do you have extra spots in the evening after 8 PM that

go unused,
. No, parking is alwaYs full.

Q: Are your residents parking off site {on streets). For senior projects only

. Yes. Parking along side street

800 tron point Road.Folsom, California, 95630.www.fpimgt.com'PH: 916-357'5300' FX: 916-357-5312

Page 973

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21-159)
January 18,2023

Attachment 25

lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program,

dated November, 2022 (electronic version
available for viewing at

www.folsom. ca.us/qovernme nUcommunitv-
develomenUnlanninu rvices/current -oro GGt'

info tion

Page 974

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintoge of Folsom Senior Aportments

Initiol Study/Mitigoted Negotive Declqrotion

Preparedby-

Clty of Folcom

Communlty DeveloPmenl DePodmenl
50 Notomo Slreet
Folsom, CA 95630

Wifh technicol supPorl from:

llEL|X Envlronmenlol Plonnlng, lnc.
I1 Notomo Street' Suite 155

Folsom, CA 95630

November 2022

Page 975

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



This page intentionally left blank

Page 976

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section

1.0

2.O

3.0

Page

TNTRODUCTION .............. """"1

PROJECT 8ACKGROUND................ """'"""'1

PROJECT DESCRIPTION "";""""""" """""'2

3.1 Project Location ""''"'2

3.2 Project Setting and Surrounding Land Uses """""" """""""""2

3.3 Project Characteristics...........""" """""'"""""""'2

3.3.1. Parking and Circulation..""""""""' """"""""""'3

3.3.2. Utilities........ """""""' 5

3.3.3. Sustainability Features.'..... """"""' 5

3.3.4, Trash/Recycling.""'.'...'.... """""""" 5

3.3.5. Fencing and Signage """""""""""' 5

3.3.6. Amenities and Landscaping """""""' """"""""" 5

g.4 Construction and Phasing ' """"""" 6

3.5 City Regulation of Urban Development"""""""""' """"""""' 6

3.5.1. General P1an.."..."'..'.' """"""""""" 6

3.5.2. Zoning Ordinance.... """"""""""""' 6

3.6 Other City Regulation of Urban Development"""""""""" """""""""""""' 7

7
3.6.L. com mu n ity Development Department Standard construction cond itions'

3.6.2. City of Folsom Municipal Code """""" """""""" 8

4.0 PROJECT OB.IECTIVES
.,.9

5.0 REqUIRED APPROVALS """""'9

6.0 PREVIOuS RELEVANT ENVIRONMENTALANAIYSIS"""""""' """""'10

6.1 City of Folsom General P|an """""""
6.2 Tiering """"""""""" 10

7.O ENVIRONMENTAI FACTORS POTENTIALIY AFFECTED """"""""' """"""""""""11
7.1 DETERMINATION ..,.".....". """""" 12

8.0 ENVIRONMENTAT INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST... ....""""13

I. AESTHETICS
L4

1l AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES''".''"....,... """"'"T7

III. AIR QUALITY
19

Page 977

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



lv.

V,

vt.

vll.

vill.

tx.

x.

xt.

x[.

xilt.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

XVIII

XIX.

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 27

CULTURAL RESOURCES ..'..""""""40

ENERGY .r....'.'...,'!.',,'; """"""""""' 55

GEOLOGY AND SOILS '.""""""""" 58

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISS]ONS............. .'.",.""" 63

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.,."....'"'" ,.,.,,,"",.,,,..72

HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY""..' ",.,,..,..,75

LAND USE AND P1ANN1NG...............' '.'.....'...."" 81

MTNERAL RESOURCES. .""""""""' 83

NOISE .......... """""'"' 84

PoPULATION AND HOUS|NG.....,......."... '.'.'.""' 94

puBlrc sERVlcEs..... '......"...'."...."' 96

RECREATION """"""' 99

TRANSPoRTATIoN """"""" """"100

TRTBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES. ....."..".."""""712

UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS """""""""" 117

LzI

t23

L27

XX. WILDFIRE..,..

XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

9.0

10.0

11.0

MITIGATION MONITORING AND RE PORTING PROGRAM...

tNrrAL sruDY PREPARERS..............." ""127

REFERENCES ""t28

il

Page 978

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



7

2

3

4
5

6
7

8

9
10

LIST OF FIGURES

Vicinity MaP

AerialMap
Site Plan

Architectural Rendering-View from Natoma Street North

Architectural Rendering-View from Natoma Street at Entry

Architectu ral Rendering-View f rom Bi ke Tra il West

Architectural Rendering-View from Bike Trail East

Architectural Rendering-Site Sections

Architectural RenderinS-Site Sections

Tree lmpact Plan

LIST OF TABLES

No. Title Pase

Table 1. Neighboring Land Uses."' """"""""""""""2
Table 2. Summary of Project Features...,...';"r""!!""""" """""""' 3

Table 3. city of Folsom Municipal code Regulating construction and Development '....'..."'."'.""""""""' 8

Table 4. Sacramento Valley Air Basin -- Attainment Status""""" """""""'.l"" 20

Table 5. constructiOn criteria Pollutant and Precursor Emissions """""""""'24
Table 6. Maximum Daily Operational Emissions"""""""""' """'24
Table 7: On-Site Tree Designation ..'...'..'.'" ""'""""' 35

Table 8. Tree Replacemeni Equivalency Table """' 38

Table g.Previous Studies Conducted within O'S-Mile of the APE """"""" """'48
Table 10. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within 0.5-Mile of the APE """"""" """ 50

Table 11. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within 0'5-Mile of the APE """"""""""""'""""""""' 55

Table 12. Construction Energy Summary.."' """""' 56

Table L3. Operational energy Summary.'." """""" 57

Table 14. Construction GHG Emissions....."""""" """"""""""""67
Table 15. Operational GHG Emissions ...""""""" """""""""""" 57

Table 15. city of Folsom Municipal code sections Regulating the Effects on Hydrology and water Quality

from Urban Development'...".'..,,..'.... """"""""""'77
Table 17. Peak Discharge Rates (Downstream from the Project Site)'............ """'"""""""" 79

Table 18. Noise Measuiement Results """""""""'86
Table 19. PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes """""""'87
Table 20. HVAC Gondenser Noise Data (SWL dBA)""""""' """""88
Table 21. Off-Site Traffic Noise Levels """"""""""90
Table 22. Operational HVAC Noise """"""""""""'90
Table 23. Building Exterior Noise Levels """"""""' 91

Table 24. Level-of-service criteria for signalized lntersections '...,""""""""' 101

Table 25. Level-of-service criteria for Unsignalized lntersections .......""... """""""""""" 103

Table 26. Existing 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-service '...'.."""""" 105

Table 2T.Project Trip Generation" """""""""""' 105

Table 2g. Baseline 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-service, with and without Projea ...'..""""""107

Page 979

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



A
B

c
D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

LIST OF APPENDICES

Figures
lir Quality Modeling Results and Greenhouse Gas Reduction strategy consistency checklist

Arborlst Report

Biological Resource and Wetland Evaluation

Cultural Resources Assessment

Geotechnical Engineering StudY

Preliminary Drainage and Storm Water Quality Report

Noise and Vibration Assessment

Transportation lmpact Study and Parking Fvaluation

iribal Cultural Resources Memorandum

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

tv

Page 980

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

AB

APN

AWSC

BMP

CAA

CAAQS

CARB

cBc
CCAA

CDFW

CEQA

CESA

CHa

co
COa

CNDDB

CNEL

CNPS

CRHR

cwA
dB

dBA
DBH

DTSC

EBC

EIR

EO

EPA

EPAP

EVCS

FEMA
FESA

GHG

GWh
GWP

HFC

HVAC

ISMND
ITE

LOS

LSAA

MBTA
MHD
MLD

Assembly Bill

Assessors Parcel Number

All-Way StoP Control
Best Management Practices

Clean Air Act
California Ambient Air Quality Standards

California Air ReSources Control Board

Ca lifornia Building Code

California Clean Air Act

California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Environmental Quatity Act

California Endangered Species Act

Methane
Carbon Monoxide
Carbon Dioxide

California Natural Diversity Database

Community Noise Equivalent Level

California Native Plant SocietY

California Register of Historic Resources

Clean Water Act

Decibels
A-weighted Decibel

Diameter at Breast Height

Department of Toxic Substances Control

East BidwellCorridor
Environmental lmPact RePort

Executive Order
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Existing plus APProved Project

Electric vehicle charging station

Federal Emergency Management Agency

Federal Endangered SPecies Act

G reenhouse Gas Emissions

Gigawatt hours
Global Warming Potential

Hydrofluorocarbons
Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning

lnitial study/Mitigated Negative Declaration

lnstitute of Transportation Engineers

Level of Service

Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement

Migratory Bird Treaty Act

Multi-FamilY High Density

Most Likely Descendent

Page 981

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



MMRP
MPH

MTP
NAAQS

NAHC

NCrC

NOX

NPDES

NRCS

NRHP

NrO

OHP

OPR

OSHA

Oa

PACE

PD

PFC

PG&E

PM
PRC

ROG

RWQCB

SB

scs
sf
SFs

slP
SMAQMD
SMUD
ssc
sso
sTc
SWITRS

SWPPP

SWRCB

SVAB

TCR

Tt5

TNM
TWSC

UAIC

USACE

USFWS

USGS

VMT
WL

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

Miles per Hour
Metropolita n Transportation Pla n

National Ambient Air Quality Standards

Native American Heritage Commission

North Central lnformation Center

Nitrogen Oxides

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System

Natural Resources Conservation Service

National Register of Historic Places

Nitrous Oxide

Office of Historic Preservation

Governo/s Office of Planning and Research

Occu pationa I Safety a nd Hea lth Administratlon

Ozone
Property Assessed Clean EnergY

Planned Development
Perfluorocarbons
Pacific Gas & Electric
Particulate Matter
Public Resources Code

Reactive Organic Gases

Regional Water Quality Control Board

senate Bill

Sustainable Communities Strategy

Square foot/feet
Sulfur Hexafluoride
State lmplementation Plan

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District

Sacramento Municipal Utllities District

Species of Special Concern

Sanitary Sewer Overflows

Sound Transm ission Class

Statewide lntegrated Traffic Records System

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

State Water Resources Control Board

Sacramento ValleY Air Basin

Tribal Cultural Resources

Transportation lmPact StudY

Traffic Noise Model
Two-Way StoP Control

United Auburn lndian CommunitY

U.S. ArmY CorPs of Engineers

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

U.S. Geological SurveY

Vehicle Miles Traveled

Watch List

vt

Page 982

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Vintage at Folsom, Lp (Applicant) proposes to develop the Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments Project

(proposed project), which includes construction and operation of a 136-unit, affordable senior (i.e', age-

restricted) rental housing community on an estimated 4.86-acre site. The site is located at 103 East

Natoma Street, approximately 350-feet (ft) northeast of the intersection of Fargo way and Natoma

Street in the City of Folsom.

This lnitial Study addresses the proposed project and whether it may cause significant effects on the

environment. These potential environmental effects are further evaluated to determine whether they

were examined in the Folsom General plan 2035 Environmental lmpact Report (ElR; 2018). ln particular,

consistent with public Resources Code {pRC} 921083.3, this lnitial Study focuses on any effects on the

environment which are specific to the proposed project, or to the parcels on which the project would be

located, which were not analyzed as potentially significant effects in the General Plan ElR, or for which

substantial new information shows that identified effects would be more significant than described in

the previous ElRs. For additional information regarding the relationship between the proposed project

and the previous ElRs, see Section 6 of this lnitial Study'

The lnitial Study is also intended to assess whether any environmental effects of the project are

susceptible to substantial reduction or avoidance by the choice of specific revisions in the project, by the

impoiition of conditions, or by other means I515152(bx2)l of the California Environmental Quality Act

{ciaA) Guidelines. lf such revisions, conditions, or other means are identified, they will be identified as

mitigation measures.

This tnitial Study relies on CEQA Guidelines $15064 and 15064.4 in its determination of the significance

of environmental effects. According to 515064, the finding as to whether a project may have one or

more significant effects shall be based on substantial evidence in the record, and that controversy alone,

withouisubstantial evidence of a significant effect, does not triS8er the need for an ElR.

2.A PROJECT BACKGROUND

The proposed proje6 is comprised of Assessor Parcel Number (APN)071-0320-042 in Sacramento

County, California. The following proJect specific technical reports or surveys were used in preparation

of this lnitialstudy and are incorporated by reference:

r Biological Resources and Wetland Evaluation Letter Report by HELIX (October 2020)'

r Cultural Resources Assessment by HELIX (March 2022)'

r Geotechnical Engineering Study by Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc' {December 2O2Ll.

e Traffic lmpact Study by T. Kear Transportation Planning & Management, lnc' {February 2022)'

o Arborist lnventory Letter Report by HELIX {March 2022)'

r Air euality Assessment, Greenhouse Gas Emissions Analysis by HELIX (April2O22l,

r Noise lmpact Analysis by HELIX (May 2022)'

r Tribal Consultation Record for Compliance with Assembly Bill 52 and CEQA, prepared by ECORP

Consulting, lnc. (June 2022).

r preliminary Drainage and Storm Water Quality Report by TSD Engineering, lnc. (August 2022)'

1

Page 983

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

3.0 PNOJECI DESCRIPTION

3.1 Proiecl Locqlion

The project site is located at 103 East Natoma Street, approximately 350-ft northeast of the intersection

of Fargo Way and Natoma Street, in the City of Folsom (City) in Sacramento County, California. The

project site is approximately 4.86-acres and is identified as Assessor's Parcel Number (APN)071-0320-

042. The project site frontage is along East Natoma Street. The site is located within Rios de los

Americanos Land Grant (Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, United States Geological Survey 7.5-minute

"Folsom euadrangle"). Refer to Figure 1 for the Vicinity Map, Figure 2 for the Aerial Map, and Figure 3

for the Site plan (Note: Allfigures are located in Appendix A). The property is owned by Vintage at

Folsom, LP.

3.2 Project Setllng ond Surrounding lond Uses

The triangle shaped project site is currently vacant and undeveloped. The project site is considered to

be blue oak woodland, surrounded by urban development. Historic aerial imagery shows that the

project site has changed little since 1952 and habitat typeslvegetation communities in the project site

include blue oak woodland and ephemeral and intermittent drainages. The site is moderately disturbed'

There is evidence of recreational use by bicycles and the site has a constructed dirt track with several

constructed dirt ramps and jumps for bicycles, presumably constructed by children from the adjacent

residential neighborhood. lt also has debris piles and other evidence of use by transients' The terrain in

the project site and vicinity is locally flat. The elevation on the project site ranges from 350- to 370-ft

above mean sea level (amsl| and has low to moderate slope from east to west'

Folsom State Prison is located immediately north of the site, along Prison Road. East of the project site is

single family homes along Cimmaron Circle, and south of the project site is Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E)

powerlines, single-family homes, and duplexes. West of the project, along Fargo Way, is office space and

across from Fargo way is the Folsom City Police Department.

Neighboring land uses are summarized in Table 1.

Table 1. Land Uses

Dlrcctlon land Use

North Prison Folsom State Prison

East Cimmaron Homes

South PG&E si Fa

West Fa , Office Folsom Police rtment

3.3 Project Choroclerislics

The proposed project is a 135-unit, affordable senior (i.e., age-restricted) rental housing community

with a mix of one- and two-bedroom units in a three-story building. All 136-units would be Age

Restricted Senior {+60 age restricted} Affordable Apartment as defined by the State and City

requirements with 14 of the units offered to seniors with incomes at or below 30 percent of area

median income {AMl} and 122-units would be available to seniors with incomes at or below 60 percent

2

Page 984

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

of AMl. The project site would include surfaced driveways and parking spots surrounding the proposed

building to accommodate 136 parking stalls. The site would also include 28 bicycle parking spaces,

landscaping, and indoor and outdoor amenities. Table 2 provides a summary of all pervious and

impervious project features on the 4.86-acre site.

Table 2. Summary of Proiect Features

The proposed three-story apartment building would include 98 one-bedroom units and 38 two-bedroorn

units. Residential units would range from approximately 552- to 748-square feet (sf) each. Each unit

would be designed with a full kitchen, living space, kitchen/dining, bathroom, laundry, and a balcony. ln-

unit amenities would include dishwashers, garbage disposals, refrigerators, in-unit laundry, patios,

and/or decks. Furthermore, 15 percent of the units would be set aside for persons with disabilities'

Apartment units are planned on each of the three levels of the building and would be accessible from

the hallway corridors. Entrances to the building would be located on each side of the irregularly shaped

building. Maximum projected building height would be less than 34-ft with architectural elements

ranging from 40-ft, 5-inches to up to 42-ft, 6-inches from grade'

Community amenities would include an estimated 2,500-sf community center on the ground floor, as

well as a game room, a library room, exercise room and a craft room. A leasing office, electrical room,

maintenance room, and trash room would also be located on the ground floor. Additional amenities on

the project site would include outdoor seating and dining areas, perimeter walkways, a bocce ball court,

bike racks, picnictables with umbrellas, outdoor barbeques/ kitchens, and 5-ft benches, Landscaped

areas with various trees and shrubs would surround the parking area and the proposed building.

3.3.1. Porking ond Circulqlion

primary vehicle access to the site would be from a proposed main access driveway (35-ft) on East

Natoma Street, across from Prison Road. The main entrance would modify the existing three-way

signalization intersection at East Natoma Street and Prison Road, into a four-way signalized intersection.

An additional right only ingress/egress driveway (27-ft) would be located on the northeastern corner of

3

Proie* Feature fr;reagel Percemageof Tdal Slte

Landscape (Pervious Area) 2.318(47.69%l

Bioretention (Pervious Area) 0.045 (o.92oAl

Parking Lot {lmPervious Area) t.289126.520/0l

Hardscape ( lmpervious Area) o.3s7 (7.34%|

Building {lmpervious Area) 0.8s2 (17.s3%)

Total 4.861{100%}

Page 985

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

the project site, with no traffic signal control. The main access driveway (35-ft) would wrap around the

proposed building and connect with the additional egress/ingress point. The circulation driveway would

range from 27- to 36-ft wide with parking spaces on either side. Turnarounds for emergency vehicle

access would have an inner turning radius of 25-ft and an outer turning radius of 50-ft.

Oak parkway Trail, a Class I Bikeway, surrounds the project site. This biking trail would enter the

southwestern corner of the site boundary. Within the site boundary, the Oak Parkway Trail would be

realigned and connected to a concrete sidewalk proposed for the proiect. The conoete sidewalk would

extend around the southern parking area and connect to the existing oak Parkway Trail section located

south of the site borlndary. The realignment would add a pedestrian connection to the existing Oak

parkway Trail. Additional proposed concrete sidewalks would be located at the frontage of the projecl

site and would provide a sidewalk extension to Cimmaron Circle and would connect to internal

sidewalks proposed around the building. These concrete sidewalks would provide walking paths for

residents.

The proposed project would include 1.36 parking spaces in asphalt paved areas surrounding the

proposed building. The parking supply includes 92 standard spaces (including 37 carport parking spaces),

10 compact parking stalls, 16 standard accessible stalls, four van accessible stalls, 12 standard electric

vehicle charging station (EVCS) stalls, and two loading EVCS stalls. The electric vehicle charging spaces

would be approximately 10.3 percent of the total parking spaces, which meets the electric vehicle

charging station requirement outlined by CalGreen (Title 24, Part 11). Proposed parking is provided at a

ratio of spaces Per unit of 1:1'

The total parking area square feet excluding the carport areas would be 52,525-sf. The Folsom Municipal

Code {FMC, Section Li.57 c (3} Planters, Landscaping} states that tree shall be interspersed through the

parking area so that in 15 years, 40 precent of the parking lot will be in shade at high noon. ln addition,

the new California Green Code requires a project's parking lot area needs to provide 50 percent shade

coverage within 15 years. Within the project site, the total shaded area would be 25,759-sf, which is

approximately 50.9 percent of the total parking lot square footage, exceeding the minimum shade

requirements of the Folsom Municipal code and the california Green code'

The applicant proposes a parking supply of 135 spaces to correspond tothe development being age-

restricted to seniors over 60 years of age and occupied with a population that typically has fewer drivers

and a lower rate of vehicle ownership compared to conventional (family) multi-family communities. The

reduced parking demand of age-restricted communities is also the result of reduced household sizes

occupied by residents who no longer drive vehicles or who less frequently drive vehicles. Additionally,

The iolsom Municipal Code does not address specific parking standards for senior residential uses.

Formerly approved senior apartments project (for both Market Rate and Affordable) have varied from

0.81 parking stalls per unit to 1.09 parking stalls per unit'

Additionally, the Folsom Municipal Code requires one bicycle parking space for every five residential

units. with 136 residential units, the project requires 27 bicycle parking spaces. Bike racks would

accommodate 28 bicycle parking spaces on the eastern side of the project site, east of the proposed

building.

4

Page 986

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

3.3.2. Ulilitles

proposed utilities include domestic water, sewer utilities, fire service line and fire water main, primary

andsecondary electricity lines, storm drain line, telephone/cable line, and gas line. Electrical,

telephonelcaLle, and gas lines would be connected to existing facilities within the same vicinity of the

project site, on East Natoma Street. All on site sewer utilities and water utilities (fire, domestic, and

iniiation) are to be privately owned, operated, maintained, All public water within the site boundary

*outa U" constructed in accordance with the City of Folsom water design standards and water

construction details as a condition of approval. On-site water supply would be connected to the Zone 3

Cimmaron pressure zone located off-site. On-site sewer utilities would connect with a publicly owned

sewer collection system off-site. Proposed fire hydrants are located throughout the project site. Along

the frontage of the site, a 12.5-ft public utility easement would be installed for overhead or

undergrou nd facilities.

3.3.3. SustqlnqbilitY Feolures

The project design incorporates sustainable features consistent with General Plan Goal LU 9'1 and the

california Green Building standards code (calGreen). The project would exceed the 2019 california

Building Energy Efficieniy Standards (Title 24, Part 5) by 15 percent or more' The project provides 10

percenielectric vehicle parking spaces (14), which is consistent with CalGreen standards. Cool paving

features would be incorporated in the project site such as shade trees (39.3 percent), sidewalks/patios

(24.9 percent), and parking stal/trash apron (4 percent), for a total reduction of 68'2 percent' This

exceeds the minimum 50 percent reduction of nonroof heat islands on the project site, A cool roof

would be installed per CalGreen/California Building Code (CBC) and a solar array is proposed for the

asym metrical, gabled rooftoPs.

3.3.4. Trosh/Recycling

A city standard trash enclosure would be enclosed with a trellis cover. The trash enclosure would have

refused bins for recyclables, organics, and general waste. The trash enclosure would be located in the

southeastern aorn"1 of the project site. Additionally, a trash room would be located on the ground floor

of the proposed apanment building'

3.3.5. Fencing ond Signoge

An g-ft masonry wall is proposed on the eastern side of the project site, behind the single-family

residences. The masonry wall would tie into an existing wood fence that runs along the eastern

boundary line. A 6-ft-tall monument sign would be placed adjacent to the main access driveway, along

East Natoma Street.

3.3.6. Amenitles ond Lqndscqplng

Community amenities would include an estimated 2,500-sf community center on the ground floor, as

well as a game room, a library room, exercise room and a craft room. Additional amenities on the

project site would include outdoor seating and dining areas, perimeter walkways, a bocce ball court,

bike racks, picnic tables w1h umbrellas, outdoor barbeques/ kitchens, and 6-ft benches. The proiect is

5

Page 987

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senlor APartments ISMND

located just over one mile to East Bidwell and the Historic Folsom District which offers a variety of

shopping centers, mercantile services, restaurants, state parks, and l-ight Rail Transit Access'

Landscaping would be designed to complement the buildings and make a positive contribution to the

overall aesthetic of the site. The project would preserve key open space areas, including existing oak

Groves and portions of perennial creeks, through an interactive landscape design process' Within the

property site, 30- to 35-ft diameter shade trees, 25-ft diameter shade trees, accent trees, screen shrubs,

foundation shrubs, accent shrubs, groundcovers, and bio infiltration species would be planted' Under

existing conditions, the runoff from residential properties located east of the property flows onto the

property site. This offsite runoff would be intercepted by proposed landscaped swales within 15-ft

landscape planters along the eastern boundary of the property' This runoff would then be redirected

towards East Natoma Street and would enter the public storm drain system. Additionally, eight bio-

retention planters are proposed throughout the project site to manage stormwater runoff'

3.4 Conslruction ond Phosing

The project would be graded and constructed in a single phase. Construction would likely begin in spring

2023 and would take approximately 18 months to complete'

3.5 City Regulolion of Urbon Developmenl

3.5.1. Generol Plon

The site is designated as professional office (Po) in the Folsom 2035 General Plan. The Po designation

provides for low-intensity business and professional offices that are compatible with higher-intensity

residential uses.

3.5.2. Zoning Ordinonce

The zoning designation of the site is in the Business and Professional {BP} District. According to Section

17.22.3}of the Folsom Municipalcode, the BP zoning district generally permits office building and

related uses such as banks, doctor's offices, general business office, and general uses' The purpose ofa

Bp zoning district is to provide an area for business and professional office and compatible related uses.

This zoning district is intended to promote a harmonious development of business and professional

office areas with adjacent commercial or residential development. However, Senior citizens (Age 55+)

residential complexes are considered a permitted land use within the BP zoning district upon approval of

a Conditional Use permit by the Planning Commission according to FMC Section 77.22'03OEl'

Entplement requests for this project include a Planned Development Permit (PD) Permit and a

Conditional use permit. The purpose of the pD Permit is to allow for greater flexibility in the design of

integrated developments than otherwise possible through strict application of land use regulations.

with the pD permit, the project's site plan, elevations, and overall project design would be evaluated,

and specific development standards would be defined. A Conditional Use Permit is required to allow for

development of senior apartments on the project site based on the BP PD zoning designation.

Page 988

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

3.6 Olher Clty Regulollon of Urbqn Developmenl

3.6.1. Community Development Deporlment Stondord Conslructlon Condilions

The City's standard construction requirements are set forth in the City of Folsom, Community

Development Standard Construction Specifications updated in July 2020. A summary of these

requirements is set forth below and incorporated by reference into the project description. Copies of

these documents may be reviewed at the City of Folsom, Community Development Department, 50 East

Natoma Street, Folsom, California 95630.

The Department's standard construction specifications are required to be adhered to by any contractor

constructing a public or private project within the City.

lJse of Pesticiles - Requires contractors to store, use, and apply a wide range of chemicals consistent

with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations.

Air pollution Contro!- Requires compliance with all Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management

District (SMAQMD) and City air pollution regulations.

Water Pollution - Requires compliance with City water pollution regulations, including National

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) provisions.

Noise Control - Requires that all construction work comply with the Folsom Noise Ordinance (discussed

further below), and that all construction vehicles be equipped with a muffler to control sound levels.

Naturally Occurring Asbestos - Requires compliance with aIISMAQMD and City air pollution regulations,

including preparation and implementation of an Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan consistent with the

requirements of Section 93105 of the State Government Code.

Weekend, Holiday, and Night Work -Prohibits construction work during evening hours, or on Sunday or

holidays, to reduce noise and other construction nuisance effects,

public Canvenience - Regulates traffic through the work area, operations of existing traffic signals,

roadway cuts for pipelines and cable installation, effects to adjacent property owners, and notification

of adjacent property owners and businesses.

pubtic Sofety and Troffic Control - Regulates signage and other traffic safety devices through work zones'

Existing utitities - Regulates the relocation and protection of utilities.

preservation of Property - Requires preservation of'trees and shrubbery and prohibits adverse effects to

adjacent propefi and fixtures'

Culturol Resources - Requires that contractors stop work upon the discovery of unknown cultural or

historic resources, and that an archaeologist be retained to evaluate the significance of the resource and

to establish mitigation requirements, if necessary'

protection of Existing ?ees - Specifies measures necessary to protect both ornamental and native oak

trees.

7

Page 989

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Clearing and Grubbing - Specifies protection standards for signs, mailboxes, underground structures,

drainage facilities, sprinklers and lights, trees and shrubbery, and fencing. Also requires the preparation

of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to control erosion and siltation of receiving waters'

Reseeding - Specifies seed mixes and methods for reseeding of graded areas.

3.6.2. Clty of Folsom MuniclpolCode

The City regulates many aspects of construction and development through requirements and ordinances

established in the Folsom Municipal Code. These requirements are summarized in Table 3, and hereby

incorporated by reference into the Project Description as though fully set forth herein. Copies of these

documents may be reviewed at the City of Folsom, Office of the City Clerk, 50 Natoma Street; Folsom,

California 95530.

Table 3. City of Folsom MunicipalCode Regulatint Construction and Development

Code
Sectlon

Effuct of Code

Establishes interior and exterior noise standards that may not be

exceeded within structures, including residences; establishes

time periods for construction operations.
8.42

8.70

9.34

9.3s

L2.L6

L3.26

74.19

Establishes conditions and requirements for the discharge of
urban pollutants and sediments to the storm-drainage system;

requires preparation and implementation of Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plans.

Defines hazardous materials; requires filing of a Hazardous

Material Disclosure Form by businesses that manufacture, use,

or store such materials.

Establishes standards for the construction and monitoring of
facilities used for the underground storage of hazardous

substances, and establishes a procedure for issuance of permits

for the use of these facilities,

Regulates the cutting or modification of trees, including oaks

and specified other trees; requires a Tree Permit prior to cutting

or modification; establishes mitigation requirements for cut or
damaged trees.

Prohibits the wasteful use of water; establishes sustainable

landscape requirements; defines water use restrictions'

Adopts the California Energy Code, 2019 Edition, published as

Part 6, Fitle24, C.C,R. to require energy efficiency standards for
structures.

Code Name

Noise Control

Stormwater
Management and

Discharge Control

Hazardous
Materials
Disclosure

Underground
Storage of
Hazardous

Substances

Tree Preservation

Water
Conservation

Energy Code

8

Page 990

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments IsMND

L4.20

t4.29

L4.32

Green Building
Standards Code

Adopts the California Green Building Standards Code (CalGreen

Code), 2019 Edition, excluding Appendix Chapters 44, A5, and

A5.1 published as Part 11, Title 24, C.C.R. to promote and

require the use of building concepts having a reduced negative

impact or positive environmental impact and encouraging

sustainable construction practices'

Requires a grading permit prior to the initiation of any grading,

excavation, fill or dredging; establishes standards, conditions,

and requirements for grading, erosion control, stormwater

drainage, and revegetation'

Restricts or prohibits uses that cause water or erosion hazards,

or that result in damaging increases in erosion or in flood

heights; requires that uses vulnerable to floods be protected

against flood damage; controls the modification of floodways;

regulates activities that may increase flood damage or that

could divert floodwaters.

4.0 PROJECT OBJECTIVES

The project objective is to provide affordable senior rental housing consistent with the 2035 General

plan, including the Housing Element, which identifies guiding principles, goals, and policies for housing

choices for all generations.

5.0 REQUIRED APPROVALS

A listing and brief description of the regulatory permits and approvals required to implement the

proposed project are provided below. This lnitial study is intended to address the environmental

irpr.tr associated with all of the following decision action and approval:

r Planned Development Permit (PD Permit);

r Conditional Use Permit (CUP); and,

r Density Bonus.

The City of Folsom has the following discretionary powers related to the proposed project:

Adoption of the lnitialstudy, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring and

Reporting program: The City of Folsom Planning Commission will act as the lead agency as

deiined by the California Environmental Quality Act (cEaA) and will have authority to determine

if the lnitial Study is adequate under CEQA'

Approval of project: The City of Folsom Planning Commission will consider approval of the

prolect,and the entitlements described above'

9

Grading Code

Flood Damage
Prevention

a

Page 991

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

6.0 PREVIOUS RELEVANT ENVIRONMENTAL ANATYSIS

6.I Clty of Folsom Generol Plqn

The program EIR for the City of Folsom General Plan (2018) provides relevant policy guidance for this

environmental analysis. The EIR evaluated the environmental impacts that could result from

implementation of the City of Folsom 2035 General Plan (2035 General Plan) {City of Folsom 2018a}' The

program EIR is intended to provide information to the public and to decision makers regarding the

potential effects of adoption and implementation of the 2035 General Plan, which consists of a

comprehensive update of Folsom's current General Plan. The 2035 General Plan consists of a policy

document, including Land Use and Circulation Diagrams'

6.2 Tlering

.,Tiering,, refers to the relationship between a program-level EIR (where long-range programmatic

cumulative impacts are the focus of the environmental analysis) and subsequent environmental

analyses such as the subject document, which focus primarily on issues unique to a smaller project

within the larger program or plan. Through tiering a subsequent environmental analysis can incorporate,

by reference, discussion that summarizes general environmental data found in the program EIR that

establishes cumulative impacts and mitigation measures, the planning context, and/or the regulatory

background. These broad-based issues need not be reevaluated subsequently, having been previously

identlfied and evaluated at the program staBe'

Tiering focuses the environmental review on the proiect-specific significant effects that were not

examined in the prior environmental review, or that are susceptible to substantial reduction or

avoidance by specific revisions in the project, by the imposition of conditions or by other means. Section

21093(b) of the public Resources code requires the tiering of environmental review whenever feasible,

as determined bY the Lead AgencY'

ln the case of the proposed project, this lnitial Study tiers from the EIR for the Broadstone Unit No' 3

Specific plan, and in" e tn for the City of Folsom General Plan. The Folsom General Plan, as amended, is a

project that is related to the proposed project and, pursuant to 915152(a) ofthe CEQA Guidelines,

tiering of environmental documents is appropriate. CEQA Guidelines $15152(g) specifically provides

that:

The above mentioned ElRs can be reviewed at the following location:

City of Folsom

Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street (2nd Floor)

Folsom, CA 95530

Contact: Mr. Steve Banks, Principal Planner

(91.6)461-6207

10

Page 992

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

7.0 ENVIRONMENTATFACTORSPOTENTIALTY
AFFECTED

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at

least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant lmpact" or "Le!s than Significant with Mitigation

lncorporated" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

fl Aesthetics fl Agriculture and Forestry

Resources

fl nir Quality

I uiologicalResources I cuhural Resources I Energy

I eeoUgy and Soils I Greenhouse Gas Emissions fl gazards and Hazardous

Materials

fl Hydrology and water
QualitY

D tand Use and Planning fI Mineral Resources

I ruoit" I Population and Housing fl Public Services

I Recreation I rransportation I rriu.t cultural Resources

D Utilities and Service

Systems

n wildfire I Mandatory Findings of
Significance

11

Page 993

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VlntaEe at Folsom Senlor Apartments ISMND

7.1 DETERMINATION ,

Or{ tfre basis of this initialevaluation:

Name

Drrv

I flnd that the proposed project COULD NOT have a signiflcant effect on the environmenL and a

will be oreoared.NEGATIVE DECIARATION

lfind that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment,

there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions ln the project have been made

by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECIARATION will be

lfind that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment,

ENV]RONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT iS

and an

n

lflnd that the proposed proiect MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially

significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment but at least one effect l) has been

atLquately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2| has

been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached

sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment,

because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or

NEGATTVE DECTARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (bl have been avoided or

to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or

that remain to be addressed,

m
the further lsmeasure$ that arem

L2

Page 994

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VinlaSe at Folsom Senior Apartments IsMND

8.0 ENVIRONMENTAT INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST

The lead agency has defined the column headings in the environmental checklist as follows:

A. ,,potentially Significant lmpact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may

be significant even with the incorporation of mitigation. lf there are one or more "Potentially

Significant lmpact" entries when the determination is made, dn EIR is required.

B. ,,Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated" applies where the inclusion of mitigation

measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant lmpact" to a "Less Than Significant

lmpact.,, All mitigation measures are described, including a brief explanation of how the

measures reduce the effect to a less than significant level. Mitigation measures from earlier

analyses may be cross-referenced'

C. ,,Less Than Significant lmpact" applies where the project does not create an impact that exceeds

a stated significance threshold.

D. ,,No lmpact" applies where a project does not create an impact in that category. "No lmpact"

answers do not require an explanation if they are adequately supported by the information

sources cited by the lead agency which show that the impact simply does not apply to projects

like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone)' A "No lmpact" answer

should be explained where it is based on proJect-specific factors as well as general standards

(e.g., the project would not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project specific

screening analYsis).

The explanation of each issue identifies the significance criteria or threshold used to evaluate each

question; and the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program ElR, or other CEQA process, an

effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration ICEQA Guidelines Section

15063(cx3xD)1. where appropriate, the discussion identifies the following:

a) Earlier Analyses Used. ldentifies where earlier analyses are available for review.

b) lmpacts Adequately Addressed. ldentifies which effects from the checklist were within the scope

of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legalstandards, and

states whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier

analYsis'

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated,"

describes the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier

document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions forthe project.

13

Page 995

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APa rtments ISMND

I. AESTHETICS

Potcill.ily
fllgnmc.nt

ltnp.ct

LcssTtan
Sllnlf,cent

wldr
Mltlgadon

lncorpor.t d

lcsslhen
Sltnlfrc.nt ltlo

hpact lmpact

Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099,

would the project:

a) Have a substantlal adverse effect on a scenic vista? n n It-l

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not

limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings

within a state scenic highwaY?

t:l n

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or

quality of public views of the site and its surroundings?

(Public views are those that are experienced from publicly

accessible vantage point)' lf the project is in an urbanized

area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning

n tl n

and other regulations governing scenic qualitY?

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which

would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the

area?

n T

Environmenlol Setllng

The 4.g5-acre parcel proposed for development is currently vacant and undeveloped. Folsom State

prison is located immediately north of the site, along Prison Road, East of the project site is single family

homes along Cimmaron Circle, and south of the project site is Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) utility

powerlines,;ingle-family homes, and duplexes. West of the project, along Fargo Way, is office space and

across from Fargo Way ii the folsom City Police Department. Oak Parkway Trail is located west and

south of the site, and Johnny Cash Recreation Trail is located north of the project site. The local setting is

characterized by commercial development to the south and west, residential to the east and south, and

institutionalto the north. Existing utility lines are located along East Natoma Street and south of the

project site.

Evoluolion of Aeslhelics

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

No impact. Neither the project site nor the surrounding areas are scenic vistas due to the existing

nearby commercial, residentiat developments. Further, neither the project site, nor views to Or from the

project site, have been designated as important scenic resources by the City or any other public agency'

Therefore, the proposed development would not interfere with or degrade a scenic vista, and no impact

would occur.

L4

Page 996

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings' and

historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

No impact. The project site is currently vacant and undeveloped. The nearest officially designated state

scenic highway is the segment of US Highway 50 from Placerville to Echo Summit, approximately 20

miles east (calTrans zor-s). therefore, the project would not impact scenic resources, such as trees, rock

outcroppings or historic buildings within a state scenic highway, and no impact would occur'

c) ln non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views

of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly

accessible vantage point). lf the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with

applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?

Less than significant impact. The proposed project is located within an urbanized area of Folsom,

surrounded by commercial and residential development and institutional land. The site is vacant and

undeveloped, and the existing character of the site would be modified by the proposed development'

The proposed project would ionstruct a 136-unit affordable senior housing development, as wellas

proposed parking (bicycle and vehicle), landscape, and outdoor and indoor amenities' The apartment

Luif dine roof height is 34-ft, with architectural elements ranging from 42'f1,5-inches to up to 42'ft,6-

inches above grade, and would be designed with stucco, board and batten, brick veneer, asphalt

shingles, and wrought iron railing. The building would be visually compatible with the proposed

landicaping throughout the project site. Please refer to Figure 4, Figure 5, Figure 5' and Figure 7 for

architectural renderings of the proposed project site viewed from Natoma street and the bike trail'

ln order to accommodate for the change in existing character, the proposed project would implement

landscape screening, site amenities, and building designs to blend the proposed project with

surrounding development and screen the project from residential neighbors. Along the proposed 8-ft

masonry *ill on the eastern boundary, shade, and accent trees, as well as several evergreen species

would be planted as landscape ,.r""ning. The landscape screening would be planted in order to block

the sightline of homes along cimmaron circle and surrounding streets from the third story of the

proposed building. free height would range from 15- to 35-ft based on tree type and would supplement

ihe existing trees in the neithboring yards. Please refer to Figure 8 and Figure 9 for architectural

renderings of the proposeAligntline screening. Additionally, landscaped areas with various trees and

shrubs would surround the proposed building and parking area, and a bocce ball court' and outdoor

seating areas would be included to add to the overdllvisual aesthetic. The proposed bgilding would have

asymmetricalgabled roofs to add visual interest'

The proposed project is consistent with types of uses envisioned and permitted in the Folsom General

plan. The project is consistent with the BP zoning district development standards and would be designed

consistent with the city,s Design Guidelines for senior Housing Development. Entitlement requests for

this project include a planned bevelopment Permit (PD Permit) and a conditional Use Permit {cuP}. The

conditional Use Permit is reguired to allow for development of a senior residential apartment

community on the project siie. The proposed land use is consistent with the overall suburban character

and ongoing development in the vicinity and is expected to integrate into the existing and planned

development of the area. The proposed project would have a less than significant impact on visual

character and no mitigation is necessary'

15

Page 997

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect day or nighttime views

in the area?

Less than significant impact. The proiect includes a combination of free-standing, pole-mounted parking

lot and walkway lights, recessed carport and elevator lights, and building-mounted lights. To minimize

potential lighting-related impacts, free-standing parking lot lights and recessed carport lights would be

icreened, shielded, and directed downward to minimize glare towards the surrounding properties. New

lighting installed with the development of the proposed project would be subject to city standard

irat"r regarding night lighting that would be made a condition of approvalof the pO Permit. The

proposed ,nltr .na other project features would comply with design standards outlined in the Folsom

irrunicipal code, The exterior of the proposed apartment buildings would be designed with architectural

detailing that would not produce glare and would not affect day or niShttime views, and existing City

standards would limit light spillover and intensity. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant, and

no mitigation is necessary.

15

Page 998

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APa rtments ISMND

II. AGRICUTTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES

Potcnthlly
Sl!nlfrcrnt

llnptCt

lersrltnn
Sfnlf,crnt

wldt
tllltl!$on

lncorporatad

trrclhrn
$plicant tlo
lmp.ct lnpfft

Would the Project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland

of Statewide lmportance (Farmland), as shown on the

maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and

Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency'

n

to non-agricultural use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a

Williamson Act contract?
tl I

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of,

forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code

Section L222algl),timberland {as defined by Public

Resources Code Section 45261, or timberland zoned

Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code

tr T

Section 5110a(e))?

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest r-lt_-l n I
land to non-forest use?

e) lnvolve other changes in the existing environment which,

ilr

Environmeniol Setling

No agricultural activities or timber management occur on the project site or in adjacent areas and the

prolJct site is not designated for agricultural or timberland uses. The California lmportant Farmlands

Map prepared for sacramento county by the california Resources Agency classifies the project site and

surrounding area as other Land (california Department of conservation (cDC) 2016)' Other Land is land

not included in any other mapping category. common examples include low density rural developments;

brush timber, wetland, and riparian areas not suitable for livestock grazing; confined livestock, poultry

or aquaculture facilities; strip mines, borrow pits; and water bodies smaller than forty acres' Vacant and

non-agricultural land surrounded on all sides by urban development and Ereater than 40 acres is

mapped as Other Land (CDC 2016)'

The Natural Resources conservation Service (NRCS) soil survey report Eenerated for the project site

(NRCS 2020) indicates that the soil units at the site, Argonaut-Auburn complex' 3 to 8 percent slopes'

and Argonaut-Auburn-Urban complex, 3 to 8 percent slopes, are not Prime Farmland' Farmland of

Statewide lmportance, Farmland of Local lmportance, or Unique Farmland'

due to their location or nature, could result in conversion

of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of

forest land to non- forest use?

n

17

Page 999

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Evoluollon of Agrlcullule qnd Foreslry Servlces

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unigue Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide lmportance (Farmland), as

shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the

California Resources Agenry, to non-agricultural use?

No impact. The project site is not designated as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of

Statewide impoftance (Farmland), as indicated in the Sacramento County lmportant Farmland 2016

Map {CDC 201-6). Therefore, the project would have no impact on these farmland resources.

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contrdct?

No impact. The project site is not zoned for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract'

Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources

Code Section l2zzA$ll,timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 45261, or

timberland zoned Timberland Production {as defined by Government Code Section 5110a(e}}?

No impact. The project site is not zoned or designated as farmland, and the surrounding land uses are

primarily residential developments, office space, and institutional land. Therefore, the nature and

location of the project would not directly or indirectly result in the conversion of Farmland to non-

agricultural uses. No impact would occur.

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

OR

c)

e) lnvolve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could

result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest

use?

No impact. Because no portion of the City or the proJect site are zoned for forest land or timberland, no

impact would occur for questions d) and e).

18

Page 1000

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

III. AIR QUALITY

Pot.ilthltt
Sltnlicant

lmprc

tssslhrn
9|nlicent

wtth
tlltfiatlon

lncorFontd

lcrsllun
9gnt0crnt t{o
lmpsct lmp.cl

Where available, the significance criteria established by the

applicable air quality management district or air pollution

control district may be relied upon to make the following

determinations. Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable

air quality plan?
L_I rrl

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any

criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-

attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air
n n Itr

quality standard?

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant

concentrations?
u IN

d) Result in other emissions {such as those leading to odors}

adversely affecting a substantial number of people?
n

HELIX Environmental Planning conducted air quality modeling (CalEEMod) for the proposed project

based primarily on the preliminary site plan and the Transportation lmpact Study conducted by T. Kear

Transportation Planning and Management (2022). Air quality modeling output files and quantitative

results are presented in Appendix B.

Environmenlol Setling

Climate in the Folsom area is characterized by hot, dry summers and cool, rainy winters' During

summe/s longer daylight hours, plentifulsunshine provides the energy needed to fuel photochemical

reactions between oxides of nitrogen (NOx) and reactive organic gases (ROG), which result in ozone (Or)

formation. High concentrations of Os are reached in the Folsom area due to intense heat, strong and low

morning inversions, greatly restricted vertical mixing during the day, and daytime subsidence that

strengthens the inversion layer. The greatest pollution problem in the Folsom area is from NOx.

The City of Folsom lies within the eastern edge of the Sacramento Valley Air Basin {SVAB)' The

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District {SMAaMD) is responsible for implementing

emissions standards and other requirements of federal and state laws in the project area. As required by

the California Clean Air Act {CCAA), SMAQMD has published various air quality planning documents as

discussed below to address requirements to bring the District into compliance with the federal and state

ambient air quality standards. The Air Quality Attainment Plans are incorporated into the State

lmplementation Plan (SlP), which is subsequently submitted to the U.S. Environmental Protection

Agency (USEPA), the federal agency that administrates the Federal Clean Air Act of 1970, as amended

in 1990.

19

Page 1001

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Ambient air quality is described in terms of compliance with state and national standards. and the levels

of air pollutant concentrations considered safe, to protect the public health and welfare. These

standards are designed to protect people most sensitive to respiratory distress, such as people with

asthma, the elderly, very young children, people already weakened by other disease or illness, and

persons engaged in strenuous work or exercise. The USEPA has established national ambient air quality

standards (NAAQS) for seven air pollution constituents. As permitted by the Clean Air Act, California has

adopted more stringent air emissions standards (California Ambient Air Quality Standards {CAAQSI) and

expanded the number of regulated air constituents.

The California Air Resources Board {CARB) is required to designate areas of the state as attainment,

nonattainment, or unclassified for any state standard. An "attainment" designation for an area signifies

that pollutant concentrations do not violate the standard for that pollutant in that area. A

"nonattainment" designation indicates that a pollutant concentration violated the standard at least

once. The air quality attainment status of the SVAB, including the City of Folsom, is shown in Table 4.

Table 4. Sacramento Valley Air Basin - Attainment Status

Pollutant Federal Analnmcnt Status

Ozone No Federal

Ozone Nonattainment

Coarse Particulate Matter Attainment

Fine Particulate Matter Nonattainment

Carbon Monoxide
Dioxide

Lead

Sulfur Dioxide Unclassified

Sulfates No Federal Standard

Sulfide No Federal Standard

Visibi Reduci Particles No Federal Standard

Sources: SMAQMD 2020

Sacramento County is designated as nonattainment for the state and federal ozone standards, the state
pMro standards, and the federal PMz.s standards. Concentrations of all other pollutants meet state and

federal standards.

Ozone is not emitted directly into the environment, but is generated from complex chemical reactions

between ROG, or non-methane hydrocarbons, and NOx that occur in the presence of sunlight. ROG and

NOx generators in Sacramento County include motor vehicles, recreational boats, other transportation

sources, and industrial processes. PMro and PMz.s arise from a variety of sources, including road dust,

diesel exhaust, fuel combustion, tire and brake wear, construction operations, and windblown dust'

Toxlc Air Conlomlnqnts

Toxic air contaminants (TAC) are a diverse group of air pollutants that may cause or contribute to an

increase in deaths or in serious illness or that may pose a present or potential hazard to human health.

TACs can cause long-term chronic health effects such as cancer, birth defects, neurological damage,

asthma, bronchitis, or genetic damage, or short-term acute effects such as eye watering, respiratory

irritation (a cough), runny nose, throat pain, and headaches, TACs are considered eithercarcinogenic or

State of Cellfornla
Attrlnmcnt Status

Nonattainment
Nonattainment
Nonattainment

Attainment
Attainment
Attainment
Attainment
Attainment
Attainment
Unclassified
Unclassified

20

Page 1002

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

noncarcinogenic based on the nature of the health effects associated with exposure to the pollutant' For

carcinogenic TACs, there is no level of exposure that is considered safe and impacts are evaluated in

terms of overall relative risk expressed as excess cancer cases per one million exposed individuals'

Noncarcinogenic TACs differ in that there is generally assumed to be a safe level of exposure below

which no negative health impact is believed to occur. These levels are determined on a pollutant-by-

pollutant basis.

The Health and Safety Code ($39655[a]] defines TAC as "an air pollutant which may cause or contribute

to an increase in mortality or in serious illness, or which may pose a present or potential hazard to

human health." All substances that are listed as hazardous air pollutants pursuant to subsection (b) of

Section 112 of the CAA {42 United States Code Sec. 7a1"2[bl) are designated as TACs. Under State law,

the California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA), acting through CARB, is authorized to identify

a substance as a TAC if it determines the substance is an air pollutant that may cause or contribute to an

increase in mortality or an increase in serious illness, or that may pose a present or potential hazard to

human health.

Diesel engines emit a complex mixture of air pollutants, including both gaseous and solid material. The

solid material in diesel exhaust is referred to as diesel particulate matter (DPM). Almost all DPM is

10 microns or less in diameter, and 90 percent of DPM is less than 2.5 microns in diameter {CARB 2022)

Because of their extremely small size, these particles can be inhaled and eventually trapped in the

bronchialand alveolar regions of the lung. ln 1998, CARB identified DPM as a TAC based on published

evidence of a relationship between diesel exhaust exposure and lung cancer and other adverse health

effects. DPM has a notable effect on California's population-it is estimated that about 70 percent of

total known cancer risk related to air toxics in California is attributable to DPM {CARB 2022).

Senrilive Receptots

Some land uses are considered more sensitive to air pollution than others due to the types of population

groups or activities involved and are referred to as sensitive receptors. Examples of these sensitive

receptors are residences, schools, hospitals, and daycare centers. CARB and the Office of Environmental

Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) have identified the following groups of individuals as the most likely

to be affected by air pollution: the elderly over 55, children under 14, infants (including in utero in the

third trimester of pregnancy), and persons with cardiovascular and chronic respiratory diseases such as

asthma, emphysema, and bronchitis (CARB 2005; OEHHA 2015)'

Residential areas are considered sensitive receptors to air pollution because residents (including

children and the elderly) tend to be at home for extended periods of time, resulting in sustained

exposure to any pollutants present. Children and infants are considered more susceptible to health

effects of air pollution due to their immature immune systems, developing organs, and higher breathing

rates. As such, schools are also considered sensitive receptors, as children are present for extended

durations and engage in regular outdoor activities,

The closest existing sensitive receptors to the project site are the single-family residences that border

the project site to the east and the single-family residences located approximately 100-ft south of the

project site. Additionally, Vibra Hospital of Sacramento is located approximately 350-ft south of the

project site. The closest schools to the project site are Theodore Judah Elementary School and Blanche

Sprentz Elementary School, located approximately L,400-ft to the southwest and 2,000-ft to the

southeast, respectively.

2l

Page 1003

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Methodology ond AssumPtions

Criteria pollutant, precursor, and GHG emissions for project construction and operation were estimated

using the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod), Versio n 2O2O'4.O. CalEEMod is a statewide

land use emissions computer model designed to provide a uniform platform for government agencies,

land use planners, and environmental professionals to quantify potential criteria pollutant and GHG

emissions associated with both construction and operations from a variety of tand use projects. The

model was developed for the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association {CAPCOA} in

collaboration with the california air districts. calEEMod allows for the use of default data (e'g', emission

factors, trip lengths, meteorology, source inventory) provided by the various California air districts to

account for local requirements and conditions, and/or user-defined inputs. The calculation methodology

and default data used in the model are available in the CalEEMod Use/s Guide, Appendices A, D, and E

(cApcoA 2021). The Ca|EEMod output files are included in Attachment A to this letter.

Construction of the project is anticipated to begin as early as January 2A23 and be completed in April

2024. Construction modeling assumes the following anticipated schedule: site preparation 10 working

days; grading 87 working days; building construction 207 working days; paving 21 working days; and

architectural coating 22 working days. Construction equipment assumptions were based on estimates

from CalEEMod defaults. The project would not require an import or export of soil during construction

activities. construction emissions modeling assumes implementation of basic dust control practices

(watering exposed areas twice per day)to comply with the requirements of: SMAQMD Rule 403,

Fugitive Dust.

Operational mobile emissions were modeled using the proiect trip generation of 44L average daily trips

from the project Transportation lmpact Study (T. Kear Transportation Planning and Management, lnc'

2022). Operational emissions resulting from energy use, water use, and solid waste generation were

modelej using CalEEMod defaults with an added 20 percent reduction in water use to account for the

requirements of the 2019 CALGreen, and an additional 25 percent solid waste diversion to account for

AB 341 requirements.

Slondqrds ol Slgnlflconce

While the final determination of whether or not a project has a signifiiant effect is within the purview of

the lead agency pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064(b), SMAQMD recommends that its air

pollution thresholds be used to determine the significance of project emissions. The criteria pollutant

thresholds and various assessment recommendations are contained in SMAQMD's Guide ta Air Quality

Assessrnent,n Socramento County (CEOA Guide; 2020, revised), and are discussed under the checklist

questions below,

Evoluolion of Ah QuolltY

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Less than Signlficant lmpact. ln accordance with SMAQMD's Guide, construction-generated NOX, PM10,

and pM2.5, and operationaFgenerated ROG and NOX (all ozone precursors) are used to determine

consistency with the ozone Attainment Plan. The Guide states:

22

Page 1004

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

By exceeding the District's moss emission thresholds for operationa[ emissions of RO6, NOX,

pM10, or PM2.5, the project would be considered to conflict with or abstruct implementotion of
the District's oir quolity plonning efforts'

As shown in the discussion for question 2) below, the project's construction-generated emissions of

NOx, pMro, and PMz.s and operation-generated emissions ROG and NOx would not exceed SMAQMD

thresholds. The project would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air

quality plan and the impact would be less than significant.

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pqllutant for which the project

region is non- attainment under an applicable federal or state ambi€nt air quality standard?

Less than Significant lmpact. The Sacramento region is in non-attainment for ozone (ozone precursors

NOx and ROG) and particulate matter tPMzs and PMlo). The project's emissions of these criteria
pollutants and precursors during construction and operation are evaluated below.

Construction Emissions

CaIEEMod version 2O20.4.A was used to quantiry project-generated construction emissions. The model

output sheets are included in Attachment A. Construction activities were assumed to commence as early

as January 2O23 and be completed in April 2O24,The quantity, duration, and intensity of construction

activity influence the amount of construction emissions and related pollutant concentrations that occur

at any one time. As such, the emission forecasts provided herein reflect a specific set of conservative

assumptions based on the expected construction scenario wherein a relatively large amount of
constructlon activity is occurring in a relatively intensive manner. Because of this conservative

assumption, actual emissions could be less than those forecasted. lf construction is delayed or occurs

over a longer time period, emissions could be reduced because of (L) a more modern and cleaner-

burning construction equipment fleet mix than assumed in CalEEMod; andlor (2) a less intensive

buildout schedule (i.e., fewer daily emissions occurring over a longer time interval).

The project's construction period emissions of ROG, NOx, PMro, and PMz.s are compared to the

SMAQMD construction thresholds in Table 5. The SMAQMD does not have a recommended threshold

for construction-generated ROG. However, quantification and disclosure of ROG emissions is

recommended. The SMAQMD considers any emissions of PMro and PMa.s to be significant unless the

Basic Construction Emissions Control Practices are implemented, also known as Best Management
practices tBMPs). The project would implement the SMAQMD BMPs to controlfugitive dust in

accordance with SMAQMD Rute 403. The modeling accounts for emissions reductions resulting from

watering exposed surfaces twice daily. As shown in Table 5, the proposed project's construction period

emissions of the ozone precursor Nox, PM1s, and PMz.swould not exceed the SMAQMD thresholds'

lmpacts related to construction-generated emissions of RoG, Nox, PM1s, and PM1swould be less than

significant.

23

Page 1005

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Table 5. Construction Criteria Pollutant and Precursor Emissions

PMar
Connrucflon Actlvlty

G
2.3

Build Construction 0.9
0.4

Architectural 0.1

Maximum Emisslons 8.7

Thresholds 82

Exceed Thresholds? lUo

Source: CalEEMod {output data is provided in Attachment A)

ROG = reactive organic gases; NOx = nitrogen oxides; PMro = particulate matter 10 microns or less in diameter;

pMz.s = particutate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter; SMAQMD= Sacramento Metropolitan Air Qualitv

Management District

ooerational Emissions

Emissions generated from operational activities woutd include:

. Areas sources - combustion emissions from the use of landscape maintenance equipment, the

reapplication of architectural coatings for maintenance, and the use of consumer products'

. Energy sources - combustion emissions from the use of natural gas appliances, water heaters,

and heating systems'

o Mobile emissions - combustion, fuel evaporation, brake and tire wear, and road dust emission

resulting from worker, customer, and vendor vehicle traveling to and from the project site.

The results of the modeling for project operational activities are shown in Table 5. The data is presented

as the maximum anticipated daily emissions for comparison with the SMAQMD thresholds, the model

output and calculation sheets are included as Attachment A to this letter. As shown in Table 6, the

proposed project operation period emissions of the ozone precursor NOx, ROG, PMro, and PMz.s would

not exceed the SMAeMD thresholds. lmpacts related to operation-generated emissions of ROG, NOx,

PMro, dfld PMz.s would be less than significant'

Table 6. Maximum Daily Operational Emissions

PMzs
Source

Area <0.01

<0.01

Mobile 0,7

Maximum Emissionr o.7

SMAQMD Thresholds 82

Exceed Thresholds? No

Source: CalEEMod {output data is provided in Attachment A}

ROG = reactive organic gases; NOx = nitrogen oxides; PMro = particulate matter 10 microns or less in diameter;

pM25 = pa*iculate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter; SMAQMD= Sacramento Meiropolitan Air Quality

Management District

75.Site

PMro

loounds/davl
t{Or

lpoundsldaYl
R('6

(oounds/day|
70.227.62.7
4.t18.01.8

1s.3 1.51.9
8.3 0.60.9

0.21.362.6
27.5 10.262.5

80None 8s
tvoNo No

N(h
looundrldayl

PMo
{poundsldavl

ROG

loounds/davl
<0.13.1 0.1
<0.10.3<0.1

2.41.51.1
2.52.O4.2

806565
No NoNo

24

Page 1006

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

As shown in Table 5 and Table 6, the project's maximum daily construction or operational ernissions

would not exceed the SMAQMD's thresholds. Therefore, the project would not result in a cumulatively

considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment, and

the impact would be less than significant.

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Less than Significant tmpact. CARB and OEHHA have identified the following groups of individuals as the

most likely to be affected by air pollution: the elderly over 55, children under 14, infants (including in

utero in the third trimester of pregnancy), and persons with cardiovascular and chronic respiratory

diseases such as asthma, emphysema, and bronchitis (GARB 2005, oEHHA 2015). Some land uses are

considered more sensitive to air pollution than others due to the types of population groups or activities

involved and are referred to as sensitive receptor locations. Examples of these sensitive receptor

locations are residences, schools, hospitals, and daycare centers'

The closest existing sensitive receptors to the project site are the single-family residences that border

the project site to the east and the single-family residences located approximately 100-ft south of the

project site. Additionally, Vibra Hospital of Sacramento is located approximately 350-ft south of the

project site. The closest schools to the project site are Theodore Judah Elementary School and Blanche

Sprentz Elementary School, located approximately 1,400-ft to the southwest and 2,000-ft to the

southeast, respectivelY.

The dose (of TAC) to which receptors are exposed is the primary factor used to determine health risk.

Dose is a function of the concentration of a substance in the environment and the extent of exposure a

person has with the substance; a longer exposure period to a fixed quantity of emissions would result in

higher health risks. Current models and methodologies for conducting cancer health risk assessments

are associated with longer-term exposure periods (typically 30 years for individual residents based on

guidance from OEHHA) and are best suited for evaluation of long duration TAC emissions with

predictable schedules and locations. These assessment models and methodologies do not correlate well

with the temporary and highly variable nature of construction activities. Cancer potency factors are

based on animal lifetime studies or worker studies where there is long-term exposure tb the

carcinogenic agent. There is considerable uncertainty in trying to evaluate the cancer risk from projects

that will only last a small fraction of a lifetime (OEHHA 2015). ln addition, concentrations of mobile

source DpM emissions disperse rapidly and are typically reduced by 70 percent at approximately 500-ft

(CARB 2005). Considering this information, the highly dispersive nature of DPM, and the fact that

construction activities would occur at various locations throughout the project site, it is not anticipated

that construction of the project would expose sensitive receptors to substantial DPM concentrations.

According to the SMAQMD, land use deVelopment projects do not typically have the potential to result

in localized concentrations of criteria air pollutants that expose sensitive receptors to substantial

pollutant concentrations. This is because criteria air pollutants are predominantly generated in the form

of mobile-source exhaust from vehicle trips associated with the land use development project' These

vehicle trips occur throughout a paved network of roads, and, therefore, associated exhaust emissions

of criteria air pollutants are not generated in a single location where high concentrations could be

formed (SMAQMD 2020). Therefore, localized concentration of CO from exhaust emissions, or "CO

hotspots," would only be a concern on high-volume roadways where vertical and/or horizontal mixing is

substantially limited, such as tunnels or below grade highways. There are no high-volume roadways in

the region with limited mixing that would be affected by project generated traffic. Once operational, the

25

Page 1007

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

project would not be a significant source of TACs. Therefore, the project would not expose sensitive

receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations, and the impact would be less than significant'

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number

of people?

Less than Significant lmpact. The project could produce odors during construction activities resulting

from heavy diesel equipment exhaust and VOC released during application of asphalt. The odor of these

emissions is objectionable to some; however, emissions would disperse rapidly from the project site and

therefore should not be at a levelthat would affect a substantial number of people. Any odors emitted

during construction activitieswould be temporary, short-term, and intermittent in nature, and would

cease upon the facility maintenance. As a resul! impacts associated with temporary odors during

construction are not considered significant.

As an affordable senior rental housing development, operation of the project would not result in odors

affecting a substantial number of people. Solid waste generated by the project would be collected by a

contracted waste hauler, ensuring that any odors resulting from on-slte waste would be managed and

coltected in a manner to prevent the proliferation of odors. The project would not result in other

emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people, and the

impact would be less than significant.

26

Page 1008

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

tv. BlotoclcAt REsouRcEs

Potcnthlly
Sl3nlf,cant

hnpNC

lrsclt n
Sl5nlfcant

wllh
Mltljr0on

lncorpontcd

lass Thrn
Sllntfrcrnt ltlo
lmFrcl lmp.ct

Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or
through habitat modifications, on any species identified

as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local

or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the
California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U,S, Fish and

Wildlife Service?

: n fI

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat

or other sensitive natural community identified in local or
regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California

Department of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife

Service?

u l--lU I

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally
protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh,

vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling,
hydrological interruption, or other means?

n D

d) lnterfere substantially with the movement of any native

resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with
established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors,
or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

nl

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting

biological resources, such as a tree preservation policY or
ordinance?

LI nx
f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat

Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation

Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat

conservation plan?

u n I

An Arborist lnventory Letter Report was prepared by HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc. on March22,

2022 (HELIX 2A22al and is included as Appendix C. A Biological Resources Evaluation (BRE) was also

prepared by HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc. on October 21,2020 (HELIX 2020) and is included as

Appendix D.

Environmenlol Setting

The project site is a vacant, wooded parcel within the City of Folsom. The site is generally bordered by

residential parcels and small commercial buildings, as well as the paved Oak Parkway cycling trail.

Folsom State Prison is located north of the project site, on the opposite side of Natoma Street.

27

Page 1009

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Slte Conditlons

The entire project site is considered to be blue oak woodland, surrounded by urban development.

Historic aerial imagery shows that the project site has changed little since 1952 and has consisted of oak

woodland with a drainage running through the site. The site is moderately disturbed. There is evidence

of recreational use by bicycles and the site has a constructed dirt track with several constructed dirt

ramps and jumps for bicycles, presumably constructed by kids from the adjacent residential

neighborhood, lt also has debris piles and other evidence of use by transients.

Melhods

Studies conducted in support ofthe BRE included a special-status species evaluation, an aquatic

resources evaluation, and a biological and wetlands reconnaissance survey, An Arborist Report was also

concluded.

Specicl-Stolus Specles Evoluqlion

For the purposes of the BRE, special-status species are those that fall into one or more of the following

categories:

Listed as endangered or threatened under the Federal Endangered species Act of 1973 {FESA),

including candidate species and species proposed for listing;

Listed as endangered or threatened under the California Endangered Species Act (CESA),

including candidate species and species proposed for listing;

Designated as a Species of Special Concern (SSC) or watch-list {WL) species by the California

Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), or "Fully Protected" under the California Fish and

Game Code (FP), or a sensitive natural community; andlor,

r Designated by the California Native Plant Society (CNPS) as California Rare Plant Rank 1A, tB,2A,

28, or 3.

ln order to evaluate special-status species and/or their habitats with the potential to occur in the proJect

site and/or be impacted by the proposed project, HEI-IX obtained lists of special-status species known to

occur andfor having the potentialto occur on the proposed project site and vicinity from the U.S. Fish

and Wildlife Service (USFWS; USFWS 2020), the California Native Plant Society (CNPS; CNPS 2020), and

the California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB; CDFW 2020), which are included as Appendix D. The

potential for these regionally occurring special-status species to occur in the project site is analyzed

in Appendix D.

Aquolic Resources Evqluolion

The U.5. Fish and Wildlife Service's National Wetlands lnventory (NWl) online databaserwas reviewed

to determine if there are any wetlands or other waters of the U.S. mapped by the USFWS on the project

site. The NWI provides reconnaissance level information on wetlands and deepwater habitats from

analysis of high-altitude aerial imagery. Historic aerial imagery from National EnvironmentalTitle

Research {NETR)zwas reviewed for information on past land uses and presence of aquatic features

visible on aerial imagery. NETR provides aerial imagery covering the study area at irregular intervals

a

a

a

28

Page 1010

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

from 1956 to 2015,

Biologicol ond Wellond Resource Evoluollon

A biological and wetlands reconnaissance survey was conducted on September 30, 2020 by HELIX

principal Biologist Stephen Stringer, M.S. and HELIX Biologist Stephanie Mclaughlin, M'S. between 0830

and 1400 hours. The project site was assessed to identify the habitat type(s) present on-site and the

potential to support special-status plant and wildlife species. The survey consisted of a pedestrian

survey of the project site and the surrounding area. Meandering transects of the site were performed to

obtain visual coverage of the site. Plant species were identified to the level necessary to determine

whether or not they were a special-status species'

The three-parameter method was used to determine the presence/absence of wetlands, which involves

identifying indicators of hydrophytic vegetation, hydric soils, and wetland hydrology according to the

Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Munual {USACE 1987), the Regional Supplement ta the Corps of
Engineers Wettond Delineation Manual: Arid West Region (Version 2.0; USACE 2008), A Field Guide to

the tdentification of the Ordinary High Water Mark (OHWM) in the Arid West Region of the Western

united Stotes (Lichvar and McColley 2008) and the State Wetland Definition ond Procedures for
Discharges al Dredged or Fitl Materiolto Waters of the State prepared by the State Water Resources

Control Board and which became effective May 28, 2020. The presence/absence of other non-wetland

aquatic resources was determined by searching for the presence of an ordinary high water mark and

bed and bank. The extent of waters on the project site were mapped in the field with sub-meter

accuracy using a Trimble GeoXT Global Positioning System (GPS) hand-held unit' The GPS data were

downloaded from the unit, exported into ArcMap L0.7.10, and used to produce the map of aquatic

features in the delineation area and to calculate the acreage of each aquatic feature,

Weather during the survey was clear and warm and hazy conditions. A complete list of plant and animal

species observed on the project site during the biological reconnaissance survey is included in Appendix

D.

Arborisl lnvenlory

The arborist inventory was conducted on September 24,2020 by HELIX Biologist and ISA Certified

Arborist Stephanie Mclaughlin, M.S. (WE-12922A). Woody plants in the project area with a trunk

diameter of at least 4-inches at 4.5-ft above grade (diameter at breast heightlwere located and

assessed. A diameter tape or calipers were used to verify each trunk diameter. The measurement from

the trunk to the end of the longest lateral limb was estimated and used as the dripline radius. All

accessible trees were numbered with a pre-printed aluminum tag. Approximate trunk locations were

mapped using a sub-meter accurate global positioning system (GPS). Approximate tree locations are

identified in Figure 3 of the arborist report (Appendix C).

The condition of each tree was rated one a scale of 1 to 5, with 1 indicating poor condition, 3 indicating

fair condition, and 5 indicating good condition. The rating considers factors health and structuralfactors

such as the size, color, and density of the foliage; the amount of deadwood within the canopy; bud

viability; evidence of wound closure; and the presence or evidence of stress, disease, nutrient

deficienry, and/or insect infestation; trunk and branch configuration; canopy balance; the presence of

included bark and other structural defects such as decay; and the potential for structural failure.

29

Page 1011

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Regulotory Fromework Reloted lo Biologicql Resources

State ond Federal Endongered Species Acts

Special status species are protected by state and federal laws. The California Endangered Species Act

(CESA; California Fish and Game Code Sections 2050 to 2097) protects species listed as threatened and

endangered under CESA from harm or harassment. This law is similar to the Federal Endangered Species

Act of 1973 (FESA; 16 USC 1531 et seq.) which protects federally threatened or endangered species {50

CFR 17.11, and L7 .L2; listed species) from take. For both laws, take of the protected species may be

allowed through consultation with and issuance of a permit by the agency with jurisdiction over the

protected species.

Cotilornio Code of Regulations ond Colilornio Fish and Game Code

The official listing of endangered and threatened animals and plants is contained in the California Code

of Regulations Title 14 S 570,5. A state candidate species is one that the California Fish and Game Code

has formally noticed as being under review by CDFW for inclusion on the state list pursuant to Sections

ZO74.2and 2075.5 of the California Fish and Game Code. CDFW also designates Species of Special

Concern that are not currently listed or candidate species.

Legal protection is also provided for wildlife species in California that are identified as "fully protected

animals." These species are protected under Sections 3511" {birds), 4700 {mammals), 5050 (reptiles and

amphibians), and 5515 (fishes) of the California Fish and Game Code. These statutes prohibit take or

possession of fully protected species at any time. The CDFW is unable to authorize incidentaltake of

fully protected species when activities are proposed in areas inhabited by these species. The CDFW has

informed non-federal agencies and private parties that they must avoid take of any fully protected

species. However, Senate Bill {SB) 618 {2011} allows the CDFW to issue permits authorizing the

incidental take of fully protected species under the CESA, so long as any such take authorization is issued

in conjunction with the approval of a Natural Community Conservation Plan that covers the fully

protected species (California Fish and Game Code Section 2835).

Collfurnio Notive Ptant Protectlon Act

The California Native Plant Protection Act ol !977 (California Fish and Game Code Sections 1900 to

1913) requires all state agencies to use their authority to implement programs to conserve endangered

and otherwise rare species of native plants. Provisions of the act prohibit the taking of listed plants from

the wild and require notification of CDFW at least 10 days in advance of any change in land use other

than changing from one agricultural use to another, which allows CDFW to salvage listed plants that

would otherwise be destroYed.

Nesting and Migrotory Eirds

Nesting birds are protected by state and federal laws. California Fish and Game Code (SSSO:, 3503'5,

and 3800) prohibits the possession, incidental take, or needless destruction of any bird nests or eggs;

Fish and Game Code $35L1 designates certain bird species "fully protected" {including all raptors},

making it unlawful to take, possess, or destroy these species except under issuance of a specific permit.

The Attorney General of California has released an opinion that the Fish and Game Code prohibits

incidental take. Under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act {MBTA} of 1918 (16 USF $703-711), migratory bird

30

Page 1012

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartm€nts ISMND

species and their nests and eggs that are on the federal list (50 CFR 510.13) are protected from injury or

death, and project-retateO diiturbance must be reduced or eliminated during the nesting rycle' The U'S'

Cou rt of Appeals for the 9th Circuit (with jurisdiction over California) has ruled that the MBTA does not

prohibit incidental take (952 t 2d 2g7 - Court of Appeals, 9th Circuit, 1991)'

City of FotsomTree Preservotion Ordinance

Requirements related to biological resources also include protection of existing trees and specifies

measures necessary to proteci both ornamental and native oak trees' Chapter 12.16 of the Folsom

Municipal Code, the Tree preservation Ordinance, further regulates the cutting or modification of trees,

including oaks and specified other trees; requires a Tree Permit prior to cutting or modification; and

establishes mitiSation requirements for cut or damaged trees (City of Folsom 2020b)' The Tree

Preservation Ordinance establishes policies, regulations, and standards necessary to ensure that the City

will continue to preserve and maintain its "urban forests". Anyone who wishes to perform "Regulated

Activities,, on "Protected Trees" must apply for a permit with the city' Regulated activities include:

r Removal of a Protected Tree;

. PruninS/trimming of a Protected Tree; andf or'

r Grading or trenching within the Protected zone'

Protected trees include:

r Native oak trees with a diameter of 6-inches or larger for single trunk trees 20-inches or larger

combined diameter of native oak multFtrunk trees;

r Heritage oak trees - native oaks with a trunk diameter of 19-inches or Sreater and native oaks

with a multi-trunk diameter of 38 inches or greater;

r Landmark trees identified individually by the City Councilthrough resolution as being a

significant commu nity benefit; andl or,

r Street trees within the tree maintenance strip'

Jurisdictionol Woten

Any person, firm, or agency planning to alter or work in "waters of the U'S'," including the discharge of

dredged or fill materii, must first obtrin authorization from the U.5' Army Corps of Engineers (UsAcE)

under section 404 of the clean water Act (cwA). Section 401 requires an applicant for a federal license

or permit that allows activities resulting in a discharge to waters of the U'S' must obtain a state

certification that the discharge complies with other provisions of the cwA. The Regional water Quality

Control Board (RWeCB) administers the certification program in California. The RWQCB also regulates

discharges of poltutants or dredged or fill material to waters of the State which is a broader definition

than waters of the U.S'

31

Page 1013

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

California Fish and Gume Code Sedion 7602 - Lake and Stesmbed Alteration Program

Diversions or obstructions of the natural flow of, or substantial changes or use of material from the bed,

channel, or bank of any river, stream, or lake in California that supports wildlife resources are subject to
regulation by CDFW, pursuant to Section L602 of the California Fish and Game Code. The CDFW requires

notification prior to commencement of any such activities, and a Lake and Streambed Alteration
Agreement (ISAA) pursuant to Fish and Game Code Sections 1501-1503, if the activity may substantially

adversely affect an existing fish and wildlife resource.'

Hqbltot Types/ Vegelolion Communllies

Habitat types/vegetation communities in the project site include blue oak woodland and ephemeral and

intermittent drainages.

Blue Oak Waodlond

Blue oak woodland is the predominant habitat type in the project site and occupies approximately 4,82-

acres within the site. Vegetation in the blue oak woodland habitat consists primarily of blue oak
(Quercus douglasiil and interior live oak (Quercus wislizenil, with some non-native species including

mulberry (Morus o/bo), Chinese tallow (Triadica sebiferal, Chinese hackberry (Celtis sinensis), and

ornamental cherry (Prunus sp.). The understory is dominated by non-native grasses and forbs, including

cultivated oats (Avena sp.), ltalian rye grass lFestuca perennisl, and yellow star-thistle (Centoureo

solstitialisl. Disturbed areas, such as bike trails and jumps occur beneath the canopy of the oak

woodland, and there is a significant amount of trash and debris in these areas, A small segment of the
bike trail occurs in this habitat.

Topogrophy

The terrain in the project site and vicinity is locally flat. The elevation on the project site ranges from
350- to 370-ft above rnean sea level and has low to moderate sloping from east to west.

Sollr

The project site includes two soil mapping units {NRCS 2O2Ol: Argonaut-Auburn-Urban land complex, 3

to 8 percent slopes and Argonaut-Auburn complex, 3 to 8 percent slopes. Soils on the National Hydric

Soils List for Sacramento County (NRCS 2015) are not present in the project site.

Both soils occur on hills and are derived from residuum weathered from metamorphic rock. A typical
profile of the Argonaut-Auburn-Urban land complex and Argonaut-Auburn complex, 3 to 8 percent

slopes include loam from 0- to 14-inches, clay from 14- to 29-inches and bedrock from 29- to 33-inches;

the depth to water table is more than 8O-inches.

Speciol-Slolus Plont Species

No special-status plant species were determined to have the potentialto occur on the project site or be

impacted by the proposed project. Of the 17 regionally occurring specialstatus plant species that were

identified during the database gueries and desktop review, the majority occur in wetland habitats such

as vernal pools or seeps, which are absent from the site. Several others are limited to grassland or

32

Page 1014

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

cismontane woodland habitats. Although the site contains blue oak woodland, the study area is located'

in an urban area dominated by non-native species that does not provide suitable habitat for special

status plant species. Therefore, no impacts to special-status plants are anticipated as a result of the

proposed project'

Speclol-slolus Wildllle SPecles

A total of 23 regionally occurring special-status wildlife species were identified during the database

searches and desktop review. The majority of the special-status wildlife species are associated with

aquatic habitats of the adjacent Sacramento Valley such as rivers, sloughs, and freshwater wetlands,

including vernal pools. ThL remaining species are associated with specific habitats such as bats roosting

in rocky habitats, caves or abandoning buildings, which are not present in or near the study area'

There are no reported occurrences of special-status animal species on or adjacent to the site' However,

the site provides suitable habitat for white-tailed kite (Elanus leucurusl and other nesting migratory

birds. These species are discussed briefly below. Species determined to have no potentialto occur on

the project siie or be impacted by the proposed project (Appendix D) are not discussed further in this

report.

White-Tailed Kite

White-tailed kite is a year-round resident in coastal and valley lowlands, where it inhabits herbaceous

and open stages of most habitat types. lndividuals forage in grasslands, farmlands, and wetlands,

preylng ,nortly on small diurnal mammals. Nests are built near the top of dense tree stands, usually near

open foraging areas (Zeiner et al. 1988).

No white-tailed kites were observed during any of the biological surveys conducted for the proposed

project. The nearest reported extant occurrence of white-tailed kite in the CNDDB is located

approximately 3-miles iouthwest of the project site near Lake Natoma (CDFW 2020). Nesting habitat is

ilresent on the site in large trees and foraging habitat is present in the ruderal vegetation' However,

irabitat for white-tailed kite is marginal due to the urban character of the surrounding area'

No adverse effects to white-tailed kite foraging habitat are anticipated as a result of the loss of oak

woodland habitat that would occur due to development of the proposed project. Non-breeding adults

could readily avoid contact with construction equipment or personnel by moving out of the construction

area. oisplacement of non-breeding adults would not be a significant impact. The prolect has potential

for adverse effects to white-tailed lite through nest disturbance leading to destruction of eggs or

nestlings if this species were to nest in or adjacent to the proiect site' Eggs and young still dependent on

the nest would be susceptible to injury or mortality through physical contact or through nest

abandonment caused by disptacement of adults. Destruction of eggs or young would be a violation of

the Fish and Game Code and a significant impact'

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-01would reduce impacts to white-tailed kite and other

nesting birds to a less than significant level'

33

Page 1015

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom senior Apartments ISMND

illigrolory Blrds ond Roplorc

The project site provides suitable habitat for nesting migratory birds and raptors. However, migratory

and non-game birds are protected during the nesting season by California Fish and Game Code. The

project site and immediate vicinity provides nesting and foraging habitat for a variety of native birds

common to urbanized areas. Nests were not observed during surveys; however, a variety of migratory

birds have the potential to nest in and adjacent to the site, in trees, shrubs and on the ground in

vegetation.

Project activities such as clearing and grubbing during the avian breeding season (February 1 - August

31) could result in injury or mortality of eggs and chicks directly through destruction or indirectly

through forced nest abandonment due to noise and other disturbance. Needless destruction of nests,

eggs, and chicks would be a violation of the Fish and Game Code and a significant impact.

Aquolic Resource Evoluolion

The project site is located in the City of Folsom in the Upper American River hydrologic unit (HUC12:

180201110201). NWI mapping shows no aquatic features on the project site.

HELIX conducted a routine assessment of waters of the U,S. and State on September 30,2020, generally

in accordance with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers' (USACE) Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation

Manual and the Regionalsupplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Arid West

Region (Version 2.0). A formal delineation of wetlands was not completed. HELIX identified two aquatic

resources; an intermittent drainage and an ephemeral drainage totaling 0.04-acre of aquatic resources

that are potentially jurisdictional waters of the U,S. and state. The drainage features are depicted on the
Habitat and Resource Map, which is included in Attachment A of Appendix D. No other aquatic

resources are present on the site.

The intermittent drainage totals 0.03-acre and flows in a southwesterly direction along the northern

boundary of the project site. The intermittent drainage is fed by an unnamed emergent wetland swale

located north of the site on the Folsom State Prison grounds, via a 24-inch metal culvert that runs

beneath Natoma Street to enter the project site. The drainage also receives stormwater runoff from

Natoma Street. The water to the site flows intermittently, with water persisting after rain events. The

banks of the drainage are incised with a stream channel that is approximately 3-ft wide at the
ordinary high-water mark. The intermittent drainage on the project she does not support wetland

vegetation, with most of the vegetation within the feature consistent with vegetation in the blue oak

woodland vegetation community. Upon leaving the site, the intermittent drainage continues in a

southwesterly direction and enters an unnamed tributary to the American River/Lake Natoma west of
the prison.

An ephemeral drainage is characterized as a feature with a bed and a bank that channels water from

uplands and typically only flows during periods of precipitation. Ephemeral drainages typically do not

support wetlands due to their brief hydroperiods, although they typically have an incised bank. ln the

project site, there is one ephemeral drainage totaling 0.01-acre that crosses the eastern portion of the

site and intersects with the intermittent drainage. The ephemeraldrainage in the project site supports

vegetation consistent with understory vegetation described in the blue oak woodland and is dominated

by weedy grasses and forbs.

34

Page 1016

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Determination of regulatory jurisdiction must be made by the U.S' Army Corps of Engineen (USACE),

CentralValley Regional Water Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB), and CDFW. lt is likely that impacts to

the drainages would occur as a result of the proposed project, which would be a significant impact if

they are considered waters of the U.S. or state or subject to CDFW iurisdiction'

Protected Trees

A total of 111 trees are present on the site, including 94 blue oaks, seven Fremont's cottonwoods

lpopulus fremontiil,tour interior live oaks, two Gooding's black willow (Salix gooddingii) , one mulberry,

one Chinese hackberry, one Chinese tallow, and one ornamental cherry (Figure 3). The City of Folsom

regulates trees under Section 12.16 of the Folsom Municipal Code (Tree Preservation ordinance). A

peimit is required to remove native oaks (defined as valley oak, blue oak, interior live oak, and coast live

oak) measuring 6-inches in diameter at standard height (i.e., 54-inches above natural grade, DSH), or a

multi-stemmed native oak measuring a total of 2o-inches at DSH. For a tree with a common root system

that branches at the ground, DSH is defined as the sum ofthe diameter ofthe largest trunk and one-half

the cumulative diameter of the remaining trunks measured at 4.5-ft above natural grade.

A total of 77 trees on the project site are considered protected by Folsom City Code. None of the

Fremont,s cottonwood, Cirinese hackberry, Chinese tallow, mulberry, ornamental cherry or Gooding's

black willow are protected. See Attachment B in Appendix C for additional data on the trees found on

the project site.

Table 7 outlines the number of trees, with their respective DSH, to be impacted or to be retained' The

project includes a total of 111 trees on the project site, of which 77 trees are protected by the Folsom

CitV Coa". Of the totalTT protected trees, 55 protected trees require mitigation (the remaining 12 trees

do not warrant mitigation due to poor health). Underthe proposed project,30 protected trees, with

473.1.-inches at DSH, would be retained. The proposed project would result in direct or indirect impact

of the remaining 47 protected trees, which would require 571.3-inches at DSH of mitigation' However,

the final mitigation for the impact of protected trees is to be determined by the City Arborist prior to

issuance of a City Grading Permit. Please refer to Figure 10 for the Tree lmpact Plan'

Table 7: On-Site Tree Designation

Total Trees
on Proiect
Site

unprotected
Trees

Protected
Trees

Protected
Trees to be
impacted

Protected
Trees to be
retained

Number ttL 34 77 47 30

DSH

linchesl

s71.3 473.1

Based on Figure 10 included in Appendix A.

35

Page 1017

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartmenft ISMND

Evoluotion ol Biologicol Resources

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species

identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or

regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

less than significant with mitigation. The trees and understory grassland areas within the project site

provide suitable nesting habitat for white-tailed kite and other raptors as well as other native birds and

large trees adjacent to the site provide nesting habitat for raptors. Removal of vegetation containing

active nests would potentially result in destruction of eggs and/or chicks; noise, dust, and other

anthropogenic stressors in the vicinity of an active nest could lead to forced nest abandonment and

mortality of eggs and/or chicks. Needless destruction of eggs or chicks would be a violation of the Fish

and Game Code and a significant impact. Pre-construction surveys should be conducted priorto project

implementation to determine if nesting birds are present on or adjacent to the site, so that measures

could be implemented if needed to avoid harming nesting birds. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure

BIO-01would reduce impacts to white-tailed kite and other nesting birds to a less than significant level.

Mitigation Measure BIO{1: Avoid and minimize impacts to white-tailed kite and other nesting birds.

. lf project (construction) ground-disturbing or vegetation clearing and grubbing activities

commence during the avian breeding season (February 1- August 31), a qualified biologist shall

conduct a pre-construction nesting bird survey no more than 14 days priorto initiation of
project activities and again lmmediately prior to construction, The survey area shall include

suitable raptor nesting habitat within 500-ft of the project boundary (inaccessible areas outside

of the project site can be surveyed from the site or from public roads using binoculars or

spotting scopes). Pre-construction surveys are not required in areas where project activities

have been continuous since prior to February 1, as determined by a qualified biologist. Areas

that have been inactive for more than 1.4 days during the avian breeding season must be

resurveyed prior to resumption of project activities. lf no active nests are identified, no further

mitigation is required. lf active nests are identified, the following measure is required:

o A suitable buffer {e.g., 500-ft for raptors; 100-ft for passerines) shall be established by a

qualified biologist around active nests and no construction activities within the buffer

shall be allowed until a qualified biologist has determined that the nest is no longer

active (i.e., the nestlings have fledged and are no longer reliant on the nest, or the nest

has failed). Encroachment into the buffer may occur at the discretion of a qualified

biologist. Any encroachment into the buffer shall be monitored by a qualified biologist

to determine whether nesting birds are being impacted.

With implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-01, impacts to the white-tailed kite and nesting birds

would be less than significant.

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community

identified in local or regional plans, policies or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish

and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

No impact. No riparian habitats, sensitive natural communities, or other protected habitats are located

on or adjacent to the project site. Therefore, no impact would occur.

36

Page 1018

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited

to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or

other means?

Less than significant with mitigation. The 0.04-acre of aquatic features located on the project site are

potentially regulated by the USACE, CVRWQCB, and CDFW under the Clean Water Act, Porter-Cologne

Act, and Section 1600 of the Fish and Game Code. Therefore, removal or fill of the aquatic features

would likely require a permit from these agencies. ln order to avoid impacts to jurisdictionalwetland

and waters, Mitigation Measure Blo-02 would be implemented, mitigating impacts to a less than

significant level.

Mitigation Measure BIO{2: Avoid and minimize impacts to jurisdictional wetland and waters

r prior to start of construction, the project proponent shall either prepare a formal delineation

and submit it to the USACE for verification or obtain verification based on the mapping of

aquatic resources in this report as well as contact the USACE, CVRWQCB, and CDFW to

determine the need for permits and secure any required aquatic resources permits for impacts

to waters of the U.S./5tate from the USACE, CVRWQCB, and CDFW, pursuant to Sections 404

and 401 of the Clean Water Act, the California Water Code, Section 1600 of the Fish and Game

Code, and the State Water Resource Control Board Dredge and Fill Policy. The proiect proponent

shall comply with all conditions of such permits including providing compensatory mitigation at

a minimum 1:1 ratio as required to achieve no net loss of wetlands or other waters.

d) lnterfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species

or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native

wildlife nursery sites?

No impact. The project site is surrounded by development including Prison Road and Folsom State

prison to the north, Cimmaron Circle and single-family homes to the east, PG&E powerlines, single

family homes, and duplexes to the south, and Fargo Way, Office Space, and Folsom City Police

Department to the west. The project site does not provide any wildlife movement corridors or wildlife

nuisery sites. Therefore, there would be no impacts to wildlife corridors or the use of native wildlife

nursery sites as a result of the proposed project.

e) Conflict with any tocal policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree

preservation policY or ordinance?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. of the 111trees on the project site,77 trees are

considered protected by Folsom City Code. lf protected trees will be removed by the proposed project

mitigation will be required per Section 12.16.150'

protected trees rated 3, 4 or 5 shall be replaced at a ratio of one-inch equivalent for every one-inch of

DSH removed as shown in Table 8. Protected trees rated 2 shall be replaced at a ratio of one-half-inch

equivalent for every one inch removed. Protected trees rated 0 or 1 require no replacement or any

other mitigation. Mitigation for trees can be done through on-site replacement planting payment of in

lieu fees, or a combination thereof.

37

Page 1019

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Table 8. Tree Replacement Equivalency Table

Replacement Tree Size DSH Equivalency

A Sampling tree; or 0.5-inch DSH

Tree in container less than 15 0.5-inch DSH

15-gallon container tree l-inch DSH

24-inch boxtree 2-inch DSH

35-inch box tree 3-inch DSH

Of the 77 trees protected by Folsom City Code, only 65 trees require potential mitigation based on

having a health rating of 5,4,3, or 2. Of those 65 trees potentially requiring mitigation, the proposed

project would only result in direct or indirect impact to 47 protected oak trees, which would require

571.3-inches at DSH of mitigation (Table 7). With implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-03,

impacts to protected trees would be less than significant.

Matigation Measure BlO.03: Avoid and minimize impacts to protected trees

a The applicant shall provide mitigation for directly or indirectly impacted oak trees based on

having a health rating of 5,4,3, or 2. Based on the DSH equivalency ratio, the project applicant

shall mitigate for the removal of approximately 47 oak trees (571.3 inches at DSH) that will be

removed with development of the project. Finalmitigation requirements shallbe determined by

the Cpy Arborist upon receipt of final design plans prior to the issuance of a grading permit.

Mitigation for trees shall be done through on-site replacement planting, payment of in-lieu fees

as determined by the City, or a combination thereof-

A Tree Permit Application containing an Application Form, Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan,

and Arborist Report shall be submitted to the City of Folsom by the ownerlapplicant for

issuance of a Tree Work Permit and Tree Removal Permit prior to commencement of any

grading or site improvement activities. The tree protection and mitigation plan shall be prepared

in collaboration w6h a qualified arborist and shall be subject to review and approval by the City'

The tree protection and mitigation plan shall contain the contact information of the project

arborist and shall be included in all associated plan sets forthe project.

Removal of any protected fiee shall be mitigated by planting replacement trees and/or payment

of "ln-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch basis in accordance with FMC.Section 12.16.150. The

proposed method of mitigation shall be subject to review and approval by the City.

prior to starting construction, oak trees to be preserved shall be fenced with high visibility

fencing consistent with the city-approved tree protection and mitigation plan. Parking of

vehicles, equipment, or storage of materials is prohibited within the Tree Protection Zone of
protected Trees at all times. Signs shall be posted on exclusion fencing stating that the enclosed

trees are to be preserved. Signs shall state the penalty for damage to, or removal of, the

protected tree.

The owner/applicant shall retain the services of a project arborist for the duration of the

development project to monitor the health of oak trees to be preserved and carry out the City-

approved tree protection plan. All regulated activity conducted within the Critical Root Zone of
protected trees, as that term is defined in Folso$ Municisal CodelFMC| 12.L6.020, shall be

a

a

a

a

38

Page 1020

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

a

performed under the direct supervision of the project arborist. A copy of the executed contract

for these arboricultural services shall be submitted to the City prior to the issuance of any tree

or grading permits

Certification letters by the project arborist attesting compliance with the tree protection and

mitigation plan and tree permit conditions shall be submitted to the City'

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community

Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

No impact. No Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved

local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan has been approved for the City of Folsom. Therefore,

no impacts to an existing adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or

other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan would occur.

39

Page 1021

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES

Potcntlr[y
$3nmclnt

lnPact

tr3IThrn
$tltmcmt

*tlth
Mhlpdon

lncorporrtcd

lrseThen
Sltnlfrcrnt l{o
lmprct lmpaGt

Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a

historical resource pursuant to 915064.5?
fl ntr

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of
an archaeological resource pursuant to 515064'5?

n I nn
c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred

outside of dedicated cemeteries?
n I fi lf

The discussion below is based on a cultural resources assessment prepared by HELIX Environmental
planning, lnc. (HEtlX 2}22bl, attached to this lnitial Study as Appendix E. This assessment, which

addresses both archaeological and architectural resources, is based on the results ofan archival records

search, Native American coordination, and a pedestrian survey of the project site'

Envlronmenlol Setllng

State and federal legislation require the protection of historical and cultural resources' ln 1971,
president's Executive Order No. 11593 required that all federal agencies initiate procedures to preserve

and maintain cultural resources by nomination and inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places.

In 1980, the Governo/s Executive Order No. B-54-S0 required that state agencies inventory all

"significant historic and cultural sites, structures, and objects under their jurisdiction which are over 50

years of age and which may qualify for listing on the National Register of Historic Places." Section

15054.5(bX1) of the CEQA Guidelines specifies that projects that cause "...physical demolition,

destruction, relocation, or alteration of the resource or its immediate surroundings such that the

significance of an historic resource would be materially impaired" shall be found to have a significant

impact on the environment. For the purposes of CEOA, an historical resource is a resource listed in, or

determined eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources. When a project could

impact a resource, it must be determined whether the resource is an historical resource, which is

defined as a resource that:

(A) is historically or archaeologically signlficant, or is significant in the architectural, engineering,

scientific, economic, agricultural, educational, social, political or cultural annals of California;

and,

(B) Meets any of the following criteria: 1) is associated with events that have made a significant

contribution to the broad patterns of California's history and cultural heritage; 2) is associated

with the lives of persons important in our past; 3) embodies the distinctive characteristics of a

type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of an important creative

individual, or possesses high artistic values; or 4) has yielded, or may be likely to yield,

information important in prehistory or history. The City of Folsom Standard Construction

Specifications were developed and approved by the City of Folsom in May 2004 and updated in

40

Page 1022

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

April 2015. They include Article 11 - Cultural Resources, which provides direction on actions to
be taken in the event that materials are discovered that may ultimately be identified as a

historical or archaeological resource, or human remains (City of Folsom 20L5).

Cultural Background

The following is a brief overview of the prehistory, ethnography, and historic background of the project

area intended to provide a historical context for cultural resources that might be found in the vicinity of
the APE. This section is not intended to be a comprehensive review of the current resources available;

rather, it serves as a general overview of human occupations and uses of the general project vicinity.

Further details can be found in ethnographic studies, mission records, arid major published sources,

including Beardsley (1948), Bennyhoff (1950, 1954, t977), Fredrickson (1973 and t9741, Kroeber {1925),

Chartkoff and Chartkoff (1984), and Moratto {1984}'

Prehistoric Background

Early archaeological investigations in central California were conducted at sites located in the

Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta region. The first published account documents investigations in the Lodi

and Stockton area (schenck and Dawson 1929). The initial archaeological reports typically contained

descriptive narratives, with more systematic approaches sponsored by Sacramento Junior College in the

1930s. At the same time, University of California at Berkeley excavated several sites in the lower

Sacramento Valley and Delta region, which resulted in recognizing archaeological site patterns based on

variations of inter-site assemblages. Research during the 1930s identified temporal periods in central

California prehistory and provided an initial chronological sequence (Lillard and Purves 1936; Lillard et

al. 1939). tn 1939, Lillard noted that each cultural period led directly to the next and that influences

spread from the Delta region to other regions in central California {Lillard et al. 1939). ln the late 1940s

and early 1950s, Beardsley documented similarities in artifacts among sites in the San Francisco Bay

region and the Delta and refined his findings into a cultural modelthat ultimately became known as the

CentralCalifornia Taxonomic System (CC[S). This system proposed a uniform, linear sequence of cultural

succession (Beardsley 1.948 and 1954). The CCTS system was challenged by Gerow, whose work looked

at radiocarbon dating to show that Early and Middle Horizon sites were not subsequent developments

but, at least partially, contemporaneous {Gerow 1954, L974; Gerow and Force 1968).

To address some of the flaws in the CCTS system, Fredrickson {1973) introduced a revision that
incorporated a system of spatial and cultural integrative units. Fredrickson separated cultural, temporal,

and spatial units from each other and assigned them to six chronological periods: Paleo-lndian (10000 to
6000 B.C.); Lower, Middle and Upper Archaic (6000 B.C. to A.D. 500), and Emergent (Upper and Lower,

A.D. 500 to 1800). The suggested temporal ranges are like earlier horizons, which are broad cultural

units that can be arranged in a temporal sequence (Moratto 1984). ln addition, Fredrickson defined

several patterns-a general way of life shared within a specific geographical region. These patterns

include:

. Windmiller Pattern or Early Horizon (3000 to 1000 B.C.);

. Berkeley Pattern or Middle Horizon {1000 B.C. to A.D' 500}; and,

. Augustine Pattern or Late Horizon (A'D' 500 to historic period).

Brief descriptions of these temporal ranges and their unique characteristics are presented below.

4l

Page 1023

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Windmiller Pattern or Early Horizon F0aO b nOO 8.C.)

The Windmiller Pattern, or, the Early Horizon culture, was centered in the Cosumnes district of the Delta

and emphasized hunting rather than gathering, as evidenced by the abundance of projectile points in

relation to plant processing tools. Additionally, atlatl, dart, and spear technologies used typically

included stemmed projectile points of slate and chert. Obsidian projectile points, however, are sparingly

found on Windmiller sites. The large variety of projectile point types and faunal remains suggests

exploitation of numerous types of terrestrial and aquatic species (Bennyhoff 1950; Ragir 1972). Burials

occurred in cemeteries and intra-village graves. These burials typically were ventrally e*ended,

although some dorsal extensions are known with a westerly orientation and a high number of grave

goods. Trade networks focused on acquisition of ornamental and ceremonial objects in finished form

rather than as raw material. The presence of artifacts made of exotic materials such as quartz, obsidian,

and shell indicate an extensive trade network that may represent the arrival of Utian populations into

central California. Also indicative of this period are rectangular Haliotis and Olivello shell beads, and

charmstones that usually were perforated.

Berketey Pottern or Middte Horizon (n0A B.C' to A'D. 5N) 
,

The Middle Horizon is characterized by the Berkeley Pattern, which displays considerable changes from

the Early Horizon. This period exhibited a strong milling technology represented by minimally shaped

cobble mortars and pestles, although metates and manos were still used. Dart and atlatl technologies

during this period were characterized by non-stemmed projectile points made primarily of obsidian.

Fredrickson (1973)suggests that the Berkeley Pattern marked the eastward expansion of Mi-Wuk

groups from the San Francisco Bay Area. Compared with the Early Horizon there is a higher proportion

of grinding implements at this time, implying an emphasis on plant resources rather than on hunting.

Typical burials occurred within the village with flexed positions, variable cardinalorientation, and some

cremations. As noted by Lillard, the practice of spreading ground ochre over the burial was common at

this time (Llllard et al. 1939). Grave goods during this period are generally sparse and typically include

only utilitarian items and a few ornamental objects. However, objects such as charmstones, quartz

crystals, and bone whistles occasionally were present, which suggest the religious or ceremoniai

significance of the individual (Hughes 1994). During this period, larger populations are suggested by the

number and depth of sites compared with the Windmiller Pattern. According to Fredrickson (19731'

the Berkeley Pattern reflects gradual expansion or assimilation of different populations rather than

sudden population replacement and a gradual shift in economic emphasis,

Augustine Pdttern or Lote Harizon (A.D. 500 to Historic Period)

The Late Horizon is characterized by the Augustine Pattern, which represents a shift in the general

subsistence pattern. Changes include the introduction of bow and arrow technology; most importantly,

acorns became the predominant food resource. Trade systems expanded to include raw resources as

well as finished products, There are more baked clay artifacts and extensive use of Holiotis ornaments of

many elaborate shapes and forms. Burial patterns retained the use of flexed burials with variable

orientation, but there was a reduction in the use of ochre and widespread evidence of cremation

(Moratto 1984). Judging from the number and types of grave goods associated with the two types of

burials, cremation seems to have been reserved for individuals of higher status, whereas other

individuals were buried in flexed positions. Johnson (1976) suggests that the Augustine Pattern

represents expansion of the Wintuan population from the north, which resulted in combining new traits

with those established during the Berkeley Pattern.

42

Page 1024

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Central California research has expanded from an emphasis on defining chronological and cultural units

to a more comprehensive look at settlement and subsistence systems. This shift is illustrated by the

early use of burials to identify mortuary assemblages and more recent research using osteological data

to determine the health of prehistoric populations {Dickel et al. 1984}, Although debate continues over a

single model or sequence for central California, the general framework consisting of three

tempora/cultural units is generally accepted. Having said that, the identification of regional and local

variation remains a major goal of current archaeological research,

Ethnographic Background

The cultural groups that occupied the project area at the time of Euro-American contact around 1845

are the Southern Maidu, sometimes called the Nisenan. This group speaks a language related to the

Penutian stock, and it is generally agreed that they entered the region sometime after 1750 AD, and that

their territory included the Bear River, American River, Yuba River, and southern portions of the Feather

River drainages (Wilson and Towne 1978:387). Southern Maidu settlements were often located on

ridges that separated parallel streams, or terraces located part way up slopes (Kroeber 1925)'

The Southern Maidu village of Yodok was thought to have been originally located on the south side of

the American River, in the approximate vicinity of the current town of Folsom (Kroeber 1925:394). Later

ethnographers however, depict the village on the north side of the river (Bennyhoff t977:L25, L65;

Wilson and Towne 1978:388), close to the present-day location of the Cliff House Restaurant (located at

9900 Greenback Lane). lt is suspected that additional large settlements existed in the region prior to

Euromerican contact which went undocumented due to the speed with which the Southern Maidu way

of life was impacted by white settler colonialism.

Ethnographic descriptions ofthe Southern Maidu suSgest a varied subsistence strategy based on the

exploitation of available resources. They hunted a variety of large and small mammals, {including deer,

bear, elk, antelope, and rabbit), fish (salmon, trout, and eel), and birds (waterfowl, crows, and plgeons),

and gathered numerous edible seeds, nuts, berries, herbs, and native fruits (Kroeber 1925). The Maidu

were nomadic throughout the year, following game and gathering plants. Population movements were

predicated upon the changes of seasons in an effort to make subsistence gathering easier. Winter

villages were formed atong drainages at elevations below 2,500-ft (Johnson t982:74'751. Spring,

summer, and early fall were spent at higher elevation camps, where resources were gathered, prepared,

and stored for winter (Wilson and Towne 1978:388)'

Maidu dwellings include a conical structure built out of poles thatched with bark, sticks, leaves, and pine

needles. These structures were often built on top of shallowly excavated pits, with dirt built up around

their perimeters. These structures measured between 10- and 15-ft in diameter. Larger Maidu villages

often included dance houses, which measured between 20- and 40-ft in diameter, as well as other

larger structures which functioned as sweat houses and lodges. These larger structures extended down

into the subsurface, with 10- to 20-ft high posts used to support a domed roof which consisted of
poles and thatched sticks, bark, and pine needles. An outer layer of earth, measuring roughly L-foot

thick, was used to sealthe structure against the elements (Kroeber 1925:407-408).

The epidemic of 1833, which was brought by Euromericans into the Folsom area, had terrible impacts on

local Maidu populations. Thought to be malaria, this epidemic is estimated to have killed up to 75

percent of the Sacramento Valley native population, Maidu included. Another major impact to the

Maidu way of life came with the discovery of gold in Coloma in 1848. This prompted thousands of

43

Page 1025

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

miners to move into the region and stake claims for mining operations. This carving up of territory on

maps was quickly followed by the removal of $ees, and the diversion of rivers and creeks from their

natural beds, resulting in the siltation of local streams. Beyond the environmental degradations these

activities caused, mining operations radically reduced the hunting and gathering territories of the Maidu

and other native American groups all but extinguishing their means of maintaining self-sufficient levels

of food collection/production as well as their capacity to collect materials used in the crafting of tools,

structures, trade goods, and medicalsupplies (Levy 1978, Wilson and Towne 1978). By the 187Os, the

surviving Maidu were largely working in Euro-American owned mines and ranches or working as day

laborers in industrialor agricultural settings (Powers 1975). Still, Maidu people continue to live in the

region to this day, and are striving to maintain, reinvigorate, and safeguard their cultural heritage and

traditional practices.

Historic Background

The first Europeans to visit the interior of California were Spanish expeditions launched to recapture

Native Americans who had escaped from the rule of coastal missions (Heizer and Almquist 1971,

McGruder 1950, Napton 1997:6). Catholic missions were the hallmark of the Spanish Period (1796-L8221

in California, during which time 21 missions were established by the Franciscan Order along the coast

between San Diego {among the earliest of missions) and San Francisco. Among the first Europeans to

formally explore the Central Valley was Lieutenant Gabriel Moraga, who led excursions in the area

between 1806 and 1808 to examine the area's main water ways including what we today call the

American, Calaveras, Cosumnes, Feather, Merced, Mokelumne, Sacramento, San Joaquin, and Stanislaus

rivers. ln 1813, Moraga again ventured into the Central Valley, this time focusing on the south, and

coined the name of the san Joaquin River (Hoover et al. 2002:359). Luis Arguello led the last of the

Spanish expeditions into the CentralValley in 1817 when he traveled up the Sacr0mento River, past

current day Sacrarnento, and into the mouth of the Feather River before turning back to the coast (Beck

and Haase !974:L8,20, Grunsky 1.989:3-4)'

The Mexican Revolution, which took place between 1.81-0 and 1821, resulted in the end of Spanish rule

in modern day California and ushered in Mexican governance in the area, which was marked by an

extensive issuance of land grants, mostly of lands in the interior of the state, Californios (or Mexican

Citizens in California who were given land grants) were given locations by the Mexican Republic in the

interior, with the goal of increasing populations in areas further from the coast where Spanish era

settlements had already been established and developed into bustling areas of commerce.

Settlement of the Sacramento area began by late 1830s and early 1840s, when entrepreneurs such as

John Sutter and Jared Sheldon obtained land grants from the Mexican government in exchange for an

agreement to protect Mexican interest in these remote regions. ln 1839, John Sutter built the earliest

Euro-American settlement within Sacramento County. Named Sutter's Fort, it was well known outpost

that brought with it an increase in Euro-American trappers, hunters, and settlers to the Sacramento

area. John Sutter also founded New Helvetia, a trading and agricultural outfit, that was based out of

Sutter,s Fort, close to the location where the Sacramento and American rivers split, near today's City of

Sacramento (Hoover et al. 2002)'

The Mexican period was also characterized by exploration of the western Sierra Nevada mountain range

by American fur trappers and later, miners. Jedediah Smith, an American trapper, is known to have

explored the Sierra Nevadas in 1826 and 1827, entering the Sacramento Valley and traveling along the

American and Cosumnes rivers and through the San Joaquin Valley. Soon after other trappers ventured

44

Page 1026

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

into the area, including those involved with the Hudson's Bay Company in 1832 (Hoover et al. 2002:370).

ColonelJ. Warner is also known to have traveled with the Ewing-Young trapping expeditlon which

passed through the CentralValley in 1832 and 1833 (Gilbert L879:11).

The American period in California began in 1848 with the end the Mexican American War (1846 - 1848),

and the ensuing Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo which officially made California a territory of the United

States. Soon after, gold was discovered at Sutter/s Mill, located along the American River in Coloma. By

1849 over 80,000 people had emigrated to try and stake their claims and strike it rich in the California

Gold Rush. Due to this population boom, and the industries that popped up as a result, California was

made the 31rt state of the United States in 185O and by 1854, the bustling town of Sacramento was

made the state capital.

Local History

The City of Folsom was named after Captain Joseph Libbey Folsom, a West Point graduate who arrived

in California in L847 to serve as Quartermaster in San Francisco. ln 1848 Captain Folsom purchased a

35,000-acre Mexican land grant located just to the east of John Sutter's land grant and hired Theodore

Judah, a railway engineer, and surveyor, to lay out a town initially named Granite City. After Captain

Folsom's death in July 19, 1885, his executors changed the town name to Folsom (Gudde 1998). The

history of the city is steeped in the development of the mining and transportation industries, and later

was heavily influenced by the development of the Folsom Prison and hydroelectric dams.

Mormon Bar, located just a few miles east of Folsom, was the second major gold find within California

and by the spring of 1848 a group of Mormons had developed mining operations in the area (Hoover et

al. 1990, The Telegraph 1956:8). These efforts were soon followed by the exploration of the other gravel

bars along the American River; by 1849 mining works were established between Mormon lsland and

Mississippi Bar, including Alabama Bar, Slate Bar, Beam or Bean's Bar, and Sailor Bar. Other nearby

mining camps included Texas Hill, just south of present-day Folsom and Big Gulch mining camp, north

along the American River (Hoover et al. 1990:289). Negro Bar was also located on the American River,

near present day Decatur and Reading streets, and was first mined by Afro-Americans in 1849, The

community that sprang up around Negro Bar began within the current townsite of Folsom and extended

almost a mile downstream. These works, camps, and residences housed some 700 inhabitants as of
1851, and the settlements included two generalstores and two hotels {Gudde t975:235, Hoover et al.

1990:289). ln 1852, however, a massive flood on the river forced a relocation of the community onto the

bluffs above the bar (6udde 1975).

ln 1851, check dams were built by the Natomas Water and Mining Company on the South Fork American

River two miles above Salmon Falls to facilitate the supply of water for mining operations in the growing

Folsom Mining District. By 1854 these dams diverted water across 20-miles of ditches and sluice gates

that supplied the Folsom area, and included a main canalthat reached Prairie City to the south (Barrows

1966, Reed 1923:130, Thompson and West 1880). The area saw an infusion of Chinese immigrants

around 1850, with many of them hired to help build the ditches and dams for the Natomas Company.

Some also established themselves in the Folsom area by reworking abandoned claims and tailings piles

{Barrows L966:70-7\,Thompson and West 1880}. By the mid-1850s there were over 1,200 Chinese

living in the area, primarily working as miners.

Mining in the area persisted through the 1960s, though to a far lesser extent than the mining boom in

the 1850s. these efforts included placer and drift mining ventures near Alder Creek and Willow Springs,

45

Page 1027

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

at the Golden Treasure Mine close to Leidersdorff Street, at the White and Donnelly Gravel Mine

between Leidesdorff and Sutter Street, and at Wool and Reading streets (Maniery and Syda 1991:25).

Dredge mining the American River was first attempted by W. P. Bonright and Company when they

obtained title and rights to the Mississippi Bar (Barrows 1955:54-55). By the 1900s and 1910s several

companies seeking to emulate the successes of the Bonright dredging endeavor moved into the region,

with some working the gravels at Sailor Bar and Texas Hill (The Telegraph, May 30, 1903). Mining

remained the primary focus on the Folsom economy until the 1940s, when the federal government

placed a moratorium on the mining of non-essential metals as a result of the outbreak of World War ll'

Though mining/dredging operations resumed after the war in L945, the returns proved to be not nearly

as profitable as they had in earlier years. The last mining enterprise in the region halted operations in

1962 (Barrows 1"966).

ln 1852 the Sacramento Valley Railroad Company (SVRR) was developed to build a rail line between

Sacramento and Negro Bar. The route was surveyed and laid in 1854. Construction began in 1855 and

completed by 1855, making it the first line completed in California (Barrows 1965:L5, Reed 1.923:130). A

terminus for the SVRR was built in Folsom near already established hotels and stores' The railway

opened on February 22, t856 and quickly made Folsom a transportation center for freight and

passengers who needed to push further into the California interior, or to arrive in Sacramento for

shipment by boat to San Francisco and then elsewhere. Many would arrive in Folsom to stage voyages

to Sonora, placerville, Auburn, and Marysville (Thompson and West 1880:223). As a result Folsom grew

along with the railroad traffic, with the years between 1856 and 1865 characterized by the development

of hotels, houses, churches, an academy, and businesses including a flour mill, and the Folsom Telegraph

building (Thompson and West 1880:223). A series of fires (two in 1871, one in L872, and another in

1888) destroyed a tremendous amount of property in the area, but each time the city's business district

found ways to quickly bounce back with the construction of larger and grander buildings.

ln the 1870s Folsom also saw an increase in agricultural activity as the Natoma Water and Mining

Company began renting out large swaths of their property for use as vineyards, gardens, and orchards

(Reed 1923:130), Chinese, Native Americans, Portuguese, ltalians, and African Americans worked in

these agricultural fields and took on the roles of cook, laborers, and handymen in the Folsom area.

Growth in the area was also spurred in the 1870s and 1880s by the opening of Folsom State prison in

1878. This prison remains a major employer for the town through the present day'

Originally intended to house the surplus of criminals held at 5an Quentin prison, construction began on

the Folsom Prison in 1874, with the efforts largely supplied by local Folsom businesses. The prison was

built on land owned by the Natoma Water and Mining company. ln exchange for the state gaining

possession of the land, convict labor was to be used to construct a dam for the company {Barrows

1966:771. A railroad spur intended to supply the new prison facility was built along the south bank of the

American River and extended to the intended dam site. The first cell block was completed in 1880

promptlng the first transfe r oI 44 convicts from San Quentin. These men were soon put to work building

an additional cellhouse and the dam for the Natoma Company. These buildings were made with granite

quarried from the prison grounds, and as the prison was expanded, so was the prisoner population' The

prison was unique in that it had an electric power plant on the grounds to power interior lighting and

the arc-lights that illuminated the boundaries of the prison grounds {Barrows 1.955:78)' Convict labor

from the prison was used to build the Folsom dam as intended, which led to the development of the

nearby hydroelectric pla nt.

The dam and the first half-mile of the associated canal were completed in 1893. Soon after log booms

46

Page 1028

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senio. Apartments ISMND

were constructed so that logs could be floated through the power canal and to a milling pond and

sawmill near Folsom. These logging businesses were operated by the American River Land and Lumber

Company which were affiliated with the Natoma Company (Barrows 1965). By 1895, a hydroelectric

system consisting of a two-story powerhouse, intake gates, penstocks, McCormick turbines, and GE

generators was completed. Once operational, this powerhouse brought electric current through

transmission lines to Sacramento, forming the longest transmission line in the world at the time
(Barrows 1966:23), This hydroelectric system was continuously upgraded and remained in use until 1952

when the Folsom Dam was demolished in anticipation of the construction of a new dam further
upstream.

ln the latter half of the 20tr century the City of Folsom continued to expand and grow. The new Folsom

Dam project began in 1952 and was completed by 1956. This new dam was built to control flooding in

Sacramento and to provide hydroelectric power to nearby cities. ln the 1960s, musician Johnny Cash

brought fame to the city and the Folsom Prison, with his hit single "Folsom Prison Blues" and the

subsequent recording of an album on the prison grounds in 1968. ln 1982 lntel Corporation, the

computer hardware company, made Folsom its home and purchased 234 acres to set up offices,

warehouses and manufacturing center. Today the 1.5 million square foot lntel campus employs over

5,000 employees and is the single largest employer in the city. ln more recent decades, especially the

1990s, Folsom has been the site of rapid expansion, as the suburbs of Sacramento spread out into the

Folsom city limits. As of the 2020 census, Folsom is home to some 80,454 residents. This recent growth

has spurred the development of numerous residential neighborhoods, apartment complexes and

shopping centers.

Cullurol Resource Record Seorch

Previous Studies

On January 2I,2A22, a records search addressing the APE and a 0.50-mile radius beyond the APE

boundaries was conducted by the North Central lnformation Center (NCIC) at California State University,

Sacramento. The purpose of the records search was to: (1) identify prehistoric and historic resources

previously documented in the APE and within 0.5-mile of APE boundaries; (2)determine which portions

of the ApE may have been previously studied, when those studies took place, and how the studies were

conducted; and, (3) ascertain the potential for archaeological resources, historical resources, and human

remains to be found in the APE. This search also included a review of the appropriate USGS topographic

maps on which cultural resources are plotted, archaeological site records, building/structure/object

records, and data from previous surueys and research reports. The California Points of Historical

lnterest, the California Historical Landmarks, the NRHP, the CRHR, and the California State Historic

Resources lnventory listings were also reviewed to ascertain the presence of designated, evaluated,

andlor historic-era resources within the APE. Historical maps and historical aerial photographs of the

area were also examined {NETROnline2O22l.

The cultural resources records search identified 1.0 studies that have previously been conducted within a

O.S-mile radius of the APE (Table 9). Of these, two studies overlapped with the current APE for at least

part of their survey area; these include report numbers 004508 (Maniery 1993) and 004509 (Maniery

and Syda 1991). Brief summaries of the reports pertaining to surveys that overlapped with the current

APE are provided below Table 9'

47

Page 1029

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vinta8e at Folsom Senior Apa.tments ISMND

Table g.Previous Studies Conducted within 0.5-Mile of the APE

Report

004508

004509

0001s5

001837

003751

005933

011288

011533

011755

Tltle

Determination of Effect, American

River Bridge Crossing Project, City of
Folsom, Sacramento County,

California

Cultural Resources lnvestigation for
the American River Bridge Crossing

Project, City of Folsom, Sacramento

Cou California

An Archaeological Survey of the Oak

Avenue Parkway, Ashland Water

Transmission Main and Storage, Blue

Ravine Water Transmission Main,

and the Lew Howard MemorialPark
for the City of Folsom, Sacramento

California
Archaeologlcal SurveY for the

Proposed Natoma PiPeline

Expansion, Folsom Dam to the CitY

of Folsom Water Treatment Plant

Nextel Communications (on-air) CA-

O2O5A lWest Folsom Entrance Road

to Folsom State Prison

Cultural Resources lnvestigation for
the Folsom Sanitary Sewer

Rehabilitation Project- Phase 1

Fo CA

Su pplemental Historic Property

Suruey Report for the JohnnY Cash

Class 1 Bicycle Trail, City of Folsom,

California Federal Project No. 5288

Cultu ral Resources Records Search

and Site Visit Results for T-Mobile

West, LLC Candidate SC 14633A (East

Natoma & Randall), 235 Marchant

Drive, Folsom, Sacramento County,

California

Cultural Resources Survey of Folsom

Zoo, Sacramento CountY, California

Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing,

Draft lnitialstudy & Environmental
Evaluation

lncludes
APE?

Aff,llatlonAuthorlslYear

Yes
PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc,

Maniery,
Mary L.

1993

Yes
PAR

Environmental
Seruices, lnc.

1991

Maniery,
Mary L. and

Keith A. Syda

No

Archaeology
Study Center,

CSU

Sacramento

L977
Greenway,

Gregory

No

Sharon

Waechter
Waechter,

Sharon1997

No

EarthTouch, LLC
Billat, Lorna

Beth
2001

No
PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

1998

Maniery,
Mary L. and

Cindy Baker

No

PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

PAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

2013

No

Environmental
Assessment

Specialist, lnc.

Wills, Carrie

D, and

Kathleen A.

Crawford

20t4

NoPAR

Environmental
Services, lnc.

Allen, Josh20L5

NoHELIX

Environmental
Planning lnc.

Wills, Carrie2015013383

48

Page 1030

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

Source: Helix 2022b'

Report q,450s - Determination of Effect, American River Bridge crossing Praiect, city of Folsom,

Sacromento County, Cotiforniawas written by Mary'1. Maniery in 1993' The American River Bridge

Crossing project ApE consisted of four linear alignments or alternatives that extended {east to west)

from near the current Folsom Dam, to downstream of the existing Rainbow Bridge. lntersection

improvements and road widening activities were also planned as part of the project. The survey area

covered for this effort encompasied four possible alignments {referred to in the report as "alternatives")

for a bridge that would be built across the American River. The records searches and surveys conducted

for these alternative alignments encountered 10 historic period cultural resources including Folsom's

,,Chinatown,, district (CA-SaC-+ZO-H), the Sacramento Valley Railroad (CA-SAC-428-H), the Folsom

Hydroelectric system (cA-sAc-42g-H), the Folsom powerhouses (National Historac Landmark/cHL fl533),

nainUow Bridge {Bridg efi246-67),and several individual built resources on APNs 070-0113-001, 070-

0105-012, 070-0010-019,070-0010-01g and 070-0091-007. However, none ofthe identified resources

fall within the currently proposed APE, nor are any of these resources anticipated to be affected by the

currentlY ProPosed undertaking.

Report @4509 - Culturol Resources lnvestigation for the American River Bridge Crossing Proiect, City of

Foisom, Sacramento County, Colifarnia,was written my Mary L. Maniery and Keith A' Syda in 199L'

Similar to report 004508, this cultural resource investigation examined four linear alignments or

alternatives for a proposed bridge that would cross the American River, as well as associated road

improvements that extended {east to west} from near the current Folsom Dam to downstream of the

existing Rainbow Bridge. The investigation identified 13 archaeologicalsites, five isolated artifacts, and

55 historic structures. None of the resources identified during the records searches or pedestrian

surveys covered within this report fall within the currently proposed APE, and none of the resources

mentioned in the report are anticipated to be affected by the current undertaking'

Previously Recorded Searches

The records search revealed that elements of one cultural resource, the Folsom Mining District {P-34-

000335 / CA-SAC-00030gH) may be present within the APE, and that eight previously recorded cultural

resources lie within 0.5-miie of the ApE. A brief descrlption of resource P-34-000335 {cA-sAc-000308H)

is provided below Table 10.

p-34{m335 {CA-SAC,(FO30SHf : Most recently updated by coleman, Talcott, and wolpert of Solano

Archaeological services, this resource, known as the Folsom Mining District, ls comprised of a variety of

elements from the region's historic mining period (spanning from the 1840s through the mid-twentieth

century) including mines, quarries, tailings, mining equipment, habitation sites, roads, railroad grades'

water conveyances, and structural foundations. The results of HELIX's records search indicated that

elements of this historic district could be present within the currently proposed APE. Nclc records

suggest that the Folsom Mining District taken as a unified entity has been determined to be ineligible for

list-ing on the NRHp and cRHR, but that individual elements within the district may be eligible for listing

and tJrat they should be evaluated as eligible or ineligible on a case-by-case basis'

49

Page 1031

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

RccorderTrlnomlal Year

cA-sAc-0 00308H 1969 K. G. S.

n/a 1990
Syda, K., and C.

Thomas

n/a 1990
Syda, K., and C.

Thomas

n/a 1990
Syda, K., and C.

Thomas

cA-sAc-000424 1990
Syda, K., and C.

Thomas

cA-sAc-000425 1990
Syda, K., and C.

Thomas

1989
Gerry, R., and M.
Peak

cA-sAc-000429H

nla 2At4 Crawford, K. A,

20t7
Appleby, Richard
AllencA-sAc-000425

Table 10. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources withln O.5-Mile of the APE

Prlm.ry

P-34-000335

P-34-0000,16

P-34-000017

P-34-000018

P-34-0004s1

P-34-0004s2

P-34-000456

P-34-005017

P-34-005119

Historic period district- Folsom

Mining District, several
incorporating elements including
foundations and structure pads, a

water conveyance system, mines,
and

Prehistoric period isolate - Mano

Prehistoric period isolate - Pestle

Historic period site- Concrete
rubble and 3 quarried granite
blocks

Historic period site - Water
conveyance system, associated
with Folsom Mi District
Prehistoric period site - Lithic
scatter
Historic period site - Water
conveyance system,
roads/trails/ra ilroad grades,

da and stand structures
Historic period site - 1960s PG&E

Tower constructed with bolted
steel L-shaped profiles and cross
arms

Historic period site - Folsom State
Prison Railroad, no longer extant,
plotted route appears on 1892
USGS ma

Source: HELIX 2022b

Historic Maps and Aerial Photographs

Historic maps and aerial photographs examined for this review include plat maps from 1857 and 1856;

Folsom USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle maps from 1914, L944,1954, and 1967; and a series of aerial
photographs dating from 1952 through 2018 (NETROnline 2022). The plat maps and US65 quadrangle

maps reveal no signs of development of the APE through 1957" The aerfalphotograph series of the AFF

reveals the development of Natoma Street by 1952 and several dirt roads to the south\,vest of the AFE.

By 1964, the area adjacent south of the APE has been further developed wlth paved roads and the
construction of a few residential houses. By 1993 development in the area increated considerably, with
residential construction having taken place to the northeast, east, south, southwest, and northwest of
the APE. Due north of the APE, however, the land remained undeveloped save for the paved road that
leads to the Folsom prison located 2.5-miles north of the APE. Despite these developments in the

50

Page 1032

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

vicinity of the APE throughout the 20th century, the aerial photography analysis sugBests that no

developments took place within the curently proposed APE (NETROnline 2022).

Nolive Amerlcon Heritoge Commicsion Socled Londs File Seorch

On January 2L,2022, HELIX requested thatthe NAHC conduct a search oftheirSacred Lands File {SLF)

for the presence of Native American sacred sites or human remains in the vicinity of the proposed

project area. On February 9,2A22 HELIX received a response from the NAHC that indicated the SLF

search returned negative results but that the absence of specific site information in the SLF does not

necessarily indicate the absence of cultural resources within the project area, As a result, the letter

recommended that HEUX reach out to 10 Native American tribal representatives (Appendix E) who may

also have knowledge of cultural resources in the project area. The recommended points of contact with

Native American Tribes included:

. Dahlton Brown, Director of Administratio0, Wilton Rancheria

. Grayson Coney, Cultural Director, Tsi Akim Maidu

. Pamela Cubbler, Treasurer, Colfax-Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe

. Regina Cuellar, Chairperson, lone Band of Miwok lndians

. Sara A. Dutschke, Chairperson, lone Band of Miwok lndians

. Steven Hutchason, Tribal Historic Preservation Office, Wilton Rancheria

r Rhonda Morningstar Pope, Chairperson, Buena Vista Rancheria of Me-Wuk lndians
. Clyde Prout, Chairperson, Colfax-Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe
. Jesus Tarango, Chairperson, Wilton Rancheria
. Gene Whitehouse, Chairperson, United Auburn lndian Community of the Auburn

Rancheria

HELIX sent letters to these tribal representatives on February tA,2022. As of the date of this report no

responses have been received.

Pedeslrlon Survey

HELIX Staff Archaeologist, Jentin Joe, surveyed the undertaking's APE on February 8,2022. The survey

involved the systematic investigation of the APE's ground surface by walking in parallel 10-meter (m)

transects. During the survey the ground surface was examined for artifacts (e'9., flaked stone tools,

tool-making debris, stone milling tools, fire-affected rock, prehistoric ceramics), soil discoloration that

might indicate the presence of a prehistoric cultural midden, soil depressions, and features indicative of

the former presence of structu res or buildings {e.g., standing exterior walls, postholes, foundations,

wells) or historic debris (e.g., metal, glass, ceramics). Ground disturbances such as gopher holes,

burrows, cut banks, and drainage banks were also visually inspected. Representative survey

photographs are found in Appendix E.

The topography of the APE is largely flat, with small rises in elevation in the northeast which dip down to

a small creek which lies along the north boundary of the property and runs east to west. The APE is

bounded by residential neighborhoods to the south, and east, a small business center to the west, and

by Natoma Street to the north, with the Folsom Prison property just north of Natoma Street. The APE is

mostly covered in oak trees and tall grasses, and the surveyor encountered fairly poor surface visibility

(10 percent or less) with the exception of exposed patches of the ground surface that have been

51

Page 1033

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments ISMND

modified (photograph 1). These patches have clearly been disturbed and reveal light brown, loamy soils

with few inclusions. The patches are signs of significant and recent ground disturbance in the form of

excavations and earthen works that appear to have been designed to create an informal mountain

biking trail/racing course (Photograph 2). The surveyor also found a great deal of modern trash on the

site, j'ncluding planks of wood, scraps of plastic, and a discarded mattress (Photograph 3). To the west is

a walking trail that extends just outside the southern boundary of the APE'

No prehistoric or historic-era materials or features were observed during HELIX's intensive pedestrian

suruey of the APE.

Evqluollon of Cullurql Resources

a) cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to $15064'5?

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to

$15064.5?

Less than significant impact with mititation.

The results of this Cultural Resources Assessment indicate that there are no known or newly discovered

cultural resources within the ApE, prompting HELIX to recommend that the area is not likely to contain

surface based archaeological deposits. Although the NCIC records search indicated that elements of

district p-34-000335 (the Folsom Mining District) may potentially be located within the current APE, no

traces of the district were found during HELIX's pedestrian survey of the project area. As a result, the

current project is anticipated to have no impacts on district P-34-000335.

Based on the results of HELIX's cultural resource assessment the APE can be assumed to have a low

sensitivity for surficial cultural resources and this project is anticipated to have no impacts to historical

resources for the purposes of compliance with both section 106 of the NHPA and CEQA' The

recommendations provided beloware intended to minimize the potentialfor buried and undocumented

cultural resources to be significantly impacted during project implementation.

Consequently, HELIX recommends that there would be no effect on historic properties or historical

resources, including archaeological and built-environment resources as a result of project

implementation. No additional studies, archaeological work, or construction monitoring are

recommended. However, in light of the presence of prehistoric resources within the study area {P-34-

0000016 and p-34-000017) and the potential presence of elements of district P-34-000335 to lie within

the study area, HELIX recommends that the Mitigation Measure CUL-01 and CUL-02 outlined below be

implemented in the unlikely event that cultural fesources are encountered during construction' lf

historical or archaeological resources are discovered, implementation of Mitigation Measure cU[-01 and

Mitigation Measure cuL-oz would reduce any potential impact to a less than significant level for

questions a) and b)'

Mitigation Measure CUL-01: lnadvertent Discovery

ln the event that cultural resources are exposed during ground-disturbing activities,

construction activities should be halted within 100-ft of the discovery. cultural resources could

consist of but are not limited to stone, bone, wood, or shell artifacts, or features including

a

52

Page 1034

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior APartments IsMND

hearths, structural remains, or historic dumpsites. lf the resources cannot be avoided during the

remainder of construction, an archaeologist who meets the secretary of the lnterior's

professional eualifications Standards should then be retained, in coordination with USACE and

the city, to assess the resource and provide appropriate management recommendations' lf the

discovery proves to be NRHP- and/or cRHR-eligible, additional work, such as data recovery

excavation, may be warranted and should be discussed in consultation with USACE and the City'

Matiption Measure CUL-02: Worker Awareness Training Program

r All construction personnel involved in ground disturbing activities shall be trained in the

recognition of possible cultural resources and protection of such resources. The training will

inform all construction personnel of the procedures to be followed upon the discovery of

archaeological materials, including Native American burials. Construction personnel will be

instructed that cultural resources must be avoided and that all travel and construction activity

must be confined to designated roads and areas. The training will include a review of the local,

state, and federal laws and regulations related to cultural resources, as well as instructions on

the procedures to be implemented should unanticipated resources be encountered during

construction, including siopping work in the vicinity of the find and contacting the appropriate

environmental compliance specialist'

c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. No human remains are known to exist within the project

area nor were there any indication, oihumtn remains found during the field survey' However, there is

always the possibility that subsurface construction activities associated with the proposed project, such

as trenching and grading, could potentially damage or destroy previously undiscovered human remains'

This is a potentlally significant impact. However, if human remains are discovered, implementation of

Mitigation Measure cul-02 and Mitigation Measure cuL-03 would reduce this potential impact to a less

than significant level,

Mitigatlon Measure CUL-03: Treatment of Human Remains

r Although considered highly unlikely, there is always the possibility that ground disturbing

activities during construction may uncover previously unknown human remains' ln the event of

an accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains, Public Resource Code (PRC)

Section 50g7,gg must be followed. once project-related earthmoving begins and if there is a

discovery or recognition of human remains, the following steps shall be taken:

1. There shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the specific location or any nea rby

area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until the County Coroner is

contacted to determine if the remains are Native American and if an investigation of the

cause of death is required. lf the coroner determines the remains are Native American, the

coroner shall contact the NAHC within 24 hours, and the NAHC shall identifo the person or

persons it believes to be the "most likely descendant" of the deceased Native American' The

most likely descendant may make recommendations to the landowner or the person

responsibie for the excavation work, for means of treating or disposing of, with appropriate

dignity, the human remains, and any associated grave goods as provided in PRC Section

5097.98, or

53

Page 1035

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintase at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

2. Where the following conditions occur, the landowner or his/her authorized representative

shall rebury the Native American human remains and associated grave goods with
appropriate dignity either in accordance with the recommendations of the most likely

descendent or on the project area in a location not subject to further subsurface

disturbance:

a. The NAHC is unable to identify a most likely descendent or the most likely

descendent failed to make a recommendation within 48 hours after being notified

by the commission;
b. The descendent identified fails to make a recommendation; or
c. The landowner or his authorized representative rejects the recommendation of the

descendent,

54

Page 1036

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



at Folsom Senior rtments IsMND

VI. ENERGY

hnthll,I
thnflcNnt

lmplct

lese rhrn
S[nfrcrdiwldr

llltlpdon
lncorporrtod

trsTlnn
Sl$lfrcilrt llo
lmprct lnpa.t

Would the project:

a) Result in potentially significant environmental
impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary

consumption of energy resources, durfng project
construction or operation?

n I ll

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for
renewable energy or energy efficiency?

n l-rL-l a I

Environmenlol Setling

California's electricity needs are satisfied by a variety of entities, including investor-owned utilities,
publicly owned utilities, electric service providers and community choice aggregators. ln 2020, the
California power mix totaled 272,576 gigawatt hours (GWh). ln-state generation accounted for 51

percent of the state's power mix. The remaining electricity came from out-of-state imports (CEC 2021a),

Table 11 provides a summary of California's electricity sources as of 2020.

Table 11. Preuiously Recorded Cultural Resources within O.S-Mile of the
APE

Fuel TypG Percent of Callfornia Power

Coal 2,74

Large Hydro 12.2L

Natural Gas 37.06

Nuclear 9.33

oil 0,01

Other {Petroleum Coke/Waste Heat) 0.19

Renewables 33.09

Source: CEC 2021a

Natural gas provides the large$t portion of the total in-state capacity and electricity generation in

California, with nearly 45 percent of the natural gas burned in California used for electricity generation

in a typical year, Much of the remainder is consumed in the residential. industrial, and commercial
sectors for uses such as cooking, space heating, and as an alternative transportation fuel. ln 2012, total

55

Page 1037

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

natural gas demand in California for lndustrial, residential, commerclal, and electric power generation

was 2,313 billion cubic feet per year (bcf/year), up from 2,L96 bcf lyear in 2010 {CEC 2021b}'

Transportation accounts for a major portion of California's energy budget. Automobiles and trucks

consume gasoline and dieselfuel, which are nonrenewable energy products derived from crude oil.

€asoline is the most used transportation fuel in Callfornia, wlth 97 percent of all gasoline being

consumed by light-duty cars, pickup trucks, and sport utility vehicles (SUVs!. 1n 2015, 15.1 billiod gallons

of gasoline were sold in California {CEC 2021c}, Diesel fuel is the second most consumed fuel in

California, used by heavy-duty trucks. delivery vehicles, buses, trains, ships, boats, and farm and

construction equipment. ln 2015,4.2 blllion gallons of diesel were sold in Callfornia {CEC 2021d).

Evqluallon of Energy

a) Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or

unnecessary consumption of energy resoutces, durlng project construction or operation?

Less than significant impact. Energ!, used for construction would primarily consist of fuels in the form

of diesel and gasotine for the operation of construction equipment and construction worker vehicles.

While construction activities would consume petroleum-based fuels, consumption of such re$ources

would be temporary and would cease upon the completion of construction. The Air Quality and

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Technical Report estlmated the proposed project's 6HG emissions using

CalEEMod (HEuX 2O22cl. The construction energy calculations from the prepared for the proposed

project is shown in Table 12.

Table 12. Construction Energy Summary

lt8tr
Off-Road Construction EquiPment 1,960,515

On-Road Construction Traffi c

Prolect Construction Total

Source: HELIX 2022c; kBtu = kilo-Eritish thermal unit

The project's construction-related energy usage would not represent a significant demand on energy

resources because it is temporary in nature. Additionally, with implementation of the low impact design

features, project construction would avoid or reduce inefficient, wasteful, and unnecessary

consumption of energy, Therefore, the project's construction-phase energy impacts would be less than

significant,

Operation of the proposed project would increase the consumption of energy related to electricity,

natural gas, waterr and wastewater. However, implementation of low impact design, energy efficient,

and sustainable features would also reduce the energy usage. The project design incorporates

sustainable features that would exeeed the requirement of the California Building Energy

Efficiency Standards (ntle 24, Part 6), by 15 percent or more, The project would provide 14 electric

vehicle charging stations, as requlred under the City's General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-8 and

would provide 28 bicycle parking spaces, as required under the City's General Plan GHG Reduction

Measure T-3 (Appendix B).

GallonsGesGallonsDlercl
14,ta4

2,926 8,916

8,916t7,o?/

56

Page 1038

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

llardscapes, such as pedestrlan and bicycle pathways, outdoor seating and dining areas. and parking

stalls/ trash apron would be constrscted with cool paving materia|s (e.g., slab concrete). Cool paving

areas, including shaded areas, acsount for approximately 58.2 percent of the non-roof impervious area.

The operational energy calculations prepared for the proposed project are shown in Table 13.

Table 13. Operational enerry Summary

EnergyType kBtu

Gasoline (Gallons) 5,142,521

Diesel {Gallons) 43O,744

Natural Gas (kBtu) 1,280,610

Electricity {kwh} 2,042,292

Source: HELIX 2022c; kBtu = kilo-British thermal unit

During operations, the rnajority of fuel consumption resulting from the project would involve the use of
motor vehicles traveling to and from the project site, as well as fuels used for alternative modes of
transportation that may be used by residents. lt should be noted lhat over the lifetirne of the project,

the fuel efficiency of vehicles is expected to increase. As such, the amount of gasoline consumed as a

result of vehicular trips to and from the project site during operation is expected to decrease ovel time.

Based on these considerations, implementation of the proposed project would not result in rlrrasteful,

inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy. lmpacts would be less than significant.

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?

No impact. The proposed project would not conflict wlth or obstruct a stale or local plan for re newable

energy efficiency. The project would conform to all applicable state, federal, and local laws and codes.

l'herefore, the proposed proiect would have no impact'

Quantlty

41,472

3,099

1,280.610

s98,s37

Total

57

Page 1039

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom senior Apartments IsMND

VII. GEOIOGY AND SOII.S

Potc|lthlly
Sltnmcrnt

lmplct

losfhen
S[nhcrrt

wltt
Mitl&tlon

lnGorpor.tsd

tareThrn
Slanlfiellt lto
lmpac lmprct

Would the project:

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential subrtantial adverse

efferts, including the risk of loss, injury. or death

involving:

Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated

on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault

Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area

or based on other substantial evidence of a known

fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special

Publication 42.

l-
l. I n il

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking? r"1 [J r
iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including

liquefaction?
il I l-:l

iv, Landslides? n u I tr
b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? il I n
c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or

that would become unstable as a result of the project,

and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, latera{

spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

u I NT

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18'1-8 of
the Uniform Building Code {199a}, creating substantial

direct or indirect risks to life or property?
t nn

e) Have soils incapable ofadequately supporting the use of
septic tanks or alternative wastev!'3ter disposal systems

where sewers are not available for the disposal of
wastewater?

tr tl I

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological

resource or site or unique geologic feature?
I uu

The Geology and Soils section of this document is based on the project-specific Geotechnical

Engineering Study prepared by Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc {Youngdahl 2021}. The environmental

setting discussion below is largely from this geotechnical study, which is included as Appendix F.

Environmenlol Setling

Sudoce Condilions

The project site is located on the southeastern side of East Natoma Street in Folsom, California and is

bounded by East Natoma Street to the northwest, existing residential subdivisions to the northeast and

58

Page 1040

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom senior Apartments IsMND

south, and Folsom Prison to the north. A paved pedestrian path is present between the site and the

subdivision to the west and south, along with transformer towers and overhead power lines. Seasonal

drainage paths are present, extending from the east to the southwest along the northern property

boundary. Topography at the site generally consists of the highest elevation at the southeast corner,

sloping downward in various directions. The existing slopes within the site are generally 2H:1V

(Horizontal: Vertical) or flatter. Vegetation throughout the project generally consisted of seasonal

grasses and trees.

Geology

The project site is situated on the eastern edge of Sacramento County, located within the western

foothills of the Sierra Nevada geomorphic province of California. According to the Geologic Map of the

Sacramento Quadrangle, California (D.1. Wagner, et al., 1981), this portion of the foothills and the
project site is underlain by Copper HillVolcanic Rocks. The Copper Hillvolcanic are a sequence of Late

Jurassic-age volcanic rock that overlies the Salt Spring Slate.

Based upon the records currently available from the California Department of Conservation, the project

site is not tocated within an Alquist-Priolo Regulatory Review Zone and there are no known faults

located at the project site.

Subrufoce Condilions

Subsurface explorations by Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc., were conducted on November 5,2O2L,

and included the excavation of eight exploratory test pits, Subsurface soil conditions at the project site

primarily consisted of sands, silts, and clays overlying weathered bedrock. The site was generally

observed to be surfaced with sand and silt layers in a medium dense/ stiff condition, that were present

to depths of i,- to 2.5-ft below existing grade. Test pit 8 consisted of clays in stiff condition, and in Test

pits 1r7, clay layers were in a medium to stiff condition. The clays were primarily present in layer

thicknesses between approximately 0.5- to 1-ft; however, 3-ft clay layers were encountered in Test pits

1 and 3. No clays were observed in Test pit 6. Bedrock was encountered at 1.5- to 4-ft below the ground

surface and was completely to slightly weathered and soft to very hard condition range. A permanent

groundwater table was not encount€red at the project site with no impact to the development of the

site. Due to shallow depth and low permeability of the underlying rock, perched water is common to the

area and could be encountered during grading operations (Youngdahl 2021).

CIV Regulolion of Geology qnd Soils

The City of Folsom regulates the effects of soils and geological constraints on urban development

primarily through enforcement of the California Building Code, which requires the implementation of

engineering solutions for constraints to urban development posed by slopes, soils, and geology'

59

Page 1041

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vihtage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Additionally, the City adopted a Grading Code {Folsom MunicipalCode Seciion 14.29) that regulates

grading citywide to control erosion, storm water drainage, revegetation, and ground movement.

Evqluollon of Geology qnd Soils

a) Directly or indirectly cause potentialsubstantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or

death involving:

i. Rupture of a known earthquake faall, as delineated on tbe most recent Alquist-Priolo

Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other

substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special

Publication 42?

Less than significant impact. According to the Geotechnical Engineering Survey, there are no known

active fautts crossing the property, and the project site is not located within an Earthquake Fault Zone

(youngdahl 2021). Therefore, ground rupture is unlikely at the subject property, and impacts would be

less than significant.

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?

Less than significant impact. The site-specific Geotechnical Engineering Survey identified the project site

as a Site Class C in accordance with the 2016 California Building Code (Class A requires least earthquake

resistant design and Class F the most earthquake resistant design). Seismic design parameters based on

the 2016 California Building Code and site investigations were outlined in the Geotechnical Engineering

Survey for use in structural design. Evaluation of seismicity for the project site included the review of

existing fault maps and the implernentation of seisrnic design parameters from the United State

Geological Survey (USGS) online calculator and databases (Youngdahl 2021). Conformance to the

current bullding code would minimize potentlal ground shaking impacts to a less than significant level.

iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Less than significant impect. Liquefaction is the sudden loss of soil shear strength and sudden increase

in porewater pressure caused by shear strains, which could result from an earthquake. Research has

shown that saturated, loose to medium-dense sands with a sih content less than about 25 percent

located within the top 40-ft are most susceptible to liquefaction and surface rupture or tateral

spreading. Slope instability can occur as a result of seismic ground motions andlor in combination with

weak soils and saturated conditions'

Due to the absence of a permanentty elevated groundwater table, the relatively low seismicity of the

area, and the relatively shallow depth to rock, the potentialfor seismically induced damage due to site

liquefaction, surface rupture, and settlement was considered low (Youngdahl202f). Forthe above-

mentioned reasons, miligation for these potential hazards is not considered necessary for the

development of this project. Therefore, liquefaction is unlikely at the subiect property and impacts

would be less than significant.

iv. Landslides?

Less than slgnificant impact. The existing slopes on the project site were observed to have adequate

vegetation on the slope face, appropriate drainage away from the slope face, and no apparent tension

60

Page 1042

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

cracks or slip block in the slope face or at the head of the slope. Additionally, due to the absence of

permanently elevated groundwater table, the relatively low seismicity of the area, and the relatively

shallow depth to bedrsck, the potentia! for seismicity inducted slope instability for the existing slopes

was considered low (Youngdahl 20?1). Therefore, landslides are unlikely at the subject property and

impacts would be less than significant'

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Less than significant impact. The 2015 CBC (California Building Code) and the City's Grading Code and

standard conditions for project approvalcontain requirements to minimize or avoid potentialeffects

from water erosion hazards. As a condition of approval, prior to the issuance of a grading or building

permit, the City would require the applicant to prepare a soils report, a detailed grading plan, and an

erosion control plan by a qualified and licensed engineer. The soils report would identify soil hazards,

including potential impacts from erosion. The City would be required to review and approve the erosion

control plan based on the California Department of Conservation's "Erosion and Control Handbook'" The

erosion control plan would identify protective measures to be implemented during excavation,

temporary stockpiling, disposal, and revegetation activities. With the approval of a soils report grading

plan, and an erosion control ptan, impacts relating to substantial soil erosion or loss of topsoil would be

less than significant.

c) Be tocated on a geologlc unit or soilthat is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of

the project, and 'potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,

liquefaction, or collapse?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. The proposed project is relatively long, irregular in shape,

and anticipated to be supported by variable thicknesses of soil and or bedrock. Due to these features,

the primary geotechnical concern associated with the planned development is the potentialfor

excessive differential settlement, which can stress and damage foundations and other structural and

architecturalelements. Generally, foundations constructed within the planned cut areas of the building

pad would bear a relatively thin section of native soils and or bedrock. However, foundations

constructed within the planned fill areas could bear significantly thicker sections to fill, which have a

much higher potential for settlement.

A Geotmhnical Engineering Survey by Youngdahl Consuhing Group, lnc. prepared recommendations for

the foundation, construction, and design of the proposed building in the proJect site (See Appendix F for

more detail on site recommendations). With the implementation of Mitigation Measure 6EO-01,

outlined below, the impacts relatlng to unstable soils in the proiect area would be less than significant

with mitigation.

Mltitation Measure GEO-01: lmplementation of Recommendations in the Geotechnical Engineering

Survey

r A Geotechnical Engineering Survey was prepared by Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc' in

December 2021. The proposed projects' design plans and specifications outlined in the survey

shall be reviewed and approved by a California-licensed geotechnical engineer or engineering

geologist prior to contract bidding. A review shall be performed to determine whether the

recommendations contained within the Geotechnical Engineering Survey are still applicable to

the project. Modifications to the recommendations provided in the Geotechnical Engineering

61

Page 1043

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apa.tments ISMND

Survey prepared by Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc. or to the design may be necessary at the

tlme of review based on the proposed plans. The project applicant shall implement all applicable

recommendations approved by a California-licensed geotechnical engineer or engineering

geologist prior to issuance of a grading permit'

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-8 of the Uniform Building Code (1994),

creating substantial direct or indlrect risk to life or property?

Less than significant impa6 with mitigation. Plastic materials (clay soils) were encountered in relatively

thin layers at the project site. An expansion index test was performed on a sample of the clay, which

resulted in a value of 40 (low expansion). The majority of the remaining materials encountered in the

exploration were generally non-plastic (rock, sand, and non-plastic silt). The non-plastic materials are

generally considered to be non-expansive. The GeotechnicalEngineerlng Study provided

recommendations relating to mitigation of expansive soils in the project site (See Appendix F for more

detail). Due to the configuration of the proposed conttruction, the anticipated grading, and with

implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-o3., it is not anticipated that speclaldesign considerations

for expansive soils would be required, With these conditions, the impacts would be less than significant

with mitigation.

e) Have soils inc*pable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater

dlsposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater?

No impact. The proposed sewer system would connect to the public sewer system and would not

require septic systems or an alternative waste disposal system. No impact would occur.

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. No previous surveys conducted in the project area have

identified the project site as sensitive for paleontological resources or other geologically sensitive

resources, nor have testing or ground disturbing activities performed to date uncovered any

paleontolo6ical resources or geologically sensitive resources. While the likelihood encountering

paleorrtological resources and other geologically sensitive resources is considered low, project-related

ground disturbing activities could affect the int€Brity of a previously unknown paleontological or other

geologically sensitlve resource, resulting in a substantial change in the significance of the resource'
'fherefore,the proposed project could result in potentially significant impacts to paleontological

resources. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-02 would reduce potentially significant impacts

to a less than significant level.

Mitiption Measure GEO-02: ldentification of Paleontological Resource During Proiect Construction

r ln the event a paleontological or other geologically sensitive resources (such as fossils or fossil

formations) are itlentified during any phase of proJect construction, all excavations within L00-ft

of the find shall be temporarily halted untilthe find is examined by a qualified paleontologist, in

accordance with Society of Vertebrate Paleontology standards. The paleontologist shall notify

the appropriate representative at the City of Folsom who shall coordinate with the

paleonfologist as to any necessary investigation of the find. lf the find is determined to be

significant under CEQA, the City shall implement those measures which may include avoidance,

preservation in place, or other appropriate rneasures, as outlined in Fublic Resources Code

Section 21083.2,

62

Page 1044

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Potenrblly
SBnlfrc!nt

lmp.Gt

ksrilrrn
$gnnc.nt

rnldr
lrlldgadon

lnco3?oratcd

bgrlun
9gnlficant No
lnptct lmp.ct

Would the project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or
indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the

environment?

ft t t-J

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation

adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of I nn
greenhouge ?

HELIX Environmental Planning conducted a greenhouse gas emissions assessment for the proposed

p.oject based primarily on the results of the City's Greenhous Gas Reduction Strategy Consistency

Checklist as presented in Appendix B.

Environmenlol Selting

Global climate change refers to changes in average climatic conditions on Earth including temperature,

wind patterns, precipitation, and storms. Global temperatures are moderated by atmospheric gases.

These gases are commonly referred to as greenhouse gasses (GHG) because they function like a

greenhouse by letting sunlight in but preventing heat from escaping, thus warming the Earth's

atmosphere,

GHGs are emitted by natural processes and human (anthropogenic) activities. Anthropogenic GHG

emissions are primarily assoclated with burning of fossilfuels during motorized transport; electricity

generation; natural gas consumption; industrial activity; manufacturing; and other activities such as

deforestation, agricultural activity, a nd solid waste decom position.

The GHGs defined under California's Assembly Bill (AB) 32 include carbon dioxide (COz), methane {CH+),

nitrous oxide (NzO), hydrofluorocarbons {HFC), perfluorocarbons (PFC), and sulfur hexafluoride (SFe}'

Each GHG differs in its ability to ebsorb heat in the atmosphere based on the lifetime, or persistence, of

the gas molecule in the atmosphere. Estimates of GHG emissions are commonly presented in carbon

dioxide equivalents (CO:e), which weigh each gas by its globalwarming potential (GWP). Expressing GHG

emissions in COze takes the contribution of all GHG emissions to the greenhouse effect and converts

them to a single unit eguivalent to the effect that would occur if only COzwere being emitted. GHG

emissions quantities in this analysis are presented in metric tons (MT) of COze. For consistency with

United Nations Standards, modeling, and reporting of GHGs in California and the U,S. use the GWPs

defined in the lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change's {IPCC} Fourth Assessment Report {IPCC

2007): COz- 1; CHq- 25; NzO - 298.

63

Page 1045

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

GHG Reduclion Regulotlons ond Plqns

The primary GHG reduction regulatory legislation and plans (applicable to the project) at the State,

regional, and local levels are described below. lmplementation of California's GHG reduction mandates

is under the authority of CARB at the state level, SMAQMD and the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments {SACOG) at the regional level, and the City at the local level'

Executive Order S-3{5: On June L,2AO5, Executive Order {EO) 5-3-05 proclaimed that California is

vulnerable to climate change impacts. lt declared that increased temperatures could reduce snowpack

in the Sierra Nevada, fu*her exacerbate California's air quality problems, and potentially cause a rise in

sea levels. To avoid or reduce clirnate change impacts, EO 5-3-05 calls for a reduction in GHG emissions

to the year 2000 levels by 2010, to year 1990 levels by 2020, and to 80 percent below 1990 levels by

2050. Executive Orders are not laws and can only provide the governor's direction to state agencies to
act within their authority to reinforce existing laws.

Assembly Bill 32 - Global Warming Solution Act of 2005: The California Global Warming Solutions Act

of 20A6, widely known as AB 32, requires that CARB develop and enforce regulations for the reporting
and verification of statewide GHG emissions. CARB is directed by AB 32 to set a GHG emission limit,
based on 1990 levels, to be achieved by 2020. The bill requires CARB to adopt rules and regulations in an

open public process to achieve the maximum technologically feasible and cost-effective GHG emission

reductions.

Executive Order 8-30-15: On April 29,2015, EO 8-30-15 established a California GHG emission reduction

target of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030. The EO aligns California's GHG emission reduction

targets with those of leading international governments, including the 28 nation European Union.

California achieved the target of reducing GHGs emissions to 1990 levels by 202O, as established in

AB 32. California's new emission reduction target of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 will make it
possible to reach the goal established by EO 5-3-05 of reducing emissions 80 percent under 1990 levels

by 2050.

Senate Bitl 32; Signed into law by Governor Brown on September 8, 2016, Senate Bill (SB) 32

(Amendments to the California GlobalWarming Solutions Action of 2006) extends California's GHG

reduction programs beyond 2020. SB 32 amended the Health and Safety Code to include Section 38566,

which contains language to authorize CARB to achieve a statewide GHG emission reduction of at least

40 percent below 1990 levels by no later than December 31, 2030. SB 32 codified the targets established

by EO 8-30-15 for 2030, which set the next interim step in the State's continuing efforts to pursue the
long-term target expressed in EO 8-30-15 of 80 percent below 1990 emissions levels by 2050.

California Air Resources Board: On December 11, 2008, the CARB adopted the Climate Change Scoping
plan (scoping Plan) as directed by AB 32. The Scoping Plan proposes a set of actions designed to reduce

overall GHG emissions in California to the levels required by AB 32. Measures applicable to development
projects include those related to energy-efficiency building and appliance standards, the use of
renewable sources for electricity generation, regionaltransportation targets, and green building

strategy. Relative to transportation, the Scoping Plan includes nine measures or recommended actions

related to reducing vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and vehicle GHGs through fuel and efficiency measures.

These measures would be implemented statewide rather than on a project-by-project basis

(CARB 2008).

64

Page 1046

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

ln response to EO 8-30-15 and SB 32, allstate agencies with jurisdiction over sources of GHG emissions

were directed to lmplement measures to achieve reductions of GHG emissions to meet the 2030 and

2050 targets. The mid-term target is criticalto help frame the suite of policy measures, regulations,

planning efforts, and investments in clean technologies and infrastructure needed to continue driving

down emissions (CARB 2014). ln December 2017, CARB adopted the 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan

Update, the Strategy for Achieving California's 2030 Greenhouse Gas Target, to reflect the 2030 target

set by EO 8-30-15 and codified by SB 32 (CARB 2017).

Sacramento Area Gouncil of Governments: As required by the Sustainable Communities and Climate

Protection Act of 2008 {SB 375}, SACOG has developed the 2020 Metropolitan Transportation Plan and

Sustainable Communities Strategy. This plan seeks to reduce GHG and other mobile source emissions

through coordinated transportation and land use planning to reduce VMT.

City of Folsom: As part of the 2035 General Plan, the City prepared an integrated Greenhouse Gas

Emissions Reduction Strategy tAppendix A to the 2035 General Plan; adopted August 28, 2018). The

purpose of the Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Strategy (GHG Strategy) is to identify and reduce

current and future community GHG emissions and those associated with the City's municipal operations'

The GHG Strategy includes GHG reduction targets to reduce GHG emissions (with a 2005 baseline year)

by 15 percent in 2020, 51 percent in 2035, and 80 percent in 2050. The GHG Strategy identifies policies

within the City of Folsom General Plan that would decrease the City's emissions of greenhouse gases.

The GHG Strategy also satisfies the requirements of CEQA to identifu and mitigate GHG emissions

associated with the General Plan Update as part of the environmental review process and serves as the

City's "plan for the reduction of greenhouse gases", per Section 15183.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, which

provides the opportunity for tiering and streamlining of project-level emissions for certain types of

discretionary projects subject to CEQA review that are consistent with the General Plan (City 2018)'

Methodology ond AssumPllons

Criteria pollutant, precursor, and GHG emissions for project construction and operation were estimated

using the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod), Version 2020.4.0. CalEEMod is a statewide

land use emissions computer model designed to provide a uniform platform for government agencies,

land use planners, and environmental professionals to quantify potential criteria pollutant and GHG

emissions associated with both construction and operations from a variety of land use projects. The

model was developed for the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA) in

collaboration with the California air districts. CalEEMod allows for the use of default data {e.9., emission

factors, trip lengths, meteorology, source inventory) provided by the various California air districts to

account for local requirements and conditions, and/or user-defined inputs' The calculation methodology

and default data used in the model are available in the CalEEMod User's Guide, Appendices & D, and E

(CAPCOA 2021). The CalEEMod output files are included in Appendix B.

Construction of the project is anticipated to begin as early as January 2023 and be completed in April

2024. Construction modeling assumes the following anticipated schedule: site preparation 10 working

days; grading 87 working days; building construction 207 working days; paving 2l working days; and

architectural coating 22 working days. Construction equipment assumptions were based on estimates

from CalEEMod defaults. The project would not require an import or export of soil during construction

activities. Construction emissions modeling assumes implementation of basic dust control practices

(watering exposed areas twice per day) to comply with the requirements of: SMAQMD Rule 403,

Fugitive Dust.

55

Page 1047

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Operational mobile emissions were modeled using the project trip generation of 441 average daily trips

from the project Transportation lmpact study (T. Kear Transportation Planning and Management, lnc'

2022). Operational emissions resulting from energy use, water use, and solid waste generation were

modeled using CalEEMod defaults with an added 20 percent reduction in water use to account for the

requirements of the 2019 CALGreen, and an additional 25 percent solid waste diversion to account for

AB 341 requirements'

Stqndords of Signiliconce

The final determination of whether or not a project has a significant effect is within the purview of the

lead agency pursuant to CEQA Guidelihes section 15054(b). The city's GHG Stategy. described above, is

a qual*ied pian for the reduction of greenhouse gases pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5.

Consistency with the GHG Strategy may be used to determine the significance of the project's GHG

emissions.

The city,s 2035 General plan policy NcR 3.2.8 and GHG Strategy include criteria to determine whether

the potential greenhouse gas emissions of a proposed project are significant (City 2018)'

NCR 3.2.g Streamlined GHG Analysis for Projects Consistent with the General Plan

projects subject to environmental review under CEQA may be eligible for tiering and streamlining the

anaiysis of GHG emissions, provided they are consistent with the GHG reduction measures included in

the General plan and ElR. The city may review such projects to determine whether the following criteria

are met:

. proposed project is consistent with the current general plan land use designation for the project

site;

. proposed project incorporates all applicable GHG reduction measures (as documented in the

Climate Change TechnicalAppendix to the General Plan EIR) as mitigation measures in the CEOA

document prepared for the projec! and

r Proposed proiect clearly demonstrates the method, timing and process for which the project

will comply with applicable GHG reduction measures and/or conditions of approval, (e.g', using

a CAp/GHG reduction measures consistency checklist, mitigation monitoring and reporting plan,

or other mechanism for monitoring and enforcement as appropriate).

Evoluollon of Greenhouse Got Emlsslons

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact

on the environment?

Less than significant tmpact wlth Mitigation. GHG emissions would be generated by the project during

construction (vehicle engine exhaust from construction equipment, vendor trips, and worker commuting

trips) and during long-teim operation (electricity and natural gas use, electricity resulting from water

consumption; s;lid waste disposal, and vehicle engine exhaust). GHG emissions were calculated used

CalEEMod, as described in Methodology and Assumptions'

66

Page 1048

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

The calculated GHG emissions anticipated to be generated during construction of the project are shown

below in Table 14. Due to the cumulative nature of GHGs, SMAQMD recommends amortizing a project's

construction emissions over the operational lifetime of thg project. Therefore, the construction

emissions are amortized (i.e., averaged) over 30 years and added to operationat emissions in this

analysis.

Table 14. Construction GHG Emissions

Enlslons
Year

2023 396.1

2024 92.4

Totall 488.5

Amoftized Construction Emissions 16.3

Source: CalEEMod (output data is provided in Attachment A)
1 Totals may not sum due to rounding,

GHG = greenhouse gas; MT = metric tons; CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent

The results of the 2025 Operational GHG Emissions are provided below in Table 15.

Table 15. Operational GHG Emissions

2025 Emlsclons
Emlsslon Sources

Area
L,'8.2

Mobile 370,0

Waste 23.6

Water 9.1

subtotaP 523.3

Amorti zed Co nstruction Em isslons 16,3

Total 539.5

Source: CalEEMod {output data is provided in Attachment A}
1 Totalsmay notsum dueto rounding.

GHG = greenhouse gas; MT = metric tons; CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent

To determine significance of the project's GHG emissions, the Ciq/s Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strat€gy

Consistency Checklist was completed (City of Folsom 2021; included in Appendix B)'

Part 1: Land Use Consistency

The proposed project is consistent with the City's 2035 General Plan land use and zoning designations?

The project parcel is designated as ProfessionalOffice (PO) in the Folsom 2035 General Plan,

which provides for low-intensity business and professional offices that are compatible with

higher-intensity residential uses. The zoning designation of the project site is Business and

professional (BP) District. ln accordance with the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy

Consistency Checklist, if the project would require a change in land use designation or a rezone,

consistency would be determined by calculating the estimated the GHG emissions resulting

from maximum buildout of the project site allowed using the current zoning and using the

67

Page 1049

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintace at Folsom Senior Apadmente lSMND

proposed zoning change. lf the land use designatlon/zoning change would not result in an

increase in annual GHG emissions, the project would be consistent (Ctty z02lal. Howevet the
project would not result in a land use designatlon/zoning change and therefore, there would be

no change in GHG emissions"

A senior housing development would be an allowable use for the BP zoning district. Entitlement

requests for this project include a Planned Development Permit (PD Permit) and a Conditional

Use Permit. The purpose of the PD Permit is to allow for greater flexibility in the design of
integrated developments than otherwise possible through strict application of land use

regulations. With the PD Permlt, the project's site plan, elevationr, and overall proiect design

would be evaluated, and specific development standards would be defined. Ihe project is

consistent with applicable development standards for the BP zoning distrlct. As shown in

Table 15 above, the proposed project is anticipated to result in approximately 539.6 MT COze

per year.

Part 2: GHG Reduction Measures Consistency {only applicable measures shown}:

E-1 Building energy Sector: The project will exceed the requirements of the California Building Energy

Efficiency Standards (Title 24, Part 6) by 15 percent or more?

Consistent. The project would exceed the requirement of the California Building Energy

Efficiency Standards (Title 24, Part 6), by 15 percent or more.

T-1 Project Location and Density: The project is a mixed-use building with two or more uses

{i.e., residential, commerclal, office, etc.) or af the site is 5 acres or larger lhere are two or nore uses on

the site connected by protected pedestrlan paths te.g., sidewalks, elevated walkways) excluding

driveways?

Consistent. The project is less than 5 acres and is located within an existing empty lot.

lmplementation of the proposed development would include a mix of uses lncluding residential

unlts, community center, and leasing office, The project would include a concrete sidewalk that
would extend around the southern parking area and connect to the exisiing Oak Parkway Trail

section located south of the site boundary. Additional proposed concrete sidewalks would be

located at the frontage of the project site and would connect to internal sidewalks proposed

around the buildlng.

T-3 Bicycle Parking: Project provides 5 percent more bicycle parking spaces than required in the City's

MunicipalCode?

Consistent with mitigation. With 135 residential units, the project requires 27 bicycle parking

spaces. Bike racks would accammodate 28 bicycle parking spaces on the sastern side of the
project site, exceeding the number of bicycle parking spaces requlred by flve percent. Mitigation
Measure GHG-01 would require the installatlon of bicycle parking 5 percent or more hi,gher than

the requirements of City Code section 17 '57.090'

T-6 Hlgh-Perforffance Oiesel (Construction only): Use high-performance diesel (also known as Diesel-

HPR or Ree-9000/RHD) for construction equipment?

68

Page 1050

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Consistent with mitigation. Mitigation Measure GHG-02 would require the use of high-

performa nce d iesel for all project construction activities.

T-8 Electric Vehicle Charging (Residential): For multifamily projects with 17 or more dwelling units,

provide electic vehicle charging in 5 percent of total parking spaces?

Consistent with mitigation. Mitigation Measure GH6-03 would require installation of 14

electrical vehicle charging stations based on the 136 total parking spaces proposed for the
project.

SW-1. Enhanced Construction Waste Diversion: Project diverts to recycle or salvage at ieast 55 percent of
nonhazardous construction and demolition waste generated at the project site in accordance with

Appendix 44 (Residential) of CALGreen?

Consistent with mitigation. Mitigation Measure GHG-04 would require a minimum of 65 percent

of nonhazardous construction and demolition waste to be diverted, recycled or salvaged.

W-l Water Efficiency: For new residential and non-residential projects, the project will comply with all

applicable indoor and outdoor water efficienry and conservation measures required under CALGreen

Tier 1?

Consistent with mitigation. Mitigation Measure GHG-05 would require implementation of all

2019 CALGreen Tier 1 applicable indoor and outdoor water efficiency and conseruation

measures.

With implementation of Mitigation Measures GHG-OI through GHG-05, the project would be consistent

with the City's GHG Strategy. Therefore, the project would not generate greenhouse gas emissions,

either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment, and the impact

would be less than significant with mitigation.

Matigation Measure GHG-01: Bicycle Parking

ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-3, the project shall provide

a minimum of 5 percent more bicycle parking than required in the City's Municipal Code Section

17.57.090.

Mitigation Measure GHG{2: High-Performance Diesel

ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-5, the project shall use high-

performance diesel (also known as Diesel-HPR or Reg-9000/RHD) for all diesel-powered

equipment utilized in construction of the project.

Mitagation Measure GH6{13: Electric Vehicle Charging

ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure T-8, the project shall provide

14 electric vehicle charging stations based on the 136 total parking spaces proposed for the
project.

a

a

69

Page 1051

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Mitigation Measure GHG-04: Enhanced Construction Waste Diversion

ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure 5W-1, the project shall divert

to recycle or salvage a minimum 65 of nonhazardous construction and demolition waste

generated at the project site in accordance with Appendix A4 (Residential) of the as outlined in

the California Green Building Standards Code (2019 CALGreen).

Mitigataon Measure GHG45: Water Efficiency

ln accordance with the City General Plan GHG Reduction Measure W-1, the project shall comply

with all applicable indoor and outdoor water efficiency and conservation measures required

under 2019 CALGreen Tier 1, as outlined in the California Green Building Standards Code.

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the

emissions of greenhouse gases?

Less than Significant lmpact with Mitigation. There are numerous State plans, policies, and regulations

adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions. The principal overall State plan and policy is AB 32,

the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006. The quantitative goal of AB 32 is to reduce GHG

emissions to L990 levels by 2020. SB 32 would require further reductions of 40 percent below 1990

levels by 2030. The mandates of AB 32 and SB 32 are implanted at the state level by the CARB's Scoping

Plan. Because the project's operational year is post-2020, the project aims to reach the quantitative

goals set by SB 32. Statewide plans and regulations such as GHG emissions standards for vehicles

(AB 1493), the LCFS, and regulations requiring an increasing fraction of electricity to be generated from

renewable sources are being implemented at the statewide level; as such, compliance at the project

level is not addressed. Therefore, the proposed project would not conflict with those plans and

regulations.

The Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS)for Sacramento

County is the 2020 MTP/SCS adopted by the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) on

November 18, 2019. The 2020 MTP/SCS lays out a transportation investment and land use strategy to

support a prosperous region, with access to jobs and economic opportunity, transportation options, and

affordable housing that works for all residents. The plan also lays out a path for improving our air

quality, preserving open space and natural resources, and helping California achieve its goal to reduce

greenhouse gas emissions (SACOG 2019). The transportation sector is the largest source of GHG

emissions in the state, A project's GHG emissions from cars and light trucks are directly correlated to the

project's VMT. According to the Transportation lmpact Study prepared for the project, the project is

anticipated to generate at least 15 percent less VMT per capita than the regional average (T. Kear

Transportation Planning and Management, lnc. 2022). This VMT reduction meets the 15 percent

reduction requlred by 58 743. ln addition to regionalVMT projections, SACOG utilizes local growth

projections to develop the strategies and measures in the 202CI MTP/SCS. As discussld in question a),

above, there would be no change in land use and zoning, and no change in GHG emissions would result.

Therefore, the regional VMT and population growth resulting from implementation of the project would

be consistent with the assumptions used in the 2020 MTP/SCS'

As discussed in question a), above, with implementation of Mitigation Measures GHG-0l through

GHG-05, the project would be consistent with the City's GHG Strategy, a qualified plan for the reduction

of greenhouse gases pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5. Therefore, the project would not

a

70

Page 1052

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

confllct with CARB's 2017 Scoping Plan, the SACOG's 2020 MTP/SCS, or the €ity's GHG Strategy, and the
impact would be less than signtficant with mitigation.

7t

Page 1053

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

PotanUrfly
Sl3nlicant

lmp.Ct

hssfftrn
3l3nlficam

wldr
Mltlrdon

lncorporetcd

tcrsThen
$gnnc.nt ltlo
lnp.ct |tnpsct

Would the project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the

environment through the routine transport, use, or

disposal of hazardous materials?

rl
LI I

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the

environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and

accident conditions involving the release of hazardous

materials into the environment?

tr tr t

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely

hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-

quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?
tr n I LI

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 55962'5 and, as a result, would

it create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment?

n n

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or,

where such a plan has not been adopted, within two
miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the

project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for
people residing or working in the project area?

ta
t.-l I I

f) lmpair implementation of or physically interfere with an

adopted emergency response plan or emergency

evacuation plan?

tr n

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly,

to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving

wildland fires?

D I

Envlronmentol Setllng

The project site is currently undeveloped has no past land uses associated with potentially hazardous

sites. The schools nearest to the project site are St. John's Notre Dame School, approximately 0.2-miles

east of the site, Theodore Judah Elementary School, approximately 0.5-miles southwest of the site,

Blanche Sprentz Elementary School, approximately 0.7-miles southeast of the site and Folsom Middle

School, approximately 1.S-miles southeast of the site.

The following databases were reviewed for the project site and surrounding area to identify potential

hazardous contamination sites: the SWRCB Geotracker (SWRCB 2020); California Department of Toxic

Substance Control's EnviroStor online tool (DTSC 2020); and the US EPA's Superfund National Priorities

72

Page 1054

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom SeniorApartments ISMND

List (EPA 2019). Based on the results of the databases reviewed, no hazardous waste sites are located on

the project site.

Federal and state laws include provisions for the safe handling of hazardous substances. The federal

Occupationa| Safety and Health Administration {OSHA} administers requirements to ensure worker
safety. Construction activity must also be in compliance with the California OSHA regulations

{Occupational Safety and Health Act of l97AI.

Evoluqlion of Hozords qnd Hozordout i/lolerlols

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or
disposal of hazardous materials?

Less than significant impact. The site has no known history of past land uses associated with potentially

hazardous sites. Construction of the proposed project would result in an increase in the generation,

storage, and disposal of hazardous wastes. During project construction oil, gasoline, diesel fuel, paints,

solvents, and other hazardous materials may be used, lf spilled, these substances could pose a risk to
the environment and to human health.

Following construction, household hazardous materials such as various cleaners, paints, solvents,

pesticides, pool chemicals, and automobile fluids would be expected to be used. The routine transport,

uge, and disposal of hazardous materials are subject to local, state, and federal regulations to minimize

risk and exposure.

Further, the City has set forth its hazardous materlals goals and policies in the Haeardous Materials

Element of the General Plan. The preventative policies protect the health and welfare of residents of
Folsorr through management and regufation of hazardous materials. Consequeatly, use of the listed

materials above for their intended purpose would not pose a significant risk to the public or
environment and would therefore cause a less than significant impact'

b) Create a significant haaard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset

and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

Less than significant impact. As discussed above, the proposed project site has no known history of past

land uses associrtted with potentially hazardous sites and construction of the proposed project would

follow all local, state, and federal regulations, These regulations protect the health and welfare of
residents of Folsom through management and regulation of hazardous materials in a manner that focus'

on preventing problems, With the implementation of these regulations, the potential for a foreseeable

upset and accident conditlons involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment would

be low, and therefore would cause a less than significant irnpact.

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste

within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

Less than significant impact. The nearest school is St. John's Notre Dame School, approximately 0.2-

miles east of the site. During project construction, oil, gasoline, diesel fuel, paints, solvents, and other

hazardous materials may be used, but they would be used accordingly to local, state, and federal

regulations, With these regulations in place, the proposed project would have a less than significant

impact.

73

Page 1055

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to

Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public

or the environment?

No impact. The site is not included on any list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 55962,5. No hazardous materials sites are located at the project site based

on review of the Enviro.gtor (DTSC 2O2Ol, Geotracker {SWRCB 2020), and EPA Superfund Priority list {EPA

2019), Therefore, project implementation would have no impact on hazards to the public or

environment.

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted,

within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard

or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

No impact. The nearest public or public use airport ls Cameron Airpark, approximately 11-miles east of

the project site. At this distance, the project is not within the airport land use plan area and the project

would have no impact on safety hazards or excessive noise related to airports.

f) lmpair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or

emergency evacuation Plan?

Less than significant impact. The City of Folsom maintains pre-deslgnated emergency evacuation routes

as identified inthe Ctty of folsam Evacuotion Plon {CrW of Folsom 2A2Oa}. fbe proposod project is

located in evacuation plan area #1O-Cimmaron Hill/ Rancho Diablo, which identifies East Natoma Street

as a major evacuation route and Cimmaron Circle as a minor evacuation route. The proposed project

woutd not modify any pre-designated emergency evacuation route or preclude their continued use as an

emergency evacuation route. Emergency vehicle access would be maintalned throughout the project

site to meet the Fire Department standards for fire truck maneuvering, location of fire truck to fight a

fire, rescue acce$s to the units, and fire hose access to afl sides of the building. Therefore, graiect

iftrpacts to the City's adopted evacuation plan and emergency plans would be less than significant.

S) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death

involving wildland fires?

Less than significant impact. The project site is located in an urbanized area in the City of Folsom and is

provided u rlan levels of flre protection by the City. The site is designed for clear fire lanefire truck

access and fire hose access to all parts of the buildings. The project would include fire hydran8, exterior

Fire Department Connection assemblies, and fire riser rooms. Emergency vehicle access would b*

maintained on the site to meet the Fire Department standards for fire truck maneuvering, location of
fire truck to fight a fire, rescue access to the units, and fire hose access to all sides of the building. The

fire lane would be 27-ft minimum, with an inner turning radius of 25-ft and an outer turning radius of

50-ft. All curbs adjacent to the fire lane would be painted red for emergency fire services. Therefore, the

proposed project would not expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss due to wildland fires,

and impacts would be less than significant'

74

Page 1056

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Potcntlally
$gnmc.nt

lmF.Ct

lrselhrn
Sltnncrnt

s'lth
Mldgrdon

Incorponted

brcfhan
Sltlllftc.nt l{o
lmprct lmp.ct

Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge

requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface

or ground water quality?

r-_l
L_t D a n

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere

substantially with groundwater recharge such that the
project may impede sustainable groundwater
management of the basin?

tr I L]

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site

or area, including through the alteration of the course of
a stream or river or through the addition of impervious

surfaces, in a manner which would:

i. Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-
site?

n T I I
ii, Substantially increase the rate or amount of surface

runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on-

or off- site?

l_l t:

iii. Create or contribute runoff water which would
exceed the capacity of existing or planned

stormwat€r drainage systems or provide substantial

additional resources of polluted runoff?

t,,l n

iv. lmpede or redirect flood flows? fl r LJ

d) ln flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of
pollutants due to project inundation?

n
e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water

quality control plan or sustainable groundwater

manaSement plan?
IJ n I n

A Preliminary Drainage and Stormwater Quality Report was prepared by TSD Engineering lnc. on August

19,2022, and is included as Appendix G.

Environmenlcl Setling

A Preliminary Drainage and Storm Water Quality Report was prepared for the proposed project by TSD

Engineering and is included as Appendix G. This memo was used when analyzing potential impacts to
hydrology and water quality resources. The project site is vacant and undeveloped with a fairly dense

oaktree canopy and a drainage channel traversingthe site adjacent to East Natoma Street. The Oak

Parkway Trail separated the project site from residential properties to the south. The Cimmaron Hill

Sub-division is located east of the project site and the entrance to Folsom State Prison {Prison) and the
Johnny Cash Trailare located on the northwest side of E. Natoma Street. The project is proposing 2.318

75

Page 1057

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

acres of [andscape (pervious area), 0.05-acres of bioretention (pervious area), 1.3-acres of parking lots

(impervious surface), O.4-acres of hardscape {impervious surface), and 0.9-acres of building (impervious

surface).

The existing channel conveys runoff from a portion of the Cimmaron Hill Subdivision as well as

runoff from a portion of the Prison open space. Runoff from the Prison property is conveyed to the
existing channel through a 24-inch culvert that crosses E, Natoma Street. The channel conveys

runoff to a 48-inch culvert that crosses and discharges on the northwest side of E. Natoma Street,

ultimately discharging into the American River approximately 2,500-ft west of E. Natoma Street.

The existing 24-inch culvert that conveys runoff from the Prison site limits the contribution of
runoff to the existing channel from the prison site. The 24-inch culvert has a maximum flow rate

of 23.3-cubic feet per second (cfs) based on the size, slope and maximum headwater elevation. lt is

assumed that once the ponding area upstream of the 24-inch culvert if full, runoffwill release overland,

following the bike trail to trench drains located under the Prison Road bridge, ultimately reaching the

American River through Robbers Ravine.

Precipitation is the source of surface water for the project site. Because the area is currently

undeveloped, implementation of the project would result in an increase of impervious surface area and

channelization of storm water runoff, the rates and volumes of which would increase. As the proposed

project would create more than one acre of impervious area, the project is required to implement

source control measures, low impact development measures, storm impact treatment and full trash

captures measures in accordance with the Stormwater Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento

Region, dated July 20L8 (swQ Manual).

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMAIflood insurance rate maps were reviewed for the
project's proximity to a 100-year floodplain. The proposed project is on FEMA panel 06067C0117H,

effective August L6,20L2. The project site is not located within a 100-year floodplain (FEMA 2012).

The site is not located in an area of important groundwater recharge. Domestic water in the City is

provided solely by surface \A/ater sources. The City is the purveyor of water for the site.

Regulotory Fromework Reloling lo Hydrology qnd llYqter Quollty

The City is a signatory to the Sacramento Countywide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Program

(NPDES) permit for the control of pollutants in urban storrnwater. Since 199O the City has been a

partner in the Sacramento Stormwater Quality Partnership, along with the County of Sacramento and

the Cities of Sacramento, Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, Galt, and Rancho Cordova, These agencies are

implementing a comprehensive program involving public outreach, construction and industrial controls
(i.e., BMPs), water quality monitoring, and other activities designed to protect area creeks and rivers.

This program would be unchanged by the proposed project, and the project would be required to
implement all appropriate program requirements.

ln addition to these activities, the City maintains the following requirements and programs to reduce the

potential impacts of urban development on stormwater quality and quantity, erosion and sediment

76

Page 1058

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

control, flood protection, and water use. These regulations and requirements would be unchanged by

the proposed project.

Standard construction conditions required by the City include:

Water Pollution - requires compliance with City water pollution regulations, including NPDES

provisions.

Clearing and Grubbing - specifies protection standards for signs, mailboxes, underground

structures, drainage facilities, sprinklers and lights, trees and shrubbery, and fencing. Also

requires the preparation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan {SWPPP}to controlerosion

and siltation of receiving waters.

Reseeding - specifies seed mixes and methods for reseeding of graded areas'

Additionally, the City enforces the following requirements of the Folsom Municipal Code as presented in

Table 16.

Table 16. City of Folsom Municipal Code Sections Regulating the Effects on Hydrology and Water

Quality from Urban Development

a

a

a

Code
Section

Code Name Effect of Code

8.70

Stormwater
Management
and Discharge

Control

Establishes conditions and requirements for the discharge of urban
pollutants and sediments to the storm-drainage system; reguires

preparation and implementation of Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans.

L3.26
Water

Conservation
Prohibits the wasteful use of water; establishes sustainable landscape

regu irements; defi nes water use restrictions.

L4.20
Green Building

Standards

Code

Adopts the California Green Building Standards Code (CalGreen Code), 2010

Edition, excluding Appendix Chapters A4 and A5, published as Part 11, Title

24, C.C.R. to promote and require the use of building concepts having a

reduced negative impact or positive environmental impact and encouraging

sustainable construction practices.

t4.29 Grading Code

Requires a grading permit prior to the initiation of any grading, excavation,

fill or dredging; establishes standards, conditions, and requirements for
grading, erosion control, stormurater drainage, and revegetation

L4.32
Flood Damage

Prevention

Restricts or prohibits uses that cause water or erosion hazards, or that result

in damaging increases in erosion or in flood heights; requires that uses

vulnerable to floods be protected against flood damage; controls the

modification of floodways; regulates activities that may increase flood

damage or that could divert floodwaters,

14.33
Hillside

Development

Regulates urban development on hillsides and ridges to protect property

against losses from erosion, ground movement and flooding; to protect

significant natural features; and to provide for functional and visually

pleasing development of the city's hillsides by establishing procedures and

standards for the siting and design of physical improvements and site
grading.

Source: City of Folsom 2020b

77

Page 1059

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Evoluollon of Hydrology qnd Woler Quollty

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially

degrade surface or ground water quality?

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration

of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of imperuious surfaces, in a manner which

would:

i. Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?

ii. Substantially increase the rate or amount of sudace runoff in a manner which would result in

flooding on- or off- site?

iii. Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned

stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional resources of polluted runoff?

iv. lmpede or redirect flood flows?

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater

management plan?

less than rignificant impact. The proJect site consists of open space with a fairly dense oak tree canopy

and a drainage channel traversing the site adjacent to E. Natoma Street. The Oak Parkway Trail

separates the project site from residential properties to the south. The Cimmaron Hill Sub-division is

located east of the project site and the entrance to Folsom State Prison is located northwest of East

Natoma Street. The existing channel conveys runoff from a portion of the Cimmaron Hill Subdivision as

well as runoff from a portion of the Prison open space. lmplementation of the proposed project would

alter the existing drainage patterns on the project site. The site conditions would be replaced with

impervious surfaces from the three-story building, associated parklng and drive aisfes, and landscaping.

The existing drainage channel will remain and will be required to maintain the existing drainage

patterns, conveying the runoff generated onsite and oftsite, as is the case under existing conditions,

Modifications to the existing drainage patterns may result in localized flooding, and an increase in

impervious surfaces may result in an increase in the total volume and peak discharges of the proposed

project has the potentialto degrade water quality associated with urban runoff. Ground disturbing

activities would expose soil to erosion and may result in the transport of sediments which could

adversely affect water quality. A 36-inch culvert is proposed to be installed under the southernmost

driveway to allow runoff to continue to flow through the existing channel. The 35-inch culvert will

restrict the developed flows, causing water to back up in the existing channel. The existing channel will

function as a detention basin in high intensity storm events. The preliminary analysis considered the

worst possible scenario under a lO-year, 24-hour storm event, and under a 100-year, 24-hour storm

event.

Sacramento Method within SacCalc software was used to estimate runoff, employing the same methods

used to determine the runoff under existing conditions, as outlined in the Preliminary Drainage and

Stormwater Quality Report. Comparison of the runoff rates under existing and developed conditions

during the lg-year, 24-hour storm event show equal flow rates under existing and developed conditions

78

Page 1060

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

during the lO-year, 24-hour storm event. Therefore, the development of the site would maintain

existing drainage paths and would not have a negative effect on the existing storm system.

Preliminary hydrologic and hydraulic analysis estimates a decrease of 5.84 cfs during 100-year, 24-hour

$tonn event due to the development of the site as proposed. Table 17 shows the peak discharge rates

under existing conditions and developed condltions, The hydrologic estimations neglect losses due to
friction, travel time and proposed onsite storage and should be considered conservative.

Table 17. Peak Discharge Rates (Downstream from the Project Sitef

Existirrg {cfs} Mitlgated Developed (cfs|

10-Year 7s.3 75.3

100-Year Ltz.3 106.46

The preliminary analysis determined the development site would not increase the flow rate through the

existing channel durin6 the t0-year, 24-hour storm event, and flow rates through the existing channel

are estimated to decrease during the 100-year,24-h*ur storm event. The existing channel has the

capacity, upstream from the proposed 36-inch culvert, to detain flows exceeding the capacity of the

culvert while maintain at least 1-foot of freeboard. The offsite areas draining through the existing

channel and associated underground system will not be negatively affected by the development of this

project. lmpacts would be less than significant.

Additionally, the proposed project would be requlred to comply with variaus State and local water
quality standards which would ensure the proposed projed would not violate water quality standards or

waste discharge permhs, or othenvise substantially degrade water quality. As the proJect is greater than

one acre, the proposed project would be subject to NpDES permit conditions which include the
preparation of a SWPPP for implementation during construction. The proposed project would also be

subject to all of the City's standard Code requirements, including condltions for the discharge of urban

pollutants and sediments to the storm drainage svstem, and restrictions on uses that cause water or

erosion hazards.

As outlined previously, the preliminary analysis concluded flow rates with the development site would

be equal to or decrease under the 10-Vear and 100-year storm events. Additionally, compliance with

these reguirernents would ensure that water guality standards and discharge requirements are not

vlolated, and water quality is protected. Therefore, mpacts would be less than significant, and no

mitigation would be necessary for questions a), c), d), e), and f)'

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge

such that the proJect may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?

Less than signlficant impact. lmplementation of the proposed proiect would not result in the use of
groundrarater supplies because dornestic water in the City is provided solely from surface water sources

from the Folsom Reservoir. Whlle development of the proposed project would increase the percentage

of impervious surface on the site that could affect groundwater recharge, the site is not previously

known to be important to groundwater recharge. Further, because the proposed project would not rely

on groundwater for domestic water and irrigation purposes, and because the site is not an important

area of groundwater recharge, the proposed project would not deplete groundwater supplies or

interfere substantially with groundwater recharge that would result in a net deficit in aquifer volume or

79

Page 1061

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

a lowering of the local groundwater table. Therefore, impacts to groundwater supplies and recharge

would be less than significant.

d) ln flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation?

Iess than significant impact. The project site is not located within a 100-year floodplain and is not

subject to flood hazard. The project site is also approximately 70-miles northeast of the nearest tsunami

inundation area nea. Benicia, CA (California Emergency Management Agency 2009). The nearest body of
water is the American River, which is approximately O.5-miles west, and Folsom Lake, which is

approximately l-mlle north of the project site. Based on the site's location away frcm the 100-year

floodplain, distance from tsunami inundation area, and dlstance to Folsom lake, the project site i$ not

subject to release of pollutants due to inundation'

The City of Folsom is loeated approximately 95-miles from the Pacific Ocean, at elevations ranging from

approximately 140- to 828-ft amsl. Because of this, there would be no possibility of inundation by

tsunami. The City is located adjacent to Folsom Lakg a reservoir of lhe Arnerican River impounded by a

main dam on the river channel and wing dikes. Areas of the Clty adjacent to the wing dikes could be

adversely affected by a seiche as a result of an earthquake, either through sloshing within a full reservoir

or by a nnassive landslide or earth movement into the lake. Although historic $eismic activity has been

minor, the potentlalfor strong ground shaklng is present and the possibility exists of a strong

earthguake occurrlng when lake levels are high. This could create a large enough wave to overtop or

breoch the wing dikes although this is considered to be a remote possibility.

Mudslides and other forms of mass wastlng occur on steep slopes in areas having tusceptible solls or
geology, typically as a resull of an earthquake or high rainfall event. Slopes associated wlth the edges of
the building pads are located on the project site; however, Clty grading standards, including

requirements to evaluate slope stability and implement slope stabllizlng $easures as necessary, would
prevent this potential effect. ln surnmary there would be no potentially slgnificant effect f rom

inundation by seiche, tsunarni, or mudflow and no mitigation would be nece$sary.

80

Page 1062

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaBe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XI. LAND USE AND PTANNING

Pot tlblly
3l3nl0ont

lmplct

lrrr ltrrr
Sbnmc.nt

sldr
MUgrnoo

hcorporafd

LcscTh.n
s[nl0crm Io
lmplct hpta

Would the project:

a) Physically divide an established community? il I D

b) Cause significant environmental impact due to a conflict
with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for
the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental
effect?

r-l
L_,1 n il

Environmenlol Setling

Land use in the project area is regulated by the City of Folsom through the various plans and ordinances

adopted by the City. These include the City of Folsom General Plan and the City of Folsom Municipal

Code, including the Zonang Code. The projed site is designated in the General Plan as Professional Office

(PO) which provides low-intensity business and professionaloffices that are compatible with higher-

intensity residential uses.

The zoning designation of the site is in the Business and Professional {BP} District. According to the

Folsom City Municipal Code, the BP zoning distrid generally permits office building and related uses

such as banks, doctor's offices, geheral business office, and general uses. The purpose ofa gP zoning

district is to provide an area for business and professional office and compatible related uses. This

zoning district is intended to promote a harmonious development of burlness and professional office

areas with adjacent commercialor residential development. A senior cttirens residential cornplex is

allowed in the BP zoning district with approval of a minor Conditional Use Permit.

Entitlement requests for this project include a Planned Development Permit (PD Permit) and a

Conditional Use Permit (CUP). The purpose of the PD Permit is to allow for greater flexibility in the

design of integrated developments than otheru,ise possible through strict application of land use

regulations. W,th the PD Permit, the projerl'r site plan, elevations, and overall project design would be

evaluated, and specific development standards would be defined. The Conditional Use Permit is

required to allow development of a senior citizens residential complex within the BP zoning district.

Evqluolion of lond Use ond Plonnlng

a) Physically divide an established community?

Less than significant impact. The proposed project would develop a vacant, undeveloped lot,

surrounded by residential, commercial, and institutional land uses. The construction would not

barricade or reduce access to East Natoma Street, Fargo Way, Cimmaron Circle, or Prison Road. The

community would not be gated, and the main access driveway would be on East Natoma Street, across

from Prison Road. Oak Parkway Trail surrounds the project site and would enter into the southwestern

corner of the site boundary. Within the site boundary, the Oak Parkway Trail would be realigned and

81

Page 1063

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaBe at Folsom senior Apartments ISMND

connected to a concrete sidewalk proposed for the project site. The concrete sidewalk would extend

around the southern parking area and connect to the existing oak Parkway Trail section located south of

the site boundary. The realignment would add a pedestrian connection to Oak Parkway Trail. Although

the proposed project would realign the Oak Parkway Trail for a pedestrian connection, the existing trail

surrounding the site would not be physically impacted. The proposed project would not divide an

established community and therefore impacts would be less than significant.

b) Cause significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation

adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

No ilhpact. The proposed project is consistent with both the General Plan land use and zoning

designations for the site, as affordable senior housing is identified as a permitted land use with a minor

conditional Use permit. A cUP is a required approval for the implementation of the proposed project'

The density of the proposed project would be 0.32 FAR which is consistent with the maximum 0.5 FAR

densities permitted under the BP zoning district and PO land use designation' The proposed projed

would not conflict wlth any land use plan, policy, or regulation and, therefore, would have no impact.

82

Page 1064

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Xll. ttIINERALRESOURCES

Potfitblly
$gnlllcant

Inpcct

lrslrlun
SldfiC.nt

lvilt
MnfiFdon

lncorporrtcd

lossflun
Slgnl0ent l{o
lnplct lnp.cl

Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral

resource that would be ofvalue to the region and the
residents of the state?

n I

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important
mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local

general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?
n

Envlronmenlol Setting

The Folsom area regional geologic structure is defined by the predominantly northwest to southeast

trending belt of metamorphic rocks and the strike-slip faults that bound them. The structuraltrend

influences the orientation of the feeder canyons into the main canyons of the North and South Forks of
the American River. This trend is interrupted where the granodiorite plutons outcrop (no*h and west of
Folsom Lake) and where the metamorphic rocks are blanketed by younger sedimentary layers (west of
Folsom Dam) (Geotechnical Consultants, lnc. 2013). The four primary rock divisions found in the area

are: ultramafic intrusive, metamorphic, granodiorite intrusive, and volcanic mud flows.

The presence of mineral resources within the City has led to a long history of gold extraction, primarily

placer gold. No areas of the City are currently designated for mineral resource extraction. Based on a

review of the Mineral Lond Classification ol the Folsom 75' Quadrangle, Socromento, El Dorodo, Plocer,

and Amodor Counties, Californio (Department of Conservation 1984), no known mineral resources are

mapped in the project area.

Evoluolion of Minerql Resources

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region

and the residents of the state?

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a

local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?

No impact. The proposed pro.iect is not located in a zone of known mineral or aggregate resources. No

active mining operations are present on or near the site. lmplementation of the project would not

interfere with the extraction of any known mineral resources. Thus, no impacts would result, and no

mitigation would be necessary for questions a) and b).

83

Page 1065

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

xill. NorsE

Potenthlh
Sltnncrnt

lmp.ct

lpsrThrn
Sbnncilt

wlrh
illtlfrdon

lncorpofltod

brsftrn
$tnncmt No
lnprct lmp.Cl

Would the project result in:

a) Generate a substantial temporary or permanent increase

in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the proiect in
excess of standards established in the Folsom General

Plan or noise ordinance?

n t t]n
b) Generate excessive ground-borne vibration or ground

borne noise levels?
I trtl

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private

airstrip or an airport land use plan, or where such a plan

has not been adopted, within two miles of a public use

airport or private airstrip, expose people residing or
working in the project area to excessive noise.

I rl

A Noise and Vibration Assessment was prepared by HELIX on May 5,2022, and is included as Appendix

H. The components of the report are summarized below.

Nolse Melrics

All noise-level and sound-levelvalues presented herein are expressed in terms of decibels (dB), with A
weighting, abbreviated 'dBA," to approximate the hearing sensitivity of humans. Time averaged noise

levels of one hour are expressed by the symbol "Lre" unless a different time period is specified.

Maximum noise levels are expressed by the symbol "LMAX." Some of the data also may be presented as

octave-band-filtered andlor A-octave band-filtered data, which are a series of sound spectra centered

on each stated frequenry, with half of the bandwidth above and half of the bandwidth below, the stated

frequency. These data are typically used for machinery noise analysis and barrier-effectiveness

calculations. The Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) is a 24-hour average, where noise levels

during the evening hours of 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. have an added 5 dBA weighting, and sound levels

during the nighttime hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. have an added 10 dBA weighting. This is similar to
the Day Night sound level (Loru), which is a 24-hour average with an added 10 dBA weighting on the same

nighttime hours but no added weighting on the evening hours.

Because decibels are logarithmic units, SpL canrot be added or subtracted through standard arithmetic.
Under the decibel scale, a doubling of sound energy corresponds to a 3 dBA increase. ln other words,

when two identical sources are each producing sound of the same loudness, the resulting sound level at

a given distance would be 3 dBA higher than from one source under the same conditions. For example,

if one automobile produces att Spr- of 70 dBA when it passes an observer, two cars passing

simultaneously would not produce 140 dBA-rather, they would combine to produce 73 dBA. Under the
decibel scale, three sources ofequal loudness together produce a sound level 5 dBA louderthan one

source.

84

Page 1066

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Under controlled conditions in an acoustical laboratory, the trained, healthy human ear is able to
discern 1 dBA changes in sound levels, when exposed to steady, single-frequenry ("pure-tone") signals

in the mid-frequency {1,000 Hertz [Hz]-8,000 Hz) range. ln typical noisy environments, changes in noise

of L to 2 dBA are generally not perceptible. lt is widely accepted, however, that people begin to detect

sound level increases of 3 dB in typical noisy environments. Further, a 5 dBA increase is generally

perceived as a distinctly noticeable increase, and a 10 dBA increase is generally perceived as a doubling

of loudness.

Vlbrolion Melrlcs

Groundborne vibration consists of rapidly fluctuating motions or waves transmitted through the ground

with an average motion of zero. Sources of groundborne vibrations include natural phenomena and

anthropogenic causes (e.g., explosions, machinery, traffic, tralns, cQnstruction equipment). Vibration

sources rnay be continuous (e.g., factory machinery) or transient {e.g., explosions). eeak particle velocity
(PPV) is commonly used to quantify vibration amplitude. The PPV, with unlts of inches por second
(in/sec), is defined as the rnaximum instantaneous positive or negative peak of the vlbration wave.

Decibels are also used compress the range of numbers required to describe vibration. Vibration velocity

level (LV) with units of VdB are commonly used in evaluating human reactions to vibrations.

Environmentql Setling

Existing Noise Environment

The project site is currently vacant and undeveloped. Surrounding land uses include Folsom State Prison

to the north; single-family residences to the northeas! Pacific 6as & Electric {PG&E) powerlines and a

bicycle trailto the south; single- and multi-family residences to the south; and office space and the City

of Folsom Police Department to the west. Noise sources in the project vicinity are dominated by traffic
noise from East Natoma Street. Additional noise sources in the area include typical suburban residential

noise (e.g., landscape maintenance equipment; building heating, ventilation, and air conditioning

{HVAC) systems; dogs} and occasional noise from operation of the Fotsom State prison, approximately

2,500-ft (O"S-mile) to the north.

Noise Sensitive land Uses

Noise-sensitive land uses (NSLUs) are land uses that may be subject to stress and/or interference from

excessive noise, including residences, hospitals, schools, hotels, resorts, libraries, sensitive wildlife
habitat, or similar facilities where quiet is an important attribute of the environment. Noise receptors
(receivers) are individual locations that may be affected by noise. The closest existing NSIUs to the
prolect site are five slngle-family resldences adjacent to the project's northeast property line. Addilional
single-family and multi-family residence are located approximately 120-ft south of the project slte. The

closest schoof to the project slte is the Saint John's lrlotre Darne Schoolapproxirnately 320-ft to the

southeast. The closest hospital to the project site is the Vibra Hospital of Sacramento, approximately

350-ft to the south.

Noise Survey

A site visitlnoise survey was on conducted on March 29,2022, which included two short-term

{10 minute) ambient noise measurements. Measurement Ml was conducted on the northeast side of

85

Page 1067

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMN D

the projecl site approximately 150-ft from the residences along Cimmaron Drive and approximately 300-
ft from East Natoma Street. Measurement M2 was conducted the nofthwest side of the project site

approximately 40-ft from East Natoma Str€et and approximately 300-ft northeast of the Folsom Prison

Road intersection. Traffic counts were conducted during measurement M2. The noise measurement
survey notes are included as Attachment A to this report. The noise rneasurement locations are shown

on Figure 2 in Appendix H. The measured noise levels are shown on Table 18.

Table 18. Noise Measurement Results

Date March 2022
Time 7:57 .m,-2:07 m,

Location Northeast side of the project site, approximately 150 feet from residences

on Cimmaron Orive

Noise Level 56.7 dBA Lea

Notes Noise primarily from vehicular traffic on East Natoma Street and
residential maintenance

Date March 2022
Time 2:70 -2t2O
Location Northwest side of the project site, approximate 40 feet from East Natoma

Street.

Noise Level 65.5 dBA Leq

Notes Noise primarily from traffic on East Natoma Street. Traffic count; 170 cars,

1 medium truck.

Regulolory Fromework

City of Folsom General Plan Noise Element

The Safety and Noise Element of the City of Folsom General Plan regulates noise emissions from public

roadway traffic on new development of residential or other noise sensitive land uses. Policy SN 6.1.2

and Table SN-1from the General Plan provide noise compatibility standards for land uses. For multi-
family housing, noise due to traffic on public roadways, railroad line operations, and aircraft shall be

reduced to or below 65 CNEL for outdoor activity areas and reduced to or below 45 CNEL for interior use

areas. For other land uses that may be affected by project-generated traffic noise, the exterior noise

compatibility limit is: 60 CNEL for single-family residential uses and 70 CNEL for commercial uses {City
z0ztbl.

Pollcy SN 6.1..8 requires construction projects and new development antlcipated to generate a

significant amount of vibration to ensure acceptable interior vibration levels at nearby vibration-
sensitive uses based on FederalTransit Admlnisftation criteria. Table SN-3 from the General Plan

provides vibration impact criteria. For construction with infrequent vibration events {defined as fewer
than 30 vibration events of the same source per day), impacts would be significant if nearby residences

are subject to ground borne vibrations in excess of 80 VdB (City 2021b).

M1

M2

86

Page 1068

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

City of Folsom Municipal Code

For stationary noise sources, the City has adopted a Noise Ordinance as Section 8.42 of the City

Municipal Code (City 1993). The Noise Ordinance establishes hourly noise level performance standards

that are most commonly quantified in terms of the one-hour average noise level (Lrq). Using the limits
specified in Section 8.42.040 of the Noise Ordinance, noise levels generated on the project site {other
than noise from HVAC systems) for 30 or more minutes in any hour would be significant if they exceed

50 dBA L6q from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and 45 dBA L6qfrom 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m., measured at
off-site residential property boundaries. Section 8.42.050 exempts construction noise from these

standards provided that construction does not occur before 7:00 a.m. or after 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, or
before 8:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m. on Saturday or Sunday. Noise from the project's HVAC would be

significant if exterior noise levels exceed 50 dBA, per Section 8.42.07O of the City Municipal Code

measured at off-site residential property boundaries.

Methodology ond Assumpllons

Noise Modeling Software

Project construction noise was analyzed using the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) Roadway

Construction Noise Model ([RCNM]; USDOT 2008], which utilizes estimates of sound levels from
standard construction equipment.

Modeling of the exterior noise environment for this report was accomplished using the Computer Aided

Noise Abatement (CadnaA) model version 2O2L. Traffic noise was evaluated within CadnaA using the
U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Traffic Noise Model (TNM)

version 2.5 (USDOT 2004). The noise models used in this analysis were developed from the site plan

provided by the project architect. lnput variables included building mechanical equipment reference

noise levels, road alignment, lane configuration, projected traffic volumes, estimated truck composition
percentages, and vehicle speeds

Off-Site Traffic Noise

The one-hour Lsq traffic noise level is calculated utilizing peak-hour traffic. The model-calculated one-

hour Leo noise output is the equivalent to the CNEL (Caltrans 2009). The off-site traffic noise modeling
includes does not account buildings, structures or terrain. The project Transportation lmpact Study (TlS)

included an intersection analysis with data for calculation of peak hour traffic volumes on streets in the
project vicinlty {T. Kear 2022). Existing traffic for East Natoma Street was estimated frotn intersection
turning counts included in the TlS. The PM peak hour traffic volumes used in the analysis is shown in

Table 19. The noise modeling input and output are included in Appendix H. Traffic waE asssrned to be

comprised of a typical mix of vehicles for suburban streets in California: 96 percent cars and light trucks;
3 percent medium trucks and buses; and 1 percent heavy trucks.

Table 19. PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

+

East Natoma Street - Street to Folsom Prison Road

East Natoma Street - Folsom Prison Road to Cimmaron Circle

Erlrdtul202l
1,060

943
Source: T, Kear2O22

a7

969

Page 1069

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartm€nts ISMND

Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning

The project would use one residential-sized HVAC units for each apartment, with the air conditioning
condenser located on the rooftop of the building. The condensers would be located behind a parapet

wall of equal or greater height to the HVAC unit, which would provide substantial noise attenuation.
Specific details on planned HVAC units were not available at the time of this analysis. A typical system

for apartments in multi-story buildings would be a Carrier model 38BRC-A24-34 2-ton split system for,
which has a sound rating of 76 dBA Swr (Carrier 2005). The manufacturer's noise data for the HVAC units
is provided below in t"ott to*," 

20. HvAc condenser Noise Data (swt dBAl

Overall llolse lercl
75.0

Source: Carrier 2005

Swr = sound power level; Hz = Hertz; kHz = kilohertz

Stondords of Signiflconce

Based on Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, implementation of the project would result in a significant
adverse impact if it would:

L. Generate a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity
of the project in excess of standards established in the City of Folsom General Plan or noise

ordinance;

2. Generate excessive ground-borne vibration or ground borne noise levels; ot

3. For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan, or where

such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public use airport or private airstrip,
expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise.

Per the City General Plan, impacts related to the generation of noise on the project site would be

significant if noise levels generated by the project site HVAC systems would be significant if it would
exceed 50 dBA kq residential property boundaries. For traffic-related noise, impacts would be

considered significant if the project would cause ambient noise levels at nearby NSLUs to exceed the
noise compatibility limits defined in the City General Plan or would increase noise levels by 1.5 CNEL or
more in areas with exiting ambient noise levels exceeding the noise compatibility limits.

ln accordance with the City Municipal Code, any noise from project construction activity would be

considered significant for construction occurring before 7:00 a.m. or after 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, or
before 8:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p,m. on Saturday or Sunday,

ln accordance with the City General Plan, excessive ground-borne vibration would occur if construction-

related ground-borne vibration exceeds 80 VdB at nearby residential properties.

5{10 Hr I kHr 2lHr 4 kHz I kHz|,25Hz 25O Hz

68.0 70.0 67.0 61.5 58.55s.5 62.s

88

Page 1070

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Evoluolion of Nolse

a) Generate o substontiol temporcry or permonent increase in ombient noise levels in the vicinity of the
praject in excess of standards estsblished in the Folsam Generol Plon or noise ordinonce?

Less than significant with mitigation.

Construction Noise

The nearest NSLUs to the project site area are single-family residences approximately adjacent to the
project's northeast property line. Heavy earthmoving equipment would have the potentialto be as close

as 15-ft from the residential property line, including rubber-tired dozers and graders. Over the course of
one hour, it is anticipated that the average distance of heavy earthmoving equipment from residential
property lines would be approximately 50-ft. Modeling shows that the combined one-hour noise from a

dozer and grader would result in 82,7 dBA Leo at the closest residential property. Because construction
equipment would be mobile as it moves across the project site, the noise level experienced by the

neighboring uses would vary throughout the day. The modeling output for the anticipated construction

equipment is included in Attachment B, within Appendix H.

According to the City Code Section 8.42.060, noise sources associated with construction of the project

which are conducted between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., on Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,

Thursday, Friday, and Saturday, and between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on Sunday, are exempt from the

City noise standard (City 1993). Nighttime construction noise is not anticipated for the project. However,

nighttime construction is not exempt from the City Noise Ordinance and would exceed the nighttime

standard of 45 dBA if it were to occur, resulting in a potentially significant noise impact. Mitigation
measure NOI-0l would prohibit construction activities outside the above daytime hours.

Operation Noise

Off-Site Traffic Noise

As described above, modeling of the exterior noise environment for this report was accomplished using

CadnaA and the TNM. According to the TlS, the project is expected to generate approximately 504 daily

trips and 41 trips during the PM peak hour (T. Kear 20221. Future traffic noise levels presented in this

analysis are based on traffic volumes (as described above) for the existing (2022) and existing plus

project scenarios. The modeling does not account for intervening terrain or structures (e.9,, sound walls,

buildings).

The calculated off-site traffic noise levels are shown in Table 21, Off-1ite Troffic Noise Levels.ln typical
outdoor environments, a 3 dBA increase in ambient noise level is considered just perceptible and a

5 dBA increase is considered distinctly perceptible. ln areas where existing or future ambient noise

exceeds the land use compatibility standards, an individual project's contribution to increases in

ambient noise level could be considered significant if it exceeds 1.5 dBA. Because areas along the
analyzed road segments already exceed the residential land use noise compatibility standard listed in

the City General Plan (50 CNEL for low density residentiali 65 CNEL for multi-family residential), this

analysis uses a threshold of a 1.5 CNEL increase to determine significance of the impact.

As shown in Table 21, the maximum change in CNEL as a result of project-generated traffic would be

0.1 CNEL, a change in ambient noise level that is lower than the threshold and is not discernable,

89

Page 1071

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Therefore, impacts related to the project generating a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise

levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of General Plan standards from project-generated traffic

would be less than significant.

Table 21. Off-Site Traffic Noise Levels

loaduayScgment Chante ln CNEL

East Natoma Street - Fargo Street to 0.1
Folsom Prison Road

East Natoma Street - Folsom Prison Road 0.1
to Cimmaron Circle

Source: TNM version 2.5

Heating, Ventilotion, and Air Conditioning Noise

The primary potential noise sources on the project site would be roof-top mounted HVAC systems, as

desgibed in the Methodology and Assumptions section, above. HVAC systems were analyzed using the

CadnaA software, assuming 140 condenser units {one per apartrnent plus additionalfor common areas)

as shown on the project roof plan. Modeling assumed one hour of continuous operation of all

equipment. Modeled noise levels were analyzed at receivers placed at the property line of nearby NSLUs

{see Figure 2 for NSLU areas) at a height of 5-ft above the ground. The modeled 1-hour (LEq} noise level

at the adjacent property lines is compared with the City standard in Table 22, Operational HVAC Noise.

As shown in Table 22, noise from the project's HVAC systems would not exceed the City's noise

ordinance standard of 50 dBA Leq, and impacts from project HVAC noise would be less than significant'

Table 22. Operational HVAC Noise

Becaptor
Excecd

Standrds?

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Source: CadnaA; City Noise Ordinance Sections 8.42'050

Off-site Troffic Noise

Modeling of the exterior noise environment on the project site was accomplished using the CadnaA

model and the road segment traffic volumes, as described above.

No

R1

R2

R3

R4

R5

R6

R7

s1

H1

Cxlsdng 2m1
{cNEu

€xlstlng + Prol€ct
lcr{ELl

61.4 63.5

67.5 67,6

HVAC

Standad
ldBALml

Modeled
tlobe {dBAtnl

Descrlptlon

28.5 50Single-family residence
29.7 50Single-family residence
29.7 50Single-family residence
28.5 50Single-familv residence
26.2 505ingle-family residence
28,8 50Multi-family residence

s028.6Sinele-family residence
5020.3School

24.5 50Hospital

90

Page 1072

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Exterior Noise

As discussed above, the City General Plan Safety and Noise Element has established an exterior noise

standard of 65 CNEL for multifamily residential outdoor activity areas, defined as "[...j the patios or

common areas where people generally congregate for multifamily development" (City 2021b). The

patio/outdoor kitchen/bocce ball and seating areas on the west side of the project building would be

the outdoor activlty areas for the project. The modeling shows ground level noise for the outdoor

common areas would range from approximately 55.5 CNEL to 58.6 CNEL. This noise level would not

exceed the City exterior noise standard of 65 CNEL and the impact would be less than significant.

lnterior Noise

Standard building design and construction using current buildlng codes provides approximately 20 dBA

of exterior to interior noise reduction with the windows and doors closed. The noise at the exterior

facades for the project end units facing East Natoma Street was modeled for apartments on the first
through third floors, and is shown in Table 23'

Table 23. Building Exterior Noise Levels

floor WGst Arm (q{Etl

First 62.7

Second 62.s

Third 62,0

Source: CadnaA version 2021

Buildings with exterior noise levels exceeding 65 dBA could result in interior noise levels in excess of the

City General Plan Safety and Noise Element standard of 45 CNEL. Noise levels for the end unit

apart.nents on the project building north arm would exceed 55 CNEt. Therefore, interior noise levels

were calculated based on the architectural plans for the project. The calculation sheets are included in

Attachment B. The calculations show, with construction meeting minimum code requirements, interior

noise levels would not exceed the City standard of 45 CNE[ and the impact would be less than

significant.

lmpact Conclusion

lf project construction activities were to occur outside the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. Monday

through Friday and 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturday, construction noise generated by the project

would not be exempt for the City's noise ordinance nighttime exterior standard of 45 dBA, and the

impact would be potentially significant. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-01 would restrict

construction hours.

The addition of permanent project-generated traffic vicinity on roadways would not result in a

discernable increase in ambient noise levels. The pro.iect would not expose future project residents to
noise levels that exceed compatibility guidelines in the General Plan.

NorthArn {Ct{Et}

55.3

66.0
65.7

91

Page 1073

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Long-term operatlon of project would not result in noise levels from on-site sources, including HVAC

systems, exceeding the City noise ordinance standards, measured at the property line of the closest

NSLUs to the project site.

Therefore, with implementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-01. the project would not generate a
substantialtemporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinlty of the project in

excess of standards established in the Folsom General Plan or noise ordinance and the impact would be

less than significant,

Mitigataon Measure NOI-01: Construction Hours/Scheduling

The City shall specify on allgradin& and construction permits that construction activities for all

phases of construction, including servleing of construction equipment shall only be permitted

during the hours of 7:AA a,m. and 6:OA p.m. Monday through Friday and between 8;00 a.m' to
5:00 p.m. on Saturdays. Construction shall be prohibited on Sundays and on all holidays.

Delivery of materials or equipment to the site and truck traffic coming to and from the site shall

be restricted to the same construction hours specified above.

b) Generotion of excesslve ground-borne vibratian or ground barne noise levels?

Less than significant with mitiSation

An on-site source of vibration during project construction would be a vibratory roller. A vibratory roller
would primarily be used to achieve soil compaction as part of the foundation and paving construction,

and for aggregate and asphatt compaction as part of project driveway and parking lot construction).

Vibratory rollers could be used withln approximately 65-ft of the single-family residences to the

northwest. A large vibratory roller creates approximately 0.21" in/sec PPV at a distance of 25-ft, or
94 VdB (Caltrans 2020l' At a distance of 65-ft, a vibratary roller would create a PPV of 0.073 infsec, or 85

VdB.l This would exceed the City General Plan resldential standard of 80 VdB, and the impact would be

potentially significant. Once operational, the project would not be a source of groundborne vibrations. A

large vibratory roller would result in approxlmately 80 VdB or greater at distances less than 120-ft.

Mitigation measure NOl.02 would require the contactor demonstrate that the rollers to be used on the
project site would produce less than 80 VdB at nearby occupied residences, or use vibratory rollers in

static rnode only (no vibrationsl when operated within 1.20-ft of occupied residences. Therefore, with
implementation of Mitlgation Measure NOI-02, the project would not generate excessive ground-borne

vibration levels and the impac{ would be less than significant.

Mitigation Measure NOI-02: Vibratory Roller

The applicant or designated contractor shall provide evidence to the City {via testing data or
calculations from a qualified exllert), demonstrating that vibratory rollers to be used on the
proje* site would produce less than 80 VdB at nearby occupied residences, or allvibratory
rollers shall be used in static mode only {no vibrations) when operating wlthin L20-ft of an

occupied residence. The City shall specify r,ibratory roller model, size, or operating mode

restrictions on alldemolition, grading; and construction permits.

1 Equipment PPV = Reference PPV t {25/D}^(in/sec), where Reference PPV is PPV at 25 feet, D is distance from equipment to
the receptor in feet, and n= 1.1 (the value related to the attenuation rate through the ground); formula from Caltrans 2020.

VdB = 20 * Log{PPVl4/10'6).

a

a

92

Page 1074

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

c) For a project lacated wtthln the vicinity of d prlvate airstrip ar an alrpart land use plon, or where such

o plon has nat been adopted, wlthin two miles of a public use slrport ff private oirstrlp, expose

people residing or working in the proiect oreo ta excessive noise.

The closest airports to the project site are the Cameron Park Airport, approximately 9-miles to the east,

and Mather Airport, approximately 10.7-miles to the southwest. The project site is not located within

the influence area or noise contours for the Cameron Park Airport (El Dorado County 2012). The project

site is located within the influence area and is identified as a review area in the Mather Airport Land Use

Compatibility Plan {ALUCPI. The pro,lect site is beneath the approach paths for runways 22 Left and

22 BlghL however, the project site is not with the 60 dBA noise contour for the airport (Sacramento

County Association of Governments 2020). Therefore, although the proiect slte is subject to overfllght
by aircraft approaching and departlng Mather Airpo*, residents of the proposed project or people

working in the projeci area would not be exposed to excessive levels of noise due to aircraft or airport

operations, and the impact would be less than significant'

93

Page 1075

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XIV. POPUTATION AND HOUSING

?otmdally
f,Enltc.nf

lnp.ct

lcso firn
ll$rlfiont

$tlfi
!lldgadon

lnCoOorrtcd

l.a$fhtn
Sltnlficant llo
ftnprct |lnercl

Would the project:

a) lnduce substantial unplanned population growth in an

area, either directly (for example, by proposing new
homes and businesses) or indirectly {for example, through
extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

n I n

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or
housing, necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere?

t_l fl I

Envlronmenlol Setting

Folsom's estirnated population in 2019 was 81,328 people (U.S. Census Bureau 2019). The population is

projected to increase to 97,485 by 2035 (City of Folsom 2018a). The proposed project would construct

136 affordable one- and two-bedroom senior apartment units within an estimated 109,508-sf building.

Evoluotion of Populolion qnd Housing

a) lnduce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly {for example, by

proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or
other infrastructure)?

Less than significant impact. lmplementation of the proposed project would result in the construction

of 135 affordable one- and two-bedroom units for seniors aged 50 and older. Existing backbone
infrastructure and roads in the area would not need to be expanded or extended as a result of the
project, A signal would need to be added to the existing stoplight at the intersection of East Natoma

Street and Prison Road for the proposed main access driveway.

The proposed project would accommodate the demand for housing and would not induce substantial
growth in the City of Folsom. Although it is anticipated that the majority of individuals relocating to the

apartment community would be from the area, it is possible that the apartment units could draw in

between 136 to 358 new residents {assuming 2.63 people per unit, based on projected household size in

2035 lCity of Folsom 20].8a1]. The projected household size is for single family homes, which is larger

than the predicted unit size of a senior housing complex proposed for the project, The project would be

restricted to residents 60 years and older and units would be one- or two- bedroom. The population

generated by the project is within the projected increase in population from planned growth as

projected in the Cltls Housing Element. Therefore, irnpacts from project implementation would be less

than significant, and no mitigation would be required,

94

Page 1076

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senlor Apirtments ISMND

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or houslng, necessitatlng the construction of
replacement housing elsewhere?

No lmpact. The prolect slte is currently vacant. Therefore, there would be no lmpact on displacement of
€xisting people or housing.

95

Page 1077

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

xv. PUBUc SERVICES

Potcntb[y
Sltnl0crnt

lmpact

lrscThan
Slttlncsnt

wldt
Mhlgatl,on

lmorporatcd

tesrThan
Sltnlicmt No
lmprct lmpact

Would the project result in tubstantial adverse physical

impacts associated with the provision of new or physically

altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically

altered governmental facilities, the ronstrtrctaon of urhich

could cause significant environmenial impacts, in order to
maintain acceptable service rarios, re$pon$e firnes or ather
performance objectives for any of the public services:

a) Fire protection? LI n I
b) Police protection? n I
c) Schools? LI n
d) Parks? n
e) Other public facilities? t--]

t-_-t t_l I L,l

Environmentol Setling

The proposed pro1ect is in an area currently served by urban levels of all utilities and service"s' Public

services provided by the City of Folsom in the project area include fire, police, school, library, and park

services. The site is served by all pubfic utilities including domestic water, wastewater treatment, and

storm water utilities.

The City of Folsom Fire Department provides fire protection services. There are five fire stations

providing fire/rescue and emergency medicalservices within the City of Folsom. Station 38 is nearest to

the project site and is located at 1300 Blue Ravine Road, approximately 2.5-miles southeast of the

project site. The Fire Department responds to over 6,000 requests for seruice annually with an average

of 16.4 per day {City of Folsom 201"8b). The City of Folsom Police Department is located at 46 Natoma

Street, approximately l-mile southwest of the project site.

The prolect site ls located within the Folsom Cordova Unified School District and is within the

attendance area for St. John's Notre Dame School, Blanche Sprentz Llementary School, Folsom Middle

School, and Folsom Lake High School. There are several parks near the project site. including the Folsom

City Lions Park, Granite Mini Park, Castle Park, Elvie Perazzo Briggs Park, and Econome Family Park.

The Sacramento Municipal Utitities District (SMUDlwould supply electricity to the proiect site. Pacific

Gas & Electric {PG&E} provides natural gas to the area and would provide naturalgas to the project site'

fhe City of Folsorn has a program of maintaining and upgrading existing utility and public services within

the City. Similarly, all private utilities maintain and upgrade their systems as necessary for public

convenlenee and necet$ity, and as technology changes'

96

Page 1078

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Evqluqlion of Publlc Services

a) Fire protection?

Less than significant impact. On-site water for fire services would be privately owned and managed but

would connect to the City of Folsom's water supply in Zone 3 Cimmaron Pressure Zone, The project

would include fire hydrants, exterior Fire Department Connection assemblies, and fire riser rooms.

Emergency vehicle access would be maintained on the site to meet the Fire Department standards for

fire truck maneuvering, location of fire truck to fight a fire, rescue access to the units, and fire hose

access to all sides of the building. The fire lane would be 27-ft minimum, with an inner turning radius of

25-ft and an outer turning radius of 50-ft. All curbs adjacent to lhe fire lane would be painted red for

emergency fire servicer, The proposed project would not significantly increase fire service demands or

render the current service level to be inadequate, and impacts would be less than significant'

b) Police Protection?

Less than significant impact. The project site is within an urbanized area of Folsom and would increase

the residential population requiring police protection services. The project would be required to pay the

City's Capital lmprovement New Construction Fee (Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 3, Title 3.80lto fund

police services and facllities, The pmiect includes features that reduce opportunities for crime such as

adequate lighting on East Natoma Street, the proposed building, and parking areas {referto 8.0 l.

Aesthetics for more detail on lighting). Additionally, there would be on-site management services,

visibility of common areas from adjacent units, and no dead-end low-visibility areas, Potential impacts

from implementation of the proposed project would therefore be less than significant.

c) Schools?

Less than significant impact. The proposed project is age-restricted to residents aged 50 years and older

and would not generate students in grades K-12 or create demand for schoolfacilities. Pursuant to

Government Section 65995,1, the project would be required to pay development impact fees to the

Folsom Cordova Unified School District. No new schoolfacilities would be necessary to serve the

proposed project. Potential impacts from implementation of the proposed project would be less than

significant.

d) Parks?

Less than significant impact. The 136-unit project would accommodate residents who would create

additional demand for park and recreation facilities, The nearest park is Folsom City Lions Parlq 403

Stafford Street, approximately O.5-miles from the project site. Since the park is not adjacent to the

proposed apartrnent cornrnunity, a substantial increase in usage ofthe park is not anticipated. The

proposed profect would lnclude on-site indoor and outdoor recrea'tional amenhies to terve residents

that would reduce the need far park demand. The project would be required to pay park fees ta

mitigate the project's impact on existing park facilities and fund new park and recreation facilities. The

potential impacts from the proposed prolect would be less than significant.

e) Other Facilities?

Less than significant impact. The project site is within the urban area of Folsom served by adequate

police, fire, and emergency services. The senior housing apartment complex would include on-site

97

Page 1079

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

recreational amenities to serye resldents. Construction and operation of the proposed project would not
requlre the construction or expansion of parks and other public facilitles or result in the degradation of
those facllities. Potential impacts would be less than significant, and mitigation would not be necessary.

98

Page 1080

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XVI. RECREATION

Poten{rlly
Sltnlfic.nt

lilp!ct

lcrsTlnn
SlSrdficrnt

rilldr
illttrdon

lncorpor.tad

tcrrllnn
S[nncmt llo
ltn9tct lnps(t

Would the project:

a) lncrease the use of existing neighborhood and regional

parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial
physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be

accelerated?

tr tl I n

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require

the construction or expansion of recreational facilities

which might have an adverse physical effect on the

environment?

r LI

Envlronmentol Setllng

The Folsom Parks and Recreation Department provides and malntains a full range of recreational

activities and park facilities for the community. There are several recreational amenities and parks near

the project site, including the Johnny Cash RecreationalTrail and Oak Parkway Trail, Folsom City Lion's

Park, Granite Mini Park, Castle Park, Elvie Perazzo Briggs Park, and Econome Family Park'

Evqluqlion of Recreqlion

a) lncrease the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such

that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

Less than significant impact. Some additional use of community parks and trails is anticipated, however,

on-site recreational facilities at the apartment complex would reduce park and trail demand,

lmplementation of the proposed project would enhance existing and planned recreation facilities in the
project area. The project would be requlred to pay park fees to mhigate the proiect's impact on existing

park facilities and fund new park and recreation facilities. Potential impacts to existing parks would be

less than significant.

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

Less than significant impact. The proposed project would result in a 2,500-sf community center on the
ground floor of the proposed building. Additional arnenities on the project site would include outdpor

seating and dining areas, perimeter walkways, a bocce ball court, bike rackl, picnic tables with

umbrellas, outdoor barbeques/ kitchens, and 6-ft benches. On-site facilities and existing neighborhood

parks are antlcipated to adequately serve the recreation demands of project residents. The amenities

associated with the propos€d project are analyzed in this lS/MND. Potential impacts on recreational

facilities would be less than significant'

L-l

99

Page 1081

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XVII. TRANSPONTATION

Fotcid.lly
S[nlficrm

lmprct

lcee fhrn
strnnam

wltlr
tllttrdon

lncorporrted

lerclltrn
Slt,llfom t{o
lmpact lnp.ct

Would the project:

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy

addressing the circulation system, including transit,
roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

I fl

b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA

Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?
LI rt

L-t

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design

feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or
incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

n I trn
d) Result in inadequate emergency access? T n I

The discussion below is based on a Transportation lmpact Study (TlS) prepared by T. Kear Transportation

Planning & Management, lnc. {T. Kear 2O22l.The report is included in Appendix l.

Environmentol Setling

Study Scenarios

Four scenarios were identified for inclusion in this TIS through consultation with City staff. These study

scenarios were used to evaluate Projecl impacts relevant to General Plan Policy M4.1.3 relative to level

of service. This study determines the weekday AM peak-hour, PM peak-hour, and Sunday peak-hour

leveFof-service at study intersections under the following scenarios:

r ExistinB 2022 without Project condition
. Existing 2022with Project condition

Analysis of the existing condition reflects the traffic volumes and roadway geometry at the time the

study began. This scenario quantifies performance measures for the existing condition and serves as a

known reference point for those familiar with the study area. These scenarios, with and without the

Project, identify Project related impacts anticipated to occur if the Project opened in 2020.

Roodwoy Syslem

Brief descriptions of the key roadways serving the proiect site are provided below

a Natoma St/East Natoma St is a two-lane minor arterial connecting from Folsom Blvd, past

Folsom City Hall, and connecting through Green Valley Rd and onto Empire Ranch Rd. From

Folsom Blvd to Fargo Way, just east of City Hall, there are sidewalks, curb, and gutter with

striped class 2 bike lanes. From Fargo Way to the east, fronting the Project site and Folsom State

Prison, there are dirt shoulders without sidewalks until Folsom Crossing Rd, where East Natoma

100

Page 1082

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Street becomes a four-lane arterial with sidewalk, curb, gutter, and striped class 2 bike lanes to
Empire Ranch Rd. At Coloma Street, near City Hall, Natoma 5t caries about 11,000 vehicles per

day. A volume which drops to about 10,000 vehicles per day near the Project Site.

prison Rd is a two-lane north-south access road from East Natoma St to Folsom State Prison. lt
has unpaved shoulders without bike lanes or sidewalks. Prison Road is signed to prohibit

stopping or turning within the prison's property.

Sludy lnlerseclions

The traffic impact study analyzed the following three study intersections:

1) East Natoma St/ Prison Road: Signal

2l East Natoma Streetl Eastern Project Driveway: Side-Street-Stop-Control (SSSC)

Level ol Service MethodologY

Level of service {LOS) is a quatitative indication of the level of delay and congestion experienced by

motorists using an intersection. LOS are designated by the letters A through F, with A being the best

conditions and F being the worst (high delay and congestion). Calculation methodologies, measures of

performance, and thresholds for each letter grade differ for road segments, signalized intersections, and

unsignalized intersections.

Based on guidance from City staff, the following procedures described below for intersection traffic

operations analysis were utilized for this TIS'

I nte rse cti o n Troff ic A pe ratio ns Ano lysi s

Sienalized I ntersections,

The methodology from the Highway Capacity Manual {HCM) 6th Edition2, are used to analyze signalized

intersections. LOS can be characterized forthe entire intersection, each approach, or by lane group.

Control delay alone (the weighted average delay for allvehicles entering the intersection) is used to

characterize LOS for the entire intersection or an approach. Control delay and volume to capacity ratio

are used to characterize level-of-service for lane groups. The average delay criteria used to determine

the LOS at signalized intersections is presented in Table 24. The HCM 2010 methodology is used as the

primary method. HCM 2000 methods are only utilized where the signal phasing is incompatible with

HCM 2010 methods.

Table 24. Level-of{ervice Criteria for Signalized lntersections

a

level -of'
Service Description

Averate Delayl
{Sec. /Vehicle.}

A Very Low Delay: This level-of-service occurs when progression is extremely S 10.0

favorable, and most vehicles arrive during a green phase. Most vehicles do

not stop at all.

2 Transportation Research Board {2016) Highway Capacity Manual, Washington, D'C'

101

Page 1083

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

s Minimal Delays: This level-of-service generally occurs with Sood proBression,

short cycle lenSths, or both. More vehicles stop than at LOS A, causing higher
10.1-20.0

levels of del

C Acceptable Delay: Delay increases due to only fair progression, longer cycle 20.1-35.0

lengths, or both. lndividual cycle failures (to service all woiting vehicles) may

begin to appear at this level of service, The number of vehicles stopping is

ificant, though many still pass through the intersection without stopping.

D Approaching Unstablefiolerable Delays: The influence of congestion

becomes more noticeable. Longer delays may result from some combination

of unfavorable progression, long cycle lengths, or high v/c ratios' Many

vehicles stop, and the proportion of vehicles not stopping declines. lndividual

3s.1-s5.0

cycle failures are noticeable.

E Unstable Operation/Significant Delays: This is considered by many agencies 55.1-80.0

the upper limit of acceptable delays. These high delay values generally

indicate poor progression, long cycle lengths, and high v/c ratios. lndividual

cycle failures are freq uent occurrences.

F Excessive Delays: This level. considered to be unacceptable to most drivers, > 80,0
or v/c >1.0often occurs with oversaturation (i.e., when arrival flow rates exceed the

capacity of the intersection). lt may also occur at high v/c ratios below 1.00

with many individual cycle failures, Poor progression and long cycle lengths

may also contribute to such delay levels'

Note 1: Weighted sverage of delay on all approaches. This is the measure used by the Highway Capacity

Manual to determine level-of-service. Any movement with a volume-to-capacity ratio (vlc)

greater than 1.0 is considered to be level-of-service F.

Sourcel Transportation Research Board {2016) Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition, Washington D.C.

Unsiqna lized htersqEllglE

The methodology from HCM 6th Edition is used for the analysis of unsignalized intersections. At an

unsignalized intersec-tion, most of the main street traffic is un-delayed and, by definition, have

acceptable conditions. The maln street left-turn movements and the minor street movements are all

susceptible to delay of varying degrees. Generally, the higher the rnain straet traffic volurnes, the higher

the delay for the minor movements. Separate methods are utilired for Two-Way Stop-Controlted {TWSC}

intersections and All-Way Stop-Controlled (AWSC) intersections.

a

a

TWSC: The methodology for analysis of two-way stop-controlled intersections calculates an

average total delay per vehicle for each minor street movement and for the major street left'

turn movements, based on the availability of adequate gaps in the main street through traffic. A

LOS designation is assigned to individual movements or combinations of movements (in the case

of shared lanes) based upon delay, it is not defined for the intersection as a whole. Unsignalized

intersection LOS is for each movement (or group of movements) based upon the respective

average delay per vehicle presents the average delay criteria used to determine the LOS at

TWSC and AWSC intersections.

AWSC: At all-way stop-controlled intersections, the IOS is determined by the weighted average

delay for all vehicles entering the intersection. The methodologies for these types of

intersections calculate a single weighted average delay and LOS for the intersection as a whole.

The average delay criteria used to determine the LOS at all-way stop intersections is the same as

t02

Page 1084

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apaftments IsMND

that presented in Table 25. LOS for specific movements can also be determined based on the

TWSC methodologY'

It is not unusual for some of the minor street movements at unsignalized intersections to have LOS D, E,

or F conditions while the major street movements have LOS A, B, or C conditions. ln such a case, the

minor street traffic experiences delays that can be substantialfor individual minor street vehicles, but

the majority of vehicles using the intersection have very little delay. Usually in such cases, the minor

street traffic volumes are relatively low. lf the minor street volume is large enough, improvements to

reduce the minor street delay may be justified, such as channelization, widening, or signalization'

Table 25. level-of-Service Criteria for Unsignalized lntersections

Level of Description

Service
(ros)

n[s'
Average Delay
by Movement

{seconds I vehicle)

awgg'
lntersection Wide

Average Delay

/ vehlcle)

A Little or no delav <10 <10

B Short traffic delav >10and<15 >10and<15

c AveraEe traffic delays >15and<25 >15and<25

D Long traffic delays >25and<35 >25and<35

E very long traffic delays >35and<50 >35and<50

F Extreme delays potentially affecting other

traffic movements in the intersection

> 50 (or, v/c >1.0) >50

Note t: Two-Way Stop-Control {TWSC) level-of-service is calculated separately for each minor street

movement (or shared movement) as well as major street left turns using these criteria. Any

movement with a volume to capacity ratio {v/c) greater than 1.0 is considered to be level-of-

service F.

Note 2: All-Way Stop-Control (AWSC) assessment of level-of-service at the approach and intersection

levels is based solely on control delay.

Source: Transportation Research Board (20161 Highway Capacity Manual 6th Edition, Washington D.C'

Generol Plon Thlesholds

Level of Seruice

Consistency with General Plan LOS policies for the proposed project were determined based on the

methods described above and identified as either "conforming" or "non-conforming". General Plan

Policy M 4.1.3 addresses LOS:

Strive to achieve at least trcffic Level of Service "D" (or belter) for locol sgeets ond

roodways throughout the city. tn designing transportotion improvements, the City will

prioritize use of smort technologies and innovative solutions that moximize efficiencies

ond safety while minimizing the physicalfootprint. During the course of Plon buildout, it
mdy occur thot temporalty higher LOS result where roddwoy improvements have not

been adequately phosed as development proceeds. However, this situotion willbe

minimized bosed on onnusltraffic studies and monitoring programs. City Stoff will

repott to the City Council ot regular intewols via the Capital lmprovement Progrom

process for the Council to prioritize praiects integrol to achieving LOS D or better.

103

Page 1085

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

The General Plan EIR includes a criterion addressing potential impacts at locations that operate at IOS E

or F under no-project conditions. Under this standard, a non-conforming situation would occur if the

proposed project would:

lncrease the averoge deloy by five seconds or more at an intersection that currently

operates (or is projected to operate) ot on unocceptable LAS under "no-proiect"

conditions.

For the purposes of this analysis, LOS is considered potentially non-conforming if implementation of the
project would result in any of the following:

r Cause.an intersection in Folsom that currently operates (or is projected to operate) at LOS D or

better to degrade to LOS E or worse'

e lncrease the average delay by five seconds or more at an intersection in Folsom that currently

operates (or is projected to operate) at an unacceptable Los E or F.

Bi cycl e/P edestria n/Tra n sit Fo ci I ities

An impact is considered signlficant if implementation of the project would:

r lnhibit the use of bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities,

r Eliminate existing bicycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities.

r Prevent the implementation of planned birycle, pedestrian, or transit facilities.

Vehicle Mller Troveled Slondords ol Slgnlflconce

Under State Law (SB 743), on July L,2O2O, vehicle miles traveled (VMT) will become the only metric for
evaluating significant transportation impacts in environmental impact analyses required under the

California Environmental Quallty Act (CEOAI. Without specific General Plan guidance for VMT

thresholds, this analysis uses a qualitative screening against The Governors' Office of Planning and

Research (OPR) guidance of a 15 percent per capita VMT reduction and utilizes OPR's suggested

exemption for affordable housing projects.

Folsom General Ptan policy NCR 3.1.3 addresses VMT, as stated below:

Policy NCR 3.1.3 "Encourage efforts to reduce the amount of VMT. These efforts could include

encouraging rnixed-use development promoting a johs/housing balance, and

encouraging alternative transportation such as walking, cycling and publlc transit."

OPR has published guidance recommending a CEQA threshold for transportation impacts of land use

projects of a 15 percent VMT reduction per capita, relative to either city or regional averages based on

104

Page 1086

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom senior Apartments ISMND

the California's Climate Scoping Plan3. Qualitative assessment of VMT reduction is acceptable to screen

projectsa. Based on these criteria, a project will be considered to have a potentially significant impact if:

per capita VMT from residential projects is anticipated to be greater than 85 percent of the

regional average per capita VMT'

The project is anticipated to inhibit implementation of planned pedestrian, bicycle, or transit

improvements.

Anolysls Tools

LOS

Control delays and level-of-service for study intersections were calculated using the Synchro 115 analysis

software (Version 11".1, build 1, revision 5). Synchro implements the methodologies of the 5th Edition of

the Highway Capacity Manualto modeltraffic controls and vehicle delay'

The software reguires data on road characteristics (geometric), traffic counts, and the signaltiming data

for each analysis intersection. ln general, default parameters were used, except in locations where

specific field data are available. Heavy vehicle percentages of 2 percent were assumed during the peak

hour.

VMT

To support jurisdictions' 58743 implementation, The Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG)

staff developed thresholds and screening maps for residential and office projects, using outputs from

the 2016 base year travel demand model run for the 2020 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable

Communities Strategies {MTP/SCS}, SACOG travel demand model is activityltour based and is,designed

to estimate an individual's daily travel, accounting for land use, transportation and demographics that

influence peoples' travel behaviors.

For residential projects, the threshold is defined as total household VMT per capita achieving 15 percent

of reduction comparing to regional (or any appropriate sub-area) average. The SACOG screening map

uses "hex" geography, with each hex being about 1,000-ft on edge, ResidentialVMT per capita per hex is

calculated by tallying all household VMTs, including VMT traveling outside the region, Senerated by the

residents living at the hex and divided by the total population in the hex. Hexes are then color coded

with green and blue hexes depicting neighborhoods with at least a 15 percent reduction in residential

VMT relative to the SACOG region. Yellow, orange, pink and red hexes have less than a 15 percent VMT

reduction.

Exisllng 2022 Condillon

Table 25 presents a summary of level-of-servlce results for the study intersections under Existing

Conditions, along with 95 percent queue lengths for left turns. All study intersections operate at LOS A

x OPR {2018} Teehnical Advisory on €valuating lransportatlon lmpacts ln CEQA,

http:llwulv,opr.ca.sov/qgcsl20198!2?-743 Technitaf &ivlsorv.pdf.
4 OPR's webinar qn 58 743 implernentation, 4h6/29?A,

' hltps :/Agyw,tm f f icwa r

105

Page 1087

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartmentl ISMND

or better during the AM, PM, and Sunday peak hours. Left turn queues are adequately accommodated

by the existing left turn storage pockets.

Table 25. Existing 2022 lntersection Delay and Level'of-Service

lntellectlon Crntrol
llo Prolec (Delay and

Levelof-Servlcef

AMIPM
E Natoma St/Prison Rd Sienal 9.3 A 9.1 A

Eastern Project
Driveway sssc nla nla

lntcrsectlon Approach
t{o Prolect

95% Queues (Feetl

AM I pr,a

E Natoma St/Prison Rd

EB Left t73' 30'

WB Left n/a n/a

5B Left 22' 49'

NB Left nla
^/a

Eastern Project
Driveway N8 nla nla

SSSC = Side Street Stop Control

ProJecled Tdp Genetolion

Projected traffic generated by the proposed Project was calculated using trip generation factors from

the ,nstitute of Transportation Engineers (lTE) Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition (2021), and is

provided in Table 27,

Table27. Project Trip Generation

land Use
ITE

Crtctory
Quondty Datt Dally

AM Perk hour PM Peak hour
Total lnbound Outbound Tottl lnbornd Outbound

Senior Adult Housing
(Multifamily)

252
136

dwelling
units

Rate 3.24 0.29 45% 55% 0.3 54Yo 46%

Trips 44r 39 17 22 4L 27 19

Source: l'l1 (2O2Ll Trip Generation Manual, lnstitute of Transportation Engineers, Washington DC. (Higher value of
either the average rate or the fitted equation-based rate for peak hour of generator).

Trip Distribution

Trip distribution was based on obseryed traffic counts and select zone analysis within the travel demand

model. New Project trips were distributed as follows:

t 48 percent tofrom the west on East Natoma Street

o 48 percent tolfrom the east on East Natoma Street

r 4 percent to/from the north via Prison Road

106

Page 1088

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaSe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

SignalTiming Geometry

With the addition of a fourth leg to the East Natoma St/Prison Rd intersection, the signal timing and lane

geometry was assumed to be configured as follows:

Eastbound: An eastbound right turn pocket was assumed with 150-ft of storage and a 60-foot

taper; for a total of one left, one through, and one right turn lane.

Westbound: A westbound left turn tane with 100-foot pocket plus 50-foot taper for a total of

one left and one shared through-right lane.

Southbound: The existing exclusive right-turn lane is assumed to be restriped as a through-right

turn lane (for a total of one left and one shared through-right).

Northbound: The northbound approach is assumed to provide one left and one shared through-

right lane. The northbound through-right lane is assumed to be in a 70-foot turn pocket plus 60-

feet taper.

Timing: Eastbound and westbound protected left turn phasing, northbound and southbound

split phasing. 150 second cycle length, with 34 second northbound southbound split phases and

20 second eastbound and westbound protected phases, and 62 second eastbound and

westbound through phases. Crosswalks are assumed across all legs of the intersection with

flashing don't walk phases set to 22 seconds to accommodate a 3-feet per seconding walking

speed.

Exisling 2022 wllh Proiecl Condilions

Project peak-hour traffic was added to the Existing 2022 turning volumes at each intersection, Delay and

LOS were determined at the study intersections. Table 28 presents a summary of LOS results for the

study intersections under Existing Conditions. All study intersections operate at LOS B or better during

the AM, PM, and Sunday peak hours. Left turn queues are adequately accommodated by the existing

left turn storage pockets.

Table 28. Baseline 2022 lntersection Delay and Level-of-Service, with and without Proiect

lnteFectlon Control
t{o Ptolect (Delay and

Level-of-Servlce)

AM I prrr

Whh Propa (Delayand
tevel-of-Servlce)

AMlpm
E Natoma St/Prison Rd Signal 9.3 A 9.1A 15.9 B 16.7 B

Eastern Project
Driveway sssc nla n/a

10.6 B

(NB} 12.3 B tNB)

lntersecdon Approach

No Proiect
9596 Queues (Feetl

AMlpm

Wlth Prdect
95X Queues (Feet)

AM I Prrr

E Natoma St/Prison Rd

EB Left t73' 30' 166' 37'.

WB Left nla nla 22', 23'

58 Left 22' 49' 23', 73

NB Left nla n/a 27' 2T

Eastern Project
Driveway NB nla n/a 0 0

a

a

a

a

LOl

Page 1089

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

'S55C = Side Street Stop Control

Projecl VMI lmpocls ond GenerolPlon LOS Conlormity

Confonlancg with 6enelg! Plar*lOS Policv

Allstudy intersections are anticipated to operate at LOS B or better under all study scenarios, both with

and without the addition of project traffic. The project is not anticipated to create new LOS deficiencies,

or to or worsen any existing deficiencies, based on General Plan Policy M4.1.3.

Evqluollon of Tronsport<llion

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit,

roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

Less than significant impact. The project is anticipated to Senerate 441 daily vehicle trips including 39

AM peak-hour vehicle trips, and 41 PM peak-hour vehicle trips. Fewer than 50 peak-hour project trips

are proJected to pass through any intersection. All study intersections are anticipated to operate dt LOS

B or better under all study scenarios, both with and without the addition of project traffic. The project is

not anticipated to create new LOS deficiencies, or to or worsen any existing deficiencies, based on

General Plan Policy M4.1.3. All intersection LOS impacts are considered less than significant,

The project does not inhiblt the use of bicycle or pedestrian facilities; eliminate existing bicycle, or

pedestrian facilities; or prevent the implementation of planned bicycle, or pedestrian facilities. The

projecl includes accessible pathways around the building to provide a walking path for residents. Path

connections are planned to paths ;nternal to the project site, south to the Oak Parkway Trail, and west

to the East Natoma St underpass to the Johnny Cash Trail. The project has a less than significant impact

on pedestrians and bicycles. With relocation of the effected bus stop, transit impacts will be less than

significant.

The City does not have an adopted parking standard for age-restricted (senior) multi-family housing.

With a planned Development Permit {PD}, parking supply is established through the PD permit process

The project is proposing 136 spaces {1.00 parking spaces per unit). This exceeds that of many other

recently approved age restricted multi-family projects in and around Folsom. The 136 spaces include

eight accessible spaces (i.e., with the adjacent space striped out to provide vehicle access for

wheelchairs andlor mobility scooters) and 14 spaces with electric vehicle charging.

The ITE parking Generation Manual6 lists an average peak parking demand of 0.59 vehicles per dwelling

unit for Land Use 252 {Senior Adult Housing-Attached), with a standard deviation of 0,L2. The ITE

sample size is small (three observations), yet the proposed parking ratio of 1.05 is greater than 3.5

standard deviations greater than the mean parking demand. Consequently, the proposed parking for

the project is sufficient to meet the anticipated parking demand with a parking ratio of 1.00.

For comparison, Revel Senior Living a similar project approved by Folsom in 2018 had a parking ratio of

0.81 spaces per dwelling unit, The Revel project conducted a parking survey of six similar Sacramento

5 ITE (2010) parking Generation 4th Edition, lnstitute of Transportation Engineers, Washington DC'

108

Page 1090

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

area facilities. Allsix facilities were found to use less than 0,60 spaces per dwelling unit during peak

parking demand hours (consistent with the ITE parking demand data referenced above.) A second

parking review for the Revel Senior Living project surveyed localjurisdictions parking requirements for
senior housing. Only two jurisdictions in the vicinity of Folsom were found to directly address the issue

of the parking needs of senior independent living facilities. Both of those zoning code requirements from

other 1urisdictions are lower than the proposed parking supply for the Vintage at Folsom Senior

Apartments Project. Therefore, the proposed parking supply of L36 parking spaces is adequate for the

136 multi-family units proposed in the project.

The project would have a less than significant impact on program plans, ordinances, or policies

addressing the circulation system.

b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?

Less than significant impact. 58743, passed in 2013, required OPR to develop new CEQA Guidelines

that address traffic metrics under CEQA. As stated in the legislation (and Section 210991b1[2] of CEQA),

upon adoption of the new CEQA guidelines, "automobile delay, as described solely by LOS or similar

measures of vehicular capacity or traffic congestion shall not be considered a significant impact on the

environment pursuant to this division, except in locations specifically identified in the CEQA guidelines, if
any." The Office of Administrative Law approved the updated CEQA Guidelines on December 28,2OL8,

and the changes are reflected in new CEQA Guidelines (Section 15064,3). State CEQA Guidelines Section

15054.3 was added December 28,2018, to address the determination of significance for transportation

impacts. Pursuant to the new CEQA Guidelines VMT replaced congestion as the metric for determining

tra nsportation irn pacts,

The Governors'Office of Planning and Research (OPR) has published guidance recommending a CEQA

threshold for transportation impacts of land use projects of a 15 percent VMT reduction per capita,

relative to either city or regional averages, based on the California's Climate Scoping Plan7. Qualitative

assessment of VMT reduction is acceptable to screen projectss'

Under State Law (SB 743), VMT became the only CEQA threshold of significance for transportation

impacts on July L,2O2A. Without specific General Plan guidance for VMT thresholds, this analysis uses

qualitative screening against OPR's guidance of a 15 percent per capita VMT reduction.

To support jurisdictions' 58743 implementation, SACOG developed thresholds and screening maps for

resldential projectse, using outputs from the 2016 base year travel demand model run forthe 2020

MTP/SCS. SACOG's travel demand model is activity/tour based and is designed to estimate an

individual's daily travel, accounting for land use, transportation and demographics that influence

peoples'travel behaviors. For residential projects, the threshold is defined as total household VMT per

capita achieving 15 percent of reduction compared to regional {or any appropriate sub-area) average

VMT. The map uses HEX geography. ResidentialVMT per capita per HEX is calculated by tallying all

household VMTs, including VMT traveling outside the region, generated by the residents living at the

HEX and divided by the total population in the HEX. Green hexagons denote areas where residential

? OpR {2018} Technical Advisory on tvaluating Transportallon lrnpacts ln CrQA,

http:/lwww.oar.La,eov/dqg.s120190122-743 Tecbeical Adv$ofv'ldf.
s OPR'g webinar on 58 743 itrplementation,4116/202$.
e sAcoc (2021) ht&srllsb74l-sacos.ooendata.argqis.qqml

109

Page 1091

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments {SMND

VMT is 50 to 85 percent of the regional average and yellow hexagons denote areas where residential

VMT is 85 to 100 percent of the regional average'

The project is located within one of the green hexagons with average residential VMT of 17 miles per

capita (per day). The Project is anticipated to generate less than 82 percenl of the regional per capita

residential daily VMT af 2A.82 miles. The project is therefore anticipated to have a less than significant

impact on VMT.

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g,, sharp curves or dangerous

intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. Access to the project site would be provided by two
driveways on East Natoma Street. City standards requires a 60-ft right turn taper in conditions with ten

or more peak-hour right turns into a driveway, and a 150-ft pocket plus 60-ft taper, with 50 or more

peak-hour right turns. Neither project driveway is anticipated to have ten or more right turning vehicles

into the project during the AM or PM peak-hours. The main driveway at the signalized East Natoma

Street/Prison Rd intersection includes an eastbound right turn pocket and a westbound left turn pocket

accessing the project, these are adequate to safely accommodate project traffic without hindering

existing traffic.

The secondary (eastern) driveway is restricted to right-in-right-out movements and is anticipated to only

have fewer than ten eastbound right-turns into the project during either the AM or PM peak hours. No

turn pockets are necessary. ln order to limit the secondary (eastern) driveway to right-in-right-out

access, the applicant would implement Mitigation Measure TRA-O1. With Mitigation Measure TRA-01

implemented, impacts relating to process access design would be less than significant.

For an 81-160-unit apartment complex, the standard for the Minimum Required Throat Depth (MRTD)

is 50 feet10. This 50-ft length represents vehicle storage equivalents, which means the total required

len4h may be achieved by summing the throat depths for several access points if more than one access

point is to serve the site. The throat depths for the primary and second driveways exceed 50-ft and 25-

ft, respectively. Therefore, MRTD of the project driveways meet the standard because the primary

driveway throat depth meets the minimum standard of 50-ft,

Potentialgeometric constraints and safety issues were evaluated, including driveway spacing, sight

triangles, and Statewide lntegrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) collision data. Driveway spacing,

throat depth, and corner sight distance are all adequate. ln the last five years, there have been three

accidents proximate to the project site including:

o One eastbound rear-end collection at the existing traffic light,

r Two drivin8 under the influence (DUl) accidents (one a sideswipe, and the other a single vehicle

overturn.)

These are not accident varieties that would be anticipated to be worsened by the project, and the

project does not require any project specific traffic safety treatments'

10 Folsom (2020) Design and Procedures Manual and lmprovement Standards, site access Table 12-1,

httns:/lwww"f.olsorn.sa.rrslciv.icaxl{lleba0blblobdload.as.ox?t=6F183.89Q.81ob18"38340'

110

Page 1092

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

lmplementation of Mitigation Measures TRA{I would reduce all potential impacts regarding hazards

due to geometric design to a less than significant level.

Mitigation Measure TM-01: limit Access to the Secondary (Eastern] Driveway

During construction of the project, the applicant shall ensure the eastern driveway is

channelized to restrict left turns from entering or exiting the project via the eastern driveway,

Such channelization shall be accomplished during construction by either a triangular island

located within the driveway, or by extending the raised median at the East Natoma

St/Cimmaron Cir intersection west-word across the eastern project driveway.

d) Result in inadequate emergency access?

No impact. The project proposes two access points connected by a fire lane which circles the back of the

Proposed apartments. All internal radii have at least a 25-feet inner radius and SO-feet outer radius per

City requirements. Emergency vehicle access is available to the site from East Natoma Street.

Emergency vehicle access is designed consistent with standards and is adequate. There would be no

impact.

a

111

Page 1093

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XVIII. TRIBAI CUTTURAI RESOURCES

PotGntLlly
Sl3nlficrnt

ln!.Ct

lrsllun
sgdfant

wldl
Mld6rtlon

lncorporitsd

trrc llrrn
Sltnlficsnt No
lmFct lmplct

Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a

tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code

Section 27074aseither a site, feature, place, cultural

landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the

size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object

with cultural value to a California Native American tribe,

and that is:

i. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register

of Historical Resources, or in a local register of
historical resources as defined in Public Resources

Code Section 5020.1(k), or

nn
ii, A resource determined by the lead agency, in its

discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to
be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in
subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section

5024.1, ln applying the criteria set forth in
subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section

5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the

significance of the resource to a California Native

American tribe.

ft n

The discussion below is based on a tribal cultural resources memorandum prepared by ECORP

Consulting, lnc. {ECORP 2022), attached to this lnitial Study as Appendix J'

Envlronmentol Setllng

CEeA, as amended in 2014 by Assembly Bill 52 (AB 52), requires that the City of Folsom (City) provide

notice to any California Native American tribes that have requested notice of projects subject to CEQA

review, and consult with tribes that responded to the notice within 30 days of receipt with a request for

consultation. Section 21073 of the Public Resources Code {PRC} defines California Native American

tribes as "a Native American tribe located in California that is on the contact list maintained by the

NAHC for the purposes of Chapter 905 of the Statutes of 20O4." This includes both federally and non-

federally recognized tribes. For the City, these include the following tribes that previously submitted

general request letters, requesting such noticing:

. Wilton Rancheria {letter dated January t3,2O2Ol;

. lone Band of Miwok lndians (letter dated March 2,2OL6l; and,

. United Auburn lndian Community (UAIC) of the Auburn Rancheria (letter dated November 23,

2015 and updated per UAIC via email on September 29,2O211,

tI2

Page 1094

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

The purpose of consultation is to identifu Tribal Cultural Resources (TCR) that may be significantly

impacted by the proposed project, and to allow the City to avoid or mitigate significant impacts prior to
project approval and implementation. Section 2IO74la) of the PRC defines TCRS for the purpose of CEQA

asl
Sites, features, places, culturol londscapes (geogrophically defined in terms of the size

and scope), sacred places, ond objects with culturolvolue to o Colifornia Native

Americon tribe thot are either of the following:

o) included ar determined to be eligible for inclusion in the Colifornia Register of
H isto rico I Reso urces ; o nd/ or,

b) included in s local register of historicol resources as defined in subdivision (k)of
Section 5020.1; and/or,

c) d resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion ond supported by

substontio! evidence, to be significant pursuont to criterio set forlh in subdivision (c)

of Section 5024.1. ln applying the criterio set forth in subdivision (c) of Section

5024.7 for the purposes of this paragraph, the leod agency sholl consider the

signiliconce of the resource to a California Native American tribe.

Because the first two criteria also meet the definition of a Historical Resource under CEQA, a TCR may

also require additional consideration as an Historical Resource. TCRs may or may not exhibit

archaeological, cultural, or physical indicators and can only be identified by a culturally affiliated tribe,

which has been determined under State law to be the subject matter expert for TCRs.

CEQA requires that the City initiate consultation with tribes at the commencement of the CEQA process

to identify TCRs. Furthermore, because a significant effect on a TCR is considered a significant impact on

the environment under CEQA, consultation is required to develop appropriate avoidance, impact

minimization, and mitigation measures. Therefore, in accordance with the requirements summarized

above, the City carried out, or attempted to carry out, tr;bal consultation for the project.

Within 14 days of initiating CEQA r"ui"* for the project, on November L9,2O2L, the City sent project

notification letters to the three California Native American tribes named above, which had previously

submitted general consultation request letters pursuant to 21080,3.1(d) of the Public Resources Code

(PRC). Each tribe was provided a brief description of the proiect and its location, the contact information

for the City's authorized representative, and a notification that the tribe has 30 days to request

consultation,

The lone Band of Miwok lndians did not respond to the City's notification letter, and therefore, the

threshotd for carrying out tribal consultation with that tribe under PRC 21080.3.1(e) was not met, and

no further consultation is warranted.

On Decembe r LO,2021, and within the 30-day response timeframe, the City received an email from

Anna Starkey that acknowledged receipt of the City's notification letter and accepted consultation under

AB 52 for the project. She indicated that the project area is potentially sensitive for unrecorded cultural

and tribal cultural resources based on the presence of a known and recorded resource in the vicinity.

She inquired whether a cultural resources survey has been conducted and ifso, requested a copy.

On Decembe r L3,202!, the City formally initiated consultation with United Auburn lndian Community

113

Page 1095

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

and acknowledged Ms, Starkey's inquiry of a cultural report. The City confirmed that a survey had been

conducted and that preparation of a cultural resources report was undenrrray and welcomed the

opportunity to further discuss the proiect. Accordingly, the City provided a copy of the report to Ms'

Starkey for her review on March 8,2022. Ms. Starkey responded the same day indicating that the report

aligns with their findings and inquired $rhether an arborist report had been prepared and if so,

requested to review tt, Additionally, Ms. Starkey questioned if any heritage trees had been ldentified. On

March 23, ZO2Z, the city transrnitted the arborlst report lo Ms. Starkey. As of the date of this

memorandum, there has been no further correspondence received from Ms. Starkey or any other

representative from UAIC. The City did not receive any specific information about TCRs that meet the

definitions in PRC Sectio n 21O74 within the project area. Therefore, on June 3,2022, the City forrnally

concluded consultation with UAIC pursuant to PRC Sections 2L080.3.2(b)(1) and 21082.3(dX1)'

Wilton Rancheria did not respond to the City's notification letter, and therefore, the threshold for

carrying out tribalconsultation with that tribe under PRC 21080.3.1(e) was not met' However,

separately, as part of the cultural resources inventory, HELIX contacted the Native American Heritage

Commission TNAHC) on January 27,2022 to request a search of the Sacred Lands File' On February 9,

2022, the NAHC contacted HELIX to report that no sacred lands are recorded inside the project area and

provided a list of culturally affillated tribes and their contact infonnation. On February 10,2A22' HELIX

contacted all of the named tribes, which included Wilton Rancheria, UAIG Tsi Akim Maidu, the Colfax-

Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe, the lone Band of Miwok lndians, and the Euena Vista Rancheria of Me-

Wuk lndians. While none of the othertribes responded, on March 3I,2022, an unnamed representative

of the Cultural preservation Department from Wilton Rancheria replied by email and stated that the

tribe had requested consultation on December 2 for this project, and that the tribe was requesting

monitoring because of three sensitive sites in the vicinity. No specific information about TCRs was

provided in the March 31 email'

After an exhaustive search of the consultation record, City staff emails, and physical mail, none of the

City staff or hs consu ltants could locate any correspondence from Wilton on this project' Suspecting that

the tribal representative might have been mlstaklng this as a different project, on April 8,2A22, HELTX

replied to the tribe to report that the City is not in possession ol any correspondence regarding this

project and requested a copy of the December 2 correspondence. Wilton Rancheria did not respond to

ihe request for information, and as of the date of this memorandum, there has been no further

communication received from the tribe. Therefore, because the City: 1) is not in possession of a written

request for consultation on this project: and 2) did not receive any specific information ahout TCRs that

meet the definitions in PRC Section 2L074 within the project a(ea; aftd, further, because Wilton

Rancheria failed to engage in consultation pursuant to PRC 21802.3{dx2}, the City closed the matter and

drew from other lines of evidence to make a determination of impacts to TCRs.

Evoluolion ol lribol Cullurol Resources

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the signifieance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public

Resources Code Section 27O74 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is

geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with

culturalvalue to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

i. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register

of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020'1{k)?

714

Page 1096

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



VintaBe at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Less than significant impact with mitigation. As discussed in Section V., Cultural Resources, the results

of this Cultural Resources Assessment indicate that there are no known or newly discovered

cultural resources within the APE, prompting HELIX to recommend that the area is not likely to contain

surface based archaeological deposits. Although the NCIC records search indicated that elements of

district p-34-000335 (the Folsom Mining District) may potentially be located within the current APE, no

traces of the district were found during HELIX's pedestrian survey of the project area. As a result, the

current project is anticipated to have no impacts on district P-34-000335.

Based on the results of HELIX's cultural resource assessment the APE can be assumed to have a low

sensitivity for surficialcultural resources and this project is anticipated to have no impacts to historical

resources for the purposes of compliance with both Section 106 of the NHPA and CEQA. Consequently,

HELIX recommends that there would be no effect on historic properties or historical resources, including

archaeological and built-environment resources as a result of project implementation. No additional

studies, archaeological work, or construction monitoring are recommended' However, in light of the

presence of prehistoric resource$ within the study area (P-34-0000016 and P-34-000017) and the

potential presence of elements of district P-34-000335 to tie within the study area, llELlX recommends

that the Mltigation Measure CUL-01and CUL-02 outlined below be implemented in the unlikely event

that cultural resources are encountered during construction

lf historical or archaeological resources are discovered, implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-01

and Mitigation Measure CUL-02 {Section V) would reduce any potential impact to a less than significant

level.

ii. A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial

evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources

Code Section 5O24.I.ln applying the criteria set forth in subdivision {c) of Public Resources Code

Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California

Native American tribe?

Less than significant impact with mitigation. lnformation about potential impacts to TCRs was drawn

from information provided by consulting and culturally affiliated tribes, the ethnographic context, the

results of a search of the Sacred Lands File by the NAHC, and the results of a cultural resources inventory

prepared by HESX {Appendix E}. Based on the lnformatisn provided, the project would not have any

impact on known TCRs. lmpacts to unanticipated tribal cultural tesources, if encountered during

construction, would be potentially significant. Based on the consultation record summarized above and

included in Appendix J, the City concludes that there would be a less than significant impact on TCR's

with the incorporation of Mitigation Measure TCR-01 regarding unanticipated discoveries.

Mitigation Measure TCR-01: Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources.

o tf potentially significant Tribal Cultural Resources (TCR) are discovered during ground disturbing

construction activities, all work shall cease within 50-ft of the find, or an agreed upon distance

based on the nature of the find. A Native American Representative from traditionally and

culturally affiliated Native American Tribes that requested consultation on the project shall be

immediately contacted and invited to assess the significance of the find and make

recommendations for further evaluation and treatment, as necessary. lf deemed necessary by

the City, a qualified cultural resources specialist meeting the Secretary of lnterior/s Standards

and eualifications for Archaeology, may also assess the significance of the find in joint

t15

Page 1097

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senlor Aoartments ISMND

consultation with Native American Representatives to ensure that Trlbal values are considered.

Work at the discovery location cannot resume untilthe Cify, in consultation as appropriate and

in good faith, determines thatthe discovery is either not a TCR, or has been subieeted to
culturally appropriate treatnent, if avoidance and preservatlon cannot be accommodated'

115

Page 1098

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments iSMND

XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Potclldrlly
$mlftcrnt

lmprd

hssilrrn
3l&l0cilt

wl0t
Mltlgrdon

lnsorporrtgd

Lcselhrn
$snlflcrm l{o
lmp.ct lmp.ct

Would the project

al Require or result in the relocation or construction of new

or expanded water, wastewater treatment or storm
water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or

telecommunications facilities, the construction or
relocation of which could cause significant environmental
effects?

t-lt_-t L:I t

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the
project and reasonably foreseeable future development
during normal, dry and multiple dry years?

n I n

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment
provider which serves or may serve the proiect that it has

adequate capacity to serve the proJect's proiected

demand in addition to the provider's existing

commitments?

t n

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards,

or in excess ofthe capacity of local infrastructure, or

otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction
goals?

t-.J u r

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and

reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?
n n n

Environmentol Setling

The project site is currently vacant and does not contain any existing utifitles. Existifig powerlines are

located on East Natoma Street and south of the project boundary. The City of Folsom employs a design

process that includes coordination with potentially affected utilities as pan of project development.

ldentifying and accomrnodating existing utilities is part of the design process, and utllities are considered

when finalizing Bublic project plans. The City of Folsom coordinates with the appropriate utility
companies to plan and imptement any needed accornmodaticn of existing utilities, including water and

sewer utility lines. Based on the results of an initial request for comments from the utility providers, all

utility services are able to accommodate the proposed project.

Evcrluotion of Utillties ond Service Syslems

a) Require or result in the relocation or construclion of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment

or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the

construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?

L17

Page 1099

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the proJect and reasonably foreseeable future

development during normal, dry and multiple dry years

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the

project that it has adeguate capacity to serve the projecl's projected demand in addition to the

provide/s existing commitments?

Less than significant impact. Discussion of the project's impact on water, wastewater treatment or

storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, and telecommunications facilities follows:

Water SunpJy

The City's public water supply is from the Folsom Reservoir and Folsom South Canal. The City's Urban

Water Management Plan calculated supply and demand at buildout of the 2035 General Plan and

determined that that there was sufficient supply available for normal, single dry, and multFdry years

scenarios {City of Folsom 2018a}. Folsom's Water Treatment Plant has a capacity of 50 million gallons

per day. According to the Urban Water Management Plan and General Plan ElR, water demand is not

anticipated to exceed the City's current water rights to 38,970 acre-feet annually (City of Folsom 2018a)'

All on site water (fire, domestic, and irrigation) are to be privately owned, operated, maintained as a

condition of approval. All public water within the site boundary shall be constructed in accordance with

the City of Folsom water design standards and water construction details as a condition of approval. The

on-site water supply would be connected to the Zone 3 Cimmaron pressure Zone located off-site. The

proposed project would provide housing for less than 400 residents and would not result in a substantial

increase in water demand. Because sufficient supplies are available for build out of land uses in the

General Plan (including development at the proposed project site) no additionalfacilities would need to

be constructed or expanded and impacts would be less than significant.

Wateq Conservation Ef$ortc

The City actively implements water conservation actions in response to the drought. Standards and

regulations issued by the State Water Resources Control Board that came into effect June L,2OL5,

require the City to reduce water consumption by 32 percent. ln response, the City developed a water

reduction plan to reduce water consumption, and conserye water in the City.

City actions include reducing watering in parks by one third, removing turf and retrofitting irrigation in

more than 30 medians citywide, turn off irrigation in ornamental streetscapes that do not have trees,

prohibiting new homes and buildings from irrigating with potable water unless water-efficient drip

systems are used, replacing and upgrading sprinklers and irrigation systems with water-efficient

systems, suspending operation of water features throughout the City. The City also implemented water

restrictions and rebate programs for residents of the City. Folsom residents successfully reduced water

consumption by 21 percent in 2014. The City reduced water consumption in parks by 27 percent, and 31

percent in Landscape and Lighting Districts. This was among the highest conservation rates statewide

(Brainerd 2015).

Wastewatgf {Sanitarv Sewgrl
The C1y of Folsom is responsible for managing and maintaining its wastewater collection system,

including 275-miles of pipeline and nine pump stations. This system ultimately discharges into the

Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District interceptor sewer system. Wastewater is treated at the

Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant, located in Elk Grove.

118

Page 1100

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vinta8e at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

ln compliance with the 2006 State Water Resources Control Eoard (SWRCBIGeneral Waste Discharge

Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems, the City of Folsom adopted a Sewer Sy$tem Management
plan on July 28, 2009 which was updated and adopted on August 26,2A24. fhe plan outlines how the

municipality operates'and maintains the collection system, and the repo*ing of all Sanitary Sewer

Overflows (5SO) to the SWftCB's online SSO database. ,4ll on site sewer utilities are to be privately

owned, operated, maintained as a condition of approval, and would connect with an existing public

sewer collection systern off-site. Because the City has sufficient capacity to acqommodate any additional

demand that could result from implementation of the proposed proiect, and because the City is in

compliance with statutes and regulations related to wastewater csllection and treatment, there would

be no impact and mitigation would not be necessary.

Slgrmwater
Folsom's Public Works Department handles stormwater management for the City, from design and

construction of the storm drain system to operation and maintenance, and urban runoff pollution

prevention.

Under existing conditions, runoff from residential properties located east of the property flows onto the

property site. This offsite runoff would be intercepted by proposed landscaped swales within the 15-

foot landscape planters alOng the eastern boundary of the property. This runoffwould then redirect the

flow towards East Natoma Street and enter the public storm drain system. Additionally, eight (8) bio-

retention planters are proposed throughout the project site to manage stormwater runoff. The curb,

gutter, and sidewalk are progosedto be extended to Cimmaron Circle, which requires storm drain

improvements at the frontage of the proiect site. Storrnwater drains would be installed throughout the

c.oncrete parking lot areas and would be designed to prevent flooding or ponding. The on-site storm

drain would conform to City of Folsom standards. Environmental impacts from these stormwater

features would be less than significant and no mitigation would be necessary'

E!9.-tricltv. Glg. and Teleqhsne
primary and tecondary electric lines, gas lines, and telephone/cable lines are proposed within the

project. These proposed utility lines would connect wlth existing utilities in the same vicinity of the

project site, on East Natoma Street. Through the Cfty's coordination with utility providers including

SMUD for electricity, PG&E for underground gas lines, AT&T for underground telephone lines, utilit|
providers are able to accommodate the proposed project'

Based on the details above, the project would have less than significant impact on water, wastewater

treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities' No

mitigation is needed for questions a), b), and cl.

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local

infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to

solid waste?

Less than significant impact. The City of Folsom provides solid waste, recycling, and hazardous materials

collection seruices to its residential and business communities. ln order to meet the State mandated 50

percent landfill diversion requirements stipulated under AB 939, the City has instituted several

119

Page 1101

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

community-based programs. The City offers a door-to-door collection program for household hazardous

and electronic waste, in addition to six "drop off" recycling locations within the City'

After processing, solid waste is taken to the Kiefer Landfill, the primary municipal solid waste disposal

facility in Sacramento County. The landfillfacility sits on a site of 1,084-acres in the community of
Sloughhouse. Currently 250-acres, the State permitted landfill is 560-acres in size, and is of sufficient

capacity to accommodate the solid waste disposal needs of the City of Folsom. Because the landfill

serving the project area is of sufficient capacity to accommodate solid waste needs, there is less than

significant impact and no mitigation would be necessary for questions d) and e).

\20

Page 1102

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

xx. wr[DFIRE

Potontlrllv
SltdRc.nt

lmpact

kse ftrn
Sfiilfotn

wl0r
Mltltil|on

lncorporttcd

lrscThrn
sl$lfic.nt ilo
lnp.ct lmprct

lf located in or near state responsibility areas or lands

classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the
project

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan

or emergency evacuation plan?
n I

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors,

exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project

occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or

the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

TI I

c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated

infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency

water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may

exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or

ongoing impacts to the environment?

u u I

d) Expose people or $tructures to significant risks, including

downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a

result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage

changes?

I

Environmenlol Setling

The project site is located in a Local Responsibility Area and it is not in a Very High Fire Hazard Severity

Zone (California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 2AO7r.

Evoluolion of Wlldfite

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose

project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a

wildfire?

c) Require the installation or maintenance of assoclated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks,

emergency Water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may

result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?

d) Expose people or structures to significant rlsks, including downslope or downstream flooding or

landslides, as a result of runoff, po$t-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?

t2r

Page 1103

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntace at Folsom Senlor Apartments ISMND

No impact. Questlons "a" through "d" are not applicable because the project sfte ls ln a Local

Responsibility Area and the site ls not in a Very High Fire Hazard Severlty Zone {California Department of
Forestry and Fire Protection 2W7t.

122

Page 1104

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Potrntltlly
Slgnlficam

lmpact

l8rsfhan
tlgnlfcrnt

wllh
Mltlga$on

lrromor.tGd

lcse firn
SltnlfiG.nt ltlo
lmplct lmp.ct

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially

degrade the quality of the environment, substantially
reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish

or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels,

threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community,

substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a

rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate
important examples of the major periods of California

history or prehistory?

u tr

b) Does the project have impact$ that are individually
limited, but cumulatively considerable? {"Cumulatively
eonsiderable" means that the incremenfal effects of a
project are significant when vlewed in connection wilh
the effects of past project$ the effecls ofother current
projects, and the effects of past, present and probable

future projects)?

tr : Ll

c) Does the project have environmental effects which will

cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either

directly or indirectlY?

n D t r]

Evqluotion ol Mondotory flndings of Significonce

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment,

substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to

drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially

reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate

important examples of the major periods of california history or prehistory?

Less than significant impact. The preceding analysis indicates that the proposed project has the

potential to adversely affect biological resources, cultural resources, geology and soils, greenhouse gas

emissions, noisq tranrportation, and tribal cultural resources. See Sections 8,IV, I'V, 8.Vll, B'Vlll, I'Xlll,
g.xvll, and g.xvlll of this lnitial study for discussion of the proposed project's patential impacts on these

environmental issue areas. With implementation of the mitigation measures identified in those Sections,

and compliance with City programs and requirements identified in this report, impacts would be

reduced to a less than significant level. No signiflcant or potentially significant impacts would remain.

b) Does the proiect have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?

{,'Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a proiect are significant when

123

Page 1105

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Aga.fanen$ ISMND

viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the

effects of past, present and probable future projects)?

Less Than Significant lmpact. While the Froiect would indirectly contribute to cumulative lmpacts

associated with increased urban developrnent in the City and region, these impacts have previously

been evaluated by the City and considered in development of the City's General Plan as set fo*h in this

lnitial Study. Key areas of concern are discussed in detail below.

€voluatian af cumulotive biol.qgical resog@imwgts; The trees and understory grassland areas within

the proiect site provide suitable nesting habitat for white*ailed kite and other raptors as well as other

native birds and large trees adjacent to the site provide nesting habitat for raptors. Pre-construction

surveys rhould be conducted prior to project implernentation to d€termine if nesting blrds are present

on or adjacent to the site. so that measures could be implernented if needed to avoid harming nesting

blrds. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-01would reduce impacts to white-talled kite and

other nesting birds to a less than significant level.

The 0,04-acre of aquatic features focated on the project site are potentially regulated by the USACE,

CVRWQCB, and CDFW under the Clean Water Act, Porter-Cclogne Act, and Section 1600 of the Fish and

Game Code. Therefore, removal or fill of the aquatic fea.tures would likely require a permit from these

agencies, ln order to avoid impacts to jurisdictional wetland and waters, Mitigation Measure BIO-02

would be implemented, mitigating impacts to a less than significant Jevel.

Of the 111trees on the project site,77 trees are considered protected by Folsom City Code. lf protected

trees will be removed by the proposed project mitigation will be required per Section 12.16.150. Of the

77 trees protected by Folsonr City Code, only 65 trees requlre mitigation based on having a health rating

of 5, 4,3, or 2. Based on the DSH equivalency ratio, mitigation for a total of 935.Sinches is required if all

protected trees subject to mitigation requirements are impacted. With implementation of Mitigation

Measure BIO-03, impacts to protected trees would be less than significant'

With implemenlationof Mhigation Measures Bl0-01, BIO-02, and BIO-03 the impacts would be reduced

to a less tharr significant level and the project would not result in a cumulatively considerable

contribution to any significant cumulative impacts.

Eyal$tion of cunulollve gluttural resources imoactE: The results of the Cultural Resources Assessment

lndicate that there are no known or newly discovered cultural resource$ within the APE, prompting

HELIX to recommend that the area is not likely to contain surface based archaeologicaldeposits.

Although the NCIC records search indicated that elements of district P-34-000335 (the Folsom Mining

District) may potentially be located within the current APE, no traces of the district were found during

HELIX's pedestrian survey ofthe project area. As a result, the current project is anticipated to have no

impacts on district P-34-000335. No additionalstudies, archaeologicalwork, or constructioh monitoring

ar€ recommended. However, in light of the presence of prehistoric resources within the study area (P-

34-0000016 and P-34-000017) and the potential presence of elernents of district P-34-000335 to lie

within the study area, HELIX recommends that the Mitlgation Measure CUL-01 and CUL-02 outlined

below be implemented in the unlikely event that cultural resources are encountered during

construction. lf historical or archaeological resources are discovered, implementation of Mitigation

Measure CUL-01 and Mitigation Measure CUL-02 would reduce any potential impact to a less than

significant level.

124

Page 1106

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



vlntage at Folsom senior Apartments IsMND

No human remains are known to exist within the project area nor were there any indications of human

remains found during the field survey. However, there is always the possibility that subsurface

construction activities associated with the proposed project. However, if human remains are discovered,

implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-02 and Mitigation Measure CUL-03 would reduce impacts to
a less than significant level.

With lmplementation of Mitigation Measures CUL-OI and CUL-02, and CUL-03, the impacts would be

reduced to a less than significant level and the project would not result in a cumulatively considerable

contribution to any significant cumulative impacts.

Evaluation of crymutqtive aealow ond soil|impocts: A Geotechnical Engineering Survey was written by

Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc. on Decernber 3'd. 2021. ln the survey, Youngdahl prepared

recommendations for th€ foundation, conrtruction, and design of the proposed building in the proiect

site (See Appendix F for more detailon site recornmendations). With the implernentation of Mitigation

Measure GEO-01, outlined below, the impacts relating to unstable soils in the project area would be less

than significant.

No previous surveys conducted in the project area have identified the project site as sensitive for
paleontological tesources or other geologlcally sensitive resources, nor have testing or ground

dirturbing activities performed to date uncovered any paleontological resources or geologically sensitive

resources. Whife the likelihood enco1lntering paleontological resources and othergeologically sensitive

resources is considered low, project-related ground disturbing activities could affect the integrity of a

previously unknown paleontological or other &eologically sensitive resourcs, resulting in a substantlal

change in the significance of the resource, Therefore, the proposed proiect could result in potentislly

significant impacts to paleontological resources. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure GE0'02 would

reduce potentially signifieant irnpacls to a less than significant level.

With implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-01 and GEO'02, the impacts would be reduced to a

less than significant level and the project would not result in a cumulatively considerable con$ibution to

any significant cumulative impacts.

Evatuatlan af cumulgtiveg$enho$;e aos emissionsJlnnacts: The project must complY with the City's

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy Consistency Checklist. The Checklist is part of the City's 2035

General Plan GHG Reduction Strategy which outlines the policies and programs that the City will

undertake to achieve its proportional share of State GHG emissions reductions. Per the Checklist, the

GHG reduction measures included in the Checklist that are applicable to a project are to be incorporated

lnto the project's CEQA documents as mitigation rneasures. The GHG reduction measures applicable to
the proposed project are therefore lncluded as Mitigation Measure 6HG-Ol through 6HG-05. With

implementation of this mitigatlon mea$ure and compliance with SMAQMD's recommendations, the

2A1"7 ScapingPlan, andthe MTP/SCS, the project's lmpacts would be reduced to a less than significant

leveland the proiect would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to any significant

cumulative impacts.

Ev&ation of cumubttvupise.imnacts:.The project would be subject to noise from construction and

operation conditions. lf project construction activities were to occur outside the hours of 7:00 a,m. and

7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 9:00 a,m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturday, construction noise generated

by lhe project would not be exempt for the City's noise ordinance nighttime exterior standard of 45

L25

Page 1107

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

dBA, and the impact would be potentially significant. lmplementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-01

would restrict construction hours and reduce impacts to a less than significant level.

An on-site source of vibration during project construction would be a vibratory roller' A vibratory roller

would primarily be used to achieve soil cornpaction as part of the foundation and paving constnlction,

and for aggregate and asphalt compaction as part of project driveway and parking lot construction).

Vibratory rollers could be used within approximately 65-ft of the single-farnily resldences to the

northwest. A large vibratory rolter creates approximately A.2l inlsec PPV at a distance of 25-ft, or

94 VdB (Caltrans 2O2O). At a distance of 65-ft, a vibratory roller would create a PPV of 0'073 in/sec, or 85

VdB.ll This would exceed the City General Plan residentialstandard of 80 VdB, and the impact would be

potentially significant. Once operational, the project would not be a source of groundborne vibrations. A

large vibratory roller would result in appraximately 80 VdB or gr€ater at dlstances less than 120-ft'

Mitigation measure NOI-02 would require the contactor demonstrate that the rollers to be used on the

project site would produce less than 80 VdB at nearby occupied residences, or use vibratory rollers in

static mode only {no vlbrations} when operated within 1.20-ft of occupied residences'

With the implementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-01and NOI-02, the project would not result in a

cumulatively considerable contribution to any significant cumulative impacts related to noise.

Eu.oluation af cqmulottyetronsgrtgtion imnryE: Access to the project site would be provided by two

driveways on East Natoma Street, City standards requires a 60-ft right turn taper in conditions with ten

or more peak-hour right turns into a driveway, and a 15Gft pocket plus 60-ft taper, with 50 or rnore

peak-hour right turns. Neither project driveway is anticipated to have ten or more right turning vehicles

into lhe project during the AM or PM peak-hours, Th,e main driveway at the signalized East Natoma

Street/prison Rd intersection includes an eastbound right turn pocket and a westbound left turn pocket

accessing the project, these are adequate to safely accommodate project traffic without hindering

existing traffic. The secondary {eastern) drlveway is restricted to right-in-right-out movernents ilnd l5

anticipated to only have fewer than ten eastbound right-turns into the Proiect during either the AM or

pM peak hours. ltlo turn pockets are necessary . ln order to limit the secondary {eastern) driveway to

right-in-right-out access, the applicant would implement Mitigation Measure TRA-01. Thus, the project

would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to any significant cumulative impacts

related to transportation.

Evaluatiqn af cumulative tribal cuftarsl resources imoactts: The City of Folsom sent project notification

letters to three California Native American tribes. Although there is no evidence of TCRs occurring or

having the potential to occur on the project site, the City recognizes that sensitive andlor proteded

resources could be unintentionally discovered during project demolition and construction. With

implementation of Mitigation Measures TCR-0L, the impacts would be reduced to a less than significant

teveland potentially significant cumulative impacts would be avoided. Thus, the project would not

result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to any significant cumulative impacts related to tribal

cultural resources.

11 Equipment ppV = Reference PPV * (25/D)"{inlsec), where Reference PPV ;s PPv at 25 feet, D is distance from equipment to

the receptor in feet, and n= 1"1 (the value related to the attenuation rate through the ground); formula from Caltrans 2020.

VdB = 20 * toe{PPV/4/10'6).

L26

Page 1108

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senlor Apartments ISMND

c) Does the project have environmentaleffecls which will cause substantial adverse effects on human

beings, either directly or indirectly?

Less than significant impact. Because of site conditions, existing City regulations, and regulation of

potential environmentalfmpacts by other agancies, the proposed proiect would not have the potential

to cause substantial adverse effects on human btiings as demonstrated in the detailed evaluation

contained in this lnitial Study.

9.0 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING

PROGRAM

A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) has been prepared by the City per Section

15097 of the CEQA Guidelines and is presented in Appendix K.

1O.O INITIAL STUDY PREPARERS

Citv of Folsom

Steve Banks, Principal Planner

HEIIX Enyifonmental Plannine. lnc,

Robert Edgerton, AICP CEP, Project Manager

Julia Pano, Environmental Planner

Jason Runyan, Noise SPecialist

Stephen Stringer, Senior Biologist

Stephanie McLaughlin, Staff Biologist

Victor Ortiz, Air Quality Specialist

Kristin Garcia, Air Quality Technician

Clarus Backes, Cultural Resource Group Manager

Jentin Joe, Staff Archeologist

127

Page 1109

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

1 I.O REFERENCES

Barrows, Wray, 1956. A History of Folsom, Caltfornio: 1850-7900, Folsom HistoricalSociety Museum,

Folsom, California.

Beck, W. A. and Y. D. Hasse, 1974. Historical Atlas of California, University of Oklahoma Press, Norman'

Beardsley, R. K. 1954. Temporal and Areal Relationships in Central California. University of California

Archaeologica I Su rvey Reports 24-25. Berkeley P ress'

1948. Culture Sequences in Central California Archeolog'y, Americon Antiquity 14(1):1-28.

Bennyhoff, J. L977. The Ethnogeography of the Plains Mlwok. Center for Archaeological Research at

Davis Publications 5. University of California Davis.

1954. Temporal and Areal Relationships in Central California Archaeology. University oJ

California Archaeological Survey Reports 25. Berkeley.

1950. Californian Fish Spears and Harpoons. University of California Anthropological Records

9(a):295-338.

Bolster, 8.C., editar. 1998. Terrestrial Mammalspecies of Special Concern in Caiifornia, Draft Final

Report prepared by P.V. Brylski, P.W. Colllns, E.D. Pierson, W.E, Rainey and T"E. Kucera. Seport

submltted to California Department of Fish and 6ame Wildllfe Management Division, Nongame

Bird and Mammal Conservation Program for Contract No. FG3146WM'

Brainerd, C.2AL5, May 5. News Release: City of Folsom Releases Water Reduction Plan. Accessed on

December 6,202L at hltps://wr{p.follorn.cA.us/clv-icalp-ress/dilplAv.asdlavotlt: .

California Air Poltution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA), 2021, User's Guide for CalEEMod Version

2A20.4.0. Available at: httn:/lwww'caleemod.corg/.

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2022. Overview: Diesel Exhaust and Health. Available at:

https:l1w!v2.arb.ca.sov/resources/oyglview-diesel-exhaust-and-health. Accessed April2A22'

2017. The 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan Update. January. Available at:

https:#Eu'rw. arb. cadpvlcdscopinspla n/2030s o np f lna l. pdf '

2014. First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan: Building on the Framework. Available at:

http:llwww.arb.ca.sov/cclscoplneplgnf2013 undate{j,rst Updatg climate chanae scgCIinq qlg

n.pdf.

2008. Climate Change Scoping Plan - A Framework for Change. December. Available at:

httpsj/lUlwz.arb.ca.flpvlour-work/sroqrans/ab-32-clil&ate-chqnse-sconinq-slanl2008-scopin*
plan-doglrments.

2005. Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective. Available at;

httos:llwwirrr.alb.c.q8ovlch/ha nd bo gh, pdf .

728

Page 1110

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

California Emergency Management Agency. 2009. Tsunami lnundation Map for Emergency Planning,

Benicia Quadrangle, July 31, 2009' Accessed on August 18,2022' at:

https:{wwwrconservation.ca.eovlcgs/gocrlrhgnts/Fuhlications/fsut?alEi-
Maps/Tsunami lnundation Benicia Quad ContraCosta.rulJ

California Energy Commission (CEC), 2021a. 2020 Total System Electric Generation, Accessed June 29,

2022 at https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reportslenergy-almanaclcalifornia-electricity-
datal2O19-tota l-system-electric-generation.

ZOZlb. Supply and Demand of NaturalGas in California. Accessed on June 29,2O22from:

https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/californias-natural-gas-
market/su pply-a nd-dema nd-natu ral-gas-ca liforn ia

2O21;q California Gasollne Data, Facts, and Statistics. Accessed on June 29,2O22from

https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reportslenergy-almanac/transportation-
energy/california-gasoline-data-facts-and-statistics

2O21d. Diesel Fuel Data, Facts, and Statistics' Accessed on June 29,2O22from
https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/transportation-
energyldieseFf uel-data-facts-and-statistics

Calfornia Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 1994. Staff report regarding mitigation for impacts to

Swainson's hawk {Buteo swainsoni) in the Central Valley of California. November 1.

2020. RareFind 5.0, California Natural Diversity Database. Sacramento, €alifornia, Accessed

Octobe r \ 2A20. I nform atio n expi res 2 | 28 / Z,OZL.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. 2007. Fire Hazard Severity Zones in SRA. Accessed

on December !,2O21at: https;l/osfm,fire.ca.sov/medialFTS6lfhszs maq3tndf

California Department of Transportation. 2017. List of Eligible and Officially Designated State Scenic

Highways. Accessed on Decem be r 8, 2O2l at: https ://dot.ca.sovlproqF ms/desisnllan:

landscape-architecture-lld-coJgnunitv-livqb!!itv/lap-liv-i-scenic,hishwavs

California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 2020. lnventory of Rare and Endangered Plants (online edition,

v8-03 0.39). Website http;//www.rareplants.cnps.org [Accessed 1 October 2O2Ol.

CALGreen. 2019 California Green Building Standards Code. California Code of Regulations Title 24,
part L1. Available at: https:l/codqs.iqcsafe.ordqqntent/CAGBC2019lUL215/cove(.

City of Folsom. 1QZLa. Greenhouse Gas Reduction $trategy Consistency Checklist. Updated March 24.

Available at: lftps:/./www"folsom.ca'u
showpublisheddocument/1581.637 5??677?83570!00.

2A2Lb.2035 General Plan Safety and Noise Element. Available at:

&lcrllrryss1gbq$,.i;u{horels}ipwr:ubljlhrldsbcunrs.t}-r}}.Y}5/.93}6{!.32i15.:1{&!gg.
Amended August 24.

L29

Page 1111

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vlntage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

2O2Oa. Evacuation Plan. Accessed December 6,2O2L and available at:

httos://www.folsom.ca.us/home/showoubllsheddocu$enV22291637478591337570000

2020b.Folsom Municipal Code. Available at htto://www.codeoublishinq.coln/CA/Folsom/.
Accessed Decem ber 2, 2O2l

2018a. Folsom General Plan 2035 Environmental lmpact Report. Amended May 2020.

2018b. City of Folsom Fire Department webpage. Accessed December 2,2O2L and available at:

htt ps : //www. folsglE.ca. us&overnm gnt/f I re

California Department of Conservation (CDC), Division of Mines and Geology. 1984. Mineral Land

Classification of the Folsom 15-Minute Quadrangle Sacramento, El Dorado, Placer, and Amador

Counties, California, Open-File Report 84-50SAC. Available at:

https:1/JCIaos.mnservation.ca.sov/cEg//informalionwarehgugelindex,html?map=mlg. Accessed

December L,2O2L.

2016. Farmlands Map for Sacramento County. Available at:

httos://mans.conservation.ca.eov/DLRP/CIFF{. Accessed November 30, 2O2L

Catifornia Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2020. Transportation and Construction Vibration

Gu idance Ma nual. April. Ava ilable at: htt ps :1/Slot.ca.qovJ. y'media/dot -

media/programs/environmental-analysig/dqcumentslenv/lcyem-apr2020-a11v.pdf.

2009. Technical Noise Supplement (TeNS). November.

Carrier. 2005. Product Data 38gRC (60 Hz) 12 SEER Air Conditioner. Available at:

httns:/lwww.sho-feddocs.com/!rvac/docs11009/FubliclO2/38SRQ:,!4PO'odf.

Chartkoff J.L. and K.K. Chartkoff L984. The Archaeology of California. Menlo Park. Stanford University

Press.

Department of Toxic Substances Control. 2020. EnviroStor. Available at:

https://www.envirostgr.dGc'ca.eov/public/ Accessed December 6, 2a21..

Dickel, D.N., P. D. Schulz, and H.M. McHenry. 1984. "Central California: Prehistoric Subsistence Changes

and Health." ln Paleopathology at the Origins of Agriculture, edited by Mark Nathan Cohen and

George J. Armelagos, pp. 439462. Academic Press, lnc., Orlando, FL.

ECORP Consulting, lnc. (ECORP). 2022.Tribal Consultation Record for Compliance with Assembly Bill 52

and CEQA for the Vintage at Folsom Project, City of Folsom.

Eriksen, C. H. and D. Belk. 1999. Fairy shrimps of California's puddles, pools, and playas. Mad River Press,

Eureka, California.

El Dorado, County of .2OL2. El Dorado County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan: Cameron Airpark

Airporq Georgetown Airport; Placerville Airport. Available at: trttns:llwww.edctc.am/airport:
la n d - u se -co m pat a bi I itv-pla ns,a n d -fee :sc h ed ule.'

130

Page 1112

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 2012. FEMA Flood Map: Folsom, CA Map

06067C0117H. Available from:
https:l/msc.fema.eov/oortallsearch?AddressQuerv=Scholar%20Wav%20Folsom%2OCaSseaFht
esultsanchor

Fredrickson, D.A, 1974. Cultural Diversity in Early Central California: A View from the North Coast

Ranges. lournal of Colifornia Anthropology 1(1):41-53.

1973. Early Cultures of the North Coast Ranges, California. Unpublished Ph.D. dissertation,

Department of Anthropology, University of California, Davis.

GeotechnicalConsultants, |nc.2003. EnvironmentalConditions Geology: Folsom Lake State Recreation

Area. Available at lrttns:llwww.parfs.ca.eovlpaees/500/files/6eolo$v.pdf. Accessed on

December 2,2021,

Gerow LgT4. "Comments on Fredrickson's Cultural Diversity." The Journal of California Anthropology

L(21:239-245.

1954. The Problem of Cultural Sequences in Central California Archaeology. Paper presented at

the Annual Meeting of the American Association for the Advancement of Sciences.

Gerow, 8.A., and R. Force. 1968. An Analysis of the University Village Complex with a

Reappraisal of Central California Archaeology. Stanford University Press. Stanford, California'

Gervais, J, A., Rosenberg, D. K., and Anthony, R. G. 2003, Space use and pesticide exposure risk of male

Burrowing Owls in an agricultural landscape. J. Wildl. Mgmt. 67:15F165'

Gilbert, F,T.,1879. History of San Joaquin County, California, Thompson and West, Oakland.

Grunsky, F. R., 1989. Pathfinders of the Sacramento Region, Elk Grove Library, California.

Gudde, Erwin G,, 1998. California Place Names: The Origin and Etymology of Current Geographical

Names. University of California Press, Berkeley'

1975. Colifornia Gold Comps. University of California Press, Berkeley'

Heizer, R. F., and A. J. Almquist, t971. The Other Californians: Prejudice and Discrimination Under Spain,

Mexico and the United States to 1920, University of California Press, Berkeley.

HEgX Environmental Planning, lnc (HELIX). 2022a. Arborist lnventory Report for 102 Natoma Street, City

of Folsom, CA.

2A22b. Cultural Resource Assessment for Vintage at Folsom Project'

2O22c.Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Assessment for the Vintage at Folsom Project'

2020. Biological Resources and Wetland Evaluation Letter Report for 102 Natoma Street, City of

Folsom, CA.

131

Page 1113

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Hoover, Mildred 8., Hero E, Rensch, and Ethel G. Rensch, 1990. Historic Spots in California' Third Edition

by william N. Abeloe. stanford university Press, Stanford, california.

Hoover, Mildred 8., Hero E. Rensch, Ethel G. Rensch, and William N. Abeloe, 2002. Historic Spots in

California, 5th edition, revised by Douglas E. Kyle, Stanford University Press, Stanford.

Hughes, R.E. (editor). 1994. Toward a New Taxonomic Framework for Central California Archaeology:

Essays by James A. Bennyhoff and David A. Fredrickson. Assembled and edited by Richard E.

Hughes. Contributions of the University of California No. 52, Archaeological Research Facility,

Berkeley, CA.

tntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). 2007. Climate Change 2007: The Physlcal Science

Basis. Summary for Policyrnakers. Contribution of Working Group I to the Fourth Assessment

Report of the lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. February. Available at:

httos:llwww.i pcc,chlreportla r4lyu&Lli.

Jennings, M.R. and M.p. Hayes. 1994. Amphibian and Reptile Species of Special Concern in California'

Final Report submitted to the California Department of Fish and lWildlife], lnland Fisheries

Division.

Johnson, J.J. tg76. Archaeological lnvestigations at the Blodgett Site (CA-SAC-267), Sloughhouse Locality,

California. Report to the U.5. National Parks Service, Western Regional Office, Tucson, AZ'

19g2. Chapter 2: Summary of the Prehistory of the Lower Sacramento Valley and Adjacent

Mountains. Ms. On file, North Central lnformation Center, California State University,

Sacramento.

Kroeber, A. 1., 1925. Handbook of the lndians of California. Smithsonian lnstitution Bureau of American

EthnologY, Bulletin No' 78.

Levy, Richard , tg78. Eastern Miwok. ln Handbook of North American lndians, California, Volume 8,

edited by Robert F. Heizer, pp. 398-413. William G. Sturtevant, general editor' Smithsonian

lnstitute, Washington, D'C.

Lichvar, Robert W, and Shawn McColley. 2008. A Field Guide to the ldentification ol the Ordinary

High-Water Mork (OHWM) in the Arid West Region of the Western United Stotes. Vicksburg, MS:

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Research and Development Center'

Lillard, J.8., R.F. Heizer, and F. Fenenga. 1939. An lntroduction to the Archaeology of Central California.

Sacramento Junior College, Department of Anthropology, Bulletin 2' Sacramento'

Lillard, J.B, and W.K. purves. 1936. "The Archaeology of the Deer Creek-Cosumnes Area, Sacramento Co.,

California." Sacramento. Sacramento Junior College, Department of Anthropology Bulletin 1'

Maniery Mary L. and Keith A. Syda, 1991. Cultural Resources lnvestiBation for the Americna River Bridge

Crossing project, City of Folsom, Sacramento County, California. Cultural Resources Report on

file with the North Central lnformation Center at California State University, Sacramento.

L32

Page 1114

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senio r Apartments ISMND

Moratto, M.J. 1984. California Archaeology. San Diego' Academic Press.

McGruder, G. K. 1950. The Upper San Joaquin valley, 1772-t87O, Bakersfield.

Napton, Kyle 1., 1997. Archaeological and Historical Cultural Resources lnvestigations of the proposed

Alpine Natural Gas Operating Cornpany, Calaveras County Natural Gas Oistribution Proiect A' 96-

08-015 (Phase l: La Contenta/Rancho Calaveras)'

National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS). 2015. California Central Valley Steelhead Distinct Population

Segment: 5-year Review. California CentralValley Area Office.

National Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2020. Soil Web Suwey' Available at:

https:l/webtoilsurvev.sc€frov.usda.ewlAon/Homggage,hlm. Accessed on Novembe r 30,2021

2015. 2016 National Hydric Soils List' December 2015.

Available on-line at: https://www,nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soilsluse/hydric/.

NETROnline, 2022. Historic aerial photographs and USGS quadrangle maps: 1940-2018. Nationwide

Environmental Title Research, LLC' Available from: NETROnline'com'

Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA), 2015. Air Toxics Hot Spots Program

Guidance Manual for Preparation of Health Risk Assessments. Available at:

httos://oehha.ca.gqvlair/crnrllgtice-adopt!g,n-air-toxics-hgt-5oots-plgElrym-quidance-manual-
nreoa rat lon-health-risk-0.

powers, Stephen, 1975. Tribes of California. University of California Press, Berkeley.

Ragir, S.R. 1972. The Early Horizon in Central California Prehistory. Contributions of the University of

California Archaeological Research Facility 15. Berkeley, CA'

Reed,G.Waltet t923.Historyof SocramentaCounty,Colifornio.HistoricRecordCompany,LosAngeles.

Richmond, O.W., Chen, S.K., Risk, 8,8., Tecklin, J., and S. R. Beissinger. 20L0. California Black Rails

Depend on lrrigation-fed Wetlands in the Sierra Nevada Foothills. California Agriculture: Volume

2, Number 2.

Rogers, D.C. 2001. Bevision of the North American Lepidurus {Notostraca: Crustacea) with a description

of a new species previously confused with two other species. Journal of Crustacean Biology.

Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG). 2AL9.2O2O MTP/SCS. November 18. Available at:

httos:l/wqtyv,sacoFtors12020-$etrooolitan-trangportation-olansustainable-.comQuflitie5:
Strateav.

Sacramento County Association of Governments. 2020. Mather Airport - Airport Land Use Compatibility

Plan. September. Available at: hltps:/&wY;acqa.trelsilgtlrruin/,f!lqtltg':
at t ac h me n (i*i-ullle r d rir f I a lucp, pllf 11 50!5s 9*zZ5'

133

Page 1115

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD). 2020. Guide to Air Quality

Assessment in Sacramento County. Revised April' Available at:

htto://www,atrqualitlgn/Resldg&ts/CEQA-Lan&Use-PlanninglCEqrq-Guidance-Toolg.

Shuford, W.D., and T. Gardali, editors. 2008. California Bird Species of Special Concern: A ranked

assessment of species, subspecies, and distinct populations of birds of immediate conservation

concern in California. Studies of Western Birds 1. Western Field Ornithologists, Camarillo,

California, and California Department of Fish and Game, Sacramento.

State Water Resources Control Board. 2020. Avallable at: https:#geol.racker,waterboards.ca.sov/.

Accessed December 6' 2O2L'

Schenck, W.E., and E.J, Dawson, 1929. "Archaeology of the Northern San Joaquin Valley," American

Archaeology EthnologY 25.

T. Kear Transportation Planniry and Management, lnc. 2022. Vintage at Folsom Transportation lmpact

Study.

The Telegraph, L966.110 Anniversary Edition: 1855-1966. The Telegraph, Folsom, California.

Thompson and West, 188O. History of Socromento County, Colifornio. Thompson and West Company,

Oakland, California.

Transportation Research 8oard. 2016. Highway Capacity Manual 5th Edition, Washington D.C.

TSD Enginee ring' 2o22. Preliminary Drainage and storm water Quality Report' Vintage at Folsom'

August 16.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 1987. Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual,

Technical Report Y-87-1, U.5. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station, Vickburg, MS.

2008. Regionalsupplement to the Corps of Enginearc Wetland Delineation Manual: Arid West

Region (Version 2.0). J.S. Wakeley, R.W. Lichvar, and C.V. Noble, eds., Technical Report prepared

for the u.s. Army Engineer Research and Development center, vicksburg MS.

United States Census Bureau. 2018. QuickFacts, Folsom City, California, population estimates, July 1,

2019 (V2019). Available at: https://www.census.gov/qulckfqgts/fqlsomcitvcalifornia. Accessed

December 2,2OZl.

United States Department of Transportation (USDOT). 2019. Superfund National Priority List Accessed

on Decembe r 7,202! at https://www3.epa'eov/envirEl'

2008. Roadway Construction Noise Modelversion 1.1, Available at:

ht!!s://www.fhwa,glot.eqv/enYilonment/noiselconrtfuction-nqisglrcnnr/'

2004. Traffic Noise ModelVersion 2.5. Available at:

htJps://juww.fhwad-ot,ery/environmenVlnoise/traffic noisg model/tnm v25/..

134

Page 1116

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments ISMND

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Seruice (USFWS). 2020. lnformation for Planning and Consultation (lPaC). List of

threatened and endangered species that may occur in your proposed project location andlor be

affected by your proposed Project'

Youngdahl Consulting Group, lnc {Youngdahl). 2021. Geotechnical engineering Study for Vintage at

Folsom.

Wilson, N., and A. Towne 1978. Nisenan. ln California, edited by R. F. Heizer, pp.387'397. Handbook of

the North American lndians, vol, & W. C. Sturtevant,general editor. Smithsonian lnstitution,

Washington, D.C.

Williarns, D.F. 1986. California MammalSpecies of Special Concern in California. Department of
Biological Sclences California State University, Stanislaus and California Department of Fish and

Game, Sacramento.

Zeiner,D.C., W.F. Laudenslayer, Jr., K.E. Mayer, and M. White, eds. 1988. California's Wildlife. Vol' l-lll.

California Depart. of Fish and Game, Sacramento, California.

13s

Page 1117

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commlssion
Vintrage Senior ApartmentE (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 26

Comment Letters frorn Public Agencies

Page 1118

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN

AIR RMAN A6 E

:b
UALITY
NT DISTRICT

November 30,2422

Steven Banks

City of Folsom Planning Department

50 Natoma Street
Folsom Cordova, CA 95630

Subject: Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments MitlSated Negative Declaratlon (SAC202102633)

Dear Steven Banks:

Thank you for the opportunity to review the Mitigated Negative Declaratlon (MND) for the vintage at

Folsom Senior Apartments project. The project includes the constructlon of a 135-unit affordable senior

rental apartments in a three-story building on 4.86 acres at 103 East Natoma Street. Sac Metro Air

District commends the project for providing high density, affordable, senior housing with access to a

trail network and within a half mile of a transit stop. We also commend the project for including cool

roofing and solar arrays as sustainability features. The following comments are intended to further

improve air quality and health and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

CEQAcomments
Although the MND determined the project is consistent with the city's Greenhouse Gas Reduction

Sgategt, and therefore not significant for greenhouse gas emission impacts, Sac Metro Air District

recommends the proponent consider building the project without natural gas infrastructure. Not only

does removing naiural gas reduce the cost of infrastructure, operating buildings without burning natural

gas provides substantial public health benefits. Homes in which gas stoves are used have nitrogen

dioxide concentrations 50 to 400% higher than homes with electric stovesl. using a gas stove and oven

for just an hour often leads to indoor air pollutant levels that exceed California's ambient air quality

standards. This exposure to nitrogen dioxide can cause respiratory effects.

lf the project is built with natural gas infrastructure, Sac Metro Air District recommends the proiect be

pr"-*ir"i to al6w for the future conversion to atl-electric (space heating, water heating, cooking) to

support the State's goal of carbon neutrality by 2M5'

Since greenhouse gas emissions from equipment during proiect construction do not exceed Sac Metro

Air District,s recommended thresholds of significance, the emissions do not need to be amortized in the

analysis.

The calEEMod report in Appendix A includes PG&E as the utility provider for electricity. The project is in

SMUD territory, therefore SMUD electricity intensity factors should be included'

1 Rocky Mountain lnstltute, Basalt, Co. Heatth Elfects from Gas slove Potlution (2020) htlpsJnrli'ora/irlsiohrga6-$loves'pollulion:

health/

777 L2th Street, Ste. 300 ' Sacramento, CA 95814
-lel: 279-2O7 -7127' Toll Free: 800-880-9025

AlrQuality.org

Page 1119

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments MitiSated Ne8ative Declaration

Page 2

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy consistency

Mitigation Measure GHG-03 requires the project to comply with Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy

Mea-sure T-g (page 69). Measure T-8 requires multi-family residential projects with 17 or more units to

provide EV charging in 5% of total parking spaces. To comply with GHG Reduction Strategy Measure T-8,

the project would neeu at least 7 EV charging stations (5% of the 136 stalls). sac Metro Air District

recommends installing Level 2 EV charging stations'

Mitigation Measure GHG-03 indicates the project will provide 14 EV charging stations. For clarlty and

convenience, we recommend updating GHG-03 to specify the actual number of EV charging stations that

the project proponent must installto comply with Measure T-8. We recommend that GHG-03 specifo

that at ieast Z EV charging stations are required to comply with Measure T-8'

Finally, please note that the MND appears to reference CalGreen incorrectly' The MND indicates (page

4) the project will provide "12 standard electric vehicle charging station (EVCS) stalls, and two loading

evCS siatts." And further states that "The electric vehicle charging spaces would be approximately 10.3

percent of the total parking spaces, which meets the electric vehicle charging station requirement

outlined by calGreen (Titl;24, Part 11)." This text appears to reference the 2019 CalGreen code, which

requires that 10% EV capable spaces be installed, but does not require that actual EV chargingstations

be installed.

Design comments
To piomote the use of bicycles by residents, Sac Metro Air District recommends the proponent cover

the bicycle parking areas for weather protection and install outdoor electricaloutlets to allow charging

of E-bikes, which are becoming more common. Birycle parking areas should be sized to accommodate

larger bicycle types that seniors may use, including tricycles, cargo bikes, and reclined bikes, consistent

wiitr ttre City of Folsom's Active Transportation Plan Design Guide, Chapter Vl, and the APBP Bicycle

Parking Guide2.

There is a statement on page 108 regarding that "relocation of the effected bus stop" would reduce

transit impacts to less tharisignificant. No additional details are included in the MND. lf a bus stop will

be relocated, Sac Metro Air District recommends adding a shelter to provide shade and weather

protection to further encourage transit use'

Construction
The MND notes that Folsom's Community Development Department Standard Construction Conditions

include air pollution control and naturally occurring asbestos provisions. Sac Metro Air District

recommends all projects implement the attached Basic Construction Emission control Practices3' A

listing of the most common air district rules that apply during constructiona is also attached'

3 (201e)

2019.pdf
4 Sac Metro Air District Rules Statement (2020)

https:llwww.airqualsy.qrelLanduseTraLrsp:ortation/{)qcul!ents/tlglesAtt?chnlentt0-20l0Firrnl'pdf

Page 1120

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



\nntage at Folsom Senior Apartments Mitigated Negatlve Declaratlon

Page 3

please contact me at 279-207-1131 or khuse@airsu?litv.Or{ if you have any questlons regardinS these

comments.

Sincerely,

K""r^ *d
Karen Huss

Associate Air Quality Planner/Analyst

cc: Paul Philley, AICP, Program Supervisor

Attachments

Page 1121

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Basic C.onstruction Emission Control Practices (Best Manaqement Practices)

Bnsrc CorusrRucnoN EMISSIoN CoNTRoL PRAcrIcEs

(Brsr MRnRceuENr PRAcTIcES)

The following Basic Construction Emissions Control Practices are considered feasible for

controlling fugitive dust from a construction site. The practices also serve as best

managerienipractices (BMPs), allowing the use of the non-zero particulate matter

signifiiance thresholds.'Lead agencies should add these emission control practices as

C6nditions of Approvat (COA) oi include in a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

(MMRP).

. Control of fugitive dust is required by District Rule 403 and enforced by District staff.

r Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not

limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and access

roads.

. Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board space on haul trucks transporting soil,

sand, or other loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that would be traveling along

freeways or major roadways should be covered.

. Use wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove any visible trackout mud or dirt onto

adjaoent public roads at least onco a day. Use of dry power sweeping is prohibited.

. Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph)'

. All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be completed as

soon as possible. ln aidition, building pads should be laid as soon as possible after

grading unless seeding or soil binders are used.

The following practices describe exhaust cmission controlfrom diesel powered fleets,

working at albnstruction site, California regulations_limit idling from both on-road and off-

roaO J[sefpowered equipment. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) enforces idling

limitations and compliance with diesel fleet regulations.

. Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the

time of idting iil 5 minutes lialifornia Code of Regulations, Title 13, sections 2449(dxg)

and 24851. Frovide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the

entrances to the site.

. provide current certificate(s) of compliance fot CARB's ln-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled

Fleets Regulation [California Code of Regulations, Title 13, sections 2449 and 2449.11-

For more information contact CARB at 877-593-6677, doors@arb.ca.qov, or

wralrirl. a rb. ca.qovldoo rs/compliance cert 1 . html.

Although not required by local or state regulation, many construction companies have

equiprient inspection and maintenance programs to ensure work and fuel efficiencies.

r Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according to

manufacturer's specifications. The equipment must be checked by a certified mechanic

and determine to be running in proper condition before it is operated.

AIR OUALIIY
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quatity Management District
CEQA Guide December 2009, Revised September 2010, May 2017, July2019

Page I 1H,
Page 1122

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN

AIR OUALITY
veNnceu-ENT DlsrRlcr

Sac Metro Air District Rules & Regulations Statement (revised 10n02O)

The fottowing statement is rccommended as standard condition of approval or construction

iiuiirt t"lnjrage for ail devetopment projects within the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality

Management Distrtd (Sac Metrc Air District):

All projects are subject to Sac Metro Air District rules in effect at the time of construction. A

ro'ipf6i" listing of 6urrent rules is available at www.airqu?litY,oro or by calling 916-874-4800.

Speiinc rules i-hat may relate to construction activities or building design may include, but are

not limited to:

Rule 20i: General Permit Reouirgme{rts. Any project thatincludes the use of equipment
phere may require permit(s) from Sac Metro Air

ti"trjrt prior to equipment operation. The applicant, developer,.or operator of a project that

includes an emergency generator, boiler, or heater should contact the Sac Metro Air District

""ify 
to O"t"rminiit ab|rmit is required, and to begin the permit application process. Other

G#,r"ltypes of ure" ihat require i permit include, but are not limited to, dry cleaners, gasoline

Ititions,'siray booths, and operations that generate airborne particulate emissions.
portable construction equipm'ent (e.g. geneiators, compressors, pile drivers, lighting equipment,

"t".i*in 
jn intemalcoi,rnustlon ingine over 50 horsepower is required to havg a Sec Metro Air

oi"i1i.t p"trit or a Galifornia Air Reiources Board portable equipment registration (PERP) (see

Other Regulations below).

Rule 402; Nulsance. The developer or coniractor is required to prevent dust.or any emissions

ffimcausinginjury,nuisance,orannoyancetothepublic.

Rufe 403: Fuqitive Dust. The developer.or contractor is required to control dust emissions from

ffirageoranyotherconstructionactivitytopreventairbornedustfrom
leaving the project site'

Rule 414: Water Heaters, Bolleqs and Proceqs llgalerF Bate.d LFss, Thalr 1,09.0'000 FJU
to i nstal l.water heaters (includi ng_ residence

ffineaters),boi|ersorprocessheatersthatcomplywiththeemissionlimitsspecifiedinthe
rule.

Rule 411: Wood Burnlnq Appliaqc,es. This rule prohibits the installation of any new,

; , uncontrolled fireplaces in neur or existing

developments.

Bule 442: Architectural coati[qs. The developer or contractor is required to use coatings that
pound content limits specifi;d in the rule'

Rute 453: Cutback and EmulsiliFJ Asphalt,Bavinq.Materlals. This rule prohibits the use of
haft for paving, road construction or road

maintenance activities.

777 12th Street, Ste, 300 ' Sacramento, CA 95814

Te// 279-207-1.122 . Toll Free: 80G880'9025

AirQuality.org

Page 1123

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Rule 460: Adhesives and Sealants, The developer or contractor is required to use adhesives

and sealants tnat corfrFl|friifr'Tnffitatib organic compound content limits specified in the rule'

Rule g02: Asbestos. The developer or contractor is required to notify the Sac Metro Air District

@ationordemolitionactivity.Rule902co.ntainsspecificrequirementsfor
surveying-, notification, removal, and disposal of asbestos containing material'

Other Regulations (Galifornia Gode of Regulations (CCR))

Sac Metro Air District Rules & Regulations Statement

Page 2

The

developer or contractor is required to notifY the Sac Metro Air District earth moving projects,

greater than 1 acre in size in areas "Moderately LikelY to Contain Asbestos" within eastern

Sacramento CountY. The develoPer or contractor is required to comply with sPecific

requirements for surveying, notification, and handling soil that contains naturally occurring

asbestos.

1g CCR. Division g. Chapter 9. Article 5. Fo4able.- Eo{iplqpnt Registratign eroqrqm: The
all registration and operational reQuirements

of tn" iort.Ole equipment registration program such as recordkeeping and notification.

13 cCR. Division 3, chaeter s. Attlcle f,9. Q?449{Sl(2} and
ling time either by shutting equipment off

when not in use or reducini the time oi iOting to 5 minutes. These apply to diesel powered off-

road equipment and on-road vehicles, respectively.

Page 1124

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



N ,ffi
s YANA GARctA

tNvrnoNMf{rAl rffolci:il1'\il

Glvrr Newsou

Water Boards

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

14 December 2022

Steven Banks
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
sbanks@folsom.ca.us

COMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE

DEC LARATION, VI NTAGE S E NIOR APARTMENTS P ROJECT, SC H#20221 10187,

SACRAMENTO GOUNTY

pursuant to the State Clearinghouse's 10 November 2022 request, the CentralValley

RegionalWater Quality Control Board (CentralValley Water Board) has reviewed the

Reiuesf for Review for the Mitigated Negatiu_e Declaration for the Vintage Senior

Apartments Project, located in Sacramento County.

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quality of surface and

grounlwatlrs of the state; therefore, our comments will address concerns surrounding

those issues.

l. Regulatory Setting

Basin Plan
The CentraiValley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for

all areas within the Central Valley region under Section 1324A of the Porter-Cologne

Water euality ControlAct. Each Basin Plan must contain water quali$ objectives to

ensure the reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as well as a program of

implementation for achieving water quality objectiv.es with the Basin Plans. Federal

regulations require each state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public

neinn or welfare, enhance the quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean

Water Act. ln California, the beneficial uses, water quali$ objectives, and the

Antidegradation Policy are the State's water quality standards. Water quali$

standaids are also contained in the National Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131'36,

and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131'38'

The Basin plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws,

policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin
'plans 

were adoptEC in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as

required, using'Basin Plan amendments. Once the Central Valley Water Board has

aOipteO'a BaJin Plan amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by

tne btate Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board), Office of

Mrnr BRloroBD' CHAIR I Pernrcr PuLuee, EsQ', execurtvE oFFlsER

t1020 Sun center Drive #200, Rancho cordova, cA s5670 I www'wgterboards.ca.gov/c€ntralvalley

Page 1125

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage Senior Apartments Project - 2 - 14 December 2A22

Sacramento County

Administrative Law (OAL) and in some cases, the United States Environmental
protection Agency (i;Sepn). Basin Plan amendments only become effective after

they have UeLn approved by the OAL and in some cases, the USEPA. Every three

(3) years, a review'of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the appropriateness

irf"ii.tinb standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Planning issues. For more

information on the Water Quatity Contral Ptan for the Sacramenta and San Joaquin

River gastns, please visit our website:
http:#www.waierboards. ca. gov/centlAlval leylwater issueslbasin plansl

Antideqradation -Gonsideratigns
Allwastewater ciGEfrarges rnust comply with the Antidegradation Policy (State Water

Board Resolution 68-16) and the Antidegradation lmplementation Policy contained in

the Basin plan. The Aniidegradation lmplementation Policy is available on page 74

at:
hiins://www.waterboards.ca.qovlcentralvallevlwater issqes/basin plans/sacsjL2018

05.pdf

ln part it states:

Any discharge of wasfe to high quality waters mugt apply best practicable treatment

or controt n6t only to prevent a condition of potlution or nuisance from occuning, but

also to maintain ine iignest water quatity possib/e consisfent with the maximum

benefit to the PeoPle of the Sfafe'

This information must be presented as an anatysis of the impacts and potential

impacts of the discharge on water quality, as measured by background

concentrations and applicable water qualtty obiectives'

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant

Discharge Elirnination Syitem and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements

Wpnrip"rmitting processes. The environmental review document should evaluate

potential impacts to both surface and groundwater quali$'

ll. Permitting Requirements

Conetructlon Storm Wate[ General Permit

@isturb one or more acres of soil or where projects

disturb less than oni aire but are part of a larger common plan of development that

in total disturbs one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the

General permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land

Disturbance Activities (Construction General Permit), Construction General Perm it

Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ. Construction activity subject to this permit includes

clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as stockpiling, or

excavalion, but-does not include regular maintenance activities performed to restore

the original line, grade, or capaci$ of the facility, The Construction General Permit

requir& the devilopment and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention
plan (SWppP). For more information on the Construction General Permit, visit the

State Water Resources Control Board website at:

http:l/wvrnar.watgrboards.ca.sovlwater issues/proqramslstormwaterlconstpermits'9ht

ml

Page 1126

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage Senior Apartments Project
Sacramento CountY

-3- 14 December 2022

Glean Water Act Sectlon 404 Permit
chargeofdredgedorfillmaterialinnavigablewaters

or weilands, a permit pursuant to Section 4O4 of the Clean Water Act may be

needed from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). lf a Section 404

permit is required by the USACE, the CentralValley Water Board will review the

iermit application to ensure that discharge will not violate.water quality standards' lf

ine pro;dit requires surface water drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to

coni""i the Department of Fish and Game for information on Streambed Alteration
permit requirements. lf you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act

Section 404 permits, please contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento

District of USACE at (916) 557-5250.

Ctean tVater Act Section 401 Permll - Water Qualibl Ce$ification
eportingNationwidePermit,NationwidePermit,

Letter of permission,'lndividual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic

General Permit), or any other federal permit (e.9., Section 10 of the Rivers and

Harbors Act or Section 9 from the United States Coast Guard), is required for this

protect due to the disturbance of waters of the United States {such as streams and

weilanOs;, then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central

Valley Witer Board prior to initiation of project activities. There are no waivers for

+0t Water euality Certifications. For more information on the Water Quality

certification, visit the centralvalley water Board website at:

htips:/lwww.waterboards.ca.qovlcentralvalleylwater issues,lwater quality certflgalio

nl

Waste DischarEe Requiroments -.Dl,sqlr4roeq to yUatefs of thq State

ffilynon.jurisdictionalwatersoftheState(i.e.,,.non-
federal" waters of the State) aie present in the proposed project area, the.proposed

project may require a Wast! Discharge Requiremerrt (WDR) permit to be issued by

b"ntr"tVaitey Water Board. Under the California Porter-Cologne Waler Quality

Control Act, discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other

waters of the State including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to

State regutation. For more information on the Waste Discharges to Slrface Water

NpDES program and WDR processes, visit the CentralValley Water Board website

s{'htlpq:/lurriff.-rlrqterboards.ca.qgvlcentralvallev/water issues/waste to surface wat

erl
projects involving excavation or fill activities impacting less than 0.2 acre or 400

linear feet of norijurisdictional waters of the state and projects involving dredging

activities impacting less than b0 cubic yards of non-jurisdictional waters of the state

miy Oe eliginn foicoverage under the State Water Resources Control Board Water

Ouitity OrJer No. 2004-0004-DWQ (GeneralOrder 2004-0004)' For more

information on the General Order 2004-AOO4 visit the State Water Resources

Control Board website at:

htipi:/www.waterboards,ca.qovlboard decisions/qdopled orders/wAlgr guality/200

4lwqo/wqo2004-0004. Bdt

Page 1127

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage Senior Apartments Project
Sacramento County

-4- 14 December2022

Dewaterino Permit
@ctincludesconstructionorgroundwaterdewateringtobe
discharged to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board

GeneralWater Quality Order (Low Threat General Order) 2003-0003 or the Central

Valley Water Board's Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge

Requirements (Low Threat Waiver) R5-2018-0085. Small temporary_construction
dewatering projects are projects that discharge groundwater to land from excavation

activities or dewatering of underground utility vaults. Dischargers seeking coverage

under the General Order or Waiver must file a Notice of lntent with the Central

Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge'

For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application

process, visit the CentralValley Water Board website at:

hup:l/www.waterboards.ca.gov/board decisions/adooted orders/waler quqlltv/20031

wqolwqo2003-0003"Pdf

For more information regarding the Low Threat Waiver and the application process,

visit the CentralValley Water Board website at:

https:#www.waterboards.ca.govlcentr:alvalleylboard decisionsladopted of-d-er-slwaiv

erslrS-2018-0085,pdf

Limlted Th!'eaf General NPDE$ Permlt
@inc|udesconstructiondewateringanditisnecessaryto
discharge ttre giounOwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project will

require-coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)

peimit. Dewatering discharges are typically considere^d a low or limited threat to

water quality and may be covered under the General Order lor Limited Threat

Discharges-to Surtaie Water (Limited Threat General Order). A complete Notice of
lntent m].rst be submitted to the CentralValley Water Board to obtain coverage under

the Limited Threat General Order. For more information regarding the Limited

Threat General Order and the application process, visit the CentralValley Water

Board website at:
https:l/www.waterboards.ca.oov/centralvallevlboard decisionsladopted orders/oene

ral orderslrS-20!6-0076-01 .odf

NPDES Permit
lf the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of surface

waters oi tne State, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project

will require coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

(NpDES) permit. A complete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the

bentralValley Water Board to obtain a NPDES Permit. For more information

regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the CentralValley
Witer Board website at: ht$rs:/lwww.waterboards.ca.qov/centralvallevlhelp/permiU

Page 1128

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Vintage Senior Apartments Project
Sacramento CountY

lf you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at (916) 4644684

or Pete r. M inkel2@waterboards. ca. gov

Pn**7fut/4/
Peter Minkel
Engineering Geologist

cc: State Clearinghouse unit, Governor's Office of Planning and Research,

Sacramento

-5- 14 December2022

Page 1129

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Powering forward. Together.

OSMUD
SentVia E-Mail

December 14,2022

Steven Banks
City of Folsom Planning Department
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
sbanks@folsom.ca.us

subject: vintage senior Apartments t MND I 2022110187

Dear Mr. Banks:

The Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) appreciates the opportunity to

provide comments on the Mitigated Negative_ Peclaration (MND) for the Vintage Senior

hpartments (project, SCH 202211018-7). SMUD is the primary energy provider for

Sacramento bou-nty and a portion of the proposed Project area. SMUD's vision is to

empower our customers wlth solutions and options that increase energy efficiency,

pro'tect the environment, reduce global warming, and lower the cost to serve our

iegion, As a Responsibie Rgency, SMUD aims to ensure that the proposed Project

iir"it. tn" potential for significint environmental effects on SMUD facilities, employees,

and customers.

We have no comments to offer at this time but would appreciate if the Ci$ of Folsom

would continue to keep SMUD facilities in mind as environmental review of the Prolect

moves forward. Please reroute the Project analysis for SMUD's review if there are any

changes to the scope of the Project.

lf you have any questions regarding this letter, please do not hesitate to contact me at
gi A1 gz.l q66, or by email at Am m on. Rice(Osm ud. orq.

Sincerely,

Ammon Rice
Environmental Services Supervisor
Sacramento Municipal Utility District
6201 S Street
Sacramento, CA 95817

cc: Entitlements

5MUDH61 i6201 SStreet lp.o.Box15830 1Sacramento,CA95852-1830 11.888.742.7683 ismud'org

Page 1130

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Subiect:

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organlzation. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe'

Classification: Public

Hello Steve,

This project is under review by pG&E's transmission engineering group for the associated grading and improvements

(retaining wall) before an approval letter can be issued. ln the meantime, I wanted to provide the following comments:

Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

o

a

Boyd, Alexa <AsG5@Pge.com>

Friday, December 23,202212:15 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage Senior APartments

Retaining Wall: Walls, fences, and other structures must be installed at locations that do not affect the safe

operation of pG&,s facilities. Heavy equipment access to our facilities must be maintained at alltimes' Metal

fences are to be grounded to pG&E specifications. No wall, fence or other like structure is to be installed within

10 feet of tower footings. please provide distances from proposed retaining wall to tower footings.

Landscaping: on overhead electric transmission easements, trees and shrubs are limited to those varieties that

do not exceed 10 feet in height at maturity. pG&E must have access to its facilities at alltimes, including access

by heavy equipment. No planting is to occur within the footprint of the tower legs. Greenbelts are encouraged.

No buildings or other structures are permitted within transmission easement areas; this included signage.

a

Respectfully,

il Alexa Boyd I LandAgent

Pacific Gas and Electric ComPanY

Land Management, Land Rights Services

2730 Gateway oaks Drive, Ste 220 | Sacramento, CA 95833

Phone: (916) 750-5738
Email ; dgIa'gardsA@pre4&

I

Page 1131

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Plannlng Commission
Vintage Senlor APartments
January 18,2023

(PN 21-15e)

Attachment 27

Comrnent Lefters from Residents

Page 1132

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

dreamasplace@aol.com
Thursday, June 30, 2022 3:42 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage project at 103 E Natoma St

Dear Steve Banks,

I am a resident of the Cimmaron Hills neighborhood directly next to 103 E Natoma Street. We have attended two

meetings w1h the ownei/developer that w:ants to put a three. story. 136 unit senior (55 and up) apartment building..on that

prop"r[. This properly ir ion",l Bp and while thi proposed ussis allowed it needs an issuance of a minor conditional

ie#it io have i tnr"e story building. l, as well as my heighbors, are requesting that this conditional use permit be denied.

A three story building at this locatation is unacceptable. There are no three story buildings in this area. This property

borders residential nlitnoornoods that have single or two story homes, and one story office buildings. Ctranging this

small plot of land tromhz io C+ nlgn density is dgregious- N.ot only will it be an eyesore, but it does not fit in with the

"ojoining 
neighborhoods. Those niignuorsalong itJbo,roer.lose.the privacy and peaceful enjoyment of their

pr6pertyl. lm-agine thaoccupants of ihe third stoiy looking directly into your backyard and back windows. This is not one

bt tho.5 neighb'orhoods that have homes close together ind lookdown into each other's back yards. We hgve larger lot

sizes and the homes are built so that we have thai privacy. That is why people have chosen to live here' Please do not

allow the third story, a one story would be more appropriate for this space'

Another main concern is parking. The developer has indicated to us that there are not parking spages fol eyery

unit, yikesll! Their r"rgjnse isitrat not every occupant will have a vehicle. Maybe sor-but the reali$ is that most units

will have more than onJ oc.rp"nt and all ociupants in those units will have vehicles. Then if you factor in building staff,

caregivers, and vistitors there is not ample parking sp€ces. This means that their cars will be lining the streets of the

adjoi-ning neighborhoods, once again unacceptable. Please require that all units have parking spaces as well as

additional parking for staff, caregivers, and visitors'

It is also our understanding that there will be two entrance/exits. one is proposjld to be a right in, dght out.passage. I

would ask that this be made accessible to service vehicles only. Police, EMT, Fire Dept. The traffic issue is going to be a

nitnt*"r". Natoma has become a very busy street. The additional entrancelexits will put three entrance/exiis within a

ve--ry short distance from each other. Once dgain that is a traffic.nightmare. Residents in our neighborhood have a hard

.ndrgh time getting in and out as it is. Theriare already visibility problems as well as a pedestrian crosswalk. This will

be a very dangerous situation.

\Mrat a shame to lose all the beautiful trees and wildlife on this lot, as well as, the minimal undeveloped green space left

in Folsom. This project does not align with the Distinctive by Nature image in appearance or location.

please take these issues into consideration and not issue this conditional permit.

You don't often get email from dreamasplace@aol,com. Leafn whv this ls inoortant

cAUTloN: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Yours respectfully,
Dreama Pacheco
dreamasplace@aol.com
916-496-6536

1

Page 1133

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Elaine Andersen
Friday, Jdy 8,2022 7:14 AM

Steven Banks

FW:Vintage project at 103 E Natoma StSubject:

From: dreamasplace@aol.com <dreamasplace@aol.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 3A,2022 3:40 PM

To: Elaine Andersen <eandersen@folsom'ca.us>

Subject: Vintage project at 103 E Natoma St

You don't often get email from dreamasplace@ailgq-40. Learn whv thl9. ls important

GAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organizatlon. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Elaine Andersen,

I am a resident of the Cimmaron Hills neighborhood directly next to 103 E Natoma Street. We have aftended two

meetings with the ownerldeveloper that riants to put a three story. 136 unit senior (55 and up) apartment building..on that

properil. This propery is toned BP and while th6 propogq{ use is allowed it needs an issuance of a minor conditional

ierhit [o have i tnree story building. l, as well as my heighbors, are requesting that this conditional use permit be denied'

A three story building at this locatation is unacceptable. There are no three story buildings in this area. This property

borders residential neijtrbornoods that have sinjb or two story homes, and one story office buildings. Changing this

small plot of land from-RZ to R4 high densig is egregious. N.ot only will it be an eyesore, but it does not fit in with the

a_djoining neighborhoods. Those nlighborsalong its border.lose.the privacy and peaceful enjoyment of their

pr6pertv]. lm-agine thaoccupants orihe third story looking directly into your backyard and back windows. This is not one

91 tiro.6 neighSorhoods that have homes close together and look down into each other's back yards. we hne larger lot

sizes and the homes are built so that we have thal privacy. That is why people have chosen to live here. Please do not

allow the third story, a one story would be more appropriate for this space.

Another main concern is parking. The developer has indicated to us that there are not parking spaces for every 
.

unit. yikesl!l Their 1"rponre is-that not every occupant will have a vehicle. Maybe so, but the reali$ is that most units

will have more than o1d o..rp"nt and all oc&panti in those units will have vehicles. Then if you factor in buiHing staff,

caregivers, and vistitors tner" is not ample parking spaces. This means that their cars will be lining the streets of the

adjoi-ning neighborhoods, once again unacieptabie. Please require that all units have parking spaces as well as

additionil paiXing for staff, caregivers, and visitors.

It is also our understanding that there will be two entrance/exits. One is prop_osjld to be a right in, right out pasgage' 
!

would ask that this be made accessible to service vehicles only. Police, EMT, Fire Dept. The kaffic issue is going to be a

nightmare. Natoma hai become a very busy street. The additional entrancelexits will put three entrancelexits within a

vdry short distance from each other. Once igain that is.a traffic.nightmare. Residents in our neighborhood have a hard

enougn time getting in and out as it is. Therdare already visibility problems as well as a pedestrian crosswalk. This will

be a very dangerous situation.

\Mat a shame to lose all the beautiful trees and wildlife on this lot, as well as, the minimal undeveloped green space left

in Folsom. This project does not align with the Distinctive by Nature image in appearance or location"

please take these issues into consideration and not issue this conditional permit.

I

Page 1134

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Kandi Jones < kandis5T@yahoo.com >

Thursday, July7,2O22 7:43 PM

Steven Banks

103 E. Natoma StreetSubiect:

You don't often get emall from kandls5T@yahoo.com. lqafn Whv thlg i! important

CAUT|ON: This email orlginated from outslde of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

I reside on Cimmaron Circle. I am vehemently opposed to the proposed project at the above referenced address for

reasons too many to list here, but are well known to the builder/developers'

I

Page 1135

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

eprkeeper5 < eprkeeperS@gmail.com >

Thursday, July7,2O22 8:00 PM

Steven Banks

103 E. Natoma StreetSubject:

You don't often get email from eprkeeper5@gmail.com. Learn whv this is importanl

CAUTION; This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

I reside on Cimmaron Circle and I am vehemently opposed to the proposed project at the above referenced address for

too many reasons to list here. but which are well known to the owner/developers.

Sent via the Samsung Galaxy S22+ 5G, an AT&T 5G smartphone

I

Page 1136

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

erin@sargentfam.net
Thursday, July 1 4, 2022 2:11 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage Housing proposal question

originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

content is safe.

Good afternoon,
My name is Erin Sargent. We met at the first neighborhood meeting regarding the Vintage Housing senior living

proposal. I was also in attendance for the second meeting, but did not see you there. I have also tried reaching out to

you earlier, but we were not able to connect.

l, along with my neighbors on Cimmaron Circle, have some valid concerns with this development. obviously, anytime

there is a new development, the loss of beautiful open space is mourned, and concerns about noise, traffic, & parking

are all negatives compared to the open space that currently exists. And neighbors who have lived with that open space

behind them for over 30 years are rightfully dismayed. One of the very reasons we purchased our home here six months

ago was because of the amazing trail access and quiet, open feel. our home abuts the trail access from Cimmaron circle

and therefore, overflow parking for those seeking access to the apartment complex from the oak Parkway trail is of

considerable concern to me.

However, I understand that this is developable land per the zoning map, and that all the studies that need to be done

regarding noise, traffic, tree removal, etc. have all been done or are in process. .
I have read the zoning code and also understand that there are significant developer incentives or bonuses involved

when considering low income and senior living facilities.

My question is regarding a specific part of the code, namely section L7.LOL.O3O where density bonuses are concerned,

as pasted below:

A. Density Bonus.

1, The city shall grant a density bonus to an applicant or developer of a housing development,

consisting of five or more dwelling units, who agrees to provide the following:

a. At least ten percent of the total units of a housing development for low income households; or

b. At least five percent of the total units of a housing development for very low income

households; or

c. A senior citizen housing development.

All density calculations resulting in fractional units shall be rounded up to the next whole number,

Z. ln determining the number of target units to be provided pursuant to this section, the maximum

residential density shall be multiplied by 0,05 where very low income households are targeted' or by 0.'10

where low income households are targeted. The density bonus units shall not be included when

determining the total number of target units in the housing development. when calculating the required

number of target units, any fractions of units shall be rounded to the next larger number.

3. Amount of DensitY Bonus.

L

Page 1137

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



a. General Density Bonus, The density bonus shall be a density increase of at least twenty percent'

unless a lesser perientage is elected by the applicantldeveloper over the othenarise maximum

allowable residential density. The amount of density bonus to which the applicant/developer is

entitled shall vary according to the amount by which the percentage of affordable units exceeds the

percentage set f;fth in subsection (AX1) of this section. For each percent increase above ten

percent in the percentage of units affordable to low income households, the density bonus shall be

increased by one and one-half percent up to a maximum of thirty-five percent. For each one

percent inciease above five percent in the percentage of units affordable to very low income

households, the density bonus shall be increased by two and one-half percent up to a maximum of

thirty-five percent. For senior citizen housing developments, the density bonus shall be a flat twenty

percent.

I am curious as to how these density bonuses are calculated, and if Vintage housing is seeking a larger bonus due to the

low income nature of their units? which is the overriding percentage? can Vintage claim larger density bonus based on

the low income household status or is the flat 20 percent for senior citizen housing applicable?

Exactly what numbers are the starting point here? on an intuitive level, it seems like a jump from our neighborhood

with RI-ML zone to an R4 high density zone would be more than 20%. This is why I am seeking clarification on the

matter.
I would be happy to discuss the matter over the phone or in person if that is easier for you' I can be reached at 915-849-

2134 alyour convenience, and am available to meet in person any time next week'

Thank you so much,
Erin Sargent

2

Page 1138

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Randy Bundock < randybundock@yahoo.com>

Monday, November 14,2Q2210:08 AM

Steven Banks

Vintage Senior APartmentsSubject:

[you don't often get email from randybundock@yahoo.com. Learn why this is important at

https://a ka. ms/Lea rnAbo utSenderldentif ication l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Steve,
It was inevitable someone would want to develop the land across from the prison entrance. My wife and I always joked

if we won the lottery we would buy it and build another bike and dog park, but that hasn't happened yet. lt seems that

there would be a lot of challenges with exffa traffic at a 4 way siop since the shift changes at the prison already make

that intersection busy enough, Also how to preserve all the nice oak trees, the small creek that forms when it rains, and

how close the power lines aie. A three'story building seems like it would be too tall for that area. The city has invested

so much in the Jc Trail with bridges and tunnels it would be a shame to clog up the trail access with more cross traffic'

Thank you for your time,
Randy Bundock
218 Spencer Street

Sent from my iPhone

1

Page 1139

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Kandi Jones < kandis5T@yahoo'com>

Monday, November 14,20221:27 PM

Steven Banks

103 E NatomaSubject:

You don't often Eet email from kandis5T@yahoo.com, Learn whv-this is imoOrtant

CAUT|ON: This email originated from outside Of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

I am contacting you to express my opposition to the proposed project by Vintage Properties at 103 E Natoma. I have

several issues, however, my concern at this time is the 3 story proposal and overall design of the building which does not

blend in with the existing neighboring structures, which includes single family homes, businesses, medicalfacilities, and

other multi family apartments. Thank you ' KandiJones

I

Page 1140

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Dreama Pacheco <dreamasplace@aol.com>

Wednesday, November 16, 2022 12:53 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage Properties 103 NatomaSubiect:

[you don't often get email from dreamasplace@aol.com. Learn why this is important at

https://a ka.ms/LearnAboutSenderldentification l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Steve Banks,

I am writing in regards to the Vintage Properties proposed for 103 Natoma St. Although I have many concerns what I

would like to address here is the parking situation for this project.

This 136 unit apartment building does not have plans for enough parking spaces, There is not a parking space for each

unit nor parking designated for,staff and visitors. The developers answer to this was that not every one living in the

building will drive. That is a nonsense answer, as many of those units will have more than one driver.

ln my research I found eight other propertaes owned by this company and of the many complaints the one common

thread for all eight properties is those living there cannot find parking. Some complaining that they have to park in the

supermarket parking lot down the road, and one resident complaining she has to park down the road and walk to the

building in the dark. These are seniors, this is not acceptable.

Also having cars scattered all over the neighborhood from lack of parking is unacceptable.
please require this project to have parking spaces for all units as well as additional parking for staff and visitors.

Thank you,
Dreama Pacheco

Sent from my iPhone

1

Page 1141

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Farrah Wood <farrahwood@gmail.com >

Monday, November 28, 2A22 2:26 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage Properties at 103 E Natoma Folsom, CASubiect:

[you don't often get emailfrom farrahwood@gmail.com. Learn why this is important at

https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSe nderldentification l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization, Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Mr Banks-

I am contacting you to express my opposition to the proposed project by Vintage Properties at 103 E. Natoma. I have

several issues, however, my concern at this time is the 3 story proposal and overall design of the building which does not

blend in with the existing structures which includes single family homes, businesses, medical facilities, and other multi

family apartments. Also the protected oak trees. Thank you.

Farah Wood
Sent from iPhone

t

Page 1142

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Bill Pacheco <billjpacheco@aol.com>

Tuesday, November 29,2022 5:21 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage Senior ApartmentsSubiect:

[you don't often get email from billjpacheco@aol.com. Learn why this is important at

https:l/aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderldentification l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe'

Steve,

Our neighborhood has many concerns about the senior apartments planned to be built next to the homes on Cimmaron

Circle.

Natomas is already extremely impacted by the current traffic conditions from all of the building over the past 15 years'

It,s very dangerous as it is and with adding a three story building will increase the traffic and make more unsafe. There is

a crosswalk for the bikelwalking trails that has had the signs hit by oncoming vehicles several times' The most recent

time one of the signs has been hit , the driver through the siBn over my fence into my backyard. Most people driving on

that road speed and eventually one of the walking path users are going to get hurt. This is already a major safety

problem.

It,s also frustrating when you can't leave your neighborhood in a reasonable amount of time.

The road noise/pollution is very loud only going to get louder with more traffic.

There are few services near this location for seniors. This project would make more sense near shopping and grocery

stores.

What is the City of Folsom planning to do about the safety issues, the road noise issues, timely accessibility and the lack

of services for the seniors?

Please excuse any typos this message was sent from my iPhone

Thanks,

Bill Pacheco

Page 1143

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

To:
Cc:

Sent:

Subiect:

From: Josh Guthrie <joshguthrie@hotmail.com>

Thursday, December 15,2022 8:42 AM

Steven Banks

Rosario Rodriguez; Mike Kozlowski; YK Chalamcherla; Sarah Aquino;Anna Rohrbough

Opposition to Vintage Senior Apartments across from Folsom Prison Entrance

CAUTIOH: This email originated frOm outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe'

Hi Steve,

I couldn't attend last nights City Council Meeting, so I wanted to write this email.

l,m adamantly opposed to putting a three story senior living center on APN:071"-0320-042, as it will adversely affect my

quality of life, along with hundreds of other residents.

1) The Traffic is already an issue for the residents of Cimmaron Hills entering Natomas street. This will only add to

it.
2l A three story complex doesn't conform to the 'feel' of the area'

3) This project will erode the property values of the adjacent homes by creating direct viewable access to residents

living rooms. Unacceptable design.

4l l'm very concerned about the density and classification of these residences

a. They can be too easily converted to 'Low-income' genialized dwellings in the future, and our area

already carries its societal burden with the medium density dwellings of Montrose and Talisman, and

the areas behind Circle K. The city will be effectively creating a 'ghetto' in the future and this is simply

irresponsible plan ning.

5) l,m not allowed to buald a stair case within 10 feet of my oak tree, but we're comfortable wiping out an entire

oak grove, all at the justification of high density tax revenues. Ridiculous hypocrisy being exhibited here' Again,

unacceptable design.

I seriously hope this isn't approved.

Best regards,

Josh Guthrie
242 Spencer St.

1

Page 1144

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:
Subiect:

Kat Gray <k.blackman.gray@gmail.com>

Wednesday, December 21,2022 9:33 AM

Steven Banks

Mitigation Measures for Vintage Homes Apartments

You don't often get email from k.blackman.gray@8mall.com. tga$-ruhvlhj:j:j$.P!r[3:0!

CAUTION: This email originated frorn outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Steve,
I am inquiring about the Vintage Homes apartment project at Natoma. I'm a concerned resident and homeowner living

near the proposed Vintage Homes site. I know you are probably really busy but I am wondering if you can tell me where

to find information for all the Mitigation Measures listed in the summary. I counted 15 different mitigation measures for

the many impacts this project will have. Where can I find out more? Hoping you can point me in the right direction.

Kat Gray

1

Page 1145

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Planning Commission
Vintage Senior Apartments (PN 21 -1 59)
January 18,2023

Attachment 28

CEQA Response Memorand um
Dated January 4,2023

Page 1146

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Memorqndum
HELIX Enylronmontrl Phnnlng' lnc.
1180 lron Polnt Road, Sulte 130

Foleom, CA 95630
916,435.1205 tel

$uulelxeptlsr
Env i r anm e ntal P I an n i ng

Date: January?,2O2?

To: Steve Banks, Principal Planner, CityofFolsom

From: Robert Edgerton, AICP CEP

Message: Vintage at Folsom Senior Apartments Comment Letters Memorandum

Below is a summary of public agency letters and local resident comments received regarding the Vintage

at Folsom Senior Apartments lnitialStudy Mitigated Negative Declaration (ISMND) prepared by HELIX

Environmental Planning, lnc. (HELIX). The 30-day public review period forthe ISMND began on

November t4,2022 and ended on December L4'2022'

Public Asencv Letters
r Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB) (December t4,20221

r Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) (December !4,2022,
r Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) (November 3A,2A221

o Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) (November L7,2022t

Allfour letters received from the CVRWQCB, SMUD, SMAQMD, and PG&E were standardized template

letters. No response is required for the public agency letters received to date as no comments relevant

to compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act {CEQA) were noted. The public agency

letters may contain relevant information for the City to consider (primarily for conditions of approval

purposes).

Local Resident Comments
Several comment letters were received from local residents expressing concern with project impacts

related to aesthetics, biological resources, transportation and parking safety, and noise. No letter

received from a public agency, or a local resident triSgers additional action required of the City per CEQA

Guidelines. Allof the issues raised in the comment letters, regarding CEQA compliance, have been

previously addressed in the ISMND. No formal written response from the City is required.

r 103 E Natoma Letter (November !4,2022)
r 103 E. Natoma Street Letter (July 7,20221

r 103 E. Natoma Street Letter (July 7,20221

r FW Vintage project at 103 E Natoma Street Letter (July 8, 2022)

. Opposition to Vintage Senior Apartments across from Folsom Prison Entrance {December 15,

2O2Zl
r Vintage Housing proposalquestion Letter (July L4,2022!.

HEL//X

Page 1147

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Memorandum to Mr, Steve Banks

January 3,2023

?age2ot2

HEL'X
foriroonutltl Ptsminq

r Vintage proiect at 103 E Natoma Street Letter (July 30, 2022)

r Vinta8e Properti€s 103 Natoma Letter (November L6,2A221

o Vintage Properties at 103 E Natome Folsom, CA (November28,2O22l

o Vintage Senior Apartments Letter (November 29' 20221

r Vlntage SenlorApartments Letter (November 14,20221

Page 1148

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Attachment 4

Minutes from January 18,2023
Planning Commission Meeting

Page 1149

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



i[t"'"() i1",uiDi\]lt
9rair{arr*:

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
JANUARY 18,2023

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
6:30 P.M.

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

CALLTO ORDER PLANNING COMMISSION

The regular Planning Commission Meeting was callod to order at 6:30 p.m. with Chair Eileen Reynolds presiding.

ROLL CALL

Commissioners Present: Mathew Herrera, Commissioner
DanielWest, Vice Chair
Bill Mlklos, Commissioner
Ralph Pefia, Commissioner
James Orlega, Commissioner
Eileen Reynolds, Chalr

Commissioners Absent: Bill Romanelli, Commissioner

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANGE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Oath of Office was Adminlstered to Mathew Herrera. James Orteoa. Elleen Revnolds. and Daniel West

Electlon of Chair and Vice Chalr

COMMISSIONER WEST MOVED TO ELECT COMMISSIONER EILEEN REYNOLDS AS CHAIR OF THE

PLANNING COMMISSION.

COMMISSIONER PENA SECONDED THE MOTION.

AYES: HERREM, WEST, MIKLOS, PENA, ORTEGA, REYNOLDS
NOES: NONE
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: ROMANELLI

COMMISSIONER REYNOLDS WAS ELECTED TO SERVE AS CHAIR FOR 2023

COMMISSIONER MIKLOS MOVED TO ELECT COMMISSIONER DANIEL WEST AS VICE CHAIR OF THE

PLANNING COMMISSION.

Planning Commission Minutes
January I 8, 2023

Page 1150

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



COMMISSIONER HERRERA SECONDED THE MOTION.

AYES: HERREM, VVEST, MIKLOS, PEITA, ORTEGA, REV\OLDS
NOES: NONE
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: ROMANELLI

COMMISSIONER WEST WAS ELECTED TO SERVE AS VICE CHAIR FOR 2023.

Plannlnq Commisslon Recommendatlon of Two l$embers to Serue on the Hlstodc Dlstrlct Commleslon

COMMISSIONER MIKLOS MOVED TO SELECT COMMISSIONER DANIEL WEST AND COMMISSIONER

RALPH PENA FoR RECOMMENDATION TO SERVE ON THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION.

COMMISSIONER HERREM SECONDED THE MOTION.

AYES: HERREM, WEST, MIKLOS, PENA, ORTEGA, REYNOLDS
NOES: NONE
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: ROMANELLI

coMMIssIoNER WEST AND COMMISSIONER PENA WERE SELECTED FOR RECOMMENDATION TO THE

CITY COUNCIL TO SERVE ON THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION FOR 2023.

CITIZEN GOMMUNICATION

NONE

MINUTES

The minutes of the November 16, 2022 Regular Meeting were approved as submitted.

NEWBUSINESS

1. PN22-026: AT&T Livermore Park Mononine Cellular Fite

A Publlc Hearing to consider a request from New Cingular Wreless PCS, LLC for approval of a Conditional Use

Permlt Applicafion for the instrallation and operation of a monopine cellular site located at 6004 Riley_Street. The

zoning classification for the site is OSC, while the General Plan land-use designation is P. An lnitial Study and

Mltbtted Negative Declaration have been prepared in accordance with the requirementsoJthe Califomia
Environmental QualityAct. (Proiect Ptannen Josh KinkadelAppllcant New GlngularWireless PCS, LLC)

COMMTSSIONER MIKLOS MOVED TO ADOPT A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND MITIGATION

MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE INSTALI.ATION AND OPERATION OF A MONOPINE

CELLULAR SITE LOCATED AT 6004 RILEY STREET; AND MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONDITIONAL USE
pERMtT AppLtCATtON (pN22-026) FOR THE INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF A MONOPINE
CELLULAR SITE LOCATED AT 6004 RILEY STREET AS ILLUSTRATED IN ATTACHMENT 5 FOR THE AT&T
LIVERMORE PARK CELLULAR SITE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROJECT, BASED ON THE FINDINGS

INCLUDED tN TH|S REPORT (F|NDINGS A-r) AND SUBJECT TO THE ATTACHED CONDITIONS OF

APPROVAL (CONDITIONS 1 -24).

COMMISSIONER WEST SECONDED THE MOTION.

AYES: HERRERA, WEST, MIKLOS, PENA, ORTEGA REYNOLDS
NOES: NONE

Planning Commission Minutes
January 18,2023
Page 2 of4

Page 1151

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



A Public Hearing to consider a request from Vintrage at Folsom, LP for approval of a Conditional Use Permit,
planned Develolment Permit, and Density Bonus for development of a 136-unit senior affordable apartment

community on a 4.8&acre site located on the south side of East Natoma Street at the intersection of East Natoma

Street ani Prison Road (103 East Natoma Street). The General Plan land use designation for the prcject slte is
pO, while the Zoning disignation is BP PD. An lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation

Monitoring and Repoiting Frogram have been prepared in accordance yitt-t[9_regykemenls of the Califomia

EnvkonmEntat euaiity nit tCeOnl Guidelines. {Project Planner: Steve BankslApplicant Vlntage at Folsom'

LP)

1, Kandi Jones presented a petition against the project to the Commissioners and opposed he project due to

ooncems about the number of stories, overcrowding, and emergency evacuation safety.

2. Art Jones addressed the commission in opposition to the conditional use permit and had concems aboul

noise.
3. Henry Sundermier spoke in opposition to the project due to conoems about the number of stories, impact

on trafiic and emergencl, r€sponse, and parking.

4. John Sutherland opposiO the project due to concems about parking and landscape maintenance'
5. Giovanni Ottolini vbiced the importance of wage strandards for localworkers in the community.

6. Ravi Kahlin spoke in opposltioh to the project due to conoems about potential noise and light impact, and

impact on nearby hom6 values. She also questioned whether the results of the traffic study may have been

impacted by the COUD-i9 pandemic and reduced cars on the road.

Z. gO'p nnOeilon opposed the prcject due to concems about trafic safe$ for the neighborhood entry/exit.

B. Bob Maechler opposed the project due to concems about blcycle/pedestian safety and dralnage.
g. Brlan Oleson ofposed ttre iroj-ed and requested ttrird party impact studles lo be done for comparlson wlth

those by the develoPer.
10. Teresa-Golden-Oleion opposed the project due to concems about parklng, trees and visiblllty, lmpact on

magpies, project design, and trafilc.
11. JillFerkini oiposed the project w1h concems about parking and traffc.
12. Carole Ganeti opposeO itre-project due to concems about ihe impact on recreation and wildlife in the area.

f i. eili Facheco spiie ln oppoiiti6n to the projecf wlth concems about traffc safety and traffic impact on the

neighborhood.

RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: ROMAIIELLI

MOTION PASSED

2. pN 21-l5g: Vingoe Senlor Apartments Conditional Use Permlt. Planned Developmsnt Pemlt. and

Densitv Bonu$

CHAIR REYNOLDS CLOSEDTHE PUBLIC HEARING.

COMMISSIONER WEST MOVED TO CONTINUE PROJECT PN 21-159 TO THE FEBRUARY 15TH, 2023

MEETING IN ORDER TO ENABLE STAFF TO PROVIDE COMMISSIONERS WITH MORE INFORMATION ON

THE LEGAL JUSTIFICATIONS FOR SPECIFIC ADVERSE IMPACTS ON PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFEW SO

THAT THE COMMISSION CAN MAKE AN EDUCATED DECISION ON APPROVAL OR DENIAL.

COMMISSIONER MIKLOS SECONDED THE MOTION.

AYES: HERREFIA, WEST, MIKLOS, PENA, ORTEGA, REYI\OLDS
NOES: NONE
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: ROMANELLI

DARStrN

Planning Commission Minutcs
January lE,2O23
Page 3 of4

Page 1152

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



PLANNNG qOMMISSION 
' 

PI.ANNING MANAGER REPORT

The next Plannlng Gommission meeting is scheduled for February 15,2023.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further buslness to come before the Folsom Planning Commission, Chair Eileen Reynolds
adJoumed the meeting at 10:26 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

c
ChrisUna Kelley,

Planning Commission Minutcs
January 18,2023
Page 4 of4

Page 1153

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Attachment 5

Minutes from February 15,2023
Planning Commission Meeting

Page 1154

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



]FO]LSCIN4t

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
FEBRUARY 15,2023

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
5:30 P.M.

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

CALL TO ORDER PLANNING COMMISSION:

The regular Planning Commission Meeting was called to order at 6:31 p.m. with Chair Eileen Reynolds presiding.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

ROLL CALL:

Commissioners Present: DanielWest, Vice Chair
Bill Miklos, Commissioner
Ralph Pefia, Commissioner
Bill Romanelli, Commissioner
James Ortega, Commissioner
Mathew Herrera, Commissioner
Eileen Reynolds, Chair

Commissioners Absent: None

GITIZEN COMMUNIGATION: NONE

Oath of Office was Administered to Bill Romanelli

Gommendations Presented to Barbara Learv and Justin Raithel

MINUTES: The minutes of the January 18,2023 Regular Meeting were approved as submitted

NEW BUSINESS

1. PN 21-159: Vintaqe Senior Apartments Gonditional Use Permit. Planned Development Permit. and
Densitv Bonus

A Public Hearing to consider a request from Vintage at Folsom, LP for approval of a Conditional Use Permit,

Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for development of a 136-unit senior affordable apartment

community on a 4.86-acre site located on the south side of East Natoma Street at the intersection of East Natoma

Street and Prison Road (1 03 East Natoma Street). The General Plan land use designation for the project site is
PO, white the Zoning designation is BP PD. An lnitial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation

Planning Commission Minutes
February 15,2023
Page I of 6

Page 1155

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Monitoring and Reporting Program have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the California

Environmental Quality Act (CEaA) Guidelines. (Project Planner: Steve Banks/Applicant: Vintage at Folsom'
LP)

1. Erin Sargent opposed the project and questioned whether studies were done based on the legalallowable
number of residents, and had concerns about parking.

2. Katie Salcone opposed the project based on the potential parking overflow into the neighborhood.

3. Robert McNair opposed the project based on parking impact in the neighborhood and traffic/pedestrian
safety.

4. Henry Sundermier opposed the project based on traffic safety.
5. Art Jones opposed the project based on parking impact to the neighborhood and emergency vehicle noise

impact.
6. Bob Maechler opposed the project based on traffic/pedestrian safety and congestion at crossings.
7. Kat Gray opposed the project, requesting clarification on date of traffic study and discussed potential impact

on the yellow-billed magpie.
8. Teresa Golden-Oleson opposed the project based on traffic safety and parking.
g. Farrah Wood opposed the project based on pedestrian/traffic safety and parking impact.
10. Bill Pacheco opposed the project based on traffic safety at the pedestrian crossing.

COMMISSIONER MIKLOS MOVED TO ADOPT THE MITIGATED DECLARATION AND MITIGATION

MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM PREPARED FOR THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS
PROJECT (pN 21-159) PER ATTACHMENT 25 OF THE ORIGINAL STAFF REPORT lN ATTACHMENT 2; AND

APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION OF A SENIOR

AFFORDABLE APARTMENT COMMUNITY ON THE SUBJECT 4.86-ACRE PROPERTY; AND APPROVE A
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF THE 136-UNIT VINTAGE SENIOR

APARTMENTS PROJECT ON A4.86 ACRE SITE LOCATED AT 103 EAST NATOMA STREET; AND APPROVE

A DENSITY BONUS FOR DEVELOPMENT OF THE VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PROJECT AT A
RESIDENTIAL DENSITY OF 28 UNITS PER ACRE AND TO ALLOW FOR THREE

INCENTIVES/CONCESSIONS INCLUDING ESTABLISHING A PARKING RATIO OF ONE PARKING SPACE

PER UNIT, INCREASING THE MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT FROM 35 FEET TO 42-FEET 6-INCHES, AND

INCREASING THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF BUILDING STORIES FROM 2-STORIES TO 3.STORIES. THESE

AppRovALS ARE BASED ON THE F|NDTNGS (FTNDTNGS A-U) AND SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS OF

APPROVAL (CONDIIONS 1-76) ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT.

COMMISSIONER ROMANELLI SECONDED THE MOTION.

AYES: WEST, MIKLOS, ROMANELLI, ORTEGA
NOES: PENIA, HERRERA, REYNOLDS
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: NONE

MOTION PASSED

5. USPT22-00310. Kinetic tnk Conditionat Use Permit and Determination that the Proiect is Exempt from
CEQA

A Public Hearing to consider a request from Faun O'Neel for a Conditional Use Permit to operate a tattoo parlor

and piercing shop at 47A Natoma Street. The zoning classification for the site is C-2 while the General Plan land-

use designation is CC. The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act in accordance with

Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines. (Project Planner: Josh Kinkade/Applicant: Faun O'Neel)

COMMISSIONER ROMANELLI MOVED TO APPROVE THE KINETIC INK CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
(uspT22-00310), BASED ON THE FtND|NGS TNCLUDED lN THIS REPORT (FINDINGS A-G) AND SUBJECT
TO THE ATTACHED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (CONDITIONS 1-14).

COMMISSIONER ORTEGA SECONDED THE MOTION

Planning Commission Minutes
February 15,2023
Page 2 of 6

Page 1156

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



AYES:WEST, MIKLOS, PENA, ROMANELLI, ORTEGA, HERRERA, REYNOLDS
NOES: NONE
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: NONE

MOTION PASSED

2. MSTR22-00218. Folsom Ranch Apartments Gonditional Use Permit. Planne4 Development Pe4!it'
ffiendment. Minor Administrative Modification and Determination that the
Proiect is Exemptfrom GEQA

A Public Hearing to consider a request from Lewis Management Corporation for the approval of a Development

Agreement Amendment, Planned Development Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Minor Administrative

Modification for the development and operation of a 238-unit market rate apartment community on a 15.8-acre

site located at the northwest corner of the intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive within the

Folsom plan Area. The General Plan land use designation is GC and the Specific Plan designation is SP-GC-PD.

The City, as lead agency, has determined that the Mangini Ranch Phase 1 project is entirely consistent with the

Folsom-Plan nrea Specific Plan (FPASP) and therefore the project is exempt from the California Environmental

euality Act as provided by Government Code section 65457 and CEQA Guidelines section 15182. (Project
Planner: Steve Banks/Applicant: Lewis Management Corporation)

COMMISSIONER MIKLOS MOVED TO APPROVE THE CEQA EXEMPTION FOR THE PROPOSED PROJECT

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65457 AND CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15182(C), AND

APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION OF A MARKET-RATE

PAIRED, TOWNHOUSE-STYLE APARTMENT COMMUNITY ON THE SUBJECT 1s.8.ACRE PROPERTY, AND

APPROVE A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WHICH CONTAINS DETAILED DEVELOPMENT AND

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS FOR THE PROPOSED 328-UNIT RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT COMMUNITY

AS DESCRIBED IN THIS REPORT AND THE ATTACHED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, AND APPROVE A

MINOR ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATION TO TRANSFER 116 MMD ALLOCATED UNITS FROM PARCEL 61

TO THE SUBJECT PARCEL (PARCEL 85A), TO TRANSFER 221 MHD ALLOCATED UNITS FROM THE

SUBJECT PARCEL (PARCEL 85A) TO PARCEL 61, AND TO TRANSFER 3.3 ACRES OF PARKLAND FROM

THE SUBJECT PARCEL (PARCEL 85A) TO PARCEL 61 WITHIN THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA, AND TO

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT TO THE

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT TO DEED RESTRICT 64

AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS ON A PORTION OF THE REMAINDER WITHIN PARCEL 61 IN THE FOLSOM

PLAN AREA. THESE APPROVALS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ARE BASED ON THE PROPOSED FINDINGS

BELOW (F|ND|NGS A-U) AND SUBJECT TO THE RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
(coNDtTtoNS 1-46) ATTACHED TO TH|S REPORT, WITH THE FOLLOWING MODIFICATIONS TO

coNDrTloNS NO.7, NO. 17, NO. 19, AND NO.30:

Modification to Condition of Approval No. i

The owner/applicant acknowledges that the State adopted amendments to Section 65850 of the California

Government Code (specifically Section 65850(g)), effective January 1,2018, to allow for the implementation of
inclusionary housing requirements in residential rental units, upon adoption of an ordinance by the City. ln the

event that ine City amends its lnclusionary Housing Ordinance (lHO) with respect to inclusionary requirements for

rental housing units prior to owner/applicant's submiftal of a complete application for a building permit for the

Folsom Rancn Apartments Project, the owner/applicant (or successor in interest) agrees that the project shall be

subject to said rental unit inclusionary requirements, as amended.

agrees to create and record a deed restriction against a certain portion of Parcel 61 in theLandowner further
Folsom Plan Area,

to

restrict use of such property to affordable housing purposes only ('Affordable Housing Parcel"). Said deed

restriction shall be in a form reasonably approved by the City and shall be recorded against the Affordable

Housing Parcel upon creation of the same and prior to issuance of a building permit for any portion of the

Folsom Ranch Apartments Project. Said deed restriction

Planning Commission Minutes
February 15,2023
Page 3 of6

shall require the Affordable Housing Parcel to include 64

Page 1157

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



deed restricted multi-family housing units available for low-, very-low, and/or extremely-low income households
(as those terms are defined in Sections 50079.5, 50093, 50150, and 50106 of the Health and Safety Code), which

shall remain in place for at least 55 years from the date of recording.

The 64 units are anticioated to be located on a site of approximatelv 2.5 but no more than 3 acres with
mcted to accommodate 25 to 35 units per acre. A larqe lot oarcel map will be

fficreate the ultimate deed restricted Affordable Housinq Parcel. A site plan
parcel map to verifu th?t the deed restricted Affordable Housinq.Parcel

ffi 04 affordable units. Unless Citv amends its Inclusion?ly Housinq Ordinance
asdescribred in Section 1.7 of Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Development

r a successor in interest) submittinq a comolete application for its fifst
ental proiect on Parcel 61. Landowner's compliance with this Condition

ffisfv Landowner's obliqations with respect to inclusionary ?nd/or affordable
ffieral Plan Housinq Element. Specific Plan. Folsom Mglicipal Code. and
ffil rental proiect on Parcel 61. In the event (i) Citv amends its lnclusionarY
ffied in Section 1.7 of Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated
Drevelo,p,ment Aqreement prior to Landowner (or a successor in interest) submittinq a- complete
ffiildinq permit for a residential rental proiect on Parcel 6:l or (ii) Landowner,{or a

r-sale residential oroiect on Parcel 6'1. the4 l-andowner's comqliance
ffial shall instead offset Landowner's obligatio.rli Y,th rejPect to incluiio,narv
ffinder the General Plan Housinq Element. Specific Plan. Folsom Municipal
ffiel Gi and Landowner shall rqceive credits for a totalpf 64 deed-restricted
ffi(,,Affordable Housino Gredits"). Gitv agrees that anv such Affordable Housilrq
ffind used to satisfv and/or offset the inclusionarv and/or affordable housinq
ffitial proiect on Parcel 5{. 27. 854-3 o,f 85A-a. @
,*ith respeet te in6lu
(APN-072-41J€40+

Modification to Gondition of Approval No. 17

The improvement plans for the required public and private improvements necessary to serve the project shall be

reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department prior to approval of a building permit for the
project. ln addition. the reouired public and orivate improvements includinq landscape and irrioation
improvenrents for the proiect shall be completed and-a€€epted-bY to the satisfaction of the Gommunitv
ffito issuance of a certificate of occupancv for the+reieet each ohase of the
development.

Modification to Gondition of Approval No. 19

The on-site water and sewer systems shall be privately owned and maintained. The fire system shall be

constructed to meet the Galifornia Fire Gode and State
Buifdinq Godes. The domestic water and irrigation system shall be metered per City of Folsom Standard

Co n stru cti o n S p e c ifi cati o n s.

Modification to Gondition of Approval No.30

1. This project shall require two points of ry'1pgg3! connectiong to the City's Potable Water Distribution Main for

each parcel. The water svstem shall be constructed in accordance with Citv of Folsom water
standards.

b, Frem masenry wall te baek ef eurb will be used with nen petable water
e: lrrigatien interier te the preieet shall be served by the demestie water
d, Cenneetien 1 fer firet pareel (Pareel 854-3) shall inelude:

@
ine'

Planning Commission Minutes
February 15,2023
Page 4 of6

Page 1158

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



f, Cenneetien 1 fer seeend pareel (Pareel 85A.'l) shall inelude;

@
ii, n separate irrigatien serviee with meter eeming frem the nen petable water line'

g, eenneetien 2 fer s

@
in€'

2. The applicant shall perform a hydraulic analysis/study to confirm the 2-story duplexes are capable of meeting

domestic water demands and fire flow sprinkler demands since this location is at the top of PressureZone 3.

3. Hot-Taps to the existing potable distribution system and non-potable distribution system are not allowed. Cut-

in Tees only.

4. There shall be a Sanitary Sewer Manhole Placed at the Property line boundary that differentiates private vs
public sewer system for each Parcel (Two Parcels in total).

5. All on-site water shall be privately owned, operated, and maintained.

6. All on-site sewer shall be privately owned, operated, and maintained

7 tf there is going to be a clubhouse with a kitchen, it will require the applicant to install an 8.5"x1 1" placard

affixed to the wall in the Clubhouse Kitchen that informs users about the Do's and Don'ts of FOG.

L All backflow devices shall be RPPA (Domestic) or RPDA (Fire)

g. All meters shall include a meter bypass per the City's Water Construction Standards.

COMMISSIONER HERRERA SECONDED THE MOTION.

AYES: WEST, MIKLOS, PENA, ROMANELLI, ORTEGA, HERRERA' REYNOLDS
NOES: NONE
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: NONE

MOTION PASSED

3. DRDL22-00304. Fire Station No. 34 Desiqn Review

A Public Meeting to consider a request from the City of Folsom for Design Review approval of a new fire station

located at 3255 Westwood Drive. The specific plan designation for the site is SP-MLD-PD while the General Plan

land-use designation is MLD. The project was previously determined to be exempt from the California

Environmentat Quality Act (CEQA) in accordance with Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines. (Proiect Planner:
Brianna Gustafson/Applicant: Gity of Folsom)

COMMISSIONER REYNOLDS MOVED TO APPROVE A DESIGN REVIEWAPPLICATION FOR FIRE STATION

NO. 34 AS ILLUSTRATED ON ATTACHMENT 5 (DRCL22-OO3O4) BASED ON THE FINDINGS (FINDINGS A.G)

AND SUBJECT TO THE CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL (CONDITIONS 1-28) ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT.

Planning Commission Minutes
February 15,2023
Page 5 of 6

Page 1159

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



COMMISSIONER PENA SECONDED THE MOTION.

AYES: WEST, MIKLOS, PENIA, ROMANELLI, ORTEGA, HERRERA, REYNOLDS
NOES: NONE
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: NONE

MOTION PASSED

+. DRGL22-00304. Russell Ranch Phase 2 Villaqes 1 & 2 Residential Desiqn Review Modifications

A Public Meeting to consider a request from Lennar Homes of California for Design Review approval to modiff
two master plans within the previously approved Russell Ranch Phase 2 Villages 1 and 2 project. The specific
plan designation for the site is SP-SFHD while the General Plan land-use designation is SFHD. An Environmental
lmpact Report was previously certified for the Russell Ranch Subdivision project on May 15, 2015 by the City
Council in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the CEQA
Guidelines and no further environmental review is required as a part of this project. (Project Planner: Josh
Kinkade/Applicant: Lennar Homes of Galifornia)

COMMISSIONER WEST MOVED TO APPROVE A RESIDENTIAL DESIGN REVIEW APPLICATION TO
MODIFY TWO MASTER PLANS WITHIN THE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 2
VILLAGES 1 AND 2 PROJECT AS ILLUSTRATED ON ATTACHMENT 7 FOR THE RUSSEL RANCH PHASE 2

VILLAGES 1 AND 2 RESIDENTIAL DESIGN REVIEW MODIFICATIONS PROJECT (DRCL22-00319) BASED
oN THE FtND|NGS (F|ND|NGS A-J) AND SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (CONDITIONS 1-

14) ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT.

COMMISSIONER ROMANELLI SECONDED THE MOTION

AYES:WEST, MIKLOS, PENA, ROMANELLI, ORTEGA, HERRERA, REYNOLDS
NOES: NONE
RECUSED: NONE
ABSENT: NONE

MOTION PASSED

PLANNING COMMISSION / PLANNING MANAGER REPORT

The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for March 15,2023

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom Planning Commission, Chair Eileen Reynolds
adjourned the meeting at 9:55 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SU BMITTED,

Christina Kelley, ADM lNl STRATIVE ASSISTANT

APPROVED:

Eileen Reynolds, CHAIR

Planning Commission Minutes
February 15,2023
Page 6 of 6

Page 1160

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Attachment 6

Applicant Response Letter, dated March 7 ,2023

Page 1161

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



ROBERT G. HOLDERNESS

March 7, 2023

Mr. Steven Banks
Principal Planner
Community Development Department
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
FoIsom, CA.95630

RE: opposition to Appeal from Planning Commission Project
Approvalr orl February 15, 2023, of the Vintage Senior Apartments
(100? Affordable Housj-ng Project; PN:21-159)

Dear Mr. Banks:

Per your requestr ily cl-ient, Vintage Housing, submits thj-s
l-etter in opposition to the appeal of Katherine L. Gray. and
Mark A. Gray from the Folsom Pl-anning Commission's February 15,
2023, approval of the above project as more particularly set
forth below. This l-etter also provides background information
rel-evant to the issues raised by appellants.

A. BACKGROTIND:
1. The Project c Its Localion: Vintaqe Senior Apartments

["Vintage Apts."] is a 136-unit senior affordable housing
apartment community to be located on a 4.86-acre parcel which is
located across the street from the main entrance to Fol-som State
Prison, and specifically located on the south-westerly side of
Natoma Street at its intersecti-on with Prison Road.

2. The Neiqhborhood:
a. Prison Road connects two male inmate state prisons

and one female detention center, as well as the residential
area known as Represa to the City of Folsom and envj-rons.
The prison grounds are more than 11000 acres in area.
Fo1som Prison is over 130 years o1d. Prison Road is used
by employees at the prison, vendors, suppliers to the
prison, and inmate family members. It is not a thru way,
but only used for access to the grounds of the Folsom

HOLDERNESS LAW FIRM
ATTORNEYATLAW

122 Qak Rock Circle
FOLSOM, CA 95630

Telephone (916) 984-1410
Facsimile (916) 984-1413

1L . :1119s,s ' i','t'nqs, l '( ,:

Mailing Address:
P. O. Box 975

Folsom, CA 95763-0975

Page 1162

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Letter to Steven Banks
March 7, 2023
Paqe 2

Prisons. Access to the prison grounds is the main source
of roadway travel volume along this part of Natoma Street.

b. The project site is within wal-king distance of the
Folsom Police Department, Folsomt s Senior Center, Folsom
City Hall-, Folsom's Community Center, FoIsom's Zoo,
Folsom's main city park, Folsom's Catholic Church and
school, Folsom's Lutheran Church and school, St. Vincent
DePaul's thrift shop, Folsom's Twin Lakes Food Bank,
doctors' offices, a long term care hospital (Vibra
Hospital), two restaurants' a gas station, a battery of
small offices and some retail. It is also walking dj-stance
from a gas station, a Circle K market, and a veterinarian
cl-inic.

c. In addition, the project site backs up to four
individual houses which are part of the Cimarron Hills
Development. Cimarron Hills is a custom home development
started in approximately 1'978. It has about 90 custom
homes, ranging in value Iaccording to Zil]-owl from $600'000
to $1r0001000. However, that development is not the only
nearby residential neighborhood to the project site. There
are about 20 homes in the Evelyn Terrace single family
detached homes development, the houses in that subdivision
that are located on Ruth Court are closer to the project
site than fully I/3 of the hornes in Cimarron Hills.
Moreover, on Montrose Street there are about ten 1960s era
duplexes and two smal-l apartment houses that are probably
sixty years old. Al1 of those residences on Montrose
Street are closer in distance to the project site than
fully two-thirds of the homes in the Cimarron HiIIs
development, yet no one residing on Ruth Court or Montrose
Dri-ve came forward at the Commission's hearings to oppose
this project in their "neighborhood." Anyone who ever
bought a house in the Cimarron Hills development knew that
the aforesaid Montrose Drive residents were already part of
the Cimarron Hil-ls "neighborhood" as were the prison' the
Circle K, the schools, the hospital, city halI & the police
station.

B. THE REQI'ESTED ENTIELEMENTS:
1. Conditional- Use Permit: The subject-4.86-acre parcel J-s

Under the Folsom Municipalzoned BP (Business Professional)

Page 1163

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Letter to Steven Banks
March 7, 2023
Page 3

code (.'FMc,,) the subject project is allowed in the BP zoltel
subject to Planning Commission approval of a Conditional Use

Permit (*CUP-) . FMC Sections L7.22-030 (E)2L4) and
1-7.22.040(1). The appeal in this case is mainly focused on the
claim that this project does not meet any of the requirements
for a CUP. These claims are addressed below.

Densitv Bonus (FMC Section 1 7 .'J.02\ : The Applicant sought a

sity bonus by increasing the density of the project Lo 28
1

den
uni ts/acre, and ancillary bonuses,

(1) Parking fone to
apartments ratiol

(2) Three Stories o

as fol-Iows:
one parking space to

and
above the 35'

f apartments,
(3) 42t 6" in height lor over 7'

standard heiqht limitationl .

A fair reading of the appeal only challenges the
grantinq of these density bonuses by the Planning
Commission within the criteria of the CUP standards'
as hereinafter described. There is no claim that the
project is ineligible for these bonuses, nor that the
Density Bonus Iaw was misaPPlied.

c. Planned Development Permit: Per city staff, a

Planned Development Permit (*PDP") allows greater
flexibility in design of the development and is
employed by the City as a means of encouraqing
creative and efficient uses of land. In this case'
PDP is aimed at estabtishing development standards
building architecture and design for the project.
See, Attachment 3, Section C. of the Planning

the
and

Commission Staff Report dated ,January 18, 2023.
Although some people testified before the Planning
Commission that they had concerns re: the design and
architecture of the building, the appeal of the
Planning Commj-ssion's approval of this project
presents no issues specifically related to the
granting of the PDP.

4. Environmental Assessment 6r Resul-tinq Mit ioated Neqati-ve
Declaration: A mitigated negative declaration, including
Letter to Steven Banks
March 7, 2023
Page 4

Page 1164

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Letter to Steven Banks
March 7, 2023
Page 4

mitigation monitoring, and reporting program, was approved by
the Planning Commission with the finding that the project, as

mitigated, will not have a siqnificant effect on the environment
and based thereon and as conditioned by the commission
Iincluding without limitatj-on, modified conditions No. 3, No.
38, No. 53, and No. 541, there 1s no substantial evidence to the
contrary. See, Planning Commission Staff Report, February 15,

2023, pages 13, I7-2I.

C. CAI.IFORNIA'S AEFORDABLE HOUSIIIG I.AT[

l.rntroduction: As succinctly stated by city staff in its
Feb 15, 2023, report to the Planning Commiss
Folsom Municipal Code continues to govern th

ion, " [w] hile the
e findings required

to grant a conditional use permit, state law has severely
Iimited the City's ability to deny a conditional use permit and
other discretionary approvals in the context of housing
development projects." Planning commission staff Report.
above, at page 4.

2. Overview of Ca]if ornia's Affordable Housing Laws

Appl-ication to this Proiect: The chief state housing statute
on of this project is thegoverning the CitY's considerati

Housing Accountability Act ("HAA"). Government Code Section
65589.5. This law, among other things, l-imits the city's
discretionary power in its consideration of an application for
approval of an affordable housing project until the year 2030.
The Legislature's stated intent is to address California's
current housing crisis. The relevance of that law to this
application is well and ably addressed in the Planning
Commission Staff Report, above, at pages 4-9. There is no need
to repeat or belabor those points: suffice it to say, there is
no objective basis for denying this project on any of the five
statutory grounds set forth in the HAA, and no evidence of the
record to the contrary. Those five statutory criteria are the
only grounds upon which a denial of this project could lawfully
be undertaken by the city of Folsom. In the same vein
Appellants have not presented any evidence, and not identified
any such statutory basis for denial of the project in their
appeal papers.

3. Penalties for Ignoring the Obiective Standards and
Requirements of HAA: Getting right to the pointr ahY denial o f
this project
the city to

in clear viofation of HAA standards would expose
the payment of penalties ranging from $10' 000/unit

Page 1165

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Letter to Steven Banks
March 7, 2023
Page 5

to $50,000/unit. That is, potential penalties 1n the aggregate
ranging from $1.36 million to $4.4 million. It would be
irresponsible for the Appellants to ask the city to ignore the
risk of those penalties by granting this merj-tless appeal-

D. The APPEI.I,A}ITS ,ISSI'ES E THEIR APPEAL:

l.Appellants' Wronqlv Contend that the Initlal Studv and
rhe MND Are Inadeguate: In this case, Appellants "request an

EIR" but fail t o poj-nt to any facts or testimonY adduced at the
Planning Commission hearings of January 18th and February 15th

that establ-ish a factuaf/evidentiary basis for the City to
require an EIR. The applicable 1egal standard, under the
Cal-ifornia Environmental Quality Act (*CEQA"), for requirinq a

full Environmental Impact Report is that a project "may have a

significant effect on the environment-" Public Resources Code
(*PRC"), Sections 21L00 and 21'151". See also, 74 California Code

of Regulations (" CCR"), Section 15063. To meet the statutory
standard, substanti-al evidence is regu ired. Applying that
standard to this case, Applicant contends that there is no
substantial evidence in the adminlstrative record from the
Commission that this project may have a significant effect on

the environment. specifically, no evidence thereof was
presented at the Planning Commission hearings on January 1-8'

2023, or FebruarY 15, 2023.
2. Appel-Iantst "Wait Times" Issue: Appellant's have written'

"Transportation wait times are too long- " This allegation can
only refer to the wait times for vehi-c]es exiting Cimarron
Circle at the western-most intersection of Cimarron Circfe and
Natoma Street, even though the Appellants don't actually say so.
Be that as it may, no probative evidence was presented at either
session of the FoJsom Planning Commission that "wait times" at
that intersection exceeded some City standard for "wait times."
Indeed, the Appel-Iants did not establish before the Commission
that the city has a "wait times" standard that would apply to
that intersection. Moreover, the evidence in the record shows

that the time regulating factor at that intersection is the
existing signal a few yards down the hill at Natoma Street and
Prison Road, not this Affotdable Housing Project for seniors.
No evldence was presented at the Planning Commission hearing
that this senior, affordable housing project wiII upset the
smooth functioning of that signal or that intersection, and the

Page 1166

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Letter to Steven Banks
March 7, 2023
Paqe 6

Appellants present none
appeal.

in their statement of qrounds for the

3. Appeffants cite no facts j-n the Planning Commission
record nor anv authoritv for their contention that thev are
entitled to 'treserve the righ t to brinq additional- info on
appeal": Counsel for the APPlicant
Folsom Municipal Code granting such

knows of no provision of the
a right or power of

reservation to the Appellants. To the contraly, FoIsom
Municipal- Code ("FMC") Section L'l .04.1-20 provides in relevant
part, "...all pelsons interested may appeal and give such evidence
or testimony or make such statements as are pertinent to the
appeal..." (Emphasis Added). It couldn't be otherwiser for were
i_t so, epplicants would not know what they were defending
against. Consequently, the FMC requires Appellants to teII the
Applicant and the Folsom city council the facts "as are
pertinent to the appeal" in their appeal document and without
reservation. Counsel for the Applicant submits this language
from the FMC can only mean that the scope and nature of the
appeal is determj-ned by a fair reading of the four corners of
the appeal document submitted by the Appellants and without any
"resefvation." In other words, Appellants get no second bite at
expandinq or changing the scope of the appeal under this or
other FMC provisions pertinent to this appeal, for to allow such
a "reserve" woufd transgress the ten-day limitation set out in
FMC Section l-7.04.110, and deprive the Applj-cant of its right to
ttDue Process. tt

4. The "Prolect Not Feasibl-e" Claim: The feasibility issue
is not raised under CEQA absent substantiaf evidence that the
project will have a significant impact on the environment. See,
PRC Sections 21-100 and 2l-151, above, and 14 CCR Section 15384;
l,aurel Heights Improvement Association v. Reqents, (etc. ) (1988)
41 C.3d 376, 393. In the hearing before the Fol-som Planning
Commission, Appellants did not meet that burden and their appeal
document is likewise defici-ent. As such, the city counci] is
within its powers to treat thj-s argument as forfeited.
California Farm Bureau Federation v. California Wildlife
Conservation Board

5. Appeflants'
(2006) 143 Cal.App.At'I L73, L92-193.
Attack on Granting the CUP is Groundl-ess:

Appellants allege that practically a1t of the criteria for
denial of a CUP are met. They say the CUP should not be granted
because it "woufd have an adverse effects on public health,

Page 1167

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Letter to Steven Banks
March '7, 2023
Page '1

safety, and welfare and would be detrimental and injurious to
prop"tty and improvements in the neighborhood." Appeal Papers of
Mr. and Mrs. Gray, at page one. In the Grays' appeal papers'
there is no presentation of facts and argument demonstrating the
commissions, alleged failure to fairly, Iawfully apply the cuP

standards in light of the strict requirements of HAA. Nor is
there any argument about how those standards should have been

applied. Likewise, in this appeal, the Appellants fail to join
issue with the '.Modified conditions of Approval." That is'
Conditions No. 38, No. 53, and No. 54. Those three conditions,
were modified in-order-to address concerns raised by some

Cimarron Hi1ls resj-dents at the Commission hearings, as follows:
(1)Condition38providesmoreprotectiontothe

immediate neighbors by strengthening the land
scaping requirements to assure the success of
the landscaping plan, including j-ncreasing the
size of trees to be Planted.

(2) Condition 53 imposes new requirements to
strengthen the safety of the automotive
traveling public, pedestrians, and bicyclists'
i-nto and around the intersection of Natoma
Street and Cimarron Circle as wel-I as the
intersection of Natorna Street with the project
entrance and the Prison Road-

(3) Condition 54 places specific requirements
whereby 130 on-site parking permits are issued
to resj-dents and six designated parking spaces
are reserved for employees and visitors only'

The appeal is also sil-ent on those modified conditions. It
makes no effort to explain how those modifications were
unsatisfactorY or inadequate.

E. CONCI,USION

For all of the reasons above-sLated' the Grays' appeal
should be denied and the February 15, 2023, decision of the
Fol-som Planning Commission granting entitlements to the
Applicant, including without limitation, the conditional use
Permit, the Density Bonus, the Planned Development Permit, the
Mi-tigated negative Declarati-on, etc., and the Conditions of
Approval adopted by the Planning commission on February 15,

////////

Page 1168

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Letter to Steven Banks
March 7, 2023
Page B

2023. herein should be sustained in its entirety by the Folsom
City Council.

Respectfully Submitted'

{S*44Ve/<r4t.r/
Counsel for Vintage Housing

RGH: bh

Cc Folsom City Council
Pam .Tohns, Community Development Director
Scott ,Iohnson, Planning Manager
Steven Banks, Senior Planner
Sari Dierking, Assistant City Attorney
Office of the Folsom City Clerk

Page 1169

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Attachment 7

Additional Public Comment Letters

Page 1170

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



City CouncilMembers:

I had no intention of sending you further correspondence regarding the Vintage Project, however, it has recently come to my
attention that Mr. Holderness of the Holderness law firm personally delivered a copy of an opposition letter he wrote to Steve
Banks to a Cimarron Hills resident. I think the letter is worthy of a response.

First thing is the personal delivery of the letter. ls this common practice? Neither, myself or as far as I know has anyone who has
written letters opposing this project to Steve Banks, the planning commission or the city council sent or personally delivered
copies to Vintage Properties, Mr. Holderness, or the Holderness Law firm. I will not speculate on his intentions but it does come
across as an intimidation tactic.

Second, this lefter was wriften to Steve Banks who is the Principal Planner for the city of Folsom and the first line reads, " Per your
requesf'. ls it customary for the Principal Planner of the city to request letters of opposition from developers or their
attorneys? This seems odd. lt brings other questions to mind. Such as what exactly is Mr. Banks relationship to the developer or
its attorney? ls he working for them or for the ci$? Was there a previous meeting between the developer and Mr. Banks prior to
purchasing the property or shortly after? Were promises made to the developer by Mr. Banks or the city? And if so what was the
context of these conversations and promises? I think it also begs the question did the Vintage Properties give any donation or
financial contributions to the city or promise to do so in the future? I think the citizens of Folsom deserve answers to these
questions.

He addresses the proximig to services for this location. He is mistaken on several of his points. They are not in proximity to any
grocery stores. Circle K is not a grocery store and it does not cany a large variety of products. Also their prices are marked
higher than a grocery and probably not feasible for someone who is living in affordable housing, There is a very limited amount of
retail, I mean sure if your looking to buy flowers. One of the restaurants located near by is closing and will not be available. There
are no doctors offices within walking distance and Vibra Hospital is a private hospitalwith no emergency services.

Mr. Holderness is mistaken Ruth Court is not closer to the project than the Cimarron Hills neighborhood. Our neighborhood
literally backs up to the project, lt is curios that he assumes neighbors in these adjoining neighborhoods are not opposed to the
project. Many were at the initial meetings with Vintage as well as being in attendance at both planning commission
meetings. Just because they did not speak during the meetings does not mean they were not there or opposed. The planning
commission was given a petition signed by over 400 residents and I guarantee if you look up the addresses, they were from all
over Folsom. As for the duplex's Mr. Holderness specifically mentions, these are with few exception rentals. Many of the owners
may have not of even gotten word of this project, Most renters and many owners who never intend on living in these properties
may not be motivated to participate in opposition.

As for Mr. Holderness claim that turning onto Natoma St. via Cimarron Circle and Fargo is not an issue, I think he is just being
disingenuous. lf you have not attempted to turn onto Natoma St. especially during peak hours I encourage you to give it try.

Mr. Holderness also suggests that the neighbors appealing this are somehow irresponsible. I would counter that a fellow Folsom
resident who is a former city council member and mayor who would champion a project that literally shoves a three-story
apartment complex in between a neighborhood of single residential homes and one-story office buiEing is indeed the
irresponsible party.

Mr. Holderness than proceeds into a bunch of legalities. As I do not have a law degree I will stay in my lane and let the attorneys
hash that out. I will say that it sounds as if Mr. Holderness is trying to manipulate and convince you to decide in his favor. Not
surprising as that is what he was hired to do. I would hope that you would consider your decision carefully and not make the
threat of litigation your determining factor. Not everyone who threatens litigation follows through and if they do there is no
guarantee of them winning. Once again please keep the interests of your constituents in mind.

Thank you,
Dreama Pacheco

Page 1171

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



1

This email pertains to the proposed building project "Vintiage Senior Apartments" located
at Natoma and Prison Rd. At the two Planning Commission meetings there were many concerns raised
regarding this "afiordable, s€nior, 136 units, 3 stories tall I 42'+6"1 buildino,"
Six of the planning commissioners (one absent) publicly stated at the first meeting they were against this
project.

Below are some of the issues raised:

1. lfs a very unauitable location br a 'seniof complex as it lacks any of the support systems needed
by seniors, such as nearby grocery store, drug store, restaurants, or general shopping. Plus there is
NO public transportation available.

2. There were con@rns frcm the planning commission regarding the feasibility that fire engines,
especially a hook and ladder, would NOT have adequate room to move about in the case of a fire.
To be clear, I'm not referring to response time.

3. lssues of "safeg' regarding the intersection itself. Presently Natoma is one lane in each direction
with a lefi turn lane for Prison Rd. The developer's traflic expert stated that the intersection is/orwill
be "tight". Keep in mind that Natoma is a major artery leading to Folsom Lake and many vehicles tow
large boats that require adequate space for safe passage. Also the new "4-way" traffic light is going
to create backlons on Natoma extending beyond Fargo, making it difficult & "unsafe" to tum "leff'
onto Fargo or left from Fargo onto Natoma. This will especially be noticeable on school days &
Sundays with the comings and goings from St John's. Also trying to exit from either end of Cimmaron
and Randall (making left turns) will become much harder and dangerous. The Gity Council should
demand additional and very detailed studies on this intersection to determine how the traffic patterns
will effect the public's safety. Don't just accept their first study, The ci$ needs further detailed
analysis.

4. The crosswalk across Natoma at Prison Rd is a crosswalk to "nowhere". Once on the "prison side"
there are no sidewalks east or west. One has to walk either on the street or dirt before reaching a
sidewalk or trail entrance. This is NOT AFE. lf this project goes through the developer should be
required to add sidewalks on both sides of Natoma.

5. There is a ravine within this property that has merging creeks. During the rainy season water is
present in these creek beds, lt appears some of this water comes from the hills of the prison land,
goes under Natoma and spills into this plot of land. Their packet(s) noted a preliminary water analysis
was preformed in 2022. We've been in a multi year drought, so how accurate can their cunent
analysis be? The city council needs a new and updated comprehensive water and land report before
any voting. Also this five acres will require extensive grading and tree removal.

6. The planned 136 parking spaces are not adequate. Of the 136 spaces: 6 will be for
employees/guests, an additional 20 for disabled and another 14 for EV (which will not even be
hooked up). Leaving a total of 96 spaces. As noted by their lawyer, excess cars will probably park
on the public streets of Cimmaron Cir & Montrose Dr. Their plan to have written into the rental
contract "one car per unif' will be impossible to enforce and multi cars per unit will create a shortage
of on site parking. The excess cars, parking on the surrounding neighborhood streets will cause
traffic and safety issues.

It is sad that we've entered an era where bulldog, profit hungry corporations and their
pit bull lawyers, roar into towns, dictate "their projects" and threaten law suits if they don't get their way,
They appear to have little regard for the community they're impacting.

Please DO NOT approve this project. lt is a square peg & they're attempting to jack hammer it into a
round hole despite any safe$ @ncerns that have been expressed. lt does not fit this particular plot of
land/location & comes with many public safety issues.

Sincerely, Jean Sundermier 339 Cimmaron Gir

Page 1172

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:

Connie Clark <cclark610@icloud.com>

Saturday, March 18,20237:52 AM
Steven Banks

Sr housingSubiect:

[You don't often get email from cclark510@icloud.com. Learn why this is important at
https://aka. ms/Lea rnAboutSenderldentificatio n l

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not cllck links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Everyone knows this project is necessary. A senior housing project is not a threat to the community and should not be

threatened, Unless those who oppose it have a better location, let it go through.

Sent from my iPhone

1

Page 1173

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



Steven Banks

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

[You don't often get email from lsototTt2@gmail.com. Learn why this is important at
https://aka.ms/Lea rnAboutSenderldentification J

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you

recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Just wanted to make sure you know you have community support for this affordable housing project for Folsom. We are
in dire need of more affordable housing and this is a beautiful spot for seniors where they can still be integrated into our
community and enjoy the nature and quiet that Folsom has to offer. This will help create more housing that will allow
for much needed diversity in Folsom. Thank you for developing this project.

Lindsey Soto Sent from my iPhone

Lindsey Soto <lsotol 71 2@gmail.com>
Friday, March 17,2023 2:48 PM

Steven Banks

Vintage at Folsom senior apartments support

1

Page 1174

03/28/2023 Item No.13.



'{.i ; i1"'i

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The City Manager recommends that the City Council move and adopt Resolution No. 11015

- A Resolution Adopting the City of Folsom Strategic Plan, FY 2023-24 through FY2027-28

(Attachment 1).

BACK / ISSUE

The City Manager and the City Council sought to develop a Clty strategic plan and

correlating implementation plan to provide City leaders with a road map to capture

opportuniiies and address challenges over the next five years. The City Manager committed

to delivering a strategic plan for adoption by the City Council by March 31,2023.

The City Manager worked with the City Council on foundational strategic planning activities

throughout the last year, including during two special Clty Council meetings. Later in the

process, the City Manager retained consulting firm Baker Tilly to help guide the City

Council through to completion of the draft strategic plan (which can be found in Attachment

2).

The strategic planning process included gathering input from members of the City Council,

the City's Executive Management Team, community stakeholders, and businesses:

1

MEETING DATE: 3t2812023

AGENDA SECTION: Old Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11015 - A Resolution Adopting the City of
Folsom Strategic Plan, FY2023-24 through FY2027-28

FROM: City Manager's Office

Page 1175

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Early City Council Input
A first step in the planning process was interviews with each member of the City Council to
gather their input about challenges and key priorities for the future.

Gap Analysis Questionnaire
A gap analysis questionnaire was completed by the City's Executive Management Team,

providing input about strengths, weaknesses/limitations, opportunities, and threats
(SWOT analysis); goals; and mission, vision, and values. Significant plans and projects were
identified.

Community and Business Input
Input from the community was gathered through a survey conducted in March 2022by
Godbe Research. A qualitative survey was also sent out to all City residents, with assistance

by CliffordMoss. Input from the business community was gathered by Baker Tilly through
an online survey conducted in January, 2023.

Workshops
A full day workshop with the City's Executive Management Team was held in December,
2022to discuss the information gathered. A City Council workshop was held in February,
2023 to discuss goals and strategies and to decide on top priorities.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.02 of the Charter of the City of Folsom (General Powers of the City Council) states

that all powers of the City shall be vested in the City Council, except as otherwise provided
by this Charter.

ANALYSIS

The Strategic Plan contains a renewed vision and mission statement, along with a set of
values for the organization. Our vision is aspirational, a statement of the future for the City of
Folsom. Our mission represents the purpose of the City of Folsom organization Our values
reflect expected behaviors of all members of the City of Folsom - including staff and

appointed and elected officials.

The City of Folsom Strategic Plan contains four high-level goals:

(A) Financial Stability and Sustainability,

(B) Public Safety and Infrastructure,

(C) Economic and Community Development, and

2Page 1176

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



(D) Organi zation Effectiveness'

Each goal contains a set of strategies for implementation over the five-year period.

To further help drive direction through the current fiscal year, FY2023-24, andFY2024-25,

the City Council examined all of the strategies and identified five top priorities, known as the

City Council's Priorities. These include:

Identifu a funding plan to expand police department facilities to meet department

needs. (Goal B, Strategy 3)

Identifu funding to increase police department staffing to meet community needs

(Goal B, Strategy 4)

Initiate technology solutions to streamline organization and improve efficiency. (Goal

B, Strategy 9)

Complete the River District Master Plan to enhance the City's waterfront and

waterfront-adjacent recreation and development opportunities. (Goal C, Strategy 1)

Develop funding/sponsorship plan for the Johnny Cash Trail (JCT) art trail to
increase tourism focused on Lake Natoma. (Goal C, Strategy 5)

An Implementation Action Plan correlates with and supports the Strategic Plan. The

Implementation Action Plan is an internal staff document that will contain a schedule, roles,

*d r"rporsibilities and key steps toward achieving the plan. Upon adoption of the Strategic

Plan, staff will use the Implementation Action Plan to carry out the Strategic Plan and

monitor progress, reporting back to the City Council and the community at least twice each

fiscal year. A strategic planning website will be developed to assist with communicating the

plan to the community and the region.

The Strategic Plan will guide financial, operational, and policy decisions starting now and

through FY2027-28, with oversight by the City Manager, in partnership and cooperation with
the City Council and staff.

Each fiscal year, the City Manager will bring the Strategic Plan to the City Council for

review, and updates and changes will be made as needed.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact associated with adopting the Strategic Plan. Future City Budgets

will contain the City Council Priorities, and the City Manager will seek to align the

Preliminary Budget along those priorities.

a

a

a

a

a

a
JPage 1177

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 11015 - A Resolution Adopting the City of Folsom Strategic Plan, FY
2023 -24 through FY 2027 -28

2. Draft City of Folsom Strategic Plan, FY2023-24 through FY2027-28

Submitted,

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

4Page 1178

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. L10L5

Page 1179

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. 11015

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF FOLSOM STRATEGIC PLAN,
FY 2023.24 THROUGH FY 2027.28

WHEREAS, the City Manager and the City Council sought to develop a City strategic

plan to provide City leaders with a road map to capture opportunities and address challenges

over the next five years; and

WHEREAS, the strategic planning process included gathering input from members of
the City Council, the City's Executive Management Team, community stakeholders, and

businesses; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager worked with the City Council on foundational strategic

planning activities throughout the last year, including during two special City Council meetings.

Later in the process, the City Manager retained consulting firm Baker Tilly to help guide the City
Council through to completion of the draft strategic plan, with Baker Tilly consultants

facilitating day-long workshops with both the City's Executive Management Team and the City
Council; and

WHEREAS, the City's strengths, weaknesses/limitations, opportunities, and threats;

goals; and mission, vision, and values were critically examined and refreshed, and major projects

identified;

WHEREAS, the City Council identified four strategic goals which are memorialized in
the Strategic Plan: (A) Financial Stability and Sustainability, (B) Public Safety and

Infrastructure, (C) Economic and Community Development, and (D) Organization Effectiveness;

and

WHEREAS, the Strategic Plan also includes the City's vision, mission, values, goals,

City Council priorities, and strategies; and

WHEREAS, the Strategic Plan will guide financial, operational, and policy decisions

starting now and through FY2027-28; and,

WHEREAS, staff will use an Implementation Action Plan to carry out the Strategic Plan

and monitor progress, reporting back to the City Council and the community at least twice each

fiscal year; and,

WHEREAS, each fiscal year, the City Manager will bring the Strategic Plan to the City
Council for review, and updates and changes will be made as needed'

Resolution No. 11015

Page I of2 Page 1180

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

adopts the city of Folsom strategic Plan, FY2023-24 through FY2027-28.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of March,2023, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Rosario Rodriguez, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. I l0l5
Page2 of2 Page 1181

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 2

Draft Strategic Plan

Page 1182

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



DRAFT

?:t l;t>;: .,-.-.t : : /\. -,:.: r,.'(iFi-r ii,-

City of Folsom

Strategic Plan

€bskenily tsli*:'"

l'()Ls()N[ FY 2023-24 through FY 2027-28
Page 1183

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Table of Contents

Statement from City Council

Message from the City Manager

About Folsom

Opportunities and Challenges

Vision, Mission and Values

Multi-Year Goals

City Council Priorities

Goal A: Financial Stability and Sustainability

Goal B: Public Safety and lnfrastructure

Goal C: Economic and Community Development

Goal D: Organizational Effectiveness

I mplementation and Tracking

Conclusion

Attachment A: Strategic Planning Process

Attachment B: Organizational Chart

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

11

13

14

15

16

17

Page 1184

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



The Folsom City Council is dedicated to ensuring Folsom's high standards for
public health, safety, and quality of life.

Through responsible leadership, the City Council provides policy direction and

financial oversight to the City Man ager, who is hired by and is accountable to the

City Council. The City Manager is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the

City organization under the Council/Manager form of government. With an eye to

the long-term, the City Council serves as careful stewards for residents and

businesses as they guide the direction of the City.

Page 1185

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Strategic Planning Gu idance
Provided By

. Elaine Andersen, City Manager

. Allison Garcia, Human Resources
D i recto r

. Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

. Christine Brainerd,
Communicatlons Director

. Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

. Lorraine Poggione, Parks and
Recreation Director

. Marcus Yasutake, Environmental
and Water Resources Director

. Mark Rackovan, Public Works
D i recto r

. Pam Johns, Community
Development Director

. Rick Hillman, Police Chief

. Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director

. Steve Wang, City Attorney

. Thomas Gruneisen, Library Director

,'€q,
':'

*

A Message from the City
Manager"

This Strategic Plan sets the path for the City of
Folsom for the next five years. lt contains the
City Council's guidance regarding top policy
priorities and establishes the frarllework lor
allocating resources to achieve important
objectives.

Many people participated in developing this
Strategic Plan. We started with seeking early
input from members of the City Council through
individual interviews conducted by our
facilitators. The executive team provided
detailed information about current and future
plans and projects, as well as participated in a
day-long workshop. Community input was
obtained through the Godbe Research survey
conducted in March2022, and business
community input was gathered through an

online survey conducted by Baker Tilly in

January 2023. See Attachment A for more
information about our strategic planning
process.

As we implement our Strategic Plan, we will
continue to strengthen ties between the City of
Folsom and our many community members
and partners.

Success of the City of Folsom will always be a
team effort.

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

2Page 1186

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



About the City of Folsom
The City of Folsom was founded in 1856, incorporated
in1946, and chartered in 1990. The City is located
approximately 1 10 miles northeast of San Francisco,
and 20 miles east of Sacramento. A full-service Charter
city, Folsom covers approximately 30 square miles and
serves over 81,000 residents.

City services include police, fire, public works, planning,
parks and recreation, library, water, wastewater, and
solid waste utilities. The City is known for its high water
quality, which has helped attract major corporations to
Folsom. Major employers in Folsom include lntel,
Kikkoman, Kaiser Permanente, Toshiba, Micron, Kioxia,
Gekkeikan, and Safe Credit Union.

Folsom is rich in history and has connections to
California's Gold Rush, the Pony Express, and the first
railroad in the West. Folsom's revitalized Historic District
includes the Folsom History Museum and the Folsom
Hotel (a landmark since 1885), and offers premier
dining, shopping, and historic architecture.

Folsom's Zoo Sanctuary, aquatic center, 48 parks, 50
miles of paved recreational trails, Folsom Lake, Lake
Natoma, and American River are just a few of the
attractions offering outdoor recreational and
educational activities to residents and visitors.

I

Committees and Commissions

The City of Folsom has long benefited from the involvement of residents in many civic activities.

One of the ways that residents can be involved is by serving on one of the City's commissions

and committees, which are listed below.

. Arts and Culture Commission

. Historic District Commission

. Landscaping and Lighting Districts Advisory Committee

. Library Commission

J

. Parks and Recreation

. Planning Commission

. Traffic Safety Committee

. Utility Commission

Page 1187

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Cha llenges

. Lack of financial capacity to provide
existing and future needed services and
infrastructu re

. Outdated technology

. Need for greater planning for future
needs

. Employee retirements and turnover

. Lack of affordable housing

. Growing population with new needs

. lnability to maintain current service
levels

Opportun:ties
. Abundant historic and recreational

amenities

. Strong interest in the River District and
Central Business District

. Strong interest in creating a Folsom Plan
Area town center

. Prominent healthcare and high-tech
industries

. Capacity for revenue enhancement

. Strong community sense of volunteerism

. Greaterefficiencythrough use of new
technologies

. Grow public-private partnerships

I
I
II

I

Opportunities and Challenges
The City of Folsom has numerous opportunities and several challenges

I

I

,^.-
I \..r

)'N

\/

Major Factors lnfluencing Folsom's Future
Significant changes have occurred in recent years and other factors will influence

the next 10 and more years. Some are listed below.

0
o

Effects of the
pandemic

Folsom Plan
Area

Threat of
wildfires

Unfunded state
mandates

o

B tft $

4

Tight labor
ma rket

Rising housing
costs

Financial
capacity

Page 1188

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Vision, Mission
and Values

,. t:
,f r; I

Our vision is aspirational, a

statement of the future. Our
mission represents the
purpose of the City of l-olsom
as an organization. Our
values reflect expected
behaviors of all members of
the City of Folsom - including
stafl appointed and elected
officials. We are proud of
where we are going as a city,

and how we go about our
work.

q/

t--|
; riaiiar*.-

VISION
The City of Folsom serves as a role model and regional leaderthat blends its rich historical roots
and diverse cultural, recreational, and business resources into a great community.

MrssroN
The City of Folsom provides a safe, healthy, and vibrant community through inno_vative, responsive,
and effbctive delivery of public services to maintain and enhance the quality of life of our residents.

VALUES
lntegrity: Demonstrating honesty and strong ethical principles in all actions and decisions.

professionalism: Delivering high-quality services based on the skills and competence of trained
employees, and best industry practices.

Financial stability: Planning for the long term and making decisions in the short term to ensure
the necessary resources are available to deliver City services and achieve goals established by

the Council. 
5Page 1189

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Multi-Year
Goals

lllllti'$r

$ilu

We have ambitious goals as we respond to
community interests and organizational needs.
Our Strategic Plan contains four multi-year goals

covering a range of important initiatives intended
to position the City well over five years.

Goal A: Financial stability
and Sustainability

I
I
I'
rl

Goal B: Public safety and

lnfrastructure

ryr

Goal C: Economic and

Community Development

Goal D: organization
Effective n ess

I-;
Its:cif

I

\ I

\l

Each of these goals has an associated set
of strategies.

The City Council's top priorities for the first
two years are shown on the next page.

Page 1190

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



a ldentify a funding plan to expand police department facilities to meet department needs.
(Goal B, Strategy 3)

ldentifu funding to increase police department staffing to meet community needs. (Goal B,

Strategy 4)

lnitiate technology solutions to streamline organization and improve efficiency. (Goal B,

Strategy 9)

Complete the River District Master Plan to enhance the City's waterfront and

waterfront-adjacent recreation and development opportunities. (Goal C, Strategy 1)

Develop funding/sponsorship plan for the Johnny Cash Trail (JCT) art trail to increase tourism
focused on Lake Natoma. (Goal C, Strategy 5) 

7

a

Page 1191

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Goal A:
Financial Stability
and Sustainability
Support fiscal health through long-term
planning, cost control, heightened efficiency,
increased revenue, and cost recovery.

The following table contains nine strategies intended to
help the City achieve the goal of financial stability and
sustainability over the next several years. For each
strategy, the time frame that work will begin has been
noted. ln a number of cases, the strategy is a
continuation of work that began previously but
significant effort will be needed to complete the
strategy.

i\\q:

t?

br

STRATEGIES

Yeor to Begin Strotegy
FY2A22-23, FY2025-26and

FY2023-24and FY2026'27
FY 2A24-25

1. Evaluate current policies for cost recovery and actual revenue
received and modify as needed to implement increased cost X

.__-te-99Y9ry._-_
2. ldentify and prioritize services needed, and determine the

costs of those services, to meet current and increased X
population.

3. Assess the procurement process for contracts to streamline
processes, i d entifo i nefficiencies, ach ieve cost savi ngs. X

4. Prepare and implement updated financial policies that
incorporate a minimum emergency reserve and policy for use X
of any surplus funds at year-end

5. Create a long-term funding plan that includes a fund-balance
policyfor deferred and ongoing infrastructure needs including
asset replacement (e.g., drainage, parks, vehicle replacement,
city facilities, technology, and other).

X

6. Develop new funding sources and strategies to build new
facilities or expand and enhance existing facilities to meet the X
demands of a growing poPulation.

7. Develop additional revenue sources for consideration to
provide sufficient revenues to deliver services to the
community.

X

8. Quantify the costs of and resources assigned to carry out
major special events to ascertain any potential changes
needed, and determine the economic impacts of such events

9. Update the Public Facilities Financing Plan for the Folsom Plan
Area.

X

X
8Page 1192

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Goal B: Public Safety and
Infrastructure
Enhance provision of public safety resources,
invest in technological solutions, and maintain,
repair, and improve public facilities and
i nfra stru ctu re.

The following table contains 19 strategies intended to
help the City achieve the goal of public safety and
infrastructure over the next several years' For each

strategy, the time frame that work will begin has been
noted. ln a number of cases, the strategy is a
continuation of work that began previously but
significant effort will be needed to complete the
strategy,

a:J

t

,#c ?'f*
\

STRATEGIES

Year to Begin Strategy

FY2022-21 FY2025-26and
FY 2023-24and FY 2026-27

FY 2024-25

Fire ond Police

1. Complete plans for a new, second fire station in the Folsom
Plan Area, including an initial staffing plan of nine additional
employees for a single engine company.

2. Develop a plan to meet future fire department needs including
review of need for additional stations, apparatus, and
ad m i nistrative and training facil ities.

X

X

3. ldentify a funding plan to expand police department facilities to
meet department needs. X

4. ldentify funding to increase police department staffing to meet
Xcommunity needs.

E nvi ron m e nto I S usto i no h i I itY

5. Establish a plan and identifu a funding source for completing a

transition to full electric fleet by 2035.
X

6. Conduct a full inventory of greenhouse gas emissions on the
City's fixed assets. X

Technology

7. Conduct an organization-wide lT needs assessment that could
lead to an lT strategic roadmaP.

X

8. Establish a funded replacement schedule for updating and
replacing outdated hardware and software. X

9 Xlnitiate technology solutions to streamline organization and
improve efficiency. IPage 1193

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Yesr to Begin Strategy
FY 2022-23- FY 2O25-26 and

FY 2023-24and FY 2026-27
FY 2024-25

STRATEGIES

Technology

10. Assess what would be involved in becoming a "Smart City'
and establish a plan that matches resources as feasible.

X

11. lmplement a robust Human Resources lnformation System
(HRIS) that allows HR staff to track important employee
information such as recruiting and talent acquisition,
compensation, and organizational and absence management.

X

12. Create a city intranet for all forms, processes, templates,
contracts, approved City documents, and internal files to
increase efficiency and security of file and document use.

X

13. Create new ways for the public to access information and
records for increased transparency and to meet Public
Records Act req uirements.

X

Public Works

14. Establish a method of assessing and comparing the relative
costs and benefits of roundabouts in lieu of traffic signal
controls and create criteria to apply in determining which
alternative to em oy.

X

15. Establish an asset management plan and program forfleet
ma and parts procurement.

X

16. Study, design, and construct capital improvements to
enhance traffic flow and improve safety citywide. X

Psrks qnd Recredtion

17. Update the Zoo Sanctuary Master Plan to provide focus for
future operations, funding, and development. X

18. Prepare an update to the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. X
19. Update the Arts and Culture Master Plan.

Page 1194

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Goal C: Economic and
Community DeveloPment ":: 

'- h *:-..-

Promote effective use of existing amenities
and resources to create future opportunities
that enrich the communitY.

The following table contains ten strategies intended
to help the City achieve its economic and community
development goals over the next several years. For
each strategy, the time frame that work will begin
has been noted. ln a number of cases, the strategy is
a continuation of work that began previously but
significant effort will be needed to complete the
strategy,

.,i, n

t,\

l./.

STRATEGIES

Yeqr to Begin StrotegY
FY 2022-21 FY 2025-26and

FY 2023-24and FY 2A25-27
FY 2024-25

Preporotion of Plons

1 Complete the River District Master Plan to enhance the Citys
waterfro nt a nd wate rfront-a dja cent recreatio n a nd X
development opportu n ities.

2. Complete a master plan of the Ciq/s central business district
with the goal to revitalize land use and infrastructure and set
the foundation for future investments.

X

3. Create a plan for relocating the corporation ya rd, including
funding and timing. X

Outreoch and Business Development

4 Evaluate market opportunities in Folsom to create
opportunities to leverage existing high tech, healthcare, and
other significant local industries.

X

5. Establish a long-term vision for the Wye property and the
Placerville and Sacramento Valley Railroad.

X

6. Develop funding/sponsorship plan for the Johnny cash Trail
(JCT) art trail to increase tourism focused on Lake Natoma. X

7. Devel
bicycl

op a narrative plan (e.g., QR codes) along walking and
e trails, and historic sites for self-guided tours. X

8. Partner with choose Folsom to market Folsom as a premier
recreation and competitive events destination in northern
California (e.g., Folsom Lake, Lake Natoma, the Historic
District, scenic trails, bike trails, etc.).

X

11Page 1195

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Yeor to Begin Strotery
FY2O22-21 FY2O25-26and

FY 2023-24and FY 2A26-27
FY 2924-25

STRATEGIES

Outreach ond Business Development

9 ldentify fun
large scale,
provide rec

ding and other factors to determine feasibility of
high! visible facilities and events that could
reational and tourism benefits to the community.

X

10. conduct community outreach and collaborate with private
developers to implement the vision-concept for a town
center.in the Folsom Plan Area (preliminary plans submitted
and under review).

X

i

f

Page 1196

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Goal D: Organtzalion
Effectiveness
Build strong connections and support for the
community and employees through a
commitmeint to local government best
practices and employee development, support,
and retention to meet communtty needs.

The following table contains five strategies intended to
help the City achieve the goal of organizational
effectiveness over the next several years' For each

strategy, the time frame that work will begin has been
noted. ln a number of cases, the strategy is a

continuation of work that began previously but
significant effort will be needed to complete the
strategy.

t!
.r\,

I .r/
gT

'd..

$''
L

t,

8:
r\

ffi
ri

)> ;,\

STRATEGIES

Yesr to Begin StrstegY
FY 2022-23, FY 2025-26 and

FY 2023-24and FY 2026-27
FY 2024-25

1. lmplement multi-year staffing and succession planning for
each department in consideration of projected retirements and
turnover.

X

2. Establish an enhanced employee training program that
includes the latest tools in technology, local government best
practices, and new customer service approaches (e'9., Folsom
University 2.0, lunch and learns, "how to" videos).

X

3. Establish customer service standards and corresponding

. - - -r-e-s-oj l9e- lY l-dj l-e,
4. Establish a diversity, equi$t, and inclusion (DEl) program to

support an environment welcoming to people of all X
. 9-q{e'-"-ll9-': -
5. Actively promote continuous improvement in City operations. X

13Page 1197

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



lmplementation Action Plan
An lmplementation Action Plan, contained in a separate document, provides

further information. This includes the starting year, lead person and key tasks for
each strategy. Timelines may be adjusted based on changing priorities, budget
and personnel availability.

Tracking and Reporting Progress
Progress reports will be provided to the City Council on a regular basis.

14Page 1198

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



* "tr

This Strategic Plan is designed to guide the work and future of the City of Folsom.
The plan articulates ourvision, mission, and values and establishes a set of goals,
strategies, and City Council priorities to guide the work of the City over the next
five years.

The plan will be updated periodically as we accomplish our priorities and as needs
change.

The City of Folsom is committed to continuing collaboration with our many
partners in achieving the goals in this Strategic Plan.

Thank you to everyone who contributed to this important planning effort.
15Page 1199

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



AttachmentA:
Strategic Planning Process
The strategic planning process included gathering input
from members of the City Council, executive leadership
team, community and businesses.

Early City Council lnput
A first step in the planning process was interviews with
each member of the City Councilto gather their input
about challenges and key priorities for the future.

Gap Analysis Questionnaire
A gap analysis questionnaire was completed by the
Citys executive team, providing input about strengths,
wea knesses/l i m itatio ns, opportu n ities, a nd th reats
(SWOT); goals; and mission, vision and values.
Significant plans and projects were identified.

Community and Business lnput
lnput from the community was gathered through a
survey conducted in March 2022by Godbe Research,
lnput from the business community was gathered by
Baker Tilly through an online survey conducted in
January 2023.

Workshops
A full day workshop with the executive team was held in
December 2022to discuss the information gathered. A
City Council workshop was held in February 2023to
discuss goals and strategies and to decide on top
priorities.

Regular Updates
City staff will be providing updates on progress of the
Strategic Plan, An lmplementation Action Plan
accompanies this Strategic Plan. Each year, the strategic
plan will be reviewed, and updates and changes will be
made as needed.

16Page 1200

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



Attachment B:
Organtzational Chart
The City of Folsom is organized as shown in th following chart. The largest departments are
police, fire, public works, library services, environmental and water resources, parks and
recreation, and community development.

Citizens

City Council

City Attorney City Manager City Clerk

Human Resources Management and
Budget

Environmental
and Water ResourcesPolice

Parks
and Recreation

Fire

Library Services

Public Works Community
Development

Page 1201

03/28/2023 Item No.14.



This page intentionally Ieft blank
to facilitste double- sided printing .

6IT Y OF

FOLSOl\{
OI9TIHCTIVg BY NATURE

Page 1202

03/28/2023 Item No.14.


	Top
	03/28/2023 Item No.1.	Folsom Tourism and Economic Development Corporation (TEDCorp) Quarterly Report
	03-28 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION TEDCORP QUARTERLY REPORT

	03/28/2023 Item No.2.	Approval of March 14, 2023 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	03-28 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF MARCH 14, 2023

	03/28/2023 Item No.3.	Ordinance No. 1337 - An Uncodified Ordinance  of the City of Folsom Approving Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement Between the City of Folsom and Eagle Commercial Properties, LLC Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan (Second Reading and Adoption)
	03-28 STAFF REPORT ORD 1337 AMEND 2 TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOLSOM RANCH APTS 2ND READING

	03/28/2023 Item No.4.	Resolution No. 11006 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with McGuire and Hester for the Construction of the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No. 3 Project and Appropriation of Funds
	03-28 STAFF REPORT RES 11006 GREENBACK SEWER AND LIFT STATION 3

	03/28/2023 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 11008 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the City of Folsom Fire Department Middle Management Employees (CFFDMME)
	03-28 STAFF REPORT RES 11008 CFFDMME MOU

	03/28/2023 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 11009 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Middle Management Group (FMMG)
	03-28 STAFF REPORT RES 11009 FMMG MOU

	03/28/2023 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 11013 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with NBS Government Financing Group for Assessment Engineering Services
	03-28 STAFF REPORT RES 11013 ASSESSMENT ENGINEERING SERVICES

	03/28/2023 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 11014 - A Resolution Directing the Preparation of Engineer’s Report for the Following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge II/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs
	03-28 STAFF REPORT RES 11014 L AND L PREPARATION OF ENGINEERS REPORT

	03/28/2023 Item No.9.	2022 General Plan (and Housing Element) Annual Progress Report
	03-28 STAFF REPORT GNERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT

	03/28/2023 Item No.10.	Amendment to City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2
	03-28 STAFF REPORT ORD 1338 RES 11010 RES 11011 CFD 23 FOLSOM RANCH IMP AREA NO. 2

	03/28/2023 Item No.11.	Proposed Historic Folsom Property & Business Improvement District
	03-28 STAFF REPORT RES 11007 PETITION AND BALLOT FPBID

	03/28/2023 Item No.12.	Housing Element Program H-2 - Additional Housing Capacity Buildout Assumptions Analysis and Recommendations
	03-28 STAFF REPORT HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAM H-2

	03/28/2023 Item No.13.	Appeal by Katharine Gray of Decisions by the Planning Commission Adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and Approving a Conditional Use Permit, Planned Development Permit, and Density Bonus for Development of the 136-unit Vintage Senior Apartments project (PN 21-259) Located at 103 East Natoma Street
	03-28 STAFF REPORT PLANNING COMMISSION APPEAL VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PART 1 OF 2
	03-28 STAFF REPORT PLANNING COMMISSION APPEAL VINTAGE SENIOR APARTMENTS PART 2 OF 2

	03/28/2023 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 11015 - A Resolution Adopting the City of Folsom Strategic Plan, FY2023-24 through FY2027-28
	03-28 STAFF REPORT RES 11015 ADOPT STRATEGIC PLAN

	Bottom

